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DOMINION LAW REPORTS
BERNIER v. PARADIS.

Supreme Court of Canada, Idington, Duff, Anglin, Brodeur, and Mignault, 
JJ. June SO, 1991.

Crown lands ($ I—5)—Colonization lots—Location tickets—Sale op 
timber—Fraud—Order-in-Council—Effect—R. S. Q. 1909, sec. 
1572—Constitution.

An agreement which is a part of a scheme by which Crown lands, 
which are not suited for settlement are to he acquired, contrary to the 
policy of the statute concerning colonization, with the object of enabl­
ing the parties to get possession of the timber on terms less onerous 
than those which would have been imposed had they attempted to buy 
the timber as such from the Government, is null and void and cannot 
be enforced by legal proceedings.

Appeal from the judgment of the Court of King’s Bench, 
appeal side, Province of Quebec, 30 Que. K.B. 372, reversing 
the judgment of Roy, J., at the trial, and maintaining the res­
pondent’s action. Reversed.

L. St.-Laurent, K.C., for appellant.
A. Perreault, K.C., for respondent.
Idington, J. :—This appeal raises the question of the legality 

of the following contract between the parties hereto, who signed 
same :—

“In the year one thousand, nine hundred and thirteen, the 
twenty-fourth day of December.

Mr. Daniel Bernier, farmer, of the parish of Cap St. Ignace, 
who acknowledges by these presents to have sold, with warranty 
and free and clear, unto Alfred A. Paradis, civil engineer, of 
DuGueslin, hereunto present and accepting as acquirer, the right 
to cut all the wood on lots Nos. (16 and 17) sixteen and seven­
teen of range B. in the Canton Bourdages, for a period of 
ninety-nine years (99) from this date, with the right to enter at 
will upon the said lots and to erect any buildings thereon for the 
exercise of his wood-cutting rights.

The present sale is made for the price of four hundred dollars 
(.*400.00) payable when the vendor shall have obtained letters 
patent from the Government of the Province of Quebec for the 
said lots. The vendor undertakes to do all the necessary work, 
including residence, etc., in the shortest possible time. He also 
agrees to carry out his obligations in the places indicated by the 
purchaser, and if he cuts a single tree except as required by these 
obligations he shall be liable in damages.

In witness whereof the parties have signed in the presence of 
Messrs. Henri Mich on and Adélard Morneau, both of the parish
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s.C.

Idlngton, J.

of Cap St. Ignace, who have signed as witnesses after reading 
these presents.”

The lands in question therein were at the date thereof Crown 
lands set apart with other like lands for the purposes of colonisa­
tion and offered on such terms as to encourage those acquiring 
same to become actual settlers.

A scheme far from being in harmony with the said public 
policy and more calculated to retard settlement and to promote 
speculation in timber on said lands, seems to have been conceived 
by the respondent and presented to the mind of the appellant, 
whereby each of four lots should be applied for in the respec­
tive names of appellant and others likely to co-operate in carry­
ing out said scheme and secure to the respondent the timber on 
the two lots named in the said agreement.

Article 1572 of the R.S.Q. 1909, contains the relevant law 
governing the appellant and others in becoming locatees of the 
Crown in order to carry out anything like unto the said scheme.

It reads:—
“Lots sold or otherwise granted for settlement after the first 

day of July, 1909, shall not, for five years, following the date of 
the location ticket, be sold by the holder of the location ticket or 
otherwise alienated, wholly or in part, except by gift inter vivos 
or by will in the direct line ascending or descending or in the 
collateral line, or by abintestate succession, and in that case the 
donee, heir, or legatee shall be subject to the same prohibition 
as the original grantee.”

The location tickets for each of the lots in question herein were 
duly applied for on the date of above agreement and the Crown 
Land’s agent received authority on December 29, 1913, to issue 
location tickets to each of the respective applicants, but only 
upon his swearing to an affidavit in the form which the regula­
tion required containing 10 paragraphs intended to secure the 
execution of the public policy I have above adverted to.

Those bearing directly on the question raised herein, are as 
follows :—

“4. I wish to acquire this lot in my own name, to clear and 
cultivate it for my personal benefit.

7. I am not acting as prête-nom for any person in order to 
acquire this lot.

8. I am not acquiring this lot for the sole purpose of ex­
ploiting the wood upon it or of enabling others to do so, but in 
order to make of it a serious agricultural establishment.”

The respondent, notwithstanding the rather formidable ob­
stacles in his way by reason of the art. 1572 above quoted, and 
the said paragraphs in the oath taken by the respective applicant
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for each of the said lots, named in the above quoted agreement, Can.
saw fit to bring this action after the patents had issued for the 7TI”
said lots.

The trial Judge properly dismissed said action on the grounds Bkrnieb 
of the illegality of the contract. _ v'

PVRADIS.The Court of King's Bench, by a majority, the Chief Justice ____
and Carroll, J., dissenting, reversed said judgment of dismissal, idingion, J. 
Hence this appeal.

1 have no hesitation in holding that the contract was null and 
void by reason of its violation of the art. 1572 above set forth, 
and the impropriety of the affidavits upon which the title of re­
spondent rests to acquire the cut of timber for 99 years from 
the date of the agreement.

It seems to me idle to pretend that a sale of the most valuable 
part of the whole property to be acquired was not a sale o^’ part 
of those lots.

And a sale that bound the patentee to refrain, for 90 odd 
years, from clearing and cultivation of the greater part of the 
land in question, seems directly in conflict with the public policy 
of promoting reclamation of the land pursuant to which, and 
that alone, the patent was to issue.

The pretension that discovery was made before the 5 years 
prescribed for doing settlement duties had expired that the land 
in fact should have been otherwise classified does not and cannot 
touch the question of the original illegality of the contract from 
ihe time it was executed or validate it.

The case of Uoward v. Stewart (1914), 20 D.L.R. 991, 50 Can.
8.C.R. 311, is partly relied upon by some of the Judges com­
prising the majority of the Court below. The argument therein, 
it is said, is applicable herein in great part.

For my part in that case, I may be permitted to refer to the 
following paragraph at p. 330 (50 Can. S.C.R.) :—

“I am unable to see how we can find such alleged policy of the 
law unless by express legislation, or clear implication thereof, 
cutting out the usual operative effect which the law gives to the 
contracts between parties.,f

Clearly that is against any use of that case to support the 
judgment appealed from.

And as to the affidavit in use at that time 1 said at pp. 333, 334, 
as follows:—

“In argument stress has been laid upon this affidavit. All it 
amounts to is that the applicant has an honest purpose at the 
time of making the application as specified in the affidavit.
There is no pledging or promising in reference to the future 
disposition of the lot or of the improvements. If it had been
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Can.

8.C.

Bkknikr 

Paradis. 

Duff, J.

shown that this lo< atee, Thibault, had conceived the purpose of 
selling to the Austin Lumber Company when he made his affi­
davit, the transaction, of course, would lie fraudulent. Nothing 
of the kind appears in this transaction. I, therefore, fail to see 
any argument that can be founded upon this affidavit when we 
have in view the actual facts of this case. The affidavit itself is 
in harmony with the general expressions relative to sales used in 
the foregoing statutes.”

I evidently had there the same conception as I have now as to 
the one in use at the time when the contract in question herein 
was made, and adopt here my language there as expressive of 
what 1 then and still think of such a project as respondent had in 
view in promoting such a bargain as he relies upon.

The law upon which that case was decided was changed by the 
Legislature just after the party there concerned had got his 
location ticket, and made, as result of experience, radically more 
restrictive as to what a locatee could do or could not do.

This question of trying to defeat the public policy in regard 
to Crown Lands’ sales, has come up in other provinces. See the 
case of Brownlee v. McIntosh (1913), 15 D.L.R. 871, 48 Can. 
8.R. 588. And incidentally 1 had to consider it and cases there­
on in another case heard liefore us this term.

I think the honest observance of such policy once legislatively 
declared should be rigorously enforced by the Courts and all 
attempts such as in question herein of defeating it by circuitous 
methods defeated.

This appeal should, therefore, lie allowed with costs here and 
in the Court of King’s Bench and the judgment of the trial 
Judge restored.

Duff, J. :—The question raised by this appeal is not, I think, 
strictly the question which was so much discussed on the argu­
ment, namely whether the agreement was an agreement trans­
ferring a droit reel in the lands to which it related. The agree­
ment is, in my judgment, inoperative for a much more funda­
mental reason. The statutes of the Province relating to the 
disposal of the public lands provides for the acquisition of land 
suitable for settlement by persons intending in good faith to 
become settlers upon very advantageous terms. Under these 
provisions the consideration received by the public who arc the 
owners of the lands in reality arises from the fact that the appli­
cant for them is a person who does so intend and who presum­
ably will carry out such intention by becoming a permanent 
resident upon them and making his livelihood \v the cultivation 
of them. Such expectations no doubt frequently are not realised, 
but the form of the affidavit required from the applicant ahund-
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antl.v manifest* the policy of the Legislature and the Govern­
ment of Quebec and makes it abundantly clear that under that 
policy only bond fide intending settlers are to lie given the benefit 
of the enactments touching this subject. The agreement which 
is in question in this litigation was, lieyond all question, a part 
of a scheme by which lands which were not really suited for 
settlement were to lie acquired—through the instrumentality 
of applications by applicants lending their names for the pur­
pose of the scheme—with the object of enabling the respondent 
and the appellant to get possession of the timber on terms less 
onerous than those which would have been imposed had they at­
tempted to buy the timber as such from the Government. The 
scheme necessarily involved the making of a statement by each 
of the applicants—a sworn statement—that lie was acquiring the 
lot for which he applied in order to become a bona fide settler and 
further that he was not lending his name to any other person for 
the purpose of acquiring the lot. It is undisputed that the re­
spondent understood all that would be involved in carrying out 
this scheme. It is impossible to contend, it seems to me, that an 
agreement so conceived having such intended consequences can 
be enforced by legal proceedings.

The appeal should be allowed and the judgment of the trial 
Judge restored.

Anglin, J. :—The contract sued upon was made with the in­
tent and for the purpose on the part of the parties to it of ef­
fecting a result contrary to the policy of the law. It was on this 
ground null and void ab initio. The property dealt with was to 
be obtained from the Crown under location tickets on applica- 
ions purporting to lie those of four bond fide intending settlers. 
The applicants did not in fact intend to become such settlers. 
The real purpose of the scheme to which they became parties at 
the instance of the respondent was to obtain for him and the 
appellant the timber upon the lots to be applied for. The appli­
cations were supported by affidavits containing misrepresenta­
tions of fact and intention. Each applicant was required to 
swear that he wished to acquire the lot applied for for the pur­
pose of clearing and cultivating it for his own personal benefit; 
that he had not lent his name to any other person for the purpose 
of acquiring such lot; and that he was acquiring it in order to 
bond fide settle thereon and not for the sole purpose of cutting 
the timber thereon or having it cut. for sale by others. These 
statements must have been false to the knowledge of the affiants 
as well as to that of the plaintiff by whom the making of such 
affidavits was induced. That the lands were subsequently found 
by the department to be unsuitable for settlement or cultivation

5

Can.

8.C.

Bernier 

Paradis. 

Anglin, J.
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Can. cannot render valid an agreement which was void for illegality
8.C.

and fraud upon the Crown when it was made. While the de­
fendant appellant, who sets up the defence of invalidity is cer­

Bkrnieb
».

Paradis.

tainly entitled to no sympathy, the Courts may not lend their aid 
to a plaintiff seeking to enforce such a contract as that sued 
upon. I would, with respect, allow the appeal with costs here

Brodeur, J. and in the Court of King’s Bench and would restore the judg­
ment of the trial Judge.

Brodeur, J. :—Paradis was employed in 1913 as an engineer 
in connection with the construction of the Transcontinental 
Railway in the county of Montmaguy. He found that certain 
lots of Crown lands near one of the railway stations in the Canton 
of Bourdages could be exploited with advantage as timber limits. 
So he approached Bernier, a farmer in one of the old parishes 
of the county, with a view to inducing him to take these lots as a 
settler. Bernier probably knew that he could not fulfil the 
conditions imposed by the law upon those who wish to obtain 
colonization lots, but Paradis told him that he could get over 
the difficulty through the good offices of certain influential per­
sons of his acquaintance in the department of lands and else­
where. Bernier believed him and procured from his relations 
and his partner the affidavits that were necessary in order to 
secure location tickets for these lots. Prior to this, however, 
Paradis got him to sign a deed whereby he sold “the right to 
cut all the wood on lots 16 and 17, Canton Bourdages for a 
period of ninety-nine (99) years from this date,” for $400, 
which should be payable when Bernier had obtained his letters 
patent.

Bernier, having obtained his location tickets, began to cut 
wood in sufficient quantities to meet the exigencies of the law, 
but hia development was commercial rather than agricultural. 
He did not, for example, fulfil the conditions of residence im­
posed upon him by his location ticket and by law. He could 
not, therefore, obtain his letters patent. But he claimed that 
the lots were unsuited for cultivation; and he seems to have 
induced the Department to classify them as forest lands and 
obtained letters patent in consideration of an additional cash 
payment.

It is quite evident to me that he was not a settler in good 
faith and that from the beginning he and Paradis intended to 
take advantage of the colonization laws in order to get possession 
illegally of certain lands from which they would take all the 
wood, Bernier receiving $400 as his share of the transaction, 
while Paradis would receive all the profits resulting from the 
sale of the wood.
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Paradis now asks for the enforcement of the contract which Can. 
he made with Bernier ; and the latter pleads, amongst other 
defences, that the contract is absolutely null.

The Quebec Legislature, wishing to put an end to the de- Bebkiei 
plorable speculations in Crown lands by pretended colonists who 
were nothing more than disguised wood merchants, saw fit to ' 
amend the law in 1909 by declaring that colonists could not sell Brodeur, j. 
the lots they had obtained from the Department within f> years 
from the date of their location tickets, unless authorised by the 
Minister after the latter had been convinced that it was in the 
interests of colonisation that such transfer should be made. And 
the Act added :—“Any transfer made in contravention of the 
present article is radically null as between the parties.”

The Superior Court held that the contract between Paradis and 
Bernier was null. The Court of Appeal, by a majority of three 
to two, held that the contract was valid, since it had reference 
to a sale of rights posterior to the issuance of the letters patent.

It is well to remark in this connection that the contract in 
question states specifically that the right to cut wood is sold as 
from the date of the contract, that is to say from 1913. It is 
true that payment was not to be made until letters patent 
had been issued ; but it is unquestionable that Paradis, if the 
contract was valid, had rights in the wood upon this property.
It, therefore, follows that Bernier had sold and transferred some 
of the rights which he had in the lots in question.

The sale of these rights was illegal by virtue of the Act of 
1909, because it was expressly forbidden for colonists to dispose 
of their rights by sale, except when authorised by the Minister of 
Lands. Without discussing the morality of the transaction be­
tween the plaintiff and the defendant, or enquiring if that tran­
saction was made with the intention of evading the law, I con­
sider that a contract whereby Bernier undertook to dispose of 
the right to cut wood on the lots which he held, or would soon 
hold, under location ticket, was a contract which, as the law’ 
declares, was radically null and, consequently, cannot be enforced 
by the Courts.

If such a contract could have the force of law’, it would simply 
have the effect of nullifying the evident intention of the Legis­
lature to grant colonisation lots only to settlers in good faith.
A little wood, and ignore his obligation to live upon the land in 
a little wood, and ignore his obligation to live upon the land in 
the hope of being able to make a considerable profit out of the 
wood. The very evident intention of the Legislature was that 
these Crown lands, which were acquired for nothing, or next to 
nothing, should only be given to bonâ fide colonists and not to
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Mlgnault, J.

persons who would make a show of carrying on some colonisation 
operations while in reality intending merely to deal in wood.

Mr. Perrault pleaded very skilfully that this sale of 1913 was 
valid because an Order in Council was made in 1918 whereby 
these lots had been virtually classified as forest lands. He urged 
that this Order in Council had a retroactive effect, which could 
render valid the contract made in 1913 by Paradis and Bernier.

I cannot share this opinion. There is nothing in the law to 
show that the Order in Council could have a retroactive effect. 
We have to consider the contract of 1913 with reference to the 
date on which it was made. Now, at that time, a colonisation 
lot. or part of a colonisation lot, was sold. The law forbade sales 
of this nature; and the present contract was, therefore, null ah 
initio, and nothing could be done to revive it.

For these reasons, the judgment of the Court of Appeal should 
be reversed and the judgment of the Superior Court reaffirmed, 
the whole with co.sts of this Court.

Mignaui.t, J. :—On December 24. 1913, the appellant sold to 
the respondent “the right to cut all the wood on lots Nos. 16 and 
17 of range 1$ in the Canton Bourdages, for a period of 99 years 
from this date, with the right to enter at will upon the said lots 
and to erect any buildings thereon for the exercise of his wood­
cutting rights.

The present sale is made for the price of $400 payable when 
the vendor shall have obtained letters patent from the Govern­
ment of the Province of Quebec for the*said lots. The vendor 
undertakes to do all the necessary work, including residence, etc., 
in the shortest possible time. He, also, agrees to carry out his 
obligations in the places indicated by the purchaser, and if lie 
cuts a single tree except as required by these obligations he shall 
be liable in damages.”

The appellant argues that this sale is null and many authorities 
have been quoted in support of this contention. Before enquir­
ing into the question of validity, it is advisable to explain the 
circumstances in which the sale was made. 1 must say that 
those circumstances seem very strange, not to use a stronger 
expression.

The respondent was chief engineer of the Transcontinental 
Railway. The appellant was a farmer in the parish of Cap St. 
Ignace. The respondent suggested to the appellant that the 
latter should acquire certain lands from the Government ko 
that he might sell to him (the respondent) the right to cut wood 
thereon. He undertook to make all the necessary arrangements 
with the •Government and, in fact, on December 10, 1913, he 
recommended to the Hon. Mr. Caron, Minister of Roads and
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Agriculture, that lots 15, 16, 17 ami 18 should he granted “to fan.
good settlers”, namely Adelard Morneau, Daniel Bernier, the ^T
appellant, Joseph Bernier, appellant’s minor son, and Phileas ——
Bernier, appellant’s brother, “who will offer the best .security Bkbxies 
to the Government for the faithful fulfilment of the obligations, C AK AIMS.
required. ----

Mr. Caron sent the respondent’s letter to his colleague, the Mt&uauit, j. 
Hon. Mr. Allard, Minister of Lands and Forests, and the latter's 
deputy authorised the agent at Montmagny to make the present 
sale.

Prior to this, the Departmental inspector. Pouliot, had certi­
fied, on December 1, 191.'$, to the Minister of Lands and Forests, 
that these 4 lots contained, to his personal knowledge, 50',# of 
arable land each.

At the time of the sale of the wood-cut, December 24, 1913, 
there were not even location tickets for these lots. These location 
tickets were issued on December 29, 1913, and contained the 
ordinary conditions of cession of colonisation lots. In the affi­
davit required for the concession, each of the recipients swore 
that he was not acquiring the land for the sole purpose of ex­
ploiting the wood or of allowing it to be exploited by others, 
but for the purpose of serious agricultural development. He 
further declared that after visiting the lot he considered it tit for 
agricultural purposes.

The conditions imposed by the location ticket upon colonists 
appear to have been fulfilled, with the exception of residence, 
which had only been maintained for h months in each year, and 
it was precisely for default of continued residence on the . 
land that the Departmental officers decided that letters patent 
for these lots could not be granted to the acquirers.

It was then that influence was brought to bear upon the 
Government with a view to obtaining letters patent, although 
the conditions for granting colonisation lots had not been ful­
filled. It was suggested that the lots be sold to the concession­
aires for $2 an acre. We find in the record several letters written 
to the Minister by the county deputy recommending tin- grant.
There is also in the record a letter addressed by the Deputy- 
Minister to another deputy who appears to have la-en interested 
in the matter. In his testimony, the respondent also stated that 
he went to the Department to ask that letters patent be issued.

In order to overcome the difficulty resulting from default of 
sufficient residence, it was proposed to sell the lots to the con­
cessionaires for the price I have mentioned, as being collectively 
unsuitable for agricultural development. These intrigues suc­
ceeded and, on July 2, 1918, the Government made an Order in
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Can. Council stating “that it appears that this lot is, in its entirety,
gc unsuited to agriculture ; that it is expedient to convert this sale
-----  into a sate without the conditions usually applicable to location

Bernier tickets,” and it was ordered that letters patent be issued uncon-
p v: ditionally, provided the owner paid an additional price equiv-
— aient to $2 per acre.

Mipnauit, j. This price was paid by the appellant, who then received his 
letters patent.

But, when lie found himself armed with these letters patent, 
the appellant refused to accept the price of #400 which the re­
spondent offered him. It appears that the price of wood had in­
creased very considerably and the appellant did not regard the 
matter in the same light as in December, 1013. It was then that 
the matter was taken to the Courts.

I have recited the above-mentioned facts without commenting 
upon them. In fact, they can very well do without comment. 
It is absolutely impossible for me to believe that Mr. Pouliot was 
mistaken in 1913 when he certified, from a personal knowledge 
of the territory, that each of the lots contained fully 50% of 
arable land. Besides, the appellant stated in his affidavit for 
obtaining the location ticket that after visiting the lot he con­
sidered it fit for agricultural purposes. And what of the oath 
which he made on December 29, 1913, that he was not acquiring 
the land for the sole purpose of exploiting the wood or of per­
mitting others to do so, when 5 days before, he had sold to the 
respondent the right to cut wood for 99 years Î Furthermore, 
the sworn certificate of Mr. Letourneau, who visited the land 
at the appellant’s request, states, under date September 13, 
1917, that the land had been well prepared for cultivation and 
that there was at that time 15 1-3 acres sown with hay.

It was after that that the lots were declared unsuitable, in 
their entirety, for agricultural purposes.

Now we have to decide if the respondent can claim the woodcut 
or if the sale is null.

Many grounds of nullity have been raised against the sale of 
the right to cut wood. It has been declared to be a sale of a 
tiling belonging to another and further, a thing which is not an 
object of commerce, since it belonged at that time to the Gov­
ernment. It is also claimed that art. 1572 R.S.Q., which forbids 
settlers to sell or otherwise dispose of their concessions held 
under location ticket before letters patent have been issued, ap­
plies to the present case.

In my opinion, it is not necessary to discuss these grounds of 
nullity, for there is another serious objection to the respondent’s 
action. From the beginning, the latter appears to have intended
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to procure for himself the right to cut wood on lauds destined 
for colonisation, in .spite of the laws which protect both the 
colonists against speculators wishing to acquire the wood, and 
the Government which, in the public interest, grants under very 
favourable conditions lands belonging to the Crown, with the 
object of having them opened up for colonisation. I cannot 
believe that the appellant would have ever thought of asking 
for this concession if he had not been influenced by the respond­
ent. Again, when default of residence was set up against the 
appellant, the respondent and others intervened to procure for 
him the sale of the lots without the very wise conditions imposed 
in the case of grants of land for colonisation purposes. All this 
was clearly done in order to enable the respondent to reap the 
benefit of his wood cutting rights, for, according to the contract, 
the appellant and his heirs were to have no rights therein for a 
period of 99 years. Unfortunately, the Government appears to 
have facilitated the evasion of the law by issuing the Order in 
Council of July 2, 1918, but it may possibly have been ignorant 
of the purchase made by the respondent, who was probably pru­
dent enough to refrain from disclosing it. In any case fraud has 
been committed, and the person who would profit by it, if the 
sale of December 24, 1913, were maintained, would be the re­
spondent and not the appellant. But the appellant was a party 
to this fraudulent conspiracy and thereby obtained a concession 
of public lands to which he was not entitled.

1 cannot uphold the respondent’s action, but at the same time 
the appellant should not obtain costs against the latter, for he 
participated in the fraud and is now the only person to gain by 
it, since the sale of the wood cutting rights is annulled. He may 
consider himself lucky if the Government does not revoke the 
concession which it was induced to make to him.

The appeal should be maintained and the judgment of the 
Superior Court reaffirmed, without costs in this Court and the 
Court of King’s Bench. Appeal allowed.

KKVEXTLOW-CRIM1NIL v. IU'R. MUN. OF 8TRE AMSTOW X.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Scott, C.J., Stuart, Beck, 

Uyndman and Clarke, JJ.A. June 21), 1922.
Costs ($ I—2c)—Alberta rui.e 739—Application—Case not provided for 

BY—Power of Appellate Court to fix by direction after final
JUDGMENT.

Rule 739, (Alberta) which Is the only one relating to the Ap­
pellate Division, requiring the direction as to costs if a direction 
is made, to be embodied in the formal Judgment, does not pro­
vide for a case where the scale applicable below has not been 
fixed, and there being no rule regulating the matter the Court 
ma do so by a direction subsequent to the formal judgment.

[See also (1922), 65 D.L.R. 193, Can. S.C.R. 8.]

Alta.

App. Div.
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Alta.

App. Div.
Rkventlow-
Ckimimi.

v.
IlVK. MVS. 

OF
Streams-

Stuart. J. A.

Appuc.vtion i>y plaintiff for a direction that the costs of her 
appeal lie taxed upon a higher scale than the 2nd column of 
schedule “C”. Application granted.

(\ F. Xewell, K.C., for applicant.
S. It. Woods, K.C., for respondents.
Scott, C.J. concurred with Beck, J.A.
Stuart, J.A.:—I have some doubt as to the propriety of this 

matter being dealt with by the Court constituted differently from 
the way in which it was constituted upon the hearing of the ap­
peal. But, if the Court is entitled to fix the scale of costs after 
the formal judgment has been entered I presume it would be 
often found to be inconvenient to secure the attendance of the 
particular Judges who heard the appeal. Hereafter, of course, 
there will be less chance of such a difficulty occurring. In the 
circumstances, 1 think the Court, as now constituted, should deal 
with the matter, if the Court, no matter how constituted, has 
power to act at all, owing to the judgment having been already 
entered.

My opinion is that we have here a clear casus omissus from the 
rules as to costs. 1 do not think it can be said that there was any 
scale “fixed under the judgment appealed from” so as to make 
Rule 736 apply. There could be no scale fixed for taxation of 
costs “under a judgment appealed from” when that judgment 
did not give any costs to either party. There were no costs to be 
paid at all “under the judgment appealed from”, so that there 
could really be no scale fixed.

The scale upon which the costs of the appeal arc to be taxed 
must be fixed somehow. If not fixed by the rules nor by the 
judgment, then certainly the Court has jurisdiction to fix the 
scale. Someone must fix it, and if anyone can, certainly the 
Appellate Division can.

1 agree that col. 5 may be applied particularly, as there were 
no costs given of the action and the judgments in the Supreme 
Court of Canada, infèrentially at least, suggest that costs might 
very properly have been given to the plaintiff even at the trial.

Beck, J.A.:—This ease is reported in the Supreme Court of 
Canada in (10221, 65 D.L.R. 193, 63 Can. S.C.R. 8, where the 
decisions in the Courts below are noted.

The trial Judge gave judgment for the plaintiff without costs 
(1919), 15 Alta. L.R. 204, the Appellate Division dismissed an 
appeal by the defendants with costs (1920), 52 D.L.R. 266, the 
Supreme Court of Canada dismissed a further appeal with costs, 
65 D.L.R. 193, 63 Can. S.C.R. 8. The plaintiff is now about to 
tax her costs of the appeal to the Appellate Division, and asks
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for a direction that the costs should be taxed upon a higher scale 
than the 2nd column of schedule C. In effect we arc asked to 
interpret Rule 739.

The formal judgment has been issued and entered, dismissing 
the appeal “with costs”. Mr. Woods, K.C., contends that we 
cannot now make the direction asked in view of Rule 739, which 
reads :—

“On any appeal the scale of costs of .lie appeal, and if so 
stated in the judgment, also of the proceedings in the Court be­
low, shall be as directed by the judgment in appeal, and in de­
fault of direction shall be the same as that fixed under the order 
or judgment appealed from.”

Rules 730, 732, 734, 735 and 736 (these last two, 1 think, should 
be read together) 737, 741, 742 and 746, all deal with costs and 
the authority of the Court or Judge to deal with costs. 1 think 
this authority can be exercised under these rules after the formal 
judgment or order has been issued and entered. All these rules 
apply, and apply only, to a Judge or to the Court acting other­
wise than in appeal, and obviously the power to give direction 
expires upon the final taxation of the costs in question.

Rule 739 is the only rule relating to the Appellate Division. 
That rule requires the direction, if a direction is made, to be em­
bodied in the formal judgment. There are obvious reasons for 
such a provision with regard to the Appellate Division; the 
schedule of costs based, as it is, largely upon the amount involved, 
has no necessary relationship to the importance of the questions 
raised upon the appeal ; the Court, as a Court, is not as readily 
accessible as a Judge.

Under the Rule two cases will arise; (1) The Court expressly 
fixing in its judgment the scale of costs; (2) The Court refrain­
ing from so doing. In the latter case, the rule provides for only 
one case, namely, where the judgment or order below fixes the 
scale. 1 think this means fixes expressly, but even if it does not, 
it is not fixed automatically by any rule. The rule does not pro­
vide for the case which has arisen here, where the scale applicable 
below has not been fixed. There being thus no rule regulating the 
matter, 1 think we can do so by a direction subsequent to the 
formal judgment regulating the quantum of costs.

Under the circumstances, 1 think it is proper to direct that 
the plaintiff be entitled to tax her costs on column 5 of the 
schedule.

There will be no costs of this
Hyndman, J.A. concurs with Beck, J.A.
Clarke, J.A.:—I do not think the Court, as presently consti­

tuted, should undertake to make any order as to costs, which it
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Can. 

S. C.
was within the province of the Court as constituted when the 
judgment was given to make, hut that Court gave costs, and all 
that remains is to settle the amount. In my opinion, it is quite 
competent under the proviso to sec. 734, for the Supreme Court 
or a Judge thereof, to allow any amount, regardless of the scale, 
applicable, and this warrants the use of a higher column as the 
basis for the increased allowance, especially where, as here, the 
scale has not been fixed. Any application for increased allowance 
can best he dealt with by the Judge or Court which heard the 
ease.

In the present application some of the members of the Court 
heard the appeal and, as they think, the costs should he allowed 
under column 5, I agree.

Ju(Iffm c n t accordinrfUj.

SHKRLOUK v. GRAND TRUNK R. Co.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., Idington, Duff, Anglin, Brodeur 

and Mignault, JJ. June 20, 1021.
Carriers ($ ITM—310)—Limitation of liability—Personal baggage—

By roc. 340 of the Railway Act a railway company cannot, by con­
tract. or otherwise, limit its liability in respect to the carriage of trathe 
unless authorizeil by the Board of Railway Commissioners; the Board 
may, by regulation, determine the extent to which the liability may be 
limited, and it may prescribe the terms and conditions under which 
any traffic may be carried. A regulation, providing that a carrier shall 
not be liable for loss of or damage to personal baggage caused by 
negligence or otherwise to an amount greater than one hundred dollars 
unless greater values are declared and extra charges paid at time of 
checking, is intra vires of the powers of the Board.

Appeal from a decision of the Appellate Division of the 
Supreme Court of Ontario (1920), 54 D.L.R. 524, 48 O.L.R. 
237, affirming the judgment at the trial 47 O.L.R. 473, in favour 
of the respondent. [See 67 D.L.R. 217.]

The appellant is a commercial traveller residing in the City 
of Hamilton, and on May 7, 1919, she purchased a ticket from 
Hamilton to Toronto, which ticket was the ordinary ticket issued 
by the respondent, and contained no conditions or restrictions 
whatever either on its face or back. After she had purchased 
her ticket, the appellant went to the baggage office and cheeked 
her trunk containing her wearing apparel and personal belong­
ings and received in return a check. There was nothing said to 
her by the clerk who handed her the check to draw her attention 
to the fact that this cheek was anything more than a mere receipt 
for the trunk and the plaintiff herself did not notice that the 
check contained thereon any terms or conditions whatever.

The trunk was lost on the journey and has not yet been recov-

n
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vred, and the appellant brought this action for the value of same. 
The respondent paid the sum of $100 into Court but denied fur­
ther liability, relying on the terms and conditions which were 
printed on the back of the check and pleaded that the said con­
ditions were authorized by and contained in General Order 151 
of the Railway Hoard of Canada, dated November 8, 1915, and 
that said order was duly published in the Canada Gazette and 
had therefore the same effect as if contained in the Railway Act.

The case was tried before Rose, J. and judgment was deliver­
ed on May 4, 1920, giving effect to the respondent’s contention 
and dismissing the appellant's action with costs. This judgment 
was affirmed by the Appellate Division.

HeUtnuth, K.C., and J. Y. Murdock, for appellant.
]). L. McCarthy, K.C., for respondent.
Davies, C.J. :—I think this appeal fails and should be dismiss­

ed with costs.
The action was brought by a passenger claiming the value of 

the contents of a trunk checked as personal luggage and lost by 
the company. The question to be determined was whether the 
liability of the company is limited in the matter of a passenger’s 
personal baggage by General Order No. 151 of the Hoard of 
Railway Commissioners dated November 8, 1915. The order was 
duly published in the Canada Gazette and by see. 31 >f the Rail­
way Act, R.S.C. 1906, eh. 37, if there was power to make it, it 
has, while it remains in force, the like effect as if enacted in the 
Act itself.

1 concur in the reasons for his judgment of Rose, J. the trial 
Judge (1920), 47 O.L.R. 473, which judgment was unanimously 
confirmed by the Second Divisional Court of the Appellate 
Division of the Supreme Court of Ontario (1920), 54 D.L.R. 524, 
and to which I have nothing to add.

Idington, J.:—The appellant sued the respondent for damages 
arising from its having lost her baggage for which it has given 
her a cheek on presentation of an ordinary ticket as a passenger 
entitled to travel on its train.

It was assumed on argument that there was no condition ex­
pressed on the ticket as to the terms upon which her baggage 
was to be carried.

On the check for baggage there was expressed something which 
it is said by respondent should have informed her that she was 
only entitled to claim, in case of loss, $100, unless she had declar­
ed on getting the cheek the value of the baggage beyond that sum 
and paid an increased charge for such excess in value.

The counsel for appellant argues that the basis of the liability 
is contract and that, lie submitted, was contained in the ticket.

Can.

s. c.
Sherlock 

G.T.R. Co. 

Davies. C.J.
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Idingion, J.

ï am afraid the reasoning is rather teehnieal and omits read­
ing into the contract what the law nowadays imputes as know­
ledge of all implied in a mere ticket, by virtue of the regulation 
No. 151 of the Hoard of Railway Commissioners, and imputes 
to her knowledge thereof and all else that ensued, or was 
ensue, before she had got a check for her baggage, and all in­
scribed on such check hence part of the contract. These several 
imputations of knowledge of what her ticket implied, and es­
pecially the rights thereby acquired to get her baggage carried, 
cannot he overlooked, and she got a check for same so inscribed 
which she must be held in law to have known and assented to.

If any one doubts these several imputations of knowledge let 
him read the facts set out in my judgment in the case of Rubin- 
son v. drain! Trunk R. Co. (1913), 12 D.L.R. 696, 47 Can. S.C.R. 
622, 15 C.R.C. 264, as well as what is said therein by my brother 
Judges.

I refer to my own because it appears therein that the form 
never was filled up, yet the Court above reversed us and the de­
rision of that ease as reported in 22 D.L.R. 1, 11915] A.C. 740, 
19 ( \R.<\ :$7, binds us.

Surely it goes much further in imputing knowledge than any­
thing required herein to bind the appellant thus presumed in 
law to have had knowledge of the condition and to have given 
her assent thereto by accepting the check inscribed as above 
stated.

In regard to the validity of the regulation as part of a contract 
so interpreted, there is no question but the appellant must fail 
herein.

Apart from all that, can it be said that the power of the Hoard 
to fix tolls for any and every service by a railway does not cover 
the case of baggage?

And does not see. 340 give the Hoard almost unlimited powers 
in the way of impairing, restricting or limiting the liability of a 
railway company within its jurisdicton ?

It reads as follows:—
“340. No contract, condition, by-law, regulation, declaration 

or notice made or given by the company, impairing, restricting 
or limiting its liability in respect of the carriage of any traffic, 
shall, except as hereinafter provided, relieve the company from 
such liability, unless such class of contract, condition, by-law, 
regulation, declaration or notice shall have been first authorized 
or approved by order or regulation of the Hoard.

2. The Hoard, may, in any case, or by regulation, determine 
the extent to which the liability of the company may be so im­
paired, restricted or limited.



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 17

3. The Board may by regulation prescribe the terms and con­
ditions under which any traffic may be carried by the company.”

The exact thing in question herein seems within these powers, 
or some one of them, and I need say no more in regard thereto.

The framing of Rule No. 151, which 1 think was intended to 
be an exercise of the power it was asked by the railway company 
to exercise, may be open for the criticism that it might have been 
better expressed if intended to reach the understanding of or­
dinary people, but its legal import, assuming what was done in 
way of its publication was all that the Act requires to give it 
vitality, seems elear. I am almost tempted to suggest that con­
tract as a basis for such dealings as in question is fast becoming 
a fiction of law.

I think this appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Dvff, J. :—It was competent, in my opinion, to the Board, 

acting under see. 340, (3) to limit the value of the personal bag­
gage or other property to be carried on a passenger train for a 
passenger and to require a declaration by the passenger as to 
the value of his baggage in excess of $100, and further that the 
charges for such declared excess should be prepaid. Where the 
value of the passenger’s baggage exceeds the sum mentioned and 
no declaration is made in respect of it then, as the company is 
under no obligation to receive such baggage for carriage and does 
not knowingly consent to carry that which it is not bound to 
carry, 1 am unable myself to understand upon what foundation 
the responsibility of the company for such baggage can be based.
1 do not think see. 284 (1) applies to such case nor do I think 
suh.-see. 7 applies.

If such excess baggage were accepted knowingly by the com­
pany’s servants without declaration and without payment of 
tolls a very different situation would arise ; but where there is 
no declaration and the company is ignorant of the facts the com­
pany’s responsibility is, in my judgment, neither more nor less 
than its responsibility in respect of property wrongfully placed 
in one of the company’s cars.

If this be the correct view the basis of Mr. ITellmuth’s argu­
ment fails because the order does no more than declare the legal 
consequences of the conditions laid down and validly laid down 
in respect of the reception of such “traffic.”

Anglin, J. :—The question for determination on this appeal is 
whether the Board of Railway Commissioners has the power by 
general regulation, to relieve a railway company from liability 
consequent upon loss of, or damage or delay to, personal baggage 
ascribable to negligence of its servants for any amount exceeding 
a stated sum, unless such baggage has been declared to be of

Can.

Sherlock 

G.T.R. Co. 

Dutr, j.
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greater value ami extra charges therefor, according to a tariff 
approved by the Hoard, paid at the time of delivery to the com­
pany for cheeking. The Board passed such a regulation (No. 
151) on November 8, 1915, restricting the value of baggage en­
titled to free carriage to the sum of $100. The governing statute 
is the Railway Act of 1906 (R.S.C., eh. 97) and amendments 
thereto made prior to the year 1919.

The plaintiff sues to recover damages for loss of personal bag­
gage valued by her at $2,000. The existence of the conditions 
limiting the company’s liability to $100, if the impugned regula­
tion be valid, is admitted; if it is invalid the company’s liability 
for damages beyond that sum, to be assessed on a reference, is 
conceded.

See. 289 of the Railway Act requires every railway company 
to check each parcel of baggage equipped with suitable means for 
attaching a check to it which is delivered by a passenger for 
transport and provides for the collection by the company of such 
tolls for excess baggage as may be authorized. By see. 284 the 
company is required to receive, carry and deliver all traffic 
offered without delay and with due care and diligence (sub.-sec. 
1 ) and any person aggrieved by any breach of that duty is given 
a right of action from which the company cannot relieve itself 
by any notice, condition or declaration where the damage arises 
from its negligence or omission or that of its servants (sub.-sec. 
7). This right, however, as is pointed out in Robinson v. Grand 
Trunk H. Co., supra, at p. 2, is explicitly made “subject to this 
Act.”

By see. 940 any contract, condition, by-law, regulation, declar­
ation or notice purporting to impair, restrict or limit the com­
pany's liability in respect of the carriage of any traffic is de­
clared ineffectual unless of a class authorized or approved by 
order or regulation of the Board of aRilway Commissioners 
(sub.-sec. 1) ; the Board is empowered to determine the extent to 
which the company’s liability may he so impaired, restricted or 
limited (sub.-sec. 2) ; and, by regulation, to “prescribe the terms 
and conditions under which any traffic may be carried, by the 
company (sub.-sec 3).”

By sec. 30 the Board is empowered to make orders and regula­
tions governing a number of enumerated matters and, inter alia, 
“(h) with respect to any matter, or thing which by this or the 
special Act is sanctioned, required to he done, or prohibited; and 
(i) generally for carrying this Act into effect.”

It is apparent, therefore, that the Board’s powers are very 
comprehensive. By see. 31 it is provided that any regulation, 
etc., of the Board shall when published for three weeks in the
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Canada Gazette, have the like effect as if enacted in the Railway 
Act. Due publication of regulation No. 151 is admitted.

1 think it is unnecessary to determine whether personal bag­
gage of such weight and dimensions as would, under the regula­
tion of the Hoard, entitle the passenger owning it to have it car­
ried free may properly be classified as “excess baggage” within 
sec. 285 because its value exceeds a sum fixed by regulation of the 
Railway Commissioners as that of baggage which a passenger 
is entitled to have carried free. Whether that section does or 
does not apply, it is in my opinion within the competence of the 
Hoard under sec. 340 (3) to prescribe the terms and conditions 
under which baggage may be carried by railway companies— 
that if under a certain weight, of less than fixed dimensions and 
of value not exceeding a stated sum (all to be prescribed by the 
Hoard) it shall be carried free, and that if not within the limits 
set in any one or more of these particulars, tolls according to ap­
proved tariffs shall be paid for its carriage. 1 find nothing to 
preclude the Hoard ordering that in the event of the passenger 
failing to declare the value of his baggage, if it exceeds the 
amount within which he is entitled to have it carried free, and 
to pay or tender the approved toll in respect of such excess when 
presenting it to be checked, his right of recovery under sec. 284 
(7 in respect of it shall be limited to the amount prescribed by 
the Hoard as the value up to which he was entitled to have it 
carried free. That seems to me to be nothing more than fixing 
“terms and conditions under which (this) traffic may be carried 
by the company” as authorized by sec. 340 (3). Notwithstand­
ing the presence in sub.-see. 2 of the word “so”, which I read as 
intended merely to carry into it the words “in respect of the 
carriage of any traffic” fourni in sub.-see. 1, rather than to re­
strict the application of sub.-see. 2 to cases in which the company, 
proceeding under sub.-see. 1, should attempt to impair, restrict 
or limit its liability by contract, condition, by-law, regulation, 
declaration or notice, 1 incline to think that regulation No. 151 
may also be sustained as an exercise of the power which that sub­
section confers. See. 340 is one of the provisions of the Act to 
which sub.-see. 7 of sec. 284 is made subject. The impeached 
regulation was therefore, in my opinion, intru vires of the Hoard 
and effectual to limit the respondent company’s liability to the 
appellant.

The appeal fails and should be dismissed with costs.
Brodeur, J.:—I concur with my brother Anglin.
Mignault, J.:—1 think the regulation relied on by the 

respondents was within the power of the Hoard of Railway Com­
missioners under sub.-see. 3 of sec. 340 of the Railway Act

Can.
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Mlgiiault, J.
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(R.8.C. 1006, ch. 37). That the liability of the railway company 
can be restricted by order of the Board, even where the damage 
arises from the negligence or omission of the company or of its 
servants, notwithstanding suh.-see. 7 of sec. 284, which, however, 
is stated to he “subject to this Act,” is shewn by the decision of 
the Judicial Committee in Grand Trunk Co. v. Robinson, supra. 
This removes the doubt which I otherwise would have felt, and I 
therefore concur in the judgment dismissing the appeal.

Appeal dismissed.

SMITH v. MUX. I»I8T. OF KTOTK8 No. 848.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Scott, C.J., Stuart, Beck, 

Hyndman and Clarke, JJ.A. June SU, 19S2.
Highways ($ IV—115)—County road—Straw placed on travelled 

portion—Invitation to motorist—Straw gathering under car 
—Damages to cab by pire—Negligence or municipality—Lia-

The placing of straw on the travelled portion of a country 
road in order to make it more passable, is an invitation to the 
driver of a motor car to travel thereon, and where the straw is 
placed in such quantities as to cause the car to gather up the 
straw underneath it to such an extent as to cause it to stall, 
and the car catches fire and is damaged, there being nothing to 
shew that the driver could reasonably have foreseen the danger 
or guarded against it, the municipality is liable for such damage.

[See Annotation 46 D.L.R. 133.]

Appeal by defendant from the trial judgment in an action for 
damages to plaintiff’s automobile. Affirmed.

11. A. Smith, for appellant.
C. //. Russell, for respondent.
Scott, C.J. :—This is an appeal by the defendant from the 

judgment of Ives, J., awarding the plaintiff $675 for damages 
to his automobile.

On June 22, 1921, the plaintiff was driving his automobile 
upon a highway within the municipality when, by reason of 
straw having been spread thereon, it was seriously damaged by 
fire escaping from it and setting fire to the straw.

At the place where the fire occurred the roadway was sandy 
and, by direction of a councillor of the municipality, dry straw 
had been spread thereon the day of the fire and shortly before it, 
for the purpose of improving the roadway.

It is shewn that it was not an unusual practice to place straw 
upon the roadway in sandy places for that purpose, that the 
roadway at that point had been so treated year after year for 
many years, that the straw was spread only upon the traveled 
portion of the highway, and that on each side of the straw the 
highway was in its natural state, it was also shewn that, after the
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straw was placed that day and before the fire, another automobile 
had safely passed over it.

The traveled portion of the road at that point was covered 
with straw for a distance of about 100 yards. One Mack, a wit­
ness for the defence who had placed it there, states that it was 
from 5 to 12 inches deep, which was the usual depth; that at the 
place where the fire occurred it was from 10 to 12 inches deep; 
that when he placed it he tramped it down into the ruts.

The plaintiff had driven the automobile some distance over 
the straw when it stalled, lie attempted to start it again with 
the result that the rear wheels began to spin and he was unable 
to proceed. II** then discovered that the automobile in passing 
over the straw had gathered the straw under it to such an extent 
that it was closely packed underneath it, thus blocking its pass­
age. He and his traveling companion then started to remove the 
packed straw underneath the automobile and, when doing so, 
they discovered that it had ignited. They then endeavoured to 
push the automobile out of danger but they were unable to do so. 
The only reasonable inference is Hiat the tire was caused by 
sparks from the automobile.

It may be open to question whether the placing of straw or 
other combustible matter to any extent upon a highway used by 
automobiles is not a source of danger by reason of the possibility 
of tire escaping from such vehicles but, apart from this question, 
the spreading thereon of straw in such quantities and to such a 
depth as to cause the plaintiff’s automobile to gather up the 
straw underneath it to such an extent to cause it to stall and 
thus increase the danger of lire was negligence on the part of 
the plaintiff, which, in the absence of contributory negligence on 
his part, would render it liable for the damage which he sus­
tained.

In my opinion, the plaintiff was not guilty of contributory 
negligence. The placing of the straw was an invitation by the 
defendant to him to travel thereon, and there is nothing to show 
that he could reasonably have foreseen the danger or guarded 
against the consequences which ensued.

I would dismiss the * with costs.
Stuart, J.A. :—After some considerable hesitation 1 have 

come to the conclusion that this appeal should be dismissed with

Ait*.
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costs.
Rut I think it should be pointed out that our present function 

is not one of declaring the law as Judges. We are really acting, 
as the trial Judge was acting, as a jury. The parties, including 
the defendant, could have had a jury in this case. And where 
the thing to be decided is the standard of reasonable care to be

0
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applied to the action of a municipal district in attempting to 
make a sandy road more passable for vehicles, in the present age 
when automobiles with inflammatory exhausts reaching near the 
ground have become a usual method of conveyance. 1 think a 
jury of 6 men taken from the community would have been a more 
suitable tribunal.

Hut the duty of acting as a jury was east upon the trial Judge. 
His decision, even when upheld by us, is not a decision upon the 
law but a decision as to what in his judgment amounted to rea­
sonable care. A jury in another case or another Judge would, 
as I conceive the matter, be quite free to apply a different stan­
dard. It is a question of fact not of law.

The trial Judge was of opinion that the defendant district 
was negligent and he found no contributory negligence in the 
plaintiff. For the reasons given by the Chief Justice I am strong­
ly inclined to agree with him. Hut in any case, to say the least, 
1 cannot say that the trial Judge was clearly wrong. There was 
evidence upon which he could reasonably find as he did upon the 
existence of negligence. We ought not in such circumstances to 
interfere with his decision.

Heck, J.A. concurs with Hyndman, J.A.
IIyndman, J.A. (dissenting) :—With great deference to the 

opinion of the trial Judge 1 think this appeal should be allowed.
The action is based on negligence, not for leaving the road in 

an impassable condition, but because the municipality in at­
tempting to make it available for use by wagons and motor cars, 
used more straw than was really necessary or, in view of the 
general use of motor cars, advisable, assuming its officers ought 
to realize that tire might result from close contact of the exhaust 
tube with dry straw.

The evidence was largely confined to the question of the depth 
to which the straw was strewn on the road. The witnesses vary 
greatly on the point, and in nearly all instances I regard their 
statements as largely guesswork, although it would appear that 
it is fairly clear that it was excessive.

From a careful reading of the judgment, however, 1 am satis­
fied that all he found was that “it should not be scattered about 
over the entire road at a depth which could be gathered up by 
any vehicle such as a motor car and carried along and result in an 
accident such as we have here.”

Now a very important fact was established at the trial, namely, 
that a short time prior to the accident a Ford car drove over the 
very same spot, stopped on it for a short time without turning 
off the gas, and proceeded again, without any difficulty. The 
height of the front axle of a Ford ear is 12 inches and a Me-
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Laughlin is about 11 */> inches. Why one car should pass safely 
and the oilier gather up and pack under it the very same straw is 
something 1 am unable to understand.

Granting, as I think we must, that the defendant is hound to 
exercise reasonable care and skill in doing work of this nature, 
1 am of opinion that the standard of the work must be fixed by 
all surrounding circumstances. What might be the grossest act 
of negligence in a city, or even a village, might not be considered 
(‘veil negligence on a remote country road. The topographical 
features of the district, the length of time settled, the degree of 
improvements, the natural characteristics of the road itself all 
must be considered.

In the case before us, we have a very sandy piece of road, im­
passable without the addition of straw which was apparently the 
only available substance for the purpose. At the time of the 
accident, as a matter of fact, the work had not been finished, and 
surely the municipality ought to be given a reasonable time with­
in which to inspect and remedy defects.

To say to a nicety just how much straw should be placed on a 
road of this nature, to my mind is a very difficult problem; to 
calculate within a few inches in laying new and “springy” 
straw is by no means an easy task.

What impresses me most is the fact that the other car easily 
and safely negotiated the road and no special attention was paid 
to its condition. If the work was sufficient to enable the first 
car to safely traverse it, I think it very satisfactory proof that 
the work was not done in the negligent manner alleged or suffi­
ciently so as to render the defendant liable in damages.

My own theory is that something peculiar attached to the car 
had the effect of catching or gathering up the straw and causing 
it to crowd underneath it with the unfortunate result complain­
ed of.

1 am not saying that under certain circumstances liability 
might not arise, but merely that on the facts disclosed here, in 
my opinion, it does not.

I would, therefore, allow the appeal with costs.
Clarke, J.A. concurs with Stuart, J.A.

Appeal dismissed.

ROYAL 11AXK OF CANADA v. THK KING.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., Idingion, Duff, Brodeur and 

Mignault, JJ. June 7, 1021.
Timber ($ 1-3)—License to cvt—Stumpage dvf.s—Crown lands.

Licenses for lumbering on Crown lands in New Brunswick contain 
a regulation passed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council which

Can. 
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provides that the licensee may be required to cut, annually, at least 
10,000 superficial feet of lumber for each square mile of his holding 
with the option in any vase of paying the stumpage that would be due 
ou the required quantity ami not cutting. Held, that a licensee who, 
for one or more years, had elected to pay and not cut is not entitled to 
have the amount so paid deducted from the stumpage fees due to the 
Crown when he eventually operates over the limits.

Appeal from a decision of the Supreme Court of New Bruns­
wick Appeal Division (1920), 55 D.L.R. 499, 48 N.B.R. 285, re­
versing the judgment at the trial in favour of the defendant.

The defendant was holder of a license to cut lumber on Crown 
lands with a right of annual renewal for a number of years on 
complying with all stipulated conditions. The license was sub­
ject to, and contained, the following regulation passed by the 
Governor in Council:—

“As a protection to the Government against lands being held 
under license for speculative purposes, and not operated on, all 
licensees shall make such operations annually on the lands held 
by them under license as may be deemed reasonable to the .Min­
ister of Lands and Mines, and the Minister of Lands and Mines 
shall have the power to call upon any licensee to cut an amount 
equal to at least 10,000 superficial feet of lumber for each square 
mile of licensed land held by the licensee as the Minister of Lands 
and Mines may determine or direct. Should the licensee prefer 
to pay the stumpage that would be due on such quantity of lum­
ber at 10,000 superficial feet per mile, instead of making the re­
quired operation or cut, he shall have the right to do so in any 
year, on his notifying the Minister of Lands and Mines to that 
effect, and obtaining his consent thereto, and such charge in lieu 
of stumpage shall be payable on or before August I. On failure 
of the licensee to comply with any of the foregoing conditions, 
the licenses shall be forfeited and the berths held under them 
shall become vacant, and be open for application by any other 
person.”

For 8 years the defendant paid the stumpage dues without 
cutting. In the 4th year the lumber was cut and the stumpage 
paid without question, but the next year when operations were 
continued the claim was set up that the amounts paid in the first 
5 years should be credited to defendant and deducted from the 
stumpage for that season’s cut. This claim was allowed by the 
trial Judge but his judgment was reversed on appeal to the Ap­
peal Division 55 D.L.R. 499.

II. A. Powell, K.C., for appellant.
J. J. F. Winslow, for respondent.
Davies, C.J.:—This was an action brought by the Attorney- 

General of New Brunswick, to recover the sum of $5,616.68, lie-
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ing the alleged halauee due for “stumpage” on Crown lands Can. 
during the year ending An gust 1, 1919, with interest. g c

The defence was that this sum had already been paid by the __'
defendant appellant to the Crown in the years 1913, 1914 and Royal

1915, excepting $619.20 which was admitted to be due, and paid ®ANK 0,1 
, * ’ i B 1 Canadabefore action. Vt

In the year 1913, pursuant to eh. XI of the Acts of Assembly The King. 
of New Brunswick of that year, the then holders of licenses were , „ ,
permitted to take out new 11 ecu ses very similar to the old ones, 
hut providing for annual renewals for 20 years from August 1,
1913.

In addition to “stumpage” on lumber eut, the Province 
charges annual mileage at $H per mile and other fees, and it was 
stated and was not denied that from these stumpage, mileage and 
other fees, the Province derives about 1of its total annual 
revenue.

The whole contest in this appeal turns upon the construction 
of Regulation 17 issued under and pursuant to the statute before 
referred to. Shortly put it is this:—

Is the licensee of any area having elected not to cut timber 
under his license in any year, and having paid to the Crown the 
‘"charge in lieu of stumpage,” provided for in the regulation 
for that year, entitled, in a subsequent year when he has elected 
to cut lumber on his lot, to set off or deduct from the amount 
payable under the regulation for such cutting the amounts he had 
paid in previous years when he had elected not to cut as and for 
stumpage. or “in lieu of stumpage.”

Mr. Powell contended very strongly for the appellant that to 
hold he was not so entitled was tantamount to asking him to pay 
stumpage twice over.

Section 17, on the construction of which the controversy Im*- 
tween the parties depends, reads as follows :—

“As a protection to the Government against lands being held 
under license for speculative purposes, and not operated on, all 
licensees shall make such operations annually on the lands held 
by them under license as may 1m* deemed reasonable to the Min­
ister of Lands and Mines, and the Minister of Lands and Mines 
shall have the power to call upon any licensee to cut an amount 
equal to at least ten (10) M superficial feet of lumber for each 
square mile of licensed land held by him, and may require that 
such operation or eut shall be made on such blocks of timber 
lands held by the licensee as the Minister of Land and Mines may 
determine or direct. Should the licensee prefer to pay the stump- 
age that would 1m* due on such quantity of lumber at 10 M super­
ficial feet per mile, instead of making the required operation or
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cut, lie shall have the right to do so in any year, on his notifying 
the Minister of Lands and Mines to that effect, and obtaining his 
consent thereto ; and such charge in lieu of stum page shall he 
payable on or before the first day of August. On failure of the 
licensee to comply with any of the foregoing conditions, the 
licenses shall be forfeited and the berths held under them shall 
become vacant, and be open for application by any other per­
son.”

The trial Judge held that under the true construction of this 
section the licensee having once paid the charge for stumpage, or, 
as the regulation states, ‘‘in lieu of stumpage” for a specific 
year, lie could, in a subsequent year when he elected to cut, claim 
to have the sum so previously paid by him credited to the charge 
he was liable to pay in the year he elected to cut.

On appeal to the Appeal Division of the Supreme Court of 
New Brunswick (1920), 55 D.L.R. 499, 48 N.B.R. 285, that 
Court unanimously reversed the finding of the trial Judge. 
Grimmer, J., in delivering the judgment of the Court, puts the 
question very clearly and 1 fully agree with his construction of 
the section.

He says at pp. 505-6:—‘‘In my opinion the intention of this 
section is clear. It enabled the Crown to secure a certain amount 
of protection as far as revenue was concerned, from the lands 
held by the licensee thus preventing the tendency to speculation 
and it conferred upon the licensee an option either to cut or to 
pay for the privilege of not cutting, which option if elected by the 
licensee, in my opinion, simply entitled him to retain his license 
and prevent the forfeiture, which otherwise would take place 
under the provisions of the regulation. The words “such charge 
in lieu of stumpage” are, to my mind, clear and unmistakable, 
and the choice once made by the licensee and consented to by the 
Minister became final, the licensee thereby paying for the option 
which he enjoyed as hereinbefore stated ... I cannot 
and do not consider that sec. 17 requires a payment from the 
licensee in any sense as a penalty for not making the operation 
or cut required by the Minister, hut it does confer upon him, as 
stated, the privilege of holding his lands without making a cut 
or operation, upon payment of a sum fixed by the Minister. In 
such a case an election to pay would not be in the nature of an 
anticipated payment for stumpage, but would be simply for the 
enjoyment of the privilege which was conferred. Should there 
be any uncertainty in the words “the stumpage that would be 
due”, in my opinion, it is fully explained and the purpose and 
intention made plain by the other words “such charge in lieu of
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stum page,” which to my mind, place upon the object of the sec­
tion a construction clear, plain and unequivocal.”

1 do not consider it necessary to elaborate upon the Judge’s 
remarks. I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal with costs.

Idinoton, J. :—The respondent sued appellant for stumpage 
dues it had become responsible for, as holder of a license to cut 
timber in the Province of New Brunswick, in the year from 
August 1, 1918, to August 1, 1919, which amounted to $6,070.25, 
but was reduced before action by the payment of $602.75.

The appellant’s license was one of the kind that was renewable 
from year to year and the annual stumpage dues might be in­
creased from year to year without the consent of the licensee by 
the Minister of Lands and Mines, as he saw fit.

Section 4 of the Act of 1913, eh. 11, relative to such Crown 
timber lands and licenses to cut thereon, reads as follows:— 

“The Lieutenant-Governor in Council shall, from time to 
time, fix and determine the rates of stumpage to be paid upon 
the various kinds of lumber cut from the Crown lands by the 
licensees, and shall determine the mileage to be paid annually 
by the Licensee, and shall make such other rules and regulations 
in regard to the cutting and removing of lumber from the Crown 
Land Areas as may seem to him just, wise and prudent.”

Thereunder the Lieutenant-Governor in Council made the fol­
lowing amongst other regulations:—

“(c) As a protection to the Government against lands being 
held under license for speculative purposes, and not operated 
on, all licensees shall make such operations annually on the lands 
held by them under license as may be deemed reasonable to the 
Minister of Lands and Mines, and the Minister of Lands and 
Mines shall have the power to call upon any licensee to cut an 
amount equal to at least 10,000 superficial feet of lumlier for 
each square mile of licensed land held by the licensee as the Min­
ister of Lands and Mines may determine or direct. Should the 
licensee prefer to pay the stumpage that would be due on such 
quantity of lumber of 10,000 superficial feet per mile, instead 
of making the required operation or cut, he shall have the right 
to do so in any year, on his notifying the Minister of Lands and 
Mines to that effect, and obtaining his consent thereto, and such 
charge in lieu of stumpage shall be payable on or before the first 
day of August. On failure of the licensee to comply with any of 
the foregoing conditions, the licenses shall be forfeited and the 
berths held under them shall become vacant, and be open for ap­
plication by any other person.”

That was set forth in full in the license issued to the appcl-

8.C.

The King. 

ldington, J.



28 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Can.

8.C.

Bank of 
Canada

The Kino.

Mlllgtnli, J.

lant in 1913, as part of the terms upon which the license was 
continued in force; and also in each succeeding renewal thereof.

The parties hereto at the trial agreed upon the facts to he had 
in view in determining the issue raised.

That remarkable issue is that the appellant, after having acted 
upon the said regulation not only for the year 1913-1914, but 
also for each of the 2 succeeding years, and paid each year the 
sum of $1,822.50 as the yearly price for the privilege of refrain­
ing from cutting, without any resistance, now sets up the conten­
tion that such payments were mere payments on account of fu­
ture cutting under later licenses.

The amusing feature of appellant’s claim is that it did cut in 
the 4th year and paid the full amount of the dues for and in 
respect of said year’s actual cut, and never suggested what now 
is claimed until settlement demanded for the actual cutting of 
the 5th year.

Not only did it forget to raise the question when paying for 
the dues it owed for its actual cut of the year August, 1917, to 
August, 1918, hut in the admissions made at the trial it described 
what had transpired in respect to the first year’s exercise of a 
privilege of refraining from cutting, as follows:—

“And the Minister, after the issuing of such renewal licenses 
called upon the defendant, as licensee, to cut during the said term 
upon the said lands 1.225,000 superficial feet of timber, an 
amount equal to 10,000 superficial feet of timber, for each square 
mile of the same, and the defendant preferring to pay the stump- 
age that would be due on such quantity of timber, namely, 
1,225,(MM) superficial feet, instead of making the said required 
operation or cut during the said term thereupon notified the 
Minister of its said preference and the Minister consented that 
the defendant should exercise such preference and fixed at 
$1,822.50 the amount of stuinpage the defendant should pay on 
such quantity of timber in accordance with the rates of stumpage 
then payable by licensees of Crown timber lands for timber cut 
thereon by the licensees thereof, and the defendant accordingly 
did not cut during the said term any timber on the said lands 
but paid to the provincial treasurer the sum of $1,822.50, being 
the amount of stumpage so fixed to be paid . ”

There does not seem to have been a shadow of doubt in the 
minds of those concerned at the times of the several renewals 
and payments made by appellant of the nature of the transac­
tion being what respondent contends. Nor was any pretension 
to the contrary set up till 2 years of cutting had taken place.

Had such a pretension been set up at an earlier date doubtless 
it would have been ended by the Minister advising an increase
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of the stumpage dues under the lieenee to what was necessary to 
cure the complaint.

The appellant, 1 submit, cannot now, properly, steer in silence 
past such a danger for 2 years and then set up what rests on 
nothing hut a war of words, regardless of the conduct of appel­
lant in paying on the actual basis of what was clearly a common 
mutual understanding quite inconsistent with what is now con­
tended for.

1 always prefer the interpretation so given, to results to he 
got by doubtful arguments as to words, suggested by after­
thought, of what either might have claimed long ago.

However, 1 doubt if the interest to be saved the Province 
would ever have occurred to its Minister as worth taking such 
pains for or as an effectual cheek upon speculation.

For these reasons, and adopting in the main the reasoning of 
the Court of Appeal, 55 D.L.R. 499, 1 think the appeal should he 
dismissed with costs.

Duff, J.:—My opinion touching the questions in controversy 
accords with that of Grimmer, J., 55 D.L.R. 499, whose reasoning 
is, I think, conclusive. The appeal should he dismissed with 
costs.

Brodeur, J.i—This appeal turns upon the construction of 
Regulation 17 made by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council of 
New Brunswick concerning the persons having saw mill licenses 
on Crown lands.

A licence was issued in 1913 in favour of the Royal Bank in 
trust for different persons and it contained a provision that 
the licensee would carry out the rules and regulations made in 
connection with the Crown land areas.

Regulation 17 in dispute reads as follows:—|See judgment of 
Davies, C.J., ante p. 25.]

It appears that before the legislation of 1913 there was no 
disposition by which the Government could get the timber limits 
under license exploited, and the licensees could for years and 
years keep the limits without making any cutting. This regula­
tion 17 remedied this undesirable state of affairs and gave the 
Minister of Lands the power of forcing the licensees to make a 
certain quantity of cutting.

However, the right of the Minister was not absolute, for the 
regulation provided that if the licensee preferred not to do the 
cutting required by the Minister then he would have to pay “the 
stumpage that would be due on the quantity of timber which he 
had been ordered to cut,” and such charge in lieu of stumpage 
should be payable on August 1.

For 3 years the appellant did not make the operations ordered
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by the Minister and paid to the Government the charge stipulated 
in the regulation. In the 4th the appellant cut a larger quantity 
than the one required hy the Minister for that year and paid 
the stumpage dues on the whole quantity he cut. In the 5th 
year, he still cut a much larger quantity than the one required; 
hut this time, instead of paying the dues, he claimed that lie 
should he given credit for the sums which lie had paid in the 
first 1$ years. It is contended on the contrary hy the Government 
that the amount which was paid did not form part of the stump- 
age dues hut that it was an additional charge.

In the first part of the regulation in which is mentioned the 
payment of stumpage alone, there would he no doubt, according 
to my opinion, that the licensee would he entitled to claim that 
the money which he paid was an advanced payment of stumpage 
on lumber to he cut, hut the last part of the regulation makes it 
very clear that the payment which he makes is a charge in lieu of 
stumpage. This charge or payment is for tin1 privilege which he 
acquires to have his licence renewed in paying a sum of money 
representing the dues which he would have paid if he had cut the 
quantity of timber required hy the Minister. This payment is 
not an advance payment, hut it is a charge which he is called 
upon to pay if he does not fulfil the obligation imposed upon him 
hy the Minister.

The appellant itself appears to have so construed the agree­
ment, since, in the 4th year, it did not claim, when it paid its 
dues, that the previous payments were to he considered as ad­
vance payments.

1, therefore, agree with the construction made hy the Court 
below of this Regulation 17, 55 D.L.R. 41)9, and the appeal should 
he dismissed with costs.

Mignavi.t, J.:—The counsel for the appellant left nothing 
unsaid that could serve as an argument against the judgment 
appealed from. At first sight, there appeared to be a certain 
plausibility in his contentions which prevailed before the trial 
Court, hut when carefully scrutinised, 1 cannot accept these 
contentions as being sound. The whole question turns upon the 
construction to he placed upon the licence under which the ap­
pellant held from the Crown the right to cut timber on 122^ 
square miles of land belonging to His Majesty in right of the 
Province of New Brunswick.

The clause which gave rise to the difficulty is section 17, 
which reads as follows;—[See judgment of Davies, C.J. ante
p. 2.").]

I may add that the licence was also subject, as a condition of
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its renewal, to the payment of #8 per square mile over and above fan- 
all stum page dues, and this mileage lias been regularly paid. g c

In February 1912, Hilyard Bros, assigned to the appellant a 1—1
saw mill licence for the territory in question. In the 2 years Royal

ending August 1, 1912, and 1913, no lumber was cut on these 
lands and a new licence was issued to the appellant on August r.
1, 1913, for another year ending August 1, 1914. In the latter Tin: Kink. 
and subsequent licences was inserted section 17 above quoted. Migiïàüït j

During the years beginning on August 1. 1914, 1915, and 1916, 
the licensee was called upon by the Minister of Lands and Mines 
to cut an amount of at least 10,000 superficial feet of lumber for 
each square mile. The appellant did not cut this lumber but 
under see. 17 paid to the Government $1,822.50 in each year, 
which would correspond to the stum page on the quantity which it 
had been required to cut. In the year beginning on August 1.
1917, the appellant being again called upon to cut this quantity 
of lumber, cut an excess amount and paid the stumpage thereon 
without asserting any right to set off previous payments.

The claim to offset these previous payments was first made in 
answer to the demand of stumpage dues on lumber cut during 
the year beginning on August 1, 1918. Whether the appellant 
is entitled to have these payments applied so as to reduce the 
stumpage due for the latter year is the question to be decided.

Briefly the appellant’s contention is that although it cut no 
lumber during the 3 years beginning on August 1, 1914, 1915, 
and 1916, it paid the stumpage dues that would have been 
payable on the required cut of 10,000 superficial feet per square 
mile, and that when it subsequently did cut lumber, these stump- 
age dues should be credited on the lumber then cut. It lays 
stress on the words in sec. 17:—“Should the licensee prefer to 
pay the stumpage that would be due 'on such quaitity of lum­
ber . . . . ”

The respondent answers that the amounts paid for the years 
wherein lumber was not cut were paid for the privilege of 
holding lands without cutting lumber thereon, and relies on the 
words :—“such charge in lieu of stumpage shall be payable, 
etc.,” as shewing that the appellant paid a charge, not for stump­
age but in lieu thereof, for this privilege.

Section 17 expressly states that its purpose is to protect the 
Government against lands being held under licence for specu­
lative purposes and not operated on. Reading the whole clause, 
it appears clear that the intention was to require the payment 
each year of a minimum amount whether or not the licensee cut 
any lumber. Had the required quantity been cut, this payment 
would undoubtedly be for stumpage, but where no lumber was
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cut, I cannot, on my construction of this clause, come to the 
conclusion that the payment was on account of stumpage, for 
stumpage being by definition “a tax charged for the privilege 
of cutting timber on State lands” (New English Dictionary), 
there could he no stumpage in the absence of the cutting of any 
lumber. And although the licensee, to use the language of this 
clause, was allowed to pay the stumpage that would be due on 
the minimum quantity required to be cut instead of making the 
required operation or cut, he really paid a charge in lieu of 
stumpage, for it would he an abuse of language to term such a 
payment as one made for stumpage when no lumber was cut 
and no stumpage had accrued, and the only meaning it can 
have is that it was made for the privilege of not cutting the 
quantity specified by the Minister.

Another consideration is that stumpage dues might increase 
and did in fact increase in the subsequent years, and it would 
be unreasonable to allow the licensee, when he actually did cut 
lumber, to escape from paying the increased stumpage, by reason 
of previous payments at a lower rate for the privilege of making 
no cut of lumber.

For these reasons my conclusion is that the appeal fails and 
should be dismissed with costs.

Appeal dismissed.

sklhMOKk v. It. C. KLRTTRIC RAILWAY.
British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A.. Marlin, Gallihcr,

McPhillips and Eberts, JJ.A. June 6, l!)g$.
Negligence ($IIF—120)—Contributory negligence of plaintiff—Fail­

ure TO LOOK BEFORE CROSSING STREET—INJURY BY STREET CAR—
Both parties at fault—Excessive speed of street car—Lia-

Where a jury has found a plaintiff guilty of contributory negli 
gence in crossing the street behind a street car from which he hud 
alighted without looking out for an aproaching car on the opposite 
track, he cannot recover damages for injuries caused by being 
struck by iuch street car, although the car was at the time of the 
accident travelling at an excessive rate of speed.

r B.c. Electric R. Co. v. Loach. 23 D.L.R. 4. 20 C.R.C. 309. [19161 
1 A.C. 719; 85 L.J. (P.C.) 23 distinguished; Nccman v. Hosford, 
[1920] 2 I.R. 258 referred to.]

Appeal by plaintiff from the trial judgment dismissing an 
action for damages for injuries received by being run into by 
one of defendant’s street cars. Affirmed.

A. Alexander and G. L. Fraser, for appellant.
L. U. McFhUlips, K.C., for respondent.
Macdonald, C.J.A. :—The appeal can only succeed if the Court 

is prepared to abrogate the doctrine of contributory negligence.
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We have not gone as far as that yet, and I am not prepared to go 
that far now.
The jury answered questions finding the defendants guilty of 

negligence in running their ear at an excessive rate of speed. 
They found the plaintiff guilty of contributory negligence in 
not taking due care. They negatived ultimate negligence when 
they said that after the defendant’s motorman became aware, 
or ought to have become aware, of plaintiff's danger, it was too 
late to save him.

The facts are clearly and well defined. The defendant’s only 
negligence was in the rate of speed, the plaintiff’s only negligence 
was in not looking out for the danger; the negligence of each 
continued until it was too late to avoid the injury of which the 
plaintiff complains.

The statement of these facts would appear to me to lead only 
to one conclusion, namely, that the action was properly dis­
missed. I understand the rule of law which lias long prevailed 
in our Courts, to be, that when both parties are at fault in 
respect of the occurrence and neither could, by the exercise of 
reasonable care, after the danger had become or ought to have 
become apparent, have prevented the injury, neither can recover 
against the other. The B.C. Electric R. Co. v. Loach, 23 D.L.R. 
4, 20 C.R.C. 309, [1916] 1 A.C. 719, 85 L.J. (P.C.) 23, a much 
canvassed decision of the Privy Council, was cited to us, as were 
also conflicting decisions of the Courts of Alberta and Saskatche­
wan, hut I think no useful purpose can be served by further dis­
cussion of these cases. As I understand Loach*s case, it does 
not strike at the doctrine of contributory negligence, but decides 
that if the failure of the one to avoid the occurrence was due 
to his having disabled himself by antecedent neglect to supply 
the usual facilities to enable him to do so, then that party must 
be held to be the real author of the injury.

The appeal should be dismissed.
Martin, J.A.:—This appeal should, I think, 1m? dismissed; the 

findings of the jury can only, in the light of the circumstances, 
be interpreted as against the plaintiff, who is in a position indis­
tinguishable in principle from that of the unsuccessful plaintiff 
in the instructive case Neenan v. llosford,- [ 1920] 2 I.R. 258, 
which I have noticed in Which v. Bowell (1922), 67 D.L.R. 471, 
wherein judgment is being delivered this day. I regard the 
present case as being, shortly, one wherein the plaintiff negli­
gently stepped into immediate and unavoidable danger.

Galliher, J.A.:—In my opinion this appeal must fail. It 
was ably and ingeniously argued by Alexander, but unless the 
principle laid down in the Loach case, 23 D.L.R. 4, by the Privy 
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Council, can be applied here to the circumstances of this case, 
the appeal cannot succeed. That case is, in my opinion, dis­
tinguishable on the facts. Here, the unfortunate man stepped 
round the rear of the car from which he alighted, right into 
danger without looking, and to say that had the defendants 
been running at a less rate of speed, the accident might have 
been avoided, may lie true, but the rate of speed was the original 
negligence of the defendants, and had the plaintiff looked before 
stepping into danger, he could have seen the car coming and 
avoided the accident.

Under such circumstances, it does not seem to me he can 
succeed.

McPhillips, J.A. :—I would dismiss the appeal.
Eberts, J.A., would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissed.

McKEAN v. BLACK.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., Idington, Duff, Anglin and Mig- 

nault, JJ. June 80, 1981.
Evidence ($VIE—535)—Contract—Parol evidence — Meaning — Cor­

roboration—Conveyance fob security.
Statements and representations as to the meaning and purport of 

a written agreement, made by the parties thereto at the time it was 
entered into, is admise 3 evidence of its meaning; such evidence is 
admissible to prove th a conveyance of lumber was only intended as 
a security and operati . only until the advances secured thereby have 
been paid. Such statements coupled with the provisions of the document 
constitute sufficient corroborative evidence.

Appeal from a decision of the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia 
(1921), 56 D.L.R. 160, 54 N.S.R. 245, affirming the judgment at 
the trial in favour of the respondents.

F. R. Taylor, K.C., and Jenks, K.C., for the appellants.
Henry, K.C., for respondents.
Davies, C.J. :—I think this appeal fails and should be dis­

missed. The action was one brought by Black against the heirs 
and representatives of the late George McKean in which the 
plaintiff claimed a reconveyance to him of a certain lumber 
property which he had conveyed and assigned to McKean as 
security, as he contended, for certain advances then and after­
wards to he made to him and certain guarantees to be given on 
his behalf to enable him to complete his purchase of the property 
and to enable him further to carry on his lumbering operations, 
and which advances had all been repaid. The defence was prac­
tically a denial that the plaintiff had carried out the obligations 
imposed upon him by the agreement in other respects than the 
repayment of the moneys advanced or guaranteed and which
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it was essential he should carry out before he was entitled to the 
reconveyance claimed. The repayment of all advances and in­
terest which McKean had made to Black or guaranteed for him, 
was not challenged or denied, but it was claimed that it was a 
condition and a term of the agreement that before Black could 
claim a reconveyance of the property he was obliged completely 
to lumber the property and to cut, saw and manufacture and 
deliver to McKean all the lumber on said property at a price to 
be agreed upon, or that said lumber should be shipped on terms 
in paragraph one (1) of the agreement stated. It was agreed 
that this had not been done and Black’s contention was that it 
was not obligatory on him to do this, once he had paid McKean 
all advances made by him with interest and discharged him from 
all guarantees and liabilities he had incurred in this respect by 
the agreement.

Apart from the legal construction of the agreement itself, a 
question arose as to the statement said to have been made by 
McKean to Black as to the meaning of the agreement, which 
statement Black swore was what induced him to sign the agree­
ment. This evidence is as follows :—

(Charles 0. Black, direct examination).
‘"After we had bargained, Mr. McKean, the young man, went 

out and got that agreement drawrn up by a lawyer; I had no 
lawyer, and I am not one myself, and have a limited education ; 
there was a clause where it said we hold all the lumber on this 
property estimated at thirty million; I said there might not be 
thirty million on the property, jn fact, I know there is not; it is 
only an estimate, and I might not be able to cut all that lumber, 
and it is a bad thing for me to sign things like that. He said, 
‘the meaning and intention of this agreement is that we hold 
all the lumber on this property until we arc paid off all our ad­
vances with interest ; that means to say, you can’t sell any lumber 
off this property until you cut enough to pay us all off, because 
if you did we would not have security, and that is what the 
agreement means.’ I said, ‘if that is what it means, all right.’ 
That is what I thought it was, but now it seems it is interpreted 
they hold it all after it is paid off; he said the meaning and in­
tention of the agreement was that. Q. You then signed the 
agreement? A. Yes, with young McKean. Q. On the under­
standing you had with Mr. George McKean, as you have just told 
us about? A. Yes.”

The trial Judge accepted this statement of fact as proved, and 
also held that there was sufficient corroboration of it and the 
question for our consideration is whether the statement was ad­
missible as evidence, and if so, whether McKean being then dead
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there was sufficient corroboration under the statute and what 
effect, if any, was to be given to it.

I am of the opinion that the trial Judge was right in holding 
that the agreement in question was an ambiguous one, the real 
meaning of which, considering the apparently conflicting clauses 
of it, was most difficult to determine. I m ♦ say 1 myself have 

Davies, c. J. found it so and agree fully with the trial Judge as to its ambig­
uity. I think the evidence was properly admitted and that there 
was sufficient corroboration of it under the statute.

In my judgment, the agreement in question was in reality a 
mortgage intended to secure to McKean all moneys advanced or 
guaranteed by him together with interest charges and as these 
were conceded to have been fully repaid to McKean when the 
action was commenced and he was discharged from all liability 
in respect of them, the equity of redemption of Black in the 
property was complete and entitled Black to the reconveyance 
claimed.

Once the evidence of McKean’s statement, as to the meaning 
and intent of the agreement before set out, is accepted, and that 
such meaning and intent were indeed the inducements which 
led Black to sign it, the controversy would be at an end and 
Black’s claim to a reconveyance would, in my opinion, be com­
plete.

I accept fully the findings of the trial Judge confirmed by 
the majority of the Court on appeal on this point, and think 
that it is a reasonable construction of the agreement that all 
its other provisions relating to the cutting of the lumber on the 
land were at an end when McKean’s advances and guarantees 
were fully paid and discharged. In other words, I hold that the 
statement of McKean as to the intent and meaning of the agree­
ment and which formed the inducement on which Black signed 
it, was a correct statement and was accepted by the parties as 
such. If and when Black paid off all advances and interest and 
discharged McKean from his guarantees, he became at once 
entitled to a reconveyance.

The other provisions of the contract as to the cutting of the 
lumber by Black and handing it over to McKean for sale on a 
commission were, in my judgment, intended to be in force only 
while McKean’s advances to Black, or his guarantees to the bank 
for Black, or some part of them, were still outstanding, and 
were intended as securities to McKean as against such liability 
and guarantees.

Section six (6) of the agreement provides for a condition w'hich 
never arose, namely : Black “desiring to sell the property free 
from the agreement,’’ and need not now be considered.
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For these reasons I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Idinoton, J. :—The late Charles 0. Black, engaged in the 

lumber business and, as the trial Judge finds, in course thereof 
bought from the Nova Scotia Lumber Co. a large property for 
$40,000, of which all had l>een paid but $5,000. Having met 
with some business reverses he needed help in order to pay that 
and raise $18,000 to carry on his lumbering business on said 
property.

The late George McKean agreed to go his surety to the Bank 
of Montreal for such amount as thus needed.

The Nova Scotia Lumber Co. had given Black a bond to 
convey the said land upon the payment of the price and that 
was indorsed over, as Black expresses it, to the late George Mc­
Kean at the time of entering into the agreement presently to be 
referred to. By virtue thereof, the said company, three months 
later, conveyed the land to said McKean. Under the circum­
stances an ordinary form of mortgage might have easily been 
framed to express all that the parties intended, but, instead 
thereof, an agreement was entered into between said Black and 
said McKean (whom I shall hereinafter call the mortgagor and 
mortgagee respectively) drawn up by the latter’s solicitor, dated 
January 29, 1914, which recited the facts that the mortgagee 
had agreed to guarantee “a certain advance to be made by the 
Bank of Montreal to the said party of the first part, and has 
also agreed to arrange for further advances to the said party of 
the first part during the lumbering season of 1914,” and also 
had entered into an agreement to purchase certain lumber from 
the said mortgagor, and, as security, said mortgagor had agreed 
to assign the said agreement for purchase of the said land to 
said mortgagee.

Then the operative part of the agreement contained a half 
dozen covenants such as might have been inserted in an ordinary 
mortgage had the parties taken that method of carrying out 
their arrangement.

If we have regard to what the parties were about these several 
instruments must be read together, and so read, the transaction 
was nothing more nor less than a mortgage accompanied by 
these covenants to secure the mortgagee against loss and inci­
dentally get the profits to be derived from handling the mort­
gagor’s entire lumber from timber on said land, until the ad­
vances and 6% per annum thereon had been repaid.

That product for a year would seem to have been likely to be 
about three million feet of lumber.

From the expressions in the agreement the term of the year 
1914 would seem to be all that was in the minds of the parties.
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Can. The first paragraph provided for the said mortgagor com­
pletely lumbering the property and selling the lumber to the 
mortgagee at such prices as they might agree on, or commission

McKean named.
Black The secon(^ provided that no other lumber should be cut on
___' the premises nor should any cut there be sold to any one else

idington. j. than the mortgagee, his assigns or representatives.
These provisions the appellants contend entitle them as the 

successors in title of the mortgagee (who died in 1915) to hold 
the property free from the redemption by the said mortgagor 
who instituted this suit for the redemption of said mortgage. 
This contention I will presently consider, after stating the sub­
stance of the other paragraphs.

The third paragraph was for quiet enjoyment and will be set 
forth later in full.

The fourth paragraph provided for the payment by the said 
mortgagor to the mortgagee of “all loss or damage which may 
be caused to the said timber lands, lumber or property by fire 
or other casualty, and will hold the said party of the second part, 
his executors, administrators and assigns, harmless and indem­
nified therefrom.”

The fifth bound the mortgagor to pay all rates and assessments 
on the property.

The sixth provided for the case of the mortgagor wishing to 
sell the property doing so on the terms of paying fifty cents a 
thousand on a basis of there being thirty million feet thereon.

These were followed by the following power of sale given 
McKean :—

“Provided always and it is hereby agreed, that on default in 
the repayment of the suras so guaranteed by the said party of 
the second part and all other sums that hereafter may be guaran 
teed by the said party of the second part, his executors, adminis­
trators or assigns, and all expenses, charges, costs, rates, taxes 
and assessments with interest at 6% as aforesaid on the said 
property or any portion thereof, or the said lumber thereon, or 
any portion thereof, or in case of the loss or destruction of said 
property or any portion thereof or the lumber thereon or any 
portion thereof, by fire or other casualty, or in case of the breach 
by the party of the first part, his heirs, executors or administra­
tors of any of the covenants or agreements herein contained it 
shall be lawful for the said party of the second part, his heirs, 
executors, administrators or assigns, either by public auction or 
private sale to sell and convey the said property hereinbefore re­
ferred to or any portion thereof and either in one block or in 
separate parcels as he or they may deem fit, and upon such terms
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as he or they in their discretion may deem advisable after giving 
notice to the said party of the first part of such sale by mailing 
at least 7 days prior thereto at some post office in the Province 
of New Brunswick by registered mail addressed ‘C. 0. Black, 
Oxford, N.S.* written notice of the time and place of such sale 
and no other or further notice or demand shall be necessary, 
and such notice shall be effectual whether the said Charles 0. 
Black be living or dead ; and the proceeds of such sale or sales 
the said party of the second part, his heirs, executors, administra­
tors or assigns, shall apply in the first place to the expenses of 
such sale or sales and necessary conveyances, and, secondly, so 
far as they will go to or towards the repayment to the said party 
of the second part, his heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, 
of any sums that he may have paid or he liable for under said 
guarantee or may have advanced hereunder, together with in­
terest, expenses, costs, charges, rates, assessments, moneys paid 
on account of rates, taxes and impositions or such portions there­
of as may remain unpaid ; and thirdly, to or towards any sums 
otherwise accruing due by the said party of the first part or his 
aforesaid to the said party of the second part, and shall pay the 
balance, if any, to the party of the first part, his heirs, executors, 
administrators or assigns, and that all contracts which shall be 
entered into, and all conveyances which shall be executed by the 
said party of the second part, his heirs, executors, administrators 
or assigns, for the purpose of effecting any such sale or sales shall 
be valid and effectual notwithstanding that the party of the first 
part, his heirs, executors, administrators or assigns, shall not 
join therein or assent thereto, and that it shall not be incumbent 
on the respective purchasers of said lands, property or premises 
or any part thereof, to ascertain or inquire whether such notice 
of sale shall have been given or to see to the application of the 
proceeds thereof.”

This certainly (in the third part regarding the application of 
such proceeds of sale) does not countenance anything like the 
contentions of the present appellants.

It should have provided expressly for that fifty cents a thous­
and or for the commissions provided for in foregoing or some­
thing like thereunto, if the contentions set up are sound.

In the argument much was said by counsel for appellants 
about this agreement being unambiguous and not ambiguous as 
suggested by some of those dealing with it in the Courts below.

It is contended that the language is plain and express.
So I answer is the third paragraph of the agreement, which 

reads as follows:—
“3. That the said party of the second part, his heirs, execu-
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tors, administrators and assigns, shall quietly and peaceably 
enjoy the said property and the said timber and lumber, and 
that the same are free from incumbrances.”

If the sort of argument applied to paras. 1 and 2 is valid, why 
not rely on this one and simplify the whole business by setting 
up that least ambiguous of all.

Thereby the appellants are entitled to enjoy forever, as there 
is no limit of time named, the land in question.

Of course the answer thereto is that such was not within the 
contemplation of the parties.

The question thus raised as to the first and second paragraphs 
is whether the remarkable contentions set up by the appellants 
can be imagined as within the like contemplation of the parties 
when due regard is had to the surrounding circumstances and the 
conduct of the mortgagor and much more so of the appellants in 
later years.

1 think the intention was made quite clear by the first part of 
the recital as quoted above that the mortgage was simply to in­
demnify the mortgagee for his suretyship for the contemplated 
advances by the bank.

No doubt the parties intended that the mortgagee, as part of 
the inducement to him to become surety, was to get the benefit 
to be derived from handling the lumber produced so long as the 
advances made within the scope of said recital or interest thereon 
remained unpaid.

But I cannot imagine such a proposition as appellants con­
tended for, that the advantages so implied during that period 
were to extend for 10 years or more, being the length of time 
probably required to complete the lumbering.

It is not only inconsistent with the recital but also with the 
terms of the power of sale, and with the correlative right ot* 
redemption which the mortgagor would have the moment the 
condition came into existence, which would render the power of 
sale capable of operation.

The curiosities presented in the document shewing others like 
to the first two giving rise to these contentions of the appellants, 
do not end there or in the covenant number three, above quoted, 
for the pith of the fourth covenant, above quoted in part, pro­
vides, not for the protection of the mortgagee against his loss by 
reason of any fire, but for the payment to him “of the damage 
which may be caused to the said timber lands.”

In as plain, unambiguous language as appellants claim for 
these other covenants in question the mortgagee would hereunder 
be entitled to claim the whole value of the timber destroyed by 
fire.
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Of course no one ever imagined that such was the intention 
of the parties, but such is its literal meaning and we are left 
to guess what could be claimed under this covenant.

There is much to be said in favour of all these covenants pre­
senting curiosities demonstrating such an inconsistency with the 
right of redemption as to render them null and void within 
many cases to be found when mortgagees had attempted to bar 
or render impossible the right of redemption.

I mean, of course, on the assumption that the results appel­
lants claim are the true meaning thereof, interpreting and con­
struing, in light of all the surrounding circumstances, as I do, 
that these first two covenants were only to be operative during 
the existence of the indebtedness for or in respect of the ad­
vances contemplated and then to cease. Though they are no 
models of accurate draftmanship, they arc consistent with the 
creation of a mortgage and only a mortgage as being all that was 
intended by those concerned.

In the sense contended for by appellants, they might be such 
as might be found in a partnership agreement but are hardly 
consistent with being part of a mortgage.

Evidently the explanation given the mortgagor, (who never 
met the solicitor who drew this document) who asked the mort­
gagee its meaning before its execution, and was told by him 
what he swrore to and the trial Judge believed, did not need much 
corroboration, if any needed in such a case.

Moreover the maxim relied upon in respondents’ factum— 
verba chartarum fortius accipiuntur contra proferentem—may, 
under such circumstances, be borne in mind.

The chances are, I suspect, that if the mortgagee had survived 
no one would have heard him set up such contention as appellants 
make.

The unfortunate slips so evidently the result of haste in prep­
aration of the document are cogent warnings against taking 
those now in question as literally correct.

Parts of any document, and especially one so prepared, may 
have in it sentences and covenants clear and unambiguous if 
taken alone, yet be most ambiguous when read in light of sur­
rounding circumstances clearly demonstrating its real purpose.

Then as to the appellants, and relative thereto, it is to be 
borne in mind that their own conduct, as set forth in correspond­
ence and accounts against them, is quite inconsistent with such 
claims as they set up.

In regard thereto I think the following passage in Fisher ou 
Mortgages (Can. ed.) relative to the analogous subject of mort­
gage or no mortgage, to be found in the 14th paragraph of that
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work, is worth quoting as a guide herein as against appellants’ 
contention for what, I submit, is a claim for partnership.

“14. And while the Courts protect a bona fide purchaser, and 
will not lightly infer an intention to make a mere security, if none 
be expressed they will give effect to an intention, if proved, to 
create a security, and will also take care that a borrower shall 
not suffer from the omission by fraud, mistake, or accident, of 
the usual requisites of a mortgage.

An instrument which purports to be an absolute conveyance, 
may therefore be construed as a mortgage, where according to the 
true intention of the parties, it was intended to be regarded as a 
mortgage. ’ ’

In conclusion I take the conduct of the mortgagor and mort­
gagee, the nature of the business they had in hand and the fact 
that by the hypothecation of the product of the lumber to the 
bank by the mortgagor with the knowledge and assent of the 
mortgagee to secure payment of the advances by the bank, to be 
cogent evidence of the transaction being a redeemable mortgage 
and not a partnership, or something akin thereto. And the con­
duct of appellants in relation thereto after the death of the mort­
gagor, renders it clear that respondents are entitled to succeed 
quite independently of the evidence of the mortgagor of what the 
mortgagee told him.

But 1 do not doubt that such evidence may well be received on 
the basis of what transpired being used in regard to the right 
of redemption denied by the appellants on the strength of a most 
ambiguous provision, if room for the contentions set up, and that 
there is abundant corroboration in the other provisions of the 
document.

Suppose the case of a mortgagor bound by the terms of his 
mortgage to insure, having assigned his policy to the mortgagee 
by an instrument that was absolute in form and expressed as 
made for due consideration, but nothing else disclosing the actual 
consideration, and the insurers saw fit to pay what became due 
thereon, as result of fire, to such assignee next day after all the 
money due on the mortgage had been paid, and he died imme­
diately after the receipt of such insurance money, how much and 
what kind of corroboration would be needed for the mortgagor 
to establish his rights to recover same from the representatives if 
the innocent mortgagee’s representatives chose to insist as appel­
lants do that the mortgagor's version of his rights must be cor­
roborated Î

I submit the surrounding facts and circumstances might 
suffice as they ought to do herein.

I think the appeal should be dismissed with costs.
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Duff, J. :—This appeal, in my opinion, should be dismissed. 
Parol evidence is, I think, admissible in all eases where the ques­
tion arises whether a covenant absolute in form is intended as 
security and whether the real transaction is or is not a transac­
tion of loan, that is to say, whether the property was to stand as 
security for the repayment of money advanced. The trial Judge 
had held that such was the nature of this transaction and that 
«(•cording to the true intent of the parties the provisions of the 
agreement notwithstanding their form were intended to stand as 
security for the repayment of money advanced or to be advanced. 
I have discovered no satisfactory ground upon which that find­
ing could be reversed.

Anglin, J. :—Not, I confess, without some lingering doubt, I 
concur in the conclusion of the trial Judge affirmed by the ma­
jority of the Judges of the Nova Scotia Appellate Court (1921), 
fiG D.L.R. 160, 54 N.S.R. 245, as to the nature and scope of the 
agreement between the late Charles Black and the late George 
McKean ; but the award of damages to the plaintiff for the de­
fendants’ refusal to reconvey the land in question I think can­
not be upheld.

This is not the comparatively familiar case of a defendant 
maintaining that a deed of conveyance in form absolute truly 
represents the transaction it purports to evidence against the 
plaintiff’s assertion that it was intended to be held merely as 
security and is therefore in reality a mortgage. That the transfer 
to the late George McKean, of the property in question, was 
merely as security is common ground. The controversy between 
the parties is rather as to what it was given to secure— whether 
merely repayment of advances made by McKean with interest, 
as the plaintiffs assert, or also performance of an agreement, 
which the defendants maintain that the plaintiffs’ testator, the 
late Charles Black, made, to lumber the property completely and 
either to sell and deliver the entire product to McKean at prices 
to be agreed upon, or, if such agreement should not be reached, 
to ship such product to him on consignment and commission at 
stated rates. The parties also differ as to the extent and dura­
tion of the right conferred on McKean to handle the lumber pro­
duced by Black from the property. The plaintiffs maintain that 
that right was given merely as security for the repayment of 
McKean’s advances and interest and was to terminate upon such 
repayment being completed. The defendants insist that it was 
absolute, that it formed the inducement for making the advances, 
and that it was to subsist after they were repaid and until all the 
lumber on the land had been cut by Black and delivered to Mc­
Kean, either as its purchaser or as commission agent, even though
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Black should sooner become entitled to a reconveyance of the 
land.

While the omissions from the recital in the contract under 
consideration of any reference to the cutting of lumber subse­
quent to the year 1914, and from its concluding clause of all pro­
vision for compensation to McKean for loss of profit on the sale 
of lumber still uncut should his power of sale for default be 
exercised, may be open to observation, as is pointed out by the 
Chief Justice of Nova Scotia, I am disposed to agree with Russell, 
J., that they scarcely created an ambiguity sufficient to justify 
a refusal to give effect to the plain and unambiguous covenant 
of Black to cut, manufacture and deliver to .McKean all the lum­
ber on the land, etc. The evidence of W. K. McKean, if accept­
ed, would make it reasonably clear that the obtaining of this 
business advantage was the chief, if not the sole, consideration 
which moved his father to enter into the agreement and at least 
one passage in the cross-examination of Black would support 
that view. The provision of the agreement for the payment by 
Black to McKean, in the event of the former selling the property, 
of 50 cents per M for 30,000,000 feet of lumber, estimated to be 
standing on the property, less what might have been already 
shipped to or handled by McKean, also tends to indicate that the 
defendants’ contention as to the real intent of the parties in 
making the arrangement is sound.

While the recital declares that the property is to stand as 
security for advances, it also states that it is to serve as 
security “for the performance of this agreement,” the first oper­
ative provision of which, immediately following the recital, is 
the covenant of Black “to completely lumber the said property” 
and to “saw, manufacture and deliver all the lumber on the said 
property” to McKean, at prices to be agreed upon, or, in default, 
of such agreement, “on consignment and commission” at stated 
rates. But for the findings of the learned trial Judge based on 
the oral evidence of Black, and accepted by the Appellate Court, 
that it had been represented to him by the late George McKean, 
immediately before the execution of the agreement that this was 
not its purport or intent, but, on the contrary, that the meaning 
and scope of the agreement was that McKean should hold the 
lumber on the property only until he should be repaid all ad­
vances with interest and that Black executed the document under 
the belief, so induced, that this was its effect, I should probably 
have felt constrained to uphold the contention, ably and force­
fully presented by Taylor and Jenks, on behalf of the appellants, 
that the covenant for cutting and delivering all the lumber on the 
premises must be given effect according to its tenor and that



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 45

Black’s property had been pledged as security for its perform- Can. 
anee. But I am inclined to think we should not interfere with j^T
(he findings made by the trial Judge and affirmed on appeal unless —-
the evidence on which they are based was inadmissible, or sec. McKean 
35 of the N.S. Evidence Act (R.S.N.S., 1900, eh. 163) prevents b,ack 
effect being given to it. -----*

The admissibility of the evidence cannot, I think, be rested on *Ajlglln' J- 
ambiguity in the agreement. In the first place, as already 
stated, I do not find any such ambiguity. But if, as held by the 
trial Judge and the Chief Justice of Nova Scotia, there is incon­
sistency between the recital and the final proviso on the one hand 
and the covenant invoked by the defendants on the other, which 
renders the whole instrument equivocal, that, with respect, would 
seem to be a patent ambiguity and as such, in the quaint language 
of Lord Bacon, not to be “holpen by averment.” Saunderson v.
Piper (1839), 5 Bing. (N.C.) 425, 132 E.R. 1163, 8 L.J. (C.P.’)
227.

But in support of a claim for reformation or of a plea of es­
toppel grounded on misrepresentation, whether fraudulent or 
innocent, the evidence under consideration was, I think, admis­
sible. Its sufficiency is of course another question.

Fraud, it is true, is not alleged, and there may therefore be a 
difficulty in the way of the plaintiffs recovering on that ground 
without amendment. But the defendants seem to me to be in 
this dilemma. Accepting the finding that the representation 
deposed to by Black was made to and acted upon by him, it was 
either honestly and innocently, or dishonestly and fraudulently 
made. If the latter, the defendants would scarcely be heard to 
allege the turpitude of the party through whom they claim. If 
the former, there was mutual mistake such as would afford a 
ground for reformation. Moreover, for a party who had made 
such a misrepresentation or for those claiming under him to 
insist upon holding the other party to the terms of a contract his 
execution of which was so induced, however innocently, would 
he the ex post facto fraud dealt with by Jessel, M. R., in Rcd- 
( I rave v. Hurd (1881), 20 Ch. I). 1, 51 L.J. (Ch.) 113, 30 W.R.
251. AVe had to consider the admissibility of somewhat similar 
evidence and the effect of such a misrepresentation as raising an 
equitable estopped in the recent case of Bathurst Lumber Co. v.
Harris (23rd of Nov. 1920). [See (1919), 46 N.B.R. 411.]

The trial Judge found in the circumstances and in the terms 
of the agreement itself corroboration sufficient to satisfy sec. 35 
of the N.S. Evidence Act. The Chief Justice of Nova Scotia, and 
Longley and Ritchie, JJ. and also (with some doubt) Chisholm,
J.. concurred in that view, and I do not understand Russell, J.,
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to express any dissent from it. I am not convinced that the con­
clusion reached on this point was wrong. Yet the corroboration 
relied on, if any, is very slight, and while, as was held in Radford 
v. Macdonald (1891), 18 A.R. (Ont.) 167, all that the statute 
requires is that the evidence to be corroborated shall be 
“strengthened by some evidence which appreciably helps the 
judicial mind to believe one or more of the material statements 
or facts deposed to,” and, as was said in Oreen v. McLeod 
(1896), 23 A.R. (Ont.) 676, “the ‘material evidence’ in corro 
boration may consist of inferences or probabilities arising from 
other facts and circumstances.” I share Chisholm, J.’s doubt 
as to the value as corroboration of an agreement alleged by tin- 
plaintiffs to be ambiguous, and were it not for the aid on this 
branch of the case afforded to them by the letter of the defend 
ants’ agent, C. H. Read, of December 28, 1918, I should doubt 
whether the statute had been satisfied. But I find in the record 
that at the close of the trial “it was agreed between the parties 
that for the purpose of this action the defendants are to be taken 
to be in the same position as if the defendant were George Me 
Kean, and he was still alive.”

If that were the situation no question of corroboration would 
arise, and I am disposed to think that this agreement, although 
that may possibly be a result which the parties did not contem 
plate, wholly excludes the application of sec. 35 of the N.S. Evi 
dence Act.

During the course of the argument the suggestion was mad - 
from the Bench, that if the contract should be held to give to th< 
defendants the right for which they contend, it would be unen 
forceable as obnoxious to the rule of equity prohibiting the clo<: 
ging or fettering of the mortgagor’s equity of redemption. 
Counsel, however, did not discuss this aspect of the case, and. 
in the absence of argument, I should not be disposed to express 
a concluded opinion upon it. It might be a very nice question, 
whether the right asserted by the defendants, that after repa.' 
ment of all advances and interest they should still control the oui 
put of the mortgaged property, either as purchasers at a pri< 
to be agreed upon, or as commission agents at fixed rates, was 
inconsistent with Black’s contractual and equitable rights lo 
have his property restored unfettered upon such repayment, .<s 
was held to be the case in Bradley v. Carritt, [1903] A.C. 251, 
72 L.J. (K.B.) 471, 51 W.R. 636, or was merely a stipulation for 
an independent collateral advantage not in itself unfair or un­
conscionable, not in the nature of a penalty clogging the equity 
of redemption, and not inconsistent with or repugnant to the con­
tractual and equitable right to redeem as. in Krealinger v. Nuv
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Patagonia Meat & Cold Storage Co., [1914] A.C. 25, at p. 61, 
83 L.J. (Ch.) 79, a provision for an option of pre-emption was 
deemed to be under the circumstances of that case.

As at present advised, I should be disposed to regard the trans­
action as evidenced by the written instrument, as fair and busi­
nesslike, and not within the mischief aimed at by any equitable 
rule or maxim relating to the clogging or fettering of the equity 
to redeem a mortgage. If the evidence of Black, on the strength 
of which the contrary view has prevailed, were not in the record, 
1 should have said the intention of the parties as shewn by their 
contract was that Black should not by repaying the McKean ad­
vances and interest be entitled to put an end to McKean’s stipu­
lated right to handle the entire output of the mortgaged pro­
perty either as purchaser or as commission agent. As put by 
Lord Parker in the Kreglinger case, at p. 61 :—

“I doubt whether even before the repeal of the usury laws, 
this perfectly fair and businesslike transaction would have beeu 
considered a mortgage within any equitable rule or maxim relat­
ing to mortgages. The only possible way of deciding whether a 
transaction is u mortgage within any such rule or maxim is by 
reference to the intention of the parties. It never was intended 
by the parties that if the defendant company exercised their 
right to pay off the loan they should get rid of the option. The 
option was not in the nature of a penalty nor was it nor could it 
ever become inconsistent with or repugnant to any part of the 
real bargain within any such rule or maxim. The same is true 
of the commission payable on the sale of skins as to which the 
option was not exercised.”

Mutât is mutandis, this language seems to fit the case at Bar. 
But it is unnecessary to pass upon this aspect of the case and, 
as I have said, I prefer not to do so without the assistance of 
argument upon it.

Subject to modifying it by striking out the clauses awarding 
damages and providing for a reference to assess them the judg­
ment in appeal should be affirmed.

Mioxault, J. :—In my opinion, clause 1 of the agreement 
signed by the parties, obliging the plaintiff, Charles 0. Black, to 
completely lumber the property and sell the timber to the ap­
pellants, is not ambiguous nor should it be construed as being 
merely a guarantee to secure the repayment of the advances 
made to Black, and as ceasing to produce effect when these ad­
vances are repaid. It is, in my opinion, an independent cove­
nant. See Kreglinger v. New Patagonia Meat <£• Cold Storage Co. 
supra, where a somewhat similar covenant was made.

The ease of the plaintiff, now represented by the respondents,
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is, however, that he was induced to sign this agreement by the 
representations of the late George McKean, that “the meaning 
and intention of this agreement is that we hold all the lumber 
on this property until we are paid off all our advances with in­
terest, that means to say, you can’t sell any lumber off this pro­
perty until you cut enough to pay us all off, because if you did, 
we would not have enough security, and that is what the agree­
ment means.”

The trial .Judge believed Black’s evidence that this representa­
tion was made to him. It is contended that the matter could not 
be proved by parol evidence. The trial Judge decided other­
wise, and under all the circumstances of the case, I do not think 
he was in error in allowing this evidence.

He also considered that there was sufficient corroboration un­
der the statute requiring corroboration as to statements alleged to 
have been made by deceased persons. This is the only point on 
which 1 entertain any doubt, but this doubt is not sufficient in 
my judgment to justify me in reversing the finding of the trial 
Judge. The question of corroboration has already been passed 
upon by two Courts, and I am satisfied to abide by their decision.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs. , ,
Appeal dismissed.

THF KING v. ASHKSSOHH OP TOWN OF WOODNTOTK; Ex. p.
BANK OF NOVA Ht’OTIA.

Xctc Brunswick Supreme Court, Appeal Division, Barry, Crocket, and 
Grimmer, JJ. April il, 19St.

Certiorari ($ IB—10)—When refused—Remedy by appeal—Review of 
taxation—New Brunswick statutes.

Certiorari does not lie to review an assessment for taxes under the 
New Brunswick statutes where a remedy by appeal has been provide ! 
An aggrieved party having failed to resort to the remedy of appeal 
within the statutory period eannot thereafter invoke certiorari.

Taxes ($IHD—135)—Property statement—Insufficiency—Bank- 
Inequality OF ASSESSMENT—REVIEW.

A bank failing for taxation purposes to furnish a sufficient proper! 
statement as required by statute cannot complain of an inequality 
of the assessment.

Certiorari (§11—15)—Bond — New Brunswick tax statute — Towns 
and cities—“County”—Parish.”

The requirement of a bond as a condition precedent to certiorari 
under the New Brunswick General Act, 1913, ch. 21, relating to rat - 
anil taxes, applies to town assessments. The words “county,” 
“parish,” include the towns, and cities within their limits.

[Ex parte Lewin (1879), 19 N.B.R. 425, not followed.]
Order nisi for certiorari to quash assessment made by the as­

sessors of the Town of Woodstock, against the Bank of Nova 
Beotia. Dismissed.

J. C. Hartley, K.C., against certiorari.
A. B. Connell, K.C., and F. K. Taylor, K.C., in support of 

rule.
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Barry, J. :—The Town of Woodstock was incorporated by 
Act 1856 (N.B.), eh. 32, which provided for the election of a 
Board of Assessors and prescribed a method of assessment of 
the inhabitants of the town upon their real and personal prop­
erty and income. By subsequent legislation, the assessors be­
came ntivc by the town council, the original method of
assessment was superseded and a new scheme introduced. Dur­
ing the town’s corporate life of 66 years, more than 100 separate 
and distinct Acts relating to it have been passed by the Legisla­
ture of the Province. Twenty-six of those Acts either exclusively 
relate to, or touch or concern in some way the question of as­
sessment of rates and taxes or the appointment and duties of 
assessors. And although those 26 Acts were passed with the 
object and had the effect of either repealing, adding to, restrict­
ing or amending previous legislation, strange to sav that in 
none of them that I recall, is there any language which in express 
terms repeals any antecedent legislation.

There iti to be found in each of these Acts, it is true, generally 
in the last section, a provision to this or to the like effect :—“All 
Acts and parts of Acts which are inconsistent with this Act, are 
hereby repealed, in so far as the same may be so inconsistent”— 
language which in reality means nothing, and without which 
the Act would be just as effective in repealing inconsistent legis­
lation ; for it is declaratory of no new law or doctrine, but is 
merely the enunciation of a principle of construction applicable 
to all cumulative legislation upon the same subject-matter. The 
result is, that in order to find the law of today relating to the 
assessing of rates and taxes within the Town of Woodstock, one 
has to travel through 66 years of legislation, back to the very 
beginning of the life of the town, as it were, and read and care­
fully examine over 100 Acts of the Legislature. This is neces­
sary in order to discover whether or not there are “inconsis­
tencies” between subsequent and precedent legislation ; for Acts 
may overlap each other, re-assert a previously enacted principle, 
add to or enlarge some previous scheme of assessment, and yet 
be consistent. It is only the “inconsistencies” which have to be 
eliminated, and to do this is not always easy. To the patient 
investigator this, it is obvious enough, must prove a very unsat­
isfactory condition in the legislation relating to the Town of 
Woodstock, a condition which, if 1 may be permitted to say so, 
should not be suffered to continue.

The law in force at the present time relating to the levying and 
assessing of rates and taxes within the Town of Woodstock upon 
the inhabitants generally is to be found in 1890 (N.B.) eh. 40, 
and 1920, ch. 78; joint stock companies and corporations are 
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still, I think, notwithstanding subsequent legislation, assessable 
under 1883 (N.B.) eh. 26; the right of appeal and the method of 
appealing from what the ratepayer may regard as an unfair or 
an unjust assessment is given in 1873 (N.B.) eh. 81, sees. 16 and 
17. In order to a clearer understanding of the question in­
volved in the ease before us, it is desirable that I should refer 
to these four statutes, which 1 shall proceed to do, briefly, in 
the order named.

By 1890, eh. 40, real estate, property and income are assessable 
equally at the same rate and in the same proportion (sec. 1) and 
the assessor shall deduct from each person’s personal property, 
the amount of his or her indebtedness, as the ease may be, and 
assess the balance remaining of said personal property after 
making such deduction (see. 2).

By 1920, eh. 78, see. 1, it is declared to be the duty of every 
person liable to be assessed in the town, within 20 days after 
notice published in the newspapers by the assessors, requiring 
the same to make and file with the assessors a statement under 
oath in such form as the Town Council or assessors may deter­
mine, of his real estate situate in the town and personal property 
of every nature and kind wherever situate, and income derived 
from his profession, trade, occupation or calling. Should any 
person fail to comply with these requirements, then the assessors 
from the best information they can obtain regarding the value 
of the personal property and income of the person so failing, 
shall, to the best of their judgment, assess such property and 
income; and no appeal shall lie from such assessment to either 
the assessors or the town council, but the assessment shall stand 
as made, and the person so assessed shall be liable to pay the 
same without any deduction, unless the assessors or the town 
council shall lie of opinion that there exists a reasonable excuse 
for failure to tile the statement.

By 1883, eh. 26, see. 11, all joint stock companies or corpora­
tions who shall carry on business within the town, shall be rated 
dnd assessed in like manner as any inhabitant upon any real or 
personal property Owned by such company or corporation, ami 
upon the income received by them ; (then follows a special pro­
vision applicable to insurance companies alone) and for the 
purpose of enabling the assessors to rate such company or cor­
poration with accuracy, the agent, sub-agent or manager thereof, 
shall, if required by the assessors so to do, according to the form 
in the schedule to the Act, furnish to them a true and correct 
statement in writing under oath to be made before a Justice of 
the Peace, setting forth the whole amount of annual income 
received for such company or corporation within the town during
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the year preceding the making up of the assessment, and the 
amount of the real and personal estate held hy or for such com­
pany or corporation in the town, or in connection with the busi­
ness done therein; and in the event of the neglect or refusal on 
the part of the agent, sub-agent or manager to furnish the re­
quired information to the assessors within 10 days after the ap­
plication therefor, the assessors shall rate and assess the company 
or corporation according to the best of their judgment, and 
there shall be no appeal from such rate or assessment; but 
nothing herein shall be deemed to make such demand of a state­
ment necessary in order to make such assessment.

By 18711, eh. 81, an aggrieved ratepayer may within 10 days 
after notice of his assessment, petition tin* assessors under oath 
for relief; if the assessors, after consideration, deem he peti­
tioner entitled to relief, they grant it, and reduce his taxes to 
what shall appear to them to he just and right; if they think 
him disentitled to relief they, of course, continu the assess» ent. 
In either case the assessors are required to give to the appellant 
notice in writing of their decision. Should the appellant be 
dissatisfied with the decision of the assessors, he may appeal 
to the town council; but no appeal to the council can be made or 
received by them unless the petition to the assessors under oath, 
or a duplicate of the same, be filed in the town clerk’s office 
within 10 days after notice of the decision of the assessors shall 
have been given to the appellant. The town council may, on 
such appeal, either affirm the first or amended assessment, or 
otherwise deal with the matter as they may deem just and right, 
and their decision shall be final.

It may be advisable here to point out that, in the absence of 
the special provisions of 1883, eh. 26, sec. 11, in regard to the 
assessment of joint stock companies and corporations, those 
bodies would, doubtless, be assessable under, and their assess­
ments regulated by, the provisions of the general Act 1920 eh. 
78, see. 1, which are applicable alike to all persons liable to 
assessment. By the Interpretation Act, Con. Stats. 1903 (N.B.) 
ch. 1, sec. 8, sub-see. 31, the word “person” or “party” includes 
any party or person, or any body corporate, company, or society, 
to which the context is capable of applying. So that it would 
seem to be quite clear that the word “person” would include 
the bank. But, in view of the special provisions of the Act of 
1883, it is not necessary to take the word out of its primary 
meaning in order to apply it to a corporation, because the Legis­
lature has made special provisions in regard to corporations, and 
those special provisions still stand, I think, notwithstanding the 
general provisions of the Act of 1920. In such a case the

N.B.

App. Dlv.

The Kino

Asskrhoh* 
of Town or

STOCK.



'&
9K

Su
s£

a£
!IM

Dominion Law Keinikts. [68 D.L.R.

N.B.

A|)p. Dlv.

The Kino
r.

Aksf.hhohs

general statute is to be read as silently excluding from its 
operation, the eases, which have been provided for by the special 
one. Barker v. Edger, [1898] AX1. 748 at 754; Garnett v. 
Bradley (1878), 3 App. Cas. 944—950.

The real difference between see. 11 of the Act. 1883 eh. 26, and 
of”town**of seCi i of the Act 1920, ch. 78, is that by the former section the 

Wows corporation is to furnish the information required by the sche- 
htock. duie to the Act, while by the latter the “person” liable to be 

assessed is to make and file with the assessors a statement under 
oath “in such form as the town council .... or on their 
failure to prescribe a form, the assessors thereof may determine.” 
In one Act there is a form prescribed, in the other there is 
none.

In the year 1921, before the assessment for that year was made 
up, the Hank of Nova Seotia furnished and tiled with the asses­
sors a statement under oath of its assessable real and personal 
property and income. It is not clear from the return to the 
certiorari whether this statement was made up with a view to 
conformance with the earlier or the later Act; but, if my view 
of the law be the correct one, then, clearly, the statement should 
have been framed to meet the requirements of the Act 1883, ch. 
26, and should have answered the questions propounded in the 
schedule. Whether the assessors rejected the statement lieeause 
it did not conform to the statute, or because it was not sent in 
time, or because they did not believe it, is somewhat obscure, 
but reject it they did.

By this statement, the bank placed the value of its real estate 
at $4,000 ; the assessable value of its personal property, con­
sisting of all loans and investments, including over-drawn ac­
counts, notes and bills discounted, current accounts, call loans, 
loan accounts, past due bills, foreign exchange, and all other 
advances of every kind and description for the year 1920, was 
placed at $2,825,731.68, or, a monthly average of $235,477.64; 
the total of its liabilities or indebtedness for its Woodstock 
branch for the year 1920, consisting of deposits, including cur­
rent accounts, savings bank balances, special deposits, and all 
other balances, and amounts due and owing by the bank, it 
placed at $8,724,561.01, or, a monthly average for the year of 
$727,046.75, which, being deducted from or set off against the 
total or monthly average of its personal property, had the effect 
of wiping out its assessment upon personal property altogether.

In the same statement, the bank declared that in the Town of 
Woodstock for the previous year it had earned no income, ami 
afterwards, at the hearing of the appeal before the assessors, in 
confirmation of this declaration as to income, it was shown that
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tin* actual operating expenses of the hank for the year 1920 were 
$12,218.67; the total interest paid on deposits, $17,508.94, mak­
ing a total of $29,727.81. Income from interest, commissions 
and all other sources was placed at the sum of $28,110.99; thus 
showing a net loss on its Woodstock business of $1,616.82.

The assessors, as I have said, did not accept the sworn state­
ment of the hank’s officers, but rated it for the year 1921 as 
jmssessing real estate of the value of $5,700, and personal 
property of the value of $64,100, and upon such valuation as­
sessed it in the sum of $1,130.76. From this assessment, the 
hank appealed to the assessors, who, after a hearing in which the 
rira voce evidence of the manager and the accountant of the 
hank was taken under oath, decided that the assessment as 
made should stand, and so notified the hank.

The hank did not pursue to the town council the appeal from 
the decision of the assessors given by the Act 1873, eh. 81, hut 
on November 12, last, obtained from Chandler, J., an order 
absolute for a certiorari to remove into the Court the said as­
sessment, together with a rule nisi to quash the same on the 
following grounds:—1. By the assessment law governing the 
Town of Woodstock the assessors are hound to assess the real 
estate, personal property and income of the inhabitants of the 
town equally, at the same rate and in the same proportion, which 
they did not do in the present ease, hut assessed the hank speci­
ally, unequally and not in the same proportion as other inhabi­
tants of the town. 2. In making the assessment the assessors 
should have deducted from the personal property of the hank, 
the amount of the indebtedness or liability of the bank, and 
have assessed the balance, if any, remaining; but they made no 
deduction whatever in the assessment complained of. 3. In 
making the assessment, the assessors took one-fifteenth of the 
average total deposits and loans of the hank and applied thereto 
the town rate of assessment for the current year, $1.62, for 
which there is no authority in law. 4. There was no legal as­
sessment made by the assessors upon the Bank of Nova Scotia 
for the year 1921.

The hank is not appealing against the assessment upon its 
real estate, and the question of assessment upon income is also 
eliminated, for the bank has not been assessed in respect of 
income. The only question, therefore, arising for determination 
here, is the question of the legality of the assessment which the 
assessors have levied against the bank in respect of its personal 
property, for the year 1921.

Mr. Hartley, who showed cause against the rule nisi to quash 
tlir assessment, took certain preliminary objections, which may,
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conveniently, In* reduced to these two:—1. An appeal from the 
decision of the assessors to the town council being given by the 
Act 18711, ch. 81, see. 17, certiorari does not lie until after the 
appellant has exhausted the remedy by appeal there provided. 
2. Sections 122 to 126. both inclusive, of the Act 1913. ch. 21, the 
General Act relating to rates and taxes, are applicable to assess­
ments in the Town of Woodstock, and before applying for the 
rule of certiorari, the appellant should have furnished a bond 
in the sum of $200, as required by see. 123 of the Act mentioned, 
and that it has not done.

Dealing first with the preliminary objections, it is to be ob­
served that for very many years, and especially since the de­
cision in Ex parte Price (1883), 23 N.H.R. 85, it has been re­
garded as the practice of this Court, not to interfere by way of 
certiorari in eases where there is a remedy open to the aggrieved 
party either by review or by appeal. Exceptional eases have 
occasionally arisen where the rule has lieen departed from, but 
the rule which l have mentioned has generally been regarded as 
the settled jurisprudence of the Court. The King v. Murray; 
Ex parte I)amhoi»e (1909), 39 N.B.R. 265; Ex parte Bcloni St. 
Onge (1915), 25 Can. Cr. Cas. 169, 43 N.B.R. 517.

The three ones cited by Mr. Taylor as a justification of the 
bank *s course in applying for certiorari without first pursuing 
the remedy by appeal from the assessors to the town council 
given by the statute, will, I think, be found upon examination to 
1hi in reality authorities affirming the principle to which I have 
alluded, rather than authorities supporting his right to be here. 
In Jones v. City of St. John (1899), 30 Can. 8.C.R. 122, an 
appeal had been taken to the common council of the City of St. 
«John as provided by 1896, eh. 61, before the appellant applied 
for certiorari. In Bank of Australasia v. Will an (1874), L.R. 
5 P.C. 417, one of the grounds upon which the «Judicial Com­
mittee of the Privy Council reversed the decision of the Supreme 
Court of Victoria, which, by the order appealed from had 
quashed upon certiorari an order made by the Court of Mines 
for the winding up of a mining company, was that before re 
sorting to certiorari the respondents should have pursued tin- 
remedy given by the colonial statute and appealed from tin- 
lower Mining Court to the Chief «Judge of the Court of Mines, 
who was also one of the «Judges of the Supreme Court.

The King v. Town of Grand Falls (1913), 13 D.L.R. 266, 42 
N.B.R. 122, is also an authority against the bank’s position. 
There, as here, it was objected that because the Grand Falls Co. 
had not taken advantage of the remedy given it by the Act, 1890. 
eh. 73, see. 69, and appealed against the assessment, it could not 
proceed by certiorari. But White, ,J., who delivered the un-

45
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animons judgment of the Court said, 13 D.L.R. at 271 :—“the 
objection urged against the validity of this assessment .... 
goes, i think, to the jurisdiction of the assessors to make such as­
sessment, and therefore, according to well-settled principles of 
law, certiorari is not taken away by the section quoted.”

The rule which White, J., alluded to, that is, that certiorari 
will lie to an inferior tribunal where that tribunal acts with­
out jurisdiction, is, as he says, well settled. It is, indeed funda­
mental. Hut it is equally well-settled that the question of juris­
diction is determinable on the commencement, not on the con­
clusion of an inquiry ; and affidavits to be receivable must be 
directed to the former stage and not to the facts disclosed in the 
progress of the inquiry. The Quern v. Bolton (1841), 1 Q.B. 
66,113 E.K. 1054. Objections on the ground of defects of juris­
diction may be founded either on the character and constitution 
of the inferior tribunal, or upon the nature of the subject-matter 
of the inquiry, or the absence of some preliminary proceeding 
which was necessary to give jurisdiction to the inferior tribunal. 
Hut the objection of defect of jurisdiction cannot be entertained, 
if it rests solely on the ground that the tribunal has erroneously 
found a fact which was essential to the validity of its order, but 
which it was competent to try. Bank of Australasia v. Willan, 
L.K. 5 P.C. 417.

It is not questioned that the Hoard of Assessors was regularly 
appointed and constituted ; nor is it disputed that they had the 
right to enter upon the inquiry. In none of the grounds upon 
which (’handler, J., granted the rule is the jurisdiction of the 
assessors to enter upon the inquiry challenged, and not being 
questioned, must, I think, be taken to be tacitly admitted. Hut 
it is said that the assessors proceeded upon wrong principles; 
that they did not assess the bank upon an equality with the other 
inhabitants of the town, but assessed it especially ; that they did 
not deduct from the personal property of the bank, the amount of 
its liabilities and assess for the balance; that they took one- 
fifteenth of the average total deposits and loans of the bank and 
applied thereto the town rate of $1.62 for which there is no au­
thority in law. This may be all quite true, but yet if there is 
nothing wanting in the constitution of the Hoard, and the nature 
of the inquiry came within the scope of the duties assigned to 
them by law, and they had jurisdiction to enter upon the in­
quiry, then, it seems to me under the authorities, that the mere 
fact of their having proceeded upon a wrong principle, or come 
to an erroneous conclusion in regard to a matter which they 
were competent to determine, does not oust them of their juris­
diction.

N.B.

App. Div.

Tiik Kino

Arhf.hhors 
or Town of



Dominion Law Kepokts. [68 D.L.R.56

N.B.

App. Dlv.

The Kino

Ahkkhhors 
m Tow* 01 

Wood- 
stock.

In the Act of 1883, ch. 26, whivli provide# for the rating ami 
assessing of all joint stork companies and corporations, the 
Legislature, realizing, doubtless, that assessors are not expert 
mathematicians, any more than are Judges, nor schooled in the 
intricacies of corporation book-keeping, prescribed a form of 
requisition to !>e made upon the company or corporation to he 
assessed, for the purpose of enabling the assessors accurately to 
rate such company or corporation. This requisition demands 
the answering of four question#, and contains an intimation that 
in ease the questions are not answered, the company or corpora­
tion will be assessed in the discretion of the assessors, and that 
there will be no appeal. A glance at the statement seqt in to the 
a—essor# by the bank will demonstrate that neither the require­
ments of see. 11 of the Act, nor the demand for information in 
reply to the specific questions has been complied with. There is 
attached to the statement sent in by the bank a schedule which 
is said to contain the monthly averages of the total loans and de­
posits for tin* year 1920, a schedule which it is a little difficult 
fully to understand—that is, understand in its applicability, if 
it has any, to an assessment upon personal property.

What then, in the circumstance#, were the assessors to do? 
They were, in the terms of the Act, to rate and assess the bank, 
in like manner as any inhabitant, upon its real and personal 
property and income, according to the best of their judgment. 
In exercising their judgment and in making the assessment upon 
the hank, the principal assessor says:—“the assessors endeavour­
ed to make a fair and cquituhlc assessment, having regard to the 
business of the several branches of the said banks in receiving 
deposits and making loans, which 1 believe to be fair and just, 
and in this, the two other assessors who, along with myself, com­
posed the Board of Assessors, did concur.

I did not think it would be either fair or equitable for us to 
assess the said branches of said banks for the full amount of the 
monies actually loaned by them, but took only a portion of the 
same together with a portion of the deposits received, and in 
this way arrived at the amounts for which the several branches 
of the said hanks were assessed in the year 1921 ; and in this I 
had the concurrence and approval of the other members of the 
Board of Assessors. Tin* proportion of the average monthly 
loans and deposits which was assessed in each case, works out at 
15% thereof.”

It is admitted that nowhere in the law relating to the assessing 
of rates and taxes within the Town of Woodstock, is there any 
authority for the adoption by the assessors of the principle upon 
which they have acted; it may Ik* also admitted that the assessors
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did not rate the bunk on an equality with the other inhabitants; 
that is to say, they did not apply the same principle to all, hut 
adopted in the vase of the hank, an entirely different principle 
from that which they followed in the ea.se of other inhabitants. 
The assessors do not claim that they were assessing the hank in 
strict compliance with the prescriptions of the Act. They could 
not do so, because the hank had not furnished them with the in­
formation necessary for the purpose. But in exercising a sound 
discretion in the matter, which is all they could do, who shall 
say that the principle upon which they acted was wrong? The 
hank, in my judgment, has little right to come here and complain 
of the inequality and illegality of the assessment, when the fact 
is that it was owing to its own neglect and default that the as­
sessors were unable to follow the prescriptions of the Act and 
levy upon the hank an assessment uniform and on an equality 
with the other inhabitants of the town.

As to the second preliminary objection. Section 1 of the Act 
of 1913 (N.B) eh. 21, provides, that “this Act shall extend and 
he applicable to all parishes, incorporated towns and cities, ex­
cept so far as special provisions inconsistent herewith may exist 
or may he made in reference to the assessing and levying of rates 
and taxes in any such parishes, cities or towns.’’ And see. 149 
provides that “the sections of this Act headed ‘General Provi­
sions,’ (under which heading come the secs. 122 to 126 invoked 
here) shall extend where applicable to all rates howsoever or by 
what authority laid, imposed, assessed and levied.”

This, certainly, is very broad and comprehensive language; 
broad enough, one would have thought, to have made it necessary 
for the hank to have furnished the bond required by see. 123, 
before proceeding by certiorari. Where these are special pro­
visions in regard to the assessing and levying of rates and taxes 
in any town, those provisions prevail to the exclusion of incon- 
Mstent provisions in the general Act in regard to the same mat- 
t< r. But Ex parte he win (1879), 19 N.B.It. 42.1, is quoted as a 
conclusive authority against the view that a bond was required 
as a condition precedent. That ease was decided at a time when 
tie Court en banc sat in two divisions of 3 Judges each, and is 
tli'1 decision of a divided Court, Palmer, J., having dissented; a 
de ion of weight no doubt, hut not of the same weight as if it 

< the unanimous judgment of the Court. The law in force 
at the time the ease was decided Con. Stats. 1876, eh. 100, con­
tained sections exactly similar to sees. 1 and 149, 1913, eh. 21, and 
the like provisions as to the giving of a bond as a condition preee- 
< ni to certiorari (see. 109) and a majority of the Court held that 
• ''"cause neither the Clerk of the Peace, to whom, on receipt of
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any objection to an assessment, the assessors arc directed by see. 
109 to apply for advice, nor the county secretary, to whom, by 
sec. 110, the bond is directed to l»e given were city officers, there 
fore, the sections mentioned were not applicable to assessments 
made in the City of Saint John.

With every deference to the wisdom of the past, I cannot 
accede to that reasoning, in so far as it is sought to apply it to 
the east1 now under consideration. Because the word “county” 
includes city and county, Con. Stats. N.B., 1903, ch. 1, see. 8. 
sub.-see 7, and a “parish” includes any city or town which is 
within the limits of such parish, lb. sec. 8, sub.-sec. 30, it seems 
to me that a Clerk of the Peace, whose duties are defined by Con. 
•Stats., 1903, eh. 59, is to be regarded as much an officer of the 
town as he is of tin- county. Clerks of the Peace, of whom there 
is but one for each county, are appointed for the whole county, 
and not for any particular part of it. and it is as much his duty. 
1 should think, to advise assessors of the town, as it is to advise 
ass«*ssors of the rest of the municipality.

So, also, in regard to the county secretary. For many pur 
poses the Town of Woodstock ami the Municipality of the 
County of Carleton are still united. They are united in support 
of the poor; they are united in the maintenance of the count) 
hospital; representatives of the town sit at the municipal council 
lniard; the common gaol of the county is the common gaol of the 
town; and so on, in regard to other matters. But even if tin- 
town ami county were not in any way connected, 1 could see 
nothing either inconsistent or incongruous in the idea of a bond 
being given in the name of the county secretary as trustee for 
the benefit of the town. And besides all this, there is, in the 
Act of 1913, eh. 21, a provision which is not to be found in the 
Con. Stats, 1876, eh. UNI, and which to my mind clearly indicates 
an intention on the part of the Legislature to make the secs. 122 
and 126 applicable to cities and towns. That is the provision 
to be found in see. 126, which imposes upon the clerk of the 
Crown the duty, in ease an order for the amendment of an assess 
ment lie made under the powers conferred on the Court by s... 
125, of entering the same on record and certifying the same to the 
chamberlain, city or tow n deck, county secretary or other proper 
officer of the city, town or municipality wherein such assessment 
was made.

While in view of the decision in Ex parte Larin, 19 N.B.It. 
425, the cpiestion of the necessity of a bond as a condition pr 
cedent to certiorari may not, perhaps, be wholly free from doubt, 
still, were I to determine it at the present moment, I
should he disposed to think that such a bond was necessary. But45
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in the circumstances of the case, I do not feel obligated to de­
termine the question, because in my view the bank, before pro­
ceeding by certiorari should have pursued and exhausted the 
remedy provided by the statute, and appealed from the decision 
of the assessors to the Town Council ; and not having done that, 
I would discharge the rule nisi, with costs.

Crocket, J., agrees.
Grimmer, J. :—An order for certiorari was granted in this 

case by Chandler, J., upon the application of the defendant, on 
the following grounds. (See judgment of Barry, J., p. 53.)

Supporting these grounds it was strongly contended by coun­
sel for the bank that there is no law in existence relating to the 
Town of Woodstock, authorizing an assessment on banks in the 
town. For the town it was contended that the assessment was 
legally and properly made under the authority of law, and that 
the case was not properly before the Court.

The points involved in this case are as I will take them:—
1. As to the legality of the assessment made upon the bank in 

the year 1921, in the Town of Woodstock, and 2, whether or not 
the writ of certiorari should have issued in this ease.

By the Act of Incorporation of the town provision was made 
for the appointment of assessors and the manner in which the 
assessment for rates and taxes should be made in the said town. 
In the year 1873, eh. 81, it was provided that the assessment of 
rates levied in the said Town of Woodstock should be raised, 
first, by an equal poll tax of not less than $1.25 upon the male in­
habitants of said town above the age of 21 years ; secondly, upon 
the real estate situate within said town, and personal estate 
of the inhabitants thereof, and upon real and personal estate 
situate within the town, of non-residents, and upon the annual 
income and emoluments of such inhabitants over and above the 
sum of $300, derived from any office, profession, etc. ; and also 
upon the capital stock, income or other thing of joint stock com­
panies or corporations, etc. This latter phrase would seem to 
have authorized an assessment to be made upon the joint stock 
or any other possession or, as the statute says, thing, of a com­
pany or corporation. However, it would appear from subsequent 
legislation that it became necessary for a more distinctive refer­
ence to corporations in respect to assessments in the town, and 
therefore in the year 1883 by eh. 26, sec. 11, it was provided as 
follows:—

“All joint stock companies or corporations who shall carry on 
business within the said town, or who shall have an agent, sub- 
agent or manager within said town, shall be rated and assessed 
in like manner as any inhabitant upon any real or personal pro-
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perty owned by any such company or corporation, and upon the 
income received by them, and the income of any company or 
corporation, being an insurance company, shall be appraised at 
12Va per centum of the premiums and moneys received from 
said company by such manager, agent or sub-agent ; and for the 
purpose of enabling the assessors to rate such company or cor­
poration with accuracy, the agent, sub-agent or manager there­
of shall, if required in writing by the assessors so to do, accord 
ing to the form in the schedule to this Act, furnish to them a 
true and correct statement in writing under oath to be made 
before a Justice of the IVaee, setting forth the whole amount ol' 
annual income received for such company or corporation with 
in said town during the year preceding the making up of the as 
sessiuent, and the amount of the real and personal estate held 
by or for such company or corporation in said town, or in eon 
neetion with the business done therein ; and in the event of the 
neglect or refusal on the part of such agent, sub-agent or man 
ager to furnish the required information to the assessors within 
10 days after s at ion therefor, the assessors shall rat-
ami assess the said company or corporation according to the best 
of their judgment, and there shall Ik? no appeal from such ran 
or assessment ; but nothing herein shall be deemed to make such 
demand of a statement necessary in order to make such assess 
ment. ’ ’

Section 12 provides the manner in which the rate assessed 
against tlu* company or corporation may be collected after de 
mand has been made, and no payment, and it will appear from 
an examination of the section that authority was given to the 
town to sue the company or corporation for the amount of such 
assessment in the (’ounty Court of the County of Carleton, and 
to recover the same with costs of suit.

Section Id provides that in case a suit is brought it shall not 
Ik* necessary for the town to set forth the special matter, but 
it shall be sufficient to declare that the defendant is indebted 
to the town in the sum of money to which the said taxes amount, 
whereby the action has accrued.

Section 14 provides that on the trial of such action or on an 
assessment before a Judge, a certificate from the town treason 
stating the amount of taxes shall In* conclusive evidence of sin 
assessment and of the right of the town to recover. As has Is*, 
observed, see. 11 provides that the company or corporation car 
rving on business within the town shall lie rated and assess- ! 
in like manner us any inhabitant upon any real or personal pn 
perty owned by such company or corporation, and upon incon - 
received by them. Also, that if required in writing so to do by
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the assessors, they sliall furnish to them a true and correct state­
ment in writing under oath setting forth the whole amount of the 
annual income, etc., of the corporation, and the amount of the 
real and personal estate. Also that in ease of neglect or refusal 
mi the part of the agent, suh-agent or manager to furnish the 
required information to the assessors within 10 days, then the 
assessors shall rate and assess the company or corporation accord­
ing to the Iicst of their judgment, and there shall he no appeal 
from such rate, nor shall anything in the section he deemed to 
make such a demand of the statement necessary in order to make 
sii' h assessment. The schedule provides a form of questions, 
which must he answered by the hank to the assessors.

Referring to the proce< i which have been returned under 
tin- writ of certiorari, it would appear as if a demand had been 
made upon the bank to furnish the assessors with a statement of 
their real and personal property and income liable for assess­
ment in the Town of Woodstock, in the year 1921. At all events, 
there is a statement attached to the return signed by the man­
ager and accountant of the defendant bank purporting to give 
tin- value of the real estate owned by the bank in the said town, 
and an account of the average amount of deposits, loans and in­
vestments. This statement does not cover any other personal 
property of the defendant hank nor is it at all in the form pro­
vided for by see. 11 of the Act quoted, but it however was pre- 
sented to the assessors as and for a compliance with the provision 
of the section. It appears from the subsequent act of the as­
sessors that the statement was not satisfactory, and was treated 
by them as if there had been neglect or refusal on the part of 
the bank to furnish the required information; and without im­
puting any improper motives to the manager and accountant of 
the said bank it certainly appears to me that the assessors were 
not furnished with a true and correct statement as required by 
the section quoted, and that, therefore, there was neglect at least 
on the part of the hank to furnish to the assessors the required 
information, and that Iming the case, in my opinion, there then 
became vested in the assessors a discretion to proceed to make an 
assessment according to the best of their judgment, which they 
apparently did. It would appear from the return mentioned, 
that the assessors were justified in so refusing the statement, for 
the reason that the valuation given of real estate of the hank, 
in the statement, was $4,000. The assessors afterwards rated 
tbe bank on its real estate at $f>,700, to which the bank has made 
nu objection and stated on the argument of this matter that 
there was no exception or fault to be found with the > ion 
of the real estate. In my opinion, there was no such statement
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B- furnished by the hank to the assessors as is required by see. 11. 
qiv and as stated that the assessors were fully justified in exercising 

their discretion and making tlie assessment according to the best 
Kiso of their judgment, and they apparently did so. A careful ex- 
isoBs smiiiation of the various statutes relating to assessment in the 
vx of Town of Woodstock, passed since 18811, has convinced me that 
r>"- this legislation has not been in any way repealed or interfered 

with; that it is in no way inconsistent with or repugnant to the 
vr, j. provisions of any subsequent Act which has been passed re 

lating to assessments in the Town of Woodstock, and therefore it 
was and still is in full force and effect, as much so as when pass 
ed. It is special legislation evidently obtained for a particular 
and special purpose, and, apparently, has achieved the purpose 
for which it was obtained without objection or interference, until 
the present application.

In respect to the second point, the writ of certiorari in this 
ease is not taken away by statute, but it is, as is well recognized, 
and for many many years has been so recognized, a discretionan 
writ which may be issued by the Court when it is of opinion it 
may lie necessary to protect the interests of those who may be im­
properly affected by some action on the part of the Court of in­
ferior jurisdiction. Here by the Act 1873, eh. 81, which is a 
statute amending the Act to Incorporate Certain Districts in tic 
Parish of Woodstock, in the County of Carleton, by sec. 16 it is 
provided that :—

“Any person thinking himself or herself aggrieved by any 
assessment for town taxes may appeal by petition under oath 
made before any Justice of the Peace to the assessors who shall 
duly consider the same; and if they deem the party entitled to W 
relief shall make such reduction in his or her taxes as to them 
shall appear to be just and right and forthwith make the neces­
sary alteration caused by said reduction in the assessment list 
filed in the town clerk’s office, and also notify the treasurer or 
collector of rates of the said reduction and alteration; provided 
always that such appeal he made within 10 days after such per 
son shall have received notice of such assessment; notice in writ 
ing of the decision of the assessors shall also he given to the ap­
pellant, signed by said assessors or the majority of them.”

Section 17 of the same Act is as follows:—
“Should the appellant be dissatisfied with the decision of flic 

assessors he may appeal to the Town Council, who may either 
affirm the first or amended assessment or otherwise deal with the 
matter as they may deem just and right, and their decision shall 
be final; provided no such appeal to the Town Council shall he 
made or received by them unless the said petition under oath nr I
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a duplicate thereof he filed in the Town Clerk’s office within 10 
days after notice of the decision of the assessors shall have been 
given to the appellant.”

Though this Aet was passed in 187)1, and while there have 
been many amendments to the Town of Woodstock Aet of In­
corporation relating to assessment of rates and taxes, 1 can find 
no provision relating to an appeal other than that 1 have now 
quoted, nor can I find that the same has in any way been re­
pealed by subsequent legislation, and while passed very many 
years ago it is the only authority now in existence which governs 
or relates to appeals against assessment rales in the said Town 
of Woodstock. The procedure followed by the bank in this ease 
was under see. 16 of the last quoted Aet. A petition was pre­
pared and filed with the assessors on or about July 8, 1921, by 
which the r stated that it felt itself aggrieved by the
assessment for that year and appealed therefrom, and prayed 
that tin- assessors might take the petition into their considera­
tion. The notice of assessment had been served upon the man­
ager of the bank on June 20, and according to the return made 
to the writ- of certiorari the petition against the appeal was not 
signed until July 8, and it was "not presented to the petitioners 
until July 11, so that 20 days instead of 10 elapsed between the 
time of the service of the notice of assessment on the bank and 
the date of the making of the appeal against the same. However, 
the matter was heard by the assessors, who subsequently having 
heard the evidence which was presented on the appeal of the 
bank on July 29, notified the said bank that after hearing the 
evidence and upon due consideration they, the assessors, had 
come to the conclusion that the assessment should stand as 
Thereupon, tin- bank did not pursue the further appeal which 
was provided for by sec. 17 of the Act, but proceeded later 
on to obtain the writ of certiorari under which the return is now 
before this Court. The writ as stated is a discretionary writ and 
may be issued by the Court when it is of the opinion the circum­
stances are proper for the issuing thereof, yet it has been re­
peatedly held by this Court, following well established precedent, 
that where a remedy is given by appeal that that appeal must 
first Ik» exhausted before the Court will entertain any applica­
tion for a writ of certiorari. As I have pointed out there was full 
provision made for an appeal by the bank in this ease, first to 
the assessors, then if they were dissatisfied with that, to the town 
council, but they have seen fit to discharge the provision so far as 
the appeal to the town council is concerned and have followed 
tin- course which has brought them before this Court.

I am of opinion, therefore, under all these circumstances that
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Que. the writ of certiorari should not have issued. I am also of the 
^7 opinion that the assessors had full jurisdiction to make the as 

scssment, and that there is full and sufficient law in existence re 
lating to the Town of Woodstock which authorizes an assessmeni 
to Is* made on hanks operating in the said town.

In view, therefore, of the reasons which 1 have given upon 
both of the points which are of importance in this case, 1 am 
of opinion that the rule should lie dismissed.

The costs of this appeal must Ik* paid by the defendant hank.
Rule dismissed.

IV* FRANKKL, ART SWISS KMIlKOIDKItY AND 
DOMINION BANK.

Quebec Superior Court tu Bankruptcy, Panneton, J. February 7, 1.9#/.

Bankruptcy ($ I—6)—Hktti.kmkxt with creditors—Consent or bank 
rcpt—RiiiHT to withdraw bkkore ratification—Hankrvptc’Y Act.

An insolvent hnn the right to withdraw hi* consent to a settlement 
with hi* creditor* at any time liefore the Judge ha* ratified tl 
settlement.

|See Annotation* 53 D.L.R. 135; 50 D.L.R. 104; 5» D.L.R. 1.]

Application to ratify a composition made hy an insolvent 
with his creditors; the insolvent opposed the settlement. Ap­
plication dismissed.

The facts of the case are as follows;—
An assignment was made on December 29, 1920, hy one 

Frankel. On January 13 following, the insolvent made an offer of 
composition at 26% in the dollar. On the 17th of the same month, 
at a meeting of the inspectors, it was unanimously decided to ac­
cept this offer. On February 7, 1921, the following motion was 
presented in Court for the approval of the composition offered: 
“Whereas, in the opinion of the undersigned authorized truste. 
it is in the interest of the debtor that the deed of composition 
he approved hy the Judge sitting in and for the Bankrupt<•> 
Division of the Superior Court.” The insolvent Frankel, op­
posed the motion. The settlement, he said, had lieen found im­
practicable. He argued that he could not he forced to carry out 
the agreement in the circumstances. He further objected that 
the settlement was illegal inasmuch as it was made at the first 
general meeting of the creditors and the 10 days’ notice requir» l 
hy the Act (see. 13) was not given to the creditors; nor had any 
notice of the terms of settlement lieen served according to law.

The trustee urged that when once a settlement had been n 
eepted hy the creditors, the Court should enforce it. Not only 
had the creditors agreed to the settlement, hut money had lx - n 
advanced hy a third party namely, Henry Faber of Toronto, to
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pay privileged ereditors and secure instalments on the settle­
ment.

Against this, Frankel gave as one reason why he could not 
carry out the settlement that would result in the loss of his 
business. Another reason, he said, was that it was clear he and 
Faber could not agree. The creditors would thereby suffer pre­
judice.

It was further stated that inspectors who previously approved 
the settlement now desired that it should not be carried out.

II. Shulman, for the estate.
,/. .1/. Ferguson, K.C., for Frankel.
S. (I. Tritt, for respondent.
Panneton, el., said the question was important. It would he 

useless, he added, to call evidence on the other points raised 
before deciding the first question whether an insolvent could 
withdraw from a settlement after it had been accepted by the 
creditors?

After an adjournment, the Court decided that an insolvent had 
the right to withdraw his consent until such time as the Judge 
ratified the settlement.

Accordingly, the trustee’s motion was dismissed without en­
tering into the other question raised.

Motion dismissed.

CHONG JAN v. QIONG WO ON.
I irtoria County Court, H.C., hangman, Co.J. May SO,

( DNTBACT8 (ÿ 11A—125)—Construction—Intention of parties—Con- 
8TRUIN0 AS A WHOLE—VALIDITY OF STAMP AS SIGNATURE.

In construing a clause of a contract the Court will look at the 
whole contract, and give effect to the Intention of the parties 
having regard to the object of the contract. A person may bind 
himself by putting hla name to a document without putting it 
In his own handwriting, and if he uses a stamp It Is Just as 
effective as if he writes his name.

Action to recover a certain sum, alleged to he due under a 
contract guaranteeing a workman. Judgment for plaintiff.

IV. ('. Moresby, for plaintiff.
('. E. Wilson, for defendant.
Lampman, Co. J.:—The plaintiff is a cannery contractor of 

Vancouver and the defendant is a Chinese mercantile partner­
ship, carrying on business in Victoria.

The plaintiff being desirous of getting men to work in a can­
nery at Rivers Inlet, sent an agent named Chung ('how to Vic­
toria in an endeavour to find men, and on his visiting Victoria, 
he camp in touch with a Chinaman named Lcong Jiong Yec, who 
was willing to go to the Rivers Inlet cannery, but he wanted an
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advance of $85, which (’hung Chow was unwilling to give hint 
unless some one guaranteed the workman. It seems that tIf 
practice is that when men are engaged in this way. that before 
the advance money is paid, some firm guarantees that the work 
man will either leave for the cannery with his employer or will 
actually arrive at the cannery and take up his work. This work 
man, Leong Jiong Yee took Chung Chow to the defendant's 
store with the idea of having the defendant guarantee him on 
their arrival there, Chung Chow paid the $85 and he also paid 
$2 to the defendant, who signed a written contract, the transi.: 
tion of which is as follows:—

“Upon engagement of Leong Jiong Yee to go to Rivers Inlet 
Fish Canneries to work, and having paid him in advance $K». 
it is agreed that the monthly wage shall he $65 for 26 days' 
work, irrespective of the date the work starts. The day shall 
he 11 hours, and anything over 11 hours to he regarded as over­
time, for which extra pay shall he 25 cents per hour. Unless 
employee stays to the end of the season no overtime will lie paid. 
Wages for overtime will he paid to the employee upon his de­
parture when the season closes. Food, passage both ways, and 
poll tax to he provided by employer.

The date of departure of employee is definitely settled to he 
June 16.

If Leong Jiong Yee do not go to shop
does not arrive at cannery 

the payment in advance to he asked of
refunded by

person guaranteeing, without demur.
1921, June 15th day,

Leong Jiong Yee.
Chop or
Stamp. Quon Wo On. Person guaranteeing."

The workman left Victoria along with some others, who w. re 
also going to the Cannery at Rivers Inlet, but when the boat on 
which Leong Jiong Yee was travelling reached Alert Bay, he was 
arrested on a charge of having opium in his possession, and was, 
subsequently, convicted and sentenced to 6 months’ imprisnn- 
ment, and as he served his sentence, he was unable to do I lie 
work which he had contracted to do at the cannery. Plaintiff 
then sought to recover from the defendant the $85, and upon » he 
defendant refusing to pay, action was commenced.

At the time the contract was entered into, (’hung ('how paid 
the defendant the sum of $2. Just what this payment is, there 
was some eonflict at the trial, the plaintiff contending that it ua*
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a commission and the defendant that it was “tea money,” but 
it seems to he more in the nature of an insurance premium.

There is a conflict as to the proper interpretation of the con­
tract which was in Chinese. In the last paragraph the plain­
tiff's contention that the proper translation is that Leong Jiong 
Yee should arrive at the cannery, hut the defendants say that 
it is “if he does not go to the cannery”, and the defendants con­
tend that by reason of the fact that he left Victoria on his trip 
to the cannery the provisions of the contract were fulfilled.

I think, in deciding what is the proper construction to he put 
on this last clause of the contract, the whole contract must he 
looked at. It is clear that what the plaintiff wanted was a man 
to go and work at the cannery and unless the man would actually 
arrive at the cannery and work, they would lose their $85, so I 
think, having regard to the object of the contract, plaintiff's con­
tention is correct, and the contract requires that the workmen 
should actually arrive at the cannery.

There is a further defence in that the defendant's name is 
signed with a stamp, and there is no initial or name to authen­
ticate it. The stamp has the name of the partner who affixed 
it to the document, and opposite the stamp there are the words 
“person guaranteeing”. The partner who affixed the stamp 
says that lie did not consider the putting on of the stamp as a 
serious matter and says that had he considered lie was signing a 
contract he would have written in his name or his initials.

1 do not think that this defence can prevail. I think it is 
clear that a person may hind himself by putting his name to a 
document without putting it in his own handwriting, and if he 
uses a stamp, it seems to me that it is just as effective as if he 
writes his name. See Schneider v. Xorris (1814), 2 M. & S. 286, 
lit.'i K.R. 388, and Baker v. Denim/ (1838), 8 Ad. & E. 94, 112 
E li. 771.

As the sum of $2 was paid to the defendants at the time this 
contract was entered into, and they have stamped their name 
on tin- document opposite to the words “person guaranteeing”,
I do not think they can now he heard to say that they did not 
consider the contract as binding on them. The result is that the 
plaintiff is entitled to lent for $85, as claimed.

Judymt nt accordinyly.

K A VN Kit v. MARIA 1W.
s “Ha Supreme Court, l/arrix, C.J., Rwwell, ./., Ritchie, and

Mi lli.'h, J. February IS, 19tt,
rie.M ()1P—.10)—Commission to task evidence ok witnrssk.s hkyond 

.1! RlSDlcTION—OlliKK RIXINO DATK OK TRIAL—PLAINTIKK COMM.VINO 
WITH TK.RM8 OK ORDER—IMPOSSIBILITY OK HEARING CASE WITHIN 
TIMK LIMITED BY ORDER—1‘RESS OK BUSINESS OK .1 URGES—RlOHT 
' I DEPENDANT TO HAVE CASE DISMISSED KOR NON-COMPLIANCE WITH

12



68

N.8.

8.C.

Harlow. 

Harris, C.J.

Dominion Law Retorts. [68 D.L.R.

Where in an action, an order taken out by the plaintiff for a com- 
miaaion to examine witnesses outside of the jurisdiction contains a 
provision that the plaintiff shall bring the case on for trial within thr. 
months from the date of the order, and the plaintiff does all in Ins 
power to comply with the provision, but the Court is unable, owing to 
press of business, to fix a date within the time limit, the fact that 
the case is not set down for trial and heard within the time limite.i 
in the order is not a ground for dismissing the action.

Trover ($ IC—21)—Pledge of stock—Returnable when* debt for win- ;i
IT IS GIVEN IS PAID—CONVERSION—NECESSITY OF TENDER OK DEBT.

Where under an agreement and a receipt given at the time of a 
pledge of stock, the stock is not returnable until the debt is paid, there 
can be no conversion of the stock until tender of the debt has been

Costs ($ 11—20)—No substantial grievance—Technical and fictitioi > 
claim—Judgment—Discretion of Court.

A claimant who really has no substantial grievance but who brings 
an action for a purely technical and fictitious grievance may be - 
prived of the costs of the proceedings, in the discretion of the Court.

Appeal from the judgment of Longley, J„ in favour of plain­
tiff in an action to recover money loaned by plaintiff to de­
fendant and others for the promotion of a fox company. The 
amount sued for was not disputed but the action was defended 
on the ground that plaintiff, without defendant’s authority, had 
delivered to one C. B. Lewis, who was associated with defendant 
in the promotion of the company, a certificate for 1,000 shares in 
a Massachusetts company, and that Lewis, subsequently, went 
into insolvency and that no trace could lie found of him or the 
stock, as the result of which defendant claimed he had suffer«-<l 
damages in the sum of .$10,000. There was also a preliminary 
objection taken that by order made at Chambers the cause was 
to be brought on for trial within 3 months from the date of the 
order, failing which the action was to stand dismissed, and that 
the terms of the order had not been complied with.

A. Whitman, K.C., and T. R. Robertson, K.C., for appellant.
J. M 'art, for respondent.
Harris, C.J. :—There was a preliminary objection in this case 

that the action was dead and should not have been tried when it 
was. On Novembe- 10, 1920, there was an order for a commis­
sion to examine witnesses at Boston, taken out by the plaint ilT. 
This order contained a provision :—

“That the plaintiff shall bring this cause on for trial within 3 
months from this date and in ease the plaintiff does not bring 
this cause on for trial within 3 months from this date it is herein 
adjudged and decreed that the plaintiff’s action herein shall 
stand dismissed without further order.”

The evidence taken in Boston under the commission occupies

CC
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some 34 pages of the printed case and that on the trial some 17 N.s. 
or 18 pages. ^ —

On January 25, 1921, the plaintiff’s solicitor moved the Cham- ’
Iters Judge on notice to set the cause down for trial. This mo- Rayneb

lion was heard 2 months and 15 da vs after the date of the order ,, v•Harlowfor commission and the Chambers Judge fixed February 15 as the ___
date for the trial. Counsel for defendant attended on the mo- Harris, c.j. 
tiou and there is nothing in the order to show why the date fixed 
was February 15, nor does it show that any objection was made 
to the trial being fixed for a date beyond 3 months from Novem­
ber 10.

It appears that I was the Chambers Judge for the months of 
January and February, 1921. The term of the Full Court open­
ed on January 10, and as Drysdale, J„ was ill and Mellish, J., 
engaged sitting on a Commission regarding roads, there was a 
shortage of Judges for the Full Court and I sat as a member of 
the Court all through January and until February 2. A num­
ber of applications were made to me in January to set down trials 
but, as it was necessary for me to sit in the Full Court, I refused 
to set down any cases for trial except for dates in February, and 
I find from the Chambers Rook that before the application was 
made to me to fix a date for the trial of this cause, 1 had made 
orders for trials of other cases which took every available date 
before February 15. As it happened, when February 15 came, I 
was still engaged on a trial liegun on the 14th, and so Longley, J., 
at my request, took the trial of this cause. It, therefore, appears 
that the date fixed for this trial was for the convenience of the 
trial Judge, or because, on account of other engagements, he 
could not fix an earlier date. The plaintiff had brought on his 
motion in ample time to get a date well within the 3 months 
mentioned in the order of November 10, and it was not his fault 
that he could not get an earlier date than February 15. lie had 
done all he could.

It also appears that when the case came on for trial, counsel 
for defendant moved to dismiss the action on the ground that it 
was not brought to trial within the time specified, and that this 
motion was dismissed, and thereupon, the trial proceeded, Mr.
Whitman, K.C., taking part in the trial, examining and cross- 
examining witnesses on behalf of the defendant. The judgment 
filed by the trial Judge makes no mention of the motion to dis­
miss the action but deals simply with the merits of the action and 
counterclaim.

The notice of appeal is in the usual form from the whole judg­
ment, but it makes no specific mention of the decision of the 
trial Judge dismissing the motion made at the beginning of the
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trial, nor is there anything to indicate that it is appealed from.
I doubt very much under the circumstances whether the point 

raised is now open to the defendant, hut it is unnecessary to de­
cide this question because the plaintiff by moving to set the cause 
down for trial had done everything he could to bring it on for 
trial and had therefore complied with the order of November 10.

When the order for November 10 was granted, the defendant’s 
counsel knew that the only way the trial could be brought on 
was by moving the Chambers Judge to fix a day for it. It 
would be absurd for a Court of Justice to hold that the action 
had to be begun all over again under these circumstances, when 
the party was not at fault. There is no reason why plaintiff 
should be punished because he could not get a Court. There is 
another good answer to this objection, and that is, that the order 
of the Chambers Judge fixing the date of the trial operated as 
an extension of the time fixed by the order of November 10, and 
this order was properly granted and never was appealed from. 
The objection fails.

The trial Judge gave judgment for the plaintiff for the sum 
of $5,095 with interest on $4,521.29, from August 8, 1919, to 
date of the judgment. On the trial as well as on the hearing of 
the appeal, the defendant’s counsel admitted the plaintiff's 
cause of action but claimed that defendant was entitled to dam 
ages on his counterclaim, and that was the only question argued 
in the Full Court, except the preliminary objection already re­
ferred to. The facts are that the plaintiff lent to the defendant 
and one Clifford, B. Lewis, a large sum of money in connection 
with a fox company. Lewis had made a payment of $2,000 on ac­
count and then a new agreement in writing was made on or 
about May 8, 1916, in which defendant and Clifford B. Lewis 
admitted the balance due to the plaintiff and promised to pay it 
with interest on or before November 1, 1916, and the agreement 
contained this provision :—

“And as security for the payment of the above mentioned sum 
to become due upon November 1, 1916, said Harlow has this day 
deposited with said James Rayner a certificate for 1,000 shares 
of the capital stock of the H. B. Ruggles Co., a Massachusetts 
corporation.”

The plaintiff signed a receipt for this stock certificate, reading 
as follows:—

“Received of D. G. Harlow, certificate No. 15 of the H. B. 
Ruggles Co., for 1,000 shares common stock as security for Ray­
ner Harlow, Lewis agreement of even date certificate to be re­
turned upon fulfilment of agreement.”

Later, this stock certificate was exchanged for one for a similar
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number of shares in the Ruggles Chair Co., and this exchange N.S. 
was made at the request of Lewis. Later, Lewis, on October 16, gf,
1917,—long after the money was due to the plaintiff—wrote —1
plaintiff requesting that the latter certificate lie sent to him, sav- Rayneb 
ing he had a chance to make a deal, ami if it went through they „ „

,. _ . , . . „ MARLOW,would pay plaintiff “some real money. Ihe plaintiff sent the -----
shii-k certificate to Lewis, and when he asks for his money, de- Harris, c.i. 
fendant demands the return of the stock certificate which had 
been sent to Lewis, and Lewis conveniently disappears from 
view.

The counterclaim now set up is the value of this stock. The 
plaintiff has produced evidence showing the close business rela­
tionship which existed between Ijewis and defendant, ami one 
cannot read it without having a very strong suspicion that de­
fendant knew all about the return of the stock to Lewis, and con­
curred in it. hut there is a denial of this fact by the defendant, 
and 1 am unable to say that a finding to that effect would he 
justified.

On this view of the evidence, the defendant, it is claimed, is en­
titled to recover the value of the stock as of the date when it 
was sent to Lewis. Counsel on the argument seemed to concede 
this.

Under the agreement and the receipt given at the time of the 
pledge of the stock it was not returnable until the debt was paid, 
and it has never been paid. There was, however, a tender after 
the action was brought, of the amount of the debt conditional on 
the return of the stock. That was the first time when defendant 
was entitled to demand it and the case of Halliday v. Holgate 
(1868), L.R. 3 Ex. 299, 37 L.J., (Ex.) 174, 17 W.B. 13, is, I 
think, an express authority for the proposition that the time of 
conversion was the date when the tender was made and the stock 
ought to have been returned.

The value of the stock on that date is, I think, the test to he 
applied here. If the stock had increased in value subsequently, 
that might have been taken into consideration; but that is not 
this case. The question as to whether the value is to be fixed on 
the date when the stock was sent to Lewis or on the date of the 
tender, is in one sense of no importance because on a careful 
reading of the evidence I am convinced that the stock was of 
no value when it was sent to Lewis, and it never has been of any 
value since. The defendant is, 1 suppose, entitled to nominal 
damages and I fix the amount at $1.

The defendant set up a counterclaim for an exorbitant sum, 
when he must have known or ought to have known that the stock 
was of no value and, as a result of that, the plaintiff was obliged,
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in order to meet this demand, to take a Commission for the ex­
amination of witnesses in Boston in which defendant joined and 
the costs of that Commission and the taking of that evidence, 
ought to lie borne by the defendant. The costs which ought to 
be paid by defendant would equal, if not exceed, the amount 
which defendant would be entitled *o if given costs on his count­
erclaim, and under these circumstances the proper course, I 
think, is to allow no costs on the counterclaim to either party.

As to the costs of the appeal ; defendant raised the preliminary 
objection referred to and argued it at some length. If he had 
succeeded on this objection the plaintiff’s judgment for his debt 
would have been set aside. Under all the circumstances there 
should be no costs on the appeal to either side. The sum of one 
dollar allowed to defendant on his counterclaim will be set off 
against the plaintiff’s judgment.

Ritchie, E.J.:—I agree.
Mellish, J.:—1 agree.
Russell, J. :—A preliminary question was raised in this case 

by a motion on behalf of the defendant to dismiss the action on 
the ground that it had not been brought to trial within 3 months 
of November 10, as required by an order of that date made at 
Chambers by Ritchie, J. There was such an order providing that 
if the plaintiff should not bring his case on for trial within 3 
months, it should stand dismissed without further order. Rut 
plaintiff took the proper proceedings to bring the case on for 
trial well within the period limited, by a motion before the Chief 
Justice on which an order was made on January 25, setting down 
the case to be tried on February 15, a few days later than the 
expiration of the 3 months’ period which expired February 1(1. 
Counsel for the defendant was present when this order was made. 
He was either assenting or opposing. If he assented, that is the 
end of the question. If he opposed, the fixing of the time for 
trial was an act of the Court to which I think the maxim is ap­
plicable “actus curiae ncminem (jmvdbitIt might well be 
that there was no convenient day on which the Chief Justice 
could try the case before February 10. The plaintiff had done all 
that he was bound to do to comply with the order of Ritchie, J., 
and the preliminary objection fails.

The case for the plaintiff was not contested at the argument.
The oidy question raised by the appeal has reference to tin* 

defendant’s counterclaim. Plaintiff had advanced certain sums 
of money to the defendant and two other persons who were joint 
ly interested in a fox-breeding or fox-selling company from 
which he was expecting returns for his advances as also the 
members of the company were from the profits of the speculation.



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Rkpokts. 73

The first advance was made in connection with an agreement of 
May 15, 1915. That agreement was modified by a subsequent 
arrangement entered into with the plaintiff on September 24, 
1915, which was in the nature of a compromise of the plaintiff’s 
rights under the original agreement. This was Signed by C. It. 
Lewis and the defendant Harlow, who were then acting, as they 
were throughout the whole course of the business which gives 
rise to this litigation in close concert.

In May of the following year a further compromise and ex- 
tension of time for the borrowers became necessary, and the fol­
lowing agreement was entered into:—

“Whereas by a certain agreement made on May 15, 1915, by 
and between James Rayner of the first part and Dawson G. Har­
low, Benjamin I. Rayner and (Mifford R. Lewis of the second 
part, calls for payment to said Janies Rayner of a balance of 
$4,250 upon May 1, 1916, together with a bonus of $8,000.

And, whereas said money and bonus is now overdue and re­
mains unpaid, it is hereby agreed by and between the said James 
Rayner of the first part and said Dawson G. Harlow and Clifford 
R. Lewis of the second part, that the said agreement of May 15, 
1915, be cancelled by the signing of this instrument insofar as the 
liability of said Harlow and Lewis is concerned.

And in consideration of said cancellation said Harlow and 
Lewis do hereby agree to pay to said James Rayner on or before 
November 1, 1916, the sum of $4,250 with interest at the rate of 
6', per annum. And as security for the payment of the above 
mentioned sum to become due upon November 1, 1916, said Har­
low has this day deposited with said James Rayner a certificate 
for 1,000 shares of the capital common stock of the II. ti. Haggles 
Co., a Massachusetts corporation.

In witness hereof we have hereunto set our hands and seals 
this eighth day of May, year of Our Lord, 1916, at Boston, 
Massachusetts. Sgd. James Rayner (Seal), Dawson G. Harlow 
(Seal), Clifford B. Lewis (Seal).

It is in connection with the deposit of stock referred to in the 
last paragraph of this agreement that the counterclaim arises. 
The plaintiff Rayner, some time in June, 1917, sent forward the 
original certificate to be exchanged for another for the same 
number of shares in what was in effect the same company oper­
ating under a different name. Later on, in October, 1917, at the 
request of Lewis, and it is claimed without any authority from 
the defendant, plaintiff sent the substituted certificate to Lewis 
who said he was expecting to make a deal by means of which the 
claim of the plaintiff would be at least partially satisfied.

The circumstances under which the certificate referred to in
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this agreement came to be deposited are described in the evidence 
of the plaintiff, “(j. Will you tell me what took place? A. 
They had failed to pay me my money and to show good faith 
they offered me this to hold for it. Q. What was said ? A. D. (1. 
Ilarlow said—1 was wanting my money—Harlow said: ‘Now. 
C. 13., in order Jim may feel that we are going to pay him, let 
us give him one of these stock certificates.’ Q. By ‘C.B.’, he 
meant Lewis? A. Yes, and by ‘Jim’ he meant me.”

Just after this series of questions and answers plaintiff pro 
eeeds to say that Harlow was to give him another and he was to 
return the one he had at home.

“Q. Why was this being returned ? A. 1 don’t know. II* 
asked me to return it and 1 took the other one they gave me an*I 
returned the one 1 had at home.”

It is not to he wondered at if plaintiff considered that he had 
the authority of the defendant to treat any request from Lewis 
in regard to this certificate as if it had come from the defendant 
himself, and 1 suppose that if the agent of “C. B.”, Miss Moyne 
han, to whom the stock certificate in the “H. B. Buggies Co.” 
had been sent for exchange had not returned to plaintiff the cer­
tificate of stock in the ‘‘Buggies Chair Co.”, to which the name 
of the company had been changed in April, 1917, the question 
now being discussed would have arisen at this date instead of at a 
later stage. The plaintiff would have been charged with a con 
version of the substituted certificate.

This exchange of certificates occurred in June 27, 1917; Miss 
Moynahan writes to the plaintiff on that date saying :—
‘‘Dear Mr. Rayner,

Your letter of June 16 received and I have forwarded it to Mr. 
Lewis, who is at present out of town. 1 am enclosing certificate 
No. 4 of the Buggies (.'hair Co. for 1,000 shares of common stock 
in exchange for old certificate No. 15 for 1,000 shares enclosed in 
your letter of the 16th.”

I find it difficult to believe that Harlow, the defendant, was 
not aware of this transaction under which the plaintiff parted at 
least temporarily, with the original certificate and entrusted it 
to the keeping of Miss Moynahan, who was the stenographer of 
C. B. Lewis. He says he spent half his time in Boston, working 
on the promotion of the fox company in which he and Lewis 
were interested, and that he had his headquarters in Lewis’s 
office. If he was aware of the exchange transaction, and implied­
ly ratified it, I think he also, impliedly, authorized the handing 
over of the certificate to Lewis, on the request of the latter in 
October of the same year. I am, therefore, inclined to the opinion 
that there was really no conversion of the property. But I
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should not care to rest my opinion entirely upon this reasoning. N.S.
Defendant may he entitled, under the evidence, to say that the g c
exchange of the certificates was provided for by an express agree- —LI 
ment and authorization of which there is some evidence. Rawer

If there was a conversion of the certificate and the shares which „ v;
. ., .... , ••ill nAlUA)» .it represents, it still becomes necessary to impure whether they ___

had any value. There, possibly, was a time when there was a itusaeii, .1. 
market for them, though I still consider this doubtful as regards 
the common stock. There is some evidence of a few sporadic 
sales after the date of the alleged conversion, which it is con­
tended, occurred in October, 1917, though as to this, it is not 
clear that the stock so sold may not have been of the preferred 
shares. 1 am referring now to a sale in November, 1917, of which 
the witness, Jane II. Skillings, gives evidence. She really did 
not know whether this was common or preferred. If it was pre­
ferred stock the fact of the sale throws no light whatever 011 the 
question as to the value of the common stock. There is no evi­
dence in the ease that I have been able to discover of any human 
being having ever received a cent of dividend on the stock, either 
common or preferred, and there are many instances throughout 
the evidence of stockholders who have to report that they never 
received any dividend. If the common stock ever had a market 
value, that value must have reached the vanishing point when 
the United States became an associate in the great war, which was 
in April, 1917.

The following passage relating to this branch of the case is 
taken from the evidence of Horatio B. Ruggles, the organizer of 
the company:

“Q. 1914 you began to feel the stress of war conditions, from 
1914 on? A. Yes, sir; from the time 1 started we began to feel 
it. It started in 1913, I think, and things began to get bad right 
away. Q. And it became acute and brought the company to a 
standstill about the time the Americans went into the war? A.
Yes. Q. Which was April, 1917? A. Yes. Q. And practically 
after April, 1917, until the time you got out, towards the end of 
that year, there wasn’t very much doing in the company? A.
No, things were quiet. Q. Can you tell about the last time you 
made a sale of chairs? A. No, I couldn’t say. I think it was in 
1917. Q. Somewhere in the summer of 1917? A. I think so.”

After the United States entered the war it became impossible 
to manufacture the chairs for the production and sale of which 
tlie company had been organized because the metal required in 
the manufacture could not he obtained.

Mr. Trefry, the Commissioner of Corporations and Taxation, 
was officially charged with the duty of ascertaining the true mar-
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pronounces the common stock to have had no value on April 1. 
11)18, and makes the same statement as to conditions on April 1. 
11)17. If so, it follows that the stock had no market value at the

liussell, J. date when defendant transferred it, which was in October, 1917. 
In his re-direct examination by Mr. Crawford, acting,I assume, 
on behalf of the plaintiff in the examination of the witnesses 
under the commission,—the witness assents to lie proposition of 
counsel that the reason no value was given to t e common stock 
was that such value us there was in the assets of the company was 
not sufficient to reach the par value of the preferred shares. 
“There was nothing left for the common.” This statement, he 
says, applies to both years, 1917 and 1918.

I have not referred to the subsequent misfortunes of tin* com­
pany because it seemed to be taken for granted at the argument 
that the conversion of the stock occurred when it was handed 
over to C. B. Lewis, in October, 1917, and that if it had a selling 
value in the market at that date the defendant would have a 
good claim for the value of the certificate at that date, being the 
date of the conversion. It seems now clear from the cases cited 
in the opinion of my brother Mellish, that the conversion was not 
complete at that date. The only person who can claim damages 
in trover is the person who has the right of immediate posses­
sion, and there was no such right in the plaintiff until he tend­
ered the amount for which the stock was deposited, which was 
a much later date than the date, which seemed at the argument, 
to be agreed upon as the date of the conversion. If the stock was 
worth nothing in October, 1917, it certainly had not recovered 
its value at the date of the tender. The counterclaimant has 
suffered merely nominal damages and that I suppose is the judg 
ment which should have been given by the trial Judge.

This being the case, a question has been raised with reference 
to the costs. The ease is one of injuria sine damno, and the dis­
tinction is well established between such a case and that of dam­
num absque injuria. In the former case as Broom quotes from 
Ilolt, C. J., in the great case of Ashby v. White (1704), 2 Lord 
Raymond 938, (Broom L.M. 157), ed. 7, 1900: “A damage is 
not merely pecuniary but an injury imports a damage when a 
man is thereby hindered of his right.” Nevertheless, if such a 
case as this had occurred before the reform of our practice under 
the Judicature Act, the defendant, as a plaintiff, as he would 
then have been, would not have been awarded costs. The dam­
ages are onlj’ nominal and would have been less than $8. lie
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could not, under R.8.N.S. 1873 (4th aerie*), eh. 94, see. 262. have 
recovered costs unless the Judge had certified that the action 
whs brought to try a right beside* the mere right to recover 
damages or that the grievance was wilful and malicious or that 
the action was not frivolous and vexatious, and that the claim­
ant had actually sustained damage to the amount recovered and 
had, by notice in writing, demanded compensation therefor 8 
days before action brought. The Judicature Act does not con­
tain any corresponding section nor do the rules made thereunder, 
and 1 assume that the provision has Ih*cii intentionally repealed. 
But I must also assume that the reason why it has been repealed, 
is that a more comprehensive principle has been established in 
its place by the provision in the Judicature Rules that subject to 
the provision of the Act and Rules the costs of and incident to 
all proceedings shall be in the discretion of the Court or Judge 
(subject to certain restrictions in Rule 1 of Ù. LXI1I, which have 
no relevancy to the present case) and the further provision in R. 
II, that the costs of the several issues of law or fact shall, unless 
otherwise ordered, follow the event.

If the principle established by Ashby v. White (1704), 2 Lord 
Raymond 938, obliges us to say that “the ease of injuria absque 
ilamno may tie said to tie unknown to our taw” (Broom. L.M. ubi 
supra), I think it would be a sound exercise of the discretion of 
the Court to say that where no substantial loss has been oc­
casioned and only nominal damages are recovered the principle 
underlying the old rule of practice should tie applied.

There are English eases which seem to afford support to this 
view. In American Tobacco Co. v. (iucst, [1892] 1 Ch. 630, 61 
L.J. (Ch.), 242, 40 W.R. 364, where a retail trader innocently 
purchased a small quantity of goods which turned out to tie an 
infringement of a trademark it was conceded that the injuria 
had been committed, but the defendant was not adjudged to pay 
the costs because he had innocently sold the goods and the quan­
tity of goods so sold in infringement of the plaintiff’s trademark 
was small. Similarly in Cole v. ('hristie (1910), 26 T.L.R. 469, 
where the action claimed damages for the negligent preparation 
of a catalogue, but the plaintiffs had suffered no damage, the 
jury found that the defendants had been negligent in the pre­
paration of the catalogue, hut that the plaintiffs had not suffered 
any damage in consequence of that negligence. Here, I take it, 
there was the injuria of a breach of the contract to prepare the 
catalogue but no damage arising from that breach. The case 
of Marzetti v. Williams was appositely cited (1830), 1 B. and 
Ad. 415, 109 E. R. 842, 9 L.J.K.B. 42 *(0.8.), in which a banker 
having funds, did not honour the customer’s cheque. There was
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Que. no damage proved, but it was held that there must be nominal
gc' damages, Parke, J., in that case said that : “an extreme case may

be put where a party, who had sustained no inconvenience, might 
bring an action, but the remedy in that case would be to deprive 
such party of costs.” These words are quoted by Lawrance, J.. 
and lie arrives at the conclusion that the plaintiffs had failed to 
show that they were entitled to the costs of the action. He gave 
the defendant the general costs of the action and allowed tin- 
plaintiffs only the costs of the issue on which they had succeeded. 
He must have held that the plaintiffs had a cause of action or 
he would simply have dismissed the action. In awarding the 
general costs to the defendant he went farther than is here claim 
ed. All that is contended for here is that the claimant who re­
covers nominal damages is not, thereby, necessarily entitled to 
costs. The trial Judge dismissed the counterclaim with costs 
Had he been applied to to award nominal damages and costs lie 
could have awarded the damages and refused the costs. This 
Court is now in the position of the trial Judge and should make 
the order that he should have made. It seems to me to be of little 
or no importance whether the appeal is dismissed or allowed 
without costs. Technically, the judgment below is wrong, and 
as an appeal is taken, it seems logical that we should allow it and 
award $1 to the counterclaimant as damages, but certainly he 
should not have any costs on his judgment nor should he, in my 
opinion, have costs on an appeal from a judgment which is sub­
stantially right and which, as it turns out, is asserted in order 
to establish his right to merely nominal damages.

I regard the question raised as an important one. I think it 
would be a serious reflection on our jurisprudence to rule that 
we have a more limited discretion in regard to costs than the 
Court possessed before the pa—.ng of the Judicature Act, and 
that a claimant who really has no substantial grievance what 
ever, can nevertheless, sust, an action for a purely technical 
and fictitious grievance an « cover the costs of the proceeding.

('HAIG v. KKXXEDY.
Quebec Superior Court in Bankruptcy, Panneton, J. June 2!), J922. 

Bankruptcy (fill—20)—Property inherited by will declared to he
UNSEIZABLE—POWER TO DISPOSE—DISPOSITION WHEREBY IT BE­
COMES JOINT PARTNERSHIP PROPERTY — LIABILITY OF, ON BANK 
RUPTCY OF PARTNERS.

A party who inherits property which is declared to be unseizal-l -, 
but with right to the party inheriting to dispose of such property, 
who enters into n partnership agreement whereby the partners mutually 
divest themselves of their property, the one in favour of the other, 
the property of each partner becoming the joint and common property 
of the partnership, cannot claim the unseizable character of the pro­
perty in bankruptcy proceedings.

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135; 50 D.L.R. 104; 59 D.L.R. 1.]
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Bankruptcy ($ I—12)—Assignment by one partner—Power to bind 
OTHER PARTNER—BANKRUPTCY ACT, CAN., 1919, CH. .10, SEU. 85.

Section 85 of the Bankruptcy Act, ch. 30, Can. Stats., 1919, provides 
that for all the purposes of the Act a firm may act by any of its 
members. This section makes no distinction and the Act applies to all 
partnerships.

Petition by one of two partners to annul an assignment made 
bv one of the partners, on two grounds, first that the assignment 
was signed by only one of the partners, and second that the pro­
perty which he brought into the partnership was unseizable. 
Petition dismissed.

McGibbon, Mitchell and Co., for petitioner.
Iai flamme, Mitchell and Callaghan, for contestation.
Panneton, J. :—As to the first grounds :—It is proved that 

petitioner went with Byers at the office where the assignment 
was made, that he was present when it was signed, that he agreed 
to it, and that subsequently he communicated with the trustee in 
his said quality on insolvency matters, and never objected until 
May 15, when he made a protest, though during the interval be­
tween March 31 and May 15, the estate was being liquidated to 
liis knowledge.

Besides sec. 85 of the Bankruptcy Act, ch. 36 (Can.), 1919, 
provides that for all or any of the purposes of that Act a firm 
may act by any of its members. This article makes no distinc­
tion. and the act applies to all partnerships even to farmers on 
matter of abandonment of property.

I'mler the circumstances the abandonment of property of the 
firm made by Byers is valid in so far as the authority of Byers 
to make it is involved.

2. The unseizability of the property brought into the part­
nership by petitioner.

lb* derived his title to said property under two wills, one from 
his father and the other from his grandmother, in virtue of which 
each of them gave to petitioner all their property moveable, im­
moveable and mixed. Each will contains the disposition that 
the bequest is made for the support and maintenance of petition­
er. that the property given is unseizable with right, however, to 
use, enjoy and dispose of said property.

In the articles of partnership dated .January 27, 1920, it is 
declared that they have entered into partnership for the purpose 
of carrying on together the farms they respectively own and 
possess. The whole property of every kind so brought into the 
partnership by Byers, being valued at $17,100, and the property 
of petitioner at $20,000. It is further declared in said article of 
partnership that the said partners shall be and remain from this
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day, henceforth, joint owners and proprietors of the immoveable 
property and real estate above described as well as all the stock, 
farming tools and ments belonging to the said farm, which 
they, hereafter, shall own in common and undivided ownership 
until dissolution or liquidation of the said partnership, and it is
declared........................................... in consideration of the
above stipulations the said parties hereby mutually divest them­
selves, the one in favor of the other of all their rights of property 
and other rights on the real estate and immoveable properties 
as well as all moveables by each of them respectively owned in 
order that they both become undivided owners thereof by virtue 
of these presents.

It was strongly argued that under the authorities and juris­
prudence, the property being unseizable, it cannot be ceded. This 
argument, however correct it may be, is met by the clause in 
each will that the petitioner is given power to dispose of the 
property.

It is proved that the partnership is insolvent.
As the result of the article of partnership, the property of 

each partner, by becoming the joint and common property of 
the two partners lost its individuality as the particular property 
of one of them, neither one nor the other can give alone a clear 
title to the property he brought into the partnership when the 
property will be sold.

The unseizable character of one of the property cannot lie 
identified as each property is merged into another, every inch 
of ground of the property formerly of petitioner alone, is now 
as much the property of Byers as his own. As the deed says, he 
has divested himself of his property. It was argued that when 
petitioner agreed to the assignment he did not know the legal 
effect of it. No such reason as error is alleged either in the 
pleading or in the protest, it cannot be urged now.

Considering that petitioner has failed to prove the essential 
allegations of his petition, the Court dismisses said petition with 
costs.

Petition dismissed.

HALL v. QVKHXKL.

Yale County Court, B.C., Swaneon, J. June 2, 1922. 
Interpleader ($ If—20)—Judgment creditor of husband—Seizure o* 

goods—Bill of sale from husband to wife—Fraud—Right or
WIFE TO SET UP OWNERSHIP OF GOODS—ESTOPPEL.

The fact that a wife has entered into an agreement for sale am! 
a bill of sale of certain chattels from the husband as grantor to the 
wife as grantee for the fraudulent purpose of hindering, defeating 
and delaying the creditors of the husband, does not estop the wife

4
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from giving evidence to shew that she was the real owner of the 
chattels before the giving of the bill of sale, and that the chattels 
were purchased by her with her own earnings.

[Leippi v. Frey (1921), 61 D.L.R. 11; Bowman v. Taylor (1834), 
2 Ad. & El. 278, 111 E.R. 108; General Finance v. Liberator (1878), 
10 Ch.D. 15, 27 W.R. 210; Richards v. Johnston (1859), 4 H. & N. 
660, 157 E.R. 1000, referred to. See Annotation, 32 D.L.R. 263.]

Trial of an interpleader issue as to ownership of goods and 
chattels set forth in the list annexed to the issue. These goods 
were seized under an execution by the sheriff under a judgment 
recovered against the husband of the claimant herein who was 
the lessee of certain farm premises at Lumby, in this county, 
under a lease from the judgment creditor.

II. C. DeBeck, for plaintiff.
IV. 11. D. Ladner, for defendant.
Swanson, Co. Ct. J.:—Dispute arose between the parties to 

the lease during its currency and it was determined. Hall proffer­
ed a cheque to Quesnel for the amount he believed he should pay 
him for that particular season, which Quesnel refused to accept. 
Arbitration proceedings followed with the result that a much 
larger amount was awarded against Hall than he felt he should 
justly pay. No appeal was taken by Hall from the award of the 
arbitrators, and accordingly, as payment wras refused by Hall, 
an application was made by Quesnel under the Arbitration Act to 
have the amount of the award made a judgment of the Supreme 
Court of B.C.

The notice of motion was served upon Hall, returnable at the 
coast on September 8,1921. Subsequently on November 8, 1921, 
judgment was duly entered thereon against Hall ; and upon a fi 
fa issued pursuant to said judgment, the seizure in question was 
made by the sheriff.

Now in the interval of time between the serving of the notice 
of motion and judgment, and just one day before the notice of 
motion was originally returnable, the claimant, Mrs. Hall and her 
husband, on September 7, 1921, enlisted the conveyancing ser­
vices of a local firm of real estate dealers, Spencer and Farmer, 
and directed the preparation of the agreement of sale, or trans­
fer. and of the bill of sale of the chattels in question, from the 
husband as grantor to the wife, claimant, as grantee. The wife 
says that these papers were insisted on by her, as her husband 
was interested in a mine at Ewing’s Landing. I understand the 
name of the mine is the “White Elephant,” a few miles south 
of Vernon on Okanagan Lake. She says that the reason for her 
insistence on the execution of these papers was the fear in her 
mind that her husband might be killed by a dynamite explosion 
in the mine, and that she wished all his property (whatever it
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was) conveyed and granted to her, so that in the event of any­
thing happening to her husband, she and her children would be 
secured. It is significant, however, that the husband did not 
acquire any interest in this mine until September 27, 1921, and 
it is peculiarly significant that the husband and wife should 
have chosen such an extremely hazardous time to execute these 
papers as the day before the above named notice of motion was 
originally timed to be returnable.

The wife and husband stoutly repudiate any suggestion that 
these transfers and bill of sale were conceived as a ready means 
of defeating, hindering, delaying or defrauding their creditors, 
and particularly Quesnel, who was pressing his claim to judg­
ment, a judgment, too, which these people seemed to have de­
termined to resist payment of a V outrance. Such transactions 
between husband and wife, under such circumstances, are always 
regarded by the Courts with grave suspicion. The mental atti­
tude of our Courts to such transactions is outlined by the Judges 
of the Supreme Court of Canada in Koop v. Smith (1915), 
25 D.L.R. 355, 51 Can. S.C.R. 554, to which I beg leave to refer. 
No consideration was given for these transfers, and no serious 
attempt was made to vindicate the bona fides of the transaction. 
In fact, the learned counsel for the claimant was sincerely 
anxious to have the Court forget all about this transaction, 
which 1 have no hesitation in saying xvas conceived by the claim­
ant and her husband with the express design to hinder, defeat 
and delay his creditor Quesnel, and one which could not in all 
honesty stand the light of day.

The amazing thing to me is that the claimant should have 
been guilty of such an act of folly (leaving aside for the moment 
its element of sheer dishonesty ) wdien she was able to present 
such a strong claim on the merits as to her actual title to the 
goods in question.

True it is that the transfer and bill of sale covered not only 
the goods and chattels, the subject of the enquiry before me, 
but every whit of real and personal property owned or supposed 
to be owned by the husband, leaving him as empty of propmty 
as last year’s bird’s nest.

I am now confronted with a condition of things absolutely 
novel to me, where the counsel for the claimant seeks to get 
completely away from this transfer and bill of sale, and to biise 
his claim on the assumption that the bill of sale never existed. 
His contention before me is that the evidence shews very clearly 
that his unfortunate client was always the owner of these chat­
tels, that she purchased the same out of her hard earnings, and 
that her husband never had any title in fact at any time to
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the same, and that the alleged bill of sale is a pieee of super­
erogation; that the bill of sale is, therefore, a useless thing, as 
it purports to convey to the claimant what was always her prop­
erty. If the claimant’s title to the goods in question rested 
solely upon this bill of sale, I would have no hesitation in 
concluding that it is inoperative to pass the property in such 
goods under the circumstances of this case. 1 think Mr. Ladner’s 
contention is right on the point that he raises, viz., that ‘‘fraud” 
can he proved, even without the necessity of launching a sub­
stantive action to set aside the bill of sale, as was done in the 
case of Koop v. Smith supra. Mr. Ladner’s position in that 
matter has the authority of a ruling by the late Elwood, J., of 
Saskatchewan (a very old personal friend of mine) in John 
Deere Plow Co. v. Knudston (1915), 9 W.W.R. 574. This ease 
I find is cited with approval in Lcippi v. Frey (1921), 61 D.L.R. 
11.

1 must, however, confess that, notwithstanding the subsequent 
very questionable conduct of the claimant in connection with 
1 his bill of sale, I was impressed with her evidence as to the 
real ownership of all the chattels in question (except the air 
tight heater, value $8, which is admitted is the property of her 
husband). She has told a story which I am inclined to accept, 
that she bought these several articles chiefly out of the proceeds 
of lier own hard toil. She lalmured as a tailoress in the East 
(Windsor, Out.,) and had saved $200 or $300, which she had 
in the P.O. Savings Dept, even before her marriage, or at least 
before coming to B.C., 14 years ago. She lias taken in washing, 
and done sewing, making children’s coats and house dresses. 
She has kept boarders. Part of the time, her husband has been 
ill. During the war, she kept housekeeping rooms, and had 
soldiers’ wives living under her roof. She has certainly worked 
hard and 1 have no doubt, not simply at the work of caring for 
her own home and children. She has had help also from her 
own people. She testifies to having bought the several articles 
in question, producing receipts for several of same in her own 
name, and says she paid for same out of her own earnings. I 
am inclined to believe her testimony that these goods were so 
purchased by her, as she testifies.

1 am now met with an important legal objection on part of 
Mr. Ladner. An objection which indeed lie took “in limine,” 
seeking to exclude all the testimony of the claimant as to her 
alleged separate ownership of these chattels. Mr. Ladner’s ob­
jection is that the claimant is “estopped” from now averring 
that these chattels were hers antecedently to the date of the 
alleged bill of sale, September 7, 1921. He says that having
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Que. signed that instrument (which, however, as Mr. DeBeek point- 
gc out, was not under seal) and having sworn to the affidavit of 

bona fidcs thereon she is now “estopped” from denying that her 
husband was, prior to that date, the legal owner of all thos. 
chattels. Mr. Ladner says the claimant must stand or fall In 
the bill of sale, and as it is so manifestly fraudulent her claim 
in toto must now fall to the ground. If his argument is sound. 
I think her claim would completely fail, for the reasons I haw 
clearly set forth above. I have considered with care the case- 
on estoppel submitted by Mr. Ladner :—

Bowman v. Taylor (1834), 2 Ad. & El. 278, 111 E.R. 108, 4 
L.J. (K.B.) 58. Judgment of Lord Denman, C.J., Taunton, J., 
Patteson, J., and Williams, J. Also judgment of Jessel, M.R . 
in General Finance v. Liberator etc. Soc. (1878), 10 Ch. D. 15, 27 
W.R. 210.

I have read the judgment of Jessel, M.R., with great care. In 
that ease he held that no “estoppel” had been created. At p. 24 
he says “and so it does not appear to me to be at all clear that 
that would amount to that precise averment of a fact which is 
necessary to support the doctrine that a subsequent conveyan e 
of the legal estate will, so to say, fill up the estoppel previously 
created.”

See also Richards v. Johnston (1859), 4 II. & N. 660,157 E.R. 
1000, 28 L.J. (Ex.) 322.

I do not think that the doctrine of “estoppel” can be suc­
cessfully invoked here to “estop” (or “stop the mouth” of , 
the claimant in giving her testimony as to the real ownership 
of these chattels.

I accordingly give judgment on the issue in favour of t lie 
plaintiff, Margaret A. Hall. In view of her reprehensible con­
duct in connection with the taking of the bill of sale in question, 
I deprive her of all costs.

Judgment for plaintiff, accordingly, without costs.
Judgment for plaintiff.

THE CENTAUR CO. v. AMERICAN DRUGGISTS SYNDICAT!:
Quebec Superior Court, Archibald, J. June SO, 1988.

Trademark ($ II—9a)—‘‘Castoria’ ’—Arbitrary word—Long usa e— 
Registration—Expiration op foreign patent—Protection op.

The word “Castoria” in connection with the manufacture and sale 
of a senna laxative for infants and children is not the generic name 
of a medicinal preparation, but an arbitrary designation, and as such 
may be the subject of a valid trademark which, being register. ! in 
Canada, protects the right to the sole use of the word in Canada during 
the life of the trademark, although the patent rights to the preparation 
and sole right to the use of the word in the United States have expired, 
and the product has not been protected by a patent in Canada.

[See Annotation 56 D.L.R. 154.]
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A motion for a preliminary injunction ordering the de­
fendant company to refrain from using the word “Castoria” in 
the sale of a certain pharmaceutical preparation having been 
granted by Mr. Justice Duclos. An appeal on the injunction 
was taken by leave to the Court of Appeal, 56 D.L.R. 137, which 
confirmed the judgment of Duclos, J. The present action is to 
determine the rights of the parties.

U. AT. Chauvin, K.C., for plaintiff.
Russell S. Smart, and L. U. Ballantyne, for defendants.
Archibald, J. :—This is a very interesting and important case.
The plaintiff more than 40 years ago adopted the word ‘ ‘ Cas­

toriaM in connection with the name of the plaintiff’s president 
at the time of the first registration and upon the re-organisation 
of the plaintiff’s company, made a newr registration under the 
name “Fletcher’s Castoria,” and the article has been sold ever 
since as plaintiff’s trademark in Canada.

The defendant contended that the word “Castoria” is the 
name of the article and cannot be adopted as a trademark ; that 
the article wTas patented in the United States by plaintiff’s 
auteur ; that that patent bas expired and it is open to anyone to 
manufacture the article and use the name by which it was call­
ed; that plaintiff never had any exclusive right to manufacture 
that medicine in Canada as they never obtained a patent there 
for the medicine and that anybody could have manufactured 
the article in Canada and called it by the name “Castoria.”

The parties have cited innumerable precedents, some of them 
leaning towards the defendant and some of them supporting the 
plaintiff, but these precedents when they differ from each other, 
are mostly found to differ in consequence of the different facts 
of each case.

There is one case on which the defendant strongly relies, de­
cided by Fry, J., in England, namely what is called the Linoleum 
case (1878), 7 Ch. D. 834, 47 L.J. (Ch.) 430, 26 W.R. 463.

That case decided that when an article had been patented and 
given a name in the patent, although that name was invented by 
the patentee, for the purpose of describing the patented article, 
at the expiration of the patent, any person who began manufac­
turing the patented article, could call it by the name given to 
it by the patentee. The patent in question in this case was an 
English patent and gave the name of the article in the patent 
itself and in the articles of the company associated for its manu­
facture and in their advertisements, and the Judge held that the 
article itself was nothing else than solidified linseed oil, and 
that the name was the specific name for that substance which 
had not existed before.

That judgment has not been criticised in subsequent cases
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and it may be taken to be the law of England that when a sub­
stance which is not a combination or mixture of materials has 
been patented and given a name in England, that when the 
patent expires, such a substance may be manufactured by anyone 
in England under the same name.

There would appear, however, to have been doubts as to that 
in the English Trade Marks Act of 1919, ch. 79, part 2nd. p. 355. 
sec. 6, it is provided as follows :—

“Where in the case of an article or substance manufactured 
under any patent in force at or granted after the passing of this 
Act, a word trademark registered under the principal Act or 
part 1 of this Act, is the name or only practicable name of the 
article or substance so manufactured, all rights to the exclusive 
use of such trademark whether under the common law or by 
registration, .... shall cease upon the expiration or determina­
tion of the patent and, thereafter, such word shall not be deemed a 
distinctive mark and may be removed by the Court from the 
register on the application of any person aggrieved.”

And the section proceeds :—
“No word which is the only practicable name or description 

of any single chemical element or single chemical compound as 
distinguished from a mixture, shall be registered as a trademark, 
provided that (a) the provisions of this subsection shall not 
apply where the mark is used to denote only the proprietor’s 
brand, or make of such substance as distinguished from the 
substance as made by others............”

Of course this section of the Imperial Act has no force of law 
in Canada. But it indicates the opinion that there is a difference 
between combinations which results in chemical reaction so that 
the substance has become one substance and the case where the 
materials, though united, have not suffered chemical changes.

The authorities in England are numerous that a man may 
make a combination of substances and call it by a name and 
register a trademark including that name and preventing any 
other person from using either the name or any other part of 
the trademark, provided that it appears clearly that the name 
is not the substance as manufactured by the party registering 
the trademark.

I think there can be no doubt that that is the law today, botli 
in England and in this country.

The taking out of a patent in Canada or in England does not 
need to be considered in this case because no patent has been 
taken up. The effect of a patent in a foreign country upon a 
trademark in this country or in England has been considered in 
several cases. There is no case either in this country or in Eng­
land which has invalidated a trademark including the name of a
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substance in consequence of the issuing of a patent ill a foreign 
country.

1 think, therefore, that the existence of a patent on “Castoria” 
in the United States would not invalidate a trademark including 
the same name in Canada.

The word “Castoria" was first used by Samuel Pitcher in the 
United States to indicate a combination of substance to form a 
medicine for children of a laxative character. A patent was 
applied for and the specifications indicated, as was necessary, 
the different substances which entered into the patented medicine 
and the manner of compounding them. There was chemical 
reaction with regard to some of these substances and with regard 
to others there was only mechanical mixture, so that the material 
would be regarded as a mixture under the Imperial statute above 
cited. The article was not named “Castoria" in the patent, but 
Pitcher assumed the name “Castoria" in his trade and after­
wards registered a trademark including the name “Castoria." 
Subsequently by various transfers, the plaintiffs became entitled 
to idl the rights of the original owner and at a certain stage 
applied for registration as a trademark ill Canada. The trade­
mark included the word “Castoria," and also the name of the 
president of plaintiff’s company. The plaintiff’s business had 
been extensively advertised, especially its trademark, plaintiff 
spending up to $20,000 a year on such advertisements. The 
business had grown until the plaintiff’s sales have reached a 
quarter of a million dollars u year. All of plaintiff’s advertise­
ments have made it clear that the word “Castoria" was the 
name of the medicine as manufactured by the plaintiff. ‘ * Fletch­
er’s Castoria” is seen everywhere in the newspapers and posted 
in the streets with the expression “None genuine which does not 
bear the signature of ‘Fletcher’," that is to say, nothing is 
“Castoria" which is not manufactured by plaintiff.

It is very true that anyone if they can find out the secret of 
the formula of the plaintiff for “Castoria” can manufacture the 
article but it would not be “Castoria” because that is the name 
of the article manufactured by the plaintiff. Rut it is said, if 
they can manufacture the article they must be able to give it a 
name. That is true, there are a large number of persons manu­
facturing a medicine based on senna, many of them just as near 
to the plaintiff’s formula as that of the defendant. They call 
their medicine by the various names under which they advertise 
them. Plaintiff invented the name of “Castoria" to represent 
the medicine which he manufactured, and it is quite open to 
anybody else to manufacture in Canada the same medicine and 
call it by any name which they choose.
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It is manifest that the substance called “Castoria” as manu 
factured by the plaintiff has become a very popular medicine 
owing to its intrinsic merits and owing to the extent of the 
plaintiff’s advertisements. If defendant should be allowed to 
use the word “Castoria" it would necessarily indicate to th. 
public that it was the same medicine which the plaintiff was 
selling and the plaintiff would, consequently, suffer large dam 
ages.

The evidence has established that the formula contained in the 
patent of 1868 in the United States is not the formula upon 
which “Castoria" is manufactured in Canada. It is not the 
formula upon which the defendant is manufacturing its medicine 
which it has attempted to call “Castoria."

The defendant’s manager, when examined, was asked by me 
upon what formula his medicine was manufactured. He ■ 
clined, claiming that the formula was secret. Subsequently, on 
advice of his counsel, he produced the formula. The proof also 
establishes that in several more or less important particulars, 
the medicine manufactured by the plaintiff and called “Cos- 
toria" is specially different from that manufactured by the 
plaintiff. Its specific gravity is different, its viscosity is only 
half of that of the plaintiff’s medicine. It differs also in acidity 
and in color and to a certain extent in taste. It is obvious that 
there must be something either in the substance used or in I lie 
preparation of substances used or in the mode of combination 
which is different in the one case from the other.

In any event, there is a substantial difference and even if the 
defendant had the right to call his substance “Castoria," he 
would have that right only when he manufactured the same 
substance.

I conclude, therefore, that plaintiff has established his right 
to the sole use of the word “Castoria" under his trademark mid 
that even if the defendant had established his right to use t lie 
word “Castoria" he has not proved that the substance which 
he manufactures under that name is the same substance as the 
plaintiff manufactures and calls “Castoria.”

The interim injunction granted to the plaintiff against the 
defendant using the name “Castoria" as the name of the medi­
cine which he is selling for the same purpose which the plaintiff’s 
medicine is intended (1920), 56 D.L.R. 137, was properly so 
granted and must be confirmed and declared perpetual and Ihe 
defendant condemned to deliver over all labels, bottles of medi­
cine printed matter bearing the said name “Castoria" which 
have been manufactured and are now in the possession of the
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defendant (and to render an account to the plaintiff of all N.8.
medicine sold by the defendant bearing said name “Castoria,") gc
with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

GUNNING T. LUSBY (No. 1);
Nova Scotia Supreme Court, Bussell, J., Ritchie, EJ. and Chisholm, J.

January tS, 1922.
Principal and agent ($ IJD—25)—Sale op lands—Option—Formation 

OP SYNDICATE—DUTY OF PARTY HOLDING OPTION TO TURN OVER 
PROPERTY WITHOUT MAKING ANY PROFIT.

A party who obtains an option on property and in order to float it, 
forms a syndicate to which the property is turned over, is not the 
ugent of the syndicate and is not bound to make full disclosure as 
to the price at which he purchased, and the members of the syndicate 
having ratified the price at which the property was turned over cannot 
complain, if there has been no fraudulent concealment which induced 
them to become members of the syndicate.

Appeal from the judgment of Harris, C.J., in favour of 
plaintiffs in an action to recover moneys paid by plaintiffs in 
connection with a syndicate formed for the purchase of western 
lands. Reversed.

F. h. Milner, K.C., and J. A. Eanway, K.C. for appellants.
E. H. Nichols, K.C., and F. L. Davidson, for respondents.
Russell, J., agrees with Ritchie, E.J.
Ritciiie, E.J.:—For the preliminary facts I quote from the 

judgment appealed from :—
“This action is brought by the plaintiffs suing on behalf of 

themselves and all other members of the Great West Land Syndi­
cate, No. 2, except the defendants against the three first named 
defendants who were trustees and the other two defendants for 
the recovery of the sum of $151,159.37 paid in by members of 
the syndicate under the circumstances hereinafter referred to.

It appears that two men named Pugsley and Trethewey had 
an option from one Greer residing near Moose Jaw to buy his 
farm at the price of $112,000. They agreed in consideration 
of $15,000 to be paid by the defendants, Silliker and Vail, to 
step aside and let Greer give them an option. When the new 
option was given the price was increased to $118,500 and Greer 
gave Pugsley and Trethewey the difference between the two 
options, $6,500 ; so that Pugsley and Trethewey got paid $21,500 
for retiring, $15,000 from Silliker and Vail, and $6,500 from 
Greer, which was added to his price.

Having received this option for $118,500, Silliker and Vail 
decided to put the property on the market at $187,500, and 
they approached the three defendants, Lusby, Smith and Fage, 
all of whom were men of good repute residing at Amherst, with
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N.S. a request that they should act as trustees; Lusby was a promin- 
8C ent merchant; Smitli a prominent barrister, and Fage was the
—LI mayor of the town of Amherst, and I suppose they were selected

Gunning because of their eminent respectability and because they would 
Lueer inspire confidence in the public, who were to be asked to put up

(No. 1). the $187,500. Fage was not called, and there is no evidence that
----- he got any rebate, but both Smith and Lusby on subscribing for

Ritchie, f.j. gtQgk jn the new syndicate got a rebate or discount on their
shares from Silliker and Vail, who credited the syndicate with 
the full value of the shares.”

The agreement constituting the Great West Land Syndicate 
No. 2 is set out at length in the judgment under appeal. Tin-re 
had previously been another syndicate promoted by Silliker and 
Vail for speculating in western lands and in that transact i--n 
they occupied the same position as in Syndicate No. 2, that is 
to say, they controlled the lands sought to be acquired and made 
a profit on the sale. It is, I think, conceded that this was known 
to the members of the first syndicate, and therefore very gener­
ally known in Amherst and in the county of Cumberland. A 
number of the members of the first syndicate became members 
of the second syndicate and I think it is a fair assumption that 
they realised that Silliker and Vail were making a profit on 
turning over the land to Syndicate No. 2; for this there is the 
most ample support in the evidence. It is true as pointed out 
by Harris, C.J., that the agreement contains no mention of the 
fact that Silliker and Vail had an option on the property and 
that a man reading the agreement might get the idea that the 
owner in the west was the man to be dealt with.

This omission leaves room for an argument that Silliker and 
Vail were concealing their interest, but it is to my mind very 
far from being conclusive. In the first place, they were appeal­
ing to a constituency to a large extent familiar with their method 
of carrying on this kind of business. If the defendants, Silliker 
and Vail, were concealing the fact that they had an option, that 
concealment in order that it avail the plaintiffs must lie a fraud­
ulent concealment which induced them to become members of the 
second syndicate, and the burden rests upon the plaintiffs to 
make this reasonably clear. I must go to the evidence to see 
if the plaintiffs have sustained that burden. The defendants 
did not buy for the syndicate; they bought for themselves; the 
syndicate was not then formed; of course, this is important, 
because if they had been the agents of the syndicate when they 
acquired the option, that (apart from the branch of the vase 
with which I deal later on) upon elementary principles of the 
law of agency would have been an end of their defence.
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Is fraudulent concealment established by the evidence suffi­
ciently to sustain the burden of proof resting on the plaintiffs?
I have reached the conclusion that this question must be an­
swered in the negative. Gunning, one of the plaintiffs, was in 
Svndicate No. 1, and it is, I suppose, fair to assume that he was 
familiar with the fact that the defendants, Silliker and Vail, 
controlled the title to the property which was conveyed to that 
syndicate. In January, 1913, very soon after if not before he 
became a member of Syndicate No. 2, he received a letter from 
the defendants, Silliker and Vail, in which, speaking of the 
land in question, they say:—“This piece has been held under an 
option for a considerable length of time and hence we are able 
to sell it at the price we arc offering.”

Gunning, when he read this letter, knew absolutely that Silli­
ker and Vail controlled the property and that the syndicate was 
buying from them. If, as he says now, he thought the syndicate 
was buying from a man in the west, it is inconceivable that he 
would not write back at once to Silliker and Vail and say: “I 
have been deceived; I thought I was buying from the original 
owner and did not know I was buying from you and paying 
you a profit.” I think he must have known .cry well that 
Silliker and Vail were not turning over the property without a 
profit. This was the time for him to speak ; he made no reference 
to it at all and by his conduct affirmed the transaction. II. W. 
Cameron, another of the plaintiffs, was also in the first syndicate 
and says he was told that practically the same syndicate was 
taking hold of this venture, and says he knew that practically 
the same men were in both ventures. Cameron does not say that 
he did not know he was buying from Silliker and Vail, and 
neither does Leydon, the third plaintiff. In a letter from the 
trustees to Cameron, the following appears: “As you are aware 
the property at Moose Jaw in which our syndicate is interested 
and which consists of 640 acres less 15 acres reserved for a 
homestead, was purchased through Silliker and Vail from Mr. 
S. A. Greer, of Moose Jaw, the price the syndicate agreed to pay 
$187,500, Messrs. Silliker and Vail under their agreement of 
purchase and sale then held by them but now held by your 
trustees. ...” If Cameron was not so aware, and the fact that 
the syndicate purchased from Silliker and Vail was previously 
unknown to him, I would expect him to say:—“1 was not aware 
of it at all and I signed believing we were purchasing from the 
man in the west.” So far as these plaintiffs are concerned, it 
stands out in the case that no complaint is made about Silliker 
and Vail being the vendors until after the venture has gone on 
the rocks, and it cannot, I think, be successfully contended that
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they did not know it long before. I do not think that persons 
became members of the syndicate because the fact that Silliker 
and Vail controlled the property was fraudulently conceal d 
from them; on the contrary, I think the inducing cause was 
that a previous venture of the same kind had been brought to a 
successful termination by Silliker and Vail. A number of 
prominent men signed and the rest followed.

But I am of opinion that the evidence goes further and shews 
affirmatively that there was no such fraudulent scheme on foot. 
If Silliker and Vail were conspiring to conceal the fact of their 
option, they certainly would not defeat the fraudulent purjv.se 
which they had in view by stating that fact and this they did. 
In the letter to Gunning dated January 13, they distinctly sa d 
they were able to sell at the price mentioned in consequence of 
holding an option. I am unable to understand the writing of 
this letter if there was any question of concealment. The syndi­
cate agreement is dated January 2, and then was taken round 
for signature. It is probable that the letter was written before 
Gunning signed, but if not, it was very soon after. McKeen, one 
of the plaintiff’s witnesses, knew that Silliker and Vail had i he 
control of the land and were turning it over at a profit. Blink, 
another of the plaintiff’s witnesses, knew that Silliker and Vail 
were to resell it at a profit, and he got this information from 
them. There is a mass of testimony in the same direction ; to 
refer to it all would unduly prolong this opinion. On the whole 
evidence, I am unable to agree with the finding of Harris, < 
that the profit made by Silliker and Vail was a secret prolit. 
With every respect for his finding, the evidence, as I understand 
it, forces me to differ from him.

There was a meeting of the members of the syndicate in 1917; 
at that meeting those present could not fail to know the fact 
that the purchase was from Silliker and Vail. I do not refer 
in detail to the evidence because there is no dispute about the 
fact. No suggestion was made that this was news to the members 
of the syndicate or that they were induced to come in by con­
cealment of the fact. It is inherently improbable that the mem­
bers of the syndicate who had been induced to go into a venture 
by concealment of a fact would not mention it when the decep­
tion practised on them became known, and particularly so if 
the venture was not going well.

There was another meeting of the members in 1918 but no 
suggestion that it was not known from the start that Silliker 
and Vail had the option.

But supposing the true state of the facts was first known to 
the members in 1918, can they disregard it, affirm the transac-
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lion, retain what they have, and then when the option becomes 
of no value because some of their number do not pay up fall 
hack on Siiliker and Vail to get back the money they have lost. 
1 think not. They could in such case rescind the contract, but 
as was pointed out by Lord Davey in Burland v. Earle [1902], 
A. C. 83, at p. 99: “To rescind the sale is one thing, but to 
force on the vendor a contract to sell at another price is a 
totally different thing.’’ The plaintiffs in this case want what 
is vailed the secret profit, or in other words, they want the 
purchase price to be $118,000, and in addition they seek to re­
cover the purchase money paid in by certain members of the 
syndicate.

In llurland v. Earle, a director purchased property without 
mandate from the company and under such circumstances as 
did not make him a trustee for the company, and thereafter 
resold the same to the company at a profit; it was held that 
whether or not the company was entitled to a rescission of the 
contract of resale, it was not entitled to affirm it and at the 
same time treat the director as trustee of the profit made.

Re Cape Breton Co. (1885), 25 Ch. D. 795, cited by Mr. 
Milner, K.C., is I think directly in point on this branch of the 
case. The facts are stated by Fry, L.J., at p. 811, as follows :—

“The facts of the present case appear to me to amount shortly 
to these: that Mr. Fenn was the agent of the company to pur­
chase a specific property in which, before the commencement 
of his agency, he had acquired an interest, that Mr. Fenn did 
purchase it for the company without disclosing to the company 
his interest in the property, and that after the purchase the facts 
were fully disclosed to the company, and, with the knowledge 
so acquired, the company elected to retain the property. Upon 
that state of facts arises the question whether Mr. Fenn was 
liable to the company for any sum, by reason of fraud or breach 
of trust or duty.’’ This is a case in which the agent before 
accepting the agency, had an interest in the property, and 
during the agency sold that property to his principal without 
disclosing his interest. That in such a case the principal would 
have a right to rescind there can be no doubt. The option which 
the principal had, has in this case been exercised by confirming 
the contract with knowledge of the facts, and the question is 
whether after that affirmance, the agent is liable in any sum to 
his principal. There is no authority which determines this 
point, and it, therefore, is to be determined upon principle.

Now, notwithstanding the very powerful criticisms of Bowen, 
L.J., on the judgment of Pearson, J., I think that judgment 
right. I think that the case is one in which the adoption of the
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contract by the principal puts an end, and ought to put an 
end, to any further rights against the agent. It appears to me 
that to allow the principal to affirm the contract, and after the 
affirmance to claim, not only to retain the property, but to gi-t 
the difference in price at which it was 1 >ought, and some other 
price, is, however you may state it, and however you may turn 
the proposition about, against the will of his agent, to enter 
into a new contract with the agent, a thing which is plainly im­
possible, or else it is an attempt on the part of the principal to 
confiscate the property of his agent on some ground which, I 
confess, I do not understand.M

I also quote from Cotton, L.J., at p. 805 :
“The company have with the knowledge of the facts, deter­

mined to hold the property which they only acquired by agree­
ing to pay a certain price, and although they may have been en­
titled to set that agreement aside, yet I think that as they, with 
knowledge of all the facts, elected to retain the property, it 
would be wrong to require the trustee to hand over to them that 
money which was the only consideration upon which he agreed 
to give the property.”

It was urged on behalf of the plaintiffs that the partnership 
relation existed between Silliker and Vail and the members of 
the syndicate. I cannot find on the evidence that this is so. In 
the judgment appealed from it is said that Silliker and Vail 
“were clearly the agents of the members of the syndicate* and 
as such they were bound to make the fullest disclosure of the 
facts.” If Silliker and Vail had been the agents of members of 
the syndicate when they acquired the option it would have been 
incumbent on them to make the fullest disclosure as to the price 
they were to pay, but that is not this case. After they had 
acquired the option they were appointed by the syndicate agree­
ment, managers of the syndicate, but the question of the price 
to be paid for the land was settled by the same agreement ; it 
was not an open question. It cannot be said that Silliker and 
Vail ns managers under the agreement fixed the price because it 
is fixed by the agreement which appointed them managers. 1 
think this class of transaction was a very ordinary one when 
the fever for speculation in western lands was at its height. An 
option is procured, the man or men who acquire it cannot carry 
the load and it has to be floated ; this is done by turning it over 
to a company or group, but I doubt if anyone conversant with 
this kind of business expects the man who has at some trouble 
and expense acquired the option to turn it over without profit. 
It is to be noted that the evidence shews that this was not a wild
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cap speculation ; it was at the time a good proposition, though of 
course speculative.

Coming to the question of the rebate of $500 to the trustees, 
no specific claim as to this appears in the statement of claim and 
an amendment would lie necessary before it could he recovered. 
Apparently no amendment was asked for; it is an amendment 
which at this stage I would refuse, because $500 is by no means 
excessive remuneration for the work and responsibility incident 
to the office of trustee. But, ppart from this, Smith refused to 
act unless he “got remuneration for his time and services.” It 
would be unreasonable that he should act without remuneration 
and the $500 was offered and accepted for his services. So far 
as Smith is concerned, the remuneration was inadequate. Lusby 
is, 1 think, entitled to retain the $500 on the same principle.

I may add that if Silliker and Vail were the owners of the 
property and offering it for sale as intimated by Harris, C.J., 
then they were selling shares to the trustees, payment to be made 
by services. On this basis I do not see how other members of 
the syndicate have any concern with the transaction.

1 would allow the appeal with costs and dismiss the action with 
costs.

Chisholm, J. :—I have arrived at the same conclusion. From 
my perusal of the case I am unable to find in it evidence to satisfy 
me that in obtaining from Greer the agreement to purchase, the 
defendants, Silliker and Vail, were acting as the agents of the 
parties who later became members of the syndicate, and were 
obliged to transfer the lands to the syndicate at the figure at 
which they purchased. The relation of principal and agent, with 
respect to the purchase, or of trustee or beneficiary or of part­
ners, as contended by Mr. Davidson, is not, in my view of the 
evidence, established; and I think, therefore, that the action 
should be wholly dismissed.

Appeal allowed; action dismissed.

GUNNING v. LUSBY (No. 2).
Xoia Scotia Supreme Court, liar ri*, CJ., Kitehie, K.J. and Chisholm, J.

February 11, 192$.
Appeal ($ IA—1)—As or bioht—To Pbivy Council—Amount in dispute.

A party in Nova Hcotia is entitled to nppenl ns of right to the 
Privy Council where the matter in dispute on the nppenl amounts to 
or is of the value of £500 sterling or upwards, ami this means when 
the whole amount in dispute is of that value, although the amount 
in each of a number of vases which have been consolidated is below 
the appealable amount.

|J/MAXMmaf Ameena Khatoor v. hadhabenod Mister (1S59), 12 Moo. 
P.C. 470, 14 K.K. 990, applied.J
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Application for leave to appeal to the Privy Council from tin- 
judgment of the Pull Court, ante p. 89. Leave granted.

F. L. Davidson, in support of application.
F. L. Milner, K.C., contra.
Harris. C. J. :—This action was brought by three plaintiffs 

suing on behalf of themselves and all other members of the Great 
West Land Syndicate, No. 2, so-called, except the defendants, 
against Charles A. Lusby, Charles U. Smith, J. N. Page, Marshall 
B. Vail and Clarence J. Silliker, to recover the sum of $151,- 
159.37 with interest and other damages and for other relief.

Tile alleged cause of action arose out of an agreement or option 
for the purchase of land given to the defendants Silliker ami 
Vail by one Grier at the sum of $118,500 and an agreement made 
by Silliker and Vail to re-sell the land at the price or sum of 
$187,500 to the Great West Land Syndicate, No. 2.

The agreement last referred to purported to be made betwe- ii 
the defendants Smith, Lusby and Page as trustees for the syn­
dicate and the several persons who should become subscrib es 
and by its terms Silliker and Vail were to be the managers of the 
syndicate subject to the orders of the trustees who were to act 
as trustees for the syndicate members and to hold the property 
of the syndicate in trust.

The statement of claim alleges that the plaintiffs suffered dam­
age and loss by reason of the breach of duty and neglect of the 
defendants’ trustees and managers, whereby, after collecting 
from the plaintiffs and other subscribers a large sum—prow-d 
on the trial to be $129,000—the property was entirely lost to the 
plaintiffs and the other subscribers.

The trial Judge gave judgment against Silliker and Vail for 
the money paid into the trustees by all shareholders who did not 
have notice of the agreement or option from Grier to Silliker 
and Vail, which it was alleged and proved had not been disclosed 
to many of the members of the syndicate, and there was a refer­
ence to determine the amount, which it is now contended, would 
not exceed largely £500 sterling, the amount mentioned in the 
Imperial Order in Council relating to appeals to His Majesty in 
Council.

The trial Judge also gave judgment against the defendants 
Smith and Lusby, each for the sum of $500 (and interest thereon 
amounting to $210.41) in respect to a rebate or discount alloued 
to each of them or their respective subscriptions for shares in the 
syndicate.

There was an appeal to the Full Court by the defendants and 
the decision of the trial Judge was reversed as against all of the 
defendants and the plaintiffs’ action dismissed.
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The plaintiffs now apply for leave to appeal to His Majesty 
in Council claiming that such appeal lies as of right under the 
provisions of Rule II, relating to appeals.

It is objected on behalf of defendants Smith and Lusby, that 
no appeal lies as against them because it is said the matter in 
dispute as to each of them amounts only to $107.41.

I agree that as to each of the defendants, Smith and Lusby, 
the amount in dispute is limited to the $710.41 for which judg­
ment was recovered on the trial. The plaintiffs did not appeal, 
but the defendants did, and the judgment of the trial Judge was 
set aside. On an appeal to the Privy Council the question, so far 
as Smith and Lusby are concerned, is, I think, whether the judg­
ment of the trial Judge ought to be restored.

In Cassette v. Dun (1890), 18 Can. S.C.R. 222, the plaintiff 
claimed $1,000 damages for slander. He recovered $2,000. On 
appeal by the defendant the damages were reduced to $500. It 
was held there was a right of appeal and Ritchie, C. J., said at 
p. 233:—

‘ ‘ The question before us is not as to $1,500, but simply whether 
the plaintiff has a right to have the judgment obtained by him 
in the Superior Court for $2,000 restored. Therefore the ques­
tion we have to determine is: Did the Court of Queen’s Bench 
do right in interfering with the judgment of the Superior Court, 
which awarded the plaintiff $2,000 damages t .... and therefore 
the right of the plaintiff to hold his judgment in the Superior 
Court for $2,000 was the question before the Court of Queen’s 
Bench, and is the matter now in controversy before us in this 
Court. Under these circumstances the ease is clearly appeal­
able.”

But by holding that the amount in controversy as against 
Smith and Lusby is so limited it does not follow that the plain­
tiffs are not entitled as of right to bring the whole case, including 
their claims, against Smith and Lusby before the Privy Council 
on the appeal.

A party, as I understand the rule, is entitled to appeal as of 
right ‘‘Where the matter in dispute on the appeal amounts to 
or is of the value of £500 sterling or upwards,” and that means 
when the whole amount in dispute is of that value. If we could 
imagine a ease in which the plaintiffs were entitled to recover 
£100 sterling against each of five defendants the amount in dis­
pute would clearly be £500 and there would lie a right of appeal 
in the case, although each of the defendants might only be liable 
for £100.

The question is not how the defendants are affected, but how 
the interests of the party seeking to appeal are affected.

7—68 D.L.B.
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We accordingly find that where a number of cases have been 
consolidated and the judgment in each is below the appealable 
amount, the aggregate amount of all the suits is to be taken as 
the amount for the purpose of determining the appealable value.

The whole matter involved in the unit is the factor which de­
termines whether or not there is a right of appeal and the case 
is not to be split up into units and then each unit eliminated 
from the appeal unless it is of the appealable value.

The principle of the case of Mussumat Ameena Khatoor v. 
Radhabenor Minuet (1859), 12 Moo. P.C. 470, 14 E.R. 990, 1 
think applies.

It is significant, I think, that no case has been cited to me (nor 
have I been able to find any) in which the rule has been inter­
preted in the way it is sought to lie interpreted here for the pur­
pose of defeating the appeal.

It is certainly advisable that a case of this kind should go be­
fore the Privy Council without any limitation upon its right to 
deal with the whole matter.

In Safford and Wheeler’s Privy Council Practice at p. 722, 
the rule is thus stated:—

“In estimating appealable value, regard should be had to the 
whole matter involved in the suit, and not to the value of a 
fractional part of the property sought to be recovered.”

And at p. 723 :—
“The rule is that the judgment is to be looked at as it affects 

the interests of the party who is prejudiced by it and who seeks 
to relieve himself from it by appeal, Allan v. Pratt (Quehv. 
1888) 13 App. Cas. 780.”

While these citations are perhaps not applicable directly to 
the question involved, they shew the principles which arc to 
guide us, and 1 have no doubt that an appeal lies as of right from 
the whole judgment.

The application should be allowed.
Chisholm, J. :—The plaintiffs have made application for leave 

to appeal to His Majesty in Council from the decision of this 
Court, allowing the appeal of all the defendants from the deci­
sion of the trial Judge and wholly dismissing the plaintiff’s ac­
tion.

The pertinent section of the rules with respect to appeals to 
the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council is as follows :—

“2. Subject to the provision of these rules, an appeal shall lie 
—(a) as of right from any final judgment of the Court, where 
the matter in dispute on the appeal amounts to or is of the value 
of £500 sterling or upwards, or where the appeal involves, direct­
ly or indirectly, some claim or question to or respecting pro-
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port y or some civil right amounting to or of the value of £500 
sterling or upwards; and (b) At the discretion of the court 
from any other judgment of the Court, whether final or inter­
locutory, if, in the opinion of the Court, the question involved 
in the appeal is one which, by reason of its great general or public 
importance, or, otherwise, ought to he submitted to Ilis Majesty 
in Council for decision.”

It cannot, I think, be successfully contended that the question 
involved in the claim against the defendants Lusby and Smith 
is one of general or public importance, and I am unable to see 
that the words “or otherwise” in subsection (b) assist in bring­
ing the application within this subsection. Some meaning has to 
he given to the words “or otherwise,” but by any meaning that I 
can give them I am unable to reach the opinion that the plain­
tiffs’ claim against the defendants mentioned, standing by it­
self, “ought”, in the words of the rule, “to be submittted to 
His Majesty in Council for decision.”

1 think, however, an appeal from the whole decision of this 
Court ought to be granted under subsection (a) for the reason 
stated by the Chief Justice.

In the case of Baboo G opal hall Thakoor v. Teluk Chunder 
liai (1860), 7 Moo. Ind. App. 548, 19 E.R. 415, special leave was 
given where five suits had been instituted between the same par­
ties, each suit being in respect of the same Teluk and involving 
the same question of law. The amount involved in each suit was 
under the appealable value, although in the aggregate the 
amounts claimed exceeded that sum. Leave was given in this 
case. If, in two or more actions, where the aggregate amount in­
volved is above the appealable amount, although the amount in­
volved in each action is less, an appeal is allowed, the same rule 
should prevail where the amount involved in one part of the 
claims litigated largely exceeds the appealable amount, although 
the amount in another part of the claims is less, particularly 
where as in this case the questions of fact in dispute are so large­
ly common, and the liability of the respective defendants, if any, 
arises from their conduct in the one large transaction. The plain­
tiffs have not appealed from the decision of the trial Judge as 
against the defendants Lusby and Smith, and the only question 
that can come before His Majesty in Council, as regards these 
defendants, is whether or not the judgment of the trial Judge 
should he restored. I think that leave to appeal should be grant­
ed. No great injustice can be done the defendants Lusby and 
Smith, in allowing the appeal, liecause, if this Court is in error, 
the objections taken here can be taken before His Majesty in 
Council.

Ritchie, E.J. :—I agree, but not without some doubt.
Leave to appeal granted.
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IANNOXE v. GRAK8BY.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, Cameron, Fullerton, Dennistoun

and Prendergast, JJ.A. July 10, 1989.
Landlord and Tenant ($ IIIC—80)—Liability or landlord—Escape or 

steam—Dangerous pipe—Covenants.
In the absence of his covenant to keep in repair, a landlord is not 

liable for damage to the tenant caused by the escape of steam from 
a steam pipe inadequately capped, the steam escaping from a valve 
opened by an unknown person, even where the landlord covenanted 
to keep the premises properly and sufficiently heated.

[See Annotation 52 D.L.R. 1.]

Appeal by plaintiff from the judgment of Macdonald, J. 
Affirmed.

W. II. Trueman, K.C., for appellant.
R. D. Uuy, for respondents.
Perdue, C.J.M. :—This is an action by a tenant against his 

landlord to recover compensation for damages caused by the 
escape of steam from a pipe connected with the steam heating 
apparatus in the building of which the demised premises form­
ed a part. The defendants had leased to the plaintiff and his 
partner, Duilio Smiboli, the ground floor and basement of store 
No. 337, Portage Avenue, Winnipeg, for 3 years from October 1. 
1920. The lessees went into possession and carried on a res­
taurant and confectionery business. About November 1, 1920, 
the plaintiff bought out his partner and continued the business 
alone. A steam radiator for heating purposes had been placed 
in a corner of the premises near the front door when the heating 
plant was installed. This radiator had been removed prior to 
the making of the lease. There is no evidence showing when, 
or by whom, it had been removed. The end of the steam pipe, 
which projected a few inches above the floor, had not been cap­
ped, but the steam valve, which was left on the pipe, had been 
closed so as to cut off the escape of steam. The evidence shows 
that this was an unsafe condition in which to leave the pipe. A 
turn of the knob or even an accidental blow might open the valve 
and allow the steam to escape. The plaintiff was not aware of 
the danger, although he had noticed the pipe end and valve. He 
says he did not know what it was for. But, as will appear, he 
knew the valve would cut off the steam.

On November 7, 1920, the plaintiff closed and left the premises 
between 11 and 12 o’clock at night, everything being in good 
condition. On the following morning, about 8 o’clock, he opened 
the front door and found the premises filled with steam which 
was escaping from the open pipe. He found the valve open, 
elosed it and shut off the steam. Much damage had been done to 
the stock-in-trade and to the furniture and decorations. The
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plaintiff claims $2,100 as compensation for injuries to paintings, 
mural decorations, cost of repairs, loss of trade, injury to stock, 
furniture, etc.

The lease is made in pursuance of The Short Forms Act, 
R.S.M., 1913, ch. 181, and in addition to statutory provisions 
contains special covenants, provisos and conditions protecting 
and guarding the lessors against liability for various defects 
or accidents, even when caused by the negligence of the lessors 
or their employees, servants or agents. The lessors couvenanted 
to keep the demised premises properly and sufficiently heated 
and warmed as it should be necessary during the term, but they 
were not to be responsible for any damage for breach of this 
covenant. It is also provided that the lessors are not to be held 
liable for any damage caused “by the leakage of water from the 
heating plant or plumbing system.”

The lessee covenanted “to repair.” This convenant when 
expanded under The Short Forms Act (See schedule 3, col. 1, 
sub.-sec. 3), reads that he “will, during the said term, well and 
sufficiently, maintain, amend and keep the said demised premises, 
with the appurtenances,• in good and substantial repair and all 
fixtures and things thereto belonging .... when, where and so 
often as need shall be.”

It appears to me that the question of the defendants’ liability 
for the damage sustained by the plaintiff turns upon whether 
the steam pipe was or was not a part of the demised premises. 
The negligent or defective condition of the pipe existed when 
the plaintiff entered into the lease. Before doing so he had an 
opportunity of inspecting the premises and of seeing the pipe 
end with the valve attached and of ascertaining what it was. 
The pipe had been put there for the purpose of heating the 
demised premises and had been attached to a radiator in order 
to supply steam for that purpose. The radiator had been re­
moved but, if necessary, could be replaced and attached to the 
pipe to be again used for heating the place. The pipe was there­
fore a part of the premises demised to the plaintiff.

h is true that the pipe should have been capped for greater 
safety, but even if one went so far as to pronounce the condi­
tion of the pipe to be dangerous, still the lessors are not liable.

(Lane v. Cox, [1897] 1 Q.B. 415, at p. 417, 66 L.J. (Q.B.) 193, 
per Lopes, L.J., concurred in by Lord Esher, M.R. and Rigby, 
L.J.). “A landlord who lets a house in a dangerous or unsafe 
state incurs no liability to his tenant, or to the customers or 
guests of the tenant, for any accident which may happen to them 
during the term, unless he has contracted to keep the house in 
repair.”
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For the same proposition of law I would also refer to Robbing 
v. Jones (1863), 15 C.B. (N.8.) 221,143 E.R. 768, 33 L.J. (C.l*
1,12 W.R. 248, Cavalier v. Pope, [1906] A.C. 428, 75 L.J. (K.lt 
609; and to the decision of this Court in McIntosh v.
(1913), 14 D.L.R. 671, 23 Man. L.R. 653.

The plaintiff should have capped the pipe in order to render 
it completely safe. I am satisfied, however, that the valve would 
have prevented the steam from escaping if it had not been tamp­
ered with by someone. When the plaiptiff found the steam es­
caping at the time the damage was caused he had only to close 
the valve and the steam was immediately shut off. He evidently 
knew the purpose of the valve and how to use it.

I have much sympathy for the plaintiff who has suffered a 
very serious loss through the negligence of the person who re­
moved the radiator without putting a cap on the pipe, whoever 
that person was, but I see no ground upon which we can inter­
fere with the decision of Macdonald, J. The appeal must, there­
fore, be dismissed with costs.

Cameron, J.A. :—This is an action brought by a tenant against 
his landlord to recover damages caused by the escape of steam 
from a pipe in the leased premises in the circumstances set out 
in the judgment of Macdonald, J., who tried the case, and held 
that it did not differ in principle from that of McIntosh v. Wilson 
14 D.L.R. 671, 23 Man. L.R. 653, and dismissed the action ac­
cordingly. In this view I entirely concur.

The principles applicable are clearly enunciated in Williams’ 
Canadian Law of Landlord and Tenant, pp. 561 et seq. where lie 
states the following articles :—

“Article 89. In the absence of express agreement a landlord 
is not, as between himself and his tenant, under any liability 
either to put the demised premises into repair at the commence­
ment of the term or to repair during the continuance of the 
tenancy.

Article 90. Fraud apart, a landlord who lets any premises— 
other than a furnished house—in a dangerous and unsafe con­
dition incurs no liability to his tenant, to members of his tenant’s 
family, or to customers or guests of the tenant for any accident 
which may happen to them during the term, unless (perhaps) 
he has contracted to keep the premises in repair.

Article 91. Subject to the exceptions coming within the scope 
of the following article (i.e. the furnished house) there is no im­
plied covenant or warranty that demised premises are fit for the 
purpose for which they are intended to lie used.”

These propositions are firmly established by the numerous de­
cisions which the author cites and analyzes, and several of which
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were referred to on the argument before us. These decisions 
cover substantially the entire range of law on the subject, and 
place the authority of the principles thus stated beyond ques­
tion.

That the pipe or feed-arm was part of the demised premises 
seems to me to be beyond question. It was in and on the prem­
ises available at any time to have a radiator attached to it. I 
am unable to see how the fact that it was in an imperfect state 
can affect the legal relations of the parties with reference to it.

In my opinion the judgment appealed from must be affirmed 
and the appeal dismissed with costs.

Fullerton, J.A. (dissenting) :—By indenture of lease bear­
ing date September 27, 1920, the defendants leased to the plain­
tiff the ground floor and basement of store No. 337, Portage 
Avenue, being a portion of the building known as the Builders 
Exchange Building. The plaintiff took possession on October 1, 
1920. On the night of November 7, 1920, the plaintiff closed his 
store and on opening it on the morning of November 8, found 
the place full of steam which was escaping through an open 
valve on a feed-arm which came up through the floor of the 
store to the height of about 4% inches. The witnesses surmise 
that at one time this feed-arm had been connected with a radiator 
which had been removed, but there is really nothing to show that 
such was the fact. The witnesses all agree that if a radiator had 
heen temporarily removed the valve should have been taken off 
and the opening in the arm capped, and that if it had been per­
manently removed the pipe should have been disconnected in the 
basement and plugged.

The steam which escaped caused damage to the property of 
the plaintiff for which the plaintiff seeks to recover in this ac­
tion.

The claim is put in this way. By the lease the defendants 
covenanted to keep the demised premises properly and sufficient­
ly heated. The obligation to heat involved the duty of providing 
and maintaining suitable equipment for supplying such heat. 
The defendants failed in that duty and damage resulted to the 
plaintiff.

Mr. Guy argued for the defendants that liability depends 
on contract and that as the portion of the heating plant within 
the premises were demised to the plaintiff the defendants had 
no control of it and was, therefore, under no obligation in re­
spect of it.

The law is, undoubtedly, clear that in the absence of any 
agreement between the parties the landlord is under no obliga­
tion to his tenant to keep the demised premises in repair. Apart 
from the consideration that the feed-arm in question was not
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being utilized as a part of the equipment for heating the plain­
tiff’s store, my view is that it was not a part of the premises 
demised to the plaintiff.

The feed-arm formed a part of the general heating system 
provided for the building which was exclusively operated by the 
defendants. The defendants convenanted that in case of tie- 
heating apparatus or pipes connected with the premises demised 
should be injured by accident, freezing or from any cause, to 
replace the same with reasonable despatch and reserved the 
right to enter upon the demised premises at any time and to place 
in and through the premises pipes or equipment for heat and to 
repair the same. Under these circumstances, I would hold that 
the feed-arm in question was not a part of the demised premises 
but was entirely under the control of the defendants.

To my mind, the defendants are in no different position from 
that of an independent contractor who had agreed to furnish 
heat and is liable for failure to supply suitable equipment. The 
evidence shows that no inspection of the pipes in the plaint ill's 
store was ever made and the witness Moorehouse, who describes 
himself as the inspector of buildings for the defendants, says 
that if he had taken the radiator off he would certainly have 
removed the valve and capped the pipe.

The defendants rely on sec. 32 of the lease as relieving them 
from reliability, but I read that clause as applying only to leak­
age of water from the heating plant.

I would allow the appeal with costs and enter judgment for 
the plaintiff for the sum of $1,502.55 and costs.

Dennistoun, J.A. :—To enable the tenant to recover dam­
ages against his landlord in this case it is necessary to distinguish 
it from McIntosh v. Wilson, 14 D.L.R. 671, 23 Man. L.R. 653, 
and I am unable to do so.

In that case a radiator which was insecurely fastened to I lie 
ceiling fell to the floor doing damage. This Court held that 
the tenant could not recover, although the landlord knew the 
danger existed, there being no fraud or misrepresentation on 
his part. The terms of the written lease signed by the parties 
constituted their contract, and governed their rights. In the 
case at bar, there was a short end of steam pipe, with valve 
attached, which projected into the demised premises. The valve 
was in good condition. A radiator which was part of the steam 
heating system had been removed leaving the pipe and valve in 
position, and it was obvious to the tenant, or any other person 
who looked at them, what they were. So long as the valve was 
unmolested no danger existed, but if any person opened the 
valve, it was apparent steam would be emitted. Some person
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unknown did open the valve, and the plaintiff’s property was 
damaged by escaping steam.

It is urged that there was negligence on the part of the land­
lord in not removing the valve and closing the pipe by means 
of a threaded cap which could not be opened without some effort. 
1 am unable to accede to this argument. The tenant rented the 
premises with a pipe and valve as he saw them. There was 
nothing concealed, no trap, no misrepresentation. If the tenant 
did not like the risk of some person opening valve, he should 
have declined to rent the shop until that risk had been elim­
inated.

In McIntosh v. Wilson, supra, it would have been a strange 
conclusion if the Court had held that the plaintiff could not 
have damages because the radiator fell down, but could have 
them because steam came out after the pipe was broken. That 
is. in effect, what the appellant asks us to do in this case.

In my view, the lease governs and no action lies except for 
breach of the contract therein contained, and none is here proved.

1 agree with the law as stated by Cameron, J. A., and would 
dismiss this appeal.

Prendemast, J.A. (dissenting) :—It is a rule of common law 
that there is no liability in a lessor for damages resulting from 
tin- unsafe condition of the demised premises. This means that 
no such liability is fastened on a lessor solely by virtue of the 
contract he has entered into as such ; not that, while a lessor, he 
cannot be liable for such damages on other grounds.

Nor does the common law cast on the lessee any duty to repair.
In the present case, there was no duty on the defendants, as 

lessors, to make safe this valve considered merely as part of the 
demised premises; but leaving aside, for the present, the fact 
that there is in the lease a covenant to repair on the part of the 
plaintiffs, 1 consider there was a duty on the defendants as pro­
viders of heat, to make safe this valve considered as part of the 
means which they used to perform the service they had under­
taken.

While in McIntosh v. Wilson, 14 D.L.R. 671, 23 Man. L.R. 
653, the unsafe condition of the radiator consisted in its not 
being securely fastened, which had no relation to the manner in 
which the steam was made to circulate, the unsafe condition of 
the device in the present case was intimately related to the ser­
vice, consisting as it did in it being liable to allow an escape of 
the steam which the defendants generated and put in motion 
from the basement. In the first case, it was proper to consider 
the radiator in its relation to the defendants as lessors, while in
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8C to the defendants as providers of heating.

We have it, however, in the present lease, that the lessees have 
covenanted to repair. Were they bound, under that covenant, to 
do anything to that valve? If they were, a further difficulty 
arises. For we would then have on the one hand, the defendants’ 
duty to make safe the device which they used to perform their 
undertaking to supply heat, and on the other, the plaintiffs’ 
duty to repair the demised premises.

But, notwithstanding the covenant to repair, there was nothing 
that the lessees were called upon to do to the valve. It is a gen­
eral principle that such a covenant does not obligate the lessee 
to put the demised premises in a better condition than he found 
them in. The dangerous character of the device here, was not 
due to a condition of breakage or wear and tear occurring during 
the tenancy, but to the fact that it is designed to be so connected 
in the system that it will lead the steam into containers as other­
wise it will cause it to escape freely in the atmosphere. It was, 
at the time of the accident, in the same condition in all respects, 
that the lessees found it in when they took possession.

It is also, in my opinion, reasonable to take the view—which 
would by itself dispose of the case—that this valve and three- 
inch piece of piping (or “dead arm” as it was technically called) 
which, instead of being useful, was a hindrance to the tenants, 
served no purpose whatsoever and should not have been there 
at all, was not part of the demised premises.

I would assess the damages at $1,502.55 instead of $2,102..').') as 
claimed.

The appeal should be allowed, the judgment in the Court be­
low set aside and judgment entered for the plaintiff for $1,- 
502.55 with costs in both Courts.

Appeal dismiss<<1.

ATT’Y-GEN'L FOB BRITISH COLUMBIA v. THE KIX(.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., ldingion, Duff, Anglin, Brodeur 

and Mignault, JJ. May 81, 19S2.
Companies ($ VIC—330)—Bona vacantia—Rights of Province and Do­

minion— B.N.A. Act ss. 102, 109—Constitutional law.
The rights of bona vacantia in regard to the assets of a defunct 

English corporation which previously had carried on business in British 
Columbia is vested in the Province under sub-secs. 102, and 109 of the 
British North America Act, being comprised in the word “royalties” 
which at the time of the union were assigned to the Province.

[Attorney-General of Ontario v. Mercer (1883). 8 App. Cas 767; 
AtVy-Gen'l of B.C. v. Att'y-Gen'l of Canada (1888), 14 Ap|>. Cas. 
295, discussed.]

[See Annotation 63 D.L.R. 1].
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Appeal by the Province of British Columbia from the judg­
ment of the Exchequer Court of Canada (1918), 40 D.L.R. 670, 
on an information for the recovery of the assets of a defunct 
corporation admitted to be bona vacantia. Reversed.

J. A. Ritchie, K.C., for appellant; E. L. Newcombe, K.C., and 
Plaxton, for respondent.

Davies, C.J. (dissenting) :—The question to be determined in 
this case i. whether the sum of $7,215, representing the proceeds 
of ceitain assets and effects in the province of British Columbia 
?frrv-ed by both parties to be bona vacantia, belongs to the Pro­
vince of British Columbia or to the Dominion of Canada. The 
answer to this question depends upon the construction to be 
placed upon secs. 109 and 126 of the B.N.A. Act, 1867.

tassels, J., of the Exchequer Court, held (1918), 40 D.L.R. 
670, at 677, 17 Can. Ex. 109) that “the meaning of sec. 109 was 
to pass to the provinces royalties arising from lands, mines, min­
erals and royalties limited to escheats or something arising out 
of lands as referred to in sec. 1 of the Statute 15—16 Viet.,” and 
he did “not think it was ever in contemplation that, under that 
term ‘royalties’ all royalties of every kind, including bona va­
cantia, were left to the provinces under the provisions of this 
statute/*

After carefully reading the several judgments of the Judicial 
Committee which deal with the construction of the two sections, 
and having given the question before us my best consideration, 
i have reached the same conclusion.

Mr. Newcombe on behalf of the Crown submitted that the Leg­
islature of British Columbia having had power before and at the 
union of that Province with Canada to appropriate the casual 
revenue arising within the colony from bona vacantia, with the 
assent of the Crown, it follows whether the power was exercised 
or not, that the casual revenues from this source fall within sec. 
102 of the B.N.A. Act and, therefore, belong to the Consolidated 
Revenue Fund of Canada, unless they be part of the revenue 
covered by the words of exception in that section.

In Attorney-General of Ontario v. Mercer (1883), 8 App. Cas. 
767. 52 L.J. (P.C.) 84, 49 L.T. 312, the Earl of Selborne deliver­
ing the judgment of the Judicial Committee said (8 App. Cas. at 
p. 775) :

“The words of exception in sec. 102 refer to revenues of two 
kinds: (1) such portions of the pre-existing ‘duties and revenues’ 
as were by the Act ‘reserved to the respective Legislatures of 
the Provinces’ and (2) such duties and revenues as might be 
raised by them, in accordance with the special pow'ers conferred 
on them by the Act.’ It is with the former only of these two
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kinds of revenues that their Lordships are now concerned ; the 
latter being the produce of that power of ‘direct taxation within 
the provinces, in order to the raising of a revenue for provincial 
purposes’ which is conferred upon Provincial Legislatures by 
sec. 92 of the Act.

There is only one clause in the Act by which any source of 
revenue appears to be distinctly reserved to the Provinces, viz., 
the 109th section :—‘All lands, mines, minerals and royalties 
belonging to the several provinces of Canada, Nova Scotia, and 
New Brunswick, at the Union . . . shall belong to the several 
Provinces of Ontario, Quebec, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick, 
in which the same are situate or arise, etc’.”

The Judicial Committee in that case held that ‘royalties’ in 
this section included the revenue arising from escheated lands. 
In Att’y-Gen’l of British Columbia v. Att’y-Gen’l of Canada; 
(Precious Metals Case) (1888), 14 App. Cas. 295, 58 L.J. (P.C.) 
88, 60 L.T. 712, that Committee held that it reserved to the 
Provinces the revenues arising from gold and silver mines, in 
neither of these cases did the Judicial Committee feel called 
upon to decide whether the word “royalties” in sec. 109 extends 
to other royal rights besides those connected with or arising out 
of “lands, mines and minerals.” (See 8 App. Cas. at 779; 14 
App. Cas. at 304-5). The question now presented is whether 
“royalties” in this section includes the casual revenue arising 
from bona vacantia in British Columbia.

The Judicial Committee seems to have concluded the question 
adversely to the Province in the interpretation which it has put 
upon said sec. 109 in the cases which have come before it. In 
the Mercer case, supra, the Judicial Committee uses language as 
to the object and effect of the word “royalties” which limits 1 lie 
word to Royal territorial rights. This meaning is confirmed by 
Lord Watson in St. Catherine’s Milling and Lumber Co. v. The 
Queen (1888), 14 App. Cas. 46, at p. 58, 58 L.J. (P.C.) 54, 60 
L.T. 197, where referring to sec. 109, he said :—

“Its legal effect is to exclude from the ‘duties and revenues’ 
appropriated to the Dominion, all the ordinary territorial rev­
enues of the Crown arising within the Provinces. That con­
struction of the Statute was accepted by this Board in deciding 
Att’y-Gen’l of Ontario v. Mercer.”

If this be a correct and comprehensive interpretation of the 
object and effect of sec. 109, and 1 am disposed to think it is, then 
it cannot apply to royal rights which are not territorial, such as 
rights in respect of personal property, e.g. bona vacantia. The 
alternative contention would seem to be that “royalties” must 
be understood in an unlimited sense—that is to say as comp re-
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bending not merely all royal territorial revenues—i.e., the rev­
enues arising from lands, mines, minerals—but also all other 
royal revenues.

In the result, I have reached the conclusion that the term 
“royalties” in sec. 109 following the words “lands, mines, min­
erals,” should be construed as limited to royalties incident to 
or arising out of the preceding words. In other words, the term 
“royalties” extends to such as arise out of territorial rights only, 
and does not extend to bona vacantia such as arc in question in 
this action.

The Judicial Committee in the eases 1 have referred to in 
accordance with its usual practice, was careful to confine its 
actual decision to the questions specially before it for decision in 
each case. But the observations used alike by Lord Selbome 
and by Lord Watson, which I have quoted, are such as to satisfy 
my mind at any rate that the true construction of the action is 
such as I have stated.

Idington, J. :—A company incorporated in England in 1871 
to carry on business in British Columbia having, in the exercise 
of such powers as given it in that regard, acquired property in 
that Province, of which the sum of $7,215.04 proceeds thereof 
remained in the hands of respondent Rithet some time after the 
time of the dissolution of the said company and later death of 
its liquidator without any special provision in law, for the dis­
position of said balance.

Mr. Rithet applied to English representatives of the Crown, 
and in turn was referred by such to those in British Columbia or 
Canada.

Hence proceedings were taken in the Exchequer Court here 
by the Dominion authorities as against Rithet and the Attorney 
General of British Columbia.

The case was tried before Sir Walter Cassels, J., of that Court 
who rendered judgment on January 22, 1918, awarding the said 
money, less costs of Mr. Rithet, to the respondent on behalf of 
the Dominion (40 D.L.R. 670, 17 Can. Ex. 109.)

The Attorney-General for British Columbia appeals here from 
that decision, claiming that such bona vacantia belong to the 
Crown on behalf of that Province.

We are not enlightened by way of evidence or admissions from 
what source this balance of money now in question was derived, 
or exactly when it was realised.

The same kind of commendable industry as was devoted to 
produce the interesting results put before us in the case and 
appendix possibly would have disclosed that the original source 
of the money was an exploitation of the natural resources of
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the Province, now in law beyond dispute belonging to it, eueli 
as the precious metals, for example, and realised upon siim 
the dissolution of the company.

The exact date of the conv -sion thereof into money might in r< 
lation to the actual facts of ili.i date of the extinction of the com­
pany and legal authority of anyone to represent it have shed some 
light upon the basic facts, or what should have been looked upon 
as the basic facts, to which the relevant law should be applied. 
It may have been that the conversion into money took place 
after the property had become bona vacantia and, under such 
circumstances, as to entitle appellant beyond doubt to recover 
same.

The converse speculation as to whether or not the conversion 
was of property to which the Imperial authorities on behalf of 
the Crow'n could have claimed, under the circumstances, upon 
the actual facts, if disclosed, might have put the respondent on 
behalf of the Dominion out of Court.

We are deprived of the instruction or perhaps amusement 
which a close investigation might have led to, and must, leaving 
appellant in future to see that his Province is adequately pro­
tected by administrative or legislative measures, proceed on 
the assumption that the bona vacantia in question must be of 
some class that is neither land, mines or minerals, but may be of 
the class which can be properly described as within the class 
named ‘‘Royalties” in sec. 109 of the B.N.A. Act of 1867, which 
reads as follows :—

“109.—All Lands, Mines, Minerals, and Royalties belonging 
to the several Provinces of Canada, Nova Scotia and New7 Bruns­
wick at the Union, and all Sums then due or payable for such 
Lands, Mines, Minerals, or Royalties, shall belong to the several 
Provinces of Ontario, Quebec, Nova Scotia and New Brunswick 
in which the same are situate or arise, subject to any Trusts exist­
ing in respect thereof, and to any Interest other than that of 
the Province in the same.”

I am clearly of the opinion that the word “royalties” as used 
in that section never was intended to be given only the narrow 
and limited interpretation and construction that is contended for 
by counsel for the respondent on behalf of the Dominion.

I cannot conceive of the men who in fact framed the scheme of 
government to carry out which this Act was enacted, listening 
for a moment to such a contention, unless to laugh at it.

In the Mercer case, 8 App. Gas. 767 at 778, Lord Selhorne 
delivering the judgment of the Judicial Committee of the Privy 
Council, spoke as follows:—

“It appears, however, to their Lordships to be a fallacy to
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assume that, because the word ‘royalties’ in this context would 
not he inofficious or insensible, if it were regarded as having 
reference to mines and minerals, it ought, therefore, to be limited 
to those subjects. They see no reason why it should not have 
its primary and appropriate sense, as to (at all events) all the 
subjects with which it is here found associated—lands as well as 
mines and minerals, even as to mines and minerals it here neces­
sarily signifies rights belonging to the Crown jure coronac. The 
general subject of the whole section is of a high political nature; 
it is the attribution of royal territorial rights, for purposes of 
revenue and government, to the Provinces in which they are 
situate, or arise. It is a sound maxim of law, that every word 
ought, prima facie, to be construed in its primary and natural 
sense, unless a secondary or more limited sense is required by 
the subject or the context. In its primary and natural sense 
‘royalties’ is merely the English translation or equivalent of 
‘regal Hates', ‘jura regalia', ‘jura regia'. (See, in voce ‘royalties’ 
Cowell’s ‘Interpreter’; Wharton’s Law Lexicon ; Tomlins’ and 
Jacobs’ Law Dictionaries. ‘Regalia' and ‘ regal Hates' according 
to Pucange, are ‘jura regia'; and Spelman (Clos. Arch.) says, 
'Regalia dicuntur jura omnia ad fiscum spectantia.') The subject 
was discussed with much fullness of learning, in Dyke v. Wol­
ford (1846), 5 Moo. P.C. 434, 13 E.R. 557, where a Crown grant 
of jura regalia, belonging to the county palatine of Lancaster, 
was held to pass the right to bona vacantia. ‘That is is a jus’, 
(said Mr. Ellis, in his able argument, ibid, p. 480), ‘is indisput­
able ; it might also be regale; for the Crown holds it generally 
through England by Royal prerogative, and it goes to the suc­
cessor of the Crown, not to the heir or personal representative 
of the Sovereign. It stands on the same footing as the right 
to escheats to the land between high and low water mark, to 
felon's goods, to treasure trove, and other analogous rights.’ 
With this statement of the law their Lordships agree, and they 
consider it to have been, in substance, affirmed by the judgment 
of Her Majesty in Council in that case.”

Part of that was quoted by Lord Watson approvingly in the 
j Precious Metals case, 14 App. Cas. 295 at p. 304.

Needless to say these cases did not decide the question raised 
herein, but these dicta from high authorities point the way in 
which we should go to interpret and construe such an Act as that 
now in question ; I respectfully submit that was not the path 
followed by respondent or this litigation never would have 
arisen.

The said dicta indicate the trend of thought I have sought to

Can.

Att’y-Gf.n’l 
fob B.C.

Idtngton, J.



112

Can.

8.C.

Att’y-Gen’l 
FOB B.C.

V.
The Kino. 

Idlngton,J.

Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.K.

apply in ray perusal of this case which consists chiefly uf 
argument.

Reading, in that spirit the word “royalties” which the con­
junction ‘and’ in said see. 109 indicates to be given a separate 
and distinctly additional item of subject matter or class of rev­
enue, to he assigned each of the respective Provinces, 1 conclude 
that the appellant Province is entitled by such reading alone 
to the bona vacantia in question.

There is no doubt of its being entitled under the terms of its 
Union with the Dominion to that much.

And the articles to which we have to refer to find the terms 
of the Union with the Dominion, indicate to me, that if British 
Columbia had, before the Union, any greater rights in regard to 
such a subject as that now in question, she did not lose them by 
reason of the Union.

The respective rights in this regard of the several Provinces
which originally constituted the Dominion may not have I....
identically the same, but the law enacted in 1852 (Imp.) oh. :i!i, 
put all such colonies as British Columbia on the same footing 
in that regard, unless wherein otherwise provided for.

British Columbia’s history, 1 need not follow. She, at hast 
by the time of her union with Canada had acquired the right 
to assert the right given, to claim and collect such source- of 
revenue as now in question.

I repeat I cannot find that she lost, by the Union, any such 
right.

I cannot agree with Mr. Newcombe's argument that some legis­
lative enactment, was necessary before the Union, The power to 
enact or assert was continued, and is all she needs to rest upon 
herein.

But it is the sees. 126 and 146 of the B.N.A. Act which must be 
read and applied, as those by and through which the negotia­
tions which took place, under the latter, before reading see. 1(12 
which only gives the Dominion that which is left after such 
adjustment.

The legal history of that Union is to be found in the pages 
LXXXIV to CV1I of the Orders in Council proceeding the 
statutes for 1872 (Dom.)

Properly read and considered along with other material aliove 
referred to, I submit, with great respect, that it seems to me there 
is no foundation for the judgment appealed from.

The argument of Mr. Ritchie before the Exchequer Court (40 
D.L.R. 670, 17 Can. Ex. 109) relative to the powers assigned 
the Province over property and civil rights, deserves more at­
tention than it got before us. For let anyone who has considered
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the questions from that point of view and all that succession 
duties mean, and, in the last analysis, the fundamental question 
of the right in or to property, and see how easy it is for the 
local Legislature to take care not only of the property of the 
intestate, who has only remote next of kin, but also by same 
power to avoid the need of any consideration of failure of 
lieirs-at-law or next of kin by supplying a substitute thereof, and 
then it would appear that the contention set up herein is hardly 
worth while.

1 think this appeal should be allowed with costs, if any, to be 
allowed respondent, Rithet to be paid by his co-respondent, or 
out of the fund.

If there is an understanding, as probably there is, that the other 
parties are not to recover from each other costs, neither ought 
to recover costs.
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Possibly there should be no costs directed except as to Mr. 
Rithet.

Duff, J.:—Roth the Dominion and the Province concur in 
presenting the view which the very able argument on behalf of 
tin- Dominion sufficiently establishes that the hereditary casual 
revenues of the Crown including bona vacantia arising within 
the limits of the Province were included in the “duties and 
revenues” over which the Province had power of appropriation 
before the Union; and consequently the question to be deter­
mined is whether the word “royalties” in sec. 109 embraces 
bona vacantia. The scope of that expression was the subject of 
consideration by the Judicial Committee in Attorney General 
of Ontario v. Mercer, 8 App. Cas 767. Rut the question upon 
which we have now to pass was left undecided. In effect, their 
Lordships' view expressed in that case, in so far forth as pres­
ently relevant, is perhaps most clearly disclosed in the following 
passage from the judgment delivered by Lord Selborue taken 
from 8 App. Cas. at p. 778:—[See judgment of Idington, J., 
pp. 110-111.]

On behalf of the Dominion it is contended that the scope of the 
word “royalties” ought to be limited by reference to the subjects 
with which it is “found associated” in sec. 109; that is to say 
that it includes only those royalties which are connected with 
“lands, mines and minerals.”

The object of the provisions of the R.N.A. Act beginning with 
see. 102 dealing with the distribution of property between the 
Provinces and the Dominion was, as their Lordships pointed out 
in the Mercer case, supra, the attribution of Royal Rights for the 
purposes of revenue and government as part of a broad political 
scheme. I can perceive no reason why the word “royalties”

8—68 if.L.B.
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Anglin, j. qUa]ifying words to the language of the statute.
Mr. Newcombe also argued that the qualifying words, “tin- 

property of the Province”, attached to the enumeration in sec. 
100 have the effect of confining the operation of that section to 
subjects in respect of which at Confederation the Province not 
oidy possessed the power of appropriation but had also exereisnl 
that power. Admittedly buna vacantia had not up to that tin 
been subject to any special legislation or of any special appropri­
ation to the public purposes of the Colony; but I think tin- 
suggested consequence does not follow. As Lord Watson points 
out in delivering the judgment of the Judicial Committee in 
The Liquidators of The Maritime Bank of Canada v. The J< 
ceiver-Cencrai of Sew Brunswick, [1892] A.C. 437 at pp. 411 
and 444, the title to the property disposed of by this provision 
was and after Confederation remained in the Queen as Sovereign 
Head of the Province; it was the property of the Province in tin- 
sense only that the Legislature and Government of the Provin t- 
had been invested with the power of appropriation over it. Thai, 
I think, is the sense in which the word “property” is used in 
see. 109.

The appeal ought, I think, to be allowed.
Anglin, J. :—It is common ground that the monies paid into 

Court by the defendant Rithet are bona vacantia. The parties 
are also agreed that the Province of British Columbia prior to 
entering Confederation had the right to appropriate casual rev­
enues of the Crown arising within that colony, other than droits 
of the Crown and droits of Admiralty 1852 (Imp.) ch. 39, and 
that revenues arising from bona vacantia did not fall within 
either exception. All claim to the property in question has been 
expressly renounced by the Imperial authorities. That it belongs 
either to the Provincial Government of British Columbia or to the 
Dominion Government may, therefore, be taken for granted.

The question at issue is whether bona vacantia are “royalties” 
reserved to the Province by sec. 109 of the B.N.A. Act, and. as 
such, excepted from sec. 102 and within sec. 126 of that statute. 
The solution of that question depends upon the scope of the word 
“royalties” in sec. 109—is it used, as Mr. Ritchie, representing 
the Attorney General of British Columbia, contended, in its
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primary and natural sense, or is it used, as Mr. Newcoinbe argued 
on behalf of the Dominion Government, in a sense limited by 
its association with the words “lands, mines, minerals?” The 
latter view found favour with the learned President of the Ex­
chequer Court.

See. 109 reads as follows (See judgment of Idington, J., ante 
•t p. 110) : —

The applicability of this section to the Province of British 
Columbia is of course conceded.

While in sec. 102 of the B.N.A. Act we find the clause “over 
which the respective Legislatures of Canada, Nova Scotia, and 
New Brunswick before and at the Union had and have the Power 
of Appropriation”, and in sec. 109 the phrase, “belonging to the
several Provinces............at the Union.” I cannot seriously
doubt that royalties of the class which the Provincial Legisla­
tures had the right to appropriate wçre royalties “belonging” 
to the Provinces in the sense in which “belonging” is used in sec. 
109.

hands, mines (and) minerals” actually “belonged” to the 
several Provinces at the Union. Strictly speaking, royalties 
(such e.g. as escheats—the Mercer case, supra,) belong to a Prov­
ince only when they come into existence upon the occurrence of 
the circumstances out of which they arise—in the case of an 
escheat, the death of the owner of land intestate and without 
heirs. The abstract right to them is what “belonged” to the 
several Provinces at the Union. Hence the use, in the latter part 
of' sec. 109, of the two verbs “are situate” and “arise”—the 
former applicable to “lands, mines (and) minerals,” the latter 
to “royalties.”

That bona vacantia fall within the term “royalties” rcgali- 
tat es, jura regalia or jura regia, when used without restriction, 
is authoritatively settled in Attorney-General of Ontario v. Mer­
cer, 8 App. Cas. 767, at pp. 778-9, where the holding to that effect 
in Dyke v. Watford, supra, is accepted and a passage from the 
argument of Mr. Ellis in support of that view (at p. 480) is 
expressly approved.

Although their Lordships of the Judicial Committee have 
twice to consider the scope and meaning of the term “royalties” 
as it occurs in sec. 109, in accordance with their well-established 
practice when dealing with provisions of the B.N.A. Act, they, 
on each occasion, abstained from further definition of it than 
was necessary for the determination of the case actually before 
them. Thus, in the Mercer case, 8 App. Cas. 767, they held that 
it extended, at all events, to all revenues arising from prerogative 
rights of the Crown in connection with “lands” as welt as
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“mines” and “minerals.” In the Precious Metals ease, 14 Aj>ji. 
(’as. 295, they held that a conveyance by the Province of certain 
“public lands” did not imply a transfer of revenues arising from 
the prerogative rights of the Crown in regard to precious metals, 
found therein, which lielong beneficially to the Province, not as 
mines or minerals and not as an incident of the land, yet under 
sec. 109 and, therefore, as “royalties.” While their Lordships 
were careful in these two eases not to say that the term “royal­
ties” is used in sec. 109 in its unrestricted sense, it may, I think, 
be gathered from the general tenor of the judgments that they 
incline to the belief that its signification is not limited by it- 
assoeiation with the words “lands, mines, minerals.” Thus in 
the Mercer ease (8 App. Cas. at 778) :—“They see no reason 
why it should not have its primary and appropriate sense as to 
(at all events) all the subjects with which it is here found asso­
ciated,—lands as well as mines and minerals,” and their Lord­
ships add:—“It is a sound maxim of law that every word ought 
prima facie to be construed in its primary and natural sense 
unless a secondary or more limited sense is required by the sub­
ject or the context.”

In the Precious Metals ease, while their Lordships said (at j»p. 
304-5) “It is not necessary for the purposes of this appeal 1o 
consider whether the expression “royalties” as used in sec. lull 
includes jura regalia other than those connected with lands, 
mines and minerals,” they pointed out that “mines” and “min­
erals” in the sense of sec. 109 cover only the baser metals, whi- li 
are incidents of land, and that the prerogative right in regard 
to precious metals is a jus regale, and as such not an accessory of 
land. But their Lordships add that the right to “lands” 
granted by the Province to the Dominion Government by the 
11th article of Union did not, to any extent, derogate from the 
Provincial right to royalties connected with mines and minerals 
under sec. 109 of the B.N.A. Act, thus indicating that in their 
view the jus regale in regard to the precious metals is, in some 
sense, a right connected with “mines” and “minerals,” not­
withstanding that the latter term as used in sec. 109 comprises 
only the baser metals.

I find great difficulty in appreciating the force of the argu­
ment in favour of restricting the meaning of the word royalties 
to such jura regalia- as are associated with “lands, mines (or) 
minerals.” This is not the ordinary case of generic words fol­
lowing particular and specific words. “Royalties” is neither 
more nor less a generic word than “lands, mines (or) minerals.” 
The fact is that the term “royalties” denotes a class of subjects 
differing entirely from “lands, mines (and) minerals.” No com­
mon genus embraces them.
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Without belittling the rule of construction invoked on behalf 
of the respondent—note it ur a sociis—care must always be taken 
that its application does not defeat the true intention of the 
legislature (Hawke v. Dunn, [1897] 1 Q.B. 579, 66 L.J. (Q.B.) 
564, 45 W.R. 359,) and the cardinal rule that as is said in (Horn- 

sty Local Board v. Monarch Investment Building Society (1889), 
24 Q.B.I). 1, at p. 5), “An act of Parliament is to be construed 
according to the ordinary meaning of the words in the English 
language as applied to the subject matter, unless there is some 
other very strong ground derived from the context or reason why 
it should not be construed,” should not be disregarded.

1 share, to some extent, the view expressed by Rigby, L.J., in 
Si Co. of Australia v. Commissioners of Inland Revenue,
11897] 1 Q.B. 175, at 182 (66 L.J. (Q.B.) 137, 45 W.R. 203.)

“The rule of construction which is called the ejusdem generis 
doctrine or sometimes the doctrine ‘ noscitur a sociis* is one which,
I think, ought to be applied with great caution ; because it implies 
a departure from the natural meaning of words, in order to give 
them a meaning which may or may not have been the intention 
of the Legislature.”

Were we to accede to the argument of Mr. Neweombe, we 
would, 1 fear, put on the ordinary meaning of “royalties” a 
restriction that Parliament did not intend. Indeed, Parliament 
lias already limited that word by the qualification, “belonging 
to the several Provinces ... at the Union.” Why should the 
Court superadd another ? It may be that from other provisions 
of the B.N.A. Act other limitations upon the signification of 
“royalties” should be deduced. For instance, the rights as­
serted by the Dominion to legislate concerning bona confiscata, 
deodands and royal fish, may be well founded; but, saving such 
possible exceptions with profound respect, neither in “the sub­
ject nor in the context” do I find adequate reason for giving to 
the word “royalties” in sec. 109 other than its primary and natu­
ral meaning. 1 think it includes the jus regale to bona vacantia. 
It would, indeed, present a curious incongruity if escheats should 
he included in, but bona vacantia excluded from, the royalties 
granted to the Provinces.

1 would, therefore, allow this appeal and direct that judgment 
he entered for the Attorney-General of British Columbia.

Mionault, J. :—The controversy here is whether the Province 
of British Columbia or the Dominion of Canada is entitled to cer­
tain monies, to wit $7,131.44 brought into Court by the defend­
ant, Robert Paterson Rithet, who, as agent for the liquidator of 
the Colonial Trust Co., a company incorporated in England and 
which was dissolved in 1904, collected these monies in British
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Columbia as being due to the company. The liquidator died in 
1911, and the Crown as represented by the Government of lh 
United Kingdom, makes no claim to this sum. Both partie 
before us concede that the monies in Mr. Rithet’s hands are boni 
vacantia and it is on this basis that the Court below dealt with 
them, and decided that they should be paid to the Government 
of the Dominion. The Attorney-General of British Columbia 
now appeals, and 1 will assume, as the parties both contend, that 
the monies collected by the defendant are really bona vacant i« 
The shareholders, if any remain, of the dissolved company have 
made no claim to these monies, and should they ever do so, noth­
ing in the judgment to be rendered should stand in the way of 
justice being done to them.

The question to be decided turns on the construction of s< - 
102 and 109 of the B.N.A. Act, 1867, which are as follows:—

“102. All duties and revenues over which the respective Legi< 
latures of Canada, Nova Scotia, and New Brunswick before and 
at the Union had and have power of appropriation, except sm-h 
portions thereof as are by this Act reserved to the respective 
Legislatures of the Provinces, or are raised by them in accord­
ance with the special Powers conferred on them by this Act. 
shall form one Consolidated Revenue Fund, to be appropriated 
for the Public Service of Canada in the Manner and subject to 
the Charges in this Act provided."

For sec. 109, see judgment of Idington, J., ante p. 110.
British Columbia came into the Canadian Confederation in 

1871 and these sections apply to it as if it were named theivin. 
Att’y-Gen’l of B. C. v. Att’y-Gen’l of Canada (the Precious 
Metals case) 14 App. Cas. 295, and at p. 304.

The point which arises in this case is not covered by any 
authority by which we are bound. In the Mercer case, Alt'y- 
(Jcn’l of Ontario v. Mercer, 8 App. Cas. 767, the question of the 
meaning of the word “royalties" in sec. 109 was considered by 
the Judicial Committee, but as their Lordships stated in the 
Precious Metals case (14 App. Cas. 295, at p. 305) their decision 
did not go further than to hold that the word “royalties," “c m- 
prehends, at least, all revenues arising from the prerogative 
rights of the Crown in connection with ‘lands/ ‘mines’ and 
‘minerals’."

On behalf of the Dominion it is contended that this is all that 
the word “royalties" really comprehends; that to understand it 
in a general sense as synonymous of jura regalia, would be to 
give to the Provinces some species of property coming within 
the meaning of jura regalia, such as wrecks, confiscated property 
or deodands, which belong to the Dominion; and that since the
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word “royalties” as used in see. 109 cannot Ik* taken without 
some restrictions, a fair construction would l»e to limit these 
royalties to those connected with the enumerated species of prop­
erly, lands, mines and minerals, applying the ejutdem generis 
rule.

The contention of British Columbia is that “royalties” in sec. 
109 should receive its natural meaning as the English equivalent 
of jura regalia, and that as bona vacantia arc among the jura 
rt(fulia to which the King was entitled by virtue of his preroga­
tive. the property in question ladongs to the Province and not 
to the Dominion. It is also suggested that at least the term 
“royalties” comprises any species of property as to which the 
Province has powers of legislation, which would explain the ex­
elusion of wrecks, dcodands and property confiscated by virtue 
of the criminal law.

It was argued in the Mercer case that the term “royalties” had 
u serial meaning restricting it to a royal right connected with 
mines and minerals, hut their Lordships considered it a fallacy 
to assume that because the word “royalties” in this context 
would not In* inofficious or insensible, if it were regarded as hav­
ing reference to mines and minerals, it ought, therefore, to Ik* 
limited to those subjects. They also said that they saw no reason 
why it should not have its primary and appropriate meaning, as 
to (at all events) all the subjects with which it is here found 
associated—lands as well as mines and minerals, adding that 
the general subject of the whole section is of a high political 
nature, that it is the attribution of royal territorial rights, for 
purposes of revenue and government, to the Provinces in which 
they are situate or arise.

If the object of sec. 109 is to attribute royal territorial rights 
for purposes of revenue and government to the provinces in 
which they arc situate or arise, can it he applied to mere personal 
property such as this sum of money which the defendant col­
lected in British Columbia as being due to the dissolved com­
pany? There does not appear to be any occasion here—since 
the monies collected are bona vacantia and, therefore, without an 
owner—to apply any rule such as mobilia sequuntur personam. 
The property is in British Columbia and has no other situation, 
real or notional. Moreover, the whole question is whether bona 
vacantia of such a kind, under sec. 109 of the B.N.A. Act, come 
within the meaning of the word “royalties” as used in that sec­
tion. If they do, they are within the exception made by sec. 109 
of see. 102 and belong to British Columbia; if not, under the 
general rule of sec. 102, they should go to the Dominion.

After full consideration, my opinion is that the word “royal-
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ties” in see. 109, should be construed in its primary and natural 
sense as being the equivalent in English of jura regalia. Thus 
construed, it comprises bona vacantia (see Dyke v. Watford. - 
Moo. P.C. 424, 13 E.R. 557, approved by the Judicial Commit!* 
in the Mercer case). In my judgment it is not restricted or con 
trolled by the words “lands, mines and minerals” which preeed* 
It is a fourth head added to lands, mines and minerals, and 
should comprehend all property which is properly described a 
“royalties”, or at least such property as the property here in 
question. It may he that under Imperial Statutes some species 
of jura regalia such as wrecks, do not go to the Province, a point 
on which it is unnecessary to express an opinion here. It may 
also be that as an incident of the legislative authority of tin* 
Dominion Parliament over criminal law, property confiscated 
by virtue of the decision of a Court of criminal jurisdiction, 
should be attributed to the Dominion, a point also which docs not 
call for a decision in this case. All that 1 intend to hold is that 
bona vacantia of the kind here in question belong to the Province 
under sec. 109.

1 have not failed to notice the ingenious argument of Mr. New- 
combe, founded on the difference of expression between secs. 102 
and 109, that while at the Union the Province of British 
Columbia had the power of appropriation over “royalties” in 
the general sense, which would bring them under the general 
rule of sec. 102, it is not shown that this species of property “be­
longed” to British Columbia at the union, sec. 109, referring to 
“royalties” belonging to the province at the Union. But in my 
opinion the question here is of a right belonging to the Provin c. 
and where the province has the right of appropriation over pro­
perty, it seems to me clear that the right to that property belongs 
to the Province. 1, therefore, think that his argument, while 
ingenious, is not conclusive against the right of British Columbia 
to daim the property in question.

I would, in consequence, allow the appeal but without costs 
and decide that the monies in Mr. Rithet’s hands should be paid 
to the Province of British Columbia. I agree with the lirst 
Court that Mr. Rithet is entitled to his costs.

Brodeur, J. :—I concur with my brother Duff.
Appeal allowed.
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LB* MONO KOW v. RKIilHTRAR-tiK.NKRAL OK TITLKS»
Untixh Columbia Sujtrcme Court, McDonald, J. June SO, Î99S. 

Lano titi.es ($ VIII—80)—Liability of Registrar—Certificate or title 
—Mistake—Conflicting Maps—Damage—Assurance fund.

The act of the Registrar in issuing a certificate of indefeasible title 
to land with respect to a map of doubtful validity because failing to 
correspond with another previously filed, of which he had knowledge, 
although done in good faith as to protect him from individual liability, 
renders him guilty of a “mistake” within the meaning of sec. 119 of 
the Land Registry Act (B.C. 19l)fi, oh. 23) and liable with respect to 
the compensation from the Assurance Fund for the “sustained loss or 
damage.” The statutory words excepting “any error or shortage in 
area .... according to map” held inapplicable and construed to 
apply only to a map showing a distance on its face greater than the real 
distance on the ground.

Action for damages for negligence of Registrar of Titles. 
Judgment for plaintiff.

IV. J. Taylor, K.C., and W. A. Rrcthour, for plaintiff.
,/. B. Battalia, K.C., for defendant.
McDonald*, J. :—The plaintiffs claim damages against the de­

fendant by reason of his “negligence, mistakes, omissions or 
commissions”, and by reason of misrepresentations made by 
him in that he received and filed a map or plan known as No. 858 
in the Land Registry Office in the city of Victoria, and later is­
sued a certificate of indefeasible title to the plaintiff Lee Mong 
Kow, for Lots 6 to 13, in Block 20, according to the said map or 
plan No. 858. The facts are as follows:—

On February 5, 1890, Map No. 263 was filed, representing the 
survey of sec. 4, and on October 4, 1907, Map No. 858, represent­
ing the survey of sec. 48 immediately adjoining see. 4 on the east, 
was also filed, pursuant to an order of the Supreme Court of 
British Columbia, made under the City of Victoria Official Map 
Act, 1893 (B.C.) eh. 66. Some considerable time later, in or 
about the month of February, 1909, the city surveyor of the city 
of Victoria brought to the notice of the Registrar-General of 
Titles, who had received and filed the latter of the above plans, 
the fact that the boundary line between secs. 4 and 48 was not 
properly fixed, and that Map No. 858 encroached upon the lands 
shewn on Map No. 263. Some interviews took place between the 
city surveyor and the Registrar-General and considerable corres­
pondence passed between them, the result of which was that the 
Registrar-General, upon investigation, decided that both plans 
were properly filed. In my opinion the Registrar-General acted 
bom fide in dealing with the matters then before him, hut in the 
result it appears that he acted in error.

At the time of the filing of Map. No. 858, the title to the lands 
* Appeal to Court of Appeal, pending.
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represented thereby was in one, C. H. Lugrin, who afterwards 
died in June, 1917. On December 5, 1906, Lugrin conveyed 11n­
lands in question to one Gray; on December 21, 1906, Gray con­
veyed to Gunn and Smith ; on June 18, 1907, Gunn and Smith 
conveyed to Gray, Hamilton, Donald and Johnston, Limited; on 
June 10, 1909, Gray, Hamilton, Donald and Johnston Ltd., con­
veyed to Martin and Martin, and on January 29, 1910, Marlin 
and Martin conveyed to the plaintiff Lee Mong Kow, who pro­
cured, on June 20, 1910, a certificate of indefeasible title to 11n- 
lota in question in this action, according to said Map 858. Lugrin 
remained the registered owner until the said June 20, 1910, Lee 
Mong Kow’s application for registration being accompanied liv 
the various documents shewing the links in the chain of title 
from Lugrin to Lee Mong Kow. This certificate of indefeasible 
title was issued by the Registrar-General of Titles nearly a year 
and a-half after it had been brought to his notice that there was 
some question as to whether or not Map No. 858 “over-lapped” 
Map No. 263.

The plaintiff Chetham made certain advances to Lee Mong 
Kow on the security of the lands in question, and is for that rea­
son joined as a plaintiff in this action.

On April 6, 1915, in an action in the Supreme Court of 
British Columbia, wherein the plaintiff Lee Mong Kow was 
plaintiff and the British Columbia Electric R. Co., Ltd., was de­
fendant, it was held that Map No. 858 was wrongfully deposited 
in the Land Registry Office insofar as the saint* conflicted with 
Map No. 263, and that Map No. 858 was void and invalid insofar 
as it so conflicted, and that the plaintiff’s certificate of title 
should not include any part of sec. 4; the result being that the 
plaintiff lost a large proportion of his lots as shewn on Map No. 
858, and was obliged to return to several persons who had pur­
chased from him various of the lots in question the monies which 
they had paid on account of the purchase price.

In March 1911, Gray, Hamilton, Donald and Johnston, Ltd., 
being a company incorporated under the laws of Saskatchewan 
and licensed to carry on business in British Columbia, was struck 
off the register upon evidence being produced to the Registrar 
of Joint Stock Companies, that it had been wound up in the 
Province of Saskatchewan.

As stated aliove, Plan No. 858, was filed pursuant to an order 
of the Supreme Court of British Columbia, made under the pro­
visions of secs. 23 to 35 inclusive, of the City of Victoria Official 
Map Act as amended and consolidated in 1893 (B.C.) eh. 66, 
which provided in effect, that no plan or sub-division of land 
within the corporate limits should be deposited with the Regis-
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trar-General, except under the authority of an order of a Judge 
of the Supreme Court of British Columbia, obtained in the man­
ner in the statute stated. By see. 68 of the Land Registry Act, 
1906 (B.C.) ch. 23, being the statute applicable in this action, 
it was provided that the Registrar “may, in his discretion, refuse 
to accept any map or plan the measurements of which do not 
correspond with any map or plan, or maps or plans, covering 
the same land in whole or in part already deposited in his 
office.” The two Acts must be read together, and it seems to 
me that notwithstanding the provisions of said see. 68, the Regis­
trar was obliged to accept Plan No. 858, in pursuance of said 
order. Nevertheless, 1 am of opinion that when the Registrar 
some months after the filing of Plan 858, with full knowledge, 
that it was. at least, doubtful as to whether or not such plan 
failed to correspond with Plan No. 263 already filed, issued the 
certificate of indefeasible title to the plaintiff Lee Mong Kow, 
he was guilty of a “mistake” within the meaning of sec. 99 of 
the Act, as a result of which mistake the plaintiffs “sustained 
loss or damage”—and this, even though his act was bona fide 
done, (as 1 think it was) so as to protect him from any individual 
liability as provided for by sec. 85 of the Act.

If 1 am right in the above conclusion, then the plaintiffs are 
entitled to maintain this action for damages against the Regis­
trar-General as nominal defendant, and to recover such damages 
out of the assurance fund, unless the plaintiffs are deprived of 
such remedy by some other provision of the Act. In the first 
place, it is suggested that the notice of action served upon the 
Attorney-General and upon the Registrar-General one month 
prior to the commencement of the action was not a sufficient 
notice to satisfy the requirements of the proviso to sec. 99. I 
think such notice was sufficient upon the principles laid down in 
Jours v. Bird (1822), 5 B. & Aid. 837, 106 B.R. 1397.

Next it is contended that the action cannot succeed by reason 
of the provisions of the last clause of sec. 105 of the Act, inas­
much as this is a case of an “error or shortage in area” of a lot, 
block or sub-division, “according to any map or plan filed or de­
posited in the office of the Registrar.”

With considerable doubt, I have reached the conclusion that 
this clause was not intended to apply to a case such as this, but 
that the words “any error or shortage in area .... according to 
any map” refer rather to a case, for instance, where a map shews 
on its face a distance of (say) 500 ft., whereas the real distance 
on the ground is (say) 450 ft.

It is further contended that the plaintiffs are barred by the 
terms of sub.-sec. (i) of sec. 81 of the Act. I cannot agree. In
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gc person in a position similar to that of the B.C. Electric R. Co., in

the action above mentioned, and it was by virtue of this sub­
section that the railway company was enabled to succeed in that 
action notwithstanding that Lee Mong Kow held his certificate 
of indefeasible title. The sub-section was not, I think, intended 
in any way to protect the assurance fund.

I have considered secs. 96, 97 and 98 of the Act and have con­
cluded that they do not apply to the facts of this case.

Following the above conclusions, there will tie judgment for 
the plaintiffs with a reference to the Registrar to ascertain the 
amount of the damages. Upon final judgment being entered, 
the necessary certificate to the Minister of Finance will be given 
pursuant to see. 99 of the Act.

Judgment for plaint iff.

MACDONALD v. PACIFIC (IHKAT KAMTKKX.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., Duff, Anglin, Brodeur and Mignault, 

JJ. May SI, lOSS.
Appeal ($VII L—498)—Damages—Assessment op by trial Judge—In­

terference with by Appellate Court.
The advantage of the trial Judge in seeing the witnesses is of great 

importance in drawing conclusions as to the quantum of damage in 
negligence actions, and his finding should not be set aside by an 
Appellate Court unless from the evidence his conclusion is clearly er­
roneous.

[McHugh v. Union Bank. 10 D.L.R. 562, [1913] A.C. 299; lVood 
v. Haines (1917), 33 D.L.R. 166; Morrow Cereal Co. v. Ogilvie 
(1918), 44 D.L.lt. 557, 57 Can. S.C.R. 403, followed.]

Appeal by plaintiff from the judgment of the Court of Appeal 
for British Columbia, reducing the damages assessed by the trial 
Judge in an action for damages. Reversed and trial judgment 
restored.

K. V. Davis, K.C., for appellant.
J. A. Ritchie, K.C., for respondent.
Davies, C.J. (dissenting) ;—I would dismiss this appeal which 

relates entirely to a question of damages, and arises from a tire 
which burned over the lands of the appellant. 1 think that the 
Judges of the Appeal Court with their local knowledge are better 
qualified than 1 am to assess damages. I certainly am not inclined 
to interfere with their judgment and I would, therefore, dismiss 
this appeal with costs.

Idington, J. :—This appeal arises out of an action for damages 
caused to the appellant’s property by a tire set out by res­
pondent’s agents and allowed to spread over appellant’s pro­
perty.
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At the trial liability was denied but the trial Judge fourni res­
pondent liable and assessed the damages at $3,000.

On appeal to the Court of Appeal the liability was not dis­
puted and the Court having only to consider the assessment of 
damages, allowed the appeal, and assessed the damages at $687. 
From that, this appeal is taken.

There is no question of law involved except a proper appre­
ciation of the evidence.

I have perused and considered the entire evidence and am in­
i-lined to think that on a proper appreciation thereof both assess­
ments of damages are in error; that of the trial Judge too gen- 
emus. and that of the Court of Appeal less than I should have
given.

The majority of this Court being in favour of allowing the 
appeal, and no questions of law involved, I see no useful purpose 
to he served by pursuing the matter further than to assume that 
the majority must be right, for there is some evidence to sustain 
their finding.

Duff, J. ;—The appeal should, I think, be allowed and the 
judgment of the trial Judge restored.

With great respect, I think the Judges of the Court of Appeal 
have failed to allow full effect to the findings of the trial Judge. 
There was ample evidence to support those findings assuming 
the existence of one condition that the Judge regarded the w it­
nesses who gave it as credible witnesses. It is quite clear that 
he considered them credible witnesses, accepting evidence which 
the Court of Appeal appears to have ignored and that he re­
jected as not worthy of credit, statements upon which the Court 
of Appeal seems to have proceeded.

Tlie findings of the trial Judge could only be set aside if it 
were established upon the whole ease that the Judge had taken 
an erroneous view of the facts. This, I am satisfied is not shewn, 
and I think it is eminently a ease for giving effect to the prin­
ciple upon which the Lords of the Judicial Committee acted in 
McHugh v. Union Bank, 10 D.L.R. 562, [1913] A.C. 299. There 
is indeed less to be said in support of overturning the findings of 
the primary tribunal in this case than might have been said in 
that ease, for here the question of credit is the decisive point. 
If the appellant’s witnesses are to be believed, the case is not by 
any means deficient in materials for arriving with reasonable 
certainty at a pecuniary estimate of the loss suffered.

The appeal should be allowed with costs here and below and 
tin- judgment of the trial Judge restored.

Anolin, J.:—The plaintiff sues to recover damages for injury 
done to timber on his property by fire negligently allowed to
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spread from the right of way of the defendant. At the trial, 
negligence of the defendant was established and the plaint ill ’s 
damages were assessed by the trial Judge at $3,000. The de­
fendant submitted to the judgment holding it liable but appeal. <1 
against the assessment of the damages and they were reduced by 
a majority judgment in the Court of Appeal to $687, McPhillips, 
J.A. dissenting. The Chief Justice alone assigned reasons for 
the reduction. Martin, J.A., the other member of the Court, 
would have reduced the damages to $650. The plaintiff app. ils 
against the reduction of the damages and asks that the judgm ut 
of the trial Judge be restored.

This is a case in which, to quote the language of Lord Moulton 
in delivering the judgment of the Judicial Committee in Mclln>jh 
v. Union Bank, 10 D.L.R. 562, at p. 568 :—

“The assessment of the damages suffered by the plaintiff . . .
is often far from easy. The tribunal which has the duty of making 
such assessment, whether it be Judge or jury, has often a difii■ ult 
task, but it must do it as best it can, and unless the conclusions 
to which it comes from the evidence before it are clearly er­
roneous, they should not be interfered with on appeal, inasmuch 
as Courts of appeal have not the advantage of seeing the wit­
nesses—a matter which is of grave inpomtance in drawing con­
clusions as to the quantum of damage from the evidence that they 
give.”

While not satisfied that, if sitting in the place of the trial 
Judge, I should have made precisely the same assessment ;is he 
did, neither can I say that the amount given by him is clearly 
wrong and that some other amount would be certainly correct. 
No departure from the principles which govern the assessment 
of damages appears in his judgment and there is evidence in the 
record—to which he refers as that of “reputable witness”—that 
would support the plaintiff’s claim for even a larger recovery. 
The case seems to me to be one in which, if sitting in the < 'ourt 
of Appeal, I should not have interfered with the judgment of 
the trial Judge.

Moreover, from the perusal of the judgment of the Chief 
Justice, I fear that, in at least two important particulars, some 
of the evidence must have escaped attention. The damages to 
the timber not totally destroyed are fixed by him at 25'^ of its 
value, $2 per m., for 800,000 ft. of timber found standing hv the 
witness Chambers after the fire. To this sum of $400 the Judge 
adds $200 for the destruction of a cabin, $50 for destruction of 
some chattels and $37 for timber totally destroyed. Tin evi­
dence of the plaintiff MacDonald, that 600,000 ft. of timber had
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lieen totally destroyed by the fire, of Edwards, that before the 
tire there was 1,500,000 feet of timber on the property, and of 
three witnesses, the plaintiff, Hugh Stewart and Edwards, that 
what they had considered a “loggable”—a merchantable propo­
sition, before the fire as a result of it became wholly unmerchant­
able, as it was found by Chambers, would appear to have been 
either discredited or overlooked. In respect of all the timber 
destroyed by the fire, the Chief Justice allowed $37—the figure 
at which the defendant’s expert witnesses Hibberson and James 
W. MacDonald had placed the plaintiff's total loss.

Again the Chief Justice says: “All the witnesses agree that 
the 4 acres (estimated by Hugh Stewart to contain 250,000 to 
300,000 ft. of cedar, for which he offered the plaintiff $5 per m.) 
contained the bulk of the merchantable timber.”

Now Arthur Edwards had sworn that the best timber was not 
on these 4 acres near the track but “at the lower end” where 
“there would be as much again” as there was along the track 
and that the best fir was there.” The evidence is that the timber 
on the property was about 50% fir and 50% cedar.

The Chief Justice expressed a decided preference for the 
testimony of Hibberson and James W. MacDonald. The trial 
Judge must have thought the evidence of Hugh Stewart, Arthur 
Edwards and Francis Chambers entitled to at least equal weight. 
Indeed, he would seem to have placed more reliance upon it. It 
is of them that he speake as “reputable witnesses.”

On the other hand the plaintiff had in all 98 acres. If he was 
allowed at the trial $250 for loss of a cabin and some chattels he 
recovered $2750 for damages to his timber. No doubt $28 an 
acre seems a long price for land such as that described in the 
evidence situate w’here the plaintiff’s property was. It is that 
fact and the circumstance that the land was acquired by the 
plaintiff from the Crown as agricultural land containing not 
more than 8,000 ft. of timber per acre on the average, and pre­
sumably for the purpose of clearing and cultivating it, that lead 
me to doubt whether, if sitting as the trial Judge, I should not 
have assessed the damages at a somewhat smaller sum. Yet, I 
find it impossible to say that the amount allowed at the trial was 
so clearly wrong that it should have been disturbed on appeal ; 
and 1 do not feel justified on the evidence in the record in at­
tempting to fix any other sum.

While very reluctant to interfere with the judgment of a 
provincial appellate Court on quantum of damages, 1 would, for 
the foregoing reasons, allow this appeal with costs here and in 
the Court of Appeal and restore the judgment of the trial Judge. 
In so doing, 1 follow the precedent established in the McHugh
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case, 10 D.L.R. 562, [1913] A.C. 299, ami apply the principle 
on which the decision in Ruddy v. Toronto Eastern R. Co. 
(1917), 33 D.L.R. 193, 38 O.L.R. 556, 21 C.R.C. 377, 116 L.T. 
257, 86 L.J. (P.C.) 95; Wood v. Haines (1917), 33 D.L.R. 166 at 
pp. 168-169, 38 O.L.R. 583 at 586; and Morrow Cereal Co. v. 
Ogilvie (1918), 44 D.L.R. 557, 57 Can. 8.C.R. 403, proceeded.

Brodeur, J.:—The only question in issue on this appeal is as 
to the amount of damages which should be awarded. The 
respondent company was found liable for damages resulting 
from a fire set on its right of way and which spread on appel­
lant’s neighbouring land.

There is no question as to the liability of the company. It was 
very strongly disputed before the trial Judge; but the hitt r 
having found against the company in that respect, the issue in 
this Court and in the Court of Appeal was confined to the 
amount of the damages.

The trial Judge assessed them at $3,000. The majority of the 
Court of Appeal modified the judgment and found that the 
damages should be assessed at $687. This is purely a quest ion 
of fact about which there is conflict of evidence. This conflict of 
evidence covered the quantity of timber, its value, and whether 
the timber could be easily cut.

The trial Judge had the advantage of seeing the witnesses and 
of forming an opinion from their demeanour as to their truthful­
ness. It appears from his findings that the plaintiff’s witnesses 
were reliable witnesses. One fact which has been proved by one 
of those witnesses goes a long way, according to ray mind, to sub­
stantiate the ease of the plaintiff. It appears that some time 
ago the plaintiff had an offer for the sale of a part of this timber 
at $5 a thousand. This evidence is corroborated by the plaintiff 
himself and has not been directly contradicted. Some evidence, 
however, has been adduced to show that in the locality timber 
of a similar kind had been sold for a less price.

We have then on one side the evidence of the plaintiff and of 
this witness which has been accepted by the trial Judge ami 1 do 
not see how it can lie rejected as it was by the Court of Appeal. 
In the case of such conflict of evidence, the Court of Appeal 
should not disturb the finding of the trial Judge, except in Yen- 
exceptional cases. The trial Judge, having seen the witnesses, 
has been able with the impression formed fresh in his mind to 
decide between their conflicting evidence. In this case, the trial 
Judge finds, evidently, that the plaintiff’s witnesses had to be 
believed and gave judgment accordingly. I am of the opinion 
that the judgment of the first Court ought to prevail. The
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Court of Appeal should not have interfered with it and it should 
be restored.

(Ireville v. Parker, [1910] A.C. 335, 79 L.J. (P.C.) 86; 26 
Times L.R. 375; Ruddy v. Toronto Eastern Railway, 33 D.L.R. 
193, 38 O.L.R. 556, 21 C.R.C. 377, 86 L.J. (P.C.) 95; Granby v. 
Rinard (1900), 31 Can. S.C.R. 14; McHugh v. Union Bank, 
10 D.L.R. 562, [1913] A.C. 299.

For those reasons the appeal should be allowed with costs of 
this Court and of the Court below and the judgment of the trial 
Judge should be restored.

Miunault, J. :—The sole question here is as to the quantum of 
the damages to which the appellant is entitled, the respondent 
admitting its liability for the fire which destroyed a considerable 
portion of the appellant’s timber. The trial Court granted 
$:i,U0(] which the Court of Appeal reduced to $687, McPhillips, 
J.A., dissenting.

The evidence as to the amount of damages suffered by the ap­
pellant, and as to the value of its timber, was very contradictory 
and the trial Judge had to pass on the reliability of the conflict­
ing estimates of these damages. While the amount granted by 
the trial Court seems rather large, the sum to which it was re­
duced by the Court of Appeal appears to me inadequate. I am 
fully conscious of the reluctance of this Court to interfere with 
the assessment of damages by the provincial Courts when no 
criticism can be made as to the principle on which the damages 
were assessed. But where the choice must be made between the 
amount granted by the trial Court and the greater or smaller 
amount assessed by the appellate Court, it seems to me, especial­
ly when the evidence is conflicting, that the trial judgment should 
not be lightly set aside. I recognize, of course, that there are 
exceptional eases where an appellate Court would not hesitate 
to interfere with the assessment of damages by the trial Court, 
but the case under consideration does not come within this des­
cription and, therefore, the trial Judge’s assessment of the dam­
ages should not have been disturbed. It is obvious that no hard 
and fast rule can be laid down, and each case must be considered 
according to the circumstances disclosed by the evidence.

I have, therefore, come to the conclusion, with great respect, 
to allow this appeal with costs here and in the Court of Appeal 
and to restore the judgment of the trial Judge.

Appeal allowed.

Can.
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Alta. ROBINSON v. MILLS.
------ Alberta Supreme Court, McCarthy, J. June 89, 1988.
S.C. Husband and wife ($ IB—35)—Liability or wife as surety—No de­

ception IN OBTAINING SIGNATURE TO NOTE—PRESUMPTION AS TO 
UNDUE INFLUENCE.

Where a wi" joins with her husband in giving a promissory note 
in connection \ the termination of a business partnership by him, 
the wife being a well educated woman who has had experience in 
business, there is no presumption of undue influence on the part of the 
husband in obtaining her signature and where no deception has been 
practised upon her, she cannot escape liability on the note.

[Gold Medal Furniture Co. v. Stephenson (1913), 10 D.L.R. 1; ap­
plied; Chaplin v. Brammall, [1908] 1 K.B. 233, distinguished ; Mc­
Collum v. Cohoe (1918), 46 D.L.R. 733, followed.]

Action on a promissory note signed by husband and wife in 
connection with the business carried on by the husband and the 
plaintiff as partners.

77. 77. Parlee, K.C., for plaintiff.
R. E. McLaughlin and 77. L. Hawe, for defendant.
McCarthy, J. :—The female defendant is a married woman 

who is sued together with her husband upon a promissory note 
given by them. The husband suffered judgment to go against 
him by default. The plaintiff and the male defendant had form­
erly carried on a partnership in the real estate business at the 
town of Wainwright, in the Province of Alberta, and in the year 
1913 the partnership was dissolved and a settlement had between 
the partners with the result that on April 14, 1915, the male de­
fendant gave to the plaintiff the note sued on herein under the 
following circumstances ; some time prior to that date the plain­
tiff had removed to the city of Montreal, and on the date of the 
note called upon the male defendant at Wainwright, for the pur­
pose of obtaining payment of the amount due him in connection 
with the business carried on by them at Wainwright, with the 
result that the male defendant gave to the plaintiff the promis­
sory note but the plaintiff, insisting upon some additional secur­
ity, the note, ex. 1 and the acknowledgement ex. 2 were taken by 
the male defendant to his wife and she signed the same. The 
female defendant now resists payment of the note on the ground 
that no proper explanation was given to her of what she was 
signing and she received no consideration and had no indepen­
dent advice. I was prepared to give judgment for the plaintiff 
at the conclusion of the argument by counsel for both parties 
had it not been for the authority relied on by the defendant of 
Chaplin v. Brammall, [1908] 1 K.B. 233, 77 L.J. (K.B.) 366. 
Counsel for the defendant relies on that case as also upon the 
Bank of Montreal v. Stuart, [1911] A.C. 120, 80 L.J. (P.C.) 75, 
and Schwartz v. Guerin (1922), 65 D.L.R. 415. Counsel for the 
plaintiff relies upon the following authorities:—Bank of Mon-
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treat v. Stuart, supra ; Macdonald v. Fox (1917), 35 D.L.R. 203, 
39 O.L.R. 261 ; Euclid v. Hohs (1911), 24 O.L.R. 447 ; Hutchin­
son v. Standard Bank of Canada (1917), 36 D.L.R. 378, 39 O.L. 
R. 286; Cold Medal Furniture Co. v. Stephenson (1913), 10 D.L. 
R. 1, 23 Man. L.R. 159. (See also 15 D.L.R. 342) ; Doll v. King 
(1913), 10 D.L.R. 518; McCollum v. Cohoe (1918), 46 D.L.R. 
733, 44 O.L.R. 497; Mcdland Ltd. v. Cowan (1916), 28 D.L.R. 
371.

The comments of Howell, C.J., in the case of Gold Medal 
Furniture Co. v. Stephenson, 10 D.L.R. 1, particularly at pp. 4- 
6, where he quotes from Euclid Avenue Trusts v. Hohs 
(1911), 24 O.L.R. 447 at 450, may be referred to:—

“ ‘ It must now be accepted as settled by authority that, in a 
case like the present, the absence of independent advice is not in 
itself a sufficient reason for treating a security given by a wife 
for the benefit of her husband as a void transaction. If undue 
influence on the part of the husband is relied upon the burden 
of proof lies upon those who allege it/

In the case before the Privy Council the peculiar relationship 
existing between the husband and wife and her feeble condition 
were well known to the solicitor of the bank before she signed the 
document there impeached. In this case there is no pretence that 
the plaintiffs knew’ anything about any supposed influence the hus­
band had over the wife or of her condition.

I am very much troubled in this matter by language used by 
Lord Justice Vaughan Williams in Chaplin v. Brammall, [1908]
1 K.B. 233 at 237. It is a decision of the English Court of 
Appeal and of course prior to the Privy Council decision above 
referred to. In that case he uses the following language :—4 But 
the result is that the plaintiffs, who, through their agents, were 
undoubtedly aw’are that the execution of this guarantee was to 
be procured through the guarantor’s husband, who was living 
with his wife at the time and would presumably have the influ­
ence of a husband over her, failed to show that the do uraent was 
properly explained to her.*

1 take that language to mean that, if the plaintiff ;new, as 
in this ease he did know, that the execution of the document was 
to be procured by the husband from his wife with whom he was 
then living, he would be presumed to have an undue influence 
over her, and that it would be upon the plaintiff to show that the 
document was properly explained to her. To support that view 
of the law’, he cites Bi&choff’s Trustee v. Frank (1903), 89 L.T. 
188; hut his attention seems not to have been called to the fact 
that the language of Wright, J., reported there, was not ap­
proved of when the case was heard in appeal.

Alta.

8.C.

Rom x non 
v.

McCarthy, J.
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Alta. If I read the above case in the Privy Council correctly, then I 
think this principle laid down by Lord Justice Vaughan

— Williams has been overruled.
Robinson It will be observed that this case differs widely from Turnbull 

v- Duval> [1902] A.C. 429, 71 L.J. (P.C.) 84. In that case Mrs.
----- Duval was strongly urged and pressed by her husband to sign

McCarthy, J. the document, and the document was wholly different from what 
she thought it was when she signed it; and there is a forth r 
great difference in that case—her trustee was the agent of the 
plaintiff and used his influence in the matter. In this case, tin c 
is not the slightest evidence that the wife was pressed or per­
suaded by her husband to sign the document, nor that the docu­
ment was different from what she had expected.”

It is also to be observed in the later cases that the authority of 
Chaplin v. Brammall, supra, is relied on but not commented upon 
in the judgment. Whether or not the same view is taken that 1 lie 
principle laid down by Lord Justice Vaughan Williams has been 
overruled does not seem to be quite clear. In Euclid, etc., v. 
Jlohs, supra, the Brammall case is cited but not commented upon, 
and in Gold Medal v. Stephenson, supra, it is cited but not fol­
lowed. In 1917 the case of Hutchinson v. Standard Bank 
Canada, supra, the Brammall case is also cited but not com­
mented upon and that case is the authority that there is no pre­
sumption of fraud in a transaction between husband and wife, 
and the onus of showing undue influence is upon the parly 
attacked and that it also must be known to the creditor. In 
McCollum v. Cohoe, supra, which was decided in 1918, Riddell, 
J., is of the same opinion, that there is no presumption of undue 
influence and in Medland v. Cowan, supra, decided 1916, the 
Brammall case is not cited, but all the above authorities seem to 
be in favour of the contention of the plaintiff. In Schwarl: v. 
Guerin, supra, decided in 1922, the facts are quite distinguish­
able. The wife sued on in that case was an ignorant woman who 
could simply write her own name but was uneducated and was 
deficient in both reading and writing. It was represented to her 
that the mortgage she signed was for a present advance and 1 he 
judgment of Walsh, J., in the Appellate Division of the Allurta 
Court decided upon those facts, the transaction was impeachable. 
In the present case the female defendant is a very intelligent 
woman, having received a good education ; took a six mouths’ 
course in a business college at Brandon, was employed for 2 
months in the Bank of British North America there, and was, 
subsequently, the representative of her father’s estate in the 
transaction of certain business. She does not remember signing 
the note or the acknowledgement. The evidence of the male
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defendant, her husband, to my mind, is not satisfactory, and 
from the evidence given before me in the case, I cannot find as a 
fact that she did not understand what she was signing. It is 
inconceivable to me that a person who has received the education 
such as the female defendant and has been employed in a bank 
would not recognise a promissory note and would not know the 
effect of what she signed. There was no undue influence brought 
to hear upon her to induce her to sign. The plaintiff creditor 
was dealing with her at arms’ length, did not meet her in the 
course of the transaction, and, upon all the evidence, I must find 
that she understood perfectly what she was doing, and that no 
deception was practised upon her, at least not so far as the 
plaintiff is concerned.

There will, therefore, be judgment for the plaintiff for the 
amount of the note with interest and costs.

Judgment for plaintiff.

COX TOWING LINE v. DUN FIELD A Co.
Sew Brunswick Supreme Court, Appeal Division, Dozen, CJ., White and 

Grimmer, JJ. February 94, 1999.
Contracts (f II D—180)—Charter party—Arbitration clause—“ Else­

where’'—Cancellation op contract—Eppbct.
The word 1 ‘ elsewhere ’ ’ in the clause of a charter party requiring the 

arbitration of any disputes or claims arising at the port of loading 
and making the “obtaining of an agreement or final award a condition 
precedent to any legal proceedings against the charterers or consignees 
of cargo elsewhere,” construed as being intended to qualify the place 
of action, outside of the Province, and to apply to proceedings there, 
as though it read “legal proceedings elsewhere.” The arbitration 
clause cannot be invoked where the contract has been cancelled in 
pursuance of a clause thereof.

Damages ($ III A—40)—Breach or charter party—Earninos op vessel 
—Demurrage.

In an action by a shipowner for breach of a charter party, the dam­
ages allowable is the amount the vessel would have earned under the 
mntract lees her earnings during the estimated time; but not demur­
rage fixed by the charter party.

Appeal by plaintiff from the judgment of Chandler, J., and 
motion to set aside verdict for defendant. Reversed.

M. 0. Teed, K.C., for plaintiff.
F. R. Taylor, K.C., and J. L. Ralston, K.C., of Nova Scotia bar, 

for defendants.
The judgment of the Court was delivered by
White, J.:—This is an action for breach of a charter party 

and is brought by the appellants who executed the charter party 
as owner of the schooner “Azua,” against the respondents who 
executed the same as charterers. The breach alleged is “default 
in loading agreed cargo.’*

N.B.

App. Dlv.
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White. J.

The action was tried before Chandler, J., at St. John on 
August 4 and 17, 1920, and on January 18 and 19, 1921.

Naturally, the question to be first considered is the construction 
placed by the Judge upon para. 14 of the charter-party. The 
paragraph reads as follows:—“Any disputes of claims arising 
at the port of loading are to be adjusted there, and failing agn - 
ment to be referred to arbitration there, and the obtaining 
of an agreement or final award is to be a condition precedent to 
any legal proceedings against the charterers or consignees of 
cargo elsewhere, or to the exercise of any lien in respect of any 
claims on the grounds above mentioned. Any disputes arising 
at the port of discharge whether between the shipowner and 
charterer or any bill-of-lading holder shall be referred to arbitra­
tion pursuant to the Arbitration Act (Imp.) ch. 49,1889.”

The dispute as to meaning of this paragraph turns upon the 
second clause thereof, that is to say upon the words “and the 
obtaining of an agreement or final award is to be a condition 
precedent to any legal proceedings against the charterers or 
consignees of cargo elsewhere.” The appellants contend that 
these words should be construed to bear the same meaning as 
they would unquestionably carry if the word “elsewhere” in­
stead of being placed where it is had been inserted after the 
words “legal proceedings.” The respondents claim that the 
word “elsewhere” should be construed as qualifying and relat­
ing only to the words, “consignee of cargo.”

I think it well to observe at the outset that this disputed clause 
is manifestly narrower in its scope than are the preceding words 
which require arbitration not only where relief is sought by the 
shipowner against the charterer or consignee but to all cases 
where relief is sought by either charterers or consignees against 
the shipowner. Moreover, if the construction urged by the re­
spondents is adopted, it must follow that only such consignees 
as come under the designation “consignee elsewhere” arc pro­
tected by the disputed clause, leaving all other consignees liable 
to be sued without a prior award as a condition precedent.

The Judge decided in favour of the respondents’ contention. 
He says:—

“1 think the word ‘elsewhere’ used in the third line of 
clause 14 refers simply to consignees of cargo and not to the 
charterers. It does not seem to me a reasonable construction 
to place upon the clause that in the event of any dispute or 
claim arising at the port of loading, legal proceedings could l>e 
taken against the charterers in the City of St. John without any 
arbitration or award while legal proceedings could not be taken
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against the charterers in any other place without an arbitration 
and award.”

With all respect, I am unable to see the unreasonableness to 
which the Judge refers. In an action tried at St. John, the wit­
nesses required would ordinarily be most easily available. The 
provision which requires arbitration at that city was doubtless 
framed with that in view. But when the suit is brought abroad 
or tried elsewhere than in St. John it would ordinarily be more 
difficult, and might be most difficult and costly to secure the 
attendance at trial of necessary witnesses. It is true that evi­
dence of witnesses whose attendance at the trial could not be had 
might be taken by commission. But that mode of taking evidence 
depriving the Court, as it does, of the opportunity of observing 
the demeanor of the witness on the stand, is, especially in cases 
where the testimony is contradictory, far from being as satisfac­
tory ns the evidence given by the witness in Court. Therefore, 
it seems to me most reasonable that, when action is brought 
elsewhere than in St. John, an award shall be required as a 
condition precedent, though it might not be necessary when trial 
was had in St. John. Besides, why should that be regarded as 
unreasonable in the case of the charterer, which, if the Judge’s 
construction of the disputed clause be correct is unquestionably 
authorised in the case of consignee other than “consignee else­
where.”

Bearing in mind what has been called the golden rule of con­
struction, I will consider what meaning the disputed clause will 
carry when tested by the recognised rules of English grammar. 
It is clear beyond question that the verb “taken” or some verb 
of equivalent meaning must be implied after the words “legal 
proceedings.” The clause would then read “and the obtaining 
of an agreement or final record is to be a condition precedent to 
any legal proceedings taken against the charterers or consignees 
of cargo elsewhere.”

Now the word “elsewhere” is an adverb, and must, therefore, 
modify some verb, verb phrase, adjective or other adverb. Natur­
ally and grammatically, the word “elsewhere” in the clause 
under discussion must be read as modifying the necessarily im­
plied word “taken.” Read thus the meaning of the disputed 
part of the clause would be “any legal proceedings taken else­
where against the charterers or consignees.”

But it is urged that some other word or words such as “resi­
dent,” or “sued” or “carrying on business” may be implied 
before “elsewhere” in which case, the rule being that unless 
there is something to indicate a contrary intention, the adverb 
must be read as modifying its nearest antecedent verb, adjective

N.B.

App. Dir. 

Cox Towing

Dunfield 
ft Co.

While, J.



136 Dominion Law Hei-obts. [68 D.L.1I

N-B- or other adverb, "elsewhere” would then modify such implii ! 
^pp d|t word or words and not the word “taken.” The answer to that

----- is the word “taken" must in any event lie implied after “pr
Cox Towiao ceedings” and that the clause being then complete so as to can 

a definite meaning, it is neither necessary nor permissible to 
DunriELD imply other words which are not requisite and would change 11, 

â Co. meaning of the clause which, in itself, and without any adili 
WH,,, j tional words carries a complete and definite meaning.

Again, why should it be assumed that it was the intention of 
the parties in requiring an award as a condition precedent to the 
taking of legal proceedings to give to the charterers any greater 
or different protection from that afforded consignees. As is 
frequently the case in charter parties there is no consignee nam I 
in the one before us. Usually, it is not until the bill of lading is 
signed that the consignee becomes a party to the contract, ami 
then by sec. 2 of the Bills of Lading Act, B.8.C. 1906, ch. Us, 
the consignee if named in the hill of lading, lieeomcs vested with 
all such rights of action and is subject to all such liabilities in 
respect of such goods as if the contract contained in the bill of 
lading had been made with himself. As he derives his right 
from the charterer, it must, at least, occasionally happen that 
when disputes arise between the shipowner and the consignee 
or charterer, rights and liabilities of both the consignee anil 
charterer arc involved. And if then disputes go to litigation, it 
may often be desirable and sometimes necessary that when i lie 
charterer is sued the consignee shall be made a party with him 
and vice vena. It, therefore, seems to me most unlikely that in 
assenting to the provisions contained in para. 14, the parlies 
intended that the charterers and consignees should be placed 
on other than the same footing.

The clause in para. 14 which precedes the one directly in 
question, by virtue of the Arbitration Act, 1909 (N.B.) ch. 9,1 lie 
provisions of which closely follow those of the English Act, 
gives to all parties a protection against being sued at law within 
this Province almost though not wholly co-extensive with I liât 
which the disputed clause would have afforded to the charterers 
and consignees had it been made applicable to actions at law 
tried at St. John. That being so, it seems to me that what was 
intended by the clause in dispute was to secure the protection 
which it affords in case the shipowner should sue elsewhere than 
at St. John, and especially in case he sued outside the Province 
where, of course, the provincial Arbitration Act would afford no 
protection.

For the reasons I have given I think that the disputed clause
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must be construed as showing the intention of the parties to have 
turn that for which the appellant contends.

If I am right in this conclusion the plaintiff is entitled to 
judgment and, therefore, it is not strictly necessary to consider 
tlm second ground on which the appellants rely. Hut while not 
absolutely necessary, 1 think it desirable that I should do so. 
Tliis ground is that the respondents, having hy their letter of 
September 4, 1919, given notice to the appellants, “that we will 
exercise our option as contained in the said charter party, and 
hereby cancel said charter party,’’ and having pleaded as a 
defence to this action that the contract was terminated hy such 
notice, cannot rely upon the arbitration clauses contained in the 
charter party as an additional defence.

1 pon principle, and apart from the authorities cited on the 
argument, 1 would think th6 decision of this question must 
depend upon whether the arbitration clause relied upon, inter­
preted, as of course it must be, in view of the entire contract, 
would empower an arbitrator, acting thereunder to determine by 
his award the disputed question as to whether the contract was, 
in fact, terminated by the notice referred to, or still remains in 
force.

N.B.
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The arbitration provisions are all contained in para. 14 already 
quoted. Hy para. 5 of the charter party it is stipulated “char­
terers to have option of cancelling this charter if vessel is not 
ready to load on or before August 31,1919.”

There is no ambiguity or uncertainty in the terms of this 
option. If the vessel is not ready to load within the time named 
the charterers can, by notice, cancel the entire contract. There­
fore, unless there is to be found in some other portion of the 
coni ract words which clearly indicate that in giving the char­
terers an option to cancel the contract it was not meant or 
intended that he could cancel para. 14, that paragraph must 
stand or fall with the other provisions of the contract.

The defendant’s counsel relying upon the provision in the 
arbitration clause that “any dispute or claims arising at the 
port of loading” are to be referred to arbitration and laying 
special emphasis upon the word “any,” contend that as the 
defendants are only empowered by the contract to declare the 
same cancelled in case the vessel was “not ready to load on or 
before August 31, 1919" and as the question as to whether the 
coni ract was cancelled or not depends upon the dispute between 
the parties as to whether the vessel » is so ready within the 
time named, and such dispute is one arising at the port of 
loading it falls within the arbitration clause and must be deter­
mined by an av ard before this action can be maintained.
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There can lie no question that so long as the arbitration danse 
remained in force, an arbitrator could have determined a dispute 
as to whether the vessel was ready to load within the time 
named, just as he could decide any other claim or dispute 
arising at the port of loading. Hut what is there in that to show 
it was intended that despite the clear and distinct provision of 
para. 5 he was to continue to possess such power after t he 
contract was terminated. I can see nothing.

There can be no doubt that had the defendants tiefore they 
gave notice declaring the contract to be cancelled, submitted to 
arbitration the disputed question as to whether the vessel was 
ready to load within the time limited, the arbitrator would have 
had jurisdiction to make an award finally decisive of such ques­
tion. Nor do I think such jurisdiction would have been affected 
had the defendants in requiring such arbitration avowed, that 
in case the award was in their favour it was their intention to 
declare the contract cancelled.

Even if the defendants in giving notice that they elected to 
cancel the contract had gone further and stated therein that if 
the plaintiffs disputed their claim that the vessel was not ready 
to load within the time fixed by the contract they required such 
dispute to he submitted to arbitration under the provisions of 
para. 14 of the contract, I would have held that such notice 
would not have sufficed to deprive the arbitrator of jurisdiction 
to decide such dispute: because it would then lie apparent that 
the defendants did not intend by such notice to cancel the entire 
contract including para. 18 unless and until an award had lieen 
first made deciding that the vessel was not ready to load by 
August 31, 1919. Such an holding would, I think, be supported 
by Woodall v. Pearl Ass’ce Co., [1919] 1 K.B. 593, 88 L.J. 
(K.B.) 706.

But the defendants did not pursue any of the courses 1 have 
indicated were open to them. On the contrary, they gave the 
notice I have already quoted declaring that they “hereby cancel 
said charter party.” By giving notice in these terms, the de­
fendants took the position that the entire contract was cam riled 
and at an end. This position they have maintained down to the 
present time. In their statement of defence, they plead as a 
defence to this action that the contract was terminated by the 
notice given. That issue is one which I think an arbitrator, as­
suming to act under para. 14 would, under the circumstances, 
have no power to determine by an award.

To decide the question raised by this issue, the arbitrator 
admittedly must first satisfy himself as to whether the vessel was 
ready to load by August 31, 1919. If lie came to the conclusion
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tliiit the vessel was not so ready it would neeessarily follow that 
the notice given by defendants was effectual to cancel the con­
tract. And since this arbitration clause forms a part of the 
contract, it must, as I have already said, stand or fall with the 
contract. The result in such case would lie that the only finding 
the arbitrator could properly make would lie that under the 
facts as he found them he had no power to make an award 
deciding the issues submitted to him. If I am right as to this it 
follows, I think, that even if the arbitrator reached the con­
clusion that the vessel was ready to load within the time named 
he would still be without power to make a valid award decisive 
of the question whether or not the contract was terminated, 
because, in order to decide that question, he must have power to 
make a valid award for or against either party.

Let me go further and assume that the arbitrator came to the 
conclusion that the ship was ready to load within the time fixed 
by the contract, and, thereupon, made an award in favour of 
the plaintiffs. That would not lie such an award as is contem­
plated by the contract, because it is not an award that in any 
action at law founded upon it would be finally decisive of the 
question it professed to decide. For 1 entertain no doubt that in 
any action brought upon such an award it would lie open to the 
defendants, by reason of the notice they had given, declaring 
the contract cancelled, to dispute the jurisdiction of the arlii- 
tratnr by proving if they could that as a matter of fact the ship 
was not ready to load by August 31, 1919. For I take it to be 
undoubted law that the award of an arbitrator may always be 
impeached for want of jurisdiction just as may be the judg­
ment of an inferior Court.

For these reasons, I think the issue raised by para. 4 of the 
defendants' statement of defence is not one which an arbitrator 
could determine by award under para. 14 of the charter party.

1 will now proceed to discuss the authorities cited on the argu­
ment. 1 will first refer to the case of Jurtidini v. Notional Brit­
ish, etc., Ins. Co., [1915] A.C. 499, 84 L.J. (K.B.) 640, 31 Times 
L.R. 132.

That was an action brought by the appellant against the re­
spondent to recover for the loss or damage to goods insured by 
the respondent under two policies of insurance. Each of these 
policies contained a number of conditions among which were the 
following [1915] A.C. at p. 500:—

Condition 12: “If the claim be in any respect fraudulent or 
if any false declaration be made or used in support thereof or if 
any fraudulent means or devices are used by the insured or
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anyone acting on hia behalf to obtain any benefit under ti , 
policy; or if the Ions or damage be occasioned by the wilful a 
or with the connivance of the insured ... all benefit und r 
this policy shall be forfeited."

Condition 17: “If any difference arises as to the amount of 
any loss or damage such difference shall, independently of all 
other questions, be referred to the decision of an arbitrator to lie 
appointed in writing by the parties in difference, or if tli y 
cannot agree upon a single arbitrator, to the decision of two dis. 
interested persons as arbitrators of whom one shall be appoint d 
in writing by each of the parties within two calendar months 
after having been required to do so in writing by the other party. 
.... And it is hereby expressly stipulated and declared tlut 
it shall be a condition precedent to any right of action or suit 
upon this policy that the award by such arbitrator, arbitral is 
or umpire of the amount of the loss or damage if disputed si .ill 
be first obtained."

On April 20, 1910, the stores of the appellant, and the grinds 
then in or upon them were destroyed by fire. The appellant 
claimed against the respondents reimbursement in respect of the 
alleged value of the goods under the terms of the two policies. 
The respondents disputed the value of the goods and a diffcnm e 
arose between the appellant and the respondents before action 
as to the amount of the loss or damage sustained by the appellant. 
Such difference was not referred to arbitration in accordance 
with condition 17 of the policies before the appellant commenced 
hia action against the respondents for the sums claimed under the 
policies. Compliance with the condition precedent referred to 
in condition 17 in reference to arbitration was never expressly 
waived by the respondents.

The action was tried before Darling, J., with a special jury. 
The plaintiffs recovered the sum of £543 2s, upon the two policies. 
The Court of Appeal, Vaughan Williams, Farwell and Kennedy, 
L.JJ., set aside the judgment founded on this verdict, and 
entered judgment for the defendants, with costs. From this lat­
ter judgment, an appeal was taken to the House of Lords. Vis­
count Haldane, L.C., in giving judgment read conditions XII 
and XVII, and proceeded as follows: [1915] A.C. at p. 504:— 
“Now .... what happened was this: There was a loss occa­
sioned by fire at Port Limon ; the appellants made a claim under 
the policy, and the respondents took up the ground that the loss 
was caused by the felonious acts of the appellants. They charged 
arson, and they said that the claim was a fraudulent claim. 
That was obviously a case, which, if made out, went to the very 
root of the matter, because clause 12 of the policy which I have
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read says that if the claim was fraudulent, or the damage was 
occasioned by any wilful act, then all benefit under the policy is 
to be forfeited ; and that attitude is again formally taken up by 
tlii' respondents, because when the action on which this appeal 
arises was brought by the appellant, the respondents, in their 
defence, took this ground, that they maintained that the appel­
lants were not entitled to claim under the policy.”

He then referred to Scott v. Avery (1856), 5 H.L.C. 811, 10 
E li. 1121, 25 L.J. (Ex.) 308, and proceeded at pp. 505-6:— 
“That was in effect a decision upon the demurrer. Hut the 
present case, as I have already pointed out, is different; there 
has been in the proceedings throughout a repudiation on the 
part of the respondents of their liability based upon charges of 
fraud and arson, the effect of which, if they are right, is that all 
benefit under the policy is forfeited. But one of the benefits is 
the right to go to arbitration under this contract, and to establish 
your claim in a way which may, to some people, seem preferable 
to proceeding in the Courts; and accordingly that is one of the 
things which the appellants have according to the respondents, 
forfeited with every other lienefit under the contract. Now. . . . 
slinking for myself, when there is a repudiation which goes to 
the substance of the whole contract I do not sec how the person 
setting up iliat repudiation can be entitled to insist on a subor­
dinate term of the contract still being enforced. . . . And the 
learned Judge gave judgment, not that the ease should go to 
arbitration, hut for £3,000; and I think that was probably right, 
the arbitration clause having gone with the repudiation. The 
respondents appealed to the Court of Appeal on two grounds— 
first, that the arbitration clause was a bar to the action, and 
secondly, for a new trial on the ground that the verdict was 
against the weight of evidence, and also on the ground that there 
was further evidence which ought to be taken into account. . . . 
The Court of Appeal has never disposed of the motion for a new 
trial on cither of the grounds which I have indicated ; it has only 
disposed of the ease on the footing that the arbitration clause is a 
bar. a conclusion which, for the reasons I have already assigned, 
I am unable to concur in, I am therefore of the opinion that the 
judgment of the Court below must be reversed, and that this 
case should go back to be disposed of by the Court of Appeal on 
the motion for a new trial.”

Lord Dunedin [1915] A.C. at pp. 506-7:—“I concur............
I think it is perfectly clear that that article necessarily refers to 
an existing difference, not an historical difference ; and it seems 
to me Iliat, when the attitude was taken up by these parties which 
was taken up in the letters which have been read to ua which the
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Lord Chancellor has referred to in England—that they repudi­
ated the claim altogether, and said that there was no liability 
under the policy—that necessarily cut out the effect of clause 17 
as creating a condition precedent to all forma of action. I. 
therefore, concur in the motion which has been made by my 
noble and learned friend on the woolsack."

Lord Atkinson at pp. 507-8:—“I concur on this short ground, 
I think that article 17 refers to existing disputes and differ™.. < 
about the amount of loss sustained, and in a contract such ns 
this I do not think that article has any application whatever 
when the persona to indemnify say: ‘You yourself brought about 
the destruction of the goods which were insured for the loss of 
which you claim to be indemnified, and we rely upon an art i.-le 
which provides that in that state of circumstances all benefit 
under the policy is forfeited. I, therefore, think that the order 
should be made which has already lieen suggested by my noble 
and learned friend on the woolsack.”

Lord Parker, of Waddingtons—"I concur.”
Lord Parmoor:—“I concur. The respondents raised an issue 

upon which, if they had succeeded the appellant would have 
forfeited all benefit under the policy, including the benefit that 
would have lieen derived under clause 17 of the policy. At the 
same time I should like to express my opinion that no difference 
had arisen as regards matters which could come for decision 
under clause 17, and that consequently the clause had no appli­
cation.”

Before leaving the case, I think it well to point out that it was 
not claimed there that the contract of insurance was void through 
fraud in its inception ; that, in other words, there never was a 
valid contract. There, as in the case before us, it was conceded 
that there was a perfectly good contract, which, in the Juriidini 
case, continued in force down, at least, to the making of the 
alleged fraudulent claim, just as, in the case before us. the 
charter party continued in force down at least, until the defend­
ant wrote his letter declaring the same cancelled. And in view 
of what is said in at least one of the cases to which I will refer, 
I wish further to call attention to the fact, that in the Jurcidini 
case, tupra, the defendants claimed the policy became void by 
reason of condition XII therein contained. It is important, I 
think, to bear that in mind in considering the language and effect 
of the other authorities to which I will refer.

The next case cited on behalf of the plaintiffs is that of The 
Municipal Council of Johannesburg v. D. Stewart it Co., Ltd., 
[1909] Seas. Cas. (H.L.) 53. In that case a contract had been 
entered into between the municipal council in South Africa, 
plaintiffs, and a firm of contractors in Scotland, defendants, to
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be implemented by the latter in South Africa. The contract con­
tained this clause: “This contract shall he deemed for all pur­
poses an English contract, enforceable in and subject to the 
jurisdiction of the English Courts." The contract also contained 
au arbitration clause, although arbitration was not in terms made 
a condition precedent to the right to sue. Subsequently, a second 
contract was entered into between the parties, known as a run­
ning contract, which, likewise, contained an arbitration clause; 
and shortly after a third contract was entered into. These three 
contracts, in effect, constituted one contract. The defendants 
having failed to carry out their contract and admitted their in­
ability to do so, action was brought in the Scottish Courts by 
the municipal council and the case was remitted to the House 
of Lords for advice as to what the English law was in its bearing 
upon several questions that arose—among others, the effect of 
the arbitration clause referred to. The Lord Chancellor in the 
course of his judgment says at p. 54: “If the course of action 
which is established, he, that there has lieen a repudiation or a 
breaking of contract, in the sense that the contract has been frus­
trated by the breach, then it would not lie within the arbitration 
clauses in either of these contracts." Lord James of Hereford, 
Lord Atkinson and Lord Corell all concurred. Lord Shaw of 
Dunfermline, in the course of his judgment, says at p. 56: “I 
treat this case as a case of total repudiation upon the aver­
ments, and I demur to the argument that it is possible in a 
question as to proof of these clear and relevant averments to in­
vestigate the averments upon the other side. You must take 
pro veritate, the pursuers’ averments in a question of admission 
to probation. As these averments stand, this contract was wholly 
repudiated. It does not appear to me to be sound law to permit 
a person to repudiate a contract, and thereupon specifically to 
fnuud upon a term in that contract which lie has thus repu­
diated.”

On behalf of the defendants, Stebbing v. Liverpool and London 
and Globe Ins. Co., [1917] 2 K.B. 433, 86 L.J. (K.B.) 1155, 
was cited and died upon. In that case, the appellant made to 
the respondent, an insurance company, a proposal for insurance 
against loss by burglary, which proposal contained a declaration 
by the applicant that his statements in the proposal were true, 
and an agreement that the proposal should be the basis of the 
contract. One of the conditions was that if a false declaration 
was made in support of a claim, all benefits under the policy 
should be forfeited. The policy also provided that all differ­
ences arising out of the policy should be referred to the decision 
of au arbitrator. The appellant made a claim under the policy
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in respect of an alleged loss by burglary and the respondent 
required that it should be referred to arbitration. Viscount 
Reading, C.J., after stating the facta, proceeded (as reported in 
86 L.J. (K.B.) at p. 1158) : “I think the real question is whether 
the truth or untruth of the answers in the policy is a 1 différé?i e 
arising out of the policy.’ If the effect of the company’s conten­
tion was that the policy was avoided, and if that was the true 
way of expressing their contention, and their object was to avoid 
the policy, I think there would he very great force in the argu­
ment of counsel for the applicant." He then proceeded to point 
out that the defendants instead of repudiating the policy, wi re 
really relying upon this provision not to show that it was void, 
but to show they were not liable under it.

Ridley, J., says at p. 1160: “I agree with my Lord in I lie 
answers to both questions. There may be cases in which oil 1 lie 
ground of fraud the underwriters attack the policy and say that 
the policy is void. That would, for instance, be so if the insur 'd 
were to set up the case that there had been a burglary, and that 
he had had the goods, which had been stolen or destroyed, when 
he had had nothing of the so-t. In such a case the result of 
proving a false statement by t e insured is to avoid the poli v. 
There is, however, a great distinction between that case and the 
present one, when it is made a preliminary to the policy of in-ur- 
ance that certain questions should be answered on the propo-al 
form, and that the answers are to be taken as the basis of (lie 
contract to be made between the insured and the company. In 
such a case as that, where the underwriters seek to say that die 
answers made to the questions are untrue, so that the contract 
gives them the right to say that they are not liable, they do not 
avoid the contract, but set up, as between themselves and the 
insured, a term of the contract which absolves them from the lia­
bility of paying. That, I think, is a different position, am] it 
seems to me that, although in the first case that I was putting, it 
would not be a part of the policy on which they came before I he 
arbitrator, and therefore the arbitration clause would not apply, 
in the other case it docs—it is still in existence, although by one 
of its conditions it is set up by the underwriters that they are 
not liable. They are still affirming the contract under whieli the 
arbitration takes place. I, therefore, agree with my Lord, and 
think that the first question m ’st be answered in the affirmative. 
As to the retond question, I say nothing. I quite agree with 
what my Lord has said.

Avory, J. :—“I agree with regard to the answers to loth 
questions.”

Viscount Reading, C.J.:—“I wish to refer to the ease of
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Anderson v. Fitzgerald (1853), 4 H.L. Cas. 484, 10 E.R. 551, 17 N.B. 
Jur. 995, which waa cited to us, and to say that it is important A[|p Dly
to observe in that case that the term of the policy was that if the __
(po stions were not accurately answered, the policy should be Cox Town» 
void. The term there was that the contract was void at once, L|NK 
not, as in this case, merely that it formed the basis of the con- DusritLo 
tract between the parties. The costa, of course, will be dealt * Co. 
with by the arbitrator in the usual way.” white j

In the case before us, there can be no question that the 
defendants’ contention was and is, that the charter party was 
cancelled and put an end to by their letter to the plaintiffs 
declaring same cancelled. And it will be observed further, that 
in the case cited, the defendants themselves insisted upon arbi­
tration under the contract.

There remains one more case cited by the defendants, Woodall 
v. I’earl Ats’ce. Co., [1919] 1 K.B. 593, 88 L.J. (K.B.) 706. This 
was the case of an insurance policy against accident. Condition 
eleven provided: “If any question shall arise touching this 
policy or the liability of the company thereunder or the extent 
or nature of such liability or otherwise howsoever in connection 
herewith, then the assured and all persons claiming through the 
assured may refer and shall be bound if the company shall so 
require to refer the same to arbitration by one arbitrator to be 
agreed on, or, in default of agreement by two arbitrators and 
their umpire under the Arbitration Act, 1889, who alone shall 
deal with all questions including costs, or if the claimant resides 
hi Scotland then under Arbitration (Scotland) Act, 1894, and 
no person shall be entitled to bring or to maintain any action or 
proceeding on this policy except for the sum awarded under such 
arbitration.”

The assured, while passing through a lock, accidentally fell 
into the canal and was drowned. The defendants insisted as a 
defence upon condition 11 which I have quoted, and claimed that 
the plaintiff had misstated the nature of his occupation in bis 
application for the policy, and that by the terms of the policy 
such misstatement, ipso facto, rendered the policy null and void.
It npiiears that in the negotiations which took place prior to the 
action, Mr. Clark, the solicitor representing the defendants, in­
sisted upon arbitration under condition 11. The plaintiff, on 
the ol her hand, claimed that the defendants by letter of February 
18, 1918, and by their defence, contended that the policy was 
null and void and had repudiated the contract therein contained, 
and the defendants were estopped from relying upon condition 
11 as a defence to the action. Shearman, J., before whom the 
ease was tried, held that the assured had not misstated the

10—68 D.L.S.
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nature of his occupation, and that he had not altered his occupa 
tion since the date of the policy. He held further, on the ground 
that he was bound by the decision in Jureidini’s case, supra, 
that an award under arbitration was not a condition precedent In 
bringing an action. The defendants appealed. Ilankcs, L..I 
having stated the facts, proceeded (as reported in 88 L.J. (K.U. 
at p. 711): “The next question which arises is as to whetli- r 
the learned Judge was correct in his view that the case mus 
governed by Jureidini’s case. I am not able to agree with the 
view which he took on that point. This part of the ease, in my 
opinion, turns entirely upon what is the true view of the attitude 
of the company, taken up by their representative, Mr. Clark, 
before the action Mas commenced. In considering this part of 
the case, 1 think it very necessary to draM* a clear and sharp 
distinction between two separate classes of cases. There is the 
class where an insurance company is repudiating a contra-1, 
in the sense that it is disputing the existence of any binding 
contract at all. That is one class of case, and that was Jure id ini's 
case. The other class of case is where an insurance company is 
repudiating any liability under a contract, but is accepting tin- 
existeuce of the contract as a binding contract. This is the 
second class of case, and that is the class of which an instance 
may be found in the case to which we have been referred in 1 lie 
Divisional Court, of Stebbing v. Liverpool and London and dinin' 
Ins. Co.” The Judge then goes on to point out that Mr. Clark, 
having insisted upon arbitration under the contract, could not 
be held to repudiate it in a sense that the contract was repudi­
ated in Jureidini’s case. He then goes on to say (88 L.J. (K.H. 
at p. 712) : “The next question is,—How, under those circum­
stances, is the case affected by the two decisions to which our 
attention has been so closely drawn ! The one is Jureidin i's 
case, which 1 think is a very good illustration of the first of I lie 
two classes of cases to which I have referred, and which, I think, 
indicates the position of the parties where the existence of any 
binding contract is repudiated. The other is Stebbing’s case, 
and is a very good illustration of the other class of case, where 
it is a question of repudiating liability but not repudiating the 
existence of a contract. In Jureidini’s case it is material to note 
what the policy provided in reference to arbitration and in 
reference to any misdescription rendering the policy void. Chmse 
12 referred to a number of matters, one of which was the vase 
of a false declaration having been made and used in support of 
the claim, and it provided that, in the event of the happening of 
any of those matters, all benefit under the policy should be for­
feited. The arbitration clause Mas one which provided for arbi-



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 147

(ration as to the amount of loss or damage and was confined to 
the ascertaining of the amount of loss or damage if the dispute 
I «‘tween the parties was as to loss or damage only. What 
happened there was that the insurance company claimed that 
the policy had lieen forfeited. There was no dispute as to the 
liability. They claimed boldly that the policy had been forfeited, 
and that there was consequently no existing binding contract 
between the parties. Those being the circumstances, the matter 
(weeded, and the insurance company set up that the plaintiff 
had no right of action. That was the question which had to he 
decided, and which was ultimately decided in the House of Lords. 
The opinions of the Law Lords do not, I think, proceed upon 
quite the same grounds, but in every case the fact is made per­
fectly plain that the decision proceeds upon the ground that the 
dispute between the parties was not a matter which came within 
the arbitration clause at all, hut that the position of the insurance 
company had been the position of a person who was repudiating 
his contract in the fullest sense and asserting that the policy 
had been forfeited."

Warrington, L.J., said (88 L.J. (K.B.) at p. 714) ‘‘When 
one of the parties concerned—as in this case—insists upon the 
arbitration clause, then it seems to me quite plain that arbitra­
tion is not a mere matter of procedure, but that the proceeding 
to arbitration is essential to a right of action in the assured. If 
that is the true construction, there then arises a further question: 
Is this a case in which the defendants have elected to avoid the 
contract altogether with everything contained in it, so as to 
preclude them from insisting upon the arbitration clauseÎ That 
depends very much on the true inference to lie drawn from the 
statement made by Mr. Clark, who represented the defendants 
at an interview which he had with the plaintiff's country solic­
itor, did he repudiate the contract altogether, or did he merely 
deny that the company were liable to pay the assured, but at the 
same time, with that denial, insist on the other term of the 
contract, namely, the right to have their differences settled by 
arbitrationf When one looks at Mr. Clark's evidence, which was 
accepted by the Judge, I think the proper inference to he drawn 
from that is that he took the latter course ; that he never did 
anything to repudiate the contract as a whole ; that all that he 
did was to insist that there was not in fact any liability on the 
part of the insurance company, at the same time—as he put it in 
his evidence—insisting that in any event the question would have 
to be referred to arbitration.”

Duke, L.J. says ((88 L.J. (K.B.) at p. 715) “The judgment 
Mow in this case proceeded upon the view that there had been
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a repudiation of the contract by the defendants. If I agreed in 
that view, I should agree in the conclusion which follows from it. 
Accepting Mr. Clark’s evidence, as the learned Judge accepted 
it, I do not see my way to arrive at any other view than that th* 
course which Mr. Clark took was to insist that the matter be­
tween the plaintiff and the defendants was a matter which must 
at all events be decided by means of an arbitration, with tli 
further declaration that the plaintiff would be shewn to haw 
no claim under the policy by reason that the policy was avoided 
upon grounds arising upon the terms of the policy itself.”

With reference to this case, I would make this observation, ll 
seems very clear that the defendant, while insisting, from tie 
outset, upon the arbitration clause contained in the contract, 
could not be rightfully said to be repudiating the contract.

It remains only to consider the question of damages. The trial 
Judge lays down, I think, correctly, the proper principle to he 
pursued in assessing damages. He first takes the amount which 
the plaintiff would have earned under the contract had the same 
been complied with, and then estimates the time it would have 
taken to earn that amount. Next, he takes the amount which 
the schooner earned during such estimated time, deducts that 
from the earnings that would have accrued, had the contract 
been carried out, and arrives at the balance of $1,931.90. That 
far I agree with him, subject to what I shall say in a moment. 
But to that amount he adds $200 a day, the rate fixed by 11. * 
charter party for demurrage, for 10 days, that is to say from 
September 5,1919, on which day the vessel was for the first time 
at her wharf ready to load, until September 15, when she com­
menced loading the cargo of laths which she carried to New 
York. I fail to understand how this $2,000 should be allowed, in 
compliance with the principle which the Judge has declared lie 
intended to follow in estimating the damages. Had there boon 
no demurrage, the vessel would have earned just that much more 
which would have had to be deducted from her estimated earn­
ings under the charter party, and the resultant damage would 
have been by so much less than it was. On the other hand. Ii.id 
the vessel not been able to obtain a new charter party for a 
longer period, say 1 or 2 months, then her earnings would have 
been that much less than they were, and the d image, consequent­
ly, that much greater than the Judge has estimated it at. I 
think, therefore, that the damages should be redueed to $1,931.90. 

At the same time, I confess that I have had very grave don Ms 
whether the Judge has not erred in reaching the conclusion — 
especially as against a wrong doer, which the defendant was in 
breaking the contract—that it would have taken so much time 
as the Judge has estimated to earn the freight under the charier
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party. He has allowed nothing for a return freight, but as the 
matter waa one peculiarly for him, I have come to the conclu­
sion that his judgment in that matter should not lie interfered 
with, save in so far as I have mentioned, is necessary to make his 
computation agree with the principle upon which he acted.

The defendant should pay the costs here and in the Court 
below.

Appeal allowed.

RE COMPANIES WINDING PP ORDINANCE.
RE 8TROME MILLING AND GRAIN Co.

Alberta Supreme Court, Tuer Ate, J. August 16, 1986.
Pleading (|II—165)—Application—Companies winding up obdinance 

N.W.T. Obd. 1903 ch. 13—Proper method or bringing matter 
BEFORE CoUET—CONSOLIDATED RULES 1914, RULE 446—CoNSTRUC-

An Application to the Court under sec. 22 of the Companies 
Winding Up Ordinance N.W.T. Ord. 1903, ch. 13, for an order Bet­
ting aside an order of the Master In Chambers allowing a liquid­
ator a certain sum In compensation for his services, is a proceed­
ing within the meaning of Rule 446 of the Consolidated Rules. 
1914, and not being within the class authorised to be commenced 
by statement of claim or originating summons should be by way 
of petition, and unless leave Is obtained upon the first application 
to make further application, each application must be by petition.

Application in Chambers under sec. 22 of the Companies 
Winding Up Ordinance made pursuant to a notice of motion on 
behalf of a shareholder and director of a company, for an order 
setting aside an order of the Master in Chambers, allowing the 
liquidator a certain sum as compensation for his services.

(1. B. O’Connor, K.C., for the applicant.
Frank Ford, K.C., contra.
Tweedie, J.:—The Strome Milling and Grain Co., Ltd., was 

incorporated under the laws of the Province of Alberta and for 
(lie purpose of amalgamating with another company was being 
voluntarily wound up under the Companies Winding Up Or­
dinance N.W.T. Ord., 1903, ch. 13. During the process of wind­
ing up, the liquidator made an application before Mr. Justice 
(now Chief Justice) Scott, ex parte, for an order directing “that 
all the powers conferred upon the Court by the Companies Wind­
ing I'p Ordinance, 1903, be referred and delegated to the Master 
in Chambers at Edmonton,’’ which order was granted on March 
29. 1919. Pursuant to this order, the Master in Chandlers dis­
posed of a large number of applications and made many orders, 
and amongst others, upon separate applications on June 16, 1920, 
one discharging the liquidator and the other passing the accounts 
of the liquidator and fixing his remuneration at $5,000.

Solicitors for M. J. O’Brien served the liquidator with notice
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of application to be made on January 16, 1922, at 10 o’clock, on 
behalf of M. J. O’Brien, whom it appears from the order sough 
to be set aside, was president and director, and although it doc- 
not appear, no doubt a "member" of the Strome Milling Co., to 
set aside the order of the Master fixing the eompensation of the 
liquidator. They also served the liquidator with notiee of motion 
returnable on February 13, 1922, for an order setting aside tin 
order of Mr. Justice (now Chief Justice) Scott, aliove reft-rn 
to, on the grounds (1) “That no winding up order had hern 
made. (2) That no sufficient resolution of the winding up of tin- 
company had liecn passed, and (3) That the Master in Chamber 
is not a Judge of the Supreme Court of Alberta as defined by Un­
said Act.” This application was allowed to stand until the up 
plication dealing with the Master’s order was disposed of.

Apart from the merits of the application, the first question 
to be decided is as to whether or not the application is proper!' 
before the Court on a notice of motion. Section 22 of the Wind 
ing Up Ordinance provides : “The liquidators or any member of 
the Company may apply to the Court to determine any question 
arising in the matter of the winding up ; or to exercise all or any 
of the powers following,” of which there are 16 express powers 
set forth in the various sub-sections applicable as the case may 
be to companies which are being compulsorily or voluntarl, 
wound up.

Various other sections of the ordinance direct that the Court 
shall make an order at the instance of a "member” of the com­
pany, or the liquidator. Some of the aeetions, including some of 
sub-sections of 22 direct how the application shall he made, 
usually by summons or originating summons, in which case, that 
is the procedure to he followed. Section 22, however, dis-s not 
say how the application “to determine any question arising in 
the matter of the winding up” is to he made. What then is de­
procedure to lie followed t Sections 29 to 33 inclusive of the .Vf 
(1903), oh. 13), relate to “Matters of Practice.” There is no 
method for making the application provided in these section-,. 
Section 29 provides the method by which an application for V 
winding up of a company may lie made, namely by originating 
summons. Section 30 provides for an application by any con­
tributory for a stay of proceedings in the winding up after a 
winding up order has been made, such application to be made 
by summons. Section 31 provides:—“The rules of procedure 
for the time I wing as to amendments of pleadings and prooc-d- 
ings in the Court shall, as far as practicable, apply to all ph cl­
ings and proceedings under this ordinance ; and any Court !»-• 
fore whom such proceedings are lieing carried on shall have lull
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power and authority to apply the appropriate . dies aa to amend­
ment» to the proceedings so pending; and no pleading or pro­
ceeding shall be void by reason of any irregularity or default 
which can or may he amended or disregarded under the rules 
and practice of the Court.”

This section cannot apply in this case. This is a voluntary 
winding up and the exercises of the powers under this section 
are confined to ‘‘the Court before whom such proceedings are 
living carried on.” Furthermore, this is not a question of 
“amendment of a proceeding," but a question as to whether or 
nut the proceeding in Court has been properly instituted. Sec­
tion 32 provides that “all lioolts, accounts and documents of the 
company .... shall .... be prima facie evidence of the .... 
matters .... recorded therein,” while section 33 provides for 
the procedure to be followed in swearing affidavits, making de­
clarations or affirming in any proceeding when required. Sec­
tion 39 provides that “The Supreme Court, or any three of the 
Judges thereof may, from time to time make and frame and set­
tle the forms, rules and regulations to be followed and observed 
in proceedings under this Ordinance . . . .” No such rules or 
regulations have lieen made. Sub-section 2 thereof is as follows: 
“Until such forma, rules and regulations are so approved, and 
subject to any which may be approved the practice under this 
ordinance shall, in cases not hereinbefore provided for, be the 
same, as nearly as may be, as under the Winding-Vp Act and the 
ruin of the said Court made thereunder or applicable thereto.”

The practice under the Winding-Up Act R.S.C. 1906, eh. 144, 
in so far as it relates to proceedings in Court has to do with pro­
ceedings prior to the granting of the winding up order, and 
ifter. The former are commenced by way of petition and do not 
apply, aa this is not an application for a winding up order, and 
even if it were, the procedure is set forth in the Winding Up 
Ordinance and is by way of originating summons,—under pres­
ent rules by originating notice.

Sections 107 to 133 of the Winding-Up Act relate to procedure 
to lie followed in the winding up proceedings, but all the regula­
tions set out in these sections relate to proceedings after the 
winding up order has been made, that is, when the winding up 
is a proceeding in Court. For example, sec. 108 provides : “The 
proceedings under a winding up order shall lie carried on us 
nearly as may be in the same manner as an ordinary suit, action 
or proceeding within the jurisdiction of the Court.” The rules 
of t'e-irt would become applicable because there would lie al­
ready a proceeding in Court.

If a winding up order has been made under the ordinance
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pursuant to which this company was being wound up it won' I 
not be necessary to invoke the assistance of the Winding-Up A I 
R.8.C. 1906, ch. 144, as see. 29 of the Winding Up Ordinale 
1903, ch. 13, as already pointed out, provides that after an ont r 
for the winding up of the company has been made, “the math r 
shall proceed as a cause in Court and be subject, except win re 
inconsistent herewith, to all the rules applicable to ordinary 
causes.” Here, however, no winding up order was made, it I 
ing a purely voluntary proceeding, so the general rules of Court 
do not apply by reason of this section, so as to enable the pi i. 
ceedinga to be carried on as nearly as may lie in the same manner 
as an ordinary suit, action or proceeding. Section 134 of the A t 
R.8.C. 1906, ch. 144, empowers “a majority of the Judges of the 
Court, of which the Chief Justice shall be one” to make rules 
and regulations to be followed in proceedings under the A t. 
Pursuant to this section “Rules and regulations under the Wii..l- 
ing-Up Act,” C.R. 855-921 were made, but there does not sera 
to be any rule dealing directly with this point.

Rule 44, C.R. 898 is as follows : “Any application to a Judge 
for any purpose under the winding up order shall be made to 
him in Chambers unless the Court or Judge in the particulsr 
matter otherwise direct. All such applications in Chaud» rs 
shall, unless the case be a proper one for an ex-parte order, lie 
made upon notice or appointment of the Judge in writiug; hut 
the Court or a Judge may require any application to lie made 
upon petition. An order shall he drawn up in every case unless 
otherwise directed." This rule, however, is applicable only after 
the winding up order has been made by tbe Court, that is slier 
it becomes a proceeding in Court, and so cannot apply in this ease 
as no winding up order has been made aud there is no pro.. .sl­
ing before the Court.

Rule 61, C.R. 915, provides for the use of forms in use in Kng- 
land, under winding up proceedings, with necessary variai inns.

Rule 67, C.R. 921, provides : “The general practice of the 
Court including the course of proceeding and practice in Judges 
Chambers shall in cases not provided for by the said Act mid 
amendments thereto or these rules and so far as the same are »]>- 
plicahle and not inconsistent with the said Act or these rules 
apply to all proceedings for winding up a company.”

Ikies this rule mean that the rules governing practice and pro­
cedure which are applicable in proceedings which are in I mirt 
shall apply to proceedings which are not in Court, for the pur­
pose of bringing them before the Court. In other words, sli II a 
proceeding not in Court lie brought liefore it in the maim- » in 
which interlocutory applications in proceedings before the i curt
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are made. In my opinion, the rule does not mean this and the 
matter ean not be so brought to the attention of the Court. These 
rules were framed having in mind a proceeding in Court com- 
meneed by petition upon which the winding up order would he 
made. It simply means that once winding up proceedings have 
been instituted in Court if no provision is made in the Winding. 
I p Act or rules promulgated thereunder directing the practice 
ami procedure to he followed, then the Buies of Court shall 
apply.

There is nothing in the Winding Up Ordinance, the Winding- 
Vp Act or the rulea made thereunder which direct how such an 
application as the one in question is to be made.

Is there then ary provision in the Consolidated Rules of the 
Supreme Court, 1914, as amended, directing how it shall lie made 
other than by the commencement of a proceeding!

Rule 206 provides that: “Where an application is authorised 
to lie made to the Court or Judge in any action or proceeding, 
such application shall be made by motion.”

Rule 208 provides: “Where by any statute or ordinance any 
application ia authorised to be made by summons, such applica­
tion may be made by notice of motion.

Does rule 206 authorise that any application authorised by 
si suite where no particular procedure as suggested in Rule 208 
shall lie made by motion! I think not. The application under 
that rule is limited to any “action or proceeding.” “Proceed­
ing’’ ia not defined in the interpretation clause of the Consolidat­
ed Rules of Court, 1914, nor in the Judicature Ordinance (Con. 
Ord. N.W.T., 1898, ch. 21, repealed 1919, (Alta.) ch. 3) nor in 
the Supreme Court Act, 1907 (Alta.) ch. 3. The word “proceed­
ing’’ here, in my opinion, must he taken to mean a proceeding in 
Court and ia not applicable to the voluntary winding up of a 
company under the Winding Up Ordinance.

In the case of Caughell v. Brower (1897), 17 P.R. (Ont.) 438, 
il was held that the word “proceeding" under a rule which gave 
the plaintiff a right to security for costs if the Court was satisfied 
tlial the plaintiff brought “a former action or proceeding for 
the same cause” meant proceeding in Court and did not apply 
to proceedings by way of voluntary submission to arbitration 
under the Arbitration Art in force in that Province (Ontario), 
which the defendant contended was a proceeding within the 
meaning of the rule.

I think that “proceeding" here has the same meaning that it 
has in C.R. 446 (1914), Consolidated Rules), which authorises 
“all proceedings not authorised to be commenced by statement 
of claim or originating notice shall be commenced by petition.”
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There “proceeding” clearly means proceeding in Court and tin- 
limitation of “proceeding” by the words “in Court” would in 
Rule 206 as in this rule be mere surplusage.

As to applications to Court when authorised by statute when- 
no particular form is prescribed, the «Annual Practice, 1922, p. 
893, 0. 52, n. 3, says : “Where a statute provides for an applic 
tion to the Court without specifying the form in which it is to be 
made such application may usually lie made by originating mo. 
tion,” citing Re Meister Lucius and tiruning, [1914] W.N. 390, 
31 Times L.R. 28, in support thereof. This case was decided on 
the ground that of all proceedings which were available, includ­
ing petitions and originating notices that the latter was the lenst 
cumbersome ami most appropriate to summarily dispose of the 
matter. Warrington, J., said; “There was no question about it 
that the Court could lie, and frequently was, approached by 
originating motion.” The originating motion was an originating 
process which corresponds to our originating notice and as su« h 
the proceedings under the English rules could be properly com­
menced in that way (Annual Practice, 1922, O. 1, R. 2; O. 5, It. 
9 (c). The latter sub-rule provides for the procedure to be bil­
lowed where the commencement is by notice of motion. The ap­
plication was considered a commencement of proceeding. The 
copy of the notice was filed, entered in the cause book and assiim- 
ed to a particular Judge. “This constitutes the commencement 
of the proceedings.” Annual Practice, 1922. p. 893, under note 
Practice, Re Abbott's Trade Mark (1904), 48 Sol. Jo. 351.

Where under the Companies Consolidated Act, 1908, an ap­
plication to the Court for relief for non-compliance with the 
section requiring a contract in writing for the issue of share* 
other than for cash to be tiled, and the application is authorial 
by the Act to lie made “by motion,” it will be commenced by 
notice of motion; Annual Practice, 1922, p. 891; (note under 
Applications under Companies Act), Re Concessions Act/mii- 
tions Syndicate Ltd. (1898), 68 L.J. (Ch.) 49, 79 L.T. nr 
by originating summons; Re Whitefriars Financial Co., [1899] 
1 Ch. 184. These cases indicate that where there is no proceed­
ing in Court and an application is authorised to be made to the 
Court “by motion” such application is a proceeding in Court to 
be commenced in a manner in which proceedings may he min- 
menced under the Rules of Court.

Warrington, J. in Re Meister, [1914] W.N. at 390 says: In 
the common law Courts before the passing of the Judicature Ai t, 
the only mode by which the Courts was approached otherwise 
than by the issue of a writ was by a motion.” The matter then 
under consideration, however, was brought before the Court on



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 155

“an originating motion”, a method by which proceedings might 
be commenced. It would seem then that where an application 
is authorized under a statute, to be made to the Court and no 
specific method for the making of such application is provided 
and no Rule of Court or of practice or procedure is applicable 
such application must be deemed to be a proceeding and as such 
should lie commenced in the manner authorised under our Rules 
of ( ourt. An application to the Court under sec. 22 of the Wind­
ing Vp Ordinance is a proceeding within the meaning of Rule 
440. and should lie commenced by one of the methods authorised 
thereunder.

Rule (C.R.) 446 above referred to provides: “All proceedings 
not authorised to l>e commenced by statement of claim or origin­
ating notice shall be commenced by petition.”

Commencement of proceedings by statement of claim is con­
fined to actions which is included in the term “cause” defined in 
see. 2 (1) of the Judicature Ordinance as follows: “Cause in- 
eludes any action, suit or other original proceeding between a 
plaintiff and a defendant.” This procedure is not applicable 
under see. 22 of the ordinance. Commencement by way of origin­
ating notice is limited to certain proceedings set forth in Rules 
(( It.) 429. 4J2 and 433, of which an application such as this is 
not one. The only way then in which the Court may lie ap- 
proached in such an application is by way of petition. This ap­
plication should be made to the Court by petition (sec. 22) and 
may be heard at any time by any Judge of the Court, whether 
sitting in Chambers or in Court, as provided for in sub-sec. 2 of 
sei*. 1 of the Ordinance.

In voluntary winding up proceedings in England, under the 
Companies (Consolidated) Act, 1908, (Imp.) eh. 69, applications 
to the ('ourt to determine any question arising in the winding up 
arc now made, pursuant to the Companies Winding Up Rules 
(1909),by originating summons; (Palmer’s Company Precedents, 
Winding Up, 12 ed., vol. 2, pp. 838, 840, et seq.), and in order 
to avoid the expense and necessity of taking out an originating 
summons every time an application is to he made to the Court, 
the practice is to apply on the return of the first summons for 
an order giving liberty to apply to the Court to determine any 
question arising in the winding up, and thereafter the applica­
tion can lie made by ordinary' summons.

In regard to applications to the Court in a voluntary winding 
up prior to th% Companies Winding Up Rules, Palmer says: 
“The application was formerly made sometimes by petition, 
sometimes by motion.” There is no doubt that he uses the word 
“motion” in the sense of an originating motion, applicable to
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the commencement of proceeding!!, as there is nothing in Hie 
eases cited to indicate otherwise, and the cases examined slew 
such to be the case.

I think that it is quite clear that under the English prao ,ee 
each application to the Court under sec. 183 of the Comps i ,s 
(Consolidated) Act, 1908, (which is similar to sec. 22 of ilie 
Winding Up Ordinance) authorising the liquidator or any i- u- 
tributary or creditor to apply to the Court to determine any 
question arising in the winding up, “is an original proceed: ig 
and as such must be commenced by originating summons uni.-sa 
leave to make further application upon the return of the first 
summons has lieen obtained.

1 think that the same is true in the case of a voluntary winding 
up under the Winding Up Ordinance, and that unices lem is 
obtained upon the first application to make further applies) m, 
each application must be by petition. I think that it would lie 
wise for the liquidator when appointed to file a petition asking 
the leave of the Court on behalf of h mself and any member of 
the company, they being the two who have the right to apply 
under sec. 22, to apply to the Court to determine any question 
arising in the winding up or any of the particular matters re­
ferred to in any of the subsections thereunder. If this is not 
done then such leave should lie obtained at the time of the lirst 
application, whether such application be made by the liquidator 
or a mendier of the company, in order to avoid the inconvenience 
of proceeding unnecessarily by way of petition and to saw ex- 
pense. The application may include several objects anil a per­
son making separate applications for objects which might have 
been included in one may lie ordered to pay the costs occasioned 
thereby. Hawke v. Kemp (1840), 3 Beav. 288, 49 E.R. 112.

There are now the two applications to which 1 have referred 
in my opening remarks, before the Court, which, in my opinion, 
might very well be included in one application, both having to 
do ultimately with the validity of the order made by the Master 
as to the compensation of the liquidator. If the applicant «o 
desires, 1 will grant him leave, upon application, to withdraw 
hie application to set aside the order of the Chief Justice. Mr. 
Justice Scott) without costs.

In regard to this application, this being an original prove, ding, 
no general order having lieen obtained in any formal prov ding 
granting leave to the liquidator or a member of the couip.iny to 
apply to the Court to determine any question arising i the 
winding up, the application will be dismissed with cost. If
leave is necessary to renew the application by proper pro<....ling,
such leave will lie granted. Judgment accordtuilf.
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LAVIOLETTE v. ETHIER. Que.
Quebec King's Bench, Lamothe, CJ., Martin, Dorian, Tellier 

and Homard, JJ. April 96, 1991.

Partnership (fill—13)—Death of partner—No notice of dissolution 
—Capital remaining in business—Creditors contracting
WITH FIHJtl SUBSEQUENTLY TO DEATH—ABANDONMENT OF PRO­
PERTY INCLUDED.

Where on the death of one of the members of a partnership no notice 
of dissolution is given in conformity with art. 1900 (1) C.C. Quebec, the 
• apital of the deceased partner remaining in the business and being 
treated in the same way as that of the surviving partners and the 
estate continuing to share in the profits, such capital is liable with that 
of the surviving partners, and a creditor contracting with the surviving 
partners subsequently to the death of such partner is entitled to demand 
an abandonment of property of the firm and is entitled to have the 
capital of the deceased partner included in such abandonment.

Appeal from the judgment of the Superior Court, Quebec, in 
an action demanding a judicial abandonment of property. Re­
versed.

The judgment of the Superior Court for the district of Terre­
bonne. Kobidoux, J., rendered April 26, 1920, is reversed.

Dame (Jeorgiana Nantel, Horace Ethier and Roderigue Des- 
ehambault did business at St. Jerome, under the style of “La 
Caisse d’Economie des Cantons du Nord.” Ethier died on 
January 4, 1912, and by his will instituted the respondent his 
universal legatee and appointed three testamentary executors 
with very broad powers. The executors gave to one of their num­
ber. Rodrigue Archambault, manager of the said “Caisse d’Eco­
nomic,” a power of attorney authorizing him to perform all 
necessary acts of administration and alienation concerning the 
execution of the will for a period of 5 years.

Alter Ethier’s death the “Caisse d’Economie” continued to do 
business as before and no notice of dissolution was given. Busi­
ness was carried on in the same manner, in the same place and in 
the names of Mrs. Nantel, Deschambault and the Estate Horace 
Ethier. The share of the deceased in the business, amounting 
to $2.000, remained with the partnership and the interests and 
profits were credited to the estate.

In December, 1917, the appellant, a creditor for the sum of 
made a demand on the partnership for a judicial aban­

donment of property.
Tie respondent contested this demand on the ground that he 

never went into partnership with the other two and that he was 
not responsible for any of their debts. He thus denied the ap­
pelant’s claim.

The Superior Court maintained the contestation and dismissed 
the demand of abandonment.
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Letourneau, Beaulieu, Morin <6 Mercier, for appellants.
La flamme, Mitchell and Callaghan, for respondents.
Considering that at the time of the death of Horace II. Ether, 

one of the 3 members of the firm known as “La Caisse d'K n. 
nomie des Cantons du Nord,’’ no notice of dissolution was giv u 
in conformity with para. 1 of art. 1900, C.C. (Que.), and that 
said dissolution does not affect the rights of third parties «hn 
contract subsequently with the surviving partners for the fir: s 
account ;

That the appellant Laviolette contracted with the surviving 
partners subsequently to the death of the said Horace II. Et hier 
for the account of the firm and is, therefore, a regular creditor 
of the said firm for a sum of $637.33 and is entitled to demand 
an abandonment of property ;

That after the death of the said Horace H. Ethicr, the 1 -in 
mentary executors allowed the said partnership to continue do­
ing business as formerly ; that they gave full power of attorney 
to one of their numlier, namely Rodrigue Deschamliault, on" or 
the surviving partners ; that they allowed the capital of the -aid 
Horace II. Ethier to remain in the business, which capital con­
tinued to be treated in the same manner as that of the other part­
ners and to share in the profits; that the said executors appeared 
in notarial deeds and declared therein that the estate of tin late 
Horace II. Ethier was associated in business with the other Mir- 

viving partners; that they made similar declarations in judicial 
proceedings ; that in rendering account, they included the pro­
ceeds of the operations of the said partnership thus continued, 
during a period of 5 years;

That at the expiration of the said S years the said respondent 
was put in possession of the estate of the said late Hone e II. 
Ethier. and that he did not then give any notice of dissolution;

That the said respondent is obliged, in the circumstance», to 
make an abandonment of property in the same manner as the 
two other partners ;

That there is error in the judgment of the Court of first in­
stance ; reverses the said judgment and, proceeding to render the 
judgment which the said Court should have rendered, maintains 
the appeal, dismisses the respondent’s contestation, maintains 
the intervention and the demand of abandonment made on said 
respondent and orders him to make an abandonment of property 
according to law, reserving to him all rights which he nun have 
to refrain from including his personal property with that of the 
estate of the late Horace H. Ethier.

The respondent is condemned to pay both the costs of the 
Superior Court and those of the Court of Appeal.

Judgment accordingly.
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MOCK T. HEGIXA TRADING Co. AND McGREGOR.
fruskatchcwan Court of Appeal, Haultain, CJ.8., Lament, Turgeon awl 

McKay, JJ.A. June 89, 1989.
Damages ($ III I—196)—Erection or building—Angle iron falling and 

killing child—Liability or contractor and owner—Evidence 
—Measure or compensation.

If a landowner engagea a contractor to erect on liia land a building 
of a dangerous character, the erection of which will likely cause dam­
age to somebody, and such damage does occur from the faulty nature 
of the building, the landowner is liable, but if the landowner engages 
a contractor to erect a proper building, and in the course of the work un 
accident occurs through the negligence of the contractor’s workmen, 
the contractor and not the owner is liable. Held under the circum­
stances that as the foreman in charge of the work took his directions 
from the plans and spécifications furnished by the company’s architect, 
which were followed in every particular, and when in doubt the archi­
tect’s inspection was consulted, the building was under the circum­
stances of a dangerous character, and the owner was liable for damages 
for injuries caused by part of the building falling on a person lawfully 
on a public lane on which it was being erected, that the contractor was 
not an indejiendent contractor and was not liable with the owner for 
such damages.

Appeal by defendants, from the trial judgment (1921), 62 
D.L.B. 696, in an action under the Fatal Accidents Act (Bask.), 
for the death of a child hy being struck by a piece of heavy angle 
iron which fell from a building in course of construction. 
Varied.

J. A. Cross, K.C., for Regina Trading Co.
C. II. Barr, K.C., for A. W. McGregor.
J. E. Doerr, for respondent.
II u'i/r.\iN, C.J.8. concurs with Turgeon, J.A.
La mont, J.A. :—1 concur in the judgment of my brother Tur­

geon.
The damages are more than I would have allowed had I been 

trial Judge, but in a case of this kind the reasonable expectation 
of pecuniary benefit on the part of the boy’s mother and the 
other members of his family must, as to amount, be of the most 
inde* » ite nature. The amount fixed is at best an estimate only, 
with nothing more definite to base it upon than the fact that in 
human experience most boys have, and this one, had he lived 
probably would have been willing to contribute to the support 
of the members of his family. Under these circumstances, 1 am 
unable to say that any estimate I might make would be more 
accurate than that of the trial Judge. (Embury, J. (1912), 62 
D.L.R. 696, 15 8.L.R. 90.)

Turgeon, J.A.:—This action arose out of an accident which 
occurred in Regina on September 15, 1920, and caused the death 
of Joseph Mock, a 12-year-old boy, and was brought by the lioy’s 
mother, the respondent, as administratrix, on behalf of herself
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and other dependents. The accident occurred during the er e. 
tion of a building, and the administratrix sued both appellun », 
the owner and contractor, jointly and in the alternative. K n- 
bury, J. delivered judgment on December 21, 1921, in favour of 
the respondent against both appellants. This judgment is re­
ported at length in 62 D.L.R. 696, and it is not necessary for me 
to repeat all the facts here.

I agree with Embury, J., 62 D.L.R. 696, and for the reas .in 
given by him, that the respondent is entitled to recover. This 
main branch of the case admits, I think, of little doubt. A bn Id- 
ing is being erected on a city lot immediately abutting on » 
public lane. A piece of iron used in the building opérai nm» 
falls from the structure and strikes a person lawfully in the 
lane. These circumstances cast upon the defendants the duv of 
showing that there was no negligence. Byrne v. Boodle (lhi.i , 
2 H. & C. 722, 159 E.R. 299, 33 L.J. (Ex.) 13, 12 W.R. «79, ti 
L.T. 450. They endeavour to do this by adducing experl cvi- 
dence to the effect that the plans of the building and the methods 
of workmanship followed were the beat known to the trade. Here 
they are met by the expert witnesses of the plaintiff (and 1 r fer 
particularly to McKay, an experienced builder), who allow iliat 
a much safer method might and should have been adopted, and 
is, in fact, adopted in practice. This evidence is of the clearest 
kind and is accepted by Embury, J., and, indeed, it is diffi iilt 
for me to aec how he could have rejected it. On such a sta', „f 
facts the plaintiff ia undoubtedly entitled to a verdict.

A question dors arise, however, as to whether both appellant* 
are liable, as found by Embury, J., or whether one of them only
is liable. It will have to be determined also whether the a....unt
awarded for damages is excessive, as submitted by the appellant».

Upon the first point, the appellants, Regina Trading Vo. eon. 
tend that the appellant McGregor was an independent contractor, 
and that, if there was any negligence causing the accident. »iieh 
negligence was that of hie employee or employees, and that they, 
as owners of the land and the building, are not responsihh

I take the rule to he that if a landowner engages a coni i actor 
to erect on his land a building of a dangerous charaetM the 
erection of which will likely cause damage to somebody, aid auek 
damage does occur from the faulty nature of the buihlii • the 
landowner is liable, because in ordering the construction "f the 
building, he has ordered the doing of the very thing which ha* 
caused the accident, (flower v. Pente (1876), 1 (j.U.I) :L’1,15 
L.J. (Q.B.) 446). Hut if, on the other hand, a landowner en­
gages a contractor to erect a proper building on his land mid in 
the course of the work an accident occurs through the negligence
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of one of the contractor's workmen, the landowner Ik not liable, 
«Ithough the contractor in, because then the maxim qui facit per 
ahum facit per *c, upon which the liability of one party for the 
wrongful act of another ia founded, will extend from the work­
man to the contractor, who is his employer, but not further so ns 
to reach the landowner. Reedie v. London dr N. W. R. Co. 
(1849), 4 Ex. 244, 154 E.R. 1201, 20 LJ. (Ex.) 65,13 Jur. 659.

It will be well to proceed, I think, by determining in the first 
place, as accurately as the evidence will allow, just how the acci­
dent occurred which caused the boy's death. A piece of iron 
of great weight fell from the third story of this building, which 
was in course of erection, and struck the deceased, who was upon 
a public lane adjoining the building. This iron, called an angle 
iron, had been placed, about 6 hours previously, across the top 
of « group of three windows on this third storey. It was placed 
in jMisition by the mechanics and workmen, and was supported on 
its outside by certain brick and mortar work. After being in­
stalled in this manner, the iron was allowed to remain untouched 
until a few minutes before the accident occurred, (a space, as 1 
have said, of about 6 hours), in order to allow the brick work 
time to dry and so to hold the iron secure before the work of 
building up the lintel was resumed. Sufficient time, or what was 
deemed to be sufficient time for the purpose, having elapsed, 
further work on the lintel was proceeded with. This work con­
sisted of pouring liquid cement in a groove liehind and against 
the angle iron. While the workman was engaged in pouring 
in this cement with a pail, and, according to his own evidence, 
after the height of the layer of cement at its north end had 
reached above the top of the iron and lay against the brick-work, 
iron and bricks gave way, the breach tieginning apparently at this 
north end, and the iron fell over and out into the lane.

There is no evidence to show that this accident was due to any 
carelessness on the part of the workman who was filling in the 
cement. The trial Judge has found, and I see no reason to differ 
from him in this regard, that the iron fell because it had not lieen 
secured in position sufficiently to prevent it from falling under 
pressure of the work to lie done liehind and aliout it. Evidence 
was adduced, and accepted by him, to show that it would have 
hecii possible to secure it in such a manner as to enable it to 
withstand the pressure and thus to prevent the accident. I agree 
with him also in this respect. Now the evidence shows that the 
first step in the work aliout the lintel consisted in building up 
the brick-work and laying the angle iron in place. Then there 
was a pause of several hours until the brick work was dry, after 
which the carpenters would put in the wooden planking to hold 
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the concrete, and finally the work would be taken up by those; 
whose duty it was to pour the concrete into the form. When, 
therefore, the brick wall was run up and the angle iron installed, 
everything should have been left, and according to the evidence 
it might have been left, in such a position that, once the brick­
work had dried, the structure would withstand the pressure ne­
cessitated by the work of filling in the concrete. It was not left 
in such a position, and this neglect was the cause of the accident. 
The work of putting up the brick and laying the angle iron was 
done under the supervision of Robert Foster, the foreman brick­
layer, and Foster took his directions from the plans and specifica­
tions furnished by the company’s architect, which he says he 
followed in every particular. When in doubt as to the execution 
of any part of his work, Foster consulted one Campbell, the archi­
tect’s inspector, and followed his instructions. He does not say 
that he had occasion to consult Campbell about anything concern­
ing the work on this particular lintel, but it cannot be doubted, 
I think, in view of all the evidence, that he did his part, which 
was the important part, of the work in full compliance with the 
design of the structure. This structure itself was, therefore, 
under the circumstances, of a dangerous nature, and the happen­
ing of the accident was due to that fact. Such being the cas--, 
the appellant company is liable. Even if the appellant McGregor 
was an “independent contractor,” and the foremen and work­
men his employees, the accident cannot, in my opinion, be said to 
be due to the casual or collateral negligence of McGregor or his 
servants, so as to relieve the company of liability. (21 Hals. sec. 
795 and cases cited ; see also Ilford (!as Co. v. Ilford Urban Dist. 
Couneü (1908), 67 J.P. 365).

We have next to determine whether there is any liability at all 
attaching to the appellant McGregor. This branch of the case 
requires careful investigation, as the facts are not entirely clear 
and free from contradiction. A contractor is, of course, liable 
for accidents resulting from his own negligence or that of his 
employees, and this liability may be his alone or may attach both 
to himself and his employer, according to the circumstances of 
the case. What then was McGregor’s status in regard to these 
building operations! The trial Judge has found that he was an 
independent contractor and jointly liable with the owner. With­
out determining whether or not he would have been liable if lie 
had, in fact, been an independent contractor, that is, a contractor 
to whom the entire control of the work is entrusted, (Hudson on 
Building Contracts, 4th ed., vol. 1, p. 802), I have come to the 
conclusion after a careful consideration of the evidence that he 
was not an independent contractor, but that by his agreement
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with the company he contracted for a fixed remuneration to 
furnish what is described as the “plant” required for the erec­
tion of the building, and to act as the company’s agent to employ 
men on the company’s behalf and to purchase all material, sub­
ject in each instance to the company’s approval as to price. This 
agreement is embodied in correspondence set out in the appeal 
iKiok on pp. 252-3 and 4. Despite some attempt to show the con­
trary. I think the evidence proves that the actual supervision and 
control of tiie building operations was, in fact, carried on by the 
company’s architect and the architect’s inspector, Campbell, each 
foreman taking his directions, not from McGregor or any agent 
of McGregor’s, but from Campbell. I think, therefore, with 
deference, that the Judge is in error in this part of his judgment, 
and that the appellant McGregor should be exonerated from lia­
bility towards the plaintiff.

With regard to the damages, I do not think any variation 
should be made in the award made by the trial Judge. In these 
cases under the Fatal Accidents Act, 1920, (Sask.) ch. 29, great 
perplexity must always prevail from the very nature of the 
matter. Many probabilities and possibilities must be weighed 
and considered regarding the deceased himself and each of the 
beneficiaries. When a Judge of King’s Bench has arrived at a 
conclusion on the different elements involved, it is not my duty, 
I take it, to substitute my judgment for his, unless I am con­
vinced that he has acted upon some wrong principal or that the 
amount fixed by him is unreasonably excessive. I have no such 
conviction in this case, and I think the award should be allowed 
to stand and judgment entered accordingly, with costs against the 
appellants, the Regina Trading Co.

There remains the question of costs. Before issuing his writ 
of summons in this action, the plaintiff obtained leave, on ex 
parte application, to join both appellants as defendants under 
the provisions of R. 38 of the King’s Bench Rules, and I think 
this was a proper case for such a joinder. The appellant com­
pany pleaded, in addition to a general denial of negligence, a 
further plea to the effect that the responsibility, if any existed, 
for the accident lay entirely with McGregor, as an independent 
contractor, and not w'ith the company. At the close of the plain­
tiff’s case, counsel for the company moved to have the action 
against the company dismissed on the ground that the plaintiff’s 
evidence disclosed that McGregor was an independent contractor 
ami solely responsible and that the nature of the work was such 
as to relieve the company from all liability. In these circum­
stances, 1 think the defendant company should pay the costs of 
action both of the plaintiff and of the defendant McGregor. I
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Man. think, however, that the plaintiff should pay the defendant Me 
Gregor’s costs of appeal. (Sanderson v. Blyth Theatre Co 
(1903] 2 K.B. 533,19 Times L.R. 660, 52 W.R. 33, 72 L.J. (K.H. 
761.)

The appeal of the Regina Trading Co. should he dismissed with 
costs and that of the appellant McGregor should be allowed with 
costs as provided above.

McKay, J.A., concurs with Tvrueon, J.A.
Judgment varied.

BENNETT v. PERRAULT.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, C.J.M., Cameron, Fullerton, Dennieh 

and Prendirgast, JJ.A. July 10, 1999.
Appeal ($ VII I—369a)—Findings or fact of trial Judge—Evident

IMPROBAHLE AND CONTRADICTED—REVERSAL BY COURT OF APPEAL.

While the Court of Appeal is reluctant to interfere with the finding 
of the trial Judge who has had the advantage of seeing the witness. . 
and observing their demeanor there may be other circumstances quite 
apart from manner and demeanor which may shew whether a statement 
is credible or not, and these circumstances may warrant the Court 
in differing from the Judge even on a question of fact turning on the 
credibility of witnesses whom the Court has not seen.

Held also that the evidence of the defendant as to an alleged 
guarantee of horses sold to him by the plaintiff was so improb­
able and was contradicted on so many points by defendant's own 
witnesses that the trial Judge was not justified in finding that 
this g’ irantee had been given.

l&ue Annotation, 58 D.L.R. 188.]

Appeal by plaintiff from a judgment in the County Court in 
an action to recover the amount of a lien note. Reversed.

E. D. Houeyman and J. E. Bissett, for appellant.
L. P. Roy, for respondent.
Perdue, —This is an appeal from the County Court

of St. Boniface. The suit is brought on a promissory note for 
$315 and interest, dated October 27, 1919, and payable on or 
before November 1, 1920. The note contains a lien agreem- ut 
declaring that it was given for a brown mare, a bay gelding, a 
harrow and a set of double harness, and that the title and owner­
ship of the property should remain in the payee until the note 
and interest should be paid, with the usual provisions for retak­
ing the property if the maker of the note should make default in 
payment. The defence relied on is that the note “was given in 
part for two horses sold by plaintiff to defendant and fully 
guaranteed by plaintiff to be in good health, sound and good for 
any work on the farm;” that the horses were at the time of the 
sale siek and absolutely unfit for work and incapable 
of doing any work; that defendant took good care of them 
but they died shortly after the sale. This is a de­
fence of partial failure of consideration for the giving of the
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note and should be set up by way of counterclaim : Maclaren on 
Bills and Notes, 5th ed., pp. 178-179. The defendant has set 
up a counterclaim, but it is confined to breach of warranty as to 
the condition of the horses and a claim for expenses for their 
.are and feed. The evidence shews that the mare died in May, 
1920, and the horse in November, 1920.

The County Court Judge made the following finding:—
“I find that the plaintiff guaranteed that the horses had no 

sickness and that if defendant found they were not as guaranteed 
lie need not pay the notes. Defendant was afraid to buy the 
horses as they did not look well. Plaintiff told defendant that 
he need not be afraid as the horses were O.K. 1 find that the 
plain meaning of this conversation was to the effect that if the 
horses were sick, or not in good condition that defendant could 
return the horses and plaintiff would return the note given, and 
that this conversation amounts to a condition and not a war­
ranty.”

The Judge finds that both horses were sick at the time.
Counsel for plaintiff objected to the reception of evidence 

relating to the alleged warranty or condition sought to be at­
tached to the promissory note in question. The note contains 
an unconditional promise to pay a certain sum of money on or 
before a certain date. Evidence of an oral agreement or con­
dition in direct conflict with the promise to pay should not be 
received: Taylor on Evidence, 11th ed., para. 1132. Parol evi­
dence of a verbal agreement made at the time of signing a promis­
sory note contradicting the terms of payment contained in the 
note is not admissible: Imperial Bank v. Brydun (1885), 2 Man. 
L.R. 117; Young v. Austen (1869), L.R. 4 C.P. 553, 38 L.J. 
(C.P.) 233; New London Credit Syndicate v. Neale, [ 1898] 2 
Q.B. 487, 67 L.J. (Q.B.) 825; Wilton v. Manitoba Independent 
Oil Co. (1915), 25 D.L.R. 243, 25 Man. L.R. 628.

The warranty sought to be proved is an alleged collateral 
agreement not in writing varying the terms of the contract set 
out in the lien note. In giving judgment in the House of Lords 
in lleilbut, Symons & Co. v. Buckleton, [1913] A.C. 30, at p. 47 : 
(82 L.J. (K.B.) 245), Lord Moulton said:—
“Such collateral contracts, the sole effect of which is to vary 

or add to the terms of the principal contract, are therefore viewed 
with suspicion by the law. They must be proved strictly. Not 
only the terms of such contracts but the existence of an animus 
contrahendi on the part of all parties to them must be clearly 
shewn. Any laxity on these points would enable parties to escape 
from the full performance of the obligations of contracts un­
questionably entered into by them and more especially would
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have the effect of lessening the authority of written contracts hy 
making it possible to vary them by suggesting the existence of 
verbal collateral agreements relating to the same subject-mat 
ter.”

Viscount Haldane, L.C. 11913] A.C. at p. 38, stated that he 
entirely agreed with Lord Moulton’s observations.

When we come to examine the evidence relating to the collat­
eral agreement or warranty set up by the defendant, we find 
the greatest uncertainty surrounding it. The defendant himself 
states it in many different ways. His first account is:—

“Before I signed the note I told Mr. Bennett ‘I am afraid to 
buy the team of horses, I think it looks bad.’ I said ‘I will 
sign the note if you guarantee the horses and if they are good 
for work.’ I said ‘If I find something wrong about that team of 
horses, if I find any sickness and if I cannot use the horses I 
will not pay you.’ I told him that three times. ... He said ' I 
guarantee my horses are good, Joe, good working horses, sound 
horses, no sickness’.”

The note was not signed at defendant’s farm. It was drawn 
up and signed in the store at Haywood to which place the parties 
went after arranging the sale. The horses had already hern 
delivered to defendant.

In cross-examination defendant said:—
“I told him three times. ‘I will buy your team if you guar­

antee same to me.’ He said, ‘I guarantee the horses to be in good 
condition.’ I said, ‘If 1 find something wrong with your horses 
1 will not pay you.’ Q. This is all that was said? A. He said. 
‘I guarantee my horses, don’t be afraid, they are O.K.’ Q. This 
is your guarantee that they were O.K.? A. He guaranteed the 
horses to do any kind of work on the farm. Q. When did this 
happen? A. He said, ‘The horses are O.K., you can do anything 
with them.’ Q. This is all that was said? A. I think it is 
enough. Q. This is all you know about it? A. Yes.”

Later on defendant gave the following answers as to the words 
plaintiff used in giving the guarantee:—“I told you before he 
guaranteed the horses to be O.K.” “He told me the horses were 
right.” “He told me the horses were all right.” He said. 11 
guarantee my horses are O.K.” “He said two or foui times, 
‘they are O.K.’ and ‘right’.”

Mrs. Perrault, the wife of the defendant, was present when 
the bargain was made. She states Bennett’s words were, “I 
guarantee the horses are good for work and everything.” He 
said, “They are O.K.”

Later on she stated :—“Mr. Bennett said, ‘You don’t need to 
be afraid as I guarantee the horses.’ He said that three times.”
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Now keeping in mind Lord Moulton’s statement of the law, 
we may well ask, whi t guarantee, if any, was given by the plain­
tiff? The plaintiff denies that he gave any guarantee. There are 
other facts which have an important hearing on this phase of 
the ease. Thu father and brothers of the defendant knew the 
horses in question. The defendant ki.ew the horses. Plaintiff 
owned the land adjoining the farm on which the Perraults lived 
and used the horses in cultivating his land. Thurit Perrault, the 
brother of the defendant, who was present when the latter pur­
chased them, says that they examined the horses and did not find 
anything wrong with them. The lien note sued upon was drawn 
upland signed in the store at Haywood after the sale had been 
made at defendant’s farm. Defendant’s evidence might give 
the impression that his request for a guarantee was made when 
he was about to sign the note. If that is the case, it would be a 
different conversation from the one which Mrs. Perrault heard 
at her house.

The plaintiff states that at the time of the sale the horses were 
in good condition. He had been working them through the 
spring, summer and fall. Hamilton, for whom lie had been 
working with the team, knew them and speaks of them as a 
good working team. He noticed nothing wrong with them. The 
horse had a slight rupture which Dr. Martin, the veterinary sur­
geon, thinks would not affect it. The horse had a slight sore on 
the hind foot which Hamilton called a rope scald. He saw 
nothing wrong with the mare. The plaintiff states that he 
pointed out the rupture to defendant before the sale. The plain­
tiff positively denies that he gave any guarantee. He states that 
defendant looked the horses over and noticed the sore on the 
horse’s foot and said he would soon fix that, that was nothing.

Thurit Perrault says that about eight days after the purchase 
they noticed the sore foot. They then commenced treating it. 
The defendant says that the morning after the sale lie found out 
there was something wrong with the horse’s foot, that he de­
tected it by the smell. It is strange that he did not detect it 
the day before. He then examined the mare and found her 
hack covered with pimples. They commenced.to doctor the horse 
themselves. They did not consult a veterinary. The treatment 
they applied to the horse would, in the opinion of Dr. Martin, 
aggravate the wound and cause sloughing. He diagnoses the 
mare’s disease as urticaria, or nettle-rash, caused by injudicious 
feeding, and not dangerous. He says there would be no smell 
from the sore in the horse’s foot. It is most likely that if a 
veterinary had been called in both horses could have been 
cured.

Man.

C.A.

Bknnbtt

Pebbavlt.

Perdue,
C.J.M.



168 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Man.

C.A.

Bennett

Perrault.

Perdue,
C.J.M.

The evidence of the defendant is a mass of contradictious. It 
would be dangerous to base any finding of fact upon it. His 
conduct also is most suspicious. After discovering the serious 
condition of the horse (according to his story), he did not bring 
it to the plaintiff’s attention, although the latter was in tin 
neighborhood until December 30. Plaintiff then took a trip to 
Scotland, returning in April, 1920. The defendant says he went 
to Hamilton’s to see plaintiff about the horses soon after tin- 
sale. Hamilton denies this. It is quite clear that if defendant 
really wished to complain of the condition of the horses or to 
make a demand on plaintiff l>efore the latter left for Scotland, 
he could easily have found him.

On the other hand, plaintiff states that he saw the horses 
after the sale about December 20 or 23 in defendant’s stable. 
Plaintiff then asked defendant how the horses were getting along 
and the latter said they were getting along all right. Plaintiff 
looked at the horses and they were both in pretty good shape. 
He looked at the sore on the horse’s foot and it appeared to be 
no worse than it was before. Defendant made no complaint at 
that time. Defendant denies this interview. Hamilton saw tin- 
horses once or twice during the winter after the sale and they 
appeared to be in fair shape. He saw them at Haywood hitched 
to a sleigh with rack.

The defendant left his farm in April, 1920. He asked his 
father, who lived on the adjoining farm, to look after the horses. 
The latter says he turned them out to pasture where they re-" 
inained until they died. No witness outside the Perrault family 
was called by defendant to testify as to the condition of tin- 
horses. The evidence of defendant, his father and brother n- 
to the stench from both horses’ sores, which, imperceptible b»- 
fore, manifested itself almost immediately after the sale, is in­
credible. The Judge, in the passage from his judgment quoted 
above, finds that the plain meaning of the conversation between 
the parties was “to the effect that if the horses were sick, or not 
in good condition, that defendant could return the horses and 
plaintiff would return the note.”

There is no evidence that the plaintiff agreed to such a condi­
tion. The defendant himself says nothing about returning t h«* 
horses and getting back the note. What he said was that if he 
found something trrong with the team he would not pay the 
plaintiff. Mrs. Perrault’s evidence as to defendant’s statement 
is, “my husband said if your horses are no good I won’t pay 
you.”

This Court is reluctant to interfere with the finding of the trial 
Judge who has had the advantage of seeing the witnesses and
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observing their demeanour, but as pointed out by Lindley, M.R., Man. 
in Coghlan v. Cumberland, [1898] 1 Ch. 704 at p. 705, 67 L.J. Z~7" 
(Ch.) 402, _

“There may obviously be other circumstances, quite apart Bennett 
from manner and demeanour, wh vh may show whether a state- PrBJ);,„T
ment is credible or not ; and these circumstances may warrant the ___
Court in differing from the Judge, even on a question of fact Cameron, j.a.
i urning on the credibility of witnesses whom the Court has not
seen.”

In Smith v. Chadwick, (1884), 9 App. Cas. 187, at p. 194, 53 
L.J. (Ch.) 873, Lord Blackburn said :—

“The Court of Appeal ought to give great weight, but not 
undue weight, to the opinion of the Judge who tried the cause, 
and saw the witnesses and their demeanour. . . . But still, 
though the Court of Appeal ought not lightly to find against 
the opinion of the Judge who tried the cause, I think that the 
Court of Appeal, if convinced that the inference in favour of the 
plaintiff ought not to have lieen drawn from the evidence, should 
find the verdict the other way.”

See also Creighton v. Pacific Coast Lumber Co. (1899), 12 
Man. L.R. 546.

1 think the County Court Judge should not have found on the 
evidences that the horses were sold on the guarantee or condition 
mentioned in the judgment. With respect, 1 think the evidence 
did not justify the finding. 1 would set aside the judgment 
entered for the defendant and enter judgment for the plaintiff 
for $315 with interest at 7% per annum up to November 1, 
1920, and 5% from the last-mentioned date until judgment. 
The plaintiff is entitled to costs in the County Court and the 
Court of Appeal.

Cameron, J.A. :—This action was brought to recover the 
amount of a lien note given for a team of horses. The County 
Court Judge before whom the case was tried found for the de­
fendant. The following extract from his judgment gives the 
ground of his decision : [See judgment of Perdue, C.J.M., p. 
165.]

He further says:—
“It is evident that the defendant had a right according to the 

terms of the agreement to return the horses and get his note 
hack as the horses were far from being O.K. or in good condition 
and able to work.”

We have here a finding of fact which is directly challenged. 
Tlii* Court is reluctant to interfere in such eases as a trial Judge 
has an unquestionable advantage, not available to an Appellate 
Court, in dealing with the facts. But this Court can and does 
exercise its appellate jurisdiction in such cases on principles
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Man. which have frequently been laid down. An authoritative de- 
c A vision on the subject is to be found in Creighton v. Pacific Coast 
_L Lumber Co., 12 Man. L.R. 546, followed in Chalmers v. Mach rail 

Bennett (1916), 26 D.L.R. 529, 26 Man. L.R. 105, affirmed (1917), 39 
_ v‘ D.L.R. 396, 55 Can. S.C.R. 612. This Court is a Court of Appeal

'___ ’ from a single Judge of the King’s Bench upon questions of fact
Fullerton, J.A. «s well as questions of law. As to appeals from the County 

Court this Court has by see. 343 of the County Courts Act, R.S. 
M., 1913, ch. 44, power to draw inferences of fact and to decide 
all questions of fact as well as of law.

It has been repeatedly held that the evidence of a contem­
poraneous oral agreement is not admissible to vary the effect of 
a promissory note or bill of exchange. This is not a case where 
the instrument is merely delivered as an escrow when the evi­
dence is properly receivable. See Wilton v. Manitoba Indepen­
dent Oil Co., 25 D.L.R. 243, 25 Man. L.R. 628, and the authorities 
there cited. On these principles the evidence on which the Judge 
bases his finding that there was a guarantee and if the defendant 
found the horses were not as guaranteed he need not pay the 
notes, should be excluded.

Apart from these considerations I am unable to agree with 
the County Court Judge in his findings of fact and in the in­
ferences he has drawn from the evidence. It is to be Motived 
that he passes over the evidence of Hamilton, a disinterested wit­
ness. Nor does the trial Judge refer to the significant contin t 
between the evidence of the defendant and that of Thurit Per­
rault, his brother and partner. Moreover, the story told by the 
defendant plainly invites criticism and is suggestive of after­
thought on his iart. 1 have read the judgment of Fullerton, 
J.A., and agree with his reasoning and conclusions and would al­
low the appeal.

Fullerton, J.A.:—The defendant is sued as the maker of a 
lien note for the sum of $315, given for the price of one brown 
mare, one bay gelding, one five-section drag harrow and one set 
of double working harness. The defendant counterclaims for a 
breach of warranty of the horses.

The sale was made at the defendant’s farm near Haywood, on 
October 27, 1919. Defendant says he saw nothing wrong with 
the horses on the day he bought them, but that the next morning 
he discovered that the horse had his right hind foot cut very 
badly between the hoof and the fetlock joint and that the mare 
had pimples on her back, that for some time he treated them but 
without success and that early in April, 1920, he gave up his 
farm and left the horses in charge of his father who lived on an 
adjoining farm. The mare died in May, 1920, and the horse in
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the following November. Defendant says the horses were never 
able to work.

The warranty alleged is that the horses were in good health, 
sound, and fit for any work on the farm.

The County Court Judge has found “that the plaintiff guar­
anteed that the said horses had no sickness and that if defendant 
found they were not as guaranteed he need not pay the notes.”

He further found that this guarantee amoun'ed to a condi­
tion and not a warranty and gave judgment for die defendant.

In Coghlan v. Cumberland, [ 1898] 1 Ch. 704, 67 L.J. (Ch.) 
402, Lindley, M.R., delivering the judgment of the Court of Ap­
peal, after pointing out that when the question arises which 
witness is to be believed rather than another and that question 
turns on manner and demeanour the Court of Appeal always is 
guided by the impression made on the Judge who saw the wit­
nesses, goes on to say : [See judgment of Perdue, C.J.M., p. 169], 
1 think this ease is one to which the remarks of Lindley, M.R. 
strictly apply. The evidenee of the defendant as to the alleged 
warranty is not only improbable but he i„ also contradicted on 
material points by his own witnesses. The plaintiff swears that no 
warranty was given. The defendant’s evidence on the point is 
as follows :—

“Before I sign the note I told Mr. Bennett ‘1 am afraid to buy 
the team of horses. I think it looks bad.’ I said ‘I will sign the 
note if you guarantee the horses and if they are good for work.’ 
I said ‘If I find something wrong about the team of horses, 
if I find any sickness and if I cannot use the horses I will 
not pay you.’ I told him that three times, (j. What did he say 
to that ! A. He said ' I guarantee my horses are good, Joe, good 
working horses, sound horses, no sickness.’ (j. Did you look at 
the horses? A. I did not look very much at the horses. He 
came on a day there was snow, a wet day; the feet of the horses 
were wet and you could not see much.”

On cross-examination:—“Q. What did he say? He said, 'Joe, 
do you want to buy a team of horses?’ I said, ‘Yes, if it is good.' 
Q. You were thinking of buying the team? A. I intended to buy 
them, but I was afraid they looked bad. (j. Did you look them 
over ? A. No, I just looked around and took his word. They had 
longhair. Q. You said you thought the horses looked hadf A. 
They were looking bad to me, and I was afraid to buy them. Q. 
You never inspected them? I looked the horses around. Q. What 
looked had to you ? A. They had long hair. The long hair should 
be taken off the last week in February or March, (j. There was 
nothing else then? A. I could not see the feet they had long 
hair. Q. The long hair made you afraid ? A. Sometimes the long
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hair make somebody blind. Q. You looked over the horses? A. 
No, 1 asked him if they were alright, he said they were alright. 
Q. What happened in the house ? A. . . . I said,‘Mr. Ben­
nett, I will buy that team of horses if you guarantee that team 
to me/ 1 asked him three times. Q. What did you ask him three 
times? A. I told him three times, ‘I will buy your team if you 
guarantee same to me.’ He said, ‘I guarantee the horses to In­
in good condition/ Q. This is all that was said? A. He said, ‘I 
guarantee my horses, don’t be afraid, they are O.K.’ Q. This is 
your guarantee that they were O.K.? A. He guaranteed the 
horses to do any kind of work on the farm. Q. When did this 
happen? A. He said,‘The horses are O.K. You can do anything 
with them/”

Now, to my mind, this story on tin face of it does not ring 
true. In the first place, he admits he could see nothing wrong 
with the horses, but insists that he was afraid of them because 
they were looking bad and presumably for that reason wanted a 
guarantee. When pressed on cross-examination as to what he 
meant by saying the horses looked had, his only explanation 
was that they had long hair. The proposition that long hair on 
a horse would indicate to anyone defects, inability to work ami 
the possession of the seeds of future sickness is certainly a new 
one. It seems somewhat extraordinary that without any reason 
for thinking there was anything wrong with the horses he should 
have made such careful provision against sickness and inability 
to work.

Again, he seeks to give the impression that he only made a 
cursory examination of the horses as he relied entirely on tin- 
plaintiff’s warranty although the plaintiff was practically a 
stranger to him and he knew that he had sold his farm and was 
shortly to leave for the Old Country.

Admittedly there was a sore on the right hind leg of the horse- 
at the time of the sale. Plaintiff says it was the size of a fifty 
cent piece, but not deep enough for a scab to grow on it. Plain 
tiff further says that defendant saw this and said “he would soon 
fix that, that was nothing.” Hamilton, an independent witness, 
describes the sore as ‘‘a little kind of like a scald; it might have 
!>een a rope scald at one time.”

The defendant says that he did not notice this sore on the day 
of the sale and he gives two explanations for his failure to sec it, 
(1) that the horse was wet, (2) that he had long hair. These e 
planations are too ridiculous to be entitled to any serious con­
sideration. Hamilton evidently had no difficulty in seeing it amt 
the defendant’s father, who saw the horse the same week, noticed 
it at once. The defendant’s story of how he came to discover
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the sore is also on a par with the rest of his story. Although he 
admits he was in the stable where the horse was the day of the 
sale he says the next morning he noticed a bad smell and on in­
vestigation discovered the sore. He also says the mare smelled so 
badly he examined her and found pimples on her back. His 
sense of smell must have been extraordinary, as Dr. Martin says 
there would be no smell io such a sore as the defendant described.

The story told by the defendant, if it stood alone, is to my 
mind so full of improbabilities and absurdities as to be unworthy 
of belief. He is, however, in direct conflict with his brother, 
Tliurit, who was called as a witness on his behalf.

Thurit Perrault, who was a partner of the defendant, worked 
with him on the farm and appears to have had the most to do 
with the care of the horses, says that it was eight days after the 
sale before they noticed the sore on the horse’s foot, and from 
fifteen days to a month after the sale before they noticed the 
lumps on the mare’s back. The defendant says that three days 
after the sale he and his brother drove over to Hamilton’s place 
looking for the plaintiff to get him to take the horses back and 
two days later he visited Winnipeg in search of the plaintiff. It 
is clear from the above that the story of the defendant and his 
brother are in direct conflict.

For the above reasons, I find that the plaintiff gave no war­
ranty or guarantee of the said horses.

The appeal must be allowed with costs, the judgment below’ 
set aside, and judgment entered for the plaintiff for the amount 
claimed together with the costs of the action.

Dennistoun and Prendergast, JJA. concurred with Fuller­
ton, J.A. Appeal allowed.

HERBERT v. SCHOOL COMMISSIONERS OF ST. FELICIEN.
Supreme Court of Canada, Idingl<• Duff, Anglin, Brodeur and Mignault, 

JJ. e 20, 1921.
Schools ($ IV—77)—Pubcha ^ building fob school purposes—Ap­

proval of Libutenam Governor in Council—L.8.Q. 1909,
articles 2723, 2724—Construction.

Article 2723 R.S.Q. 1909, which authorises the school boards in each 
municipality to purchase property for school purposes is not conditioned 
by article 2724 in such fashion as to require the school authorities to 
obtain the sanction of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council before mak­
ing such purchase.

Appeal from the judgment of the Court of King’s Bench, ap­
peal side, Province of Quebec (1921), 31 Que. K.B. 458, reversing 
the judgment of the Superior Court sitting in review (1920), 59 
Que. S.C. 119, and affirming the judgment of the trial Court. 
Affirmed.
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Bclcourt, K.C., for the appellants.
G Barclay, for respondents.
Idinoton, J. :—This appeal arises out of proceedings taken to 

quash and annul the resolution of respondent, which reads as 
follows :—

“It was proposed by Mr. Philippe Tremblay and unanimously 
resolved that the Commission buy the Chibougamou Hotel and the 
land adjoining the said hotel for the price of $26,000 on the fol 
lowing conditions: $1,500 cash, and the balance at $500 per 
annum without interest ; it is agreed with the vendors to make 
the cash payment within a delay of 5 years, bearing interest at 
7% and that the president and secretary-treasurer be authorized 
to sign the contract after said resolution comes into force.”

I have great doubts of our jurisdiction to hear this appeal.
The case of Shawinigan Hydro-Electric Co. v. Shamnigaii 

Water and Voter Vo. (ISIS), 4 DU. 60S, 45 Can. 8.C.R. 686 
relied upon was differently constituted, for there the action Mas 
brought not only against the municipality but also the company 
that had contracted with the said municipality and that contract 
was impeached by a ratepayer as plaintiff and an injunction was 
sought restraining the carrying out of such an ultra vires con­
tract, as that was, for several reasons. See that case as reporte I 
(1910), 43 Can. S.C.R. 650, on motion to quash.

Here the vendor is not a party and what we are asked to in­
terfere with is a mere resolution of the council which may be 
executed by the adoption of proper methods even if there is any­
thing objectionable in the initial step.

It may be quite competent for the Courts below acting under 
sec. 50 C.C.P. (Que.), or other like legislation giving a superin­
tending power to deal with such a resolution, yet be quite incom­
petent for us, who are not given the right to hear appeals in that 
regard, to attempt to do so.

The whole matter involved is, as Allard, J., 31 Que. K.I3. 458, 
in the reasons he assigns in support of the judgment appealed 
from says, purely a matter of administration.

Passing that objection I made to hearing the appeal, but for 
which I got no support, and therefore to the merits of the appeal, 
I am unable to see how the express terms of sec. 2723, R.S.Q. 
1909, can be overruled.

Sections 2 and 3 thereof are as follows :—
“2. To acquire and hold for the corporation all moveable, im­

moveable property, moneys or income, and to apply the same for 
the purposes for which they are intended.

3. To select and acquire the land necessary for school sites; 
to build, repair, and keep in order all school-houses and their «le-
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pendencies ; to purchase or repair school furniture; to lease tem­
porarily or accept the gratuitous use of houses and other build­
ings, fulfilling the conditions required by the regulations of the 
committees, for the purpose of keeping school therein.”

There is no such restriction upon these express powers as to 
entitle us to interfere.

The implications sought in other sections do not seem to me 
available.

And when we find counsel for appellant driven to the resort 
of submitting that the credit given for a term of years must be 
read as if a loan, 1 cannot follow him.

It might well l>e that legislation declaring that to tie the effect 
or implication of such a bargain as before us would be wise, but 
to so read the Act seems to me would be to legislate, and that is 
not within our province.

1 am unable either to read these subsections as implying that 
land bought for such a purpose must be free from buildings or 
structures of any kind, either useful or useless.

It is quite conceivable that the draftsman of the Act never 
contemplated such a good bargain chance as this possibly is. Hut 
that surmise does not help us for where we are to draw the line.

The other objections, certainly at this stage of the litigation, 
are not such as would entitle us to reverse the Court below.

In the tihawinigan case, 4 D.L.R. 502, 45 Can. S.C.R. 585, re­
lied upon, there were involved such express statutory restrictions 
upon both the nature of the bargain and the term of credit, as 
arc not to be found in the legislation invoked by the appellants 
to help out their contentions, so far as we are entitled to consider 
them.

I am of the opinion that this appeal should be dismissed with
costs.

Duff, J.:—I concur with the view of the Court of King’s 
Bench, 31 Que. K.B. 458, that the authority given by the third 
sub section of see. 2723, R.S.Q., 1909, is not conditioned by sec. 
2724 in such fashion as to require the school authorities to obtain 
the sanction of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council before ex­
ercising it. Section 2724 confers, in my opinion, supplementary 
powers.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Anglin, J.:—Allard, J., has dealt so satisfactorily with the 

several objections taken by the appellant to the validity and 
legality of the resolution in question in this action, that I 
feel I cannot do better than adopt his reasons for holding those 
objections ill founded.

It may be that a transaction such as that before us in one
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which the law might very properly make subject to the approval 
of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council, or, at least, to that of the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction, in order that School Com 
missioners may not find themselves loaded with a costly building 
which may not lie approved of as suitable for school purpose 
But the law has not so provided. On the contrary, it has entrust 
ed the acquisition of immovables for their purposes to the dis 
cretion of the School Commissioners.

There may also be some ground for suspecting the wisdom or 
even the singleness of purpose of the acquisition of a hotel pro 
perty for school purposes. The appellant would invoke in that 
connection the supervisory power conferred by sec. 50 C.C.P. on 
the Superior Court. But since the Court of King’s Bench diil 
not regard this as a case calling for intervention under that ex­
traordinary jurisdiction, I cannot but think it would be a mis­
take for this Court to attempt to exercise it even were there in 
the record evidence of facts from which indiscretion or a lack of 
good faith on the part of the Commissioners might be inferred. 
No such facts are shewn and not a single witness has deposed to 
his belief either that the projected purchase is improvident, or 
that the Commissioners in undertaking it were actuated by any 
motive other than a desire to discharge their duty to those whom 
they represent.

Brodeur, J. :—The plaintiffs sue the School Commissioners of 
St. Félicien to quash a resolution passed by the latter on October 
12, 1919. This resolution provided for the purchase of the ("hi- 
bougamou Hotel at a cost of $26,000, of which $1,500 was to be 
payable during the next 5 years, and the balance at $500 per 
annum without interest. It was thoroughly understood that this 
property was bought in order that it might be converted into a 
school house.

Section 2610, R.S.Q. 1909, imposed upon the Commissioners 
the duty of maintaining a school in each district.

Now as the school house in the district in question was in a 
bad state of repair and no longer fulfilled the requirements of 
the law, having been condemned by the sanitary authorities, and 
being furthermore built upon land which did not belong to the 
Commissioners, it became necessary for the latter to build a new 
one; so they thought of this hotel and decided to acquire it.

The public notice required by sec. 2787, R.S.Q. 1909, was duly 
given on November 2, 1919. The ratepayers interested had !0 
days to appeal to the Circuit Court from this decision of the 
Commissioners (secs. 2981-2982 R.S.Q. 1909), but they did no­
thing of the kind. This right of appeal gives the Circuit Court 
the rif;ht to render the decisions which the Commissioners should
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have rendered and, consequently, gives the Court the powers 
necessary to prevent any illegality or injustice of which the Com­
missioners might be guilty (sec. 2988). So long as judgment is 
not rendered on this appeal, the decision of the Commissioners 
is suspended (sec. 2990, R.S.Q. 1909).

No appeal was taken by the appellants Hébert et al or by other 
ratepayers. The plaintiffs preferred to proceed by way of an 
action before the Superior Court and they asked that the resolu­
tion be quashed and annulled, “as being illegal, unjust and ultra 
vires.”

The Superior Court is not a Court of Appeal from decisions 
of School Commissioners. The jurisdiction of the Superior Court 
in school matters is derived from sec. 50 C.C.P. It has the power 
of control and supervision only, very different from the powers 
of a Court of Appeal. A Court of Appeal substitutes its opinion 
on the merits of the case for that of the Court which rendered 
the original judgment, while the Superior Court, under the au­
thority of see. 50 C.C.P., has not the right to encroach upon the 
functions which belong exclusively to the scholastic authorities 
and to substitute its opinion for that of such authorities on the 
merits of resolutions irregularly passed by the latter, and within 
tile limits of their powers. (Theriault v. Corporation of St. 
Alexander (1900), 8 Rev. de Jur. 526).

Thus in the present case the Circuit Court had full jurisdiction 
to inquire into the injustice of the resolution that is attacked, but 
the Superior Court can at the very most inquire if the School 
Corporation acted in excess of its powers, if it committed an il­
legal act, or if the resolution attacked constitutes an absolute 
denial of justice. Brunette v. Corporation of Princeville (1907), 
17 Que. K.B. 99; Corporation of Saint Pierre v. Marcoux (1908), 
17 Que. K.B. 172; Oiguére v. Corporation of Beauce (1910), 19 
Que. K.B. 353; Corporation of Ste. Julie v. Massue (1904), 13 
Que. K.B. 228 ; Theriault v. Corporation of St. Alexander, supra. 
We have, therefore, to decide, first of all,if the purchase of the 
ground in question was ultra vires.

As I have already said the Commissioners are required to main­
tain a school in each district (art. 2610). They must see that the 
rules concerning hygiene are observed in connection therewith 
(secs. 2707-9). Now it has been proved that the place where the 
school was held had become unhealthy. It was, therefore, their 
bounden duty to build a new schoolhouse. The land upon which 
the old schoolhouse was situated did not belong to them; and, 
therefore, they considered it advisable to buy the Chibougamou 
Hotel which could probably be converted into a schoolhouse.

Had they the right to buy this property ! Article 2723 of the
18—68 D.L.*.
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School Code has been much discussed, but, in my opinion, it is 
not to this article that we must look to find the power of school 
corporations. This art. 2723 is, in fact, included under the 
heading “Of the powers of Commissioners and trustees relative 
to school properties.” It would be more to the point to look for 
the enumerating of the powers of school corporations ; and this is 
found in sec. 2635, R.S.Q. 1909. This sec. 2635, after declaring 
that the Commissioners form a corporation adds:—

“They shall have perpetual succession, may sue and be sued, 
and shall generally have the same powers which any other cor 
poration has with regard to the purposes for which they were 
constituted.”

We see by the sec. 358, C.C. (Que.) that a corporation can ex­
ercise all the rights necessary to enable it to fill the purpose for 
which it is destined. Thus, it may acquire, alienate and possess 
goods, it may contract, bind itself and obligate others towards it. 
If, by the general laws applicable in any particular case, these 
powers of buying or alienating were restricted, the corporation 
would naturally be obliged to respect such laws. Similarly, if 
duties were imposed upon it by the law to which it was subject, 
it would have to respect them.

As for school corporations, they have power to purchase land 
for school purposes, as I have just explained. We have now to 
see if there are any articles among the school laws which might, 
restrain this right.

Section 2723, which is invoked by the appellant, far from 
restricting its powers, imposes, on the contrary, a duty upon the 
School Commissioners to acquire lands necessary for the erection 
of their schools. The law requires further that their school- 
houses be built in conformity with the plans and specifications 
furnished by the superintendent, but there is nothing to restrict 
the power of the Commissioners to buy a piece of land with a 
house upon it. They could not, however, convert this house into 
a school unless it were built in such a way as to meet the require­
ments imposed by the departmental authorities (sec. 2746 R.S. 
Q., 1909). But these dispositions cannot affect the right of the 
Commissioners to buy the house. It has not been proved in this 
case that the house which was bought could not be converted into 
an excellent school. Consequently, there is nothing in the case to 
justify our saying that the sale was not even desirable.

Section 2724, R.S.Q. 1909, has also been invoked in support of 
the contention that the resolution is ultra vires. This article de­
clares that :—

“With the authorisation of the Lieutenant-Governor in Coun­
cil, given upon the recommendation of the superintendent, school
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boards may enter into agreements tor school purposes with any 
person, institution or corporation."

This article is, perhaps, not as clear as one could wish. Liter­
ally interpreted it might mean that the Commissioners were, 
practically, unable to adopt a resolution without going before the 
Lieutenant-Governor in Council to have it authorised. This 
article, evidently, refers, as other Judges in the inferior Courts 
have said that it does, to a restriction imposed upon the Commis­
sioners to refrain from making agreements with educational es­
tablishments for the tuition of their children for a period of sev­
eral years without having obtained the required authorisation. 
This shows a desire to see that instruction given in schools is of 
a proper moral and religious character ; so, the departmental au­
thorities reserve to themselves the right to advise the Commis­
sioners before they become involved and bind the school corpora­
tion. That is the object of sec. 2724.

The resolution is, therefore, not ultra vires.
It is also said that the resolution is illegal because the purchase 

was made on credit, that this constitutes a loan and that school 
corporations cannot borrow without the authorisation of the 
Lieutenant-Governor in Council (sec. 2727, R.S.Q. 1909).

This is not a contract of loan, but a contract of sale on credit. 
These are two very different things. What is a loan! It is a con­
tract by which the lender gives the borrower a certain quantity 
of things under an obligation by the latter to return a like quan­
tity of things of the same kind and quality (sec. 1777, C.C.) 
Sale is a contract whereby one person gives a thing to another for 
a price in money (sec. 1472, C.C.) The purchaser may obtain a 
delay for the payment of the price (sec. 1533, C.C.) The con­
tract of sale gives rise to rights which do not exist in the case 
of a loan (sec. 2008-9, C.C.)

Loan at interest and sale on credit with a stipulation for in­
terest are, I admit, very similar, but they must not be confused 
one with another, especially when it is a question of ultra vires or 
illegality. If the law forbids a person to borrow, it does not 
necessarily follow that that person is also unable to buy, on th.i 
contrary, if he has been given specifically the power to purchase, 
he does not commit an act in excess of his powers if he enters into 
a contract of purchase.

The appellants also pretend that the resolution should have 
provided for the mode of payment either by taxation, loan, or a 
bond issue.

Section 2903, R.S.Q. 1909, seems to admit that a debt can be 
contracted without the formality of a loan. The Commissioners
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can acquire a property by sale on credit and, in consequence of 
such fact, the school municipality may become indebted.

A decision to this effect was rendered in 1881 by the Court of 
Appeal in a case of La Corporation du Village de L’Auomptmi 
v. Baker (1881), 4 Leg. News (Que.) 370. This jurisprudence 
appears to have been accepted and the legislature has never in­
tervened to set it aside, at least as far as school corporations arc 
concerned.

As for the question of injustice raised by the appellant, I think 
that is a question which can only be decided by the Circuit Court 
as a Court of Appeal. There is nothing in the case which in­
duces us to declare that there was an absolute denial of justice.

For all these reasons, the appeal should be dismissed with 
costs.

Mionault, J. :—This case, in which a demand is made for the 
annulment by reason of illegality of a resolution of the respon 
dents providing for the purchase of a hotel to be converted into a 
schoolhouse, reaches this Court after having been decided already 
by three Courts. The Superior Court and the Court of Appeal de­
cided in favour of the respondents ; the Court of Review, on the 
contrary, upheld the appellants, and there were dissenting opin­
ions both in the Court of Review and the Court of Appeal. It 
seems to me that when all the Courts of the Province of Quebec 
have been called upon to pronounce on the validity of adminis­
trative or other acts of a municipal or school corporation, the dis­
pute should be exhausted and, unless there is ground under the 
law governing the right of appeal to this Court at the time of the 
institution of the present action for throwing doubt upon our 
jurisdiction to make a decision of the dispute between the parties, 
I regard with regret the persistence of the parties in thus ruining 
themselves with costs in order to decide a question which is of 
very minor local importance. I cannot refrain from thinking 
that the dispute has arisen out of a village quarrel. At all events 
the School Commissioners for the municipality of St. Félicien 
seem to me to have sought in good faith to procure a more suit­
able building than that which is at present used as a school in 
district No. 1 of that municipality, which latter building has been 
condemned by competent authority as being unhealthy.

I have read the whole record and I have no hesitation in dis­
missing the appeal for the reasons given by Allard, J., in which I 
entirely concur.

Appeal ditmisud.
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•HTANDARl) MARINE INH. Co. v. WIIALEN PI LP * PAPER B.C.
MILIjH Ltd. ------

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Martin, MrPhillips C.A. 
and Eberts, JJ.A. January 10, 19Si.

Insurance ($ HIE—109)—Seaworthiness or vessel—Knowledge of as­
sured—Floating policy.

Where in marine insurance the vessel is covered by a floating policy, 
non-disclosure on the part of the assured of matters as to its un- 
seaworthiness arising after the execution of the policy of marine in­
surance or of his prior knowledge that the vessel was once refused 
insurance, does not affect the liability of the insurer.

Appeal by defendant from judgment of Murphy, J. Reversed.
E. C. Mayen and A. //. Douglas, for appellant.
E. P. Davis, K.C. and Ghent Davis, for respondent.
Macdonald, C.J.A. :—The plaintiffs issued to the defendants a 

Moating policy of marine insurance to cover wood pulp to be 
transported from Mill Creek near Vancouver, “in the ship or 
vessel called the Steamers approved, including risk of North 
Bend barge and 2 scows.”

The defendants chartered a barge or scow called the “Bar- 
amba” from the Kingsley Navigation Co. of Vancouver, and sent 
lier to Mill Creek to be loaded and while in the course of being 
h aded she sank at defendant’s wharf. The claim for insurance 
was paid and after proceedings had been commenced against the 
Kingsley Navigation Co. by the plaintiffs, who had been subro­
gated to defendant’s rights, for damages, the plaintiffs allege 
that they discovered that the defendants were aware of the unsea­
worthiness of the “Baramba” prior to loading and had not com­
municated this fact to the plaintiffs. They, therefore, discon­
tinued that action and sued the defendants to recover the insur­
ance money paid to them.

Mr. Davis, in his argument at the trial submitted his ease in 
these words :—

“We were asked to insure the cargoes and we undertook to 
admit seaworthiness of any vessel that was used ; therefore, if 
the vessel was unseaworthy and defendants didn’t know about 
it, we were liable. And although we knew when we paid that she 
was unseaworthy, we didn’t know that the defendant had been 
aware of that and he hadn’t told us and that is our whole cause 
of action. ’ ’

Mr. Mayers argued that there was no such duty ; that the 
policy being a floating one no subsequent non-disclosure could 
invalidate it. Had it been a ship contract and not a ship or 
ships contract, he admits his clients would have been liable.

“The contract of an underwriter who subscribes a policy on 
goods by ship or ships to be declared, is that he will insure any 

•Affirmed by the Supreme Court of Canada, 68 D.L.R. 269.
13—68 d.l.r.
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goods of the description specified which may be shipped on any 
vessel answering the description, if any there be in the policy, 
on the voyages specified in the policy to which the assured elects 
to apply the policy. The object of the declaration is to earmark 
and identify the particular adventure to which the assured elects 
to apply the policy. The assent of the assurer is not required to 
ihis for he has no option to reject any vessel which the assured 
may select.” (Lord Blackburn in lonidet v. Pacific Insurant 
Co. (1871), L.R. 6 Q.B. 674 at p. 682).

Now what defendants did know was that the “Baramba” was 
refused insurance. They had been told that she had l»een over­
hauled and was in good condition, they, therefore, undertook to 
insure her themselves by agreeing to return her to her owners in 
good condition. The letters of Brennan, the defendants’ man­
ager at Mill Creek, were written after the event and are based 
on statements of the captain of the tug which brought the 
“Baramba” to Mill Creek, made after the event. That they 
were not accepted as admissions, that the defendants knew of 
the unseaworthiness of the “Baramba” before the loss, is 
apparent from the Judge’s finding. He found, and he bases his 
judgment on that finding, that the defendants knew that insur­
ance could not be got on the “Baramba”. He finds her to 
have been unsea worthy but that the defendants did not consider 
her so. It appears from the argument at the trial, which is 
contained in the appeal book, that counsel did not call to the 
attention of the Judge the fact that this was a floating policy 
and that while the absence of full disclosure of all material facts 
before the contract was executed would vitiate it, that that rule 
does not at all events in all its strictness, apply to non-disclosure 
of matters arising after execution of the policy. Here the con­
tract had already been made before the facts came into existence 
which the defendants contend ought to have been disclosed. The 
company was already bound and in the absence of evidence of 
knowledge of unseaworthiness on the part of the defendants, 
(and perhaps with such knowledge, though I do not decide this) 
they cannot resist payment.

I think the appeal should be allowed and the action dismissed.
Martin, J.A., would allow the appeal.
McPhii.lips, J.A. (dissenting) :—This appeal brings up for 

consideration a point of very considerable nicety in marine insur­
ance law.

Mr. Mayers the counsel for the appellant, in a careful and able 
argument, develops the appeal upon the postulation that the trial 
Judge had misconceived the principle of law upon which the 
case must necessarily be decided, that is, that the insurance was
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in its nature a floating policy, and all goods on whatever ships 
carried were insured and fell automatically under the policy 
once the insurance was effected.

The counsel for the appellant strongly relied upon lonides v. 
Pacific Fire <f? Marine Insurance Co. (1871), L.R. 6 Q.B. 674; 
(1872), L.R. 7 Q.B. 517, 41 L.J. (Q.B.) 190, 21 W.R. 22; Cory v. 
Patton (1872), L.R. 7 Q.B. 304, 41 L.J. (Q.B.) 195n, 20 W.R. 
164; Lishman v. Northern Maritime Ins. Co. (1873), L.R. 8 C.P. 
216; (1875) L.R. 10 C.P. 179, 44 L.J. (C.P.) 185. 23 W.R. 733— 
might also be referred to—these cases are certainly forceful upon 
a similar state of facts—hut here the fact is and it is so found 
by the trial Judge, that the ship upon which the goods were tu 
be carried was uninsurable to the knowledge of the assured. If 
a ship lie uninsurable surely that is a material matter and should 
be made known to the insurer, it in my opinion is cogent evidence 
of unseaworthiness. In the Marine Insurance Act, 1906, eh. 
41, which of course is not governing statute law with us, the 
enactment as to what is material may be said to be the effect of 
the cases which are binding upon us, reads as follows ;—

“Every circumstance is material which would influence the 
judgment of a prudent insurer in fixing the premium, or deter­
mining whether he will take the risk.” (See lonides v. Pender 
(1874), L.R. 9 Q.B. 531, 43 L.J. (Q.B.) 227, 22 W.R. 884; Rivai 
v. (iernssi (1880), 6 Q.B.D. 222, 50 L.J. (Q.B.) 176; Thames and 
Mersey Mar. Ins. Co. v. “ G unford” Ship Co., [1911] A.C. 529, 
80 L.J. (P.C.) 146; Seaman v. Fonnereau (1743), 2 Stra. 1183).

Lynch v. Hamilton (1810), 3 Taunt. 37, 128 E.R. 15, and 
Lynch v. Dunsford (1811), 14 East. 494, 104 E.R. 691, exem­
plify to what extent disclosure is requisite; there, the policy was 
effected on goods on board “ship or ships”, the assured did not 
inform the insurer that the “President” upon which the goods 
were, had been reported at Lloyd’s as at sea deep and leaky— 
tlie suppression of the fact avoided the policy, although it turned 
out that the intelligence at Lloyd’s was unfounded, the “Presi­
dent” never having been deep or leaky. Further, there are 
facts in the present case which establish, reasonably, that the 
assured was aware of the unseaworthiness of the ship, besides 
the uninsurability thereof, and see—Lord Macnaghten in Black- 
bum, IjOw <C* Co. v. Vigors (1887), 12 App. Cas. 531, at p. 543.

The result of the cases would appear to conclusively show that 
every concealment of a material circumstance, whether it should 
be by design or mistake, would result in the avoidance of the 
policy. It follows that the only safe course is to declare all that 
is known ; then, it will be for the underwriter to determine what 
he will do. The peril in any other course of procedure is that
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a Judge or jury may determine that to be material which has 
not been disclosed and the policy avoided, and this may 
occur even where the concealment was without fraudulent intent, 
hut only an error of judgment. (See Shirley v. Wilkinson 
(1781), 1 Dougl. 306, n.) Of course, if fraud entered into the 
contract it would make no difference whether that concealed 
was material or not. It has been said that no minute disclosure 
is necessary (see Asfar v. Blundell, [1896] 1 Q.B. 123, 65 L..I. 
(Q.B.) 138, 44 W.R. 130; Canticre Meccanico Brindisino \. 
Janson, [1912] 3 K.R. 452, 81 L.J. (K.R.) 1043), but can it 
reasonably be said that it was not material to make the dis­
closure that no insurance was obtainable upon the ship upon 
which the goods were to be carried, which is the present case? 
I am of opinion that there can be only one answer, and that is. 
that there was here the concealment of material facts, these being 
uninsurability and facts going to establish if not demonstrating 
the unseaworthiness of the ship, which facts should have been 
disclosed by the assured to the insurer.

No doubt, there is some conflicting evidence as to the unsea­
worthiness, but it is not unreasonable to say upon the evidence 
that there was knowledge in the assured as to the state of the 
ship which should have been made known by the assured to the 
insurer.

Mr. Davis, the counsel for the respondent in his very able 
argument, laid great stress upon the point that this was a case of 
the loading of goods upon an unsea worthy ship, known to be 
unseaworthy by the assured and the insistence upon the insur­
ance placed thereon. I cannot say that the counsel upon the 
facts has stated the case at all too broadly. When there was 
known unseaworthiness in the assured, it matters not that un sea­
worthiness was admitted by the insurer. (See Buckley. L.J., in 
the Cantiere case, supra, at p. 469.) It is true that under a 
floating policy it may be that the name of the ship is not known 
to the insurer, but that does not mean that the ship may he 
unsea worthy and that nevertheless the insurer is liable. (See per 
Mansfield, C.J., Lynch v. Hamilton (1810), 3 Taunt. 37,128 E.R. 
15; Knight v. Cotesworth (1883), 1 Cab. & El. 48; Thames <0 
Mersey Ins. Co. v. “Gunford” Ship C6.t [1911] A.C. 529). The 
insurance here was on “ship or ships” and is an exception to the 
general rule, and the insurance is bond fide when the assured 
is ignorant of the name of the ship by which the goods insured 
have been consigned. That was not the present case, and with­
holding the name with the knowledge of the assured vitiated the 
policy, (see Arnould on Marine Insurance, 10th ed. (1921) at 
pp. 254, 255).
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For the foregoing reasons, I am of the opinion that the appeal 
should be dismissed.

Eberts, J.A., would allow the appeal.
Appeal allowed.

THE KING v. CARON.
Exchequer Court of Canada, Audctte, J. June 27, 1021.

Taxes ($ I B—10)—Income War Tax Act—Constitutionality—B.N.A.
Act—Direct taxation—Minister of Provincial Crown.

The right of the Dominion of Canada under art. 3 of see. 91 of the 
B.N.A. Act to raise a revenue by “any mode or system of taxation,” 
namely by direct or indirect taxation, in no way conflicts with the right 
granted to the provinces by sec. 92, art. 2 to raise a revenue by direct 
taxation for provincial purposes. The Dominion Crown has independent 
power to raise revenue by direct taxation upon the income of persons 
residing within its territorial jurisdiction, and the income of a pro­
vincial minister is not immune from such taxation.

\John Deere Plow Co. v. Wharton, (Annotated), IS D.L.R. 353, 
[1915] A.C. 330, referred to.]

Information by the Dominion Crown to recover from de­
fendant the sum of $210 income tax.

E. L. Newcombe, K.C., and C. P. Plaxton, for plaintiff.
Aimé Oeoffrion, K.C., and Charles Lane tot, K.C., for de­

fendant.
Audette, J. :—This is an information, exhibited by the At­

torney-General of Canada, whereby it appears, inter alia, that 
the defendant is the Minister of Agriculture for the Province of 
Quebec, receiving as such, a salary (R.S.Q., 1909, see. 574), of 
$6,000, and an indemnity of $1,500 as a member of the Legisla­
ture, and that in computing the amount of income tax for which 
the defendant is claimed to be liable for the year 1917, the said 
sums have been taken into consideration and account, showing 
in the result a liability to the Crown, for such income tax, of the 
sum of $210.

By his amended statement of defence the defendant denies, 
among other things, that he is “a person liable to taxation under 
the Income War Tax Act, 1917, eh. 28, and amendments there­
of,"’ alleging that the said Acts are unconstitutional and ultra 
vires of the powers of the Parliament of the Dominion of Canada, 
in so far as they intend to apply to the defendant, who is a Min­
ister of the Crown for the Province of Quebec.

The defence rests upon paras. 6a and 7 thereof, which respec- 
tivcly read as follows, viz. :—

“6a. The Income War Tax Act, 1917, and amendments there­
to, arc unconstitutional and ultra vires of the powers of the Par­
liament of Canada.

7. The Income War Tax Act, 1917, and amendments thereof 
are unconstitutional and ultra vires of the Parliament of the

Can. 
Ex. Ct.
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Dominion of Canada, in so far as they intend to apply to the de­
fendant, who is a Minister of the Crown for the Province of 
Quebec. ’ ’

By sec. 2 (1) of (1919), sub.-sec. 1 of sec. 3 of the Income War 
Tax Act, 1917, was amended by including in the term “income” 
the salaries and indemnities or other remuneration of members of 
provincial legislative councils and assemblies, whether such 
salaries or indemnities are paid out of the revenues of His Ma 
jesty in respect of any province. And by sec. 10 of the Act this 
amendment is deemed construed to have come into operation on 
and from the date upon which the Income War Tax Act, 1917, 
came inti operation.

The partus hereto have filed the following admission of facts, 
viz.:—

“It is admitted for all purposes of this action that the Min­
ister of Finance determined the amount payable for the tax by 
the defendant herein pursuant to the requirements of the In­
come War Tax Act, 1917, and amendments thereto, as being the 
sum of $210, and thereupon, November 21,1918, sent by register­
ed mail a notice of the said assessment in the form prescribed by 
the Minister to the defendant, notifying him of the aforesaid 
amount as payable by him for the tax ; also it is admitted that of 
the income in respect of which such tax was determined $6,000 
is defendant’s salary as Minister of Agriculture of Quebec, under 
art. 574 of the Revised Statutes, 1909.”

The whole controversy rests upon art. 3 of sec. 91 of the B.N.A. 
Act, 1867, and art. 2 of sec. 92 thereof, which respectively read 
as follows :—

“Sec. 91, art. 3.—The raising of money by any mode or system 
of taxation.

Sec. 92, art. 2.—Direct taxation within the Province in order 
to the raising of a revenue for provincial purposes. ’ ’

It is a sound rule of statutory construction that every word 
ought to lie construed in its ordinary or primary sense, unless a 
second or more limited sense is required by the subject-matter of 
the context.

There is no conflict between these two sections, and taking 
them in their plain and ordinary meaning it is beyond cavil that 
the plenary power of “raising money by any mode or system of 
taxation”—either direct or indirect—is vested in the Dominion; 
and it is equally true that the Province has plenary power to 
raise money by “direct taxation,” but for provincial purposes 
exclusively. This is the proper meaning that judicial interpreta­
tion arising out of decided cases attaches to these two sections.
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“Each class is allowed full scope to which upon the natural im- Can. 
port of language used it is entitled, the jurisdictions must in- Ww n
evitably overlap, or to use Lord Watson’s expression, ‘interlace.’ ___
. . . The federal classes are to be viewed as confined to mat- The Kim 
ters of common Canadian concern and the provincial as covering
matters of local provincial concern, and after applying further ___'
the great cardinal rule of interpretation laid down by the Privy auoetie, I. 
Council in the Parsons' case (1881), 7 App. Cas. 96, 51 L.J.
(P.C.) 26, that the two secs. 91 and 92 must be read together 
and the language of the one interpreted and where necessary, 
modified by that of the other, it will appear that there are 
domains in which intro vires federal legislation will meet intra 
vires provincial legislation.” Clement's Canadian Constitu­
tion, 464. See also Lefroy’s Canada’s Federal System, 166, 265,
279 and 281.

But there is more. The powers of the Domirion, given by the 
opening enactment of sec. 91, makes it lawful to make laws for 
the peace, order and good Government of Canada, in relation to 
all matters not coming within the classes of subjects assigned to 
the provinces. And it adds:—“And for greater certainty, but 
not so as to restrict the generality of the foregoing terms of this 
section—as above mentioned—it is hereby declared that (not­
withstanding anything in the Act) the exclusive legislative au­
thority of the Parliament of Canada extends to all matters 
coming within the classes of subjects next hereinafter enumer­
ated.” And there follows the several articles, among which 
art. 3 is found which gives the Dominion the right to raise a 
revenue by direct taxation, notwithstanding anything in the 
Act. Intra vires federal legislation must override, if neces­
sary, inconsistent intra vires provincial legislation ; because 
when such authority is so given to the Dominion, it has 
paramount authorty, and the plenary operation assured by the 
non obstante clause with which the class enumeration opens. Ten­
nant’s case, [1894] A.C. 31, 63 L.J. (P.C.) 25; The Fisheries 
case, [1898] A.C. 700, 67 L.J. (P.C.) 90. By the very language 
of the opening clause of sec. 91 the rule of federal paramountcy 
must obtain.

However, is there in this case actual conflict ! There is nothing 
repugnant in either enactment in finding that the Dominion has 
full authority, etc., and that it is acting within the full scope of 
its powers and with respect to matters of common Canadian con­
cern or of the body politic of the Dominion, in enacting the In­
come Tax Act and that the Province" has the power, in raising 
revenues for provincial purposes, to raise revenue by direct taxa­
tion.
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The Dominion has a right, under sec. 91, to raise revenue, for 
matters of common Canadian concern—and for peace, order and 
good government—by direct and indirect taxation, whilst the 
province, for provincial purposes can only raise by direct taxa­
tion. There is no repugnancy or conflict between these respective 
powers. The exercise by the Dominion of the authority to raise 
revenue by direct and indirect taxation for federal purposes does 
not trench upon the authority of the Province to raise revenue 
for provincial purpose by direct taxation.

Finding otherwise would, without justification, interfere with 
the revenues of the Dominion when there is no text in the Act, or 
possible construction thereof, to justify such course.

In the interpretation of a self-governing constitution founded 
upon a written organic instrument, such as the B.N.A Act, if the 
text is explicit, the text is conclusive. But, when the words es­
tablish two mutually exclusive jurisdictions, recourse must be 
had to the general context of the Act. Reference case, 3 D.L.li. 
509, [1912] A.C. 571.

Dealing with the proviso at the end of sec. 91, the ease of the 
Att’y.-Gen'y. of Ontario v. Att’y.-Gen’l. for Dominion, [18961 
A.C. 348, 65 L.J. (P.C.) 26, settles and correctly describes all 
the classes enumerated in sec. 92 as being from a provincial point 
of view of a local or private nature. It is to he read, therefore, 
as a limiting proviso to sec. 92. In other words, as put by 
Clement, J.’s Canadian Constitution: ‘‘Provincial jurisdiction 
extends to all matters in a provincial sense, local or private with­
in the province; subject, however, to this proviso, that any mat­
ter really falling within any of the class enumerations of sec. 91, 
is to be deemed of common Canadian concern and not in any 
sense a matter local or private within any province.” And at 
p. 366 he adds: “It has been frequently recognized by this 
Board, and it may he regarded as settled law, that according to 
the scheme of the B.N.A. Act, the enactments of the Parliament 
of Canada, in so far as they arc within its competency must over 
ride provincial legislation.”

In Citizens Insurance Co. v. Parsons, 7 App. Cas. 96, 51 L.*l. 
(P.C.) 26, cited by plaintiff’s counsel at Bar, Sir Montague 
Smith, L.J., referring to the apparent conflict of powers be­
tween secs. 91 and 92, by way of illustration of the principle that 
the powers exclusively assigned to the Provincial Legislature" 
were not to be absorbed in those given the Dominion Government, 
said at pp. 108, 109:—“So ‘the raising of money by any mo*! ■ 
or system of taxation’ is enumerated among the classes of sul 
jects in sec. 91; but, though the description is sufficiently larg - 
and general to include ‘direct taxation within the province in
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order to the raising of a revenue for provincial purposes,’ assign- Can. 
vd to the provincial legislatures by sec. 92, it obviously could not Ex ct
have been intended that in this instance also the general power -!_*
should override the particular one. ’ ’ The Kino

Continuing, Sir Montague Smith says:—“With regard to cer- Gabon 
lain classes of subjects, therefore, generally described in sec. 91, —1 *
legislative power may reside as to some matters falling within the Aude,te- 1 
general description of these subjects in the legislatures of the 
provinces. In these cases it is the duty of the Courts, however 
difficult it may be, to ascertain in what degree, and to what ex­
tent, authority to deal with matters falling within these classes 
of subjects exists in each legislature and to define in the partic­
ular case before them the limits of their respective powers. It 
could not have been the intention that a conflict should exist, and 
in order to prevent such a result, the two sections must be read 
together, and the language of one interpreted, and where neces­
sary, modified by that of the other.”

And that is the principle of construction which 1 have sought 
to apply to this case.

Cart of the passage last cited has been referred to by Lord 
Ilobhouse in the Lambc case (1887), 12 App. Cas. 575, 56 L.J.
(P.C.) 87, and relied upon by defendant’s counsel at Bar, but in 
my opinion nothing can be gathered from it which would justify 
the contention that the Dominion could in any way be deprived 
of its power of direct taxation.

Then we have a recent expression of opinion touching the 
respective powers of legislation granted by secs. 91 and 92, by 
their Lordships of the Judicial Committee in the John Deere 
I'low Co’s, case (annotated) 18 D.L.R. 353 at 357-8, [1915] A.C.
113ft, 84 L.J. (P.C.) 64, to the following effect: “The language 
of these sections and of the various heads which they contain 
obviously cannot be construed as having been intended to embody 
the exact disjunctions of a perfect logical scheme. The drafts­
man had to work on the terms of a political agreement, terms 
which were mainly to be sought for in the resolutions passed at 
Quebec. ... To these resolutions and the sections on them, 
the remark applies which was made by this Board about the 
Australian Commonwealth Act in a recent case Att’y.-Oen’l. for 
Australia Commonwealth v. Colonist Sugar Refining Co., [1914]
A.C. 237, 83 L.J. (P.C.) 154, that if there is at points obscurity 
in language, this may be taken to be due, not to uncertainty about 
general principle, but to that difficulty in obtaining ready agree­
ment about phrases which attends the drafting of legislative 
measures by large assemblages. It may be added that the form 
in which provisions in terms overlapping each other have been
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placed side by side, shews that those who passed the Confedera­
tion Act, intended to leave the working out and interpretation 
of these provisions to practice and to judicial decision.”

There is an early case which deserves mention if only for the 
clarity of its language touching the matter in controversy be­
tween the parties in the case now before the Court. I refer to Dow 
v. Block (1875), L.R. 6 P.C. 272, 44 L.J. (P.C.) 52, 23 W.R. 637, 
where Lord Colvile says at p.282: “They (their Lordships) con­
ceive that the third article of sec. 91 is to be reconciled with the 
2nd article of sec. 92 by treating the former as empowering the 
supreme legislature to raise revenue by any mode of taxation, 
whether direct or indirect ; and the latter as confining the pro 
vincial legislature to direct taxation within the province for 
provincial purposes. ’ ’

Now, passing to the other contention of the defence respecting 
property and eivil rights, counsel asserts, inter alia, that an oui 
side authority over which the Provincial Legislature has no con 
trol cannot deprive its members of part of the monies voted a<- 
tually to them as members, compensating them in the discharge 
of their duties as representatives of the people of the Province, 
or voted as salaries to members of the Provincial Government. 
And he asks that if this tax is lawfully imposed what is then to 
prevent the Parliament of Canada imposing a direct tax and to 
any amount expressly on members of the Provincial Legislature? 
And lie adds that the revenues, and duties, under sec. 126, raised 
by the Legislature form a consolidated revenue fund.

The reply to this purely suppositious case is that the proper 
time to deal with it will be when it arises. The Courts do not 
concern themselves with or forestall difficulties that may be 
imagined but which do not exist in the facts before them; nor 
are they disposed to answer hypothetical questions. See per 
Lord Mansfield in The King v. Inhabitants of West Riding of 
Yorkshire (1773), Lofft 238, and Dyson v. Att’y-Qen’l, [1911] 1 
K.B. 410, 80 L.J. (K.B.) 531.

The Dominion in raising this tax does not in any manner 
attempt to interfere with the exercise of provincial powers, but 
merely asserts that when the power is exercised the recipient of 
the indemnity and the salary shall be answerable to federal legis 
lotion in the same manner as other persons or residents, irrespec­
tive of the source from which the individual’s income is derived.

In the Lambe case 12 App. Cas. 575 at 587, their Lordships 
make the following observation in respect of oppression or ad 
convenienti argument : “If they find that on the due construction 
of the Act a legislative power falls within sec. 92, it would be 
quite wrong of them to deny its existence because by sonic
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possibility it may be abused, or may limit the range which Can. 
otherwise would be open to the Dominion parliament.” And
per Lord Loreburn L.C. in Att’y-Gcn’l of Ontario v. Att’y- __'
G en’l for Canada, 3 D.L.R. 509 at 513, “It certainly would not The King 
be sufficient to say that the exercise of a power might be oppres- v- 
sive, because that result might ensue from the abuse of a great A*OIf* 
number of powers indispensable to self-government, and ob- Audette, j. 
viously bestowed by the British North America Act. Indeed it 
might ensue from the breach of almost any power.”

And, as said, inter alia, in Clement’s Canadian Constitution,
3rd ed., p. 482: “In the case from which this finding is taken, 
the right of the provinces to tax objects and institutions over 
which the federal parliament has legislative jurisdiction was 
affirmed in the Lambe case (ubi supra) . . . Dominion excise 
laws may be rendered nugatory by provincial prohibition. A 
province may sell its timber on terms prohibiting exports . . .
As has been said, lawful legislation does not become unlawful 
because it cannot be separated from its inevitable consequences.”

As a further answer to the defence’s contention in this respect, 
the observations of Lord Hobhouse in the same case arc very 
apposite. He said at p. 586: “Their Lordships cannot conceive 
that when the Imperial Parliament conferred wide powers of 
local self-government on great countries, such as Quebec, it 
intended to limit them on the speculation that they would 
be used in an injurious manner. People who are trusted 
with the great power of making laws for property and civil rights 
may well be trusted to levy taxes.”

The well-known cases of Webb v. Out rim, (1907] A.C. 81, 76 
L.J. (P.C.) 25, and Abbott v. City of St. John (1908), 40 Can.
8.C.R. 597, were much discussed at the argument.

In the case of Railroad Co. v. Paniston (1873), 18 Wall. (85 
TJ.S.) 5, Strong, J., is reported as saying, at p. 36: “It is there­
fore manifest that exemption of Federal agencies from State 
taxation is dependent not upon the nature of the agents or upon 
the mode of their constitution, or upon the fact that they are 
agents, but upon the effect of the tax, that is upon the question 
whether the tax does in truth deprive them of power to serve 
the Government as they were intended to serve it, or does hinder 
the efficient exercise of their power. A tax upon their property 
lias no such necessary effect ; it leaves them free to discharge 
the duties they have undertaken to perform. A tax upon their 
operations is a direct obstruction to the exercise of Federal 
powers.”

The stock argument of interference with property and civil 
rights in the province needs only a passing observation. In the
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Can. case of Cushing v. Du pu y (1880), 5 App. Cas. 409, 49 L.J.
Ex~Ct. (P»C.) 63, their Lordships offered, inter alia, the following ob-

——’ serrations: “It is therefore to be presumed, indeed it is a naces-
Tiie King sarv implication, that the Imperial Statute, in assigning to the

Cabow. ^om*n‘on Parliament the subjects of bankruptcy and insolvency
—1 intended to confer on it legislative power to interfere with pro-

Aiidette, J perty, civil rights and procedure within the provinces, so far as
a general law relating to those subjects might affect them.” 
Thereby reserving to the sovereign legislature its plenary power 
in relation to all matters coming within the classes of subjects 
mentioned in sec. 91, as the Act expressly states. See also Ten­
nant v. Union Bank, supra; Att’y-Oen’l v. Queen Insurance Co. 
(1878), 3 App. Cas. 1090; Bourgoin v. Montreal, Ottawa and 
Occidental K. Co. (1880), 5 App. Cas. 381, 49 L.J. (P.C.) 68.

Again in the Bussell’s case (1882), 7 App. Cas. 829, at p. 839- 
840, 51 L.J. (P.C.) 77, is found the following language : “Few, 
if any, laws could be made by Parliament for the peace, order, 
and good government of Canada, which did not in some incidental 
way affect property and civil rights; and it could not have been 
intended when assuring to the provinces exclusive legislative 
authority on the subjects of property and civil rights, to exclude 
the parliament from the exercise of this general power whenever 
any such incidental interference would result from it. The true 
nature and character of the legislation in the particular instances 
under discussion must always be determined in order to ascertain 
the class of subject to which it really belongs.”

And again per Anglin, J., in Re Insumnce Act (19JO), (1913), 
15 D.L.R. 251, 48 Can. S.C.R. 260 at p. 310:—“when a matter 
primarily of civil rights has attained such dimensions that it 
‘affects the body politic of the Dominion’ and has become ‘of 
national concern,’ it has, in that aspect of it, not only ceased to 
be ‘local and provincial,’ but has also lost its character as a 
matter of ‘civil rights in the province’ and has thus so far 
ceased to be subject to provincial jurisdiction that Dominion 
Legislation upon it under the ‘ peace, order and good govern 
rnent,’ provision does not trench upon the exclusive provincial 
field and is, therefore, valid and paramount. ’

On the whole I fail to see any ground upon which the 
defendant should be treated with discrimination as regards tin 
other citizens or public of Canada in relation to liability for a 
tax of the nature here in question. See Hollinshead v. Hazleton 
|1916] 1 A.C. 428, 85 L.J. (P.C.) 60.

1 have come to the conclusion that the Dominion has, unde 
the several provisions of sec. 91 of the 13.N.A. Act, 1867, indv 
pendent plenary power within its own proper legislative domain,
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and disparate from and unrelated to any provincial right of Que*
taxation, to raise revenue by direct taxation upon the income of gc
persons residing within its territorial jurisdiction, and that the 
immunity or exemption claimed by the defendant cannot avail.

There will be judgment against the defendant, as prayed, for 
the sum of $210, with interest thereon at the rate of seven per 
centum per annum (as provided by 1917, sec. 10 of eh. 28) from 
November 21, 1918, to the date hereof and with costs.

Judgment accordingly.

MEN'S ATTIRE REGISTERED v. HART.
Quebec Superior Court in Bankruptcy, Panneton, J. June 24, 1922.

Bankruptcy ($ IV—40)—Proposed compromise—Authorised trustees’
FEES FIXED BY—JURISDICTION OF COURT TO GRANT ORDER FOR PAY-

The Superior Court in Bankruptcy has no jurisdiction to dispose of 
a petition of the authorised trustee for an order against a debtor for 
the immediate payment of a sum fixed as the amount of his fees 
under a proposed compromise. The trustee's costs must be taxed by 
the Registrar and if not satisfactory an appeal lies to the Bankruptcy

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135, 56 D.L.R. 104, 59 D.L.R. 1.]

Petition by authorised trustee for an order for immediate 
payment of his fees fixed by a proposal of compromise by which 
his fees were to be paid in cash. Refused.

P. Ledieu, for debtor.
8. 0. Trittf for trustee contestant.
Panneton, J. :—The authorised trustee petitions the Court 

for an order against the debtor for the immediate payment of 
$1,136.14 to him for his fees as trustee, in this bankruptcy mat­
ter. He claims this under the proposal of compromise by which 
the trustee’s fees were to be paid in cash. He also asks that, in 
any event, the Court do proceed to fix his remuneration.

The Court has no jurisdiction to dispose of said petition, the 
trustee’s costs must be taxed by the Registrar, and if not satisfac­
tory, an appeal lies before this Court. The only case where the 
trustee’s remuneration is fixed by the Court is mentioned in sec.
40 of ch. 36,1919, (Can.), as amended by ch. 17,1921, sec. 33.

The Court declares that it has no jurisdiction and as this 
want of jurisdiction has not been raised by the party contesting 
the petition, the petition is dismissed without costs.

Petition dismissed.
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NOALES v. GRAYSON, EMERSON & McTAGGART.
Saskatchewan Court of Appeal, Haultain, C.J.S., Lamont, Turgeon and 

McKay, JJ.A. June 89, 1988.
Solicitors ($ IIA—22)—Negligence—Loss to client—Liability.

Solicitors who, misinterpreting their client’s instructions bid more 
at a sale of land than they have been authorised to do, and aftei 
learning of their mistake neglect to take steps which are in their 
power to give effect to those instructions, but proceed to obtain a 
transfer and have the sale confirmed and thus involve their client in a 
loss, must make good the loss sustained through their negligence.

Appeal from a judgment in favour of plaintiff in an action 
for damages for loss sustained through the negligence of the 
defendants, his solicitors. Affirmed.

J. F. Frame, K.C., for appellants.
F. L. Bastcdo, for respondents.
The judgment of the Court was delivered by 
Lamont, J.A. :—This is an appeal from a judgment in favour 

of the plaintiff for damages for loss sustained through the negli 
gence of the defendants. The defendants were solicitors for 
the plaintiff, who resided in Prince Edward Island. In their 
capacity as solicitors, they brought on behalf of the plaintiff an 
action against II. II. Sugden and H. J. Hawthorne upon an 
agreement for the sale of land. In the course of that action tin* 
defendants obtained an order for the sale of the land set out in 
the agreement in case the amount found due thereunder was 
not paid within the time fixed by the Court, which was January 
14, 1920. The land was subject to a mortgage to the Trust & 
l oan Co. of Canada for $800, which Sugden and Hawthorne 
had agreed to assume in addition to the amount mentioned in 
the agreement. Sugden and Hawthorne did not pay. On Janu­
ary 31, 1920, the plaintiff wrote a letter to the defendants, which 
letter, in part, reads as follows :—

“Advertise the property subject to mortgage, or otherwise, 
as you consider best. At the sale of this property I want you to 
bid for me, but do not bid above $2,600.”

On February 17, 1920, the plaintiff again wrote to the defend­
ants from Phoenix, Arizona, as follows :—

“Kindly forward to me at Summerside, P.E.I., copy of the 
advertisement re S.W. 18-13-7/3rd. I assume you are bringing 
this land to sale as quickly as possible. I assume, too, that in 
bidding for me you will buy the land as cheaply as possible— 
that is should it not go above my outside price of $2,600. ’ ’

This letter the defendants acknowledged on February 25, hut 
tent their reply to Pheonix, Arizona. On March 22, 1920, the 
said land was offered for sale by Sheriff Rutherford, the officer 
appointed by the Court to sell. The land was offered subject to
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the mortgage above referred to, and taxes. Two bids were 
made. One of $2,400, by a Mr. Ross, and one of $2,450, on behalf 
of the plaintiff by a student-at-law from the defendants’ office, 
who, in the absence of the member of the firm who had charge of 
the matter, attended the sale. The land was knocked down to 
the plaintiff at that price. On March 25, the defendants notified 
the plaintiff of the sale, and on April 3, he replied as follow’s:—

“I am in receipt of your letter dated March 25 and note 
contents. I note, too, that the land has been sold subject to 
mortgage and taxes. I am assuming that the price of $2,450 is 
the net cost of the land to me, not this amount over and above the 
mortgage, taxes, etc.”

On June 26, the defendants obtained from Sheriff Rutherford 
a transfer of the land in favour of the plaintiff, subject to the 
mortgage and taxes, and on August 26 they obtained an order 
from the Local Master confirming the sale. On September 1 the 
plaintiff wrote protesting that the mortgage and taxes should 
have been paid out of his $2,450 bid, and that his judgment 
against Hawthorne and Sugden for the deficiency should have 
been the amount of the mortgage and taxes over and above what 
it actually was. At the time of the sale there was unpaid under 
the mortgage the sum of $659.64, and there were due for taxes 
$69.30. These sums, together writh the $2,450 which the defend­
ants had bid, amounted to $3,178.94, which was the price of the 
land to the plaintiff; who contends that under his instructions 
the defendants were only authorised to bid $2,600 for the land, 
free of encumbrance. The trial Judge upheld the plaintiff’s 
contention, and gave him judgment for the difference between 
$3,178.94 and the $2,600 which he had authorised the defendants 
to bid. The defendants now appeal.

In my opinion the trial Judge was right. The instructions in 
the plaintiff’s letter of January 31, authorising the defendants 
to sell subject to the mortgage or otherwise as they considered 
best, followed by authority to bid for him $2,600, make it reason­
ably clear that $2,600 was the price the plaintiff was willing to 
pay for a clear title. If the defendants had considered it best 
to sell the land free of all encumbrances, it is clear that they 
were authorised to bid only up to $2,600. That being so, I fail 
to see how they could interpret their instructions as authorising 
a bid of $2,600, subject to the encumbrances. But even if their 
instructions had been less clear than they were, the defendants 
knew on April 3 that they had misinterpreted the plaintiff’s 
intention. As the plaintiff had the leave of the Court to bid at 
the sale, and as he wras the purchaser, all the defendants had to 
do was to abandon the sale of March 22 and advertise the land

Sask.

C.A.

Scales

Grayson, 
Emerson &

Lamont, J.A.
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for sale again. At that time they did not have transfer from 
Rutherford and the sale had not been confirmed. Instead of 
taking these steps to give effect to their client’s intention, they 
proceeded to obtain a transfer and have the sale confirmed. In 
bidding $2,600 for the land subject to the encumbrances, the de­
fendants, in my opinion, acted contrary to their instructions, ami 
involved their client in a loss. This loss they must make good 
At the trial evidence was adduced to shew that the value of the 
land was $1,600, cash, or $2,000, on time.

1 would, therefore, dismiss the appeal with costs.
Appeal dismissed

CALHOUN v. LAMSON * HI BBARD CANADIAN Co.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Scott, C.J., Stuart, Bc< /, 

Hyndman and Clarke, JJ.A. June SO, 10SS.
Master and servant ($ IC—10)—Evidence shewing employment 

Intention ok parties—Services not to be gratuitous—Beaso. 
ABLE ALLOWANCE—QUANTUM MERUIT.

Where the evidence shews that a plaintiff was employed by the defend­
ant and that he rendered very considerable services to his employe!, 
and it being also clear that he did not intend to give his servi. ,-i 
without compensation, and that this was understood by the employ, 
the Court will allow him a reasonable allowance for his services, on :i 
quantum meruit, according to the evidence and circumstances of the

Appeal by plaintiff from the trial judgment in an action to 
recover payment for services. Reversed.

X. D. Maclean, K.C., for appellant.
8. B. Woods, K.C., for respondent.
Scott, C.J., concurred with Beck, J.A.
Stuart, J.A. :—It is perfectly obvious that there has been bad 

blood between the parties in this case from the very beginning 
and before the litigation began and it very probably extended 
to their solicitors.

The plaintiff made extravagant elaims, which, considering the 
meagre evidence put forward by him to show what services lie 
had actually performed, or to show any valid agreement to give 
him stock, the defendants were, I think, perfectly justified in 
resisting. I observe, though, that at one point in the evidence 
where the plaintiff was describing what he had done the trial 
Judge complained of his going into such detail. It is just the 
absence of specific detail, particularly with reference to the 
operations of 1920 that stands especially in the plaintiff’s way 
so far as any even moral claim to any very large sum is con­
cerned.

But, on reading the whole evidence, I cannot but conclude
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that the plaintiff did perform considerable services for the 
defendant company and that he did so at the request of author­
ized agents of the company. Undoubtedly, Bryan was in full 
control of the company’s affairs in Canada, and requested the 
plaintiff to do many things on its behalf. He was also, undoubt­
edly, given an official name as manager or superintendent of 
transportation.

The plaintiff may have been self-contradictory and inconsistent 
in many of the details of his evidence, but he was not alone in 
this respect. For instance, Lane, on his own admission, used 
him as a secret agent to purchase the boat “The Slave River” 
and got him to buy it, really for the defendant, in the name of a 
company of which the plaintiff was an officer, and yet he turned 
around and endeavored to make out that he was a mere messenger 
to convey an offer.

With respect to the pure point of law upon which the trial 
Judge decided the case I am of opinion, with much respect, that 
he took too narrow a view. The plaintiff performed many ser­
vices for the defendant company at the request of their authorised 
agents, Bryan and (with respect at least to the purchase of the 
l-oat) Lane. I have no doubt upon the evidence that it was 
thoroughly understood between Bryan and the plaintiff that he 
should get some remuneration for those services. It is true, of 
course, that the plaintiff refused to accept a salary. I interpret 
what was said to mean that he did not want to appear as getting 
so much a month or a year as a salaried officer, but he wanted to 
he given something in a lump and he suggested a block of stock 
in the company. No valid bargain to give him stock was ever 
proven.

But when services, certainly of some considerable value, were, 
in fact, performed at the defendant’s request, I think the Court 
should place an interpretation on what was said as favourable 
as possible to the plaintiff’s right to be paid for them. If he 
spoke of not wanting money I think he meant merely that he 
did not want to become a salaried servant receiving a monthly 
stipend, but that if he could not be given stock in the company 
he should never get anything at all is more than I am prepared 
upon the evidence to hold that Bryan and he intended.

1 am of opinion, therefore, that the Court should allow him a 
reasonable lump sum of money as remuneration. There is grave 
danger, of course, in accepting Bryan’s estimate of what his 
services were worth in view7 of Bryan’s disagreement with the 
directors.

I think that $3,000 in all would be a reasonable allowance and 
14—68 D.L.B.

Alta.

App. Dlv.

Calhoun

Lamson & 
Huiibakd 

Canadian 
Co.

Stuart, J.A.



198 Dominion Law Retorts. [68 D.L.R.

Alta.

App. Div.

Calhoun
v.

Lamson à 
Hubbard 

Canadian 
Co.

Beck, J.A.

T would allow the appeal with costs and direct judgment to be 
entered for the plaintiff for that sum with costs of the action.

Beck, J.A.:—Counsel for the plaintiff opened his evidence by 
reading from the depositions taken on examination for discovery 
of Pike, the treasurer of the defendant company, as the repre­
sentative of the company.

From his evidence, the following facts appear. I have put in 
some details from other sources. The present directors arc 
Harper, Cochrane, Hart, Morgan, Bowditch and himself, and 
perhaps one or two others. The company was incorporated in 
October, 1918 ; the business bad been going on before for about 2 
years under the name of Lamson-IIubbard Corporation, as a 
joint venture by Lamson junior and Bryan. Bryan was ap­
pointed general manager and managing director, soon after tin- 
incorporation. He continued in this office till September, 1920. 
He was also vice-president. It was part of his duties to run the 
business in Alberta and the Northwest Territories, including the 
hiring of any men he thought fit to hire. The company was 
aware that Calhoun was doing some work for the company : 
that he was doing some work in 1919; that he was looking after 
the interests of the company in the absence of Bryan. This is 
indicated by a letter from Bryan to Calhoun, dated August 20, 
1919, reading:—

“This is to advise you that you have full authority to act for 
me and in my place as manager of the Lamson-IIubbard Can­
adian Co., Ltd., during my absence in any capacity whatever,” 
and by a letter dated October 27, 1919, from Bryan to Morgan, 
then president of the company and residing at Boston, in which 
occurs this passage:—

“Mr. Calhoun has agreed with me to give me his assistance 
next season and with him as a transport man, who knows his 
business, I am very confident of satisfactory results. ‘ ’

The company “in any case in the fall of 1919 knew that 
Calhoun had agreed to give Bryan his assistance next season.” 
Pike admitted that it was an established fact—within the com­
pany’s knowledge—that Calhoun did go to Smith Portage in 
1919 and was assisting in the company’s business there.

Pike also says that the company was willing to pay Calhoun
$1,000.

The first witness called was Bryan. I note points from his 
evidence.

Bryan was in the earlier organisation as manager. The com­
pany was incorporated in November, 1918. From that date on, 
he was in charge of the business of the company in this country 
—their business of fur trading and transportation. The com-
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pany had nine trading posts—Fond du Lae, Portage la Lac, 
Fort Chipewyan, Fort Rae, Fort Resolution, Fort Providence, 
Fort Simpson, Poplar Point, Fort Good Hope. Before the incor­
poration of the company they had nothing in the way of a trans­
portation system except some scows and a small gas boat. Captain 
Lane was sent up from Boston in the fall of 1918 to go into the 
question of transportation. Lane, having consulted Calhoun and 
discussed with him—“spending a good many days together,”— 
the matter of transportation decided that the season was then 
loo far advanced to make it advisable to go north then to Fort 
Smith, as he had contemplated, and, consequently, returned to 
Boston.

About this time a prospectus was issued. Several copies were 
sent from the head office at Boston without a covering letter. 
Two copies were produced to the witness on his examination in 
chief. He said one of the copies was one of those sent to him. 
It was marked for identification; but its admission as evidence 
was objected to as not shown to have been authorised by the 
company, and the objection was sustained. In my opinion, there 
was sufficient primâ facie evidence of authorisation to entitle the 
plaintiff’s counsel to have the prospectus filed; whether the 
authorisation could be negatived or put in doubt and what 
bearing it would have on the points in issue are other questions. 
Being of this opinion, 1 have looked at the prospectus. It pur­
ports to be a prospectus of the defendant company. It puts 
Bryan and Lane as managers. It purports to be signed by the 
defendant company.

Captain Lane was in this country in 1919. He was located 
at Cache 24, near the end of steel, for the greater portion of the 
year. He built two gas boats there for the company and received 
tin1 merchandise going into the north country—that is the mer­
chandise for the posts for trading purposes of the company.

In the autumn of 1918 when Lane had returned to Boston, 
Bryan put himself into communication with Calhoun. His evi­
dence is as follows :—

| The Judge here cited a portion of the evidence and con­
tinued] :—

1 have set out so much of the evidence to show that there is 
ample evidence of the employment of Calhoun and of the fact 
that he rendered very considerable services to the defendant com­
pany, especially in the years 1919 and 1920. There is, in addi­
tion to this, though, much evidence tending to minimise the 
value of his services, but much to support him.

As to the evidence of the engagement with regard to remunera­
tion, it is absolutely clear, to my mind, that Calhoun did not
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intend to give his services without compensation and that no 
representative of the company so understood it.

Calhoun in saying that he did not want to go on the payroll 
was quite obviously not saying that he did not want any com 
pensât ion, for in the same breath he was saying that he wanted 
etbck. Had he been put on the payroll, his monthly wage would 
have been fixed and he did not wish a regular wage to tie fixed 
but wished, after his services had been performed, to be com­
pensated on the basis of a quantum meruit in stock, and obviously 
if he were not eventually given stock, there was no intimation 
that he wanted nothing. The various expressions used inadver­
tently—sometimes even by himself—in relating conversations ar«- 
all quite easily reconcilable with this intention which, and which 
alone, is consistent with justice and, in my opinion, common 
sense.

The cases usually cited to show that a person rendering ser 
vices is or is not entitled to remuneration because there was or 
was not an implied agreement to remuneration, such as Taylor \ 
Brewer (1813), 1 M. & 8. 290, 105 E.R. 108: Bryant v. Flight 
(1839) ( 5 M. & W. 114, 151 E.R. 49, 8 L.J. (Ex.) 189, are all 
cited and discussed in the text books and encyejopedias under 
the title of “Master and Servant.” It is useless to discuss them 
in detail. None of them is binding. None of them is precisely 
the present case. Each case must depend upon its own circum­
stances and is essentially a question of inference of fact. .To 
hold that, under the circumstances of this ease, the plaintiff is 
entitled to nothing, is to draw an utterly wrong inference from 
the facts and circumstances and one leading to a great injustice.

As to the amount the plaintiff is entitled to, there is evidence 
which would justify a jury in awarding the amount he claims, 
$12,000. He was ready at one time—it is true, if paid at once— 
to accept $6,000.

I would give him judgment for $4,000 and costs, allowing the 
appeal with costs.

Hyndman, J.A., concurs with Reck, J.A.
Clarke, J.A., (dissenting) :—If the rendering of services of 

one person for another is sufficient to create a legal liability to 
pay for the value of the services then the plaintiff should recover, 
for, admittedly, his services were of considerable value to the 
company, but as, in my opinion, something more is required, 
namely a promise either express or implied, to pay, it is necessary 
to consider whether upon the facts of the case there has been such 
a promise.

As the trial Judge has found against the plaintiff I have 
examined the evidence very carefully in the hope of being able



68 DA.R.J Dominion Law Uepobts. 201

to find some solid ground for giving the plaintiff relief. There 
is no useful purpose in discussing the evidence, and 1 shall con­
tent myself with saying that, in my opinion, the trial judgment 
cannot consistently with the law and the evidence be interfered 
with.

Regarding the complaint that the trial Judge refused to 
examine the reports of Sullivan and Pike, I cannot say that 
he was wrong, but, in any event, having regard to the circum­
stances of the case, I cannot see that the plaintiff has been preju­
diced. The respondent’s counsel has produced Pike’s report for 
perusal by this Court. I find nothing in it of any assistance to 
the plaintiff l>eyond the extract contained in the evidence. Nor 
can 1 see that he has been prejudiced by failure to have the 
prospectus produced at the trial, even if sufficient foundation 
was laid for its reception.

1 see no error in the rulings as to statements alleged to have 
been made by Lane, and if I am wrong in this, having regard to 
i.ll the evidence, I do not see that any additional evidence which 
could have been given of such statements would affect the result, 
nor do I think the hearsay evidence complained of is important.

I would dismiss the appeal, with costs.
Appeal allowed.

•KENNEDY v. VICTORY LAND A TIMBER Co.
hritish Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Martin, Gallihcr, 

McPhillips and Eberts, JJ.A. January 10, 1922.
Brokers ($ II B—5)—Right to commissions—Employment or Broker- 

Authority or DIRECTORS.
The evidence shewing employment of a broker, and a sale of the 

land effected by him, his right to commission cannot be attacked 
because of the lack of director’s authority to enter into the con­
tract of employment.

[See Annotation 4 D.L.R. 531.]
Appeal ($ VIL—485)—Review or riNDiNos or pact—Weight or evidence.

The judgment of the trial Court on findings of fact is reviewable 
on appeal if it appears to have been rendered against the weight of 
evidence.

Appeal by plaintiff from the judgment of Clement, J. Re­
versed.

Stuart Livingston, for appellant.
A. D. Macfarlane, for respondent.
Macdonald, C J.A. (dissenting) :—1 would dismiss the appeal.
The evidence discloses no antecedent agreement on the part of 

the defendants to employ the plaintiff as agent to sell the prop­
erty. Even if I were convinced that the sale was made by reason 
of the plaintiff having brought the property to the attention of 
1 vayner, or Connor, that, in itself, is not sufficient. To entitle 
him to commission he must have been employed to procure a pur- 

* Appeal to the Supreme Court of Canada pending.
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chaser, and while he swears to some loose expressions of Miller 
and Duncan, which might, if they were authorised to employ 
him, constitute such an agreement, yet Colpman and Cook did 
not concur. There was no corporate agreement and no asaeht of 
rll the directors to the employment of the plaintiff, but on the 
contrary, there was decided objection on the part of Colpman 
and Cook. At most, the agreement to pay him a commission on 
the Whalen sale if it went through, shews no more than this, that 
they were willing to pay him a commission on that particular 
sale, but rebut* the idea of a general agency.

Martin, J.A., would allow the appeal.
Galliher, J.A. (dissenting) :—I have read the Appeal Book 

throughout, and am unable to find on plaintiff’s own showing, 
that he has established any antecedent agreement.

I also find on the evidence that he had no authority from tli. 
defendant company to deal with the Puget Sound Co. in thi< 
transaction, nor did the company in any way ratify his acts, on 
the contrary, Colpman distinctly told him to keep out of it.

On the whole evidence, the plaintiff fails to convince me that 
he was the efficient cause of the sale, or that he was an agent at 
large.

I might, (though I think it would be of little value) advert 
to different phases of the evidence in detail, so will content myself 
with saying that, in my opinion, the appeal should be dismissed.

McPhiIjLIPS, J.A. :—This appeal brings up for considérâtion- 
what evidence is sufficient to establish the right to a commission 
upon the sale of laud, the extent of the authority given, or 
whether, without express authority, the dealings between the 
parties bring about such a state of affairs as entitles a commis­
sion to be allowed upon the basis of a quantum meruit where the 
benefit of the services rendered have been accepted and a sale is 
made. Here we have the case of the sale of very valuable timber 
lands, the profit on the sale thereof by the vendors, the Victory 
Land & Timber Co., Ltd., the defendant, being no less than 
$100,000.

The plaintiff admittedly had special and peculiar knowledge 
of the property sold and its potentialities and advantage that 
would accrue to the vendees if acquired by that company. All 
these features were brought to the notice of Connor and Ray n r, 
who were acting for the vendees, the Puget Sound Timber and 
Lumber Co., Ltd. Connor was the president of the Puget Sound 
Co., and Rayner was the manager. Rayner, to whom Connor 
looked largely for the details of the matter, states in the most 
positive terms, that the first information as to the property and 
that it could be purchased, came from the plaintiff Kennedy, and
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Connor also agrees in this. The sale was difficult of accomplish­
ment and it called for a great amount of application Upon the 
part of the plaintiff to interest the Puget Sound Co. ; and Connor 
was not at first at all interested in the property. One illustra­
tion of what took place amongst many others was the luncheon 
given by the plaintiff at the Empress Hotel to Connor. It was 
arranged that Connor should then meet Duncan and Miller, two 
of the directors of the Victory Land & Timber Co., the vendors. 
The luncheon took place; Duncan was present hut not Miller, and 
the question of the sale of the property was taken up and result­
ed in Connor agreeing to go and look at the property and Connor 
did go and look at the property, i.e., looked over the location and 
went to some extent into the timber. Colpman, the president of 
the Victory company, accompanied Connor. Kennedy was 
not present at this time, and the contention is that the sale was 
really made by Colpman, not Kennedy, after Connor’s return to 
Victoria, Kennedy saw him and discussion took place about the 
property and what had been seen. Connor was not very en­
thusiastic at this time about the property, hut admits that Ken­
nedy kept impressing upon him very strongly that the timber 
was suitable for the Puget Sound Co. Unquestionably, Kennedy 
had authority to make a sale of the property when the negotia­
tions with Whalen and James were under way, and if a sale had 
been effected in the ease of Whalen it is admitted that Kennedy 
would have been entitled to a commission of $3,000. Further, 
it is clear from the evidence that Colpman was aware throughout 
that Kennedy was bestirring himself to obtain a purchaser for 
the property and failing, effecting a sale to Whalen and James, 
was continuing his activity in this regard.

I do not intend to, in detail, refer to the parts of the evidence 
bearing upon the culmination of matters and the sale finally 
made—save to say—that the evidence makes it clear to me that 
when it was reasonably certain that a sale would be effected to 
the Puget Sound Co., then steps were taken by Colpman to carry 
out the sale without the intervention of Kennedy. One state­
ment made is that after the Whalen deal fell through, the pro­
perty was withdrawn from sale so that a cruise could he made, 
but this was never made known to Connor or Rayner. On the 
contrary, negotiations still proceeded and Duncan was partic­
ularly active throughout the time when it is stated the property 
was withdrawn, in negotiations with Connor,—with a sale in 
view, and the luncheon took place during the time it is contended 
the property was withdrawn from sale. It is sufficient that, when 
the question of Kennedy being entitled to a commission came up
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with Colpman, who denied Kennedy’s right to it—that Duncan 
made the remark: “The labourer was worthy of his hire.”

Further, Duncan, a director of the vendors, admits that at 
the luncheon Kennedy was urging the sale on Connor, and it was 
Kennedy who had the particular knowledge to discuss the pro­
perty and point out its suitability and value to the Puget Sound 
Co. Then we have Miller, another director of the vendors, ad­
mitting that Kennedy was treated with as being entitled to bring 
the property to Connor’s and Rayner’s notice. It is evident 
that here is a case of a sale being made behind the back of the 
broker (Kennedy) and that which prompted it being done was 
the evident fact that Connor had become so interested in the 
property—(and this was Kennedy’s work) that a sale was certain 
—and the attempt was to oust Kennedy from getting any 
commission. Î am loath to have to say this—but it is a ease which 
has all the earmarks of this being the moving cause of the direc­
tors and officers of the Victory Land & Timber Co.,—before this 
vista of a certain sale—was present to the minds of the directors, 
namely—Colpman, Duncan and Miller, every encouragement was 
given to Kennedy to enlarge upon the value of the timber, its 
suitability and even necessity to the Puget Sound* Co. in the 
carrying on of its timber operations in the neighliourhood. It is 
patent that Kennedy busied himself greatly about effecting a 
sale and spent a great deal of time and, no doubt, went to con­
siderable expense to draw to the attention of possible purchasers 
this particular timber property, and as I have already pointed 
out, admittedly, a commission would have been earned had the 
Whalen or James negotiations gone through, but with all this 
work when a sale is effected, and effected through his agency— 
as Connor and Rayner say he was the person who first brought 
the property to their attention,—the effort is made to deprive 
Kennedy of what appears to me to he remuneration which he is 
rightly entitled to. That Kennedy did bestir himself in the mat 
ter is well indicated in the reasons for judgment of the trial 
Judge, which read as follows:—

“I think I must dismiss the action with costs. I am sorry lie- 
cause there is no doubt that Kennedy did a lot of work. Rut I 
do not think he has established any legal liability and if the de­
fendants choose to lie ungenerous, I cannot help it, they are en 
titled to take that stand. 1 think I must dismiss the action with 
costs.”

It is apparent that the trial Judge was impressed upon tin- 
evidence—that the plaintiff had rendered services which the de 
fendants, although not legally called upon to pay for, were 
morally called upon to recognize. However, of course the duty
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was upon the plaintiff to make out his case and that, with great 
respect to the Judge, I consider was done.

The extent to which the Court of Appeal may go in differing 
from the trial Judge is well indicated in the case of Coghlan v. 
Cumberland, 11898] 1 Ch. 704, 67 L.J. (Ch.) 402—[See Lindley, 
M R. at pp. 704, 705.]

Now, bearing in mi? what the Master of the Rolls said, the 
present case is one which, in my opinion, calls for reconsideration 
and weighing the evidence before the Judge,—and bearing in 
mind the surrounding circumstances, it is a case which calls for 
a different conclusion than that arrived at by the trial Judge. 
The evidence, as I read it, amply supports the establishment of 
i cause of action in favour of the broker (Kennedy) upon the 
sale of the property by the defendant to the Puget Sound Co. 
The sale price in the present case was well known. That had 
been made known to Kennedy in connection with the Whalen 
and James negotiations, and as we have seen the price was $165,- 
000 and a profit of $100,000 was made by the defendant. Singer 
v.Russell (1912, 1 D.L.R. 646, 25 O.L.R. 444, is a case much in 
point in considering the present case. [See Boyd, C., 1 D.L.R. 
at pp. 650, 651.]

The language of the Chancellor is exceedingly apposite and 
fitting as applied to the facts of the present case.

I would also refer to a portion of the judgment of Sutherland, 
J. in the Singer case, pp. 658, 659, which may be said to be equal­
ly applicable to the facts of the present case ; and the Judge 
refers to some of the controlling cases governing actions for 
commissions.

(Also see Calloway v. Stobart (1904, 35 Can. S.C.R. 301 at 
pp. 305, 306, 307.)

drier v. Godson (1920), 52 D.L.R. 374, 28 B.C.R. 175, is a late 
case wherein this Court passed upon the law as affecting the 
broker’s right to a commission and the implied promise .of re­
muneration where there w'as the acceptance of the broker’s ser­
vices. This case went to the Supreme Court of Canada, and the 
judgment was affirmed. I took the view7 in that case as I do in 
this, that the broker was the effective cause of the sale, and with­
out repeating my reasons here, consider that they are equally 
epvlicable to the present case. Upon the appeal to the Supreme 
Court of Canada, a short statement only appears of the result of 
the appeal, (see Godson v. Greer (1920), 56 D.L.R. 696, 60 Can. 
S.C.R. 653).

The counsel for the respondent relied greatly upon Picard v. 
Revel stoke Saw Mill Co. (1913), 9 D.L.R. 580; 12 D.L.R. 685, 18 
B.C.R. 416, as an authority supporting his contention that, in
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any case, no liability could be fixed upon the company,—the de­
fendant in the action. With deference, the present case is not 
one at all similar to the Picard case. There, there was clear ab 
sence of authority to bind the company upon the part of Lind- 
mark, and he was not the managing director of one of the com 
panics concerned in the transaction. No question of want of 
authority upon the part of the directors can come up for con­
sideration in the present case, nor can I see that any defence 
upon this ground is open upon the evidence adduced at the trial. 
Now, the question which remains is: What amount the plaintiff 
is entitled to for the effective services rendered and the bringing 
about of the sale?

There is evidence that in this Province upon sales of timber 
lands, as much as 10% is paid. The plaintiff, however, only 
claims 5%, and, upon full consideration of the ease, I am of Urn 
opinion that the plaintiff has established his right to a commis­
sion, and that it should be allowed at 5% on the sale price of tl 
property sold. It follows that, in my opinion, for the foregoing 
reasons, the judgment of the trial Judge should be reversed ami 
judgment entered for the plaintiff in accordance with the claim 
made in the statement of claim. The appeal to be allowed.

Eberts, J.A. would allow the appeal.
Appeal allowed.

WHITBY v. WIDEN.

Saskatchewan Court of Appeal, Uaultain, C.J.S., Lamont and Turgeon, 
JJ.A. June 80, 10Si.

Damages ($IIIA—53)—Partnership agreement—Construction—I
TENTION OF PARTIES—BREACH—MEASURE OF COMPENSATION.

Where parties have entered into a partnership agreement by which 
they undertake to carry on jointly a hotel business from a certain 
date, the date being fixed because the parties expect to obtain pos­
session of the hotel on that date, the contract docs not lapse on that 
date if the hotel is not then available, and possession of the hotel 
being taken by one of the parties within two months of the time 
originally expected, the partnership will commence from the date of 
possession.

The partner deprived of possession is entitled to damages for l*»ss 
suffered on account of such deprivation for the period during which 
the partnership was to run before it could be terminated by notice 
according to the agreement.

Appeal by defendant from the trial judgment in an action 
for damages for breach of a partnership agreement.

J. F. Frame, K.C., and L. McK. Robinson, for appellant.
P. II. Gordon, for respondent.
The judgment of the Court was delivered by
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Turgeon, J.A.:—The parties in this case entered into a part­
nership agreement in writing on August 11, 1920, by which they 
undertook to carry on jointly an hotel business at Kamsack, for 
a period to begin on September 1, 1920. The parties expected to 
he in a position to enter into possession of the hotel in question 
on September 1, hence the fixing of that date for the beginning 
of their partnership. Some litigation concerning this hotel, which Turgeon, j.a. 
was then being carried on between the appellant and a third 
party, caused a delay to occur and as a result the hotel was not 
free to be occupied by them until November 19, 1920. The ap­
pellant contends that as the parties could not begin business on 
September 1, the contract between them never became effective, 
but lapsed on that date. 1 agree with the trial Judge that this 
contention cannot prevail, and that November 19, 1920, should 
be taken as the date for the beginning of the proposed partner­
ship. On that date the appellant took possession of the hotel 
and proceeded to conduct the business thereof without the 
respondent, having notified him by letter, dated October 30, of 
his intention to repudiate the partnership agreement. The ac­
tions of both parties liefore and after September 1, and the let­
ters of the appellant to the respondent, of October 8 and October 
14, corroborate the testimony of the respondent, that the inten­
tion of the parties all along was that the contract should really 
become effective when the hotel in question became ready for oc­
cupancy by them. In my opinion the appeal must fail upon this 
ground.

The appellant appeals also against the ruling of the trial Judge 
on the question of damages, and on this point I think he is en­
titled to some relief. The judgment awards damages to the 
respondent under the following heads: (1) $600, for what is 
termed general damages, and which I gather from the language 
of the judgment to mean the loss which the respondent suffered 
by reason of selling his home and disposing of the business which 
he had been conducting as an accountant, in anticipation of the 
partnership, and his inability to secure other occupation until 
about January 15, 1921; (2) the amount of the respondent’s 
living expenses from November 19 to January 15; (3) a half 
share of the profits of the hotel business from November 19, 1920, 
to the date of trial, which was June 18, 1921 ; and (4) the sums 
expended by the respondent for travelling, hotel and other ex­
penses in trying to get the appellant to admit him into partner­
ship ; the amount of these last three items to be ascertained upon 
a reference to the Local Registrar.

Regarding items No. 1 and No. 2, the respondent gave cer-
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tain evidence at the trial by which 1 think we should be guided 
in ascertaining whether the allowance made by the trial Judge is 
reasonable. In my opinion this allowance is excessive, and upon 
the figures shewn should lie reduced. The respondent says that 
in some years he earned $50 or $75 a week, and sometimes more 
At the rate of $50 per week he would have earned $400 for tin 
two months in question, and at $75 per week, $600; but, on the 
other hand, he would have had to deduct his living expenses from 
his earnings. Here he is allowed $600, and his living expenses 
besides. Of course it is impossible, from the evidence, to fix the 
respondent’s earning power with precision. I think it would 
not be unreasonable to eliminate the allowance made to him 
under item No. 2 above, and to fix the sum of $600 as the total 
damages, in substitution for the general damages and living ex 
penses allowed by the trial Judge. This disposition of the mat 
ter will, I think, place the damages upon a more reasonable basis, 
and will also reduce the inconvenience and the difficulty of tin 
reference to the Local Registrar. As to item No. 3, I can see no 
reason for allowing the respondent a share of the profits up to 
June 18, 1921. According to the terms of the agreement, either 
party had the right to terminate the partnership at any time 
after December 31, 1920, by giving 3 months’ notice to the other 
In an award for. damages for breach of contract, I do not see 
how the respondent can claim the right to be placed in a better 
position than if the appellant had put an end to the contract in 
a legal manner. The award for the half share of the profit* 
should stand, but the period to be covered by it should end on 
April 1, 1921, as the appellant might have given notice on Jan 
uary 1, 1921, of a dissolution to become effective upon that date. 
1 think the respondent is entitled to be recouped for the expense s 
he incurred, and to which he referred in his evidence, in en­
deavouring to induce the appellant to assume the partnership 
relations which had been agreed to between them. The award 
as to this item should stand.

The judgment should be varied as above, and the reference to 
the Local Registrar should be limited to ascertaining the half 
share of profits due to the respondent and his expenses under the 
last mentioned item above referred to. As the appellant has 
succeeded in part only, but in a substantial part of this appeal. 
1 think there should be no costs allowed to either party on tL 
appeal. The costs in the Court below should stand as ordered 
by the trial Judge.

Judgment below varied.
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MYERfiON t. GREEN AND HOMES.
Quebec Superior Court in Bankruptcy, Panneton, J. June 83, 1988. 

Bankruptcy ($ I—6)—Action commenced by plaintipp previous to
BANKRUPTCY—TRUSTEE ORDERED TO CONTEST ACTION AFTER INSOL­
VENCY—Judgment against trustee—Costs before and after 
BANKRUPTCY.

Costs of an action previous to the insolvency of the plaintiff are not 
privileged and are to be paid at the same rate as other ordinary 
creditors but after the insolvency, upon the case being resumed on a 
judgment of the Court ordering the trustee of the estate to continue 
the contestation, the costs are privileged and upon judgment being 
rendered against the trustee, such costs must be paid out of the estate 
and are payable immediately.

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135, 56 D.L.R. 104, 59 D.L.R. 1.]
Petition for the purpose of obtaining a judgment ordering 

the trustee of a bankrupt to pay the petitioner the costs of an 
action. Petition granted.

/. Popliger, for petitioner.
8. O. Tritt, for trustee.
Panneton, J. :—On April 1, plaintiff obtained judgment 

against the defendant for $2,192.42 by default, and also a judg­
ment against Homes, the garnishee by default ; this judgment 
against the garnishee affecting an auto alleged to be in his pos­
session and to he the property of the defendant.

On April 29, 1920, a petition was made by Bonnier, trustee, 
for the International Ladies’ Wear, claiming the auto and the 
nullity of the above mentioned judgment in so far as the 
garnishee was concerned.

Myerson, the plaintiff, contested said petition of Bonnier, 
issue was joined in the case, when plaintiff became insolvent and 
the trustee Alan J. Hart, was appointed to the estate of said in­
solvent ;

On September 1, 1921, Bonnier made a petition asking that the 
trustee Hart be ordered to take up the instance ; on September 
26, 1921, judgment was rendered, calling upon Hart, the trustee 
of the estate of Myerson, to continue the instance of the contest­
ation ;

It is proved that Hart did not want to continue the instance, 
and he gave a copy of his petition to P. Ryan, K.C., stating that 
he did not want the contestation to continue, but whether he 
wanted the proceedings to continue or not, Bonnier, the trustee 
of the International Ladies’ Wear, wanted a judgment rendered 
in his favour on his petition, claiming the auto, and unless Hart, 
the trustee, formerly withdrew the contestation made by Myer­
son, whose estate he represented, Bonnier was forced to proceed 
against him which he did and he was obliged to make all the 
subsequent proceedings to obtain judgment, which judgment was
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rendered on January 31, 1922, in his favour with costs, whicli 
were fixed at $398.05, and he, I. Popliger, attorney for Bonnier, 
was entitled to be paid out of the estate, the part of said costs 
previous to the insolvency of Myerson, are not privileged and 
are to be paid at the same rate as other ordinary creditors, but 
rhe cause following the reprise d'instance are privileged against 
the trustee Hart in his quality, and said costs have been taxed 
to the sum of $304.05. The trustee Hart paid $87 for the costs 
of the reprise d'instance.

Upon the refusal of the trustee Hart to pay the costs, tb 
present petition was presented by I. Popliger, attorney for Bon 
nier, trustee of the International Ladies’ Wear, for the purposc 
of obtaining a judgment ordering the said trustee Hart to pay 
him all his costs on his petition contested.

The Court orders the said trustee Hart, in his quality, to pay 
to the petitioner, Popliger, the sum of $304.05 within a delay of 
15 days from this date, with costs of the present petition against 
the estate of W. Myerson. Judgment accordingly.

POTTER v. McNBILL.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Scott, C.J., Stuart, B< 

llyndman and Clarke, JJ.A. June 89, 1989.
Sale (§ IB—11)—Of goods—Contract—Construction—Time of m 

livery—Finding of fact of trial Judge—Interference wit a 
by Appellate Court. «

A finding of fact of the trial Judge, who has seen and heard the 
witnesses, and is in the best position to judge of the truth of the 
evidence on a crucial point, will not be disturbed by the Appelln 
Court, where there is evidence to support it.

Appeal by defendant from the judgment of Simmons, J., 
awarding plaintiff damages for breach of defendant’s agreement 
to purchase 6 carloads of hay. Affirmed.

C. C. McCaul, K.C., and O. C. Valens, for appellant.
A. U. (i. Bury, for respondent.
Scott» C.J. concurs with Clarke, J.A.
Stuart, J.A. (dissenting) :—I am sorry to have to say that 

what 1 now believe, after careful consideration, to be an essential 
point in this case did not occur to me during the argument and 
that that essential point was not discussed or mentioned by coun­
sel. We were, I think, too much absorbed in the consideration of 
the question of the contradictory accounts given by the parties of 
what the bargain was to perceive at the moment what the real 
obligation of the plaintiff was, even assuming the account of the 
bargain given by her agents to be the true one.

If we accept Albert Potter’s account of the terms and condi­
tions of the bargain of purchase and sale which was arrived at 
on April 13, and assume that the bargain was that the plaintiff
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agreed to sell and the defendant to buy 6 earloads of hay at $64 
a ton, but that it was understood that this hay was to be shipped 
from, or from near Montreal, without any stipulation as to the 
time of shipment, and that the defendant was to be content with 
the ordinary period of time which would be required for the 
carrying of the hay by the transportation company or companies 
from Montreal or from near Montreal to Edmonton, then the 
question of the time of shipment becomes far more important 
than it appeared to be considered on the argument.

But the essential point which I think has been overlooked is 
this, that there was admittedly not a word said in the conver­
sation which made the contract about the plaintiff merely having 
the hay on order from someone else in Montreal. There was no 
mention whatever of Baillargeon & Co., who turn out to have 
been the plaintiff’s vendors. Under the terms of the contract, 
even as stated by Albert Potter, McNeill was entirely entitled to 
assume that at that moment, that is on April 13, the plaintiff 
had hay of her own in her own possession or under her control at 
or near Montreal. The plaintiff’s agent, Albert Potter, said in 
substance to McNeill, on April 13: “I have 6 carloads of hay 
at or near Montreal which I will sell you and deliver to you in 
Edmonton as soon as it can get here by rail shipment.” And 
this hay the defendant agreed to buy. In such circumstances, 
what was the obligation of the plaintiff? 1 think that obligation 
was to put her hay on the cars, to ship it at or near Montreal, 
cither forthwith or within a reasonable time. She had no right 
to treat her vendor’s obligation to her as the measure of her 
obligation to McNeill. McNeill knew nothing, for he was in no 
wise informed, of the existence of any such a relationship and 
In- was not bound to be concerned in it in any way.

Therefore, I think that an essential question is, not when the 
hay arrived in Edmonton, or whether it arrived there within a 
reasonable time, but when did the plaintiff ship the hay from 
Montreal, or near that place, and did she do so within a reason­
able time after she had sold it to the defendant, so that, as far 
as her acts were concerned, there would be no unreasonable delay 
in its arrival at Edmonton?

In my opinion it is very important in the interest of commer­
cial men that the true obligation of the plaintiff under such a 
contract as was held by the trial Judge to have been entered into 
between the parties to this action should be plainly declared, and 
in my opinion, that obligation was such as I have just indicated.

There are very many cases in the reports dealing with con­
tracts for the sale of goods “to be shipped.” But it is very 
difficult to find a case where the time of shipment from the 
named port was not specified. Usually it is specified that the
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shipment is to be before a certain date or during a certain month 
or months. In such a case the time of shipment is treated as a 
condition or as part of the description of the goods. But in the 
present case, if we accept the plaintiff’s account of the bargain 
there can be no question of a condition or a description of the 
goods. She was bound only to ship within a reasonable time.

As to the facts it appears that 1 car had been already shipped 
on the 13th and about this there can be no question. Then 3 
carloads were shipped on the 17th—a delay of 4 days, and 2 were 
shipped on the 20th, a delay of 1 week.

Now, whatever may be said of the delay of 4 days, my opinion 
is, that considering the time of the year and the circumstances 
well known to both parties a delay of a whole week was unrc;i 
sonable. What would have been thought if the shipment had had 
to be from Leduc to Edmonton, if a vendor at Leduc had under 
such a contract delayed a week before putting his hay on tin* 
cars? And the greater the distance from Edmonton the more 
reason there would be for promptness and we should not, I think, 
fall into the error of extending the measure of reasonable time to 
make it proportionate to the increased distance.

Nor is it any answer to say that even at Leduc the vendor 
might have to gather up his hay from neighbouring farmers. 
We know now, of course, that the plaintiff was depending on In i 
vendor to deliver hay to her, but I think it is erroneous to decide 
upon the extent of her obligation in the light of knowledge of 
facts which we now have, but which McNeill did not have. Her 
obligation arises from the contract and the contract was an agree 
ment of the parties. There is not a word revealed in Potter's 
account, of the conversation to suggest anything else than that, 
the plaintiff at the time of the contract had the hay in her pos­
session or control at or near Montreal, and, therefore, nothing 
whatever to shew that McNeill took the risk of some vendor of 
the plaintiff making a delay in delivery to her. If the plaintiff 
had shewn an inability to secure cars for loading at any earlier 
period than a week I think McNeill might perhaps have been 
bound to submit to that delay, but nothing of that kind was sug­
gested.

I have proceeded thus far upon the assumption that the pin in- 
tiff’s account of the conversation was the true one and 1 think 
what I have said has at least some bearing upon the probability 
of the two accounts given. I cannot understand, if the defend­
ant did not receive an assurance that the hay was already shipped 
and if the time of shipment was left unspecified, why he never 
enquired of the plaintiff if it had been shipped. He is shewn to 
have made some enquiries as to whether it had arrived in Ed-
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mouton or not, but never any inquiry as to whether it had been 
shipped from Montreal. 1 think he would have lieen certain to 
make such an enquiry if he had bought knowing that it had not 
yet been shipped or without any assurance that it had.

Then if we look at the alleged contract sued upon there arises 
the same suggestion. The plaintiff alleges that “on April 13, 
1920, the defendant contracted with the plaintiff for the pur­
chase and acceptance by the defendant, of 6 railway carloads of 
hay to be delivered by the plaintiff to the defendant as soon as 
the said carloads of hay should arrive at Edmonton, or in the 
alternative, within a reasonable time from the said 13th day of 
April, 1920.”

Now I cannot help asking what such allegations mean if they 
do not mean that the defendant bought 6 carloads of hay then on 
tlirir way to Edmonton f I see no reasonable sense to the words 
unless they mean this, because surely it was not suggested, that 
the defendant had agreed to take delivery whenever they ar­
rived at Edmonton, no matter where or in what condition they 
were at the time of the contract. There is no allegation in the 
statement of claim that it was understood and agreed that the 
liav was still to be shipped from near Montreal. And even if 
it would l>e proper, as perhaps it would, to allow that allegation 
to lie inserted in view of the evidence, yet when that allegation 
constitutes the whole difference between the contradictory ac­
counts of the parties it seems to me strongly confirmatory of the 
defendant’s story that the only sensible meaning of the words 
used by the plaintiff in her original statement of claim coincides 
practically with that story.

The trial Judge treats the defendant’s allegation that it was 
agreed that the hay was already on the way as an allegation ofa 
representation, the burden of proving which lay upon the de­
fendant. He says: “The onus is upon the defendant to es­
tablish the representations alleged. I have his statement and 
the denial of Bert Potter. 1 am unable to find that he has es­
tablished preponderance of weight in favour of his allegation.”

With much respect I think the Judge permitted himself to be 
lcil into error by the mistaken form of the defendant’s defence 
wherein misrepresentations were alleged. It is there stated that 
“the defendant was induced to enter into the contract because 
of the representations made by the plaintiff on April 13, that the 
said carloads of hay were all en route to Edmonton, &c.”

What the defendant was there in substance alleging, was a term 
of the contract amounting to a description of the goods sold. 
The plaintiff had indeed, as I think, practically said the same 
tiling in her statement of claim, if it is to be given any reasonably 
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sensible meaning. But in her evidence she attempted to prove, 
not a sale of goods already in Edmonton, nor of goods on tin- 
way to Edmonton, which is what her alternative allegations 
really mean, but of goods that to the knowledge of the defendant, 
were yet to he shipped from near Montreal, and that without any 
stipulation as to time of shipment. The plaintiff was suing for 
damages for breach of that contract. That contract it was her 
burden to prove. In my hunble opinion therefore the trial Judge 
misapprehended the obligations as to burden of proof which lay 
upon the parties. If there had been a jury 1 think there would 
have been a plain misdirection and a new trial must have been 
ordered.

But there was no jury. We are entitled to give our own judg­
ment. In the circumstances 1 do not feel particularly bound by 
the finding of the trial Judge. It is contrary to the plain allega­
tion of the statement of claim because, as I say, an allegation 
without more, that goods sold are to be delivered as soon as they 
arrive in Edmonton is either senseless or unreasonable or else ii 
means that the goods were on the way at the date of sale. 1 am 
not proposing exactly to hold the plaintiff to her statement of 
claim but the way it was drawn in the first place is very corro­
borative of the defendant’s account.

And the complete omission of the defendant to make any en­
quiry as to whether the goods had been yet shipped is in my 
opinion strongly confirmatory of his statement that he was told 
that they were already on the way. As they were not, in fact, 
then all on the way they were not the goods described in tin- 
contract as stated by the defendant.

As compared with these general considerations I place lit11< 
weight upon minor points of evidence or upon what happened on 
April 14, which in any case was after the contract was made and 
has very little bearing upon the real problem.

If the contract had been as the plaintiff alleged and even u 1 - 
though she did fail to ship within what I think was a reasonable 
time, I am inclined to the view that the conduct of the defendant 
assuming him, as we must, to have known what the real contract 
was, would probably be such as to constitute a waiver of any 
delay in shipping from Montreal.

But upon the ground that I think the plaintiff failed to prove 
the contract set up in her evidence, though not set up in her 
pleadings 1 would allow the appeal with costs and dismiss 1 he 
action with costs and give judgment for the defendant on the 
counterclaim for $100 without costs.

1 may add that 1 am confident that either the view’ I have taken 
is the right one, or else the parties never really understood ea< h
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other, were never ad idem, and so there was no contract at all in 
which case also the plaintiff would fail. From my observation 
of the casual and careless methods unfortunately very prevalent 
among many business men and particularly exemplified in this 
case, 1 think it very probable indeed that a real misunderstand­
ing was at the bottom of the trouble.

Reck, J.A. concurs with Hyndman, J.A.
Hyndman, J.A. :—I concur in the result arrived at by Clarke, 

J.A., who reviews the facts very fully and carefully.
I only wish to say that 1 do not entirely agree with him when 

he states that the probabilities are more on the side of the plain­
tiff. 1 would think it rather otherwise, and had I tried the action 
1 am inclined to think I would have decided in favour of the 
defendant.

The trial Judge, however, having seen and heard all the wit­
nesses is in the best position to judge of the truth of the evidence 
on the crucial point, that is, whether or not a representation was 
made as to the location of the hay at the time of the bargain, and 
I am not prepared to say he was in error in his conclusion.

Clarke, J.A.:—This is an appeal by the defendant from the 
judgment of Simmons, J., awarding the plaintiff damages for 
breach of the defendant’s agreement to purchase 6 carloads of 
hay. The dispute arises over the time for delivery.

The negotiations arose out of the following advertisement by 
the plaintiff in the issue of the Edmonton Journal of April 10, 
1920 :—

“Timothy Hay—Necessity forced our hand to secure our re­
quirements. In order to get what we wanted we were forced to 
buy 6 carloads more than we needed. Therefore this amount is 
for sale. Orders will be received and booked in consecutive order. 
First come first served. No order considered except accompanied 
by cash, 25% of requirements. First cars will land about April 
IS, and temporary supplies handed out from them pending ar­
rival of others. Rook your order now.”

On March 29, 1920, plaintiff ordered 3 carloads of hay by wire 
from Raillargeon of Montreal.

On April 6, Raillargeon wired plaintiff: “One car shipped, 
quotation 5 ears in few days.”

On April 8, Raillargeon wired plaintiff: “Another carload 
shipped yesterday . . . can ship 5 or 6 cars at once . . .
ears loaded quick, w'ire reply.”

On April 9, plaintiff wired Raillargeon: “Yours eighth, ship 
6 cars No. 2 timothy . .

On April 13, Raillargeon wired plaintiff: “Another ear left;
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others loading, O.K. for 6 cars as per your wire of ninth, makiiur 
9 cars in all. . . .”

On April 18, Bert Potter, acting on behalf of the plaint ill. 
agreed to sell to the defendant, 6 carloads of hay, and the do 
fendant paid a deposit and received the following receipt of that 
date: “Received from John McNeill, Twin City Transfer Com 
puny, one hundred dollars, deposit on six cars of hay (timothy. 
Price per ton, $64, Edmonton, Alta.”

It was known to both parties that the plaintiff intended to fill 
fil his contract by the delivery of 6 carloads which she was bavin 
shipped from the vicinity of Montreal. At the time, hay wa 
very scarce in Alberta and prices were high.

Bert Potter says (and it is not denied) that it was arranged 
the defendant should get the first 6 cars to arrive after the first, 
which the plaintiff was taking for her own use.

The first of the 9 carloads ordered by the plaintiff was ship 
ped via C.P.R. from Del son, Quebec, on April 5, and arrived in 
Edmonton, April 21. This car was not taken by the plainti: 
hut turned over to the defendant and paid for. The 2 carloads 
referred to by the telegrams of April 8 and 13, as having hern 
shipped, do not appear to have reached Edmonton, and it dm 
not appear that the plaintiff received more than 6 of the 9 car­
loads ordered by her. Of the remaining 5, 2 were shipped 
from Delson, via C.P.R., and one from Lacadie, via C.N.R., on 
April 17, and 2 more shipped from Grand Ligne via C.N.R., on 
April 20. The 5 reached Edmonton on May 3 and 4 and were 
refused by the defendant as being too late. It is admitted thaï 
after shipment the cars came through in unusually good time.

On April 30, the defendant being told on inquiry at the C.P.R. 
that no cars were cn route West of Fort William, wrote the 
plaintiff as follows :—

“Referring to the 6 cars of hay bought from you on April 13tli 
and of which only 1 car has been delivered, I wish to remind you 
that when 1 bought this hay, Mr. Bert Potter led me to under­
stand that this hay had been shipped and on the way for so...
considerable time and was expected to arrive in Edmonton with­
in the next few days.

According to the information received from your office this 
morning, this hay is not yet in sight, and as you are unable to 
give me any idea as to when it may arrive, 1 hereby intimate to 
you that I now cancel ray order.

Owing to the delay in delivery of this hay some of my custom­
ers have cancelled their orders with me and bought elsewhere, 
others 1 have managed to supply from other sources. When your
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hay arrives in Edmonton, let me know and I will yet do my best 
to help you out with it.”

At this time the price of hay was falling.
The defendant alleges in his defence that it was a term of the 

contract, that the hay would be delivered as soon as the carloads 
should arrive in Edmonton, or in the alternative, within a rea­
sonable time from April 13, 1920, and states that it was a condi­
tion of the contract that all of the hay would be delivered to the 
defendant on or before April 17, 1920, and in the further altern­
ative that the defendant was induced to enter into the contract 
because of the representation by the plaintiff on April 13, that 
the carloads of hay were all en route to Edmonton, and actually 
travelling towards Edmonton on the railway which was false.

ITpon the trial, the defendant stated in his evidence that on 
April 13 (Tuesday), Bert Potter said in answer to his inquiry: 
“ It is shipped and on the way 10 or 12 days and will be here at 
the end of the week,” and that on the following day (14th), he 
repeated this statement at the defendant’s office, and in this he is 
corroborated by his employees, Barnes and Johnson. Bert Pot­
ier denies having made this statement. The trial Judge, in his 
reasons for judgment says: ‘‘1 am not able to find that he (de­
fendant) has established preponderance of weight in favour of 
his allegation, and in the matter of reasonable time 1 think the 
plaintiff has done so.”

The appellant asks to have this finding of fact reversed and 
argues that the inherent probability is in favor of the defendant. 
The evidence of Bert Potter is corroborated to some extent by 
the witness Marskell.

I do not think the finding of the trial Judge should be dis­
turbed. The probability seems to be in favour of the plaintiff. 
Bert Potter was not aware of the telegram of April 13, confirm­
ing the purchase of 6 cars and it does not appear that he was 
aware of the telegram of April 9, ordering them, although it 
would be a fair inference that he knew in some way that the ad­
ditional 6 cars were being procured, otherwise he would not have 
agreed to sell them. There was nothing in any of the telegrams 
that would warrant Bert Potter in saying the cars were on the 
way 10 or 12 days and would arrive at the end of the week, for 
according to the telegrams the first was not shipped till April 5. 
Had he seen the telegram of April 9 he would have known the 6 
cars then ordered had not been shipped and he would have been 
guilty of a gross fabrication had he made the statement alleged 
In the defendant, and there does not appear to have been at the 
time any reason for his making it. I do not think a statement 
which would have been fraudulent, should be attributed to him.
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B.C. Had the defendant’s evidence been that he simply stated the
^7^* cars were on the way there would be more probability of its cor

rectness, but no witness swears to such a statement. On his ex 
amination for discovery he appears to have said : “I believe i 
told him I thought the hay was on the road.” If that is what he, 
in fact, said it would not be a misrepresentation, for the telegram 
would justify such a belief; but on the trial he said he did not 
mean that all the hay was on the road, and that what he said 
was : “I thought some of the hay was on the road.” This was 
true; one car had been shipped on April 5, and according to the 
telegram of April 8, it was stated another carload was shipped 
the previous day. It would not have been surprising if he had 
stated that 2 were on the way, but he says that although he be- 
lieved 2 were on the way he did not so state, and no witness sa,\ s 
he did. It is true the advertisement stated : “First cars will 
land about April 18.” I do not think that helps the defendant. II 
does not profess to have acted upon it, and even if he did 1 think 
it refers to the first cars of the 9. lie was not entitled to the firs! 
and the delivery of it to him removes any complaint he could 
possibly make on this ground, for the arrival of 2 would satisfy 
the representation. He would only be entitled to 1 and that he 
received.

I think the finding that the delivery was offered within a rea­
sonable time cannot be disturbed.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Appeal dismissal.

Re LAND REGISTRY ACT AM) McMVLLEX.
British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Galliher and Eberts, 

JJ.A. January 10, 1922.
Land titles ($ I—1)—Registration fee—Market value of land—Rail­

way tunnel.
A railway tunnel, being part of the railway system as a going con­

cern, is not to be considered in connection with the market value of 
the land through which it passes, in computing the registration fee 
under the Land Registry Act (R.8.B.C. 1011, ch. 127, sec. 175) based 
upon the market value of the land.

Appeal by the District Registrar from the judgment of Morri­
son, J.

W. D. Carter, K.C., for appellant.
J. E. McMullen, for respondent.
Macdonald, C.J.A. (dissenting) :—An application was made 

to register 2 conveyances of land from the Crown to the Cana­
dian Pacific Railway Co. by Mr. McMullen, the company’s 
solicitor, respondent in this appeal. The District Registrar re­
fused to register the conveyances on the ground that the applies-
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lions did not disclose the value of a tunnel constructed by the 
railway company through the lauds mentioned in the convey­
ances.

The facts stated in the case are meagre, but the point in dis­
pute is not in doubt. It is not disputed that the lands form part 
of the railway company’s right-of-way, and that it constructed 
a tunnel through them which it is today using as part of its rail­
way. The Land Registry Act, eh. 127, R.S.B.C. 1911, secs. 174 
and 175, provide for the payment to the Registrar, on application 
to register a conveyance, of a fee calculated upon the market 
value of the land for which registration is applied for, and that, 
in case of dispute, the value shall be settled by the Registrar upon 
such proof as he may deem to be sufficient.

The petition to the Judge against the refusal of the District 
Registrar to register the conveyances, and the affidavit support­
ing the same, shew no more than this, that, in the opinion of the 
deponents, the tunnel is of no market value. It was conceded 
in the argument that the tunnel is a part of the railway, and 
cost the railway a large sum of money to construct. The sole 
question argued was, had it a market value in the sense in which 
those words are used in the statute?

Respondent’s counsel relied upon Bell Telephone Co., and 
City of Hamilton (1898), 25 A.R. (Ont.) 351, an Ontario deci­
sion, which was the foundation of several others which followed 
it, while the appellant’s counsel relied upon several English de­
cisions, amongst others, London County Council v. Church War- 

g of the Parith of Erith, [1893] A.C. 682, G3 L.J. (M.C.) 9, 
42 W.R. 330.

In the Ontario case, Burton, C.J., brushed aside the English 
decisions as being inapplicable, on the ground that they were de­
cisions upon a statute essentially different from the statute of 
Ontario then under consideration, and, in this opinion, the other 
members of the Court of Appeal seem to have acquiesced.

It is essential to examine the English statute and our own to 
see whether there is any distinction in principle between them. 
Market value is the value which a purchaser might reasonably 
be expected to pay for the lands. In the Erith case, supra, Lord 
Ilershell, L.C., delivering the judgment of the House of Lords, 
interpreting the statute there in question said at p. 588:—

“The annual rent which a tenant might reasonably be ex­
pected, taking one year with another, to pay for a hereditament, 
is the same thing as the ‘rent at which the same might reasonably 
he expected to let from year to year.’ M

The question there was one of annual value, but the point de­
rided was whether or not the owner might be regarded as a hypo-
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thetical tenant, and therefore one who might want premises 
which might he of no use to any one else. The submission here is 
that no matter what sum of money it cost to construct the tunnel, 
no matter how necessary it may be to the railway company, yet 
because if the road were abandoned, no one would pay more for 
the land than if the tunnel were not in it, therefore, the tunnel is 
of no market value. In others words, that the land as land has 
not been improved by the construction of the tunnel.

Now, it seems to me that if we adopt the principle adopted in 
the Erith case, and regard the railway company as a possible 
purchaser if the land were offered for sale, the land has a value 
beyond its ordinary value by reason of the existence of the 
tunnel. Counsel for the respondent argued that a bridge or a 
railway station did not enhance the value of the land beyond tin- 
value of the material when taken down, and this appears to have 
been the view adopted in Re Quecnston Heights Bridge (1901), 
1 O.L.R. 114. There is a difference in words between our statute 
and the Ontario statute which may account for the conclusion 
arrived at there, but, in my opinion, there is no distinction be­
tween the principle to be applied here and that applied in 
England.

It will l>e noticed that Lord Ilershell, emphatically affirms 
Reg. v. School Board for London (1886), 17 Q.B.D. 738, 55 L.J. 
(M.C.) 169, 34 W.R. 583. In the statement of that case, it is 
admitted that, if the schools were then in the market to he let to a 
tenant as schools, a tenant could not be found who would lie will 
ing to take them, yet the Court held that the School Hoard ought 
to he treated as a hypothetical tenant and that the annual valu- 
of the property would he the rent which the Hoard might reason­
ably Ik* expected to pay for the premises for use as schools.

It was contended that to put a value upon the tunnel would 
be to tax the franchise of the railway company. This contention 
seems to me to be baseless. The value of the land in question is 
not to be ascertained by estimating the value of the tunnel as 
part of the railway system, nor yet on its actual cost; it might 
have cost more than its worth to the railway company, or it may 
be worth more than its cost. Either method of estimating its 
value would be erroneous. No doubt the cost may la* looked at 
for the purpose of ascertaining the value, but, if circumstances 
should appear which would either take from or add to the value 
of the tunnel, that would be a matter for the person making tin- 
valuation. With that we are not asked to deal in this appeal, 
but only to fix the principle upon which the valuation is to be 
made. That principle is the one adopted in London Count g 
Council v. Erith, supra. It is the sum which the railway com
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panv might reasonably lx* expected to pay for the land for the 
purpose for which it is being used.

The appeal should be allowed.
Gali.iher, J.A.:—1 would dismiss the appeal.
The English cases we have been referred to by Mr. Carter, 

counsel for the respondent-appellant, the District Registrar of 
Titles at Nelson, are all in respect of the construction of English 
Acts dealing with the levy of poor rates and are, as 1 view it, of 
little use to us in dealing with the provisions of our Land 
Registry Act, eh. 127, of R.S.B.C., 1911.

The question to be decided here is: What fee, if any, should 
he paid the Registrar in respect of a tunnel constructed under 
lands of the C.P.R. Co., and through which a portion of their 
line runs, upon an application to register such lands in fee.

The section of our Act dealing with the question (see. 175) is 
as follows :—

“The percentage to be paid on the registration of a fee, shall 
l>e calculated on the market value of the land at the time of ap­
plication for registration. . . .”

The tunnel in question is run under a mountain, and is an in­
tegral part of the company's system with no possibility of con­
nection with any other enterprise, absolutely useless and value­
less except for the purpose for which it is now used in connection 
with the railway. It is merely a hole in the ground. It has ab­
solutely no market value to any one, except the company and 
only to them as a part of their system.

In the Appeal Court of Ontario, in Bell Telephone Co. and 
City of Hamilton, 25 A.R. Ont., at 351, in determining the pro­
per mode of assessing telephone poles and wires within certain 
assessment divisions, the headnote in that ease which is lx,me out 
in the judgment, is:—

“In assessing for purposes of taxation, the poles, wires, con­
duits and cables of a telephone company, the cost of construction 
or the value as part of a going concern, is not the test—they must 
he valued in the assessment division in which they happen to be, 
just as materials which if sold or taken in payment of a just debt 
from a solvent debtor would have to be removed and taken away 
hv the purchaser or creditor.”

Burton, C.J.O., at p. 354, puts it thus:—
“1 am of opinion that as real property the poles, etc., are sim­

ply to be valued as they would sell irrespective of the fact that 
they form part of a going concern.”
And Osler, J., at p. 356:—

“It is the property itself, whether real or personal, which is 
to hear the burden of taxation and circumstances which may
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Que. make it of an adventitious value to its possessor only, but which
■jjJ'JT must necessarily cease to attach to it if it passes into other hands,

must be excluded in estimating its cash value.”
Now, w hile the tunnel here is a part of the land owned by the 

company and cannot be detached from it as could the telephone 
poles, etc., in the Ontario case cited above and other cases in 
Ontario adopting the principle there laid down, as an adjunct to 
the land as land it has no value. Its value is in connection with 
the railway as a going concern and as in the Ontario cases it is 
said that it is not the proper method to apply in assessing, to 
that extent I make those cases applicable here, and say the pci 
centage to be paid on the market value here is, not the market 
value as applied to and in connection with a going concern, but 
the market value of the land which includes the tunnel as it 
would be if detached from the railway system. In other words, 
if the road bed was switched so as not to go through the tunnel, 
and therefore land including the tunnel formed no part of the 
system, would the tunnel construction increase the value of tin 
land one iota, no matter what it cost? And there can only be 
one answer, it would not.

Eberts, J.A. would dismiss the appeal.
, Appeal dismi d.

MORRIS v. KUNE; DEMERS ET AL, GARNISHEE».
Quebec Superior Court, in Bankruptcy, Panneton, J. June 89, 1988. 

Bankruptcy ($ II—14)—Arrest op insolvent for defrauding creditor. 
—Money borrowed and deposited as bail pending trial—Si i 
ZURE OF BY TRUSTEE.

Money borrowed by an insolvent debtor who is under arrest for de­
frauding his creditors, and deposited by him, as bail to secure his 
liberty pending the trial, is not the property of the insolvent and 
cannot be legally seized by the trustee, for payment over to the 
creditors.

| See also 00 D.L.R. 330. See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135, 56 D.L.B. 
104, 59 D.L.R. 1.]

Action to determine the validity of a seizure, of money paid 
in as bail to secure the release of a bankrupt under arrest for 
defrauding his creditors.

1. Popliger, for plaintiff.
Jacobs & Phillips, for defendant.
Panneton, J. :—On January 2, 1922, a seizure before judg­

ment was issued in the Superior Court in this district by W. R. 
Morris in his quality of trustee to the estate of Hyman Kline 
against said Hyman Kline, in the hands of J. N. A. Demers, A. 
E. Corriveau and J. 13. A. Ladouceur, clerks of the Crown and 
Peace for the District of Montreal.
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The garnishees declared on January 10, that they had in their Que-
hands a cheque for $2,500 payable to cash or bearer on the Rank gc
of Nova Scotia, signed by C. Chessler, and deposited with them----
by the defendant Kline, as security for his appearance. Moruis

The debts due by defendant to his creditors amount to $18,000 kune.
for the payment of which defendant has assets of the value of ----
$4,000. Panneton, I.

The facts alleged in support of said seizure are that defendant 
is under arrest for defrauding his creditors and has deposited 
the sum of $2,500 of money, as above stated, which belongs to 
his creditors and which he should have turned to his creditors 
with the assignment made of his property and that if he is 
liberated there is danger of his appropriating that money.

Defendant pleads that plaintiff was not authorized to take 
this seizure, denying all allegations charging him with fraud, 
and adds that the above named cheque was not drawn on money 
which belonged to him, but was drawn by one R. Chessler, his 
brother-in-law, upon the bank in which said Chessler had money 
at his credit which cheque was so made and handed to defendant 
expressly for the purpose of supplying the necessary bail in 
order to effect his liberation pending the outcome of the above 
mentioned criminal prosecution, that, the money always belonged 
to said Chessler.

W. R. Morris having been replaced as trustee by David Som­
mer, this took up the instance, and the Superior Court trans­
mitted the record to the Court of Rankruptcy in adjudication.

During the contestation, Rpnjamin Chessler intervened claim­
ing the said sum of $2,500 as belonging to him and advanced to 
defendant, to take the place of a bail as above mentioned.

Issue was also joined, and the main action as well as the inter­
vention are submitted at the same time to this Court.

The proof establishes fully all the allegations of defendant’s 
pica as above stated, the money which the cheque represents 
never was the property of the insolvent, and as the trustee is in­
vested under a voluntary assignment only with the property of 
the assignor at the date of the assignment, it would a grave in­
justice to make the creditors benefit of money which never be­
longed to their debtor.

There was no ground for the seizure made and the action and 
seizure are dismissed with costs.

The facts proved in the case, and the reasons and law stated 
in the above judgment apply to the intervention, which the 
Court maintains with costs.

Judgment accordingly.



224 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Can. 

Ex. Ct.

CANADIAN PACIFIC !L Co. v. N.B. “BKLRIlMiK."
Exchequer Court of Canada, H. C. Admiralty District, Martin, L.J.A.

September ft, 19ft,
Collision ($ I—8)—Shipping—Excessive speed in snow storm—Liabil­

ity—Apportionment of damages.
A ship lias no right to run through fog nud snow at a speed safe 

for herself but dangerous for others, in violation of art. 1(5 requiring 
moderate speed” in n snow storm ; where the evidence does not disclose 
preponderate culpability upon one ship, the damages should be appor­
tioned equally between the two vessels.

Action by the plaintiff, as owner of the steamship “Empress 
of Japan” for $30,000 damages, against the steamship “Bel- 
ridge” occasioned by a collision which took place off Trial 
Island, near Vancouver Island, B.C., on January 31, 1917.

J. E. McMullen, for plaintiff.
E. C. Mayers, for defendant.
Martin, L.J.A. :—On January 31, 1917, about half-past four 

(Victoria time) in the afternoon, the British twin-screw steam­
ship “Empress of Japan” (W. Dixon Iloperaft, Master), length 
455 feet, gross tonnage 5,940, collided with the Norwegian steam­
ship “Belridge” (Nels Olsen, Master), length 450 feet, gross 
tonnage 7,020, in the Strait of Juan de Fuca, between Trial and 
Discovery Islands, the “Empress of Japan” being inward bound 
for Vancouver pursuing a course from Trial Island to round 
Discovery Island, and the “Belridge” outward hound pursuing 
a course from Discovery Island to round Trial Island, which are 
about 3 miles and 6 cables apart. The tide was at slack and tin- 
state of the weather, according to the preliminary act filed by the 
“Belridge”, was heavy snow-storm, very thick,” with a varying 
north-westerly wind about 20-25 miles, and according to the 
“Japan”, a “snow-squall,” with a “northerly moderate wind”; 
the latter vessel admits she was going at a speed of 12 knot* and 
her best speed, her pilot says, was 16%, while the former alleges, 
erroneously, 1 find, that her speed was only “about 3 or 4 knots.” 
The “Japan” alleges she first saw the “Belridge” “about half 
a mile distant ahead,” and the “Belridge” first saw the “Japan” 
“2 to 3 ship lengths about one point on the port bow.” Tin- 
ships came together about amidships on their port sides and both 
sustained damage.

For some time before as well as the time of collision both vessels 
had been sounding fog signals, as had also the lighthouse at Trial 
and Discovery Islands.

So far as the “Japan” is concerned the case is very simple. 
She was on her own shewing clearly violating art. 16 by not go 
ing at a “moderate speed” in the snow-storm (which speed wa 
maintained till the “Belridge” came in sight) within the prin
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ciples fully considered by me in The “ Tartar” v. The “Charmer” Can- 
(1907), Mayers’ Admiralty Law and Practice, p. 536; and Ex rt 
Pollen v. The Iroquois (1913), 11 D.L.R. 41, 18 B.C.R. 76, 17 —
Can. Ex. 185, to which 1 refer, and also to The Counsellor, 11913] Can adian 
P. 70. 82 L.J. (Adm.) 72. In the second case the contention ^.'co!
that ship is entitled to run through fog or snow at a speed r.
which is safe for herself but immoderate and dangerous for 88. . "Bn.RiniiK.others is disposed of. ___

Then as to the “Belridge”. She, after passing Discovery Martin, i.j.a. 
Island, continued to go, I find, through the snow-storm at a speed 
of upwards of 11 knots, hut upon hearing a ship’s fog signal to 
the south-west, apparently forward of her l»eam in the direction 
of Trial Island, reduced her speed to half, making at the least 6 
knots, and shortly thereafter, upon hearing the same whistle re­
peated almost ahead, changed her course one point to the west­
ward, hut did not for 3 or 4 minutes after half speed reduce to 
“slow,” not till after she had heard two more whistles from 
what she then knew was the “Japan,” and after going “slow” 
for 2 or 3 minutes sighted the “Japan,” and put her helm hard 
a port and engine full speed astern, hut too late to avert the im­
pact. This is putting the matter in as favourable light as pos­
sible for the “Belridge,” based on admissions of her pilot and 
officers, and yet it clearly shews that she also violated art. 16 in 
two respects, not going at a moderate speed at 11 knots, and not 
having stopped her engines and navigated with caution when 
she heard the signal of another vessel, apparently forward of her 
beam, whose position was not ascertained. No satisfactory rea­
son was given for her failure to comply with the requirements of 
the article, and at the very least 1 cannot understand why she 
did not reduce her speed to “slow” earlier than she did, es­
pecially in that frequented locality. Her case, therefore, is also 
covered by the two authorities already cited. I have only to add 
that it seems an unaccountable thing that none of the witnesses 
for the “Japan” will admit that he heard any fog signal from 
the “Belridge,” though the independent witness, H. J. Austin, 
who was waiting for her in his launch off Brotchie Ledge and 
saw the “Japan” pass him, says, and I believe him, that he heard 
her signals for some considerable time, nearly an hour, approach­
ing from almut Ten Mile Point, passing Discovery and Trial 
Islands on her course past the Ledge, about 3 miles from Trial 
Island.

It remains, then, to consider the application of the Maritime 
Conventions Act, 1914, (Dom.), 1914, ch. 13, sec. 2, which came 
into force on July 1, of that year: Canada Gazette, June 6,
1914. The relevant portions of the section follow :—
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“Where, by the fault of two or more vessels, damage or loss 
is caused to one or more of those vessels, to their cargoes or 
freight, or to any property on board, the liability to make good 
the damage or loss shall be in proportion to the degree in which 
each vessel was in fault:

Provided that—(a) if, having regard to all the circumstances 
of the case, it is not possible to establish different degrees of 

Belbipqf.. fftult, the liability shall be apportioned equally; and (b) nothing 
Martin, L.J.A. in this section shall operate so as to render any vessel liable for 

any loss or damage to which her fault has not contributed; 
and . . . .”

This is the first time, I may say, that I have found it necessary 
to consider the effect of this section, but it has l>een considered 
several times in England, beginning with The “Rosalia”, (1912] 
P. 109, 81 L.J. (Adm.) 79, 12 Asp. M.C. 166, where the degree of 
liability was apportioned at 60 and 40 per cent; The “Bravo”, 
(1912( 12 Asp. M.C. 311, 29 Times L.R. 122, at four-fifths ami 
one-fifth; The “Counsellor”, (1913] P. 70, 82 L.J. (Adm.) 72. 
at two-thirds and one-third; The “Cairnbahn”, [1914] P. 25, 12 
Asp. M.C. 455, 83 L.J. (Adm.) 11, 110 L.T. 230, equally appor 
tioned; The “Llanelly”, [1914] P. 40, 83 L.J. (Adm.) 37, 110 
L.T. 269, 12 Asp. M.C. 485, and The “Umona”, [1914] P. 141. 
83 L.J. (Adm.) 106, 111 L.T. 415, 12 Asp. M.C. 527, at three 
fourths and one-fourth; The “Ancona”, [1915] P. 200, 84 L.J. 
(Adm.) 183, at tw'o-thirds and one-third; The “Kaiser Wilhelm 
II.”, [1915] 31 Times L.R. 615, 85 L.J. (Adm.) 26, equally ap­
portioned; and The “Peter Benoit”, [1915] 13 Asp. M.C. 203, 
85 L.J. (Adm.) 12, equally apportioned. There is a discussion 
of the question in this last and leading case, in the House of 
Lords, and it is there laid dowm, (13 Asp. M.C., at p. 207) by 
Lord Atkinson, that where “the evidence does not establish that 
a clear preponderance of culpability rests upon one ship, the 
division of the damages should be half and half.”

IIow the apportionment should be arrived at is thus viewed 
by Lord Sumner, p. 208 :—

“The conclusion that it is possible to establish different degree 
of fault must be a conclusion proved by evidence, judicially ar­
rived at, and sufficiently made out. Conjecture will not do; a 
general leaning in favour of one ship rather than of the other 
will not do: sympathy for one of the wrongdoers, too indefinite 
to be supported by a reasoned judgment, will not do. The ques­
tion is not answered by deciding who was the first wrongdoer, nor 
even of necessity who was the last. The Act says, ‘having re­
gard to all the circumstances of the^asc.* Attention must lie 
paid not only to the actual time of the collision and the man­
oeuvres of the ships when about to collide, but to their prior
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movements and opportunities, their acts, and omissions. Matters 
which are only introductory, even though they preceded the 
collision by but a short time, are not really circumstances of the 
case but only its antecedents, and they should not directly affect 
the result. As Pickford, L.J., observes: ‘The liability to make 
good the damage or loss shall be in proportion to the degree in 
which each vessel was in fault.’ That must be in fault as regards 
the collision. If she was in fault in other ways, which had no 
effect on the collision, that is not a matter to be taken into con­
sideration.”

I feel that I should say in this case, as Lord Atkinson said in 
that (p. 207) :—

‘‘There is not, in my opinion, any such preponderance proved 
in this case. Both vessels were to blame; and, in my view, the 
evidence leaves it very uncertain which was most to blame.”

There will be a reference to the registrar, with merchants, if 
necessary, to assess the damage. As both ships are to blame, each 
will bear her own costs, in accordance with the rule laid down in 
The “Bravo” case, supra.

Let judgment be entered accordingly.
Judgment accordingly.

WENTWORTH ORCHARD Co. v. MERCHANTS CONSOLIDATED, Ltd.
Manitoba King's Bench, Curran, J. January 9, 1933.

Sale ($ IIIC—72)—Contract for sale or jam—Label on jars not in
COMPLIANCE WITH WRITTEN ORDER—RIGHT OF PURCHASER TO RE
ject—Fraud—Meat and Canned Foods Act—1907 Dom. ch. 27— 
Requirement as to labels—Trade custom to smew Act not 
COMPLIED WITH—ADMISSIBILITY OF EVIDENCE AS TO.

A written order or contract which calls for the delivery of certain 
quantities of jam designated respectively in the written order as 
“Strawberry nnd apple,” and “Raspberry and apple,” is not com­
plied with by delivery of jam labeled “Apple an<l strawberry,” and 
“Apple and raspberry.” The purchaser has a right to rely on the 
labels as naming the fruit which is present in the largest amount first 
as required by the Order in Council passed pursuant to the Meat ami 
Canned Foods Act 1907 Dom. ch. 27, and no trade custom can be set 
up to shew that this Order in Council is not being complied with.

| Sec Annotation 58 D.L.R. 188.]

Action to recover the price of goods sold to the defendant ac­
ceptance of which had been refused. Action dismissed.

A. E. Ho skin, K.C., for plaintiff.
II. V. Hudson, for defendant.
Curran, J.:—I have considered the evidence submitted with 

care and given due weight to the arguments of counsel and have 
reached the conclusion that the plaintiff has failed to make out 
its case.

The crux of the matter is simply this : The written order or
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contract calls for the delivery in part by the plaintiff company 
to the defendant company of certain quantities of jam designated 
respectively in the written order, “Strawberry and Apple,” 
“Raspberry and Apple,” and “Assorted and Apple.” Tin- 
plaintiff company attempted to till this part of the order by de- 
livering the designated quantities of jam in tins labeled “Apple 
and Strawberry,” “Apple and Raspberry,” and “Apple ami 
Assorted,” contending that both designations mean in the trad ■ 
the same thing. The defendant company on learning how tin- 
tins of mixed jam were labeled rejected them and refused to take 
delivery. Of course if the plaintiff’s contention is correct such 
rejection and refusal was wrongful and the defendant compam 
must pay the contract price sued for. If the goods delivered 
were not in compliance with the contract the refusal to accept 
was legally justified and the plaintiff cannot recover.

In my judgment, the goods delivered were not in accorda in 
with the contract and the defendant company was justified in 
refusing to accept and take delivery. No trade usage such jin 
claimed by the plaintiff company in justification of its action in 
shipping the goods it did ship in alleged fulfilment of the eon 
tract has been pleaded and the defendant’s counsel argued 
strongly against the reception of any such evidence. The que» 
tion of practice seems doubtful and 1 decided not to reject tlii- 
evidence which mainly was commission evidence taken in Ontar 
and consisting of the testimony of certain manufacturers 
jams in that province, all of whom had western connections and 
did business in this province. I do not think effect can be give 
to their contentions for an alleged usage of trade which was 
directly in conflict with the Order in Council of 1918, and fur­
thermore because, in my opinion, this alleged usage docs imt 
seem to me to be founded upon principles of honest and fair 
dealing; at all events, as it affects the consuming public. What­
ever the manufacturer and wholesaler may have understood <•!' 
the matter, the buying public and perhaps retail dealers as well 
had to depend upon the labels affixed to the containers of mixed 
jams as the only means of knowledge as to what they were g< 
ting. 1 have no doubt the practice prevailed amongst certain 
Canadian manufacturers of jams, and perhaps among all of 
them, prior to June 15, 1918, of labeling mixed or compound 
jams containing a very large percentage of apple juice and apple 
pulp and a very small percentage of pure fruit juice, prepared 
with glucose or corn syrup instead of granulated sugar with the 
content least in proportion named first on the label, e.g., “Straw­
berry and Apple,” “Raspberry and Apple,” when in fact such 
mixed jams had little in their constituent elements to justify
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such a misnomer. Anyone not in the trade secret of the manu­
facturer looking at such label would, 1 think, not unnaturally 
or unreasonably conclude tliat he was getting a jam in which the 
fruit first named on the label if it did not actually predominate 
would be at least in equal or nearly equal proportion to the 
second named, which was apple. In short, according to the al­
leged trade usage, the manufacturer was imposing on the buying 
public through the medium of a label, a jam which was in reality 
nothing but a preparation of apples with a small percentage, 
stated by some of the manufacturers, called by the plaintiff, to 
be as low as 8 to 12% of fruit juice used merely for flavouring 
the composition. Ilow such mixture could, with any degree of 
truth or fairness to the public, be called a fruit and apple jam 
and so labeled, I cannot conceive, and yet this is what was being 
done right along by some manufacturers of jams in Canada, prior 
to June 15, 1918, when the Order in Council (ex. 19A) was pass­
ed by the Governor-General in Council pursuant to the provisions 
and powers contained in the Meat and Canned Foods Act, 1907, 
ch. 27, of the Dominion of Canada.

This Order in Council had from the date of its enactment or 
passage the full force and effect of statutory law and as such 
was entitled to respect and obedience from all affected by its 
provisions. Clause 13 on p. 6 of this exhibit reads:—

“13. When jam, jelly, marmalade, etc., are prepared from 
two or more sorts of fruits the first named fruit on the label shall 
be that which is present in largest amount, thus a jam made 
from strawberries and apples or apple pulp or apple jelly shall 
be labeled as “Strawberry and Apple Jam,” only if the weight 
of strawberries used exceeds the weight of apples or apple pulp 
or apple jelly in the product ; where the weight of apples or apple 
pulp or apple jelly exceeds the weight of strawberries used the 
label shall read “Apple and Strawberry Jam” or “Apple Jam 
flavoured with Strawberries,” or otherwise in such a way as to 
make clear the fact that strawberries arc not the chief consti­
tuent.”

Can any one doubt that this provision was made to put an end 
v the practice I have just adverted to and protect the buying 
public f On September 4, 1920, the foregoing Order in Council 
was rescinded and a new Order in Council passed (ex. 21) which 
contains among others the following recital :—

“Whereas it is desirable and in the public interest to amend 
the Regulations governing the inspection of preserved fruits, 
vegetable», and milk, established by Order in Council of June 15, 
1918; such changes being principally in definitions of quality 
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and grade, involving detailed explanation rather than actual 
change in policy.”

It also contains said clause 13 in identical language so the law 
as to labeling mixed jams has remained unchanged since June 15, 
1918, and applied to the contract or order for the jam in question.

An attempt has been made to show that the first named Order 
in Council was never enforced or was, in fact, suspended in its 
operation as to the labeling clause 1 have quoted. The evidence 
of this is from the manufacturers examined in Ontario, who say 
the Government inspectors mentioned in the Order in Council 
called upon them and told them they could continue to use the 
labels they had in stock which contained the legend “Straw­
berry and Apple, etc.,” until such stocks of labels were exhaust­
ed, and further by the putting in evidence of a letter signed by 
F. Torrance, veterinary director general, dated July 2, 1918, r< 
eeived by the plaintiff company. It will be noted that this letter 
which encloses a copy of the now regulations in the Order in 
Council and undoubtedly is authentic, calls attention to sec. 13, 
dealing with labeling of goods covered by the regulations of 1 In* 
Order in Council and contains the following :—

“Please read this section carefully and comply with its re­
quirements. Reasonable latitude will be exercised by this office 
in connect ion with such labels as may Ik* on hand at the present 
time.”

Just what this means I do not know, but it seems beyond rea­
son to suppose that this official ever meant to give the manu­
facturers of jam in Canada carte blanche to disregard this law, 
or that he had the power to do it even if he had meant to, and 
much less had the inspectors referred to any power to render 
nugatory a law passed for the public benefit and in the public 
interest as this law undoubtedly was. No such understanding or 
agreement if made by these officials with the manufacturers 
either tacit or otherwise could deprive the public generally of the 
benefits and protection conferred by this Order in Council and 1 
refuse to give any effect to these alleged sanctions.

The defendant’s officer, C. II. Sly, who negotiated the order or 
contract in question with Caldwell, the plaintiff’s managing 
director, says that he knew of the existence of the first Order in 
Council in February, 1920, prior to placing the defendant’s order 
with the plaintiff and also that he had no notice or knowledge 
of the letter of the veterinary director general (ex. 20) or that 
the operation of the Order in Council had in any way been 
affected or suspended by government authority. I accept his 
statement on these points and have no doubt that whatever may 
have been his former knowledge as to the practice of labeling
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mixed or blended jamsehe honestly believed that the order he 
was giving the plaintiff would he governed by the new law and 
that it would he quite sufficient to descril»e in the order the mixed 
blended jams about to he purchased as the same should he de­
scribed on the labels in conformity with that law. It appears from 
the evidence of the manufacturers submitted by the plaintiff that 
no change whatever in the formula of mixed or compound jams 
was made in consequence of the Order in Council of June, 11)18, 
and no attempt to comply with its provisions as to labels hut that 
they all went merrily on in the old way, making and selling a 
cheap apple-filled jam with a small percentage of fruit for 
flavouring and lalnding that product in express contravention of 
the Order in Council as being something which it was not. It is 
true they contend that price was the main factor in connection 
with these mixed or compound jams and that it would he impos­
sible to manufacture a jam that complied with the Order in 
Council and sell it at anything like the prices that had been 
usually quoted for mixed jams. It seems to me that this is no ex­
cuse for disobeying the law which in no way constrained them to 
alter their formula or their prices but only to truthfully label 
their products so that the buying public might know what it was 
paying its money for. If a mixed jam made in agreement with 
the provisions of the Order in Council could not be manufactured 
and sold at the old prices for the inferior commodity the remedy 
was to raise the price or else use a truthful label. We arc not 
left in doubt as to the proportions of and the constituent elements 
in the mixed or blended jams made by the plaintiff company in 
1920, and prior to that year. Caldwell tells about these in his 
evidence of the trial. In a batch of jam weighing 118 lbs. the 
plaintiff company used, in 1920, 15 lbs. fruit, 50 lbs. of apple 
juice and pulp, balance sugar and corn syrup. Prior to 1920 
they used only 8 lbs. of fruit us against 15 in the 1920 formula. 
Certainly an improvement. Henry Billington, a commission 
witness for the plaintiff, was their jam boiler in 1920, when the 
jam in question was made and he gives the following formula as 
that used in making this jam: Sugar, 38 lbs., glucose 30 lbs., 
apple pulp 30 lbs., apple juice 25 lbs., and fruit 15 lbs. This 
compound was very properly labeled in conformity with the law 
“Apple and, etc.,’’and it was what the plaintiff shipped to the de­
fendant as fulfilling the order which called for in part, 300 cases 
“Strawberry and Apple Jam,” 225 eases ‘‘Raspberry and Apple 
Jam,” and 50 cases “Assorted fruits and Apple Jam.”

It is significant that the plaintiff did not bill or invoice these 
goods to the defendant as described in the order but called them 
“Strawberry Blend Jam,” “Assorted Blend Jam,” and “Rasp-
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berry Blend Jam” in the invoices sent tGthe defendant company 
(see exs. 46 and 47.) Why were they not billed as what they 
really were and in accordance with the label which correctly 
described the goods ? No explanation of this has been offered.

I find that the defendant company never made any examina­
tion of any of the mixed or compound jams made by the plaintiff 
prior to the order in question being placed and did not rely upon 
any knowledge possessed by it or its servants or agents as to 
what the composition of such jams was. I also find that the plain 
tiff had no ground for asserting or assuming that the defendant 
had any such knowledge, or was or ever expressed itself satisfied 
wit'u the quality of such mixed jams but that having ascertained 
from a reliable source that the plaintiff company was a reputable 
and reliable manufacturer of jams, relied on getting goods which 
would at least conform to the standards required by law to satisfy 
the description of the goods as contained in the order. An at 
tempt by the defendant to compromise the difficulty by payment 
of a lower price for the goods having failed, by reason of the 
plaintiff’s refusal to accept the lower price offered, I think tin 
defendant was entirely within its rights in refusing to accept or 
take delivery of the jam.

I, therefore, dismiss the plaintiff’s action with costs, which will 
include costs of examinations for discovery and the commission 
evidence taken in Ontario.

Judgment accordingly.

M OKI MAX v. CARVETH.
Saskatcheu-an Court of Appeal, Haultain, C.J.S., Lamont, Turgeon ami 

McKay, JJ.A. June 99, 1999.
Assignment ($ I—14)—Contract to purchase land—Stipulate 

AGAINST TRANSFER WITHOUT CONSENT—CONSTRUCTION.

Covenants In agreements for sale of land that no assignment of 
the agreement shall be valid unless It shall be approved and 
countersigned by the vendor are designed to protect a vendor from 
annoying entanglements, but as between others are of no conse­
quence, and until the vendor sets up for his own protection such a 
stipulation in case of a claim made against or through him, no sub- 
purchaser has a right to do so in an action against him for 
specific performance.

[McKillop v. Alexander (1912), 1 D.L.R. 686, 46 Can. 8.C.K. 
661: Re Green Caveat (1912), 9 D.L.R. 301, 6 S.L.R. 6; Landes v. 
Kusch (1916), 24 D.L.R. 136, 8 8.L.R. 32 followed.]

Appeal by plaintiff from the trial judgment (1921), 60 D.LM.

222, dismissing an action for specific performance of an agree­
ment for the sale and purchase of lands. Reversed.

F. L. Bastedo, and J. L. McDougall, for appellants.
F. A. Sheppard, for respondent.
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The judgment of the Court was delivered by 
Haultain, C.J.S. :—This was an action for the specific per­

formance of an agreement for the sale of a certain section of 
land by the plaintiffs to the defendant.

At the time the agreement was made, the plaintiffs held the 
north half of the section under agreement with Mike and 
Martha Rowan, and the south half under agreement with one 
Shantz. By the agreements the defendant assumed the obligations 
of the plaintiffs to the Rowans and Shantz for the balance due 
to them respectively in respect of the said lands. The Rowan 
agreement contained the following clause :—

“No assignment of this agreement shall be valid unless it 
shall be for the entire interest of the purchasers and be approved 
and countersigned by the vendors or their agent.”

The Shantz agreement contained the following clause :—
“It is further understood and agreed that no sale, transfer or 

pledge of this contract or any interest therein or of all or any 
of the premises herein described shall lie in any manner binding 
on the vendor unless the said vendor shall consent thereto in 
writing hereon. ’ ’

The question of title was raised by the statement of defence, 
and at the trial the trial Judge (1921), 60 D.L.R. 222, 14 S.L.R. 
286, made a reference to the Local Registrar. By his report, the 
Local Registrar found that Samuel Shantz was the registered 
owner of the south half of the section, clear of all incumberances, 
and that the plaintiffs were in a position to make title thereto 
under their agreement with Shantz. He also found that the 
Rowans were the registered owners of the north half of the sec­
tion, and that the plaintiffs were in a position to make title there­
to under their agreement with the Rowans. It appeared from 
the report that the sale of the south half of the section by the 
plaintiffs to the defendant was consented to and approved in 
writing, under seal, by Shantz, and the sale of the north half was 
consented to and approved in writing, under seal, by the Rowans. 
These agreements are dated, respectively, February 16, 1921, and 
December 23, 1920, both dates being later than the date of the 
commencement of this action. The consent and approval in each 
case was by a separate document.

The trial Judge on these facts dismissed the action, on the 
ground that “the plaintiffs had failed to make title.” He held 
that the consent and approval of the original vendors given in 
the manner provided in the original agreements were necessary 
before the plaintiffs could require payment from the defendant, 
mid that the plaintiffs were not in a position to give title, or “to 
compel title to themselves,” at the time the defendant repudiated
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the contract. In support of these findings the Judge relies on 
the eases of McKillop v. Alexander (1912), 1 D.L.R. 586, 45 
Can. S.C.R. 551 ; Atlantic Realty Co. v. Jackson (1913), 14 
Dial.Mi, 18 B.C.R. 657; Re Grun (1912), 9 D.L.R. 301, 6 S I. 
R. 6; and Landes v. Kusch (1915), 24 D.L.R. 136, 8 S.L.R. 32.

The first mentioned ease seems to me to lead to an exactly 
opposite conclusion. The covenants relating to assignment of 
the original agreements with Shantz and the Rowans do not 
impose any limitation on the right or power of the plaintiffs to 
sell the land in question. While the covenant would justify the 
original vendors in refusing to recognise the defendant, they 
could not interfere with the right of the plaintiffs to compel title 
to themselves upon the completion of their part of the agree­
ments. Covenants of that sort are “as between others of no con­
sequence,” and “are designed to protect a vendor from annoying 
entanglements and unless and until the vendor sets up for his 
own protection any of such stipulations in ease of a claim made 
against or through him, no one else has a right to do so,” per 
Idington, J., in McKillopp v. Alexander, supra, at p. 590. See 
also remarks of Anglin, J., in the same ease at pp. 606-7. So 
long as the plaintiffs are in a position to compel Shantz and the 
Rowans to transfer to them, it can make no difference to tin- 
defendant whether lie gets the transfer directly from them or 
from the plaintiffs. In that ease there is no question of title at 
all, it is only a question of conveyancing. See Gregory v. Fetrie 
(1910), 3 S.L.R. 191.

There is no doubt that in the absence of the necessary consent 
and approval of the original vendors the defendant had no right 
which he could compel them to recognise, and could not, for 
instance, have filed a caveat against the land. McKillop v. 
Alexander, supra, per Duff, J., at pp. 592-602, and that is all 
that was decided in Atlantic Realty v. Jackson and in Re Green, 
supra.

As to the other branch of the ease, I must confess that a 
careful consideration of the evidence does not, in my opinion, 
disclose any foundation for an action of deceit by the defendant 
against the plaintiffs, with one exception to be referred to later. 
So far as the statement regarding the nature of the soil is con­
cerned, the evidence does not establish that it was false ; or, if it 
was false, that it was known to be false by the plaintiffs. On 
the contrary, the plaintiffs seem to me to have acted in good 
faith in describing the land as chocolate loam. There is a great 
deal of evidence with regard to the meaning of the words “loam” 
and “chocolate loam.” Roth plaintiffs testify that they used 
the word “loam” in their advertisement of the land after con-
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suiting Webster’s dictionary. This work defines loam as “a 
mixture of clay, sand and silt,” and the expert evidence shows 
that the land in question was properly described as “loam,” 
according to that definition. Hanson, an expert witness called 
by the defendant, testified that the word “chocolate” has no 
significance as to quality or texture, but refers purely to color. 
Hanson also testified that the sample of soil taken from the land 
was chocolate in colour.

Another false representation alleged in the particulars was, 
that all the land was under cultivation. This statement was made 
in the plaintiffs’ advertisement, hut in the correspondence be­
tween the parties—after the advertisement and before the sale 
was completed—the defendant was informed that 40 acres were 
fenced for pasture and 10 acres for hog pasture. It does, how­
ever, appear from the evidence that there arc a number of 
sloughs on the farm, which produce a certain amount of hay, 
but are not fit for cultivation. There is no evidence to establish 
the number of acres included in these sloughs or the difference 
in value. Strictly speaking, the defendant should have put in 
evidence on this branch of his case, and as no damage was alleged 
or proved there was no actionable wrong pleaded. I would send 
this branch of the case back to the trial Judge to determine the 
amount of damage (if any) sustained by the defendant by reason 
of the representation mentioned.

The trial Judge also dismissed the plaintiffs’ action for an 
accounting for the crops grown on a certain quarter section 
leased by the plaintiffs to the defendant in accordance with the 
provisions of the agreement made between them. 1 can find no 
evidence whatever shewing that any representations of any kind 
were made by the plaintiffs to the defendant with regard to this 
quarter section, or to justify the inference that, because repre­
sentations were made with regard to the other land, they were 
also made with regard to the leased land.

The plaintiffs are, therefore, entitled to an accounting as 
asked for in the statement of claim, and judgment should be 
entered therefor accordingly.

I would, therefore, allow the appeal with costs, and set aside 
the judgment lielow with costs of the action to the plaintiffs. 
The plaintiffs should also have their costs of all the issues raised 
by the counterclaim, other than the one above mentioned. I 
would not allow the defendant any costs of counterclaim, and 
would leave the question of the costs of the further proceedings 
to the trial Judge.

The plaintiffs will be entitled to judgment for the amount of

Bask.

Haultaln,
C.J.S.
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their claim and costs, including costs of appeal, less the amount 
of damages and costs (if any) allowed by the trial Judge, who 
will settle the terms of the judgment.

Appeal allowed.

11E8HEY v. LIVINGSTONE.
(Annotated)

Ontario Supreme Court, Sutherland, J. January 2\, 1922. 
Gaming (81—4)—Race-tback betting—Action fob money lent fob 

PARI-MUTUEL BETTING—CH. CODE NEC. 235, AS AMENDED 1920 CAN. 
ch. 43—Provincial gaming law—Ontario Gaming Act, R.S.Ü. 
1914, ch. 43.

The Gaming Act R.8.O. 1914 ch. 43, ia a bar to the recovery in 
a civil action in Ontario of money advanced or lent to another 
for pari-mutuel betting on horse races run on a licensed race track 
in Ontario although the maintenance of the pari-mutuel machines 
by the race track association during the racing was not criminal 
by reason of sec. 235 of the Criminal Code as amended 1920 Can. 
ch. 43, sec. 6.

[See Annotation on Gaming and Betting Debts In Ontario, which 
follows at the end of this case.]

Motion by the defendant for a judgment dismissing the 
action, on the ground that the plaintiff’s examination for dis­
covery disclosed that he had no cause of action.

The motion was heard in the Weekly Court, Toronto.
W. K. Murphy, for the plaintiff.
O. C. Thomson, for the defendant.
Sutherland, J.:—The plaintiff’s claim in the action is for 

money lent to and used for the defendant at his request. Upon 
examination for discovery, the defendant admitted that the 
money was either betted by the plaintiff for the defendant or 
advanced by the plaintiff for the defendant to some one to bet 
on the races for the defendant. The races were run on a licensed 
race-track in Ontario. The betting was on horses chosen by the 
defendant and in the manner directed by him, by means of pari 
mutuel machines.

Under the provisions of the Act of 1920, 10 & 11 Geo. V 
ch. 43, sec. 6, amending the Criminal Code fsec. 235] betting 
upon the racecourse of any association duly incorporated, 
through the agency of a pari-mutuel system, is not in itself 
illegal. It was contended for the defendant, however, that under 
the provisions of the Gaming Act, R.S.O. 1914 ch. 217, a contract 
to lend money for the purpose of betting is deemed to be made 
for an illegal consideration. The word “game,” as used in sec. 2 
of that Act, includes “horse racing:” Halsbury’s Laws of Eng­
land, vol. 15, p. 280.

By reason of the provisions of secs. 2 and 6 of the Gaming
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Act (Ont.) the plaintiff, who advanced or lent money to the Annotation, 
defendant for the purpose mentioned, cannot maintain an action 
to recover the money: Saffery v. Mayer, [1900] 1 Q.B. 11 ; In re 
O'Shea, [1911] 2 K.B. 981, 985; Keen v. Price, [1914] 2 Ch. 98,
101, 102.

There should be a judgment dismissing the action, but without 
costs.

Action dismissed.
ANNOTATION

on
GAMING AND BETTING DEBTS IN ONTARIO.

The present Gaming Act, R.S.O. 1914, ch. 217, is a consolida­
tion of the Ontario Statute of 1912, 2 Geo. V., ch. 56. It em­
bodies some of the features of the English Gaming Acts of 1835,
1845 and 1892, which of their own force would not extend to the 
Province of Ontario, in which the adoption of English law was 
ns of October 15, 1792.

By the Property and Civil Rights Act, R.S.O. 1914, ch. 101 
(consolidated from 10 Edw. VII., Ont., ch. 45, and previous 
statutes), it is enacted (with an exception as to laws relating to 
maintenance of the poor) that in all matters of controversy, 
relative to property and civil rights, resort shall be had to the 
laws of England as they stood on October 15, 1792, as the rule 
for the decision of the same, except so far as such laws have been 
since repealed or altered by statutes having the force of law in 
Ontario. Under the same section, similar provision is made in 
respect of the English rules governing testimony and legal proof.

Legislative power upon the subjection of “bills of exchange 
and promissory notes” was reserved at Confederation to the 
Federal Parliament by the terms of the B.N.A. Act, 1867 Imp.
So also was the general subject of “Criminal Law.”

The Ontario Gaming Act is evidently intended to deal with 
the subject of gaming and betting debts without entrenching 
upon the domain of Dominion legislative powers either with 
regard to criminal law or to bills of exchange and promissory 
notes, though it may be classed as ancillary legislation in respect 
of both.

As to gaming and betting offences under the Criminal Code 
of Canada, see Code secs. 226-235, 442, 442A (1921 Can., ch. 25).

The Bills of Exchange Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 119, sec. 53, enacts 
that “valuable consideration for a bill may be constituted by—

(a) Any consideration sufficient to support a simple contract ;
(b) Any antecedent debt or liability.”
And by sec. 53 (2), such a debt or liability is deemed valuable
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Annotation, consideration whether the bill is payable on demand or at a 
future time.

Under sec. 186 of the Bills of Exchange Act this provision 
applies also to promissory notes.

A cheque is a “ bill of exchange ” drawn on a bank payable on 
demand, and except as otherwise provided in the sections of the 
Bills of Exchange Act dealing with cheques (secs. 165-175) the 
provisions of that Act applicable to a bill of exchange payable 
on demand apply to a cheque. Bills of Exchange Act, R.S.C. 
1906, ch. 119, sec. 165.

The Ontario Gaming Act provides that “Every agreement 
note, bill, bond, confession of judgment, cognovit actionem, war­
rant of attorney to confess judgment, mortgage or other security, 
or conveyance, the consideration for which, or any part of it, is 
money or other valuable thing won by gaming, or playing at 
cards, dice, tables, tennis, bowls, or other game, or by betting on 
the sides or hands of the players, or for reimbursing or repaying 
any money knowingly lent or advanced for such gaming or 
betting, or lent o’* advanced at the time and place of such game 
or play to any person so gaming, playing or betting, or who 
during such game or play, so plays, games or bets, shall be 
deemed to have been made, drawn, accepted, given or executed 
for any illegal consideration.” The Gaming Act, R.S.O. 1914, 
ch. 217, sec. 2; 2 Geo. V., Ont., ch. 56, sec. 2 adapted from 
9 Anne, ch. 19 (ch. 14 Ruff ed.), sec. 1, as amended 1892, 
2 Edw. VII., Imp., ch. 1, sec. 8.

The Ontario Gaming Act further provides that:—“If any 
person makes, draws, gives or executes any note, bill or mort­
gage for any consideration which is hereinbefore [by R.S.O. 
1914, ch. 217, sec. 2] declared to be illegal, and actually pays 
to any endorsee, holder or assignee of such note, bill or mortgage 
the amount of the money thereby secured or any part thereof, 
such money shall be deemed to have been paid for and on account 
of the person to whom such note, bill or mortgage was originally 
given and to be a debt due and owing from such last named 
person to the person who paid such money and shall accordingly 
be recoverable by action.” Gaming Act, R.S.O. 1914, ch. 217, 
sec. 3; 2 Geo. V., ch. 56, sec. 3 (adapted from English Gaming 
Act, 1835, 5 & 6 Will. 4, ch. 41, sec. 2).

It appears that this section creates a statutory debt and that 
the action thereby authorized is not founded on any promise to 
pay, either express or implied. Cohen v. Hall, [1922], 3 K.B. 
37*.

Another provision of the Ontario Gaming Act reads as 
follows:—“Any person who at any time or sitting, by playing 
at cards, dice, tables or other game, or by betting on the sides, or
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hands of the players loses to any person so playing or betting, in 
the whole the sum or value of $40 or upwards, and pays or 
delivers the same or any part thereof, shall be at liberty, within 
three months thereafter, to sue for and recover the money or 
thing so lost and paid or delivered.” Gaming Act, R.S.O. 1914, 
ch. 217, sec. 4; 2 Geo. V., Ont., ch. 56, sec. 4 adapted from 
9 Anne, ch. 19 (ch. 14 Ruff ed.), see. 2.

A consideration of some of the English cases and of the Eng­
lish common and statute law prior to the year 1792, the date of 
adoption of English law in Ontario, will assist in determining 
the scope and effect of the present Ontario Gaming Act, R.S.O. 
1914, ch. 217.

Under the English Gaming Acts betting debts are not legally 
recoverable, but betting (apart from restrictions of place, time 
and manner of conducting the bet) is not illegal or forbidden by 
statute. Ford v. Radford (1920), 36 Times L.R. 658; 64 Sol. 
Jo. 571.

Playing card games for money is gaming not necessarily un­
lawful, but it is unlawful when played in a common gaming 
house. R. v. Charle. Hendrick (1921), 15 Cr. App. Rep. 149.

Horse racing is no' expressly referred to either in thu statute 
of 1710, 9 Anne, ch. Is or in the English Gaming Act, 1835, but 
by a series of decisions culminating in the decision of the English 
Court of Appeal in Woolf v. Hamilton, [1898] 2 Q.B. 337, it 
has been settled that horse-racing is within these statutes and 
that a cheque given for a bet upon a horse race is therefore to 
he deemed to have been given “for an illegal consideration.” 
llyams v. Stmrt-Kiny, [1908] 2 K.B. 696, at 715.

As early as 1710, the statute 9 Anne, ch. 14, provided, amongst 
other things, that bills (a word which includes cheques) given 
by any person where the whole or any part of the considérât ion 
shall be for money won at gaming shall be utterly void. This 
was amended by the Gaming Act 1835 (Imp.) which enacted 
that such cheques, instead of being void, should be deemed to 
have been given for an illegal consideration. This amendment 
of the law protected innocent purchasers for value.

As early as 1821 the intention of the Act of 9 Anne had been 
recognised as being to prevent a winner from obtaining money 
by way of gaming, and to disable him from keeping money won 
at ..lay, even thougu indirectly obtained. “No person, who 
derives his title through the winner, can make the loser pay”— 
Abbott, C.J., in Edwards v. Dick (4 B. & Aid. 212 at p. 215), 
and also Holroyd, J., at pp. 216, 217. The idea of the amending 
Act of 1835 seems to be to encourage the unsuccessful gamester 
to pay third parties by enabling him to pass his payment on to

Annotation.
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Annotation, the winner if he does. He has gambled and lost, and has not 
jiaid anybody. He has merely parted with paper which turns 
up in third parties’ hands. The Legislature imposes the test of 
liability to be brought into Court and put to the possibly un 
pleasant necessity of pleading this Gaming Act. The section 
makes it worth his while to pay and save his credit, and gives 
him the satisfaction of recovering the money from the winner, 
and so getting even with him. Sultert V. Briggs (1921), 91 
L.J.K.B. 1 at p. 10, per Lord Sumner.

Under English law before the Gaming Act of 1835, a man 
who lost and paid a bet of 10 pounds or upwards could recover 
from the winner the sum so paid. By 9 Anne, c. 14, s. 2, a loser 
who lost at one time or sitting 10 pounds, and paid the sum lo>l 
or any part of it, could recover the amount so paid. This provi 
sion was reinforced by the power given to the Courts of Chancery 
by the Act, 18 Geo. II., e. 34, s. 3, not merely to grant discovery 
in aid of an action at law to recover such an amount, but even 
to decree payment of the same. Moreover, the Act of Antic 
s. 8, made it an indictable offence to win or lose 10 pounds m 
any one sitting, or 20 pounds within twenty-four hours. After 
the passing of the Gaining Act of 1835 these severe provision- 
remained law for a further ten years, until they were repealed 
by the Gaming Act, 1845 (8 & 9 Viet. c. 109). It may be in 
ferred that the intention of Parliament, expressed in section 2 
of the Act of 1835, was to make it clear that the amendment of 
the law effected by section 1 was without prejudice to the rule 
that the loser of a bet could recover from the winner the amount 
paid by him in relation thereto. Sutlers V. Briggs (1921), 91 
LJ.K.B. 1.

Section 2 of the Gaming Act, 1835 (Eng.) was designed to 
preserve the right of the loser of a bet to recover the amount, 
even when it was paid by means of a cheque thenceforth made 
enforceable in the hands of a third party under the condition 
stated in section 1. And in a recent decision of the House of 
Lords it is said that there is no reason for limiting the natural 
and ordinary meaning of the word used. The term “holders 
or indorsees’’ means any holder and any indorsee, whether tin1 
holder be the original payee or a mere agent for him; and the 
rights of the drawer must be construed accordingly. The cir­
cumstance that the law, apart from the section in question, was 
repealed in 1845 [1845 Imp. ch. 109] without any repeal of tic 
section itself may lead to anomalies, but cannot have weight in 
construing the section. Sutters v. Briggs (1921), 91 L.J.K.H. 
1, at p. 8 ; Cf. Deg v. Mayo, [1920] 2 K.B. 346, 89 L.J.K.B. 241.

The words “knowingly lent or advanced for gaming or bet-
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ting," 5 and 6 Will. 4, ch. 41 (1835), refer to money lent to Annotation, 
carry out the illegal purpose of gaming or betting, not to money 
advanced to enable the borrower to pay the bets which he had 
already made and lost. Ex Parte Pyke, In re Lister (1878), 8 
Ch. Di 754, 757; Alcinbrook v. Halt (1766), 2 Wils, 309; In re 
O'Shea, ex parte Lancaster, [1911] 2 K.B. 981, 984.

In Appleyarth v. Colley (1842), 10 M. & W. 723, it was held 
that the English Parliament had by the Act of 1835 rendered 
the consideration for a cheque given in payment of a racing bet, 
on “illegal consideration.' * In Hymans v. Stuart-King, [ 1908]
2 K. B. 696, 24 Times L.R. 675 (C.A.) Farwell, L.J., said: “Any 
lawful act done or forborne by the plaintiff at the request and 
for the benefit of the defendant is a sufficient consideration to 
support a promise to pay by the defendant. All betting is not 
illegal because in certain places and under certain considerations 
it is made an offence by Act of Parliament, nor because bets 
which were enforceable as contracts at common law have been 
made by statute unenforceable as void or on an illegal consider­
ation. There is nothing illegal in paying or receiving payment 
of a lost bet; it is one thing for the law to refuse to assist either 
party in their folly, if they will bet; it is quite another to
forbid the loser to keep his word....................Although the law
will not enforce payment of a bet, it will not restrain the winner 
from putting in force such extra legal remedies as he may have 
by posting the defaulter or otherwise,” [1908] 2 K.B. at 725-6.
( ontinuing (at p. 728), Farwell, L.J., said : “The agreement sued 
on is an agreement to pay a sum of money in consideration of 
forbearance to post the defendant as a defaulter; the sum of 
money may be equal to or less than the lost bet, but it is not 
payment of the bet, because that was pàyable on settling day 
and non-payment on that day made the loser a defaulter and 
liable to be posted. The day of payment is most material, for 
non-payment may involve the winner in a similar default; the 
contract not to post is a new contract quite distinct from the 
contract of wager and is sufficient to support a promise to pay 
money, which, though equal to the amount of the bet is not, in 
fact, the bet, but is compensation for its non-payment, and the 
action cannot be said to be brought for recovering any sura 
alleged to have been won on any wager within 8 and 9 Viet.
Imp. (1845), ch. 109. If betting is to be made illegal, it is for 
the Legislature to make it so in express terms, not for the 
courts to strain the letter of Acts passed for a different purpose,
1o effectuate what we may consider a beneficial purpose. . .”
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Sir Gorell-Barnes, President ot the Court, pointed out in 

//yams v. Stuart-King, supra, that the promise relied upon in 
that case was made in consideration that the plaintiff should 
not for a time proceed to endeavour to enforce his claim and 
should not, if the defendant paid the amount thereof within the 
agreed time, take any steps to inform the defendant’s customers 
and others of the defendant’s failure to meet his void engage 
ments, because, if the plaintiff did so, it would injure the de 
fendant's betting business. The mere giving of time to pay that 
which cannot be enforced does not amount to consideration ; but 
apart front questions of illegality and unlawfulness the second 
part of the alleged consideration moving from the plaintiff 
would be within the ordinary definition of good consideration 
sufficient to ground an action, [1908] 2 K.B. at 708. An agree 
ment suggested by the defaulter to keep confidential the failure 
to pay the debt may, it seems, support the new promise, although 
there had been no previous threat of exposure. Wilson v. Con 
«off#/ (1910), 104 L.T. 94 (C.A.) For other cases see Hodgkins 
v. Simpson (1908), 25 Times L.U. 53; In re Comar, ex parte 
Ronald (1908), 52 Sol. Jo. 642; Cohen v. Vlpk (1909), 26 Times 
L.R. 128.

For cases dependent upon the English Gaming Act of 1892. 
55 and 56 Viet., ch. 9, see Keen v. Price, [1914] 2 Ch. 98 ; Saffery 
v. Mayer, [1901] 1 K.B. 11, applying Tatam v. Reeve, [18931 
1 Q.B. 44; In re O'Shea, [1911] 2 K.B. 981, (in which a loan 
made to pay a lost bet to another was held not to be one for an 
illegal consideration and therefore could be recovered).

Itl'I.I.K K v. BVLLK'K.
Alberta Supreme Court, Simmons, J. July 98, 1999.

Divorce and separation ($ VIII A—82b)—Separation agreement—Mis
REPRESENTATION AS TO TERMS OF—LACK OF INDEPENDENT LEGAL
advice—Duress—Action to rescind—Delay in bringing action.

Absence of independent advice, and misrepreHentation as to tin 
terms of an insurance policy assigned by the husband to the wife, 
under the terms of a separation agreement and a threat by the husband 
that if she did not accept the terms of the agreement she would gi t 
nothing, are sufficient to entitle the wife to an order rescinding the 
agreement, notwithstanding delay in bringing the action, the Court 
being of opinion that she had brought herself within the rule that 
length of time should not be allowed to operate against the title to 
relief where there has been a continuance of the circumstances under 
which the transaction took place, such as the distress of the parties, or 
improper influence used, or some other circumstances.

[Gregory v. Gregory (1816), Coop. Q. 201, 36 E.R. 630; Roberts 
v. Tunstall (1846), 4 Hare 267, 67 E.R. 646, referred to. See An­
notations 48 D.L.R. 7, 62 D.L.R. 1.]

Action by wife to rewind a separation agreement.
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C. F. Adams, K.C., for plaintiff.
P. L. Stanford, for defendant.
Simmons, J.:—Plaintiff and defendant were married in 1906 

and lived together from then until 1912, near Indian Head, in 
the Province of Saskatchewan. In the winter of 1912, the plain­
tiff made an extended visit with her mother in Regina and re­
turned to her husband at Rose Valley near Indian Head in April 
1912. Susan Brewett had recently arrived from England and 
was in the employment of the defendant as a domestic when the 
plaintiff came home in April, 1912. Differences arose and the 
plaintiff voluntarily left the defendant and lived separate from 
him since then. In January, 1915, the plaintiff and defendant 
met fortuitously at Indian Head and the defendant proposed to 
the plaintiff that they enter into a separation agreement. De­
fendant asked plaintiff if she needed money and she said she did. 
He offered her $200—$100 in cash and $100 in a promissory note, 
payable in one year and an assignment of an insurance policy 
for $1,000 in the Dominion Life Insurance Co.

Plaintiff maintained that this was not enough, hut that she 
would think it over. Defendant said he would not give her any­
thing unless she would sign a separation agreement. Plaintiff 
agreed to meet defendant in Indian Head and discuss further 
the proposed separation agreement and next afternoon met on the 
street in Indian Head, and defendant asked plaintiff to go to the 
office of Mr. Welch, a notary public, to execute an agreement. 
Defendant had, in the meantime, given instructions to Welch 
to prepare an agreement which is the one in question and which 
was prepared and ready for signature by the parties when they 
came to his office. Plaintiff says she told defendant she would 
like to consult a lawyer and was told by defendant that Welch 
was the only lawyer in town.

They went into Welch’s office and the prepared agreement 
was presented to plaintiff and she executed it. In her statement 
of claim she says she was induced to sign the agreement by the 
representation by the defendant that the policy was a 20 year 
endowment policy, which would entitle her to $1,000.00 in cash 
when the policy had run 20 years, whereas the policy does not 
provide for payment of the $1,000 till the death of the insured 
defendant. In addition, plaii tiff says she was induced to sign 
the separation agreement by the representation by the defendant 
that he was not then cohabiting with Susan Brewett and the 
plaintiff also claims relief on the ground that she had no inde­
pendent advice.

At the trial I allowed plaintiff to amend her pleadings by 
alleging duress.

Alta.

B.C.

Bullick 

Bn.lick. 

Simmons, J.
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StlllllKlIH, J.

I am not satisfied that there was wilful misrepresentation as to 
the policy, hut after hearing the evidence of Fred Braaou, an 
employee of the insurance company, at Calgary, 1 am satisfied 
that neither the plaintiff nor the defendant understood the terms 
or the real value of the policy, nor was it explained to them and 
the parties were not ad idem as to this material part of the con­
tract. There are four options that can be selected by the insured 
at the end of the 20 year term dealing with accumulated divi­
dends, cash, paid up value, reserve, and purchase of an annuity.

It would require legal knowledge, or in the alternative expert 
knowledge in insurance for the party to understand the value 
of the policy. As to the defendant’s relations with Miss Brewett. 
I am not able to conclude that the plaintiff made this a condition 
precedent to entering into the agreement. One child had been 
born to the defendant and Miss Brewett when the agreement 
was executed and the defendant was living and cohabiting with 
her and representing her as his lawful wife in the neighborhood 
where the defendant then lived, lie had moved to Alberta in tin- 
meantime. It is hardly probable that he would make such an 
untrue representation a condition to the agreement when tin- 
untruth was so palpable and so likely to be ascertained. Three 
more children have been born to defendant and Miss Brewett 
since the date of the agreement.

I am satisfied, however, that the plaintiff was entitled to inde­
pendent advice and that one inducement to sign the agreement 
was the threat that if she did not do so she would get nothing. 
Hither the misapprehension of the parties as to the contents of 
the insurance contract or the duress exercised by defendant 
would be sufficient grounds for setting aside the agreement if 
the plaintiff used reasonable diligence in applying for a remedy. 
The lapse of time in applying raises a difficult question.

The plaintiff was living with her mother when the agreement 
was made and was supporting herself. She says she was able to 
earn from $15 to $30 per month.

The agreement provides that the defendant pay the yearly 
premiums on the policy. In one case, he allowed these to fall In 
arrears so that the plaintiff found it necessary to tender tIll- 

premium to protect the policy, but the defendant did subs, 
quently pay this premium.

The plaintiff has received $200 and the benefit of the premium-, 
paid by the defendant since 1915. The payment of these* prem 
iums did not directly contribute to her support although tlm 
policy was a valuable asset. The defendant is the owner of con 
siderahle property and is now able and was in a position at tli<-
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time the agreement was signed to contribute in a much greater 
degree to the support of his wife.

His relations with Miss Brewett suggest that he was desirous 
of obtaining a release from the obligation of supporting his wife 
if she should offer to return to his bed and board. 1 am satisfied 
that, at least, he concealed from his wife his real relations with 
Miss Brewett and his consequent real reasons for the separation 
agreement. His wife has reached middle age and her earning 
capacity will naturally decrease.

1 conclude she has brought herself within the rule which will 
excuse her delay in bringing the action. In all cases where length 
of time has not been allowed to operate against the title to relief, 
it has l»een shown that there has been a continuance of the cir­
cumstances under which the transaction first took place, as the 
distress of the parties, or, the improper influence used or some 
other circumstances.

Where a transaction of this kind has been brought alwmt by 
misrepresentation, concealment or undue influence, or where the 
vendor is dependent on the bounty of the purchaser, the Court 
consid rs the right of the vendor to rescind the sale without 
the imputation of laches until such time as it is shown that he 
was released from the position in which he was placed by these 
circumstances. (Ircyory v. (Ireyory (1815), Coop. Q. 201, 35 K.lt. 
530, cited by the Vice Chancellor in Huberts v. Tunstall, (1845), 
4 Hare 257, 67 K.R. 645.

The plaintiff asks for no other relief, ami the judgment will be 
a declaration rescinding said agreement. lMaintiff to have costs 
of the action in eol. 3.

Judymcnt accordinyly.

McIKH'GALL v. MACKAY.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davit n, C.J., Idington, Anglin, Brodeur and 

Mignault, JJ. Mag t, IDS!.
Vendor and purchaser (IIII—35)— Priorities—Verbal agreement— 

Statute ok kraudh—Change or terms—Caveat.
Where liunt has Wen sold under a verbal agreement, which was the 

next day reduced to writing sufficient to satisfy the Htntute of Frauds, 
and later a caveat lodged by the purchaser, a sale of the land to 
another purchaser subsequent to the verbal agreement but prior to the 
writing does not give the subsequent purchaser a prior equity; the fact 
that the terms as to possession a 1 payment were varied by the written 
agreement did not affect the priority of the first purchaser.

Appeal from a judgment of the Court of Appeal of Saskatche­
wan (1921), 63 D.L.R. 247, 15 S.L.R. 24. Affirmed.

P. (!. Hodges, for appellant.
A. R. Tinyley, K.C., for respondent.

17—68 D.L.B.
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Can. Davies, C.J. :—For the reasons stated by La mont, J.A., when 
gc delivering the unanimous judgment of the Court of Appeal, Sas-
— katchewan (1921), 63 D.L.R. 247, 15 8.L.R. 24, I am of the 

McDougall opinion that this appeal should l>e dismissed with costs.
MacKay Idinoton, J.:—For the reasons assigned in the judgment of

----- Lamont, J.A., speaking on behalf of the (’ourt of Appeal, I think
Anviin.J. the prior equity of respondent ought to prevail and hence this 

appeal should he dismissed with costs.
Anglin, J. :—One McClellan, the registered owner of the prop 

erty in question, sold it to the defendants, the MeDougalls, in 
October 1919, the contract containing a provision that no as­
signment of it should he valid unless approved and countersigns I 
by the vendor.

The plaintiff, MacKay, became the purchaser, by oral agree 
ment, of the equitable interest of the MeDougalls on June 21, 
1920, paying $100 on account of the purchase price of $6,500. 
Subject to a question as to discrepancies, this oral agreement 
was reduced into writing on the evening of June 22. The plain 
tiff lodged a caveat to protect his interests on June 30.

About noon on June 22, the MeDougalls agreed orally to sell 
the property to the defendant Rusconi for $6,550. Subject, lik- 
wise, to some discrepancies, this agreement was also put into 
writing and on June 23 Rusconi then paid $1,550 on account of 
the purchase price. Ilis agent immediately prepared and sent 
to McClellan, for execution by him, a transfer of the property 
to Rusconi. McClellan executed his transfer and on June 2ii 
sent it to his bankers with instructions to hand it to Rusconi on 
receipt of the balance due McClellan on his agreement with the 
MeDougalls. On June 29 McClellan wrote the MeDougalls that 
he had accepted Rusconi’s cash offer and would “not accept 
Mr. MacKay on contract.” On July 6, Rusconi paid the balance 
of the purchase price to McClellan’s bankers and obtained the 
transfer, and on July 8, had it registered subject to Mae 
Kay’s caveat.

The trial Judge (MacDonald, J.,) took the view that because 
his written contract of June 22 differed in two particulars from 
the oral agreement of the 21st, MacKay had no enforceable 
contract until the evening of the 22nd. These two differences 
are thus stated in the judgment of the Court of Appeal, delivered 
by Lamont, J.A., 63 D.L.R. 247 at p. 248 :

“ (1) that under the oral agreement possession was to be given 
on July 15, while in his written agreement it was to be given on 
July 10, or sooner if possible, and (2) that under the oral agree 
ment the price was stated to he $6,500, while in the written agree­
ment the plaintiff, although he was to pay $6,500 in all, was to
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pay tin* MeDougalls their equity in cash and pay the balance to Can. 
McClellan, in accordance with the terms of the agreement with ^T
the McDougalla, which was to l»e assigned to him.” The trial '
Judge, therefore, held that Ruseoni had the prior equity under McDovoall 
his verbal agreement made at noon on June 22, and on that maHKay
ground dismissed MacKay’s action against the MeDougalls and ___
Kusconi for specific performance. He also took the view that, Ansim.J. 
Iiecause MacKay’s caveat referred only to the agreement in 
writing dated June 22, the interest thereby protected must lie 
taken to have originated when that agreement was executed.

In the Court of Appeal the view prevailed that the written 
agreement with MacKay of June 22 sufficiently embodied the 
terms of the oral agreement of the 21st to warrant its 1 icing taken 
as a memorandum of the latter which satisfied the Statute of 
Frauds and that MacKay, therefore, had the prior equity, dating 
from the making of his oral agreement on the 21st, and was on 
that ground entitled to succeed.

On this question, I am inclined to accept the conclusion reached 
by the Court of Appeal.

On the first point :—There was nothing to prevent the parties, 
who had agreed on June 21, that possession would be given on 
July 15, changing that arrangement on the following day and 
providing, as they did, for possession on July 10, or sooner if 
possible. Did that change make of the document of June 22 a 
new contract in substitution for that of the 21st so as to prevent 
its being regarded as a memorandum thereof? That would seem 
to depend on whether the provision as to the date of possession 
should be deemed a material term of the agreement, or either 
an immaterial term or a collateral arrangement only. Fry on 
Specific Performance, 6th ed., para. 368. An arrangement as to 
date of possession may In* of the latter character,McKenzie v.
Walsh (1920), 53 D.L.R. 234, 54 N.8.R. 26; reversed by (1920),
57 D.L.R. 24, 61 Can. 8.C.R. 312; Anderson v. Douglas (1908),
18 Man. L.R. 254. On the whole case 1 incline to the opinion that 
the provision as to the date of possession was not such an essential 
term of the oral agreement of June 21 that the change made in 
respect to it precludes the view taken in the Court of Appeal 
that the document of the 22nd was really a formulation of the 
oral contract of the 21st and not a new contract. As put by 
Lament, J.A.,: “The difference as to the time when possession 
was to be given is not material.”

On the other point :—The evidence detailed by Lament, J.A., 
seems to make it clear that the terms as to payment set forth in 
the written agreement of the 22nd did not differ from those 
discussed and agreed to orally on the 21st.
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Can. The three following objections raised by the defendants call
g(, for consideration :—1. That the MaeKay caveat protects only
----- such interest as he acquired by the written agreement of .Tune 22,

McDougall and, therefore, cannot lx* invoked to protect rights acquired 
MuKay. und?r the oral contract of the 21st ; 2. In view of what has since

---- transpired, specific performance of the Mac Kay agreement has
Aiifritn. j. been rendered impossible; 3. The defendant Rusconi by his dili­

gence acquired the better right to call for a conveyance of the 
legal estate held by McClellan.

1. As is pointed out in the respondent’s factum, the caveator 
claimed an interest as purchaser \nder the agreement in writing 
dated June 22. This “agreement in writing” is the formal em­
bodiment of the oral agreement of June 21. I think the caveat 
sufficiently indicated the claim of the plaintiff as purchaser under 
the oral agreement of June 21, evidenced by the writing of the 
22nd, and, therefore, protected his equity under the oral agree 
ment. Whatever rights MaeKay had in o to the land in ques 
lion covered by the caveat registered on June 30, were thereby 
preserved to him. McKillop <f: Benjafield v. Alexander (11112), 
1 D.L.R. 586. 45 Can. 8.C.K. 55.

2. Nothing had occurred prior to such registration which 
would prevent the McDougalls transferring their equitable in­
terest to MaeKay. All that was done after the caveat was 
lodged was subject to MaeKay’s rights as they then existed and 
cannot interfere with the enforcement of them. For that pur 
pose, Rusconi has assumed McClellan’s position. This ground 
of appeal cannot be maintained.

3. Although impressed with the contention that by what lie 
had procured to be done—the execution of the conveyance to 
him by the holder of the legal estate and the depositing of il 
with his hankers for delivery on payment to them of the balance 
of the purchase money and the writing of the letter by McClellan 
to the McDougalls—Rusconi had acquired a better right than 
MaeKay to call for the conveyance of the legal estate, on further 
consideration 1 am satisfied that this is not the case. In dealing 
with an equitable estate in land the doctrine of obtaining priority 
by notice to the holder of the legal estate does not prevail : Hop­
kins v. He ms worth, [1898] 2 Ch. 347, at 351, 67 L.J. (Ch.) 526. 
47 W.R. 26. Rusconi did not obtain anything from McClellan 
which was tantamount to a declaration of trust in his favour or 
an undertaking to hold the land for him. Until delivery the deed 
sent to the bankers was wholly inoperative. Whatever might 
have been the effect of a similar letter from McClellan to Rusconi, 
McClellan’s letter to the McDougalls carried no right to Rusconi. 
In what took place prior to the lodging of MaeKay’s caveat,
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there was nothing to displace the original priority of his equitable 
claim. The uncompleted steps taken to obtain the legal (‘state 
had not that effect. Société Générale de Paria v. Walker (1885), 
11 App. Cas. 20, 55 L.J. (Q.B.) 169, 34 W.R. 662. McClellan’s 
intention to convey the legal estate to Ruseoni remained unexe­
cuted on June 30. Whatever rights were conveyed by the de­
livery of the transfer on July 6 and its subsequent registration 
were acquired subject to MacKay’s prior equity.

I fully recognise that h Court of equity will not prefer one 
equity to another on the mere ground of priority of time until it 
has found by examination of their relative merits that there is 
no other sufficient ground of preference between them; that such 
examination must cover the conduct of the parties and all the 
circumstances; and that the test of preference is the broad prin­
ciple of right and justice which Courts of equity apply univer­
sally—(Rice v. Rice (1853), 2 Drew. 73, 61 K.R. 646, 23 L.J. 
(Ch.) 289, 2 W.R. 139). Here, after most careful consideration, 
1 find nothing prior to the registration of MacKay's caveat which 
disturlied the equality between the two equities in all respects 
other than priority of time, which is, therefore, effective and 
entitles MacKay’s equity to prevail.

The provision of the McClellan-McDougall agreement that no 
assignment of it should Ik* valid unless approved and counter­
signed by McClellan is a stipulation for his benefit and can lie 
invoked only by him. It did not prevent MacKay acquiring an 
equitable interest in the property goods as against .the McDougalls 
and the subsequent purchaser, Ruseoni. McKillop <£• Bcnjafiild 
v. Alexander 1 D.L.K. 586, 45 Can. S.C.R. 551; Sawyer 
<V Maascy Co. v. Bennett (1909), 2 H.L.R. 516; reversed (1910), 
46 Can. 8.C.R. 622.

1 would for these reasons affirm the judgment of the Court of 
Appeal and dismiss this appeal with costs.

Rrodevk, J. :—1 concur in the result.
Mionault, J.:—It is necessary to consider what was the legal 

position of MacKay and Ruseoni respectively on June 30, 1920, 
when MacKay registered his caveat. If on that date neither of 
these parties had more than an equitable right, MacKay lieing 
prior in time, should la* preferred. And any title to the legal 
estate which Ruseoni obtained and registered after that date 
would lie subject to MacKay’s caveat.

As matters stood on June 30, 1920, lioth MacKay and Ruseoni 
had verlial agreements from the equitable owner for the sale of 
the property, which agreements had been reduced to writing 
Ruseoni, at that date, had not obtained the legal estate from 
McClellan, the legal and registered owner. It is true that on

Can.

McDougall 

MacKay. 

Mlgneuit, J.
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June 26, McClellan signed in favour of Rusconi a transfer of 
his estate and interest in the property, but this transfer was 
sent to the hank to be delivered to Rusconi on full payment of 
the price, and it was delivered to him after June 30. He, there­
fore, took the legal estate subject to MacKay’s caveat.

Did Rusconi, on June 30, have a better right to call for the 
legal estate than MacKay? I think not. As matters then stood 
both MacKay and Rusconi had made an agreement of sale with 
the equitable owner, but MacKay was first in time. McClellan 
was then the registered owner of the property. He apparently 
objected to the sale to MacKay, and was willing to transfer the 
property to Rusconi, but no transfer had then been delivered to 
the latter. McClellan is not a party to these proceedings and 
MacKay and Rusconi must stand on the rights they had ac- 
quirt-d from the McDougalls up to June 30. These were purely 
equitable rights and the equities being equal, MacKay is en­
titled to preference, for he was first in time. I would, there­
fore, agree with the Court of Appeal which decided in his favour.

The defence based on the Statute of Frauds, in my opinion, 
fails.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Appeal dismissed.

PIUCtM'OTT v. C'HUMBY.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, C.J.M., Cameron, Fullerton and Dennis- 

toun, JJ.A. June IS, 19St.
Executors and administrators ($VI—130)—Foreign administrator— 

Right to sue on vromissory note iiei.d by him.
An exevutor appointed by n United States Court to administer the 

estate of a person domiciled there at the time of death may eue on 
promissory notes made hy a person living in the Province of Manitobii. 
in favour of such deceased person, and which have come into his hani> 
as such executor, without taking out administration in that Province.

[Browns v. Browne (1919), 48 D.L.R. 72, 15 Alta. L.R. 77; followed.]

Appeal by plaintiff from the trial judgment in an action to 
recover payment of a promissory note. Reversed.

The judgment appealed from is as follows:—
Macdonald, J.—The action is brought for payment of promis 

sory notes made by the defendant in favour of Mary Louise 
Crosby.

At the time of incurring the liability for which the notes sued 
on were given and at the time of her decease and for many years 
previously, Mary Louise Crosby was a resident of and domiciled 
in the State of Massachusetts, one of the United States of 
America, and the defendant was at the time resident of ami 
domiciled in the Province of Manitoba.
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The promissory notes sued are payable to the order of Mary 
Louise Crosby and were not endorsed by her in her lifetime and 
are not now endorsed by the plaintiffs and are the property of 
the estate. Why the plaintiff George A. Campbell is made a 
party does not appear.

The defence to the action is that the plaintiff’s administrator 
has no locus standi in our Courts as administration has not lieen 
taken out in this Province.

Counsel for plaintiff contends that administration in this 
Province is not necessary to entitle the administrator in Massa­
chusetts to bring action in our Courts, and cites in support of his 
contention : Browns v. Browns (1919), 48 D.L.K. 72,15 Alta. L.R. 
77. In that ease at the time of the death of the deceased and 
of the grant of letters of administration by the Colorado Courts, 
where the deceased was domiciled, the defendant was also resi­
dent and domiciled witlnn the Court’s jurisdiction but subse­
quently removed to Alberta where he reaid d at the time of 
action being brought.

The action was stayed upon the ground that the plaintiff had 
no grant of administration from an Alberta Court and on an 
appeal to the Appellate Division it was held that the Colorado 
administrator could maintain the action without any local grant.

1 take this judgment, however, to be arrived at from the fact 
that at the time of the death of the deceased, moneys were owing 
to him by a debtor then and at the time of the appointment of 
the administrator, a resident of and domiciled in the same State 
as the deceased, the title of the administrator hail been estab­
lished through his grant. Harvey, C.J., says (48 D.L.R. at p.
15)i

“The contention of the defendant is that under the rule just 
expressed the property in the notes sued on, which are only 
choses in action, is in Alberta and therefore the plaintiff should 
obtain letters of administration before suing here, but it is clear 
that the property was not here at the time of the death of the 
deceased.”

In Thomson v. Her Majesty's Advocate-0eneral (1845), 12 Cl. 
& F. 1, 8 E.R. 1294, the House of Lords held that personal 
property having no situs of its own follows the domicile of its 
owner, but in Rex v. Lovitt, [1912] A.C. 212, 81 L.J. (P.C.) 140, 
it is pointed out that while that principle applies for the purpose 
of succession and enjoyment, yet for the purposes of legal repre­
sentation of collection and of administration the law of the lo­
cality of the chattels applies, and the locality to be ascril>cd to 
choses in action is the locality of the debtor where the assets to 
satisfy them would probably be.

Man.
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In Hex v. Sutton (1682), 1 Win. Sauiid. 273, 85 E.R. 331, the 
editor’s note says at p. 275: “But where only simple contract 
debt» are due to he deceased these are bona notabilia in that 
dioe<*se where the debtor inhabits at the time of his creditor’s 
death.”

In Attorney-General v. B ou wen g (1838), 4 M. & W. 171, 150 
E.R. 1390, 7 L.J. (Ex.) 297, 1 H. & II. 319, Lord A lunger, C.B., 
in delivering judgment says (150 E.R. at p. 1398) :—

“Ah to the locality of many descriptions of effects, household 
and moveable goods, for instance, there never could be any dis­
pute; but to prevent conflicting jurisdictions lietween different 
ordinaries, with respect to choses in action and titles to property, 
it was established as law, that judgment debts were assets, for 
the purposes of jurisdiction, where the judgment is recorded; 
leases, where the land lies; specialty debts, where the instrument 
happens to be; and simple contract debts, where the debtor 
resides at the time of the testator's death ; and ii was also de­
cided, that as bills of exchange and promissory notes do not alter 
the nature of the simple contract debts, but are merely evidences 
of title, the debts due on these instruments were assets where the 
debtor lived, and not where the instrument was found.

These distinctions being well established, it seems to follow that 
no ordinary in England could perform any act of administration 
within his diocese, with respect to debts due from persons resi­
dent abroad or with respect to shares or interests in foreign funds 
payable abroad and incapable of being transferred here ; and 
therefore no duty would be payable on the probate or letters of 
administration in respect of such effects. . . .

Let us suppose the case of a person dying abroad, all whose 
property in England consists of foreign bills of exchange, pay­
able to order, which bills of exchange are well known to be the 
subject of commerce, and to be usually sold on the Royal Ex­
change. The only act of administration which his administrator 
could perform here would l>e to sell the bills and apply the money 
to the payment of his debts. In order to make titles to the bills 
to the vendee, he must have letters of administration; in order to 
sue in trover for them, if they are improperly withheld from 
him, he must have letters of administration, (for even if there 
were a foreign administration it is an established rule that an 
administration is necessary in the country where the suit is in 
atituted).”

“An administrator is entitled to those assets of which the 
ordinary had jurisdiction and to none others.” Brodie v. Bit Z - 
ley (1830), 2 Raw le (Penn.) 431 ; Selectmen of Boston v. Boyl-



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 253

Sion (1807), 2 Mass. 384; Schultz v. Pulver (1833), 11 Wend. 
361.

Jurisdiction or the right of administration in respect of debts 
due a deceased person never follows the residence of the creditor. 
They are always bona notabilia unless they happen to fall within 
the jurisdiction where he resided : Judgments are bona notabilia 
where the record is, specialties where they are at the time of the 
creditor’s decease, and simple contract debts where the debtor 
resides : Vaughn v. Barret (1833), 5 Verm. 333.

It seems clear that the claim against this defendant was an 
asset of the estate in the Province of Manitoba and such being 
the case the foreign administrator is not entitled to realize on 
that claim and only an administrator appointed by our Courts 
can do so.

Story on Conflict of Laws, 8th ed. p. 713, says:—
“It has hence become a general doctrine of the common law, 

recognised both in England and America, that no suit can be 
brought or maintained by any executor or administrator, or 
against any executor or administrator, in his official capacity, 
in the Courts of any other country except that from which he 
derives his authority to act in virtue of the probate and letters 
testamentary, or the letters of administration there granted to 
him. But if he desires to maintain any suit in any foreign 
country, he must obtain new letters of administration, and give 
new security according to the general rules of law prescribed in 
that country, before the suit is brought.”

And in a footnote at p. 714 he says : “The authorities to this 
point are now exceedingly numerous and entirely conclusive.”

Williams on Executors, 10th ed. vol. 1, p. 273:
“Again, if a will be made here and proved in the Court of 

Probate here, the probate will not extend to property in the 
colonies.”

And at p. 338:—“If the intestate was domiciled in a foreign 
country, or within the King’s dominions out of England, and 
left assets in this country, administration must Ik* taken out here 
as well as in the country of domicile.”

Westlake’s Private International Law, 5th ed. at p. 115 para. 
63:—

“Whatever the domicile or political nationality of the de­
ceased, his personal property situate in England cannot lie law­
fully possessed, or if recoverable in England cannot In* sued for, 
without an English grant of prolate or administration.”

Finding as 1 do that the promissory notes sued on are the 
property of the estate in Manitoba, administration must be taken 
out here to entitle the plaintiff to bring action.

Man.
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The action must, therefore, be dismissed with costs.
W. Hollands, for plaintiff, appellant.
J. II. Chalmers, for defendant, respondent.
Perdue, Gi.M.:—This action is brought to recover the princi­

pal and interest due on three promissory notes made by defend­
ant to Mary Louise Crosby. The notes were given by defendant 
to Miss Crosby to secure money loaned by her to him. The notes 
were made at Elkhorn, Manitoba, then and still the place of resi­
dence of the defendant. Miss Crosby was a relative of the de­
fendant residing in the State of Massachusetts where she died 
in April, 1918. On November 29, 1918, Miss Crosby’s will was 
proved in the Probate Court of the County of Middlesex in the 
State of Massachusetts, and letters of administration with the 
will annexed were issued by that Court to the plaintiff, Charles 
O. Prescott. The notes in question came into his hands as part 
of the estate of the deceased. They have not been endorsed either 
by the deceased or by the administrator. By the will, Miss 
Crosby left all her property to her sister Annie lsal>clla Camp­
bell, who died in the testatrix’s lifetime. Annie Isabella Camp­
bell left a will which was duly admitted to probate in the Massa­
chusetts Court and the plaintiff Prescott is executor of the will 
and administrator of her estate. The plaintiff Ueorge A. Camp­
bell is a son of Annie Isabella Campbell and claims to be her heir 
ami to Ik* the executor of her other son who died in 1919. 1 fail 
to find any reason why George A. Campbell was made a plaintiff 
in this action.

The questior involved in this case is, can Miss Crosby’s admin­
istrator appointed by the Massachusetts Court sue on the notes 
in Manitoba without taking out a<'.ministration in that Province?

Macdonald, J., #i</>ra, held that the promissory notes sued on 
are property of the estate in Manitoba, and that administration 
must Ik* taken out in this Piovinee to entitle the plaintiff to bring 
the action.

These notes were the property of Miss Crosby who was domi­
ciled in the State of Massachusetts and were in her possession 
there at the time of her death. The notes passed into the posses 
sion of the plaintiff, Prescott, as the administrator of her estate. 
He was entitled, as such, to sell the notes or to collect the moneys 
due upon them. He was, in fact, the holder of the notes and was 
the only person who could give title to them. In Embiricos v. 
Anglo-Austrian Bank, |1905) 1 K.B. 677, 74 L.J. (K.B.) 326. 
it was held by the Court of Appeal, affirming Walton, J., that 
the ordinary rule as to the t *ansfer of chattels applied to a bill 
of exchange or other negotiable instrument. This rule as stated
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in Dicey’s Conflict of Laws, 2ud ed. p. 519, r. 143, and specially 
approved in the Embiricos ease, is as follows:

“An assignment of a movable which can lie touched (goods), 
giving a good title thereto according to the law of the country 
where the movable is situate at the time of the assignment {lex 
situs) is valid.

In the Embirieos case a cheque on a London bank was drawn 
in Roumania in favour of the plaintiffs who specially endorsed 
it to a firm in London and placed it with a letter in an envelope 
addressed to the firm in London. It was stolen from the en­
velope, the name of the London firm as endorsers was forged upon 
it and it was presented to a bank in Vienna for payment. The bank 
aeting in good faith cashed the cheque and endorsed it to the 
defendants, who cashed it at the London bank on which it was 
drawn. Plaintiffs sued defendants for damages for wrongful 
conversion of the cheque. By the Austrian law defendants had 
a good title to the cheque. It was held, following Alcock v. 
Smith, (1K92) 1 Ch. 238, til L.J. (Cli.) 161, that the Austrian 
law must prevail, the transfer of the cheque having been made in 
that country.

In Alcock v. Smith, supra, a bill of exchange drawn and ac­
cepted by English firms and payable in England to the order 
of X. & Co., was endorsed in Norway by X. & Co. to the order 
of M. who endorsed it in blank to 8., as agent for A., an English­
man residing in London anil an English firm of A. & Co. in 
which A. and J. were partners. While the bill was in the hands 
of 8. and still current it was seized in execution under a judg­
ment obtained in Norway by a creditor of .1., and after it became 
overdue was sold by public auction to M. The sab* took place 
under the ordinary course of Norwegian law under which a per­
fect title was conferred on M. It was held by Rotiicr, .1., and by 
the Court of Appeal that the effect of the transactions in Norway 
must be determined by Norwegian law.

Under the law of the State of Massachusetts the property in 
the notes has been vested in the plaintiff Prescott as admin­
istrator. This Court must, 1 think, regard him as the lawful 
holder of the notes.

Cameron, J.A., has discussed Attorney General v. Houwcns 
(1838), 4 M. & W. 171, 150B.R. 1390, 7 L.J. (Ex.) 297. Thedeei- 
sion in that case was on a question of probate duty payable on for­
eign bonds saleable and transferable by delivery in England. 
They were treated as being of a chattel nature and, therefore, 
subject to probate duty.

In Westlake on Private International Law, 5th ed., p. 132, 
para. 95a, the author gives the general rule that in whatever
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jurisdiction the circumstances of the case point out that a debt 
ought to be or may be sued for, the administrator who has ob­
tained a grant in that jurisdiction, or the heir who is entitled 
under its law, and he only, can sue for it therein, or, if the debt 
is assignable, assign the right of suing for it therein. But, he 
points out at p. 132:—

“The debts due on negotiable instruments are an exception, 
because they can be sufficiently reduced into possession by means 
of the paper which represents them. They are in fact in the na­
ture of corporeal chattels. Hence the negotiable instruments of a 
deceased person, and his bonds or certificates payable to bearer, 
belong to the heir or administrator who first obtains possession 
of them within the territory from the lawr or jurisdiction of 
which he derives his title or grant. He can indorse them if they 
were payable to the deceased’s order, and he or his indorsee can 
sue on them in any other jurisdiction without any other grant.”

On p. 133 the same author says:—
“That an administrator who becomes lawfully possessed in 

one state of a negotiable note of the deceased need not take out 
administration in the state where the debtor resides, in order to 
sue on it, is laid down by Story : Conflict of Laws, sec. 517.”

It is true that in the extract cited from Story the principle 
seems to be applied only to negotiable notes which are payable 
to bearer, but I think it must be extended to prom­
issory notes which are payable to the order of the de­
ceased and not endorsed by him ; because no one except his ad­
ministrator could lawfully endorse the notes, and when once 
they became the property of the administrator by virtue of the 
grant of administration, endorsement is unnecessary if he brings 
suit in his own name.

A grant of administration of the estate of the deceased has 
been issued to the plaintiff Prescott by the proper Court of the 
State in w'hich she was domiciled at the time of her death. The 
notes in question came into his hands as such administrator, and 
he is the lawful holder of them. He has brought suit upon them 
against the maker who resides in this Province. I think he is 
entitled to recover upon them.

I would refer to Browns v. Browns (1919), 48 D.L.R. 72, 15 
Alta. L.R. 77, which is fully discussed in the judgment of my 
brother Cameron. In that case it was held that a foreign admin­
istrator who had come into possession of negotiable instruments 
might sue upon them without taking out administration in 
Alberta.

I would allow the appeal and enter judgment for the plaintiff 
Prescott for the amount of the notes and interest subject to any
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deduction to which defendant may he entitled. If the parties 
cannot agree on the amount the matter may he spoken to again 
in this Court. The defendant must pay the costs of the plaintiff 
Prescott, both in this Court and in the Court of King’s Bench.

Cameron, J.A.:—This action was brought on certain promis­
sory notes made by the defendant to the order of Mary Louise 
Crosby, at the time of her death and previously thereto a resident 
of the State of Massachusetts, by the plaintiff, who had taken 
out letters of administration to her estate in that state. The 
defence is that no letters of administration have been taken out 
in this province. Macdonald, J., (supra, at p. 250) before whom 
the action was tried, dismissed it on this ground.

There is no doubt the Court can consider the words, “executor 
and administrator of Mary Louise Crosby” in the style of cause 
and other similar allegations in the statement of claim as de­
scriptive merely. They can l>e nothing else than that. The 
question then arises, can the plaintiff sue in this action in his 
personal capacity without taking out a further grant?

In Browns v. Browns, 48 D.L.R. 72, 15 Alta. L.R. 77, it was 
decided by the Supreme Court of Alberta that a foreign ad­
ministratrix who by virtue of the foreign grant had come into 
possession of negotiable instruments may sue thereon without 
obtaining a grant of administration in that jurisdiction. In that 
case the plaintiff sued as administratrix on two promissory notes 
given by the defendant, one payable to the order of the de­
ceased alone and the other to the order of the deceased and an­
other, who assigned his interest to the plaintiff. At the time of 
the death of the deceased and of the grant of administration by 
the Court of the State of Colorado, where the deceased was domi­
ciled, the defendant was also resident and domiciled, but subse­
quently removed to Alberta where he resided at the time of the 
bringing of the action. In the present case the defendant re­
sided within the Province at the time of the testator’s death and 
subsequently thereto. What difference, if any, can that make in 
the rights of the plaintiff to bring the action ?

Harvey, C.J., who delivered the judgment of the Court in 
Browns v. Browns, supra, on the authority of Attorney-General 
v. Bouwens, supra, and Attorney-General v. Dimond (1831), 1 
Cr. & J. 356, 148 E.R. 1488, 1 Tyr. 243, 9 L.J. (Ex.) (o.s.) 90, 
seems inclined to the view that there would tie no jurisdiction in 
the Alberta Courts to grant administration in respect of the 
promissory notes there in question.

He points out, however, that Dicey, in his Conflict of Law’s, 2nd 
ed. at p. 307 holds that there is jurisdiction to make a grant in 
respect of property when it has become locally situate in England
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at any time since the death of the deceased person. The Chief 
Justice decides the point on the wording of the District Courts 
Act 1907 (Alta.) ch. 4, which declares that the jurisdiction of 
those Courts extends only to cases where the deceased was resi­
dent within the jurisdiction. No such limitation appears in our 
Surrogate Courts Act, R.S.M. 1913, ch. 47.

Ilarvey, C.J. thus finds that as the plaintiff could not obtain a 
grant of administration in the Province, she would be in a diffi­
culty if unable to maintain an action without it. He held that 
as to her claim as assignee, as she derived that not from the de­
ceased but in her own right, he has no doubt that her action is 
maintainable on the authority of Vanqutlin v. Bouard (1863), 
15 C.I3. (N.S.) 341,143 E.R. 817, 33 L.J. (C.P.) 78,12 W.R. 128, 
he thus discusses her right as to the balance of her claim, and 
quotes from Dicey, p. 447, r. 120. (See 48 D.L.R. at pp. 77-78) :

“A foreign personal representative has a good title in England 
to any movables of the deceased which—(1) if they are movables 
which can be touched, i.e., goods, he has in any foreign country 
acquired a good title to under the lex situs [and has reduced into 
possession] ; (2) if they arc movables which cannot be touched, 
i.e., debts or other choses in action, he has in a foreign country 
acquired a good title to under the lex situs, and has reduced int< 
possession.”

Harvey, C.J., refers to Westlake, 5th ed., p. 132, para. 96, and 
quotes :—

“Negotiable instruments .... can be sufficiently reduced into 
possession by means of the paper which represents them. They 
are in fact in the nature of corporeal chattels. Ilench the nego­
tiable instruments of a deceased person, and his bonds or cer­
tificates payable to bearer, belong to the heir or administrator 
who first obtains possession of them within the territory from 
the law or jurisdiction of which he derives his title or his grant. 
He can indorse them if they were payable to the deceased’s order, 
and he or his indorsee can sue on them in any other jurisdiction 
without any other grant.”

The Chief Justice appeared to regard this passage from a 
work of high authority and of long standing (the first edition 
of Westlake on Private International Law was published in 1858) 
as direct authority in support of the plaintiff’s right in the Al­
berta action, and followed it.

Amongst the cases cited by Westlake in support of his view is 
Attorney-General v. Bouwcns, 4 M.&W. 171,150 E.R. 1390, which 
must be further examined. It was an information for non-pay­
ment of probate duties, tried before Lord Abinger, C.B., in which 
a special verdict taken by consent sets out the facts. The testa-
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trix was the holder of certain Russian, Danish and Dutch bonds 
transferable by delivery. There was always an agent of the 
Russian and Danish Governments in England to pay the divi­
dends, but the dividends on the Dutch bonds were payable at 
Amsterdam. The obligations to pay were, of course, those of 
the respective foreign governments. The contention was that 
such securities, being evidence only of debts from debtors with­
out the jurisdiction of the Spiritual Court, were not dutiable 
within the statute, 55 Geo. 111., eh. 184. In his judgment on the 
hearing before the Court of Exchequer, Lord Abinger pointed 
out that by the special verdict the securities were incorrectly 
termed bonds, that they were marketable securities transferable 
by delivery only and that it was not necessary to do any act out 
of England to make their transfer valid. The executors had in 
fact sold them without doing any act out of the jurisdiction of 
the Prerogative Court.

Lord Abinger, C.B., deals with the statute and states the ques­
tions to be decided, whether those securities arc to be considered 
as assets locally situate within the province of Canterbury at the 
time of the testatrix’s death. lie distinguishes the facts from 
those present in two previous eases of Attorney-General v. l)i- 
mond, supra ; and Attorney-General v. Hope (1834), 6 E.R. 1087, 
2 Cl. & F. 84.

Lord Abinger, C.B., (150 E.R. at p. 1398), then goes on to deal 
with the rules that had been laid down by the ordinaries to pre­
vent conflicting jurisdiction between them, that it was by them 
established that judgment debts were assets where the judgment 
is recorded; leases, where the land lies; specialties, where the in­
strument is; simple contract debts, where the debtor resides.

“And it was also decided, that as bills of exchange and pro­
missory notes do not alter the nature of the simple contract 
debts, but are merely evidences of title, the debts on these instru­
ments were assets where the debtor lived, and not where the 
instrument was found.”

He points out that the only act of administration that could 
be performed by the ordinary would be to recover or receive 
payment of the debt.

From these premises it would, he says, seem to follow that no 
duty would be payable on the probate of the securities in ques­
tion. But he does not accept the statement of the law on which 
this contention was based. He says (150 E.R. at 1398) :—

“But, on the other hand, it is clear that the ordinary could ad­
minister all chattels within his jurisdiction ; and if an instrument 
is created of a chattel nature, capable of being transferred by 
acts done here, and sold for money here, there is no reason why
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the ordinary or his appointee should not administer that species 
of property. Such an instrument is in effect a salable chattel, 
and follows the nature of other chattels as to the jurisdiction to 
grant probate. ’ ’

His conclusion was that the instruments were of the nature 
of valuable chattels, salable and transferable in England and 
therefor liable to duty.

It is, therefore, evidently a mistake to assume that Lord 
Abinger, C.B., approved and accepted the regulation of the or­
dinaries that bills and notes are “merely evidences of title” and 
to he regarded as assets where the debtor lives and not where 
they are found. Ilis actual decision is quite the opposite ; other­
wise the securities would not have been held taxable. That is to 
say, he refused to follow the rule of the Spiritual Courts that 
hills and notes are merely evidences of title and their locality is 
where the debtor on them resides. In view of the nature and 
importance of those commercial instruments the ecclesiastical 
rule was obsolete even in Lord Abinger’s time and their value 
and negotiability have since then been greatly fortified by legis­
lation and judicial decisions.

Lord Abinger further says in his judgment ( 150 E.R. 1393- 
1399):—

‘4Let us suppose the case of a person dying abroad, all whose 
property in England consists of foreign bills of exchange, pay­
able to order, which bills of exchange are well known to be li.e 
subject of commerce, and to be usually sold on the Royal Ex­
change. The only act of administration which his administrator 
could perform here would be to sell the bills and apply the money 
to the payment of his debts. In order to make titles to the bills 
to the vendee, he must have letters of administration ; in order to 
sue in trover for them, if they are improperly withheld from 
him, he must have letters of administration (for even if there 
were a foreign administration, it is an established rule that an 
administration is necessary in the country where the suit is in­
stituted) (Story on the Conflict of Laws, 421) : and that these 
letters of administration must be stamped with a duty according 
to the salable value of the bills, the ease of Hunt v. Stevens 
(1810), 3 Taunt. 113,128 E.R. 46, is an express authority.”

It is plain that the hypothetical case so stated is wholly differ­
ent from that before this Court. This is not a case of a person 
dying out of Manitoba with property in this province consisting 
of bills or notes, for the notes in question here are situate in 
Massachusetts. The above passage may have relevance to the 
present case if we substitute Massachusetts for England in it. 
Then in the case of a person dying outside of Massachusetts
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leaving bills, payable to order, in that state it would be in 
Massachusetts that administration of that person’s estate would 
have to be taken out in order that the administrator could make 
title to the bills or sue in trover for them if need arose. An ad­
ministration granted outside Massachusetts would be ineffective 
for those purposes. But here the testatrix had been domiciled 
and died in Massachusetts, and there, where the promissory notes 
in question, her property, were situate, administration of her 
estate was taken out, thus enabling the administrator to make 
title to the notes and otherwise deal with them according to the 
laws of that state. Having thus become entitled to the notes, to 
their possession and ownership, the administrator’s right to sue 
thereon in his personal capacity is not open to question.

It follows that the decision in Attorney-General v. Bouwens is 
authority to the extent for which it is cited in the note in West- 
lake, at p. 133, viz., that the instruments there in question were 
of a chattel nature, transferable by acts done solely in England. 
Westlake further says in the note at p. 133: “An administrator 
who becomes lawfully possessed in one state of a negotiable note 
of the deceased need not take out administration in the state 
where the debtor resides, in order to sue on it.”

Citing Story, Conflict of Laws, p. 736, para 517, which is as 
follows :—

“Negotiable securities.—The like principle will apply where 
an executor or administrator, in virtue of an administration 
abroad, becomes there possessed of negotiable notes belonging 
to the deceased, which are payable to bearer ; for then he becomes 
the legal owner and bearer by virtue of his administration, and 
may sue thereon in his own name ; and he need not take out letters 
of administration in the state where the debtor resides, in order 
to maintain a suit against him. And for a like reason it would 
seem that negotiable paper of the deceased, payable to order, 
actually held and indorsed by a foreign executor or administrator 
in the foreign country, who is capable there of passing the legal 
title by such indorsement, would confer a complete legal title 
on the indorsee, so that he ought to be treated in every other 
country as the legal indorsee, and allowed to sue thereon accord­
ingly, in the same manner that he would be if it were a transfer of 
any personal goods or merchandise of the deceased, situate in such 
foreign country.”

In the note in Westlake, other authorities are cited. I wish 
to refer to Stern v. The Queen, [1896] 1 Q.B. 211, 65 L.J. (Q.B.) 
240, where the doctrine of Attorney-General v. Bov urns was ap­
plied to certificates of shares, not to bearer, but operative, though 
not completely operative, to pass the title.
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I refer to the further authorities eited by Harvey, C.J., 
Wharton, Conflict of Laws, 3rd ed. p. 1371, “A foreign admin­
istrator, also, has a right to sue, without local authorisation, on 
negotiable paper held by him”; Currie v. Bircham (1822), 1 I). 
& R. 35, 24 R.R. 634, where an Indian administrator was held 
entitled in England to sue for certain effects of the estate of the 
testator transmitted there ; and to Young v. Cushion (19091. 
19 O.L.R. 491, where it was held that the California administra­
tor as against the Ontario administrator was entitled to the pro­
ceeds of the drafts in question, he having become the owner of 
them (a? i of the money represented by them) in the legal and 
mercanti’ sense.

Dicey, Conflict of Laws, says, at p. 311 :—
‘‘When bonds, again, or other securities, e.g., bills of exchange, 

forming part of the property of a deceased person, are in fact in 
England, and are marketable securities in England, salable and 
transferable there by delivery only, without its being necessary 
to do any act out of England in order to render the transfer 
valid, not only the bonds or bills themselves, but also, what is a 
different matter, the debts or money due upon such bonds or 
bills, are to be held situate in England, and this though the debts 
or money are owing from foreigners out of England. The re;i 
son manifestly is that the bonds or bills, though they may from 
one point of view be looked upon as mere evidence of debts which, 
being due from persons resident abroad, should be considered 
situate in a foreign country, are in reality chattels of which the 
representative of the deceased owner can obtain the full value in 
England, and this without doing any act in a foreign country.

Dicey refers, at pp. 312, et seq., to the fact that most of the 
decisions with regard to the local situation of a deceased person’s 
personalty have relation not to jurisdiction but to the liability 
for probate duties, such as Attorney-General v. Bouwens, supra. 
The subjects are closely connected, but the distinction is impor­
tant. There may be a grant in cases where there can be no pro­
bate duty and one of the reasons for that distinction is that pro­
bate duty was chargeable only on property situate in England 
at the time of the deceased’s death, a most important considera­
tion to be kept in mind in reading the eases.

There seems no question, however, that a grant would lie in 
case of property that becomes locally situate in England any 
time since the death of the deceased person.

So that these notes were not in Massachusetts mere evidences 
of debt but were and are marketable securities salable and trans­
ferable there by delivery only and without any further act out-
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side of Massachusetts being necessary to render the transfer 
valid.

It seems to me, therefore, that the position of the plaintiff 
in the present ease is amply supported by authority, and that on 
principle, his right to sue without further grant is clear. The 
notes came properly into the hands and were “reduced into 
possession” by him, as administrator under the laws of Massa­
chusetts, where they were locally situate and the right and title 
to them are thus there effectually vested in him. It is true his 
legal ownership is affected with a fiduciary relation to the bene­
ficiaries of the estate, but that does not impair his position as 
plaintiff in the slightest. He has in fact become the holder of 
the notes and as such is entitled to sue on them in any jurisdic­
tion, without any further grant. Everything necessary to give 
the plaintiff the right to sue was done in Massachusetts, where 
the locality of the notes was and his right is complete and per­
fect. He is in much the same position as a foreign administrator 
who has recovered judgment and in such a case no further grant 
is necessary : 24 Corp. Jur. 1131. The reason is that such an 
action is brought by him in his personal capacity.

It is to be noted that in this second branch of his judgment 
Harvey, C.J., places no importance on the fact that the defendant 
in the case before him was resident in Colorado at the time of the 
testator’s death and afterwards. If he had been then resident 
in Alberta I can see no reason in law why it should make any 
difference. If we get away from the idea that promissory notes 
are merely evidences of debts, as we must, the point can have 
no possible application. The residence of the defendant has 
nothing whatver to do with the acquisition of title by the admin­
istrator to negotiable instruments, and that is governed by the 
law of the place where they are in fact found.

The notes in question are not endorsed by the administrator 
as such or in any way. But that is not important. The fact 
is he is their owner and holder and is really an indorsee. In 
M’Neilage v. Holloway (1818), 1 B. & Aid. 218, 106 E.R. 80, 
where a bill of exchange was payable to a feme sole who inter­
married before the same was due, it was held the husband might 
sue in his own name without joining the wife though she had 
not endorsed the bill. Lord Ellenborough, C.J., says (106 E.R. 
at p. 82):—

“He is virtually an indorsee.............The marriage has in fact
given him all the rights of an indorsee, and it, therefore, seems to 
me unnecessary for us to go through the formal derivation of 
title by indorsement.”

It is all a matter of substance and not of form.
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In my opinion, the plaintiff in this action is entitled to sue 
without further grant. This seems clear to me on the authority 
of Browns v. Browns, 48 D.L.R. 72, 15 Alta. L.R. 77, and that of 
Westlake, and the other authorities cited. It also seems clear on 
the well-established principles of private international law es­
pecially when negotiable instruments are in question.

The appeal, ill my opinion, must he allowed. Judgment will 
be entered for the amount of the notes and interest, less the 
amounts for which credit must lie given. If the parties cannot 
agree upon the amount due the matter may be again brought be­
fore the Court to lie determined. The plaintiff is entitled to the 
costs of this appeal and of the trial.

Fullerton, J.A. (dissenting) :—There were two main ques­
tions discussed in this appeal: (1) Whether the legal represent­
ative of a deceased resident of the state of Massachusetts duly 
appointed by the Courts of that state can sue a resident of this 
province on a promissory note made by him payable to the order 
of the deceased without taking out administration here; (2) 
Whether such legal representative either by endorsement or any 
other act can pass to any person a title to such promissory note 
which will enable the latter to sue here.

I purpose to deal only with the first question because I think 
on the facts the second question does not arise.

In the case of Whyte v. Rose (1842), 3 Q.B. 493,114 E.R. 596, 
11 L.J. (Ex.) 457, it was held by the Court of Queen’s Bench 
that a foreign representative must take out administration in 
England to enable him to maintain an action to recover a debt 
due to his testator. Tindal, C.J., who delivered the judgment 
of the Court, said (114 E.R. at p. 609) :—

“ It is also well established that, in order to sue in any Court of 
this country, whether of law or equity, in respect of the personal 
rights or property of an intestate, the plaintiff must appear to 
have obtained letters of administration in the proper Spiritual 
Court of this country. See the judgment of Sir John Nieholl in 
Spratt v. Harris (1883), 4 Hagg. Ece. Rep. 405; and see also the 
judgment of the Lord Chancellor in Price v. Dewhurst (1838), 4 
My. & Cr. 76, 41 E.R. 30, 8 L.J. (Ch.) 57. So that, if the plaintiff 
in the case now liefore us had in the first instance taken out ad­
ministration in the proper Spiritual Court in Ireland, for the pur­
pose of administering this bond which was found in Ireland, . . , 
he could not have sued in England upon such letters of adminis­
tration, but must have also taken out administration in England 
from the proper Spiritual Court there. This latter point was 
expressly decided in Carter v. Croat’s case, (1585) Godb. 33, 78
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E.R. 21, where the Court says that an administrator made by an 
Irish bishop could not bring an action here, as administrator.”

Vanquelin v. Bouard, 15 C.B. (N.S.) 341, 143 E.R. 817, 33 
L.J. (C.P.) 78, 12 W.R. 128.

Williams on Executors, 11th ed., vol. 1, p. 264:—
‘‘But if a foreign executor should find it necessary to institute 

a suit here, to recover a debt due to his testator, he must prove 
the will here also, or a personal representative must be consti­
tuted by the Probate Division here to administer ad litem.”

And at pp. 265-266 :—
‘‘And it may be stated, as a fully established rule, that in order 

to sue in any Court of this country, whether of law or equity, in 
respect of the rights or property of a deceased person, the plain­
tiff must appear to have obtained probate or letters of adminis­
tration in the Court of Probate of this country.”

In support of the above proposition of law the author cites 
the case of Whyte v. Rose, supra, and Enohin v. Wylie (1862), 
10 H.L. Cas. 1, 11 E.R. 92 i, 31 L.J. (Ch.) 402, in which Lord 
Cran worth said (11 E.R. at p. 931) :—

“The rules of law applicable to such a case are, as I conceive, 
well established ; personal property in this country belonging to 
a foreigner, or to a British subject domiciled abroad, can only 
be obtained, in the event of his death, through the medium of a 
representative in this country. If he has died intestate, admin­
istration will be granted here, limited to the personal estate in 
this country. If he has left a will, valid by the law of his do­
micile, and has thereby appointed executors, probate of that will 
must be obtained here.”

At p. 267-268, Williams on Executors, appears the follow­
ing :— •

‘ * It must not be understood, however, that where a testator dies 
domiciled in England, leaving assets abroad, the grant of pro­
bate here can extend to them, so as to give the executor the legal 
right to recover them abroad. For the probate was never granted 
except for goods which at the time of the death were within the 
jurisdiction of the Ordinary who made the grant ; though if it 
should become necessary that the Courts of the foreign country 
where the assets are situate should grant probate or administra­
tion for the purpose of giving a legal right to recover and deal 
with them, such Courts, by the comity of nations, would prob­
ably follow the decision of the Court of Probate in this country, 
as being the country of domicile.”

It appears, therefore, to have been established by the author­
ities that a foreign executor or administrator cannot maintain
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an action here by virtue of letters testamentary or administra­
tion granted to him in the country where the deceased died.

It is contended, however, that in the case of bills of exchange 
and promissory notes the rule does not apply. While it is ad­
mitted that if the foreign executor were suing here on an or­
dinary simple contract debt he could not succeed, it is said that 
bills of exchange and promissory notes stand on a different foot­
ing, that they are of a chattel nature, capable of being transfer­
red by acts done in the foreign country and sold for money 
there, and that the debts due on them can be sufficiently reduced 
into possession by means of the paper which represents them.

The only English authority that was cited for the position 
that bills of exchange and promissory notes stand on a different 
footing as regards administration from ordinary simple contract 
debts is a passage in Westlake’s Private International Law, at p. 
132. After laying down the proposition in par. 95a, that with 
regard to debts belonging to the deceased.

“In whatever jurisdiction the circumstances of the case point 
out that a debt ought to be or may be sued for, the administrator 
who has obtained a grant in that jurisdiction, or the heir who is 
entitled under its law, and he only, can sue for it therein.”

He proceeds in par. 96 to state the following exception :—
“96. But to the rule in par. 95a the debts due on negotiable 

instruments are an exception, because they can be sufficiently re­
duced into possession by means of the paper which represents 
them. They are in fact in the nature of corporeal chattels. Hence 
the negotiable instruments of a deceased person, and his bonds 
or certificates payable to bearer, belong to the heir or adminis­
trator who first obtains possession of them within the territory 
from the law or jurisdiction of which he derives his title or his 
grant. He can indorse them if they were payable to the de­
ceased’s order and he or his indorsee can sue on them in any 
tther jurisdiction without any other grant.”

The Probate Court of this Province undoubtedly has juris­
diction over all assets of a deceased situate within the Province. 
The difficulty sometimes is to say whether some particular species 
of property is within or without the jurisdiction, and in order 
to determine this the Courts were compelled in certain cases to 
lay down artificial rules. In the well-known case of Attorney- 
General v. B ou wens, 4 M. & W. 171, 150 E.R. 1390, 7 L.J. (Ex.) 
297, a case which has since been followed and referred to with 
approval in the House of Lords in Winans v. Att,y.-Gen,L, 
[1910] A.C. 27, at p. 38, 79 L.J. (K.B.) 156, Lord Abinger, C.B., 
delivering the judgment of the Exchequer Court, said, 150 E.R. 
at p. 1398 :—
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‘‘Whatever may have beerA the origin of the jurisdiction of the 
ordinary to grant probate, it is clear that it is a limited jurisdic­
tion, ami van tie exercised, jn respect of those effects only, which 
lie would have had himse Jf to administer in case of intestacy, and 
which iinift, therefore, have been so situated as that he could 
have disposed of them in piot usus. As to the locality of many 
doscTiptisns of effec4ta, household and moveable goods, for in­
stance., ifcere never could he any dispute ; but to prevent con­
flicting jurisdiction between different ordinaries, with respect 
to choses in action and titles to property, it was established as 
law, tiiat judgment debts were assets, for the purposes of juris­
diction, where the judgment is recorded; leases, where the land 
lies; specialty debts, where the instrument happens to lie; and 
aimple contract debts, where the debtor resided at the time of the 
testator’s death ; and it was also decided, that as bills of exchange 
and promissory notes do not alter the nature of the simple con­
tract debts, but are merely evidences of title, the délits due on 
these instruments were assets where the debtor lived, and not 
where the instrument was found. In truth, with respect to simple 
contract debts, the only act of administration that could be per­
formed by the ordinary would be to recover or to receive pay­
ment of the debt, and that would be done by him within whose 
jurisdiction the debtor happened to be.”

Under the authority of this case the local situation of the 
debts represented by the promissory notes sued on in this case 
is in Manitoba, and an administrator of the deceased appointed 
by the Probate Court here would be entitled to collect them.

Under the proposition laid down by Westlake, quoted above, 
the local situation of the promissory notes is in Massachusetts, 
where they were at the time of the testator’s decease and where 
they were taken possession of by the plaintiff executor.

I have carefully examined all the authorities cited by West- 
lake in support of his proposition and, in my judgment, not only 
do they not support his proposition but one of them at least dis­
tinctly holds the contrary. Without exception they are all cases 
in which the question of the liability of bonds or certificates for 
stock in foreign companies to pay estate or probate duty in 
England was in question. The first ease cited, Att'y.-Uen'l. v. 
Bouwens, svpra, holds the direct contrary of the proposition laid 
down by Westlake. There the question was whether probate 
duty was payable in respect of bonds of a foreign government of 
which a testator, dying in England, was the holder at the time of 
his death, and which had come to the hands of the executor in 
England. The bonds in this case were marketable securities 
transferable by delivery only, and the Court held that they had a
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locality in England, inasmuch as they were instruments in the 
nature of valuable chattels, salable in England and capable of 
administration there.

Lord Abingcr, C.B., who delivered the judgment of the Court, 
specifically pointed out that debts due on bills of exchange and 
promissory notes were assets where the debtor lived and not 
where the instrument was found.

The other cases cited by Westlake follow All'y.-Oen’l. v. Bou- 
wens. Westlake also relies on a passage in Story on Conflict of 
Laws, sec. 517, which states that :—

“Where an executor or administrator, in virtue of an adminis­
tration abroad, becomes there possessed of negotiable notes be­
longing to the deceased, which are payable to bearer . . . 
then becomes the legal owner and bearer by virtue of his admin­
istration and may sue thereon in his own name ; and he need not 
take out letters of administration in the state where the debtor 
resides, in order to maintain a suit against him.’’

It will be noted that Story only speaks of a note payable to 
bearer. The only case cited by him in support is Robinson v. 
Crandall (1832), 9 Wend. 425. There, the plaintiffs declared as 
the bearers of two promissory notes. Delivering the judgment 
of the Supreme Court of New York, Sutherland, J., said, at p. 
426:—

“As administrators they could not sue here. Letters testa­
mentary, or of administration, granted abroad, give no authority
to sue here ; we take no notice of them..................But being the
real owners of the notes, they had a right to declare as bearers 
and recover in that character.”

Apart, therefore, from the statement in Westlake, there seems 
to be no authority supporting the right of the plaintiff suing as 
“executor and administrator of the estate of Mary Louise 
Crosby” to maintain this action.

Now as to the right of the plaintiff George A. Campbell to re­
cover in this action.

He resides in Manitoba, and under the laws of Massachusetts 
he is the sole beneficiary of the estate of Mary Louise Crosby. 
The executor handed the promissory notes in question to Fred­
erick A. Fisher, an attorney practising in Massachusetts. In the 
latter's evidence taken under commission, the following appears :

“Q. Will you examine exhibits marked 5, 6 and 7; state if 
you have ever seen them before and give us, if possible, any in­
formation that you can in connection with the samel A. Yes; 
these are three notes that I received by the hand of Mr. Charles 
O. Prescott, at the time that an inventory was made of the estate 
of said Mary Louise Crosby. The notes remained in my posses-
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sion for a number of months and were finally sent by me to 
George A. Campbell on or about January 16, 1920, to his address, 
Macklin.”

The notes were not endorsed by the executor to Campbell, but 
counsel contends that there was an equitable assignment of them 
to Campbell. The only evidence of an equitable assignment is 
the fact that they were sent by the solicitor Fisher to Campbell. 
I hold that this is entirely insufficient to establish an equitable 
assignment.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Dennistoun, J.A., concurred with Perdue, C.J.M.

Appeal allowed.

STANDARD MARINE INSURANCE Co. v. WHALEN PULP 
AND PAPER Go.

Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., Idington, Duff, Anglin, Brodeur 
and Mignault, JJ. June 17, 19tt.

Insurance ($ III E—109)—Warranty as to seaworthiness—Uninsur­
ability—Nondisclosure.

The uninsurability of a ves*el bus no connection with her seaworthi­
ness. Knowledge of an assured that a vessel, warranted to be sea­
worthy, was uninsurable, which he failed lo disclose to the insurer, does 
not vitiate the policy as entitling the latter to recover the insurance 
money paid under the policy.

Appeal from the judgment of the Court of Appeal of British 
Columbia (11122), 68 D.L.U. 181, reversing the judgment of the 
trial Court in favour of plaintiff in an action hy an insurance 
company to recover insurance money paid to defendant. Af­
firmed.

E. P. Davis, K.C., and E. F. Newcombe, for appellant.
A. II. Douglas, for respondent.
Davies, C.J. :—For the reasons stated by my brother Anglin, 

J., with which I fully concur, I am of the opinion that this ap­
peal must be dismissed with costs.

Idington, J. :—I think for the reasons respectively assigned 
by Macdonald, C.J.A., and Martin, J.A., in the Court of Appeal 
(1922), 68 D.L.R. 181, (taken as a whole, for each covers dif­
ferent ground ) with which I entirely agree, that this appeal 
should be dismissed with costs throughout.

1 desire, however, in deference to the argument of counsel 
presented here, to add a few words.

The action is in principle founded upon a mistake of fact and, 
if well founded, might as well have been brought by resorting to 
the simple old-fashioned count of a case for money had and re­
ceived. That was long ago declared by Lord Mansfield, in the 
case of Moses v. Macferlan (1760), 2 Burr. 1005 at p. 1010, 97 
E.R. 676, to be a form of action in which the question raised is
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whether or not it is inequitable that the defendant should retain 
the money he has been paid.

The facts presented here fall far short of fulfilling such a con­
dition and hence the money should remain where it is. The 
policy was specifically amended so as to avert any reliance upon 
an implied warranty of seaworthiness in the vessel that might, 
be in question. Hence the appellant’s counsel frankly admits, 
that even if unseaworthy he could not rely upon that alone.

Yet he tries to induce us to believe that if the facts come to 
the knowledge of the respondent that the owner of the vessel 
had said something tending to shew the vessel was un insurable 
though in good condition and fitted for the service she was to be 
put to in quiet inland or almost inland waters, that if the appel­
lant had been told this same story, its agents, would, beyond 
doubt, have rejected the risk so to be taken.

I am quite sure that he consistently stated his proposition quite 
so broadly for at times and for the most part he put it as if con­
nected with the fact of undoubted unseaworthiness.

I do think, however, that unless the story can be relied 
on as ground of relief quite independently of that question, there 
is nothing to stand upon unless fraud which is not either argued 
for.

I fail to see how its connection with either seaworthiness or 
unseaworthiness is at all material in this case where it is not con­
tended that respondent knew it was so and if it is so put the evi­
dence contradicts it.

He in effect asks us to assume that appellant would, beyond 
doubt, have, if told the story in question, rejected the declara­
tion made by the respondent. I certainly cannot accept that as 
proven.

Nor, in face of the overwhelming evidence that such barges 
and scows as in the service this one was engaged for, would not 
be insured by a large part of the insurers in the Vancouver dis­
trict, and by the other part only when induced by the chance of 
obtaining thereby other large and important business, can I be­
lieve that the appellant, doubtless well aware of that condition 
of the insurance business there, would have paid any attention to 
such a story as of any significance, any more than respondent did.

It is shewn that a very large part of the business handled by 
the respondent was for the long time the appellant was its in­
surer of pulp so carried by what were practically uninsurable 
scows and barges. Yet not a word of inquiry as to whether these 
vessels were insured or insurable in that district.

Surely, if faith is to be kept by business men, these now laying 
stress upon an omission which had consistently been observed
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throughout, as if quite permissible, cannot be permitted to be 
thus treacherously set up.

The only difference (if it is one, which is not clear from the 
evidence) in this case would seem to be that the owner of this 
barge, now in question, refused to accept the risk and insisted 
and had its way that respondent become its own insurer by agree­
ing to return the “Baramba” in same good condition as got.

The “Baramba” was, twice before the occasion now in ques­
tion, used under more onerous conditions than existed at the 
loading under which she sank. The mystery has not been 
solved.

The appellant got Cullington, an expert, to try to solve it. He 
did not. Of course he tells us how it was possible for water to 
have got in through certain holes, but these holes were there for 
all the prior trips and under as heavy loading as had taken place 
when she began to sink.

The “Baramba” had been duly declared to the appellant by 
respondent, and the accident duly reported on February 25, and 
Cullington immediately summoned by the appellant to investi­
gate, which he did, twice, yet no solution that appeals to one’s 
common sense in light of the immediately preceding history or 
its carrying powers.

The appellant was not surprised nor did it ask any questions 
of the respondent as to past history or relation between the 
owner and respondent, and yet it agreed to pay on April 14, six 
weeks after the curious accident, the amount found due, and 
nearly 2 years later the balance of same arising out of general 
average.

It seems asking too much to try to make of a most equitable 
principle of our law the basis for a most inequitable operation 
of the law.

1 am, therefore, not surprised to find that the appellant has 
been unable to cite to us any case in which anything like what 
it asks us to decide was ever decided, much less decided its way 
of presenting the law.

It cites cases of actions by insured against insurer in which 
were set up a variety of defences of failure to disclose something 
material.

What might be material and have weight in such a case is very 
far from being the same as setting it up by way of founding an 
action to recover back money voluntarily paid.

The only case it cites of that kind is the case of Kelly v. Solari 
(1841), 9 M. & W. 54, 152 E.R. 24, 11 L.J. (Ex.) 10, where, 
through the clearest inadvertence the insurance company had,
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when paying life insurance included the amount of a policy 
which had not only expired, hut been marked so.

Yet in so clear a case of mistake of fact, which is the only basis 
for this action, as it was for that, the Court had to give a second 
trial.

I fail to see the semblance between the two cases if we have 
any regard to the principles to lie observed.

A mere voluntary payment as this may have been for aught 
we ought to care, is not recoverable whatever the motives behind 
it on the part of appellant so paying.

Having referred to all the cases cited by the appellant and 
then turned to respondent’s citations, I imagine the decisions 
in the judgments, especially that of Willes, J., in the case of 
Thompson v. Hopper (1858), E.B. & E. 1038, 120 E.R. 796, 27 
L.J. (Q.B.) 441, 6 W.R. 857, sets forth what is still good law 
and a safe guide.

Duff, J. :—This action is brought to recover moneys paid to 
the respondent by the appellant company under an insurance 
policy covering pulp, the policy having been issued by the ap­
pellant to the respondent.

The insurance was on “wood pulp shipped or to be shipped 
per steamer approved or held covered from Howe Sound to Van­
couver (including risk per scows) and or North Bend barge and 
or Seattle, and thence per steamer approved or held covered to a 
direct port in Jauan.” On the policy there was endorsed a 
memorandum by the appellant that “seaworthiness of the vessel 
as between the assured and the assurers is hereby admitted.”

In February, 1919, the defendant hired a craft named the 
“Baramba”, and on the 25th of that month, while the “Baram- 
ba” was being loaded with pulp which the respondent company 
intended to ship to Japan by way of Vancouver, she sank and the 
pulp was lost. The defendant declared the cargo under the 
policy and on March 31, 1919, paid the premium according to 
rates provided by the policy, and on April 14,1919, it paid to the 
defendant the sum of $12,715.20, the amount of the respondent 
company’s loss.

The appellant company having first sued the owners of the 
“Baramba” for breach of a warranty of seaworthiness under an 
assignment to them by the defendant of the defendant’s rights, 
and the action having been discontinued upon the discovery 
that no such warranty could be established, the appellant com­
pany brought the action out of which the present appeal arises, 
alleging that at the time the insurance was effected, that is to 
say, when the premium was paid and accepted by the appellant, 
the respondent company was aware of the fact that the “Bar-
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araba” was an uninsurable craft and that this fact ought to 
have been disclosed to the appellant company when the cargo 
was declared under the policy, and that for default in this duty 
of disclosure the contract of insurance affected by declaration 
and the acceptance of the premium was voidable at the option 
of the appellant company. The payment of the loss in April 
was, the appellant company alleges, a payment in ignorance of 
facts entitling them to avoid the policy and a payment conse­
quently which they are entitled to revoke as made under a 
mistake of fact.

The appellant company relied also upon another ground. It 
was contended that the “Baramba” when she sank was in such 
a state as to be utterly unfit for the carriage of cargo even from 
Mill Creek to Vancouver; that the respondent company was 
aware of this and that the loading of the cargo in such circum­
stances was a wrongful act, which was the real cause of the 
respondent company’s loss, a loss for which upon the sound prin­
ciple that a plaintiff is not entitled to recover reparation for 
damages resulting from his own wrongful act, the appellant 
company was not obliged to make good under its policy. As to 
this, I think the appeal fails, because I think the evidence does 
not establish that the officials of the respondent company can 
have seriously doubted that the “Baramba” was in a fit state 
to carry a cargo from Howe Sound to Vancouver.

The conditions of the appellant company’s right to recover are 
of course, first : That the moneys paid in April were paid under a 
mistake of fact and, second, that this mistake arose from the 
supposition of the defendant company of the existence of a state 
of facts which did not exist but which if it had existed would 
have disentitled the respondent company to the moneys paid.

In the view I take of the appeal, the question of substance is : 
Were the moneys paid under a mistake of fact which was rele­
vant in the sense above indicated ? I think it sufficiently appears 
that the defendant company was not aware of the fact that the 
respondent company knew the “Baramba” to be uninsurable, 
although the evidence does not convince me that the respondent 
company did not know the condition of the “Baramba” and the 
probable state of the respondent company’s knowledge with re­
spect to her condition at the time the loss was paid.

But was the plaintiff company’s ignorance of the respondent 
company’s non-disclosure of the uninsurability of the craft a 
relevant mistake—a mistake within the meaning of the rule! 
That depends upon the answer to this question : Did the fact of 
non-disclosure absolve them from the obligation to pay in execu­
tion of which the moneys were paid f
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Now the obligation to pay under which they acted was 
undoubtedly the obligation of the policy. The cargo was declared 
under this policy: the premium was paid and accepted under the 
policy: the insurance moneys were paid as moneys due 
under the policy. That this was so in fact is on the evidence in­
controvertible.

The cargo was treated as a cargo covered by the policy, not­
withstanding the fact that the appellant company was fully 
aware of the character of the “Baramba.”

It is now said indeed that the policy did not contemplate 
shipment from Ilowe Sound in barges but only in scows, except 
in the case of the barge “North Rend” and that, consequently a 
shipment by the “Baramba” which it is said was a barge and not 
a scow' was not covered by the policy.

But it is to be observed not only that the character of the 
“Baramba” herself was known when the insurance moneys were 
paid, but as the appellant company admits: the appellant com­
pany had acquiesced in the use by the defendant company of 
barges other than the “North Bend” for shipment from Howe 
Sound, and that the cargoes so shipped had been treated as car­
goes under the policy.

If, therefore, there was any mistake in this connection, there 
was no mistake of fact. It could only be a mistake as to the con­
struction of the policy and a mistake in this sense that in point 
of law the policy is incapable of a construction such as would 
cover shipment by a craft like the “Baramba.”

Now in construing a commercial contract such as this policy, 
it is unquestionably open to the parties to show that in the lo­
cality in which the contract is made and is to operate a word such 
as the word “scow” is commonly used and understood to denote 
craft of a particular kind. The word “scow” is not a word of 
fixed legal significance and therefore such evidence would be ad­
missible. And when one reads the evidence, noting the applica­
tion of the words “scow” and “barge” by witnesses, who must 
be familiar with the uses of such terms in Vancouver and Seattle, 
and indeed when one refers to the pleadings, one is left without 
a doubt that had the contention been put forward at the early 
stages of the litigation it would inevitably have raised a contest 
on the meaning of the word “barge” in such a contract and it is, 
therefore, too late now to rely upon it.

Such being the scope of the policy, was there any legal duty 
of disclosure resting on the respondent company ? I think there 
was no such duty. The contract of insurance had been effected, 
the subject matter had been ascertained, the seaworthiness had 
been admitted of all craft wdthin the contemplation of it; and
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the risk attached as soon as the conditions of the policy were 
complied with. Mr. Davis’ contention as to the premium must, 
I think, be rejected; the premium was fixed by the policy itself. 
The case cited by the Chief Justice in the Court below, Ionides v. 
Pacific Fire, etc., Ins. Co. (1871), L.R. 6 Q.B. 674 at p. 682, 
seems to be in point and is conclusive.

I think the appeal fails and should be dismissed with costs.
Anglin, J. :—The floating insurance in question covered any 

and all “declared” cargoes of pulp belonging to the respondent 
during transportation (including loading) between certain ter­
mini. The respondent was bound to “declare” all such ship­
ments and to pay premiums thereon at rates fixed by a schedule 
to the policy and, as I read the policy, the appellant was obliged 
to insure the respondent, at the appropriate rate so fixed, against 
loss of, or injury to, any such cargo so declared. In the absence 
of fraud upon the policy in the making of the declaration (as 
there would have been in declaring the shipment by the “Bar- 
atnba” if the respondent had known of her unseaworthiness, 
Thompson v. Hopper (1866), 6 El. & HI. 172 and 937, 119 E.R. 
828 and 1113, 25 L.J. (Q.B.) 240: E. B. & E. 1038, 120 E.R. 796, 
27 L.J. (Q.B.) 441, 6 W.R. 857), the appellant could not reject the 
insurance of any declared shipment however unseaworthy the 
craft on which it was, or was to be, transported from Mill 
Creek to an “approved” steamship cither at Vancouver or Se­
attle, as the case might be, provided çucli craft was a scow or 
the “North Bend” barge, Ionides v. Pacific Ins. Co., L.R. 6 Q.B. 
674 at p. 682; L.R. 7 Q.B. 517, 41 L.J. (Q.B.) 190, 21 W.R. 22. 
The practice of allowing the plaintiff to use any scow or barge 
it chose for the transportation from Mill Creek to the steam­
ship’s side seems to have been well established.

The shipment in respect of which the loss occurred was, un­
doubtedly, to be carried by the “Baramba” from Mill Creek to 
Vancouver. The rate of premium for pulp shipped via Van­
couver was fixed in the schedule to the policy at %% from Howe 
Sound to Japan whether a scow or the barge “North Bend”— 
or, according to the practice, any other barge—was employed to 
transport the cargo from Mill Creek to Vancouver. By some 
error—probably due to the date having been given as February 
17, instead of the 25th—the shipment was treated by the appel­
lant as having been intended to be carried via Seattle instead of 
via Vancouver and consequently the rate of premium was in­
serted by it at 1 Yg% instead of %%. If, as I think, the appel­
lant had no option to reject the insurance of the cargo in 
question because of any exception that it might have taken 
when the respondent’s declaration was communicated to the use

Can.

8.C.

Standard

Insurance
Co.

Wiialen 
Pulp and 
Paper Co.

Anglin, J.



276 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Can

B.C.

Standard
Marine

Insurance
Co.

Whalen 
Pulp and 
Paper Co.
mmauit. i.

of the “Baratnba,” the rate of premium being also fixed, as it 
was, it ia difficult to appreciate the materiality of non-disclosure 
of the fact that the “Haramha” could not be insured. lonidet v. 
Pender (1874), L.R. 9 Q.B. 531, 43 L.J. (Q.B.) 227, 22 W.R. 884, 
2 Asp. M.C. 266; Ionidet v. Pacific Insurance Co., tupra.

The evidence fully warranted the findings of the trial Judge 
that the “Baramba” was unseaworthy, but that that fact was 
not known to the respondent, and also that the respondent was 
aware that the “Baramba” could not be insured when it was 
last hired. That her unseaworthiness was the cause of her sink­
ing was, I think, the only inference reasonably open on the evi­
dence. The voyage from Mill Creek to Vancouver on inland 
waters involved very slight risk to the “Baramba.” The re­
spondent readily assumed that risk and itself became the insurer 
of it to her owners. It was no doubt believed that the “Bar­
amba” would make the trip in perfect safety.

Upon this state of facts the declaration of the cargo intended to 
be sent by the “Baramba” from Mill Creek to Vancouver was 
not such a fraud on the policy as would avoid the risk, Thompson 
v. Hopper, supra.

The loss was not paid by the plaintiff under mistake as to any 
facts which, if known, would have afforded it a valid defence 
to the respondent’s claim under the policy. The existence of 
such facts has not been shown.

I would for these reasons uphold the judgment appealed from 
and dismiss this appeal with costa.

Brooeur, J. :—I concur with my brother Idington.
Mignault, J. :—I concur in the judgment dismissing this 

appeal.
The appellant had insured the defendant’s shipments under a 

floating policy. While a shipment of pulp was being loaded on a 
barge called the “Baramba,” the barge sank and the loss was 
incurred. In due time the appellant paid this loss to the respon­
dent, but subsequently took an action to recover back the money 
paid, alleging that the payment had been made in error on sub­
stantially two grounds : 1, that the barge was unseaworthy to 
the knowledge of the respondent. 2. That no insurance could be 
obtained on this barge and that the respondent, although aware 
of this fact, had failed to disclose it to the appellant.

The trial Judge found that the barge was unseaworthy, but 
that the respondent had no knowledge of its unseaworthiness. 
He, however, came to the conclusion that the respondent com­
pany knew that the barge could not be insured and for that 
reason he rendered judgment in favour of the appellant.

The Court of Appeal set aside this judgment agreeing with
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the trial Court that although the barge was unseaworthy, the Que-
respondent was not aware of it, whieh was shewn by the faet that g c
the respondent had undertaken to return the barge in good condi­
tion to its owners. And as to the non-disclosure of the fact that 
the barge had been refused insurance, the Chief Justice of 
British Columbia did not consider that non-disclosure of such 
a fact coming to the knowledge of the insured only after a 
policy of this description, i.e. a ship or ships policy, was issued, 
would vitiate the contract. McPhillips, J.A., dissented from 
the judgment of the Court of Appeal.

Had the respondent been aware of the unseaworthiness of the 
“Baramba,” the concealment of this fact, when the respondent 
declared its shipment to the appellant, would have amounted to 
fraud. But no such knowledge is proved. No doubt the respon­
dent was aware that the barge had been refused insurance. It 
is, however, suggested that insurance companies as a rule refuse 
to insure barges. And unless refusal of insurance on this barge 
brought home to the respondent the knowledge that it was unsea­
worthy, and that has not been shown, I do not think that refusal 
of insurance for other reasons than unseaworthiness, for instance 
because barges in general arc not considered by insurers as 
desirable risks (a fact which the appellant company must have 
known), was something which, under the policy in question, 
should have been disclosed to the insurer under pain of forfei­
ture of the right to claim the insurance.

On the question whether the “Baramba” came within the de­
scription of the policy, this was a fact which could have been 
ascertained by the appellant before it paid the insurance. 1 am, 
therefore, not impressed by the contention that it was not a 
“scow” within the meaning of the policy.

1 would not disturb the judgment appealed from.
Appeal dismissed.

DALEY fc MORIN v. FOGEL.
Quebec Superior Court in Bankruptcy, Panneton, J. June 29, 1922.

Bankruptcy ($IV—20)—Rights of secured creditor—‘ Does not real­
ise ’ ’—Composition.

A secured creditor failing to file his claim in compliance with see.
46 of the Bankruptcy Act cannot, after a composition has been con­
firmed, proceed against the insolvent under sec. 13 of the Act. to enforce 
payment of the composition dividend for the balance of the secured 
debt not realized. The section makes it obligatory on such creditor 
who “does not realise” his security to file his claim within 30 days, 
in order to prove for the balance; the fact that he was engaged in 
doing so is not sufficient.

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135, 56 D.L.R. 104, 59 D.L.R. 1.1 
19—68 D.L.R.
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Application that insolvent be ordered to pay $234.10, or be 
adjudged a bankrupt. Dismissed.

I. Popliger, for insolvent.
Décary & Décary, for petitioner.
Panneton, J.:—The petitioner asks that the debtor Maurice 

Fogel l>e ordered to pay it $234.10 and that in default by him to 
make payment, he be declared bankrupt.

The claim is based on the following facts :—The debtor made 
an assignment of his goods on May 9, 1921, to an authorised 
trustee and included the petitioner’s name on the list of secured 
creditors. The petitioner obtained judgment against the debtor 
and another defendant on the 25th of the same month. On May 
20, the debtor made an offer of a composition, notice of which 
was given to certain of his creditors, but not to the petitioner. 
On June 10 the creditors accepted the offer of a composition at 
30 cents on the dollar to ordinary creditors. The Court ap­
proved the composition on June 22nd.

During the course of these insolvency proceedings the peti­
tioner caused the goods which were in its possession to be seized 
as security for its claim. The goods were sold and the sale real­
ised $290. The total of the judgment and costs amounted to 
$1,070.35, leaving a balance of $780.35 due by the insolvent. 
The sum of $234.10 is 30% of the debt, the amount of the com­
position. The petitioner never filed its claim in the hands of the 
trustee, and the present motion is the first proceeding it has 
taken.

According to sec. 46 of the Bankruptcy Act 1919 (Can.) eh. 
36, a secured creditor must proceed as follows :—

“ (1) If a secured creditor realises his security, he may prove 
for the balance due to him, after deducting the net amount 
realised.

(2) If a secured creditor surrenders his security to the trus­
tee for the general benefit of the creditors, he may prove for his 
whole debt.

(3) If a secured creditor does not either realise or surrender 
his security, he shall within thirty days of the date of the re­
ceiving order, or of the making of the authorised assignment, 
or within such further time as may be allowed by the inspec­
tors, or in case they shall refuse, then within such further time 
as may lie allowed by the Court, file with the trustee a statutory 
declaration stating therein full particulars of his security or se­
curities, the date when each security was given, and the value 
at which he assesses each thereof. He shall be entitled to receive 
a dividend only in respect of the balance due to him after de­
ducting the value so assessed.
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(4) Where a security is so valued the trustee may at any 
time redeem it on payment to the creditor of the assessed value.”

Sub-section 10 of the same section says:—
“(10) If a secured creditor does not comply with the fore­

going subsections he shall be excluded from all share in any 
dividend.”

In the present case, the petitioner did not realise its security 
within 30 days. It did absolutely nothing, and in the action 
which it took completely ignored tlu fact that the debtor was 
insolvent, as though it were satisfied with its security. It wishes 
to benefit by proceedings which it lias neglected, notwithstanding 
the obligations imposed upon it by law if it wished to avail itself 
thereof.

Section 13, sub-sec. 12, reads as follows:—
“(12) A composition, extension or scheme accepted and ap­

proved in pursuance of this section shall be binding on all the 
creditors so far as relates to any debts due to them from the 
debtor and provable under this Act, but shall not release the 
debtor from any liability under a judgment against him in an 
action for seduction, or under an affiliation order or for alimony, 
or under a judgment against him as co-respondent in a matri­
monial case or for necessaries of life or alimentary debts, except 
to such an extent and under such conditions as the Court ex­
pressly orders in respect of such liability.”

The petitioner bases its petition on sub-sec. 14 of see. 13 which 
is to the effect that, if payment is not made in accordance with 
the terms of the composition, any creditor may ask and obtain 
from the Court a receiving order against the debtor.

The difficulty arises from the meaning to be given to the words, 
“does not realise” in sub-sec. 3 of this sec. 46, w'hich begins as 
follows: “If a secured creditor docs not either realise or sur­
render his security, he shall within thirty days of the date of the 
receiving order, or of the making of the authorised assignment, 
or within such further time as may be allowed, ... file ... a 
statutory declaration stating . . . particulars of his security, 
etc.,” but is not entitled to a dividend except for the excess of the 
value so assessed.

The petitioner was taking steps to realise its security within 
the 30 days above mentioned, through its attorneys, in the Su­
perior Court, without reference to the Bankruptcy Act, but did 
not even realise its security until November and, having omitted 
to file its claim, it allowed the delay to expire.

It is of the very greatest importance that all creditors who 
wish to take advantage of the provisions of the Bankruptcy Act 
should file their claims, both secured and unsecured, so that the
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creditors who have filed their claims, the trustee and the inspec­
tors, may be able to wind up the estate with a knowledge of all 
the assets of which it is composed. When a creditor has goods 
belonging to the insolvent in his possession and says nothing 
about them in so far as the insolvency is concerned, it must natur­
ally be supposed that he intends to keep these goods in satisfac­
tion of his claim, for, if he were of opinion that the security was 
insufficient, he could protect himself by valuing it and obtaining 
collocation for the difference. If he has not had time to realise 
his security within 30 days, he has only to ask the inspectors or 
the Court to extend the delay. But the petitioner did nothing. 
It did not even file its claim with the trustee, but appeals to the 
Court directly to obtain payment.

It is, therefore, a question of deciding if a creditor who has 
not yet realised his security, but who is engaged in doing so, is 
included in the words, “does not realise.” According to the 
text of this section and of the Act as a whole, the creditor must 
realise his security within this delay of 30 days, or any addi­
tional delay that may have been granted.

Before presenting its motion, the petitioner should have filed 
its claim with the trustee, and should then have appealed from 
his decision if it were not accepted.

Section 13, sub-sec. 12, states that a composition approved by 
a Court shall be binding upon all the creditors for all debts due 
and provable under the Bankruptcy Act, excepting certain debts 
of a special nature, and the petitioner’s claim is not one of 
these.

The Court is of opinion that the present motion cannot be 
granted, and it is dismissed with costs, which are limited as re­
gards the attorney for the contestant to $85 plus disbursements.

Application dismissed.

CITY OF QUEBEC v. UNITED TYPEWRITER CO.
Supreme Court of Canada, Idington, Duff, Anglin, Brodeur and Mignault, 

JJ. June tO, I9t1.
Municipal corporations ($11 G—260)—Liability for damage by mob or 

riot—Statute—Charter—Limitations—Notice or action.
Statutory liability imposed upon a city for “injury to property by 

any mob or during riots in said city” is not incompatible with similar 
provisions contained in the city charter, and the city is liable for 
damages to property by a mob even without any fault or negligence on 
its part. The provisions of the city charter as to notice of action anil 
limitations thereof do not apply to a liability of this kind.

Appeal from the judgment of the Court of King’s Bench, ap­
peal side, Province of Quebec (1920), 30 Que. K.B. 281, reversing



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 281

the judgment of Lemieux, C.J., at the trial (1919), 57 Que. S.C. 
216, and maintaining the respondent’s aetion. Affirmed.

F. Roy, K.C., for appellant.
L. St.-Laurent, K.C., for respondent.
Idinuton, J. :—I think this appeal should be dismissed with 

costs.
Duff, J. :—The decision of this appeal turns upon two points : 

1. Was 1853 (Can.) ch. 233, repealed by sub-sec. 16, see. 29 of 
1865 (Can.) ch. 57? The answer to this question depends upon 
whether or not sub-sec. 3 of see. 39 is “inconsistent” with the 
provisions of the former Aet. It seems beyond argument that 
the later provision van stand and be read together with the 
earlier Act without any sort of incompatibility. This question 
must lie answered in the negative.

2. Is the present Act within sec. 11,1916 (Que.) ch. 43, which 
is in the following words :—

“11. Section 8 of the Aet 55-56 Viet. ch. 50, as replaced by sec. 
45 of the Act 7 Ed. VII, ch. 62, is again replaced by the follow­
ing :—

8. Every action, suit or claim against the city for damages is 
prescribed by six months, counting from the day when the right 
of aetion arose, any article or provision of the Civil Code to the 
contrary notwithstanding. Hut no such action, suit or claim 
can be instituted unless a notice containing the particulars of 
such claim and the address of the domicile of the claimant, be 
previously given to the said city within thirty days from the 
date on which the cause of the damage happened, and no such 
action or suit can be taken before the expiration of thirty days 
from the date of such notice.

The failure to give the above notice shall not deprive the 
claimants of their right of aetion, if they prove that they were 
prevented from giving such notice by irresistible force or other 
reasons deemed valid by the Judge or the Court, subject to the 
Act 29 Viet., ch. 57, sec. 39, par. 35.”

It seems improbable that the legislature could have intended 
to require notice of action before a cause of action has arisen 
and that part of the enactment which relates to notice of claim 
seems to apply only to cases where the cause of action arises upon 
the happening of the “cause of damage.” This probability is 
strengthened by the circumstance that in the French version 
“fait dommageable” in the first sentence is evidently regarded as 
the equivalent of “right of action.”

My conclusion is that a right of action arising under the 
special statute upon which the plaintiff relies in this ease does 
not fall within the class of cases contemplated by this section.
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Anglin, J. :—After giving to this case careful consideration 
I find myself driven to the conclusion that neither the prescrip­
tive provision nor the provision for notice of sec. 561 of the 
charter of the City of Quebec, 1916 (Que.) ch. 43, sec. 11, applies 
to a ease in which the plaintiff’s right to claim damages from the 
city can arise only 6 months after the happening of the injurious 
act for the consequences of which damages are sought.

As first enacted by 1892 (Que.) ch. 50, sec. 8, this provision 
probably did not extend to actions for damages caused by 
rioters. As it now stands the prescriptive clause cannot be 
meant to apply to a cause of action which only arises on the ex­
piry of the prescriptive period. The provision for notice be­
cause found in the same section and introduced by the words 
“no such action” is almost certainly restricted in its application 
to actions that are subject to the prescription. It is unlikely 
that the Legislature meant to require notice to be given contain­
ing particulars of a claim in respect of which a cause of action 
may never arise and cannot, in any event, come into existence 
until the expiry of 5 months from the period within which tin- 
notice is required to be given. The application of art. 561 of tin- 
charter must, I think, be confined to cases in which the right to 
claim and sue for the damages sustained arises immediately upon 
their being incurred. 1 find nothing in this provision inconsistent 
with or repugnant to the provision of the statute, 1865 (Can.) ch. 
57, by which the right of action originally conferred by the 
statute, 1853 (Can.) ch. 233, in circumstances such as exist in 
the case at bar appears to be reaffirmed.

The appeal fails and must be dismissed with costs.
Brodeur, J.:—The facts of the case are as follows:—Tin- 

United Typewriter Co. leased to the federal Government a évi­
tai!) number of typewriters for the use of the office of the Regis­
trar at Quebec. On March 29, 1918, disturbances took place in 
that city and rioters sacked and pillaged the Registrar’s office 
and destroyed or damaged several of the machines. The com­
pany which owned the machines sued the City of Quebec to re­
cover the loss it had sustained at the hands of the rioters.

The City of Quebec, by virtue of the special Acts which govern 
it, and particularly art. 310 of its charter, has the right to make 
by-laws to pay damages caused to the property of victims of 
riots, and it is declared that if such a by-law is not passed within 
6 months from the day when the damage was done, the aggrieved 
person has a right of action against the corporation.

I believe that this disposition of art. 310 is sufficiently explicit 
to hold the City of Quebec responsible for damage caused to 
property in ease of rioting. If there were any doubt in this



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 283

respect, it would only be necessary to consult the sources of the 
charter, and particularly the Act 1853 (Can.) eh. 233, which 
shows clearly the intention of the Legislature.

But the City of Quebec says that the action should be dismissed 
because notice of claim was not given in sufficient time and be­
cause the action was not instituted within the six months follow­
ing the occurence which caused the damage; and in support of 
this contention it invokes art. 561 of its charter 1916 (Que.) ch. 
43, sec. 11.

This section reads as follows:—
“Every action, suit or claim against the city for damages is 

prescribed by 6 months, counting from the day when the right 
of action arose, any article or provision of the Civil Code to the 
contrary notwithstanding. But no such action, suit or claim 
can he instituted unless a notice containing the particulars of 
such claim and the address of the domicile of the claimant, be 
previously given to the said city within 30 days from the date 
on which the cause of the damage happened, and no such action 
or suit can be taken before the expiration of 30 days from the 
date of such notice.

The failure to give the above notice shall not deprive the 
claimants of their rights of action, if they prove that they were 
prevented from giving such notice by irresistible force or for 
other reasons deemed valid by the .Judge or the Court.”

Can this provision of the charter be applied to a case like the 
present ? I do not think so.

The city’s obligation to pay for damages suffered as a result 
of riots is imposed by law. By virtue of the ordinary principles 
concerning delicts, the city could not be held responsible for 
such damages for the very good reason that there was no fault 
on its part.

The notice which claimants must give in accordance with sec. 
561 of the charter does not apply to those who wish to avail them­
selves of delictual fault on the part of the city. It is even pos­
sible that such notice might be required in case of contractual 
fault, as Mr. Roy has told us; but this latter point is not in issue 
in the present case and it is, therefore, not necessary to decide 
it..

But notice is certainly not necessary in cases when the claim 
is based on an obligation imposed by law. The jurisprudence is 
to the effect that these notices constitute an exception to the or­
dinary rules governing persons in their relations with one an­
other, so they do not have to be given except in cases which come 
clearly w’ithin the dispositions of the statute. Robin v. City of 
Montreal (1914), 54 Que. S.C. 2; Newman v. City of Montreal
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(1912), 53 Que. S.C. 481; Del Sole v. City of Montreal (1915), 
24 Que. K.B. 550; Quebec v. Bastien (1916), 32 D.L.R. 499, 25 
Que. K.B. 539 affirmed, 54 D.L.R. 327, [1921] 1 A.C. 265, 28 
Rev. Leg. 1.

But when must default to give notice be alleged ? By plea to 
the merits, as was done in the present ease, or by preliminary 
plea?

Section 177 C.C.P. states that the defendant may stay the 
proceedings by dilatory exception if be has the right to demand 
the execution of some obligation which causes a prejudice. Does 
the notice which must precede the exercise of a right constitute 
a prejudicial obligation ?

This question was raised in a case of Mattice v. Montreal St. H. 
Co. (1901), 20 Que. S.C. 222, where it was held that default to 
give the notice which is required to be given to the Montreal 
Street Railway Co. by the victims of an accident before they 
take action is a prejudicial obligation and that failure to do so 
must be alleged by way of dilatory exception.

Belanger, J., in the case of Kelly v. Montreal St. R. Co. (1898), 
13 Que. S.C. 385, also held that default to give notice of action 
must be alleged by way of preliminary exception.

In the present case notice was given, it is true, not by the 
plaintiff itself, but by the person who had the machines in his 
possession and who could be held responsible as lessee for de­
terioration and loss of the thing leased. Notice was given within 
the delay fixed by the charter. Four months later, the plaintiff 
produced a sworn declaration setting out the exact nature of the 
damages sustained. The circumstances of the case permit us, in 
the exercise of the discretion which the law leaves to the Court, 
to declare that the notice required by law was given within the 
prescribed delay (see. 561 of the charter).

Now, is the action prescribed by 6 months? The prescription 
by 6 months invoked by the City of Quebec, under sec. 561 of its 
charter cannot prevent the plaintiff from succeeding. Indeed, 
according to sec. 561, prescription would begin to run from the 
day when the riot occurred. But sec. 310 of the same charter 
says that the right of action can only be exercised after 6 months 
from the date of the riot. It is true that there is a difference 
between the French and English versions of this sec. 561. In 
the English version mention is made of a prescription that would 
be acquired from the day when the right of action might have 
been exercised. The French version, on the contrary, speaks of 
a prescription which would run from the day when the damaging 
act occurred. The two texts differ. Every law of prescription 
must be strictly applied. Even if sec. 561 applied to the present
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case, I would be obliged to say that the action was commenced 
in good time, for 6 months had not yet elapsed between the time 
when the right of action accrued and the time when it was ex­
ercised.

It has been argued that since municipal law is derived from 
English and American law we should be guided by the decisions 
of those countries.

i must say that I do not share this opinion. The English and 
American authorities may be of great assistance to us in inter­
preting our Municipal Code, for the Code is largely a reproduc­
tion of English and American law ; but that does not justify the 
conclusion that all the rules of English law on the subject are 
applicable here, and particularly that questions concerning de­
licts and quasi-delicts are to be decided in accordance with 
English or American legal principles. Our Civil Code contains 
specific dispositions on the subject and there are also provisions 
in our statutes which tend to determine such responsibility. In 
my opinion, we must turn to the Civil Code and the statutes to 
determine the question of responsibility, for it is always danger­
ous to have recourse to decisions which very often violate ele­
mentary principles of our own law as stated in our civil and 
municipal codes.

The judgment a quo should be confirmed with costs.
Mignault, J. :—The respondent in this case relies upon an 

obligation imposed by statute upon the City of Quebec to in­
demnify persons who suffer damages as a result of a riot.

It is a question of the Act 1853 (Can.) eh. 233, which has 
never been expressly repealed and which, with the object of 
providing a means of assessing the citizens of the City of Quebec 
for damages resulting from injurieS caused to property l»v as­
semblies or during riots, gives the council of that city power to 
make by-laws imposing a special tax to meet and defray the ex­
pense of indemnifying the owners of all buildings or other pro­
perty whatsoever, that may be demolished, destroyed or damaged 
by any assembly, disorderly gathering or riot whatsoever, in the 
said city, and that Act, of which 1 reproduce the exact phrase­
ology, adds :—

(Translation). “Provided that in the event of demolition or 
destruction of or injury or damage to any property in the said 
city by any mob, tumultuous assembly of rioters, disorderly 
gathering or riot, then if the said council omit to provide, by 
such special assessment to defray the expense of indemnifying the 
proprietor hereof within 6 months after the destruction or injury 
of the said property, the corporation of the mayor and councillors 
of the city of Quebec shall be liable to pay the same; and the
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proprietor of the property destroyed or injured, may recover the 
amount of damages sustained by the destruction or injury hereof, 
by action against the said corporation.”

This Act imposes upon the City of Queliec an obligation de­
rived from the law solely (sec. 983 C.C.), and the conditions 
which give rise to that obligation (to express myself more brief­
ly than does the Act in question) are: (1) Damage caused to 
property by mobs or during riots. (2) Failure on the part of the 
City of Quebec to provide for defraying the expenses necessary 
in order to indemnify the owner by means of a special assess­
ment within 6 months from the time the damage was done.

So the owner’s action does not lie until the municipal council 
has allowed 6 months to pass without making this assessment.

In defence of the action of the company respondent, which 
suffered damages in consequence of the destruction of certain 
typewriters belonging to it during a riot that occurred on March 
27, 1918, when a disorderly mob of rioters broke into the offices 
of the Registrar, appointed at Quebec under the Military Service 
Act, to whom the machines had been leased, the appellant pleads 
(1) prescription by 6 months, (2) default to give notice of an 
action in damages within 30 days from the time when the damage 
was sustained.

The appellant relies upon sec. 561 of its charter, as enacted by 
the Act 1916 (Que.) ch. 43, sec. 11, which reads as follows:—

“Every action, suit or claim against the city for damages is 
prescribed by 6 months, counting from the day when the right 
of action arose, any article or provision of the Civil Code to the 
contrary notwithstanding. But no such action, suit or claim 
can be instituted unless a notice containing the particulars of 
such claim and the address of the domicile of the claimant, lie 
previously given to the said city within 30 days from the date 
on which the cause of the damage happened, and no such action 
or suit can be taken before the expiration of 30 days from the 
date of such notice.

The failure to give the above notice shall not deprive the claim­
ants of their right of action, if they prove that they were pre­
vented from giving such notice by irresistible force or for other 
reasons deemed valid by the Judge or the Court, subject to the 
Act 29 Viet., ch. 57, sec. 36, par. 35.”

The appellant draws our attention to the fact that the English 
version of this section, instead of the words “à compter du jour 
où s’est produit le fait dommageable”, says:—“Counting from 
the day when the right of action arose”; and in place of the 
words of the French version concerning notice of action:— 
“Dans les trente jours à compter de celui où le fait dommageahl.'
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est arrivé ’ ’, we read in the Engl ish version :—“Within thirty 
days from the date on which the cause of the damage happened.”

Before the Act 1916 (Que.) eh. 43, see. 561, or rather sec. 8 of 
the Act 1892 (Que.) eh. 50 (which is the source of sec. 561), as 
it reads in the Act 1907 (Que.) eh. 62, sec. 45, said, in its French 
version, speaking of the notice of action :—“Dans les trente jours 
à compter de celui où l’accident est arrivé”; and in the English 
version :—“Within thirty days from the date on which the acci­
dent happened.”

The principal change relied upon is the replacement of the 
word “accident” by the phrase “fait dommageable”.

This latter expression is, undoubtedly, more general and would 
probably include—but for the purposes of this case it is not neces­
sary to decide the point definitely—a cause of damages which 
might be distinguished from a pure accident.

However, without wasting time on distinctions, though they 
may be of great theoretical interest, between the cause of an 
obligation generally speaking and tlje conditions required in 
order to give rise to a responsibility imposed by law, 1 would 
say—and this is sufficient for the purposes of the case—that the 
law which imposes the obligation with which we are here con­
cerned, viz., the Act 1853 (Can.) ch. 233, did not establish a short 
prescription having the effect of extinguishing the legal obliga­
tion which it created, and does not require that notice of action 
be given.

It would be absurd to apply to an action such as respondent’s 
a prescription of 6 months counting from the day when the dam­
age was caused, for the right of action does not accrue until 6 
months have elapsed since the damage was caused, unless the 
City of Quebec has provided by a special assessment for defraying 
the expenses necessary in order to indemnify the owner. If the 
appellant is correct, the right of action would accrue at the very 
moment when the delay for prescription expired, and the right 
of action would be still-born. That is sufficient to dispose of the 
plea of prescription.

As for the notice of action, it might be said—and this would 
be a very strong argument—that if sec. 561 of the charter of 
Quebec does not apply to a claim like the respondent’s to de­
termine the period of prescription, it should not he applied in 
order to deny the right of action by reason of default to give 
notice. Furthermore, the very terms of art. 561 show that it 
does not apply to the legal obligation created by the Act 1853 
(Can.) ch. 233, for notice of action must be given within 30 days 
after the event, and at that time the respondent’s right of action, 
based en the city’s failure to make an assessment within 6 months
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Que. from the time when the damage was caused, had not yet accrued. 
Again, according to sec. 561, absolute nullity does not take place, 
but the Court may, according to the second paragraph of that 
article, hold that notice was not indispensable in the circum­
stances.

However, the Act 1853 (Can.) ch. 233, does not require notice 
of action, and that is more than sufficient for the purposes of the 
present case. Of course, that implies that the injured owner ad­
vised the city of the amount of damages he had sustained, be­
cause it was for the council to raise that amount by special as­
sessment, and such advice was given in the present case. Hut 
there is no question of a notice of action within any delay what­
soever.

I, therefore, reach the conclusion that the defence of prescrip­
tion and default of notice of action is unfounded.

The appellant has not proved the implied abrogation of the 
Act 1853 (Can.) ch. 233, as a consequence of subsequent dis­
positions incompatible with that Act, and there has been no 
express abrogation.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Appeal dismissed.

FREEDMAN v. HART: Re BAITTLE.
Quebec Superior Court in Bankruptcy, Panneton, J. June 19, 1923. 

Bankruptcy ($111—15)—Rights of trustee—Actions—Judgment—In­
terested party—Collateral security.

A trustee in bankruptcy has a sufficient interest in an action com­
menced by the insolvent in which, though before insolvency the judg­
ment, was transferred ns collateral security, a judgment has been 
obtained but from which an appeal was taken to continue the action 
in the interest of the estate.

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135, 56 D.L.R. 104, 59 D.L.R. 1.]

Petition by trustee to resume action commenced by insolvent. 
Granted.

Bercovitch, Colder d’ Gardner, for petitioners.
L. E. Bernard, K.C., for contestant.
Panneton, J. :—The petitioner in his quality presented a 

petition praying that he be permitted to resume the instance in 
case bearing No. 3717 of the records of the Superior Court, 
wherein C. J. Baittle, the insolvent, is plaintiff and Joseph 
Freedman is defendant.

He alleges that on November 24, 1920, the said Baittle made 
an assignment of his property for the benefit of his creditors, the 
petitioner who was appointed trustee, and that a resolution of 
inspectors has been passed, authorising him to resume said in­
stance—
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The said Joseph Freedman contests the petition alleging that 
in the said case No. 3717, the plaintiff insolvent has obtained 
judgment against him for $500 on January 15, 1920 and that on 
January 22, 1920, he appealed from that judgment to the Court 
of Review where the said suit is still pending.

He further alleges that on February 22, 1922, the said Court 
of Review whose name was changed in the Court of Appeal, 
rendered a judgment ordering the suspension of proceedings in 
that case until the party interested be authorised to resume the 
instance and further he alleges that the present petitioner has 
no interest in the said cause, and cannot demand to resume the 
instance.

The reason given why the petitioner has no interest, is because 
before the assignment made by the insolvent, this last had trans­
ferred his claim and the said judgment to Pollock Co., Ltd., 
which last company itself transferred said claim to some other 
persons, and that at the time of the said assignment, that claim 
was no more a part of the assets of the insolvent and that the 
petitioner was never seized of the said claim that the resolution 
of inspectors referred to in said petition was passed erroneously 
and fraudulently.

The contestant concludes that the said resolution of the inspec­
tors be declared illegal and null and that the petition on reprise 
d’instance be rejected with costs. Issue was joined on said con­
testation.

The following facts are proved :—Baittle the plaintiff trans­
ferred his claim against Freedman the contestant to Pollock Co., 
Ltd., as collateral security for a debt which he was owing the 
company ; this security was given on October 23, 1920.

On November 24, Baittle made his assignment to petitioner.
On May 2,1921, Pollock Co., Ltd., transferred said claim to one 

Isaacs; on May 12, 1921, both transfers were signified to 
Freedman.

On January 28, 1922, motion was made by the defendant 
Freedman, in said case, No. 3717, before the Court of Appeal, 
praying for the suspension of proceeding in that case until a 
party interested specially the said Hart, petitioner, has resumed 
the instance, and has given defendant, the information necessary 
to know with whom the defendant was pleading.

On February 22, 1922, the judgment was rendered on that 
motion ordering the suspension of proceedings until the trustee 
respondent has taken up the instance, which he is demanding 
to do.

The assignment of property made by said Baittle to petitioner 
is admitted.
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Under art. 77 of the Code of Civil Procedure, any person may 
bring an action at law, who is interested therein, even if such 
interest be merely eventual.

By sec. 10 of the Bankruptcy Act, ch. 36, 1919, an assign­
ment vests in the trustee all the property of the assignor at the 
time of the assignment, excepting such as is held by the assignor 
in trust for any other person and excepting such property as is 
exempt from seizure.

Petitioner is interested in having said judgment in favour of 
Baittle the insolvent maintained by the Court of Appeal, as the 
transfer was made merely as collateral security for the payment 
of a debt, and in addition is interested in having his said judg­
ment confirmed as a reversal of the same would entail a respon­
sibility for the costs of the attorneys of both parties.

Petitioner’s quality as trustee being admitted, and petitioner 
having an interest in the instance which lie has to resume; the 
Court has to consider whether the fact of the claim was trans­
ferred, but the transfer not signified to the defendant before the 
assignment, can be urged against the petitioner; the argument 
held against the petitioner in support of that pretension does 
not seem to distinguish between the existence of an instance and 
the merit of the instance itself.

The insolvency of plaintiff Baittle did not put an end to the 
instance; nor the transfer of plaintiff’s claim not signified be­
fore the insolvency, but these facts are subsequent to the insti­
tution of the action which, if sufficient to repel an action, must 
be urged by a plea of puis darein continuance after the instance 
has been taken up by the petitioner. 3 Garsonnet, pages 154 
and 155:—“And the taking up of an instance which has been 
extinguished by the death of one of the parties is only valid if 
some subsidiary question remains to be decided, such as an ad­
judication as to costs.”

“The right to take up the instance may be contested in two 
cases: (1) If the petitioner has not the necessary quality; (2) 
if the action has been so completely extinguished as to leave no 
question open for adjudication.”

Pigeau, Coram. vol. 1, p. 61,4:—“The party summoned in re­
prise d’instance may contest: (1) On the ground of lack of 
quality; (2) if the case is extinguished by prescription or some 
other cause.”

Rousseau: Laisné:—“The instance cannot be taken up if the 
action on which it is based is extinguished by prescription in the 
interval, or if prescription has been asked for.”

Glasson, p. 12:—“Contestation: That he is not the heir, that
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the action is extinguished by prescription, desistment, transac­
tion."

All these authorities shew that if petitioner by reprise d'in­
stance has the quality which in this case is admitted, the other 
reasons which could he urged against the petition are such as to 
establish, that the instance is extinguished, but the merit of the 
ease has nothing to do on the issue raised on the petition.

The insolvency of plaintiff in any case does not destroy the 
instance but leaves it to be taken by any body interested.

Considering that petitioner is interested in continuing said 
instance, the said instance being stopped by judgment of the 
Court until the trustee has taken it up and said judgment being 
granted, upon the demand of the defendant.

The Court grants the said petition, and allows petitioner to 
resume the instance in this case, and seeing that the costs of the 
reprise d’instance must be borne by the reprenant d'instance, 
and that the contestation is dismissed mainly for reasons not ar­
gued before this Court each party will pay its own costs.

Petition granted.

JEFFREY v. AAGAARD.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, Cameron, Fullerton, Dennistoun

and Prcndergast, JJ.A. July 10, 1022.
Fraudulent conveyances ($VI—30)—Creditors—Withdrawal of as­

sets FROM REACH OF—FRAUD—VALIDITY—STATUTE 13 ELI*. CH. 45 
—Construction.

The voluntary withdrawal of all available assets from the reach of 
creditors shortly before engaging in a hazardous business, the effect of 
which is to delay and defraud such creditors makes it incumbent upon 
the Courts to infer statutory fraud ami such transaction will be set 
aside as being within the statute 13 Eliz. 1570 (Imp.) eh. 5.

Appeal by defendant from the trial judgment in an action to 
set aside certain conveyances as being fraudulent and void as 
against creditors. Affirmed.

C. Blake, for appellant.
G. R. Coldwell, K.C., for respondent.
Perdue, C.J.M. concurred in dismissing appeal.
Cameron, J.A. :—This is a creditor’s action to set aside certain 

transfers of real estate and hills of sale of personal property in 
the City of Brandon, as being fraudulent and void as against 
the plaintiffs and other creditors of the defendant, Walter 
Aagaard. The transfers and bills of sale purported, through the 
medium of a trustee, to vest the property in question in Louisa 
W. Aagaard, the wife of Walter Aagaard. Both the defendants 
filed statements of defence denying, inter alia, that the said 
transfers and bills of sale were made for the purpose of defeating,
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Man. delaying or defrauding the plaintiffs. Curran, J., before whom 
the action was tried, gave judgment for the plaintiffs in the 

* terms of the relief asked for in their statement of claim and the 
Jeffrey defendants now appeal from that judgment.
Aaoaabu *n hi* reasons for judgment the trial Judge fully and carefully

___' reviews the facts as brought out in the evidence and his findings
DcnnMuun. thereon were not in any material particular effectively question­

ed or indeed really challenged except that in which he declines 
to impute to Walter Aagaard a fraudulent intention in volun­
tarily settling the property in question on his wife. He bases his 
decision on his findings that Walter Aagaard, in so voluntarily 
settling all his property on his wife and in being in trade in 
which the incurring of debts in the ordinary course of business 
was inevitable, was taking away the only property that would 
be available for creditors because the partnership had no tangible 
assets to which creditors could resort. He cites Mackay v. 
Douylas (1872), L.R. 14 Eq. 106, 41 L.J. (Ch.) 639; Buckland 
v. Iiose (1859), 7 Or. 440; Ware v. Gardner (1869), L.R. 7 Eq. 
317, 38 L.J. (Ch.) 348; and Sun Life Ass’ce Co. v. Elliott 
(1900), 31 Can. S.C.R. 91, and held the conveyances in question 
came within these authorities. That is to say, although no fraud­
ulent intent was, in his opinion, established, the effect of the con­
veyances was to bring them within the statute 13 Eliz. Looking 
at the transactions from that point of view, I think Curran, J. 
was wholly justified in his conclusion. The true test in such 
cases is as stated in Kerr on Fraud and Mistake, 5th ed. at pp. 
219-220.

“Whether from all the circumstances the Court can infer that 
the settlement was made with the intent, actual or constructive, of 
delaying or defeating existing or subsequent creditors.”

Aside from that consideration, which is sufficient to dispose 
of this appeal, I am strongly inclined to the view that the intent 
to defeat or defraud was established on the evidence. Armour, 
C.J., in Hire v. Rice (1899), 31 O.R. 59,at p. 69; affirmed (1900), 
27 A.R. (Ont.) 121, made this pregnant remark:—

“If we are to believe implicitly what the parties to a fraud­
ulent transaction swear in regard to it, any further attempt to set 
aside fraudulent transactions might as well be abandoned.”

I have read Dennistoun, J.A.’s, judgment and agreed with it. 
In my opinion, the appeal must be dismissed with costs.

Fullerton, J.A. :—For the reasons given by the trial Judge, 
with which 1 entirely agree, I would dismiss this appeal with 
costs.

Dennistoun, J.A.:—This is an appeal from Curran, J., who 
gave judgment in favour of the plaintiff, setting aside voluntary
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conveyances by the defendant Walter Aagaard to his wife, as 
void under 13 Eliz., 1570 (Imp.) ch. 5. The property transfer­
red was valued by the instruments of transfer at $47,000—$32,- 
000 for land and $15,000 for chattels, and there can be no ques­
tion as to the voluntary character of these conveyances.

In my view the trial Judge has rightly disposed of the case 
and I would dismiss this appeal.

13 Eliz. ch. 5, provides, in effect, that all conveyances and dis­
positions of property, real or personal, made with the intention 
of delaying, hindering, or defrauding creditors, shall be null and 
void as against them, their heirs and assigns, and in considering 
whether a conveyance is void under the statute the intent or pur­
pose of the donor in making the gift is alone to be regarded.

“The question of intent to delay, hinder, or defraud creditors 
is always one of fact, which the Court has to decide on the merits 
of each particular case after taking all the circumstances sur­
rounding the making of the alienation into account.”

See 15 Hals., p. 83, para. 172, Davies v. Damly (1920), 54 
D.L.R. 134, at p. 138, 30 Man. L.R. 306.

In Ex parte Mercer; lie Wise (1886), 17 Q.R.I). 290, at p. 292, 
55 L.J. (Q.B.) 558, Cave, J. says:—

“The question we have to decide is one of fact, whether this 
settlement was made with intent to defeat or delay creditors. 
There is no case which lays down that, when it is not the neces­
sary consequences of a settlement that creditors should be de­
frauded, the Court is obliged to come to the conclusion that the 
settlor intended to defraud them where it is satisfied he did not.”

And in the same ease at p. 298, Lord Esher, M.R., declares it to 
be a monstrous proposition that a tribunal should be bound to 
infer an intent to defeat and delay creditors by reason of certain 
acts of the bankrupt, when other circumstances make one believe 
that the bankrupt did not intend anything of the kind, and to 
find that he did, is to find that as a fact which one really believes 
to be untrue.

In Kerr on Fraud and Mistake, at p. 215, we find the following 
summary of eases in which it was held that in the absence of 
proof of an actual and express intent to defeat creditors, it is 
enough if the facts are such as to show that the settlement would 
necessarily have that effect :—

“If at the date of the settlement the person making the settle­
ment was not in a position actually to pay creditors, the law' will 
infer that he intended by making the voluntary settlement to 
defeat and delay them. Again the same inference will be made 
by the law, if after deducting the property which is the subject 
of the settlement, sufficient assets are not left for the payment of 
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the settlor’s debts. But a bona fide settlement by a person having 
ample means outside the settlement to pay present debts is not 
void because afterwards the effect proves to be to defeat future 
creditors. And the mere fact that a debt exists which existed at 
the date of the settlement will not make a deed fraudulent. But 
where the intention to defraud is manifest, and no other purpose 
appears, this is sufficient to bring the case within the statute and 
to override all circumstances whatever.”

Ke Holland; Gregg v. Holland, \ 1902 ] 2 Ch. 360, 71 L.J. (Ch.) 
518; Freeman v. Pope (1870), L.R. 5 Ch. App. 538, 39 L.J. 
(Ch.) 689; He Lane-Fox; Ex parte Gimblett, [1900] 2 Q.B. 508, 
69 L.J. (Q.B.) 722.

I need make only a brief reference to the history leading up 
to the case at bar, for that has been fully dealt with by the trial 
Judge. Aagaard’s restaurant began as a small undertaking in 
1903. The father, the mother and the sons, working together, 
made it prosperous, so that in 1911, the sons having grown to 
manhood, it was decided to leave them in charge of the business, 
while the father and mother retired to Minneapolis, where they 
have since resided. A partnership agreement was entered into 
between the father and two sons—but one son only—Teimy W. 
Aagaard—took an active part in the business, the other son ap­
pears to have dropped out by mutual consent.

The father during the many years he was in control of the 
business made it a rule to pay cash for all supplies purchased. 
He never permitted any accounts to remain unpaid. If a 
tradesman did not render his bill with delivery of the goods, 
he was notified to do so, or to expect no more orders. These 
prudent tactics aided by the united and industrious efforts of 
the whole family made the business a success.

In 1911 the withdrawal of the father, mother and the son 
Walter from participation in the business threw the whole bur­
den upon the son Tenny. This meant the hiring of others to do 
the work; moreover, the partnership agreement called for the 
payment of $250 per month by the firm to the father, for the use 
of the chattel equipment, all of which he retained as his personal 
property. It never became an asset of the partnership. The 
burden assumed by the son Tenny was so heavy that he imme­
diately abandoned his father’s successful business methods, and 
instead of paying cash, he arranged for monthly credits ; and 
applied to the Bank of Hamilton for accommodation amounting 
to $2,500. The monthly statements which according to the terms 
of the partnership agreement were to be regularly sent to the 
father, were never sent. The father made a yearly visit to Bran­
don in 1911, 1912, 1913, to attend the fair, and undoubtedly as-
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contained how things were going. He must have been seriously 
alarmed. It was his duty as a partner to know what was going 
on, and he admits that he knew in 1912 that the cash system had 
been abandoned. He admits he never got any profits from the 
business, and never inquired if there were any. He was draw­
ing his rent, and was satisfied with that. On May 31, 1913, the 
first statement of the partnership business was issued. It showed 
that Tenny had incurred debts amounting to $5.061.81 on trade 
accounts, wages $602.56, taxes $59.37, meal tickets outstanding 
$349.95, against which there were no bad debts, and that all 
supplies on hand could l»e readily sold. Mr. Cold well argues 
forcibly that this statement shows bankruptcy in May, 1913, 
and to my mind it was sufficient to make the father apprehensive 
of financial difficulties so soon as he saw it. He lost little time 
in taking action, and in November, 1913, by transfer and bill of 
sale, he conveyed to his wife all his real property in Brandon, 
and all the chattels and equipment contained tin Aagaard’s res­
taurant,—which included, as he put it in his evidence, everything 
he had in the world of any value. The conveyances to his wife 
were made to an intermediary who immediately conveyed to 
her.

In 1914 and 1915, the business revived owing to war conditions 
and the military camps in the neighbourhood of Brandon, but in 
1917 business was so bad that more money was required, and 
Tenny went to Minneapolis to arrange for assistance from his 
mother, to enable him to carry on.

Counsel argues that the business was going behind at the rate 
of about $3,000 per year. In 1920 when the final crash came, 
there were liabilities of $22,430.39 with assets amounting to 
$845.45. A perusal of the whole case leads to the conclusion that 
this hopeless position was reached by a gradual process of de­
cline, dating from 1911 when the young son was placed in 
charge, and left to struggle with overhead charges which were 
more than the business was able to sustain.

I have no doubt the father knew when he conveyed away “all 
that he had in the world” that financial ruin was threatening 
the business, and it is clear that the subsequent bankruptcy was 
the necessary result of what he did. The trial Judge hesitated 
to find an intent to delay or defeat creditors, but having had the 
advantage of a careful examination of the printed record and the 
documents filed, 1 draw the inference that the defendant Walter 
Aagaard did convey his property with the intent prohibited by 
13 Eliz.

The creditors who sue in this action base their claim on debts 
incurred so late as 1920, some seven years after the conveyances
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were made, but the words of the statute as elucidated by many 
Judges are wide enough to give them a right of action.

Mackay v. Douglas, L.R. 14 Eq. 106, 41 L.J. Ch. 539, is an 
authority which manifestly applies. The headnote is as follows: 
—(See the Equity Report) :

“A voluntary settlement whereby the settlor takes the bulk 
of his property out of reach of his creditors, shortly before en­
gaging in trade of a hazardous character, may be set aside in a 
suit on behalf of creditors who became such after the settlement, 
though there are no creditors whose debts arose before the date 
of the settlement, and though when the settlement was made it 
was doubtful whether the arrangements under which the settlor 
was to engage in the business would take effect.

In order to set aside a voluntary settlement as being void 
against creditors, it is not necessary to shew that the settlor 
contemplated becoming actually indebted. It is sufficient if he 
contemplated a state of things which might result in bankruptcy 
or insolvency.”

Malins, V.C., says at p. 120 (L.R. 14 Eq.) :—
“I dare say Mr. Douglas had no fraudulent intention, accord­

ing to his view, in making the settlement, and that he thought 
it a prudent thing to protect his wife and children. But in 
doing that he has, within the meaning of this statute, committed 
a fraudulent act, because going into trade, he was taking away 
the only property which would be available for his creditors.”

And at p. 122:—
‘‘In the present ease Mr. Douglas made the settlement, as I am 

perfectly satisfied, with the view that he was going into partner­
ship in which he might become bankrupt or insolvent and utterly 
ruined ; and therefore he did it with the view that he might be 
indebted, and the settlement in my opinion was fraudulent and 
void against creditors. The conclusion which I arrive at pro­
ceeds upon the broad ground that a man who contemplates going 
into trade cannot on the eve of doing so take the bulk of his 
property out of the reach of those who may become his creditors 
in his trading operations.”

The defendant Aagaard was actually engaged in trading opera­
tions when he made this settlement, so that the words of the Vice- 
Chancellor apply with greater force than in the case of Douglas, 
who was only contemplating business relations.

The restaurant business is a hazardous business inasmuch as it 
depends very largely upon the character of the management. 
Aagaard’s business in Brandon after 1911 was of a hazardous 
character, for the skilled managers had been withdrawn, and a
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young son installed to carry a load which was altogether too 
heavy for the business to bear.

Aagaard, Sr, knew this, and took what he eoneeived to he 
prudent measures to secure his wife against the losses which 
he anticipated correctly were sooner or later to occur.

I refer to McGuire v. Ottawa Wine Vaults Co. (1913), 13 
D.L.R. 81, 48 Can. S.C.R. 44; Sun Life Ass’ce of Canada v. 
Elliott (1900), 31 Can. S.C.R. 91; Ware v. Gardner, L.R. 9 Eq. 
317, 38 L.J. (Ch.) 348.

In my view these conveyances should be set aside upon two 
grounds: (1) The withdrawal of all available assets from the 
reach of creditors, the necessary effect of which was to delay and 
defraud them, makes it incumbent upon the Courts to infer sta­
tutory fraud; (2) The defendant Walter Aagaard intended to 
benefit his wife and to save what he could from the disaster which 
he saw approaching as early as 1913. He had the claims of 
future creditors in mind and his intent to defeat them is clearly 
established.

I would dismiss this appeal with costs.
Phendeboast, J.A., concurred in dismissing appeal.

Appeal dismissed.

UNITED STATEN FIDELITY C'o. v. THE KING.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., Idington, Duff, Anglin, Brodeur 

and Mignault, JJ. Mag 31, 1992.
Taxes ($ V A—180)—Succession duties—Appointment op Commissioner

TO ENQUIRE INTO AMOUNT—VALUATION OF EXECUTOR TAKEN—VoWEIt
of Court to interfere with—Succession Duty Act, R.8.B.C.
1011, ch. 217, secs. 23-33.

The Finance Minister of British Columbia being dissatisfied 
with the valuation of property given by the executor for succes­
sion duty purposes appointed a Commissioner to enquire into the 
value. The Commissioner made a valuation somewhat lower than 
that of the executor. The Auditor-General then fixed the amount 
of succession duty on the valuation given by the executor with­
out any protest on his part, and the defendant became a surety 
for the payment of the amount so fixed under sec. 23 of the 
Succession Duty Act, R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 217. In an action upon 
the bond, the Court held that the property had been very greatly 
over-valued, but that the only Jurisdiction of the Court to inter­
fere with the values as fixed, was by the Court of Appeal under 
sec. 33 of the Statute, when there was an appeal from the report 
of the Commissioner, and in this ease there had been none. That 
the succession duty was payable, notwithstanding that neither the 
deceased nor her executor was the registered owner of the legal 
estate. The executor being the owner of all the equity and the 
only person entitled to be registered as owner of the legal estate, 
and having full control of the property It being unnecessary to 
decide whether his dealing with the property was in his capacity 
of executor or devisee. The property had “come into his hands" 
within the meaning of the bond, having failed to pay the amount 
of the succession duty, the surety was liable.

Appeal by defendant from the judgment of the British Col-
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umbia Court of Appeal (1922), 63 D.L.R. 469, which affirmed the 
trial judgment (1921), 60 D.L.R. 372, in an action on a bond 
given to secure payment to the Crown of succession duties, the 
appellant being surety for the executor. Affirmed by an equally 
divided Court.

//. B. Robertson, K.C., and Campbell, for appellant.
K. Lafleur, K.C., for respondent.
Davies, C.J. :—I am to dismiss this appeal for the reasons 

stated by Galliher, J., when delivering the judgment of the 
Court of Appeal (1922) 63 D.L.R. 469, and with which reasons 
I fully concur.

Idington, J. :—This is an action brought by the respondent 
under sec. 42 of the Succession Duty Act R.S.B.C. 1911, eh. 217, 
upon a bond given July 29, 1912, by the defendant, Quagliotti, 
the executor and sole devisee of the estate of his late wife, and 
the appellant as his surety for the payment to the respondent of 
the succession duties under the said Act.

The bond was given by them in the penal sum of $88,575, and 
the condition thereof is as follows:—

“The condition of this obligation is such that if Lorenzo Jos­
eph Quagliotti, the executor of all the property of Petronilla 
Quagliotti, late of the City of Victoria, in the Province of British 
Columbia, deceased, who died on or about the 20th day of May, 
1913, do well and truly pay or cause to be paid to the Minister of 
Finance of the Province of British Columbia for the time being, 
representing Ilis Majesty the King in that behalf, any and all 
duty to which the property, estate and effects of the said Petron­
illa Quagliotti coming into the hands of the said Lorenzo Joseph 
Quagliotti may be found liable under the provisions of the Suc­
cession Duty Act, within 2 years from the date of the death of 
the said Petronilla Quagliotti, or such further time as may be 
given for payment thereof under the provisions of said Act, or 
such further time as he may be entitled to otherwise by law for 
the payment thereof, then this obligation shall be void and of no 
effect, otherwise the same to remain in full force and virtue.”

The said Quagliotti applied to the Supreme Court of British 
Columbia for a grant of letters of probate of the will of his said 
late wife, and, as required by the said Act and the Administration 
Act R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 4 and rules made thereunder, made the 
required affidavit estimating the value of the property of de­
ceased at the date of her death on May 29, 1913, at the sum of 
$886,000 as set forth in the statutory inventory annexed thereto.

That was referred by the Registrar of the Court to the Minister 
of Finance who duly authorised the Auditor General to deter­
mine the amount of the succession duty thereon.
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The duty of verifying same was assigned to one Burdick who 
reported thereupon a slightly less value than the said sum. And 
thereupon the Auditor General accepted the said valuation of 
Quagliotti and determined that the succession duties should be 
the sum of $44,287.50, and directed the said Registrar to collect 
the said sum as provided by sec. 23 of the Act, and sent him his 
consent to the issue of letters of probate.

The said Quagliotti not having the cash availed himself of 
the privilege given by sec. 23 and 24 of the said Succession Duty 
Act R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 217, allowing the authorities to lie satis­
fied by such a guarantee bond as was given as set forth above.

Thereupon, the probate of said will was granted as prayed 
for in consideration of the said bond having been given, but no 
payment having been made of the Succession Duty, as above de­
termined to be the proper amount; hence this action.

The several defences set up may be briefly condensed to the 
one that the property had fallen in value and, in fact never had 
the extreme value the executor had set up, and the Auditor Gen­
eral has assented to, and, no doubt with the knowledge of the ap­
pellant.

The trial Judge, Gregory, held (1921), 60 D.L.R. 372, and I 
think rightly, that the appellant is clearly liable upon its bond, 
and this has been upheld by the Court of Appeal.

A great deal of unnecessary confusion has been brought into 
the case both here and in the Courts below by the appellant’s 
contentions, first, that the amount had not been finally deter­
mined by what had transpired as related above, because there 
was no commissioner appointed to determine same, and next, that 
the said Quagliotti was only executor and that it was only what 
came to his hands as such upon or in respect of which the appel­
lant is liable. In short, as the entire estate (except a trifling 
$000 of personalty) consisted of real estate, the appellant was 
not liable at all, according to that contention.

If we apply a little general knowledge of the world and the 
business therein, we must assume that the appellant was paid on 
the basis of the amount involved to join in this bond as guarantor, 
and not otherwise, and that it certainly did not intend to be 
taking the money paid it for doing nothing but writing out the 
bond and application therefor, which would be the case if its 
present contention that there never was any liability incurred be 
correct.

I hold that all parties concerned by their conduct towards 
each other, agreed that the amount determined by the Auditor 
General was to be and consequently remained the correct amount 
of succession duty as intended by the Act that it should, unies»
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and until otherwise determined by one or other proeeeding which 
the Act furnishes as a means of substituting another amount.

In the first place, the Crown is sometimes imposed upon by a 
fraudulent or mistaken estimate leading up to the consent of 
granting of probate.

There is given by sec. 29 et seq of the Succession Duty Act a 
means of rectifying this by appointment of a commissioner to 
inquire and proceed as directed under the Public Inquiries Act 
R.S.B.C. 1911, eh. 110, and the relevant sections of the Succes­
sion Duty Act R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 217.

No occasion has arisen therefor herein, hence all argument 
based thereon is, I respectfully submit, but idle confusion.

It matters not whether the party called in to assist the Auditor 
General is, in the ordinary speech of those concerned, called a 
commissioner or agent, or aught else. That furnishes no excuse 
for the pretension that the power of the Crown to so investigate 
must be invoked and exercised by it as a necessary preliminary 
to any liability upon the bond in question herein.
. The converse case of an executor or administrator having been 
misled into an over estimate, or having misunderstood the opera­
tion of the Act or of any other person concerned being errone­
ously held by the executor, or others concerned, the proper party 
to pay any part of the duty, is amply provided for by sec. 43 of 
the Act, R.S.B.C. 1911, eh. 217, which reads as follows:—

“43. A Judge of the Supreme Court shall also have jurisdic­
tion, upon motion or petition, to determine what property is 
liable to duty under this Act, the amount thereof and the time or 
times when the same is payable, and may himself or through any 
reference exercise any of the powers which by sec. 29 to 31, both 
inclusive, of this Act are conferred upon any officer or person.”

This never was invoked by the parties concerned herein and 
though it was the proper remedy if any unjustifiable mistake 
made as against the executor or his surety the appellant.

If there is anything in the pretension set up in the defence, 
that seems to have been the proper and only mode of relief, ami 
enables the resort to all the powers eonferred on the Crown as 
already pointed out when it has ground of yomplaint.

Independently of either of these proceedings, the respondent 
is enabled by sec. 42 to sue as has been done herein. And in the 
event of doing so the proceedings authorised by sees. 29 to 32 
seem to lie excluded from operation by the latter part of tin; 
section, which reads as follows :—

“42. Any sum payable under this Act shall lie recoverable 
with full costs of suit as a debt due to IIis Majesty from any 
person liable therefor by action in the Supreme Court, and it
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shall not in any case be necessary to take the proceedings author­
ised by secs. 29 to 32, both inclusive, of this Act.”

Unless and until the amount determined by the Auditor Gen­
eral and in compliance therewith made the condition upon which 
probate was granted had been displaced by either of the said 
proceedings provided by the Act, 1 hold it is conclusively es­
tablished:

The contention that the executor as such, or his surety, is not 
liable because the executor has as such, only to deal with person­
alty, seems wholly unfounded in face of the express language 
of the lamd and manifold provisions in the Administration Act 
R.S.B.C. 1911, eh. 4, extending his powers and duties beyond 
those originally devolving on him, and especially secs. 74 and 
75 cited in illustration of what he can do as pointed out by Mr. 
Lafleur in relation to the law created by the Succession Duty 
.Vt.

1 am, however, of the opinion that the plain meaning of the 
bond in question made it the duty of the executor to exercise 
his powers of devisee and meet thereby the obligations he en­
tered into and that the appellant surety could at any time have 
insisted upon his furnishing the means thereby to relieve it.

1 do not think it necessary or indeed quite proper to express 
herein any opinion as to the rights of the Crown to ass<*rt at any 
time and stage the lien declared by the Act.

If the contention made in that regard be correct, the right of 
subrogation given by the judgment appealed from can be at­
tempted by appellant thereunder.

I think this appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Duff, J. :—The bond is the bond required by the statute. The 

Registrar has no authority to exact and the applicant was under 
no obligation to give a security of wider limits than required by 
the law. 1 agree with the view of the Court of Appeal 63 D.L.R. 
469, that sec. 24 (amended 1915 (B.C.) ch. 58, sec. 7) in pre­
scribing that the bond shall be “conditioned for the due payment 
to His Majesty of any duty to which the property coming into 
the hands of the said applicant . . may be found liable” is 
imposing a condition which must be observed before the applica­
tion is to be granted and since that is the subject of this provision 
the words “coming into the hands of the . . . applicant” must 
be read as coming into his hands under the authority with which 
he is petitioning the Court to clothe him. The condition of the 
bond is that as regards property acquired by him under the 
authority vested in him by the probate of the letters of adminis­
tration, as the case may be, he is to be responsible for the payment 
of all duty to which that property is liable under the Act.
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The sole remaining question is that arising under the conten­
tion of the respondent that this property “came into the hands” 
of the executor within the meaning of the condition.

Now, it is quite clear that as executor he acquired no title to 
the testatrix ’ real estate. In that sense it did not come into his 
hands. But there is, it is contended, an authority conferred upon 
him—an authority (under sec. 37) to sell the real estate of 
the testatrix for the purpose of paying the duty to which the 
property itself is liable—and that circumstance, it is argued, is 
sufficient to bring that property within the category of property 
to which the condition applies.

The construction of sec. 37 of the Act is not, I think, free 
from doubt. But for the purpose of deciding the question now 
raised 1 shall assume that it has the scope ascribed to it by the 
judgment of the Court of Appeal, 63 D.L.R. 469. It does then, we 
may assume, give authority to the executor to sell for the pur­
pose mentioned. But it is surely a non-natural construction of 
the language to hold that property has “come into the hands of” 
an official or a person charged with the performance of duties 
merely because by statutory enactment he has been endowed with 
authority to sell for the purpose of paying a public charge upon 
it—an authority which has never been exercised. I think this 
construction is not an admissible one.

The appeal should be allowed and the action dismissed with 
costs.

Anglin, J. :—Having regard to the terms in which the statute 
R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 217, sec. 24, directs that the bond (to be 
furnished by the personal representative applying for probate 
or letters of administration) to secure payment of succession 
duties shall be conditioned, 1 agree with the interpretation put 
upon the bond of the appellant by the Court of Appeal 63 D.L.R. 
469, namely, that it secures payment of succession duties only 
upon property which came into the hands of its co-obliger in his 
quality as executor of his deceased wife. As real estate, the 
property in question came into the hands of Quagliotti not as 
executor but only as devisee of his wife. In interpreting the 
statute and the bond, in my opinion, the adventitious circum­
stance that Quagliotti was both executor and devisee must be 
put aside and the position of the executor and his surety con­
sidered as if the devise of the property had been to another 
person.

I incline to accept the contention of counsel for appellant that 
the words “the said duty” in sec. 37 of the statute refer to the 
duty which a personal representative or trustee is by sec. 36 re­
quired to deduct, i.e. duty on any estate, legacy or property in
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his “charge or trust” which is subject to duty. I am, moreover, 
with great respect, unable to assent to the view that because the 
power to sell conferred on the executor by sec. 37 (assuming 
its applicability) would empower him to sell so much of the real 
estate devised as would enable him to pay the duty on it, that 
property can be said to have come in (or into) his hands as 
executor within the meaning of the bond sued upon and sec. 24 
of the statute. lanson v. Clyde (1900), 81 O.R. 8T9, cited by 
Galliher, J., in 63 D.L.R. at 471, seems to me to be clearly dis­
tinguishable. Although only for the purpose of enabling the 
personal representative to sell it to pay the debts of the de cujus, 
the effect of the Ontario legislation there dealt with was to vest 
in him the title to the decedent’s real estate ad interim and to 
postpone the vesting of it in the devisees or next-of-kin until the 
right of personal representative thereto was determined. Section 
37 of the B. C. Succession Duty Act has no such effect.

There is no doubt force in the contention that secs. 23 and 24 
prescribe that the security to be given shall be “in a penal sum 
equal to ten per centum of the sworn value of the property of 
the deceased person” including real estate. Prima facie the 
object would seem to be to secure payment of succession duties 
on the real estate as well as on the personal property of the de­
cedent. But we are here dealing with the obligation of the 
executor and his surety and it is trite law that the surety is en­
titled to the benefit of the most favourable construction of its 
obligation which the instrument embodying it reasonably admits 
of. Section 24 of the statute and the terms of the bond itself, as 
already indicated, in my opinion, entitle the appellant to main­
tain that its obligation is restricted to the satisfaction of the 
respondent’s claim for unpaid succession duties in respect of such 
of the property of the de cujus as came into the hands of Quagli- 
otti in his capacity as executor of his deceased wife. The real 
estate devised to him did not come into his hands in that 
quality.

1 would, therefore, allow this appeal with costs here and in 
the Court of Appeal (63 D.L.R. 469) and would direct the entry 
of judgment dismissing the action with costs.

Brodeur, J. :—This is an appeal concerning a bond given 
under the provisions of sec. 23 of the Succession Duty Act 
R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 217, as security for the payment of succession 
duty.

Mrs. Quagliotti died in 1913, and by her will she gave all her 
real and personal estate to her husband and she appointed him 
her executor.

Having applied for letters of probate, Quagliotti filed an affl-
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davit of value and relationship required by the Succession Duty 
Act in which it is shewn that the succession was estimated at 
nearly a million dollars and was, with the exception of $500 of 
personal estate composed of lands situate in the City of Victoria.

This inventory was accepted by the Provincial authorities and 
Quagliotti gave bond of the United States Fidelity and Guar­
antee Co. as security for the payment of the Succession duty to 
which the property of the deceased might become liable.

The condition of the bond was that Quagliotti “the executor 
of all the property of Petronilla Quagliotti .... do well and 
truly pay . . . . to the Minister of Finance of the Province of 
British Columbia for the time being representing Ilis Majesty 
the King in that behalf any and all duty to which the property, 
estate and effects of the said Petronilla Quagliotti coming into 
the hands of Lorenzo Joseph Quagliotti may be found liable 
under the provisions of the Succession Duty Act.”

It is contended by the appellant company that the real estate 
never came into the hands of L. J. Quagliotti as executor, hut 
was in his hands as devisee.

The bond given was made according to the provisions of the 
Act. It is true that at first the bond describes Quagliotti as 
executor; but the condition is that payment be made of all duty 
to which the property, estate and effects of the deceased coming 
into the hands of her husband may be found liable. Whether 
this estate came into the hands of L.J. Quagliotti as executor or 
devisee docs not make any difference, because the intention of the 
Act is that the security should cover all succession duties to 
which the estate might be liable.

Besides, by sec. 37 of the Succession Duty Act it is formally 
enacted that an executor has the power to sell so much of the 
property of the deceased as will enable him to pay the duty, and 
by sec. 2 the word properly is defined as including real property 
of every description. Some similar powers are to be found in 
secs. 74 and 75 of the Administration Act R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 4, 
and show that the executors exercise authority with regard to 
both personal and real estate. If the executor Quagliotti had 
been only liable for succession duty on $500 for the personal 
estate, why should he and the appellant company give a bond 
for nearly $100,000?

The appellant also contended that the trial Judge (See judg­
ment of Gregory, J., 60 D.L.R. 372) should have revalued the 
assets.

The value of those assets was declared by the affidavit of value 
and relationship filed by the applicants for letters of probate. 
The Government authorities have been satisfied with such a value
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and the bond was given in conformity with the decision of the 
authorities. In these circumstances, there was virtually an 
agreement which dispenses us from reconsidering this question of 
value.

It is to be expected, however, that the Provincial authorities, 
when they come to consider the case, will not forget the sugges­
tion which has been made by the Court below as to the advis­
ability, in view of the peculiar circumstances of the case, of 
reducing the amount for which they obtained judgment.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Mignault, J. The action of the respondent is on a bond for 

succession duties given by the defendant, now appellant, and by 
one Lorenzo Joseph Quagliotti, who was also a defendant. The 
respondent sets up the bond and alleges that the succession duties 
have not been paid and asks for judgment for $44,287.50, being 
the succession duties due the Province of British Columbia on 
an estate of which Quagliotti was sole devisee and testamentary 
executor under the will of his wife, and which estate Quagliotti, 
in his affidavit accompanying his application for probate, valued 
at $885,750. Among other defences, the appellant alleges that 
the property never came into the hands of Quagliotti as executor 
of his wife’s estate, and further in the alternative, that the valua­
tion was made by Quagliotti by mistake and inadvertence, that 
the property was valueless or its value was grossly exaggerated, 
and asks that the amount of the duty be ascertained by the 
Court.

As briefly as possible, I will say that the Succession Duty Act 
of British Columbia requires that an applicant for probate shall 
make and file with the Registrar of the Court two duplicate 
original affidavits of value and relationship with inventories 
annexed. One of these originals is sent by the Registrar to the 
Minister of Finance at Victoria, who authorises the Auditor 
General to determine the amount of succession duty and forwards 
a statement of the same to the Registrar. The latter then re­
quires immediate payment of the amount due or security therefor 
to be given by bond. This bond, as stated by sec. 24 of the Act, 
is in a penal sum equal to 10% of the sworn value of the property 
of the deceased liable to succession duty ; it must be executed by 
the applicant or applicants and two or more sureties to be ap­
proved by the Registrar, and is conditioned for the due payment 
to His Majesty of any duty to which the property coming to the 
hands of the said applicant or applicants may be found liable.

The bond sued on is by its terms a promise to pay $88,575 
which is 10% of $885,750, the valuation mentioned in the affidavit 
and the condition of the obligation is that if Lorenzo Joseph
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Quagliotti, the executor of all the property of Petronilla Quagli- 
otti, pays to the Minister of Finance the duty to which the 
property, estate and effects of the said Petronilla Quagliotti 
coming to the hands of the said Lorenzo J. Quagliotti may be 
found liable under the provisions of the Succession Duty Act 
R.S.B.C. 1911, ch. 217, within 2 years from the death of Petron­
illa Quagliotti, or such further time as may be given, the obliga­
tion shall be void and of no effect, otherwise the same to remain 
in full force and virtue. This bond follows the statutory form.

Although the non-payment of succession duty by Quagliotti, 
by the terms of the bond, renders the sum of $88,575 payable, the 
claim of the Crown is for $44,287.50, the alleged amount of the 
succession duty, with interest, the respondent stating, in the 
endorsement on the writ, that the bond was entered into to secure 
the succession duty. This construction of the bond carries out 
the intention of the statute which, when the applicant for probate 
does not immediately pay the succession duty, requires this se­
curity as to all property coming to the hands of the applicant 
liable for the payment of the succession duty. I will, therefore, 
treat this bond as being security for the payment of the suc­
cession duty. This payment, as 1 have said, is all that the 
respondent demands.

The main ground of defence of the defendant is that Quagli­
otti, as executor of his wife’s estate, was the applicant for 
probate, that this bond was given by him and the appellant to 
secure the payment of any duty to which the property coming 
to the hands of the applicant, i.e. Quagliotti as executor might 
be found liable, that none of this property came to the hands of 
Quagliotti, as executor and, consequently, the condition of the 
bond was not fulfilled.

The Court of Appeal 63 D.L.R. 469, construed the liond as being 
conditioned on the property coming to the hands of Quagliotti as 
executor. The trial Judge 60 D.L.R. 372, found that Quagliotti, 
who was devisee of the property, which principally consists in 
real estate, took possession of the property, managed it and re­
ceived the profits. He was, however, not registered as owner. 
The question is whether, assuming, as I think we must assume, 
that the condition of the bond was that the property should come 
to the hands of Quagliotti qua executor, this possession by 
Quagliotti as devisee fulfils this condition.

Undoubtedly the appellant, being a surety under this l>ond, is 
entitled to the most favourable construction which can be placed 
on its bond. The construction which I adopt conforms strictly 
to sec. 24 of the statute which must govern the interpretation of 
the bond it requires from the applicant, and it is only when the
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property comes to the hands of the applicant that the amount of 
the bond becomes payable. Here it never came to the hands of 
the applicant, the executor, for, as tialliher, J., who rendered 
the judgment for the Court of Appeal, states 63 D.L.R. at p. 470: 
“Under our law in British Columbia, real estate did not at the 
time of Mrs. Quagliotti’s death, devolve upon the executor.”

The possession taken by Quagliotti, therefore, was and could 
not be as devisee under the will. It is true the executor and the 
devisee were in fact the same person but, in law, the situation 
is the same as if the devisee and the executor were different 
persons. And although, as Galliher, J., observes, the executor 
had the power to sell the lands of the testator to pay the succes­
sion duty, I do not think that the mere existence of this power 
would warrant us in saying that this property came to his hands, 
(liillilier, J., cites the case of law—U v. Clydi (1899), SI O.R. 679 
at p. 585, where Boyd, C., explains the meaning of the words “in 
the hands of the executors.” But the Chancellor was not con­
struing a statute like the one in question but merely discussing 
the effect of a judgment which had been rendered by the County 
Court against the property in the hands of the executors, and I 
do not feel bound by his definition.

I may add that were I convinced that any obligation arises 
under this bond, I would not grant the respondent the amount 
of succession duty demanded. The trial Judge 60 D.L.R. 372, 
found that the gross value of the property was $500,000, the 
valuation in the affidavit being the result of the boom in the real 
estate prevailing in 1913. The Judge, if the bond was obligatory 
on the appellant, should, in my opinion, have based the amount 
of the succession duty on this value and not on the value stated 
by obvious mistakes by Qaugliotti’s affidavit. Both Courts were 
under the erroneous impression that a commissioner was ap­
pointed under the Act to value this property and that Quagliotti 
had failed to appeal from his award. No commissioner, the 
parties admit, was ever named. Under all the circumstances, 1 
think the trial Judge could fix the valuation of the property, 
notwithstanding the valuation in the affidavit, and the least that 
van be said is that no higher valuation should have been con­
sidered than $500,000.

But, in my opinion, no obligation exists under the bond and 1 
would allow the appeal with costs throughout and dismiss the 
respondent’s action.
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Affirmed by an equally divided Court.
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MARSHALL v. HOUGHTON.
Manitoba King’s Bench, Dysart, J. July 90, 1999.

Judgment ((III A—220)—Assignment or lease of land in England— 
Covenant to indemnify in regard to dilapidations—Settlement
BY ASSIGNOR—ACTION AGAINST DEFENDANT IN MANITOBA ON IN­
IN DEM NITY clause—Judgment of English Court—Jurisdiction— 
Action on judgment in Manitoba Court—King’s Bench Act 
R.S.M. 1913, ch. 40, sec. 25 (1)—Construction.

An English Court has jurisdiction over the person of a British 
subject residing in Manitoba in an action on an assignment of a 
lease of certain premises in England, whereby the defendant 
covenanted to indemnify the assignor from liability in regard to 
dilapidations during the terms of the lease, the original cause of 
action being founded u|>on facts which made it a “local" action, 
and the judgment of the English Court being that of a competent 
Court is prima facie proof of the debt, in an action, on the judg­
ment in a Manitoba Court, notwithstanding that the defendant is by 
sec. 25 (1) of the King’s Bench Act, R.S.M. 1913, ch. 40», enabled 
to plead afresh to the original cause of action. Held also that the 
defendant was estopped from disputing the settlement made by his 
assignor with the lessor, and his own obligation to indemnify 
against it.

Action upon a foreign judgment and alternatively upon the 
original cause of action arising out of a lessee’s covenant to 
repair. Judgment for plaintiff.

F. J. Sutton, for plaintiff.
M. <}. Macneil, for defendant.
Dysart, J. :—The action upon which the judgment was ob­

tained was brought by the plaintiff, as original lessee of certain 
premises in England, to recover from the defendant as assignee 
of the term a sum of money which the plaintiff paid to the lessor 
in respect of certain dilapidations occurring during the tenancy 
of the defendant.

The premises in question are known as Sly ne’s Oaks, near 
London. In 1905 the plaintiff took a lessee of them for 14 years 
and occupied them until 1914, when he assigned the lease to the 
defendant, who thereupon entered into possession and so remain­
ed until the expiration of the lease in March, 1919.

The lease contained covenants to repair and to deliver up the 
premises at the expiration of the lease in a state of repair equally 
as good as, hut not necessarily better than, existed at the begin­
ning of the lease. In the assignment of the lease the defendant 
covenanted to perform all the lessee’s covenants as contained in 
the lease, and to indemnify the lessee, and keep him indemnified, 
from and against all actions, costs, expenses, claims and demands 
in respect of any past, present or future breach of said covenants.

Upon the expiration of the lease the defendant left England 
and returned to Canada. Shortly after the lessor’s agent, J. C. 
King, made an exhaustive inspection and survey of the premises 
and drew up a somewhat lengthy and minute list of dilapidations,
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the cost of which he estimated in a lump sum at £486. This list 
he sent to the defendant in Winnipeg with a request for payment. 
The defendant, however, repudiated the list as being “trumped 
up” and while admitting dilapidations to the extent of £75. re­
fused to pay the sum demanded. The lessor took no further 
notice of defendant but called upon the plaint iff for payment. 
The plaintiff instructed a Mr. Keough to check over the claim 
and settle it. Keough had made a careful survey of the premises 
for the plaintiff when the lease was entered into, and having 
preserved his original data was in an excellent position to com­
pare the state of repair of 1919 with that of 1905. As a result 
of his independent survey Keough found that King’s estimate 
was rather excessive but compromises the claim at £450. This 
sum the plaintiff demanded from the defendant under his cove­
nant of indemnity, but the defendant repeated substantially what 
he had told King and added some information to justify his 
refusal to pay what he termed an excessive and unreasonable 
demand. The plaintiff, thereupon, paid the sum and sued in 
England for the amount so paid with his incidental costs, reach­
ing a total of £467. The writ was served on the defendant while 
in the State of Minnesota, U.S.A., and judgment for default of 
appearance was duly entered for the amount of the claim, with 
costs of action, taxed at £23.4.0. Failing to get satisfaction of 
this judgment, plaintiff brought the present action in this Court.

The statement of claim herein sets out the English judgment 
and asks for payment thereof, amounting in Canadian currency 
to $2,385.62, with interest at 5% per annum from date of judg­
ment. In the alternative, it sets out the original lease with its 
essential covenants, the assignment of the lease from the plaintiff 
to the defendant, the covenant of the defendant to perform the 
terms of the lease and to indemnify the plaintiff, the breach of 
the covenant to repair, the various demands made for payment, 
and the payment by the plaintiff, and concludes by claiming the 
sum so paid, amounting in Canadian currency to $2,272.73, with 
interest at 5% per annum from time of payment. The statement 
of defence, besides sweeping denials, specifically denies jurisdic­
tion of English Courts to pronounce judgment in question; sets 
up that the surveys were unfair and the estimated cost grossly 
excessive; alleges that the defendant notified the plaintiff that 
the lessor’s default in supplying materials for fencing was res­
ponsible for the greater part of the alleged damage; and con­
cludes by claiming that if the plaintiff made payment he did so 
after notice, and voluntarily, and is therefore not entitled to 
indemnity. To this statement of defence, the plaintiff replies 
setting up estoppel.

21—68 D.L.B.



310 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Man.

Marshall
v.

Houghton. 

Dysart, J.

The first question to be determined, therefore, is whether the 
English Court had jurisdiction. If it had, the judgment is valid, 
and imposes upon the defendant such a duty or obligation to pay 
as will be recognized by all Courts. The jurisdiction in question 
here is not that over the subject-matter but over the person of 
the defendant. The plaintiff contends that the English Court 
had jurisdiction over the defendant because: (1) When the cause 
of action arose the defendant was resident in England; (2) 
When the action was commenced he was domiciled in England ; 
(3) When the judgment was pronounced he was a British sub­
ject. The defendant was born in England and still retains his 
domicile of origin in England. He is, of course, a British subject 
but has not resided in England since the expiration of the lease. 
The first ground of jurisdiction mentioned, however, was not 
pressed, and, in any case, is untenable. As to domicile, it is con­
ceded by all authoirties that residence—even temporary presence 
—in a country, gives the Courts of that country jurisdiction 
over the person, because his presence within the given territory 
entitles a man to the protection of the laws, and the use of the 
Courts, and co-relatively demands from him obedience to those 
laws and Courts. If domicile is the equivalent of residence or 
presence then domicile is a ground for jurisdiction because at 
common law the only ground of jurisdiction was personal service 
of the King’s writ effected upon defendant while personally pres­
ent in the realm.

There is no reported case in which our Courts have gone this 
length. While dicta is to be found in some of them—dicta in 
some instances of great weight—the most that can be said is that 
the question is still undecided. In the recent case of Gavin 
Gibson & Co. v. Gibson, [1913] 3 K.B. 379, 82 L.J. (K.B.) 1315, 
29 Times L.R. 665, the question is raised but the presiding Judge 
disposes of it by expressing his doubt. Writers of highest repute 
on international law either doubt such ground of jurisdiction or 
deny it: Dicey Conflict of Laws, 3rd ed., p. 401. From the best 
examination that I have been able to make of the authorities, 1 
feel that, as the terra was used in Roman law domicile is a ground 
for jurisdiction, but as it is used in common law it is not such a 
ground. In Roman law domicile means the place of a man’s 
residence, usually his permanent or chief residence, but it must be 
residence in fact. Under the law, a person may have more than 
one domicile. One domicile, however, he must have, and if he does 
not select one the law selects one for him and imposes it upon 
him, even against his wishes. This domicile is a fiction or idea of 
law. Of course it generally corresponds with his residence, but 
not necessarily so. Suppose, for instance, the defendant having



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 311

left his domicile of origin in England with a fixed intention never 
to return to England, but to establish a home elsewhere, still his 
English domicile remains with him until he acquires a new 
domicile of choice. For some purposes the retention of his domi­
cile of origin would create no hardship as for instance in matters 
affecting his status and situs of personal property. Rut why 
should he be bound to obey the laws and Courts of England in 
purely personal actions if he has left the country and done every­
thing that he humanly can do to free himself from that obe­
dience? Why should he, thereafter, be subject to English judg­
ments which were obtained against him on the ground of domi­
cile, and which by international law would be conclusive proof 
against him of the claims litigated. In my opinion, therefore, 
until the matter is otherwise settled by decisions, domicile is not 
and ought not to be accepted as a ground of jurisdiction.

Then, did the English Court have jurisdiction on the ground 
that the defendant was a British subject. The subjects of a 
Sovereign nation owe allegiance to the Sovereign of that nation, 
to its laws and its Courts, and are under duty to obey them. 
This is involved in the idea of nationality, and is universally 
recognised. But this doctrine does not and cannot apply to 
British subjects, because the allegiance which the British sub­
jects owe to their Sovereign, they owe to the Sovereign of the 
Empire ; while the allegiance which they owe to their laws and 
Courts, they owe to the laws and Courts of some particular 
Dominion. A Canadian owes allegiance to the King, but not the 
laws or Courts of England, any more than to the laws or the 
Courts of Australia. There is no English nationality as distinct 
from British nationality. This is discussed in the case of Gibson 
d: Co. v. Gibson, supra. The plaintiff, however, urges that in this 
case that because the defendant was served with process in the 
state of Minnesota, U.S.A., the Courts of that state would recog­
nize British nationality as giving the English Courts jurisdiction. 
And the plaintiff also suggests that it would be anomalous if our 
Canadian Courts refused to English judgments, a recognition ex­
tended to them by the Courts of the United States. This does not 
follow. I do not think that any Court in the United States would 
or should recognise British nationality as the sole ground of 
jurisdiction over the Courts either of England or of Canada.

There is further ground, however, of a different nature upon 
which jurisdiction might have been obtained over the defendant, 
that is, if the cause of action can be said to have arisen out of 
land in England in the sense of being “local.” Where the 
cause of action could not have occurred elsewhere than where it 
did occur, and where facts relied upon as the foundation of the
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action have necessarily connection with the particular place or 
locality, the action is said to be “local” as opposed to “tran­
sitory.” For general discussion on the distinction between these 
forms of action see Lord Cairns in 1 C.P.D., at p. 52, and Lord 
Herschell, L.C., [ 1893] A.C. at p. 618. The broad rule has been 
laid down in Whitaker v. Forbes (1876), 1 C.P.D. 51, 45 L.J. 
<C.P.) 140, 24 W.R. 241, that where the liability arises by rea­
son of privity of estate, the action though for debt is local ; but 
where it arises from privity of contract, even if relating to land, 
it is transitory: See Piggott on Foreign Judgments, p. 121.

By the assignment of the lease of Slyne’s Oaks, the defendant 
received more than a mere assignment of contract, he received 
a leasehold estate in the land, and when he took possession he was 
in privity of estate with the lessor and became obligated to dis­
charge all the terms of the lease, not merely to his assignor, but to 
the original lessor. This obligation is implied in the assignment, 
and is quite distinct from any covenants between the defendant 
and his immediate assignor: Moule v. Garrett (1872), L.R. 7 
Ex. 101, 41 L.J. (Ex.) 62, 20 W.R. 416, 26 L.T. 367. Actions for 
trespass to land have always been regarded as local: British 
South A frica Co. v. Companhia de Moçambique, [1893] A.C. 602, 
63 L.J. (Q.B.) 70, 69 L.T. 604; and so also an action on a rent 
charge, Whitaker v. Forbes, supra; and in an action for a breach 
of covenant to repair it has been held the action was based on a 
liability affecting land: Tassell v. Hallen, [1892] 1 Q.B. 321, 61 
L.J. (Q.B.) 159, 40 W.R. 221, 66 L.T. 196. In view of these au­
thorities, I feel constrained to hold that the original cause of 
action was founded upon facts which were so closely connected 
with Slyne’s Oaks that the action was “local”’ and that the 
English Court, therefore, had jurisdiction and was competent to 
deal with the matter.

What then is the effect in the Courts of this Province of that 
judgment pronounced by a competent foreign Court? Such a 
judgment is in general conclusive proof of the claim decided by 
it, but at any rate ought to be received as primâ-facie proof of 
the debt: Westlake on International Law, pp. 409-411. The 
obligation imposed by a judgment is in the nature of a contract 
of record in which the judgment debtor is presumed to have 
promised to pay the sum. Section 25 (1) of the King’s Bench 
Act, R.S.M., 1913, ch. 46, enables the defendant to plead afresh 
to the original cause of action, and the defendant contends that 
this leaves the question of onus exactly where it would be if judg­
ment had not been obtained. But, is this correct? Nothing like 
the provision of this section is to be found in any other jurisdic­
tion. The provision was apparently introduced to afford a sane
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tuary for debtors who cared to resort hither, by placing at their 
disposal, for the determination of their rights, the laws, Courts 
and juries of this Province. But does this right to have their 
claims litigated afresh in this jurisdiction deprive the plaintiff 
of all evidential value of the judgment obtained by him in a 
foreign jurisdiction on that original cause of action! In my 
opinion, it docs not. In this ease, the plaintiff might have plead­
ed the foreign judgment without setting up his alternative and 
allowed the defendant to plead the original cause of action, after 
which the plaintiff might have replied. That would be the logic­
al course. The plaintiff, however, in his statement of claim, has 
pleaded both the foreign judgment and the original cause of 
action. This removed the necessity of the defendant invoking 
R.S.M., 1913, ch. 46, sec. 25 (1). The situation, therefore, is 
that if the plaintiff at the trial after proving his foreign judg­
ment had rested his case, he would, without more, be entitled to 
judgment, unless defendant came forward and either disproved 
or overcame the strength of the pritnâ-facie case. While the 
general onus of proving his case is always on the plaintiff, there 
are times at certain stages of a trial when the duty of coming 
forward may be shifted to the defendant, and this is so after the 
plaintiff has established a primâ-facie case. This foreigp judg­
ment, therefore, having been once proved, casts upon the de­
fendant the onus of impeaching the judgment or breaking it 
down.

The question of onus is important in this case in two respects :
(1) As regards the right of the plaintiff to settle with the lessor;
(2) The reasonableness of the amount paid on that settlement. 
The second branch of this question involves peculiar difficulties, 
because, while the list of reparations has set out in detail the 
items of repair or damage, no corresponding items of cost are 
furnished, but the entire cost of repair is estimated at one figure. 
It would be difficult, therefore, to say how much reduction should 
be made from the aggregate cost by the elimination of any set of 
items of repair.

The further consideration of this troublesome problem, how­
ever, becomes unnecessary, in the view I take of the first branch 
of the question. In my opinion, the defendant is estopped from 
disputing the settlement and his own obligation to indemnify 
against it.

In coming to this conclusion, I have done so not without diffi­
culty. I have considered that it is more than probable that the 
plaintiff saw the letter the defendant wrote to King, and that 
his instructions to his agént Keough, to settle were given after 
notice of defendant’s attitude; that he obligated himself to pay
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the £450 before he communicated with the defendant ; that after 
learning from the defendant something of his side of the con­
troversy, he nevertheless paid the amount. Nor have I over­
looked the bargain between the plaintiff and the defendant at the 
time of the assignment whereby the defendant in consideration 
of some trifling sum undertook for the plaintiff to make all re­
pairs then necessary, which repairs were not ascertained and 
probably amounted to much more than was indicated to the 
defendant. I have kept in view the fact that the amount paid 
by the plaintiff was, in my opinion, upon the evidence furnished, 
greatly in excess of the amount that the lessor could have proved 
against the defendant.

As against these considerations, we have to weigh the facts 
that the plaintiff had a covenant of indemnity from the defendant 
and was under no obligation to wait the embarrassment of suit ; 
that he called upon the defendant and the duty was on the de­
fendant to step in between the plaintiff and the lessor. The de­
fences to the lessor’s claims were peculiarly within the knowledge 
of the defendant and the defendant should have come forward 
with them. His duty as indemnifier was to protect the plaintiff. 
He did not do so. In my opinion, he had defences that would 
have served for a complete answer to a very large portion of the 
claim, but he did not use them. The settlement made by the 
plaintiff, while perhaps hastily made and excessive, was, in my 
opinion, made in good faith, and the plaintiff ought not to suffer 
for it in the circumstances.

The defendant has not discharged the onus of impeaching or 
breaking down the judgment of the settlement.

Judgment will, therefore, be for the plaintiff for the amount 
expressed in Canadian money of the English judgment at the 
date of the judgment, with costs, including interest at the Eng­
lish rate of 4% per annum. The plaintiff will have costs of this 
action.

Judgment for plaintiff.

CROMBIE v. CANADIAN GOVERNMENT MERCHANT MARINE.
Exchequer Court of Canada, B. C. Admiraltff District, Martin, L.J.A.

August SI, 1981.
Seamen ($ 1—4)—Articles of agreement to serve on ship—Construc­

tion—Seaman unlawfully leaving ship—Recovery of wages.
The plaintiff signed articles agreeing to serve on board a certain 

ship “on a voyage from Halifax, N.S., to New York, U.S.A., thence to 
any port or ports between the limits of 75 degrees north and 65 degrees 
south latitude to and fro as required for a period not to exceed twelve 
months, final port of discharge to be in the Dominion of Canada. ’ ’ The 
couver, that being the first Canadian port touched at since leaving 
plaintiff contended that he was justified in leaving the vessel at Van-
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Canada at the beginning of the voyage. The Court held that under 
the articles the Master could fix the point in Canada at which the 
voyage was to terminate, and he having fixed Montreal, as that point 
and having taken on cargo for that point and sailed for there by way of 
Panama, where the ship arrived within the time, contemplated in the 
articles, the plaintiff was not justified in leaving the ship at Vancouver 
and was not entitled to the wages which he claimed.

Action by plaintiff against the defendant company for wages 
claimed to be owing under certain articles by which the plaintiff 
agreed to serve on defendant’s ship.

The facts of the case are fully set out in the judgment follow­
ing.*

J. Milton Price, for plaintiff.
E. C. Mayers and A. R. McLeod, for defendant.
Martin, L.J.A. :—According to the articles signed at Halifax, 

N.S., on February 2,1921, the plaintiff agreed to serve on board 
the S.S. “Canadian Carrier’’ .... on a voyage from 
Halifax, N.S., to New York, U.S.A., thence to any port or ports 
between the limits of 75 degrees north, and 65 degrees south 
latitude to and fro as required for a period not to exceed 12 
months. Final port of discharge to be in the Dominion of 
Canada.

The ship, which is registered at Montreal, sailed from Halifax 
on March 4, for New York, where she loaded part of her cargo 
for Callao, completing her cargo at Baltimore, and sailing on 
March 17 for Callao via the Panama Canal, arriving at Callao on 
April 2, where she discharged cargo and left for Iquique, (via 
Arica) arriving on 19th, where she loaded cargo for Honolulu, 
arriving there on May 15, where she discharged cargo, and took 
on cargo for Vancouver, arriving there on June 3, and discharged 
cargo ; left Vancouver on June 5, for Nanoosc Bay, V.I., loaded 
part of cargo there and returned to Vancouver on June 14, where 
she completed cargo for Montreal and sailed on 20th for Mon­
treal, via Panama, and arrived there on August 7 ,1921, when 
she finally discharged cargo and paid off her crew, which accord­
ing to the evidence of the Captain, was the final discharge and 
“termination” of the voyage.

The plaintiff was the boatswain and claimed the right to be 
paid off after the ship first reached Vancouver, though only about 
41/2 months of the 12 months’ time specified in the articles had 
expired, on the ground that the voyage was at an end there, that 
port being, he contended, the “final port of discharge” in Can­
ada, but after discussion his claim was eventually refused by the 
Master, upon instructions from his owners, and so the plaintiff 
left the ship against the Master’s orders before June 18, when she 
was on the point of sailing for Montreal.
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The main question is, was he right in his contention, and, 
therefore, entitled to the wages he claims! The answer depends 
upon the true construction of the articles applied to the partic­
ular facts and I have been referred to several authorities more 
or less applicable but, as might be expected, based upon circum­
stances more or less varying. It is difficult to apply to such a 
vast country as Canada, fronting upon two oceans thousands of 
miles apart, the separated coasts of which are most readily 
reached through a canal owned by another nation, some of the 
reasons upon which English decisions are based which apply to 
an island having relatively only a small and all-enveloping, ac­
cessible coast line. In Quinn v. Leathern, [1901] A.C. 495, at 506, 
70 L.J. (P.C.) 76, 50 W.R. 139, Halsbury, L.C., emphasized 
the point that decisions must be interpreted by the facts upon 
which they are pronounced, and in the very instructive recent 
case upon fixtures of Travis-Barker v. Reed (1921), 66 D.L.R. 
426, 17 Alta. L.R. 319, the Alberta Court of Appeal drew atten­
tion to the care that must be taken in ‘1 adopting the decisions of 
the English Courts on the question of fixtures in view of the very 
different conditions of this new country and the very different 
manners and methods of construction of buildings and the very 
different customs and habits of the people living here, especially 
their readiness to move from one place to another, and, the not 
infrequent removal even of large buildings, pointing out that 
what might be considered a very serious injury on the soil in 
England, might well be regarded here as quite trivial and 
negligible.” Per Beck, J. A., 66 D.L.R., at p. 435, and see also 
Stuart, J. A., at pp. 429, 431.

Considering these articles, then, upon the geographical and 
nautical facts before me, I am of opinion that the voyage con­
templated was a 12 months’ “tramp," one “to and fro" within 
certain latitudes as “required”, i.e., by the Master. The articles 
do not, in essentials, differ from those which were under consider­
ation in the Board of Trade v. Baxter, The Scandale, [1907] 
A.C. 373, 76 L.J. (P.) 147, 10 Asp. M.C. 525, which, when care­
fully examined, supports the defendant’s submission though in­
voked by the plaintiff in support of the view that the voyage end­
ed upon arrival at Vancouver, being the first Canadian port 
touched at since leaving Canada at the beginning of the voyage. 
But I am unable to see why the plaintiff was not under these 
articles called upon to go on to Montreal as “required” by the 
Master just as the fireman was called upon to go on to Cardiff, 
as required by the Master in the Scarsdale case ; indeed, this case 
is if anything a stronger one against the plaintiff because in the 
Scarsdale, after the cargo had been discharged at Southampton.
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the ship went on in ballast only to Cardiff as the loading port 
for the next cargo, whereas here the ship took on a cargo from 
Vancouver to Montreal, the Master fixing that point as the 
“termination” of the voyage, and the leaving of that discretion 
to the Master was declared to be legal in the Scarsdale case, 
supra. I refer particularly to the judgment of Lord Collins on 
that point, and cite his observations from [1907] A.C. at pp. 
384-5:—

“Now it is not disputed that the adventure contemplated by 
this agreement is properly described as a voyage (see per Bar- 
grave Dean, J., Vaughan Williams and Stirling, L.JJ.), though 
it covers many possible distinct subordinate adventures involv­
ing the discharging and receiving of cargoes at many different 
points ‘ trading in any rotation. ’ The maximum period, viz., 
one year, is named, and the places or parts of the world to which 
the voyage or engagement is not to extend are defined. Nor was 
exception taken to the provision giving discretion to the Master 
to name the port within home trade limits at which the voyage, 
treating that word as concerned with the transit and delivery 
of cargo only, was to end. How, then, was the suggested element 
of illegality introduced into the (\ (Mission? With the greatest 
deference to the eminent counsel ùo argued for the appellants, 
be it said, simply by begging the question. On the assumption 
that the voyage ended at the port where the last cargo was de­
livered, a provision that the Master might order the ship on to a 
fresh destination might involve the commencement of a new 
voyage and so sin against the statute ; but if the voyage did not 
end till the ship had reached her destination at the home port 
required by the Master, there is nothing upon which to found an 
implication of illegality. I agree with the contention of Mr. 
Hamilton, which was adopted by the Court of Appeal, that the 
voyage contemplated for the cargo need not be co-extensive with 
that contemplated for the ship, though it very often is. I think 
it is very much to be deprecated that the Court should be subtle 
to find implications of illegality having the effect of hampering 
freedom of contract in business matters where no express pro­
hibition can be found.”

And these observations have added force in favour of the de­
fendant in view of the geographical differences between Canada 
and England, already referred to.

Being of this opinion it is unnecessary to consider the other 
questions raised and, therefore, the action must be dismissed with 
costs, and it follows that the defendant is entitled to judgment 
upon the counterclaim, the small amount of which is not dis­
puted. Judgment accordingly.

Can.

Ex. Ct.

C ROM HIE

Canadian
Govern-

Mebchant
Marine.

Martin, L.J.A.



318 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Alta. 

Dlst. Ct.

BRUME AND MATURIE v. ROYAL BANK OP CANADA.
District Court of Peace River, Alberta, Tweedie, J. August IS, 19S8.

Injunction (f I I—72)—To restrain i.igai proceedings—Defences 
AVAILABLE IN ACTION—No SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES.

The Court will not issue an injunction to restrain a plaintiff from 
enforcing payment of a promissory note or from realising on security 
which plaintiffs had hypothecated with it at the time the note was 
given where there are no special circumstances which would make it 
inequitable to refuse to grant such injunction.

Contracts ({ IV F—370)—Loan—Repayment conditional on contin­
gency—Failure oy contingency within reasonable time—Ac­
tion to recover—Intention or parties—Construction or 
agreement.

Where the repayment of a loan is made contingent upon the happen­
ing of an event which may never occur, if it does not happen within a 
reasonable time the loan becomes due and payable after the expiration 
of such reasonable time unless it is very clear that the intention of the 
parties is that the liability is conditional only upon the happening of 
the particular event.

Action to restrain defendant from enforcing payment of a 
promissory note, and from realizing on security which was given 
at the time the note was made.

W. P. Dundon, for plaintiffs.
H. U. Ilyndman, for defendants.
Tweedie, J.:—This was an action brought hy the plaintiffs 

against the defendant to restrain the defendant pursuant to an 
agreement alleged to have been entered into on December 12, 
1919, from enforcing payment of a promissory note given by the 
plaintiffs to the defendant payable on demand dated December 
10, 1919, for the sum of $4,000 with interest at 9% per annum, 
until paid, and also to restrain the defendant from realizing on 
security which the plaintiffs had hypothecated to the defendant 
at that time. The defendant denies the alleged agreement and 
alleges in the alternative that the note was to be paid within a 
reasonable time or in any event within one year ; that the security 
was to be realized upon when default was made in payment of 
the note ; that the local manager of the defendant, through whom 
the loan was procured, had no authority to make a loan upon 
such terms and finally that it was ultra vires of the bank itself 
to make a loan, the repayment for which was conditional upon 
contingency which might never happen. The defendant counter­
claims and asks for judgment on the notj. There was no reply 
to the defence and no defence to the counterclaim was filed.

The facts are as follows :—In the month of August, 1919, the 
plaintiffs became customers of the Royal Bank of Canada through 
its branch at Peace River, in this Province. They had on de­
posit in Paris, France, some 33,000 francs which they anticipated
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having transferred later on in the fall to the branch of the bank 
with which they were to do business, and in view of this fact, 
commenced negotiations for a loan from the defendant bank. 
The transfer was subsequently made, the net proceeds by r< son 
of the high rate of exchange, at Peace River, being only $4,l^o or 
over $2,000 less than they would have realized if the exchange 
had been normal. In an endeavour to recoup themselves, they 
negotiated for a loan from the defendants for the purpose of 
discharging their present indebtedness to the defendant of two 
notes, due on January 24,1920, for $661 and $616.55 respectively 
in addition to placing them in funds to carry on their business, 
so that the $4,193 might be re-invested in francs and deposited 
with the Royal Bank of Canada (France) at Paris, France, to 
await a more favourable time to re-transfer their money to this 
country. As a result of the negotiations they were enabled to 
purchase, 40,923.68 francs, which were sent to the Royal Bank 
of Canada, Paris, France, for deposit and a deposit receipt for 
that amount issued in the name of A. Brunie, both plaintiffs, 
however, being, as appears from the evidence, equally interested 
in the deposit. In order to enable these purposes to be accom­
plished the defendant agreed on December 10, 1919, to advance 
to the plaintiff by way of a loan $4,000, for which it was to take 
this demand note and security on the deposit in France.

This note was signed on the same day by A. Brunie, one of the 
plaintiffs, and taken by him to procure the signature of Maturie, 
which was done. On Decmnber 12, the note was returned to the 
defendant the proceeds tnereof placed to the plaintiffs’ credit 
and the two notes above referred to charged against the account, 
and the balance left available on current account for the purpose 
of their business. The note payable on demand was absolute and 
unconditional on its face. Concurrently with the signing of the 
note, in consideration of the advance and to secure the indebt­
edness, both present and future, of the plaintiffs, A. Brunie, one 
of the plaintiffs, hypothecated to the bank a “savings bank with­
drawal form on the Royal Bank of Canada (France) Paris, 
France,” which consisted of a signed receipt for the full amount 
of the deposit which upon presentation would entitle the de­
fendant to reserve the money on presentation, and a cheque for 
the full amount on deposit. No question as to the security or the 
form in which it was taken has been raised. The hypothecation 
reads in part as follows:—

“The above mentioned security and any renewals thereof and 
substitution therefore and proceeds thereof are hereby assigned 
to and are to be held by the Royal Bank of Canada as a general 
and continuing collateral security for payment of the present
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Alia. and future indebtedness and liability of the above named cus-
DiitTct. tomer and any ultimate unpaid balance thereof and the same

___ may be realized by the bank in such manner as may seem to it
Bbcnie and advisable, and without notice to the undersigned, in the event

Matubir 0j aQy default in such payment.”
Royal It was quite evident that the bank would not have made the 

Bank or advance against the demand note without the hypothecation of 
Canada. ^jg gecurity. There was some negotiation between the parties 
Tweedic. I. prior to and at the time the advance was made in regard to the 

time when the holder of the note would demand payment, the 
plaintiff contending that the payment of the note was not to be 
demanded until the value of the franc in this country had ap­
preciated in value and that the bank was bound to hold it until 
that time. The plaintiffs requested from the bank a letter con­
firming this agreement which it received December 12, 1919, 
which reads as follows :—

December 12th, 1919.
‘‘Messrs. Brunie & Maturie, Peace River, Alta.
With reference to the conversation of this date between the 

writer and your Mr. Brunie, we have to-day credited your ac­
count with $4,000, being proceeds of the demand note signed by 
you both and have charged up to your account the two notes 
amounting to $661 and $616.65 due on January 24, and have 
recredited your account with $14.50 rebate of interest.

For the $4,193 received from the Credit Lyonais, Paris, 
through our Edmonton branch we have made out a draft in 
favour of A. Brunie on our Paris branch, for 40,923 fcs. and 
have sent his draft by mail to the Royal Bank of Canada, Paris, 
with instructions to place the amount to the credit of Armand 
Brunie in savings department, that is on interest. We have 
taken from Mr. Brunie his signed savings bank withdrawal form 
for 40,923 fcs. as security for the advance of $4,000, the form 
having been hypothecated *o us on our form 110, the withdrawal 
form we have sent to our Paris branch for acknowledgement and 
return. Our understanding is that the money will be transferred 
to this branch and the note here repaid when exchange has drop­
ped to a more normal rate, any profit accruing will of course be 
credited to your account.”

(Sgd.) J. D. Hamilton, manager.
The plaintiffs made three payments on account of interest, 

January 31, 1920, $49.30; February 29, 1920, $29, and May 31, 
1920, $92.50, in all $170.80 which paid the interest at 9% in full 
up to May 31, 1920. Nothing on account of principal or inter­
est has since been paid. The defendant demanded payment of 
the note on several occasions prior to the co nuicncement of this
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action, but payment was not made, the plaintiffs relying on the 
alleged agreement, contending that the defendants had no right 
to demand payment until the rate of exchange became more 
normal.

The plaintiffs in their statement of claim allege the promissory 
note and also “an agreement making the payment of the note 
conditional but they do not aver that the agreement was in writ­
ing.” Such an averment should now, it seems, he always made. 
No objection, however, was taken to this and it will be considered 
as if he had so averred.

At the trial, evidence of what took place prior to and at the 
time of the transaction was admitted to prove an oral agreement 
entered into between the parties at the time to the effect that 
demand would not be made for the repayment of the note until 
such time as the exchange would become more normal. There 
was also placed in evidence the letter written by the manager of 
the defendant bank to the plaintiff on December 12. While the 
oral evidence was admitted at the trial subject to the objection of 
counsel for the defendant bank, I am of the opinion that as evi­
dence of a contemporaneous oral agreement to vary the terms 
of a bill of exchange it was inadmissible, and its effect would be 
to vary the terms of a written instrument and was, therefore, im­
properly admitted and should not now be taken into considera­
tion.

It is contended by counsel for the plaintiffs that the note, the 
hypothecation and the letter should be read together as consti­
tuting one agreement and that the effect when so read is that 
the note absolute and unconditional on its face, payable on de­
mand, is not so, but is subject to the terms and conditions set 
out in the letter, which he construes to be an agreement not to 
demand payment of the note until the rate of exchange became 
more normal and when payable it should be paid out of the pro­
ceeds of the security hypothecated, or in other words, out of a 
particular fund.

As to the note itself, that is, as I have already pointed out un­
conditional on its face and the holder, and payee, the defendant 
is entitled to demand payment at any time and in default of 
payment entitled to maintain an action to recover the amount 
due thereon unless the character of the note has been altered or 
it has deprived itself of that right by some agreement.

As to the hypothecation, the securities thereunder were as­
signed to the defendant as a general and continuing collateral 
security for the payment of the present and future indebtedness 
of the plaintiffs to the defendant, and no doubt was given in con­
sideration of the advance of $4,000. There is, however, no limit-
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ation in the document as to the time when the security might be 
realized upon other than that the plaintiffs should make default 
in payment of their indebtedness. There is nothing in the plead­
ings or the evidence to indicate that the defendant desires to 
realize on its security in connection with any other indebtedness 
than that for which the note was given. The plaintiffs contend 
that by reason of the letter (Dec. 12, 1919), the defendant is not 
entitled to demand payment of the note and consequently that 
no default has occurred entitling it to realise on the security.

As to the letter, is it a collateral agreement or is it a contem­
poraneous agreement in writing sufficient to vary or control the 
absolute contract apparent on the fact of the note or to limit 
the authority set forth in the hypothecation 1

The circumstances surrounding the writing of the letter are 
as follows:—Preliminary negotiations in regard to the procuring 
of a loan had been carried on between the parties for some con­
siderable time prior to December 10, 1919. On that date, both 
the note and the hypothecation were signed by Brunie, one of 
the plaintiffs. The hypothecation did not require Maturie’s sig­
nature, the deposit being in Brunic’s name, although both were 
equally interested in it. At the time Brunie signed the note a 
discussion took place between him and the manager of the de­
fendant bank as to when it should be payable and Brunie insisted 
that they be given a letter setting forth the terms of the ar­
rangement, which the manager then agreed to give him and 
which he did on the 12th. The note for the purpose of having 
Maturie’s signature affixed to it was taken away by Brunie and 
returned to the defendant on December 12, two days later, duly 
signed by both parties.

On the 12th the note was completed and delivered, discounted 
and the proceeds placed to the credit of the plaintiffs, the two 
notes for $661.00 and $616.65 maturing on January 24, 1920, 
were retired and the letter setting forth the terms of the ar­
rangement written and mailed or delivered to the plaintiffs. The 
letter contained the following clause: “Our understanding is 
that the money will be transferred to this branch and the note 
here repaid when the exchange has dropped to a more normal 
rate, any profit accruing will, of course, be credited to your 
account.”

In my opinion, this is not a collateral agreement but is a con­
temporaneous agreement in writing and forms part of the tran­
saction.

See Maillard v. Page (1870), L.R. 5 Ex. 312. The plaintiffs 
contend that this letter makes the payment of the note contin­
gent upon two events, namely, as he sets out in his statement of
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claim, that it “was agreed...............it should be repaid from
the said monies” and secondly, that it was payable when the rate 
of exchange became more normal. As to the former, I cannot 
agree with his contention. The latter simply says that it shall 
be repaid when exchange drops to a more normal rate but does 
not limit the liability to pay, to those funds only. The letter in 
this respect does nothing more than reaffirm the right given 
under the hypothecation to apply the proceeds of that security 
in payment of the plaintiff’s indebtedness on the note. It does 
not limit the payment from a particular fund or place any con­
dition on the absolute and unconditional obligation apparent on 
the face of the note.

The second contention that it was agreed that the note would be 
payable when the rate of exchange became more normal must, I 
think, be given effect to.

“If the memorandum make the payment contingent it will 
be incorporated in the instrument.” Ryles on Bills of Exchange, 
17th ed. p. 120.

In support of this proposition, he cites cases in which the 
memoranda were endorsed on the back of notes but there are 
many cases in which a note has been controlled or varied by a 
memorandum on a separate piece of paper.

See: Bowerbank v. Monteiro (1813), 4 Taunt. 844, 128 E.R. 
564 ; Maülard v. Page, supra; Salmon v. Webb (1852), 3 II.L.C. 
510,10 E.R. 201 ; Falconbridge, Banking and Bills of Exchange, 
2nd ed. 534, Daniel’s Negotiable Instruments, sec. 156.

The words of the letter “our understanding is that the money 
will be transferred to this branch and the note here repaid when 
the exchange had dropped to a more normal rate” must be read 
into the note with the result that the promise to pay becomes 
conditional upon the happening of a contingency. The instru­
ment then forfeits its character as a promissory note and becomes 
an ordinary obligation to pay $4,000 upon the terms and condi­
tions set forth in the agreement. It becomes necessary then to 
examine the form of the action and to interpret the agreement. 
As a result of repeated demands terminating in a lcttei from 
the defendant’s solicitors on September 9, 1921, the plaintiffs 
issued a statement of claim in which he set forth the facts ht rein 
before referred to and asked by way of relief for “an injunction 
restraining the defendant bank from enforcing payment of the 
said note and from realising upon the hypothecation held by 
it.............. ,” and on October 26, obtained an interim injunc­
tion which is still in force. There is nothing in the statement 
of claim to indicate any special circumstances why an injunction 
should be granted, nor is there anything to indicate that the
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plaintiffs will suffer irreparable damage. They rely solely on a 
threatened breach of an agreement.

Under our Judicature Act (Con. Ord. N.W.T. 1898, eh. 21, sec. 
10, repealed 1919, (Alta.) eh. 3), no cause or proceeding pending 
in Court by prohibition or injunction but matters which will 
entitle them to equitable relief must be relied on as a defence.

Kerr on Injunction 5th ed. p. 13, says: “Although the Court 
has no longer jurisdiction to restrain a pending action, an in­
junction may lte granted to restrain the institution of proceed­
ings in the High Court of Justice.”

In support of this proposition he cites a number of eases but 
they all contain special circumstances and are cases in which it 
would lie inequitable to refuse the injunction. In the case of 
Niger Merrhantu Co. v. Capper (1877), 18 Ch. D. 557 (see note 
1 ) at p. 558 Jessel, M.R., says: “Vice Chancellor Malins a few
days later granted a similar injunction............on the ground
that it was the object of the Court to restrain the assertion of 
doubtful rights in a manner productive of irreparable damage.” 
In my opinion, there are no special circumstances in this case 
which warrant the granting of an injunction. No irreparable 
damage would have been done to the plaintiff if the action had 
been brought. This action, I think, was improperly brought. 
All the facts alleged as grounds for the injunction would have 
been available by way of defence. If the defendant had brought 
his action on the note as such it would have been a good defence 
under the earlier practice to have denied the making of the note 
as alleged, although perhaps under our rules he should set out 
all the facts upon which he relied and, in my opinion, it would 
have been a complete answer. If, on the other hand, the plain­
tiffs had brought their action on the agreement, if the Court 
gave effect to the contentions of the plaintiffs as to the interpre­
tation of the agreement, he would be equally successful. If their 
views did not prevail, the plaintiffs would clearly not be entitled 
to an injunction to restrain the defendant from enforcing their 
legal rights in the Courts.

There is also another reason why, in my opinion, the plaintiffs 
are not entitled to the relief they claim, which has to do with the 
interpretation of the agreement. What does “more normal” 
meant At what point between 9.76 cents, the value of the franc 
at the time it was entered into, and 20 cents, its par value, would 
the defendant be entitled to demand payment. One of the plain­
tiffs says that an appreciation of one one hundredth of a cent in 
value of the franc would be more normal and that the defendant 
would be entitled to payment. But I cannot accept that as his 
understanding of the term as used in the agreement. He admits 
that he had information concerning some financial arrangements
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to be made by the French Government whereby exchange would 
Ik* much more favourable for transmitting money from France, 
of which he wished to take advantage. The defendant s manager, 
Hamilton, must have considered it to 1m1 a point at which the 
funds could be transferred to the branch at Peace River dis­
charging the indebtedness and leave a surplus. He says in his 
letter after making provision for the payment of the note “any 
profit accruing will of course be credited to your account.” I 
think that the words “more normal” are too indefinite upon 
which to base an injunction so as to give effect to the tme inten­
tion of the parties.

As to the use of an indefinite word “development” where 
equitable relief is sought in an order for specific performance 
and refused, see Douylas v. Baynes, |1908j A.C. 477.

The claim for the plaintiff must be dismissed and the injunc­
tion which was granted on October 26, 1921, until further order, 
dissolved.

The defendants counterclaim for the payment of the note. 
To this counterclaim no defence was tiled and ordinarily they 
would be entitled to judgment for the amount of the note. They 
do not, in their counterclaim, allege in the alternative, as per­
haps they should have done, the agreement, (Leake on Contracts, 
6th ed. 456) and claim the sum of $4,000 thereunder, but all 
the facts are set forth fully in the statement of claim and the de­
fence and 1 think that no injustice will In* done if we consider the 
counterclaim as having been amended to set forth the facts and 
alleging that it is an agreement to pay $4,000, within a reason­
able time and that the manager of the defendant had no author­
ity to make a loan upon such terms as is done in its defence, 
para. 11, and the plaintiff’s statement of claim, transposed to 
the position of a defence to the counterclaim which it properly 
is. With the contention that the indebtedness was to Ik* paid out 
of the proceeds of the security I have already dealt. To this I 
have only to add that while a person’s liability may be limited 
to the extent of a particular fund (Williams v. Hathaway 
(1877), 6 Ch. D. 544), the intention to so limit it must be clear 
and definite and set forth in express terms. The plaintiffs con­
tend that under the terms of the agreement it is payable only 
when the rate of exchange becomes more normal. The defendant 
contends that it is payable in a reasonable time. Construing 
the words “when the rate of exchange becomes more normal” 
strictly, it simply means that it is payable upon a contingency, 
which may or may never happen, that is that the defendant’s 
agent lent out his principal money upon such terms as might 
relieve the plaintiffs from all liability to repay it. The agent, 
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in my opinion, had no authority to make a loan upon such condi­
tion as that. The plaintiffs admit that they knew he had no 
authority to make the loan. On October 24, 1919, he applied to 

a«i xir aid defendant’s head office for authority to make a loan of $4,500 on 
Matvbik ||le security 0f French funds and said in his letter that the 

Royal “advance was to be repaid from this source when the rate has 
Bask of Is-eome more reasonable. ’’ He never got the authority to ad- 
Canada. vance the amount. He was authorised on October 30 to advance 
Tweedie, j. $3,500 against cheque on l'aris bank, properly hypothecated for 

33,000 francs. On December 12 he advanced $4,000 and on De- 
eemlier 18 advised his head office that he had done so, stating 
that he had their note for the amount and an hypothecation 
covering 40,923 francs. He said nothing about having given a 
letter extending the time for payment of the note or making it 
payable upon a contingency. This loan was approved without 
knowledge of the letter on February 18, 1920, in which he put 
date of revision December 1, 1920. The manager explains that 
date of revision is time until which they were to carry it and then 
if account and security were satisfactory they might continue 
the credit on the note for a longer period. There was clearly no 
express authority to make the loan upon those terms nor was it 
in the apparent scope of his authority. His authority would be 
to make it for a reasonable time and upon their absolute under 
taking to repay. This letter does not seem to have come to the 
attention of the defendant until after the refusal of the plain 
tiffs to pay their note. As soon as they became aware of it they 
could have, in my opinion, ignored the agreement altogether and 
brought an action for money had and received to their use. In 
regard to the payment of money on a contingency which mat 
never happen, see: Xune: v. Daulel (1873), 19 Wallace 560. This 
was a ease in the Supreme Court of the United States. The 
defendant acknowledged that he owed the plaintiff a eertain sun, 
of money and promised to pay it as soon as the crop should be 
sold or the money could be raised from any other source. It 
was held that the money was due within a reasonable time. 
Swayne, J., said at p. 562:—“No time having been specified 
within which the crops should be sold or the money raised other 
wise, the law annexed as an incident that one or the other should 
be done within reasonable time, and that the sum admitted to lie 
due should be paid accordingly. Payment was not conditional 
to the extent of depending wholly and finally upon the altermi 
tive mentioned.”

In considering the possibility of the conditions upon which 
payment should be made, never happening, Swayne, J., con­
tinued :—

126
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“It could not have been the intention of the parties that if 
the crops were destroyed, or from any other cause could never 
be sold, and the defendants could not procure the money from 
any other source, the debt should never be paid. Such a result 
would be a mockery of justice.”

Payment in this case is not conditional to the extent of depend­
ing wholly and finally upon the alternative of the rate of ex­
change becoming more normal. It was not the intention of the 
parties that if the rate of exchange did not become more normal 
they were not to repay the loan. I think that their real inten­
tion was to borrow the money for a reasonable time in the hope 
that they would be benefited by a more favourable rate of ex­
change before they were called upon to pay off the loan. The 
law will, I think, annex as an incident to an agreement for the 
repayment of a loan contingent upon the happening of an event 
which may never occur that if it does not happen within a rea­
sonable time then the money shall become due and payable after 
the expiration of such reasonable time, unless it is very clear 
that the intention of the parties is that the liability is conditional 
only upon the happening of the particular event.

A reasonable time elapsed between the advance and the demand 
for repayment. It was clearly the intention of the parties that the 
plaintiffs should be liable for repayment in any event and the 
defendants are, therefore, entitled to be paid and to maintain 
their action under the agreement. The amount claimed is $4,000 
with interest at 9% per annum from December 10, 1919. The 
rate of interest claimed, 9%, is illegal. The Rank Act, 1913 
(Dora.), ch. 9, sec. 91; McHugh v. Union Bank of Canada 10 
D.L.R. «562, (1913] A.C. 299; Standard Bank of Canada v. Faber 
ci* Heeney (1916), 27 D.L.R. 707, 11 Alta. L.R. 96; see also 
(1917) 33 D.L.R. 542. In both the al>ove cases the rate was 
reduced to 5% to which the rate in this case will be reduced.

The plaintiffs paid $170.80 in settlement of interest at the rate 
of 9% up to May 31,1920. As regards past payments of interest 
at a rate not authorised by the Rank Act, the plaintiffs are not 
entitled to recover back the excess which they have voluntarily 
paid. McHugh v. Union Bank, supra.

The defendant will, therefore, l»e entitled to judgment on its 
counterclaim for the sum of $4,000, with interest thereon at the 
rate of 5% per annum from May 31,1920.

In view of the fact that the defendant is largely responsible 
for the difficulty which arose by reason of its agent having writ­
ten the letter of December 12, the plaintiff’s claim will be dis­
missed without costs to the defendant. The defendant to have 
the costs of the counterclaim, Rule 27 to apply.

Judgment accordingly.
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B.C. ROYAL EXCHANGE ASSURANC E Co. v. THE KINGSLEY
------  NAVIGATION Co.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Martin, Galliher and 
McPhillips, JJ.A. June 6, 19tt.

Carriers ($ 1IIC—386)—Loss or caroo by fire—Unseaworthiness of 
barge—Fire resulting from u n ska worth i n ess—Onus of proof 
—Liability of ship owner—Water-Carriage of Ooods Act, 1910 
(Can.) ch. 61 sec. 7—Canadian Merchants’ Shipping Act 
B.B.C. 1906 ch. 113—Construction.

In order to fix the owner of a barge with liability for the loss of a 
cargo by fire, the consignee having proven that the barge was imsea­
worthy, the onus is also on him of proving that the fire resulted from 
such unsea worthiness. Held by McPhillips, J.A., that the statute law 
of Canada extends absolute immunity to the ship owner for loss by 
reason of fire or arising from fire.

[“The Europa,” [1908] P. 84; Kish v. Taylor, [1912] A.C. 604, ap­
plied ; Lennard’s Carrying Co. v. Asiatic Petroleum Co., [1915] A.C. 
705; distinguished.]

Appeal by defendants from the trial judgment in an artion 
to recover the value of a cargo lost by fire on defendant’s barge. 
Reversed.

L. G. McPhillips, K.C., and W. C. Brown, K.C., for appellant.
E. C. Mayers and Robert Smith, for respondent.
Macdonald, C.J.A.:—The action was brought to recover the 

value of 3,000 barrels of lime lost on lioard the barge “Queen 
City” by fire. In my view of the case, it is unnecessary to con­
sider the point raised as to the plaintiffs’ right of action. My 
opinion is founded upon the fact that while the plaintiffs have 
proven the unseaworthiness of the barge, they have not proven 
that the fire resulted from such unseaworthiness. This is a 
question of fact upon which a great deal of evidence was ad­
duced. The learned Judge came to the conclusion that the barge 
was in fact unseaworthy, and I am unable to say that on this 
issue he was in error. He found also that the burden of proving 
that the fire did not arise because of this unseaworthiness was 
upon the defendants. He thought the defendants had not dis­
charged that onus. He states that if he were convinced that 
this burden was upon the plaintiffs he would find that the plain­
tiffs had failed to satisfy it.

It was argued for the defendants that ship owners’ exemption 
from liability for goods on board, lost by fire is absolute, and 
secondly, that if not the onus is on the plaintiffs to prove negli 
gence.

Section 7 of the Water-Carriage of Goods Act 1910 (Can.) ch. 
61, reads as follows :—

“The ship, the owner, charterer, agent or master, shall not hr 
held liable for loss arising from fire, dangers of the sea, or 
other navigable waters, acts of God or public enemies, or inherem
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defect, quality or vice of the thing carried, or from insufficiency 
of package, or seizure under legal process, or for loss resulting 
from any act or omission of the shipper or owner of the goods, 
his agent or representative, or from saving or attempting to save 
life or property at sea, or from any deviation in rendering such 
service or other reasonable deviation, or from strikes, or for loss 
arising without their actual fault or privity, or without the fault 
or neglect of their agents, servants, or employees.”

There is a similar section in the Canadian Merchants Shipping 
Act, R.S.C. 1906, eh. 113. The Imperial Merchants Shipping 
Act, 1894 ch. 60, sec. 502, reads differently. It provides that 
the owner of a British seagoing ship shall not he liable to make 
good any loss or damage happening without his actual fault or 
privity in the following, among other circumstances, namely :—

“ (1) Where any goods, merchandise or other things whatso­
ever taken in or put on hoard his ship are lost or damaged by 
reason of tire on hoard the ship.”

Cnder the English Act, it is quite clear that when the goods are 
destroyed by a cause attributable to the actual fault or privity 
of the owner of the ship, the section does not exempt him from 
liability. The Canadian section does not in the like clear words 
qualify the several exceptions to liability. By sec. 7 the excep­
tions are made without the antecedent qualifications, but at the 
end of the section and without in terms qualifying the exceptions 
preceding it, it declares that the shipowner, his servants or 
agents, shall not be liable for loss arising without their actual 
fault or privity.

At common law, the shipowner was not liable for the acts of 
(iod or public enemies, or for inherent defect, or insufficiency 
of packing, yet it was held that if the loss were contributed to 
by the negligence of the shipowner, he could not claim the benefit 
of the exception. See Carver’s Carriage by Sea, 6th ed. p. 19. 
Section 7 merely enacts what was, in respect of many of these 
exceptions, the law independently of the statute. To construe 
the section as contended for by the appellants’ counsel would be 
to give a meaning to these exceptions different to that given to 
them at common law and to hold that the shipowner is absolved 
from responsibility for say, acts of (Iod or the King’s enemies, 
or inherent defect, notwithstanding that the loss was contributed 
to by his own negligence or that of his servants or agents. 1 
think all these exceptions must be read in accordance with the 
qualifications to which those w’hich were, prior to the statute, 
common law exceptions, were subject.

The next question is, where does the burden of proof of negli­
gence rest; is it on the plaintiffs, or is the burden on the defend-
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ants to negative actual fault or privity! The cause of the fire ia 
unknown hut the plaintiffs rely upon the uuseaworthmees of 
the ship, and contend that the inference to lie drawn from that, 
in the circumstances of this case, is that the fire was the result 
of such unseaworthiness.

In “The Europa,” [1908] P. 84, 11 L.J. (P.) 26 it was held 
that the onus of proving that the damage was caused by the un- 
seaworthiness of the ship was on the plaintiff, and this was 
approved by the House of Lords in Kish v. Taylor, [1912] A.C. 
604, 81 L.J. (K.B.) 1027. In “The Europa,” [1908] P. at pp. 
97-98, Bucknill, J., said :—

“It appears to us, therefore, that whenever a cargo-owner has 
claimed damages from a shipowner for loss occasioned to his 
goods on the voyage, and the ship was in fact unscaworthy at 
the material time, the cargo-owner has had to prove that the loss 
was occasioned through or in consequence of unseaworthiness, 
and it has not been sufficient to say merely that the ship was 
unseaworthy and therefore that he was entitled to recover the 
loss, although there was no relation between unseaworthiness and 
the damage.”

The trial Judge appears to have relied upon the language of 
Lord Dunedin, in Leonard's Carrying Co. v. Asiatic Petroleum 
Co., [1915] A.C. 705, 84 L.J. (K.B.) 1281, as if it were to the 
contrary. The question there was whether or not the owners of 
the ship had absolved themselves from fault or privity in rela­
tion to the ship’s condition. It was contended that there was no 
actual fault or privity of the owner of the ship apart from that 
of the servants or agents of the owner. That question does not 
arise in this ease, because of the broader language of our statute. 
Lord Dunedin said [1915] A.C. at 715:—

“It appears clearly from the facts, and indeed eventually was 
admitted by appellant’s counsel, that the loss which had its final 
outcome in the tire was really due to a set of defects in the steam 
power in the boilers, which constituted the unseaworthiness. ’ '

In other words, it was not disputed in that ease that the fire 
resulted from the unseaworthiness of the ship, but it was con­
tended that the unseaworthiness was not known to the owner 
and was, therefore, without his fault or privity. It decides that 
given an unseaworthy ship, the onus of proving that it was un­
seaworthy without his actual fault or privity, is on the owner, 
but that is a very different burden to that of shewing that the 
fire did not originate because of the unseaworthiness. In the 
one case, it is personal fault which is to be negatived, in the 
other, proximate cause is to be proved by him who alleges it.

A vigorous argument was made by counsel for the respondents.
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founded upon a theory that vapours ascending from the bilge 
water in the hold of the ship, causing dampness in the lime re­
sulted in spontaneous combustion, but 1 cannot give effeet to that 
argument. That such vapours, if they existed, which was not 
proven, caused the fire is not an inevitable inference. There 
must be something more tangible than that to found liability 
upon.

1 agree with the trial Judge that on the assumption of the 
onus aforesaid being upon the plaintiffs, they have not discharged 
it.
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The appeal should be allowed.
Martin, J.A. :—I agree that this appeal should be allowed.
Galliher, J.A.:—I agree with the Chief Justice.
McPhilupb, J.A.:—This appeal has reference to the liability 

which is upon the shipowner under the Water-Carriage of Goods 
Act, 1910 (Can.) eh. 61. The action is brought by the consignee, 
the Pacific Mills Limited, and as well by the Corporation of the 
Royal Exchange Assurance (of London)—entitled to claim, by 
reason of the alleged breach of contract of carriage, by way of 
subrogation, the Corporation of the Royal Exchange Assurance 
(of London) having insured the goods which were destroyed by 
fire, being the property of the Pacific Mills Limited. The loss 
for which damages were claimed and which were allowed in the 
Court below was occasioned by fire, for which the defendant was 
responsible in the opinion of the trial Judge, or as it may be more 
properly put, the trial Judge thought that the onus probandi 
was upon the carrier, the defendant, and that that onus was not 
discharged. If, however, the onus probandi was upon the 
plaintiffs, then the trial Judge would not have been satisfied 
that it was satisfactorily established that there was liability upon 
the defendant upon the evidence adduced at the trial. The goods 
contracted to be carried by sea consisted of 3,000 barrels of lime 
shipped on board the barge “Queen City” for carriage from 
Blubber Bay to Ocean Falls, in British Columbia, and in the 
course of the voyage at Beaver Cove, the barge took fire and the 
barge and cargo were completely destroyed and the lime was lost 
to the plaintiffs, the Pacific Mills Limited. The insurance upon 
the lime was paid, viz., $5,891, and this was the amount claimed 
in the action from the carrier, The Kingsley Navigation Co., Ltd., 
the defendant.

The submission put forward at this Bar was that in any case 
quite irrespective of whether there was negligence, which of 
course was denied, there was no liability where the loss of 
the goods arose from fire, and it was pressed strongly that sec. 7 
of the Water-Carriage of Goods Act, 1910 (Can.) ch. 61, could
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only he construed in that way, coupled with sec. 964 of the Can­
ada Shipping Act, R.SXL1., 1906, ch. 113. The section reads as 
follows:—

“7. The ship, the owner, charterer, agent or master shall not 
lie held liable for loss arising from fire, dangers of the sea or 
other navigable waters, acts of God or public enemies, or inherent 
defect, quality or vice of the thing carried, or from insufficiency 
of package, or seizure under legal process, or for loss resulting 
from any act or omission of the shipper or owner of the goods, 
his agent or representative, or from saving or attempting to save 
life or property at sea. or from any deviation in rendering such 
service, or other reasonable deviation, or from strikes, or for loss 
arising without their actual fault or privity or without the fault 
or negelct of their agents, servants or employees.”

Section 964 of the Canada Shipping Act R.S.C. 1906, ch. 113. 
reads as follows:—

‘‘964. Carriers by water shall be liable for the loss of or 
damage to goods entrusted to them for conveyance, except that 
they shall not be liable when such loss or damage happens:—

(a) without their actual fault or privity, or without the fault 
or neglect of their agents, servants or employees.”

(b) by reason of tire or the dangers of navigation ; or,
(c) from any defect in or from the nature of the goods them­

selves ; or,
(d) from armed robbery or other irresistible force.
The section in the Merchant Shipping Act, 1894 (Imp.) ch. 

60 having reference to loss by reason of fire, reads as follows :—
‘‘502. The owner of a British sea-going ship, or any share 

therein, shall not be liable to make good to any extent whatever 
any loss or damage happening without his actual fault or privity 
in the following cases ; namely,—

(i) Where any goods, merchandise, or other things whatso­
ever taken in or put on board his ship are lost or damaged by 
reason of fire on board the ship................. ”

After full and careful consideration of sec. 7 of the Water- 
Carriage of Goods Act—and sec. 964 of the Canada Shipping 
Act, 1 am satisfied that Parliament intended to relieve the car­
riers from liability for loss by fire. That is, in my opinion, the 
statute law read together as it must be, demonstrates the inten­
tion of Parliament to absolve from liability in cases of fire, i.e., 
an absolute immunity in case of loss by tire. The situation is an 
intractable one upon the true reading and appli 'v of the 
canons of construction of statute law.

In this connection and by way of analogy, I would reier to the 
law of England as it exists to-day granting exemption from lia
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bility for loss or damage by fire where the fire is caused by the 
unseaworthiness of the ship. In Virginia Carolina Chemical Co. 
v. Norfolk and North American Steam Shipping Co., [1912] 1 
K B. 229, 81 L.J. (K.B.) 129, Kennedy, L.J., says 81 L.J. (K.B.) 
at pp. 138-139:—

“This first question is, I think, the more doubtful part of the 
case. There is, in my judgment, a great deal to he said for the 
view that the Legislature did not lose sight of the law which, 
unquestionably, had been settled before the date of the passing 
of the Act of 1894, that there is, in every contract with regard 
to the carriage of goods in a ship, an absolute warranty that the 
vessel must, at the time of sailing with the goods, have that de­
gree of fitness, as regards both the safety of the ship and also the 
safe carriage of the cargo, which an ordinarily careful and pru­
dent owner would require his vessel to have at the commencement 
of the voyage, having regard to the nature and probable circum­
stances of that voyage. It is possible—and 1 think, Mr. Justice 
Bray had that fully in mind when he used the language that he 
did in giving his decision on this first question—that one might 
quite reasonably come to the conclusion that the implied war­
ranty was not intended to he abrogated by sec. 502 in regard to 
damage by fire, and that the exemption from liability given by 
that section was mainly intended to relate to those instances in 
which the owner is either the captain on hoard, or perhaps, as in 
the case of small ships, the actual titter-out of the ship, if not the 
master, for the voyage. If that view were taken, and the section 
were read subject to that implication, there could, of course, he no 
further contest on behalf of the defendants. I am not, however, 
prepared to differ from Mr. Justice Bray. Upon the whole, I 
think that the conclusion to which he has come is both the more 
correct from the lawyer’s point of view and also the safer on 
general grounds—for one good reason, among others, that the 
words of the section are unqualified in their terms, and, as has 
been pointed out by Lord Justice Vaughan-Williams, and by 
Lord Justice Buckley, and also by Mr. Justice Bray, if we accept 
the implication of seaworthiness, we are virtually reading into 
the section the word “sea-worthy,” in addition to the word “sea­
going” as an epithet applying to the ship. 1 hold, therefore,— 
tiecauae on the whole I think it is the better conclusion—thal 
the section is to be read without any qualification that the vesssel 
should he seaworthy at the commencement of the voyage ; or, in 
other words, that where a loss happens by reason of tire, on hoard 
the ship, which is not proved to have originated and been directly 
caused by the actual fault or with the privity of the shipowner, 
he is exempt from liability under that section.”
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This case is clear authority as applied to the statute law of 
England that the owner of a sea-going ship is relieved from lia­
bility for loss by fire on board the ship if the happening is with­
out his actual fault or privity and this is quite irrespective of 
whether there has been a breach of the warranty of seaworthi­
ness. The state of the statute law of Canada differs. The “ac­
tual fault or privity** is not attachable to loss “by reason of fire” 
—“arising from fire” (sec. 964, R.S.C. 1906 ch. 113—and sec. 
7, 1910 (Can.) ch. 61.)

The plaintiffs support the judgment of the Court below upon 
the ground, and it is submitted that the evidence supports it, 
that the “Queen City” was unseaworthy, and that there is no 
statutory exemption for loss by reason of fire or arising from 
fire, upon the proper reading of the statute law, and that the 
fire being consequent upon that unseaworthiness there wras fault 
upon the part of the defendant, the carrier, for which it is liable. 
In this connection see. 4, (b) of the Water-Carriage of Goods 
Act 1910 (Can.) ch. 61, is particularly relied upon—the whole 
section reads as follows:—

“4. Where any bill of lading or similar document of title to 
goods contains any clause, covenant or agreement whereby

(a) the owner, charterer, master or agent of any ship, or the 
ship itself, is relieved from liability for loss or damage to goods 
arising from negligence, fault, or failure in the proper loading, 
stowage, custody, care or delivery of goods received by them or 
any of them to be carried in or by the ship ; or

(b) any obligations of the owner or charterer of any ship to 
exercise due diligence to properly man, equip, and supply the 
ship, and make and keep the ship seaworthy, and make and keep 
the ship’s hold, refrigerating and cool chambers, and all other 
parts of the ship in which goods are carried, fit and safe for their 
reception, carriage and preservation, are in any wise lessened, 
weakened or avoided ; or

(c) the obligations of the master, officers, agents or servants 
of any ship to carefully handle and stow goods, and to care for, 
preserve, and properly deliver them, are in any wise lessened, 
weakened or avoided;
such clause, covenant or agreement shall be illegal, null and void, 
and of no effect, unless such clause, covenant or agreement is in 
accordance with the other provisions of this Act.”

It is further submitted that seaworthy means seaworthy to 
carry goods, apart from the dangers of the sea. This may well 
be, but it still has to be shewn that there is liability upon th<* 
defendant because of the fire, and I fail to see that there is any 
clause in the bill of lading that makes the carrier liable in cas.
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of fire or any intention upon the part of the carrier to contract 
out of the statutory exemption from fire loss—(See Ingram d; 
Boyle v. Services Maritimes Du Trcport, 11914] 1 K.B. 541, 83 
L.J. (K.B.) 382, 30 Times L.R. 79). If the question of whether 
the ship was seaworthy is open and available to the plaintiffs, 
then the further question would arise, was unscaworthiness the 
proximate cause of the happening, and where lies the onus of 
proof? This onus would appear to be on the shipper when, as 
here, it is claimed, but as I consider not proven, that unsea­
worthiness was the cause of the loss—that is the cause of the 
fire—which destroyed the lime (Lindsay v. Klein, “The Tat- 
jena,” [1911] A.C. 194, 80 L.J. (P.C.) 161). Further, it is a 
well known principle in shipping law that a ship is prima facie 
deemed seaworthy (Darker v. Potts (1815), 3 Dow. 23, 3 E.R. 
977). The facts in the present case are not such as warrant it 
being said that the burden of proving seaworthiness was 
shifted upon the shipowner. The amount of water that entered 
the barge was really negligible, and in my opinion, neither the 
water nor any claimed rotteness of timbers had any relation to 
the happening, that is the fire which took place and destroyed 
the lime—( Watson v. Clark (1813), 1 Dow. 336, 3 E.R. 720; 
Pickup v. Thames Ins. Co. (1878), 3 Q.B.D. 594, 47 L.J. (Q.B.) 
749; Parker v. Potts, supra; Ajum Ooolam llossen & Co. v. 
Union Marine Ins. Co., Hajee Cassim Joosub v. Ajum Ooolam 
llossen d- Co., [1901] A.C. 362, 70 L.J. (P.C.) 34; Lindsay v. 
Klein, ftThe Tatjana,” supra).

Lord Shaw in Lindsay v. Klein, supra, (as reported in 80 L.J. 
(P.C.) 161, at p. 165) says:—

“In the judgments stress is repeatedly laid upon the fact that 
the onus of proving unseaworthiness is upon those who allege it. 
This is, of course, a sound doctrine and it is none the less sound, 
although the vessel break down, or sink shortly after putting to 
sea. That is the principle of law.’'

The trial Judge arrived at the conclusion in the present case, 
that the allegation of unseaworthiness as put forward in the 
statement of claim was proved “that the barge through its un­
seaworthiness leaked and admitted water which combined with 
the lime created such a development of heat as to set the fire 
and cause the loss.”

The trial Judge, of course, as previously stated, proceeded 
upon the view that the onus of proof as to seaworthiness was 
upon the defendant, and in his reasons for judgment he further 
said:—

“In my opinion the onus rested upon the defendant company 
to satisfy the Court that the fire was not due to the cause thus
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suggested by the plaintiffs. I am free to admit that were the 
onus upon the plaintiffs to prove that the tire did occur in the 
manner alleged, 1 could not see my way clear to thus find in their 
favour. If I am right, however, in my opinion that the onus 
rests upon the defendant company, then, as 1 have mentioned, 
it has failed to satisfy this burden—the result is that not only 
has the probable cause suggested by the plaintiffs not been met 
by any other suggested cause on the part of the defendant com­
pany but the defendant company has failed to obtain relief under 
sec. 7 of the Water-Carriage of Goods Act. I find that the de­
fendant company is liable for the loss that ensued to the goods 
in question. The amount claimed, for which judgment will be 
entered, is $5,981.”

It is clear that the trial Judge did not really find as a fact 
that any of the claimed items of unseaworthiness was the proxi­
mate cause of the fire, or more precisely that, because of the leak­
age and presence of water the fire ensued, but in that the de­
fendant had not established any other cause, the cause alleged by 
the plaintiffs should lie accepted. With great respect, 1 cannot 
agree with the conclusions of the trial Judge. In the first place, 
it was error in law to impose the burden of proof upon the 
defendant company of the unseaworthiness, and even were he 
right in that, it would not follow that there would l>c liability, 
(and this is leaving out of consideration the absolute statutory 
immunity that in my opinion exists) unless the unseaworthiness 
was the effective cause of the fire which occasioned the loss. In 
Kish v. Taylor, [1912] A.C. 604, 81 L.J. (K.B.) 1027, Lord 
Atkinson, at pp. 1030-1031, says (as reported in 81 L.J. 
(K.B.)) !—

“Neither in 8teel v. State Line Steamship Co. (1877), 3 App. 
(’as. 72, 37 L.T. 333, nor in Gilroy Sons A* Co. v. Price A Co.. 
11893] A.C. 56, 68 L.T. 302, was it suggested that the breach of 
warranty of seaworthiness put an end to the contract of af­
freightment, and relegated the shipowner to his rights as a 
common carrier by sea. On the contrary, the observations of 
Lord Blackburn seem to indicate that the indorsee of the bill of 
lading might be disentitled to recover, despite the fact of unsea 
worthiness, unless that unseaworthiness caused the damage, and 
he used these words:—‘So here I think that if this failure to 
make the ship fit for the voyage, if she really was unfit, did 
exist, then the loss produced immediately by that, though itself 
a peril of the seas, would have !>een excepted, is nevertheless a 
thing for which the shipowner is liable, unless by the terms of 
his contract he has provided against it*; and later he said, *1 
have no doubt what the result will Ik* ; it will be a question
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taking the whole circumstances together, was this ship reasonably 
fit when she sailed to encounter the perils, and was the damage 
that happened a consequence of her being unfit, if she was unfit,’ 
which appears to me to imply that if the damage was not a con­
sequence of this unfitness, the shipowner’s liability must be de­
termined by the provision of his contract of affreightment so far 
as it dealt with that liability.”

Apart from all other questions and upon the point of unsea­
worthiness alone, even if that were established—the plaintiffs 
would not be entitled to succeed in the present case—with see. 
964 of the Canada Shipping Act, R.S.C. 1906 eh. 113, and see. 7 
of the Water-Carriage of Goods Act, 1910 ((’an.) eh. 61 in the 
way, (Merchant Shipping Act, 1894, (Imp.) eh. 60, part VIII, 
see. 502), that was the decision in Virginia Carolina Chemical 
Co. v. Norfolk and North American etc. Co., [1912] 1 K.B. 229, 
81 L.J. (K.B.) 129; [1913] A.C. 52, 82 L.J. (K.B.) 389;—it being 
held that a shipowner is not deprived of the protection of see. 502 
(and sec. 964 of the Canada Shipping Act and see. 7 of the 
Water-Carriage of Goods Act—Canada, are in terms analogous, 
but more extensive in according absolute protection to the ship­
owner) merely by reason of the fact that the fire is caused by 
the unseaworthiness of the ship, and I cannot see, as previously 
stated, that there is anything in the bill of lading in the present 
case that prevents the application of the statutory protection to 
tin- defendant, the shipowner. In Ingram d* Hoyle v. Services 
Maritimes Du Tréport, supra, Vaughan-W ill lams, L.J., is re­
ported to have said (30 Times L.R. at pp. 80, 81 ) :—

“Lord Justice Vaughan-Williams, in delivering judgment, said 
that in his opinion the appeal succeeded. He had heard a great 
deal of argument with reference to the warranty of seaworthi­
ness and as to whether it continued notwithstanding the fact 
that the ease was one which fell within see. 502 of the Merchant 
Shipping Act, 1894. lie thought that the decision of the Court 
of Appeal in Virginia Carolina Chemical Co. v. Norfolk and 
North American Steamship Co., was conclusive on this point, 
and he could not do better than read the headnote in that ease, 
which was as follows:—‘Section 502 of the Merchant Shipping 
Act, 1894, provides that ‘the owner of a British sea going ship’ 
shall not be liable for ‘any loss or damage happening without his 
actual fault or privity,’ where goods on board his ship are lost 
or damaged by reason of fire on board the ship.’ Stopping there, 
he thought it was perfectly plain that the fire in this case did 
ocôur without the actual fault or privity of the owner; in his 
opinion, there was no evidence of any fault or privity on the part 
of the owner. That being so, the question might be raised on
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the voiiHtruvtion of nee. 502 as to the onus of proof of fault. In 
his judgment, having regard to the words of the section, (his 
Lordship then read the section), it was not on the shipowner to 
prove a negative and to show that he was not guilty of any fault 
or privity, but on those who set it up to prove affirmatively. He 
was of opinion that the goods on liourd had been damaged by 
tire within the meaning of the section, and he did not trouble to 
ascertain whether the tire was the ultimate cause of the loss or 
only a step in the causation. It was sufficient to say that the loss 
was a loss by reason of tiri‘ on board the ship. The head-note 
then continued thus:—‘A bill of lading contained a clause pro­
viding that the shipowner was not responsible for any loss of, or 
damage to the goods received thereunder for carriage occasioned 
by (inter alia) tire, or unseawort hi ness, provided all reasonable 
means had been taken to provide against unseaworthiness. Held 
by Mr. Justice Bray, and by the Court of Appeal, that a ship­
owner is not deprived of the protection of sec. 502 merely by 
reason of the fact that the fire is caused by the unseaworthiness 
of the ship, but that the effect of a bill of lading containing the 
above clause, is to preclude the shipowner from setting up the 
section as an answer to a claim for the loss of goods, shipped 
under the bill of lading, by reason of tire on lward the ship, 
caused by the i in sea wort hi ness of the ship/ Primâ facie, until 
something to the contrary was proved the shipowner was en­
titled to the protection of see. 502.”

Lennard's Parrying Co. v. Asiatic Petroleum, [1915] A.C. 
705, 84 L.J. (K.B.) 1281, would at finit sight seem to present 
some difficulty—as to the onus of proof, as to unseaworthiness, 
but in the end possibly not, as it is directed rather to the onus 
of proof of actual fault or privity and that the owner did not 
know of the unsea worthy condition of the ship, (and see Lon I 
Shaw at p. 165, in Lindsay v. Klein, supra). What is contended 
here is that vapourisation took place consequent upon the pres 
ence of water, and that an inflammable condition of things was 
produced. The water proved to lie in the ship was, as I have 
previously stated, negligible in amount, never reached the lime 
and could not be said to be more than would be present in any 
seaworthy ship, and 1 fail to sec that there is evidence sufficient 
to warrant the holding that the water or any condition of uiisch 
worthiness was the proximate cause of the fire. The whole case 
would seem to lie met by considering and applying the language 
of Kennedy, L.J., in Virginia Carolina Chemical Co. v. Norfolk 
etc. Co. (as reported 81 L.J. (K.B.) at p. 138) : •

“I hold, therefore, tweause on the whole I think it is the 
lietter conclusion, that the section is to l>e read without any qua!
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ification that the vessel should be seaworthy at the commence­
ment of the voyage, or, in other words, that where a loss hap­
pened by reason of tire on board the ship which is not proved to 
have originated and been directly caused by the actual fault or 
with the privity of the shipowner, he is exempt from liability 
under that section, (502, Merchant Shipping Act, 1894 (Imp.) ).

In the present ease, there is an entire absence of any evidence 
that the tire originated or was directly caused by the actual fault 
or with the privity of the defendant, the shipowner, and that 
being the situation, it must follow that the defendant is exempt 
from liability, even if the law of Canada can be held to lie similar 
to the law of England today. Upon the whole, I am of the 
opinion that the law of Canada extends absolute immunity from 
loss, by reason of fire or arising from fire, and if 1 am correct in 
that view, that ends the case, but I have taken pains to pursue 
the matter along the lines of whether in England today there 
would l>e liability upon the particular facts of this case, and also 
to cover the situation, if I should Im> found to be in error in my 
construction and application of the statute law of Canada.

Appeal allowed.

NATIONAL TKVMT Co. v. TA VIA >11.
Manitoba Kina'* Bench, Mathcru, CJ.K.B. June 9, I9SS.

Wills (4 ID—38)—-Testamemta*y capacity—Disease—Aoe—Undue in- 
pi.uence—Nvbse.

Suffering from an aggravated state of arteriosrleromH, whereby the 
mental ami physicnl state of a testator have Iwcn reduced below normal, 
does not affect hi* testamentary capacity; the mind and memory, 
though impaired by age or disease, may lw sufficiently sound to enable 
him to understand the nature of hi» act. The fact that the will haa 
been obtained by a mime attending the tcHtntor in hi* illness, who hua 
been made the principal beneficiary, even if obtained under her threat 
to leave the testator, would not lie sufficient to count it ute undue 
influence.

I’kockedings to establish the validity of a will and for its ad­
mission to probate.

./. W. E. Armstrong, and II. M. Hughes, for the National Trust
Co.

J. Chalmers, for the Canadian (luarantee Trust Co.
Z\ J. Montague, for Miss Taylor.
II. V. Hudson, for Mrs. Bushc and Mrs. Stoekdale.
Matiierh, C.J.K.B. :—On February 2, 1921, the late Colonel 

llosmer executed an instrument, hereinafter referred to as the 
first will, by which a legacy of $200 was left to the defendant 
Edith Taylor; $500 to each of the children of his sister Mrs. 
Itushe, and the remainder of his estate, real and personal, to his 
late wife’s sister Mrs. Fraser, and in the event of her decease to



340 Dominion Law Repohth. [68 D.L.R.

Man.

K.B.

National 
Tbubt Co. 

v.
Tayi.ob.

MhiIhts,
CJ.K.H.

her no» Ronald, and he appointed the Canadian Guarantee Trust 
Co. executor.

Three days later, on February 5, he executed another instru 
ment, hereinafter referred to as the second will, revoking all 
former wills, giving a legacy of $100 to the wife of his nephew 
('beam Bushe, and all the rest of his real and jiersoual estate to 
the defendant Taylor, and he appointed the plaintiff the National 
Trust Co. executor of this will. He died on February 12, 1921, 
the immediate cause of his death being pneumonia, the result of a 
chill received about the 24th of the previous month of January. 
He was then 68 years of age.

An application was made to the Surrogate Court at Brandon 
by the plaintiff for probate of the second will. A caveat was 
entered by the Canadian Guarantee Trust Company, the execu­
tor under the first will. Thereupon an order was made trans­
ferring the proceedings to this Court.

The plaintiff asks for the establishment of the second will 
and that it lie admitted to probate. Mrs. Fraser ,the chief bene­
ficiary under the first will, denies that the document referred to 
as the second will is the will of the late Colonel Hosmer, but that 
if he did execute it that it was obtained by the undue influence 
of the defendant Taylor, and she asks for the establishment of 
the first will.

The defendants Mrs. Stockdale and Mrs. Bushe, the sisters and 
next-of-kin of Colonel Hosmer, deny that either of the documents 
is a valid will. They allege that at the time they purport to have 
been executed he was not of sound and disposing mind, memory 
and understanding, and that the second will was obtained by the 
undue influence of the defendant Edith Taylor. The defendant 
the Canadian Guarantee Trust Co. propounds for proliate the 
first will in the event of the Court holding against the document 
alleged to be the second will.

The fact that the late Colonel Hosmer signed each of the docu­
ments with the formalities required by law for the execution of a 
will is not denied. But that he had the necessary testamentary 
capacity when either instrument was made, and particularly the 
second, is seriously contested by some of the defendants, while br­
others the issue is raised that the instrument called the second 
will was procured to lie executed by the undue influence of the 
defendant Taylor.

The English law concedes to the owner of property the unfet­
tered right of determining by his will to whom it shall pass upon 
his decease. In so disposing of it he has a right to be eccentric, 
capricious, alisurd and even unjust, lieeause none of these in the 
dispositions made prove lack of capacity : Vilkinyton v. Gray.
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|1899] A.C. 401, 68 L.J. (P.C.) 63; Lloyd v. Robertson (1916), 27 
Ü.L.R. 745, 35 O.L.R. 264; (reversed) 28 D.L.R. 192, 37 O.L.R. 
498; Parc v. Cusson (1921), 60 D.L.R. 105, 31 Man. L.R. 197, 
though they may vast some light upon the question. Old age 
often ceases to exeite interest and the control which the law gives 
to a person over the disposal of his or her property is one of the 
most efficient means of commanding respect and attention. Upon 
the exercise of this power the law, however, imposes the condition 
that at the time of its exercise the testator he of sound and dis­
posing mind, memory and understanding.

“If the human instincts and affections, or the moral sense, be­
come perverted by mental disease ; if insane suspicion, or aver­
sion, take the place of natural affection ; if reason and judgment 
are lost, and the mind becomes a prey to insane delusions calcul­
ated to interfere with and disturb its functions, and to lead to a 
testamentary disposition, due only to their baneful influence— 
in such a case it is obvious that the condition of the testamentary 
power fails, and that a will made under such circumstances ought 
not to stand.” [Per Cockburn, C.J., in Ranks v. Good fellow 
(1870), L.R. 5 Q.B. 549, at p. 565, 39 L.J. (Q.B.) 237.]

In an earlier passage on the same page he lays down what is 
essential to the constitution of testamentary capacity with what 
Sir James Hannen, in Boughton v. Knight (1873), L.R. 3 P. & 1). 
64, at p. 74, 42 L.J. (P.) 25, refers to as “singular accuracy.” 
lie said :—

“It is essential to the exercise of such a power that a testator 
shall understand the nature of the act and its effects ; shall un­
derstand the extent of the property of which he is disposing; 
shall be able to comprehend and appreciate the claims to which 
he ought to give effect ; and, with a view to tlie latter object that 
no disorder of the mind shall poison his affections, pervert his 
sense of right, or prevent the exercise of his natural faculties— 
that no insane delusion shall influence his will in disposing of his 
property and bring about a disposal of it which, if the mind had 
been sound, would not have been made.”

In Ranks v. Goodfellow, supra, Cockburn, C. J., quotes from 
several United States eases in which lie says the law respecting 
enfeebled mentality from age and disease is extremely well treat­
ed. From Den v. Vatieleve (1819), 2 South (N.J.) 589, at 660, 
he quotes :—

“By the terms ‘a sound and disposing mind and memory’ it 
has not been understood that a testator must possess these quali­
ties of the mind in the highest degree; otherwise, very few could 
make testaments at all; neither has it been understood that he 
must possess them in as great a degree as he may have formerly 
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done; for even this would disable most men in the decline of life; 
the mind may have been in some degree debilitated, the memory 
may have become in some degree enfeebled ; and yet there may 
be enough left clearly to discern and discreetly to judge, of all 
those things and all those circumstances, which enter into the 
nature of the rational, fair, and just testament. But if they have 
so far failed as that these cannot be discerned and judged of, 
then he cannot be said to lie of sound and disposing mind and 
memory."

And again from Sieve hi v. Vancle ve (1822), 4 Wash. C.C. 262, 
at p. 267 ;—

“But his memory may be very imperfect ; it may be greatly im­
paired by age or disease ; he may not be able at all times to re­
collect the names, the persons, or the families of those with whom 
he had been intimately acquainted ; may at times ask idle ques­
tions, and repeat those which had before been asked and answer­
ed, and yet his understanding may be sufficiently sound for 
many of the ordinary transactions of life . . . The ques­
tion is not so much what was the degree of memory possessed by 
the testator 1 as tliia: Ilad he a disposing memory ! was he cap­
able of recollecting the property he was about to bequeath ; the 
manner of distributing it; and the objects of his bountyf To 
sum up the whole in the most simple and intelligible form, were 
his mind and memory sufficiently sound to enable him to know 
and to understand the business in which he was engaged at the 
time he executed his will!"

In Wilton v. Wilton (1875), 22 Or. 39, at p. 78, Blake, V. C„ 
adopts the following passage from Red field on Wills as “a very 
learned conclusion from the decisions”:—

“If one lie able to transact the ordinary affairs of life he may, 
of course, execute a valid will. The testator must have something 
more than mere passive memory. Hr must retain sufficient ac­
tive memory to collect in his mind, without prompting, the par 
ticulars or elements of the business to be transacted and to hold 
them in his mind a sufficient length of time to perceive, at least. 
their more obvious relations to each other, and lie able to form 
some rational judgment in regard to them. The elements of such 
a judgment should be the numlier of those who are the proper 
objects of his liounty, their deserts, with reference to conduct, 
rapacity, and need, and what he had before done for them, and 
the amount and condition of his property. It will be obvious that 
even this amount of capacity may often be more or less clouded 
and obscured, and still the will be established, where it poaaesse 
no inherent incongruities or defects, and is in strict accordant 
with the testator's previously declared purposes and intentions.'
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In the leading case of Harwood v. Baker (1840), 3 Moo. P.C. 
282, at p. 290,13 E.R. 117, Erskine, J., delivering the opinion of 
the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council, said:—

"Their Lordships are of the opinion, that in order to constitute 
a sound disposing mind, a Testator mu * not only be able to un­
derstand that he is by his Will giving the whole of Ills property 
to one object of his regard; but that he must also have capacity 
to comprehend the extent of his property, and the nature of the 
claims of others, whom, by his Will, he is excluding from all par­
ticipation in that property.”

He adds :—
"That the protection of the law is in no cases more needed, 

than it is in those where the mind has been too much enfeebled 
to comprehend more objects than one, and most especially when 
that one object may be so forced upon the attention of the in­
valid, as to shut out all others that might require consideration; 
and, therefore, the question which their Lordships propose to 
decide in this case, is not whether Mr. Maker knew when he was 
giving all his property to his wife, and excluding all his other 
relations from any share in it, but whether be was at that time 
callable of recollecting who those relations were, of understand­
ing their respective claims upon his regard and bounty, and of 
deliberately forming an intelligent purpose of excluding them 
from any share of Ilia property. If he had not the capacity re­
quired, the propriety of the disposition made by the Will is a 
matter of no importance. If he had it, the injustice of the exclu­
sion would not affect the validity of the disposition though the 
justice or injustice might east some light upon the question as 
to his capacity.”

See also Wright v. Jewell (1894), 9 Man. L.R. 607, at p. 616.
The concrete question which it seems to me 1 have to decide 

\\ nli respect to the second will is very similar to the one with 
which their Lordships had to deal in llarwmd v. Baker, supra, 
and it is not whether the testator knew when he was giving all 
his property with the trifling exception of *100 to his nurse and 
excluding all his relations from any share in it, with the trifling 
exception mentioned, but whether he was at that time capable of 
recollecting who those relations were, of understanding their 
respective claims upon his regard and bounty, and of delilierate- 
ly forming an intelligent purpose of excluding them from any 
share of his property.

It was not disputed that the onus probandi lies upon those 
who propound a will to satisfy the conscience of the Court that 
tin- instrument propounded is the last will of a free and capable 
testator. That was stated by Varke, B., in Barry v. Butlin
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a will under which he takes a benefit, that is a circumstance 
that ought generally to excite the suspicion of the Court and 
calls upon it to be vigilant and jealous in examining the evidence

'875:
in suppoit of the instrument in favour of which it ought not to 
pronounce unless the suspicion is removed and it is judicially 
satisfied that the paper propounded does express the true will 
of the deceased. A few months earlier the same learned Baron, 
in Baker v. Batt (1838), 2 Moo. P.C. 317,12 E.R. 1026, expressed 
the same principle in but slightly different language. He first 
referred to the onus upon the person propounding a will as 
expressed in the first rule, and proceeded at p. 321 :—

“There is also another principle upon which the Court below 
has acted, and which has long prevailed in the Ecclesiastical 
Courts, which is this—that if the person benefited by a Will, him­
self writes or procures it to lie written, the Will is not void, as it 
would have been by the Civil Law ; but the circumstance forms 
a just ground of suspicion, and calls upon the Court to be vigil­
ant and jealous, and requires clear and satisfactory proof, that 
the instrument contains the real intention of the Testator.”

Barry v. Bull in was followed in Fulton v. Andrew (1875), 
L.R. 7 ILL. 448, 44 L.J. (P.) 17, and in Brown v. Fisher (1890), 
63 L.T. 465. In the latter case the testator made a will on June 
7, 1887, largely in favour of the defendant, a woman with whom 
he had lived as his wife for forty years but to whom he was not 
married. The plaintiff, who was the testator’s brother, pro­
pounded for probate an instrument purporting to lie a will dated 
Novemlier 7, 1887, in the plaintiff’s favour. This latter inetru 
ment had been prapared by a solicitor employed by the plaintiff 
but who had no access to the testator and took his instructions 
entirely from the plaintiff. The dispositions made by this latter- 
will were contrary to all previous testamentary instrument< 
signed by the testator as well as to his expressed testamentary 
intention. The only evidence in its favour was that of the plain 
tiff and a witness who added nothing to his evidence. Sir James 
llannen refused probate of the later will and granted probat- 
to the earlier will. He had at the beginning of his judgment 
quoted the above passage from Barry v. Butlin and he now eon 
tinues 63 L.T., at p. 467 :—

“On the whole of the evidence, I find that the doubt and su< 
pieion with which I was bound to watch this ease, in accordai)' 
with the passage I have read, have not been removed ; and it ha 
not been affirmatively established, as the plaintiff was bound
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to establish it, that the deceased man knew and approved of the 
contents of this document.”

Neither of the wills in question here was written or prepared 
hy those named as beneficiaries, hut the rule is not confined to 
cas«*s of that nature. In Tyrrell v. Painton, (1894] P. 151, at p. 
157, 42 W.R. 343, 70 L.T. 453, Lindley, L.J., laid it down that 
the rule was not confined:—

“To the single ease in which a will is prepared hy or on the 
instructions of the person taking large benefits under it, hut ex­
tends to all cases in which circumstances exist which excite the 
suspicion of the Court; and wherever such circumstances exist, 
ami whatever their nature may be, it is for those who propound 
the will to remove such suspicion, and to prove affirmatively that 
the testator knew and approved of the contents of the document, 
and it is only where this is done that the onus is thrown on those 
who oppose the will to prove fraud or undue influence, or what­
ever else they rely on to displace the case made for proving the 
will.”

That statement of the law was expressly approved hy the 
Ontario Court of Appeal in Wannamakcr v. Livingston (1917), 
43 OLE. 243, at p. 261.

There was nothing decided in Craig v. Lamourcux (1919), 50 
D.L.R. 10, (1920) A.C. 349, 26 Rev. Leg. 306, 89 L.J. (P.C.) 22, 
at all in conflict with this doctrine. In both Harry v. Butlin, 
supra, and Craig v. Lamourcux, supra, it is held that there is no 
rule of law which easts upon a person who prepares a will under 
which he takes a benefit any heavier onus than that which rests 
upon any other legatee, but as pointed out by Parke, 11., it is a 
circumstance of more or less weight according to the facts of each 
particular case—in some of no weight at all—varying according 
to the circumstances, for instance, the quantum of the legacy in 
proportion to the property disposed of and numerous other con­
tingencies, but in no case amounting to more than a circumstance 
of suspicion demanding the circumspection of the Court in in­
vestigating the case and calling upon it not to grant probate 
without full and entire satisfaction that the instrument does ex­
press the real intention of the deceased.

There have undoubtedly been cases since Full on v. Andrew, 
supra, which have been decided upon the assumption that the 
law placed upon a person who prepared a will under which he 
took a benefit “the onus of showing the righteousness of the 
transact ion.” That was the ground upon which the majority of 
the Supreme Court proceeded when Craig v. Lamourcux was 
Indore that tribunal tub nom., Lamoureux v. Craig (1914), 17 
D.L.R. 422, 49 Can. 8.C.R. 305, and was the basis of the decision
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Mu. in Wright v. Jewell, 9 Man. L.R. 607. Fulton v. Andrew, L.R. 7, 
KB' H.L., did not, however, ao decide, and the statement derives its
___ authority solely from an unguarded dictum of Lord Hatherley

Natiosal at p, 472, in that case to the effect that those who take for their
Trust Co. own benefit after having been instrumental in preparing or ob­

taining a will “have thrown upon them the onus of showing theTatlos.
righteousness of the transaction.” The Canadian Courte adopted 
this dictum hut as pointed out in Re Simpson Estate (1919), 51 
D.L.R. 143, 53 N.8.R. 285, the effect of Craig v. Lamoureui, 
supra, is to correct the misconception of the law created by it.

The testator was a retired army officer who took up a home­
stead near Virden, in 1886. His wife was a sister of Sir Henry 
Juta, Chief Justice of South Africa. They had been married 
aliout thirty-five years and there was no issue. The homestead 
was sold, part in 1911 and the balance in 1914, in which latter 
year the testator and his wife moved into a dwelling house which 
they had erected in Virden. The title to the lot on which the 
house was built was taken in the testator’s name but the pur­
chase-money, amounting to 6700, was supplied by the wife, and 
she also paid for the erection of the house, at a coat of over 65,000. 
She was in receipt of a considerable independent income during 
the last fifteen years from her mother's estate, from which source 
she received upwards of £5,300. Her income was paid monthly 
by her brother in Cape Town and when her health began to fail 
an arrangement was made whereby it should continue to the 
testator during his life, should he survive her.

While in health the testator was physically and mentally vigor 
oua, and a fluent talker. A few years liefore his death he became 
afflicted with arteriosclerosis, and in June, 1918, the disease had 
made such progress that one of his legs became gangrenous and 
had to lie amputated. The operation was performed in the Win 
nipeg General Hospital and the defendant Taylor nursed him 
while there and returned to Virden with him in July, and re 
mained with him two or three months. In December, 1918, gain 
grene had developed in the other leg and he returned to Winni 
peg to have it amputated also. The operation took place in Jan 
uary or February, 1919, and the defendant Taylor again nurse, i 
him through it and returned with him to Virden in April, 19V 
She continued as hie nurse until December of that year when she 
went to California for the winter and Nurse Bannatyne took her 
place. There appears to have been a good deal of tenmon between 
Nurse Taylor and Mrs. Hosmer and it was became of this ten 
sion that she then left. It is due to Miss Taylor to say that Mr-. 
Hosmer seems to have been somewhat hard tc get along with 
amicably. Dr. Clinghan, who was the testator’s attending physi-
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cian from April, 1919, to October, 1920, believed that this tension Man. 
Iictween the patient’s wife and his nurse produced an unfavour- KB
able atmosphere for him. Mrs. Hosmer was ill and also required -----
the services of a nurse but Miss Taylor did not deem it her duty National 
to look after both. The relations between Miss liannatyne and t,d*tCo- 
Mrs. Hosmer were cordial but on the other hand she did not suit Tatlo*. 
the Colonel as well as Miss Taylor did. It was Anally agreed 
that Misa Bannatyne should continue as nurse until the Hoemers cj.x.a.' 
went to Winnipeg, as they expected to do early in October, 1920, 
and that nurse Taylor should then go to Virden and bring them 
down, and this arrangement was carried out. A suite of rooms 
was secured on Qrosvenor Avenue, Winnipeg, and they left Vir­
den on September 30, 1920, and thereafter lived in Winnipeg.

Mrs. Hoemer became worse after coming to this city and died 
on January 19 following. She had some time before made a will 
leaving everything to her husband but had later added a holo­
graph codocil which purpoits to give her money and personal 
property to her husband but ifter his death to go to her sister,
Mrs. Fraser, or her son Ronald should she pre-decease the test­
ator. The house in Virden was left to Mary Sellars, now Mary 
Simpson, and there were other bequests of certain apeciAc chat­
tels. The Colonel himself died on February 12, twenty-four days 
after his wife's death.

In view of the issues raised in this contest, it is important to 
ascertain from the evidence as far as possible what the mental 
and physical condition of the testator was at various time* 
sulmequent to hie second operation. All witnesses agree that up 
until that time his mind was quiti normal, but there is consider­
able diversity amongst them as to his mental condition subse­
quent to that time.

l)r. George Clinghan had been the testator’s family physician 
since 1901. He went overseas in 1916 and did not return until 
aliout the time of the second operation in January or February,
1919. He attended the Colonel professionally from the latter’s 
return to Virden in April of that year until he left for Winni­
peg, in September of the following year. As to his physical con­
dition he says the second wound bad healed fairly well but that 
Ins blood-pressure was very low, below 100, and be had to give 
him stimulant* to strengthen his heart action. He says:—

‘‘His mental condition was very much changed from 1916. He 
was then an ordinarily vigorous minded man, but in April, 1919, 
bis mind was in a dilapidated condition. He could not hold 
conversation. That was still his mental condition when he left 
for Winnipeg, in October, 1920. There were times when he was 
less laid than at other times, but there was no improvement. He
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was suffering from arteriosclerosis, which is a progressive disease, 
gradually eating away. 1 would not have thought him capable 
of doing any business during the period I treated him; I had 
never thought of his making a will or tested him out on that line, 
but from memory of his condition I do not know how he could 
make a will.”

Dr. Clinghan saw him twice in Winnipeg, the first time two 
or three weeks before his wife’s death. His opinion is that the 
Colonel’s mental condition had not improved at that time. He 
next saw him less than a week before he died. He was then in a 
semi-comatose condition.

Nurse Hannatyne knew both Colonel and Mrs. Ilosmer for 10 
years and nursed for them on three different occasions, first about 
6 years ago during an illness of Mrs. Hosmer, next from May 17, 
1918, for the Colonel. She took him to Winnipeg on May 24 for 
his first operation and remained there with him for some time 
afterwards but she returned to Virden before he came. She next 
was engaged on December 24, 1919, after his second operation, 
and remained with him until he went to Winnipeg, in October, 
1920. She says that when she went back on December 24, 1919, 
she found the Colonel very much changed.

“He was then a helpless old man, could do nothing for himself, 
and was not interested in anything. He spoke quite thickly at 
times, always thick but sometimes worse than others. He never 
carried on a conversation so long as 1 was there. He would 
start a conversation and then forget what he was going to say 
and have to be helped out. He used to cry without apparent rea­
son. Would wake up in the morning and cry, and again in the 
afternoon. He liked me to read to him and used to remark to 
Mrs. Hosmer that he was getting intelligent, not jocularly but 
quite seriously.”

She says he never could remeinl>er her name; always called 
her nurse. He always called Mary Sellars “Anna,” that being 
the name of a previous nurse. In August, 1919, he liecame un­
conscious for a short time when being wheeled in the park at 
Virden. Dr. Clinghan, who happened to be there at the time, 
attributes it to lack of blood supply to the brain. About .March, 
1920, he had another unconscious spell and Dr. Friar was called. 
His head dropped over and he vomited. Miss Hannatyne says 
that Miss Taylor told her of fainting spells the Colonel had, one 
in August, 1919, which she referred to as a “clot,” and also that 
he had other unconscious spells both before and after the August 
attack.

“In December, 1919, the Colonel seemed to me to be very child­
ish and not able to connect up things; at times he was dull. His
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mental condition in September, 1920, was mueh the same as in 
December, 1919, but he was then more interested in things and 
liked to have the papers read to him. His physical condition was 
letter then, the doctors thought. At that time Mrs. Hosmer had 
almost recovered. While in Virden the Colonel had visitors and 
liked to see people, and there was no trouble about his doing so. 
He never talked connectedly; he would get off the subject and 
Mrs. Hosmer, when there, would prompt him. lie quite often 
sang nursery rhymes at which times 1 thought he was just a little 
childish and it did not worry me.”

The next witness who can speak of his condition before coming 
to Winnipeg, was Mary Simpson, formerly Mary Sellars. She 
had occupied the position of a sort of privileged domestic from 
1914 until after the death of both. She says that the testator 
was never the same after the amputations. Hack in 1914 ami 
1915, she said he was active and did not sleep in the daytime, but 
by October, 1920, he slept a great deal in the daytime ami also 
at night. He got up in the morning and sometimes dozed off in 
his chair. If not feeling well he went to lied after lunch and 
slept until four o’clock. Before 1916, she never saw him crying, 
but often saw him crying after his second operation over almost 
nothing. This occurred quite often. Prior to his amputations 
he talked like any person else. It was different in October, 1920. 
He could not remember anything when talking, would stop and 
start on something else, some days he was better than others. 
After the tirst operation and before the second he was uncon­
scious on one occasion for several hours.

Dr. Montgomery attended the Colonel while in Winnipeg, dur­
ing both his operations. After his second operation he saw him 
almost daily, so long as he was in the hospital and until he return­
ed to Virden. In his opinion the Colonel’s mental condition was 
then quite normal. He saw him again in December, 1920, and 
found him in much the same condition as when he left the hos­
pital, both mentally and physically. In his opinion the Colonel's 
ability to transact business was then as good as it ever was since 
he knew him, and his ability to make a will was then normal. He 
gave him no memory test but they spoke of things that had oc­
curred in the summer, and he was surprised to see him so well.

The defendant Nurse Taylor says that when she left in De- 
eember, 1919, both the Colonel's physical and mental condition 
was very good and that when she went back to take charge of 
him in Septemlxr, 1920, she thought he had improved. Mentally 
she thought hr was in good shape, and “I thought better than 
in December, 1919,M and that condition was maintained until 
the death of his wife.
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Mrs. Gyles, an old resident of Virden, and intimate friend of 
the Hosmers, says that she visited the Colonel very frequently in 
Virden, until he left in the fall of 1920, and she was nearly al­
ways allowed to see him, although he had bad attacks when no 
person was allowed in. She says he changed very much after 
his second operation mentally.

“Up to that time there was not much change, but after his 
second operation the change was very marked. He could not 
speak plainly, nor form sentences. He was just like a person who 
had had a stroke. He would start sentences and get stuck and 
the nurse or Mrs. Hosmer would finish. He forgot people’s names. 
He would forget my name. His condition improved but never 
altogether cleared up. When a visitor went in he was bright, 
had a gay greeting, but after a time that passed and he became 
dull.”

She never saw him inclined to cry or “well-up” until after the 
second operation. It was when he noticed his own helplessness, 
sort of self-pity, she thought, which made him cry.

Mr. H. H. Goutter, barrister and solicitor of Virden, knew 
the Colonel and his wife intimately from the time they first came 
to that locality in 1886. He had been his solicitor for a consider­
able portion of that time but in later years, prior to 1918, busi­
ness had been transacted by Mr. Agnew. In the fall of 1918, at 
Mrs. Hosmer's request, he again took charge of their legal busi­
ness. During the subsequent period until they left for Winnipeg, 
he saw the Colonel very frequently, both socially and on business. 
He says that after the first operation he seemed to lose his power 
of speech. It was difficult to talk to him. If a question was ad­
dressed to him he would try to answer it but lose the sentence, 
and if you completed his answer he seemed pleased, or dissented 
by a movement of his head. His wife tried to shield him from 
worry but he was jealous of his own affairs and would not let any 
business be done unless in his presence. After the second opera­
tion any business of his was transacted in his presence by Mrs. 
Hosmer and he assented or dissented. He says on one occasion, 
in November, 1919, the question of pre-payment of a mortgage 
payable to him arose and he expressed very decided views.

There is a special agreement amongst all the witnesses that 
no great change took place in either the testator’s physical or 
mental condition from the time of his removal to Winnipeg, in 
October, 1920, and the time of his wife’s funeral, on January 24, 
1921.

Dr. Blanchard, an old friend of the Colonel, made two social 
calls before Mrs. Hosmer’s death. He noted a marked change in 
his mental condition from what it had been while in health. He
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noticed the same inability to conduct a conversation as other 
witnesses have spoken of, and his tendency to forget the subject 
of discourse and say something irrelevant. But he did take part 
in the conversation. He remained only ten or fifteen minutes 
and went sooner than he would have done if the Colonel had 
been normal. He didn’t think there was much use in talking to 
him because he appeared to be rather stupid. In his opinion the 
Colonel was in a condition approaching second childhood. There 
were indications he thought of mental decay, symptoms of senile 
dementia. At the same time he declines to offer a confident 
opinion because he is not an expert on mental diseases and be­
cause of a lack of sufficient opportunity for observation. His 
remarks were not insane, but he would say things you did not 
expect him to say. He would make remarks which indicated that 
he did not understand what had been said previously. His con­
dition would indicate a weakening of mind rather than a break 
and approaching the point where he would be insane. His physic­
al condition was relatively better, he thought, than his mental 
condition. He had not seen the Colonel from his second opera­
tion until two weeks before his wife’s death, and his mental 
change from normal was then very marked. He says he formed 
no definite opinion as to his mental condition. Such opinion as 
lie did form was that the Colonel’s condition was very unsatis­
factory, and in short that he was “all off.’’

James G. Monroe had lived in Virden in 1908 until 1911, and 
there made the acquaintance of the Hosmers and was a frequent 
visitor in their house. In health the Colonel was a very active 
man and mentally normal. After the war he saw the Colonel in 
December, 1920, and found that he had changed considerably in 
appearance. He did not seem to be so fluent in speech or prompt 
in his conversation ; was apt to be forgetful and start on some­
thing that had no bearing upon the conversation at all. He 
would forget altogether the thread and start on some other topic. 
Mr. Monroe thought the Colonel in his dotage the end of 1920. 
He frequently called upon him up to the time of his wife’s death 
and more frequently afterwards. His voice and his articulation 
were changed; there was a thickness and a halt in his speech 
rather than a stutter or stammer.

Dr Matheson knew the Colonel for a great many years and 
was medical officer of the regiment of which the Colonel was 
officer commanding. He was overseas for four years and did not 
see the Colonel again before May, 1919. From October, 1920, 
he attended both the Colonel and his wife professionally while 
they lived, visiting her fifty times and the Colonel thirty times. 
Although he had not seen the Colonel for four years he noticed
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no change in him except he was thinner and more aged. His 
first visits to the Colonel were only friendly, but were profes­
sional and more frequent towards the end. He says the Colonel 
talked of military affairs and ordinary matters, and that he had 
no trouble in understanding him. He talked of the war, of his 
old regiment, or incidents of camp life, and he was quite clear 
and wide awake. That his condition was as normal as 10 years 
lief ore, and that condition continued until about 48 hours before 
his death. At the time of his wife’s death he may have been a 
little weaker but nothing more ; nothing to affect him mentally. 
He, however, admits that a man who starts to say something and 
halts in the middle, the idea having gone, is not normal, and that 
when the brain has become affected by arteriosclerosis the patient 
could not be regarded as 100% normal. He also admits dizziness, 
sleepiness, fainting, convulsion, forgetfulness, loss of memory, 
outbursts of weeping or emotion, childishness, thickness of speech 
and vomiting are indications that the disease has reached the 
brain; that the disease is a progressive one, and that senile de­
mentia may eventually result. He knew there were times when 
he had become unconscious for several hours. That probably 
due to the congested condition of the brain, might be due to 
arteriosclerosis. Arteriosclerosis, he says, affects all parts of the 
body, resulting in a general slowing up of the part affected, and 
reduced energy. The same thing occurs when it reaches the 
brain. It is manifested by loss of mental initiative, a failure of 
judgment, and no adequate grasp of the situation at all. Diffi­
cult to say what the first symptoms are ; tiring is one of the first. 
May go on for 10 or 15 years. People may be afflicted with this 
disease for 25 to 30 years, living to old age, and still have full 
mental vigor, but such people do not show childish symptoms, 
the explanation being that the disease had not developed in the 
brain. Once the disease has reached the brain the patient could 
not be said to be 100% normal. Physically, he was a good deal 
under par. From October the Colonel had lost quite a bit and was 
thinner. He did not think that the Colonel had senile dementia.

These are the outside witnesses who speak of the condition 
between the Colonel’s arrival in Winnipeg and his wife’s funeral 
on January 23 or 24. During that period there seems to have 
been no marked change in the condition as it was before. The 
Colonel had probably grown a little thinner, but his mentality 
was about the same as it had been when he came to Winnipeg.

We are now to the crucial time, from his wife’s death until 
February 5. Some light is thrown upon his condition during 
this period in a letter written by the defendant Taylor to a Miss



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 353

Kennedy, dated the first day of February. She says in that 
letter :—

“I have thought so often of writing to you but my mind has 
been in sueli a whirl lately and I am so worried about the Colonel, 
as lie is not at all well. But I must first of all tell you about Mrs. 
Hosmer.”

She then goes on to tell about Mrs. Ilosmer’s last illness. She 
took the Colonel to the door of his wife’s room at seven o’clek 
in the evening to bid her good-night and that was the last occa­
sion on which he saw her. He was asleep at ten o’clock when she 
died and the undertakers came about 11.30 and took her, and 
the Colonel did not hear a sound.

“At six o’clock in the morning, however, he asked me how Mrs. 
Hosmer was but my heart failed me. 1 felt 1 was not equal to 
the task of breaking the news. The doctor thought I could do it 
better. 1 can’t tell you how 1 went through misleading him for 
three hours. It was the most harrowing tiling I’ve ever had to 
do. 1 made several attempts but really found it was too much 
for me so I then ’phoned for Rev. Captain Robinson and Mr. 
Monroe, old friends as you know. They went into the Colonel’s 
room together and broke the news to him about ten o’clock in the 
morning. The poor old thing kept up wonderfully well but he 
was confined to the house, would not go out until after the funer­
al, which was five days. 1 think the air must have been too dry 
for him, however, he became very hoarse and then developed a 
cough, a slight bronchitis which is almost better now but it has 
pulled him down terribly. I feel that he is gradually failing. My 
heart relies for him Miss Kennedy, it is so pathetic to sec him 
helpless, childish, and without his legs. Of course you realize 
that I have been with the Colonel so long that he seems so de­
pendent on me. To see him losing strength is almost more than 
1 can bear. He may pick up but I am so afraid that this is the 
beginning of the end with him.”

The Rev. Captain Robinson [Robertson] gave the Colonel com­
munion on the 26th, two days after his wife’s funeral. He says 
that on that day he seemed to be suffering from a very heavy 
cold and he was not impressed with his condition. He asked the 
nurse if the Colonel had made a will, and she said no. He then 
talked to him about making a will and the witness says the 
Colonel “was favourable.”

“I asked if he had anyone in particular in mind and he said 
‘no,’ and I suggested Mr. Goulter. Don’t know if I named Mr. 
Craig or not; I asked if I would write to Goulter, and he said 
‘yes/ I told the nurse I was going to write Goulter and she ap-
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(.roved. I expected that the shock and heavy cold might cause 
his death at any time.”

He further says that with Mr. Monroe he broke the news of 
his wife’s death to the Colonel and that he took it very hard and 
broke down, but in a while he became more reconciled. The wit­
ness did write a letter to Mr. Coulter of that date but in it he 
makes no mention of a will or the Colonel’s desire that Coulter 
should come to Winnipeg—all he says is:—

“I spoke to him in general about matters and Mary has prom­
ised to write you today, asking if you can manage to come down 
as early as possible next week, then you can fix things up with the 
Colonel. I will be very glad if you can do this.”

Mary Simpson, nee Sellars, on January 26, wrote a letter to 
Mr. Coulter, but she makes no mention of a will. She writes:— 

“The Colonel feels he would like you to come down if you pos­
sibly could very soon. Mr. Robertson talked the matter over 
between them this morning so the Colonel thinks he ought to see 
you himself.” And she adds:—“I think the Colonel is wonder­
ful, he is just fine in his spirits. But today he has a slight cold.”

Her account of the reason for wanting Mr. Coulter to come 
is that he had received a copy of his wife’s will but he could not 
understand it and he wanted Coulter to come down and explain 
it to him. That was, she thinks, after he had received Mr. 
Coulter’s letter telling him about his wife’s will. Between that 
time and the second of February, when Mr. Coulter arrived, the 
Colonel was expecting him. The Colonel knew that Mr. Coulter 
had left Virden on the first and would call upon him on Feb­
ruary 2. He did not want his sister, Mrs. Bushe, about while 
Coulter was there and he asked Mrs. Simpson to telephone Mrs. 
Bushe not to come on the second as he was going to be busy doing 
business. “He said to me he didn’t want her around when Mr. 
Coulter was there. That same morning he also told me he was 
going to make a will.” Mrs. Simpson accordingly 'phoned Mrs. 
Bushe as requested. She says Mr. Coulter came in the forenoon 
and was there until about four in the afternoon. She says :—

“I knew what business was going on through Miss Taylor. The 
day before Coulter came Miss Taylor said to me: ‘The Colonel 
may as well make a will when he is so bright and so well.’ That 
is all that was said then so far as I can remember. For the first 
two or three days after Mrs. Hosmer’s death the Colonel was ex­
ceptionally bright. After Mr. Coulter left I had no conversation 
with the Colonel. He was tired. I know because I asked him 
and he said ‘yes.’ Otherwise he appeared all right.”

Miss Taylor received no request from the Colonel to either 
telephone or write for Mr. Coulter, but she ’phoned him on Feb-
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ruary 1, urging him to come, because Mrs. Agncw had suggested 
that what business had to be done had better be done. The busi­
ness which Miss Taylor had in mind was the making of a will.

J. G. Monroe went with Captain Robertson to break the news 
to him of his wife’s death. He says when Rev. Captain Robert­
son broke the news the Colonel did not seem to grasp it instantly. 
Mr. Robertson then mentioned it in a simpler way and he fell 
over with a cry but calmed down in half an hour and discussed 
the disposal of the body and the arrangements for the service. 
He appeared to be disappointed he had not seen her and he knew 
she was not in the house. He went to see him again the day of 
the funeral and gave him a list of those sending floral wreaths. 
He seemed pleased, and then he would sob. The witness did not 
stay long as he was afraid of upsetting the Colonel. After that 
lie tried to visit him every day. The cold which he had con­
tracted seemed to be taking effect and he was getting weaker, he 
was on the down grade more rapidly than before. He says he 
noticed a change in his physical condition very shortly after his 
wife’s funeral. He had got a chill and troublesome cough. On 
occasions he got quite childish, sobbing and crying for a moment 
or so. Witness could not understand it at all. There was nothing 
in the conversation to give rise to it. Witness tried to get away 
from all personal topics but nevertheless the Colonel would sob 
or cry without apparent cause. He noticed this first about a 
week after the funeral, that was when he first noticed the crying. 
He says he thought when he met him in the end of 1920, that 
lie was in his dotage and that condition increased towards his 
death. He says that Nurse Taylor told him when he was called 
to break the news of his wife’s death that she was afraid to do it 
because he might have another stroke and pass away. On Tues­
day, February 1, he saw the Colonel. He says he appeared to 
lie bright under the circumstances and he did not notice much 
change physically since the Saturday before. He called every 
day after and most days saw the Colonel. The cold appeared to 
be taking a firmer grip as days went on. It never cleared up and 
continued to the end. He was getting weaker, “I could see that 
myself.” The first time he saw him after the funeral the Colonel 
was in his chair, but after that he was always in bed. The 
Colonel mentioned Goulter two or three times and was anxious 
to know when he was coming down. Both he and Miss Taylor 
spoke of it.

‘‘I was there the day that Goulter was there. I met Mrs. 
Gyles coming out about 5.30 p.m. I didn’t see the Colonel, be­
cause Miss Taylor told me the Colonel was tired and better not 
sec him. The Colonel and I discussed the funeral first time I
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called after. I tried to keep away from personal matters and we 
talked generally of conditions of tli£ times and of the world and 
politics, such as I would discuss with any person. I could not say 
that he was interested. He Was not much interested as it was I 
who did the talking.’*

Mrs. Gyles saw him on January 31. aliout 4:30 in the after­
noon. She had last seen him in October before. On January 31 
his sister, Mrs. Bushe, was there with Mrs. Gyles. The Colonel 
was in bed. He was then suffering from a bad bronchial cold, 
was wheezy and very emotional, and physically poorly. Mentally 
he seemed brighter. He was able to form sentences with occa­
sional loss of a word. He asked Mrs. Gyles about her son who 
had had an operation, naming him. He asked a lot of intelligent 
questions as to how the Women’s Association meetings were go­
ing on, etc., to which Mrs. Gyles was a delegate. He complained 
about his arms and how thin they were, and he complained of 
nausea. Mrs. Gyles suggested that perhaps the medicine was 
the cause of the nausea and he said perhaps it was. From time 
to time, while she was there, on the 31st, he cried. His eyes 
would till up. When he spoke of going home to Virden he cried. 
After his second operation he was very emotional. She says:—

“I never saw him when he did not cry. I thought he had lots 
to cry about but did not know why. I thought that the Colonel 
was cranky and impatient with his sister, Mrs. Bushe, when 
there on the 31st. lie said something about her being there— 
“Oh! She’s always here”—to which Mrs. Bushe replied that 
if she thought he really meant that she would not come near him 
for 10 days. Mrs. Bushe said that in rather a joking way.”

This witness called again on February 2, between four and 
five in the afternoon. When she went in she first saw the de­
fendant Taylor, who took her into the sitting room and said— 
“These men have been smoking here.” Mrs. Gyles asked what 
men and she said—“Goulter, and your boy.” I said—“Which 
one”—and she said “Harry.” She said Goulter came down to 
make the Colonel’s will and that he and the Colonel had fixed it 
up to suit themselves but it was no affair of hers. Mrs. Gyles 
asked how the Colonel was and Miss Taylor said:—

“Goulter says he is remarkably bright, but he need not tell 
me about his condition, I know. I know he said that for a pur­
pose. Nobody knows his condition as well as I do.”

Mrs. Gyles suggested that perhaps the Colonel was too tired 
for her to see him but Miss Taylor said: “Oh, no! Goulter 
went out and wrote and the Colonel had a good sleep.’* Sic- 
told her they tried to get Dr. Matheson as a witness but could
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not and that Goulter had phoned for Mrs. Gyles’ son. Mrs. 
Gyles then went in to see the Colonel.

“He was sitting up in bed with his glasses on, reading. He 
knew me and seemed pleased to see me. On Monday 1 had worn 
a new coat and the Colonel had asked me where I got it. On this 
occasion 1 had taken if off and when I came in he said—4 Where 
did you leave your blunderbuss?’ 1 said—‘You mean my coat?* 
—and he said—‘Yes.* We talked of many matters. He said 
Mrs. Agnew came every day. He said he just had a letter from 
Mrs. Agnew and handed it to me, but the letter was to Miss Tay­
lor from Mrs. Hamilton, her daughter, but I did not put him 
right. I don’t think he was childish—he was ill and it would 
have worried him. He said, ‘Harry was here,’ and asked how he 
was getting on, and I said ‘ Very well.* I don’t think he men­
tioned anyone else. He suddenly said—‘She got all the wife’s 
dresses and that is enough for her.’ 1 said—‘Who?’ and he said, 
‘ Mrs. Hushe.’ I did not say anything as 1 thought they were not 
friendly. He did not mention a will and that statement was 
made without anything leading up to it. Then he suddenly said 
—‘Why doesn’t Goulter go away and give his wife a good time?’ 
I said—‘I think she has all she wants,’ and he said, ‘No, she 
doesn’t.’—On the 31st January 1 asked if he had got a letter 
from me at Christmas and he said—‘I got one from Willie (that 
is Mr. Gyles) hut none from you.’ I said, ‘That is strange be­
cause they were in the same envelope,’ and then Mrs. Hushe whis­
pered to me that he doesn’t remember. On February 2 there 
was a beautiful rose on the dresser and 1 asked him where he 
got it and he said the lady and her daughter had brought it but 
could not remember their names. 1 asked if the nurse was com­
ing to Virden with him and he said, ‘yes, she has promised the 
wife to stay with me while I live.’ I said, ‘What will Dr. Clinghan 
think of that?’ and he said, ‘I do not know why he does not like 
her, queer mix-up.’ He asked me when I would come again and 
I said, ‘Friday.’ Just as I left Mr. Monroe came in.”

Mrs. Gyles could not pay the promised visit on Friday but 
went on Saturday, February 5, about 11:3() a.m. The nurse told 
her then that the Colonel was very weak and tired. Upon wit­
ness suggesting that she had better not go in to see him Miss 
Taylor said he would be mad if she did not, but to only stay a 
few minutes. She found him very tired and listless and not in­
clined to say much, and she remained only about 10 minutes.

“He asked me why I had not come on Friday and said I had 
to see Teddy. I said, ‘ see you have the flowers, ’ and he said, 
‘Yes, the boys sent them.’ 1 said, ‘No, I did,’ and he said, ‘Oh !* 
and thanked me. He again complained of nausea and the doctor 
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had told him he need not take the medicine, hut it made no 
difference. He said he slept a lot. Ilis condition was different 
from what it was three days before. He was very grave when I 
left and asked me whin I would be in Winnipeg again and I 
said I did not know and asked him when he was coming to 
Virden and he said when it gets warmer; said he had drawn 
money enough for two months. 1 said, you are very comfort­
able, and he said yes, he would be comfortable if it were not for 
the kids upstairs. He seemed to mumble the word ‘comfortable.’ 
I heard a voice and noticed that he was listening, and 1 said, 
‘That is Miss Taylor’s sister,’ and he said, ‘Yes, she has come 
down to see the chickens,’ referring to the poultry show.”

Mrs. Gyles says that on February 2 she thought he was bright 
but on the fifth there was a distinct change for the worse 
physically.

‘‘I thought he was physically very ill and liable to die at any 
time. He was wheezing as though his bronchial tubes were filled 
up; his breathing was impeded and his strength seemed to be 
ebbing away. When 1 left 1 don’t think he said good-bye. He 
watched me out of the room. He was not as emotional that day 
as before ; just listless. ’ ’

Mrs. Agnew, another old family friend who knew the testator 
well before his health became impaired, says he had a bright way 
of talking and was very friendly. After the Hosmers came to 
Winnipeg in October, 1920, she visited them every week or 10 
days until Mrs. Hosmer’s death, and either visited the Colonel 
or asked for him by telephone daily thereafter. She had not 
seen him for some months before October, 1920, and she says 
his condition after he came to Winnipeg was not at all the same 
as before.

“He could not speak or remember as before. He was bright 
in his greetings when I went in, but had not much more to say. 
If you suggested anything he would answer but I don’t think he 
ever suggested anything himself. After Mrs. Hosmer’s death 1 
asked him for Mrs. Fraser’s address but he only would say, ‘I 
don’t remember—I can’t remember.’ I have seen him cry with­
out any particular reason; I put it down to weakness. Tears 
were quite foreign to his'nature when well. His general condi­
tion was weak and miserable. He could not carry on a general 
conversation. I would say that after he came to Winnipeg he 
was rather childish. When I ’phoned to Miss Taylor to ask for 
the Colonel she always said he was gradually getting weaker. 
He always knew me when I went in and remembered my name. 
I did not expect his death but would not have been surprised if 
it had occurred any day. After his greeting he had little to
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say—one liad to suggest something. I could see he was growing 
weaker. ’ ’

Mrs. Bushe, the testator’s sister, who was a frequent, though 
it appears a not very welcome, visitor, expresses the opinion that 
the testator had not for years l>een in possession of his full 
mental powers and that he was not in a fit state to make a will 
when either of the documents propounded as wills was executed. 
She is, however, interested in having both wills declared against, 
and besides she had a conversation with Mr. Coulter the morning 
of February 2, before he had gone to see the Colonel on the sub­
ject of the Colonel’s health and his capacity to make a will. Mr. 
Coulter then appears to have had some doubt about the Colonel’s 
testable capacity and before going to see him asked Mrs. Bushe 
how he was. There is some differenee between the account of 
this conversation given by Mrs. Bushe and that given by Mr. 
Coulter. The latter says Mrs. Bushe told him in reply to his 
question that she thought the Colonel was able to do business. 
She says that what she said was that he was as able as he ever 
would be. She, however, knew that Mr. Coulter expected to 
draw the Colonel’s will that day and she raised no objection to 
his doing so but asked Mr. Coulter not to influence the Colonel 
against her.

We now come to the evidence of Mr. Coulter respecting the 
preparation and execution of the document referred to as the 
first will. When Mrs. Ilosmer died on .January 19, he had her 
will in his possession, with the holograph codicil before referred 
to. Mr. Coulter wrote a letter to the Colonel setting out the 
condition of the estate and enclosed a copy of the will and codicil. 
A short time afterwards he got letters from Capt. Robertson 
and Miss Sellers, asking him to come down. He wrote a reply 
on .January 31, saying he would be down on Wednesday. On the 
morning of February 1 he received a telephone message from 
Miss Taylor enquiring when he was coming down and asking 
him to come as soon as possible. lie asked her if the Colonel was 
fit to transact business and she said he was quite all right, and 
added he was brighter since Mrs. Ilosmer’s death. He came 
down on the afternoon of the first, bringing with him the pro­
bate papers for Mrs. Ilosmer’s will, and he saw the Colonel on 
the morning of the second, between 10 and 10.30 a.m., having 
seen Mrs. Bushe in the meantime. Miss Taylor was at the suite 
when he called, also Mary Sellars and the Colonel.

“The Colonel evidently expected me. The first business I 
transacted was to read over the probate papers. I explained to 
him that by the effect of the holograph codicil he had a life 
interest in all the property except one mortgage. I read all the
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papers carefully, he stopping me from time to time. Nurse 
Taylor was sometimes in, sometimes out, looking after him, 
watchful that I did not overtire him. I think he understood the 
papers. He was remarkably bright and could make sentences. 
1 had not seen him so bright since December 1918, and I was 
satisfied as to his capacity. Ilis questions were quite intelligent 
and he appeared to have an intelligent appreciation of what he 
was doing. 1 inferred I was sent for really to make his will and 
1 said—‘Colonel, do you want me to make your will?’ and he 
said—‘Why, certainly.’ I asked Miss Taylor to leave me alone 
with the Colonel and she went out. I said—‘ Colonel, whom do 
you wish to benefit ?’ and he replied, ‘The wife’s sister.’ 1 said, 
‘Do you mean Mrs. Fraser?’ and he said, ‘Yes.’ I said, ‘If *Mrs. 
Fraser dies before you, who do you wish to have the estate?’ He 
seemed surprised by the question, but then said ‘Ronald.’ (We 
had been discussing the codicil to Mrs. Hosmer’s will). I then 
said, ‘Suppose Ronald dies first?’ 1 had to do considerable ex­
plaining and finally he decided upon Ronald’s issue. I said, ‘ Any 
legacies?’ and he said, ‘Something for the nurse.’ I said, ‘How 
much ?’ He hesitated, and I said, ‘One hundred dollars?’ Still 
he hesitated. I said, ‘Two hundred dollars?’ and he said, ‘Yes, I 
think that is about right.’ I said, ‘Over and above the salary?’ 
and he said, ‘Yes.’ I said, ‘Anything else,’ and he said, ‘Some 
thing for the children.’ I said, ‘You mean Mrs. Bushe’s child­
ren ? ’ and he said, ‘Yes.’ I said, ‘ How much ? ’ and he said. 
‘Five hundred dollars each.’ I said, ‘Anything for Mrs. Bushe?' 
and he said, very decidedly, ‘Nothing, just for the children.’ 1 
then said, ‘It will be necessary to appoint an executor,’ and he 
asked my advice and I told him as most of his old friends were up 
in > ars, he had better have a trust company, and I suggested the 
v ional Trust Co., or the Canadian Guarantee Trust Co., in 
which he had shares, and he Slid, ‘Put it in my own company.’ I 
said, ‘Colonel, I will have to add some powers to the executors.’ 
and went to the front room to rough draft the will, and came back 
and read it to him, and he said, ‘That is all right.’ Just then 
lunch was announced and I was out about half an hour. I think 
he slept in the meantime. The Colonel was not in bed but sitting 
up in a room in the middle of the flat, not the dining-room or 
parlour. There was no discussion when I read the draft, he saiil 
‘All right.’ I think after completing a fair copy I destroyed tin 
draft. The Colonel was not at table for lunch. After lunch I 
completed the fair copy and asked Miss Taylor to ’phone Dr. 
Matheson to come and witness the will. I knew he was the tned 
ical attendant. She reported that she could not get him. Miss 
Taylor and I discussed who was the next best, and I, knowing
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that it would require a commissioner to take the affidavits to the 
probate papers, suggested Harry Gyles, barrister, an old Virden 
boy and friend of the family. 1 ’phoned to him and he vaine up. 
I showed him first the will and asked him to read it over and 
asked him to find from the Colonel if he thought it was all l ight, 
and 1 asked him to take the probate papers and the will and see 
if the Colonel understood them. He went into the Colonel's 
room, was there 20 or 80 minutes, and came out and said he 
understood them all right. We both went in and the Colonel 
signed all the papers. We were both present and saw him sign 
ihe will. 1 read the will to the Colonel before (ivies came and I 
saw the Colonel sign both pages. 1 signed as a witness and so 
did Gyles, both in the Colonel’s presence and in the presence of 
each other. 1 do not recall any further conversation as to the 
will. I asked the Colonel if he desired me to write to Sir Henry 
,luta and tell him the contents of the will and he said, ‘Oh yes; l 
wish you would,’ and 1 wrote to Sir Henry as promised.”

In cross-examination by Mr. Hudson, Mr. Goulter says tlmt:—
“The Colonel was when in health a fluent conversationalist, 

no lagging, and that continued up to the time of his tirst opera­
tion, and afterwards until the ‘clot’ formed sometime in 1918. 
After that there was an impediment in his speech, in the Fall 
of 1918, or early in 1919. He never lost his speech but he lost 
the power to complete sentences. Sometimes lie would initiate a 
subject but seemed glad if a subject was mentioned, and he would 
discuss it, but sometimes got stuck for a word and could not go 
on. Sometimes he would initiate by asking a question and would 
sometimes lose a word and could not go on. This continued until 
he went to Winnipeg. He was undoubtedly brighter after his 
wife’s death, on the 2nd February. 1 thought the impediment 
was in his mind rather than in the vocal organs. Sometimes he 
could express himself quite forcibly. On the second February 
the suggestion of the will came from me. He made no sugges­
tions. He answered questions put by me. 1 wanted to make it 
as easy for him as possible. 1 think the suggestion as to the 
Itushe children came from him; not in reply to a question from 
me. He said, ‘Something to the sister’s children,’ but didn’t 
name the amount until 1 asked him.”

Harry Gyles, barrister of this city and an old friend of the 
family, in response to a telephone call from Mr. Goulter, went 
to the Colonel’s suite on February 2, 1921, and found Mr. 
Goulter and Nurse Taylor there.

“I went in and saw the Colonel first with Mr. Goulter. I 
spoke to him and he spoke back. He usually called me by name 
but he did not this time. Goulter said 1 had come to witness the
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will and asked me to explain it to the Colonel and lie would go 
out and talk to the nurse. I read the will over to the Colonel 
and asked him if he understood it and he said, ‘Yes.’ He wanted 
to know if any part would go to Mrs. Bushe particularly. I 
said, ‘No.’ He asked me if Mrs. Fraser dies where would it 
go, and 1 said, ‘To Ronald,’ and he then asked if both die then 
what, and I said, ‘To the next of kin,’ and he asked if that would 
he Mrs. Bushe and I said, ‘Yes,’ and he expressed a strong wish 
that that should not happen, that both should not die. He ex­
pressed himself as satisfied with the will and I then called in 
Mr. Coulter and he came in and we had some discussion but don’t 
remember what. Coulter then took the will and handed it to the 
Colonel and he signed. 1 do not remember if it was read over or 
not. The Colonel signed and Coulter and 1 witnessed it. There 
could be no doubt the Colonel knew he was signing a will.”

This witness had seen the Colonel 2 or 3 weeks before his wife’s 
death. IIis condition was not as good then, he said, as when he 
signed the will of February 2. It was an effort to speak but if 
he focused his mind he could speak. He appeared to under­
stand what was read to him and asked intelligent questions. In 
cross-examination he said: ‘‘It was quite an effort for him to 
write. He only wrote his own name.”

So far as the evidence discloses, no person saw the Colonel 
on February 3 except defendant Taylor. Mrs. Bushe called 
on that day but did not see him. She, however, heard him 
being violently ill in his room. His condition on the fourth 
is spoken of by Mary Simpson and Mr. Craig. On that day, 
according to Mary Simpson, he was much in the same condition 
as he had been on the second when Mr. Coulter was there. Mr. 
Craig is very definite about his condition on the.fourth when 
he went. He had known the Colonel 20 or 25 years. The latter 
was a client of Mr. Agnew, since deceased, and Mr. Craig joined 
Mr. Agnew7 in 1906. From that time on he saw a great deal of 
the Colonel and did some legal business for him. He had not 
seen the Colonel for some years until just before Chirstmas in 
1920, after he came to Winnipeg. On that occasion he sawr both 
him and his wife at their apartments to which he had been called 
by Mrs. Ilosmer on business, and the Colonel also w anted to see 
him. He says: ‘‘I thought he was remarkably well; he seemed 
to be normal; so very natural.” When he called on the fourth 
lie says :—

“The Colonel seemed to be very glad to see me. I did not know 
what he wanted to see me about and sat down to cheer him up. 
We discussed his own health and politics and general conditions 
in Manitoba. We talked of some properties which were handled
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iu our office in which he had acquired an interest in Mr. Agnew’s 
time, and we discussed the prospects at some length. One of the 
properties was in Kootenay Lake District and we discussed Brit­
ish Columbia fruit lands. We talked quite a time with no men­
tion of what he wanted to see me about. He discussed Mrs. IIos- 
mer’s will and seemed quite hurt, lie seemed to think that she 
had disposed of what was not hers and he seemed to resent the 
will in favour of her sister. lie thought she should not have 
made such a will until he died. He shed tears but excused her 
on the ground that she expected he would die first. He talked of 
the house at Virden. Said he had been told by Coulter that he 
only bad a life interest in it. He said Coulter had been to see 
him on February 2 and that he talked with him about his wife’s 
affairs. During the interview he mentioned the nurse and said 
she had been very kind to him. Finally he said he wanted to 
give everything he had to the nurse. He said he was not sure 
what he would get from his wife’s will as it was all mixed-up. 
He told me he had Fort William and Kootenay property, some 
cash in the bank and some bonds. Death was not an immediate 
prospect for either of us. He spoke of the money and said it 
would be used up before his death and he wanted the nurse to 
have the balance. 1 suggested that the best plan would be to 
make a will and I asked if a will had been made when Coulter 
was there and he said he didn’t think he had made a will when 
Coulter was down. He had discussed principally then Mrs. IIos- 
mer’s estate. I discussed other objects of bounty, or he did. He 
mentioned his sister Mrs. Bushc and her children. He said his 
wife did not like Mrs. Bushc, ‘and I don’t like her either. We 
have both done enough for her and family.’ He mentioned Mrs. 
Fraser and said he had no interest in her. He became quite af­
fected when speaking of Mrs. Ilosmer and her will. He was also 
affected when he spoke of the nurse, he seemed to have a great 
affection for her. He said she was very kind and lie wanted her 
to stay to the end. He said that lie had no one dependent on 
him and no relations in which he had any special interest and 
he wanted the nurse to have all when he died. I asked him where 
the cash and bonds were and he said he didn’t know but could 
get the particulars from the nurse.”

Mr. Craig says he then left and went and had a talk with the 
nurse and suggested to her that the Colonel wanted to leave her 
his property. He says she rather demurred at that. She said 
he would rather do something for Mrs. Bushc and her family. 
As to his condition Mr. Craig says he was a little weaker than he 
had been but not otherwise different.

‘‘1 had no trouble at all getting instructions. The instructions
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seemed to have been eonsidered by the Colonel. He mentioned 
his pension of $170 per month. 1 spoke about the possibility of 
the holograph codicil to his wife’s will not being a will at all. 
He seemed interested in the possibility of setting it aside and 
said Mr. Coulter should not have gone ahead to probate it. 1 
said 1 would write to Coulter to sec if he had considered that, and 
the Colonel approved.”

Mr. Craig then left, and the following day he returned with 
Mr. Hartholemew and the will was executed. He found the 
Colonel sitting up in bed and introduced Mr. Hartholemew as his 
office manager. He told him Mr. Hartholemew had been over­
seas and the Colonel asked about his battalion and length of ser­
vice, and they discussed general topics.

“There was no difference in the Colonel’s condition then and 
the day before. He was more emphatic if possible. His condi­
tion was no different. His mentality the same as when he used 
to come to my office.”

The will that Mr. Craig had drawn was then read over and 
explained. He was told that it did away with all previous 
wills.

“Either then or the day before I went over all the people 
named in Mrs. Hosmer’s will to see whether he wanted to leave 
anything to any of them, name by name, and he said ‘No.’ I 
mentioned Mrs. Bushe. I said, ‘Colonel, you are leaving all to 
the nurse and nothing to your sister,’ and asked if he had 
thought of it, and if he didn’t want to leave something to Mrs. 
Bushe, and he said, ‘1 will be hanged if I do.’ As to Mary Simp­
son, he said she had the Virden house in his wife’s will. As to 
Mrs. Fraser, he said she was nothing to him. As to the Bushe 
children, he said he had done enough for them. After some 
further conversation he suggested he would like to leave some­
thing to the girl in Saskatchewan, and after some thought said, 
‘Give her $100,’ but he didn’t know her name.”

Mr. Craig supposed that the person referred to was a daughter 
of Mrs. Bushe but was informed by Mary Simpson that Mrs. 
Bushe had no daughter in Saskatchewan and the girl was not a 
daughter but the wife of Cheam Bushe, a son. Again Mr. Craig 
asked if he had made a will when Mr. Coulter was down and says 
the Colonel apparently thought he had not made a will when 
Coulter was down, that he had to do only with his wife’s estate. 
He says:—“I did not press him on this point because this will 
would wipe it out if he had made it.” Mr. Craig expresses the 
very confident opinion that the Colonel had full testamentary 
capacity and understood perfectly well what he was doing. In
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this respect lie is corroborated by Mr. Bartholemew, who also 
says that the Colonel understood exactly what he was doing.

Miss Taylor says that when she went back in September, 192(1, 
the Colonel was better than when she left in December, 11118. 
Mentally I thought he was in good shape; I thought better than 
in 1919 because Mrs. llosracr was better.” The same condition 
she says continued until after the death of his wife.

"After that lie was surprisingly better—he asserted himself— 
he had to in a way—for say a week alter his wife's death. Then 
he went into the old routine; his physical and mental condition 
just the same as before her death.”

She says there was no change until after February 5, with the 
exception of 15 minutes on that morning when he was hysterical. 
After that he was the same as Indore and in her view quite cap­
able of doing business. She says she first noticed a change about 
the tenth, but in her examination for discovery she said the 
change took place on the seventh, lie then began to sleep more; 
was getting weaker, and ceased to take the same interest iu 
things. She says that before that,

“1 found his memory very good on things that mattered. He 
never forgot his shaving and hair cut. He used to remind me of 
it. From September 1920 the Colonel used to read the morning 
paper and the London Times. The War or Irish question inter­
ested him and he used to mention any matter as he read. 1 used 
to understand him perfectly. He talked intelligently.”

She then goes on to deny practically all the evidence of Mary 
Simpson relating to conversations lietween them. She says it was 
after Mr. Craig left that the Colonel said to her that they were 
engaged.

"1 said, ‘In what,’ and he started to laugh. I said, ‘You did 
not say that to Mr. Craig,’ and he laughed and 1 went out of the 
room. I treated it as a joke. 1 think the Colonel was joking and 
1 spoke of it to Mary.”

She" swears she did not exercise any influence over the Colonel 
as to his will, or ever interfered outside her professional duties. 
She says Mr. Craig was called to talk alsiut the Kootenay and 
Fort William lands so far as she knows, that she had ’phoned to 
him by the Colonel’s instructions; that the Colonel did not then 
but afterwards did tell her that he wanted her to have the 
Kootenay and Fort William lands.

The events which led up to Mr. Craig being called in are very 
material. Here we bave a man who on February 2 makes a will 
in which the claims of his kindred were recognised, somewhat 
capriciously it may be, still, not disinherited in favour of 
strangers. Two days afterwards he either has forgotten that he
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ever made a will or misstates the fact. In any event he denies 
having made a will and gives instructions for another of an al­
most completely, to use the term of the civilians, inofficious 
character, that is to say, one in which natural affection and the 
claims of near relationship have been disregarded. Where it 
has been shown that the mind of the testator was in some mea­
sure disordered, the inefficious character of the will is a circum­
stance which strengthens the presumption against the will.

Miss Taylor says that “the Colonel did not act as though 
satisfied in his mind after Coulter left but did not express 
himself.” When Mrs. Bushe called the next day she asked 
Miss Taylor if her brother seemed satisfied and the latter replied 
that he did not seem quite satisfied. She added that she did not 
know what was in the will because it “had been made behind 
closed doors.” Why Mr. Craig was sent for, she tells us, was 
that the day that Coulter had been there the Colonel told her lie 
wanted her to have his Kootenay and Fort William lands, and 
asked her to tell Mr. Craig he wanted to see him. The natural 
thing to do in order to carry out such a design if formed would 
be to send for Mr. Coulter, by whom the will had been drawn, 
to make the change ; but Miss Taylor says no such request was 
made and apparently she did not suggest the adoption of that 
course. For some reason Miss Taylor had taken a sudden dislike 
to Mr. Coulter. To use her own expression, she felt “cattish” 
towards him. I think it a fair conclusion from the evidence that 
her dislike had its origin in the fact that she was left but #2o<i 
in the will which he had drawn. Quite evidently the Colonel 
had talked with her about the will he had made on the day that 
Mr. Coulter was there, because that evening she mentioned the 
matter to Mary Simpson, then Mary Sellars. The following is 
Mary Simpson’s account of this conversation :—

“After Coulter had left, about tea-time, Miss Taylor said to me 
that Mr. Coulter had made his own will to suit his own purposes. 
I do not think she knew all that was in the will. She said the 
Colonel could not remember all he had said in the will himself. 
She told me that he did not know what was in the will; did not 
know what he had written. That same night Miss Taylor told 
me the Colonel was not satisfied the way the will was drawn but 
wished her to have everything. She said he wished her to have 
the house in town and that everything be left to her, as she was 
going to be his wife. She told me she said to the Colonel, ‘You 
didn’t say that to Mr. Coulter, did you?’ and the Colonel said 
he did. 1 think that conversation was that night and partly the 
next morning. She said she didn’t think that Mr. Coulter had 
mentioned the Kootenay lands, nor had the Colonel. She said
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now that Mr. Coulter had made the will she would not get a 
thing and the Colonel wanted her to get everything. Her exact 
words were:—‘I won’t get a darn cent now and will be lucky if I 
get my wages.’ Mr. Craig’s name was mentioned by Miss Taylor 
when speaking of the Kootenay lands. The next day when 
speaking of the Kootenay lands 1 mentioned Mr. Craig as having 
had something to do with them.”

In cross-examination she said :—
“Before Coulter came Miss Taylor said that now that the 

Colonel is in such good condition he might as well make his will. 
She spoke of the will once or twice the afternoon Mr. Coulter was 
there, I cannot recall what she said. Miss Taylor and I were 
wondering what the Colonel would say in his will. We had a con­
versation about the will that night. She, either that night or the 
following morning, said the Colonel had told her several things, 
and al>out Coulter leaving her $200, I am sure it was that night 
or the next morning. I may possibly be mistaken but am pretty 
nearly certain that conversation was that night or the following 
morning. It was the same occasion that she told me the Colonel 
had said to her that he wanted something left to his wife, and 
he said, ‘We arc engaged are we not?’ and she said, ‘For what?’ 
and he said, ‘To be married.’ I think the mention of property 
was the next morning. Miss Taylor was talking about the Koot­
enay lands or the Port Arthur lands and the discussion about 
these came up at the same time, but 1 do not know how. We 
talked of these at no other time. 1 thought the Port Arthur lands 
had been sold; It was that which led to the mention of Mr. 
Craig’s name. I cannot rememlier if I mentioned Mr. Craig’s 
name first. I knew the Kootenay lands were mentioned, and I 
may have done so but can’t remember. On the morning of the 
third Miss Taylor told me the Colonel had written a letter to 
Coulter and 1 saw a letter in his handwriting beginning, ‘Dear 
Coulter,’ and asking him to send a copy of his will.”

Further on she says :—
“Miss Taylor told me of the bequest of $200 to her the night 

the Coulter will was made. Mr. Coulter had come out of the 
room that day in the afternoon and asked me what the nurse’s 
full name was. Very likely I told her Coulter had asked for her 
name. I think I did. I do not recollect if she made any reply; 
she may have said that very little would be left to her if Coulter 
had his way. I gathered that Miss Taylor was being left some­
thing, but not sure. It was Miss Taylor who told me of her 
bequest, but I am not sure if it was that night or the following 
morning.”

Again she says:—
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“1 was in the kitchen when she used the words ‘darn cent;’ I 
was clearing away the supper table in the dining room between 
six and seven o’clock and she came to the kitchen and started 
telling me what the Colonel had told her, that he did not know 
what he had put in the will and had written to get a copy. It 
was a surprise to me that the Colonel should want to marry Miss 
Taylor so shortly after his wife’s death; I had known the Hos- 
mers so long. She said the Colonel said he left everything to his 
wife. ‘We are engaged, aren’t we?’ Miss Taylor said, ‘You 
didn’t tell Goulter that, did you?’ and the Colonel said, ‘Yes.’ 
She said she hoped he had not said that and we both laughed 
about it. It was Coulter and not Craig or Gyles she mentioned, 
and it was not on the fourth or fifth February this conversation 
took place.”

Miss Taylor denies practically every statement which Mary 
Simpson swears she did make. As Mary Simpson was an entirely 
disinterested witness, 1 accept her evidence as the more reliable.

Not only was Mr. Goulter not sent for to make the change 
which Miss Taylor says the Colonel desired to make in the dis­
position of his property, but for some reason she did not want to 
communicate with Mr. Craig until after Mr. Goulter had re­
turned to Virden. In order to find out whether or not he had left 
the city, she telephoned to his sister-in-law Mrs. McAndliss under 
the pretext of enquiring about his daughter, who had accom­
panied him to the city. In this way she ascertained that Mr. 
Goulter was leaving for Virden that afternoon, viz., the third, 
and that same afternoon she went to Mr. Craig’s office. Not find­
ing him in she telephoned in the evening with the result that Mr. 
Craig came the next morning.

What occurred the morning of the fourth, when Mr. Craig 
came, has already been stated in the extracts from his evidence. 
According to Mary Simpson the Colonel’s condition that day 
was pretty much the same as it had been on the second. On the 
morning of the fifth he wras for a time out of his mind. When 
Mary Simpson went into his room that morning, as she usually 
did, to ask how he was, he was singing ‘‘High-diddle-diddle, &e." 
When she asked how he was, he merely stared at her and said. 
“The cow jumped over the moon,” and kept on repeating these 
words. Miss Taylor and Mary Simpson speak of the testator 
as being on this occasion hysterical. This hysteria lasted, ac­
cording to the lowest estimate, 15 minutes. Mr. Gyles saw him. 
as already related, between 11 and 12 that day and has described 
his condition. That afternoon he executed the second will.

If on the fourth when he gave Mr. Craig instructions the 
testator had a disposing mind, his condition on the fifth would
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l»e immaterial so long as he was able on that day to follow the 
reading of the will and to realise that his instructions had been 
earried out: Faulkner v. Faulkner (1920), 54 D.L.R. 145, 60 
( an. S.C.R. 386; Manges v. Mills (1921), 64 D.L.R. 305, 50 
O.L.R. 175.

1 have not set as fully and as accurately as possible all the 
evidence hearing upon the mental and physical condition of the 
testator when both the documents referred to as wills were ex­
ecuted. As very often happens in eases of this kind there is a 
wide difference of opinion between the witnesses as to his then 
testamentary capacity. The solicitors, by whom the respective 
documents were prepared, are men of the highest respectability 
against whom there eouhl be no shadow of suspicion. The same 
may be said of the gentlemen called in to witness each of the 
alleged wills, and indeed with respect to all the witnesses. Roth 
Mr. (ioulter and Mr. Gyles were of opinion that the document 
propounded as the first will expresses the true intention of the 
deceased, and that he had then the necessary testamentary ca­
pacity, and Mr. Craig and Mr. Bartholemew are even more em­
phatic on both points with respect to the document referred to as 
the second will.

Dr. Clinghan on the other hand, who attended the testator 
from April, 1919, until October, 1920, thinks that at no time dur­
ing that period was he competent to make a will. Dr. Blanchard, 
who knew the testator well in health, made two social calls at his 
suite in January, 1921. He formed no definite opinion as to his 
mental condition. The opinion he did form was that he was ap­
proaching the point where he would be insane, ami in short that 
he was “all off.” Dr. Montgomery attended the testator at the 
Winnipeg General Hospital during both operations and until his 
return to Virden after the second operation. In his opinion the 
testator’s mental condition was then normal. He next saw him 
in Winnipeg in December, 1920, and examined him profession­
ally. He found him in much the same condition as when he had 
seen him a year and a half before. He thought his ability to do 
business was as good as ever it wfas and his ability to make a will 
then normal. He admits he did not subject him to any memory 
test. Dr. Matheson had made thirty professional visits to the testa­
tor between October, 1920, and the time of his death—these visits 
being more frequent towards the last. He says he observed no 
difference in his mental condition in October, 1920, from what 
it was 4 years before in 1916, when he had last seen him, and, in 
his opinion, the testator was as normal up to 48 hours before his 
death as he had been 10 years before. I do not think that Dr. 
Matheson could possibly have meant that the testator had not
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suffered some degree of mental impairment because the evidence 
that he had is overwhelming.

The facts concerning which there is no dispute are that both 
his legs had been amputated because they had become gangrenous 
as a result of arteriosclerosis ; that as long ago as August, 1919, 
he had been unconscious for a couple of hours, and that subse­
quent to that time he had on several occasions lapsed into uncon­
sciousness ; that his blood-pressure was below one hundred and 
his heart action required stimulating; that after his second oper­
ation in January, 1919, his speech and his memory were affected, 
that he had to a considerable extent lost the power of speech; 
that he could not carry on a connected conversation beyond 
making short sentences ; that occasionally he would start a sen­
tence relating to a subject and suddenly break off into something 
else; that if a question were addressed to him he would try to 
answer but lose the sentence and have to be helped out; that 
sometimes his memory would fail in the middle of a sentence and 
he could not go on without prompting; that he frequently forgot 
the names of people and events ; that he sometimes miscalled 
people or things, as for instance calling Mrs. Gyles’ coat a 
“blunderbuss;” that he was liable to make irrelevant and unex­
pected remarks having no relation to the subject-matter of con­
versation. This tendency is noted by both Dr. Blanchard and 
Mrs. Gyles. That he lacked power of initiative and scarcely 
ever introduced a subject of conversation ; that when a visitor 
came in he would brighten up but in a short time lapse into dull­
ness; that after his second operation and before he left Virden 
business was not transacted by him but by his wife in his pres­
ence, and he would assent or dissent by a movement of his head ; 
that he slept a great deal both day and night, and that he was 
ehildish and frequently wept without any apparent cause ; that 
he frequently during the last two years sang silly nursery 
rhymes, and that on the morning of February 5, while doing so, 
he was for a time completely out of his mind ; that both on Feb­
ruary 2 and 5 he was suffering from nausea, and there is evidence 
that after being unconscious he would vomit ; that about January 
23 or 24 he contracted a heavy cold and cough which developed 
into pneumonia from which he died on February 12.

It is argued that arteriosclerosis is a progressive disease rang 
ing from normal to total incapacity and death for which there 
is no known cure. It may exist without loss of mental power, 
the reason being that in such a case the disease has not spread 
to the brain. In the case of the testator there were many indica­
tions that it had reached that organ. Nearly all the symptoms 
above enumerated point to that conclusion. That he was from
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that cause a good deal below normal mentally admits of no doubt. 
Hut that does not conclude the question, because a man’s mind 
may have been in some degree debilitated and his memory im­
paired by age or disease and yet his mind and memory suffi­
ciently sound to enable him to know and understand the business 
he was engaged in. A mere flickering remnant of memory is 
not enough. It must be something more than a mere passive 
memory.

*‘He must retain sufficient active memory to collect in his 
mind, without prompting, the particulars or elements of the 
business to be transacted and to hold them in his mind a sufficient 
length of time to perceive, at least, their more obvious relations to 
each other, and be able to form some rational judgment in 
regard to them.” |per Blake, V.C., in Wilson v. Wilson (1875), 
22 Gr. 39, at p. 78].

Sir James Hannen, in addressing a jury in Boughton v. 
Knight, L.R. 3 P. & D. 64, at p. 72, after explaining to them 
the degree of mental soundness necessary k> make a man respon­
sible for crime, make a contract, contract marriage, or give evi­
dence as a witness, said :—

“But, gentlemen, whatever degree of mental soundness is re­
quired for any one of these things,—responsibility for crime, ca­
pacity to marry, capacity to contract, capacity to give evidence 
as a witness,—I must tell you, without fear of contradiction, that 
the highest degree of all, if degrees there be, is required in order 
to constitute capacity to make a testamentary disposition. And 
you will easily see why. Because it involves a larger and wider 
survey of facts and things than any one of those matters to 
which 1 have drawn your attention.”

In a subsequent case of Burdett v. Thompson, reported in L.R. 
3 P.1), at p. 72 in a note to Boughton v. Knight, the same Judge 
said :—

“Probably the mind of no person can be said to be perfectly 
sound, just as the body of no person can be said to be perfectly 
sound. The question is whether there was such a degree of un­
soundness of mind as to interfere with those faculties which 
ought to be brought into action in making a will.”

Referring to what he had previously said in Boughton v. 
Knight, he continued, L.R. 3 P.I). at p. 73:—

“It has been erroneously supposed that I said that it requires 
a greater degree of soundness of mind to make a w ill than to do 
any other act. I never said, and I never meant to say so. What 
1 have said, and I repeat it, is, that if you are at liberty to draw 
distinctions between various degrees of soundness of mind, then, 
whatever is the highest degree of soundness is required to make a
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will .... From the character of the act it requires the con­
sideration of a larger variety of circumstances than is required 
in other acts, for it involves reflection upon the claims of the 
several persons who, by nature, or through other circumstances, 
may be supposed to have claims on the testator’s bounty, and the 
power of considering these several claims, and of determining in 
what proportions the property shall be divided amongst the 
claimants.”

I have mentioned the testator’s lack of initiative. The idea 
of making a will at all was not initiated by him. It first appears 
to have been mentioned to him by Rev. Captain Robertson on 
January 26. Even then the Colonel does not appear to have 
taken any very keen interest in the subject because all Captain 
Robertson says is that “he was favourable.” In neither of tin- 
letters written to Mr. Coulter was the making of a will referred 
to and it appears quite evident that the chief reason for wanting 
Mr. Coulter to come down had nothing to do with making a will, 
although Mr. Coulter quite naturally assumed the contrary. 
When Mr. Coulter did arrive the Colonel said nothing whatever 
about making a will until Mr. Coulter asked him if he would do 
so and he then said, “Why certainly.” Even then he did not 
proceed to tell what dispositions lie wanted to make or whom In* 
desired to benefit—all the instructions received were elicited by 
question and suggestions. The only voluntary suggestion by the 
Colonel was that there should be “something for the children.”

Mr. Craig was not called in to make a will but to make a gift 
inter vivos of the Kootenay and Fort William lands. The sug­
gestion of a will came from him and not from the Colonel. Mr. 
Craig says the Colonel told him he wanted to give everything to 
the nurse, but at the same time spoke of using the money and 
bonds for living expenses. He inferred that the Colonel did not 
mean to make an immediate gift of the money and bonds, as 
clearly he did not. He had not to the nurse expressed any 
desire that she should have anything but the Kootenay and Fort 
William lands and the latter understood that Mr. Craig was sent 
for to make a transfer to her of these alone.

Those who oppose the probate of the instrument referred to «is 
the second will invoke the principle stated by Lindley, L.J., in 
Tyrclt v. Painton, [1894] P. 151, 42 W.R, 343, 70 L.T. 453, that 
whenever circumstances exist which excite the suspicion of the 
Court it is for those who propound the will to remove them and 
to prove affirmatively that the testator knew and approved of the 
contents of the document. As circumstances which ought to ex­
cite suspicion they point to the logical and rational character of 
the first will and sudden and total reversal of the testators’ pre-
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viously expressed testamentary intention revealed in the second, 
ns well as to its almost completely inofficious character. They 
point to the fact that the testator had received the hulk of his 
property through his late wife ; that she had made a will largely 
in favour of her own sister Mrs. Fraser, with a bequest over in 
the event of her decease to her son Ronald, and the Colonel in 
his first will followed closely the dispositions made by her, ap­
parently in recognition of the fact that as the property largely 
came from his wife’s people it was reasonable that it should go 
hack to them. For some inexplicable reason he did not like his 
own sister Mrs. Bushe and leaves nothing to her. He, however, 
did like her children and he gives them $500 each. To the de­
fendant Taylor, his nurse, who was faithful and efficient in the 
discharge of her duties, he gives $200. He is equally logical in 
the selection of an executor. He happened to be a shareholder 
in the Canadian Guarantee Trust Co., and when it and other 
trust companies were mentioned he said at once “put it in my 
own company.” They then contrast with this disposition that 
made in the second will. All of his relations who received benefits 
under his first will are entirely cut off. A trifling legacy of $100 
is left to the wife of one of his nephews, and the defendant 
Taylor, who only received $200, now takes the whole balance of 
the estate, estimated at about, $20,000. On the second he ex­
pressed a preference for the Canadian Guarantee Trust Co., to 
which he referred as “my own company,” as executor, on the 
fourth he said that any company but it would be acceptable.

Other circumstances relied upon are that the testator had ar­
rived at a stage in his illness described by Miss Taylor as “the 
beginning of the end”; that the idea of a will did not originate 
with him, and that Mr. Craig had been called in only to transfer 
the Kootenay and Fort William lands ; that Miss Taylor was 
angry when she learned that only $200 had been left her in the 
first will ; that she it was who brought Mr. Craig there, and that 
the Colonel denied having made a will.

All these circumstances are cogent and demand from the Court 
a close and jealous scrutiny of the evidence in favour of the 
testator’s capacity when the instrument was made, and that it 
refrain from pronouncing in its favour unless judicially satisfied 
that the testator knew and approved of the contents of the docu­
ment. If he was of sound mind, memory and understanding, 
and if he knew and approved of its contents, the fact that he 
thereby cut off his own kindred is immaterial.

Then what evidence is there that he was of sound mind and 
understood and approved of this document? There is abundant 
evidence that the nurse was efficient and faithful in the discharge 
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of her duties. She had been very kind to him and he had con­
tracted an affection for her. He was utterly helpless and had 
to depend upon either Nurse Taylor or some person else, and lit* 
was very anxious that she should remain to the end. He did not 
know how long he might live because Mr. Craig says death was 
not an immediate prospect. Because of the character of his wife’s 
will he did not know exactly what property he had to dispose of. 
For a man under such circumstances to make a will in favour of 
the nurse, who had been kind and attentive to him and on whom 
he was absolutely dependent and who had promised to remain 
with him during life, is not an unheard of circumstance, par­
ticularly as he had no children of his own and he did not like his 
nearest blood relation.

The fact that he denied to Mr. Craig the making of the fir>i 
will is relied upon as conclusive proof that his memory was gom 
The conclusion I draw from the evidence is that he had not for­
gotten the first will but that he deliberately deceived Mr. Craig 
concerning it for some reason of his own. What that reason was 
I can only conjecture, but it might tie the fear that otherwise 
Mr. Craig might ask embarrassing questions respecting his sud­
den change of intention. The same may Ik* said respecting his re­
jection of the Canadian Guarantee Trust Co. as executor. The 
very emphasis with which he refused to accept that company 
shows that he did remember the first will and that it was name. I 
therein as executor. If 1 am right in this conclusion, then the 
incident tends to show capacity rather than a lack of it.

On the whole case, and notwithstanding the circumstances I 
have above enumerated, I have come to the conclusion that the 
testator had, when he executed the second will, the necessary 
testamentary capacity. To arrive at any other conclusion I would 
have to reject not only the evidence of Mr. Craig and Mr. Bartho­
lomew but to a large extent that of Mr. Goulter and Mr. Gyl'-s 
as well as that of Dr. Matheson. It eannot be said that the 
testator’s memory had become extinct, or that it had been re­
duced to a mere flickering remnant. Impaired and seriously im­
paired it unquestionably was, and yet I think there was sufficient 
left to enable him to recollect the property he was about to be­
queath, the manner of distributing it and the objects of his 
bounty, in short, that he had a disposing memory.

Then comes the question, was he induced to execute it through 
the undue influence of the defendant Taylor f What is, and 
what is not, undue influence of a nature to invalidate a will ) ■> 
been the subject of discussion in numerous cases, and its mcaniig 
is now fairly well defined and may be expressed in two words — 
coercion or fraud. The leading authority upon the question is
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Oanworth, L.C.’s judgment in Boyne v. IIunshorn it y h (1857), 
f, ILL. Cas. 2, 10 E.R. 1192, 26 L.J. (Ch.) 256. He there said. 
6 ILL. Cas., at p. 48 :—

“In order, therefore, to have something to guide us in our in­
quiries on this very difficult subject, I am prepared to say that 
influence, in order to lx? undue within the meaning of any rule 
of law which would make it sufficient to vitiate a will, must be an 
influence exercised either by coercion or by fraud. In the inter­
pretation, indeed, of these words some latitude must he allowed. 
In order to come to the conclusion that a will has been obtained 
by coercion, it is not necessary to establish that actual violence 
has been used or even threatened. The conduct of a person in 
vigorous health towards one feeble in body, even though not un­
sound in mind, may be such as to excite terror and make him 
execute as his will an instrument which, if he had been free from 
such influence, he would not have executed. Imaginary terrors 
may have been created sufficient to deprive him of free agency. 
A will thus made may possibly be described as obtained by coer­
cion. So as to fraud. If a wife, by falsehood, raises prejudices 
in the mind of her husband against those who would be the 
natural objects of his bounty, and by contrivance keeps him from 
intercourse with his relatives, to the end that these impressions 
which she knows he had thus formed to their disadvantage may 
never be removed, such contrivance may, perhaps, be equivalent 
to positive fraud and may render invalid any will executed under 
false impressions thus kept alive. It is, however, extremely 
difficult to state in the abstract what acts will constitute undue 
influence in questions of this nature. It is sufficient to say, that 
allowing a fair latitude of construction, they must range them­
selves under one or other of these heads—coercion or fraud.”

In Hall v. Hall (1868), L.R. 1 1». & D. 481, at p. 482. 37 L.J. 
(P.) 40, Sir J. P. Wilde says:-

‘‘Pressure of whatever character, whether acting on the fears 
or the hopes, if so exerted as to overpover the volition without 
convincing the judgment, is a species of restraint under which 
no valid will can be made. Importunity or threats, such as the 
testator has not the courage to resist, moral command asserted 
and yielded to for the sake of peace and quiet, or of escaping 
from distress of mind or social discomfort, these, if carried to a 
degree in which the free play of the testator’s judgment, dis­
cretion or wishes, is overborne, will constitute undue influence, 
though no force is either used or threatened. In a word, a test­
ator may be led but not driven; and his will must be the off­
spring of his own volition and, not the record of someone else’s.” 

In Winyrove v. Winyrove (1885), 11 P.D. 81, at p. 82, Sir
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James Hannen explains it in much tne same way:—
“To be undue influence in the eye of the law there must be— 

to sum it up in a word—coercion. It is only when the will of the 
person who becomes a testator is coerced into doing that which he 
or she does not desire to do, that it is undue influence. The coer­
cion may of course he of different kinds; it may be in the grossest 
form, such as actual confinement or violence, or a person in the 
last days or hours of life may have become so weak and feeble, 
that a very little pressure will he sufficient to bring about 1 lie de­
sired result, and it may even he, that the mere talking to him at 
that stage of illness and pressing something upon him may so 
fatigue the brain, that the sick person may he induced for quiet­
ness’ sake, to do anything. This would equally he coercion, 
though not actual violence.”

Sir James Hannen’s statement was approved by the Privy 
Council in Baudains v. Richardson, [1906J A.C.-169, 75 L.J. 
(P.C.) 57.

The extent to which the testator must he controlled is stated 
in a recent case of Craig v. La mourais, 50 D.L.It. 10, [1920) 
A.C. 049, 26 Rev. Leg. JOG, by Viscount Haldane, delivering the 
opinion of the Judicial Committee. lie there says, 50 D.L.R. 
at p. 15 :—

“Undue influence, in order to render a will void, must be an 
influence which can justly he described by a person looking at 
the matter judicially to have caused the execution of a paper 
pretending to express a testator’s mind, hut which really docs 
not express his mind, but something else which he did not really 
mean.”

The law, therefore, is settled that to constitute undue influence 
there must be coercion in some form. Cranworth, L.C., in Bogsc 
x.Rossborough, supra, spoke of fraud as also a species of undue 
influence hut nothing in the nature of fraud is suggested in tIn­
case at bar and may be left out of consideration.

It thus appears that undue influence in law means something 
very different from its meaning according to its popular a<- 
ceptance: Cranworth, L.C. says 6 Il.L. Cas. at pp. 47-48:—

“In a popular sense, we often speak of a person exercising 
undue influence over another, when the influence certainly is not 
of a nature which would invalidate a will. A young man is often 
led into dissipation by following the example of a companion of 
riper j’ears, to whom he looks up, and who leads him to considin­
habits of dissipation as venial, and perhaps even creditable; the 
companion is then correctly said to exercise an undue influence. 
Hut if in these circumstances the young man, influenced by his 
regard for the person who had thus led him astray, were to make
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a will and leave to him everything he possessed, such a will cer­
tainly could not be impeached on the ground of undue in­
fluence.”

Pres. Ilannen, in Wingrovc v. Wingrovc, says 11 P.D. at p. 
82:—

“We are all familiar with the use of the word ‘influence’; we 
say that one person has an unbounded influence over another, 
and we speak of evil influences and good influences, hut it is not 
because one person has an unbounded influence over another that, 
therefore, when exercised, even though it may be very bad in­
deed, it is undue influence in the legal sense of the word.”

lie goes on to illustrate his meaning by instancing the case of 
a young man caught in the toils of a harlot who makes use of her 
influence to induce him to make a will in her favour to the ex­
clusion of his relatives which would nevertheless not be subject 
to attack on the ground of undue influence. Lord Macnaghten 
in Baudains v. Richardson, supra, mentioned Sir James Ilan­
nen \s illustration and says, [1906] A.C. at p. 184:—“However 
shocking the case may be, however cruel to his nearest relatives, 
that is not undue influence.”

Another point which seems to be settled is that mere solicita­
tion or importunity not carried to the extent of depriving the 
testator of power of free volition will not constitute undue in­
fluence. Cran worth, L.C., in Boyse v. Rossborough, refer­
ring to the illustration given by him, and referred to above, of a 
young man making a will in favour of an older companion under 
whose evil influence he had fallen, says 6 ILL. Cas. at p. 48 :—

“Nor would the case be altered merely because the companion 
had urged or even importuned the young man so to dispose of 
his property ; provided only that in making such a w ill the young 
man was really carrying into effect his own intention, formed 
without either coercion or fraud.”

In Hall v. Hall, Sir J. P. Wilde said, at p. 482 (L.R. 1 
IV & D.) :—

“To make a good will a man must be a free agent. Hut all in­
fluences are not unlawful. Persuasion, appeals to the affections 
or ties of kindred, to a sentiment of gratitude for past services, 
or pity for future destitution, or the like—these are all legiti­
mate, and may be fairly pressed on a testator.”

Lord Penzance says in Parfitt v. Lawless (1872), L.R. 2 P. & 
I). 462, 41 L.J. (P.) 68:—

“The natural influence of the parent or guardian over the 
child, or the husband over the wife, or the attorney over the 
client, may lawfully be exerted to obtain a will or legacy, so 
long as the testator thoroughly understands what he is doing,
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and is a free agent. There is nothing illegal in the parent or 
husband pressing his claims on a child or wife, and obtaining a 
recognition of those claims in a legacy, provided that that per­
suasion stop short of coercion, and that the volition of the test­
ator, though biassed and impressed by the relation in which he 
stands to the legatee, is not overborne and subjected to the dom­
ination of another.”

Sir James Hannen in Wingrove v. Wingrove, and in Baudains 
v. Richardson, and Lord Haldane in Craig v. Lamoureux, express 
the same idea. Sir James Hannen points out that even very im­
moral considerations either on the part of the testator or of some 
one offering them do not amount to undue influence unless the 
testator is in such a condition that if he could speak his wishes 
to the last he would say, “this is not my wish but 1 must do it."

“If, therefore, the act is shewn to be the result of the wish and 
will of the testator at the time, then, however it has been brought 
about—for we are not dealing with a case of fraud—though you 
may condemn the testator for having such a wish, though you 
may condemn any person who has endeavoured to persuade and 
has succeeded in persuading the testator to adopt that view— 
still it is not undue influence.” (See Wingrove v. Wingrove, 11 
P.D. at p. 83).

Upon the question of onus of proof the authorities are equally 
explicit. In Boyse v. Rossborough, Cranworth, L.C., says 6 H.L. 
Cas. at p. 49:—

“One point, however, is beyond dispute, and that is, that where 
once it has been proved that a will has been executed with due 
solemnities by a person of competent understanding, and appar 
ently a free agent, the burthen of proving that it was executed 
under undue influence, is on the party who alleges it. Undue 
influence cannot be presumed.”

This principle was applied in Parfitt v. Lawless, supra, where 
the testatrix had made the plaintiff, a Roman Catholic priest, her 
residuary legatee. He had for years resided in the house with 
testatrix and her husband as domestic chaplain and was at the 
time of the will her confessor. The plaintiff had nothing to du 
with the making of the will but it was contended that proof of 
his relationship to the testatrix raised a presumption of undue in­
fluence which the plaintiff was bound to displace. It was held, 
however, that the presumption which arises with respect to a 
gift inter vivos when the parties stand in certain relation to ea< ii 
other as parent and child, etc., does not arise in the case of wills. 
Lord Penzance points out that mere suspicion is not proof. It is 
of course not neeesssary to prove every conclusion of fact by 
direct evidence. From every fact that is proved legitimate an-1



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 379

reasonable inferences may be drawn, and all that is fairly de- 
ducible from the evidence is as much proved for the purpose of a 
prima-facie case as if it had been proved directly. The proposi­
tions which those alleging undue influence were hound in this 
way to prove were, he said, L.R. 2 P. & D. at pp. 472-474:—

“That the plaintiff had interfered in the making of the will, 
1 hat he had procured the gift of the residue to himself, and that 
lie had brought this about not by persuasion and advice (for 
that would he perfectly legal) hut by some coercion or dominion 
exercised over the testatrix against her will, or hv importunity 
so strong that it could not be resisted. . . . (p. 472). No amount of 
persuasion or advice, whether founded on feelings of regard or 
religious sentiment, would avail according to the existing law to 
set aside this will so long as the free volition of the testatrix to 
accept or reject that advice was not invaded (p. 474).”

The law respecting the onus of proof was conclusively es­
tablished in Craig v. Lamourcux, .supra. That case also makes 
it clear that the burden of proof of undue influence is upon the 
party alleging it and is not satisfied by showing that the person 
who received the benefit under the will had the power to unduly 
overhear the will of the testator. It must he shown that in the 
particular case the power was exercised and that it was by means 
of the exercise of that power that the will was obtained. That 
principle was first laid down by Sir James llannen in lVingrovc 
v. IYingrove, supra, and was later approved in Baudaint v. 
Richardson, supra.

Neither is the burden of proof satisfied by showing that the 
eiiTiiinstances attending the execution of the will arc consistent 
with the hypothesis of its having been obtained by undue in­
fluence. It must be shown that they arc inconsistent with a con­
trary hypothesis: per Oanworth, L.C., in Bogse v. Rossborough, 
6 ILL. ('as. at p. 61, and adopted by Viscount Haldane in 
Craig v. Lamourcux, 50 D.L.R. at p. 15; Adams v. McBeath 
(1897), 27 Can. S.C.R. 13.

There is no evidence of any direct pressure or of influence 
brought to l>ear by the nurse upon the Colonel to induce him to 
change the disposition made in his will of the second. None of 
llmse who were present in the Colonel’s room when Miss Taylor 
was there, observed any attempt on her part to influence or 
coerce him. They saw nothing in her conduct or demeanour in­
consistent with the proper discharge of her duties as nurse, and 
if undue influence is to be found, it must be inferred from the 
surrounding circumstances.

1 have mentioned the fact of the Colonel’s helpless condition 
and of his utter dependence upon the nurse, and the nurse’s ap-
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proval of Coulter being sent for; of her hopes or expectations 
that she would be remembered in the Colonel’s will; of her sud­
den and unexplained resentment when told that all she got was 
a bequest of $2(X); of her scheming to find out whether or not 
Coulter had left town before communicating with Mr. Craig; of 
the fact that she wax the instrument alone employed to bring 
Mr. Craig there. When Mrs. Gyles visited the Colonel on the 
second, after the will of that date was executed, she found the 
Colonel perfectly easy in mind with respect to the nurse remain­
ing with him. Mrs. Gyles enquired about his return to Virden 
and whether or not the nurse was going to go with him, and he 
assured her that the nurse was, because she had promised his wife 
she would remain with him as long as he lived. There was no 
anxiety in the Colonel’s mind upon that score at that time. When 
Mr. Craig came, however, there was a difference. The Colonel's 
mind seemed to be filled with doubt as to whether or not six 
would do so. Mr. Craig sounded .Miss Taylor on that subject and 
she at first expressed some hesitation but ultimately promised 
she would not desert him. It is argued that she must have in 
the meantime threatened to leave and by use of the weapon of 
fear had forced the Colonel to revoke the former will and make 
one in her favour. Assume the fact to be that she entertained 
hopes of receiving a substantial benefit under his will, however 
baseless the hope was, and in a fit of pique on learning that her 
hopes were not to be fulfilled she gave notice of an intention to 
quit; assume further that in dread of her leaving and in order 
to induce her to remain he decided to and did make her his sob* 
legatee—could it be said that a legacy so procured had been ob­
tained by undue influence? She was employed by the day and 
had a right to leave at any time and it does not seem to me that 
a will made to induce her to refrain from doing that which she 
had a right to do constitutes undue influence. Coercion of a 
kind it undoubtedly is, but it is the same kind of coercion as that 
of a son who threatens to leave the homestead unless his father 
make a will in his favour.

1 can see no evidence of coercive methods being used, and no 
witness has deposed any. The Colonel undoubtedly entertained 
a very strong affection for the nurse, and had proposed marriage 
to her. It is extremely improbable that he would entertain such 
feeling towards a woman who had coerced him into doing some­
thing which he did not want to do. It is argued that she occu­
pied a situation in which she might very easily exercise influence 
over the testator, but that is not enough. It is not sufficient to 
show that the opportunity for exercising undue influence ex­

isted. It must be shewn that the opportunity had been made umj
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of. Neither is it sufficient to show that the circumstances are Alta, 
consistent with the hypothesis that the execution of the will had App~~Div 
been procured by undue influence. It must be shewn that they 
are inconsistent with a contrary hypothesis : Craig v. Lamou- 
reux, supra. This in ray opinion has not been done.

There will be judgment declaring the instrument executed on 
February 5,1921, to be the last will and testament of the testator, 
and admitting it to probate.

In testamentary cases the ordinary rule that the loser pays 
costs may be deviated from in certain eases. If the conduct of 
the testator or that of the principal beneficiaries has been the 
cause of the contention, all costs may be imposed on the estate, 
even when the will is supported : Mombcrg v. Jours (1915), 25 
D.L.R. 766. In this case the testator, by making two wills so 
closely following each other, invited litigation and besides that 
the conduct of the defendant Taylor, the chief beneficiary, was 
such as to excite suspicion that she had interfered in procuring 
the second will. Further directions and costs reserved.

Judgment accordingly.

CHAMBERS AM) CAMPBELL ET AL v. MERCHANTS BANK 
OF CANADA.

Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Stuart, Beck, Ives, Hynd- 
man and Clarke, JJ.A. February d, 1922.

Vendor and purchaser (§IB—5)—Recovery of deposit—Rioiit to.
A purchaser in default has no right to recover a deposit paid 

under the agreement of purchase.

Appeal by plaintiffs from the judgment of Simmons, J. 
Affirmed.

O. II. O'Connor, K.C., for appellants.
J. Ft Lymburn, for respondent.
Stuart, J.A. (dissenting) I would allow this appeal.
When the $1,500 belonging to Chambers and Campbell was 

handed over to the defendant’s manager Shields, there had been 
no contract made. Shields merely insisted that he should have 
some money in his hands before he would even go to the trouble 
of seeking authority from head office for reducing, the cash 
payment.

1 doubt very much whether, in view of the way the thing was 
done, it is proper to infer from the evidence that there was an 
agreement by Brown that the $1,500 deposited should be treated 
as a deposit as an evidence of good faith with respect to a con­
cluded agreement. Rather do I think the proper inference is 
that Brown handed Shields the money just to prove that there 
was money available and as a guarantee, if it was as a guarantee
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of anything, that Brown was negotiating and going to continue 
to negotiate in good faith.

At any rate, even if it was intended as a deposit or part pay­
ment on a contract to be made, can it be inferred that Brown 
intended it as a deposit on any kind of a contract that by new 
offers and counter offers might eventually be arrived at! If it 
was at the time of payment (and that is the only material time 
in the absence of any specific reference to the subject subse­
quently) intended as a deposit on the contract, which would be 
brought about by the acceptance of the option, it is sufficient 
to say that, even if there was an oral acceptance of the option 
and a contract thereby created, the bank did not stand by that 
contract. It proceeded to draw up a more elaborate one. It 
varied in one important particular the terms of the option and it 
added additional important terms. So that it was undoubtedly 
by mutual consent that any contract, that may have been arriv­
ed at by an oral acceptance of the option, was treated as not 
binding, that is, as really rescinded, and new negotiations were 
entered upon. In those negotiations a great number of stipula 
tions were made which would never have been held to be includ­
ed in the option agreement. These were discussed pro and con 
in the presence of the bank’s solicitor. But all these discussions 
were with a view not to an oral agreement but a written one. 
In spite of the. findings of fact by the trial Judge in favour 
of the account given by the defendant’s witnesses of that discus 
sion, I, with much respect, feel compelled to hold that the parties 
always then intended to have a written agreement drawn up 
and that Brown never intended to be bound until he assented 
to the terms of the written agreement as presented to him. It 
was not denied by any of the defendant’s witnesses that Un­
written agreement contained clauses dealing with subjects not 
discussed at the meeting, notably the forfeiture clause. Then 
is no evidence that Brown ever assented to that and yet that 
was an offer of a term, made by the bank, which had never been 
spoken of or conveyed to Brown until the written agreement 
was sent to him. 1 find nothing to justify a conclusion that 
Brown ever assented to that and to other clauses in the sain- 
position, lie did tell Shields over the telephone that his solid 
tor had approved of it but that was not enough. One witne> 
did say that Brown “seemed to be satisfied with it.” But thaï 
is not enough.

The inference which I draw from all the facts, even accepting 
the whole account given by the defendant’s witnesses as tru 
is that Brown never intended to bind himself until he signe- 
the written agreement. He intended that that, not the oral di>
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«Mission leading up to it, should be the agreement. And I think 
too that such was the intention of the bank ns to its obligation. 
1 cannot bring myself to conclude that Brown as agent for the 
Brown Investment Co. or Shields as agent for the hank ever 
even dreamt during the negotiations that he was creating a con­
tractual relationship binding on his principal by mere oral 
speech rather than merely agreeing upon; what paragraphs 
should go into a proposed written document which, when exe­
cuted. by him and then alone should be binding on the principal. 
Why, it may be asked, did the bank never even sign the agree­
ment in its own hands! And recurring to the option agreement 
1 would like to add that I should have been very much surprised 
if the bank would ever have admitted that by the payment of 
il ..">011 Brown had ever accepted the option so as to make the 
agreement in force in his favour as against it. The bank would 
have contended, and I think rightly, that it was entitled to the 
cash payment of $7,500 before the option agreement could have
I.... turned into a sale agreement as against them. (See Cush-
mi/ v. Kniijht (1912), 6 D.L.R. 820, 46 Call. S.V.I1. 555 )

So that 1 am, with respect, of the opinion that no agreement 
was ever concluded at all and that, therefore, the bank held the 
money without consideration merely as money had and received. 
Certainly, it was never contended that it had been paid as the 
price of writing a letter to head office or of agreeing merely 
to negotiate further. The real fact was, in my opinion, that 
Shields wanted to sec some money in sight and Brown put it in 
his hands so that he could see that it was there and that was 
all.

So that l think the Brown Investment Co. were entitled to re­
cover the money. I do not perceive any reason for thinking 
that Brown, as against the bank, acted improperly. Many a man 
enters into negotiations which he is compelled for lack of neces­
sary financial strength, to drop. And if Shields had not insisted 
prematurely on seeing some money, if he had got head office 
t" say whether they would stand by the $10,DUO cash provision 
or reduce it to $7,500, Brown would not have been led to produce 
and deposit the money. Yet he was led to do so. But that it 
was, or ever became, a deposit on a concluded agreement, I am, 
loi myself, quite unable to conclude.

And in coming to this conclusion, I wish to emphasise the 
fact that I assume everything told by the defendant’s witness­
es to be true.

But the Brown Investment Co., one of the plaintiffs, do not 
apneal. This does not, however, in my opinion, present any real 
difficulty. The plaintiffs Chambers and Campbell, who handed
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this money to the Brown Investment Co., as well, it will be 
noted, as this very Brown Investment Co. itself, come into Court 
as plaintiffs and in a joint statement of claim it is allegvil. 
and, therefore, alleged and admitted by the Brown Investment 
Co., that the latter got the money from its co-plaintiffs by fraud. 
So long, therefore, as it is not necessary to connect the defendant 
bank with the fraud I can sec no reason for enquiring whether 
there was in fact fraud or not. So long as the bank is bound to 
return the money to the Brown Investment, plaintiff, I do not 
see how they are concerned w ith the other matter.

The Brown Investment Co., come into Court and say, “W<- 
have sinned, we have got money by fraud from our co-plaintiffs, 
we want to return, it. But it has got into the hands of th - 
defendants under circumstances which entitle us to get it back 
from them. We want to recover it back from them but merely 
that we may restore it to the persons from whom we fraudulem 
ly obtained it.”

Nowr, of course, it is very wrong to defraud. But it is cer­
tainly not wrong, but eminently proper, to do one’s best to re­
medy the wrong.

The only question «is as to the right of Chambers and Camp­
bell to get a judgment directly against the bank. The money 
was trust money in the hands of the Browrn Investment Co. in 
view- of the admitted fraud. If the bank is bound, as I hold it
is, to return the money to the Brown Investment Co., if it re­
ceived it without valuable consideration from that company, 
and I think it did, why should Chambers and Campbell not be 
entitled to follow it in their hands and get a judgment directly 
in their owm favour for it? My opinion is that they are entitled 
to do so. In Morley v. Loughnan, [1893] 1 Ch. 736, 62 L.J. 
(Ch.) 515, Wright, J., held that money which had been obtain <1 
by fraud and undue influence could be recovered from the hands 
of innocent third persons who had given no consideration for
it. And in that case the third party had a right to retain t he 
money as against the w'rongdoer, it being apparently a gift. 
And I do not doubt that other precedents can be found because 
it is simply in accord with the general rules of equity as !o 
trust moneys.

I think Chambers and Campbell are entitled to take advan­
tage for their own direct benefit of the rights of the Brown 
Investment Co. against the bank. I would, therefore, allow’ the 
appeal with costs, set aside the judgment appealed from, and 
direct judgment to be entered for the appellants for $1,500.

But as in the statement of claim fraud, or at any rate “false
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representation” which strongly suggests fraud as alleged 
against the bank in para. 6 of the statement of claim, which was 
a joint one, and as this charge was not withdrawn till the very 
opening of the trial, I would give no costs of the action.

Reck, J.A. (dissenting) I would allow the appeal with costs 
to the extent and substantially for the reasons given by my 
brother Stuart without however, depriving, as he does, the 
plaintiffs of their costs. Although it is said to be the general 
rule that a party, setting up fraud but failing to prove it, 
though succeeding nevertheless, ought to be deprived of costs, 
I think the rule ought not to be given effect to, unless the fraud 
alleged is glaring and likely to injure the reputation of the 
party against whom it is alleged. The inference I think that one 
would naturally draw from the character of the transaction and 
tlie parties involved would be that the fraud proposed to bo 
established was more or less technical and not seriously repre­
hensible from the moral point of view.

I am furthermore of the opinion that the plaintiffs Chambers 
and Campbell are entitled to succeed on the additional ground, 
namely, that, while it was Brown who initiated the negotiations 
yet in the course of those negotiations and while they retained 
their character of mere negotiations, and before the handing 
over of the personal individual cheques of these two plaintiffs 
- the amount being thereby distinctly earmarked as their money 
—the bank knew that these two plaintiffs were principals in 
the negotiations as much as Brown—though in different propor­
tions—and that Brown’s acts could not bind them, unless lie had 
actual authority from them for such acts. With such knowledge, 
the fact that the contract, if concluded, was to be in the name 
of Brown or of his company, made, in my opinion, no differ­
ence. In this view it was the bank's duty if it chose to carry 
on its negotiations with Brown only and to settle the final 
terms of the agreement with him to sec, if they proponed to bind 
his two associates, that Brown’s final word carried with it their 
actual approval. On the evidence, it is clear that that, even 
assuming Brown did finally approve, was not the fact.

Ives, J.A. This action was originally brought by Brown 
Investment Co. and when it came to trial the plaintiff moved 
to add the appellants and amend the claim. This was allowed 
and the action came on for trial before Simmons, J., at a later 
date and was dismissed. From his judgment the plaintiffs added 
now appeal but the Brown Investment Co. do not appeal.

The facts pertinent would seem to be that on February 24, 
1M20, the defendant granted an option to purchase to Brown In-
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vestment Co., good for a period of 60 days from March 1, 1920. 
The subject of the option was a brewery property. The option 
names the purchase price of $75,000 and of this the down pay­
ment is fixed at $10,000.

Between February 24 and March 18, 1920, Brown, an officer 
of the Brown Investment Co., had negotiated with the appel 
lants to the extent that they conditionally agreed to take between 
them a three-quarter interest with Brown’s company in the pur­
chase. They saw the option which I have referred to. The 
appellants at no time saw or dealt with nie defendant. They 
insist they were dealing exclusively with Brown. Home time 
before March 18, Brown had an interview with Shields, the 
officer of the respondent with whom he had been dealing, with 
the object of inducing the bank to reduce the cash payment from 
$10,000 to $7,500. Shields refused to consider the matter or 
consult his head office unless a substantial deposit was first 
made by Brown. Brown, thereupon, paid over to the bank 
$1,500 made up by two cheques dated March 18, one made by 
the appellant Chambers for $500 and the other by the appellant 
Campbell for $1,000 both payable to the Brown Investment Co. 
These cheques were endorsed and handed over by Brown as 
cash, and as the owner of them.

Shields thereupon obtained authority from his head office 
to reduce the down payment to $7,500 and so notified Brown 
who thereupon attended the bank’s office where a formal agree 
ment was l'ully discussed and the provisions to be incorporated 
agreed to. This agreement was prepared and submitted t<> 
Brown for approval who in turn submitted it to his solicitoi 
and later advised the bank of his solicitor’s approval.

This formal agreement was not executed but was exhibited at 
trial and nowhere in this document is there any mention made 
of the names of these appellants. It is simply an agreement 
for sale of the property from the bank to Brown Investment Co. 
It should also be noted that in this document the down payment 
is fixed at $7,500.

Then, there is a receipt given by Brown to these appellants 
undated—for the money represented by their two cheques. Tli 
reads :—“ Received from Walter Campbell and Garnett Chair 
hers the sum of $1,500 as deposit for the Strathcona Brewery 
machinery and property. Balance of $6,000 to be paid on • 
before May 1 and the additional payments as outlined on tl 
letter of option.”

Then there is the evidence of the appellant Campbell in cro> 
examination:
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“Q. You were going to purchase from the Brown Investment ? 
A. Yes. Q. Not from the hank ? A. No. Q. You had nothing to 
do with the bank? A. Nothing at all.”

And the evidence of appellant Chambers:
“Q. You never had any dealings whatever of any description 

with the bank or any of its employees? A. No, never had any 
dealings with them.”

There is no doubt the appellants were deceived by Brown but 
I cannot find anything upon which the relationship of agency 
between these appellants and Brown Investment Co., can be sat­
isfactorily established, so as to fix the bank with liability. Cer­
tainly, the appellants can recover from the Brown Co., but not 
from the defendant unless the Brown Co. can do so.

The trial Judge finds as a fact that Brown Investment Co. 
conditionally accepted the option. The condition was the reduc­
tion of the down payment, which was met. The payment of 
$1,000 under the circumstances shown must be treated as a de­
posit to be taken into account when the balance of the down 
payment was paid. The deposit is a guarantee for performance 
of the contract.

In llowe v. Smith (1884), 53 L.J. (Ch.) 1055, 32 W it. 802, 
27 Ch. D. 80 at p. 98, Bowen, L.J., says:—“A deposit, if noth­
ing more is said about it, is, according to the ordinary interpre­
tation of business men, a security for the completion of the 
purchase.” Failure to perform prevents the purchaser recover­
ing his deposit.

if a deposit is made without terms then 1 think it must be 
implied that the deposit will be taken in account of the pur­
chase money on performance. See llowe v. Smith. See also 
Whitety v. liichards (1920), 57 D.L.R. 728, 48 O.L.R. 537.

These appellants must, 1 think, under the strong findings of 
fact by the trial Judge, be left to their remedies against the 
Brown Investment Co.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Hyndman, J.A.:—This is an appeal by the plaintiffs Cham­

bers and Campbell from the judgment of Simmons, J., who 
gave judgment at the trial dismissing the action of all the plain­
tiffs with costs.

The history of the case material to the issues involved may 
be summarized thus: The defendant bank owned or controlled 
a property known as the Strathcona Brewery in the City of 
Kdmonton. As a result of lengthy negotiations between it and 
one George Brown, president and manager of the Brown In­
vestment Co. on February 24, 1920, the bank gave to the said
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company an option to purchase said brewery in the following 
terms :—

“The Merchants Bank of Canada Letter Head.
Edmonton, Alta,, February 24th, 192° 

The Brown Investment Company, Limited,
Edmonton, Alta.

We beg to advise that our general manager has authorised 
granting you option for 60 days from March 1, 1920, to pur­
chase property known as the Strathcona Brewing & Malting 
Company, Limited, site, plant and equipment, on the following 
terms: Consideration net to the bank payable as follows: 
$75,000, cash $10,0(H) net to the bank, $5,000 at the expiration 
of one year, and the balance in annual payments of $10,000 each 
with interest at 7% per annum on all deferred payments, pay­
able semi-annually.

The bank reserves all right and title to all machinery, equip­
ment and contents of the brewery premises, but grants the pur­
chasers under this option the privilege of disposing of the con­
tents, machinery and so forth by sale on the understanding 
that the proceeds shall be applied upon the purchase price in 
addition to the cash payment above mentioned, or used to im­
prove or remodel the building, and any sale of the contents and 
so forth is to be approved jointly by the purchasers and the 
bank.

Sgd. W. A. Shields, inspector.”
Subsequently, about March 20, 1920, Brown requested tin1 

bank to grant easier terms, namely, a reduction of the cash pay­
ment of $10,000 to $7,500. The agent of the bank pointed out 
that the head office alone could make such alteration in the 
option, but at the same time advised Brown that he would not 
go to the trouble of communicating with Head Office or put 
them to further inconvenience in the matter, unless a substan­
tial cash payment was made by way of deposit, as an evidence 
of his good faith and ability and intention to carry out any 
agreement which the bank might consent to. At this time. 
Brown informed Shields, the bank’s local inspector, that he was 
negotiating with the appellants Chambers and Campbell to sell 
a part interest to them. Later in the same day, Brown return 
ed to the bank with two cheques of Chambers and Campbell 
for $500 and $1,000 respectively which he handed over to the 
bank in pursuance of the former arrangement that the bank 
would refer the question of a reduction of the cash payment to 
its head office.

No communication of any kind took place between the ap-
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pellants and respondent bank at this or any other time in con­
nection with the option or purchase of the premises.

In due course the head office advised its branch here that they 
would agree to the reduction asked for and this information was 
communicated to Brown. Eventually, a formal agreement was 
prepared and submitted to Brown and verbally assented to, 
though never signed by him, although he had several times been 
requested to do so. Various excuses were offered : that an officer 
of the company was not available; that the appellants were 
making certain inquiries; that he had extended the time for 
Chambers and Campbell until May 1. Progress became very 
unsatisfactory and eventually Brown informed the bank that 
appellants wished to withdraw, but that his company would 
carry on alone. During all this time, no exception was taken to 
the terms of the formal agreement or option. No further 
moneys were ever paid the bank and no other steps taken by 
Brown to carry out the purchase.

On May 20, 1920, however, the Brown Investment Co., com­
menced action against the bank for a return of the said de­
posit of $1,500 on the ground that the same had been paid as 
an evidence of good faith pending the settlement of the terms 
of the proposed sale, and that the terms had never been agreed 
upon or reduced to writing. The action was set down for trial 
for September 29, 1920, on which date an adjournment was 
moved for by Brown Investment Co., and also for leave to amend 
the statement of claim by adding the names of the two ap­
pellants as co-plaintiffs, and an order was made accordingly by 
Scott, J.

The appellants’ claim is founded on an alleged false repre­
sentation made by Brown Investment Co., as to the complete­
ness of the brewing machinery ; the amount of money necessary 
to commence brewing operations; that the Brown Investment 
Co. had obtained, or made arrangements to obtain, the necessary 
Dominion license entitling them to carry on a brewing business.

It is, I think, common ground that Brown did mislead the 
appellants. It is further alleged that Brown was induced to 
deliver the said cheques of the appellants by the bank making 
to Brown the false representations above mentioned. The ap­
pellants further say that at the time of the giving of the said 
option to Brown Investment Co., the bank agreed to pay an 
amount up to $400 on account of Brown’s expenses if he should 
go to the United States with the object of endeavoring to sell 
the said property and that this fact was not disclosed to the 
appellants.
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The trial Judge dismissed the action of all the plaintiffs; 
with respect to Brown he held the $1,500 was not recoverable 
on the ground that the deposit was paid by him on account of 
an agreement which failed to be performed owing to the with­
drawal or inability of Brown and not because of any act or 
omission on the part of the bank. The trial Judge also held, 
and I think rightly, that although the formal agreement was 
never signed, all its details had been agreed to; but that in any 
event Brown had an agreement (that is the original one) en­
forceable against the company.

The law seems to be well settled that the return of a money 
deposit made by the purchaser, with a view or upon a contract 
for the sale and purchase of land, is ordered only in cases when 
the purchaser seeks specific performance and is ready and will­
ing to carry out his contract and the circumstances are such 
that it would be inequitable to allow the vendor to retain the 
land and the money. The repayment in such cases is decreed as 
a form of equitable relief against forfeiture.

See Dubbin v. Niebergall (1920), 56 D.L.R. 510, 48 O.L.R. 
343; White!y v. Richards (1920), 57 D.L.R. 728, 48 O.L.R. 537 ; 
Walsh v. Willaughan (1918), 42 D.L.R. 581, 42 O.L.R. 455.

In the decision last cited Mulock, C.J. Ex. at p. 587 says:- 
“In his judgment, Cotton, L.J. quotes with approval from the 
judgment of James, L.J. in Ex. p. Barr'cll (1875), L.R. 10 Ch. 
512. The purchaser had become bankrupt, and the trustee in 
bankruptcy disclaimed the contract under which he sought to 
recover the deposit, and James, L.J. said (p. 514) ‘The trus 
tee in the case has no legal or equitable right to recover th.- 
deposit. The money was paid to the vendor as a guarantee 
that the contract should be performed. The trustee refused t< 
perform the contract and then says, ‘Give me back the deposit. 
There is no ground for such a claim.’ Quoting these words Cot 
ton, L.J., proceeds (27 Ch. D. at p. 95) ‘The deposit . . . 
is a guarantee that the contract shall be performed. If . ne soi 
goes on, of course, not only in accordance with the words « ; 
the contract, but in accordance with the intention of the par 
tics in making the contract it goes in part payment of the pur 
chase money, for which it is deposited; but if on the default < ! 
the purchase the contract goes off, that is to say, if he repud 
iates the contract, then according to Lord Justice James, he can 
have no right to recover the deposit.’ ”

The said Chief Justice also distinguishes Brickies v. Snell, 
30 D.L.R. 31, [ 1916J 2 A.C. 599, and points out that in that 
case the purchaser sued for specific performance. He also 
quotes the words of Lord Hershell in Soper v. Arnold (1889 ),
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14 App. Cas. 429, 434, 59 L.J., (Ch.) 214, 38 W.R. 449:—“It 
seems to me that he was in default, that the contract went off 
owing to his default, and that, under those circumstances, he 
cannot recover the deposit.”

These decisions seem to me to be entirely consistent with 
sound reason and justice for as Riddell, J., in the same case 
(Walsh v. Willaughan) at p. 591, says ‘‘But there is no case 
in which one who is unable to carry out his contract has been 
allowed to abandon his purchase and claim the return of his 
part payments, when the vendor has given formal notice of can­
cellation. In the language of Kekewieh, J. ‘That would lx* to 
enable him to do the very thing that Lord Justice Bowen said 
iie ought not to be allowed to do, namely take advantage of his 
own wrong. 1 mean wrong, not in the moral sense, but in the 
sense that he could not perform his contract ” Soper v. Arn­
old (supra).

The Judge found in the case at Bar, that the contract went 
off, due entirely to the fault of the plaintiff Brown. That being 
the case, applying the law as laid down in the decisions referred 
to, the conclusion must be that the plaintiff Brown is not en­
titled to a return of the deposit of $1,500.

But the appellants contend that notwithstanding their co- 
plaintiff is disentitled to a return of the deposit, nevertheless, 
because the bank placed Brown in the position to make these 
false representations by giving him the option ; entitling him to 
the increase over the $7,500; and by agreeing to pay his ex­
penses in connection with finding a purchaser, that they should 
be allowed to claim the moneys which they furnished him with 
which to make such deposit.

The evidence given by the plaintiff Brown and the bank of­
ficials was very conflicting on the important issues, and the 
trial Judge found in effect, that the appellants were not dealing 
with the bank in any way directly or indirectly ; that they were 
dealing solely with the Brown company, relying entirely upon 
Brown, and not upon any understanding that Brown’s repre­
sentations were made on behalf of the bank, lie finds expressly 
that there were no mispresentations made by the bank which 
would give them any ground for asking relief. The trial Judge 
generally accepts the evidence of the defendant bank’s witnesses 
as against Brown, the consequences of which, after a careful 
perusal of the evidence, is that there was no authority given 
Brown to act in any way for the bank, and no misrepresentations 
whatever were made by the bank with the object of inducing 
either Brown or the appellants to enter into a contract of pur-
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chase. The appellants themselves admit quite frankly that there 
was no privity at all between them and the bank. Their cheques 
were made payable to Brown who endorsed them to the respond­
ent.

It would seem then that the only possible ground upon which 
appellants might hope to succeed would be that of fraud or 
conspira, v. To my mind, there is not a scintilla of evidence in 
support of either. If they have any claim at all, it must be 
against the only party with whom they negotiated or had any 
business relations in respect of the property, namely Brown or 
his company.

I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal with costs.
Clarke, J.A. I can see no way to give relief to the appel­

lants. There was no privity between them and the bank. I 
do not think the Brown Investment Co. was agent for the bank 
nor was there any relationship of trust established.

I think the bank was a holder in due course of the appellant’s 
cheques and had all the rights of such a holder as stated in 
sec. 74 R.S.C. 1906, ch. 119, of the Bills of Exchange Act.

I see no reason to question the finding of the trial Judge 
that the bank took the cheques in good faith.

The only question that has given me any anxiety relates to 
the consideration for the payment. The trial Judge found that 
there was a good consideration and his finding stands not ap­
pealed from so far as the Brown company is concerned. Under 
such circumstances, it would be rather anomalous to hold in the 
same action that there was no consideration, but apart from that 
after a careful perusal of the evidence 1 am unable to say the 
finding was not justified.

I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal with costs.
Appeal dismissed.

HEX ex pci 8TONE11EBG V. PERRON.
British Columbia County Court, Thompson, Co. Ct. J. January 6, 1922.
Indictment information and complaint ($ II E—30)—Conviction under 

B. C. Fishery Régulations—Information disclosing no offence 
—Power of County Judge to amend.

Where an information discloses no offence the only power a Justice 
has is to direct that a new information be sworn, or that the old inf or 
mation be amended and re-sworn. In either case a new charge is laid. 
Where no offence is disclosed in the information the proceedings taken 
thereunder are not an irregularity but a nullity. The defect is funda­
mental and irremediable and an Appellate Court cannot amend such 
defect.

A conviction that the three accused, did on ... . unlawfully take- 
more than 25 trout in one day contrary to sec. 1(e) of the Fishery 
Regulations of B. C. held to be invalid a# disclosing no offence under the
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Appeal from a conviction by a Justice of the Peace for a 
breach of the Fishery Regulations of British Columbia sec. 1 (e). 
Quashed.

G. J. Spreull, for appellants.
W. A. Nitbet, for respondents.
Thompson, C.C.J. :—This is an appeal from a conviction made 

by Louis Perron, Esq., a Justice of the Peace in and for the 
county of Kootenay, whereby the appellants, Oscar Stoneberg, 
John Moe and Thomas Gustafson, were convicted that they did 
on October 27, 1921, at or near Glenlily, in the county of Koot­
enay, unlawfully take more than 25 trout in one day contrary to 
sec. 1 (e) of the Fishery Regulations of British Columbia.

The facts are that the three appellants were seen starting out 
to fish and later in the day were found by Constable Keif of the 
Royal Canadian Mounted Police with a bag, or sack, full of fish, 
which were subsequently counted and found to t>e 137 in number, 
of which about 124 were found to lie trout coming within the 
classes mentioned in the section of the fishery regulations. The 
accused did not deny that they had caught the fish, and the 
number largely exceeded the aggregate which the three of them 
could lawfully catch. There is no doubt but that the appellants 
caught more than the allotted number of fish, and I would hold 
that the onus was cast upon each individual accused to show that 
he himself did not catch more than the allotted number.

Mr. Spreull made several objections to the conviction, but the 
only one upon which I feel called upon to make a finding is that 
the information charges that the three men took more than 25 
trout in one day.

It is clearly within the regulations for three men to take more 
than 25 trout; they can take 75 provided each mail takes 25 
only. Not only the information, therefore, but the conviction is 
clearly wrong on the fact. They should have been charged that 
they each took more than 25 trout in one day. The question, 
therefore, for me to consider is whether I can amend the informa­
tion and conviction to bring them within the words of the reg­
ulations.

Section 754 of the Code allows me to amend any defect which 
the Justice could have amended by reason of secs. 723, 724 and 
725, but I can go no further ; or I may ignore any defect men­
tioned in these sections. I have the same power that tin Justice 
had, but where no offence whatsoever is disclosed in the informa­
tion the Justice has no power to amend the information to dis­
close an offence and proceed with the hearing. As stated in Tre- 
meear’s annotated Criminal Code under sec. 710, at p. 956;—

“There is no express power to amend an information which is

B.C.

Co. Ct.

RKX EX BEI. 
Stonebebu

Pebbon.

Thompson,
Co.CU.



394 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

B.C.

Co. Ct

Rex ex bel 
Stonebf.bq

Thompson,
Co.Ct.J.

subject to Part XV ; but after an amendment is made, it may In- 
treated as a new information. Certain defects and variances art- 
declared by the Code not to be material ; secs. 723-725 ; and tIn­
justice may order particulars. Sec. 723 (2). If the Justice 
allows an amendment of a sworn information, it is a preferable 
practice in all cases to have the information re-sworn. Hut an 
information will not be invalidated by failure to have it re- 
sworn if it does not charge a new offence.”

Where the information discloses no offence the only power a 
Justice has is to direct that a new information be sworn, or that 
the old information be amended and re-sworn. In either case a 
new charge is laid. Where no offence is disclosed in the informa 
tion the proceedings taken thereunder are not an irregularity 
but a nullity. The defect is fundamental and irremediable, Rex 
v. Little (1915), 27 Can. Cr. Cas. 422. The Appellate Court can 
not amend where the defect is fundamental and irremediable. 
Rex v. Dunlap (1914), 22 Can. Cr. Cas. 245. In that case no 
date whatsoever was mentioned of the commission of the offence 
1 held in that ease that 1 had not the power to amend so as to 
insert a date. Had the wrong date been mentioned I would prob 
ably have had the power to insert the proper one by virtue of 
see. 724.

The latest ease I have been able to find affecting the facts in 
this appeal is that of Rex v. Saunderson (1920), 34 Can. Cr. Cas. 
81. That case was very similar to the present one. The accuse. I 
was charged that he did unlawfully sell liquor contrary to Tie 
Saskatchewan Temperance Act, 1917, ch. 23, and on that charge 
convicted. He appealed, and the appeal was beard in the Court 
of King’s Bench, Saskatchewan, by Taylor, J. He found as ,i 
matter of fact (as I do here) that the accused was guilty. II 
found that the only offence of which he could be guilty was under 
sec. 24 of the Saskatchewan Temperance Act. He cites a great 
many authorities as to the description of the offence both from 
the Ontario reports and the English reports, all of which had 
come up on certiorari. The ease before him, however, was an 
appeal just as this one is. He cited also sec. 65 sub-secs. 1-2 of 
the Saskatchewan Temperance Act 1917, ch. 23, which, éliminât 
ing the parts not applicable, provides that :—

“No conviction . . or proceeding under this Act shall be held 
insufficient or invalid . . by reason of any other defect in form 
or substance, provided it can be understood from such conviction 
... or proceeding that the same was made for an offence against 
some provision of this Act . . . and there is evidence to prov- 
such offence.

Upon any application to quash such conviction ... in appeal
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. . . the Court or Judge to whom such appeal is made . . . shall 
dispose of such appeal . . . upon the merits, notwithstanding 
any such . . . defect as aforesaid ; and in all cases where it ap­
pears that the merits have been tried, and that the conviction Rex ex bkl 
. . or proceeding is sufficient, and valid under this section or T0NV 
otherwise, such conviction . . or proceeding shall he affirmed or Person.
shall not he quashed (as the case may lie) ; and such Court or ■-----
.Judge may in any case amend the same if necessary. co.cu.

He based his decision principally upon that of Rex v. Crane,
11920] 3 K.B. 236, 89 L.J. (K.B.) 813, in which it was held that 
the proceedings were to lie treated not as a trial in which some 
irregularity occurred hut as not lieing a trial at all. He quotes 
Johnson v. Xeedham, |1909] 1 K.B. 626, 78 L.J. (K.B.) 412, in 
which it was held that the offence charged must lie a single, dis­
tinct, positive and definite charge.

If, therefore, the omission to lay out a “single, distinct, posi­
tive and definite charge” makes the proceedings not an irregul­
arity hut a nullity, I cannot help hut arrive at the conclusion that 
where the charge as laid is no offence at all I cannot amend.

While it is unnecessary for me to do so, still as counsel for 
the respondents has requested me to suggest any deficiencies in 
the regulations 1 would point out one way in which, to my mind, 
the regulation is defective. The regulation reads as follows:—

“Section 1 (c) : No one shall take in one day by angling or 
t rolling or by lxith means more than twenty-five Cut-throat,
Ha inbow or Dolly Varden Trout, Salmon Trout or Rocky Moun­
tain Whitefish, or of the different species than will in the aggre­
gate amount to more than twenty-five fish.”

It is manifestly impossible that the Crown would be able to 
prove that the fish in the possession of an accused person were all 
taken in one day or that they were taken by angling or trolling.
Where two or more persons are found together, as in this ease, 
with an aggregate of more than 25 fish each it is manifestly im­
possible for the Crown to prove that each man is guilty. It may 
only be one or two. While 1 might tie prepared to go to the ex­
tent of placing the onus upon the accused under such circum­
stances, I would suggest that the mere fact of the possession of 
a greater number of fish than the law allows to be caught should 
vast upon the accused the onus of proving his right to their pos­
session, in other words follow the procedure that is followed in 
the Game Act, 1914 (B.C.) eh. 33.

For the reasons 1 have given I am reluctantly compelled to 
quash the conviction. Under the circumstances, however, there 
will be no costs.

395
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Que. Be STANDARD IMPORTS Ltd., Ex parte CANADIAN EXPRESS CO
"g c~ Quebec Superior Court in Bankruptcy, Maclcnnan, J. January 11, 192$.

Bankruptcy (^ III—20)—Express company’s money order contract— 
Trust funds—Priority—Bankruptcy Act 1919 (Can.) ch. 30.

The money paid in to a company for money orders, under a trust 
agreement, with an express company whereby the treasurer of tin- 
debtor company was appointed an agent for the express company for 
the purpose of issuing such money orders and agreed that the funds 
representing each money order should be the property of the express 
company and should be kept in a separate trust account, is payable to 
the express company, on un assignment of the debtor company under 
the Bankruptcy Act 1919 (Can.) ch. 36, in preference and priority to 
the claims of other creditors.

[See Annotations 63 D.L.R. 135; 66 D.L.R. 104; 69 D.L.R. 1.]

Appeal from a ruling of the authorised trustee, that the appel­
lants claim must rank as an ordinary creditor and share rateahly 
with the other creditors. Reversed.

Maclennan, J. :—The claim of the creditor arose in the fol 
lowing manner: On March 26, 1910, Margaret II. Cooney, tin 
secretary and treasurer of the Standard Imports Ltd., was ap 
pointed hy the Canadian Express Co., as agent for the sale of its 
signed money orders and entered into a written agreement to 
account for each money order and the proceeds thereof and t<> 
hold in trust such proceeds and every part thereof entirely 
separate from other funds in her hands and to pay over the whole 
of said proceeds from time to time to the express company a< 
required after deducting her lawful commission, said agreement 
further stating “all papers, moneys, vouchers and documents 
used in connection with this agreement and the business there 
under or incidental thereto shall he the property of the Canadian 
Express Co.,” and, concurrently therewith, the Standard Im 
ports Ltd., having approved of the appointment of Cooney for 
the issue of money orders while in its employ by an agreement 
in writing, covenanted with and guaranteed to the Canadian 
Express Co., that Cooney would duly perform the terms of her 
contract and would from time to time, as desired by the express 
company, pay over to it the proceeds in her hands resulting from 
the sale of money orders.

On March 18, 1921, the Standard Imports, Ltd., made an au­
thorised assignment under the Bankruptcy Act, 1919 (Can.) eh. 
36. At that date Cooney was indebted to the express company 
for money orders issued by her amounting to $633.05. On March 
29, 1921, the Standard Imports Ltd., filed its sworn statement 
of affairs in which the Canadian Express Co. is stated to be a 
preferential creditor for $595.06. The express company filed a 
claim for $633.05, and on August 3, 1921, the authorised trustee
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notified the express company that its claim must rank as an or­
dinary claim. From this decision of the authorised trustee the 
creditor has appealed to the Court and asks that the decision of 
the authorised trustee he reversed and that he be ordered to pay 
the claim in full by privilege.

Cooney, the secretary and treasurer of the debtor, was ap­
pointed agent for the sale of the express company’s money or­
ders as a matter of convenience to the debtor. She was supplied 
with a hook of blank money orders by the express company and 
from time to time issued money orders in connection with the 
business of the debtor. She never issued any money order for 
any one else. The express company was in the habit of sending 
a collector, usually weekly, for the purpose of collecting the 
amount of any money orders which had been issued since his 
last visit. Cooney did not keep the money representing the or­
ders which she issued separate from other funds in her hands, 
but allowed the money to remain in the hands of the debtor and 
when the express company’s collector called he received a cheque 
from the debtor. This method of settlements was carried on ap­
parently with the consent and approval of the express company, 
the debtor and Cooney, who were all parties to the written agree­
ment providing that the money representing each money order 
was held in trust separate from other funds and was the pro­
perty of the express company. Cooney, when examined at the 
hearing, testified that when she issued these money orders for 
the debtor she did not get the money in her own hands at the 
time as she should have done under her agreement, but that the 
money was in the possession of the debtor for the purpose of 
paying the express company when its collector called. It ap­
pears by the sworn statement of affairs that at the date of the 
assignment the debtor had #187.33 to its credit in two banks, 
and #160.09 cash on hand, forming a total of #347.42. The 
balance of its assets consisted of stock in trade, fixtures, book 
debts, machinery and real estate. Under sec. 10 of the Bank­
ruptcy Act, 1919 (Can.) eh. 36, anything held in trust by the 
assignor for any other person would not become vested in the 
trustee as part of the property of the assignor. By her written 
agreement Cooney undertook to hold in trust for the express 
company a sum equal to the amount of each money order issued 
by her and to pay that sum over to the express company. The 
debtor by its undertaking guaranteed that while Cooney was in 
its employ she would duly perform the terms of her contract 
and pay over the proceeds in her hands resulting from the sale 
of money orders. This was clearly a trust agreement to which 
the debtor was a party, and when Cooney and the debtor agreed 
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to allow the money representing each money order to remain in 
the hands of the debtor, that money which under the contract 
was stated to be the property of the express company, was affect­
ed by the fiduciary relationship which existed between the ex­
press company on one side, and tiic debtor and its employee, 
Cooney, on the other side. Until very shortly before the assign­
ment the debtor apparently treated the moneys which represent­
ed money orders issued by its treasurer and which were allowed 
to remain in its hands as trust funds belonging to the express 
company and issued its own cheque therefor direct to the ex­
press company. As the debtor became financially embarrassed 
it did not during the last few days preceding the assignment set 
aside or retain sufficient cash to pay for the money orders issued 
on its behalf as, at the date of its assignment, the total cash on 
hand and in the bank was only $347.42 instead of $633.05.

There was a fiduciary relation between the debtor its treasurer 
and the express company, and the money on hand and in the 
bank was charged in favour of the trust for the express com­
pany and the latter, as the beneficial owner has a right to claim 
its own property, or any property affected by the trust where- 
cver it finds and identifies it. As long as it is not held by a bona 
fide holder, the trust attaches to the property and the right to 
follow it ceases only when the means of ascertainment fail. While 
the money can be identified it is free from the claims of general 
creditors. These are the principles which result from such cases 
as In rc Ilallett’s Estate; Kruitckbull v. Hallett (1879), 13 Ch. 
D. 696, 49 L.J. (Ch.) 415, 28 W.R. 732: In re Oat way; Hertsht 
v. Oatway, [1903] 2 Ch. 356, 72 L.J. (Ch.) 575, 88 L.T. 622: 
Roscoe Ltd. v. Winder, [1915] 1 Ch. 62, 84 L.J. (Ch.) 286; 
Sweeney v. Bank of Montreal (1885), 12 Can. S.C.R. 661 ; affirmed 
(1887), 12 App. Cas. 617, 56 L.J. (P.C.) 79, C.R. (9) A.C. 340, 
and Raphael v. McFarlane (1890), 18 Can. S.C.R. 183.

As the express company has a charge resulting from the trust 
on the cash on hand and in the banks which came into the pos 
session of the authorised trustee, the claim of the express com­
pany is not affected by the bankruptcy. These moneys wen 
trust funds, the assignment did not vest them in the authorised 
trustee and the general creditors are not entitled to rank upon 
them. The evidence does not disclose what became of the balaiv 
of the moneys which should have been set aside or reserved for 
the express company. The trust does not extend to the other 
assets of the estate in the absence of evidence connecting them 
with moneys retained for the express company. In these cir­
cumstances the Canadian Express Co. is entitled to receive from 
the authorised trustee $347.42 as trust funds held by the debtor
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for it and to rank as an ordinary creditor for the balance of its 
claim $285.96. The costs of these proceedings will be paid by 
the authorised trustee out of the estate. Appeal allowed.

SHAW v. THE SHIP “PIELDWOOD”
Exchequer Court of Canada, Nova Scotia Admiralty District, Mtllish, L.J.A.

February St, JOSS.
Seamen (81—4)—Articles signed fob certain period as ship’s cook—

Desertion—Right to wages for time served—Canada Shipping 
Act, R.8.C. 190(5, cu. 113, secs. 287 and 297.

Whore n seaman signs articles to serve as cook on a ship for a certain 
period and leaves the ship before the expiration of the time without 
being justified in doing so. the Local Judge in Admiralty has jurisdic­
tion under sec. 297, of the Canada Shipping Act, R.S.C. 190(5, eh. 113, to 
determine the amount of wages due to such sailor for the time he 
served with the ship, notwithstanding that in criminal proceedings im­
prisonment as well as forfeiture might be awarded under sec. 287 of 
the Act.

| See Shi ford V. Money, 119171 1 K.IJ. 154, 8(5 L.J. (K.B.) 289, 115 
L.T. (585; Button v. Thomson (18(59), L.R. 4 C.P. 330, 38 L.J. (C.P.) 
Ml, 17 W.R. IWT.j

Action in rem to recover wages alleged to be due to the plain­
tiff as cook on board the ship “Fieldwood.”

The facts of the case are as follows;—
The plaintiff on September 22. 1920, signed articles at Wey­

mouth, N.S., agreeing to serve as cook and steward on defendant 
ship at $120 per month for a voyage from Weymouth, N.S., 
thence to any ports or places in the British or Foreign West 
Indies (and) or any ports or places between the limits of 65 
degrees north (and) or 65 degrees south latitude, trading to and 
fro as required, for a term not exceeding 24 months, final port 
of discharge to be in the Dominion of Canada ; that he so served 
from September 22, 1920, to May 26, 1921, a period of 8 months 
and 4 days, at $120 a month, amounting to the sum of $976, and 
that he had received at various times credits or cash to the 
amount of $685, leaving a balance claimed as due him of $291.

The ship sailed from Weymouth, N.S., to Mobile, Alabama, 
V. S. A., thence to Bilbao, Spain, back to Terra Vigo in the 
Mediterranean, and from there to Providence, Rhode 
Island, where the plaintiff left her and returned on another ship 
as a passenger to Nova Scotia. The defendant ship, 
after the plaintiff left her, sailed for New York, and from New 
York to Lunenburg, Nova Scotia. The evidence also 
shewed that whilst at Providence the captain had told the plain­
tiff what he would do to him if he were not a cripple, 
and that the plain uT visited the British Consul and in the 
presence of the captain, had asked that he lie paid off and 
discharged which the captain refused. They had also had words

Can. 
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Can. oil the voyage across the Atlantie. Tim plaintiff left the ship at
Ex. Ct. Providence and remained there until after the ship sailed for 

New York, visiting the vessel several times before she sailed and
Sir aw was standing on the wharf when she put out. His clothes were

V.
The Ship

left on hoard and were brought home by the ship. No action 
was taken against the plaintiff as a deserter or for being absent 
without leave. A new man was shipped at Providence at $35 a

Mellish, L.J.A month to replace plaintiff, who acted as cook for the balance of 
the voyage. There was also evidence that the captain, who was 
a part owner of the ship, had reduced the wages of some of the 
crew at Providence and intended to reduce those of the plaintiff

V. li. Fullerton, for plaintiff.
\V. C. McDonald, for defendant.
Mellish, L.J.A. :—The plaintiff was engaged under articles 

to serve as cook and steward on the “Fieldwood” on September 
22,1920, monthly wages, $120. lie left the ship on May 26, 1921. 
at Providence. Up to that date, if he had been regularly dis 
charged, his wages then would have been $291, the amount sued 
for herein. There is some evidence that on account of exchange, 
this would be somewhat larger, hut it is too indefinite for me to 
give effect to it. The evidence, including the plaintiff's letters, 
lead me to the conclusion that he was not justified in leaving tin 
vessel, although the master’s conduct was not such as would h< 
likely to keep the crew together. The owners, however, lost 
nothing, hut on the contrary profited by his so doing. The onl.x 
defence is that the wages have been forfeited by desertion.

The Canada Shipping Act R.S.C. 1906, ch. 113, sec. 287, pro­
vides that a seaman on summary conviction may for desertion 
be punished by imprisonment and forfeiture of clothes and 
effects left on hoard and of all or any part of the wages he has 
earned.

Section 297 provides that any question concerning the for 
feiturc of wages may he determined in any proceedings with 
respect to such wages in such a ship as this, notwithstanding that 
in criminal proceedings imprisonment as well as forfeiture might 
be awarded.

1 think the justice of the case will he met by reducing the 
plaintiff’s claim by the amount of wages for the days which lie 
served during the month in which he left the ship—the month 
for the purpose of computation running from the 23rd of one 
month to the 22nd of the next, inclusive of such dates. This 
makes 4 days, and the plaintiff was paid at the rate of about $1 
per day.

The reduet ions accordingly will be $16, and the plaintiff will 
have judgment for the balance of his claim, $275 and costs.

Judgment accordingly.
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WHWARTZ v. til'KillN Alta.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Scott, C.J., Beck, Hyndman 

and Clarke, JJ.A. June it, 1922.
Costs ($ II—37)—Taxation—Consideration of cirvi mstances by tax­

ing officer.
Where the pleadings in three net ions shew that there were, in fact, 

several distinct allegations of fact made as distinct grounds upon which 
the cancellation of certain mortgages should be granted, and the trial 
Judge dismisses all the actions with costs, thus finding all the issues 
of fact against the plaintiffs, and the finding of the trial Judge on the 
main issue of fact is not interfered with on appeals which succeed as to 
two of the actions merely on one general ground, the taxing officer 
should take into consideration all the surrounding circumstances of the 
actions and that in the action of the unsuccessful plaintiff every issue 
was raised against the defendant that was raised by the successful 
plaintiffs in their actions, except the one on which they eventually 
succeeded and that all those issues were decided in favour of the 
defendant and should consider the costs of those other issues as having 
been already taxed to the defendant against the unsuccessful plaintiff 
and he should tax to the successful plaintiffs only such costs of the trial 
as were properly attributable to the one contest upon which they eventu­
ally succeeded.

[Hce also 65 D.L.H. 415.]

Appeal from the taxing officer referred to the Appellate 
« Division by a Judge in Chambers.

A. C. Mae Williams, for appellant.
W. S. (iraii, for respondent.
The judgment of the Court was delivered by
Stuart, J.A.:—This is an appeal from the taxing officer re­

ferred to this Court by a Judge at Chambers.
There were originally three separate actions, viz : Joseph 

Schwartz v. Guerin, Anni R. Schwartz v. Guerin and William 
Schwartz v. Guerin. The three actions were of the same general 
character and concerned the same matters. Joseph Schwartz, 
the principal debtor, sued to have a certain mortgage given by 
him on his own property, set aside. Anni R. Schwartz and Wil- 

j liam Schwartz did the same with respect to distinct mortgages 
given by each of them on their respective properties. Ilut all 
three mortgages related to the indebtedness of Josipli Schwartz 
and had all been signed at the same time.

For this reason, the actions were tried all together and the 
trial lasted 16 days. The trial Judge dismissed all the actions 
with costs. The plaintiffs, Anni R. Schwartz and William 
Schwartz appealed and their appeals succeeded. The formal 
judgment of this Court, with respect to costs, reads as follows :—

“This Court did further order and adjudge that the said 
respondent should and do pay to the said appellants the costs 
incurred by the said appeal, the same to he taxed as one bill of 
costs under col. 4 of the schedule of costs.

28—68 D.L.B.
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Alta. This Court did further order and adjudge that the defendant
App. Div. do pay the costs of action of the plaintiff Anni Beichsfeld 

Schwartz, down to the trial under eol. 3 of the schedule of costs
Schwartz

V.
Guerin.

and do pay the costs of the action of William Schwartz down to 
the trial under col. 3 of the schedule of costs and do pay to the 
plaintiffs Anni Reichsfeld Schwartz and William Schwartz, one

smart. J.A. bill of costs of the trial, the said bill of costs to be under col. 4 
of the schedule of costs and the said costs of trial to be divided 
equally between the bills of costs of the plaintiffs Anni Reichsfeld 
Schwartz and William Schwartz, and that Rule 27 as to costs do 
not apply to any of said bills of costs, and that the said plain­
tiffs and each of them have judgment accordingly.”

This is quite in accordance with the reasons for judgment 
given for the Court by Walsh, J. (1922), 65 D.L.R. 415.

Pursuant to this judgment the two plaintiffs in question, pro­
ceeded to tax their costs of the action and of the appeal. Ob­
jections were taken by the defendant to the allowance made by 
the taxing officer and these are now before us. With respect to 
the action the main items objected to are these:—Counsel fee 
with brief at trial, $1,131 ; Second counsel, $459.35; Witness 
fees, $578.15; Anni Schwartz’ witness fees and expenses, $106; 
William Schwartz’ witness fees and expenses, $123.70.

The grounds of objection are (1) that the plaintiffs did not 
succeed in the issues raised in their statement of claim to which 
they directed practically all their evidence and, their success 
being confined to one issue which could have been quickly dis­
posed of and did not require summoning of any witnesses and 
payment of their fees and expenses, the Clerk should not have 
allowed to the plaintiffs counsel fees covering the whole period 
the trial lasted. (2) That the witnesses whose witness fees and 
expenses were taxed and allowed by the clerk gave no evidence 
on the issue on which the plaintiffs succeeded but their evidence 
was wholly confined to issues on which the defendant succeeded 
and the clerk erred in allowing the plaintiffs to tax these wit­
ness fees and expenses.

A reference to the pleadings in the two actions shews that there 
were, in fact, several issues raised, that is, there were distinct 
allegations of fact made as distinct grounds upon which the one 
relief asked for i.e., the cancellation of the mortgages should be 
granted. It was not the case of several causes of action being 
joined in one action with different prayers for relief with res­
pect to each. The plaintiff, Anni Schwartz, in her pleading after 
alleging the execution of the mortgage which she was seeking to 
avoid stated (1) that the mortgage (for $1,000) was executed 
and delivered at Milk River, Alberta, and upon the defendant ’s
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promise to pay her $1,000. (2) That the defendant fraudulently 
procured one Boyce, to make an affidavit in Montana, that he had 
been present at Sweet Grass, Montana, when the mortgage was 
executed at that place and that, he, Boyce, was the subscribing 
witness thereto, all of which was false, and that the defendant 
also procured one. Dunblazier, a notary public of Montana, to 
sign a false certificate as to an affidavit made by the plaintiff. 
(3) That it was agreed that the mortgage should not be register­
ed until the defendant had advanced to the plaintiff the sum of 
$1,000, but that the plaintiff had never received that sum and 
that, notwithstanding this, the defendant, upon the strength of 
the false affidavit of Boyce and the false notarial certificate of 
Dunblazier, had got the mortgage registered. (4) That defend­
ant had procured the plaintiff’s husband, Joseph Schwartz, by 
threats, intimidation and undue influence to exercise his will 
and dominion and influence upon the plaintiff, his wife, to induce 
her to execute the mortgage for the purpose of securing an ad­
vance to be made by the defendant to the husband for purposes 
of his own. (5) That the plaintiff never received any considera­
tion for executing the mortgage, that she had no independent 
advice, and was induced to execute the same solely through her 
husband’s exercise of will, dominion and influence over her. (6) 
That she was at the time of signing, an illiterate woman unable 
to read English, and the mortgage was never explained to her 
or read over to her or that if any explanation was given it was 
that the mortgage was to enable her husband to raise money to 
pay his creditors and that the mortgage was never used for that 
purpose but was used for other purposes.

The statement of claim in the action of William Schwartz 
also contained the same allegation of subornation of perjury, and 
the same allegation that the amount of the mortgage ($3,000) 
was to be advanced to the plaintiff upon registration, but that 
the false affidavit and notarial certificate had been used to ob­
tain registration and no sum had been, in fact, advanced and 
then went on to allege in the alternative that the plaintiff was 
at the time of the execution of the mortgage of the age of 21 
years, the son of Joseph Schwartz, residing with his father and 
completely under the parental dominion, influence and control, 
and that the defendant had procured the father by threats, in­
timidation and undue influence to exercise his will, dominion and 
influence on the plaintiff to induce him to execute the mortgage 
in order to secure an advance to be made by the defendant to 
the father for the latter’s own purposes, that the plaintiff never 
received any consideration for the mortgage and never had any 
independent advice regarding the same.
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In his two statements of defence, the defendant denied all 
these allegations. The only affirmative allegations made in the 
defences were that the mortgages were, in faet. signed at Sweet 
(irass, that the affidavits of Boyce and the certificate of Dun- 
blazier were true and that the mortgages were given to the de­
fendant as trustee for the Farmers & Merchants Bank of Mon­
tana to secure a past indebtedness of the father, Joseph Schwartz, 
to that bank.

Concurrently with the trial of these issues, the issues raised 
in the aetion of Joseph Schwartz were also tried. He also con­
tended that his mortgage was given to secure a future loan which 
was never made and not to secure a past debt as the defendant 
alleged, and he also alleged the fraud and subornation of per 
jury.

The trial Judge, at the close of the trial, gave an oral judg­
ment dismissing all the actions with costs, thus finding all the 
issues of faet against the plaintiffs. One main issue in all the 
actions was whether the defendant had agreed to advance the 
sums mentioned in the three mortgages $1,000, $3,000, and 
$16,000 as new loans to pay the creditors of Joseph Schwartz 
and had failed to do so or whether the mortgages had been given 
to secure his past debts. The finding of the trial Judge in favour 
of the defendant on this issue was not interfered with on the 
appeals which were brought by Anni and William Schwartz so 
far as the intention and agreement of the defendant was con­
cerned. Neither did the judgment on appeal interfere with the 
finding of the trial Judge as to the subornation of perjury and 
fraud.

The reasons for judgment on the appeal reported in 65 D.L.lî. 
415, shew that the appeals succeeded merely upon one general 
ground; viz;—that the mortgages appeared upon their face to 
be for a future loan, that the defendant had failed to shew that 
the plaintiffs had been fully informed as to the real purpose of 
the mortgages or that this real purpose had ever been properly 
explained to and agreed to by them ; and that, owing to the rela- 
tionship of the parties as merely sureties for the husband and 
father, the obligation lay upon the defendant to shew that there 
had been such full and complete explanation and full and frét­
assent to the real purpose of the mortgages and that in this In- 
had failed.

The appellant in the present appeal, therefore, contends that, 
upon a taxation of the costs of the actions and the trial under 
the above quoted judgment, the taxing officer had the power to 
refuse and should have refused to allow the plaintiffs any costs
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except such hs could properly he held referable to the one issue 
upon which the plaintiffs eventually succeeded.

The defendant was, by the judgment at the trial, given judg­
ment for his cost of the three actions and for the costs of the trial 
hut the trial Judge divided the costs of the trial and directed that 
the defendant should recover twelve sixteenths of these from the 
plaintiff Joseph Schwartz, three-sixteenths from the plaintiff 
William Schwartz and one-sixteenth from the plaintiff Anni K. 
Schwartz. J3y the judgment in appeal, the judgment against 
Joseph Schwartz was not interfered with as he was not an ap­
pellant. The defendant, therefore, now has judgment against 
Joseph Schwartz for all his costs of the Joseph Schwartz action 
up to trial and for twelve-sixteenths of the costs of the trial. This 
still stands. Hut the judgments against Anni R. Schwartz and 
William Schwartz have been set aside and these plaintiffs now 
have judgments as above quoted against the defendant giving 
them the one ultimate relief which they ever claimed viz: the 
setting aside of their respective mortgages and giving them the 
costs of their respective actions up to trial and giving each of 
them judgment for one-half of one general bill of costs of the 
trial. If Anni R. Schwartz and William Sehwatrz had appeared 
by different solicitors and different counsel at the trial, such an 
order as to the costs of the trial would doubtless have been im­
proper. llut inasmuch as the same counsel acted for both of 
them, it was obviously only just that they should not each he 
given a full set of costs of the trial. Accordingly one was given 
a half and the other a half.

The position is, therefore, just the same as if there were only 
one plaintiff in one action, who had been given a judgment for 
his costs of the action (which would include the trial ) where the 
trial had been held at the same time as the trial of the Joseph 
Schwartz’ action, in which some of the same issues were raised. 
The distinction made in the formal judgment between the costs 
of the action up to trial and the costs of the trial does not involve, 
as I interpret it, anything special as between the plaintiffs and 
the defendant, with regard to the costs of the trial but only some 
thing special as between the two plaintiffs.

What, then, would have been the position if there had been 
only one plaintiff besides Joseph Schwartz and that plaintiff had 
been given a judgment, for the reasons set forth in the reasons 
for judgment, against the defendant that his mortgage be set 
aside and that the plaintiff should recover from the defendant 
“his costs of the action?”

The chief cause of difficulty in the matter is that we are not 
now at liberty to deal with the question as it might have been
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dealt with before the formal judgment was entered and while 
the ease was still sub judice. it is not now solely a question of 
what the Court has power to order or ought to order but of what 
is the meaning and result as to costs of the judgment which has 
been entered.

But in construing the judgment, the taxing master and the 
Court ought to take into consideration all the surrounding cir­
cumstances of the actions. The judgment does not refer in any 
way whatever to the trial of the action of Joseph Schwartz, but 
the facts are there and were known to the Court and all parties, 
that the action of Joseph Schwartz was tried at the same time, 
that in that action every issue was raised against the defendant 
that was raised by the two successful plaintiffs in their actions 
except the one on which they eventually succeeded and that all 
those issues were decided in favour of the defendant and he was 
given judgment against Joseph Schwartz for twelve-sixteenths 
of the costs of the joint trial. The judgment entered in the Ap­
pellate Division should be construed in the light of those facts. 
It would be a strange result indeed if after the defendant had 
been given his costs against Joseph Schwartz of contesting all 
those other issues the two plaintiffs, who were eventually success­
ful on the additional issue only, were to be given against the de­
fendant the costs of the trial of those other issues upon which 
they also had failed.

1 do not think it necessary to give any such interpretation to 
the judgment. The only reasonable interpretation of the judg­
ment in the light of all the known facts is that the taxing officer 
should consider the costs of all those other issues as having been 
already taxed to the defendant against Joseph Schwartz, ami 
thereby disposed of and ended and that he should tax to the 
plaintiffs only such costs of the trial as were properly attribut­
able to the one contest upon which they succeeded viz:—the ex­
istence or non-existence of proper information and explanation 
as to the real purpose of the mortgages. The plaintiffs assorted 
that Guerin had promised to loan them money on the security 
of the mortgages and that he not having done so the mortgages 
should be cancelled but they failed on that ground in itself and 
even if they might be looked upon as having succeeded because 
the face of the mortgages put it that way and no money was 
advanced, yet there was no real trial at all upon any issue of 
that kind because Guerin never contended that he had advanced 
the new loans. He contended and was upheld in his contention, 
that the real purpose of the mortgages was to secure past debts of 
Joseph Schwartz and he only failed in retaining them because



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 407

the information and explanation necessary to sustain them had 
not been given.

It is indeed extremely difficult to separate the matter into 
separate issues except as to the charges of subornation of perjury 
and fraud.

Itut if the plaintiff had omitted these charges, had omitted the 
claims that they were to get a new loan, had admitted that 
Guerin’s intention in taking the mortgages was to secure past 
debts of Joseph Schwartz and had alleged such purpose and in­
tention was never properly explained to or agreed to by them as 
required by their special relationship to Joseph Schwartz, they 
would have alleged all that they succeeded upon and would have 
no concern whatever with the major part of the contest at the 
trial.

This view of the matter makes it really unnecessary to consider 
the application of the concluding words of Rule 730 as to costs 
where it says that, in the absence of an order “the eosts shall 
follow the event” and of the provisions of Rule 742, as to the 
case where two or more issues of law and fact are raised upon the 
pleadings as there has been divided success.

1 am inclined to tin» opinion, however, where there are several 
issues of law and fact even though only one relief can be secured 
by the plaintiff and the Judge simply gives the plaintiff judg­
ment with costs but does not exercise the power given under 
Rule 742, that there is still room left for the operation of the 
concluding words of 730 as to the costs following the event. The 
Judge has indeed made an order .but he has not dealt with the 
distributive events of the different issues and it seems well set­
tled that the word “event” should be read distributively. This 
is my impression and this view would actually lead to the same 
practical result as the other ground i have mentioned. Hut, I 
do not think it necessary to express any definite opinion upon 
this rather intricate point or to discuss the applicability of the 
decision in Reid Hewitt d* Co. v. Joseph, [ 1018J A.C. 717, 88 L.J. 
(K.H.) 1, to our somewhat differently worded rules.

In my opinion it was open to the taxing officer to act under 
Rule 745, which reads so far as relevant as follows:—
“If upon any taxation it shall appear . . . that from any 

other cause the amount of the costs is excessive having regard to 
the nature of the business transacted or the interests involved or 
the money or value of property to which the eosts relate or to 
the other circumstances of the case the taxing officer shall allow 
onlj) such an amount of costs as mag be reasonable and proper.”

This rule obviously directs the taxing officer in express words 
to act as I have already indicated that he should viz: to take
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Alta. into consideration “the circumstances of the case.” 1 think, 
App Div therefore, it was his plain duty, when proceeding to tax the one 

—— * hill of costs of the trial in favour of the two plaintiffs Anni and 
Schwahtz William Schwartz, to take into account the facts that that trial 
Guerin was held with the trial of the Joseph Schwartz case and
----- that the defendant succeeded against Joseph Schwartz on the

small, i.v very same issues that the present plaintiffs failed against the de­
fendant and that the evidence was all the same on all those 
issues.

For these reasons 1 think that, with respect to counsel fees, it 
would he reasonable and proper to allow the plaintiffs only one- 
fourth of the counsel fees of the two counsel, that is, $282.75 for 
the first counsel and $114.84 for the second counsel.

With respect to witness fees, 1 think the plaintiffs are entitled 
to all their own witness fees without other deduction than that 
made by the taxing officer. Possibly, in strictness, something 
more might be deducted but, in all the circumstances, 1 do not 
think anything more should be taken off.

As to the other witness fees there is more difficulty, or rather, 
perhaps I should say, more trouble. It is merely a matter of 
examining their evidence and seeing whether it had anything 
to do with the grounds upon which the plaintiffs succeeded. 
Vpon this principle I think the result will be that the only wit­
ness in addition to the plaintiff, whose fees should be allowed, is 
the witness, Graham, who came from the Laud Titles Office. The 
evidence of none of the other witnesses had anything whatever to 
do with the matters of fact upon which the plaintiffs succeeded. 
Their fees should all be disallowed. If the plaintiffs had not 
raised the issues upon which they failed and upon which alone 
the evidence of those witnesses was relevant, these witnesses 
would not have been needed at all.

With respect to the costs of the action, there were two minor 
objections but the nature of these was not made very clear to us 
nor do the documents left with us throw much light upon them. 
As the items were relatively small I do not think we should in 
these circumstances, interfere.

The defendant also objects to the amount allowed in the taxa­
tion of the costs of the appeal, for the typewriting of the appeal 
I look. In the notice of appeal the appellants raised again all the 
questions upon which they had failed below except, perhaps, the 
charges of fraud and perjury. In these circumstances the res­
pondent could not be expected to consent to a reduction of the 
contents of the appeal book. On the other hand, the ground up­
on which the appellants succeeded was that the defendant hail 
not given evidence proving certain things. Just how the appel-
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lants could shew this conclusively to the Court without having B.C. 
all the evidence there in order to shew that such sufficient evi- 
dence was not given, is perhaps a little difficult to see. But there 
can he no doubt that hut for the contents of tin* notice of appeal 
an opportunity for negotiation and agreement as to minimizing 
the extent of the appeal book would have been presented, and 
that an arrangement could certainly have been arrived at which 
would, at least, have cut the cost of the appeal book in two. 1 
think, therefore, the further sum of $800 should he taken off the 
costs of the appeal hook. Rule 74.1 is wide enough to give the 
taxing officer and a Judge upon review, power to do this.

Of course, in so voluminous and involved a case, the taxing 
officers could scarcely he expected to study the whole matter and 
find out all that we learned about it upon the argument of the 
appeal. But I think, nevertheless, that, strictly speaking, it was 
their duty to do so and that the power given them under Rule 745 
ought to he exercised more frequently and more stringently than 
it has been in the past.

The appeals from the taxing officer will, therefore, he allowed 
without costs, as we understand was agreed, and the hills of 
costs will he remitted to the respective taxing officers with direc­
tions to amend the different allocators in accordance with what 
has been said.

Judgment accord in gig.

KXGIXKKR MINING CO. v. FKAHKK.
British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Gallihcr, Me Phillips 

and hberts, JJ.A. June 6, VJ'ii.
Mixes and minerals ($ 1 C—21)—Conflicting claims—Failure to have 

RIGHTS RECORDED—ABANDONMENT—LOCATION BY ANOTHER—TITLE 
ishved—Absence ok fraud—Right ok first party to assert 
CLAIM AGAINST—R.S.B.C. 1911, CH. 157, SECS. 12, 27, AND 85.— 
Construction.

Under the Mineral Act R.S.B.C. 1911 ch. 157, the Record office Is 
the place where the rights of locators and holders of mineral 
claims are to be searched for, and a person who fails, not wholly 
through the fault of the official to get his rights recorded cannot 
be allowed, long afterwards, to assert them against a subsequent 
recorded owner who has obtained his title without fraud.

Appeal by plaintiffs from the judgment of Clement, J., in an 
action claiming the ownership of certain mineral claims. 
Affirmed.

E. C. Magcrs, for appellant ; R. Symett, for respondent.
Macdonald, C.J.A.:—The defendant Fraser, is the administra­

tor with will annexed of James Alexander, deceased, and the 
other defendants are the beneficiaries under the said will.

The Engineer Mining Co. is a foreign company incorporated
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in Alaska, and was registered in this Province on June 4, 1900. 
The company claims to have acquired ownership of the several 
mineral claims in question in this action, and to have applied in 
the year 1906, for a certificate of improvements thereto. The in­
terest of the company in the said claims is alleged to have been 
acquired through the acquisition by it of the several interests of 
the partners in a mining partnership known as “The Aga Gold 
Mining Co., Limited Liability”, which was not a corporate body. 
The plaintiff company claims that it had got in all the partner­
ship interests and had complied with all the conditions to its 
right to have issued to it by the .Mining Recorder, certificates ol" 
improvements under the Mineral Act, R.S.B.C. 1911, eh. 157.

The company had procured assignments from several of tin- 
individuals composing the partnership of their respective inter­
ests in the claims and had forwarded these to the .Mining Re­
corder, but it appears by the evidence before us that these as­
signments embraced only twenty-two twenty-fourths of the total 
of the interests in the claims. The claim of the company, how­
ever, now is, that apart from these assignments it was the owner 
of all the claims through its purchase of the partnership assets 
and that the Mining Recorder ought to have complied with the 
company’s application for certificates of improvements, even 
though the fact were that only twenty-two twenty-fourths of tin- 
interests in the claims were covered by the assignments deposited 
with him. The applicants for the certificates who represented 
the company and the Mining Recorder were on the most friendly 
terms, both he and they appeared to have thought that the a>- 
signments were necessary to complete the company’s title, but 
owing to the late partners being scattered, the final two twenty 
fourths were not obtained and as the time was at hand when the 
certificates must be issued for further representation work done 
on the claims, to avoid the lapse thereof, it was decided that tic- 
applications should be withdrawn, the claims allowed to lapse, 
and re-locations made of the same ground by the applicants and 
others interested in the company.

This decision was come to as 1 have just said, by those acting 
on behalf of the company and, doubtless, with the advice and on 
the suggestion of the Mining Recorder, which advice or sugges­
tion appears to have been freely concurred in by the applicants. 
The plan was carried out and the ground was re-located in the 
names of several parties representing and interested in the com­
pany. It was contended that this action was without the official 
authority of the company, but 1 think I must hold that it was 
taken by those who were in fact the agents of the company for 
making the applications for the certificates of improvements and
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that they had no greater authority for that purpose than for 
the other purpose of withdrawing the ' and re locating
the claims. However, it does not seem to me to matter whether 
they had authority to re-locate the claims or not, if they had 
authority to make application for certificates of improvement, 1 
think they had the same authority for withdrawing them. The 
re-location of the claims I must assume was lawfully made since 
no question was raised to the contrary, except as above intimated. 
The locators, however, failed to do and record the requisite 
assessment work required to be done and recorded by the Mineral 
Act, and, therefore, by force of the Act itself, these re locations 
expired on the effluxion of the time for recording the work. In 
addition to allowing the claims to expire, the company allowed 
its free miner's certificate to lapse and lost its legal status as a 
company entitled to hold mineral claims in this Province. It 
did not rehabilitate itself until several years thereafter. In the 
meantime, Alexander, after the expiry of the said re-locations, 
caused the same ground to be located, obtained certificates of 
improvements in due course, and eventually obtained grants of 
the claims from the Crown. This action is brought to set these 
aside. Several grounds of attack were raised, but the trial Judge 
disposed of the ease on one ground only, namely: that when 
Alexander applied for certificates of improvements, tin- plaintiff 
company failed to take proceedings adverse thereto pursuant to 
see. 85 of the Mineral Act. It was strenuously contended by Mr. 
Mayers, that the Mining Recorder was in error in not issuing 
the certificates of improvements to the plaintiff company upon 
the material before him, prior to the withdrawal of the applica­
tions as aforesaid. He relies upon the equitable doctrine that 
that must be taken to have been done which ought to have been 
done and on this principle submits that the ease is as if the 
certificates of improve in uts had actually been issued in 1906 
to the plaintiff company. He urged upon authority that the 
holders of certificates of improvements are not obliged to adverse 
> " claimants, and that, therefore, sec. 85 is not a bar to
the plaintiff’s claim. Hut I cannot help but think that the Act 
deals with actualities and not with equitable principles. The 
provisions for the protection of holders of certificates of im­
provements arc based not upon what ought to have been done, 
but upon what actually was done and as there were in fact no 
such certificates actually issued, the plaintiff company could only 
protect its rights against a subsequent applicant, by taking ad­
vantage of said sec. 85. The ease of Collister v. Reid (1919), 47 
D.L.R. 509, 27 13.C.R. 278, affirmed by the Supreme Court of 
Canada (1919), 50 D.L.R. 289, 59 Can. S.C.R. 275, was cited by
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Mr. Mayors as an authority in his favour, hut. I think it is not 
such. The plaintiffs in that case were in the position which the 
plaintiff company claims to be in in this case. They had applied 
for certificates of improvements which had not been granted : 
subsequently, re-locators applied for certificates of improvements 
and the Col listers taking advantage of sec. 85, adversed their 
claim successfully. 1 think, therefore, the Judge came to the 
right conclusion. Hut apart from this answer to the action, it 
appears that the plaintiff company ceased to be the holder of a 
free miner’s certificate subsequent to the withdrawal of the said 
applications. The Mineral Act K.S.B.C. 11111, eh. 157, see. 12. 
provides :—

“ . . . no person or joint-stock company shall be recognised as 

having any right or interest in or to any mining property unless 
he or it shall have a free miner’s certificate unexpired.”

Not only did the company fail to renew its free miner’s ccr 
tificate, but it appears to have abandoned all operations within 
the Province for some years after the withdrawal of the sail I 
applications. 1 do not think it necessary to deal with all of tin- 
several contentions put forward on the plaintiff’s behalf, but I 
do think that the deliberate withdrawal of the applications, even 
upon the suggestion or advice of the official, is fatal to tin- 
plaintiff’s success. The principle underlying the Mineral Act is 
certainty of and simplicity of title to rights which are essentially 
speculative in their nature and in most cases transitory. Tin- 
innocent locator, and 1 hold that the deceased was innocent of 
any wrong-doing, was intended to be protected ; the Record 
Office is the place where, speaking broadly, the rights of locators 
and holders of mineral claims are to be searched for and he win- 
fails, not wholly through the fault of the official, to get his rights 
recorded, cannot be allowed long afterwards to assert them 
against a subsequent recorded owner, who has obtained his title 
without fraud. Section 27 of the Mineral Act which provides 
that a free miner is not to suffer from the mistakes of officials, 
must not be construed too widely, and was, 1 think, not intended 
to relieve a party in the position of the plaintiff company from 
the consequence of its actions, even if those of an official con­
tributed in some degree to the loss.

1 would, therefore, dismiss the appeal.
Gallmek, J.A.:—After the best consideration 1 can give tin- 

matter, l find myself in accord with the views expressed by tIn- 
Chief Justice, whose judgment 1 have had the advantage of pe­
rusing. So aptly do they express my own views in the matter, 
on the various points considered, that 1 deem it unnecessary to 
add to his reasons.
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McPhillips, J.A.(dissenting) :—This appeal involves the de­
termination of whether certain mineral claims, 16 in number, 
are valid and existing mineral claims, and whether the plaintiff 
company is the owner thereof, and entitled to have issued to it 
certificates of improvements thereto which would later entitle 
Crown grants being issued therefor.

It would appear that the plaintiff company was duly entitled 
to all the mineral claims and the procedure was followed as pro­
vided by the Mineral Act R.8.B.C. (1897), eh. 135, for the 
ohtainanee of certificates of improvements, (see. 36). There had 
been expended up to that time approximately $40,000 in build­
ings, tunnellings and other improvements and development. The 
evidence is very voluminous, hut, in my opinion, it cannot he 
successfully contended that the plaintiff company had not be­
come possessed of all title, right and interest in all of the 
mineral claims, and that there was no outstanding interest. 1 
do not purpose to. in detail, refer to the many points of evidence 
that all being added together establish conclusively that the 
complete title in the mineral claims was vested in the plaintiff 
company. James Allen Fraser, one of the defendants in the 
action was at the time of the happening of the material events 
called in question in the present action, the (Job! Commissioner, 
acting under the provisions of the Mineral Act, and the adminis­
trative officer of the Crown in charge of the At I in Mining Divi­
sion of the Cassiar District of British Columbia, the Mining 
Division in which the mineral claims are situate, being in the 
northern and remote section of the Province, not far removed 
from the Alaska Territory of the Vnited States of America, and 
the plaintiff company is an Alaskan corporation with its head 
office at Ska g way, Alaska, duly registered and licensed as a for­
eign company under the Companies Act, R.S.B.C., 1911. eh. 39. 
The Cold Commissioner, (Fraser) when examined for discovery, 
upon the question of the non-issue of the certificates of im­
provements, duly applied for, stated that the statutory certifi­
cates of improvements failed to issue, because of the fact—that, 
in the opinion of the Deputy Attorney-General, the mineral 
claims were still vested in the Aga Gold Mining Co., Ltd.,—not 
a corporate company, hut a partnership formed under the Min­
eral Act, (sees. 59 to 81). The Gold Commissioner acted upon 
the opinion of the Deputy Attorney-General and refused the 
certificates of improvements, which would have otherwise issued 
to the plaintiff company, as the Gold Commissioner was, on evi­
dence adduced before him, satisfied that complete title in the 
mineral claims was in the plaintiff company. Admittedly, 
although it is true it was argued to the contrary, hut I hardly
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think very seriously or with any confidence, the opinion of the 
Deputy Attorney-General acted upon and given effect to by the 
Gold Commissioner, was in error in law, owing to some miscon­
ception of the status of the Aga Gold Mining Co., Limited Lia­
bility, the same being amongst other things confounded with the 
status of that of a corporate company. In any case, it is plain 
to demonstration upon the facts, that there was absolute error in 
law in the opinion forwarded and acted upon of the Deputy 
Attorney-General, arising from whatever cause it may have, de­
fective instructions or otherwise. Were it not for that opinion, 
the certificates of improvements would have undoubtedly issued, 
such may reasonably be said, upon a careful review of the evi­
dence adduced at the trial, and it was the opinion of the Gold 
Commissioner that certificates of improvements should issue— 
only stayed by reason of the legal opinion of the Deputy Attor­
ney-General. In truth and in fact as the evidence led at the 
trial upon the part of the appellants, amply discloses, the 
plaintiff company was possessed of all the interests in the mineral 
claims held by the individual members of the Aga Gold Mining 
Co. Limited Liability, i.e., the property in the mineral claims 
of the mining partnership by assignments and lapses at the time 
of the application for the certificates of improvements, was 
wholly vested in the plaintiff company. The Gold Commissioner 
(Fraser) with the view of protecting the plaintiff company in 
its proprietorship of the mineral claims, advised the re-staking 
of the claims, which was done, but it cannot, upon the facts, be 
rightly said that the plaintiff company did so by any corporate 
act or took any steps that can be held to create an estoppel 
against the company—that was also an error upon the part of 
the Gold Commissioner equally with the error of the Deputy 
Attorney-General, both being errors of commission and within 
the remedial provisions of sec. 53 of the Mineral Act.

The plaintiff company would apparently have ceased to func­
tion in any corporate way from and after the denial of the 
certificates of improvements which, in my opinion, the plaintiff 
company was entitled to have issued to it and at that time the 
plaintiff company was clothed with the legal capacity to be ac­
corded and granted the certificates of improvements and al­
though some years have elapsed since then, the evidence does not. 
in my opinion, disclose any valid reason for the further with­
holding of the certificates of improvements which were statu­
torily earned under the provisions of the Mineral Act but which 
by misadventure have been so far withheld.

It would appear that the re-stakings, which, in my opinion, 
cannot he said upon the evidence to have been re-stakings bind-
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ing upon tlie plaintiff company—were allowed to lapse and one, 
.Tames Alexander (now deceased) following the lapsing of the 
re-stakings, located mineral claims over the same ground as that 
covered by the holdings of the plaintiff company, and for which 
the certificates of improvements duly applied for should have 
issued. The said James Alexander though—(the successors in 
interest hv way of administration and by devise being the re­
spondents in this appeal) had been in the employ of the surveyor 
of the plaintiff company when the mineral claims had been sur­
veyed previous to the application for the certificates of improve­
ments by the plaintiff company, acting as chaimnan and was 
affected with notice of the boundaries and improvements of the 
plaintiff company and took advantage of this knowledge in lo­
cating over the mineral claims of the plaintiff company, tieing 
ground at the time of the locating by Alexander, right­
fully and legally held and owned by the plaintiff company then 
being a free miner of the Province of British Columbia under 
what, in my opinion, were valid and existing mineral daims, 
rpon the facts, it cannot be gainsaid that the locations as made 
by Alexander were not open for location—not being waste lands 
of the Crown (sec. 12) being lawfully occupied for mining pur­
poses by the plaintiff company and all the proof made by Alex­
ander was in its nature in effect, fraudulent and false, having 
regard to the provisions of the Mineral Act. Amongst other 
filings, Alexander had not found mineral in place, but relied 
upon the discovery of the plaintiff company and its predecessors 
in title. The ground was palpably in the occupation, of the 
plaintiff company, and it was the owner thereof to the knowledge 
of Alexander. He was conversant with the exact situation of 
affairs, that the plaintiff company had expended large sums of 
money upon the ground, and at the time of the location by 
Alexander, the plaintiff company was in actual occupation of 
the ground, and upon the ground were tools, provisions and ma­
chinery—the plaintiff eompany having merely closed down owing 
to the winter season, that being necessitated by climatic condi­
tions. The fraudulent and wrongful conduct of Alexander 
which, in its effect it was, deceived the officers of the Crown, and 
following this deception, Alexander wrongfully obtained eer- 
titicates of improvements and Crown grants to the ground cov­
ered by the mineral claims of the plaintiff company for which 
certificates of improvements should have issued to the plaintiff 
company, in the result, and eonsequent upon the false and 
fraudulent representations of Alexander, Crown grants improvi- 
dently issued covering the ground lawfully possessed and owned 
by the plaintiff eompany.

B. C.
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Now it cannot lie gainsaid upon tin1 facts, and following upon 
the statute law—that is to say the Mineral Act, that the plaintiff 
company had achieved a position which gave it the right to the 
certificates of improvements, and if they had been obtained there 
would have followed in due course Crown grants—the position 
achieved was really that of being entitled to receive by virtue of 
the Act of Parliament, a complete title to the mineral claims. 
That being the situation, in what way can it Ik* said that the 
plaintiff company has been exploited out of that statutory right 
Is it sufficient to say that the plaintiff company has lost its right 
to the ground in question, because of the fact that locations made, 
not upon waste lands of the Crown, but upon occupied lands, 
has been followed up, certificates of improvements obtained and 
Crown grants issued when there was knowledge of the existent 
claims and the Crown was deceived in making the Crown grants 
In my opinion, any such contention is untenable.

Section fid R.S.H.C., 1897, eh. 135, reads as follows :—
“53. No free miner shall suffer from any acts of omission, or 

commission, or delays on the part of any Government official, if 
such can be proven.”

It is clear that the plaintiff company suffered by the conduct 
of the officers of the Crown and there was error within the pur­
view of the statute law, which should be relieved against, the 
legislation is in its nature mandatory and the plaintiff company 
is entitled to be restored to its original position, a position really 
in fact never lost, i.e., the right to have certificates of improve 
incuts issued covering the mineral claims to be followed by 
Crown grants. Lawr v. Parker (1900), 7 H.C.R. 418, 1 M.M.t . 
456, affirmed (1901), 8 H.C.R, 223, 1 M.M.C. at 459; Tanyh, v. 
Morgan et al ( 1904), 11 H.C.R. 76, 2 M.M.C. 178.

At this Har, counsel for the respondents stated 1 hat it could not 
be denied that there was knowledge of the facts and circuin 
stances relating to the ground in question, but it was contended 
that there was no knowledge that the plaintiff had any earned 
legal right to certificates of improvements or Crown grants.

In He id v. Pollistir (1919), 50 D.L.K. 289, 59 Can. S.C.R. 275, 
it was held that pending the issue of the certificates of improve 
incuts there was no necessity of doing further work upon the 
claims, applying the ratio decidendi of that case to the present 
ease, there being the right to the certificates of improvements, 
nothing further was required to be done by the plaintiff com­
pany. There was then, and there always has been the right in 
the plaintiff company to have issued to it the statutorily earned 
certificates of improvements to the mineral claims in question, 
which would have entitled the Crown grants to issue, and it is lo
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In* noted that tin* present action is not only in the name of the 
plaintiff company, but in the name of the Attorney-tleneral rep­
resenting the Crown. Tin* position really was and is the denial 
of the statutory right to the cert ideates of improvements cover­
ing the mineral claims and that statutory right once earned 
cannot he taken away save by express statute law. It is idle for 
the respondents to come in as they do, and say, we pursuing the 
same general statute law, located the same ground, obtained uer- 
t ideates of improvements, followed by Crown grants. That posi­
tion could only lie attained if the ground had been waste lands of 
the Crown and was. at the time open for location, but it was not, 
and the circumstances were known to Alexander, with the sta­
tutory right in the plaintiff company, upon what authority can 
it be said that the statutory right has been destroyed? I fail to 
sec that there is any authority, and nothing happened to destroy 
that statutory right that I can see. and nothing has been referred 
to, but the fact alone that Alexander proceeded to locate and ob­
tain title to the mineral claims in dedunce of the governing stat­
ute law, and by misadventure, Crown grants eventually issued to 
ground that the plaintiff company had and still has the statutory 
right to. That statutory right could only lie barred by some 
statute, “and if there is no statute barring it, we cannot make 
one.” See Armour, J„ in Ross v. U.T.H. Co. (1886), It) O.K. 
447, at p. 45.4. (Also see Esscnj v. 1i.T.H. Co. (1891), 21 O.K. 
224).

In hV linker Collins v. Rhode* (1881), 20 ('h. I). 240, at p. 
248, (51 L.J. (Cli.) 415, 40 W.R. 858, 45 L.T. 658.) Jessel, 
M.K., said:—

“There is no distinction on this point between equity and law. 
If the statute has run, then the debt of claim is barred ; if not, 
then there is nothing else to be said in the case................. ”

The strength of the position, as I view it, of the plaintiff 
company is that there was and is still in the plaintiff company, 
the absolute statutory right to have issued to it the certificates of 
improvements which had been statutorily earned by extensive 
and costly development work upon the mineral claims, and 
everything had been done to fully comply with the statute. In 
such a ease, is it possible to say that that statutory right can be 
in any way displaced and in particular, can it be iced by a 
title obtained by Alexander who was fully aware of all the facts

and who had proceeded fraudulently?
In Re M add ever; Three Town* Banking Co. v. Maddever 

(1884), 27 Ch. I). 5°4 at p. 541 (55 L.J. (Ch.) 998). an action 
under 14 Kite. 1570 (Imp.) eh. 5 (Fraudulent Conveyance) 
Buggallay, L.J., said :—
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B. C.

C. A.

Mining Co. 

Pkahkr.

Mrl'hilll|.\
IX

8



418 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

B. C.

C. A.

E\U INKER 
Minin»! Co.

Frahkr.

McPhimpB,
J.A.

“The deed was executed on the 19th of October, 1871, and the 
bank became aware of it almost immediately after the death of 
the father, but took no proceedings to impeach it for nearly ten 
years. It was urged for the Defendant that, assuming the deed 
to ha ye been one which ought originally to have been set aside, 
it ought not to lie set aside now, after such delay. The bank 
appear from the first to have known a good deal alnnit the 
facts, and if the ease had been one where the Plaintiffs were 
coming to set aside, on equitable grounds, a deed which was good 
at law, 1 should have thought that the defence was good. Rut 
the Plaintiffs had a legal right, and 1 do not see how that right 
can be lost by mere delay to enforce it, unless the delay is such as 
to cause a statutory bar. Cases have been cited where Courts of 
Equity have refused to interfere on the ground of delay, but 
they have been cases where relief was sought merely on equitable 
grounds; here the Plaintiffs have a legal right.”

And at p. 532, Cotton, L.J., said :—
“ 1 am of opinion that in the ease of a legal right we cannot 

refuse relief to the plaintiff on the mere ground of delay, unless 
there has been such delay as to create a statutory bar. The 
Plaintiffs have made an attempt to explain their delay; an at­
tempt in which 1 am of opinion they have not succeeded, but, 
there having been no such delay as to bar their legal right, it is, 
in my judgment, immaterial that they have shewn no suffi­
cient reason for not coming sooner.”

In Stackhouse v. Barnston (1805), 10 Ves. 453, 32 E.K. 021 
at p. 025, Grant, M.R., said :—

“As to a waiver, it is difficult to say precisely, what is meant 
by the term with reference to the legal effect. A waiver is 
nothing unless it amounts to a release.”

There are no facts in the present case which will admit of it 
being said that there has been any waiver or release of the statu 
tory right in the plaintiff company to be accorded by the Crown 
the mineral claims to which it has established title, and anything 
that stands in the way must be set aside if there be no statutory 
foundation to support the barrier. Here the present apparent bar­
rier are Crown grants but founded upon fraudulent and invalid 
locations upon ground already in occupation, and further 
by one affected with notice of the statutory rights of the 
plaintiff company and the Crown was deceived in its 
grants. Further, there is the remedial or relief section— 
“no free miner shall suffer from any acts of omission, or 
commission, or delays on the part of any Government 
official, if such can lie proven.” (Sec. 53, R.S.B.C. 1897, eh. 
135). And we have here the plain error made of the denial of
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certificates of improvements that should have issued being acts of 
omission, commission and delay which resulted in the bringing 
about of the present condition of matters but the title which 
stands in the way cannot stand in face of knowledge of the facts 
and being affected with fraud. In truth, the locations of already 
occupied ground were nullities, and foundationless, and all 
that followed, viz., the certificates of improvements and Crown 
grants, should be set aside ex débita justitiae.

In Cornelius v. Kessel (1888), 128 U.8. Sup. Ct. Rep. 456. it 
was held that:—

“When an entry is made upon public land subject to entry, 
and the purchase money for it is paid, the Vnited States then 
holds the legal title for the benefit of the purchaser, and is 
bound, on proper application, to issue to him a patent therefor; 
and if they afterwards convey that title to another, the pur­
chaser, with notice, takes subject to the equitable claim of the 
first purchaser, who can compel its transfer to him.”

Field, J., at p. 462, said:—
“It appeared that the residence of Lindsey was on the line 

which, according to the new survey, divided the quarter section 
he entered from an adjoining quarter section; so that in one 
sense it may he said that he resided on both quarter sections. 
The Court held that the Government was bound by the original 
survey; that Lindsey’s residence was sufficiently on the section 
which he claimed ; that the patent certificate was rightfully issued 
to him; that the act of the Commissioner in setting it aside was 
illegal, and did not destroy the right thus vested; that the land 
was not, therefore, subject to entry by Hawes; that the patent 
obtained by him was wrongfully and illegally issued to him; and 
that the heirs of Lindsey were entitled to a conveyance of the 
legal title from him and his co-defendants.”

( Also see Deffeback v. Hawke (1885), 115 U.8. Sup. Ct. Rep. 
392).

In Henson Mining ami Smelting Co. v. Alta Mining and 
Smelting Co. (1891), 145 U.8. Sup. Ct. Rep. 428, it was held:—

“When the price of a mining claim has been paid to the 
Government, the equitable rights of the purchaser are complete, 
and there is no obligation on his part to do further annual work 
in order to obtain a patent.”

Brewer, J., in that ease said, at p. 434 :—
“There is no conflict in the ridings of this Court upon the 

question. With one voice they affirm that when the right to a 
patent exists, the full equitable title has passed to the purchaser, 
with all the benefits, immunities, and burdens of ownership, and

iU\
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J.A.



Dominion Law Hevorts. [68 D.L.R.420

Bt. that no third party can acquire from tlic Government interests 
"(i as against him. Tlie deeision of the trial Court was correct.

1 The attempted re location by Luttrell was void, and gave him no 
ExtiiNKKR rights of possession or otherwise.”

MlN™i Co- In Wirth v. Branson (1878). 98 V.S. Sup. Ct. Hop. 118, it war 
Fraser. held :—
-----  “1. Where, in ejectment, it appeared that a location of a

M 'j a'1 ' military liounty land-warrant, duly made by A. on the demanded 
premises, the same being a part of the surveyed publie land of the 
United Stales, bad not been vacated or set aside,—Held, that a 
subsequent entry of them by H. was without authority of law. 
and that a patent issued to him therefor was void.

2. A party who has complied with all the terms and conditions 
which entitled him to a patent for a particular tract of public 
land, acquires a vested interest therein, and is to he regarded as 
the equitable owner thereof. While his entry or location remains 
in full force and effect, his rights thereunder will not he defeat 
ed by the issue of a patent to another party for the same tract.

:i. Brannon v. Wirth (1872), 17 Wall. 32, commented on ami 
approved.”

Hradley, J., in that ease said, at pp. 121-122:—
“The rule is well settled, by a long course of decisions, that 

when public lands have been surveyed and placed in the market, 
or otherwise opened to private acquisition, a person who complies 
with all the requisites necessary to entitle him to a patent in a 
particular lot or tract is to be regarded as the equitable owner 
thereof, and the land is no longer open to location. The public 
faith has lieeome pledged to him. and any subsequent grant of 
the same land to another party is void, unless the first location 
or entry he vacated and set aside.

This was laid down as a principle in the case of Lytle et al v. 
The State of Arkansas ct al (1850), 9 How. 314, and has ever 
since been adhered to. See Stark v. Starrs, 6 Wall. 402. Sub­
sequent eases which have seemed to be in conflict with these have 
been distinguished from them by the fact that something remain­
ed to he done by the claimant to entitle him to a patent; such as 
the payment of the price, the payment of the fees of surveying, 
or the like. The proper distinctions on the subject are so fully 
stated in the ease of Stark v. Starrs, (supra), Frisbie v. Whitney 
(1869), 9 Wall. 187, The Yoscmite Valley case (1872), 15 Wall. 
77, Railway Co. v. McShane (1874), 22 Wall. 444, and Shcphy 
et al. v. Cowan et al. (1875), 91 U.8. Sup. Ct. 330, that it wouM 
he supererogation to go over the subject again.

Hut it is said that Giles Egerton and his grantees and all other 
persons are estopped from any claim under his location of the
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north oast quarter of see. IK, by his accepting a patent for the 
southeast quarter; and by the further fact, that his grantee, 
finding the southeast quarter already granted to another party, 
(namely to James Duruey), applied to Congress for leave to 
make, and actually made, another location in lieu thereof. This 
question of estoppel was fully considered by us when the ease 
was formerly here ; and the principles which were then laid down 
are equally decisive of the ease as it now stands. The original 
patent to Kgerton had not then lieen exhibited in evidence, it is 
true: hut we do not see that the ease is materially altered by its 
production.

The difficulty of applying the doctrine of estoppel arises from 
the fact that there is no privity between the defendants and the 
parties who procured the act of Congress referred to. The de­
fendants rely, and have a right to rely, on the fact that the lot in 
question was located in due form of law, and that it thereby be­
came exempt from further location until the first location should 
he set aside. The fact that a clerical error was made in the 
patent issued to Egerton; that his grantees, instead of claiming 
the northeast quarter (as they might have done), claimed tin- 
southeast quarter, which had I men previously granted to another 
person ; and that they solicited the privilege of locating another 
lot in lieu thereof,—are all matters with which the defendants 
have nothing to do. Congress might have given to those parties 
a dozen lots without affecting the defendants, unless the latter 
were in some way bound by their acts. We are unable to see 
Imw they were or should be hound thereby. They do not claim 
under those parties, and have no privity with them whatever.”

Then we have Alcock v. Cooke (18211), 5 liing. 340, 130 K.lt. 
1002, 7 L.J. (C.P.) (O.S.) 126. In that ease, Best, C.J., 130 
K.lt. at p. 10117, said:—

“If the king is deceived in his grant, the grant is altogether 
void ; and it appearing by decided eases that it must he taken 
that the king is deceived in his grant when he grants that which 
he cannot give according to the terms of his grant ; it appearing 
also, that at the time the grant of 6 Car. 1, was executed, the 
property was already in the possession of Livingstone, under a 
lease for years, and that that lease had several years to run ; the 
grant of the 6 Car. 1, is altogether void. ...”

In the present ease, everything had been done to admit of the 
certificates of improvements issuing and that would have been 
followed in due course by Crown grants, and everything having 
been done, nothing more was needed to be done ( Collister v. lit id, 
supra). Lord Selbornc in 6'rtat Eastern K. Co. v. Golds mid 
(lhti4), 9 App. Cas. 927, 940, 941, 54 L.J.* (Ch.) 162, 33 W.R. 81,
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referred to the Alcock ease, and there a question of waiver came 
up, there having been an enquiry under a writ of ad quod dam­
num. But here nothing of the kind took place. In the report 
of the Great Eastern II. Co. v. Gtdtlsmid ease, as reported in 54 

Mininu Co. l ,j (Ch.) 162, at p. 169, Lord Selhorne said :—
- " “In the case mentioned at the bar of Glcdstanrs v. The Earl

of Sandwich (1842), 4 .Man. & O. 995, 134 K.E. 407, 12 L.4. 
(C.P.) 41, the Court took pains to classify those eases in winch 
it appeared that the king’s grant had been held to be avoided by 
reason of any misdescription or mistake therein, and they were 
referred to three classes—one, where the king professed to give 
a greater estate than he had himself in the subject-matter of the 
grant ; that can have no application here, for the king had no 
estate in the subject-matter of the grant, and did not profess by 
the charter of Edward the Third, to give one; the seeqnd, where 
the king had already granted the same estate—upon which the 
ease of Alcock v. Cooke (1829), (5 Bing. 340), 130 E.R. 1092, 
was referred to; the same observation applies here—the king has 
granted no estate, there is at the most a promise not to make a 
grant ; the third, where the king had been deceived in the con­
sideration as expressed in the grant. ...”

Now in the present ease, the Crown really, according to the 
statute law held the mineral claims in question for the plaintiff 
company and was, under statutory requirement to recognize the 
title of the plaintiff company. Sec. 34 of the Mineral Act, R.S.B. 
C. 1097, eh. 135. reads:—

“34. The interest of a free miner in his mineral claim shall, 
save as to claims held as real estate, be deemed to be a chattel 
interest equivalent to a lease for one year, and thence from year 
to year, subject to the performance and observance of all the 
terms and conditions of this Act.”

No further performance could be required, all had been done— 
requisite to the issuance of certificates of improvements and had 
they I teen issued as they should have I teen issued to the plaintiff 
company, then such further steps for the ohtainancc of Crown 
grants would have followed—the Crown upon the facts was dis­
entitled at all times from doing anything which would displace 
the plaintiff company in the statutory right it had earned and 
the plaintiff company was the rightful lessee from the Crown of 
the mineral claims entitled to the issuance of certificates of im­
provements therefor and it should lie so declared—that which 
lias intervened—is altogether void. Lord FitzGerald in Great 
Eastern II. Co. v. Goldsmid, supra, said, 54 L.J. (Ch.) at j>. 
181 :—

we are not here to make laws, we are not here to
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legislate—we are here to administer the existing laws. We are 
not here to interfere with or to eonfiseate private right—our 
province is to protect it”—and in the present ease the Attorney* 
General appears and is a plaintiff, which admits of the (’ourt in 
pursuance of the statute law declaring the statutory right of the 
plaintiff company and a declaration that the Crown grants which 
have intervened and the mineral claims issued to Alexander or 
his predecessors in title are altogether void.

It cannot he successfully said in the present ease there was 
waiver, all that was required to he done was done (Collister v. 
Reid, supra). Bowen, L.J. in Seltvyn v. Garfit (1888), 38 Ch. 
U. 284. 59 L.T. 283. 57 L.J. (Ch.) 609, at 615, says:—“What is 
waiver ? Delay is not waiver. Inaction is not waiver, though 
it may he evidence of waiver.” But here, all that was required 
to he done was done and there was no requirement in the plain­
tiff company to do more and Alexander was fully aware of the 
legal and statutory rights of the plaintiff company, it is not the 
case of innocent parties or purchasers without notice for valuable 
consideration—a search in the Mining Recorder's office would 
fully apprize all parties that the plaintiff company had per­
formed all statutory requirements and had claimed and were en­
titled to have issued to it certificates of improvements to all of 
the mineral claims—all of which facts were well known to Alex­
ander—and it is the title of Alexander only that stands in the 
way of the plaintiff company being accorded its statutory right 
to the mineral claim in question in this action, ami the respond­
ents in the appeal, of course, have no better position than Alex­
ander would have were he living and the defendant in the action.

There is no point in the contention made that the plaintiff 
company, after the right to the certificates of improvements had 
accrued, allowed the free miner’s certificates to lapse, the plain­
tiff company was in good standing at that time, and for a year 
afterwards had a free miner's certificate, and had legal corporate 
existence in the Province of British Columbia. The real legal 
position the plaintiff company is entitled to have declared, it 
would seem to me, is. that of being entitled to the mineral claims 
in question and he viewed as having had issued to it the certi­
ficates of improvements followed liy the Crown grants. That was 
the statutory position that had been earned, after great develop­
ment work and expenditure of large sums of money. See Tamjhr 
v. Maryan et al. 11 B.C.R. 76, 2 M.M.C. 178. My brother Martin 
at that time sitting in the Supreme Court, when considering see. 
19 in the Placer Mining Act Amendment Act 1901—exactly 
similar to sec. 53 of the Mineral Act above quoted—said at 11 
B.C.R., at p. 79 and 2 M.M.C. at p. 181:—
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“It was the clear right, therefore, of the plaintiff at that time 
to obtain his record as soon as the clerk could record it, and it 
was likewise the plain duty of the Gold Commissioner not to in­
terfere to prevent its issuance, for he had no inquisitorial powers 
of discretion in the matter. By this interference the plaintiff has 
suffered a wrong in not having had promptly granted to him 
that record to which he was entitled, and had there been no 
remedial statute he might have been placed in a very serious 
position by the error of the Gold Commissioner. But fortunately 
sec. 19 of the Placer Mining Act Amendment Act, 1901, was 
enacted to deal with just such eases, and it is as follows :—‘19. 
No free miner shall suffer from any act of omission or commis­
sion or delays on the part of any Government official, if such can 
be proven.’

It was argued that this Court could not give effect to this sec­
tion, but, it may be asked, if this Court cannot give effect to it, 
what was the object in passing it, and by what tribunal, and 
when, can it be put into operation ? 1 have no doubt whatever 
that the section was enacted for the purpose of enabling this or 
any other Court having jurisdiction in mining cases to afford 
relief at the trial, or whenever proper, from the unfortunate con 
sequences of an error of a Government official, and 1 do not hesit­
ate to apply it here, the result being that the plaintiff must be 
regarded as being in the same position as though he had actually 
received at the time of his application that record which was his 
right.”

And the judgment of my brother Martin was affirmed upon 
appeal to the then Full Court (see 11 B.C.R., at p. 87, 2 M.M.C., 
at p. 188). Here we have Alexander affected with notice of all 
the facts and circumstances surrounding the holding of the 
mineral claims by the plaintiff company, in fact counsel for the 
respondents at this Bar so admitted, but it is contended that 
there was no knowledge of any earned legal right. That cannot 
be effectively asserted ; upon the facts it is abundantly clear that 
Alexander knew that the plaintiff company had got in all out­
standing interests and was the holder of all the mineral claims, 
and \>as only refused the certificates of improvements because of 
the legal opinion given by the Deputy Attorney-General. That 
was a matter of record in the Mining Recorder’s office. In IV///- 
mott v. Barber (1880), 15 Ch. D. 96, at pp. 105,106,49 L.J. (Ch. > 
792, 28 W.R. 911, 43 L.T. 95), Fry, J., (afterwards Lord Justice 
Fry) dealt with the circumstances under which the owner of a 
legal right will be precluded by his acquiescence from asserting 
it, and 1 cannot persuade myself that the plaintiff company can, 
upon the facts, be said to be in any way precluded from assert

y
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ing its legal right to the mineral claims, the certificates of im­
provements and Crown grants. That eminent and distinguished 
jurist said (15 Ch. D., at pp. 105-106:—

“it has been said that the acquiescence which will deprive a 
man of his legal rights must amount to fraud, and in my view 
that is an abbreviated statement of a very true proposition. A 
man is not to lie deprived of his legal rights unless he has acted 
in such a way as would make it fraudulent for him to set up those 
rights. What, then, are the elements or requisites necessary to 
constitute fraud of that description ? In the first place the plain­
tiff must have made a mistake as to his legal rights. Secondly, 
the plaintiff must have expended some money or must have done 
some act (not necessarily upon the defendant’s land) on the 
faith of his mistaken belief. Thirdly, the defendant, the posses­
sor of the legal right, must know of the existence of his own right 
which is inconsistent with the right claimed by the plaintiff. If 
he does not know of it he is in the same position as the plaintiff, 
and the doctrine of acquiescence is founded upon conduct with a 
knowledge of your legal rights. Fourthly, the defendant, the 
possessor of the legal right, must know of the plaintiff’s mistaken 
belief of his rights. If he does not, there is nothing which calls 
upon him to assert his own rights. Lastly, the defendant, the 
possessor of the legal right, must have encouraged the plaintiff 
in his expenditure of money or in the other acts which he has 
done, either directly or by abstaining from asserting his legal 
right. Where all these elements exist, there is fraud of such a 
nature as will entitle the Court to restrain the possessor of the 
legal right from exercising it, but, in my judgment, nothing 
short of this will do.”

The strength of the position of the plaintiff company is the 
statutorily earned legal right to have the certificates of improve­
ments issued to it. This was in 1906 and no subsequent conduct 
is established upon the facts binding upon the plaintiff company 
which disentitle the plaintiff company asserting the statutorily 
earned legal right.

The respondents here do not make out that the plaintiff com­
pany knew that Alexander was acting in reliance on the acquies- 
cense of the plaintiff company, or that there were any acts of the 
plaintiff company, such as would induce Alexander to reasonably 
believe that the plaintiff company acquiesced in his obtaining 
title to the mineral ground in question, in fact, there is an entire 
absence of any such evidence, there lieing no acts whatever upon 
the part of the plaintiff company which could haxe induced 
Alexander to form any such opinion. (See Smith v. Haye» 
(1867), I.R. 1 C.L. 333.)

B. C.
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The Crown grants issued in respect of the Alexander locations 
should he cancelled as being improvidently issued and all neces­
sary consequential relief accorded. Howard v. Miller (1914), 22 
D.L.R. 75, 20 B.C.R. 227 at p. 230, [191.5] A.C. 318, 84 L.J. 
(P.C.) 49.

1 am not of the opinion that the present ease is one that admits 
of giving effect to see. 37 of the Mineral Act, 1897, as amended 
by see. 9 of the Mineral Act Amendment Act, 1898. In that the 
plaintiff company having done all that it was required to do it 
was entitled to have the certificates of improvements issued to it, 
and was not called upon to adverse the claims so wrongfully ami 
illegally located by Alexander, (see Collider v. Reid, 47 D.L.R. 
501, 27 B.C.R. 27*8, 10 D.L.R. 289, 60 Can. S.C.U. 27.'.: Mi th* 
American Boy Mineral Claim (1899), 7 B.C.R. 268, 1 M.M.C. 
304, at pp. 306, 307, 308).

It is true there has been long delay in bringing this action, yet 
under the circumstances, the case is not one in which it can be 
urged that jihere has been such laches as disentitles relief being 
granted to the plaintiff company. The respondents here can 
have no higher position than that Alexander would have had if 
living, and it is clear that by reason of the acts of omission and 
commission of the officers of the Crown, the plaintiff company 
on May 31, 1907, believing that it had no further title to the 
mineral claims allowed its free miner’s license to lapse (the 
members of the company had become disheartened, no doubt at 
the unfortunate result of things, being dispersed as they were 
throughout the United States of America), there was, however, 
no act done that could be said to be a corporate act of the com­
pany binding upon the company so as to create any estoppel, the 
whole facts not being known to it. The contention is that not 
until the year 1918 did the plaintiff company discover that tin- 
officers of the Crown were guilty of acts of omission and com­
mission which had resulted in its being denied its statutory right 
to certificates of improvements to the mineral claims in question 
in this action, and it was not until the month of February, 1921. 
that the necessary information was obtained to set up the cause 
of action here set up. On February 21, 1921, the plaintiff com­
pany again became a free miner of the Province of British 
Columbia and continues to be a free miner. The circumstances 
as disclosed in the present case, are such that no equity can he 
said to exist entitling any protection being accorded to the res­
pondents. They are not transferees of the mineral claims for 
value, or in the position of innocent purchasers for value, so that 
no difficulty exists to effectuate complete justice to the plaintiff

L
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company, i.e., vesting in the plaintiff company title to the mineral 
claims.

1 would allow the appeal.
Eber/ts, J.A. would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal allowed.

CHAS8Y v. MAY.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davie», C.J., Idington, Duff, Anglin and 

Miynuult, JJ. December U,
Conflict ok laws ($ I G—125)—Lex sitvs—Mineral claims in Canada— 

Title—American de< hke—Jurisdiction—I Ion a fide purchaser.
The interest of a free miner in his mineral claim being an interest in 

land, a foreign Court lm* no jurisdiction to make any decree affecting 
the ownership of or interests in such claims outside of its territorial 
jurisdiction. The decree of an American Court, in so far as it adjudi­
cates upon the rights of claimants to mineral claims in Canada, is of no 
effect, and a company acquiring the interests of persons claiming under 
such decree is not a bond fide purchaser and acquires no title thereto. 

Mines and minerals ($ I C—15)—Transfer of mineral claims to com­
pany—Right to attack validity—Estoppel.

One having an interest in mineral claims, who consents to a 
transfer of the claims in their entirety to a conijiuny formed to 
take them over and who was to receive shares In the company 
as a bonus for financing it. cannot attack the validity of the trans­
fer for the purpose of regaining, in addition to the shares, his 
interest in the claims. (The Court of Appeal of British Columbia 
holding against such right on the ground of estoppel, and incon­
sistency of claims, while the Supreme Court of Canada, per Anglin, 
J.. concurred in by Macdonald, C.J.A., as being against the inter­
ests of creditors and shareholders).

Appeal from the judgment of the Court of Appeal of British 
Columbia, varying the judgment of Gregory, J., in an action to 
determine rights in certain mineral claims. Affirmed.

The judgment appealed from is as follows :—
Macdonald, C.J.A.:—The plaintiff Wolbert and the defendant 

May, entered into an agreement to acquire the mineral claims 
“Winthorp” and “Butte” situate in this Province.

The first written document evidencing their agreement is 
dated January 20, 1016. This shews an agreement on their part 
to share alike in the profits to be made and disbursements to be 
incurred in connection with the said two claims “or any other 
property in the Province of British Columbia.” They had al­
ready agreed verbally to purchase the two claims and they ap­
pear to have contemplated the acquisition of other adjoining 
claims. Each retained a ate part of said agreement and
without the knowledge of the other made changes in it. Wolbert 
added the words, “and said parties to be co-owners,” and in this 
condition he recorded it in the mining recorder's office. May 
struck out of his duplicate part, the words tirst above quoted but

6
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<lid not record it. With the effect of these alterations 1 do not 
feel much eoneenied, because it is not in dispute that the parties 
were to have equal interests in the “Winthorp” and “Butte” 
and the like interests in after-acquired claims as appears by a 
subséquent written agreement of dune 26, 11)16.

In my opinion it was intended by the parties that all these 
claims should be held by them as tenants in common and not as 
partnership property. This view is, 1 think, borne out by what 
appears in the said agreement of June 26, wherein it is stated 
that Wolbert had disposed of part of his interest in the claims, 
an act to which May took no objection and which was inconsist­
ent with the assumption that the claims were partnership pro­
perty. I would refer also to the attitude of the parties in the 
foreign suit, referred to hereinafter.

Wolbert and May then borrowed $3,500 from one Chassy, now 
plaintitl' in this action, to enable them to pay for and make other 
expenditures upon the original claims, the others at that time 
not having been acquired, and as a bonus for granting the loan 
they agreed to give Chassy 100,000 shares in a company which 
they intended to incorporate to take over the claims. Subse­
quently and after the new claims had been acquired, a dispute 
arose between Wolbert and May, whereupon Wolbert brought 
suit against May in the Superior Court of the State of Washing­
ton, and a decree was made therein. It adjudged that Wolbert 
was indebted to May in a sum of $579.65 expended by him on 
the claims; that each was entitled to an undivided half interest 
in all claims in question in this action as tenants in common and 
liable to Chassy in like proportion. It decreed that Wolbert 
should pay his said debt to May within 60 days and that May 
should within 30 days thereafter execute and deliver to Wolbert 
a “conveyance” of his said half interest, the deed to contain a 
“defeasance” clause to the effect that Wolbert’s right to tin- 
said half interest should cease and be forfeited to May should 
Wolbert fail to pay his share of the Chassy obligation, in case 
Chassy should take proceedings to enforce same.

Wolbert did not within the time specified pay his debt to May, 
and May therefore was not obliged to and did not execute and 
deliver the conveyance. Neither has Chassy taken proceedings 
to enforce re-payment of his loan.

The terms of the decree not having been complied with, May 
assumed to regard himself as the absolute owner of the claims 
and without the consent of Wolbert caused the defendant com­
pany to be incorporated and on March 21, 1918, transferred the 
claims to it in full ownership, ignoring Wolbert’■ right to a half 
interest therein.
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The plaintiff Chassy comes into the litigation in this way : He 
acquired one half of Wolbert’s interest in the several claims on 
May 20, 1918, and asserts that interest in this action. He is also 
making a claim to 100,000 of the defendant company shares, un­
der the terms of said loan agreement. The plaintiffs brought this 
action to determine their rights, which their solicitors have en­
deavoured to set forth in some 30 pages of pleadings in which 
they have exhausted in ear marking their several prayers for 
relief all the letters of the alphabet except three. Shortly stated, 
they claim a declaration that they are entitled to their said re­
spective interests in the claims amounting in all to an undivided 
moiety thereof and in the alternative an account of the consider­
ation received or which ought to have been received by May for 
the transfer of the said claims to the defendant company, and 
the appropriate relief to which they may further be entitled on 
such accounting.

Plaintiff Chassy in addition makes claim to the said 100,000 
shares.

The defences set up in argument were transit-in rem judicata 
by reason of the said decree; that by default under that decree 
plaintiff Wolbert ceased to have any interest in the claims, and 
that his transferee the plaintiff Chassy is in no better position 
than Wolbert; laches in not asserting their claims earlier than 
they have done; that the transfers from May to defendant com­
pany were properly made under a power of attorney given to 
May by Wolbert and dated January 22, 1916, v >wer, how­
ever, refers only to the “Winthorp” and “Butte” claims; and 
finally, that the defendant company having expended large sums 
of money and having sold shares in its capital stock to the public 
it would be inequitable to grant any relief except that alterna­
tively claimed bv the plaintiffs, viz., an accounting by May of 
the consideration received from the company for the transfers.

The defence of res judicata must, I think, fail. It has been 
decided in our Courts and has long l>een the law of this Province, 
that the interest of a free miner in his mineral claim is an inter­
est in land. The claims in question therefore must be considered 
to be immovables.

A foreign Court can make no decree whereby the ownership 
of or an interest in immovables, outside its territorial jurisdic­
tion, shall be taken from one person and vested in another. The 
general rule is referred to in Professor Dicey’s Conflict of Laws, 
2nd ed., pp. 357, et scq. There are exceptions, however, to this 
rule which are referred to at p. 203 of the same work. They arc 
in respect of eases where there has been either a contract to do 
the particular thing ordered to be done, for instance, a contract

Can.
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May.
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Now the Washington decree dealt first with the debt owing 
by Wolbert to May of $579.65. That subject matter was entirely 
within the jurisdiction of that Court and is not in question in 
this action. It further declared that each of said parties wen- 
tenants in common, a declaration which it is not necessary in this 
case to examine. ... It further declared that each was liable 
equally as between themselves upon the obligation to Chassy. 
That again was a matter entirely within the jurisdiction of that 
Court, and is not in question here. Then comes the matter to 
which Mr. MacNeill mainly directed his argument, viz., the order 
respecting the conveyance and forfeiture already referred to. 
Whatever the effect order might have Ih-cii had Chassy
taken proceedings and Wolbert default in paying his share
of the obligation, in the absence of such proceedings and default, 
there could of course be no forfeiture.

It is hardly necessary in this caae to say so. but in my opinion 
the facts do not bring the case within the exceptions to the gen­
eral rule referred to above. The only default which was made 
by Wolbert was in the payment of his said debt to May which 
was not due upon a contract affecting the land or charged there 
on. Moreover, a forfeiture of the land in the circumstances, for 
non-payment of that debt, would be contrary to our jurispru­
dence. As to the other obligation, it had as between these parties 
themselves not then arisen, and has not yet arisen.

Mr. MacNeill pressed very strongly the argument that as Wol- 
bert hail resorted to the foreign Court, he ought to be left to his 
remedies in that Court, but in my opinion he cannot there obtain 
effective relief. What he complains of in this action has occurred 
since the decree, his interest, then intact, has been transferred 
by his trustee May to the defendant company, who is applying 
for Crown grants to the claims, lie was obliged to take proceed­
ings here to oppose the issuing of such grants ami make good his 
adverse claim.

Thai the transfers of the claims to the defendant company can 
be supported under the power of attorney relied upon by Mr. 
MacNeill, is, 1 think, intenable. The power of attorney was 
given in relation to the “Winthorp” and “Hutte” only, and 
at a time when the title to them was in Wolbert and for the pur 
pose, as 1 see it, of facilitating the borrowing of the money after­
wards borrowed from Chassy as aforesaid. The power was “to 
do anything 1 might or could do were 1 present in all matters re­
lating to the securing of funds for the “Winthorp” and “Hutte”

58
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milling claims . . . mid to sign my name to all necessary
papers and documents and in the event of a sale to give a good 
and sufficient deed to the property.” The power to raise money 
is immaterial to this lit gat ion ; the power to execute deeds was 
superceded liy the subsequent transfer of the claims by Wolbert 
to May. It is unnecessary to consider whether the power of at­
torney was wide enough to include the transfer to a purchaser, 
because admittedly the transfers mode by May to the defendant 
company was on the assumption that he was the owner, and the 
signing of the name “Wolbert” to them per pros was merely to 
add another string to May’s bow. There was a breach of trust 
to which both defendants were privy. May, in his evidence on 
discovery, admitted that the defendant company, when it en­
tered into the transaction with him. had full knowledge of the 
facts relating to the title, and this fact is clearly established by 
the evidence generally. The company was therefore not a buna 
fide purchaser for value without notice.

The alleged laches, because of delay in taking proceedings to 
set the transfers to the company aside, have no existence in fact.

I find more difficulty in dealing with respondent (’llassy’s 
position. H.v his pleadings he claims, and his claim has been 
conceded, the 100,000 shares already mentioned, which must 
necessarily Ik* on the footing that the defendant company is the 
company which Wolbert and May had agreed to incorporate, 
shares in the capital of which they had agreed to give him, where­
as, in my opinion, it is not that company. It is a company in­
corporated by May and his associates in the breach of trust. 
Chassy further claims, but nut in the alternative, a quarter in­
terest in the property transferred to the defendant company. 
These claims are quite inconsistent with each other. The com­
pany which Wolbert and May were to have incorporated was 
clearly intended to have the “ Winthorp” and “Hutte” claims 
in their entirety and not a partial interest in them and some 
others. On the one hand Chassy in effect says, “I assent to your 
claim of entire ownership,” on the other, “1 dispute it.” He 
cannot have the shares and the quarter interest as well. He can­
not lie allowed to approbate and reprobate, and as he has insisted 
on his right to the 100,000 shares and has obtained judgment 
therefor in the Court below, and as no appeal has lieen taken 
from that term of the judgment, 1 think he is estopped from dis­
puting the legality of the transfers to the company.

There was some inaptitude in the frame of Wolbert s state­
ment of claim which in places appears to father his co-plaintiff's 
inconsistent demands. This, I think, may be regarded as in- 
artifleial pleading, since reading the whole, it is clear that Wol-
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Tan. h<-rt insisted on his right to his quarter interest and put forth
sc any other claims inconsistent therewith in the alternative merely.

Moreover, no point was made of this in argument.
Chahs y As regards the submission that it would be inequitable to dis

m\y turb the company’s title in view of the expenditure of money 
by it in developing the property and of sales of its shares to the 
public, this is in reality a plea that the parties cannot be restored 
to their original positions and that therefore the plaint ill's ought 
to be left to their other remedies. This is not. in my opinion, a 
case to which the doctrine of res integra is applicable, it is the 
defendant who must make restitution, not the plaintiffs. The 
trust property is admittedly in the possession of the wrong 
doer. In so far as they have expended moneys for annual assess­
ments necessary to keep the claims in good standing, defendants 
should have the lien given by the Court below. They have no 
right to relief in respect of other money expended by them. If 
the plaintiff. Wolbert, is content to recover his quarter interest 
in the claims in their present condition, that is his affair, h 
may be that the money expended in exploration has either lessen­
ed or destroyed any apparent value which the property had 
theretofore, a result which frequently follows the exploration 
of prospective mines.

The result is that, in my opinion, the appeal so far as rcspon 
dent Wolbert is concerned, should be dismissed with costs, that 
that portion of the judgment which declares that Chassy is en­
titled to a quarter interest in the claims should lie set a ide. The 
judgment for the 100,(KM) shares should not lie disturbed, but 
( 'll assy, in addition thereto is entitled to one-quarter of the con­
sideration which May received or is entitled to receive from de­
fendant company for the transfer of the claims, after deducting 
therefrom the said 1(K).(MM) shares.

Chassy should pay appellant's costs of the appeal, except such 
as were occasioned by Wolbert being made a party thereto.

M XRTIN, J.A. would allow the appeal in part.
(iai.miiek, J.A.:— 1 am in agreement with Macdonald, C.J.A.
M( l’mi.i ll's, J.A. (dissenting in part I :—In my opinion the 

appeal should fail.
hi la borate arguments have been addressed to the Court from 

both sides upon the very intricate questions of lex loci and hr 
domicilii as well as the questions of res judicata. I do not how 
ever find il necessary to go into these questions at any length, 
as with deference, I do not consider they are at all of importance 
in arriving at a decision upon this appeal.

In this jurisdiction in the forum rei sitae as well as by the 
judgment of the Superioi Court of the State of Washington, the
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respondent Wolbert has been held to Ik* entitled to an undivided 
half interest in the mining claims in question in this action. The 
appellants, however, rely upon the judgment of the Superior 
Court of Washington to oust the respondent Wolbert from his 
title, claiming that by virtue of the judgment of that Court, such 
is the legal position.

In passing, let me say that there could lie no effective judg­
ment in the Superior Court of Washington, which would In* de­
terminative of the actual title to land or an interest in land in 
British Columbia (see Ba rinds v. (inin (1911 ). 16 B.C.R. 433; 
Dicey’s Conflict of Laws, 2nd ed., pp 357, 358, 359; British S. 
Africa Co. v. Companhia de Moeambique, [ 18931 A.C. 602; 
Boyd v. Alt,y.-(ien,l. for British Columbia ( 19171. 36 D.L.II. 
266, 54 Can. S.C.R. 532, per Duff, 3.) In saying this though I 
do not wish to In- understood as denying the jurisdiction of the 
Superior Court of Washington to enforce contracts respecting 
foreign lands as well as pass upon equities existing lietween resi­
dents of the State of Washington, as presumptively the same 
powers would Ik* capable of exercise as the Courts of Kngland 
have always exercised in this connection, it is instructive to ob­
serve what was said in the judgment of Viscount Finlay in 
Brown v. (Ireyson, |1920| A.C. 860, at pp. 875-876:—

“It is quite true that the Courts in Scotland or in England 
may, with regard to persons within their jurisdiction, make or­
ders in certain cases with reference to land in a foreign country. 
A contract with regard to land I anight may Is* enforced here in 
personam so long as it is not contrary to the 1er situs which, with 
regard to real property, must Is* the governing law. The law on 
this point was laid down by Lord Cottcnham, L.C., in the ease 
Kjt parte Bollard (1840), Mont. & Ch. 239, 250, 251 ‘ It is true
that in this country contracts for sale, or (whether expressed or 
implied) for charging lands, are in certain cases made by the 
Courts of Equity to operate in rent; hut in contracts respecting 
hinds in countries not within the jurisdiction of these Courts 
they can only Ik* enforced by proceedings in personam, which 
Courts of Equity here are constantly in the habit of doing : Not 
thereby in any respect interfering with the tes tori rei silae. If 
indeed the law of the country where the land is situate should 
not permit or not enable the defendant to do what the Court 
might otherwise think it right to decree, it would 1m* useless and 
unjust to direct him to do the act ; hut when there is no such im­
pediment the Courts of this country, in the exercise of their 
jurisdiction over contracts made here, or in administering 
equities lietween parties residing here, act upon their own rules, 
and are not influenced by any consideration of what the effect 
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of such contracte might In* in the country where the lands arc 
situate, or of the manner in which the Courts of such countries 
might deal with such equities.” *

Then what is the position? Admittedly the respondent Wol- 
bert (as held in Imth jurisdictions) i* held to Is* entitled to an 
undivided half share in the mining claims (divided as we will 
see later with Chassy). The Superior Court of Washington so 
held on July 16. 1917, and Gregory, J., whose judgment is now 
under appeal, held likewise, ami of course the judgment of 
Gregory. J. is a judgment fully effective in all respects as affect 
ing the title, unless reversed. Now has such a ease lieen made out 
upon this appeal as would warrant its reversal? My answer is 
unquestionably in the negative.

The defendants undertake to say tha. there was a forfeiture 
of title hv Wolbert owing to his failure to pay the money he was 
called upon to pay under the judgment of the Superior Court of 
Washington, la-fore a conveyance would he made to him by the 
appellant May of the undivided half interest in the mining 
claims—yet when the hill of sale of the mining claims was made 
to the appellant company, the appellant May executed the hill of 
sale transferring the interest of the respondent Wolbert, as the 
attorney in fact of Wolbert. This transaction is absolutely con­
tradictory to any forfeiture of title; further, it is an admission 
of that which was the true position, namely, that Wolbert was 
still the owner and entitled to an undivided half interest in the 
mining claims.

As pointed out by the trial Judge the appellant company, 
through its directors and officers, was and is affected by all the 
facts and circumstances and cannot lie said to lx* a purchaser for 
value without notice of the interest of Wollx-rt. It is true that 
some of the facts and circumstances would appear to present a 
situation of inequitahlcncxs against Imth of the respondents, in 
that it would appear that throughout, the incorporation of a 
company was contemplated and what has lieen called “pre-or- 
ganisation stock” was sold and moneys obtained to work and «!«• 
velop the mining claims. This feature of things, at times, when 
anxiously considering this appeal, has given me difficulty, but 1 
cannot see that it is a case for any equitable relief. The defen 
dants adopted a course which really precludes consideration of 
this aspect of the matter; there was a denial throughout ami a 
wrongful denial of any interest in the mineral claims in tin* 
respondents. It is conceivable that the respondents would have 
readily enough, if consulted, agreed to the incorporation of tin* 
company and would have accepted in consideration of their in

!
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t crests in the mineral claims, their proper proportion of the share 
isHue which went to the appellant May.

It is significant that the appellant company fully appreciated 
the legal position ami that the respondent Wolliert was interested 
in the mining claims sold to it, as the agreement of sale of the 
properties was between it—the purchaser—and May and Wol­
liert—the vendors—and the consideration was #100,<HH) payable 
by delivery of one million shares of the capital stock of the 
appellant company to the vendors. Apparently there never was 
any willingness to at any time recognise the respondents’ inter­
ests or right to any of these shares; they would appear to have 
been wholly taken by the appellant May and dealt with as his 
sole property. The appellant company cannot upon tin* fads he 
held to lie an innocent purchaser for value when all these facts 
are weighed ami considered. Further, there was no good and 
sufficient power of attorney from the respondent Wolliert to the 
MpiH-llant May admitting of the execution of the hill of sale ami 
agreement of sale on Wolbert’s behalf by May. It is plain that 
any authority that May at any time had. hud relation to other 
properties, not those in question in this action.

Then comes the question of the relief given to the respondent 
(hassy by the trial Judge. It is contended that (.'hussy is not 
entitled to the quarter interest in the mining claims, derivable by 
contract between himself and the respondent Wolliert, (Wol- 
hert's interest being a half interest he disi>osed of one half of 
that interest—a quarter interest in all the properties—to Chassy ) 
and the right to the 100,000 shares of the capital stock of the 
appellant company as well.

I must admit that this matter gave me considerable thought at 
one time and would seem to offer insuperable difficulty in sup­
porting the judgment of the Judge, that Chasay was entitled to 
the interest in the properties as well as the shares. In the end, 
though, I cannot we that there is difficulty and I say this with 
the greatest deference to all contrary opinion,—('hassy is en­
titled to the declared interest in the properties by reason of his 
right thereto from Wolliert; Wolliert being held by the Judge 
(and in this 1 agree) to Ik* entitled to a half interest, it follows 
that ('hassy a interest is a quarter interest and this interest is 
quite independent of the further right to the 100,000 shares— 
( hassy is really the loser in respect to the share interest—in this 
respect—that he was entitled to the 100,000 shares in a company 
which would have vested in it the complete estate in the mineral 
cla .iis but as matters are now a half interest only is in the 
appellant company.

There is, it is true, some inconsistency in the position taken by
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Chassy—hut nothing though that would operate to deprive him 
of the full lienefit of the judgment in hi* favour. 1 am not of 
the opinion that it has been demount rated that the trial Judge 
arrived at a wrong conclusion ; on the contrary. 1 am of the 
opinion that the conclusion he arrived at was a correct con­
clusion and that the judgment should not he disturbed. No error 
in law has I teen shewn and there is ample evidence supporting 
the Judge in his findings of fact.

In Ruddy v. Toronto Eattern R. Co. 33 D.L.R. 193, 38 O.L.R. 
556, 21 (’an. Ry. Cas. 377, 11917] VV.N. 34, we find Lord Buck 
master saying (33 D.L.R. at 193 ) :—

“But upon questions of fact an Appeal Court will not inter 
fere with the decision of the Judge who has seen the witnesses 
and has been able with the impression thus formed fresh in hi< 
mind, to decide between their contending evidence, unless there 
is some good and special reason to throw doubt upon the sound 
ness of his conclusions.”

1 see no reason here to doubt the soundness of the judgment 
under review. 1 would therefore dismiss the appeal.

Chariot Wilson, K.C., for appellant.
IV. A. Cant el on, for respondent.
Davies, C.J.:—For the reasons given by my brother Anglin. I 

am of the opinion that this appeal must In* dismissed with costs.
Ini NOTON, J. :—Under the facts as stated in the second page 

of this case for the purposes of appeal herein and basis thereof. 
1 am of opinion that the judgment of the Court appealed from 
fits the case and hence that this appeal should lie dismissed with 
costs.

Duff, J.:—The material fact upon which the Courts below 
proceeded is before us in fragments only ; and I cannot say that 
having regard to the state of the record 1 have been able to deal 
with the appeal in a manner quite satisfactory to myself. In 
view of the findings of fact there is no satsifactory ground for 
reversing the judgment of the Court Mow.

Amji.in. J.:—Such rights as the appellant Chassy had ugaiiM 
the defendant May personally appear to lie sufficiently recognised 
in the judgment of the Court of Appeal. He is in my opinion not 
entitled as against the respondent company to the one-fourth 
interest which he asserts in certain mining claims held by it.

It was the basis of an agreement to which he and his co-d • 
fendant Wolhert were parties that these mining claims, then 
owned by Wolbert and May, should lie transferred in their en­
tirety to a company to be ineorporated to acquire them. To far il 
itate the carrying out of that arrangement Wolhert transferred 
his interest in two of the claims to May and the titles to
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these and the other claims in question were recorded in May’s Can.
name. It is formally admitted that the defendant company ~ic~
is the company which the parties had in mind when that agree- . * 
ment was made. It was for 1(K),000 shares of the company to lie Cmabst 
incorporated to acquire such claims, to lie given him as a I minis, m*'y
that Chassy hail stipulated when lie advanced $#,500 to help _*.
Wolbert and May to perfect title to the claims and the incorpora- Mimenii, j.
tion of the company to acquire them, and, according to an admis­
sion in the record, those shares Chassy sued for and has l>0011 

awarded by the judgment of the Supreme Court of British Col­
umbia. May had paid off the Chassy loan out of his own re­
sources.

Whether the judgment according Wolbert a one-quarter in­
terest in the mining claims in dispute was well founded or is 
consistent with the rejection of Chassy’s demand for a like in­
terest does not now concern us. The company has not appealed 
against the judgment in Wolliert’s favour. It jnay he that the 
defendant May, in whose name the title to the disputed mining 
claims stood in the recorder’s office, did not when transferring 
them to the company protect the interests of Chassy and Wolhert 
as he should have done.

But I cannot think that the interests of the company’s cred­
itors and shareholders, acquired on the faith of its ownership of 
these claims of which the legal title is vested in it, can Is» preju­
diced by any such breach of duty on May’s part. Chassy stood 
by and allowed these obligations of the company to be incurred, 
with knowledge that it was acting and was licing dealt with as 
sole owner of the claims in question. It expended $8#.<XNI on 
their development. When he receives one-quarter of the con- 
sidcration obtained by May from the company for the transfer 
of the claims he will have got what the arrangement lietween 
himself, Wolliert ami May contemplated should come to him as 
assignee of a one-half interest of Wolliert's one-half share in those 
claims. He will have got what May should have stipulated that 
he should receive when the claims were transferred to the com­
pany. There is no suggestion that May did not obtain a fair 
consideration from the company for what lie transferred to it, 
namely, ownership of the claims in their entirety.

I prefer to rest the dismissal of Chassy’s appeal against the 
company on this ground rather than on estop(>el arising from 
bis acceptance of a decree establishing an inconsistent claim— 
the ground of the judgment of the Court of Appeal.

Mkjnault, J. (dissenting 1 :—From my reading of the judg­
ment of the Court of Appeal of British Columbia and of the 
tiudings of the Judges of that Court as well as of the inemoran-
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duiii settled by the Chief Justice of the Court of Appeal, which 
memorandum is in effect a stated case concurred in by the parties 
for the decision of this Court, it seems clear that the respondent. 
Gilison Mining Co., has no title to the mining claims transferred 
to it by May as against Wolbert, who was declared, by the trial 
Judge as well as by the Court of Appeal, to he owner of one 
quarter interest in the said mining claims. In so far as Wolbert 
is concerned, this declaration is final, no appeal against the judg­
ment of the Court of Appeal having been taken by any of the 
respondents.

Chassy alone now appeals and the respondent, Gibson Mining 
Co., takes issue with him on his appeal. The first Court, beside» 
granting to Chassy the 100;000 shares in this company claimed 
by him from Wolbert and May as a bonus on the loan he had 
made to them, which claim was admitted by the respondent», 
declared that Chassy, as well as Wolbert, was owner of one 
quarter interest in the mining claim. This judgment left lie 
Gibson Co. with one half interest only in these mining claims 
under its transfer from May, to wit all the interest which May 
could transfer to it, and the other half it held as trustee for 
Wolbert and Chassy.

On the sole ground of the inconsistency of Chassy s demand, 
which, 1 take it, was to lie satisfied by Wolbert and May, for 
100,000 shares in the Gibson Co., and of his assertion of owner 
ship of onc-quartcr interest in the mining claims acquired by 
the company from May, the Court of Appeal varied the fir»' 
judgment by striking out the declaration that Chassy was owner 
of one quarter interest in these mining claims and by substituting 
therefor the declaration that Chassy is entitled to receive from 
the respondent May, as the consideration for the transfer of his 
interest in the mining claims to the Gibson Co., one quarter of dé­
considération which May has received or is entitled to receive 
from the Gibson Co., for the transfer of his interest in tin- said 
mining claims.

With deference I am unable to see any inconsistency in 
Chassy’s two demands, proceeding as they do from two séparai • 
contracts. By the first contract, entered into by Chassy, Wolhvrt 
and May, Chassy, in consideration of the advance made by him to 
the two latter, was entitled to a bonus of 100,000 shares in tin- 
company which Wolbert and May were to have incorporated. 
By the second contract between Chassy and Wolbert, the former 
acquired a half interest in the share of Wolbert (one half under 
the agreement between Wolbert and May) in the mining claims. 
It is now held that the transfer by May to the Gibson Co., did 
not convey to them Wolbert’■ interest in these mining claims,
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the transfer being a breach of trust committed by May against 
Wolbcrt to the knowledge of the Gibson Co. Chasey acquired a 
half interest in Wolhert’s share in the mining claims long after 
he had l»een promised the 100,000 shares, and I fail to see why 
he assumes any inconsistent position when he seeks to obtain 
what had been promised him by these two contracts, llis demand 
for the 100,000 shares does not admit the ownership by the 
Gilmou Co. of Wolhert’■ half share in the mining claims, but at 
the most the company’s title to what it acquired, and could only 
acquire, under its transfer from May, to wit the half interest 
which the latter owned. And if Wolbcrt has not lost, by reason 
of May's transfer to the Hibson Co., his interest in the mining 
claims, surely Chassy, who obtained from Wolhert, after the 
transfer in breach of trust from May to the Gibson Co., one half 
of Wolhert’» interest, should also lie unaffected by May’s trans­
fer to the Giltson Co.

Any contention that Chassy stood by and allowed the Gibson 
Co. to expend money on the mining claims, would equally avail 
against Wolbcrt who also stood by, but quoatl Wolbcrt, this 
contention was rejected by the Court of Appeal. And to force 
< hassy—on the mere ground, which with deference I think un­
sound, that his two claims are inconsistent—to accept, in lieu of 
his interest in the mining claims, one quarter of what May re­
ceived or is entitled to receive for his transfer to the Gibson Co., 
is, to my mind, to render binding on him this transfer which 
the Court of Appeal holds is not binding on Wolhert.

I think that the judgment of the trial Judge should lie re­
stored; so my opinion is to allow Chassy’s appeal with costs here 
and in the Court of Appeal.

Appeal <1 ism ism <1.

HEX v. LITMAX.
Manitoba Kinp'* Brink, D y sort, J. April 99, 1USÎ.

Criminal law ($ IV I)—122)— Sentence or imprisonment—Alternative
or LEAVING JURISDICTION—STAY or COMMITMENT—TERM Or IM 
prison MENT—Commencement—Prisons and Reformatories Act. 
R.8.C. HHI« ch. 14S sec. 3.

Violer the Prison* ami Reformatories Act. R.S.C. 190(1, eh. 14s, sec. 
•3, tin* term of imprisonment, in caws applying to common gaols ami 
gaol sentences, commencée on anil from the ilav of passing sentence, 
ami not from the 'lay of actual incarceration, ami so where a magistrate 
imposes a sentence of six months imprisonment^ but directs that the 
warrant shall Is* held twenty four hours, in order that the accused 
may leave the city the accused is free from arrest under that conviction 
upon returning to the city more than six months after the commitment 
might have issued.

I Hex v. Fitzpatrick (1915), 2."» D.L.R. 727. 25 Can. Cr. Cas. 42, 
25 Man. L.R. 627 followed. See also (1922), 65 D.L.R. 676, 37 
Can. Cr. Cas. 26, 32 Man. L.R. 81.1

Man.

K.B.
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Litman. 

Dysart, J.

Application for habeas corpus. Application granted.
L. D. Morosnick, for accused.
John Allen, K.C., for the Crown.
Dysart, J. :—On October 26, 1921, the petitioner was con­

victed of vagrancy before a Police Magistrate of the city of 
Winnipeg, and sentenced to 6 months in the common gaol. A 
warrant of committment was thereupon duly signed and sealed 
commending
“any peace officer to take the said Joseph Litman into . . cus­
tody, and . . to conyey him to the . . common gaol . . and to 
deliver him to the keeper thereof;” 
and likewise commending
“the said keeper . . to receive . . to imprison—and keep him at 
hard labour for the term of 6 months.”

The judgment as recorded on the records includes these words 
“warrant to be held 24 hours.”

The object of holding the warrant was to allow Litman an op­
portunity to leave the city. Accordingly on being released from 
custody he left the city within the said 24 hours. But on Febru­
ary 3, 1922, being found in the city, he was taken under the said 
warrant and lodged in gaol in pursuance of the term thereof.

The question is—Does the sentence begin to run from the day 
the sentence was passed or from the day incarceration began 
If on the former date the prisoner is entitled to be released as 
the 6 months have elapsed; if upon the latter date he has yet 
several mont lis imprisonment to undergo.

There is a practice, very general in its application, of per­
mitting certain petty offenders to leave the city as an alternative 
to undergoing sentence of imprisonment . The option thus 
granted is termed “Floater.” How long the offender is ex­
pected to remain absent is not stipulated, and the Crown in this 
case argues that if he ever returns be may be called upon to 
serve his sentence. This, it is pointed out, amounts to banishment 
for life. Surely it is not the spirit of our law to deprive a man 
forever of the privilege of living in our city, perhaps with his 
friends or relatives, and perhaps even after complete reformation 
of habits, merely because for a short time he was an “idle-gam- 
ing” fellow.

In this case the petitioner claims that to spend his time in 
foreign parts, deprived of the attraction of Winnipeg life, is as 
much a hardship upon him and as much a restriction of his 
liberty as it would be to spend the time in gaol in the city; and 
that such time so spent in outer darkness should lie credited upon 
his gaol sentence. If his contention prevails, the alternative af­
forded him after his conviction would amount to an option given
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him to spend 6 months in gaol in Winnipeg nr 6 months at liberty 
out of Winnipeg.

The warrant of commitment is directed to any or all peace 
officers and commands them “to take—into custody” the person 
convicted. At the time the warrant was issued the convict in 
this case was in actual custody under his arrest made on the 
previous day, and under which he was properly detained until 
disposition of the charge against him. That disposition was not 
complete until conclusion of the trial and passing of the sentence. 
At that moment the authority under which the convict was 
detained expired and although certain routine formalities had to 
he complied with before he secured his actual liberation, he was 
nevertheless in the contemplation of the law immediately at 
liberty. It is for that reason, therefore, that the warrant of com­
mitment, being dated after his conviction directed the peace 
officer “to take” him into custody. Ordinarily he would have 
been taken into custody under this warrant before he had com­
pleted the formalities attending upon termination of his earlier 
custody. Hut in this case the judgment directed that the war­
rant should be held 24 hours. Within 24 hours the prisoner was 
released from the earlier custody and as contemplated took his 
departure from the city. Consequently the warrant of commit­
ment was not executed upon him, but remained in full force and 
effect until February 8, when it was executed upon him. The 
point therefore raised by the prisoner’s counsel that the arrest 
on February 8 was illegal because the prisoner had once lieen 
taken into custody under this warrant, is not well founded and 1 
am of opinion that the arrest under this warrant was not illegal 
and the prisoner is not entitled to be released on that ground.

The other, and indeed the main question raised, is—When did 
the sentence commence to run? In Rex v. Fitzpatrick (1915), 25 
D.L.R. 727, 25 Man. L.K. 627, 25 (’an. Cr. Cas. 42, decided by 
liait, J., of this Court, it is laid down clearly that the sentence 
begins to run from the day sentence is passed and not from 
the day of incarceration. In the Province of (jueliec, the case of 
Reg. v. Johnson (1901 ), 4 Can. Cr. Cas. 178, is to the same effect. 
Hut in that case, the prisoner, who had been serving a 5 year 
sentence in the penitentiary, was allowed out under the lieensing 
system and although he had not violated the conditions of his 
leave he was re-arrested to serve the balance of the term. The 
Judge referred to sec. 48 of the Penitentiary Act, R.S.C. 1906, 
ch. 147, which provides that, “the term of imprisonment in pur­
suance of any sentence shall, unless otherwise directed in the 
sentence, commence on and from the day of passing such sen­
tence.”

K.B.

Rex
v.
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It is contended, however, that that decision applies only to 
sentences which involve penitentiary imprisonment. But in an­
swer to that it is to be noted that the Prisons and Reformatories 
Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 148, sec. 3, contains exactly the same lan­
guage, and that Hie Act applies to common gaols and gaol 
sentences.

On the other hand there is the case of Rex v. Gregg (1913), 13 
D.L.R. 770, 6 Alta. L.R. 234, 22 Can. Cr. Cas. 51, decided in 
Alberta. Beck, J., before whom the matter was tried, says 13 
D.L.R. at p. 772 :—

“That the period of imprisonment is to be calculate 1 from tin- 
time of actual imprisonment is settled by decisions: Rowdier\s 
case (1848), 116 E.R. 999, 12 Q.B. 612, 17 L.J. (Q.B.) 243; K 
parte Foulkes (1846), 15 M. & W. 612, 153 E.R. 994, 15 L.J. 
(Ex.) 300; Braham v. Joyce (1849), 4 Exeh. 487, 154 E.R. 1305, 
19 L.J. (Ex.) 1. J should, without authority, have so decided 
on the ground of reason and common sense.”

The cases relied upon in support of that opinion, however, 
scarcely uphold the statement. They are old cases decided before 
1850 under English Acts providing for the imprisonment of 
debtors in which cases the warrants were by statute to be left 
undated. The Courts held in those cases that the warrants should 
be considered as dated from the time of the incarceration of the 
debtor. These decisions were based upon interpretation of that 
special statute, and the effect of making the warrant speak not 
from the day sentence was passed but from the apprehension of 
the debtor. The decisions are therefore of very little assistance 
to us.

A North Carolina case has been eited, viz., In re Ilinson 
(1911), 156 N.C. 250, decided by a Court having jurisdiction on 
a par with our own. The decision is based not upon any statu­
tory law but upon general principles and decides that the sen­
tence begins to run from the time of incarceration even though 
the offender has absented himself from the jurisdiction for a time 
longer than that imposed by the sentence.

While these decisions are not in any complete sense binding 
upon this Court, still in the interests of justice we ought to har­
monize our own decisions with them, or with such of them as best 
interpret the spirit of our laws. The opinion of Galt, J., as 
stated in the Fitzpatrick case, supra, appeals to me as setting 
forth the principle involved. That decision is consistent witli 
Reg. v. Johnson, supra, and most important of all it gives effect to 
the language of the Prisons and Reformatories Act, which ex­
pressly enacts that unless otherwise directed the term of impris­
onment shall be deemed to commence on and from the day of the
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passing of sentence. If it were not that this enactment has not 
been referred to in any of these Canadian decisions I would have 
thought that the question could not seriously he raised. How­
ever, as the Fitzpatrick case is in complete harmony with the 
language of the Act, and as it is a decision of our t>wn Court, I 
will accept it and follow it.

It seems to me that on this theory may best be explained the 
nature of the leave which was granted to the prisoner in this 
vase. The offender was not banished for life. Indeed there was 
no power in the Court to impose such a sentence. He was sen­
tenced to a definite term of 6 months in the common gaol. As 
an alternative he was allowed to absent himself from the city 
so that the warrant of commitment might not be served upon 
him. That alternative is based upon wise public policy and is 
sanctioned by a judicial decision in the ease of Rex v. Fitzpatrick, 
supra. It affords the community all the benefits that would 
enure from imprisonment without the burden of expense ; it 
affords the offender the benefit of a restricted liberty but with the 
burden of supporting himself. And because a definite period is 
fixed for the term of imprisonment so it seems to me a definite 
and corresponding period must be attached to the contemplated 
banishment. If the intention were that the imprisonment should 
he for 6 months from the time of incarceration it would be so 
stated in the warrant. In the absence of any such expressed 
intention, we must infer that the term of banishment is co­
terminous with the term imposed for imprisonment. Therefore, 
on this theory and in my opinion, it follows that at the expiration 
of the term imposed, in this case 6 months, the offender, if in 
prison would be entitled to his liberty ; and if in banishment 
would be entitled to return to the city.

The order will, therefore, he granted and the prisoner dis­
charged from custody. There will be the usual protection to 
the magistrate, gaoler, constables and officials, in connection with 
the arrest or detention of the prisoner.

Application granted.

THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF CANADA v. XEITZKE 
THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF CANADA v. W1EHMAYER.

Supreme Court of Canada, Da vus, C.J., Idington, Duff, Anglin, Brodeur and 
Mignault, JJ. June 7, 1081.

Aliens ($ III—15)—British born women—German nationality by Mar­
riage-Property VESTED IN VVSTOD1AN—TREATY OF VERSAILLES 
1919, arts. 296, 297—Debts—J urisdiction.

The property rights and interests in Cunuila of the plaintiffs, who 
were British born women, who acquired German nationality only by 
their marriages, were vested in the defendant by virtue of the Treaty of

Can.

S.C.



444 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Can.

8.C.

Secretary 
of State of

Neitzke.

The
Secretary 

of State of 
Canada

WlEHMAYER.

Appeal from the judgment of the Exehequer Court of Canada 
declaring that none of the debts of the respondents vested in the 
appellant, as custodian, were “debts payable” under the terms 
of the Treaty of Peace with Germany art. 296, and might be r< 
linquished to the respondents. Varied.

The facts of the case are as follows:—These were applications 
to have it declared that none of the property, rights and interests 
of the plaintiffs which were vested in the defendant, were within 
the provisions of art. 296 of the Treaty of Peace with Germany, 
and to have the custodian relinquish the same.

Mary Peniston Wiehmayer was British-l>orn, and in 1898 
married Theodore Wiehmayer, a German, and took up residence 
in Germany where she was residing on August 4, 1914. By tin- 
death of her father and mother in Canada in years 1912 and 1916 
respectively, she inherited certain properties, interests and rights 
in Canada which were held by her on the said August 4, 1914, 
and which, by on Order of May 20, 1919, became vested in the 
Minister of Finance and Receiver General as custodian of enemy 
property, and were later vested in defendant under the Treaty 
of Peace (Germany) Order 1920, together with interest, etc., 
accrued since.

In January, 1913, there was held for said plaintiff by one 
Fielding, at Toronto, mortgages upon and agreements respecting 
real estate in Canada, and in the said month she instructed him 
to remit the interest to her from time to time and to pay over 
any principal moneys paid thereon to the National Trust Com­
pany, to be held by it for investment. On August 22, 1914, the 
trust company ceased to reinvest any principal sums, but held 
them in cash. On August 4, 1914, they held mortgages amount­
ing to $34,050 and on January 10, 1920, they held mortgages 
amounting to $16,900, and cash $14,220.

Peace (Germany) Order 1920, on their application for a declaration 
that their said property rights ami interests in Canada did not com. 
within the provisions of art. 296 of the Treaty of Peace, and that they 
he relinquished. The Court held on apjieal from the Exehequer Court 
that deposits of money with the National Trust Co. for investment in 
securities» repayment of which was guaranteed on dates which fell dm 
ing the war, are debts payable during the war within the meaning of tin- 
above provision of the treaty and could not be relinquished; that de 
posits in a savings bank and moneys invested with a loan company 
to lie withdrawn on notice and from the bank on presentment of tin 
bank book also, are not “debts,” it not being established that tin 
right to such notice and presentment was abandoned; that moneys di 
posited with a trust company with instructions that all sums of capita 
and interest so received should be held by the company to the credit 
of the owner until further advice by her which was never given wen 
not “debts payable” as provided by the treaty; that dividends ami 
interest from investments or securities which became payable during 
the war were ‘ ‘ debts. ' ’
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On May 6, 1915. said Fielding handed over the halanee of 
mortgages to the trust company, to he dealt with by the company 
as aforesaid and on January 10, 1920, they held investments 
amounting to $32,115.14 and $21,054.27 in cash. During the 
war the interest, and part of the capital was paid to one Louis S. 
McMurray, for said plaintiff who deposited the same, along with 
interest from other securities, to her credit in a savings account 
in the Bank of Toronto, except such as was remitted to said 
plaintiff.

The money now in the hands of the custodian as regards said 
plaintiff amounts to the sum of $23,285.54 under the vesting 
order aforesaid. Besides the above, bonds of the Win. Davies Vo.. 
Ltd., shares of the Consumers Gas Co., Dominion Bank stock 
and Dominion Telegraph Co. stock, with interest accrued were 
vested in the Minister of Finance and Receiver General, by said 
vesting order, and later were vested in the defendant herein. 
That besides these the said company was. on January 10, 1920, 
the owner of the following property and interest, to wit : bonds 
of the Commercial Cable Co.; bonds of the Canada Locomotive 
Co.; shares of the MacKay Co’s.; shares of the Canadian Pacific 
R. Co. ; all of which was vested in the defendant.

The plaintiff, Lucy Hamilton Neitzke was also by birth of 
British nationality. In 1910 she married Leo Neitzke, a German, 
and has ever since resided in Germany where shi was on August 
4, 1914. At that time she owned certain property, rights and 
interests in Canada which, by an order of May 20, 1919, were 
vested in the Minister of Finance and Receiver General as cus­
todian of Enemy property and were later vested in the defend­
ant under the Treaty of Peace (Germany) Order 1920.

The property, rights and interests involved in this case are as 
follows: First mortgage, 15 year sinking fund of the William 
Davies Co., Ltd., of the par value of $10,000, hearing interest at 
6%, the principal to mature July 1, 1926; $13,000 invested by 
National Trust Co., Ltd.; under its guaranteed trust investment 
receipts, dated January 16, 1912 and January 2, 1914; $30,000 
invested by the Toronto General Trusts Corp’n. under its guar­
anteed investment reeeipt, dated July 9, 1913; 100 shares of the 
capital stock of the Canada Permanent Mortgage Corp’n of the 
par value of $10 each ; $20,000 in the hands of the W. B. Hamil­
ton Shoe Co., Ltd., under the terms of a receipt dated January 1, 
1913; $3,456.67 on deposit with the Central Canada Loan and 
Savings Co.; 6 shares of the Fire Insurance Exchange Corp’n 
Stock and Mutual, of the par value of $60 per share, upon which 
$30 per share is paid up.

The special cases of the said Lucy Hamilton Neitzke and Mary
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Pcniston Wiehmayer, were united for argument, being argued 
by the same counsel, before the President of the Exchequer 
Court, at Ottawa.

Both plaintiffs by their statements of claim ask for (a) a 
declaration that none of their property, rights and interests 
vested in the defendant, as aforesaid, are within the provisions 
of art. 296 of the Treaty of Peace with Germany, (b) An order 
that the said property, rights and interests he returned by the 
defendant to them.

The Exchequer Court held that all the property of the respon­
dents could he relinquished as not constituting “debts payable 
before the war” or “debts which became payable during the 
war” within the terms of the treaty.

Christopher C. Robinson, for the appellant.
R. S. Robertson, K.C., for the respondent.
In re Neitzke.
Davies, C.J.After much consideration of the facts of this 

appeal from the Exchequer Court, I am of opinion that
1. The deposits with the National Trust Co. are debts within 

art. 296; 2. the deposit with the Central Canada Loan and Sav­
ings Co. is not a debt within the article ; and 3. that the divi­
dends and interest are debts within art. 296.

I concur in the reasoning of Anglin, J., with respect to the first 
and second items, hut I am unable to agree with him with respect 
to the item concerning dividends and interest.

In re Wiehmayer.
I concur in the opinion of Anglin, J., that neither the deposits 

with the Bank of Toronto nor the Mary Prue Mara trust moneys 
are debts within the art. 296, but 1 am unable to agree with him 
as regards the dividends and interest which I hold are debts 
within art. 296.

Idington, J. :—In each of these cases an appeal is presented 
from the judgment therein of Cassels, J.

It seems to me that if the final determination of either is to be 
undertaken it must turn, in the last analysis, upon the interpre­
tation to he given art. 296 of the Treaty of Peace between the 
Allied and Associated Powers and Germany, signed at Versailles 
June 28, 1919, and certain subsidiary provisions of said treaty.

Said art. 296, by the introductory clause and four following 
paragraphs, reads as follows :—

There shall he settled through the intervention of clearing 
offices to he established by each of the high contracting parties 
within three months of the notification referred to in paragraph 
(e) hereafter the following clauses of pecuniary obligations ; (1) 
Debts payable before the war and due by a national of one of
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the contracting powers, residing within its territory, to a national 
of an opposing power, residing within its territory; (2) Debts 
which became payable during the war to nationals of one con­
tracting power residing within its territory, and arose out of 
transactions or contracts with the nationals of an opposing 
power, flkident within its territory, of which the total or partial 
execution was suspended on account of the declaration of war; 
(3) Interest which has accrued due before and during the war to 
a national of one of the contracting powers in respect of securi­
ties issued by an opposing power, provided that the payment of 
interest on such securities to the nationals of that power or to 
neutrals has not been suspended during the war; (4) Capital 
sums which have become payable before and during the war to 
nationals of one of the contracting powers in respect of securities 
issued by one of the opposing powers, provided that the payment 
of such capital sums to nationals of that power or to neutrals has 
not been suspended during the war.

It is to be observed that neither was the Exchequer Court, nor 
are we, deciding any cause between the parties to the said treaty.

It seems to have occurred to the appellant or the Government 
of Canada that under this provision certain cases of hardship 
were likely to arise; and by virtue of an Order in Council the 
possibility of a relinquishment to members of such class of per­
sons was directed subject, however, to a reference to the Ex­
chequer Court of Canada to declare the rights of such persons to 
so claim, and appellant to assent to the said relinquishment.

The Exchequer Court declared accordingly that each of the 
respective respondents in question is entitled to claim from ap­
pellant the relinquishment of her share of funds held by him as 
custodian.

It seems to me clear that the Exchequer Court must be acting 
in an advisory capacity and its judgment cannot be of any higher 
value than that may give it.

1 am in doubt how such a case can be brought by way of appeal 
here. It is not from a final judgment within the meaning of 
either the Supreme Court Act R.S.C. 1906, ch. 139, or the Ex­
chequer Court Act R.S.C. 1906, ch. 140. It is probably quite 
competent for the Crown to submit directly to us such a ques­
tion as submitted to the Exchequer Court.

And if, passing the doubt I have as to the said right of appeal 
under such very peculiar circumstances, I applied my mind as I 
have to the arguments addressed to us, and much else bearing upon 
the case, I regret to say I still remain, with great respect, in 
grave doubt as to the correctness of the opinion of the trial 
Judge.

Can.

8.C.

The
Secretary 

of State of

Nkitzkk.

Secretary 
of State of

WlF.IIMAYER. 

Icllllgton, J.



448 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

s.c.
The

Secretary 
of State of 

Canada

Secretary 
of State of

WlEIIMAYFR. 

DulT, i.

1 am quite unable to give the word “debt” in said article 
the narrow meaning in the sense contended for, as if restricted to 
what our common law Courts might classify as such.

If 1 resort to dictionaries, such as Stroud, and Bouvier, 1 find 
it might reasonably be given in such a document as presented a 
much more extended meaning.

Curiously enough, though sometimes driven by mere doubt to 
maintain a judgment of the Court below which 1 cannot satisfy 
myself is clearly wrong, 1 feel impelled, in a mere advisory judg­
ment such as this, to hold that the appellant is entitled to rest 
upon such doubt and to claim he is entitled to act thereon if 
such he the conclusion of the majority of the Court.

In truth, however, the more 1 consider the meaning of the word 
“debt” and the relevant words in the art. 296 and the annex, 
the less reason T see for the restricted meaning applied below.

Since writing the foregoing 1 find much difference of opinion 
in this Court and that coupled with my own doubts as to the 
correctness of the opinion of Cassels, J., leads me to the eon- 
elusion that the so-called appeals should be answered by sub­
mitting that amid so much doubt and difficulty the appellant 
cannot on the case presented act in such a way as to give either 
respondent any relief at present.

In re Wiehmayer.
Duff, J. :—! am disposed to think that the opinion or judg­

ment of Casse! • *1., is not appealable to this Court but as lin- 
questions subm.(ted to him could be submitted directly to this 
Court by an Order in Council, it seems to be proper that we 
should treat the appeal as in the nature of a submission and give 
such assistance as we can for the determination of the questions 
involved. 1 think the word “debts” in art. 296 ought to receive 
a broad construction and 1 think it includes moneys held under 
a legal or equitable obligation to pay at any time on demand. 
On the other hand debts payable at a fixed date or at the expira­
tion of notice are not, in the absence of such notice or prior to 
such date, within the terms of the article; and deposits in re­
spect of which the depositee is entitled to require notice before 
payment are therefore not debts payable within those terms. 
In the result, dealing seriatim with the items in respect of which 
dispute arises :—

(a) The deposit in the Bank of Toronto does not fall within 
art. 296. (b) As to the cash held by the National Trust Co. for 
the Mary Prue Mara trust and the proceeds of the mortgages. I 
think that the memorandum of October 14, 1914, although it 
does not in terms refer to these funds, indicates the terms upon 
which they were in fact held and that, applying the criterion
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above indicated, they fall within art. 296. (c) Speaking gen­
erally, dividends and interest being moneys which somebody was 
under a legal obligation to pay, were, in my opinion, debts within 
the meaning of art. 296. As regards interest which became pay­
able during the war whether by contract or by statute the legal 
obligation to pay was one of the legal incidents of the “tran­
saction” or “contract” the execution of which in respect of such 
incident was suspended on account of the war. The phrase “on 
account of the war” expresses in my judgment the meaning of 
the words “on account of the declaration of war.” As respects 
dividends: the word “transaction” in my judgment is broad 
enough to embrace the acts or proceedings by which Mrs. Wieh­
mayer’s right to the respective dividends in question became con­
stituted and the obligation to pay dividends is under the criterion 
above indicated a debt w ithin art. 296.

Some difficulty arises in respect of dividends and interest paid 
by McMurray into the Bank of Toronto account. I am disposed 
to think, not without a great deal of doubt, that as these moneys 
appear to have been thus dealt writh by him with the authority 
of Mrs. Wiehmayer, they must be held to stand in the same 
category as the other moneys in that account ; and in consequence 
of the term of the deposit which entitled the bank to require 
notice before payment, they ought not to be considered to have 
constituted a debt “payable” within the meaning of the article.

In re Neitzke.
Applying the criterion mentioned in Mrs. Wiehmayer’s case it 

follows: 1st, that the deposits with the National Trust Co. are 
within art. 296; 2nd, that the deposit with the Central Canada 
Co. does not fall within art. 296.

As to interest and dividends: Interest and dividends generally 
are to be considered within the article, but any sum representing 
such interest and dividends as max' have been credited by the 
Central Canada Co. to Mrs. Neitzke’s deposit account under the 
terms mentioned in para. 13 of the case, is, I am disposed to think 
with a great deal of doubt, not to be considered as a debt payable 
W’ithin the article.

Anglin, J. :—The appeals in these two actions, which raise 
very similar questions, wrere argued together. By a special case 
stated in each the parties seek to have it determined whether 
certain property of the respondents, German subjects through 
marriage only, or any part of it is or is not of such a character 
that the Government of Canada may renounce claim to it without 
becoming accountable therefor to the Government of1 Germany. 
The answer depends primarily, if not entirely, on whether the 
several items of property in question were at the date of the 
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Treaty of Peace with Germany (January 10, 1920), “debts 
(which had been) payable before the war” or “debts which be­
came payable during the war” within art. 296 of that treaty, 
or were then not such debts but rather “property rights (ori 
interests .... belonging to German nationals” within art. 297. 
If they were the former they cannot be relinquished; the treaty 
forbids it (art. 296, paras, (a) and (b) ) ; if the latter they may 
be abandoned to the respondents without accountability to Ger­
many being incurred, the allied powrers having merely “re­
serve (d) the right”—not undertaken responsibility—“to retain 
and liquidate” such property and give credit for its proceeds.

It seems abundantly clear that the liabilities to the respond­
ents arose out of transactions of which the partial execution was 
suspended “on account of the declaration of war.’’ These latter 
words of clause (2) of art. 296, in my opinion, clearly mean on 
account of the situation (i.e., the state of war) created by the 
declaration of war. That situation and the disabilities it en­
tailed existed up to January 10, 1920, “on account of the declar­
ation of war.”

The heading of art. 296 is “Debts,” which, if not misleading, 
can scarcely be termed definite or precise, (37 L.Q.R., p. 59). The 
article deals not with all pecuniary obligations but only with 
certain classes of them. In considering what pecuniary obliga­
tion it was intended to comprise within the category of debts it 
must first be observed that there are certain restrictions on the 
broad meaning of that word, viz., that which is owed or due; 
anything, (as money, goods or service, which one person is under 
obligation to pay or render another ;) a sum of money or a material 
thing. Murray’s Diet., vbo., Debt, imposed by the qualifying 
statements of the article that the debts dealt with are “pecuniary 
obligations” and that they must either have been “payable be­
fore the war” or have “become payable during the war.” In 
the French version the word “payable” is rendered as “ex­
igibles” in para. No. 1 and as “exigibles et ducs” in para. No. 2.

The special mention made in clauses (3) and (4) of capital 
sums and interest payable “in respect of securities issued by an 
opposing power” is also significant. Such obligations are classed 
with “debts” due by the nationals of such power. The legiti­
mate inference would seem to be that capital and interest payable 
in respect of private securities issued by such nationals, whether 
persons or corporations, were not meant to be within the purview 
of the article.

The treaty does not declare by what law its terms are to be 
construed. Having regard to its international character, how­
ever, it should perhaps not be too readily assumed that merely
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because English municipal law differentiates between a debt and 
the obligation of a trustee to account that distinction should ob­
tain in construing the word “debts” used in art. 296. Yet 
when the nature of the relations of the cestui que trust and the 
trustee to trust property are carefully considered the distinction 
would not seem to depend upon considerations peculiar to Eng­
lish law but rather to be of universal application. The cestui que 
trust is not a mere creditor of his trustee in respect of trust 
moneys, but has a beneficial proprietary interest in them while 
in the trustee’s hands. They are his moneys, not the trustee’s. 
They are not exigible to satisfy a judgment for the claim of any 
other person who is a creditor of the trustee as they would be if 
the latter was merely a debtor for them to his cestui que trust.

“Payable” is a word susceptible of more than one shade of 
meaning; Massy v. Lloyd (1863), 10 H.L. Cas. 248, 11 E.R. 
1021, at pp. 267-8, per Westbury L.C. Counsel for the Crown in 
his factum, and again at liar took the position that a debt is 
“payable” only when it may l>e sued for without any previous 
demand or other act of the creditor—but not otherwise.

North, J., in In re Tidd, [ 1893] 3 Ch. 154, at p. 156, 62 L.J. 
(Ch.) 915, 42 W.R. 25, quotes with approval the following pas­
sage from Evans’ Commentary on Pothier, vol. II, p. 126:—

“Where a man deposits money in the hands of another to lie 
kept for his use, the possession of the custodee ought to be deemed 
the possession of the owner until an application and refusal, or 
other denial of the right ; for, until then, there is nothing adverse, 
and I conceive that, upon principle, no action should be allowed 
in the eases without a previous demand; consequently, that no 
limitation should be computed further back than such demand.

The Wiehmayer Case.
Assets of three descriptions are in question in this case: (1) 

Moneys of Mrs. Wiehmayer deposited in a savings bank account 
with the Rank of Toronto. (2) Mrs. Wiehmayer’s share of cash 
held by a trustee company at the date of her mother’s death and 
of moneys received by it as the proceeds of mortgage securities 
in its hands—both covered by a trust of which Mrs. Wiehmayer 
and her sister, a British subject, were beneficiaries subject to a 
life interest in their mother. (3) Interest and dividends which 
became payable to Mrs. Wiehmayer while a state of war sub­
sisted.

(1) As a “deposit............established before or after the
declaration of war” the money on deposit in the Bank of To­
ronto seems to be a “cash asset” within clause (h) (1) of art. 
297, as defined by sec. 11 of the annex to that article, rather than 
a “debt” within art. 296. It was payable by the terms of the
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Can. nontract of deposit only on-production of the bank book, and,
sc if required by the bank, after 15 days’ notice. A demand fur
1— payment accompanied by production of the bank book and the
The 15 days’ notice, if exacted, were conditions precedent to a cause

<^™or of action to recover it arising. Until these conditions were ful 
Canada filled, if a “debt” it was not “payable.” 1 cannot distinguish

v- the case as to these moneys from Atkinson v. Bradford Third
Nectzkk. EquitaUe Society (1890), 25 Q.I1.D. 377, 59 L.J. (Q.B.) 360. i8

The W.R. 630, and In re Tidd, supra.
Secbetaky it is true that the special case states that it was not the prae- 

tiee of the bank in dealing with this account or with similar av- 
v. counts to insist that requests for withdrawals were to be ae-

Wiehmaycb. eompanied by the bank book.
Anrim, J. There is no admission, however, that the bank had relinquished 

or abandoned its right to do so or to exact the not ice 
and I am not prepared to draw that inference from the 
mere existence of the practice stated. There are no other cir­
cumstances before us pointing to an equitable right on the part 
of the respondent to rely on that practice as having established 
such an abandonment—nothing to indicate that in suing to re­
cover the amount to the credit of her savings account it would 
be unnecessary for the plaintiff to aver performance of the con­
dition precedent as to presentation of the bank book or inequit­
able on the part of the bank to set up against her the express 
stipulations of its contract with her.

Although counsel for the appellant expressly confined his 
appeal to such items as fall within art. 286, it has been suggested 
in the course of the consideration of these cases that for all “cash 
assets” there is a like obligation to account through the clearing 
office, imposed by clause (h) of art. 297 and sub-clause (1) 
thereof. The argument urged is that “all cash assets in general” 
are by clause (h) put in the same category with “net proceeds 
of sales of enemy property” which has been retained and liqui­
dated, and that sub-clause (1), in the case of powers adopting 
sec. Ill (art. 296) and the annex thereto, imperatively requires 
that such proceeds and “cash assets” shall alike be credited to 
the power of which the owner is a national, through the clearing 
office. But that construction would impose on the allied or asso­
ciated powers the obligation to “retain” all cash assets within 
their territories belonging to German nationals, whereas such 
“cash assets” form part of the “property, rights and interests,” 
which the allied or associated powers by clause (b) merely re­
served the right—impliedly refused to assume any obligation— 
“to retain and liquidate.” Clause (b) is, in my opinion, the 
dominant provision, and clause (h) and sub-clause (1) thereof
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must be road subject to it. The latter clauses therefore apply in 
the ease of the allied or associated powers only to “cash assets” 
in respect of which such powers shall have exercised their 
reserved right of retention.

As to item No. 1 the appeal in my opinion fails.
(2) and (3). Because of the relations to them of the trustee 

and the cestui que trust above stated the trust funds covered by 
item No. 2, 1 also think cannot be regarded as “debts” and 
neither these moneys nor interest or revenues accruing from 
them, comprised in item No. 3, as I view them, “became payable 
during the war” to the plaintiff. While there is nothing in the 
terms of the trust instrument that would have precluded her 
calling upon her trustee to account to her at her mother’s death 
for her share of the moneys covered by the trust then in its hands 
and afterwards for the other moneys included in the second item 
and for interest and revenues arising therefrom when and as 
they were received by it, a memorandum of instructions of 
October 14, 1914, that all sums, either of capital or income, 
received on the plaintiff’s account by her trustee were to be 
retained by it to her credit until further advice by her, at least 
serves to negative the existence from that date forward of any 
arrangement or standing instructions that such moneys were 
to be remitted or paid over by the trustee on receipt, which might 
be tantamount to a demand. There was a further act to be done 
by the creditor in regard to all these moneys before a right of 
action to recover them from the trustee would have arisen. In 
my opinion they were not “debts,” which “became payable 
during the war” to the plaintiff.

Neither are dividends “debts” within art. 296. They are the 
share or interest of the stockholder to whom they arc payable in 
the distributable profits of the corporation and are his property 
quite as much as are the shares in the capital stock he holds. 
They are “cash assets” as defined by clause 11 of the annex to 
art. 297.

The appeal therefore also fails as to items (2) and (3).
The Neitzke Case.

There are also three distinct items involved in this appeal: (1) 
an amount deposited on August 4, 1914, to the credit of the 
plaintiff in the Central Canada Loan and Savings Co.; (2) sums 
represented by two guaranteed trust investment receipts issued 
by the National Trust Co., Ltd., to the plaintiff; (3) interest 
and dividends which became payable between August 4, 1914, 
and January 11, 1920, on property, rights and interests of the 
plaintiff.

(1) Item No. 1 seems to be in the same position as the eorres-
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ponding item in the Wiehmayer case. The money was placed in 
a special deposit account hearing interest and was withdrawable 
only on 30 days’ notice if required by the loan and savings 
company. This would appear to be a “deposit established before 
or after the declaration of war” within the purview of clause 11 
of the annex, and therefore a “cash asset” within art. 297 (h) 
(1). No abandonment of the right to exact the 30 days’ notice is 
alleged or shewn.

Interest which accrued due on these moneys as “assets coming 
from a deposit” (annex, el. No. 11), covered by item No. 3, would 
be subject to the same disposition as the principal.

(2) The substance of the transactions between the plaintiff 
and the National Trust Co., must be considered rather than the 
name given by the company—“Guaranteed Trust Investments.” 
When the trust company received each of the two sums from 
the plaintiff it gave her an absolute undertaking to repay 
the principal at the end of 5 years and to pay her 
interest thereon in the meantime half-yearly at the rate of 41/-.'< 
per annum. The dates for payment of the principal and interest 
as well as the rate of the latter were fixed quite independently 
of the terms of any security in which the moneys might be in­
vested by the company. The only liability to the plaintiff was 
that of the company. Her sole recourse was against it. No 
specific security was allotted to her investment or in any manner 
ear-marked as one on which she should have an exclusive claim. 
Her only right, apart from that of enforcing payment by the 
trust company according to the terms of the receipts given lier, 
would be to require the company at all times before repayment 
of the principal to hold allocated to such “trust investments” of 
the plaintiff and others in like plight an amount of securities of 
face value equal to the total amount of moneys received by it 
upon similar terms. Of the sufficiency of such securities, how­
ever, the company was the sole judge. In the event of its mak­
ing default in payment and going into liquidation there would, 
no doubt, be a mass of its securities on which all customers from 
whom it had obtained money on terms similar to those arranged 
with the plaintiff would alike have liens entitling them to share 
pari passu in their proceeds up to the amount of the company’s 
liability to each of them respectively. But at no time was there 
any part of that mass of securities held by the company which 
was hers. Her sole recourse, so long as the company remained 
solvent, was to look to it for payment of the amount advanced 
by her with interest thereon at the rate stipulated in the receipt 
given her, and in the event of insolvency or liquidation to rank 
for that amount as a secured creditor upon the fund represented
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by the securities that had been allocated by the company to its 
“trust investments” of the class to which hers belonged.

In substance these transactions, in my opinion, were not de­
posits of money by the plaintiff in trust for investment by the 
company on her account but loans to the company of the amounts 
handed over by her to it, of which payment was to be collaterally 
secured by liens, held in common with other lenders in like plight 
as above stated, on certain assets of the company set aside for that 
purpose. The plaintiff was a lender and as such a creditor; the 
company a borrower and as such a debtor—and the sole debtor— 
of the plaintiff. Doth the principal and the interest are “debts” 
of the company to the plaintiff which “became payable during 
the war” and as such, I think, fall within art. 296 of the Peace 
Treaty.

(3) The position of any dividends to which the plaintiff be­
came entitled is the same as that of the dividends in the Wieh- 
mayer ease. Interest on investments or securities, other than 
the money lent to the National Trust Co., and that on deposit 
with the Central Canada Savings Co., which have already been 
dealt with, would seem to be “cash assets” within the definition 
of that term in the annex to art. 297.

1 have assumed that we have jurisdiction to entertain these 
appeals from the opinion expressed by the Judge of the Ex­
chequer Court under the jurisdiction conferred upon that Court 
by sec. 1 (i) (1919 (Can.) 2nd sess. eh. 14.) In the result the 
opinion expressed by the Judge in the Wiehmayor ease should 
in my opinion be confirmed; that expressed in the Neitzke case 
should also be confirmed except as to the moneys received by the 
National Trust Company on “guaranteed investment receipts” 
and interest accrued thereon.

Brodeur, J. ;—As these two appeals have been argued together 
and as they raise practically the same issues, they might be both 
decided at the same time.

These actions have been instituted by two women who were of 
British nationality by birth and who married men of German 
nationality before the war and went to reside in Germany. They 
had money invested in Canada and their Canadian properties 
and rights were, by order of the Court, vested in the Minister of 
Finance under the provisions of the consolidated orders respect­
ing trading with the enemies, 1916.

By the Treaty of Peace of 1920 all the properties and rights 
vested in the Minister of Finance were transferred to the Secre­
tary of State of Canada, the appellant, as custodian. Now the 
respondents claim by their action that their property, rights and 
interests, which they possess in some investments, be returned by
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the appellant to them and that it be declared that these invest­
ments should not be considered as falling under the provisions 
of art. 296 of the Treaty of Peace with Germany.

The Secretary of State is willing to relinquish these properties 
and hand to their former owners provided such relinquishment 
shall not be contrary to certain provisions of the treaty which 
require that the payment of certain debts should be made through 
a clearing office to Germany itself and not to the original owners 
thereof.

We have then in that respect to construe the provisions of art. 
296 of the treaty which determines how certain debts due by a 
national of one contracting power to a national of an opposite 
power shall be settled. The question submitted in this case is 
whether the word “debts” of this art. 296 would include the in­
vestments which the respondents possessed in Canada.

These investments are of three classes :
First, the investments made in the Canadian trust companies 

and represented by “guaranteed trust investment receipts;” 
secondly, the deposits in loan and savings companies, or in banks 
in their savings account; thirdly, interest and dividends whicli 
became due or were paid during the war.

There is also in the case of Mrs. Wiehmayer a trust investment 
under special agreements which will have to be dealt with.

I.

Guaranteed Trust Investments.
This is an agreement by which sums of money are received by 

a trust company for investment for the repayment of which this 
trust company becomes liable. The trust company then invests 
the money in its own name and no specific mortgage is allocated 
to the trust investment receipts but the mortgages representing 
the total amounts invested by the trust company are simply set 
apart and are held in a special account.

We are not much concerned as to the manner in which the 
trust company manages or invests the funds which its clients 
put in its hands for investment. We have in the agreement or 
receipt an obligation to pay or reimburse the amount which has 
been put in its hands. There is established then between the 
investor and the trust company the relation of debtor and credit 
or and the investor has a right to claim from the company the 
reimbursement of his money. It becomes an ordinary pecuniary 
obligation.

What is a pecuniary obligation? It is a personal engagement 
which gives to the person in whose favour it is contracted the 
right to claim a sum of money. It is a vinculum juris whicli 
obliges a person to give some money to another.
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I am of opinion that under the treaty these trust investments 
should be paid through the clearing house and that the custodian, 
the Secretary of State, should not pay these pecuniary obliga­
tions to the respondent.

Deposits in Savings Banks in Loan Companies.
These deposits are generally made with the condition that the 

money will he paid after certain days’ notice or when the bank 
hook is presented. As a matter of practice, however, the amounts 
so deposited are reimbursed without requiring that notice or the 
presentation of the book.

It seems to me that any deposit in a bank constitutes a pecu­
niary debt by the bank from the moment of the deposit ; Pott v. 
Clegg (1847), 16 M. & W. 321, 153 E.R. 1212, 16 L.J. (Ex.) 210. 
The respondent relies on the case of Atkinson v. The Bradford 
Third Equitable Benefit Building Society, supra, where is was 
decided by the Court of Appeal in England that the condition 
that the sum should be repayable after the lender had given 
notice of his intention to withdraw it and that no money would 
be payable except on presentation of a pass book ; that the condi­
tion as to the production of the book was a condition precedent 
and that until it was produced, the Statute of Limitations did 
not begin to run against the lender. But the Atkinson case has 
reference only to the operation of the Statute of Limitations.

The treaty is in more general words and of more general ap­
plication than the Statute of Limitations referred to in the At­
kinson case. According to ray view, those deposits constitute 
debts which under art. 296 of the treaty would have to pass 
through the clearing house.

1 have stated before in discussing the guaranteed trust invest­
ments what is the essence of a pecuniary obligation. Nobody 
can say that there was not an obligation on the part of 
the banks, of the loan companies or of the others to pay a cer­
tain sum of money. That money could, in some cases, be claimed 
before the war and if it was not demanded that is not a reason 
to say that there was no debt. As to the money which became 
due during the war, if it was not claimed, that was due to the 
declaration of war. In each case, these debts constitute the pecu­
niary obligations mentioned in art. 296 of the Treaty.

Dividends and Interest.
As to the dividends and interest, they were certainly debts 

which became payable during the war and they arose out of 
agreements entered into before the war and the payment of the 
interest contracted for or the dividends which might have been 
declared was suspended on account of the declaration of the w’ar.

There is besides in para. 22 of the annex to art. 296 a formal
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reference as to interest which shews that capital and interest 
should be considered as one.

Trust Investment Wiehvnaycr Case.
By a certain agreement, the National Trust Co. held certain 

mortgages in trust to pay the income to Mary Prou Mara during 
her life and after her death part to the respondent and part to 
her sister in equal shares. Upon the death of Mary Prou Mara, 
in June, 1913, the National Trust Co. became obliged to divide 
between the respondent and her sister the capital held by it under 
this agreement.

The question is whether that sum became a debt payable and 
should be considered as such under the treaty.

The trust company was not forced during the war to pay to 
the respondent her share of the capital, but 1 fail to see how these 
sums could not be considered as a debt.

1 am of opinion that the judgment a quo should be reversed.
In rc Ncitzke.

Mignault, J. :—The question under this appeal is whether 
certain rights or claims of the respondent, as being “debts” 
within the meaning of art. 296 of the Treaty of Peace signed at 
Versailles, on June 28, 1919, between the allied and associated 
powers and Germany, are subject to the provisions of the said 
article. Article 296 is among the economic clauses of the treaty 
and, as far as material to the present inquiry, provides as fol­
lows:— [Sec judgment of Idington, J., pp. 446-7].

Paragraphs (3) and (4) are immaterial on this appeal.
This question was submitted to the Exchequer Court by means 

of a special case under Rule 160. The respondent succeeded as 
to all the items mentioned in the schedule annexed to the case, 
and the appellant now asks this Court to reverse the judgment of 
the Court below as to three of these items, viz. :—(a) The sums 
represented by the two guaranteed investment receipts issued by 
National Trust Co., to the respondent ; (b) the amount on de­
posit on August 4, 1914, to the credit of the respondent in the 
Central Canada Loan and Savings Co., and (c) the interest and 
dividends which became payable between August 4, 1914, and 
January 11, 1920, on the property, rights and interests of the 
respondent.

The appellant seeks also to have it held that, if these items 
fall under art. 296, Canada is or may be liable to Germany for 
or in respect of such of them as are relinquished to the res­
pondent.

The answer to be given depends on the construction of art. 2!J6 
of the Peace Treaty, which must be read in connection with the 
two following articles.
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In arriving at this construction, a broad distinction must be 
made between “debts” referred to in art. 296 of the Treaty of 
Peace and “property, rights and interests” which are the sub­
ject of arts. 297 and 298. The latter expressions are wide enough 
to comprise any kind of “debts,” and the word “debts” lato 
sensu would include any species of claim whether for money or 
other property to which one person is entitled as against any 
other. It is noticeable, however, that the “debts” referred to in 
art. 296 are stated to be certain classes of “pecuniary obliga­
tions,” so that nothing which cannot be described as a pecuniary 
obligation can come within the meaning of the word “debts” as 
used in art. 296.

“Cash assets” arc included among the “property, rights and 
interests” of art. 297 and are expressly mentioned in para, (h) 
of that article. In the annex to arts. 297 and 298, they are de­
fined, by para. 11, as including all deposits or funds established 
before or after the declaration of war, as well as all assets coming 
from deposits, revenues, or profits collected by administrators, 
sequestrators, or others from funds placed on deposit or other­
wise, but not to include sums belonging to the allipd or associated 
powers or their component states, provinces, or municipalities.

1 must confess that the reference to “cash assets” in art. 297, 
and in the annex to arts. 297 and 298, is more confusing than 
helpful. This is especially so when the different provisions of 
art. 297 are carefully studied. As the parties presented their 
case, the question was whether the property in question fell with­
in the provisions of art. 296, pars. 1 and 2. Still it is impossible 
to overlook art. 297, and, as I have said, its reference to cash 
assets is confusing. Thus para, (h), sub-para. (1), seems to re­
quire that in general all cash assets of enemies, as regards powers 
adopting art. 296, shall be credited to the power of which the 
owner is a national, through the clearing office established under 
the latter article. But the collocation of the expression “cash 
assets” with the words “the net proceeds of sales of enemy pro­
perty” sufficiently shows that what was intended was that where, 
under para, (b) of art. 297, an allied or associated power has 
elected to retain and liquidate property, rights and interests 
(which would include “cash assets”) belonging to German na­
tionals, the proceeds of such liquidation and all cash assets, as 
regards powers adopting art. 296, shall be credited to Germany 
through the clearing house, any credit balance being applicable 
to the payment of Germany’s reparation obligations under art. 
243. If an allied and associated power has not elected to retain 
and liquidate the property, rights and interests of German na­
tionals, and Canada has not done so with respect to British born
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wives of German nationals, the only question is whether the pro­
perty to be dealt with is or is not a “debt” within the meaning 
of art. 296.

1 can now deal with the amounts claimed by the respondent in 
order to determine whether they should be considered as being 
“debts,” or, I may say in contradistinction thereto, “cash as­
sets,” which terra has now been sufficiently explained. And it 
seems entirely proper to distinguish moneys in hand or moneys 
recovered and deposited for safe keeping from moneys due under 
a pecuniary obligation, whether such obligation be created for in­
vestment purposes or otherwise. It is in the latter sense that I 
construe the word “debts.”

Article 296 refers to debts payable before the war or during 
the war. Does this mean debts for which an action would lie 
without any previous demand ? This seems to be the construction 
which the appellant places on the word “payable,” for in his 
factum he says :—“It is further submitted that a debt ‘became 
payable ’ before or during the war within the meaning of these 
paragraphs if at any time before or (but for the war) during 
the war it could have been sued for without any previous de­
mand or other act by the the creditor.”

I cannot agree with this construction, for it seems inconceiv­
able that the negotiators of the treaty were concerned with the 
question whether a debt was suable without demand or only after 
a previous notice to the debtor. What seems entirely likely is 
that the debts with which they intended to deal were those of 
which the payment had been prevented by the war, and this 
payment was prevented in case of all debts between belligerents, 
irrespective of the question whether or not a previous demand 
was necessary. In my opinion, all moneys due under a pecuniary 
obligation of which the war prevented the payment, and which 
therefore had not, on that account, been recovered, are debts 
within the meaning of art. 296.

Applying therefore art. 296 to the items which are the subject 
of this appeal, my opinion is that :—

A. The sums represented by the two guaranteed trust receipts 
issued to the respondent by the National Trust Co., are “debts” 
within the meaning of art. 296. The moneys received from the 
respondent under these receipts, to wit, $11,000 and $2,000, were 
to be invested by the trust company in securities taken in its 
name, the surplus of interest over 5% to be retained by the com­
pany for its own benefit, and the company guaranteed the pay­
ment of the principal money, in the case of the $11,000, on Jan­
uary 1, 1917, and, in the case of the $2,000, on January 2, 1919. 
Both these days fell “during the war.” See the construction of
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these words in the Treaty of Peace (Germany) Order. 1920, sec. 
2, sub-sec. (c). In my opinion, were it necessary to so hold, the 
capital sums for which these receipts were given were payable 
and suable without any previous demand, but it will suffice to 
say that they were debts of which the payment was prevented by 
the war and therefore they come within art. 296.

B. The amount on deposit on August 4, 1914, to the credit of 
the respondent in the Central Canada Loan and Savings Co., 
was not a debt payable before the war within the meaning of art. 
296. This amount was deposited in a savings bank account and 
the form of the question shews that at the time of the declaration 
of war no order for its payment had been given by the respon­
dent. It would further come within the expression “cash assets” 
as used in art. 297. The want of a demand of payment here is 
important only as shewing that at the date of the declaration of 
war there was merely an existing savings account in favour of 
the respondent on which, as to the sum then standing to her 
credit, no cheque had been issued by her.

C. In so far only as this item comprises interest or dividends 
on item A, I would think it would fall under art. 296 of the 
treaty, being an accessory of the capital sums of $11,000 and 
$2,000 represented by the National Trust Co’s, guaranteed trust 
investment receipts.

The appeal also raises the question whether, if any of the said 
items do fall within art. 296, Canada is or may be liable to Ger­
many for and in respect of such of them as are relinquished to the 
respondent.

I would answer in the affirmative. Article 296 renders it com­
pulsory to settle through the intervention of clearing houses the 
classes of pecuniary obligations mentioned therein. Should 
Canada relinquish to the respondent any debts which come under 
the operation of art. 296, it would undoubtedly incur liability 
towards Germany for the debts so relinquished.

I would therefore allow the appeal to the extent of declaring 
that the capital sums of $11,000 and $2,000 represented by the 
guaranteed trust investment receipts of the National Trust Co., 
as well as all interest or dividends thereon accrued, are “debts” 
within the meaning of art. 296 of the treaty.
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In re Weihmayer.
Inasmuch as in the case of The Secretary of State v. Neitzke, I 

have explained what construction should be placed on arts. 296 
and 297 of the Treaty of Peace between the allied and associated 
powers and Germany, it will suffice to say that, in my opinion,
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none of the items which the appellant claims are “debts” within 
the meaning of art. 296, or should be so considered.

As a consequence the appeal should be dismissed.
Judgment varied.

EDWARDS v. CENTRAL DRAY CO.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, Cameron, Fullerton, Denniatoun

and Prendergast, JJ.A. June 18, 19S2.
Negligence ($ ID—70)—Negligent driving of trucks—Collision — In­

jury to cyclist—Joint liability.
Where the driver of n truck in cutting ahead of another truck, col­

lides with the latter, who could have avoided the collision by a slight 
turning of his car and the lessening of its speed, it is negligence of 
both drivers for which the owners of the trucks are jointly liable with 
respect to a cyclist fatally injured by the collision.

Appeals by defendants from judgment in an action by a 
widow for damages for the death of her husband. Affirmed.

C. II. Locke, G. A. Elliott, K.C., and G. M. Graham, for de­
fendant.

11. D. Guy and E. P. Garland, for plaintiff.
The judgment of the Court was delivered by
Perdue, —This action was brought by Jennie Belle

Edwards, administratrix of the estate of her husband, Ernest 
William Edwards, deceased, against the Central Dray Co., Ltd., 
and Adel Shragge, carrying on business as the Purity Ice Cream 
Co., to recover damages for causing the death of her husband. 
She sues for her own benefit, as wife, and for the benefit of the 
children of herself and her husband. The facts arc briefly as 
follows :—

On June 4, 1921, a heavy motor truck belonging to the Central 
Dray Co., was being driven north on Main Street, Winnipeg, by 
the company’s servant at a speed of about 14 miles an hour. Il 
was traveling in the space between the two street car lines and 
about the middle of the street. Ahead of it a much lighter truck 
belonging to the Purity Ice Cream Co., was being driven norlii 
in a straight course outside the east rail of the east car track at 
a speed of about 9 miles an hour. A few feet to the right of 
the Purity Co’s, truck and a short distance ahead of it, the de­
ceased was riding on a bicycle. The distance in a straight line 
between the last mentioned truck and the bicycle at this time is 
given by two independent witnesses as about 20 feet. On ap­
proaching the Purity Co’s., truck, the Dray Co’s., driver turned 
to the right in order to cut in ahead of the other. Scott, the 
driver of the Purity Co’s., truck, states that he saw the other 
truck as it came alongside of him that the other driver as 
he turned in struck with his right hind wheel the hub
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of the left front wheel of the Purity Co’s., truck turning it to 
the right, that the blow knocked him, Scott, off his balance, 
affected the steering gear and sent his car in the direction of 
Edwards.

The result was that the Purity Co’s., truck collided with Ed­
ward’s bicycle, over-ran it and dragged it and the rider about 20 
feet until the truck was stopped by a pile of gravel near the curb 
of the street. Edwards received such injuries that he died 2 
days after the accident.

From the evidence of the witnesses who saw the accident it is 
clear that the Dray Co’s., driver was negligent in cutting in as 
he did ahead of the other truck. But it seems clear that the 
Purity Co’s., driver, when he saw the other truck passing him, 
could have avoided the collision by turning his car a few inches 
to the right or by lessening its speed even in a slight degree. 
Instead of doing so he kept straight ahead at the same speed. 
In excuse of this conduct he states that Edwards was close by on 
his right and that he could not swerve the truck in that direction. 
But the evidence of other witnesses shews that the deceased was 
8 or 1) feet to the right of the Purity truck when the 2 trucks 
collided.

The trial Judge delivered a very full and carefully considered 
charge to the jury. The question that is really involved in these 
appeals—both defendants have appealed separately—is whether 
they are jointly liable for causing the injury, or, if not, which 
of them is to be held responsible.

The trial Judge instructed the jury as to what would constitute 
joint responsibility for the accident and as to the care the jury 
must exercise in considering the actions and conduct of the two 
truck-drivers in order to determine whether they were jointly 
hlameable or whether the injury to the deceased was caused by 
the negligence of one or other of them only.

The question of joint liability of two defendants in an action 
founded on negligence was considered by the Supreme Court of 
Canada, in Winnipeg Electric v. C.N.R. Co., lie Bartlett (1919), 
50 I). L. R. 194, 59 Can. S. C. R. 352. In that case one 
Bartlett sued both companies for causing the death of his 
wife by negligent operation of their cars. A street car 
had stopped at a railway crossing as a train was ap­
proaching. When the latter was 75 or 100 feet away the motor- 
man, without a signal from the conductor and in direct breach 
of orders, started to cross the railway. When half way over the 
power was increased and the car went forward wi ll a jerk. Two 
women at the rear end of the car either jumped off or were 
thrown off and falling on the diamond were killed by the train.
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This Court held the electric company liable for the negligence 
which caused the injury. See Bartlett v. Winnipeg Elec. Ry. d
C. N.R. (1918), 43 D.L.R. 326, 29 Man. L.R. 91, 23 Can. Ry. Cas. 
381 On appeal to the Supreme Court of Canada the majority of 
that Court held the Canadian Northern Railway Company was 
jointly liable with the other defendant Duff, J. was of opinion 
that the negligence of the electric railway company was not 
seriously open to dispute. As to the C.N.R. Co., he said, 50
D. L.R. at p. 204:—

“The obligation to take care, default in respect of which con­
stituted the negligence charged, was an obligation due to the 
passengers in the ear, and that being so, the respondent company 
is responsible for harm suffered by them in consequence of its 
default to the extent to which the damages are not, .n the lan­
guage of the law, too remote.”

Anglin, J. said, 50 D.L.R. at p. 209 :—
“The negligence of both defendants conduced to the death of 

the plaintiff’s wife. Had that of either been absent the lament 
able tragedy would not have occurred.”

Mignault, J. was also of the opinion that the plaintiff was en­
titled to recover damages against both defendants as being joint­
ly liable for the accident.

The Judge’s charge to the jury, in the present case, sufficiently 
instructed the jury' on the question of the liability of both or 
either of the defendants. The jury found both defendants guilty 
of negligence and returned a verdict against both. I see no 
sufficient ground for interfering with the verdict.

Both appeals must be dismissed with costs.
Appeals dismissed.

COUNTY of LINCOLN And TOWNSHIP of NORTH GRIMSBY v. 
TOWNSHIP of SOUTH GRIMSBY.

Supreme Court of Canada, Davies, C.J., ldington, Duff, Anglin and Mignault, 
JJ. February 7, 1938.

Highways ($ III—100)—Exemption from maintenance—When ceasing 
—Change of system.

An exemption granted by statute to a township from contributing 
towards the costs of maintaining a county road ceases with a change in 
the system and control of the county highways.

Appeal from a decision of the Appellate Division of the 
Supreme Court of Ontario (1921), 58 D.L.R. 407, 49 O.L.R. 315, 
reversing the judgment at the trial (1920), 55 D.L.R. 599, 48 
O.L.R. 211, in favour of the defendants in an action to deter­
mine whether or not the exemption of the respondent from pay­
ment of rates for maintenance of the Queenston and Grimsby
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road, granted by 1882, (Ont.) eh. 33, sec. 8, continued after the 
road became part of a system of county highways under the pro­
visions of the Highway Improvement Act R.S.O. 1914, eh. 40. 
Reversed.

(i. L. Staunton, K.C., and A. IV. Marquis, for appellants.
IV. S. McBrayne, K.C., for respondent.
Davies, C.J.:—For the reasons stated by Anglin, J., I am of 

the opinion that this appeal must be allowed with costs and the 
judgment of the trial Judge (55 D.L.R. 599) dismissing the 
action restored.

IniNGToN, J. :—The question raised herein is whether or not 
the Highway Improvement Act of Ontario, R.S.O. 1914, eh. 40, 
can be effectively executed as provided therein in counties where 
prior equities have been created between municipalities in rela­
tion to any part of the roads system adopted in execution of the 
provisions of the said enactment.

The powers given by said Act to county councils begin by the 
enactment contained in sec. 4 thereof, which reads as follows:—

“4.—(1) The council of any county may by by-law adopt a 
plan for the improvement of highways throughout the county by 
assuming highways in any municipality in the county in order 
to form or extend a system of county highways, designating the 
highways to be assumed and improved and intended to form or 
he added to such system ; and in ease it is impracticable to bene­
fit all the townships in any county equitably by a system of coun­
ty highways such a plan may provide for compensation to any 
township which by reason of the location of such highways or of 
the unequal distribution of the expenditure thereon may not 
benefit proportionately by a grant of such specific amount or an­
imal sum or both to be expended in the improvement of the high­
ways of such township as when so expended will make such plan 

for the whole county.”
The appellant County of Lincoln adopted by its by-law No. 

6(H) the said system covering a road mileage of 157 miles, or more, 
in all.

This by-law was passed by the council February 3, 1917, and 
that clearly by the consent of over two-thirds of the members of 
council, and hence under sec. 11 of the Act R.S.O. 1914, eh. 40, 
did not need to be submitted to the electors; and, as admitted by 
counsel at the trial (55 D.L.R. 599), was assented to by the Min­
ister of Public Works on March 26, 1917, which 1 presume means 
or implies the assent of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council re­
quired by sec. 12 of the Act as preliminary to the right to receive 
tin* provincial aid proffered as an inducement to adopt such a 
system of county highways..
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Indeed the plan adopted by the by-law to carry out the system 
under the provisions of the Act was the result of co-operation 
between the Department of Public Works, represented by its 
Minister and officials, of whom its chief engineer took the most 
active part, and the members of the council and some of the 
township councillors.

Every effort seems to have been made to satisfy if possible all 
the municipalities, and when entire satisfaction could not be 
produced that at least the scheme should he so equitable as to 
comply with the fundamental principle of the enactment.

Of course there will often be in any such case some one who 
cannot be satisfied unless getting more than he, or those he re­
presents, is entitled to.

As part of the means of averting such an emergency the res­
pondent was allotted 5 or 6 miles of new road more than it was 
entitled to under the plan and system in order to remove any 
ground of complaint such as now raised herein.

The above quoted see. 4 of the Act is almost literally identical 
with that in the Act when first passed in 1907 (Ont.) ch. 16, but 
amendments had been made in almost every session intervening 
between that and 1917 to render the Act more clearly what it 
was designed to produce, i.e., good roads of a kind hitherto un­
known in the rural districts of the Province, or indeed in many 
urban ; and to bring home to everyone the great expense involved, 
far exceeding anything hitherto attempted, and thereby to justi­
fy the provincial authorities in offering millions for the promo­
tion of the accomplishment of such an object.

I thus bring matters of common knowledge, as well as the 
many provisions of the Act, in accord with same line of thought, 
to bear upon the question of the interpretation and construction 
of the Act, for the reason, which I most respectfully submit, that 
the Appellate Court below seems to have overlooked such con 
sidérations, as if irrelevant, and adopted the idea that the pro­
jected system was, or had something in it which must be con­
sidered as rendering it, entirely subjective to what had gone 
before, instead of being, as I deem it, an entirely new conception 
and enterprise founded thereon, designed to supersede, so far as 
applied, all else in the way of road making, and to finance the 
doing thereof, and fix or determine the obligations which would 
ensue, upon the adoption of the system by any municipal county 
council, imposing only one obligation and that was that it must 
be equitable.

The primary judges of what was to be found equitable were 
the two-thirds majority of the county council or the majority of
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the electors for the county entitled to vote on such a subject fol­
lowed by the majority of the county council.

The antecedent relations of any municipality to another, 
springing out of impotent attempts to maintain a road in effi­
ciency, was obviously to he forever discarded, when, where and 
so far as nothing new substituted therefor so long as no injustice 
suffered thereby.

I have read the evidence to see how the matter was dealt with 
by those considering the new system and the means of adopting 
it and am pleased to find that it seems to have been approached 
in a proper spirit.

Notwithstanding all that, instead of at once appealing to the 
Court to restrain the carrying out of the said by-law and to 
quash it, if in fact founded upon something which had substan­
tially discarded the equitable treatment enjoined by the section 
which I quote above, and is the key to all else therein, the respon­
dent Required most substantial benefits from the adoption of the 
system and refrained from taking such steps until after the ap­
pellant had incurred very heavy responsibilities and brought 
forward one year after another by-laws imposing the proper rates 
to meet such liabilities and only then, on December 19, 1919, 
brings this action, having evidently meantime awaited the build­
ing of the new road within its own bounds as determined by the 
judgment of the county council to be an equitable basis for 
wiping out the past.

It is not often we meet with so unjust a demand deliberately 
made on the part of a municipal authority however much some 
of them may occasionally be wanting in due care.

The respondent rests upon the statute 1882 (Ont.), ch. 33, 
whicli created it, and which as between it and its junior North 
Grimsby in separating them, provided as follows:—

“Sec. 8. From and after the lust Monday of December, one 
thousand eight hundred and eighty-two, any rate, tax, liability 
or expenditure whatsoever, which, but for the passing of this 
Act, would have been assessable, ratable and taxable against the 
said original township of Grimsby in respect or on account of the 
road known as the Queenston and Grimsby Road, shall be assess­
ed. rated and taxed against the said township of North Grimsby 
and shall be I orne and paid by the said township of North 
Grimsby solely, and the said township of South Grimsby shall 
not thereafter be liable or be rated, assessed or taxed therefor.”

This section only deals with
“any rate, tax, liability or expenditure, whatsoever, which but 
for the passing of this Act, would have been assessable, ratable 
and taxable against the said original township of Grimsby, etc.,”
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clearly covering only that arising out of some obligation statu 
tory or otherwise existent antecedent to the day next after the 
date named for no rate could be imposed upon something which 
had ceased to exist or, I submit, was conceivably possible by those 
legislating.

Yet the first Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of On­
tario (58 D.L.R. 407, 49 O.L.R. 315), in effect holds that this 
provision is in force in relation to the matters involved herein 
under the new legislation enacted a quarter of a century later 
and in the absence of obligation of any kind ever having bound 
Grimsby as such, and declares as follows :—

“1. This Court doth declare that the said Municipal Corpora­
tion of the township of South Grimsby is not liable for any por­
tion of the levy made on it by the Municipal Corporation of the 
county of Lincoln under by-law No. 605, of the said Municipal 
Corporation of the county of Lincoln, in so far as the said levy 
is made in respect of the Queenston and Grimsby road amj doth 
adjudge the same accordingly.

2. And this Court doth further declare that the levy made by 
the said Municipal Corporation of the county of Lincoln against 
the Municipal Corporation of the township of South Grimsby is, 
in so far as the said levy is made in respect of the Queenston and 
Grimsby Road, illegal and void.

3. And this Court doth further declare that the said Muni­
cipal Corporation of the township of South Grimsby shall not be 
assessed, rated or taxed by the said Municipal Corporation of 
the county of Lincoln for any portion of the cost of improve­
ments of the Queenston and Grimsby Road under the provisions 
of by-law No. 600 of the said Municipal Corporation of the 
county of Lincoln and doth adjudge the same accordingly.

4. And this Court doth further declare that the Municipal 
Corporation of the township of North Grimsby is liable to the 
Municipal Corporation of the county of Lincoln for all assess­
ments, taxes or rates in respect of the said Queenston and Grimsby 
road under the said by-law No. 600 which have already been im­
posed or levied by the said Municipal Corporation of the county 
of Lincoln on the said Municipal Corporation of the township 
of South Grimsby in respect of the said road and doth adjudge 
the same accordingly.

5. And this Court doth further declare that all assessments, 
taxes or rates which but for the statute 1882 (Ont.) ch. 33, would 
be leviable against the said Municipal Corporation of the town­
ship of South Grimsby by the Municipal Corporation of the 
county of Lincoln in respect of the Queenston and Grimsby Road 
shall be levied against the Municipal Corporation of the town­
ship of North Grimsby and doth adjudge the same accordingly.
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6. And this Court doth further order and adjudge that the 
said Municipal Corporation of the county of Lincoln he, and it is 
hereby perpetually restrained from assessing, levying or seeking 
to collect from the Municipal Corporation of the township of 
South Grimsby any assessment, rate or tax in respect of the 
Queenston and Grimsby Road under the provisions of said by­
law No. 600 of the said Municipal Corporation of the county of 
Lincoln.”

To appreciate the rather sweeping character of the foregoing 
1 must observe that the Queenston and Grimsby road in question 
extends from the western frontier of the county of Lincoln to 
(jueenston on the Niagara River, and by no means in a straight 
line.

By reason of the crooks and turns therein it may be 30 to 35 
miles in length.

The length thereof through North Grimsby alone leaving out 
Grimsby Village, is, according to the scale given in the plan tiled 
in evidence herein, not more than seven and a half miles.

The county appellant in order to carry out this new system 
and provide the necessary financial means of doing so, if con­
sidered as a county scheme, had no power save the levying upon 
the entire assessable property within its usual jurisdiction, and 
that (save in eases specially provided for in the way of exemp­
tion from the operation of this new system of which the respon­
dent herein was not ) was by the annual assessments made upon 
the whole ratable property, based upon the equalized assessment 
of each municipality for any year in question.

The only exceptional case of that kind under the new system 
was the «use provided for in sec. 26 of the Highway Improvement 
Act, which in the case therein provided for, enabled the county 
council, with the approval of the Minister of Public Works, to 
omit from assessment any township or townships through which 
the road did not pass, or it might assess any township through 
which the road did pass for a larger or smaller amount in order 
to equitably assess the costs on the council of any county in which 
a system of roads is established under said Act, or might, upon 
the application of a township council and with the approval of 
the minister, levy a special rate upon the township for the con­
struction, improvement or maintenance of the road within such 
township.

Herein is the only remedy given for the respondent if it sup­
posed it was entitled to any special privilege under the Act. Yet 
it made no move in that direction and 1 submit should not now 
by the means invoked herein obtain indirectly what it might have 
obtained directly if the county council was treating it mequit-
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ably. And a special means having been thus given it the Courts 
have no power to step in and interfere on its behalf for substan 
tially that which is referred to another tribunal.

The opportunity was open to it on the consideration of the by­
law No. 600.

The township of North Grimsby brought the case from its 
point of view directly under the notice of the minister and evi­
dently he was advised it had nothing to fear on that score.

The by-law No. 605, mentioned in the first of the above quoted 
declarations of the Appellate Court below, was a by-law to raise 
$50,000 by way of loan for the purposes of construction.

It recited by-law No. 600 and its adoption under the Highway 
Improvement Act and that by see. 15 thereof and amendments 
thereto any county taking advantage of the said Act might pass 
by-laws to raise money on debentures payable in not more than 
30 years as provided by the Municipal Act not exceeding 3% of 
the equalised assessment of the county, and that by 1915 (Ont.) 
ch. 16, see. 4, sub-sec. (1) :—

“Money raised by the issue of debentures for road construc­
tion under authority of this Act shall be applied solely for that 
purpose, and shall not be used in paying any part of the current 
or other expenditure of the corporation, or for road repair or 
maintenance.”

I respectfully submit that such an expenditure of money can­
not fall within the purview of meaning of said sec. 8, above 
quoted and relied upon by the Court below (58 D.L.R. 407).

Whatever the words in sec. 8 of the Act of 1882 may mean we 
are given the history of the road and its repair or maintenance 
was thenceforth all that the parties concerned in such legislation 
possibly had in view.

That item clearly was also excluded from the scope and pur­
pose of this by-law No. 605 specifically dealt with by above judg­
ment of the Appellate Court and the later county by-laws passed 
to raise further moneys for purposes of construction under the 
adoption of the new system.

In the first place all that said sec. 8 of the enactment of 1882 
ever had relation to, was the 7 or 8 miles of the Queenston and 
Grimsby Road which fell within the bounds of North Grimsby, 
and in no sense as to the remainder of a road under the same 
name.

And in the next place by-laws Nos. 600, 605, and 620, related 
only to construction which related to or may have related to any 
part of the new system. And if purely construction in any ease 
w hat was meant ! Clearly not the mere repair of any part of 
the highway constructed after another fashion.
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The parties hereto have not enlightened us as tQ the actual 
facts had in view at each step in the history of all that was in 
question herein, as they might usefully have done.

If, as I surmise, applying general knowledge to the whole of 
this new system, then the development between the passing of 
the Act in 1882, and the use since then of other motive powers 
to transportation, rendered the abandonment of such road mak­
ing as had existed up to said date a necessity.

To speak of repair thereof had become an absurdity. Such 
repairs might be made as would answer an indictment and any 
other means of enforcing the obligation in contemplation by the 
parties concerned.

The development of the automobile and its use for travel or 
heavy traffic plainly demanded the construction of another kind 
of road than previously contemplated in 1882, and which ob­
viously would surpass in its cost anything within the ambit of 
the obligation named in said Act.

To speak of the new construction needed and that which had 
existed as identically the same or the obligation resting upon any 
one to repair the old as identical with the new obligation to be 
undertaken to meet the modern requirements of traffic is, I most 
respectfully submit, quite untenable.

The tenure of the soil on which repair might be done or con­
struction of something else needed, might remain the same, but, 
by the way, had not even that changed ?

Are we to shut our eyes to the realities, and use but a name as 
a guide? 1 submit not.

Suppose transportation advanced a step further and its needs 
required the appropriation of the old road allowance to the 
radiais to such an extent as to render the roadway useless for 
anything else, and an Act of the Legislature so approved and 
encouraged the county council that the radial practically occu­
pied the same space and provided for the county assuming that 
new burden of building and running it, how would that little bit 
of an Act, such as sec. 8, look like as if still binding? Could it be 
pretended to have an operative effect such as applied by the Ap­
pellate Division (58 D.L.R. 407) to this scheme.

1 put this extreme illustration, though perhaps it will not look 
so extreme 30 years hence, if some dreams are realised.

From the present outlook it is not so extreme as if someone in 
1882 had predicted all that has happened by reason of the auto­
mobile ; and sought to assign that as within the contemplation 
of those concerned as it clearly never was.

I submit we must have regard not only to all that has arisen 
but also all that had fallen into decay and the need for something
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new and read the legislation bringing with it a new system and 
a new road in light thereof, and then there is no difficulty in hold 
ing that it has superseded the enactment of 1882, so far as relates 
to giving vitality and efficacy to all that is involved in allowing 
this appeal and maintaining the judgment of the trial Judge 
herein.

Apart from all that, what right have we to assume that ex­
penditure of the $80.(MX) and still larger sums under later by-laws 
was not properly made on the remaining part of the Queenston 
and Grimsby road, yet the judgment appealed from (58 D.L.R. 
407) stands as a barrier to collect such debentures.

Nor do 1 see any means directed by the judgment appealed 
from to be taken to separate the expenditures on the (Queenston 
and Grimsby road from all else in respect of the entire system in 
relation to which the assessment is made so far as down to and 
including 1918 is concerned under the heading of good roads 
debentures.

1 repeat that the enactment relied upon for the said judgment 
in appeal related evidently to that part of that Queenston and 
Grimsby road lying within the original township of Grimsby.

The greater part of that road, so named, lies between Grimsby 
and the frontier town of Queenston, and forms part of the system 
as well as that within said original Grimsby township, and, l 
imagine, even whether looked at in accord with or despite tin- 
reasoning of the judgment appealed from (58 D.L.R. 407), 
should furnish grounds for assessment and levying of rates as to 
the other three-fourths of that road. Yet the express terms of 
the formal judgment appealed from stands as a barrier in tin- 
way of doing so and casts the burden to be borne by South 
Grimsby on North Grimsby.

The formal judgment well illustrates the dangers of taking 
a mere name as a guide instead of the actual realities contained 
in the legislative enactments of recent years descriptive of an­
other creation known under the designation of a system and in 
relation to which there is no prohibition by statute or otherwise 
to which the name Queenston and Grimsby can be properly ap­
plied as a whole, though for the purposes of obeying the new 
legislation and identifying and tracing that which in a small 
part it comprehends, the name Queenston and Grimsby may have 
to be used.

1 submit, most respectfully, that such names may be used 
without transgressing sec. 8, 1882 (Out.) ch. 33.

And when we are dealing with the adoption of a system which 
in this instance is to cover 157 or more miles of road, of which 
at the utmost the mere name Queenston and Grimsby road could
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only cover a fifth and at the true measure of its significance, 
if any at all, a twentieth part of the scheme or system as a 
whole.

And why should the mere name be so extensively applied? 
And again, when any significance it could have is reduced to 
such proportions, how can the old Act he involv'd?

The truth seems to lie, I repeat, that the new system or scheme 
was intentionally designed to supersede the old and ignore all 
therein so long as no actual injustice done of which, 1 repeat, 
the majority of the county council were to be primary judges.

The only proper remedy against their transgression thereof 
was an appeal to the Minister of Public Works or a motion to 
quash which never was made.

The by-law is now unassailable. The scheme provided by the 
Act in question is not part of the Municipal Act and must be 
viewed in same light as if it had been entrusted to some other 
authority named by the Act and so carried out with all its con­
sequences regardless of the Act of 1882 which had no relevancy 
to such a new enterprise.

And yet this declaration of right is maintained in face of the 
further fact that under the Provincial Highway Act of 1917, 
passed two months or so after the adoption by appellants of 
the new system, the road in question had been adopted by the 
Province August 15, 1918, or a year before this action brought. 
That legislation seems to have superseded entirely any such mere 
municipal theories of obligation as raised herein.

Any one who recalls the many phases through which the 
question of roads and building thereof has proceeded, from pro­
vincial hack to provincial, should realise that there is no diffi­
culty in finding that this new scheme or system is not to be 
determined by mere ordinary legislation, hut by the salient fact 
that the appellant was a mere agent or trustee of the Govern­
ment to act in clear supersession of all that had preceded it.

Much was said in argument relative to the bargaining with re­
spondent through its then reeve and his authority on behalf of 
his council which tends to confusion of thought for in fact no 
such bargain can be relied upon further than as a means of 
realising whether or not all due means were taken to enable the 
county council to determine whether what was proposed and 
done answered the equitable treatment required by the Act in 
adopting the new' system.

In concluding, however, it seems clear that sec. 8 upon which 
so much reliance has been placed never was more than a precau­
tionary measure having relation to the plan then observed be­
tween the county, then owner of the Queenston and Grimsby
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road, and some of the municipalities through which it passed, 
for its maintenance. That was a more temporary expedient at 
its best and might have been abandoned at any time by those 
concerned.

The county, however, was, in 1885, by ch. 39, see. 24 of the 
Municipal Amendment Act of that year, which reads as follows:

“24. Section 565 of the said Act is hereby amended by adding 
thereto the following sub-sec. :

(7) For abandoning or otherwise disposing of the whole or 
any portion of a toll road owned by a county, whether situated 
wholly within the county or partly within the county and partly 
within an adjoining county or counties, and on the passing of any 
such by-law the clerk shall forthwith forward a certified copy 
thereof to the local municipality or municipalities through or 
along which any portion of said abandoned road shall run or 
border upon,”
enabled to abandon the whole road.

That amendment was again amended by the sec. 566 of the 
Municipal Act R.S.O. 1887, eh. 184, adding a proviso requiring 
the approval of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

And that in turn was amended in 1890 (Ont.) ch. 50, by the 
Municipal Amendment Act, as follows:—

“32. Sub-sec. 7 of sec. 566 of the said Act is amended by in­
serting after the word 4 toll * in the second line thereof, the words 
‘or any other\”

Again that was amended in 1892 (Ont.) eh. 42, so as to re­
quire the assent of the municipalities affected.

Clearly the municipalities through which the road ran were 
alone supposed to be affected.

Again by 1913 (Ont.) ch. 448, now’ appearing in R.S.O. 1914, 
ch. 192, sec. 448, it was again amended as follows:—

“448.—(1) The council of any county may by by-law abandon 
the whole or any part of a toll road owned by the corporation of 
the county or of any other road ow'ned by it, whether the road is 
situated wholly within the county or partly within it and partly 
within an adjoining county.

(2) Forthwith after the passing of the by-law the clerk shall 
transmit by registered post to the clerk of every local munic­
ipality through or along or on the border of which the road runs 
a copy of the by-law' certified under his hand and the seal of the 
corporation to be a true copy.

(3) The by-law shall not take effect unless or until it is ap­
proved by the Municipal Board, nor shall it take effect as to the 
part of the road lying within or along or on the border of a local
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municipality whose council does not by by-law consent to the 
by-law.

(4) From and after the taking effect of the by-law the council 
of a municipality within which any part of the road so aban­
doned lies shall have jurisdiction over that part of it which lies 
within the municipality, and where any part of a road so aban­
doned lies between or on the border of two or more local munici­
palities the councils of such municipalities shall have joint juris­
diction over that part of it.

(5) Nothing in this section shall extend or apply to a bridge 
which under the provision» of this Act is to be maintained wholly 
or partly by the corporation of the county.”

What occurs to me reading these many amendments as part 
of the story is how the respondent seems to have been completely 
ignored and the meaning it seeks to attach to sec. 8 never oc­
curred to anybody concerned in this legislation.

During the early period there was absolutely nothing but the 
will of the county of Lincoln appellant that need be observed.

In later years some regard was had to the possibility of how 
such abandonment might affect the general public.

On sucli a tenuous thread, in the last analysis, does the con­
tention of respondent and the judgment appealed from now 
hang; that is, the non-observance by the county of its powers of 
abandonment in a due and orderly manner before proceeding to 
adopt the new system.

1 have no hesitation in repeating my opinion that such like 
threads were all swept away and respectfully submit that they 
should not be considered as any obstacle in the way of the will 
of the Legislature enacting the legislation giving effect to the 
new system and that of the Lieutenant-Governor in Council ap­
proving of what has been done in the issue of the debentures 
now questioned herein.

By no means do I wdsh to ignore the force of the argument of 
the appellants’ counsel that the respondent should be held es­
topped by its course of conduct from asserting its present pre­
tensions.

I have thought it wiser to present my argument in the way of a 
close adherence to the basic principle of the equitable considera­
tions which the enactment renders imperative.

The principle upon which estoppel rests may be but another 
mode of expressing the same idea. And 1 incline to think the 
estoppel argument may well answer the right to have at this 
stage any such declaratory judgment as appealed from.

And I may add that so far as relates to by-law No. 605 and
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others passed for raising money for construction, very drastic 
remedies were given by the enactment of 1915, (Ont.) ch. 16, 
see. 4.

The appeal should he allowed with costs here and in the 
Appellate Division (58 D.L.R. 407. 49 O.L.R. 315) and the judg­
ment of the trial Judge (55 D.L.R. 599, 48 O.L.R. 211) re­
stored.

Duff, J. :—I do not dissent from the opinion of the majority. 
Not without a great deal of doubt, oil the whole 1 think the 
preferable view is that the situation created by the Highway 
Improvement Act R.8.O. 1914, ch. 40, and the responsibilities 
arising under that Act are not within the contemplation of the 
special Act of 1882; and that liability in respect of the rates in 
question is not within the classes of liabilities dealt with by sec. 
8 of the last named enactment.

Anglin, J. :—1 am, with very great respect, of the opinion 
that this appeal should be allowed and the judgment of the trial 
Judge (55 D.L.R. 599, 48 O.L.R. 211) dismissing the action re­
stored.

The rates in question are imposed by the county of Lincoln 
for the reconstruction of the highway, formerly known as the 
Queenston and Grimsby macadamised road, as part of “a system 
of county highways” created and provided for by a by-law of the 
county municipality duly enacted and ratified under the High­
way Improvement Act, R.S.O. 1914, eh. 4<). They are rates 
imposed under the authority of sec. 15 of that Act and are not, 
as 1 think, rates, taxes, liabilities or expenditures contemplated 
by, or within the purview of, the exemption in favour of the 
respondent township conferred by sec. 8 of 1882 (Out.) eh. 33. 
The road dealt with by that exemption provision was not “a 
county road” in the ordinary sense of that term as used in the 
Municipal Act, but a road which belonged to the County of Lin­
coln. Its history is detailed in County of Lincoln v. St. Cath­
arines (1894), 21 A.R. (Out.) 370. So long as it remained such 
a road to be kept up by the county council like other property 
owned by the county, the exemption provision of 1882 (Ont.) eh. 
33 applied to all expenditure for its construction, renewal or 
upkeep. Hut when the county council determined that it should 
become part of a system of highways under the Highway Im­
provement Act and enacted the requisite by-law its character 
was entirely changed. It became subject to the regulations of 
the Public Works Department with respect to the construction 
and repair of highways (sec. 6) under the supervision of an 
engineer or other competent person as county road superin­
tendent (sec. 7). Liability to contribute to the cost of its recoil-

3
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struction and upkeep as a highway under that system must lie 
determined by the provisions of that Act. As put by Meredith,
C. J.O., in Village of Merritton v. County of Lincoln (1917), 39
D. L.R. 328 at pp. 337-338, 41 O.L.R. 6.

“The liability to contribute to the cost of the improvement of 
the road under the Highway Improvement Act is, in my view, a 
very different one from that with which the special Act deals: 
it is not a liability in connection with the assumption of the 
road as a “county work,” lmt a liability arising out of the 
provisions of the Highway Improvement Act, by reason of the 
road being made a part of a system of county roads for which 
that Act provides.

Section 15 of the Highway Improvement Act authorises a 
county council to pass by-laws to raise by debentures the sums 
necessary to meet the expenditures on highways under the Act, 
not exceeding two per centum of the qualified assessment of the 
county, or to provide the money out of county funds or by an 
annual county rate in the manner authorised by the Municipal 
Act.

This section clearly authorises the imposition of a rate to 
meet the debentures or an annual county rate to be imposed upon 
all the ratable property in the county, and is, I think, in no way 
in conflict with the special Act, for these expenditures are not a 
liability or expenditure connected with the assumption of the 
road by the appellant, but an entirely different liability or expen­
diture, incurred for the purposes of the Highway Improvement 
Act.”

With profound respect, the distinction which the Appellate 
Division Court (58 D.L.R. 407) suggests between the case now 
lie fore us and the Merritton case, supra, seems to me to be more 
apparent than real. Meredith, C.J.O., says, 58 D.L.R. at pp. 
4K).411:_

“1 am of opinion that this case is not governed by Village of 
Merritton v. •County of Lincoln 39 D.L.R. 328, and that the 
principle of that case is not applicable.

In that case, the liability from which certain municipalities 
were relieved was 1 any liability or expenditure connected with 
the assumption by the Corporation of the county of Lincoln of 
the Queenston and Grimsby road as a county road'; and the 
ratio decidendi was that the liability under the Highway Im­
provement Act was not a liability connected with the assumption 
of the road as a county road, but a different liability arising out 
of the provisions of that Act.

What by the statute relieving the appellant it was relieved 
from was, ‘any rate, tax, liability or expenditure whatsoever,
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which but for the passing of this Act, would have been assessable, 
ratable and taxable against the said original Township of 
Grimsby in respect or on account of the road known as the 
Queenston and Grimsby road.’

This language is of the most comprehensive character and not, 
as in the Act' under consideration in Village of Merritton v. 
County of Lincoln, limited to liability connected with the as 
sumption of the road as a county road.”

But in Village of Merritton v. County of Lincoln, 39 D.L.R. 
328 at p. 337, I find this passage :

‘‘It may be assumed for the purpose of the case at bar, that the 
special Act relieved the exempted municipalities not only from 
the cost of acquiring the road but also from the expenditure for 
its upkeep, but it does not follow from that that they are relieved 
from the expenditure to be made upon it because it is made part 
of the good roads system of the county ; and, in my opinion, they 
are not relieved from it.”

When the exempting statute in question in the Merritton case 
1863 (Ont.) ch. 13 is examined we find in the preamble that 
maintenance of the Queenston and Grimsby road was one of the 
things against which relief was sought by the local municipali­
ties then petitioning and that the Legislature deemed it expedient 
to grant the prayer of the petition. It would therefore seem to 
have been quite properly assumed by the Appellate Divisional 
Court in the Merritton case 39 D.L.R. 328, that the exemption 
granted extended to the expenditure for the upkeep of the road as 
part of that connected with (that is resulting from) its assump­
tion. 1 agree in the conclusion reached in the Merritton case, 
and think the trial Judge in the present ease 55 D.L.R. 599, was 
justified in applying the principle of that decision, as he did, 
and that his judgment, therefore, should not have been inter­
fered with.

Moreover, under sec. 26 of the Highway Improvement Act, 
provision is made in the case of the assumption by the county 
council of a main or leading road, such as the Queenston and 
Grimsby road was, as a county road for the total or partial 
exemption, with the approval of the Minister, from assessment 
for the cost of such road of any township which is not served by 
it equally with the other municipalities in the county. By sec. 
12 approval of the by-law establishing the county system of high 
ways by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council is required and 
provision is made for hearing any dissatisfied township council. 
If South Grimsby thought itself equitably entitled to have the 
exemption provided for by 1882 (Ont.) ch. 33, extended to its 
liability for the reconstruction and upkeep of what had been the
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Queenston and Grimsby road after it was made part of the 
county system of highways, its recourse was to ask the county 
council for relief under sec. 26 of the statute and, if refused, to 
apply to the Lieutenant-Governor in Council to withhold his ap­
proval of the by-law establishing the system until the county 
council should have made what the Lieutenant-Governor in Coun­
cil should deem a fair and equitable provision in its favour under 
see. 26. Not having taken that course, it cannot in my opinion 
now successfully invoke sec. 8 of 1882 (Ont.) eh. 33, as entitling it 
to refuse to pay its proportionate share of the eost of construc­
tion and upkeep of the county system of highways under the 
Highway Improvement Act.

It appears from the evidence, however, that the exemption of 
South Grimsby provided for by the statute of 1882 was brought 
to the attention of the county council when it was considering the 
by-law for the formation of a system of county highways and 
was considered by it to entitle the township of South Grimsby 
to specially favourable treatment in regard to the mileage of 
highways to be brought under the system so as to make the 
plan and the distribution of expenditure under it equitable in 
regard to that township as contemplated by sec. 4, rather than 
to an exemption, total or partial, from assessment under see. 26, 
which, so far as the evidence discloses, was not claimed on its 
behalf. I am not at all satisfied that South Grimsby was en­
titled to ask for “compensation” under the provisions of sub- 
see. 1 of sec. 4 of the Highway Improvement Act. It did not 
fail to “benefit proportionately” either “by reason of the loca­
tion of (the) highways” to be taken into the system or “of un­
equal distribution of the expenditure thereon”—which are the 
only grounds of claim for equitable compensation mentioned in 
flic section. The county council, however, seems to have been 
disposed to treat South Grimsby with absolute fairness and ac­
cordingly included in the “system of county highways,” by way 
of making such “compensation” to it, 5 miles of highway in 
excess of the proportion to which it would have been entitled, 
with the result that it has benefited by the provincial contribu­
tion of 40% of the cost of constructing such additional 5 miles 
of highway provided for by the statute 1915 (Ont.) eh. 16, sec. 
5, and by the amounts assessed therefor on the other mun­
icipalities.

Mignault, J. :—The question to be decided in this case is 
whether the respondent can set up, against a by-law and a levy 
made by the appellant under the Highway Improvement Act 
R.S.O. 1914, ch. 40, an exemption from taxation in respect of

Can.

S.C.

County of 
Lincoln \no 

Township 
of North 
Grimsoy

Township 
of South 
Grimrhy.

Mignault, J.



480

S.C.

County oi 
Lincoln and 

Township 
ok Noam 
Grimsby

Towns hi;* 
ok South 
Grimsby.

Mlgnault, J.

Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

tin* Queenston and Grimsby road granted in 1882 to the respon­
dent.

The statute giving this exemption is 1882 (Ont.) eh. 33, 
which divided the township of Grimsby into two municipalities, 
respectively called North Grimsby and South Grimsby. Inas­
much as the Queenston and Grimsby road crosses the northern 
portion of the township of Grimsby only, sec. 8 of this statut*- 
provided as follows:

“From and after the said last Monday of December, onethous 
and eight hundred and eighty-two, any rate, tax, liability or 
expenditure whatsoever, which, but for the passing of this Act. 
would have been assessable, rateable and taxable against the said 
original township of Grimsby, in respect or on account of tic- 
road known as the Queenston and Grimsby road, shall be assessed, 
rated and taxed against the said township of North Grimsby, ami 
shall be borne and paid by the said township of North Grimsby 
solely, and the said Township of South Grimsby shall not there 
after be liable or be rated, assessed or taxed therefor.”

In 1907, the Ontario Legislature adopted an Act for the im­
provement of public highways, called the Highway Improvement 
Act, which, as subsequently amended, is now eh. 40 R.S.O. 1914. 
Section 4 of this statute (1 quote from the revision ) empowers 
the council of any county to adopt by by-law a plan for the im­
provement of highways throughout the county by assuming high 
ways in any municipality in the county in order to form or e\ 
tend a system of county highways. And in case it is impract li­
able to benefit all the townships in any county equitably by a 
system of county highways, such plan may provide for compeli 
sat ion to any township, which by reason of the location of such 
highways or of unequal distribution of the expenditure thereon 
may not benefit proportionately, by a grant of such specilb- 
amount or annual sum to be expended in the improvement of 
the highways of such township as will make the plan adopted 
equitable for the whole county.

The statute provides for the carrying out of the purposes of 
the Legislature, the improvement of public highways, and gives 
the county council power to issue debentures or to raise money 
by an annual county rate in the manner authorised by the Mun­
icipal Act. See. 26 contains a provision somewhat on the lines 
of the latter portion of sec. 4 empowering the county council, 
with the approval of the Minister of Public Works, to omit from 
assessment any township through which the road assumed as ,-i 
county road does not pass, or to assess the townships through 
which it does pass, for a larger or smaller amount, in order ' > 
equitably assess the cost.
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As I have stated, the question now is whether as against the 
scheme authorised, by R.S.0.1914, ch. 40, and liability for assess­
ment thereunder, the township of South Grimsby can claim the 
benefit of the exemption from taxation for the Queenston and 
Grimsby road enacted in 1882.

It is explained that this road is part of the public highway 
from Hamilton to the Niagara River, and the improvement of a 
highway of this character would naturally come under such a 
scheme of improvement as R.S.O. 1914, ch. 40 establishes. The 
history of the Queenston and Grimsby road may be found in the 
report of the case of County of Lincoln v. City of St. Catharines 
21 A.R. (Ont.) 370. It was originally constructed by the Pro­
vincial Government and subsequently taken over by a joint stock 
road company from which the county council purchased it in 
1860. In The Queen v. Corporation of Louth (1863), 13 U.C.C.P. 
615, it was decided that the county corporation held this road, 
not as a county road belonging to the county within the meaning 
of the statute, but as the assignee of the road company. Some of 
the local municipalities in the county of Lincoln through which 
the road did not pass obtained legislation relieving them from 
any liability for expenditure connected with its assumption 
by the county as a county road and charging therewith, among 
other municipalities, the township of Grimsby. When the latter 
township was divided in 1882 by the statute above referred to, 
South Grimsby was exempted from any rate, tax, liability or ex­
penditure whatsoever, which, but for the passing of the statute, 
would have been assessable, ratable and taxable against the orig­
inal township of Grimsby in respect or on account of the Queens­
ton and Grimsby road, and it was declared that North Grimsby 
alone should bear this liability.

In Village of Merritton v. County of Lincoln 39 D.L.R. 328, 
41 O.L.R. 6, the Highway Improvement Act was considered, and 
the Appellate Divisional Court held that assuming the statute 
1863 (Ont.) ch. 13 (one of the Acts relieving some local mun­
icipalities from liability or expenditure in connection with the 
assumption by the county of Lincoln of the Queenston and 
Grimsby road as a county road), relieved the exempted mun­
icipalities from the expenditure for the upkeep of this road, 
they were not thereby exempted from liability for the expendi­
ture to be made upon it in consequence of it being made part of 
tin* good roads system of the county. This decision gave to the 
Highway Improvement Act full effect, irrespective of the exemp­
tion from taxation of certain local municipalities by special 
statutes, such as the one relied on by the township of South 
Grimsby in the present case.
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Although the statute 1863 (Ont.) ch. 13, considered in the 
Merrxtton ease is not in identically the same terms as sec. 8, 1882 
(Ont.) ch. 33, still its general effect is similar, so that the reasons 
given by the Appellate Divisional Court in that case, 39 D.L.R. 
328, should also apply here. But looking at the two statutes 
only, the Highway Improvement Act and the special Act relied 
on by South Grimsby, my opinion is that the exemption clause of 
the latter would not stand in the way of the county of Lincoln 
in proceeding under the former statute.

The decision in the English Court of Appeal in Sion College 
v. London Corporation, f 1901] 1 Q.B. 617, seems to me in point. 
There the appellants relied on a statute of George III (7 Geo. 
Ill, ch. 37) providing that certain lands in the City of London 
reclaimed from the River Thames, should vest in the adjoining 
owners “free from all taxes and assessments whatsoever.” The 
City of London Sewers Act, 1848, (Imp.) ch. 143, subsequently 
authorised the collection of a consolidated rate, some of tin- 
objects to which this rate was to be applied being of a kind for 
which rates were made at the time of the passing of the Act of 
George III, the others being new. It was held that the exemp­
tion applied only to then existing taxes and assessments or others 
substituted for them, and that the consolidated rate, although it 
included some purposes for which rates were made when tin- 
exempt ion was created, was substantially a new assessment, and 
was therefore not within the exemption.

I would allow the appeal with costs here and in the Appellate 
Division 58 D.L.R. 407, and restore the judgment of the trial 
Judge 55 D.L.R. 599.

Appeal allowed.

KVtiE v. PALM.

Alberta Supreme Court, Twcedic, J. April 6, 1922.
Gift ($ I—8)—Payment of mortgage—Intention of party making— 

Payment of small amount of interest—Delivery of chkiji in­
sufficiency OF EVIDENCE.

Where a person voluntarily and as a mutter of favour «louâtes the 
money to pay off a mortgage on another’s farm, and the evidence 
shows that he did not at any time expect to be repaid the amount, tin- 
fact that the party on whose behalf the payment was made considered 
the payment as a loan, and paid a small rate of interest on it until 
the death of the person making the payment and gave a cheque which 
was not negotiable without his endorsement and which was not en­
dorsed, is not sufficient to negative the conclusion that the payment 
was a gift and not a loan.

Action by administrator to recover a sum of money alleged 
to have been loaned to the defendant, who alleged that it was a 
gift. Judgment for defendant.

^
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J. Quigg, for plaintiff.
W. E. Payne, K.C., for defendant.
Tweedie, J. :—This is an action lirought by the plaintiff as ad­

ministrator of the estate of Frank Kuge, deceased, who died in- Kv<;k 
testate on August 30, 1920. Letters of administration were pJjM 
granted to the plaintiff on September 20, in the same year. The 
action is brought to recover the sum of $638, alleged to have been Tweedie. 
advanced by way of loan by the deceased to the defendant, Feb­
ruary 16, 1917.

The defendant relies upon practically four defences: (1) That 
the money was never received ; (2) That the deceased was indebt­
ed to the defendant for work and labour and this sum was re­
ceived as payment in satisfaction of such indebtedness ; (3) That 
if the money was paid by the deceased to the credit of the de­
fendant, that the making of such payment was voluntary and 
was made without the authority, knowledge or consent of the 
defendant, or of any one with authority to act on his behalf; and 
(4 > That the money, if paid, was a gift by the deceased to the 
defendant.

As to the first defence : I find as a fact that the deceased, on or 
about the time alleged, made a payment of the sum of $638 to one 
Cole, at Bentley, in the province of Alberta, in discharge of a 
mortgage indebtedness which was owing by the defendant to 
Cole, but which was not due at the time of the payment.

As to the second defence : There was some evidence to the 
effect that Mrs. Palm, the wife of the defendant, William Palm, 
a minor son of the defendant, and Mrs. Sol berg, a step-daughter, 
had rendered some services to the deceased; but there is nothing 
to shew that such services were not paid for by the deceased.
No one was able to say whether or not he had paid the son, who 
was not present at the trial, for his services. The girl herself ad­
mitted that the services which she rendered were in the nature 
of favours for which she did not expect pay. He was in the 
habit of making her presents, and there is evidence of one sub­
stantial gift. As to the services rendered by the wife, the evi­
dence shews that the farmers in that vicinity, in threshing time 
especially, interchange their services, and Mrs. Palm had at 
some time rendered services as a cook to the deceased. 1 have 
no doubt services were rendered by the deceased to the defendant 
in exchange for the services of Mrs. Palm. 1, therefore, conclude 
in regard to this defence that there is no evidence before me to 
shew that there was anything due from the deceased to the de­
fendant for work and labour, and that the advance cannot be 
r< garded as payment therefor.

As to the third and fourth defences, which will be considered

J. . it *-• «
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jointly, the facts seem to be as follows: The defendant was a 
farmer residing at Palm Bay, in the province of Alberta, his 
farm being a mile distant from that of the deceased, Frank Huge. 
The deceased was a bachelor living there alone and had no rela 
tives in America except a married brother, who resided in the 
United States, and the members of his family. A son of this 
brother came to Alberta after his uncle’s death and took out 
letters of administration of the estate of the deceased. The evi­
dence shews that Huge, who was a German, and living in a settle 
ment composed largely of Finlanders, was ill at ease with his 
neighbours, and was not intimate or even on friendly terms with 
any of them excepting two families, one by the name of Nietzel. 
and the family of the defendant, at whose home he was a fre 
quent visitor. The defendant in the spring of 1913 or 1914 had 
executed a mortgage on his farm in favour of one Cole, in the 
sum of $600 to secure a loan for that amount. Owing to financial 
difficulties due to the fact that he was unable to make any money 
out of his farm it was necessary for him in the spring of 1916, 
to go to Butte, Montana, to work in the mines, where he remained 
for about 15 months, returning to his home in April, 1917. Dur 
ing the time he was there he remitted various sums of money to 
his family on the farm, and out of the sums which he remitted 
they paid an instalment of interest which became due under the 
mortgage, the mortgage bearing interest at the rate of 8% per 
annum. About February 16, 1917, and during the absence of 
the defendant in Butte, the deceased had a conversation with 
Mrs. Solberg, the step-daughter of the defendant, who was a 
witness at the trial. She was then unmarried and living at home 
with her mother, and carried the mail from Eckville to Palm 
Bay, a distance of some few miles. In the course of these trips 
she delivered the mail of the deceased, whose place it was tien s 
sary for her to pass in the course of her duty as mail carrier. 
On one of these trips the deceased had a conversation with her 
in regard to the mortgage against her step-father’s place, and 
said that he had had a mortgage on his farm at one time ami 
knew how hard it was to pay it off, and he wanted to know what 
she would think if he paid off the mortgage on her father’s farm 
She said she did not know how he would take it, as he was of a 
jealous disposition and he might not like it, and that she would 
talk the matter over with her mother. The deceased subsequently 
went to the home of the defendant where he discussed the mat­
ter with the daughter, who in turn discussed it with the motlcr. 
All three were present together but the mother did not under­
stand the English nor the German languages, the only languages 
in which the deceased could converse. When he went there I •
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told the step-daughter that he wanted her to go with him to Alta. 
Bentley to pay off the mortgage, never any time intimating that g ~
he was paying it off by way of loan to the defendant nor at the —'
defendant’s request, but always suggesting that he was doing it Kvue
as a matter of favour or gift to the defendant. They proceeded p xl| M
together to Bentley and the deceased gave her $638 which she 
paid to Cole in satisfaction of the mortgage and the interest up Tweedie. j. 

to date of payment, the mortgage at the time being in good stand­
ing as to interest, and no documents were received but the regist­
ration was evidently carried out by Cole. When the mortgage 
was discharged eertifieate of title shewing the mortgage to have 
been discharged, was sent through the mail to the wife of the 
defendant who retained it until the return home of the defen­
dant, when she advised him what had taken place. The evidence 
shews that the deceased made a statement to Cole, who unfor­
tunately was not called as a witness, to the effect that he was mak­
ing the defendant a present of this money and that he was not 
going to get it back. When the defendant returned home he went 
to see the deceased and discussed the matter with him. He ad­
mits he considered the payment as a loan, and he paid interest 
on it for one year at 2% and for the two subsequent years at 3%, 
the payments of interest being made for the three years 1918,
1919 and 1920, the payment for 1920 being made in the spring 
of that year, the deceased dying in the fall without any further 
payments having been made. I am satisfied from the evidence 
that any payments of interest which were made, were made, not 
on the request or as a result of any demand made by the de­
ceased, but they were accepted by him with some reluctance, and 
1 attribute his acceptance of the payments of interest to the fact 
that he was of the impression, from the statements made by the 
daughter, that her step-father was of a jealous disposition, 
which led him to accept a small amount of interest so that any 
difficulty would be avoided. When the matter was first discussed, 
and on subsequent occasions, the defendant suggested to the 
deceased that he should give him a promissory note to cover the 
amount, but the deceased said that he did not want it, in fact re­
fused to accept one, and none was ever given. On one occasion, 
however, when the defendant went to see the deceased, the de­
ceased had drawn up a cheque, dated at Eckville, Alta., under 
date of February 16, 1917, as follows :—

“Eckville, Alberta, February 16th, 1917.
To the Eckville Branch of the Canadian Bank of Commerce,

Pay John Palm ............................................  or order, six hun­
dred and thirty-eight & xx/100 Dollars.
$638.00 (Sgd.) John Palm.”
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] am of the opinion that the deceased accepted this cheque, 
not as evidence of a debt, but as evidence that there was no lia 
hility on the part of the defendant to pay that sum of money to 
him in the event of his dying. There is no evidence to shew that 
Palm had any account with the Canadian Bank of Commerce in 
Bek ville, and the fact that the cheque was made payable to Palm 
himself without any endorsement, would seem to indicate that 
there was never any intention on the part of the deceased to 
negotiate it; in fact it could not be negotiated by him, nor could 
it be negotiated by the administrator of his estate after his 
death. On the back of the cheque there is no endorsement other 
than the words, “Interest paid March 8th, 1919.” The cheque 
itself was not negotiable without the endorsement of John Palm, 
as it was made payable to himself or his order. The explanation 
of this cheque, according to the evidence of the defendant, Palm, 
is that the deceased asked him to execute it so that in the event 
of his dying no person would lie able to collect the amount from 
him, and although this evidence of the defendant is un­
corroborated, 1 think there is sufficient corroboration as to tin- 
intention of the deceased never to collect this money from tin- 
defendant in the evidence of the step-daughter, Mrs. Soiling, 
and also the evidence of one Sol berg, her father-in-law. To tin- 
evidence of Mrs. Sol berg 1 have referred. Solberg was negotiat­
ing with Huge for leasing his place on one occasion the deceased 
discussed with him the fact that he had paid off this mortgage 
and asked him what he thought of it. He told him that it was 
all right and that he would get his money back, whereupon tin- 
deceased told him that he did not want his money back.

The facts which troubled me most were the payment of tin- 
interest for three years at the rate of 2% for the first year ami 
3% for the other two years. Was this, coupled with the state 
ment of the defendant that he considered it as a loan and tin- 
cheque of the debt for $638, sufficient to negative any question 
of a gift ? After careful consideration I have come to the con­
clusion that such is not the case.

1 was exceedingly favourably impressed with the testimony of 
the defendant and that of his step-daughter, Mrs. Solberg, and 
there seemed to be no desire on the part of either of them to con­
ceal any fact whatsoever in connection with the transaction, 
whether favourable or unfavourable to the defendant.

In regard to the evidence for the plaintiff, the administrator 
himself had no personal knowledge of the facts, and the sum and 
substance of his testimony dealt only with the finding of the 
cheque in his uncle’s papers at the bank, and a conversation be­
tween himself and the defendant at which Karjala, another wit-
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ness for the plaintiff, was present. At that eon versât ion the de­
fendant stated to the administrator that the money was a gift. 
The evidence of Karjala, although unfavourable to the defen­
dant, did not impress me very favourably as he seemed to be too 
eager to give evidence unfavourable to the defendant and mani­
fested a great desire to disclose only that which was favourable 
to the plaintiff.

On the whole of the evidence, 1 am satisfied that the deceased 
made this payment of $638 to Cole on his own initiative and 
without the knowledge, authority or consent of the defendant 
and without any request having been made to him by any person 
to make such payment or to advance the money. Neither the wife 
of the defendant nor the step-daughter who accompanied him to 
Bentley and made the payment at the time nor anybody acting by 
or on behalf of the defendant requested him to do so. Neither 
the mother nor the step-daughter at the time of the transaction 
purported to act as agent or on behalf of the defendant and there 
is no act of agency on their part which the defendant subsequent­
ly ratified.

As to the payments of the interest, I think that the acceptance 
by the deceased of such a small annual interest of 2% and 3% 
was for the purpose of satisfying the defendant rather than as 
money which he was entitled to receive by reason of any obliga­
tion of the defendant to him. They were voluntarily made by 
the defendant after the gift had been completed and created no 
liability to repay the money advanced. In regard to tin* de­
fendant’s belief or the fact that he considered it a loan, 1 think 
that he was wrong in such belief and his belief was entirely differ­
ent from that of the deceased. The belief on his part, while it 
might Ik* some evidence against him, is not sufficient to create a 
legal liability.

I find that the money when paid over to Cole in discharge of 
the mortgage, even though it was handed to the step-daughter 
to make such payment, was an absolute gift by the deceased 
to the defendant, and that there was no obligation on the part 
of the defendant at any time to repay the whole or any part 
thereof.

There will, therefore, be judgment for the defendant with 
costs.
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Judgment accordingly.
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SMITH T. UNION 8. S. Co.
British Columbia Supreme Court, Morrison, J. September IS, 19SS. 

Carriers (t II O—325)—Liability for mss or baggage—Shipping- 
Freight sued.

A shipping company is liable for the loss of the baggage of a pas 
songer after arrival at its destination, where by mistake such baggu^ 
was taken back as freight on a returning vessel and placed in a freight 
shed where it disappeared.

Action to recover for lost baggage. Judgment for plaintiff.
n. 8. Wood, for plaintiff.
J. K. Macrae, for defendant.
Morrison, J. :—The plaintiff, Mrs. Mabel Alice Smith, on Jan 

nary 13, 1922, bought a ticket from the defendant company for 
a passage from Vancouver to Hardy Hay, up the coast on their 
steamer “Venture,” which ticket was subject to the usual speci­
fied limitations. She, at the same time, checked her trunk. She 
arrived in due course at Hardy Hay in the late afternoon and was 
landed with her trunk on a float which was moored some little 
distance from the beach. On this raft, or float, was a small shed 
into which baggage and freight of sorts was usually put by the 
north bound steamer and it also was used for leaving articles of 
freight and luggage for the steamer south bound. The only 
means available for passengers to get ashore was by a row-boat. 
The plaintiff remained on the float near her trunk until the 
“Venture” sailed. Then she was taken ashore but left her trunk. 
She went to the hotel of the place and about seven o’clock the 
hotel man went to fetch the truuk. The S.S. “Camosun,” the 
south bound steamer of the defendant company, came along 
about the same time, and took on freight and baggage which it 
found on the float. What then happened was that the plaintiff's 
trunk was also taken along to Vancouver, the purser or check 
clerk assuming that all the things in the shed and on the float 
were intended to l>e taken to Vancouver.

Upon the return of the “Camosun,” the plaintiff interviewed 
the purser who acknowledged that the trunk was back in Van­
couver, and that he would bring it up, presumably the next trip 
It not arriving back, she again interviewed the purser who then 
told her the trunk was lost. Patterson, the purser, in his evi­
dence, stated that the trunk was taken back by them to Vancou­
ver all right, but that they would have to go to considerable 
routine to take it back to Hardy Bay, hence the delay. That the 
trunk was in the company’s freight shed at Vancouver, having 
come as freight and, therefore, it was not put in their “locked" 
room where it would have been safe. The purser knew there 
was an extra trunk on board on the occasion in question and In- 
told the baggage master to send it back. The baggage master
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went to lunch and when he returned the trunk had disappeared.
On this state of facts, I find that the contract of January 13, 

which is relied upon as a defence herein, was performed upon 
the arrival of the “Venture” at Hardy Bay and upon the de­
livery of the plaintiff’s trunk. It follows the contract does not 
enter further into a consideration of the issues. 1 find that the 
plaintiff was not negligent in leaving her trunk for the short 
period between the departure of one steamer and the arrival of 
the other—a matter at most of a few hours. The weather was 
inclement and the landing facilities poor, and she was a stranger 
in the place. I find the company was negligent, particularly 
after the trunk arrived back in Vancouver and they became 
aware who the owner was and of the circumstances surrounding 
its presence there. I think they are solely responsible for its 
loss.

There will be judgment for $744.56 the amount sworn to be the 
value of the contents. 1 think the item of $126 respecting the 
title deeds is damage reasonably arising out of the loss sustained 
by her. There will be costs on the County Court scale.

Judgment for plaintiff.

LKMAY v. THE KING.
Exchequer Court of Canada, Audettr, J. Man ES, 1023.

War Measures Act ($ I—2)—Requisition of tug—Termination of war 
—Release—Compensation for rental—Costs.

Where a tug was requisitioned by the Government but only remained 
under requisition for 15 days when the period of requisition was ter­
minated by the close of the war, the Court held that, considering the 
size and value of the tug. $50 per day was a fair compensation for 
the rental of the tug. Although the Court allowed the claimant costs, 
it ordered that one-fourth should be deducted and borne by the claim­
ant himself because of evidence in which the claimant swore reck 
lessly and inconsistently with the facts, by reason of which the length 
of trial was increased.

Reference by the Crown under the provisions of the War 
Measures Act 1914 (Can.) 2nd sess. eh. 2 (p. 5), of a claim of 
suppliant for compensation for the use of his tug requisitioned 
by the Crown.

A. (ialipeault, K.C., for claimant.
IT. Larue, for respondent.
Audette, J. :—This is a reference made by the Crown, under 

the provisions of sec. 7 of the War Measures Act, 1914 (Can.) 
2nd sess. eh. 2 (at p. 5), of the claim of Joseph Alphonse Lemay 
for compensation for the use of his tug “Sir Loraer” (gross 
tonnage 47.58 and registered tonnage 17.82) during the war, 
requisitioned by the Canadian Government.

Ex. Ct.
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Can. The claimant, as set forth in the pleadings, seeks to recover the
Ex sum of $1,653.

The Crown, by the statement in defence, admits liability, for 
Lf.may the tug so requisited, up to the sum of $754.25. 
he Kis«i Therefore, the question in controversy between the parties, is 

----- that of a quantum meruit.
J- Negotiations had been started by correspondence on behalf of 

the Crown, at that time the tug was requisitioned, for fixing its 
rental value; but the parties never came together, they were 
never ad idem upon this point and the compensation must now 
be ascertained upon the basis of a quantum meruit and I will 
deal seriatim with each item of the claim.

1. (Para. 8 of claim)—This is an item of $250, which the 
respondent by para. 5 denies, but in respect of which it offers $10 
by para. 11. This amount is claimed in respect of changes made 
in the tug, such as the removal of the deck, etc., while she was in 
the Crown’s possession, with the object of removing the engines, 
boilers, etc., therefrom to ship the tug on board a transport to 
England. The war having come to an end in November, 1918, 
the officers of the Crown placed back in the tug her deck and 
beams supporting the same, leaving the deck in a state of leakage 
and in such a weak state that some works became necessary to 
place the tug in her former state and condition.

For this claim I will allow, notwithstanding the exaggerated 
and unsatisfactory evidence to the contrary, the sum of $150; 2 
(Para. 9)—The second item for $365 is admitted in its entirety, by 
the Crown; 3 (Para. 10)—This is an item for the daily rental of 
the tug, alleging further that claimant has been deprived of her 
services for the balance of the season, notwithstanding that the 
tug was idle when requisitioned. I may say, as a prelude, the 
season was practically closed when the tug was returned to her 
owner and no claim could, in any case, be entertained in that 
respect. Under the evidence and the allegation in the statement 
of defence, I find the tug remained under requisition for 15 days 
and 1 hereby fix as a fair and reasonable per diem compensation 
for such a short period the sum of $30 daily, $450. The Crown 
is offering $300 for this item, or $20 a day. 4. Coming to the 
claim set forth in paras. 11 and 12 of the statement of claim, 1 
find that the respondent tendered the tug at Portneuf, on the 
last day of requisition and that the claimant refused her there 
and asked the Crown to deliver her at Quebec and the Crown did 
so in compliance with such request, the vessel having been origin­
ally requisitioned from Quebec. The claimant is thereby estop­
ped from setting up any claim for expenses incurred in after­
wards taking the vessel from Quebec to Portneuf. This item also
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includes the expenses the claimant yearly and usually incurred 
in hauling his vessel at Port neuf every season in her wintering 
quarters. Nothing will be allowed in respect of this claim. 4. 
(Para. 13)—This is an item of $1(H) for repainting the tug, 
when returned she being painted in a dark grey, as eustomary 
under Admiralty Rule. The respondent is offering $50 for this 
item and one of its own witnesses named a figure above $80. 1 
will allow $85. 5. (Para. 14)—This item covers certain minor 
equipment of the tug which were missing when returned, namely : 
a hawser, valued at $80; two small axes, $1.50; one large axe $4; 
one large wrench $2.50 and one small one $1.50; kitchen utensils 
$10. One wrench was returned. The claimant Leinay testified 
there was at the time of delivery a hawser on board the tug of 
350 to 400 feet, by 2 inches diameter, and his son testified that 
this hawser would lie of 200 to 300 feet.

Both witnesses are testifying under great misapprehension— 
to say the least—since under ex. 4 filed on behalf of the claimant 
himself, which is a survey or inventory made at the time the 
Crown took possession and which is signed by the claimant him­
self and Captain Koenig, on his behalf and Major Oliver on be­
half of the Crown—the only hawser on hoard the tug at the time 
was one of 10 fathoms. I will allow $30. The Crown offers 
$29.25 in respect of this item. I did not, by any means, find the 
demeanour of either the claimant or his son satisfactory when 
in the witness-box at trial ; and their testimony respecting the 
hawser has considerably shaken my faith in the balance of their 
evidence, especially in connection with the repairs to the tug. 
True, another witness, one (Jignac, spoke as to the valuation of 
such repairs, but he had not seen the tug at the time the govern­
ment returned her, although he casually saw her this spring. 
However, such repairs usually run into heavy expense It is 
very difficult to arrive at a satisfactory conclusion upon such 
evidence. 6. (Para. 15)—This item covers an expenditure which 
became due under the terms of the requisition and which the 
claimant, but for the requisition, would not have incurred. The 
full amount is allowed, $20. Total, $1,100.

Therefore, there will be judgment declaring that the claimant 
is entitled to recover from the respondent the sum of $1,100 with 
interest thereon from the date of the Reference, i.e., October, 31, 
1919.

( 'oming to the question of costs it is quite obvious that the 
Crown should not in justice he mulcted for the payment of the 
l ost of that part of the evidence in which the claimant and his 
son swore recklessly and inconsistently with the facts in respect 
of the hawser. Therefore, whilst 1 will allow costs in favour of

Can. 
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the claimant I will qualify such allowance by ordering that when 
the total of the bill of costs is ascertained one-fourth thereof 
should be deducted and borne in any event by the claimant him 
self.

Judgment accordingly.

Re CHMELNITSKY.
Manitoba King's Bench in Bankruptcy, Macdonald, J. July 19, 19SS. 

Bankruptcy ($ II—19)—Composition with creditors—Approval ok 
Court—Objecting creditor—Discharge—Effect on credit ob­
tained by fraud.

The Court will not refuse to give its approval to an offer of com­
promise which the majority of the creditors believe to be calculated to 
benefit them and which the Court thinks will benefit them, on account 
of the objection of a smaller creditor who claims that credit was ob­
tained from him by false and fraudulent representation as to the 
debtors’ financial position. Section 61 of the Bankruptcy Act 191!» 
(Can.) ch. 36, provides that an order of discharge shall not release 
a bankrupt from any debt or liability incurred by means of fraud, and 
the objecting creditor, notwithstanding the discharge, can still insist on 
payment in full if he can establish his charges.

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135; 56 D.L.B. 104; 59 D.L.R. 1.]

Application under the Bankruptcy Act, 1919 (Can.) ch. 36, 
sec. 13, for approval of an offer of compromise. Approved.

M. J. Finkelstein, for the trustee.
A. E. Hoskin, K.C., for Davie’s Footwear, Toronto.
J. S. Hough, K.C., for Greenshields, Ltd.
R. T. Robinson, for Racine Co.
Macdonald, J. ;—This is an application for approval under 

see. 13 of the Bankruptcy Act, 1919 (Can.) ch. 36, of an offer 
of compromise made by the debtor at a meeting of his creditors, 
such offer having met with approval of creditors representing 
upwards of $166,000 and with two creditors representing $11,400 
rejecting the offer and opposing this application. Under or­
dinary circumstances there would be no hesitation in joining in 
the approval with so large a majority of creditors, particularly 
so as I am convinced that from the financial standpoint the 
compromise offered would be greatly to the advantage of the 
creditors. I am satisfied if the estate was wound up in the ordin 
ary way the creditors would not receive the amount offered under 
the proposal made.

The objection taken is that the debtor on January 23, 1922, 
secured credit from Alphonse Racine, Ltd., on the sale of goods 
to the value of $10,344 by falsely and fraudulently representing 
his financial position and to substantiate his representations he 
presented a statement of his affairs showing a surplus of assets 
over liabilities as of January 1, of $151,920, whereas on February
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1, by statement submitted by him, the surplus is reduced to 
$111,719 and in the month of May this surplus is converted into 
a deficit of $43,228. It is possible that there was a considerable 
loss between February 1 and May 29, but it is difficult to under- Re c,imkl"
stand how there could be such a shrinkage between January 1 '___ *
and February 1. On January 1, 1922, he represents his lia- Macdonald, j. 
hilities to the trade at $77,185, and on February 1, a month later, 
his liabilities are $102,000. On February 23, the debtor wrote 
to the Racine Co., stating that the statement which he gave them 
was only approximate and that it was made out hurriedly, and 
he draws attention to the fact that there was a considerable 
difference in the two statements, this is, the statement which he 
then enclosed them, being the February 1 statement and the 
January 1 statement which he gave when securing credit. After 
the receipt of this statement and letter, the Racine Co. appear 
to have done nothing. He says in his letter that the statement 
of January 1, was received by him from his accountant in Winni­
peg, on a wire from him. It is difficult to understand how a 
business man doing such a large volume of business as this debtor, 
would not have a better grasp of his actual position, and it looks 
very like a wilfully false representation as to his actual position, 
although I could not on the evidence before me come definitely 
to that conclusion.

The chief ground of objection to the acceptance of the com­
promise is the moral turpitude of the debtor in securing credit 
on the representation of January 23, and although this attitude 
on the part of the objecting creditors is a very commendable one, 
yet, it seems to me, that as so large a body of creditors favour 
the proposal, it should not be subject to the control of as small a 
minority.

Counsel opposing the application cites In re Bottomley (1893),
10 Morr. 262, where it is held that on a similar application the 
interest of the creditors is in the first instance to prevail unless 
it would be contrary to commercial morality that they should 
be allowed to make an arrangement with the debtor, and it is held 
the duty of the Court to take into consideration the particular 
class of offence and the particular circumstances under which 
it is proved to have been committed and then ask itself the ques­
tion whether it would be contrary to public morality for the 
sake of private interests to approve the scheme, and it is held 
that if the offences are proved and the circumstances under which 
they are proved to have been committed are such that the debtor, 
although he may have been wrong, yet need not in the interests 
of the estate, be treated as a person with whom the creditors 
ought not to be allowed to negotiate, the Court is at liberty to
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approve the scheme, notwithstanding the commission of those 
offences.

Under sub-see. 7 of sec. 13 of the Bankruptcy Act. 1919 (Can 
ch. 36:—

“The Court shall, before approving the proposal, hear a re 
port of the trustees as to the terms thereof, and as to the conduet 
of the debtor, and any objections which may be made by or on 
behalf of any creditor.”

And under sub-sec. 8 :—
“If the Court is of opinion that the terms of the proposal are 

not reasonable, or are not calculated to benefit the general bodx 
of creditors, or in any case in which the Court is required, where 
the debtor is adjudged bankrupt, to refuse his discharge the 
Court shall refuse to approve the proposal.”

Under sub-sec. 9:—
“If any facts are proved on proof of which the Court would 

be required either to refuse, suspend or attach conditions to 11n- 
debtor’s discharge were he adjudged bankrupt, the Court shall 
refuse to approve the proposal unless it provides reasonable 
security for payment of not less than fifty cents on the dollaf on 
all the unsecured debts provable against the debtor’s estate."

The trustee’s report which is primâ-facie evidence of the truth 
of its contents shews that the debtor was originally engaged in 
the jobbing business and when a slump in prices came he had a 
large stock on hand purchased when prices were at the peak 
and also had a large amount outstanding in book accounts spread 
among retail merchants who, owing to the lack of financial 
strength, were compelled to deal with the debtor instead of with 
the large wholesalers and manufacturers direct, and such re­
tailers were the first to feel the drop in prices and general de­
pression which had then and does now prevail in Western Can­
ada, and as a result the debtor has lost a great deal of money m 
bad book accounts; and it further finds that when the slump in 
prices came the debtor apparently, in an effort to save the situa­
tion, branched into retail business and opened several retail 
stores, but owing to the general depression this method of at 
tempting to save the situation resulted in further complicating 
matters because prices were continually dropping and retail 
business was continually getting poorer so that apparently large 
losses were made in the retail establishments, as these had to 1m* 

handled by managers; further that the building in which tin- 
debtor carried on his wholesale business in Winnipeg was gutte.l 
by tire and the stock and trade of the debtor was almost entirely 
destroyed, and the debtor states he did not carry enough insur­
ance to cover the entire loss and although the statement of affairs
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of the debtor shews that approximately $56,000 is expected from 
the insurance companies, it is doubtful whether this amount will 
lie realized as the insurance companies are contesting the debtor’s 
claim. The report finds the consensus of opinion of the com- 11K - 
mittee is that the debtor is not guilty of any act which would N,TSK'' 
disentitle him to a compromise but that the debtor’s financial ManionsM. j. 
difficulties are due to the slump and depression which prevails in 
Western Canada and from circumstances over which he cannot be 
held entirely responsible, and that having regard to these facts 
the trustee is of opinion that the proposed composition is fair 
and reasonable and calculated to benefit the general body of 
creditors.

Now as against this evidence we have nothing but the state­
ment of January 1, and February 1, and the letter of the debtor 
written upon his return to Winnipeg, advising the Racine Co. 
that his financial position was not as given in the statement of 
January 1, and explaining how such a statement was given. It is, 
of course, possible that there may have been considerable loss 
between January 1 and February 1.

The charge against the debtor is incurring of the liability to the 
Racine Co. by means of fraud. Sec. 61 of the Bankruptcy Act 
provides that an order of discharge shall not release a bankrupt 
from any debt or liability incurred by means of fraud or fraudu­
lent breach of trust to which he was a party. This would seem 
to indicate that notwithstanding the incurring of a debt or lia­
bility by such means it would not disentitle the debtor to a dis­
charge but that the debt would not be extinguished, and notwith­
standing the discharge of the debtor the Racine Co. could still 
insist upon payment in full for their claim and could, if they can 
establish their charges against the debtor, proceed at any time to 
the recovery of judgment, but could not, pending the carrying 
out of the terms of the compromise, proceed beyond the judg­
ment, but after the compromise was carried out they could fol­
low the debtor for the balance of their claim. If the charge of 
the Racine Co. is well founded the debtor can be proceeded 
against under the Criminal Code.

()n the grounds, therefore, of commercial integrity or business 
honesty the public need not be allowed to suffer by the discharge 
of the debtor or by the acceptance of this scheme of settlement, 
as a conviction against him would insure that result, and also a 
judgment of the Racine Co. hanging over him would prevent 
his entering into business activities until the judgment was paid.

After carefully considering the case I have concluded that I 
cannot refuse a scheme which the creditors believe to be cal­
culated to benefit them and which I also believe to benefit them.
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and under the circumstances I approve of the scheme as one in 
the best interests of all concerned.

Costs of all parties out of the estate.
Offer approved

LEMAY v. TOWN OF MBGANTIC.

Quebec Court of Revision, Archibald, A.CJ., Demers and Weir, JJ.
March 19, 1921.

Arrest (§IA—4a)—Malicious—Lack or reasonable cause—Confirm
ATION OF ACTION OF CONSTABLE BY TOWN—LIABILITY IN DAMAGES
—Liability of person helping constable at his request.

A town municipality which confirms the action of its town con­
stable who has arrested a citizen maliciously and without proper 
cause, is liable in damages for such illegal arrest, but a person 
assisting the constable at his request in making the arrest and 
not knowing that reasonable and probable cause for the arrest is 
lacking and not being actuated by malice is not liable.

Appeal by defendant from the judgment of the Quebec 
Superior Court in an action for illegal and malicious arrest. 
Affirmed.

Plaintiff claims damages from defendants jointly and 
severally by reason of having been illegally and maliciously 
arrested by defendants, Savard and Dostie, both in the employ 
of the municipality defendant, whilst in the exercise of their 
duty as constables.

Defendants pleaded that the arrest was justifiable.
The Superior Court granted a fraction of the damages claimed 

on the following grounds :
“Considering that it is established that on June 1, 1919, a 

Sunday, the defendant Arthur Savard, assisted by defendant 
Alfred Dostie, arrested the plaintiff without any reasonable or 
probable cause, maliciously, illegally and without right, in the 
presence of a great number of persons ;

That the defendant Alfred Dostie assisted the defendant 
Savard at the latter’s request ;

That the defendant was at that time a constable of the de­
fendant corporation, and that he arrested the plaintiff whilst 
engaged in the discharge of his duty as constable, thus involving 
the responsibility of the defendant corporation ;

That futhermore, the defendant corporation ratified the 
arrest and so assumed responsibility for its consequences, by 
pleading justification ;
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That the defendant had not committed, nor was he engaged in 
committing, any act such as would justify his arrest, on the 
occasion in question ;

That, in the circumstances, the arrest of the plaintiff con­
stitutes at least a quasi-delict, if not a delict, for the con­
sequences of which Savard, the principal author, and the de­
fendant corporation which approved and ratified his action, are 
jointly and severally responsible ;

That, as regards the defendant Dostie, since he acted in the 
circumstances at the request of a police officer in good faith, 
without malice and to assist the latter in the discharge of his 
duty, there is not ground, in the absence of proof that he knew 
that reasonable or probable cause for the plaintiff’s arrest was 
lacking and the consequent absence of proof of malice on his 
part, to hold him liable, notwithstanding the illegality of the 
arrest in which he participated ;

That he who assists a public officer, at the latter’s request, in 
the discharge of his duty, even to effect an illegal arrest, is 
entitled, in default of proof of malice, to the protection of the 
Courts ;

That malice on the part of the defendant Savard in the pre­
sent case results from the absence of any reasonable and pro­
bable cause for making the said arrest ;

That the arrest was made in the presence of a considerable 
number of persons and without provocation on the part of the 
plaintiff ;

That the arrest was of such a nature as to humiliate the plain­
tiff and wound him in his sensibilities and honour and diminish 
public respect for him.

That the defendant Savard, by releasing the plaintiff a short 
time after arresting him, without bringing him before the com­
petent authority, gives ground for believing that he had no 
serious motive or cause whatsoever for arresting the plaintiff ;

That the defendant corporation, by pleading to the present 
action and seeking to justify Savard’s conduct, has accepted 
full responsibility and all the consequences of said action ;

That in these circumstances the plaintiff is entitled to $1(X) 
by way of damages for the injury done him by the said arrest, 
and should have judgment for that amount ;

Que.
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For these reasons : dismisses the defendants’ plea as regards 

Savard and the defendant corporation, maintains the plaintiff ’s 
action as regards the said corporation and Savard up to the sum 
of $100 which the defendant corporation and the said Savard 
are condemned jointly and severally to pay to the plaintiff, with 
interest from this date and the costs of the action as brought. 
But the action is dismissed as to the defendant Dostie without 
costs. ’ ’

Nicol, Lazure <C* Couture, for appellant.
J. A. Gaud et, for respondent.
Confirmed in Review.

Appeal dismissed.

HVTH Kit LAND v. JONES.

Alberta Supreme Court. Appellate Division, Stuart, Beck, JJ.A., Sim­
mons, J.A. (ad hoc), H y adman and Clarke, JJ.A. May 23, 1922.

Vendor and purchaser (§1 -6)—Rights of purchaser in default-
remedy—Equitab belief.

A purchaser In default Is in no position to maintain an action 
for damages on specific performance, upon a resale of the land 
by the vendor; his remedy is by way of equitable relief against 
forfeiture of the purchase moneys paid under the agreement.

Appeal by defendant from a judgment for plaintiff in action 
by a purchaser to recover under the agreement of sale. Re­
versed.

Frank Ford, K.C., for appellant.
H. 11. Ilyndman, K.C., for respondent.
Stuart, J.A. concurs with Simmons, J.A.
Beck, J.A. My opinion is that the second agreement be­

tween the plaintiff and the defendant of September 1918 was 
a concluded agreement which the plaintiff might have enforced ; 
that as the defendant refused to carry it out the plaintiff could 
rightfully revert to the agreement sued upon ; that the acts 
and conduct of the defendant, in selling to Warren, evinced 
an intention no longer to be bound by the contract (2 Smiths 
L.C. 12th ed. p. 43) a position from which he could not with­
draw (as he attempted to do by getting a reconveyance from 
Warren) after the plaintiff had accepted that position as he



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 499

did by bringing his action; that the fact that the plaintiff’s Alta, 
rights under the first agreement were those of executor and App D,v
his rights under the second personal is of no consequence inas------
much as, in fact, he was the sole beneficiary of the estate and Sutherland 
the second agreement was one which dealt with the interests of j0n’Es. 
the estate under the first agreement ; that although the plaintiff 
was in default on the first agreement and had made it clear 
that he was not able to fulfil the first agreement by payment 
vet that was not equivalent to an abandonment of all interest 
under the agreement for he still had at least a right to be re­
lieved from the result of the forfeiture: Brickies v. Snell, 30 
D.L.R. 31, [1916] 2 A.C. 599, 86 L.J. (P.C.) 22.

I think, therefore, that the plaintiff had a right to relief from 
the forfeiture which is never necessarily the return of the whole 
amount of the purchase money. Ilis action is not expressly 
based upon the equitable right of relief from forfeiture but I 
think the action might well have been treated at the trial as 
brought for that purpose and the necessary amendments made 
with, if necessary, a reference to ascertain the proper amount 
of refund to which the plaintiff was entitled. As a majority 
of the Court are in favor of a dismissal of the action which I 
think Is technically the correct course, I however think it is 
clear from the reasoning of a majority of the members of the 
Court, the plaintiff is at liberty to bring an action for relief 
from forfeiture, while at the same time 1 am not intending to 
intimate that there may not be an answer to such an action.

Simmons, J.A. The plaintiff’s claim arises out of an agree­
ment made between A. T. Sutherland, deceased, as purchaser, 
and the defendant as vendor for sale by the latter to the form­
er of Sect. 33, Tp. 36, R. 11, west of the 4th meridian in the 
Province of Alberta, for the sum of $11520. The plaintiff 
claims that while said agreement was in force and effect that 
the defendant wrongfully converted said lands by reselling 
same to one Warren on May 1, 1919. The plaintiff claims re­
turn of $5,681.55 paid to defendant on the purchase-price and 
interest, and $6,119.90 damages, and a lien on said lands for 
these moneys.

At the trial the defendant admitted said sale to Warren but 
adduced evidence to shew that the same had been terminated 
ami that the defendant was able, ready and willing to carry 
out the agreement for sale on payment by the defendant of 
the balance of the purchase moneys and interest there due.

The defence also sets up a quit-claim made by plaintiff as
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sole beneficiary in favour of defendant for all the interest of 
the deceased’s estate in said lands, dated September 3, 1918.

The plaintiff replies that said quit-claim n t became ef- 
fective or binding upon the plaintiff because a certain agré­
ment for resale by defendant to p’aintiff of said lands was in 
corporated in and became a part of the agreement under which 
said quit-claim was executed and that since the said agreement 
for sale was never concluded that thereupon the quit-claim was 
ineffective.

The trial Judge held that the quit-claim hereinbefore refer­
red to never became a concluded agreement, and that there 
was a repudiation of the original agreement for sale by the de­
fendant when the latter resold to Warren and gave the plain 
tiff judgment for the return of the moneys paid under said 
agreement and interest on same.

From this judgment the defendant appeals. The history of 
the facts is somewhat involved. On July lfi, 1913, the purehas 
er was in default in regard to the payments due and the d< 
fendant began an action for enforcement of said payments 
then due. A defence was filed whfch obviously was for the 
purpose of delay and subsequently the deceased enlisted and 
moratorium legislation in favor of enlisted soldiers prevented 
continuance of the action. A. T. Sutherland was killed while 
on active service and administration of his estate had been 
granted to the Trusts and Guarantee Co. Ltd. ; when C. 13. Suth­
erland returned from overseas in April, 1918. The defendant 
filed a claim with the Trusts and Guarantee Co. Ltd., adminis­
trator, valuing the land at $9,600 and claiming the difference 
between this sum and the sum of $11,663.46 then due.

Negotiations passed between the administrator and the de­
fendant for a settlement and for the giving of a quit-claim of 
the interest of the estate in this land to the defendant. This 
was in April, 1918. Another party, Shields, had a caveat 
against the lands and Mr. Sa vary, barrister, representing the 
execution creditor, refused to withdraw it. The administrator 
was not in funds to pay this and these negotiations fell through. 
The Trusts and Guarantee Co. wrote J. C. Trenahan on April 
17, 1918, that they had taken up with C. B. Sutherland this 
quit-claim and that the latter was satisfied that the Trust Com­
pany should execute the quit-claim in favor of the defendant. 
C. B. Sutherland does not admit the correctness of this state­
ment made by the Trusts and Guarantee Co. However, this 
quit-claim deed was not executed by the Trusts and Guarantee 
Co. Ltd. as administrator. On August 14, 1918, C. B. Sut in r-
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land wrote defendant advising him that he had a prospective 
purchaser and asking for terms of sale. He advised the defend­
ant that the estate was insolvent and that the sheriff estimated 
the value of the lands in question at $9,000. He said he was 
prepared to obtain a quit-claim of the estates interest. C. 11. 
Sutherland was then sole beneficiary of the estate and he does 
not suggest that the administrator offered any opposition to 
this proposition.

It is quite obvious that at this time Sutherland treated the 
original agreement for sale as one which the administrator 
could not carry out, and that he was very anxious to have the 
same terminated and anxious to obtain a new agreement where­
by he could arrange to re purchase. On September 4, 1918, the 
plaintiff wrote the defendant enclosing a quit-claim deed ex­
ecuted by himself as agent of and sole beneficiary for the es­
tate, and the defendant sent this document to Trenahan, his 
Alberta representative, who had a power of attorney to act 
for the defendant.

There was a meeting between Trenahan and the plaintiff in 
a barrister’s office in Calgary and there is a conflict of evidence 
between them as to the discussion at this meeting. In any case 
Trenahan insisted that the plaintiff must deal with him and 
that the defendant would not quit claim and resell to the plain­
tiff unless a payment of $1,000 was made in settlement of the 
claim which had been filed with the administrator. In the 
meantime Sutherland had himself substituted as administrator.

However, he gave a note to Trenahan for $1,000 and a quit­
claim deed was executed by the defendant and an agreement 
for resale to the plaintiff. These were sent through a bank to 
the plaintiff and he executed them but changed the rate of 
interest in the agreement from 8 per cent, to ti per cent. The 
agreement and quit-claim were sent back to the defendant in 
this altered form for acceptance and for signature by the de­
fendant’s wife. The defendant would not assent to the change 
of interest.

In October some discussion took place between Trenahan and 
the plaintiff in regard to the change of interest and the plain­
tiff says he agreed that the interest might be restored to 8 per 
cent, in the agreement for sale. He said he confirmed this in 
a letter. Trenahan says he received no such letter and does 
not remember the plaintiff consenting to restore the interest to 
ti per cent. Further correspondence passed between plaintiff 
and Trenahan in November and December 1918 and January 
1919, dealing with the completion of the new agreement for
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sale and payment of the note of $1,000 given by Sutherland 
Trenahan but the defendant did not deliver to the plaintiff lb. 
documents and as far as the evidence indicates he did not chanc- 
the interest to the original rate of 8 per cent.

Nothing further happened until April 23, 1919, when the sab- 
was made by defendant of the lands to one Warren for $l«i. 
000. When the plaintiff learned of this sale he wrote the de­
fendant on April 28, 1919, and demanded that the defendant 
“come through with the agreement of sale of this section to 
me, the terms of which agreement were agreed to in September 
last year.” . . “Both you and your wife have already signed 
this agreement and unless you forward it to me immediately with 
your wife’s signature affixed I will proceed against you with 
an action for damages, for breach of contract, etc.”

The plaintiff on February 4, 1920, commenced action alleging 
the original agreement of sale to A. T. Sutherland, deceased, 
and breach of such by defendant on account of the sale to War 
ren.

Reviewing the whole circumstances it seems to me an un 
disputable fact that from, in or about March, 1918, until Jan­
uary, 1919, negotiations were carried on, upon the admitted 
basis that the administrator could not carry out the original 
agreement for sale. There was no available money to pay up 
the large arrears of over $11,000 outstanding in the agreement. 
The Trusts and Guarantee Co. Ltd., as administrators adopted 
this as a basis of negotiation. The plaintiff in August, 191b, as 
sole beneficiary adopted this view and offered to negotiate with 
defendant upon this basis. When somewhat later in September, 
1918, the plaintiff became administrator, he carried on negotia­
tions upon the same basis.

At the opening of the trial the defendant amended by plead­
ing that he was ready and willing to carry out the original 
agreement and established that he was the registered owner 
free from encumbrances of said lands, and produced a quit­
claim and release by Warren of all the latter’s interest under 
the agreement of April 23, 1919. If the second agreement for 
purchase did not become a completed agreement and the plain­
tiff intended to assume a new basis of dealing which would in­
volve the re-instatement of the original agreement he was und­
er an obligation to make the same known to the plaintiff [de­
fendant tj. tie represented the estate of the purchaser and re­
presented to the defendant that the estate could not make i In­
payment! that were overdue and outstanding. It is true a con­
siderable sum had been paid on the purchase-price but the uc

3
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cumulated interest had so added and increased the amount that 
a larger sum than the original purchase-price was now due.

I am inclined to agree with the conclusion of the trial Judge 
that the negotiations in regard to quit-claim deeds and a new 
agreement for sale never did become effective. When Suther­
land changed the rate of interest he was in effect making a 
new offer and this was never accepted by Jones, and there were 
other terms upon which the parties were not ad idem.

The real issue is then whether the conclusion of law of the 
trial Judge is correct that “when the defendant entered into a 
second binding agreement for sale of the same lands to a third 
party, he committed such a breach of the first agreement as 
would justify the plaintiff in demanding rescission and the re­
turn of the purchase moneys he has paid.’’

The general principle is stated very clearly by Alverstone. 
M.R. in Rhymmy Railway v. Brecon and Merthyr Tydfil Junc­
tion Railway (1900), 69 L.J. (Ch.) 613 at p. 816, 49 W.R. 116, 
as follows:—

“If there is a distinct refusal by one party to he hound by 
the terms of a contract in the future, the other party may in 
our opinion treat the contract as at an end. See Withers v. 
Reynolds (1831), 1 L.J. (K.B.) 30, 2U.lt Ad. 882, Hochst.r 
v. tie la Tour (1853), 22 L.J. (Q.B.) 455, 2 El. & 111. 678, and 
the judgment of Lord Blackburn in Mersey Bteel ami Iron Co. 
v. Baylor (1884), 9 App. Cas. 434 at p. 442. Short 
of such refusal we think the true principle to he deduced from 
all the cases is that you must ascertain whether the conduct 
of the party who has broken the contract is such that the other 
party is entitled to conclude that the party breaking the con­
tract no longer intends to he bound by its provisions.’’

The plaintiff's claim is an action at law for breach of con­
tract on the assumption that the Warren sale was a renuncia­
tion by the defendant of the original contract of sale which en­
titled the defendant to an action for damages.

The plaintiff has deprived himself of this right of action by 
his admissions prior to the Warren sale of his inability to carry 
out his part of the agreement, his offer to treat the defendant 
as an owner entitled to sell ; his negotiations to re purchase on 
the basis that the defendant had the right to sell. There was 
no waiver by the defendant and no offer to recognise the orig­
inal contract as in force when the plaintiff brought his action. 
The plaintiff was then on his own admission unable to imple­
ment his part of the contract and, therefore, his action at law- 
fails. The offer of the defendant at the trial to re instate the
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original contract and treat it as still effective can not derogate 
from his right at the moment the action waa brought to treat the 
plaintiff’s defaults as a ground for terminating the agreement. 
It may he that when the plaintiff brought his action he might 
have asserted a right to equitable relief from forfeiture of the 
purchase moneys paid under the agreement.

Kilmer v. H.C. Orchard Lands Co., 10 D.L.R. 172, [1913) 
A.C. 319, 82 L..T. (P.C.) 77, as explained in Ntcedman v. Dr in­
kle. 25 D.L.R. 420, [1916] 1 A.C. 275, 85 L.J. (P.C.) 79.

That would he claim for equitable relief which was not, how­
ever, raised in this action and no amendment has been submit­
ted praying for relief under this head.

The plaintiff's action fails and should be dismissed with 
costs and the appeal allowed with costs.

Uvndmax, J.A.In my opinion there was not at any time 
a concluded agreement between Sutherland in his private ca­
pacity, and .lunes for the purchase by the former of the land 
in question. The second agreement and the quit-claim deed 
were dependent one on the other and it! one failed of consum­
mation then so did the other.

That being so the original agreement with the deceased Suth­
erland was still in force at the time of the sale by Jones to War 
ren. Jones must be held to have known that such agreement 
was in existence and if so the sale to Warren would have the 
effect of justifying the Sutherland estate in treating such imt 
as a cancellation by Jones of the agreement with the deceased.

The plaintiff however, being in default and never at any time 
having offered to remedy such default, is not in a position to 
maintain an action for damages or spécifié performance but 1 
think might invoke the equitable jurisdictiin of the Court and 
ask lo be relieved from the effect of the forfeiture of the $6,400 
paid on account of the purchase-price.

The peculiar circumstances of the ease I think arc sufficient 
to justify the Court in ordering a referenc to ascertain the 
value of the land together with the loss, costs and expenses lo 
which the defendant has been put as a consequence of the plain­
tiff's default, including the costs of this action end of the ap­
peal, and should it transpire that such value is greater than t lie- 
amount owing by the plaintiff, plus said loss, coats and expen­
ses, then to order a return to the plaintiff of the difference, 
not exceeding the said sum of $6,400.

The evidence as disclosed in the case however would make it 
appear to me that the land is not of any greater value :t" of­
fered for cash (which should be the correct criterion) than '
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amount owing by the plaintiff, consequently I think the plain­
tiff should be required, before entering upon such inquiry, to 
furnish security for costs thereof by paying into Court the sum 
of $200 within 30 days from the entry of formal judgment 
herein. Otherwise the action to stand dismissed.

I would allow all necessary amendments to conform to the 
above observations.

Subject thereto I would allow the appeal with costs and dis­
miss the action with costs.

Clarke, J.A.:—After a careful consideration of the evidence 
I agree in the conclusion of the trial Judge that the negotia­
tions for the purchase of the land by the plaintiff in his in­
dividual capacity from the defendant did not result in a con­
cluded agreement but I do not agree that in the circumstances 
the defendant committed a breach of his original agreement 
with the deceased A. T. Sutherland.

The last payment under that agreement fell due on Novem­
ber 19, 1918, and if that payment and the instalments in ar- 
rear had been then paid the plaintiff as administrator would 
have been entitled to a transfer and would have received the 
same as the title was complete in the defendant at that time 
and he was ready and willing to perform the contract on his 
part. It is quite apparent that the plaintiff representing the 
estate of the deceased purchaser was not prepared to carry out 
the agreement on his part at any time which was common 
ground between the parties so that when the negotiations to 
sell to the plaintiff in his individual capacity failed, 1 think the 
defendant was quite justified in assuming that the plaintiff had 
abandoned any intention he ever may have had of fulfilling the 
original agreement on his part, and it was upon that assump­
tion that he entered into the new agreement with Warren. I 
do not regard this transaction as a refusal on the part of the 
defendant to carry out the contract on his part, tie was never 
offered the purchase money nor asked for a transfer, there was 
no offer on the plaintiff’s part to fulfil the agreement on his 
part and no refusal by the defendant to accept the money and 
give a transfer which he was able to do notwithstanding the 
agreement with Warren. The Sutherland agreement being prior 
in time to Warren’s agreement could have been enforced by the 
plaintiff I think even as against Warren. The defendant may 
have been liable in damages to Warren prior to the latter’s 
default and quit-claim deed but that did not concern the plain­
tiff. If the plaintiff had any equitable claim to relief the de­
fendant met him by offering in the pleadings and at the trial

Alta.
App. Dlv. 

StTlIKKLAND 

JO XK*. 

Clarke, J.A.



506 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Man.

K.B.
to transfer the property on payment of the amount owing. 
This, of course, the plaintiff declined as it is apparent that $9, 
600 or thereabouts was about the fair cash value of the proper 
ty ; both parties so treated it, and a considerably greater sum 
was owing under the agreement. I do not think that the con 
sidération of $1,600 in the Warren agreement is a proper test 
of the cash value as that was payable almost wholly by crop 
payments spread over a long period without personal liability 
of the purchaser other than to deliver the share of the crop 
agreed upon. The plaintiff was not willing to risk a payment ut' 
$1,000 on a sale on such terras preferring to let the proper?y 
go to the defendant, as appears by the plaintiff’s letter to (Jil 
christ of April 9, 1919.

It seems fairly certain the defendant will incur a loss on the 
property by reason of the default of the plaintiff and of the 
deceased and I do not think it equitable to saddle upon him a 
further loss for the benefit of the party in default.

I would, therefore, allow the appeal and dismiss the action 
both with costs to be taxed under Column 5 of the tariff.

Appeal allowed.

Ke WINNIPEG CHARTER; 1U* COMMUNITY OF THE NI ST U IIS 
OF THE HOLY NAMES OF JEHUS AM) MARY.
Manitoba King's Bench, Dysart, J. April 29, 1922.

Taxation (§1IID—135)—Soumission ok “questions involved"—Appeal 
from Board—Winnipeg charter—Record.

The “questions involved" within the meaning of sec. 341 of the 
Winnipeg Charter, when submitting a stated case from the Board 
of Valuation and Revision to a Judge of the Court of the King's 
Bench, is not limited to questions of law, but include all questions 
involving all the facts and circumstances, which the record must 
contain.

Courts (6IA—1)—Court or Record—Board or Valuation.
The Board of Valuation and Revision under the Winnipeg 

Charter, being empowered by the provisions of the charter lu 
compel the attendance of witnesses and required to keep a record 
of its proceedings, is a Court of Record.

Taxation (8IIIB—125)—Assessment—"Land"—Playgrounds—Simil\k 
RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY—INCOME OF LAND.

A playground of a private school is not residential property, and 
cannot therefore be valued on a basis of "similar residential pro­
perty," nor on an income or revenue basis, in an assessment of 
“land” for taxation purposes.

Case submitted by the Board of Valuation and Revision of 
Winnipeg under sec. 341 of the Winnipeg Charter, 1916, eh. 
120. Rehearing ordered.
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T. A. Hunt, K.C., for applicant. Man'
J. Preud'homme, for City of Winnipeg. k.b.
Dysart, J. This is a case submitted by the Board of Valua- 

tion and Revision of the city of Winnipeg in pursuance of sec. Wissivno 
341 of the Winnipeg Charter, 1918, eh. 120, in connection with Ciiaktkh. 
the assessment of St. Mary’s Academy. As originally submitted i.v.an, j. 
the case was inadequately stated, and in order that the opinion 
or decision which I am required to give might be bused upon 
all the facts of the case rather than upon a challenged state­
ment of them, I sent the case back for amendment under the 
powers given to me in sec. 343. Accordingly an amendment 
was made which while it does not supply all the facts required, 
has been supplemented by statements of counsel and together 
with the original statement and certified copy of the evidence 
supplies all the material now before me.

The original case describes in detail the property known as 
St. Mary’s Academy, situate at the intersection of Wellington 
Crescent and Academy Road in the city of Winnipeg, consist­
ing of 12.09 acres in a single block with a building 
thereon used as a “residence and school,” but “not 
established or continued under the Public Schools Act,” nor 
''affiliated with the University of Manitoba.” It states that 
the property was assessed for the year 1922 at $295,900, and 
that an appeal was taken from that assessment to the Board 
on four grounds: (1) that the assessment was excessive ; (2) 
that the land was not subdivided ; (3) that part of the land was 
used only as playgrounds ; and (4) that the land was of no 
greater value for the sisters’ use than it was when purchased 
by them. It then relates that the appeal was heard aud that 
“the assessment on the land was reduced from $182,300 to 
$1511,200”; and that a notice was tiled by the sisters requiring 
the Board to submit a case for the opinion of a Judge under 
see. 341, to include three questions : (1) Is not the decision of 
the Board against law, evidence and the weight of evidence ;
(2) Are not the lands assessed at a sum much in excess of their 
value ; and (3) Are not the lands and buildings exempt from 
municipal taxation under the Winnipeg Charter. The state­
ment then concludes by submitting only one of the three ques­
tions—the last one—as “the question of law upon which the 
opinion of the Court is asked.”

The certified copy of the evidence contains the testimony of 
only one witness, T. A. Hunt, who, under oath, gave informa 
tion and reasons in support of the notified grounds of appeal.
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The amendment to the stated case is a studied attempt to 
justify the decision reached by the Board. It sets forth many 
facts and reasons upon which, we are asked to infer, the de
cision of the Board was reached. As many of these ground* 
and reasons were proceeded upon, under the erroneous view 
which the Board took of its own powers and duties, it will lie 
more convenient to deal with them at the proper stages later 
on. In the meantime it is only necessary to say that the amend 
ment by setting forth the elements of the amount of the asse<* 
ment, supplies the very material by which that decision must 
necessarily be condemned.

Counsel for the Academy challenged the entire stated case on 
the grounds that it does not either fully or accurately “set 
forth the facts of the case and the questions involved ' ’ as re 
quired by sec. 341. He points out that the original statement 
omits two of the three questions which were asked to be incite! 
ed ; that the certified copy of the evidence shews that the evi 
dence of only one witness was heard before the .titling of the 
Board, and that evidence cannot support the Board s decision. 
that the amendment shews that the Board “went carefully into 
all the factors and circumstances influencing the decision of 
the valuator” although no evidence of such factors and circum­
stances were given in open Court as required ; and that the de- 
cision was based upon those factors and circumstances as well 
as other alleged findings of fact which were either untrue nr 
unreliable. He argues that the Board as constituted is a Court 
of Record and as such must keep records of all its proceedings 
and base its decisions upon evidence of which u record is kept ; 
and complains that the Board in this instance at least acted to it 
large extent either without evidence or upon evidence improper 
ly admitted.

Mr. Freud’homme for the Board boldly meets all Mr. Hunt’s 
arguments. He stoutly maintains that the case as stated by the 
Board is not to be challenged but must be accepted as sett me 
forth the only facts and question with which this Court can 
deal; that the Board alone has the right and duty of submit­
ting the question, and is the sole arbiter of what shall be in 
eluded in the stated case. He denies that the Board is a Court 
of Record and insists that it is as free to disregard any evidence 
produced before it as it is to seek evidence from any outs.de 
private source, or to rely upon the expert knowledge of its mi ni 
hers. For these alleged powers of the Board he relies upon tic
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provisions of the Winnipeg Charter as interpreted by Kc lt'in- 
vipeg Charter; Baird's case (1916), 29 D.L.R. 464.

The opposing contentions of counsel place me in this position ; 
If I accept the views of Mr. Hunt. I will have to explore the 
whole field of the powers and functions of the Board ; if I adopt 
the stand of Mr. Preud’homme, I can readily dispose of the case 
but only by ignoring all the main issues raised. The easy and 
ready method of deciding the case would be, as Mr. Preud- 
'hnmme suggests, to answer the single question submitted in the 
original case. Such an answer would undoubtedly have to b» 
that the Academy property is not exempt from taxation under 
the provisions of the Winnipeg Charter, as it does not come 
within the scope of see. 278 (8), and there is no other provision 
within which it could fall. But such an answer does not dis­
pose of any of the more difficult questions raised in this lengthy 
and exhaustive argument and pressed upon me for decision. 
Besides it is intimated that this ease is only one of -everal now 
pending and that it may serve as a test for the others. In view 
of all the circumstances it seems to me in the interests of all 
parties concerned that the questions raised here ought to he 
considered and determined. I will therefore deal with them.

Vnder the Winnipeg Charter a group of provisions contained 
in secs. ,121 to 840, inclusive, under the heading ‘‘Notice of As­
sessment" deal with Hie settling of the assessment roll by the 
assessors and with all changes to be made therein by the Board 
of Revision upon complaint of parties affected. The last of 
these sections, 340, provides that ‘‘at any stage of the proceed­
ings in regard to an appeal from or complaint against the as­
sessment, the board may submit in the form of a special case 
for the opinion of a Judge of the Court of King’s Bench any 
questions of law arising in connection with the appeal or com­
plaint and shall reserve its decision in so far as it shall be af­
fected by such question of law until the opinion of the Judge 
lias been given when the Board shall decide the appeal in ac­
cordance with such opinion."

Then follows a distinct group of provisions set out under secs. 
341 to 352, inclusive, under the heading ‘‘Appeals from the 
Board of Valuation and Revision in Assessment Cases.” The 
first four sections deal with appeals such as the one in hand. 
Section 341 provides that "the city ... or any person 
affected by the decision of the board in any appeal, may . . 
. require the board to submit a case for the opinion of a Judge 
of the Court of King's Bench, and the board shall thereupon
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set forth the facts of the case and the questions involved in 
writing.9 9

And sub-secs, (a) and (b) of that section, provide that “any 
party . . . desiring to appeal under this section” shall fur 
nish security for costs of his “case reserved hereunder.”

Counsel for the Board maintains that secs. 340 and 341 must 
be read together and that the application under 341 must bv 
restricted by 340. Let us compare these sections. In 340 “ani/ 
question* of law arising in the appeal” may be “submitted” in 
the form of a “special case”; in 341 “the facts of the case 
and the questions involved” shall be “set forth” in a “case” 
or “case reserved.” In 340 the case may, before but not after 
the decision of the Board, be submitted by the Board on its own 
initiative, for its own guidance, irrespective of the wishes of the 
person affected. In 341 the case, after but not before the de­
cision of the Board, must be submitted by the Board, on the 
initiative of the person affected, for his own satisfaction, and 
in complete disregard of the wishes of the Board. The one sec­
tion establishes a privilege exclusively for the Board ; the other 
a right exclusively for the “party desiring to appeal.”

It would seem from this comparison • that the sections deal 
with things which are fundamentally different, and which, but 
for the Baird case, supra, we would expect to see treated as 
entirely separate and distinct.

The Baird case, however, deals with them together. That case 
was decided by Mathers, C.J.K.B., in June, 1916, when the pro 
visions of the Winnipeg Charter, in so far as they relate to the 
matters in that case and in this, were identical in all respects, 
except numbers. The application there, as here, was made und- 
er the present sec. 341, and “the question submitted” was 
whether Baird was “entitled to have the assessment” on his 
lands and buildings “reduced below the amount fixed by tin; 
Board,” and if so at what amount they should be “assessed. 
After a brief review of the charter provisions, the Chief Justice 
states at p. 465, that “the Board is required to set out the facts 
in the form of a stated case and upon the facts so stated the 
Judge is to give his opinion. The Judge is not to find the facts, 
or inferences from facts. These are to be embodied in the 
stated case. Then upon what is the Judge to give his opinion 
Clearly upon some question of law arising upon the facts sub 
mitted;” and then at p. 466:—

“A consideration of secs. 333 et seq. under which an appeal 
may be taken to the Board of Valuation and Revision confirm.' 
the view that the application to a Judge under sec. 349 should
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not be in the nature of an appeal upon questions of fact as 
well as law, but should be confined to obtaining his opinion up­
on a question or questions of law only;” and further,

“The question submitted in the case stated is a pure matter 
of fact, and therefore a matter with which a Judge has under 
these provisions of the charter no authority to deal.”

It is to be noted that the question there was “a pure matter 
of fact." The question had been apparently agreed upon in 
the form submitted, and as interpreted by the Chief Justice. 
It is quite conceivable that such a question, framed in exactly 
the same terms especially the first branch of the question, might 
well be a matter of law or at least a matter of fact based upon 
a matter of law. For instance, if it appear that in fixing the 
amount of the assessment the Board had proceeded upon the 
principle of considering separate elements of value attaching 
to each element a specific amount, and if it appeared to the 
Judge that one of the elements had been applied on a mistaken 
view of the law, then that clement of value should be eliminated, 
and the assessment consequently “reduced below the amount 
fixed by the Board.” In such a case the question submitted 
would not be a "pure matter of fact,” but would rather be 
a pure matter of law. On the same supposition the second 
branch of the case would call for an answer fixing the assess­
ment at the amount named by the Board, less the amount of 
value attached to the eliminated element.

And so in the case before us. In the amendment to the stated 
case, the Board emphasises the “fact” which its members 
"found" by looking at the playgrounds themselves, that these 
playgrounds are "not unproductive,” but on the contrary "con­
siderably enhance the earning power of the institution . . . 
ihereby producing revenue.” The Board also stresses the 
"fact," which it learned on "inspection,” that the premises 
are strategically situated "for serving the wealthiest portion of 
the city," and that it draws its "pupils from the best districts 
of the city.” What is quite clear from these statements is that 
the members of the Board, in fixing the amount of the assess­
ment on the playgrounds, were influenced by supposed revenues 
or earnings of these grounds. If so, they virtually levied an 
income tax on the property. In so far as they did that their 
assessment is invalid.

Assuming that the Board acted illegally in assessing this 
particular piece of property on the basis of income, then the 
question which the Board refused to submit, though requested, 
viz., are the lands assessed at a sum much in excess of their
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value, is a question of law rather than a question of fact, ami 
consequently the Baird case, supra, cannot be authority in this 
case.

But the Baird case goes further. It contains language which 
if followed would affect the decision in this case. In interpret­
ing the section under which the application was made, the Chief 
Justice considered what are now secs. 321 to 340 and concluded 
that “under these provisions of the charter” the Judge has no 
authority to deal with a pure matter of fact. But the question 
is not what authority the Judge derives under secs. 321 et seq., 
but rather what authority is given him by secs. 341 et seq. It is 
under 341 that the application is made, and from the foregoing 
comparison of secs. 340 and 341, I can see no reason why the 
prior sections should be introduced at all.

However, he goes on to say the consideration of these sections 
merely “confirms the view that the application to a Judge ' 
under 341 should “not be in the nature of an appeal upon 
questions of fact . . . but should be confined to . . . 
questions of law only.” He clearly interprets 341 as narrowly 
as 340 and he looks to 340 for confirmation of that view. With 
the utmost respect for an opinion coming from the Chief Jus­
tice of our Court of King’s Bench, I have not been able, though 
I have tried, to bring my mind to an acceptance of his strict 
interpretation of 341. I cannot persuade myself that 321 to 
340 should be considered at all in an application under 341. 
I am convinced that the language of 311 et seq. means more 
than the Chief Justice allows to it. He says it is not “in the 
nature of an appeal,” but 341 (a) speaks of “any party . . 
. desiring to appeal under this section,” and 341 (b) speak > 
of a “case reserved” hereunder which is only another name 
for an appeal. The provisions call for the setting forth of all 
the facts and of all the questions involved, a certified copy of all 
the evidence given before the Board, upon which material the 
Judge is required to “hear and determine the question.” Noth­
ing more than that could go to the Court of Appeal. Nor is 
there anything in the language of this section which expressly 
suggests such a limitation as mentioned.

Of course, the decision in the Baird case applies only to the 
restricted facts of that case. These facts are, as we have seen, 
very much narrower than those before us. The statement of 
fact was there entirely agreed upon, there was no dispute as 
to the adequacy or correctness of the case as stated ; here, there 
is a general challenge of all these matters. There the only ques­
tion put was by apparent consent, one of pure fact, here sev-
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oral questions are put, and even that question which corres- :N,an- 
ponds in terms with the question in the Baird ease has a dif- k.B. 
forent meaning. But moreover, even if the facts and questions 
were identical in the two cases, the decision would not he hind- w,nnu.f„ 
ing authority upon us. The appeal under sec. 341 is to “a chaktkm

judge of the Court of King’s Bench.” Each of the six Judges ----
of this Court has equal authority and each is a tribunal of last 
appeal. While it is highly desirable that there should be uni­
formity in the interpretation of statutory law, it is more de­
sirable that the interpretation should be correct. It seems to 
me that the Board have unwarrantedly stretched the applica­
tion of the Baird case in seeking its shelter for their refusal 
to submit what in the Board’s opinion arc questions of fact, and 
I cannot conceive it to be the duty of a Judge to perpetuate 
the error of the Board in a matter of this kind.

I must therefore, give it as my opinion that the application 
under 341 is not limited to a question of law but is intended 
to include exactly what the statute calls for, viz., “the ques­
tions involved” whatever they might be. And further that a 
question may properly be said to be “involved” in the facts 
of the case, when it grows out of those facts, naturally, or by 
suggestion of a complaining party. It is for the Judge, not the 
Board, to determine whether or not all the questions requested 
should be considered and determined. It is for the Board to 
submit them all.

From the foregoing it will readily be seen that, in my opin­
ion. the stated case ought to submit all the facts and circum­
stances. It would be desirable if such a statement were first 
submitted to the party affected for his approval before submis­
sion to a Judge. Such a course would bring the practice in 
line with the practice in other stated cases, the object of which 
is to have the matters before a Court without dispute. By very 
little straining the language of 341 might be said to contem­
plate such a practice and that the Board might “submit” (first 
for the approval of the person affected, and then) “for the 
opinion of a Judge.” But Mr. Preud’homme insists upon what 
he regards as the prerogative of the Board. “It is not for the 
person affected,” he says in effect, “but for the Board to set 
forth the facts of the case and the questions involved.” True, 
but it is equally true that it is for the Board to “set forth the 
facts of the case and the questions involved”—not garbled facts 
or selected questions. And if the Board fails to do so, the case 
may be sent back for amendment, presumably as often as neces­
sary, to ensure the production of all the facts. Surely the ex- 

35—68 I1.L.B.
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peditious and reasonable way to meet this situation is first to 
submit the stated ease to the interested parties.

Another question involved in this case is whether or not the 
Hoard is a Court of Record, and is bound to give its decision 
upon evidence adduced before it in open Court. The Board of 
Valuation and Revision is constituted under sec. 277 of the 
Winnipeg Charter, with duties among other things, “(5) (a) 
to consider and determine upon all matters pertaining to assess­
ment and taxation in the said city. (5) (b) to hear and deter­
mine appeals against the assessment in accordance with the pro­
cedure hereinafter set out.”

The procedure referred to is not very precisely stated but 
may be gathered from several sections commencing with 327. 
Under this section ‘‘any person . . . may apply to the 
board . . . by way of appeal for a revision ... or to 
reduce his own assessment . . . Such application must he 
in writing . . . and state therein the grounds and nature 
of the complaint.”

Section 331 provides that:—‘‘For the purpose of revising the 
assessment rolls and deciding the appeals in respect thereof, the 
board shall meet at the time and place appointed therefor and 
of which notice has been given” in accordance with previous 
provisions. Section 332 makes it the ‘‘duty of the board to c\ 
amine the said assessment rolls and to hear and determine the 
complaints filed,” subject to certain following provisions among 
which we note 336 : —

“Having heard the parties making the complaint . . . if 
they be present and if they wish to be heard, and also their 
witnesses, if they produce any, under oath, which .nay be ad­
ministered by any member of the board, and also the assessors 
(who shall attend all sittings of the board fixed for hearing 
appeals), if they wish to be heard . . . the board shall 
maintain the assessment roll as it is or raise or lower the as- 
■eminent or make any other changes in the roll ... as 
shall seem just and expedient.”

Section 336 (c) provides that “All evidence before the board 
shall be given under oath, and taken down in writing by the 
secretary of the board.”

Section 336 (d) empowers the Board to summon witnesses 
w'ho on failure to attend “shall be guilty of an offence and li­
able on summary conviction to a tine not exceeding one hundred 
dollars. ’ ’

The provisions constitute the Board of tribunal which must 
keep a record of its proceedings. In that sense it is a Court
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of Record. The appeals to the Hoard must be brought upon a 
certain form of pleadings in writing. The Board is to sit after 
due and prescribed notice to the public; its sessions must be 
public; all evidence before it must be given under oath and 
recorded in writing; witnesses may appear and testify; any 
member of the Board may administer the oath; unwilling wit­
nesses may be compelled to attend; the assessment roll may be 
examined but the assessors are required to be present to support 
the roll if they so desire. If these provisions do not make the 
Board a Court of Record, then it is hard to conceive that our 
County Court is a Court of Record. In Kemp v. Neville (1861), 
10 C.B. (N.8.) 523, 31 L.J. (C.P.) 158, the Vice-Chancellor of 
Cambridge University had statutory authority to hear, “ex­
amine and punish” certain offenders within the precincts of the 
University. Though lie acted informally it was held that he 
was a Judge of a Court of Record as the proceedings before 
him “could be proved or disproved by the record thereof only 
which might be made up at any time.”

So here the provisions clearly contemplate that such a record 
shall be kept of the proceedings as will sufficiently prove them.

But even if the term “Court of Record” is challenged, still 
the fact remains that the Board is a creature of statute, e* i- 
powered to decide appeals, to which a taxpayer is one party 
and the assessors are the others, according to forms and pro­
cedure quite clearly laid down, requiring records kept of those 
proceedings and of all evidence taken and the decisions reached. 
This is enough for present purposes. This question has this 
hearing upon the matter in hand. If the Board is in this sense 
a Court of Record then all the grounds upon which its decis­
ion was reached, ought to be found among its records. Mr. 
Preud’homme for the Board strongly insists that no such mean­
ing should be attached to these provisions, and indeed it is 
evident that the Board itself has not so restricted its own move­
ments. In the amendment it states that “in the exercise of the 
powers given the Board under the Winnipeg Charter the mem­
bers of the Board . . . inspected the said premises after 
the said hearing . ... due use of the expert knowledge 
which the members of the Board have.”

This would be a strange method of proceeding for a Court 
of Record unless clearly authorised by statute. Section 277 
(7) contains what is supposed to be the authority for this exer­
cise of power:—

“For the purpose of obtaining information and assisting the 
Board, in arriving at a proper basis of assessment, the members

Man.
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of the Hoard are authorised to enter into and upon any premises 
and to inspect the same” and to delegate the duty to others. This 
authority is exactly the same as that conferred upon the assc> 
sors by sec. 276. The duty of the assessor, however (see 276 and 
284) is to assist the commissioner of taxation in making a year­
ly ‘‘valuation of all the rateable property in the City, after 
diligent inquiry,” and to make assessment rolls according to 
their “best judgment.” One of the duties of the Hoard above 
mentioned is to “consider and determine upon all matters per­
taining to assessment and taxation in the said City in accord 
ance with this Act.” Is it not in connection with the dis 
charge of this latter duty that the members of the Hoard are 
authorised to inspect premises? 1 think it is.

To “inspect premises” means to look at the premises, to peer 
into them, to examine them with the eye. The information 
gleaned in this visual way may be in the mind and may there 
he “considered,” but it cannot bo “heard.” The duty of the 
Hoard in connection with general assessment matters is to ** con­
sider and determine,” and therefore to consider the informa­
tion it had gleaned from inspection. Hut the duty of the Hoard 
in appeals against the assessment is to “hear and determine." 
that is determine only upon what it hears on the appeal: it 
could not possibly make use of the information gleaned from 
the inspection. If we examine all the provisions of the char­
ter governing these appeals to the Hoard we will be more fully 
satisfied that the duty of the Hoard is to “Ae#ir” all the evi­
dence that is to be given, and “after having heard” it, to do 
termine the issue. Ample provision is made for all parties to 
he present to testify, so that they may be heard, shewing quite 
conclusively that the evidence to he given before the Hoard must 
he such as may be heard, and that the determination of the 
matter must be based upon what has been heard. Nor is there 
any provision that suggests even in the slightest way that the 
Hoard may resort for its information to evidence other than that 
given openly and orally under oath in open Court. This is 
doubtless for the purpose of affording the appellant an oppor­
tunity to meet the evidence adduced against him. and to subject 
opposing witnesses to reasonable cross-examination.

There is the further question of the value. In this connec­
tion the Hoatd states in the amendment that, from an “exam­
ination of the assessment roll it found as a fact” that the “as­
sessor took into consideration” in assessing this property “that 
•the lands were used as playgrounds—and valued it according­
ly—at about 80%' of similar surrounding residential property.”
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In finding this from examination of the assessment roll the Man
Board exceeded its legal authority, and, I am afraid, its human k~b
powers. The statement is a tissue of error, both of law and 
fact. The information could not possibly be secured from the W|!JtNE|m 
assessment roll because it is not given there. If it were secured chartkk.
from the assessor it was secured privately and therefore iiu- ----
properly. The information, from whatever source obtained, is "y,igr1, ,- 
inaccurate, inconsistent and wholly unreliable. There is no 
recognised uniform basis upon which to assess “playgrounds,” 
and therefore they could not he valued “accordingly.” If 
there were such a basis it could not be “80'.; of similar residen­
tial property” because surrounding residential property would 
not he similar, that is, it would not be playgrounds. But even 
if the playgrounds were put upon the basis of residential pro­
perty, the assessment was admitted on argument not to have 
been on the basis of 80'y but upon some other percentage which 
was not computed.

Then, later in the statement, the Board state that the play­
grounds are “not unproductive” hut that they produce “re­
venue.” Therefore, if they were valued “accordingly” they 
must have been valued on an income, or revenue basis. If so 
they were not treated as “similar” to the “surrounding resi­
dential property” because the residential property was not 
treated as revenue producing. Again a playground is not 
“residential property” and should not be treated as “similar.”

But apart from these self-destructive inconsistencies, what has 
the value of “surrounding” lands to do with the value of this 
particular parcel Î There is no warrant or authority for basing 
it on this. Section 294 of the charter provides that “land, as 
distinguished from buildings thereon, shall be assessed at its 
value at the time of the assessment.” What meaning is to be 
attached to “value” is not stated, but no suggestion is made 
that the value of any one parcel is to be determined by the 
use of the surrounding lands. Whether value is to be deter­
mined from the price at which land might be sold, or by the 
revenues which might be secured from it, or from any other 
producing power, we cannot determine, but one thing is cer­
tain and that is the value must be fixed at the time of the as­
sessment. This would seem to exclude the supposed value that 
sometimes attaches to land based upon the prospective price 
which it might bring at some distant time. Whether or not a 
recognised system of fixing values had been determined upon by 
the assessors does not appear. If the basis were followed in this 
case of harmonising it with surrounding land no great injustice
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Man. would perhaps be done, bu* the amendment to the stated case
K.B. would indicate that the Hoard have not followed any clearly
Re
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defined principle in fixing the assessment in this case.
In answer, therefore, to one of the questions which although 

“involved” the Hoard improperly refused to submit, I am
clearly of the opinion that the decision of the Hoard was 
“against law, evidence and the weight of evidence.” I have 
shewn I think that the decision was reached upon principle 
which violated the charter provisions and was therefore against 
law. It was reached either in spite of the only evidence which 
was properly admitted, or upon evidence which was either not 
heard at all. or if heard, heard privately and therefore impro­
perly. The decision was therefore reached against evidence and 
the weight of evidence.

In answer to the remaining question, which likewise involve! 
was likewise improperly withheld from submission, I am of the 
opinion that the sum at which the said land was assessed is in 
excess of the value thereof. Just what the measure of execs- 
is I cannot say, except that one of the elements of value relied 
niton by the Hoard in fixing the amount was wrongful and mi 
.justifiably considered; and in so far as that ingredient of value 
is concerned at least the assessment is in excess of the value of 
the land. Besides that the only evidence of value heard by the 
Hoard fixed the value at one-half the assessment, that is, at 
the sum of $91,150, and therefore if I look only at the records 
of the Hoard 1 am driven to the decision that the land has been 
assessed at twice its value.

Hut that does not satisfactorily settle the amount of the as­
sessment nor entirely dispose of the difficulties. I have no 
doubt, whatever that the Hoard, throughout the hearing of the 
appeal, acted in this case far beyond its powers and largely in 
disregard of its duties, but did so from an entire misconception 
of what its powers, duties and functions really are. 1 am per­
suaded that had the Hoard been properly seized of sound no 
tions of the provisions of the Winnipeg Charter governing i*> 
activities, that it would have acted quite differently on this 
appeal, would have heard all the evidence and decided upon 
evidence heard. 1 believe, therefore, that the ends of justice 
require that the Hoard be afforded an opportunity of rehear­
ing this appeal in a way in which such appeal ought to be 
heard.

My decision, therefore, is that the Board rehear this appeal,
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and if for any reason it fails to do so the assessment be re­
duced to $91,150.
. The costs of and incidental to this application shall be costs 
to the applicant.

Rehearing ordered.

•MORAN v. HAMMMOM) LVMBKR To.
Xcw Brunswick Supreme Court, Appeal Division. Hazen, C.J., Crocket 

and (trimmer, JJ. April 21, 1922.
CoxTHACTS ( 8IE—70) —Statute of Frauds—Deht of another- Loouiku 

agreement—Guaranty—Consideration—Novation.
A verbal agreement to pay the plaintiff. In consideration of his 

driving logs, the money due him under a written contract with a 
third party for the cutting and driving of the logs, which had not 
been completed, the logs having been cut but not driven, is a 
promise to answer the debt of another within the Statute of 
Frauds, C.S.N.B. (1903), ch. 140, sec. 1, and unenforceable unless 
in writing, nor is such agreement supported by any consideration, 
nor amounting to a novation.

Appeal from the judgment of Barry, J. and motion by 
plaintiff to set aside verdict entered for defendant and enter a 
verdict for plaintiff, or for a new trial. Affirmed.

7\ J. Hughes, for plaintiff.
./. .1/. Stevens, K.C., for defendant.
IIazen, C.J.:—This action was tried at the Madawaska Cir­

cuit in October last before Barry, J., and a jury. Certain ques­
tions were submitted and after they had been answered the 
Judge took time to consider and later on delivered a written 
judgment ordering a verdict to be entered in favour of the de­
fendant and dismissing the action with costs. It is from this 
judgment that an appeal is now taken.

The action was brought for the breach of an alleged verbal 
agreement between the plaintiff and defendant, whereby in con­
sideration that the plaintiff would drive certain logs of the 
delendant’s he (the defendant) would assume the liability of 
one Grand-Maison to pay the plaintiff the sums of money agreed 
to be paid to him by the said Grand-Maison under a written 
contract for the cutting and driving of the logs, which logs at 
the time of the said alleged verbal agreement had been cut by 
the plaintiff in virtue of the written contract with Grand- 
Maison, but had not been driven. The defendant pleaded the 
Statute of Frauds, and contended that a novation has not been 
established. The substantial facts set forth in the judgment of 
the trial Judge are as follows.

•Ed. Note.—Appeal to Supreme Court of Canada pending.

N.B.

App. Dlv.
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Grand-Maison contracted with tin» defendant to cut ami haul 
off of lamis urn 1er lease t<i the defendant 5,000.000 Huperficial 
feet of logs ami deliver the hhiiic to the defendant in the aprim_r 
1021 at the inmitli of (ireen River, or at the option of the de­
fendant from alxive the dam in (ireen River in the County of 
Madawaska. Payment at the prices stipulated was to lie made 
after dune 1, 10*21. Imt cash, supplies ami equipment to the 
estimated value of the work done might lie advaneed as the 
operation progressed. if neeessary to carry out the option under 
the contract. The property and the logs which were to Is* etii 
upon the defendant's permit remained in the defendant from 
the stump. Authority was given the defendant to stop the op 
eralion at any time if (irand-Maison failed to fulfill any of tin- 
conditions of the contract, and in vase of such default Gram I 
Maison Ism ml himself to cease operations ami vacate the loca­
tion when called U|hiii by the y to do so, and to turn
over to the company the plants, rigging, supplies and cash un 
used, which had been furnished and supplied in connect ion 
with the operation. For the purpose of carrying out this con 
tract (irand-Maison contracted with other lumber s to
get out part of his cut, and on October (i entered into a writ­
ten contract with the plaintiff Moran for the t ' g and haul­
ing of 1,000,000 superficial feel. I'mlcr this contract the plain 
tiff claims to have cut and delivered ready for driving 1,270. 
-100 superficial feet of logs and that Grand-Maison owes him 
<in the contract $l.‘l,(i(>4, and the costs of driving which the 
defendant paid would reduce the amount owing from Grand 
Maison to the plaintiff to approximately $10,000. ami at this 
sum the jury have assessed the damages.

April 1, 1021, the defendant advanced Grand-Maison $12.- 
000 for driving, but he did not apply this money towards the 
purpose for which it was intended but on the contrary abscond­
ed with it, leaving the Province in the night-time, ami deposited 
part of the money in his son's name in a bank in Quebec. This 
act was treated by the Hammond Company as a breach in viola 
tion of the terms of Grand Maison's contract, and it accordingly 
took charge of the operation, taking possession of all the logs 
cut under the contract, as well as those cut by the plaintiff and 
his jobbers as those cut by other subcontractors of Grand 
Maison, and proceeded to make the necessary arrangements for 
the driving of the same as soon as driving conditions permitted. 
It appears from the evidence of Grand-Maison that he sublet 
most of his total cut, he himself cutting only 820,000 superficial 
feet, costing him he says $4.*> to $00 a thousand. At the time lie

0188
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absconded and lvft tin* Province he owed his subcontractors 
nlxMit $40.000 and he says he absconded with the .$12.000. that 
had been advanced him by defendant for driving because he ow­
ed so much that he could not pay all. This $12.000 was sub­
sequently as a result of criminal proceedings recoveml hack 
by the company at an expense of $1.000. the $10.000 balance 
being expended in driving the Moran logs and paying wood­
man who had filed liens against the lumber for wages, and the 
balance was credited bacjc to Grand-Maison's account. The 
agreement for which this action is brought is a verbal one. and 
was made on April 5 between the plaintiff. Moran, and the de­
fendants. The plaintiff alleges that on that day in company 
with three of his sub-contractors or after lie obtained the con­
tract from Grand-Maison for he had sublet part of it. he went 
to Van Huron, Maine, where A. K. Hammond, the President and 
Managing Director of the defendant company resides, and had 
a conversation with him, and that llammond told him that if 
he would drive his own logs and carry out his contract with 
Grand-Maison the defendant company would not only pay for 
the driving but would put itself in the place of Grand-Maison 
and pay the amount then due and owing by him to the plain­
tiffs for the work that had already l»een performed under the 
contract for the cutting and hauling of the logs, and it is on 
this agreement that the plaintiff seeks to recover.

The evidence of Hammond on the other hand was entirely 
different, and he says that the agreement made hv him with tin- 
plaintiff on April 5th was to drive his (Moran’s) own cut, and 
that lie hired him at $5 a day to boss the drive, and authorised 
him to hire men at from $2.50 to $:$ a day. which on behalf 
of the defendant company he undertook to pay. He also says 
lie advanced him $400 on account of driving, and took from 
him a receipt which expresses on its face that it was an “ad­
vance on Green River drive, logs of Jos. Grand-Maison.” lie 
denies that he told Moran that the company would put itself 
in Grand-Maison’s place and pay his debts, and when Moran 
produced a contract with Grand Maison he told him to put it 
in his pocket, as it did not concern the defendant company.

The defendant alleges that the contract made with plaintiff 
was solely in respect of driving, and had nothing whatever to 
do with the cutting and hauling or payment for the cutting and 
hauling of the logs which were at that time in the possession 
«■. the defendant and browed on the landings awaiting the time 
for driving. The evidence shews that the defendant company 
did in fact pay the costs of the driving including, according

N.B.
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to the defendant $50 to the plaintiff on account of the 16 days’ 
driving which he himself did at $5 a day; the balance of $30 
due him for his work was held in abeyance until he accounted 
for the $400 which had been advanced to him on April 5 on 
account of driving.

At the conclusion of the plaintiff’s case counsel for the de 
fendant moved for the withdrawal of the case from the jury, 
and that the action be dismissed, on the grounds: 1. that ther - 
was no novation; 2. that the contract set up was a verbal one 
and being in the nature of a guarantee to pay the debt owing 
from Grand-Maison to Moran could not he enforced without 
a writing to satisfy the Statute of Frauds; 3. no consideration 
for the alleged promise.

The Judge however thought it preferable to submit to the 
jury for their consideration the disputed questions of fact 
arising in the case, rather than to withdraw it from them, and 
the evidence having been concluded, the following questions 
were submitted, which they answered as follows:—

1. (j. Has the debt from Grand-Maison arising from their 
logging contract ever been paid or discharged? A. No. J. 
Q. If so, when and by whom? A. (Not answered). 3. (t>. 
Or does Grand-Maison still owe Moran the balance unpaid on 
the contractf A. No. 4. (j. Was the verbal agreement which 
was entered into between the parties on April 5 last in the terms 
stated by the plaintiff or was it in the terms stated by Mr. llnm 
mond? A. Plaintiff. 5. (j. If you find the agreement was in tin- 
terms stated by the plaintiff, then did the defendant company 
by its president promise to pay the debt owing by G ram I 
Maison to Moran? A. Yes. 6. (j. And if you answer tin- 
last preceding question in the affirmative then what was tin 
consideration for such promise, that is, what loss did Moran 
suffer or what did the Hammond Company gain? A. It ei 
allied the Hammond Lumber Co. to get the lumber out this 
year. 7. tj. Was the $4UU which was paid by the defendant 
company to the plaintiff on April 5 lust year solely as an ml 
vunce for driving the Moran logs or was it paid generally on 
account of driving and the indebtedness of Grand-Maison to 
Moran f A. I'aid as advance for driving Moran logs. b. N 
Was there a breach by defendant of the agreement entered into 
by the parties to the action? A. Yes. U. (j. If so at what 
sum do you assess the damages lor the breach? A. $10,000.

In addition to these questions which were left by the Court, 
the following were left at the request of the plaintiff:—

10. (j. Did the defendant company on April 5 last, pay to
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Joseph P. Moran, the plaintiff. $400 on his contract with Joseph 
<irand-Maison ? A. Yes. 11. Q. If the defendant did, was 
it in pursuance of the contract which had been entered into that 
day between the plaintiff, Joseph P. Moran, and the defendant 
company! A. Yes.

The following questions were put at the request of the de­
fendant:—

12. (A). Was the Moran contract with Grand-Maison brok 
enf A. Yes. (B). If so by whom? A. Hammond Lumber 
Co. (C.) When? A. 5th April, 1921. (I)). In what man­
ner? A. The moment the Hammond Company said to the 
plaintiff to continue his contract same as he had it with Grand-

N.B.
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Maison.
It is impossible to reconcile these different answers, l entire­

ly agree with the trial Judge that they are conflicting, con­
tradictory and entirely irreconcilable, and that some of them 
arc absurd. 1 quote what Harry, J. says on the subject:—

“While by their answer to the first question they say that the 
délit owing by Grand-Maison to Moran arising under the con­
tract lias never been paid or discharged, by their answer to tip- 
third question they say that Grand Maison no longer owes it. If 
the debt has never been paid or discharged it must remain an 
(insolvable problem by what manner of reasoning or what evi­
dence the jury came to the conclusion that it had been extin­
guished.

On the question of what account the $400 had been paid to 
tlie plaintiff, the jury have answered in two directly divergent 
ways. By their answer to tj. 7 they say that it was paid solely 
us an advance for driving the Moran logs, and unquestionably 
the evidence sustains that view, but by their answer to <2- HI 
they say the $400 was paid to Moran on his contract with 
Grand-Maison, which is directly contrary to the documentary 
evidence produced at the trial.

In their answer to (j. 12 the jury say it was a third party, 
the llammond Lumber Co., that broke the written contract 
which had been entered into between Moran and Grand-Mai- 
son, and that it was broken the moment the company said to 
tip- plaintiff to contract same as he had it with Grand-Maison.

While it is difficult to conceive or conjecture how in point 
of fact the third party unauthorised and unsought could break 
a written contract entered into between two other parties, at 
the same time it may be observed that even if a third party 
possessed such a power to tell one of the parties to the con­
tract tiiat he is to continue the contract same as he had it with
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his co-director, which would he in fact to tell him to carry out 
the terms of his written contract, it cannot in my opinion hav 
inir regard to the literary meaning of the language employed 
Ik» construed as a breach of the contract or as an endeavor to 
break it.”

In my opinion the conflicting and contradictory charact-v 
of the answers would have afforded sufficient ground for a new 
trial, had the verdict been for the plaintiff. See Le Wane \ 
Moncton Tramway Co. (19*20), 5.1 D.L.lt. 68. 47 N.B.R. *291 : 
FreiUricion Motor Sales v. Earl of Ashhurnham (19*20), 55 
D.L.R. 4M, 48 N.B.R. 171. The trial Judge, however, ordered 
the venliet to 1hi entered for the defendant on the ground that 
the agreement relied upon being a promise to answer for the 
debt of another and not being in writing could not be en­
forced at law. The jury by their answer to Q. 5 found that 
the defendant company on April 5 promised to pay the debt 
owing by Grand-Maison to Moran, and there is no evidence of 
any such promise» having been in writing. It seems to me clear 
that the jury were justified in this finding, and that the prom 
ise if any was a promise to answer for the debts of another. 
Harry. JM in dealing with this phase of the matter says:

“By their answer to the fifth question the jury have fourni 
that by the agreement entered into by the parties to the suit 
on April 5 the defendant promised to pay the plaintiff the debt 
then owing to him by Grand-Maison. No authority is required 
to lx» cited in order to shew that such a promise to be bindimr 
and enforceable must be evidenced by a writing to satisfy 
see. 1 of ch. 140 (’on. Stats. N.B. 190,1, and there was no writ 
ing.”

It waa contended by counsel for the appellant that the facts 
in connection with this case did not bring it within the Statute 
of Frauds, as the Hammond Lumber Co. had a primary inter 
est, but I think the evidence clearly shews that Moran under­
stood that Hammond agreed to pay what Grand-Maison owe I 
to Moran, which is undoubtedly a direct promise to pay the 
debt «if another, and while a number of eases were cited on 
behalf of the appellant in support of the contention that lie- 
cause tin» Hammond Lumber Co. had a primary interest the 
agreement «lid not. fall within the statute, yet all these eases 
proceeded on the idea that there was a novation or else that 
there was a promise to assume something that was to be incur­
red in the future ami not the payment of a past debt.

The trial Judge as I understand his judgment not only held 
that there was a promise to answer for the debt of another.
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and that therefore the same must be in writing, but also held 
that there was no consideration for any such promise. He 
points out that the jury were bound, in ease they found an af­
firmative answer to Q. 5, which they did, and which was to the 
effect that the defendant company by its president promised to 
pay the debt owing by Urand-Maison to Moran, to state what 
was the consideration for the defendant’s promise to pay Mor­
an the difference owed to him by Urand-Maison, and they stat­
ed that it enabled the defendant company to get the lumber 
out this year (1921).

1 agree with the Judge in thinking that it is extremely doubt­
ful whether that could be regarded, as consideration at all for 
the plaintiff, for the plaintiff lost nothing by it and the defend­
ant gained nothing by it. As pointed out by Barry, J. there 
was no evidence that the plaintiff possessed any special quali­
fication for the work or any expert knowledge in regard to 
driving not possessed by other woodsmen and river drivers in 
the vicinity of the operation; that scores of men were doubtless 
obtainable in that lumber country who would do the work as 
well as and some perhaps better than he could, and there does 
not seem to be any reason why the defendant company should 
itself incur a liability of over $10,000 simply in order to have 
Moran take charge of a short 16 day drive.

I entirely concur in Barry, el’s statement to the effect that 
the consideration would be so entirely inadequate to the prom­
ise made that no one but a madman would make such a promise 
for such a consideration.

It stems hi me that the finding of the jury in answer to Q. 
à was right, ami if the company agreed to pay the debt owed 
by Urand-Maison to Moran it was a collateral and not an or­
iginal promise. Urand-Maison’s evidence is to the effect that 
the amount he owed the plaintiff upon their contract has never 
Is-en discharged but is still subsisting ami that he still owes 
it. and it seems to me under the evidence that the plaintiff 
could still maintain an action against Urand-Maison for the re­
covery of the amount «lue, and that there is no justification for 
the finding of the jury that Urand-Maison no longer owes the 
plaintiff the balance unpaid on the contract. Barry, J., has 
very carefully considered the matter, and I quote from the clos­
ing part of his judgment as follows:—

“The fair result of the authorities seems to lie that the ques­
tion whether each particular ease comes within the statute or 
not depend* not on the consideration for the promise but on 
the fact of the original party remaining liable, coupled with
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the absence of any liability on the part of the defendant or 
his property except such as arises from his expressed promise. 
According to the plaintiff’s version of the agreement which tic- 
jury have found to be the true one, the promise was an entire 
one, that is. that the defendant company promised not only to 
put itself in Grand-Maison*s place and pay the amount then 
due to the plaintiff for cutting and hauling the logs under tic- 
contract, which had already been done, but also to pay the 
plaintiff for the driving of them which was yet to la* done and 
for the doing of which a new contract was made on April 5. 
Taking this to have been the contract of the parties then the 
promise though entire was partly within and partly not with­
in the statute, and in such case the whole contract was un­
enforceable unless the requirements of the statute are complied 
with. îf the promise were divisible, so that there were two 
distinct agreements, one for the payment by the defendant coin 
pany of the debt owing by Grand-Maison to the plaintiff for tic 
cutting and hauling of the logs, which would be a promise to 
pay the debt of another, and thus be within the statute, and the 
other an agreement by the defendant company to pay for tic- 
driving of the logs which would not be within the statute, tic- 
portion of the promise which is not within the statute may be 
enforced, though there is no evidence in writing. If the prom­
ise be regarded as a divisible one, no question can arise with 
regard to the enforcement of the latter part of it, for that part 
has been fully performed on both sides. The plaintiff has driv­
en the logs and the defendant company has paid him for his 
services and has also paid all the other costs and expenses in 
connection with the Grand-Maison logs incurred after the de­
fendant took possession of the operation for violation of tic- 
terms of the contract, so that in the circumstances of this case, 
whether the promise was entire or divisible really makes no 
difference. If divisible the part that would be enforceable, that 
is payment for the driving, has been fully performed and no 
cause of action exists in respect to it, but the promise to pay 
the still existing debt due by Grand-Maison to the plaintiff was 
one which to be enforceable should have been evidenced by 
writing, and there being no writing the plaintiff cannot re­
cover in this action.”

I entirely concur in these views of the trial Judge.
In my opinion the facts in this case do not warrant the con­

tention that there was a novation. No agreement was shewn 
between Grand-Maison and the defendant whereby the defend­
ant with the consent of the plaintiff agreed to assume the

3
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Grand-Maison contract, and the only agreement as between 
plaintiff and defendant set up by the plaintiff was the alleged 
verbal promise to the defendant to take over the Grand-Maison* 
Moran contract or assume Grand-Maison’s liability there under 
to the plaintiff in consideration for which the plaintiff agreed 
to drive certain logs of the defendant’s which had then been 
cut ready for driving by the plaintiff under the Grand-Maison 
contract, and which according to the terms of the contract the 
plaintiff was obliged to cut and drive. Grand-Maison was not 
a party to this verbal agreement and was not present at the 
time it was made. As a matter of fact he had absconded some 
days before and his whereabouts were unknown to either the 
plaintiff or defendant, and there was no evidence to connect 
him in any way with the agreement of April 5 and I think it 
is clear his liability to the plaintiff has never been extinguished. 
In his own evidence he stated that he was still indebted to Mor­
an, and that the latter had not discharged the indebtedness, 
and the jury found in answer to the first question that the debt 
due from Grand-Maison to Moran had never been paid or dis­
charged.

In our own Court in the case of Jones v. Jiurgies (1!)10), .'!!) 
X.B.R. 60ff in which the question of novation was raised. White, 
J., in his judgment said at p. 624:—

“In older to succeed, the plaintiffs must establish that the 
company took over and adopted this agreement, . . . with
the consent of the plaintiffs, and under circumstances amount­
ing to a novation whereby the original contract with Matthew 
Burgess was extinguished, and a new like one was substituted 
between the plaintiffs and defendants.”

And in the same case Landry, J., said at p. 641: —
“The mutter of novation is clearly one of intention shared by 

both parties when it is between the same parties, and by the 
three parties when the debtors or creditors are different from 
the original.”

No new contract was substituted for that in existence between 
Grand-Maison and Moran, either between themselves or between 
llammond and Moran, the consideration for which was the dis­
charge of the old contract. In 7 Hals., p. 505 para. 1026, nova­
tion is thus defined:—

“Novation is a form of assignment in which by the consent 
of all parties a new contract is substituted for an existing con­
tract. Usually, but not necessarily, a new person becomes party 
to the new contract and some person who was party to the old 
contract is discharged from further liability.”
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I do not think it can be euccewfully argued that the elements 
that constitute a novation were present in this ease, and the 
appeal so far as it relies on such a eontention must fail. In 
my opinion the judgment of Barry, J. is right. The verdict en 
tered in favor of the defendant must stand, and this appeal 
lie dismissed with costs.

('rocket, J. (dissenting) This appeal raises the question 
as to whether the verbal agreement sued on falls within the 
provisions of the fourth section of the Statute of Frauds a< 
being a special promise to answer for the debt, default or mis­
carriage of another.

The question, therefore, is whether in these circumstances 
the defendant's promise as deposed to by the plaintiff was a 
promise to answer for the debt, default or miscarriage of an 
other within the meaning of see. 4 of the Statute of Frauds. 
There is no doubt, I think, that the defendant’s promise as it 
was found by the jury was founded upon a good consideration. 
The original contract had been rescinded by the act of the d« 
fendant in taking over the operation under the provisions of 
the contract agreed to between the defendant and Grand-Mai 
son. The plaintiff had thereby lieen prevented from completing 
his contract with Grand-Maison and had in consequence he u 
discharged from his obligation to drive the logs and deliver 
them to Grand-Maison at Little Forks. Ilia only right against 
Grand Maison was a right to recover upon a quantum meruit 
for the work and labour which lie had performed under the 
contract, the completion of which by him had thus been render­
ed impossible, or a right of action for damages for its breach. 
11 is promise, therefore, to Hammond to keep on with the work 
just exactly the same as he was to do with Grand-Maison and 
to finish his contract was a perfectly good and valid considéra 
tion for the defendant's promise to pay him his contract as 
Grand-Maison was supposed to pay him at the mouth of the 
brook. In this sense it was “a new consideration distinct from 
the demand that the plaintiff hud against the third person ", 
which Lord Tenterden, C.J., pointed out in Thomas v. Williams 
(1830), 10 H. & C. 664 at p. 670, 109 K.K. 597, 8 L.J. (K.B.) 
0.8. 314, was the ground of the decisions in Eduards v. Ktll>) 
(1817), 6 M. & 8. 204, 105 K.K. 1219, and Castling v. Aubt'i 
(1802), 2 Fast 325, 102 K.R. 393, that the agreements there in­
volved were not within see. 4 of the 8tatutq of Frauds. It 
well settled that the clause of the section in question applies 
only to promises which are guarantees, but there has been more 
or less obscurity as to what the true test is in determining
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whether a promise is or is not a guarantee within the meaning 
of the clause. For instance it is stated in Chitty on Contracts. 
12th. e<l. at |>. 595 that the real question in such cases would 
now appear to he. not whether the promise of the guarantor 
was given on a new consideration, but whether by accepting 
his liability, the party to whom the promise was given has re­
linquished his claim on the party originally liable, and that it 
follows from the above principle that where the original de­
mand is destroyed or discharged by the new verbal agreement 
the statute does not apply. In support of these propositions 
the ease of Green v. Cresswcll (1839), 1(1 Ad. & El. 453, 113 
E.R. 172. 9 L.J. (Q.B.) 63, ami 1 Win. Saund. 211. note (d) 85 
E.K. 220, and the comment of the Court in I.ehain v. Phil poll 
(1875), L.R. 10 Ex. 242 at p. 247, upon Edwards v. Kelly, supra, 
are cited. When the note to 1 Win. Saund. is examined However, 
it is found to contain this passage at p. 211 (1), (85 E.R. at 224) : 
“There is considerable difficulty in the subject, occasioned per­

haps by unguarded expressions in the reports of the different 
cases : but the fair result seems to be. that the question, whether 
each particular case comes within the clause of the statute or 
not, depends not on the consideration for the promise, but on 
the fact of the original party remaining liable, coupled with the 
absence of any liability on the part of the defendant or his 
property, crap! such as arises from his es press promise.'* 
Cockburn, C.J., in Fitzgerald v. Dressier (1859), 7 C.B. (N.S.) 
374. 141 E.R. 861, 5 dur. (N.S.) 598, 29 L.d (C.B.) 113, ex­
pressly confirmed the above quoted passage as a correct state­
ment of the law and called especial attention to the importance 
of the concluding words which I have italicised, and which 
words, according to the report of the case as it appears in 5 dur. 
(N.S.) 598, he said were commonly overlooked by those ar­
guing these cases. As reported in 7 C.B. (N.S.), at 392. (141 
E.R. at 868) he said:—“I quite concur in that view of the 
doctrine, provided the proposition is considered us embracing 
the qualification at the conclusion of the passage; for, though 
I agree that the consideration alone is not the test, but that tin- 
party taking upon himself the obligation upon which the action 
is brought makes him responsible for the debt or default of 
another, still it must be taken with the qualification stated in 
the note above cited, viz., an absence of prior liability on the 
part of the defendant or his property,—it being, as I think, 
truly stated there as the result of the authorities, that, if there 
he something more than a mere undertaking to pay the debt of 
another, as, where the property in consideration of the giving
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up of which the party enters into the undertaking is in point 
of fact his own or is property in which he has some interest. 
the case is not within the provisions of the statute, which was 
intended to apply to the case of an undertaking to answer for 
the debt, default, or miscarriage of another, where the person 
making the promise has himself no interest in the property 
which is the subject of the undertaking.”

The question as to what is the true test in determining wheth­
er a promise is or is not a guarantee within the statute is fully 
discussed by Lord Esher, M.R., in Sutton <V Co. v. Grey, [1894 
1 Q.B. 285, 6:$ L.J. (Q.B.) 633, 42 W.R. 195. He says that tin- 
principal case in English law which affords such a guide is 
Cnutur 'x r \ . Hustle (1662), 8 Ex. 40, 166 16. 1250, 22 L.J. 
(Ex.) 97, where Parke, H., laid down the rule as to the effect 
of the promisor having an interest in or being connected with 
the transaction in question in taking his promise out of the sta­
tute notwithstanding that it involves the liability to pay tin- 
debt of another. Lord Esher, after quoting the words of Parke. 
B., says at p. 288: —

“There the test given is whether the defendant is interested 
in the transaction, either by being the person who is to nego 
tiate it or in some other way, or whether he is totally uncon­
nected with it. If he is totally unconnected with it, except hv 
means of his promise to pay the loss, the contract is a gum 
antee; if he is not totally unconnected with the transaction, but 
is to derive some benefit from it, the contract is one of indem 
nity, not a guarantee, and sec. 4 does not apply.”

He then states that the rule thus laid down has been adopt' d 
as a test in subsequent cases, and proceeds to quote the note 
from 1 Wm. Saund., and the comment of Coeklmrn, C.J., there­
upon as above set forth, and points out that the latter used tin- 
words “has hi nself no interest in the property which is the 
subject of the undertaking” because he is dealing with a case 
of property, but that if his words were read, as he (Lord 1> 
her) thought they should be, “has no interest in the transit 
tion” ( ockburn, C.J., was adopting the interpretation of Cou­
turier v. IIuntie, .supra, which he (Lord Esher) thought was tlie- 
right one. His conclusion was that the promise in questinu 
came within the rule laid down in Couturier v. Hostie and ad­
opted by Cock burn, C.J., in Fitzyerald v. Dressier, supra, and 
that “the contract is not a guarantee with regard to a matter 
in which the defendant has no interest except by virtue of the 
guarantee ; it is an indemnity with regard to a transaction in
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which the defendant has an interest equally with the plaintiffs.” 
|1894] 1 Q.B. at 290.

Lopes. L.J., in concurring in the opinion of Lord Esher said 
■it p. Mi-

“The true test, as derived from the cases, is. as the Master 
of the Ilolls has already said, to sec whether the person, who 
makes the promise is, but for the liability which attaches to him 
by reason of the promise, totally unconnected with the transac­
tion, or whether he has an interest in it independently of the 
promise.” Lord Halsbury also in his Laws of England (vol. 
15, p. 462) gives the rule in these words.

In Marburg India Rubber Comb Co. v. Martin, [1902] 1 lx. 
B. 778 at p. 793, 71 L..L (K.B.) 529. 50 W.R. 449, it is said 
by Cozens-Hardy, L.J., that “if the Court can find that there 
is a main contract, the object of which is not to answer for 
the debt of another, that contract is not within see. 4. even 
though incidentally it may result in a liability to answer for 
the debt of another.” The same rule is recognised in the Vn- 
ited states. See Dards v. Patrick (1891), 141 r.s.s.c. 4Tt» » 
488, where it is said that “whenever the main purpose and 
object of the promisor is not to answer for another but to sub 
serve some pecuniary or business purpose of his own, involving 
either a benefit to himself or damage to the other contracting 
party, his promise is not within the statute, although it may 
he in form of a promise to pay the debt of another, ami al­
though the performance of it may incidentally have the effect 
of extinguishing that liability.”

It is not enough, therefore, under the rule as declared in the 
English cases to which 1 have referred, to bring a ease with­
in see. 4 of the Statute of Frauds that the promise on which 
the action is brought does not itself extinguish the liability of 
the third person and that his liability remains; there must also 
he an absence of any liability on the part of the defendant 
or his property except such us arises from his express promise. 
The statute must be taken to relate, as Lord Esher puts it in 
Sutton v. dreg, supra, to a guarantee with regard to a matter 
in which the defendant has no interest except by virtue of the 
guarantee.

It is not pretended that the defendant had no interest in 
the transaction here involved apart from the liability attaching 
to it by reason of its promise. Un the contrary it is admitted 
that it owned the logs which the plaintiff hud cut ami browed 
under his contract with Urand Maison, and which he was pre­
vented from delivering to (jraml-Maison at Little Forks by the
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defendant’s act in taking: over the operation and the possession 
of the logs. The defendant had already, and quite apart from 
the terms of the verbal agreement, practically put itself in 
Grand-Maison’s shoes for the purpose of completing Grand-Mai­
son’s undertaking for its own benefit. It is admitted also that 
woodsmen had filed liens against these logs under the Woods­
men’s Lien Act C.S.N.B. 1903. eh. 148. If, therefore, the 
defendant requested the plaintiff to keep on with his work af­
ter it had rescinded its contract with Grand-Maison under the 
terms of that contract as agreed to between them exactly the 
same as he was to do with Grand-Maison, and to finish his 
contract, and promised, if he should do so, that it would pay 
him his contract as Grand-Maison was supposed to pay him at 
the mouth of the brook, as the jury has found it did, and the 
plaintiff did drive the logs to Little Forks, as to which there 
is no dispute apart from the question as to whether in doing 
so he was acting as a foreman at a daily wage or under the 
contract as he alleged, and as the jury have found, the defend­
ant’s promise in my judgment, with all respect to the trial 
Judge, was not such a promise as the statute requires to be in 
writing; and the plaintiff is entitled to recover from it $16.25 
per thousand for the logs proved to have been cut and driven, 
less the $7,000 advances he had received from Grand-Maison 
and the amounts paid by the defendant on account of the driv­
ing. This sum, it is conceded in the respondent’s factum, would 
amount approximately to $10,900, the amount at which the jury 
assessed the damages and to which* assessment no objection is 
taken.

I am not prepared to hold in view of the admitted and un­
disputed facts as to the situation of the parties at the time that 
the jury’s finding upon the question of the terms of the verbal 
agreement was one which could not reasonably have been made 
upon the evidence. It was essentially a question of fact for 
the jury’s determination. It does not seem to me that the re­
ceipt for the $400 was necessarily inconsistent with the plain­
tiff’s version of the agreement. It might, I think, be said to be 
quite as inconsistent with Hammond’s version that he only 
hired the plaintiff at $5 a day to boss the drive and told him 
that he might hire men at from $2.50 to $3 a day, which the 
defendant would pay. In order to set aside the jury’s finding 
upon this essential question this Court must reject the testi­
mony of the witnesses, whom the jury, which had them under 
observation, believed, and this I do not feel the Court is justi­
fied in doing.
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As to the alleged inconsistency of the .jury’s findings upon 
the questions relating to the discharge of Grand-Maison*s lia­
bility to the plaintiff, the payment of the $400 on account, and 
the breach of the Moran contract, 1 do not take the same view 
as the trial Judge that they or any of them are irreconcilable 
with its finding that the verbal agreement was in the terms 
stated by the plaintiff. All that the jury meant, I think, by 
its answer to Q. 1, that the debt due from Grand-Maison to 
Moran arising under their logging contract had not been paid 
or discharged, was that Moran had not been fully paid either 
by Grand-Maison or by the defendant. There is clearly no in­
consistency between this answer and its answer to (j. 4 that the 
verbal agreement was in the terms stated by the plaintiff. 
Neither do I think it is irreconcilable with its answer to (j. 3 
that Grand-Maison does not still owe the plaintiff the balance 
unpaid on the contract which answer, I am disposed to think, 
was probably based upon the view that the unpaid balance was 
to be paid by the defendant under the terms of the verbal 
agreement. With regard to the answer to Q. 5 that the de­
fendant promised to pay the debt owing by Grand-Maison to 
Moran 1 am likewise unable to see that this in any way negatives 
its finding that the verbal contract was in the terms stated by 
the plaintiff, for the defendant’s promise, as stated by the plain­
tiff, as above set out, was that if the plaintiff would keep on 
with the work and finish his contract, put his wood where he 
expected to put it with Grand-Maison and make his drive it 
would pay him his contract as Grand-Maison was supposed to 
pay him at the mouth of the brook, and this promise obviously 
would include all and any debts or liabilities which had arisen 
under the Grand-Maison-Moran contract or which would have 
accrued thereunder had Moran completed the performance of 
that contract. Similarly I am unable to see that the answer 
to (j. 7 that the $400 was paid in advance for driving the Moran 
logs is irreconcilable with the verbal agreement as found by 
the jury. The money may have been, and 1 think in point 
of fact, was advanced for the. purpose of driving the logs, for 
that was practically all that remained to be done by the plain­
tiff to complete his contract but that does not seem to me to in 
any way discredit the jury’s finding, that the defendant had 
agreed to pay the plaintiff his contract as Grand-Maison was 
supposed to pay him at the mouth of the brook, if he would 
finish his work and make the drive. Under the terms of the 
Grand-Maison-Moran contract Moran was entitled to his $16.25 
per M. only when the logs were delivered to Grand-Maison at
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Little Forks. Until then he was entitled only tr such advances 
as should he necessary for carrying on the operation. The 
defendant, having taken over the whole operation under the 
terms of its contract with Grand-Maison after the cutting ami 
hauling end browing of the Moran logs had been completed, 
and entered into a new arrangement with the plaintiff, doubt­
less advanced the $400 for the purpose of driving and for the 
purpose of driving only, but surely this fact cannot fairly be 
relied upon as proof that it had not promised the plaintiff to 
pay him his contract as Grand-Maison was supposed to do if 
he would finish the contract and make the drive. Neither, for 
the same reason, do I think it altogether irreconcilable with 
the jury’s answers to Qs. 1 and-2, submitted by the plaintiff, 
that the $400 was paid on his contract with Grand-Maison in 
pursuance of the verbal agreement entered into on April 5. 
for the money might well be paid as an advance for the pur­
pose and on account of the driving of the logs, and none the 
less be a payment on the verbal contract as sworn to by the 
plaintiff, in the same way that all previous advances, which 
had been made 4o assist in the carrying on of the operations 
were payments >n acc >unt of the principal contract. Witli 
respect to the answers to Qs. 1 and 2, submitted by the defend 
ant, that the Moran contract with Grand-Maison had been brok­
en by the Hammond Lumber Co. when the company said to 
the plaintiff to continue his contract the same as he had it with 
Grand-Maison, the answers may not be strictly accurate from 
a legal view point, but they conVey none the less the belief of 
the jury that the Grand-Maison-Moran contract was put an 
end to and that the defendant took it over and made a new 
contract with the plaintiff for its completion, and these findings, 
far from being irreconcilable with the jury’s answer upon the 
principal question, are absolutely consistent with it. In tin- 
absence of some finding which negatives or contradicts the find­
ing which the jury made upon Q. 4, which was the principal 
and only material question in dispute between the parties, 1 
think it must be accepted by this Court as conclusive of the fact 
so found, unless, as I have already said, the Court is of the 
opinion that it was one which could not reasonably have been 
made by the jury upon the evidence. There being nothing in 
the other findings which negatives or contradicts it, and no 
justification for rejecting it as unreasonable, I am of the opin­
ion that this finding and the admitted, undisputed facts, en­
titled the plaintiff to a verdict for $10,900 the amount at 
which the jury assessed the damages.
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I would therefore, allow the appeal with costs and direct a 
verdict to be entered for the plaintiff for this amount.

(trimmer, J. agrees with Hazen, C.J.
Appeal dismissed.

LOCZKA v. HITHEMAN FARMERS CO-OPERATIVE CO.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, Cameron, Fullerton and

Dennistoun, JJ.A. June IS, J9.Î2.
Bills and notes (gIL*—32)— Bills of Exchange Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 

119, sec.'6—Promissory note of company—Seal as sufficient
SIGNATURE—SIGNATURE BY PRESIDENT AND MANAGER—No WORDS 
TO INDICATE THAT SIGNATURES WERE ON BEHALF OF COMPANY—
Personal liability.

By section 5 of the Bills of Exchange Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 119, 
the corporate seal of a company is sufficient as a signature of the 
company. The signatures of the president and manager are, there­
fore, unnecessary in so far as the liability of the company is con­
cerned, and where such officers sign the note without adding words 
to their signatures indicating that they signed for and on behalf 
of the company they are liable personally on the note. The words 
‘ President” and “Mgr.” written after their names are descriptive 
only and are insufficient to exempt them from such personal lia­
bility.

[Crane v. Lavoie (1912), 4 D.L.R. 175, applied.]

Appeal by plaintiff from the trial judgment in an action on 
a promissory note. Reversed.

F. Heap, for appellant.
\V. R. Sexsmith, and J. C. Miller, for respondents.
Perdue, C.J.M. :—This is an action on a promissory note of 

which the following is a copy:—
“$908.30. May 11th, 1921.
Seven months after date we promise to pay to the order of 

Wasyl Loczka at the Sterling Rank here nine hundred and 
eight_____ 30/100 dollars.
Witness: 9% Ruthenian Farmer Co-op. Co. Ltd. Glenella.

Value received J. O. Kroske, presedent.
Mike Puhach. W. Isaryk, mgr.”
The company’s seal is also impressed on the face of the note. 

The company, Kroske and Isaryk are sued as joint makers.
The action was tried before Galt, J., who entered judgment 

against the company and dismissed the action against the other 
two defendants. From this dismissal the plaintiff appeals.

Section 5 of the Rills of Exchange Act, R.S.C., 1906, ch. 119, 
is as follows :—

“5. In the case of a corporation, where, by this Act, any in­
strument or writing is required to be signed, it is sufficient if 
the instrument or writing is duly scaled with the corporate

Man.

C.A.



536 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Man* seal; but nothing in this section shall be construed as requiring
c.A. the bill or note of a corporation to be under seal.*’

The seal of the corporation in the present case was impressed 
Lo(zka on t|1(l note and it fixes the corporation with liability as a 

Rvthexian ,,1{lKcr.
Farmers Section 52 (1) of the Act declares that: —
C<)-Co. “Where a person signs a bill as drawer, endorser or acceptor,

rmiue, c.j.m. and adds words to his signature indicating that he signs for or 
on behalf of a principal, or in a representative çharaeter, he is 
not personally liable thereon ; but the mere addition to his 
signature of words describing him as an agent or as filling a 
representative character, does not exempt him from personal 
liability.'*

The question involved in the present case was before this 
Court in ('rune v. Lavoie (1912), 4 D.L.R. 175, 22 Man. L.R. 
330. That was an action on six promissory notes all in similar 
form, the only difference being the time of maturity. They 
all contained the words, “We promise” in the body of the note 
and were signed The Fournier Co. Ltd., F. X. Lavoie, presi­
dent, I). Fournier, manager.

The decision really turned on the point that “The Fournier 
Co. Limited ” had not been incorporated at the time of the 
making of the notes. Defendants were, therefore, held liable 
as makers because there being no principal they had not signed 
in a representative character or as agents. There were, how­
ever, expressions of opinion by members of the Court that the 
bare words “pres.” and “manager” were not sufficient to ex­
empt the persons signing the note from liability under sec. 52.

Galt, J., discusses the above case at length but quite properly 
considers that it is not binding upon him in the present case. 
He appears to rely upon Chapman v. timethurst, [1909J 1 K.B. 
927, 78 L.J. (K.B.) 654, a decision of the Court of Appeal in 
England, but, with great respect, has not given due prominence 
to the principal point on which that case was decided. The note 
there in question had the words, “1 promise to pay” and was 
signed “J. 11. Smethurst’s Laundry and Dye Works, Limited ; 
J. 11. iSmethurst, managing director.” But the circumstance 
on which the ease turned was that the words, “J. 11. Smet- 
.hurst’s Laundry and Dye Works, Limited,” and the words 
“managing director” were stamped on the note by means of 
rubber stamps, being the signature of the company ordinarily 
used in its business. The actual signature “J. 11. ISmethurst, 
was in writing. It was upon this circumstance that the eav 
turned. Kennedy and Joyce, L.JJ., agreed with Vaughan Wil-
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liams. L.J. and the appeal from Channcll. J., who had de­
cided against defendant, was allowed.

The fact that the seal of the company is affixed to a note 
does not relieve from liability directors who have put their sig- 
natures upon it without using terms to exclude their personal 
liability: Dutton v. Marsh (1871). L.R. 6 Q.B. 361, 40 L.J. 
(QB.)‘ 175.

In Chapman v. Snwthurst, supra, Vaughan Williams, L.J. 
and Kennedy, L.J., attached importance to the fact that the 
form of the note appeared to exclude the question of joint 
liability. But “where a note runs ‘Î promise to pay’ and is 
signed by two or more persons, it is deemed to he their joint 
and several note:’’ Bills of Exchange Act R.S.C. 1906, eh. 
119, sec. 179 (English Act 1882 (Imp.) ch. 61, sec. 85). In 
tin* same case Joyce, J. found the only difficulty, raising a doubt 
in his mind, to he the use of “I,” instead of “we” which latter 
pronoun would he more suitable for a company to use.

In the case at, Bar there was not a rubber stamp used for the 
signature of the company, as in the Smethurst case, supra, but 
we find at the foot of the note in the place for the signature 
of the maker the name “Ruthenian Farmer Co-op. Co. Ltd. 
Ctlenella.” The evidence shews that this was written by W. 
Isaryk, the same person who signs the note as manager, and 
that he had authority to sign for the company. It was admitted 
that Kroske and Isaryk, the persons who have placed their sig­
natures on the note under the name of the company were res­
pectively the president and manager of the company when the 
note was made. There is also the evidence that the note was 
given in renewal of a previous note given to the plaintiff to se­
cure money loaned and paid by him to the company. The pre­
vious note was signed:—

Ruthenian Farmer Co-op. Co.
Hery Zdou P.O. Address, tilenella.
Witness Wasyl Isaryk, manager.
The company ’s seal was also impressed at the foot of the note. 

The above facts were either put in by the plaintiff's counsel 
or admitted by him. In their defence Kroske and Isaryk deny 
their personal liability and plead that the note was signed by 
them as the official representatives and officers of the company 
and that the note so signed was accepted by the plaintiff as the 
note of the company and not the note of the individual defend­
ants or of either of them. But they did not attempt to put 
in evidence to establish this defence.

In Union Bank of Canada v. Cross (1909), 5 Alta. L.R. 489,

C.A.
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Perdue, C.J.M.
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the leading authorities were considered by Harvey, JM who de­
livered the judgment of the Court. The note in that case con 
tained the words, “we promise to pay” and was signed “The 
Alberta Brick Co., Ltd., W. C. Harris, dir., Wm. M. Cross, 
mgr., F. C. Everard.”

Evidence had been admitted at the trial shewing the circum­
stances under which the note had been made. It was shewn 

•erdue, c.j.M. that the bank, the payees of the note, required the note of the 
company secured by the directors personally. Scott, J., who 
tried the ease ( (1909), 2 Alta. L.R. 3) gave judgment for tin 
defendants, following Lindua v. Melrose (1858), 3 II. & N. 177. 
27 L.J. (Ex.) 326, 157 E.R. 435, 6 W.R. 441, and Fairchild v. 
Ferguson (1892), 21 Can. S.C.R. 484. The Court en banc al 
lowed the appeal and entered judgment for the plaintiffs. liar 
vey, J. considered that the case of I)niton v. Marsh, supi'a, was 
in point. There the note commenced, “We, the directors of 
the Isle of Man Slate and Flag Co. Limited, do promise to pay” 
and was signed “Richard J. Marsh, chairman,” followed by 
three other names without any words indicating the capacity 
in which they were signed. The seal with the name of a wit 
ness was placed to the left of the names of the signers. Tin- 
directors were held liable. It would seem quite clear that tin1 
promise contained in the note was made by the directors ami 
not by the company.

I find much diflictiltv in distinguishing the present case from 
Chapman v. Sandhurst, supra. In giving judgment in that 
case Vaughan Williams, L.J. said ( [1909] 1 K.B. at p. 929)

“It is true that in the present case the promissory note does 
not profess to be signed “for” or “on account of” the com­
pany, but we have that which is equally strong to shew that the 
company intended to be bound by the note, that is, the stamped 
signature of the company at the foot of the note and placed over 
the written signature of the defendant.”

In the case at Bar we find the name of the company written 
at the foot of the note and underneath it the signature of 
Kroske, with the word “president” following the signature, 
and also the signature of Isaryk, with “mgr.” (plainly a con 
traction for manager) written after it. Then we have the seal 
of the company impressed on the face of the note. It appears 
to me that these are circumstances equally as strong as those 
in the timet hurst case, supra, to shew that the note was that 
of the company and that the other defendants were adding 
their names merely as officials to verify the execution of the
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document by the company. But as the other members of the 
Court take an opposite view, I defer to their opinion.

Cameron, J.A. The individual defendants in this case have 
added no words to their signatures to the promissory note sued 
upon indicating that they signed for or on behalf of the Ruth- 
enian Farmers Co-operative Co. They have added words des­
criptive of themselves as agents or as filling representative ca­
pacities, the one as president, the other as manager, but nothing 
more than that. Such being the case, they have not exempted 
themselves from personal liability under sec. 52 of the Bills of 
Exchange Act, K.S.C., 1906, ch. 119. It does seem to me really 
unnecessary to go beyond the section to decide the question of 
their liability which is fixed by its express words.

The affixing of the seal cannot be taken as an indication that 
the directors signed for, or on behalf of, the company. See 
Dutton v. Marsh, L.R. 6 Q.B. 361, 40 L.J. (Q.B.) 175, and 
Union Dank of Canada v. Cross, 5 Alta. L.R. 489. The case of 
Chapman v. Smethurst, [1909J 1 K.B. 927, 78 L.J. (K.B.) 654, 
is distinguishable, where the note was so drawn as to bind the 
company and the form of the note was such that no question 
of joint liability arose and the company alone was, therefore, 
held liable. It was impossible to say that the note there in ques­
tion was the promise of both. As pointed out by Kennedy, L.J., 
the case was argued on the basis that it was not a joint or a 
joint and several promissory note but was the note of one party 
only, and tl e only question was whether the company or the 
defendant was liable upon it as promisor. On the promissory 
note in this case the company and the individual defendants 
purport to be and appear on the face of the instrument as joint 
makers. The additions “president” and “Mgr.” must be re­
garded as descriptive only.

It is the fact that no valid reason can be assigned for these 
individual defendants signing except their intention to make 
themselves liable tor the company’s liability is fixed by the af­
fixing of the seal and the writing of the company’s name by 
one authorised to write it. This point was taken in Union 
Dank of Canada v. Cross, supra, by Harvey, J.

The authorities on the subject were fully discussed by the 
members of this Court in Crane v. Lavoie, 4 D.L.R. 175, 22 Man. 
L.R. 330. The decision in that case was, however, based upon 
the non-existence of the alleged corporation.

1 would allow the appeal. The plaintiff is entitled to judg­
ment against the individual defendants with costs here and in 
the Court below.

C.A.
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Gautfoll, J.A.
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Fvi.i.ektox, J.A. This case raises a legal question of eon 
ftiderable commercial importance. The two individual defend­
ant*, together with the defendant company, are sued as tin- 
makers of a promissory note. It is admitted that the consider­
ation for the note was money advanced to the company and 
the liability of the company is not denied. The individual dr 
fendants were admittedly, at the time the promissory note \\n - 

Fullerton, j.a. signed, respectively the president and manager of the company. 
The promissory note is signed as follows:—

“Ruthenian Farmers Co-op. Co. Ltd. Glenella.
[L.S.] J. O. Kroske, presedent, W. Isaryk, mgr.
The individual defendants say they signed merely in a iv- 

pres<-ntativp capacity as officers of the company and for the sole 
purpose of verifying the signature of the company and never 
intended to assume any personal liability.

Promissory notes are signed in this way every day by officials 
of companies who would l>e surprised indeed to learn that, con­
trary to their intention and understanding, they were making 
themselves personally liable on such notes. The question of 
liability in such cases depends on see. 52 of the Dills of Kv 
change Act, R.S.C., 1906, ch. 119 which reads as follows : l For 
sub-sec. 1 of see. 52 see judgment of Perdue, C.J.M., p. 526.]

“2. In determining whether a signature on a bill is that of 
the principal or that of the agent by whose hand it is written, 
the construction most favourable to the validity of the instru­
ment shall be adopted.”

The question then to be determined is whether or not the 
individual defendants have added words to their signatures in 
dieating that they signed for and on behalf of a principal or 
in a representative capacity. The only added words in tin- 
promissory note sued on are “presedent” and “mgr.,” which 
the section says are insufficient to exempt them from personal 
liability. Even before the codification of the law relating to 
bills of exchange and promissory notes was necessary, in order 
to escape liability, that a person signing in a representative ca­
pacity, should, in addition to the words “director,” or some 
similar form of description, use words indicating that he signed 
in a representative capacity.

In Dutton v. Marsh, L.R. 6 (j.B. 361, at p. 364 (40 L.J. (tj.l>. 
175), Vockburn, C.J., delivering the judgment of the Court, 
said

“The effect of the authorities is clearly this, that where par­
ties in making a promissory note or accepting a bill, describe 
themselves as directors, or by any similar form of description,

540
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but do not state on the face of the document that it is on ac­
count or on behalf of those whom they might otherwise be con­
sidered as representing.—if they merely describe themselvis as 
directors, hut do not state that they are acting on behalf of the 
company,—they are individually liable.”

The ease of Union Hank of Canada v. Cross, 5 Alta. L.R. 489. 
a decision of the Full Court of Alberta, is on all fours with the 
present case. The promissory note there sued on was signed:—

“The Alberta Brick Co. Ltd.. XV. C. Harris, dir., XVm. M. 
Cross, mgr., F. C. Everard.”

Ilarvey, J., who delivered the judgment of the Court, review­
ed the authorities at length and held the individual defendants 
liable. With the opinion expressed by him in that case 1 am 
in entire agreement.

The appeal must be allowed with costs, the judgment below 
entered for the individual defendants must be set aside and 
judgment entered for the plaintiff with costs.

Dennirtoi n, J.A. :—This is an appeal from Galt, J., who 
gave judgment in favour of the plaintiff upon a promissory 
note against the defendant company but dismissed tin* action 
against the individual defendants, at the same time expressing 
some doubt and a desire that the matter might be considered 
in appeal. The plaintiff has accordingly appealed.

Formal evidence only was given at the trial. The signatures 
to the note were proved and the consideration. The question 
of liability depends upon the construction which the Court 
puts upon the contract disclosed by the note itself.

It is the form following: [See judgment of Perdue, C.J.M.,
|i. 536.]

The note bears the corporate seal of the company where mark­
ed “L.S.,” which by sec. 5 of the Bills of Exchange Act, R.S.C., 
1906, ch. 119, is sufficient as a signature by the company.

The signatures of the president and manager are therefore 
unnecessary in so far as the liability of the company is con­
cerned. They did not sign as witnesses for Mike Puhach signs 
in that capacity on the left-hand side of the note.

Section 52 of the Bills of Exchange Act is as follows [See 
ante, pp. 536, 540.]

By sec. 186 the provisions of the Act relating to bills of ex­
change in these particulars, apply to promissory notes.

There are here no words added to the signatures of Kroske 
and Isaryk to indicate that they are signing for or on behalf 
of a principal or in a representative character. There appear 
the words after their signatures “presedent” and “mgr.” re-
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spectively, indicating that they do fill a representative char­
acter which the statute says does not exempt them from per 
aonal liability.

In the case of Union Bank of Canada v. Cross, 5 Alta. L.R. 
489, the promissory note was in these words:—
“$1,000.00 Medicine Hat, Aug. 17, 1907.

Two months after date we promise to pay to the order of 
and at the Union Bank of Canada, Medicine Hat, the sum of 
one thousand dollars with interest at the rate of 8 per cent, 
per annum until due and 8 per cent, per annum after due un­
til paid. Value received.

The Alberta Brick Co., Ltd., W. C. Harris, dir., Wm. M. 
Cross, mgr., F. C. Everard.”

It was held by the Court en banc, Sifton, C.J., Harvey, 
Stuart and Beck, JJ., after careful examination of numerous 
authorities, that there was nothing on the face of the note to 
indicate that the individual signers of it were not to be per 
sonally liable, and that, therefore, they must be held liable, and 
they reversed the judgment of Scott, J., reported in 2 Alta. L.R. 
3. It may be remarked that in Maclaren on Bills, Notes and 
Cheques, 5th. ed. at p. 165, and in the judgment of El wood, .1., 
in Northern Electric d; Mfg. Co. v. Kasow (1914), 29 W.L.R. 
582, where Union Bank of Canada v. Cross, supra, is referred to 
as an authority, it is the judgment of the trial Judge which is 
indicated, the fact that it had been reversed on appeal being 
apparently overlooked.

The cases of Chapman v. Sandhurst, [1909] I K.B. 73, 78 
L.J. (K.B.) 84; [1909] 1 K.B. 927, 76 L.J. (K.B.) 654; and 
the case of Northern Electric <1; Mfg. Co. v. Kasow, supra, were 
relied on by the defendants. These were cases in which a rub­
ber stamp was used and it was by reason of that fact that the 
Courts were able to declare upon scrutiny of the notes them­
selves, that the signatures of the individuals written in the 
spaces included within the bounds of the stamp formed part 
and parcel of the signatures of the companies and were not, 
and did not purport to be signatures made in an individual 
capacity.

There is nothing of the kind in this case. Moreover there 
was no attempt made at the trial to shew that this was not the 
personal note of Kroske and Isaryk.

It was open to them by some such pleading as that dealt 
with in Wake v. Harr op (1862), 1 H. & U. 202, 158 E.li. 859, 
31 L.J. (Ex.) 451, 10 W.B. 626; Haskins v. Thomson, 10 N.iS. 
Wales W.N. 58; Thomson v. Feeley (1877), 41 U.C.Q.B. 229,
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at p. 236, and Crane v. Lavoie, 4 D.L.R. 175. 22 Man. L.R. 330, Man. 
to allege, and in support of it to establish, that it was the com- c A
mon intention of both parties to give and accept a note made ----
by the company alone, that the ne'e was given and accepted as Loczka 
the company’s note, and not as a joint note of the company, r,:th^nian 
Kroske and Isaryk; that in attempting to assert the contrary Farmers 
the plaintiff was committing a fraud upon the defendants and Cool>- r°- 
that the note should be reformed by inserting words to shew D.-miHimm, 
that they signed in a representative character on behalf of the J Ai 
company and not as individual makers, and that the form of 
the note was due to a mutual mistake.

This action being between the original parties to the note, it 
was open to them to shew, and to the Court to give effect to, 
the real contract and by means of its equitable jurisdiction to 
reform the legal contract which appears on the face of the 
note. Had the note been negotiated so as to bring in holders 
in due course, without notice of such equities, it would no doubt 
be too late to do this, for in such ease the statutory and com­
mon-law rights of the holders would prevail. There was no 
attempt made to plead or prove anything of the kind. Kroske 
and Isaryk did not suggest in evidence that they were not 
liable. They are content to have their liability determined by 
a strict adjudication upon the legal contract set forth in the 
written document.

That being so, the Court must deduce the intention of the 
parties from what appears on the face of the note, and in 
order to ascertain whether it is a joint no* or the note of the 
company alone, the question should be asked—Is this a com­
posite signature or are there here sever.il signatures? If in­
tended to be a composite signature son ning more than is here 
found is necessary. The coupling of signatures by a bracket 
or rubber stamp, or the introduction of the words “on beliah 
of,” “for,” “by,” “per,” “per proc” or words of the like 
import, would indicate that the signatures were in reality 
but one signature and that the signers were mere scribes on 
behalf of the company. In the absence of any indication that 
they intended to absolve themselves from personal liability the 
statute quoted, which codifies the common law, clearly applies, 
and in my judgment Kroske and Isaryk have made themselves 
parties to this note in their individual capacity.

The fact that the highest Appellate Court of a neighbouring 
Province has given a decision on a point of commercial law re­
lating to the validity of negotiable instruments makes it de­
sirable that there should be uniformity of decision when the
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Can.

8.C.
same point arises in this province, and in my view, ami with 
respect, I think Union Hank of Canada v. Cross, supra, was 
rightly decided by the Full Court of Alberta, and is not dis 
tinguishable from the ease at Bar.

I would allow the appeal with costs.
Appeal allowed.

CANADIAN GOVERNMENT MERCHANT MARINE v. CANADIAN 
TRADING Co.

Supreme Court of Canada. Idinyton. Duff, Anylin, Brodeur and 
Miqnault, JJ. June 17, J9JJ.

Contracts (|IVB—830)—A*'FBki<:i«tmknt — Ships to iik si pplikii 
Ships v.niikr construction—Failure to deliver—Contract con­
ditional ON SERVICE AND SAII.INCS OF STEAMERS—CONSTRUCTION 
—DKI.AY WITHIN CONTEMPLATION OF PARTIES — NECESSITY III 
OUARIHNO ACA1NST IN CONTRACT—LIABILITY.

A contract whereby the defendant was to provide two vessels in 
which it was to carry lumber of the plaintiff from Vancouver, 
B.C., to Australian ports, contained a provision that “This con­
tract ... is entered into conditional upon the continuance of the 
steamship company's service and the sailings of its steamers lie- 
bet ween the ports named herein"; owing to delay on the part of 
the contractor who was constructing the ships at the time the con­
tract was entered into, the defendant Was unable to provide the 
two vessels named or either of them to receive the lumber.

The Court held, affirming the judgment of the British Columbia 
Court of Appeal (1922), 67 D.L.R. 485, that the defendant was not 
freed from liability by this clause, which only covered the aban­
donment of the company's undertaking and a complete cessation 
of its service and did not cover a merely temporary interruption 
in the service, and as it was known to the parties that the ves 
sels were still under construction, although merely completed, 
when the contract was made, that the delay should have been 
anticipated and guarded against in the contract in order to relieve 
the defendant from liability.

rTaylor v. Caldwell (1863), 3 B. & S. 826, 122 E.R. 309. dis- 
tinguished; Bailey v. De Crespiqny (1869), L.R. 4 Q.B. 180; 
Lazarus v. Cairn Line Steamships (1912), 28 Times L.R. 244; 
Hamlyn v. Wood, [1891] 2 Q.B. 488, applied.]

Appeal by defendant from the judgment of the British 
Columbia Court of Appeal (1922), 67 D.L.R. 485, reversing the 
trial judgment in an action for damages for breach of an af­
freightment contract. Affirmed.

D. L. McCarthy, K.C., for appellant.
E. V. Davis, K.C., for l " nt.
Idinoton, J. :—The respondent sued to recover damages for 

breaches of two contracts which were respectively made on the 
19th and 24th of March, 1920, by the appellant to carry lumber 
from Vancouver to Australia ; of which that quantity named in 
the earlier contract was to be received early in April of said

6427
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year ; and that in the later contract was to he received in April 
or May of same year.

The respondent incurred considerable expense preparatory to 
transforming its part of the contract, by assembling the lumber 
to he re loaded, and lost part of a bargain it had made for the 
sale and delivery of said lumber in Australia, but the appellant 
failed to produce the vessels named, or either of them, to receive 
the said lumber.

The defence set up is that the vessels were not finished in 
time and that the respondent knew when these contracts were 
entered into that they had not been quite finished.

It relies on the following clause in each of the contracts:—
“This contract is not transferable and is entered into con­

ditional upon the continuance of the steamship company’s ser­
vice and the sailing of its steamers between the ports named 
herein. If, at any time, in the judgment of the steamship com­
pany, or its authorised agents, conditions of war or hostilities, 
actual or threatened, are such as to make it unsafe or imprudent 
for its vessels to sail, or if the vessels of the company shall be 
taken, sold, or chartered for the use of any Government, or in 
the event of loss of, or damage to, any of the vessels of the 
company, or vessels chartered by them, resulting from actions 
of an enemy, perils of the sea, or other cause, the steamship 
company may discontinue or curtail its service; and in that event 
the steamship company shall be relieved from any liability here­
under, except that if its service be only curtailed the shipper 
shall be entitled to the carriage of a proportionate part of this 
contract.”

it contends that under the first sentence 1 quote it was, under 
the circumstances, discharged from all liability.

I cannot so construe the said conditions, nor can I read the 
first sentence as at all intended to excuse the appellant unless 
the failure to produce either of the vessels named was the result 
of its having fallen within some one or other of the conditions 
set forth in the second sentence above quoted, which is not pre­
tended to have been the case.

On the contrary, the only excuse given at the trial was the 
failure, through a petty t between the contractor who
had the contract, and those who had let the contract to him, 
about something in regard to which he ultimately yielded.

A further pretence is set up that a strike, or threatened strike, 
was to blame in part for the delay.

Resting upon this failure of the contractor the appellant in­
vokes the doctrine of impossibility upon which the case of Tay- 
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lor v. Caldwell (1863), 3 B. & S. 826, 122 E.R. 309, 32 L.J. 
(Q.B.) 164, 11 W.R. 726, was decided.

I do not think that can be made applicable herein unless we 
are to so extend the operation of the doctrine as to render al­
most any and every conceivable contract of little value.

And especially so does that appear to me to be the case when 
each of the contracts here does absolutely and imperatively 
provide the implied undertaking on the part of said appellant 
that unless upon the happening of any of the said events named 
the vessel named would be available at the time named. And 
yet at the same time that it provides for its protection the con­
ditions above set forth, it fails to anticipate the possibility of 
so common a condition of things as a strike against which it is 
usual to provide if such protection desired.

The appeal, I think, fails, and should be dismissed with costs.
But I see the Chief Justice and tialliher, J.A., see in to think 

assessment of damages needed, yet the formal judgment in­
dicates the contrary. (67 D.L.R. 485).

If any error that better be spoken to.
Duff, J.:—I think the contention of the respondent company 

as to the construction of the contract must be given effect to. 
It is a commercial contract. Any plain man reading the second 
paragraph would read the first and second sentences toget In l­
and treat the first as subject to the qualifications contained in 
the second. The distinction between constitutive conditions and 
resolutory conditions upon which the appellant relies is sadly 
out of place here. In a practical business sense, if the sweep­
ing scope which the appellant gives to the first sentence is con­
ceded, then the second sentence, or nearly the whole of it. is 
useless and out of place. In such circumstances, it is legitimate 
to restrict the generality of the first sentence by reading the 
two together. And it is sufficient to reach the conclusion that 
such may be the proper construction of the document. An 
ambiguous document is no protection, as Lord Loreburn, L.I., 
said. Nelson Line (Liverpool) v. Nelson, [1908] A.C. 16, at p. 
20, 77 L.J. (K.B.) 82, 97 L.T. 812, 24 Times L.R. 114.

The second ground of appeal relied upon is that the prin­
ciple of Taylor v. Caldwell, 3 B. & S. 826, 122 E.R. 309, and 
analogous cases applies and that, in conformity with this prin­
ciple, the contracts should have been held to be subject to an 
implied condition that the ships should be in existence and lit 
for sailing at the time when the date of sailing arrived, and if 
that should fail through no part of the appellants the appellants 
were to be excused from performance.
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The principle of Taylor v. Caldwell has unquestionably been 
extended to cases in which parties having entered into a 
contract in terms unqualified, it is found when the time for per­
formance arrives, that the state of things contemplated by both 
parties as essential to performance according to the true intent 
of both of them fails to exist: Krell v. Henry, [1903] 2 K.B. 
740, 72 L.J. (K.B.) 794, 19 Times L.R. 711; Chandler v. Web- 
Ster, [1904] 1 K.B. 493, 73 L.J. (K.B.) 401, 52 W.R. 290, 20 
Times L.R. 222. For the purpose of deciding whether a par­
ticular case falls within the principle you must consider the 
nature of the contract and the circumstances in which it was 
made in order to see from the nature of the contract whether 
the parties must have made their bargain on the footing that a 
particular thing or state of facts should be in existence when 
the time for performance should occur. Tamplin S.S. Co. v. 
Anglo-Mexican Petroleum, [1916] 2 A.C. 397, and if reasonable 
persons situated as the parties were must have agreed that the 
promissor’s contractual obligations should come to an end if 
that state of circumstances should not exist then a term to that 
effect may be implied: Dahl v. Nelson, Donkin cl- Co. (1881), 0 
App. Cas. 38 at p. 59, 50 L.J. (Ch.) 411, 29 W.R. 543, 44 L.T. 
381. But it is most important to remember that no such term 
should be implied when it is possible to hold that reasonable men 
could have contemplated the taking the risk of the circumstances 
being what they, in fact, proved to be when the time for per­
formance arrived: Scottish Navigation Co.’s case, (Scottish 
Navigation v. Souter; Admiral Shipping v. Weidner, et al), 
[1917] 1 K.B. 222, 86 L.J. (K.B.) 336, 33 Times L.R. 71, 115 
L.T. 812.

The doctrine of English law is that generally a promissor, 
except to the extent to which his promise is qualified, warrants 
his ability to perform it, and this notwithstanding he may there­
by make himself answerable for the conduct of other persons.

The seeming rigour of this doctrine is mitigated in the case 
of commercial contracts by the application of the principle 
above referred to, which rests upon the assumption, as Lord 
Watson said in Dahl v. Nelson, 6 App. Case, at 59, that, in 
relation to possibilities in the contemplation of the contract but 
not actually present to the minds of the parties, the parties in­
tending to stipulate for what would be fair and reasonable, 
having regard to their mutual interests and to the main ob­
jects of the contract.

The contracts were made on March 19 and provided for ship­
ment at the end of April or the beginning of May. Is there
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anything in the eireumstanees affording a ground for saying 
that the appellants and respondents as reasonable men could 
not have contracted on the footing that the appellants should 
assume the risk of what subsequently happened ?

It is important to remember that there is no evidence to in­
dicate that the delay was due to any extraordinary occurrence, 
to anything outside the ordinary course of events. There is a 
suggestion of a strike and there is a suggestion of a dispute 
between the Government and the contractors who were building 
the ships. The respondents were not aware of the precise re 
lations between the appellant and the contractors and were en­
titled to assume that the contractors in entering into the con­
tract were duly taking into account the possibilities incidental 
to these relations. There was nothing in the facts known to 
them making it unreasonable from the respondents’ point of 
view that they should expect an undertaking as touching the 
date of sailing unqualified, at all events, in respect of any of 
the matters which have been suggested as accounting for tie* 
appellants’ default. Real impossibility of performance, arising 
from destruction of the ships by fire, for example, would have 
presented a different case. There is nothing in the evidence 
inconsistent with the hypothesis that the impossibility which no 
doubt did arise at the last moment was due to lack of energy 
on part of the Government or to supineness or indifference on 
part of the appellants. Impossibility arising from such causes 
is not the impossibility contemplated by the case of Taylor v. 
Caldwell, supra, see Hick v. Raymond and Reid, [1893] A.C. 
22 at p. 37, 62 L.J. (Q.B.) 98, 41 W.R. 384, 68 L.T. 175.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Anglin, J.:—The Court of Appeal, reversing the judgment 

of Gregory, J., who dismissed the action, awarded the plaintiff 
$7,701.93 for breach of a contract of affreightment. (67 D.L.R. 
485).

The defendant failed to provide two vessels in which it had 
contracted to carry lumber of the plaintiff from British Colum­
bian to Australian ports. The contractor for the construction 
of the vessels delayed delivery of them to the owner — the 
Dominion Government—which was consequently unable to turn 
them over to the defendant, an operating company.

Two distinct defences and grounds of appeal are preferred : —
(a) that by an express term of each of the two contracts of 
affreightment, performance of it by the defendant is made con­
tingent upon the named ship sailing on the contract voyage ;
(b) that, if performance was not excused by the express term
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relied upon, it was an implied condition of the defendant's ob­
ligation that the named vessels should be available for the ser­
vice.

(a) The express provision on which the defendant relies reads 
as follows:—

“This contract ... is entered into conditional upon the 
continuance of the steamship company's service and the sailings 
of its steamers between the ports named herein.”

I agree with the construction put on this clause by Mr. 
Davis. “Conditional upon the continuance of the steamship 
company's service” covers the possibility of the abandonment 
of the company’s undertaking and the complete cessation of its 
service. If the word “service” be qualified by the phrase “be­
tween the ports named herein,” it would mean the cessation of 
such service between those ports. I incline, however, to the 
former construction. This member of the clause, in my opinion, 
is not open to the view that it covers any merely temporary in­
terruption of the service such as that which actually occurred. 
The word used is “continuance” and not “continuity,” which 
the construction urged by the defendant would require. “Con­
ditional upon the continuance ... of the sailings of its 
steamers between the ports named” provides, I think, for the 
service between these ports being abandoned although the com­
pany’s vessels should be placed on other routes. The phrase 
“between the ports named” gives the cue to the scope and pur­
pose of this member of the provision. Galliher, J.A., very suc­
cinctly states the purview of the two members of the clause now 
under consideration in these words:—“I think it simply means 
that if the company went out of business or ceased sailing ves­
sels between these ports, then the contract was off.”

Neither member of the clause relates merely to an interrup­
tion in the continuity of the company’s service between Canada 
and Australia due to the vessel named in either contract being 
temporarily unavailable. I am quite satisfied that an omission 
of a schedule trip or trips due to that fact is not within the pur­
view of the express provision of the contracts on which the de­
fendant relies.

(b) Neither, in my opinion, do the circumstances admit of 
the implication of a term excusing performance because the 
Government failed to deliver to the defendant the two ships 
for carriage by which the contracts were made.

In addition to the stipulation already mentioned, each of the 
contracts expressly provides that performance by the defendant 
shall be excused in several events—loss of, or damage to, its
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vessels, suspension of service owing to hostilities actual or 
threatened, and requisition of its vessels by the government, li 
may be that the parties should he held in this enumeration to 
have exhausted the conditions on which the defendant was to 
he excused for not fulfilling its contract : Jlorlock v. Beal, 
1191fi | 1 A.C. 486. at p. 506, 85 L.J. (K.R.) 602, 32 Times L.R. 
251, 114 L.T. 193; but see Nwkoll il* Knight v. Ashton, Eldrul<i> 
<(• Co.. [1901] *2 K.R. 199 si pi». 184, 140. To L.J. (K.R.) 600 
49 W.R. 513, 17 Times L.R. 467.

It was known to the contracting parties that the vessels in 
question were still under construction, although nearly com­
pleted when the contracts were made. The following statement 
of the law by Ilannen, J., in Bail g v. l)c Crespigng (18691. 
L.R, 4 Q.B. jS0, at p. 185, 38 L.J. (Q.B.) 98, 17 W.R. 494. is 
generally recognised as authoritative :—

“We have first to consider what is the meaning of the 
covenant which the parties have entered into. There can lx; 
no doubt that a man may by an absolute contract bind himself 
to perform things which, subsequently, become impossible, or to 
pay damages for the non-performance, and this construction is 
to be put upon an unqualified undertaking where the event 
which causes the impossibility was or might have been anti­
cipated and guarded against in the contract, or where the im­
possibility arises from the act or default of the promissor."

Subject to certain expressed conditions, none of which covers 
this case, the defendant bound itself by contracts absolute in 
form to transport the plaintiffs goods by named vessels at a 
stated time. 1 am not disposed to take the view that this 
should be regarded as a case of “impossibility arising from any 
act or default of the promissor.” Rut I find it difficult to con­
ceive that delay in the delivery of the vessels was not a con­
tingency which “was or might have been anticipated and 
guarded against in the contract”—that it was an event that 
cannot reasonably be said to have been in the contemplation 
of the parties at the date of the contract : Kt'ell v. Henr i, 
119031 2 K.R. 740, at p. 751. If it was, having failed to pro­
vide for it, a term containing an additional qualification of the 
defendant’s contractual obligation, in order to cover default 
due to non-availability of the vessels due to this cause, should 
not be implied. Such a term will not be implied merely because 
the Court may think it reasonable, but only if the Court think 
it necessarily implied in the nature of the contract the parties 
have made. Lazarns v. Cairn Line of Steamships (1912), 28
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Times L.R. 244. 106 L.T. 378; Hamlyn if* Co. v. Wood, [1891] 2 
Q.B. 488. at pp. 491-2, 60 L.J. (Q.B.) 734, 40 W.R. 24.

If, on the other hand, delay in delivery of the vessels was 
a contingency which neither was in fact, nor might have been, 
anticipated, the Court should not imply the term that the con­
tracts will thereby be put an end to without enquiring what 
the parties, as reasonable men, would presumably have agreed 
upon had that contingency been present to their minds ; Dahl 
v. Nelson, Donkin it* Co, 6 App. Cas. 38, at p. 59; Tempi in 8.8. 
Co. v. Anglo-Mcxican Petroleum, 11916] 2 A.C. 397, at p. 404, 
85 L.J. (K.B.) 1389, 32 Times L.R. 677. I find it difficult to 
believe that the plaintiff would have assented or could have 
been expected to assent to such a term as the defendant asks 
to have implied. Why should the plaintiff be expected to as­
sume the entire risk of the consequences of the defendant’s 
default, however innocent? The case, in my opinion, is not 
one for the application of the doctrine of Taylor v. Caldwell, 
3 B. & S. 326, 122 E.R. 309, and kindred authorities relied 
upon.

1 would for these reasons dismiss this appeal.
Brodeur, J. The Canadian Trading Co., in March, 1920, 

entered into two contracts of affreightment with the Canadian 
Government Marine for loading with timber two ships of the 
latter called the “Inventor” and the “Prospector” and plying 
between Canada and Australia. The shipment was to be made 
in early April, 1920, on the “Inventor” and in April or May, 
1920, on the “Prospector.”

When the contracts were made, the ships were under con­
struction and should have been nearly completed. But for 
reasons which are not clearly shewn in the evidence, they were 
not delivered to the appellant company to permit the Canadian 
Trading Co. to load its timber at the time stipulated in the 
contracts.

The Canadian Trading Co. now claims damages from the 
Canadian Merchant Marine for not having fulfilled its ob­
ligation.

The defendant company pleaded that the contracts were not 
absolute ; that it was not bound to produce the ships in any 
event ; but that its obligation was made with the express or 
implied condition that the actual sailing of the contract ships 
should take place.

The defendant appellant company relies on a clause in the 
contract which declares that “This contract is not transferable 
and is entered into conditional upon the continuance of the
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steamship company’s service ami the sailing of its steamers be­
tween the ports named therein.”

These provisions of the contract were embodied in the d>* 
fendant ’s own form and they are evidently put in for its own 
protection. They should not he extended and should he con­
strued in their ordinary meaning.

The breach of contract which is charged upon the company 
defendant has reference to delays in sailing. The contracts 
contemplated in the condition above quoted a cessation of the 
service and the discontinuance of the sailing. No such thing has 
occurred. The company continued its service and the sailings 
went on without any real interruption.

The condition which I quoted is formed of two sentences 
which should be read together. They carry out the same idea, 
viz., a cessation of the appellant’s service and not a merely 
temporary one : Eld-endie S.S. Co. v. Horthwick, [1905] A.C. 
93, 74 L.j. (K.B.) 338, 53 W.R. 401. 21 Times L.H. 277.

The appellant company contends that there was impossibility 
on its part to carry out its contract and that there was an 
implied condition relieving it from responsibility for the per­
forming of the contract.

This defence of impossibility rests upon an implied condition. 
The case of Taylor v. Caldwell, 3 B. & 8. 826, 122 E.R. 309. 
is to the effect that if the impossibility arises subsequently to 
the making of the contract, it will he no excuse if in its nature 
the performance might have been possible. In this case, there 
is no evidence that the performance was impossible. The vessel 
could have been delivered on time and nothing in the evidence 
shews the impossibility to which reference is made in the Taylor 
v. Caldwell case.

Besides the circumstances causing the impossibility could 
have been very easily foreseen when the contract was made. 
Many conditions were stipulated and the strike which is alleged 
likely existed at the time the contract was made and so pro­
vision could have been made in the contract. The ships at 
the time the contract was made were already late in delivery, 
and in the light of the following decisions: Lebeau-pin v. Crispin 
d Co., [1920] 2 K.B. 714, 89 L.J. (K.B.) 1024, 36 Times L.H. 
739 ; Haily v. De Crespigny, L.R. 4 Q.B. 180; Krell v. Henry, 
[1903] 2 K.B. 740, I come to the conclusion there was no im­
plied condition which would relieve the appellant company from 
liability.

Under those circumstances the appeal should be dismissed 
with costs.
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Mignavi.t, .1.:—The two contracts in question, for the breach 
of which the appellant was declared liable by the Court of 
Appeal of British Columbia (67 D.L.H. 485) were for the ship­
ment of lumber by two named ships, the “Canadian Inventor” 
and the “Canadian Prospector,” then, to the knowledge of the 
parties, under construction for tin* Canadian Government. At 
the time of the contracts, the vessels were nearing completion, 
and no doubt the parties thought that they would be ready to 
take on their cargo and sail at the time mentioned in the con­
tracts. However, trouble ensued lietween the Government and 
the ship builders and the vessels were not ready in time. The 
respondent sues to recover damages by reason of the appellant's 
failure to have these ships ready for loading.

The defence was that the appellant was relieved from liability 
under the conditions of the contracts. These conditions were that 
the contracts were conditional upon the continuance of the steam­
ship company’s service and the sailing of its steamers between 
the ports named. The contracts also stated that if, at any time, 
in the judgment of the steamship company, or its authorised 
agents, conditions of war or hostilities, actual or threatened, 
were such as to make it unsafe or imprudent for its vessels to 
sail, or if the vessels of the company should be taken, sold or 
chartered for the use of any Government, or in the event of loss 
of, or damage to, any of the vessels of the company, or vessels 
chartered by them, resulting from actions of an enemy, perils of 
the sea, or other cause, the steamship company might discon­
tinue or curtail its service; and in that event the company 
should be free from liability, except that if its service were 
only curtailed, the shipper would be entitled to the carriage 
of a proportional part of the contract.

The appellant relies on the first condition as to the con­
tinuance of the steamship company’s service and the sailing 
of its steamers between the ports named, and, in the alternative, 
on an alleged implied condition that if, without any default on 
its part, the contract ships were not in existence when the date 
arrived for the performance of the contract, then the appellant 
was to be excused from performance.

As to the express condition, the trial Judge was of opinion 
that it relieved the appellant from liability, but his judgment 
was set aside by the Court of Appeal. After much considera­
tion, I do not think that this condition can be said to apply to 
the contingency which happened. It expressly refers to a dis­
continuance of the company’s service and sailing of its steamers 
between the ports named. This would not comprise a tem-
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porarv suspension of sailing other than one caused by one of
the contingencies mentioned in the rest of the clause, conditions 
of war, etc. Much less would it include the failure under these 
contracts to have the ship ready at the sailing time, for if it 
was known to both parties that it was nearing completion, the 
appellant certainly considered that it would be completed in 
time, and the non-completion of the ship or its failure to lie 
ready was surely not meant by the parties to he guarded against 
by the general clause as to discontinuance of service. Such a 
contingency as happened could have been specially provided 
for, and I do not think that it is now open to the appellant to 
say that it was covered by a general clause like the one in ques- 
tion. And it certainly does not come within the language of 
this clause reasonably construed.

Whether the implied condition relied on by the appellant re­
lieves it from liability is a question of much nicety. Blackburn. 
J., in Taylor v. Caldwell, laid down a rule which is accepted 
as settled law. lie said (.'î B. & S. at pp. 833-834)

“Where from the nature of the contract it a| pears that tin* 
parties must from the beginning have known that it could not 
be fulfilled unless, when the time for the fulfillment of the 
contract arrived, some particular specified thing continued to 
exist, so that, when entering into the contract, they must have 
contemplated such continuing existence as the foundation of 
what was to be done; there, in the absence of any express or 
implied warranty that the thing shall exist, the contract i> 
not to be construed as a positive contract, but as subject to an 
implied condition that the parties shall be excused in case, be­
fore breach, performance becomes impossible from the perishing 
of the thing without default of the contractor.”

Blackburn, J., it is interesting to note, referred to the civil 
law and to Pothier, Obligation», No. U68, partie 3, ch. 6, art. ». 
as laying down the rule that the debtor corporis certi is freed 
from the obligation wrhen the thing has perished neither by Ins 
act, nor by his neglect, and before he is in default, unless by 
some stipulation he has taken on himself the risk of the par­
ticular misfortune which has occurred.

It seems to me—and that is certainly the rule of the civil 
law ils 1 understand it—that the contingency which relieves a 
party from performing a contract on the ground of impossi­
bility of performance, is an unforeseen event. I take it that 
this is the rule laid down by llannen, J., in Baily v. DiL'ns- 
piyny, L.R. 4 Q.B. 180 at p. 185.

“There cun be no doubt that a man may by an absolute eon-
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tract bind himself to perform things which subsequently become 
impossible, or to pay damages for the non-performance, and 
this construction is to be put upon an unqualified undertaking, 
where the event which causes the impossibility was or might 
have been anticipated and guarded against in the contract, or 
where the impossibility arises from the act or default of the 
promissor. But, where the event is of such a character that it 
cannot reasonably be supposed to have been in the contempla­
tion of the contracting parties when the contract was made, 
they will not be held bound by general words, which, though 
large enough to include, were not used with reference to the 
possibility of the particular contingency which afterwards hap­
pens.”

So that if the event which causes the impossibility could have 
been anticipated and guarded against in the contract, the party 
in default cannot claim relief because it has happened.

The case of Xiekoll <V Knight v. Ashton, Eldridge «(• Co., 
[1901] 2 K.B. 126, is an interesting one, and 1 have derived 
much benefit from the consideration 1 have given to it. There, 
a cargo had been sold to be shipped by the steamship “Orlando” 
at an Egyptian port during January, 1900, and to be delivered 
to the plaintiffs in the United Kingdom. The contract provided 
that, in case of the prohibition of export, blockade or hostilities 
preventing shipment, the contract or any unfulfilled part should 
he cancelled. In December, 1899, the “Orlando” was stranded 
through perils of the sea without default on the defendant’s 
part, and was so much damaged as to render it impossible for 
her to arrive at the port of loading in time to load during 
January. It was held by A. L. Smith, M.R., and Homer, L.J.. 
Vaughan Williams, L.J., dissenting, that the contract should be 
construed as subject to an implied condition that, if at the time 
for its performance the “Orlando” should, without default on 
the defendant’s part, have ceased to exist as a ship fit for the 
purpose of shipping the cargo, the contract should be treated 
as at an end.

This case may be distinguished from the one at Bar in that 
the stranding of a particular ship can reasonably be said to be 
an unforeseen event, for although any ship is exposed to the 
perils of the sea the stranding of a particular ship mentioned in 
a contract, so as to prevent it from taking on its cargo at the 
specified time, is certainly something which can be said to be 
unforeseen. But here the appellant undertook to carry a cargo 
on a ship nearing completion. It could certainly have been 
foreseen that something might occur in the ship yard, especial-
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lv in these days of labour troubles, to delay completion, and 
by making an absolute contract without providing against tin- 
contingency of non-completion in time, the appellant, in mv 
opinion, assumed the risk of this contingency. The respondent 
prepared all its cargo for the ship in time, and would be sub­
ject to considerable loss if the appellant were relieved from the 
consequences of non-performance. Such a condition, if it had 
been stipulated, might not have been accepted by the respondent, 
which possibly would have preferred to ship its lumber through 
another steamship company. And I think that the risk of such 
a contingency cannot l»e imposed on the respondent as an ini 
plied condition now that the loss has occurred.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Appeal (Iism ixs* <1.

O'NEAL v. VERNON ERVIT ITXION.
Yale Count}/ Court, British Columbia, Swanson, Co. Ct. J.

May 27, 1922.
Sale ( g IV—91)—Sai.k op wheat — Both parties in ignorance or 

Wheat Boaki» regulations — Completion or contract—Y> \
IM)R SATISFIED WITH PRICE—Sl'HHEQUENT ACTION FOR ADDITIONAL 
HI M ON (IROVND THAT WHEAT BOARD RECIVLATIONH NOT COMPLIED

A plaintiff who has sold wheat to a union of which he Is a 
member, and which has never had a license under the Canadian 
Wheat Board regulations, although subsequently to the sale of 
the wheat, an interim permit was issued; the vendor being per­
fectly satisfied at the time of sale with the price received, 
will not afterwards be allowed an additional sum on the ground 
that the purchaser had not complied with the Order in Council 
and the regulations of the Wheat Board framed thereunder, and 
that had it done so he would have received more for his wheat.

Action to recover an additional sum for wheat sold by the 
plaintiff to the defendant union on the ground that he would 
have been entitled to this sum if the Wheat Hoard regulations 
had been complied with. Action dismissed.

The facts are fully set out in the judgment delivered.
//. C. Detieck, for plaintiff; W, 11. 1). Ladner, for defendant.
Swanson, Co. Ct. .1.:—This is a very novel case to decide. 

Broadly speaking, I am not impressed with the justice of tin- 
plaintiff’s claim. The plaintiff sold 439 sacks of wheat Septem­
ber 8, 1919, 53,930 lbs. at $65 per ton—$1,752.70 to defendant 
union, of which plaintiff is a member. The deal was made by

Editor’s Note.—This Is the first case of Its kind to come before 
the Courts oi British Columbia, and It Is believed that no such case 
has arisen In the Prairie Provinces.
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plaintiff with Piper representing the union. Everythin*? was 
straight and above hoard. The plaintiff was entirely satisfied 
with the price which was paid to him by defendant. O’Neal 
says there was not much conversation between him and Piper 
at time of first sale of wheat. O’Neal says there was some con­
versation about the Wheat Hoard apparently of a general 
nature. Plaintiff states that he said to Piper that he had seen 
in the Vancouver Province that tin* price of wheat would he 
$2.101/o per bushel delivered at elevator in Vancouver, B.C. 
Piper (he states) said “I am giving you more than the Govern­
ment price,” that he had been paying $72 per ton, and the 
Government had ‘‘yanked him up on it.” Plaintiff says that he 
said to Piper, “How in the world can the Canada Wheat Board 
run this thing if they declare a dividend, and everyone is buy­
ing all over the Dominion?” and that Piper said he didn’t 
know. O’Neal said he knew there was such a thing in existence 
then as a Wheat Board; apparently he had no knowledge what­
ever then of such a thing as a ‘‘participation certificate.” The 
defendant union never had a license under the Canadian Wheat 
Board regulations.

Shortly afterwards (O’Neal says) lie was in defendant’s 
premises ami Piper said to him “I might have to call on you 
for some of that money hack.” There is one clause in this 
Order in Council that he was basing his claim on, and that he 
had written a letter to the party to whom he had sob I the 
wheat at the coast. Later on O’Neal made a further sale of 
wheat to defendant union, October 11, 1919, 138 sacks—16,440 
lbs. wheat at $67 per ton-$300.75. Nothing was said then as 
to the quality of the wheat. It was No. 1 Northern (O'Neal 
says). O’Neal was paid in full for his wheat at above rates, 
$6.7 and $67 per ton, and was apparently perfectly satisfied 
with the deal, lie received total amount of $2,40:1.46 for his 
wheat.

Plaintiff never received any “participation certificates” on 
sale of his wheat, lie says that when he was laid up in the 
Vancouver Hospital that following winter he read in the 
Vancouver papers about these ‘‘participation certificates.” 
When the plaintiff went to Vernon in the spring he went to see 
Piper and told him about this. Piper said to him that there 
wasn’t anything coming to him, ‘‘as they hadn't joined up” 
(presumably meaning that defendant had not taken out a 
license under the Wheat Board). Apparently on September 29, 
1919, an “interim permit” was issued by the Canadian Wheat 
Board to Vernon Fruit Union (but never a license). This
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“permit” was signed by someone as secretary, but no one sign­
ing on behalf of the “chairman” or “ass’t chairman.”

The whole transaction was a straightforward sale of wheat by 
O’Neal to the union, apparently in substantial ignorance of the 
Canadian Wheat Board regulations on both sides.

Now plaintiff comes into this Court on his plaint bearing date 
November 17, 1921, and demands payment of a sum largely in 
excess of what he was perfectly satisfied at the time to accept. 
He claims $775.19. He claims that had the defendant complied 
with the Order in Council, the regulations of the Wheat Board 
framed thereunder, he would have received more for his wheat. 
He claims he would have been paid throughout at the rate of 
$(18.50 per ton, making an additional sum claimed as now owing 
in that particular alone of $106.70; in addition he says that he 
would have been entitled to an allowance for sacks fixed by the 
Board of $3 per ton, $105.55; ami in particular (and chiefly) 
he claims that he would have l>een entitled to “participation 
certificates” at 48c per bushel, $562.94, making a total of 
$775.19.

Mr. Ladner argues that no cause of action has been estab­
lished, that none is conferred by the Wheat Board regulations, 
that the matter is purely one of contract, that the plaintiff got 
paid in full for what he bargained for, and that it is unjust, at 
this late date, to prosecute this claim, when all the money from 
the wheat crop of 1919 has been paid out by the Wheat Board 
to producers, who have surrendered their participation certifi­
cates to the Board before December 31, 1920. Mr. Ladner 
argues that the only recourse that can l>e had against the defend­
ant is to enforce payment of the heavy penalty provided for by 
Regulation 4—August 14, 1919. This, of course, will be of no 
avail to plaintiff, as the penalty would be payable to the Crown.

A further argument for defence is that the defendant, being 
incorporated under the Co-operative Association Act, R.S.B.C. 
1911, eh. 48, cannot l>e sued by plaintiff (a member of the Ver­
non Fruit Union), and that the only tribunal open to the 
plaintiff is under sec. 30, viz., by arbitration, and that accord­
ingly this Court has no jurisdiction, that the defendant cannot 
submit to the jurisdiction of this Court, voluntarily or involun­
tarily, notwithstanding the way in which any pleadings may 
he drawn, quoting Hudson Bay Ins. Co. and Walker (1914), 16 
D.L.R. 275, 19 B.C.R. 87; Brand v. National Ins. (1918), 41 
D.L.R. 412.

Mr. DeBeck for plaintiff argues that the defendant has 
submitted to the jurisdiction of this Court by entering its dis-
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pute note, and by pleading as it has pleaded, quoting 1 Hals, 
article on arbitration, para. 956 : Hughes v. Hand-in-11 and Ins. 
!'o. (1883), 3 C.L.T. 6(K). See also *Fire Insurance Policy Act, 
R.S.B.C. 1911, sec. 16, schedule ; also Hudson Bag Ins. Co. and 
Walker, supra. Mr. DeBeek argues that the Contract of Sale 
is illegal, being in violation of the Wheat Board regulations, 
and that his client is not in pari delicto, lie quotes Leake on 
Contracts, 5th ed., p. 549.

It seems to me that Mr. DeBeek’s strongest position would be 
to urge that the breach of the statute (that is the Order in 
Council) consitutes the plaintiff’s cause of action ; but he has 
not so argued. The regulations of the Wheat Board were pro­
mulgated by Orders in Council framed under the War measures. 
October, 1914, and have undoubtedly the same force as statutory 
provisions. Tt is this phase of the case (not argued before me 
by counsel at all) which has given me some anxiety. The Court 
of Appeal have dealt with this interesting problem in a ease of 
negligence (involving, however, a very different set of facts) 
arising under the Factory and Workshop Act, 1878, eh. 16, and 
189], ch. 75, through the neglect to securely fence dangerous 
machinery. Groves v. Lord Wimhorne, [1898] 2 Q.B. 402, 67 
L..Ï. (Q.B.) 862.

It has also been held that an action will lie against a Justice 
of the Peace for neglect of his statutory duty (a ministerial 
function) to transmit to the County (District) Court the con­
viction made by him for tin* purposes of an appeal therefrom, 
if the appeal is dismissed because of the conviction and deposi­
tions not being before the Court. Kowalenko v. Lewis and 
Le pine (1921), 65 D.L.R. 273, 36 Can. Cr. Cas. 119, 14 K.L.R. 
531, a decision of the Court of Appeal of Saskatchewan.

These cases turn on quite different sets of facts from those in 
the case before me, which is one originating at least in contract, 
and not in tort. This case is probably the first of its kind in 
this Province. I understand no such case has arisen in Western 
Canada. It is one certainly primer impressionis, as Powys, ,T., 
said in Ashby v. White (2 Ld. Raym. 938, 92 B.R. 126), at p. 
248 of the report of this case in Smith’s Leading Cases, vol. 1, 
ed. 10, decided in the second year of Good Queen Anne’s reign. 
True, there is no reason why the action should not be maintain­
able, as Holt, C.J., points out in his great judgment at p. 251 of 
the above case :—

“ If the plaintiff has a right, he must of necessity have a means 
to vindicate and maintain it, and a remedy if he is injured in 
the exercise and enjoyment of it.”

♦Editor’s Note. Repealed, 1919, (B.C.) Ch. 37, sec. 12.
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I must, however, decline to wrest the general doctrine stated 

by the Court of Appeal in Groves v. Lord Wimborne from the 
set of facts to which it was held applicable, and make it apply 
in such a case as the one at Bar. The point is one of great 
interest, and it may be that our Court of Appeal may be called 
upon to consider this matter.

As to the position taken by Mr. DeBeck that the defendant 
has submitted to the jurisdiction of this Court, and cannot now 
take advantage of sec. 30 of Co-operative Association Act, I am 
of the opinion that his argument in that particular is sound. 
Ï think I would be doing violence to sound commercial principles 
to give effect to the plaintiff’s contention. This claim of his is 
purely an after-thought on his part. He was perfectly satisfied 
with the bargain he made for the sale of his wheat. I think In- 
should have remained satisfied. I do not think his claim should 
now be given effect to.

i accordingly dismiss the plaintiff’s action. As the defendant 
failed to comply with the regulations (Order in Council) as to 
taking out a license, I will not allow defendant any costs.

Action is dismissed without costs.
Action dismiss« I.

M<-DOl'(iALL v. GA1UKPY.
Alberta Supreme Court. Appellate Division, Stuart. Beck. Hyndman aie’ 

Clarke, JJ.A., and Walsli, J. June 10, 1D2.Î.
Principal and surkty (§IB—10)—Discharge of surety—Consent to 

FORECLOSURE—ADDITIONAL SECURITY—MATURITY OF ACTION.

Consent by a creditor of a company, holding the mortgage of 
another as security for advances to the company, to a foreclosure 
judgment under a floating charge on the company’s assets, will not 
discharge the mortgagor as surety not prejudiced thereby. A 
creditor making further advances and accepting security therefor 
from the debtor in good faith does not thereby prejudice his 
rights against the surety in respect of a prior unsecured debt. 
Once the principal has committed a default for which the surety 
is responsible, a cause of action immediately arises against the

[See also 63 D.L.R. 214 ]

Appeal by plaintiff from a judgment dismissing an action on 
a mortgage. Reversed.

8, \V. Field, K.C., for appellant.
II. II. Parlee, K.C., for respondents.
Stvart. J.A., concurs with Clarke, J.A.
Beck, J.A., concurs with IIyndman, J.A.
Hyndman, J.A.:—Accepting as correct the facts as set out in 

the judgment of the trial Judge, which I think is the case, with
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the greatest respect I find myself unable to agree with the con­
clusions arrived at by him.

I do not think it can be said either in fact or in law that the 
security of 15c. per barrel of cement was ever held by the plain­
tiff. although a resolution was duly passed by the company 
authorising such an agreement to be entered into. It must be 
remembered that this resolution was adopted not prior to or at 
the date of the agreement, but a considerable time afterwards, 
and of which the defendant so far as the evidence discloses, was 
quite unaware, and it cannot be found that it was in any way an 
inducement to him to execute the indemnity to the plaintiff. To 
put it shortly: whilst the resolution exhibited a willingness on 
the part of the company to give such a security it in fact never 
was acted upon and no such agreement was given to or accepted 
by the plaintiff.

Whilst it is undoubtedly the law that a creditor must hold all 
securities acquired either before or at the time or after the 
taking of an indemnity agreement for the benefit of the in­
demnitor or surety (PI(dye v. Buss (1868), John. 663 at p. 668, 
70 E.R. 585 at 587; 15 Hals. p. 561, para. 1051), nevertheless 
I have found no authorities which compel him, either to seek or 
accept additional security or which hold him responsible for 
failure to take steps to perfect imperfect ones.

With respect to the case before us I think, in any event, 
sufficient reason has been advanced why this charge in the 
product was never brought into effect. The finances of the com­
pany were in a chronically bad state and most difficult to 
manage. Without the united aid of Macdonald and the plaintiff 
it would appear that operations would have ceased much sooner 
than they did. Plaintiff testifies that Macdonald would not have 
stood for the advantage this resolution would have given him, 
which, considering the whole situation, is only what would be 
expected, and I think this the real reason for its failure to 
develop into a reality.

The plaintiff then, in fact, never had the security in question, 
ami necessarily as a consequence cannot be held liable for failure 
to take advantage of it.

The other serious defence raised is that the plaintiff, to the 
prejudice of the defendant, agreed to the order of foreclosure 
made in the action of Macdonald against the company and the 
plaintiff.

As I regard the facts, this position cannot be successfully 
maintained.
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Hyndman, J.A.
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At the time of the advance of the $75,000, it must be noted 
that no security, beyond a promissory note, was taken from the 
company, and it was only at the date of the floating charge given 
to Macdonald & McDougall that any special security was 
acquired with respect to it, and the instrument creating such 
charge expressly postpones or places this liability subsequent to 
all the other advances.

Before this particular debt ($75,000) could be discharged, ;ill 
the prior indebtedness specifically mentioned in said charging 
agreement as well as all other moneys advanced by Macdonald & 
McDougall thereafter, must first have been liquidated. The 
clause to that effect reads as follows:—

“And the said sums shall rank in point of charge in the order 
in which the same are vested and so that all other of the said 
sums with interest thereon and any sums which may be advanced 
hereafter by the said Alex. Macdonald either alone or with the 
said J. A. McDougall shall be paid in priority to the said sum 
of $75,000 and interest thereon owing to the said John 
McDougall.”

The only change made, therefore, as to the standing of this 
liability, was that of promoting it from an entirely unsecured 
debt, to one having priority over unsecured creditors only.

Affairs of the company, however, went from bad to worse, 
steadily losing money and requiring further funds, until a crisis 
was reached and Macdonald entered action to secure the amounts 
owing him and for a foreclosure of all the assets of the company 
by virtue of his floating charge. No defences were entered by 
any of the defendants for the reason, I suppose, that no good 
defence existed, and in due course formal judgment was given, 
to which the defendant McDougall, by his solicitors, assented.

It is now complained that by consenting to this judgment 
McDougall acted prejudicially to the interests of the defendant 
Gariepy particularly because at the same time Macdonald, in 
consideration of such consent, agreed to relieve McDougall from 
a portion of the joint liability at the Bank of Montreal. 1 
cannot see the force of the contention when it is appreciated that 
the amount of Macdonald’s claim was over $1,000,000, and the 
evidence confirms the fact, in my mind, that the plant and 
assets were much less in value than the amount against it and it 
would be unreasonable to expect anyone interested such as the 
plaintiff to redeem it. There is no proof that on a sale the 
property would bring anything approaching the amount against 
it and that McDougall’s consent to the judgment in any way 
operated to the prejudice of the defendant. On the contrary,
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the fact that plaintiff was relieved of one-half the liability to 
Macdonald for $75,000 worked decidedly to his advantage. In 
view of the fact that the $75,000 in question was part of the 
indebtedness, half of which the plaintiff was relieved of must 
as a necessary consequence reduce the claim herein by one-half.

I agree with my brother Clarke that the action was not pre­
maturely brought.

I would allow the appeal with costs, set aside the judgment 
and enter judgment for the plaintiff on the terms as set out in 
the judgment of Clarke. J.A.

Clarke, J.A. The facts are set forth in the reasons for 
judgment of the trial Judge.

In my opinion, none of the matters set up by the defendant 
are sufficient to wholly relieve him from liability to the plaintiff.

There has been no extension of time given to the debtor for 
payment, and I cannot discover that any other alteration has 
been made in the agreement between the plaintiff and the 
company in respect of which the defendant became surety.

Regarding the complaint that the plaintiff failed to enforce 
payment of the sum of 15 cents per barrel, it is important to 
bear in mind the condition of the company—at and after the 
date of the resolution of the company of September 21, 1916, 
which speaks of giving collateral security to the plaintiff by 
way of charge upon all the manufactured product of the com­
pany present and future and agreeing to pay to the plaintiff 15 
cents for each and every barrel of cement as the same is sold 
or otherwise disposed of.

The defendant was no party to this proposal, nor was any 
formal security ever given. It may be that the resolution itself 
should be treated as an acceptance of the plaintiff’s request to 
the company that such security be given so as to create an 
enforceable agreement and charge, but, as I understand the 
facts, it, never became possible to give effect to this arrangement, 
and it seems to have been ignored and forgotten. Had the 
expenditure of the $75,000 been sufficient to convert the plant 
into a rock proposition as anticipated, it is quite probable that 
the arrangement would have become effectual, but the expendi­
ture of that sum was wholly inadequate for the purpose, and 
in order to obtain further sums necessary to convert the plant, 
the company was required to make other arrangements by giving 
security in the nature of a floating charge in September, 1917, 
which frustrated the proposed arrangement for the payment to 
the plaintiff of 15 cents per barrel. No cement was, in fact, sold 
or disposed of by the company after the resolution of September,
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1916, until May of 1918, and, therefore, nothing could have been 
realised during that period.

No authority has been cited, nor do I know of any which 
prevents a creditor from making further advances and accepting 
security therefor from the debtor in good faith without preju­
dicing his rights against a surety in respect of a prior unsecured 
debt. The amounts given priority to the plaintiff’s advance of 
$75,000 consisted of (a) the indebtedness of the Edmonton 
Portland Cement Co. to Macdonald secured by encumbrance 
and assumed by the new company, and (b) the advances by 
Macdonald and the plaintiff jointly after the plaintiff’s advance 
of $75,000 to complete the conversion of the plant, part of 
which was advanced before and part after the resolution and the 
security given in pursuance thereof of September 15, 1917.

It was necessary to give this security in order to obtain the 
advances, and without the advances, the plaintiff's $75,000 claim 
was worthless, and moreover, the said claim was thereby charged 
against the assets of the company, a benefit not before possessed. 
The evidence satisfies me that this arrangement was not preju­
dicial in any way to the defendant, but on the contrary at the 
time promised to be to his advantage, although, in the end, the 
claim in question herein could not be realised. The conversion 
of the plant was undertaken with the approval of the defendant, 
who was a large shareholder in the former company, which held 
practically all the shares in the new company, and he guaran­
teed a share of the plaintiff’s advance for the very purpose of 
making the change. He does not appear to have at any time 
made any complaint about the transactions now in question. 
If he did not know* the particulars, he must have known of the 
failure of the plaintiff’s advance to complete the work and the 
necessity of obtaining further large advances elsewhere. The 
plaintiff, who is a heavy loser, appears to me to have acted in 
good faith and for the best interests of all concerned, and. under 
the circumstances, the Court should not be astute to relieve the 
defendant on a technicality from contributing a share of the 
heavy loss which has been sustained in connection with this ill- 
fated enterprise. I do not think the defendant has any com­
plaint in respect of the foreclosure proceedings. Macdonald 
acted within his legal rights. The consent judgment was 
approved by a Judge of the Supreme Court and on behalf of the 
liquidator of the former company by the Master in Chambers 
at Edmonton. The plaintiff herein not only lost all the money 
contributed to the capital of the former company, but was finally 
fastened with an indebtedness of nearly $200,000, apart from
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the $75,000 in question. The duty and interest of the consenting 
parties called upon them to make the best possible arrangement 
for the company, and I am satisfied they have done so.

The plaintiff agreed with the defendant to use all reasonable 
efforts to secure repayment of the advance of $75,000. I find no 
failure in this respect. It was useless to incur costs of suing 
the company, and if the defendant had any complaint in this 
respect it was open to him, at any time after the maturity of 
the company’s note in 1918, to have called on the plaintiff to 
proceed, or to have proceeded himself directly against the com­
pany. His failure to do this rather indicates that he looked 
upon it as a hopeless prospect.

I think the plaintiff is entitled to recover from the defendant 
one-half of the sum of $25,000 secured by the mortgage, with 
interest, according to its terms, from August 1, 1917 (the first 
year’s interest having been paid by the company). The defend­
ant is, in my opinion, entitled to share in the benefit of the 
agreement by Macdonald to assume half of the plaintiff’s 
advance of $75,000 and interest.

The defendant’s agreement is to indemnify against “one-third
of all loss....................which the party of the first part”
(McDougall) “may suffer, incur or become liable for by reason 
of the non-payment of the said advance of $75,000 . . . and 
interest as aforesaid or any part thereof.”

As I understand the evidence the $75,000, for which plain­
tiff was solely liable to Macdonald, was treated in the same way 
as the $275,000 for which both were jointly liable, and speaking 
of both sums with the interest on them. Macdonald’s offer was 
that plaintiff should settle with him for one-half and he (Mac­
donald) would assume the other half, and this was agreed upon. 
So that having borrowed the $75.000 loaned to the company 
from Macdonald and being released from one-half of it, the 
plaintiff only loses the other half, and it seems to me that the 
defendant fulfills his agreement by paying one-third of that 
half with interest.

I do not think the action was prematurely brought. The facts 
are very different from those in McDougall v. Gariepy (1922), 
63 D.L.R. 214. As a general rule, once the principal has actually 
committed a default for which the surety is responsible, a cause 
of action immediately arises against the surety. De Colyar’s 
Law of Guarantees, 3rd ed., p. 212.

Default in payment of the whole principal was made by the 
company in August, 1918. This action was commenced September 
22.1920. I think it can be said that on that date in the condition
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Alta. of the company the loss was ultimately sustained. Even though 
App Dlv comI)any had not been sued, it was pretty certain then tlvii

_!__ ' recovery could not be had from the company, and the proof of
McDougall the later disposal of the company’s assets to Macdonald and the 

GAWEpy settlement with the plaintiff satisfies me that at the commence-
----- ment of the action the loss was ultimate and certain, though

waish, j. evidence may have been necessary to establish the fact. The 
real dispute in the action was over the counterclaim for the 
defendant’s release from liability, and it would be unfortunate 
if the action w’ere defeated by so technical an objection.

I w'ould allow the appeal with costs, set aside the judgment 
below, and direct that judgment be entered for the plaintiff for 
$12,500 and interest as above indicated, and for possession ami 
sale or foreclosure of the mortgaged premises according to the 
usual practice in mortgage actions allowing 3 months to redeem 
and dismissing the counterclaim, both with costs, all costs to he 
added to the mortgage debt. If the parties cannot agree upon 
the amount, the same to be computed by the registrar on settling 
the judgment.

Walsh, J. The plaintiff sues upon a real estate mortgage 
made to him by the defendant, securing the payment of $25,000 
and interest. The time for payment of the mortgage is thereby 
fixed for August 1, 1918, and this action was not commenced 
until September 25, 1920. The mortgage was made, however, 
under the terms of an agreement in writing, which sets out that 
the plaintiff had agreed to advance $75,000 to a company in 
which both he and the defendant were interested, upon the 
defendant’s agreement to indemnify him against a one-third 
share of any loss which might ultimately be sustained by him in 
connection with such advance. It then provides that notwith­
standing the absolute terms of the mortgage it was truly given 
“as security only for a one-third share of any loss that may 
ultimately be sustained by the party of the first part” (the 
plaintiff) “in connection with the said advance of $75,000.’’ 
Judgment was given after the trial dismissing the action upon 
two grounds, one of which was that it was prematurely brought. 
I agree with this reason for dismissing the action.

When the action was started the amount, if any, of the plain­
tiff’s loss in respect of his advance of $75,000, had not been 
ascertained. The company still owed him the full amount of it. 
He had security for it by way of a floating charge upon all nf 
the company’s assets, w’hich, however, was subsequent to other 
large liabilities of the company. Just how much or how little, 
if anything, that security would avail him for the repayment of
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his advance, was not then known, but it is obvious that, until it 
was ascertained, the amount of his ultimate loss could not be 
learned, and, therefore, no right to realise from the defendant 
in respect of his indemnity against one-third of that ultimate 
loss could arise. I would, therefore, dismiss the plaintiff’s 
appeal.

The defendant by his counterclaim asks for a declaration that 
his mortgage and indemnity agreement have been discharged by 
reason of certain facts set up as a defence to the action. 
Although the trial Judge gave effect to this defence and held 
the defendant relieved from his contract of suretyship, he dis­
missed the counterclaim without giving any reasons therefor. 
It seems quite clear that, if this finding that the defendant was 
relieved from his suretyship is right, he was entitled to judg­
ment on his counterclaim, and so he appeals from the dismissal 
of it.

The counterclaim rests upon several grounds. The company 
contemporaneously with the payment to it by the plaintiff of 
$10,000, being the first advance made by him on account of the 
loan of $75,000, but after the making of the mortgage and 
indemnity agreement, passed a resolution which provided inter 
alia for “giving collateral security to the said John A. 
McDougall by way of charge upon all the manufactured pro­
ducts of the company present and future and agreeing to pay 
to the said John A. McDougall the sum of 15 cents for each and 
every barrel (of 350 pounds) of cement as the same is sold or 
otherwise disposed of.” This resolution was never given effect 
to and the plaintiff never secured and never tried to secure the 
charge or the payment of the 15 cents per barrel provided for 
by it. His reason for that is, and it is uncontradicted, that when 
the $75,000 was expended it was found to be entirely inadequate 
for the purpose for which it was advanced and that large addi­
tional sums had to be borrowed to carry the work to completion 
and to operate the plant after completion, which could not have 
been secured if this charge had been insisted upon. The stopping 
of the work when the plaintiff’s advance was exhausted would 
have resulted in the complete paralysis and perhaps the entire 
abandonment of the company’s operations. There is nothing in 
the evidence to indicate that this security was even in contempla­
tion when the defendant’s indemnity was given. The plaintiff 
in fact never had it as a security. At best he had but the 
promise of it, a promise which in the events which followed 
became incapable of fulfilment. Although there is nothing 
about it in the body of the resolution, the minutes of the meeting
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at which it was passed shew that the charge was to be “subject 
to the prior charge given to Alexander Macdonald under the 
terms of an agreement executed on August 3, 1916.” There is 
nothing in evidence to shew what this charge was, although tin- 
fact does appear that Macdonald was then a creditor of the 
company in the sum of $250,000 and interest, and presumably 
his charge was related to that liability. I am satisfied that no 
prejudice resulted to the defendant from the plaintiff’s failure 
to insist, even if he was able to, upon the company’s promise 
being converted into an actual security, and that his failure to 
secure it was due to no fault of his. 1 can find no reason for 
relieving the defendant on this ground.

On September 17, 1917, the company gave to Alexander Mac­
donald and the plaintiff a floating charge upon all of its assets 
in security for certain large advances theretofore made by them 
(including the $75,000 hereinbefore referred to), a then present 
advance of $50,000, and such further advances as might there­
after be made. All of the advances, past, present and future, 
wrere thereby made to rank and to be payable in priority to the 
advance of $75,000 with which we are concerned. An action 
was brought in this Court by Macdonald against the company 
and the present plaintiff on December 19, 1919, for payment by 
the company of the amount then owing in respect of these 
advances, for a declaration that the floating charge above 
referred to constituted a first charge upon all of the undertaking 
and property of the company subject to a prior encumbrance to 
the said Macdonald for the enforcement of the charge by fore­
closure or sale, and for payment by the present plaintiff', 
McDougall, of certain sums in respect of which he had made 
himself liable in connection with the advances to the company. 
The record does not shew any of the intermediate proceedings in 
this action, but on June 15, 1921, an order was made in it on 
the consent of the defendants, including the present plaintiff" 
McDougall, which, after reciting a settlement of the matters 
involved in it on the terms of the order, declares that Mac­
donald’s encumbrance and the floating charge constitute a first 
charge upon all the undertaking and the property of the com­
pany for $1,039,619.43, directs the payment to him by the 
present plaintiff McDougall of $200,000 and interest in the 
terms of their settlement and forecloses all interest of the 
defendants in the said undertaking and property and absolutely 
vests the same in Macdonald. The defendant Gariepy had 
nothing whatever to do with this settlement and in no way 
agreed or consented thereto. This settlement and the order
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made pursuant to it are urged as a ground for the release of the 
defendant from his mortgage, the contention being that the 
plaintiff thereby improvidently deprived himself of the only 
security which he had for the payment of this $75,(MM).

The trial Judge gave effect to this contention, holding that 
his consent without notice to the defendant ‘‘to the wiping out 
of a security in which he was interested and to the foreclosure 
by Macdonald of a property which the evidence shews was worth 
more than his claim against it was an act of which the defendant 
had every reason to complain,” and that this ‘‘was in itself 
sufficient to relieve the defendant from his contract of surety­
ship.”

1 am, with respect, unable to agree with this finding as to the 
value of the property. The plaintiff was the only witness 
examined at the trial upon any question, and so it is he alone 
who speaks on the question of value. The price that could then 
have been realised for such a property was, of course, largely 
problematical, for without analysing his evidence respecting it, 
and that is all that we have to go by, I can take no meaning 
out of it other than that, in spite of strenuous efforts to sell it. 
no purchaser for it could be found, as it had been a losing 
proposition from the start, and that the company would sell it 
at a price less than the amount of the charges against it if it 
could secure a purchaser. This evidence was given before the 
order of June 15,1921, wras made, the ease having been re-opened 
before judgment to permit of the giving in evidence of this 
settlement. The fact that the plaintiff agreed to pay Macdonald 
$200,000 in satisfaction of his liability for the advances made 
by Macdonald to the company and which were covered by this 
charge is rather strong proof of the sincerity of the plaintiff’s 
belief that the company’s assets which vested in Macdonald 
under this order were insufficient in value to pay Macdonald's 
claim in full, even though, in addition, he was relieved from his 
share, amounting to $125,000, of a joint liability of $250,000 of 
Macdonald and himself to the bank, the whole of which was as 
a part of this settlement assumed by Macdonald.

Although the plaintiff was indiscreet in consenting to this 
order without the defendant’s approval, the evidence quite 
satisfies me that he has been in no sense injured by it. The 
chances are that the vesting order could have been procured 
without his consent, as the action had been then running for a 
year and a half, but in the absence of evidence on the point this 
is mere conjecture. He was under no obligation to redeem 
Macdonald, and so I do not think that his consent to what was
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ultimately inevitable should relieve the defendant from his 
obligation.

The defendant says the plaintiff was wrong in agreeing that 
his security for this advance under the floating charge should 
be postponed to all the other advances secured by it, and that 
the plaintiff did not live up to his covenant in the indemnity 
agreement “at all times to use all reasonable efforts to secure 
repayment of the said advance of $75,000 with interest from 
the said company.” The effect of the evidence is that during 
the years following this advance the plaintiff and Macdonald 
were constantly assisting with their own money and that of 
others procured upon their guarantee in keeping this unprofit­
able business going, and that it was impossible to secure repay­
ment of this advance. I do not remember any suggestion in 
the argument of anything that the plaintiff could have done to 
get it, except to insist upon the charge and the payment of 15 
cents a barrel, to which 1 have already referred. The only 
security he ever got was in the floating charge, and I do not *<v 
that he can be blamed because of the priority given by it to the 
other advances. Certainly that cannot of itself serve to release 
the defendant.

Since writing the foregoing, counsel have agreed that we 
should dispose of this appeal as though no question had been 
raised as to the action having been prematurely brought, upon 
certain terms as to costs arrived at between them. In view of 
this, 1 would allow the plaintiff’s appeal and dismiss the defend­
ant’s cross-appeal. I think, however, that the plaintiff’s recovery 
should he limited to $12,500 and interest instead of $25,000. as 
the plaintiff’s ultimate loss in respect of this advance was only 
$37,500. Although he actually loaned $75,000 to the company, 
he borrowed that money from Macdonald. My understanding 
of the settlement that he made writh Macdonald of all matters 
arising out of their dealings on account of the company is that 
Macdonald accepted from him $37,500 in satisfaction of this 
loan of $75,000, and so that is the loss which he made in respect 
of it. In substance the transaction was a loan by Macdonald to 
the company of $75,000, with the plaintiff’s guarantee to him 
for repayment in full and a subsidiary guarantee from the 
defendant to the plaintiff of one-third of the amount of the 
plaintiff’s loss. All that he paid Macdonald was $37,500. and 
he can only hold the defendant for one-third of that sum. The 
plaintiff held a guarantee from one Jackson for three-fifths of 
his ultimate loss in this same transaction, which is in the same 
terms as the defendant’s agreement. I do not think that the
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amount received or to be received by the plaintiff under this 
Jackson guarantee can go in extinction or diminution of the 
defendant’s liability. He and Jackson are practically co sureties 
in different amounts for the same liability, and I think the plain­
tiff entitled to recover from each of them according to the tenor 
of his agreement without taking into account the amount 
contributed by the other.

Upon these findings the costs, according to the agreement of 
counsel, should be disposed of as follows, namely, the defendant 
to have his costs of defence and the plaintiff to have his costs 
of the counterclaim, both taxable under column 5 and to be set 
off against each other, and the difference, if in favour of the 
defendant, to be paid to him and not applied in reduction of 
the judgment against him, with no costs of this appeal to either 
party.

Appeal allowed.

Re SQUIRK8 BROS.
Saskatchewan King's Bench in Bankruptcy, Maclean, J.

August 19, 1922.
Bankruptcy (81—4)—Assignment by one partner—Absence of auth­

ority OR RATIFICATION BY OTHER PARTNER—VALIDITY—BANK­
RUPTCY Act, 1919 (Can.), ch. 36 sec. 85 as amended by 1921, 
ch. 17 nec. 48—Construction.

An assignment under sec. 85 of the Bankruptcy Act 1919 (Can.) 
ch. 36 as amended by 1921 ch. 17 sec. 48. by one of the members 
of a partnership in the absence of authority from or subsequent 
ratification by the other member of the firm, is not an assign­
ment of the firm, such assignment not being within the scope of 
the partnership business, and cannot lie treated as a personal 
assignment where the person making it had no intention of mak­
ing such an assignment. Such an assignment, therefore, does 
not constitute an assignment under the Act.

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 136, 66 D.L.R. 104, 59 D.L.R. l.J

Application by a trustee under the Bankruptcy Act for di­
rections.

B. M. Wakeling, for the authorised trustee.
E. B. Jonah, for William Squires.
Maclean, J. On March 23, 1022, Charles E. Squires, one 

of the two partners in the firm of Squires Bros., of Domremy. 
Sask., purported to make on behalf of his firm an assignment 
under the Bankruptcy Act in favour of the Canadian Credit 
Men Trust’s Association, Ltd., as authorised trustee. The trus 
tee proceeded to wind up the partnership business and did sell 
the assets. The other partner, William Squires, was, about 
this time, absent from Domremy for a few weeks, and was not 
apprised of the assignment, nor was he aware of the activities
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of the trustee until after the partnership assets had been sold, 
immediately upon William Squires ascertaining what had trans 
pi red, he notified the trustee and proceeded against any further 
dealings with the affairs of the firm. The trustee now brings 
this application for directions. A notice of motion was served 
on all the interested parties. A great many questions are ask­
ed by the trustee, but they all depend on the validity of the 
assignment, and the intention of this application is to bring up 
the question in this summary way.

Counsel for the trustee relies upon sec. 85 of the Bankruptcy 
Act 1919 (Can.) ch. 96 as amended in 1921 (Can.) eh. 17, sec. 
48, which reads as follows:—

“For all or any of the purposes of this Act, an incorporated 
company may act by any of its officers or employees authorised 
in that behalf, a firm may act by any of its members, and a lun­
atic may act by his committee or curator or by the guardian 
or curator of his property."

It is contended on behalf of the trustee that as the section 
quoted expressly provides that the officer or employee acting for 
an incorporated company must be authorised in that behalf, and 
as no such provision is stated in respect to a member by whom 
a firm acts, the lack of definite or any authority by a firm to 
one of its members to make an assignment will not affect tie- 
validity of that assignment. In my opinion, the section quoted 
merely outlines procedure in making an assignment and does 
not purport to, and could not, change the substantive law af­
fecting partnerships. A member of a partnership may bind 
himself and his partners upon all contracts made in the course 
of the ordinary scope of the partnership business. An assign­
ment such as the one in question is not within the ordinary 
scope of the partnership business, but practically amounts to a 
suspension of business and a dissolution of the partnership it­
self. The law on this point is very fully and forcibly stated 
by Draper, C.J. in Cameron v. Stevenson (1861), 12 U.C.C.i’. 
389. It is clear, therefore, that in the absence of authority 
from or subsequent ratification by William Squires the assign­
ment cannot be considered the assignment of the firm.

The evidence before me is to the effect that William Squire* 
did not authorise his partner, Charles E. Squires, to make the 
assignment. An affidavit, tiled on behalf of the trustee, alleges, 
that what Charles E. Squires stated to the trustee at the tune 
was that his brother William would have no objection if he, 
Charles E. Squires, made an assignment on behatl of I lie firm. 
It is clear from the affidavit of William E. Squires himself and
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the affidavit filed on behalf of the trustee that Charles E. 
Squires had no authority to make the assignment and that he 
did not represent to the trustee that he had such authority. 
It is also clear, from the affidavit of William Squires, that there 
has been no ratification by himself of the act of his brother in 
making the assignment.

Counsel for the trustee argues that the words in reference 
to a firm in the section of the Bankruptcy Act above quoted 
should be strictly construed, and that by implication a member 
of the firm need not be specially authorised as is required of 
an officer or employee of an incorporated company. The strict 
interpretation of the words in question is that a firm may, by 
one of its members, make an assignment. What is really con­
tended for by counsel is an interpretation to the effect that a 
member may make an assignment for his firm—something to­
tally different to a firm acting by one of its members.

In my opinion, the assignment is invalid. In view of that, 
it is unnecessary to deal with any of the questions raised, ex­
cepting the second question, which, in substance, is whether the 
assignment may be treated as the assignment of Charles E. 
Squires himself and whether his assets pass to the trustee. It is 
true that if the assignment were a valid one, the separate as­
sets of Charles E. Squires would pass to the assignee as well 
as his interest in the firm, and if Charles E. Squires had made 
a personal assignment his interest in the partnership would 
also pass to the trustee and the ultimate result might be the 
same in either case. But he clearly did not intend to make a 
personal assignment, or he would have done so, and it is not 
difficult to conceive numerous instances where a partner might 
he ready to enter into an assignment by the firm and yet not be 
willing to make a personal assignment.

It seems to me that an authorised assignment under the 
Bankruptcy Act must be the voluntary act of the assignor, ami 
must shew expressly and not by implication his intention to 
assign. An authorised assignment cannot be construed out of 
a document which the party executing it intended for some 
other purpose, even though the execution of that. document 
might, in itself, constitute an act of bankruptcy. The assign­
ment in question does not constitute an assignment under the 
Act by Charles E. Squires. William Squires will have his costs 
against the trustee.

Sask.
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Maclean, .1.
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REX v. PICAR1ELLO.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division. Scott, CJ., Stuart, Beck, 

Hyndman and Clarke, JJ.A. June 29, 1922.
Trial ( § IF*—30)—Full answer and defence—Summary conviction 

proceed! non—Refusal of macihtrate to grant an adjourn­
ment SHOWN TO HE NECESSARY FOR TIIE DEFENCE—GROUND FOR 
QUASHING CONVICTION ON CERTIORARI—DENIAL OF NATURAL
justice—Court referring to depositions and proceedings 
below—Cr. Code rec. 715—Liquor Act 1916 (Alta.) ch. 4 and
AMENDMENTS.

Failure to grant the accused an adjournment of the hearing be­
fore the magistrate on a showing that an adjournment is necessary 
to give the accused an opportunity to make his full answer and 
defence by procuring the attendance of a material witness from an­
other province, will invalidate the trial and summary conviction 
thereon as contravening the right to make full answer and defence 
under Cr. Code sec. 715. There is a denial of natural justice in 
such cases which invalidates the trial and which affords ground 
for a motion to quash on certiorari, for which purpose the deposi­
tion proceedings before the magistrate may be examined.

[Rex v. Dominion Drug Stores Ltd. and C.X.R. Co. (1919), 44 
D.L.R. 382, 30 Can. Cr. Cas. 318 and 31 Can. Cr. Cas. 86, 14 Alta. 
L.R. 384, applied; R. v. Nat. Bell Liquors Ltd, (1922), 65 D.L.R. 
1, 37 Can. Cr. Cas. 129, 11922] 2 A.C. 128, considered.]

Appeal from an order of Simmons, J. refusing a motion to 
quash a summary conviction under the Liquor Act, 1016, 
(Alta.) ch. 4 and amendments, made on a charge of unlawfully 
keeping liquor for sale. The appeal was allowed, Stuart and 
Clarke, JJ.A., dissenting.

,/. McKinley Cameron, K.C., for defendant, appellant.
J. IV. McDonald, K.C., for the Crown.
Scott, C.J. concurred with Ilyndman, J.A.
Stuart, J.A. (dissenting) Appeal from a judgment of Sim­

mons, J. refusing to quash on certiomri a conviction under The 
Liquor Act. One ground of appeal, not argued, but not waiv­
ed by the appellant, was that there was no evidence upon which 
the accused could reasonably be convicted. If I understand the 
decision in Rex v. Nat Bell Liquors Ltd. (1922), 37 Can. Cr. 
Cas. 129, 65 D.L.R. 1, this ground is now untenable. It seems 
to be generally accepted that such is the meaning of that de­
cision and I am in favor of following it for the present at 
least, although Lord Sumner states that “certiorari and pro 
hibition are matters of procedure” it would seem to be a ques 
tion whether this Court might not be justified even yet in as 
suming control at least of its own procedure.

One thing I do not understand about the judgment is why 
so many opinions were attributed to the Judges below which 
those Judges did not express.

The one ground of appeal argued before us in the present
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rase was that the magistrate refused an adjournment when 
applied for by the accused and that in so doing he deprived him 
of the right “to make his full answer and defence” to the 
charge as provided by sec. 715 (1) of the Code.

I am much at a loss to know whether we can look at the 
certified typewritten copy of the evidence and proceedings be­
fore the magistrate, which has been filed pursuant to the pro­
per notice, for the purpose of examining this question. In 
Rex v. Nat Bell Liquors Ltd. it was deci^d that this copy 
of the depositions is not part of the record. If it is not I do 
not see the ground upon which we can look at it for any pur­
pose. If I understand the decision referred to the Court may 
luok at such material to uphold a conviction but not to quash 
it. Lord Sumner said, 65 D.L.R. 1 at p. 30:—“The evidence, 
thus forming no part of the record, is not available 
material on which the superior Court can enter on an examina­
tion of the proceedings below for the purpose of quashing the 
conviction, the jurisdiction of the magistrate having been once 
established, &c.” I do not think the remainder of the sentence 
modifies the meaning of this.

Of course the question now before us was not the ques­
tion before the Judicial Committee in the Nat Bell case and 
it may not be proper to attempt to apply to this case the var­
ious opinions expressed in that judgment about the exact use 
that may or may not be made of the depositions. But the 
Judicial Committee did specifically assume to inform us as to 
the purpose of the requirement in our procedure here that the 
testimony of the witnesses must be taken down and filed with the 
Clerk of the peace or corresponding officer. They said, 
65 D.L.R. 1 at p. '28, first, that:—“Till the hearing is con­
cluded, and the decision is pronounced, it cannot be known 
whether or not an appeal may be taken in appealable cases, 
but, if it is to be taken to good purpose the depositions must 
have been put into permanent form while the evidence is being 
given,”—a passage which I have great difficulty in understand­
ing. And they said, secondly, that “Even where there is no 
appeal, the process of taking down what the witnesses say, as 
they say it, tends to care both on the part of the witnesses and 
of the Court and makes it all the more possible to ensure that 
no conviction will be pronounced unless evidence has been given 
of each essential feature of the charge.” I think it is only 
reasonable to interpret this as meaning that “it tends to en­
sure &c.” because how the possibility of ensuring this could
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be aided by the evidence if no Court has any power to examiiv 
it for that purpose I do not just quite understand. However 
that may he, these two considerations seem in the opinion of 
the committee to exhaust the reasons for, and the usefulness of 
written depositions.

Then there is the passage, 65 D.L.R. 1 at p. 22. 
where it is said that “there is no suggestion that, apart from 
questions of jurisdiction, a party may state further matter* to 
the Court either by new affidavits or by producing anything 
that is not on or part of the record. So strictly has this been 
acted on, that documents returned by the inferior Court along 
with its record, for example, the information, have been ex­
cluded by the superior Court from its consideration...................
That supervision (i.e. of the superior Court) goes to two points; 
one is the area of the inferior jurisdiction and the qualifica­
tions and conditions of its exercise; the other is the observance 
of the law in the course of its exercise.”

I am not sure just what we are to take these passages to 
mean. Whether the inference is that we cannot read the depoM 
tions to see whether there has or has not been “an observance 
of the law in the course of” the exercise of the jurisdiction I 
feel no certainty. My impression is that it is held that we 
cannot look at the depositions, though taken down stenograph 
icallv and though thus including a report of what was asked 
and said with regard to an adjournment, for the purpose of 
seeing whether sec. 715 has been violated by an unfair, unjust 
and improper refusal of such adjournment.

Surely however wc may still venture in this Court to en­
quire whether the inferior Court has or has not refused an ac­
cused the right to make his full answer and defence to the 
charge even though the magistrate has not inserted the facts 
relevant thereto in the formal conviction. For myself 1 du 
not feel that we should be doing right to allow anything which 
was said in the Aat Bell case (and possibly nothing there said 
was so intended) to prevent us from making this enquiry and 
that too upon any evidence or material that we may think in 
our judgment to be relevant and proper. I propose therefore 
to look at the stenographic report, at the affidavit made by the 
accused and at the special note signed by the magistrate rela­
ting to what really occurred. I refuse however to resort to t lie- 
subterfuge that this is a matter of jurisdiction; as I did refuse 
in Hex v. Emery (1916), 33 D.L.R. 556, 27 Can. Cr. Cas. 117,10 
Alta. L.R. 139, with regard to the absence of evidence.

The facts appearing are that on January 11, Sergeant Nich-
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oison, under search warrant, seized a quantity of liquor then 
in a refrigerator ear of the Canadian Pacific Railway at Blair- 
more, that the accused came to the ear in company with town 
Constable Carter just as the seizure was being made, that Car­
ter asked the accused if it was his beer and that the accused 
replied, “Yes, seize it or do what you damn well please, it is 
all 2 per cent.” Samples were taken for analysis at Edmon­
ton and on January 27 an information was laid against the 
accused charging him with unlawfully keeping liquor for sale 
at Blairmore on January 11. The case came on for hearing 
before Gresham, a police magistrate at Blairmore, on Febru­
ary 9. The foregoing facts were stated in evidence before the 
magistrate. The accused admitted in his evidence that the car 
had been shipped to him from a brewery in Fernie, B.C. under 
the name of “Thomas Smith.” He contended that he had not 
ordered real beer but only 2 per cent, and some soft drinks.

It was in order to adduce evidence by witnesses in the em­
ploy of the brewery at Fernie, B.C. to shew what he had really 
ordered that the accused asked for the adjournment. He pre­
sented the contention that it was not until the hearing of the 
case began that he became really aware that the charge related 
to the contents of the car as seized and that up to that time he 
was under the impression that the charge related to other 
material which he had removed from the car before seizure was 
made and which had never been seized.

What occurred in regard to the request for an adjournment 
is set out in the judgment of my brother Hyndman and I need 
not here repeat it.

My opinion is that there was ample evidence before the magis­
trale to justify him in making the inference that the accused 
knew all the time that the charge was with reference to the 
goods seized in the car. The accused made a statutory declara­
tion in support of his application for an adjournment and in 
this he states that “some time ago I was served with a sum­
mons for the above named offence." In my opinion the accused 
here should have stated the exact day of the service, as he no 
doubt could have done at least approximately, in order to let 
it he known how long he had had to prepare for his defence 
because this was a very material point in respect to the request 
for an adjournment. Yet he deliberately left that length of 
time very indefinite. Of course if he expected the magistrate 
to believe that he never knew until the opening of the trial that 
lie was being charged with respect to the material actually 
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seized in the car it would be unnecessary to state how Ion" 
a warning he had received of the approaching trial.

He stated this in his affidavit “yesterday when the case cann­
on for trial I was taken by surprise by the effort of the prosecu 
tion to hold me responsible for the balance of the goods con 
tained in the said car other than the 29 barrels,” these being 
the portion removed by him before the seizure. These latter 
he of course felt confident had not been analysed. He felt 
that he knew that the prosecution would be unable to contra­
dict him as to the nature of the contents of the 29 barrels. 
Therefore on his own theory he would never have needed the 
witnesses from Fernie.

But the whole question depends upon the belief of the magi?, 
trate as to the bona fides of the accused in stating in effect that 
he never dreamt that he was going to be held responsible for 
what had been actually seized. Quite apparently the magis 
trate did not have any confidence in this theory of a misundcr 
standing. On the face of it, it appears to me, as it must have 
appeared to the magistrate, to be a complete subterfuge. The 
accused knew what the officers had seized and he, in my opin 
ion, must have known perfectly well that the charge related to 
that subject-matter.

In these circumstances I cannot think that any unfairness 
was shewn to the accused, or that there was any real violation 
of the provisions of sec. 715. Generally speaking the matter of 
an adjournment is in the discretion of the Court, and where 
there has been a refusal of an adjournment in the exercise of 
this discretion the refusal must, I think, be such as to amount 
to a real refusal to allow any fair opportunity to make a de­
fence before it can be fatal to a conviction.

In my opinion the accused knew from the beginning what 
the charge wras about and had ample time to arrange for the 
presence of witnesses from Fernie even if, as was no doubt the 
fact, he was unable to enforce their attendance by subpoena. 
The date stated as the date of the offence was the date of the 
seizure. Moreover the magistrate did offer an adjournment for 
two days and Fernie is not so very far aw’ay, being only a jour­
ney of an hour or twro.

I am for these reasons of opinion that there was no violation 
of sec. 715 even if that section be interpreted as applying to 
the case of a refusal of adjournment which in other circum­
stances might require some consideration.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.
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Beck, J.A. I concur with the opinion of my brother Ilynd- 
man, so far as the ground of his decision goes.

I shall on some future occasion make some observations upon 
the decision of the Privy Council in Rex v. Nat Bell Liquors 
(1922), 37 Can. Cr. Cas. 129, 65 D.L.R. 1. Having examined 
the evidence it seems clear enough that so far as it was per­
mitted to be given, the evidence would be sufficient to justify 
a conviction.

Hyndman, J.A. This is an appeal from the judgment of 
Simmons, J., who refused to quash a conviction made by J. W. 
( 1 resham, a police magistrate “For that the said defendant on 
or about the 11th day of January, A.D. 1922, at Blairmore, in 
the Province of Alberta, did unlawfully keep liquor for sale 
in contravention of the Liquor Act and amendments thereto,” 
and whereby the defendant was adjudged to forfeit and pay 
the sum of $500, and costs, and in default of said sums being 
paid within five days, to be imprisoned and kept at hard labor 
in the Provincial Jail at Lethbridge for the term of three 
months, and confiscating to the use of the Crown the liquor 
seized, together with the vessels and containers.

Seventeen different grounds were set up in the notice of ap­
peal, including one to the effect that there was no evidence 
before the magistrate to give him jurisdiction to make the said 
conviction or any conviction.

It was not until after the judgment of Simmons, J. that the 
decision in the Privy Council in Rex v. Nat Bell Liquors (1922), 
37 Can. Cr. Cas. 129, 65 D.L.R. 1, was pronounced, so that 
when the appeal came on before us it was recognised that in 
view of the judgment just mentioned it was not competent for 
us to examine the evidence for the purpose of ascertaining 
whether or not there was any or sufficient evidence upon which 
a conviction should have been made. Consequently the only 
ground relied upon was No. 17, which reads as follows:—

“The convicting magistrate wrongfully and unjustly refused 
to grant an adjournment to permit the accused to secure the 
attendance of certain witnesses residing in Fernie, British Col­
umbia.”

This in effect means that the defendant was denied the right 
of full defence due to said refusal by the magistrate to grant 
such adjournment.

Section 715, sub-sec. 1, of the Cr. Code applicable to proceed­
ings under the Liquor Act enacts:—

“The person against whom the complaint is made or informa­
tion laid shall be admitted to make his full answer and defence
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Alta. thereto and to have the witnesses examined and cross-examined 
Apii Dlv by counsel, solicitor or agent on his behalf.”

— I agree with the judgment of Beck, J. (delivered in Cham 
Rn hers) and of McCarthy, J., on appeal in Rex v. Dominion Drm; 

Picamello. Stores Ltd. (1919), 44 D.L.R. 382, 30 Can. Cr. Cas. 318 and 31
---- Can. Cr. Cas. 86, 14 Alta. L.R. 384, that the refusal by a magi-,

Hyndman, I.A trate tn tj,e defendant of an adjournment under circumstances 
entitling the accused to an adjournment prevents the opportun 
ity to make a full answer and defence to the charge and that 
as a consequence the magistrate loses his jurisdiction.

The authorities are so fully reviewed and set out in the judsr 
ments above mentioned, I cannot see that any useful purpose 
would be served by a repetition of them here as they can be 
so readily referred to.

At the conclusion of the argument I was inclined to the view 
that the defence in asking for any adjournment was merely 
captious and insincere. Since reading the appeal book how­
ever I am bound to say that I think my first impression was a 
too narrow one.

As pointed out above, the recent judgment in Rex v. Rat 
Bell Liquors, supra, of course prevents the Court on certiorari 
from looking at the evidence to ascertain whether or not there 
was any evidence upon which the accused could have been pro­
perly convicted, but I see nothing in the decision which pro 
hibits its examination for other purposes, such as to be able 
to say whether or not the magistrate was acting fairly and 
justly in refusing an adjournment. I therefore think it ad 
visable to state the material facts as briefly as possible.

The accused lives at Blairmore and is apparently engaged in 
the sale of soft drinks. A brewery at Fernie, B.C., manufac­
tures this class of goods. Fernie is distant 45 miles by rail 
from Blairmore, and the two towns are connected by telephone 
and telegraph. The accused admits he ordered a carload of as­
sorted soft drinks from said brewery, and on .January 11, 192'-’, 
car No. 282,232 arrived at Blairmore consigned to ” Thomas 
Smith” by “Thomas Smith,” Fernie. The bill of lading was 
presented to the agent of the railroad by the accused who admits 
that the car was intended for him, but he does not give a very 
satisfactory explanation of the use of the name “Thomas 
Smith.” Apparently without official permission from the agent 
the accused broke the seal of the car and instructed his son to 
enter and unload the goods. After they had hauled away a cer­
tain quantity they reported to the defendant the fact that the
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remainder did not appear to lie the kind of goods expected, that 
is, soft drinks, with the result that the defendant decided to 
leave it in the car and to re-ship it and either he or somebody 
else actually resealed the car. About this time, however, it is 
not clear just when, the police became suspicious, obtained a 
search warrant and had the car re-opened and seised what was 
found therein, consisting of seventy-one barrels containing 
bottled beer and twelve kegs of draft beer. On analysis it was 
found that all of this liquor was over 2'/4 per cent, alcoholic 
strength.

Certain witnesses testified that the accused admitted the 
goods were his, but he denies this and suggests that he merely 
intimated that the car was his. 1 think the evidence shews that 
there was plenty of room for a misunderstanding on this point. 
I gather that his defence in substance was that he was not re­
sponsible for the presence of this particular liquor and that he 
ordered only soft drinks and that the other came there through 
no fault of his. There is, of course, much that might arouse the 
suspicions of the magistrate with regard to this testimony. At 
any rate, it was to prove this fact that the defendant was desir­
ous of procuring the attendance of witnesses from Fernie and 
was the reason for the requested adjournment.

It is, I think, well that I should set out what appears in the 
appeal book and also what the magistrate himself wrote down 
during the trial. The following appears in the printed appeal 
book:—

“__________ _ which cloted the prosecution.”
Mr. Harris applied for an adjournment until next Thursday 

for seven days for the purpose of obtaining witnesses from 
Fernie for the defence. The Crown strenuously opposed any 
adjournment whatever and the Court gave an adjournment until 
Saturday for the purpose of allowing the Defence to obtain 
witnesses from Fernie, consequently Mr. Harris asked the ad­
journment be held over and the case go on tomorrow, Friday, 
at 2 p.m.

Defence.
“Mr. Harris produced an Affidavit signed by the Defendant 

relating to the fact of his inability to obtain witnesses from 
Fernie. Adjournment refused beyond Saturday and the case 
will proceed.”

Affidavit filed by Mr. Harris at the request of the Court, 
also requested by Mr. MacDonald, Crown Prosecutor.

“Mr. Harris asked that the adjournment be given until Tues-
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day, the Court did not acquiesce owing to the inability of the 
Crown to be present.”

The following is a copy of what the magistrate entered in his 
own handwriting:—

‘‘Mr. Harris asked for an adjournment to Thursday, Febru­
ary 16, for the purpose of obtaining witnesses for the defence 
from Fernie, B.C. Counsel for prosecution strenuously objects. 
The Court grants an adjournment until Saturday, February 
11th, at 10.30 a.m., for to allow defence time to get their wit 
nesses. Mr. Harris declines this adjournment and asks that 
the case come on Friday the 10th February 2 p.ra. Court ad 
journed at 9 p.m. until 2 p.m. Friday, February 10th, 1922. 
Mr. Harris produced an affidavit sworn by the defendant and 
asked for an adjournment to Thursday, February 16, 1922. 
The affidavit filed on request of the Court. The Court offers 
adjournment for one day only. The defence refuses, so cast- 
goes on. The defence cannot guarantee the attendance of wit­
nesses if case is adjourned.”

In his affidavit the defendant states, among other things :
‘‘That on or about the 11th of January I had taken twenty 

nine barrels of aerated waters, consisting of sodas, ginger ale. 
lemon sour, iron brew, and other species of soft drinks from the 
car on the Canadian Pacific railroad tracks at Blairmore. I 
had previously arranged for a carload of aerated waters, com 
monly called soft drinks, to be shipped to me from The Fernie 
Brewing Company from Fernie, B.C. This car I understood 
was the car which I had ordered, but on opening it I found 
only twenty-nine barrels of aerated waters in it. These twenty 
nine barrels I took delivery of. I refused to take delivery of 
the balance of said car and never did take delivery of same. 
I caused the Canadian Pacific Railway to be notified that 1 
refused to take delivery of same, that the balance of the car 
must have been shipped by mistake and requested the C.P.R. to 
re-ship the balance and send back to the shipper at Fernie.

When the summons herein was served upon me I considered 
the same was with reference to the twenty-nine barrels taken 
by me from the said car and I prepared my defence according 
to that belief. Yesterday when the case came on for trial I 
was taken by surprise by the efforts of the prosecution to hold 
me responsible for the balance of the goods contained in the 
said car other than the twenty-nine barrels. The evidence for 
the prosecution appears to be regarding the balance of the said 
contents of the car and not regarding the said twenty-nine
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barrels accepted by me. The balance of the said car over the 
twenty-nine barrels was not my property. It was never accepted 
by me. It was never delivered to me, and I never attempted 
to take delivery of the same, and I did not consider when served 
with the summons in this matter that the summons had any re­
ference to the balance of the contents of said car other than the 
twenty-nine barrels. After the evidence for the prosecution 1 
concluded, on the advice of my solicitors, that it was necessary 
and material for my defence and in the interests of justice that 
I should obtain, if possible, the evidence of two or more witnesses 
resident in Fernie, namely, the manager of the Fernie Brewing 
Company and their shipping agent or clerk in the service of the 
said company, and on the conclusion of the evidence for the 
prosecution about eight or nine o’clock last night I caused my 
solicitor to ask for an adjournment of this case to enable me to 
produce the said witnesses, if possible. An .adjournment was 
accordingly granted until 2 o’clock this afternoon, with the 
understanding that if I would have the said witnesses here on 
Saturday, tomorrow, the case would be further adjourned until 
tomorrow, that no further adjournment would be grunted. I 
have today telephoned to the manager of the Fernie Brewing 
Company at Fernie and explained to him my desire to have 
him and the other person employed in the company responsible 
for the said shipment to attend here tomorrow to give evidence. 
1 was informed by the said manager over the telephone that it 
was very difficult to get away on such short notice, and he did 
not think it was possible to come, but that he would let me know 
later in the day if he and his employee could come or would 
come. I have on two occasions since then endeavoured to get 
into communication with the said manager to ascertain definitely 
what his arrangement was but have been unable to reach him 
on the telephone. On both occasions the answer to my call was 
that he was absent from his office and that the telephone person 
could not catch him. The last call made by me was exactly two 
minutes to two o ’clock p.m. this day. ’ ’

The case then proceeded and was later concluded, resulting 
in a conviction.

It will be noticed that there is nothing in the magistrate’s own 
notes indicating that the reason for his refusal to grant an 
adjournment was the inability of the Crown counsel to be pre­
sent, but this does appear in the notes of the stenographer and I 
think is in all probability correct.

Whatever one might think about the guilt or innocence of the
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accused I am not so much concerned. It was, of course, possible 
that he might never be able to procure the attendance of tin- 
witnesses who resided in the Province of British Columbia, but 
there is no certainty that he would not have been able to do so. 
An important principle is at stake, and whilst we might be satis 
fied that no injustice was done in this particular instance, 
nevertheless if the principle is departed from a great injustice 
might happen in a case of some other innocent person.

I do think that under all circumstances he should have been 
afforded every reasonable opportunity to establish his alleged 
defence. Had these witnesses been within the jurisdiction of 
the Court it might well be that the following Saturday would 
have been quite sufficient time for him. They were however 
not subject to subpoena which made it much more difficult for 
him to produce them. Consequently I think the magistrate 
erred in denying the defendant a longer time to accomplish 
this purpose.

From the material before us I am inclined to the view that 
the supreme thought in the mind of the magistrate was to ac­
commodate the Crown. That, of course, is an entirely erroneous 
attitude. What I think he should have kept steadily in view 
was justice and fairness to both sides. The Crown is, of course, 
entitled in all cases to the greatest respect, but to no more con 
sidération than the accused ; in fact, in theory, at least, as I have 
always understood it, the Crown seeks only the utmost fairness 
and justness and, in fact, prefers that if a magistrate should err 
that it be in favor of an accused person.

Now, in this case the trial opened on a Thursday and the 
prosecution concluded on the evening of the same day. The at- 
eused then asked for an adjournment for one week. This was 
strenuously opposed by the Crown and the magistrate offered 
Saturday. The accused declined to accept this and the trial 
was adjourned until Friday. On that day the affidavit already 
referred to was read and an adjournment requested until the 
following Tuesday. This was refused on the only ground ap­
parently that the Crown prosecutor could not attend and the 
defence was, in effect, told to either take it or leave it.

I am quite at a loss to appreciate the reasons for such haste. 
No prejudice could result. The matter was of the greatest con 
cern to the accused. The reason given by the magistrate was 
not one which evinced a mind intent only on doing justice, but 
rather to please the prosecuting counsel. That of course is the 
opposite of justice. I am quite sure that no Judge of the
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Supreme or District Courts would under similar circumstances 
refuse an adjournment.

In criminal cases I think it has been the practice at least 
for the Court not to be astute to convict, but it is astute to see 
that every possible, reasonable chance for a full defence is 
accorded a prisoner.

What I think should have been done here was this; when it 
was known that it would be inconvenient for the Crown counsel 
to attend the following week it should have been arranged that 
the trial stand for one week on the condition that on that date a 
further adjournment take place until a time, say, in the follow­
ing week satisfactory to all parties concerned.

Failure to grant the accused this opportunity to make a full 
answer and defence, in my opinion, was not in accord with 
natural justice and invalidates the whole proceeding.

I would therefore, for the reasons above mentioned, allow the 
appeal and quash the conviction, but as I think the magistrate 
acted under a false estimate of the importance of the Crown’s 
rights, I would give no costs against the magistrate, and would 
accord him the usual protection. I would make no order with 
regard to the forfeited goods inasmuch as the accused disclaims 
any ownership of them, and would allow the law to take its 
course in that regard.

Clarke, J.A., (dissenting) Where a magistrate acts in good 
faith I think the exercise of his discretion regarding an adjourn­
ment of the hearing before him should not be lightly interfered 
with, even assuming there is power to set aside a conviction on 
the ground of its improper exercise in certiorari proceedings as 
to which I express no opinion. The local magistrate should be 
the best judge of such a matter.

Upon the facts of this case I do not feel justified in saying 
that he did not properly deal with the application to adjourn 
and I would therefore dismiss the appeal with costs.

Appeal allowed and conviction quashed.

THEBERGE v. GIRARI).
Quebec Kino's Bench, Guerin, Bernier and Rivard, JJ. May 2, 1921.
Contracts (|ID—62)—Request fob quotation of prices as offer to 

purchase—Reply giving information as offer to bell.
A telegram sent by one merchant to another simply requesting 

a quotation of prices, does not constitute an offer to purchase, 
and a telegram in reply simply furnishing the information re­
quested does not constitute an offer of sale and an action for 
breach of contract founded on such telegrams will be dismissed.
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Appeai. by defendant from the judgment of the Quebec Su 
perior Court in an action for damages for breach of an alleged 
contract for the sale of goods. Reversed.

Oalipeault, St. Laurent, & Co., for appellant.
L. Alphonse Poutiot, for respondents.
Bernier, J. The appellant is a merchant at L'Islet and 

occasionally deals in potatoes. He has no warehouse, hut buys 
as occasion offers at different places in the country, and when 
he has a sufficient quantity loads and sells a ear at the railway 
station at L'Islet.

The respondents are Quebec merchants engaged in buying 
and selling provisions.

On November 18, 1919, the respondents sent the appellant 
the following telegram Best price for one car good while 
potatoes. Wire reply.”

The next day the appellant sent the following reply, “$l.û(> 
per 90 lbs. f.o.b. L’Islet.”

The first of these telegrams did not constitute an offer lo 
purchase. It was merely a simple request for a quotation of 
price. Nor was the second a proposal to sell. It was merely 
a categorical reply to a request and nothing more.

However, by November 19, the price of potatoes at Quebec 
had already increased. The respondents then wished to buy 
the appellant’s goods, and about 4 o’clock in the afternoon 
sent the following message to the appellant:—“Message re­
ceived. Accept one or two cars good white potatoes your price 
f.o.b. Refrigerator car. Wire confirmation."

There was no ground for accepting any offer of sale made 
by the appellant, whose message was not equivalent to such, 
but this third message amounted to an offer to purchase, at 
the price quoted by the appellant, one or two cars of potato.'-, 
which respondents asked should be sent in refrigerator ears 
in view of the lateness of the season, to protect them from 
frost.

This last message asked the appellant to confirm—what ! The 
price quoted 1 No, for the reply was too specific; but it was 
evidently confirmation of its offer to purchase one or two cars 
that was asked for, and the goods were to be put in a refrig­
erator car. This request for confirmation was tantamount to 
saying, “tell us if we can count on your accepting our offer 
to purchase one or two ears of potatoes at the price you have 
quoted us and putting them in a refrigerator car."

Pouliot’s last message, dated November 19, was only receiv­
ed by the appellant the following day at about the same time
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as another sent by the respondent, which reads as follows:— 
“Have you received our message, if so, please confirm.”

The appellant at once answered “ Received your message 
too late, car sold, but can load you a wooden car for Saturday 
or Monday next at one dollar and twenty-five cents per sixty 
lbs. f.o.b. L’Islet. This last offer was not accepted.

It has been proved that the appellant had sold the car of 
potatoes, which he had for disposal, at the price which he had 
quoted in his reply, to a Mr. Coristine at Montreal by contract 
made over the telephone. This proved his good faith.

The offer to purchase contained in the respondents’ second 
and third telegrams was, therefore, never accepted. It could'1 
no longer be accepted, for market conditions had changed on 
November 19. If the respondents had telephoned the appellant 
on receipt of his message on the 19th, they would have had the 
same opportunity as Coristine, who used this more expeditious 
means of arranging matters.

At that time, in the autumn of 1919, prices of provisions 
varied from day to day and even many times in the course of 
a day. It was for the respondents to exercise the greatest pos­
sible diligence to carry out the transaction which they knew, on 
the afternoon of the 19th, must bring them a considerable profit 
in view of the sudden rise of the market.

A contract of sale in commercial matters is subject to the 
same essential conditions as a civil contract of sale. The con­
sent of the parties is always necessary. If the appellant had 
first telegraphed the respondents as though to a possible pur­
chaser, quoting his prices with a view to selling his goods, his 
telegram might have constituted an offer to sell; but such was 
not the case.

The respondents have quoted authorities to the effect that 
when a merchant announces by means of circulars, notices and 
in newspapers or elsewhere that he has goods to sell at such 
and such a price, such publication constitutes an offer of sale 
and binds the vendor.

This theory is correct in principle; but it is also admitted 
that there may be exceptions resulting from particular circum­
stances as, for example, the exhaustion of the vendor’s stock 
of goods, and also the sudden rise in the market price of ar­
ticles of commerce.

In the present case, we are confronted with no such situation. 
The appellant answered purely and simply a particular ques­
tion asked him as to his sale price. His telegram could only be 
interpreted as a simple reply and nothing more.

Que.
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A communication made by the person who receives this in 
formation regarding prices, to the effect that he accepts the 
price and gives an order for a certain quantity of goods, merely 
constitutes an offer to purchase. This offer does not bind t lie 
vendor, or the person who replied by quoting his price, unless 
he has subsequently accepted.

The authorities cited by the appellant are ad rem.
I would reverse the judgment of the Court of first instance 

with costs.
Rivard, J. The telegram of November 18 sent by the re­

spondents to the appellant, reading as follows Best price 
for one car good white potatoes. Wire reply,” did not con­
stitute an offer to purchase.

Did the appellant’s reply, dated November 19, ‘‘#1.50 for 90 
lbs., f.o.b. L’Islet,” constitute a quotation of price or an offer 
of salef

The terms of this latter telegram reveal nothing beyond a 
quotation of price furnished by the appellant. In default of 
proof of a well established custom, an agreement to sell cannot 
be read into it when no offer to purchase had yet been made. 
But did this telegram of November 19 constitute an offer of 
sale I To interpret it in this manner it would be necessary to 
consider the quotation of the price of the goods in which one 
deals as equivalent to an offer to sell. The respondents quote 
French authorities on this point in order to shew that dealers 
who publish in circulars, prospectuses, price lists, or notices, 
the conditions upon which they do business, are permanently in 
the position of making an offer to the public so long as they 
have not withdrawn their proposals (Beaudry-Lacantinerie, 
“Obligations,” No. 30). It is added that this withdrawal may 
take place tacitly, and may result from circumstances. Beau­
dry-Lacantinerie quotes with approval an article of the Chilian 
Commercial Code, which reads as follows:—

“The act of sending advertisements to individuals always in­
volves the implied condition that the articles offered should not 
have been sold when demand is made, that the price should not 
have varied and that they should be at the domicile of the per­
son making the offer.”

Valery (Des contrats par correspondance, No. 225 et seq.), 
after shewing that a valid offer may be made by a trader by 
means of advertisements, circulars and price lists, and that a 
contract may result from the acceptance of such offers, adds 
also that, in order that there may be a meeting of minds, it is 
necessary that the offer be still intact at the moment of ac-
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ceptance and that such offer may have been modified hy special *)“*• 
circumstances of such a nature that the person seeking to pur- KB
chase must be considered as not having persisted in his original ----
desire. An unforeseen occurrence having the effect of raising Tnneaot 
the price of the goods offered would be sufficient to release the aitln.
vendor from any obligation without his being obliged ex- ----
pressly to withdraw his offers. I do not believe that the tele- J-
pram of November 19 sent by the appellant could be treated 
as an offer of sale. But, even if it had to be so interpreted, it 
would be necessary to consider the fact that prices had increas­
ed before the offer was accepted.

In any case, I am of opinion that the telegram sent by the 
appellant on November 19 did not contain an offer of sale, 
that consequently the respondents could not send the appellant 
an acceptance of such a nature as to complete a contract by 
their subsequent telegram.

The appellant’s telegram dated November 19, was a simple 
answer to a request for information. If it further implied an 
intention to do business it did not constitute an offer of sale.
The first regular proposal made between the parties was con­
tained in the message whereby the respondents alleged to ac­
cept one or two cars. That was rather a proposal to purchase 
than an acceptance, and the proposal was not accepted.

Consequently, there is no contract and I am of opinion that 
the judgment of the Superior Court should be reversed with 
costs.

J udgment
Considering that the respondents' telegram dated November 

18, 1918 and addressed to the appellant was a simple request 
for a quotation of prices for a car of potatoes and did not con­
stitute an offer to purchase; that the appellant’s telegram dated 
the following day did not constitute an offer of sale, but was 
simply a reply furnishing information requested ; that respond­
ents’ subsequent telegram agreeing to purchase one or two cars 
of potatoes, to be loaded in a refrigerator car, at the price 
quoted by the appellant, constituted an offer to purchase; that 
this offer was never accepted by the appellant; that in view of 
the sudden increase in the market price on November 20. the 
conditions were no longer the same and that the appellant sent 
the respondents a reply to the effect that he could fill tbem a 
car of potatoes at a greater price than the former; that there 
was never any contract of sale between the parties and that 
the appellant therefore owes no damages to the respondents; 
that there is error in the judgment rendered by the Court of 
first instance.

ws
m
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All

The Court maintains the present appeal, reverses the judg­
ment of first instance, and, proceeding to render the judgment 
which should have been rendered, dismisses respondents’ action 
with costs of both Courts.

Appeal allowed.

Re HAMMOND.
Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Meredith, CJ.C.P., Riddell

and Latchford, JJ., and Ferguson, J.A. December 16, 1921.
Wills (fiHIA—91)—Charitaiilf. bequest—No namf.ii charities— Dis-

CRETION or EXECUTORS—GENERAL CHARITABLE INTENT—VALIDITY
OF BEQUEST—RIGHT OF SOLDIERS' All> COMMISSION TO ADMINIMIK
—Soldiers’ Aid Commission Act, 1916, 6 Geo. V. ch. 3 (Ont.)
—Amendment 1917. ch 27, sec. 60—1919, ch. 26, sec. 34 -
Construction—Application.

Where there is a general charitable intent on the part of a 
testator, leaving the executors to exercise their discretion as to 
the particular charities to be benefltted, the gift is a valid one. 
and will not fail for uncertainty.

A devise of certain capital and securities to be invested in war 
securities to be selected by the executors and trustees of the 
testator in their discretion and “which charities are more par­
ticularly to do with young war widows who are left widows by 
the war and need help” is not a devise or bequest which the 
Soldiers’ Aid Commission, as established by the Soldiers' Aid 
Commission Act, 1916, 6 Geo. V., ch. 3 (Ont), as amended by 
1917, ch. 27, sec. 60, and 1919, ch. 25, sec. 34, is entitled to ad­
minister, the bequest not being void for uncertainty as to the 
persons entitled to receive it, or as to the object to which it may 
be applied.

[7n re White, [1893] 2 Ch. 41, followed.]

Appeal by the Soldiers’ Aid Commission of Ontario from the 
judgment of Middleton, J., on a motion by the executors of a 
will for an order determining certain questions arising in the 
administration of the estate. Affirmed.

The judgment appealed from is as follows:—
“The late Mrs. Hammond died on the 22nd September, 1019, 

at Saranac Lake, New York, being domiciled and having a fixed 
place of abode at the city of Toronto.

By her will, made on the 23rd August, 1919, at Saranac Lake, 
she described herself as “of the city of London, England, now 
temporarily residing at” Saranac Lake. After very many sub­
stantial pecuniary and specific bequests to her relatives, and all 
those who she thought had a claim upon her, her will concludes 
with the following provisions which have given rise to this 
application :—

“Twenty-sixth: I give devise and bequeath unto my execu­
tors and trustees hereinafter named in trust the remainder of 
my money (which amounts to something like two hundred thou-
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sand dollars ($200,000) consisting of the money coming from 
Mrs. Hammond by will at her death tcyether with the remainder 
of my present moneys that is left from my present capital also 
the dividends and payments coming in from my present securi­
ties in the West and the Paradise Mine, to be invested in War 
Charities at their discretion, these charities to be selected by 
Mr. de Pass and Mr. Cook, and which charities are more par­
ticularly to do with young war widows who are left widows by 
the war and need help.”

The two gentlemen named arc by a separate clause appointed 
executors and trustees of the will. Both of them reside in Lon­
don, England.

To understand the situation, it may be mentioned that Mrs. 
Hammond went to England with her husband during the war. 
After his death at the front, she remained in England, taking an 
active part in war-work. Her health broke down and she return­
ed to Canada, and went to Saranac Lake in the hope of improv­
ing her physical condition, but died there. Before the war she 
resided with her husband in Toronto. Her husband, a man of 
considerable means himself, was entitled under his father’s will, 
upon the death of his mother, to funds that had been set aside to 
provide for her annuity.

Before me several questions of difficulty and importance were 
argued. First, the next of kin of Mrs. Hammond contend that 
this gift is too vague and uncertain, and therefore fails, and, as 
it is residuary, there is an intestacy as to these funds. Second. 
Mr. Garvey, representing the Soldiers’ Aid Commission, con­
tends that the effect of the legislation constituting the Soldiers’ 
Aid Commission is that the whole of this fund passes to his 
clients for administration. Third, assuming that neither of 
these contentions is well-founded, is the fund to be administered 
by trustees for the benefit of war charities in Canada, or have the 
executors the right in their discretion to use the money for the 
charities in England which aid young war widows needing help?

A number of minor matters relating to specific devises were 
argued upon the motion. These were all dealt with upon the 
argument, judgment being reserved only in the matters that I 
have mentioned.

The contention of the next of kin is easily disposed of. The 
gift is to charities, and the fact that the charities are not named, 
but left to the selection of the trustees, does not interfere with 
its validity. It is true that the testatrix limits the character to 
“war charities,” but this does not take the case out of the rule. 
A “general charitable intent” is necessary where there is a
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failure of the particular named charity, but it is not suggested 
here that there are not war charities enough, nor that there are 
not war charities enough caring for young and needy war 
widows.

“A charitable bequest never fails for uncertainty:” In re 
White, [1893] 2 Ch. 41.

The claim put forward by Mr. Garvey must next be con­
sidered. His contention is that the result of the legislation is 
that all such gifts as that now in question go to the Soldiers Ai<l 
Commission, notwithstanding the express wish of the testator.

The Soldiers’ Aid Commission was established by the Ontario 
Soldiers’ Aid Commission Act, 1916, 6 Geo. V. ch. 3. The 
object of the Commission is to grant aid to members of the 
Canadian Expeditionary Force or Canadian members of the 
Imperial Forces and to returned men, particularly in the way 
of training men who are unable to pursue their calling after 
their return. The Commission is, by sec. 10, to have such fur­
ther powers and duties “with respect to soldiers returning to 
Ontario during or after the war” as may be conferred or 
imposed by order in council "with a view to securing their well­
being in such manner as may be deemed advisable.”

In 1920, by the Soldiers’ Children’s Protection Act, 1920, 10 
à 11 Geo. V. ch. 29, the Commission is given wide powers with 
reference to the aiding and protection of the children of any pe-- 
son who has served in the war with His Majesty’s forces or the 
forces of the Allies.

In 1917 (by 7 Geo. V. ch. 27, sec. 60) sec. 7e. is added to the 
original Act, and by it the Commission is given the power to 
receive gifts, devises, and bequests for the benefit of the classes 
of persons mentioned in the Soldiers’ Aid Commission Act, and 
it is further provided that when by the will of any person a 
devise or bequest is made to or for the benefit of any class of 
persons mentioned in the original Act, or for any object within 
the powers of the Commission, or for any like purpose, and the 
devise or bequest is void for uncertainty as to the persons 
entitled to receive the same, or as to the object to which the 
same may be applied, the Commission shall receive and adminis­
ter the gift.

This being the state of the law down to 1919, in that year, 
by 9 Geo. V. ch. 25, sec. 34, the statute was amended, and it is 
upon this amendment that the claim is based. As amended this 
section (7a.) reads:—

“Where by the will of any person dying before or after the 
passing of this Act, a devise or bequest is made to or for the 
benefit of any class of persons mentioned in section 4, or for any
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object within the powers of the Commission, or for any like Ont.
purpose, and such will does not specify the particular person, App™Div
society or institution that is to receive such devise or bequest, or _!—
if such devise or bequest is or may be held to be void for uncer-
tainty as to the persons entitled to receive the same, or as to the Hammond*
object to which the same may be applied, then in any such case
the Commission shall be the beneficiary and shall be entitled to
receive, administer and dispose of the same, in sueh manner as
the Commission may deem expedient.” This “shall apply and
take effect notwithstanding that by the tenus of any sueh will
the executor or trustee thereunder is directed to distribute such
devise or bequest in the discretion of sueh executor or trustee.”

By the amendment the original salutary provision guarding 
against the failure of the benevolent intention of testators, by 
reason of uncertainty arising from the use of vague and indefi­
nite terms, becomes a retroactive Act, doing violence to the wishes 
of the testator and confiscating the funds which he has set apart, 
taking them for the benefit of the Government of the Province, 
which would otherwise have to provide the funds necessary for 
the carrying on of the work of the Commission. This Act is 
probably without a parallel in the history of legislation, and 
calculated to discourage all attempts on the part of testators to 
confer benefits upon the returned soldier.

A Department of the Government carrying on even the most 
beneficial work docs not commend itself to the charitable instincts 
of testators, particularly since the burden of charitable institu­
tions upon the Government was put forward as the justification 
of the Succession Duties tax (R.S.O. 1897, ch. 34, preamble).

The claim now made therefore calls for the closest scrutiny.
The answer to it is, I think, plain. This will does not come 

within the term of the Act. The gift is to the trustees for the 
bent fit of “war charities,” particularly those having “to do with 
young war widows who were left widows by the war and need 
help.” I have no doubt that all institutions that care for the 
returned soldier are war charities, but there are many other 
charities and institutions that fall within that description. The 
Act applies only to gifts for the benefit of returned men; and, 
even if the Act of 1920 is to be considered, it only adds their 
children to the class to be benefited. This gift is in much wider 
terms than the statute and covers all war charities. The direc­
tion with reference to young war widows shews that the primary 
wish of the testatrix was not to benefit the returned soldier, but 
to benefit the widow of the man who did not return or who 
died after returning.

There remains the question whether the charities are to be
40—68 n.L.R.
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those in the Province only, or whether the executors may name 
English charities.

I can see no reason why this lady may not have intended lier 
executors and trustees to have full discretion, nor why I should 
read into this will any restriction or limitation. She was, it is 
true, domiciled in Ontario, but she describes herself as of London. 
England. She had lived in England for some years, and had 
taken an active part in war-work there, and reposed her con­
fidence in two English gentlemen. I can see no reason for 
imposing any limitation upon the unfettered discretion she lias 
given her trustees in the choice of the war charities to he bene­
fited.

The executors and the Official fluardian may have their costs 
from the estate. I can see no reason for allowing the next of kin 
or the Commission any costs out of this fund.

C. M. Garvey, for the appellants.
IV'. Later, for the National Trust Company, representing the 

executors of the will of Kathleen Saunders, deceased.
Meredith, CJ.C.P.:—Notwithstanding all that has been said, 

this ease, as far as we are rightly concerned in it, is quite an 
uncomplicated one, and is altogether comprised within a nar­
row compass ; and. indeed, is fully embraced in the single ques­
tion : has provincial legislation changed the trustees of this » ill 
in regard to the “war charitiesf”

Among many things done by this Province for the benefit, 
directly and indirectly, of those connected with it who served 
their country in the recent war, it created a “Soldiers’ Aid 
Commission,” in connection with and as “a branch sub-commit­
tee” of its "military hospital committee,” “to take care of and 
find employment for” such persons and “to assist, advise, and 
co-operate with” the military hospital commission, “and with 
all provincial or local committees or organisations, to attain the 
aforesaid objects, and to do all things which may be incidental 
and ancillary to the foregoing.” This was done in 1915. and 
was confirmed by provincial legislation in 1916 : The Soldiers’ 
Aid Commission Act, 6 Geo. V. ch. 3 (0.)

The work of the Commissioners was to be done without re­
muneration : and it seems to have been so well done, and to have 
been so beneficial, that the powers of the Commission were from 
year to year extended by like legislation.

In 1917 they were given power to receive, administer, and dis­
pose of gifts, devises, and bequests for the benefit of persons 
belonging to any of the classes mentioned in the earlier hvrisla- 
tion; and to acquire cemeteries for the burial of such persons:
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and this enactment further provided for the administration and Ont. 
disposal of devises and bequests for the benefit of such persons, Aj|p DJy
or for any object with the powers of the Commission, or for ----
any like purpose, by the Commission, in cases such as I shall Re 
presently more fully state: 7 Geo. V. eh. 27, sec. 60 (O.)

In 1919, their power was again extended, as I shall also pre- Meredith, 
sently more fully set out: 9 Geo. V. eh. 25, sec. .14 (O.)

And again, in 1920, still further power was conferred upon 
them : this legislation relates altogether to children of any per­
son “who served with His Majesty’s forces or the forces of any 
of the Allies of His Majesty in the late war,” and gives very 
wide power to the Commission as to them. It is helpful on the 
question involved in this appeal in making plain the usefulness 
of the Commission, and the confidence of the Legislature in its 
honorary members, and that its usefulness was not to be employ­
ed only for the benefit of the men individually, but was to be 
extended to their families: The Soldiers’ Children’s Protection 
Act, 10 & 11 Geo. V. ch. 29 (0.)

Putting all this legislation together, in so far as it affects 
the question involved in this case directly, and using only the 
words of the Legislature, but using all their words, it is as fol­
lows: “60 (2). Where by the will of any person dyiiv? before 
or after the passing of this Act, a devise or bequest is made to 
or for the benefit of any class of persons mentioned in section 
4, or for any object within the powers of the Commission, or 
for any like purpose, and such will does not specify the parti­
cular person, society or institution that is to receive such devise 
or bequest, or if such devise or bequest is or may be held to be 
void for uncertainty as to the persons entitled to receive the 
same, or as to the object to which the same may be applied, 
then in any such case the Commission shall be the bénéficia  ̂
and shall be entitled to receive, administer and dispose of the 
same, in such manner as the Commission may deem expedient.
34 (2). Sub-section 2 of section la. aforesaid as amended by 
the next preceding section shall apply and take effect notwith­
standing that by the terms of any such will the executor or 
trustee thereunder is directed to distribute such devise or be­
quest in the discretion of such executor or trustee.”

If it be of any consequence what the thoughts of any Judge 
may be as to the merits or demerits of any legislation which he 
is judicially called upon to interpret or enforce, then I am bound 
to say that I can perceive nothing objectionable, not to speak of 
confiscatory, in this remedial, and, I feel bound to add, benefi­
cent, legislation : its very plain main purpose is : to aid and com-
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Ont. fort those who went forth to fight for their country : to aid and 
App div connected with a man than his wife; and none, ordinarily, tli

----- through a body of prominent gentlemen, competent as any < n
Re be, and who give their services gratuitously: services which 

Hammond. mugj. hjthert0 have been successful and very satisfactory, else 
verrtith, the public through their representatives in the Legislature 

should not have continued them, and added to their powers 
from year to year. The provisions for saving gifts which the 
Courts might destroy upon what many might think “legal tech­
nicalities,” should be deemed praiseworthy by even the Judges 
who were the destroying implements.

But, leaving unmentioned other remedial and praiseworthy 
features of this legislation, let me come to this very instance, 
and ask what can there be that is reasonably objectionable, if 
the administration of the “war charities” in question were taken 
out of the hands of the two executors of the will and placed in 
those of the Commission!

It can hardly be said that these two gentlemen, whether they 
have or have not had any kind of experience in such thirds, are 
the more competent trustees : it is quite out of the range of pos­
sibility that their experience, if any, can be comparable to that 
which the gentlemen of this Commission have had and are 
having; and so too of the knowledge which experience brings. 
Nor can it be good, or indeed anything but bad, that there should 
be many trustees dispensing many charities, in the one field, 
which one Commission can alone better cover. Very many 
trustees must be paid for that which one Commission could much 
better do for nothing. “Overlapping” must occur with numer­
ous trustees. Idiosyncracies of many individuals may be given 
full play: whilst if trustees have any real knowledge of that 
which Is best, or which the giver desired, they have only to com 
municate it to the Commission so that the fullest weight may be 
given to it. And it is quite erroneous to assume that the /liver 
would object to a change of trustees ; indeed, if fully informed, 
it is hardly likely that the less efficient and more costly should 
be preferred to the more efficient and less costly. The purpose 
of the giver is not to benefit the administrator of the gift, it is 
to benefit those who arc the object of it.

So, too, it must not be forgotten that all Courts and Judges 
are under legislative command to treat these enactments as re­
medial legislation and to give them “such fair, large and liberal 
construction and interpretation as will best ensure the object 
of the Act, and of the provision or enactment, according t<» the
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true intent, meaning and spirit thereof.” So too we must not 
forget that Courts and Judges frequently change trustees in the 
interests of the trusts: and should hardly grumble at the highest 
Court doing so. Foreign and non-resident trustees are not 
favoured; indeed remaining out of Ontario for more than 12 
months is by legislation in this Province made a ground for the 
removal of a trustee.

Then, returning from this degression, which seemed to me 
to be needful, having regard to the wide scope of the argu­
ment here and in the Court below, to the question whether this 
case is within the legislation, to which I have referred, I am 
obliged, after some hesitation, to say that I am not convinced 
that it is.

I have no doubt that the words 4‘or for any like purpose” are 
wide enough to bring “war charities,” ‘‘more particularly to do 
with young war widows wrho are left widows by the war and 
need help,” within these enactments. There is none more closely 
connected with a man than his wife; and none, ordinarily, that, 
in view of his death, he strives harder to benefit, and to have 
eared for, after his death. In these things man and wife are one, 
she benefits generally as much as. often more than, he, from 
bounties such as those administered by the Commission : how 
then could it be said that a continuance of the bounty to the wife 
after the husband’s death, when it should be all the more needed 
for his children as well as his widow, is not ‘‘any like purpose?”

But there is nothing in any of the enactments, except the 
words ‘‘or any like purpose,” to indicate that wife or widow 
could be benefited directly; and children arc not brought in 
until the year 19*20, and then by legislation expressly doing so. 
But that which perhaps has most weight in my mind upon this 
question is: that in the enactment in which the words “for 
any like purpose” appear—sub-sec. 2 of sec. 60—that sub­
section is immediately preceded by another (1), which gives the 
Commission power to receive and administer gifts, but only for 
persons mentioned in the enactment of 1916, which does not 
include wives or widows or any one of the female sex : and that 
sub-sec. 2 is immediately followed by another sub-section (3) in 
which the power in regard to cemeteries is conferred on the 
Commission, but only expressly for the burial of persons be­
longing to any of the classes mentioned in the enactment of 
1916: though it can hardly have been meant that neither wife 
nor child should be buried near husband and father ; yet there 
is no authority to the Commission to bury them, or to acquire 
a cemetery for their burial.
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I am therefore in favour of dismissing this appeal ; but should 
do so without costs. The Commission is performing an import­
ant and onerous public duty gratuitously : the will and the enact 
ment together made it their duty to test the question whether 
the administration of the bounty in question should be under­
taken by them : it was anything but plain that if they did not 
undertake it they should be guilty of a dereliction of duty. The 
case seems to me therefore to have been one in which they should 
have been allowed their costs in the Court below : but they were 
not, no doubt by reason of that which I consider an erroneous 
view of the character of the legislation in question. No question 
was raised as to whether the legislation in question is inappli­
cable to these trusts by reason of their extra-territorial character 
in part or otherwise : therefore it has received no consideration.

Riddell, J. I have read the statutes bearing upon the Com­
mission and have carefully considered them in their relation to 
the provisions of the will in question: and I agree in all respects 
with the judgment appealed from. The appeal should be dis­
missed ; but, both parties agreeing, there will be no costs.

Latch ford, J. :—It was the clearly expressed intention of the 
testatrix that the residue of her estate should be applied by the 
particular trustees whom she appointed for the benefit of war 
widows like herself, and not for the benefit of any of the classes 
mentioned in sec. 4 of the Soldiers’ Aid Commission Act.

The amendment of 1917 does not assist the appellants, whose 
claim to the funds is, in my opinion, absolutely devoid ef merit.

I would dismiss the appeal.
Ferguson, J.A., concurred.

A ppeal (Iism isseil.

FAGVY v. C'A KHI KR.

Supreme Court of Canada, Idington, Anglin, Brodeur and Mignault, JJ.
May 2, 1922.

Guardian and Ward (§11—10)—Tutor—Promissory note—Dei it of es­
tate—Joint maku.ity—Consideration—Interest

A tutrix has the right in her administrative capacity to execute 
a promissory note in acknowledgment of a debt of the estate for 
necessaries furnished to the minors or wards, and thereby charge 
the latter with joint liability upon their attaining majority.

The consideration supporting the debt, to the extent of the 
benefits derived thereby, will support the liability on the note, 
and cannot, therefore, extend to an amount included as interest 
on the debt not legally due.



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 599

Limitation of Actions (§IVC—165)—Acknowledgment of debt— 
Promissory notk.

A promissory note is a sufficient acknowledgment of debt inter­
rupting prescription of the debt for which it was given.

Appeal by plaintiff from a judgment of the Court of King’s 
Bench of Queliec in an action on a promissory note. Reversed.

Jolirocur, for appellant ; G city, K.C., for respondent.
Idinoton, J. (dissenting) The legal consequences of our 

allowing this appeal would lead to very remarkable results in 
law and be«most unjust. I think the appeal should be dismissed 
with costs.

Anglin, J.:—With some hesitation I accept the views of my 
brothers Brodeur and Mignault that the defendants are liable 
each for an equal part of the indebtedness of the plaintiffs.

1 have no difficulty in finding that there was an interruption 
of prescription in 1912 for the reasons fully stated by my 
brother Mignault, and 1 also agree that there was a second 
interruption when the 1915 note was given.

On the question of interest, unless we impute to the tutrix 
an intention to do a distinctly unwarranted act in including 
arrears of interest in the note which she gave in 1915, it would 
seem to be a reasonable implication from her having done so 
that she then recognised liability for such arrears either because 
of a demand for payment having been made in 1912 (arts. 1077 
and 1007 C.C. (Que.), or because of a promise then given to pay 
interest in consideration of the creditors’ forbearance. 1 am, 
therefore, disposed to assent to the view of my brother Brodeur, 
shared by Martin, J., and. as I read his opinion, by the Chief 
Justice of Quebec, that interest at the legal rate of 5f,i should 
run from the date of the acknowledgment of 1912.

Brodeur, J.:—This is an action on a promissory note signed 
July 30, 1915, by Mrs. Carrier, as tutrix to the three defendants- 
respondent, who were minors at that time, but had reached the 
age of majority when the action was taken. Omer Carrier, the 
father of the three détendants, died in 1897 leaving a wife and 
three children. It is not known whether Omer Carrier and his 
wife were separate or com non as to property. In any event the 
latter had a claim of $6,000 against her husband’s estate.

Joseph Edmond Roy, notary was appointed tutor to the three 
minor children of Omer Carrier in 1897. These children con­
tinued to live with their mother. With the consent of their 
tutor an account was opened with the plaintiffs-appellant in 
favour of these minors in the name of “Succession Omer Car-

Can.
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Anglin, J
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Can. rier.” Appellants are dealers in novelties at Quebec and carry 
gc on business under the name of Faguy & Lépinay. It appears
----- that the estate was financially embarrassed, its principal ass«*t

Fa«ut being a forest reserve which could not have been sold at that
Carrier, time except at a sacrifice, and that it was necessary to seek ere

----- dit in order to obtain the means of subsistence for the children
Brodeur, J. and tl)eir mother

It is true that the widow Carrier might have taken judgment 
against her husband’s heirs and had this forest reserve sold ; 
but that would have advantaged no one, for it is quite possible 
that the property would not have realised enough to pay the 
claim of $6,000, and it was better, both for her and her children, 
to wait for better times.

The tutor Koy, charged with the administration of the estate, 
considered himself obliged as a prudent administrator to open 
an account with the plaintiffs and to make payments to them 
on account from time to time as the revenues of the estate became 
available. He seems to have also handled Mrs. Carrier’s affairs, 
and he used her money in making payments to the appellants. 
In this account were included the articles necessary for the up 
keep of the common domicile of the mother and children and the 
effects which Mrs. Carrier and the children needed for their 
personal use.

In September, 1911, the plaintiffs ceased making advances 
of merchandise and the account was apparently closed with a 
balance of $1,705.53. About 1 year afterwards, namely, August 
1, 1912, Joseph Edmond Hoy, who was employed at Ottawa, 
resigned office as tutor and was replaced by Mrs. Carrier.

A short time afterwards, the plaintiffs called upon the tutrix 
tr pay this account of $1,705.53 due by the estate ; but she asked 
for delay, and says in her testimony, “There was an under­
standing with Lépinay’s office that the account should be paid 
when the estate should be in funds, which event could not take 
place because of certain law suits which the estate had pending 
with the Hank of Montreal.’’

In July, 1915, the estate being still unable to pay this aceoun;. 
the tutrix, Mrs. Carrier, was obliged to ask for further delay 
from the plaintiffs, who took from her a note which forms the 
basis of the present action and which she signed as tutrix to her 
three minor children.

This note was for a sum of $2,413.56 and covered the balance 
of the above mentioned account, $1,703.53, and interest at 7 
amounting to $708.03. It was stipulated in the note that it 
should bear interest at the rate of 7%.
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The defendants Carrier when they came of ape refused to Can.
pay this note with interest and were sued in May. 1020, by the ^T
appellants Faguy et al, who claim from them a sum of $3,030.67, —1
the amount of the note in principal and interest. F août

Defendants then asked for particulars which would shew the cakbifr

consideration for the note and the plaintiffs produced the ac- ----
count shewing a balance of $1,705.54 in 1911, which, with ac- Brodeur, i. 
crued interest, made the amount of the note sued upon. The 
points in issue are to determine:—!. If the tutrix could sign 
the note; 2. If the defendants received good and valuable con­
sideration; 3. If they can be condemned jointly and severally 
to pay the debt.

1. As regards the right to sign a promissory note, I refer in 
the first place to sec. 47 of the Bills of Exchange Act, R.8.C.
1906. eh. 119, which states that the capacity to bind oneself as 
a party to a bill of exchange is co extensive with the capacity 
to contract. It seems to me that a tutor has a perfect right to 
sign a note recognising the existence of a debt in order to obtain 
delay.

It is an act of good administration on the part of the tutor 
to give a note when his pupils’ assets cannot easily be realised 
and it is advisable to postpone the sale of the assets to a later 
date. In the present case, we have an estate whose principal 
asset was the object of litigation before the Courts. I consider 
that the tutrix, Mrs. Carrier, was not exceeding her powers in 
signing a note which enabled her to keep her creditors waiting 
until better times should appear.

Article 290 C.C. (Que.) imposes upon a tutor the obligation 
to administer the affairs of the minors **cn bon père dc 
famille”; and if his administration is faulty he Is responsible 
for any damages which may result. The tutor was obliged to 
have registered the legal hypothec to which the assets are sub­
jected for the protection of the pupil (arts. 2030 and 2117).

Along with this obligation imposed upon him the tutor is 
allowed certain latitude in the exercise of his functions, and 
those who do business with him as tutor are entitled to count 
upon this. Section 52 of the Bills of Exchange Act, R.8.C.
1906, ch. 119, gives implicitly to the tutor the right to have 
recourse to promissory notes if that would be the act of a good 
administrator in similar circumstances.

The evidence before us is not very complete, but it is certainly 
sufficient to enable us to say that the tutrix was quite justified 
in giving a note in acknowledgment of the debt due to the plain­
tiffs. It would have been otherwise if the account had been
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prescribed in 1915. She would certainly not have been entitled 
to revive a debt which had been extinguished. That would not 
have been an act of administration, but the acknowledgment of 
this debt, which Mrs. Carrier had made shortly after her ap 
pointment as tutrix, was valid and had the effect of interrupting 
prescription (C.C. art. 2227).

2. Consideration. Was the note given for good and valid con­
sideration. This leads us to inquire if the tutor Roy acted as 
a good administrator in opening the account with the plaintiffs. 
Paguy and Lôpinay. If we had before us all the documents 
relating to the administration of this estate or tutorship, as tlv- 
marriage contract, the inventories, the facts and circumstances 
respecting the assets and liabilities of the administration, and 
the authorizations which may have been given under art. 290a 
C.C. (Que.), we would perhaps be in a better position to judge 
if the tutor Roy acted as a good administrator in opening an 
account with the plaintiffs in order to provide his pupils and 
their creditor, their mother, with the necessaries of life, but we 
must not blame the plaintiffs, because all the circumstances will 
he easier of determination when the tutor or tutrix renders 
account to the appellants. If the tutor or tutrix has in fact 
caused damages by bad administration, the parties will have 
respectively the recourse provided by law. This question may 
he determined more easily and equitably when the tutrix render-, 
account than it can be in an action brought by a creditor against 
the pupils after the latter have attained their majority.

The tutor was a man of good reputation and sound judgment. 
He appears to have acted in the best interests of his pupils; 
and the pupils, should, therefore, carry on their disputes re­
specting their account with him or with their tutrix and not 
with the plaintiffs who had good reason to believe that the tutor 
and tutrix were acting within the limits of their mandate.

The luior Roy had to pay Mrs. Carrier the $6,000 which tin- 
pupils owed her ; and if he considered it more expedient to pay 
it partially by means of this account opened with plaintiffs 
Faguy ct al, it seems to me that the latter should not suffer 
from what might he considered an act of good administration, 
especially if, as Mrs. Carrier declares in her testimony, a large 
part of the assets were absorbed for the benefit of the minors.

The same may he said of the acknowledgment of the debt, 
given by the tutrix in 1912 or thereabout*, which interrupt - l 
prescription. If she could validly acknowledge by means of 
the note the existence of this debt and thereby interrupt pres-
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eription and so bind herself to pay at a rate of interest greater 
than that accorded by law, could she incumber her pupils with 
a new obligation or a debt for which they received no considera­
tion Î

From the moment when putting in default took place through 
demand of payment (arts. 1067 and 1077 C.C. (Que.)) the de­
fendants owed legal interest on their account, but their tutrix 
could not oblige herself to pay any more than legal interest, in 
default of certain circumstances which might make this obliga­
tion an act of good administration. Such circumstances do not 
appear in the record.

I agree in this respect with the opinion expressed by Lamothe 
and Martin, JJ. The note should not have been signed by the 
tutrix for more than $1,961.28.

3. There remains the question of solidarity.
Can the three defendants be held jointly and severally liable 

for the payment of this account for $1,705.53 with interest at 
5f/r from the time when payment was demanded? I do not 
think so. The debt was contracted in the name of the Estate 
Omer Carrier and that implies a joint, not a joint and several, 
obligation upon the heirs.

As a general principle, the debts of a succession do not bind 
the heirs beyond the amount of the share of each. All the heirs 
contribute to the payment of the debt, each one in proportion 
to his share in the estate (art. 736 C.C. (Que.)). The three de­
fendants were heirs in the same degree and must, therefore, 
discharge this debt in equal shares. It is quite possible that 
each of them may not have benefited from this account to ex­
actly the same extent; but that may be settled by accounting 
proceedings between them. As far as the plaintiffs arc concern­
ed, one third of the debt may be recovered from each of the 
three heirs.

Joint and several liability is not presumed (art. 1105 C.C. 
(Que.)). It applies, it is true, to commercial matters; but in 
the case of sales by a merchant to a succession, it is presumed 
that the merchant intended his claim to be a joint obligation 
only, not joint and several.

For these reasons, the appeal should be maintained with costs 
of this Court and of the Superior Court. Costs of the Court of 
Appeal should be granted to the plaintiffs Carrier because they 
were obliged to bring their case before this Court to obtain re­
lief from the joint and several obligation declared against them 
by the Superior Court. Judgment should be rendered in favour
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of the plaintiffs against the defendants jointly for the sum of 
$2,195 with interest from the time of bringing action, which 
sum would be calculated as follows:

Balance of account $1,705.53
1915
30 July Interest at 5% to the time

when the note was signed $ 255.75

$1,961.28
1919
25 Oct. Interest on the note to date $ 200.0(1

Cr. $2,323.7",
By cash $ 200.00

$2,123.71
1920
May 27 Interest to date $ 71.27

$2,195.00
Mionault, J. (dissenting in part) A considerable number 

of legal questions arc raised in this case, but 1 think it may be 
decided according to its particular circumstances, as Lamothe, 
J., said, without considering matters of principle.

The appellants are dealers in novelties in Quebec and the late 
Omer Carrier had an account with them in his lifetime. Omer 
Carrier died in 1897 leaving his wife, Dame Corinne llamel ami 
three young children. The former, who did not remarry, con­
tinued to keep house with her children after the death of her 
husband. J. E. Roy, notary, since deceased, was tutor to the 
children until replaced by Mrs. Carrier herself on August 1, 
1912. The family derived an income for some time from the 
factory of Carrier & Laine of Levis, and the estate owned tim­
ber limits which could not be disposed of on account of a law 
suit with the Bank of Montreal. It is not clearly shewn whether 
or not it was Mr. Roy, the tutor, who continued the account 
which the late Omer Carrier had opened with the appellants, 
but after the death of the latter the account was continued in 
the name of the estate of the late Omer Carrier. Mrs. Carrier 
made the purchases. Roy paid from time to time, but most 
of the purchases were for Mrs. Carrier herself or for the house 
hold, the articles bought for the use of the children being of 
comparatively little importance. Mrs. Carrier does not seem to
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have had any personal belongings, but she was entitled to $6,- 
000 under her marriage contraet and she thought that the no­
tary Roy was paying the account with her money because her 
husband’s estate still owed her this sum. The account with 
which we are concerned (there had been other previous ac­
counts which must have been paid by Roy) commences Novem­
ber 11, 1907, and was closed September 30, 1911, with a debit of 
$1,705.53. No payments appear to have been made on account 
during these 4 years. On July 30, 1915, Mrs. Carrier, as tutrix 
to her three minor children, signed a demand note for $2,413.56 
in favour of the appellants, covering the debt of $1,705.53 with 
$708.03 for interest. The note itself bore interest at 7%. On 
October 25, 1919, Mrs. Carrier made a payment of $‘200 on ac­
count, and the appellants sued the respondents, the three chil­
dren of Mrs. Carrier, who had attained their majority, on May 
27, 1920, claiming from them jointly and severally the amount 
of the note, $2,413.56, with interest at 7% besides, which inter­
est amounted to $816.61 when the action was taken. On de­
mand being made for particulars, they produced the account 
I have just mentioned. An analysis of the demand made shews 
that the amount of goods purchased was $1,705.53 while $1,- 
524.64 represents the amount of interest claimed.

That is, briefly, the case we have to decide. The Superior 
Court granted the appellants the whole amount of their claim. 
The Court of Appeal reduced the condemnation to the follow­
ing figures: $22.68, $76.41 and $93.82, with interest from July 
30, 1915, due respectively by Camille, Eleanor and Florence 
Carrier for goods furnished for their respective use, of which 
the price was not prescribed when the note was signed. La­
mothe and Martin, JJ., dissenting, would have given appellants 
the amount of their account with interest at 5% from the time 
when payment was demanded.

The first question is to determine if Mrs. Carrier had the 
right as tutrix to sign the note on which the action is based. 
That is tantamount to asking if the signing of the note was an 
act of administration within the power of the tutrix, and it was 
not such an act if it put the minors in a worse position than 
before. That is exactly what happened, for the note bears in­
terest at 7% and involves a joint and several liability. I would, 
therefore, be of opinion that this note cannot serve as the basis 
of the appellants’ action; but, luckily for them, they still have 
their claim on the account which was not novated by the note. 
It is, therefore, the account which we must consider.
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There remains the question of prescription, and if the appel 
lants cannot invoke the note signed by Mrs. Carrier, they are 
in a bad position in this respect. If there had not been interrup­
tion of prescription within the required delay, a considerable 
part of the account would have been prescribed on the day when 
the note was signed, and the tutrix would not have had the right 
to renounce prescription already acquired, for she could not 
alienate the rights of her pupils (art. 2186 C.C. (Que.)). But 
Mrs. Carrier, in her testimony, admits that after her appoint 
ment as tutrix in August 1912 (prescription had not then been 
acquired), she promised to pay the appellants’ account as soon 
as the affairs of the estate should be settled. This evidence was 
given without objection on the part of the defence, notwith­
standing the right which art. 1233 gave them to object to it. 
This evidence must, therefore, be taken into account (Schwcr- 
srnski v. Yimhrru (1891), 19 Can. K.C.R. 248), with the result 
that there has been an acknowledgment of the debt and a prom­
ise to pay. I think it had always been understood that the 
estate would pay the appellants as soon as it had disposed of 
its timber limits.

Admitting, however, that the promise made by Mrs. Carrier 
in August 1912 constitutes an interruption of prescription, there 
still remains a period of nearly 8 years, for the action was not 
taken until May 1920. It is true that in October 1919 Mrs. (’ai­
rier paid the appellants $200 on account, but the heirs were of 
full age at that time and she could no longer bind them. If 
the demand note signed by her is not an evidence of debt on 
the part of respondents, can it not at least avail as an acknowl­
edgement of the debt sufficient to interrupt prescription?

It is a matter of principle that a note given for an existing 
debt docs not effect novation. The debt continues to exist and 
may serve as the basis of a legal action. The note is undoubt­
edly an acknowledgement of the debt and the fact that it can­
not serve as a title of claim against one of the parties does not 
prevent its effect in interrupting prescription, if the acknowl­
edgment of the debt is not itself null. For we are told that the 
acknowledgment resulting from a judicial act may have the 
effect of interrupting prescription even when the act itself is 
tainted with nullity for the nullity does not extend to the 
acknowledgment itself and is distinct from it. ( Beaudry-La- 
cantinerie et Tissier, verbo Prescription, no. 529). There is an 
interesting decision to the same effect in our jurisprudent 
where the Court of Review at Montreal held that a remunera­
tive gift was null as being made in contemplation of death and,
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nevertheless, served as an interruption of prescription of an ac­
count for services which the gift was intended to pay. (Boucher 
v. Morrison (1001), 20 Que. S.(’. 151; 11 Que. K.B. 129). 1, 
therefore, think that the note in question interrupted prescrip­
tion of the account.

That being the case, are the three respondents responsible 
only for the goods purchased for their personal use, as was held 
by the majority of the Court of Appeal?

Let us consider the situation of this family at the time of 
the death of Omer Carrier. There were three young children, 
the youngest born after its father’s death, heirs of their father, 
who died intestate. The widow had no personal property, but 
only a claim against her husband’s estate. The children had 
in the first place the income derived from the factory at Levis 
and then there remained to them the possibility of disposing 
of their father’s timber limits. In order to keep the young 
family together with the mother and maintain a roof over their 
heads, it was necessary to obtain credit. The account in ques­
tion was opened in the name of the estate because it was the 
estate which had to pay it; and the estate means the three chil­
dren. In these circumstances, are the children responsible, af­
ter reaching their majority, for an account opened by their 
tutor for their common benefit and for that of their mother, 
with whom they lived and whose care was indispensable to 
them!

1 am of opinion that the children are responsible. They owed 
aliment to their mother who was destitute. Their tutor recog­
nised this obligation without waiting until it should take the 
form of a legal action, for he has the right to pay the debts of 
his pupils. Deinolombe imagines a somewhat similar obligation, 
vol. 7, no. 692;—

“Rut we have also seen that it is a tutor’s place to discharge 
the lawful debts of the minor; and if the tutor sees that the as 
Cendant of the latter is in need, he may the better discharge this 
alimentary debt in the name of the minor, in as much as a 
judicial demand might be very burdensome for all concerned 
and it would even be the duty of the tutor to avoid a law suit.”

In such a case it will be well to consult the family council.
In the Province of Quebec a family council has not the same 

power of control as in France and it would be useless to con­
sult it. .

The sole alternative in such a case would be to put the chil­
dren in a charitable institution and oblige the mother to earn 
her living. 1 feel no hesitation in concluding that in a case like
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the present it is the duty of children, when they have asset-, 
to assume, each for his share, the obligations incumbent upon 
their mother and that, if their tutor has opened accounts with 
merchants for requirements of the family, the children are re­
sponsible.

But as it is a question of an account opened in. the name of 
the estate, I would condemn the respondents to pay it. just 
as if it were an hereditary debt, namely, in equal shares ami 
not jointly and severally.

I would further maintain the appeal and give the appellants 
judgment against each of the respondents for one third of the 
capital of the account, $1,705.53, with interest at 5% from July 
30th, 1915.

I feel that I must explain my condemnation as regards in­
terest. Interest may be claimed either by virtue of an agré­
ment or by way of damages for delay in paying a sum of money. 
There is no proof of any agreement here. Mrs. Carrier acknowl­
edged to owe the amount of the account and promised to pay 
it, but nothing appears to have been said about interest. If 
the note she signed cannot serve as the basis of the appellant "s 
action, it certainly cannot prove an agreement to pay interest 
from the time when the account was closed or from any other 
time. If interest is claimed by way of damages, it only runs 
from the time of putting in default, (art. 1077 C.C. (Que.)). 
There is no direct proof of putting in default, but it may pro­
perly be inferred that Mrs. Carrier signed the note after being 
put in default to pay. That fixes July 30, 1915, as the proper 
date, and it is from that date that the majority of the «judges 
of the Court of Appeal have made the interest run. 1 am dis­
posed, not without a certain amount of hesitation, for when 1 
was at the Bar the Judges granted interest on a current ac­
count only from the date of service of the action, to accept J uly 
30 as the date from which interest should be calculated.

The sum of $200 paid by Mrs. Carrier in October, 1919, which 
must be imputed first upon interest (art. 115!» C.C. (Que.;.1, 
must be deducted from the total amount of interest accrued. 
The costs of the Superior Court and of this Court, which the 
respondents must pay to the appellants, must be divided 
amongst the’ in the same manner as the debt. They were jus­
tified in api , from the judgment of the Superior Court, 
which condeni *. them for more than they owed, and they, 
therefore, retain against the appellants the condemnation for 
costs awarded by the Court of King’s Bench.

Appeal allowed.



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 609

HKNDERNOX v. STAFFORD.
Manitoba King's Bench, Dysart, J. May 20, 1922.

Ixsvbancf (6IV B—170)—Policy ah rfcvrity for debt—"Plf.doe"— 
"Beneficiary fob valve"—Wife of insured—Change of béné­
ficiait—"Creditor."

Where a life Insurance policy, payable to a wife as beneficiary, 
was given to her by her husband as security for money she ad­
vanced him, the wife having kept the policy In a repository to 
which she and the husband had access in common, she will be 
deemed to hold such policy as a "pledge" within the meaning of 
sec. 7 of the Insurance Act. R.8.M. 1913, ch. 99 and as a "bene­
ficiary for value" within sec. 15 of the Act. standing in the posi­
tion of a "creditor" regardless of the description of her in the 
policy as "the wife of the insured." Her rights, therefor, to the 
proceeds of the i>oliey to the extent of the amount of the debt, 
cannot lie impaired by a direction of the husband to pay a por­
tion of the insurance money to another beneficiary.

Interpleader issue in an action by widow to recover life in­
surance money. Judgment for plaintiff.

J. E. Hansford, for plaintiff.
II. N. Baker and J. C. CaHlinson, for defendant.

Dysart, J. This is an interpleader issue directed by the 
referee to determine which of the above parties is entitled to 
$2.000 life insurance money now in the hands of the Great West 
Life Ins. Co.

The money in question is part of a $5.000 policy, which was 
taken out on November 7, 1010, by Robert N. W. Henderson on 
his own life in favour of the plaintiff, his wife, and which sub­
sequently and without her kmn- ledge, was reapportioned by the 
insured by setting aside $2.00' of the moneys for the defendant, 
his daughter by a former wife.

About 1015 the plaintiff and the defendant’s father became 
engaged to marry. At that time both resided in Winnipeg, and 
their fortunes, though in some respects alike, were otherwise 
materially different. Each had been married before and each 
was willing to marry again. She was childless; he had one 
child, the defendant. She had household furniture in England 
available for the proposed home ; he had some furniture in 
Winnipeg which was mortgaged and which he desired to give 
his daughter. She had an estate consisting of cash and con­
vertible securities amounting to aliout $10,000. His estate, 
apart from the household furniture, consisted, mi far as ascer­
tainable, entirely of liabilities. Though unequally matched he 
was willing to embark with the plaintiff on the matrimonial sea, 
provided she procure the boat and propel it. Accordingly he 
proposed that she bring out from England her furniture and 
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set up a home; that she use her moneys in and towards the cost 
of maintaining their home and themselves until he could assist; 
that she advance him moneys for his use in reducing or ex 
tinguishing his debts, and leave him free to apply all his own 
earnings to the same end. All such moneys so expended or 
advanced he promised to repay her at some time which was not 
mentioned ; ami in order to secure her in the meantime he offered 
to take out a policy of insurance upon his own life in her favour. 
This munificent proposal she accepted.

I find that in pursuance of this arrangement the plaintiff went 
to England and brought out her furniture at an expense of 
$1,000; that after her return she and the defendant’s father 
were duly married and set up housekeeping, making use of her 
furniture; that she paid the entire household expenses for the 
first 18 months, and a substantial part for the ensuing 4*2 
months; that she made numerous loans to and for her husband 
to be applied upon his debts or liabilities, including sums for 
payment of the debt incurred for the defendant’s weddimr 
trousseau and for the discharge of the mortgage on her house­
hold furniture. In all these ways I find she advanced or ex­
pended under this agreement a very large sum, the exact amount 
of which is not definitely ascertained, but which plaintiff says 
was not less than $9,000. 1 find also that some time after the 
plaintiff’s marriage, her husband took out a promised policy of 
insurance on his life in the sum which they then agreed on at 
$5,000; and the initial premium thereon was paid by the plain­
tiff, and incidentally all subsequent premiums were paid by her 
husband from moneys which she from time to time loaned him 
for that purpose.

I find further that when the policy was issued, it was de­
livered by the husband to the plaintiff with the remark that it 
was her security and should be carefully protected; that she 
took possession of the policy and placed it in a drawer in which 
she kept her personal papers, and there she kept it under her 
control until her husband’s death. In this drawer the husband 
also kept his personal papers and effects, and equally with his 
wife had access to the drawer.

In the meantime the defendant had also married and removed 
with her husband to Detroit, Michigan. With the assistance of 
money loaned by the plaintiff, the defendant’s father visited 
the defendant on several occasions. Shortly after one of these 
visits, as it now appears, the insured made a change in the 
beneficiary of the said policy. This was on April 7, 1920. Prior 
to the change, the beneficiary of the policy was “Susannah
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Henderson (wife of the Insured).” By the change of the Man-
beneficiary, the insured directed that the insurance money on KB
his death “he payable $3,000 to Susannah Henderson, my wife, -----
$2,000 to Mrs. Maude Stafford, my daughter, if living; other- Hknokrson 
wise to my executors, administrators or assigns.” Whether or srxmiRf».
not the defendant had any knowledge of this change does not ----
appear, hut it is certain that tin* plaintiff knew nothing of it, Dyeert,J- 
and although the insured on the occasion of each payment of 
premium delivered the premium receipt to the plaintiff and on 
many of the occasions remarked that her security was good for 
another month, he never hinted to her anything of the change 
he had made. It was not until after his death in Decernhe»*,
1920, that she first learned of the alteration.

Some comment on this surprising proceeding is irrésistible.
Here we see on the one hand a husband who is deeply indebted 
to his wife in money and gratitude—indebted to a degree that he 
can never hope to repay—and on the other, a father who has 
bestowed upon his only daughter much that he has received 
from his wife and all that he has saved from his creditors. We 
discover this man displaying for the financial well-being of his 
daughter a degree of generous concern which, had he been either 
able or hopeful of indulging it out of his own resources, would 
have been highly commendable, hut which, depending as it did 
for its realization on this insurance policy, was neither com­
mendable nor honest. It illustrates that the conduct of some 
men is marked by this superb spirit of liberality only when they 
deal with the property of others. In the conflict between uxorial 
duty, and paternal sentiment, he turned from his obligation to 
the one to indulge his bounty to the other. “To him who hath, 
much shall be given, and from him who hath not, even that 
which he seemeth to have shall be taken away.” So it has 
been written of old, and so, it is practiced even to this day.

How far the defendant herself is affected by a knowledge of 
this variation of beneficiary does not appear, but the complete 
absence of all testimony in support of her claim must leave us 
to infer that, as a mere volunteer she seeks to enforce against 
the beneficiary for value, a claim conceived in dishonesty and 
ingratitude, and brought forth in naked technicality.

The defendant’s case is rested upon the provisions of the 
Manitoba Life Insurance Act, R.S.M. 1913, ch. 99. According 
to sec. 7 of this Act the husband is free at any time to vary a 
policy taken out on his own life for the benefit of his wife or 
children, and by a declaration in writing to reapportion the 
same, provided that such reapportionment does not “interfere
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with any pledge of the policy to any person prior to” such de­
claration or reapportionment. The defendant contends that 
this policy was not technically pledged to the plaintiff, because 
a pledge depends upon exclusive possession, and that as the 
policy was kept in a repository common to both the plaint ill' 
and the insured, it could not be said to be in the exclusive pos 
session of the plaintiff.

I am of the opinion, however, that the plaintiff did have 1li<* 
exclusive possession of the said policy while it remained in that 
repository. The mere fact that her husband living in harmony 
with her had access to the drawer, and even kept his own papers 
there, does not deprive her of the exclusiveness of possession. 
The intimate relationship between husband and wife surely 
allows that degree of confidence in each other which would 
obviate the necessity of keeping under lock and key the private 
effects of each. If the husband had taken this policy from this 
common receptacle, but without the knowledge or consent of Ins 
wife, to make adverse use of it, he would not thereby have de­
prived the plaintiff of her right to recover the possession of the 
document. In my opinion the policy was pledged to the plain­
tiff from the time of its delivery to her.

The plaintiff contends that in addition to being the pledgee 
of the policy she is also the “beneficiary for value,” contem­
plated by sec. 15 of the said Act, as amended by 1920 (Man.), 
ch. 61, sec. 2. This view is strongly opposed by the defendant 
on the ground that the section relates only to a policy which 
is “expressed on its face to be for the benefit of . . . per­
sons other than” the wife of the insured, whereas this policy 
was payable to ‘‘Sasannah Henderson (wife of the Insured )." 
Hut finding as 1 do that the policy was taken out to secure plain­
tiff for the loans made to the insured, a meaning should be given 
to these words in the beneficiary clause of the policy which will 
if possible give effect to the agreement. That policy was pro­
mised and was taken out to protect the plaintiff not as the in/., 
but as the creditor of the insured. The parenthetical description 
of the plaintiff as the “wife of the Insured” is merely inciden­
tal to her name, and is used only as a means of designating her 
with the more particularity in order to prevent possible con­
fusion of names. The policy is really payable to the plaint ilf 
as “Susannah Henderson,” and not as “wife of the Insured."

There seems to be no decided cases in Manitoba upon this 
point, but in Ontario under the Insurance Act, whose proviso ns 
so far as they affect this case are almost identical with our own, 
there is a case very much in point. In Hook v. Hook (1901). 1
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O.L.R. 86. the Ontario Court of Appeal reversed the judgment 
of Meredith, J., reported in (1900), 32 O.R. 206. In that ease 
the wife of the insured was the owner of a farm and mortgaged 
it for her husband’s purposes, both husband and wife covenant­
ing to pay off the mortgage, the husband being in the position 
of principal debtor and his wife as surety only. The husband 
insured his life in favour of his wife for the purpose of securing 
her against the mortgage debt. Later he quarrelled with his 
wife and left her, but she continued payment of the insurance 
premiums till his death, although she knew that he had by bis 
will bequeathed all the insurance money to his sons. Meredith, 
J„ decided that the wife was not entitled to the money on the 
ground that the policy was payable to the w ife and therefore the 
husband hail the right to change the beneficiary at will. On 
appeal that decision was reversed. In his judgment, Armour, 
O.J.O., uses the following language at pp. 87-88:—

“The certificate of insurance in this case was granted on the 
6th of February, 1885. The Act then in force to secure to wives 
and children the benefit of life insurance was 47 Viet. (Ont.) 
ch. 20, but the certificate of insurance in this case, although made 
payable to the plaintiff, the wife of the insured, was not made 
payable to her as wife under the provisions of the said Act, but 
was made payable to her to indemnify her against the mortgage 
she had given on her own land for the accomodation of her 
husband, the insured.

The insurance was effected for this purpose, and for this pur­
pose the certificate was made payable to the plaintiff, and im­
mediately upon its being obtained by the insured was handed 
by him to the plaintiff to be held by her as an indemnity to her 
against the said mortgage, and has ever since been held by her 
as such.

The delivery of this certificate to the plaintiff to be he'd by 
her as an indemnity against the said mortgage constituted her 
an equitable mortgagee of the said certificate and of the in­
surance money thereby made payable to secure and indemnify 
her against the said mortgage : Ferris v. Muilins (1854), 2 8m. 
and G. 378.

From this transaction there clearly arose an implied contract 
on the part of the insured that he would do nothing to prejudice 
the security so given by him to the plaintiff : Stirling v. Mait­
land (1864), 5 11. k S. 840, 122 K.R. 1043, 34 L.J. ((j.D.) 1; 
McIntyre v. Belcher (1863), 14 C.ll. (N.8.) 654, 143 K.R. 602, 
32 L.J. (C.l\) 254, 11 W.R. 889.

And this Contract on the part of the insured must, in ray
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Man. opinion, prevail over the suppose»! right of the defendant 
K.B. Solon D. Rook under the will of the insured, he being a men
---- volunteer.

Hi ksu\ Holding, as I do, that the cert ideate of insuranee was made
St ah nan. payahb* to the plaintiff, not as the wife of the insured under
„ „ the provisions of the A et 47 Viet. (Ont.) eh. *20, hut to indemDysirt, J. 1ii if y her against the mortgage she had given on her own land 

for the aceoniinodution of her husband, I am of the opinion that 
if the case is governed by the Ontario Insu ranee Act, R.S.O. 
1897, eh. 203, at all it is governed by see. 151 and not by see. 
160, and see. 151 expressly forbids the diversion of the lienelit 
of any person who is a beneficiary for value.

That this certificate of insurance might be delivered by way 
of equitable mortgage seems clear from the express provisi n 
of the Act that nothing therein contained should la* held or 
construed to restrict or interfere with the right of any person 
to effect or assign a policy for the benefit of any one or more 
beneficiaries in any other mode allowed by law.”

Secs. 151 and 160 of the then Ontario Act, R.S.O. 1897, ch. 
203, correspond with sees. 15 and 7 respectively of our Act.

The facts and circumstances of the present case are so clearly 
in line with those in /took v. /took, and the language uliov 
quoted so peculiarly applicable here, that I adopt it and applx 
it. I hold that the plaintiff is a beneficiary for value and i* 
not excluded from her rights as such by any provision in the 
Act. I hold that the extent of her interest in the policy is tin 
amounts of money she expended and loaned to and for the in 
su red under the agreement referred to. I hold that she is en 
titled to Is* declared pledgee or equitable mortgagee of tli.- 
puliey in question with all moneys payable thereunder, including 
of course the *2,000 in dispute, as security for the repayment 
to her of all moneys which as 1 have indicated she expended 
and advanced to and for her husband, or at his request, in pur 
suaiice of the said agreement.

If it is thought that the amount so expended and loaned by 
the plaintiff does not exceed *5,000, and that an accounting i* 
necessary to ascertain the exact amount thereof, a reference 
may la,* had to the Master of this Court for that purpose, the 
costs of which reference, as well as further directions, i hereby 
reserve.

The plaintiff shall have costs of this interpleader application 
throughout to be paid by the defendant before sueh reference
is had.

Judgment fur plaintif.
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IIINIKL* v. HIHIKI',
Alberto Supreme Court, Main, U.C. April 1.1. IU22.

Cohtf (11-14) —8m*einr—Ai.hfkta Rvi.r. 7IS—Dibcw.tioji ok Jvm.it.
Under the Alberta rules an application for security for ro^ts 

may be made at any time after service of the statement of claim 
(It. 723) and the granting of the order for security, the amount 
thereof and whether for past or future costs or both Is In the dis­
cretion of the Judge healing the application.

Motion for security for costs. (Iranted.
G. II. Steer, for defendant.
II. It. Mihirr, K.( \, for plaint iff.
Hi.ain. M.C. This is an «et ion on a mort traire the defence 

to which is payment. The statement of claim was issued on 
April 20 of last year and the endorsement thereon shewed the 
residence of the plaintiff to lie out of the jurisdiction. The 
order for directions has been made, affidavits on production filed 
and the defendant lias been partly examined for discovery. The 
action has been entered on the general list of eases for trial 
hut no date yet fixed.

The defendant now moves for security for costs and counsel 
for the plaintiff, while admitting that his client should furnish 
security, contends it should he for future costs only.

I’ndcr our rules an application for security for costs may he 
made at any time after service of the statement of claim (R. 
723), and the granting of the order for security, the amount 
thereof and whether for past or future costs only, or hotli, is 
in the discretion of the Judge hearing the applieatiou.

In this application 1 think the plaintiff should give security 
for past as well as for future costs. I fixed the amount of se­
curity at $300 to he paid into Court or a bond to lie given for 
$600 when the motion was first spoken to. The point that the 
security should he for future costs only was raised for the first 
time on the settlement of the order, some days after argument 
of the motion. Had the defendant applied for security im­
mediately after service of the statement of claim the plaintiff 
would then have had to furnish security and there is no evidence 
that he has been prejudiced by being allowed to carry on to 
this stage of the action without being asked for security. No 
date has yet been set for the trial of this action, as was the ease 
in Grossman v. Purvis (1915), 23 D.L.lt. 883, and it was the 
special circumstances in that case which led the Judge to make 
the order there made. 1 find nothing in this action to d prive 
the defendant of his right to security nor to preclude the pro­
priety of ordering security for past as well as future costs.

Sec llately v. Merchants Despatch Transportation Co. (1883),
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K.B.
10 P.R. 253, in which a plaintiff leaving the jurisdiction per­
manently was ordered to give security for past as well as fu­
ture costa.

Motion granted.

Re SHAW Co. U<l.
8a$kotchewon Kinp'n Bench in Bankruptcy, MacDonald, J.

June 11, 1922.
Bankrupt! y (SI—7)—Authorised trustee—Conflict of interest* 

Removal.
The fact that certain large creditors of a person who has made 

an authorised assignment under the Bankruptcy Act 1919 (Can.i 
ch. 3i), are directors and shareholders of a trust comiwny, is suf­
ficient to entitle the Court to remove such trust company as 
thorlsed trustee, and appoint another trustee in Its place on the 
ground that there may arise a conflict between the Interests and 
the duty of the officers of the trustee.

[See Annotations, 63 D.L.R. 136, 66 D.L.R. 104, 69 D.L.R. 1.]
Application by certain creditors to remove a trust company, 

as authorised trustee, and substitute another trustee. Applic.i 
tion granted.

/*. II. Gordon, for the creditors.
L. MacTagyart, for the trustee.
MacDonald, J.:—This is an application on behalf of certain 

creditors of the above estate to remove the Executors & Admin 
istrators Trust Co., Ltd., as trustee and to substitute another 
trustee in its place.

The Walter W. Shaw Co., Ltd., on or about February 21. 
1922, made an authorised assignment under the Bankruptcy 
Act, 1919 (Can.) ch. 36, to the Executors & Administrators 
Trust Co., Ltd., authorised trustee. Among those who claim to 
be creditors of the Walter W. Shaw Co. Ltd. were some ten 
directors and shareholders of the company who had rather la re­
claims. Two of the directors who had claims as aforesaid are 
also shareholders in the Executors & Administrators Trust Co. 
Ltd., one of them being a director of the trust company, being 
o îe of the board of ten. The creditors who have applied hen* 
ii. claim that on account of the fact that thes,* two persons are 
interested in the trust company and in the Walter W. Shaw 
Co., Ltd. the trust company should not act as trustee, as then- 
may arise a conflict between the interests and the duty of i lie 
officers of the trustee.

After carefully perusing all the material filed herein, 1 have 
come to the conclusion that it is not desirable that the pres* ut 
trustee, on account of said relations, should continue to act. The
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question is whether it would be difficult for the trustee to ant 
with impartiality, not whether, in fact, it would or would not 
do so. In re Lamb; Ex parte Hoard of Trade, [1894] 2 (j.l$. 
805, 64 L.J. (Q.B.) 71 per Lord Esher, M.U.

There will therefore be an order removing the Executors & 
Administrators Trust Co., Ltd., as trustee and appointing in­
stead the Traders Trust Co., who have consented to act in that 
capacity.

The creditors who applied will have their costs out of the 
estate.

Application granted.

WIIHON v. WINNOTDG KLtXTKH' It. Co.
Manitoba King's Bench, Curran, J. June 1, I9J2.

Street Railways (8III B—25)—Negligence —Premature starting or
CAB—FaILITRE TO CLOSE DOORS—CoXTRIIIl TORY NEGLIGENCE— 
Boarding moving CAR—STEPPING okk.

Starting a street ear by the conductor at a stopping point be­
fore the entrance doors are closed and before all persons attempt­
ing to board it are safely on, is negligence for which the railway 
company is liable; and it is no contributory negligence under such 
circumstances on the part of a passenger in boarding the car after 
it had begun moving, nor in stepping off, when finding the posi­
tion precarious.

Damages (8111 I— 190)—Loss of hand.

An award of $1,500, in addition to medical expenses wa* al­
lowed us damages for the partial loss of a right hand and In­
juries to a shoulder, the plaintiff being a woman of 75 years of
age.

Action for damages for personal injuries. Judgment for 
plaintiff.

T. A. Hunt, K.C., and V. G. Wurburtun, for plaintiff.
H. 1). Guy, for defendant.
Curran, J. The plaintiff is an old lady 75 years of age, and 

was attempting to hoard the street car in question accompanied 
hv her daughter from a safety island or landing platform for 
passengers placed on the north side of Portage Ave. at the cor­
ner of Portage Ave. and Hargrave St. She and her daughter 
reached the platform and were waiting for a westbound car. 
Une arrived, pulled up at the platform, came to a full stop, 
and the entrance doors were thrown open. It slopped a little 
west of the place on the platform where the plaintiff and her 
daughter were standing and they were obliged to take a number 
of steps westward to reach the entrance to the car.

The plaintiff could give but little explanation as to the exact 
cause of the accident. She claims that she had got with both

K.B.



i

Dominion Law Kei-orts. [68 D.L.R.618

Man.

Wll.NO.N

l.\ Ml'F.» I

It! Co.

her feet upon the bottom step of the ear and had hold of the 
handrail when the ear started and she was thrown off and hit 
the pavement at the end of the safety island.

The daughter, Mrs. Pugh, says:—
“The doors were opened and the car came to a full stop. 

A woman got on ahead of us. I had hold of my mother’s arm; 
she was ahead of me in getting on the ear. 1 saw her on the 
bottom step. She had hold of the handrail with h-r right hand. 
1 was still on the platform waiting for the woman ahead of 
my mother to move on and make room for me to get on too. 
When mother was on the bottom step the car moved ahead 
quickly and mother was thrown full length on the pavement.”

There is no doubt that the conductor signalled the motormaii 
to go ahead before the entrance doors were closed, he him elf 
a»lmits it. ami that the car started to move ahead whilst the 
plaintiff was still apparently standing on the bottom step.

The bottom step of this car folds up when the doors are closed 
and lets down when the doors are open, and if a person was 
standing upon this step while it was lowered in position for 
stepping upon, the doors could not be closed without throwing 
such person off. This was the situation when the car was start 
ed. The conductor stated that he thought all intending passeii 
gers lia.I got on and started to close the doors ami gave the nio- 
torman the signal to proceed. As he was going to close the 
doors the plaintiff stepped on the folding or lower step ami 
when he saw her he at once signalled the motorman to stop 
the car, and when the car got to the end of the platform an 1 
while it was moving the plaintiff stepped off the car onto tin- 
platform, toppled over and fell before the car stopped. He 
states that there was no jerk or jar of the car to cause her to fall 
off.

Henri Hourgeault, a passenger who was standing in the ear 
vestibule, says:—

“Just as the car started I heard a woman’s voice aay—‘Wait ' 
Wait! Mother! Mother!’ very excitedly. 1 turne»I rouml an-l 
saw an elderly lady standing on the lower step holding on with 
her hands to the handrails on either side of the doorway. I 
went very quickly to her assistance and then she let go her 
left hand and stepped off, her body twisted backward and she 
seemed to crumple down and fell on her head and shoulder. 
The car was moving very slowly,” creepingly, as he expressed 
it. On examination he said:—“She really stepped off the car 
backwards, I am sure of that. I think she was safe until her 
daughter cried out. The younger woman was running along
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with the ear just, opposite the old Indy.” Edna Martman who 
was standing on the platform says:—

“The ear started up ami was harclv moving when the young­
er woman helped the older woman in the car. She had got 
onto the bottom step when the younger woman called out,— 
‘Wait a minute! Wait a minute!’ and caught the elder woman 
by the arm and pulled her when she fell down.”

Irene Lewis, a sister of the last witness, was also an eyewit­
ness of the accident and I attach a good deal of credit to her 
statement of what occurred. She says:

“The Corydon ear was standing there when I came to the 
platform. I saw them come on the platform, they were running, 
the younger woman had hold of the old lady’s arm. The con­
ductor was giving the motorman the hell and started to close 
the doors, had his hand on the lever to close the door. The 
younger woman had the older one hv the left arm ami pushed 
her onto the step while the car was moving. The young woman 
hollered ‘Wait a minute!’ and still hung on to the older wo 
man. When the ear got to the end of the platform the old 
lady let go the car. She had been hanging on with both hands, 
when she let go she stepped hack onto the platform from the 
ear step and seemed to topple over sideways onto the pavement. 
She seemed to be dragging one foot all the time, one foot on 
ami the other half on the step.”

On cross-examination this witness further stated:—
"The old lady stepped onto the lower step with her left 

foot. She didn’t get both feet on it. She had hold with both 
hands. She had one foot on the safety isle hopping along and 
one foot on the step. The ear was moving very slow. The 
younger woman had hold of her right to the end. She was 
awfully excited. It was an awkward situation, there was reason 
for excitement. The car had just started to move before the 
old lady attempted to board it. She had started to get on the 
car just as it started to move. The conductor could not close 
the door because she was on the step. Both the women were 
excited.”

I'pon the whole I think this young woman’s account of the 
accident is entitled to full credence. It envisages the whole oc­
currence from lieginning to end and supplies details which 
neither the conductor nor Bourgeault from their position in the 
vestibule of the car were able to observe. It does mit differ 
from or conflict with their accounts of the accident. 1 iliink 
the plaintiff is mistaken in thinking she had both feu on the 
ear step, such an error is quite understandable under the cir-

K.B.

Wn.aosr
v.

Wl \ NIl’K'l 
Ei.wtiuo 
R. Co.



620 Dominion Law Revobts. [68 D.L.R.

Man.

K.B.

WlI.HON
».

WiNMimo 
BlECTEIC! 

R. Co.
Curran, J.

cumstances an I fully I relieve both women, plaintiff and her 
daughter, were excited and doubtlessly alarmed in the situation 
for the old lady'» safety, and apparently with good reason. 
The daughter'» cries and the moving car were «officient in my 
judgment to unnerve the old lady and produce a condition of 
mind akin to panic, preventing the exereiae of the best jink 
ment and the doing of the right thing in a sudden and difficult 
situation.

Applying the principles of law as stated in Squires v. Toronto 
It. Co. (1020), 54 D.L.R. 575, 47 O.L.H. 61.1, cited by the plain 
tiff's counsel, I hold that the conductor was negligent in giving 
the signal to start the car and causing it to start before the on 
trance doors were closed. As long as these doors were open 
and the car standing at a passenger landing place there was 
thereby an invitation extended to any intending passenger on 
the platform to enter the car, and under such circumstances it 
is obvious it was the duty of the defendants' servant in charge 
of the ear to afford a reasonable opportunity to such passen 
gers to get in the car in safety. I think it was clearly the duly 
of the conductor before giving the signal to start the car to 
close the doors and thus avoid the danger of passengers attempt­
ing to get in a moving car. So long as the doors remained open 
the invitation to enter existed ami the car should have I teen 
kept stationary. So long as the doors remained open it was 
the duty of the conductor to see that all persons attempting 
to board his car were safely on before giving the signal to 
start. This precaution he did not take in the case of the plain 
tiff. It is true he says he did not see her until she was oil the 
step but he ought to have seen there was no one about to cm : 
the car or in the act of entering before he gave the signal t > 
start the car. llad he looked towards the entrance before giv 
ing the signal to start he would have seen the plaintiff, have i ■ 
trained from giving the starting signal and so avoided a pm. 
sible accident.

I find it very difficult to reach a satisfactory conclusion upon 
the evidence as to whether or not the car had actually started 
to move when the plaintiff attempted to enter it. I think, how 
ever, the weight of evidence shews that it was moving, though 
very slowly at that time. Doth Mart man and Lewis are (pule 
clear that it was moving and ltourgeault's evidence is practical 
ly to the same effect. At all events the two acts, viz., startin ' 
the ear and the attempt to hoard it, were so nearly coincident 
that 1 could not hold under the circumstances that the plaint 
was guilty of contributory negligence in trying to get on tic
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oar when she did ; the doors were open, the ear had at most 
hardy begun to move; the daughter was assisting her and the 
attempt could not have had the appearance of being dangerous 
or imprudent even for a woman of the plaintiff’s age and con­
dition. In the Squires case. 54 D.L.R. at p. 576, the Court 
said

“It is settled law that getting off a car when it is in motion 
is not necessarily contributory negligence. Everything depends 
on the circumstances, and it is not contributory negligence 
where the speed of the car is such that a reasonably prudent 
man in the circumstances would have done what the intending 
passenger did, and the same rule should he applied when a per­
son is getting on a moving car.”

The proper conclusion in the circumstances of the case at 
Bar, in my opinion, is that the plaintiff was not guilty of con­
tributory negligence in boarding or attempting to board the 
car. But the defendant contends that the plaintiff had reached 
a place of safety on the car step and therefore she was guilty 
of contributory negligence in quitting that situation and step­
ping off the moving car, which act was the direct and prox­
imate cause of her injury and not the act of the conductor 
in causing the car to Ik* started as lie did. But had she reached 
a place of safety? According to the witness Lewis she had 
not but was always in a precarious if not dangerous situation. 
I cannot agree that the plaintiff had reached a place of safety 
and abandoned it. I find as a fact that the plaintiff did step 
off the car whilst it was in motion and that her doing so caused 
the injury she sustained. Had she attained the position on the 
step she says she did, 1 can see no reason why she should not 
have been able to mount to the vestibule of the car. That she 
did not do so tends to confirm my acceptance of the evidence 
of the witness Irene Lewis which clearly indicates that the 
plaintiff was trying to get up the steps but was unable to do 
so because she did not get both feet on the step and because 
of the movement of the car.

In the Squirts case, supra, a situation arose in which the 
plaintiff was required to judge and act quickly and she had 
been put in that position through a failure of duty of the de­
fendants’ conductor in not stopping his car long enough for the 
plaintiff to get on it while it was standing still. The Court 
absolved the plaintiff from the charge of contributory negli­
gence. The plaintiff's counsel says that that principle ought, 
to be applied here for that the plaintiff was suddenly through 
the defendants’ negligence placed in a position in which she
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was required to avt quickly, in other words it was the defend­
ants’ avt that placed her in such a position and not her own. 
If this is so ami in the confusion of mind in which she was 
suddenly plunged she did the wrong thing, I think she oimlit 
to lie absolved from blame on the charge of contributory negli­
gence.

To solve this proposition Ï will resort to the evidence of Irene 
Lewis which as 1 said before appealed to me as being the most 
complete and reasonable account of the accident given by any 
of the witnesses. From this young woman’s statement the plain 
tiff never did get both feet on the car step. She got only one 
foot on it and as the car kept on moving she having this one 
foot on the step and holding on with both hands partly sus 
taining her weight on the other foot which was on the platform 
kept up a sort of hopping movement along the platform to 
conform to the speed of the car. In this situation she let go 
her hand, withdrew her foot from the step and Ml to the pay­
ment. This being my conclusion of fact it seems obvious that 
the position in which the plaintiff found herself Mas due en 
tirely to the motion of the car and her apparent inability to 
get both feet on the step. If she could not get any further on 
the car M-hat Mas left to her but to try and regain the ground, 
which probably appeared to her the safest place. The momen­
tum of the car would take her with it when she stepped off and 
it is easy to understand that instead of alighting on her feet 
she Mas throM'n to the pavement with considerable violence. 
The nature of her injuries sufficiently establishes this.

From the liest consideration of the case I have been able to 
give, and not without some doubt, I must hold that the plaintiff 
Mas not guilty of contributory negligence but that the accident 
ami consequent injuries to the plaintiff were caused solely 
by the conductor’s negligence in causing the car to be started 
liefore the entrance doors were closed and the plaintiff had a 
reasonable opportunity to get on the car in safety. The plain­
tiff is therefore entitled to recover against the defendant com­
pany. Her expenses for medical attendance, nurses, drugs, X 
ray plates, etc., are proven to amount to There is no
doubt that the plaintiff’s injuries considering her advanced a.-. 
Mere very serious. She had made a fairly good recovery but 
her right hand is practically useless, she cannot close her fin­
gers, due to th » wrist bones having been broken. The wrist is 
deformed; she cannot pick up anything with the right hand and 
there is no strength in it. She still suffers from u convulsive 
movement or nervous tM’itching in her shoulder ami 1 gather
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from tlie medical testimony that some of these injuries are 
permanent. If she was a younger woman it might he a ease 
for very substantia! damages. As it is the partial loss of the 
use of her right hand and the injuries to her shoulder are ser­
ious enough even for a woman of the plaintiff's age and ex­
pectation of life.

I assess her damages, apart from the actual disbursements, 
at the sum of $1,500, and allow’ her in addition the said sum 
of $435.96 to cover lier disbursements, making in all the sum 
of $1.935.96, and enter a verdict in the plaintiff's favour for 
this amount, with costs of suit to include costs of discovery 
examinations.

Judgment fur plain!iff.

C'KIHIMN * Vo. v. KVAXH, MU.KMAN * KVANK, Mil. 
Jtrithh Columbia Supreme Court, Morrimn, J. September 9, I9ti. 

Contracts (11IB 150) 8ai.k w salmon- Limitation ok i.iAim m 
E.n sis:m or.xkbih—“Any otiikr vavsk.*'

A clause In a contrait for the sale of salmon of a season's 
pack. limiting the seller's liability “In the event of packing being 
Interfered with or stopped, or falling short through the failure 
of fishing, or through strikes or lock outs of fishermen or work 
men or from any cause not under the control of the sellers." 
refers only to matters rfundem generin and does not apply to an 
Inability to make deliveries owing to an Inadequacy In the sup­
ply of tins In which to pack, the run of salmon meantime ceas­
ing.

Dam auks 11 III A—70)—Comth—Interrst— Breach or contract— Sal*.
Interest and costs Incurred In defending an action In conse­

quence of a breach of contract of sale on the part of a seller, are 
recoverable as damages arising from the breach In an action 
against the seller.

Action for damages for breach of contract. Judgment for 
plaintiffs.

(\ IV. Craig, K.C., and <\ IV. Tgxoe, for plaintiffs.
E. V. Darin, K.C., and />. //. IIossie, for defendants.
Morrison, J.The plaintiffs are merchants in London. Eng. 

The defendants arc merchants in Vancouver, H.C., ami they, 
in December, 1916, entered into two contracts whereby the tle- 
fendents sold to the plaintiffs certain quantities of Fraser River 
salmon to In- packed during the season of 1917 by the H.C. 
1'ackers’ Ass’n. and the St. Mungo Cannery Co. Ltd., respec­
tively. The plaintiffs, in turn, on May 16, 1917, sold this pack 
to IicRcaupin, Nantes, France. There were no deliveries pur­
suant to these contracts ami in due course LeUeaupin claimed 
damages against the plaintiffs and by an award made in an nr-
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Lit ration in the form of a special case, the umpire crossed at 
the sum of $12,500. This award was upheld by McCardie, J.. 
in the King's Bench Division. England, f 1920] 2 K.R. 711, 80 
L.J. (K.B.) 1024, 36 Times L.B. 739 at the rate of exchange 
ruling upon the date of the breach of the contract, viz., Sep 
tember 30, 1917. The plaintiffs have brought this action 
against the defendants for damages consequent upon the breach 
as between them. The point upon which this case turns ami 
which was exactly submitted to me is as to the true construc­
tion and meaning of what has been referred to as the “pack­
ing” clause of the contracts in question. This clause reads as 
follows:—

“Packing: In the event of the packing being interfered 
with or stopped, or falling short through the failure of fishing, 
or through strikes or lockouts of fishermen or workmen, or from 
any cause not under the control of the sellers, this contract 
to be cancelled in respeet to any non delivery or part non de 
livery, as the case may be, but sellers to use every endeavour 
to supply the full quantities specified. Sellers do not guarantee 
any special period of season for packing this grade and shape. "

What apparently happened is compendiously stated in the 
award by the Arbitrator and later adopted by the trial Judge 
in Lcbeaupin v. Crispin <V Co., [1920] 2 K.B. 714, 89 L.J. (K. 
B.) 1024 at p. 1026. 36 Times L it. 739:-

“The St. Mungo Tannery belongs to the St. Mungo Canning 
Co. In the season of 1917 there was an excellent run of fidi 
on the Fraser Hiver. The St. Mungo Co. l>egan to pack the 
salmon into the H lb. tins. They then proceeded to prepare 
the tins as usual by a cooking process, but found that the tins 
were defective and useless for the desired purpose. Hence 
they ceased to pack into % lb. tins and destroyed the cooking 
already made. Before they could get a new lot of *3i lb. tins 
the run of salmon had practically ceased. If they had possess 
ed a sufficient supply of good tins they could have secured fi>h 
for 2.5(H) cases of % lb. fiat pinks. The St. Mungo Co. gave 
evidence before the umpire to the effect that it was not possible 
to discover that the tins were defective until pressure was put 
on them in the process of cooking. Upon this point the umpire 
says: ‘1 accept this in the sense that the defects could not be 
found until the tins were used, and that they had no reason 
to suspect them until they did use them, but I find that they 
might have been used and so tested at an earlier date, for ex­
ample, when they were packing the Toba Inlet fish. There was 
no evidence of the date or terms of their contract with the Am-
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••rican Canning Co., of the date of the delivery of the tins which B.C.
proved defective’ . . . Apparently the defective tins had ^T
been supplied by the American Canning Co. -U.

The Acme Cannery belongs to the British Columbia Packers’ Csihciw 
Ass’n. Ample fish existed in the season of 1917 to enable them 4
to pack 2,500 cases of lb. flat pinks. They had a full supply Evans.
of Vfc lb. tins. What happened, however, was this. They had f0LKIIAN 
h large number of 1 lb. tins. These were getting rusty when the 4 Lm*"’ 
tish began to run. They therefore filled the 1 lb. tins first to —- 
the extent of over 3,700 cases to avoid the loss of those 1 lb. Morrl,,on 1 
tins. Then ere they could proceed to fill the V£ lb. tins the run 
of fish ceased and they were unable to prepare */• lb. tins at all.
The cessation of the run was in no way abnormal. Such are 
the main facts as to the two contracts.”

Are there any words in the altove clause which prevent the 
application of the cjusdem ueneris rule ? No useful purpose can 
lie served by my reviewing the authorities dealing with that 
rule, but I shall refer only to one case, vit., Thornton v. Dow- 
finte. Steamships Co. Ltd., (1910) 1 K.B. 410, 79 L.J. (K.B.)
287, 102 L.T. 242, where Hamilton, •!., deals fully with the rule.
In that case a ship was chartered to proceed to Alexandria 
Docks at Hull and there load a cargo of coal in 120 hours on 
conditions of usual colliery guarantee. The colliery guarantee 
excepted from the loading time, Sundays, holidays, strikes, 
frosts or storms, any accidents stopping the working, loading 
or shipping of the cargo, restrictions or suspension of labour, 
look-outs, delay on the part of the railway company, either in 
supplying wagons or loading the eoal **or any other cause be­
yond the charterer’s control.” I italicise the last clause. The 
ship arrived in the dock and gave notice of her readiness to go 
but owing to the presence of other vessels, which had arrived 
previously, and were waiting to load, delay occurred in loading.
The owners claim demurrage against the charterers. It was 
there held that the words italicized above must be construed as 
referring to matters cjnsdem yemris with the enumerated ex­
ceptions; that the cause of the delay, viz., presence of other ships 
in the dock was not a matter of ejnsdem ycneris with those ex­
ceptions and that the charterer was not protected by the excep­
tions and was liable for demurrage. Hamilton, J., in dealing 
with the above clause says (see 79 L.J. (K.B.) 287 at p. 294)

“In the form of the guarantee, too, which I understand is 
generally used, at any rate on the Tyne ... the word 
‘whatever’ is imported into a clause corresponding with the 
clause in question in this caw. Accordingly, I think it is quite 

42—68 D.L.H.
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reasonable to suppose that the parties entering into this guar 
antee were fully aware, having the English language at com­
mand. that they might carry the matter considerably further 
if they used the word 4 whatever, ’ . . . and if they had 
chosen to use the expression 4 of what kind soever ’ it would pass 
the wit of man to find language more express or emphatic to 
indicate the utmost possible generality ; but when they confine 
themselves to words of specific enumeration like ‘any other cause 
beyond my control’ I see nothing inserted here to derogate from 
the ordinary canon of construction that those words are subject, 
to a limitation, viz., that of the genus or category which the pre­
vious words have indicated.”

As some aid, in arriving at what the defendants herein meant, 
the letters of June 27, 28 and 30, 1917, may be looked at and 
although the view expressed in them, as to the scope of the 
contract, may not be conclusive or binding upon a Court, yet at 
any rate it goes a long way to clear up as to what was in the 
mind of the defendants, assuming the writer of the letter was 
not disingenuous, which motive I do not for a moment ascribe 
to him. The letter of June 27, 1917, addressed to the St. Mungo 
Cannery ends up thus: 44We arc relying on you to make us a 
full delivery of pink halves as we have sold these goods (your 
first 2,500 cases) to a London firm who will unquestionably hold 
us to our contract.”

In that of June 28, 1917, in reply, Anderson of the St. Mungo 
observes: 441 don’t for a moment suppose you made a hard and 
fast contract to deliver goods to your alleged London buyer.”

To this the defendants replied on June 30, 1917, “Our con­
tract with our London friends covering the sale of your first 
2,500 cases pink half is ‘hard and fast.’ ”

I find there was a breach of the contracts as claimed. Being 
bound by authority, I find that the exception clause affords no 
protection to the defendants. The ejuadem ffcneri* rule applies.

As to the first item of damages claimed, the calculation of th - 
amount is not difficult. Taking first the St. Mungo contract 
The contract price was $5.50, the market price at time of breach 
$9, the difference at $3.50 per case on 2,500 cases, $8,750. Acme 
—-Contract price $5.75, market price at time of breach $9, dif­
ference is $3.25 per case on 2,500 cases, $8,125; total $16,875. 
Plaintiffs also claim interest on the amount paid by them to 
LeBeaupin as damages at the rate of 5% on £2,500, the sum so 
paid, as from July, 1920, to date. The rate of exchange was, at 
that time $4.84. This comes in all to $985. The costs paid by 
the plaintffs on the arbitration proceedings, viz., £567 10s. 3d.
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are also claimed. As to what the rate of exchange then was dees 
not appear from the evidence but it may be reasonably assumed 
to have been $4.84. This item, therefore, amounts to $2,746. 
Total, $20,606.

As to whether the interest and the costs arose as a con­
sequence of the breach, I think the rule in Hadley v. Barendale 
(1854), 9 Exch. 341, 23 L..Ï. (Ex.) 179, 2 W.R. 302 can be 
invoked and that these are damages which can fairly and rea­
sonably be considered to arise naturally from the breach of the 
contract and such as may reasonably be supposed to hdve been 
in the contemplation of both parties at the time they made the 
contract, as the probable result of the breach of it. That rule 
is as follows (see head-note to Hadley v. Baxcndale)

“Where two parties have made a contract, which one of them 
has broken, the damages which the other party ought to receive 
in respect of such breach of contract should be such as may 
fairly and reasonably be considered either arising naturally, 
i.c., according to the usual course of things, from such breach 
of contract itself or such as may reasonably be supposed to have 
been in the contemplation of both parties at the time they made 
the contract as the probable result of the breach of it.”

Applying that test to this case, the interest and costs in 
question arose and were incurred in respect of the happening of 
a contingency which might reasonably be expected to follow 
from the defendants’ breach of contract. It would not have 
been reasonable for Crispin & Co. to have submitted to judg­
ment against them at the instance of LeBeaupin without de 
fending that action. They are entitled to “the fair and honest 
costs of a fair and honest defence”: Hammond v. Bussey 
• 1887), 20 (j.B.I). 79, 67 Li. (Q.B.) 6S, and Ay ins v. Great 
Western Colliery Co., [1899] 1 Q.B. 413, 68 L.J. (Q.B.) 312, 
47 W.R. 403.

There will be judgment accordingly for the above amount 
with costs. Judgment for plaintiffs.

POINT ANNE QVARKIH8 v. THE 8.8. “M. F. WHALEN.”
Exchequer Court of Canada, Toronto Admiralty District, Hodgins, 

LJ.A. February /4, 1921.
Discovery and inspection (8IV—33)—Examination for discovery— 

Admiralty casks—Use of on trial—Witness unable to at-

An examination for discovery may be ordered by the Judge in 
admiralty cases, as a matter of convenience in place of the de­
livery of interrogatories although no special provision is made re­
garding it in the admiralty rules, but under rules 102 and 109 
such examination can only be read at the trial when the witness 
cannot attend.

[See also (1921), 63 D.L.R. 645, 63 Can. 8.C.R. 109.]

Can. 

Ex. (*t.
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Motion for an order permitting the plaintiff to read at the 
trial portions of the evidence of the master of the defendant 
ship, which was taken on his examination for discovery.

Jarvis, for plaintiff; A. E. Knox, for defendant.
Hodgins, L.J.A.:—Motion by plaintiff to read in evidence at 

the trial portions of the examination for discovery of the master 
of the defendant ship, one Malette, taken in this action before 
the local registrar of the Exchequer Court.

Tt appears that Mallette will be present at the trial.
The examination in question was allowed in place of inter­

rogatories as, while there is no provision in the Canadian Admir­
alty Rules for such an examination, it is a convenient practice 
and less cumbersome than formal interrogatories, especially 
when the plaintiffs are in the dark as to the actual occurrences 
when the tow is said to have been injured. See Isle of Cyprus 
(1890), 15 P.D. 134.

But the examination so had cannot be used at the trial unless 
the rules are wide enough to allow that to be done.

Canadian Admiralty R. 70 provides for an affidavit of dis­
covery relating to documents, but Rr. 68 and 69 make discovery 
of material facts to depend on the delivery of and the answers 
to interrogatories. Oral examinations are permitted under Rr. 
102 to 109. These, however, are limited to cases where tin- 
witness cannot conveniently attend the trial, in which ease his 
evidence thus taken, may be read at the trial.

No order under these last mentioned rules was made and such 
an order is a necessary preliminary, if what is sworn to on such 
an examination is to become evidence at the trial.

It was urged that R. 228, which made the practice “for the 
time being in force in respect to Admiralty proceedings in the 
High Court of Justice” applicable in all cases not provided for 
by the Canadian rules, would permit what is now asked. I do 
not think so. The rules as to evidence which govern the pro­
ceeding* in English Admiralty actions are found in Roseoe\ 
Admiralty Practice, 3rd ed. pp. 354 et seq. It is true they con­
tain more detailed provisions than our rules do, but they are 
founded as to this particular instance, upon the discretion of 
the Judge in dispensing with the attendance of a witness at the 
trial, and so come to the same thing in the end as our own 
rules.

It is particularly necessary in Admiralty cases that the wit­
nesses should appear personally before the Judge whenever 
possible. Here, the witness in question will be present and tin- 
motion to read part of this examination is not within the rules
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nor based on necessity or inconvenience. It will, therefore, be 
dismissed with costs to the defendants in any event.

Judgment accordingly.

HENDKRHOX v. CRAIG.
Manitoba King'» Bench, Mather», CJ.K.B. May 22, 1922. 

Landlord and tenant (§IIC—20)—Yearly or monthly tenancy— 
Holding over—Increase in rent—Notice—“Attempt to abax-

Where a tenant continues in possession after the expiration of 
a yearly tenancy he thereafter holds as tenant from year to year 
and his rent cannot be increased except upon six months’ notice 
terminating on the end of the yearly tenancy ; and where a ten­
ant thus in possession has acceded to the demands of the land­
lord for increases in the monthly rent he will be deemed to hold 
as tenant from month to month and cannot be held liable, under 
the terms of the lease, for thereafter quitting the premises on 
notice as a monthly tenant. Nor does such conduct of the tenant 
amount to an “attempt to abandon” as to render him liable for 
the rent under a forfeiture clause in the lease.

Fixtures ( §IV—20)—Beaver-hoard — Yale lock — Landlord and
TENANT.

Beaver-board, made into sections to permit of its removal and 
attached to the wall of an office by wooden plugs inserted between 
the bricks is a trade fixture removable by a tenant. But a Yale 
lock, incapable of removal without leaving a hole in the door, is 
not.

Action to recover rent and fixtures removed by tenant. Claim 
for rent dismissed, claim allowed for part of fixtures.

E. R. Chaptnan, for plaintiff.
II. Mackenzie, for defendant.
Mathers, C.J.K.B.On November 26, 1912, the plaintiff 

leased to the defendant by an indenture in writing certain ware­
house premises at the corner of Bannatyne Ave. and Adelaide 
St. in this city, for one year, to be computed from December 1, 
1912, at a yearly rental of $360 payable $30 on the first day of 
each and every month. At the expiration of this lease defendant 
continued in possession and went on paying rent as formerly. 
A fewr days before April 19, 1919, the plaintff told him that he 
thought he must have $5 per month more rent, and it was then 
agreed that the rent should be $35 per month from May 1 en­
suing, and letters were exchanged confirming the agreement. 
The plaintiff’s letter refers to the verbal conversation:—“in 
which it was agreed that the rental of the premises occupied 
by you in my building at the above address under the lease 
dated 26th day of November, 1912, at $30 per month will be 
$35 from the 1st of May, 1919,” and expresses his satisfaction

K.B.
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with the arrangement. The defendant on the same day replied, 
saying:—“We received your letter of even date advising us 
that beginning on May 1st our rent will be $35 per month, which 
is agreeable to us.”

On July 30, 1920, the plaintiff asked for another increase of 
$5 per month and the defendant agreed to pay $40 per month 
from September 1 of that year. The arrangement was con 
firmed by an exchange of letters in practically the same term* 
as on the previous occasion. The defendant went on paying 
rent at the new rate, $40 per month, and in September, 1921. 
he was once more called upon by the plaintiff, who asked for a 
further increase to $45 per month. The defendant told the 
plaintiff that he did not think he could afford to pay a further 
increase but that he would let him know in a few days. The 
defendant at once started to look for other premises and he so 
informed the plaintiff when he called a few days later to know 
what conclusion the defendant had arrived at. The defendant 
had not then decided whether he would pay the increased rein 
or quit the premises but promised to give a final answer shortly. 
Two or three days later the plaintiff came again and the de­
fendant then told him that he was going to move as he could not 
afford to pay $45 per month and that he would be leaving about 
the end of November. On October 7 the defendant gave the 
plaintiff notice in writing:—“that we will vacate the space that 
we rent from you in building situate 332 tiannatyne Ave. on 
November 30th, 1921, the date our lease expires.”

No reply was made to that notice by the plaintiff until 
November 17, when he wrote:—“I beg to acknowledge receipi 
of your letter of 7th ulto. stating that you would vacate the 
space occupied in my building, and I wish to inform you that 
this notice to quit is not sufficient and that 1 will expect you to 
continue as tenant for another year.”

The defendant did move out of the premises on November 30 
and the premises remained vacant until April 1 following, when 
a new tenant was put in.

The written lease, dated November 26, 1912, contains a clans- 
providing that should the tenant attempt to abandon tin1 
said premises, etc., the accruing rent together with the rent for 
twelve months next accruing shall immediately become due ami 
payable and the term shall at the option of the lessor forthwitli 
become forfeited and determined.”

Relying upon that provision in the lease the plaintiff no v 
sues the defendant for one year’s rent at $40 per month.

The defendant removed certain beaver-board which he had 
put himself upon the walls in the part occupied as an office.
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This beaver-board had been especially manufactured in sections 
in order that it might be removed and was attached to the wall 
by wooden plugs inserted between the bricks, to which the 
heaver-board was fastened either by nails or screws. He also 
removed a Yale lock from the door. I held at the trial that the 
beaver-board was a trade fixture which could be removed with­
out injury to the premises, and therefore that the defendant had 
a right to remove it. When the Yale lock was removed a hole 
of considerable size was left in the door. I held that the Yale 
lock was not a trade fixture because it could not be removed 
without injury to the premises and therefore that the de­
fendant had no right to remove it.

The larger question of the plaintiff’s right to recover a year's 
rent depends on whether or not the defendant was bound by 
the terms of the lease entered into on November 26, 1912. The 
presumption no doubt is that if a tenant for a year who con­
tinues in possession and pays rent becomes tenant from year to 
year on the terms of the old lease in so far as these terms are 
applicable: Right d. Flower v. IJarhy (1876), 1 Term. Re]). 159, 
99 E.R. 1029; and that neither an agreement for an increase, 
Digby v. Atkinson (1815), 4 Camp. 275, 16 R.R. 792; nor a re­
duction of rent, In re Canada Coal Co.; Dalton’s Claim (1895), 
27 O.R. 151, after the expiration of the terms is of itself suf­
ficient to shew that the other terms of the lease are not to con­
tinue in effect. The presumption, however, only arises when 
there is no evidence to shew that the holding over was upon 
terms other than those contained in the expired lease and it is 
only in the absence of such evidence that a tenancy upon the 
old terms should be found: Woodfall, 18th ed., 252. As stated 
by Wightman, J., in Thetford Corp’n v. Tyler (1845), 8 Q.B. 
95, at p. 101, 115 E.R. 810, 15 L.J. (Q.B.) 33:—“When a party 
is allowed to hold after the expiration of a tenancy by agree­
ment, the terms on which he continues to occupy are matter 
of evidence rather than of law. If there is nothing to shew a 
different understanding, he will be considered to hold on the 
former terms.”

Until April, 1919, neither party by word or act gave any in­
dication that the defendant's tenancy was other than might be 
presumed from his holding over and paying rent, that is to say. 
from year to year on the terms of the expired lease. But in 
that month the plaintiff proposes to increase the rent. He says 
he merely made a request for an increase and that the defendant 
voluntarily acceded. The defendant, however, believed that if 
he did not agree to pay the increased rent asked for his only

Man.

K.B.

Hendebhon

MntlK-rs,
C.J.K.H.



632 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Man.

K.B.

Henderson

Mathors,
C.J.K.B.

alternative was to quit the premises. If the defendant was 
tenant from year to year the plaintiff had no right to stipulate 
for a change in tne rent except on giving 6 months’ notice ter­
minating on November 30, the end of the year. I do not accent 
the plaintiff’s statement that he asked the defendant to pa.v 
more rent on each occasion merely as an act of grace. I think 
he made the request because he believed he had a right to do so 
and that the defendant acceded to the request under a like 
belief.

I entertain no doubt but that when the plaintiff in September. 
1921, asked the defendant for an increase of rent from $40 to 
$45 per month the defendant believed that his only alternai ive 
to acceding to that request was to give up his tenancy and move 
from the premises. I believe that both of them understood 
that the plaintiff had a right to demand increased rent at any 
time and that the defendant had to either yield to the demand 
or to get out. The plaintiff knew that the defendant was 
searching for other premises with a view to removal under the 
belief that he must move or pay increased rent. He knew that 
the defendant was willing to remain on at the rate he was then 
paying but the plaintiff gave him no intimation that he was at 
liberty to do so. Such a course of conduct is entirely incon­
sistent with an agreement for a tenancy from year to year ami 
is consistent only with a tenancy from month to month. I hold, 
therefore, upon the evidence that the defendant was not a tenant 
from year to year but from month to month and that it was 
properly terminated by the notice given October 7.

Even if I had come to the conclusion that the defendant was a 
tenant from year to year on the terms of the old lease, in my 
opinion there was no “attempt to abandon” the premises with­
in the meaning of the provision relied upon by the plaintiff. 
The defendant did not want to leave. He was as he believed 
given the choice of paying a rental higher than he could afford 
or go elsewhere. The plaintiff knew that acting in that belief 
the defendant was seeking other premises. He was told in 
September that the defendant rather than comply with his de­
mand would give up his tenancy about the end of November. 1 
infer that he knew at least on October 7 that the defendant 
had secured other premises and yet it was not until Novcmh-1 

17 that he notified him he must remain for another year. Such 
a notification would no doubt have been welcomed by the de­
fendant had it come before he had made arrangements for a 
new place of business, but now it was too late. After such a 
course of conduct the plaintiff is in my view estopped from now
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asserting that the defendant abandoned the premises. It fol- Can.
lows that he would have no right to recover a year’s rent under ^T
the special provision in the lease. If, as he contends, the de­
fendant, being a tenant from year to year, left without notice 
he would be entitled to recover such gales of rent as had bo- 
come due and payable at the time this action was brought until 
he accepted a new tenant: Hall v. Burgess (1826), 5 B. & C.
3:12, 108 E.R. 124, 8 D. & R. 67, 4 LJ. (o.s.) (K.B.) 172. A 
new tenant was admitted on April 1, 1922, but the action was 
begun in December, 1921, at a time when one month’s rent only 
was due. The most that the plaintiff could recover in this action 
even if the defendant was a tenant from year to year would 
therefore be $40. As, however, I hold the defendant to have 
been a monthly tenant the plaintiff recovers nothing as rent.

1 have already intimated the defendant had no right to remove 
the Yale lock. The plaintiff is entitled to recover its value and 
the cost of repairing the door, amounting in all to $6.10.

There will be a verdict for the plaintiff for $6.10 anu costs of 
suit.

Judgment accordingly.

GRAND TRUNK R. Co. v. LABRHCHK.
Supreme Court of Canada. Davies, C.J., Idington, Anglin, Brodeur and 

Mignault, JJ. May 2, 1022.
Railways (§IID—60)—“Thickly peopled" locality—Railway yard— 

Excessive speed—Injury to employee—Assumption ok risk.
Section 309 of the Railway Act 1919 (Can.) ch. 68, limiting the 

speed of trains to 10 miles an hour when passing a “thickly peo­
pled" locality unless the track is "fenced or properly protected," 
does not extend to a railway yard, as such and is not intended 
for the protection of yard employees, whose duties require them 
to be within the fences and who assume the risk of their em­
ployment. A railway company cannot be held liable for the death 
of a repair-mechanic who Jumped from between two freight cars in 
front of a fast express entering the yard at a speed of 25 miles 
an hour.

Appeal by defendant from the judgment of the Quebec Court 
of King’s Bench in an action for damages caused to the respon­
dent and her children by the death of the respondent’s hus­
band while working in the yard of the defendant company. Re­
versed.

Ijofleur, K.C., and Beckett, K.C., for appellant.
Curran, K.C., and Forest, for respondent.
Davies, C.J.:—For the reasons stated by my brother Anglin, 

with which I fully concur, I would allow this appeal.
Idington, J. (dissenting) The respondent herein sued for
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damages caused to herself and children by the death of her 
husband and their father whilst working in the Turcot yard 
of the said railway company. The case was tried by the Court 
with a special jury. The trial Judge submitted to the jury a 
number of questions of which the three following and answers 
thereto are all that call for our consideration on this appeal :

“3. Was the said accident caused by the sole fault and neg­
ligence of the said Hector Sarrazin ? If you answer yes, say 
in what this fault and negligence consisted ? No, 9 to 2.

4. Was the said accident caused by the sole fault and neg­
ligence of the defendant, its employees or servants * If you 
answer yes, say in what this fault and negligence consisted / 
Yes—9 to 2, in the speed of the train in that place.

5. Was the accident due to the common or contributory 
fault of the said late Hector Sarrazin and of the defendant, ils 
employees or servants ? If you answer yes, say in what the 
fault and negligence of each consisted ? No—unanimous.”

The answer to the first is most stoutly denied by the appel­
lant’s factum herein which seeks to attribute the sole proximale 
cause of the accident to the act of the deceased going from 
where he was working to the car standing on a track ..n the 
other side of the main tracks, to get a pin needed for use in 
the repair work he was engaged in and on his return therewith 
jumping down from between said cars without waiting till 
the main lines were clear.

It is alleged that, had he taken due care, he would not have 
jumped as he did and no accident would have happened. There 
is something to be said for this contention. It might have hail 
more force with fair minded men if the appellant at the trial 
had not pressed rather far its contention that the deceased was 
entirely in the wrong and without excuse in attempting to 
get the pin from the place he did.

The alleged printed notice on which appellant so rested 
what it calls absolute prohibition of such an appropriation was 
only in English and not liable thereby to have been brought 
home to the mind of deceased.

And, when read, it impliedly permits, under stress of cir­
cumstances, the very act complained of, for it directs, if done, 
it must be returned or rather replaced by another.

I imagine the rather unfair use of such a notice did appel­
lant more harm than good.

The circumstance of the deceased having jumped down was 
perhaps no more than an error of judgment. It was, however, 
entirely a matter for the jury to determine whether so or not,
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giving due heed to all the attendant circumstances. No on * 
saw him jump except the engineer on the eastward bound train 
from Ottawa who had his own work to engage his attention, lie 
tells that there would be 6 feet between the cars on that train 
and the cars on the next track from which deceased jumped.

If so, it is quite conceivable that deceased had hoped, with­
out being negligent but merely erring in judgment, to so land 
in that 6 feet of space as to be entirely safe, but possibly he 
stumbled slightly further than he expected, and was struck on 
the shoulder by a part of the engine of the incoming train. 
He certainly did not intend to jump or, in fact, jump across 
the 6 feet of space between the car he stood on and the main 
t.aek and thus land in front of the train, though his shoulder 
got so far. I cannot, therefore, see how we can say the jury 
reached a conclusion, that no nine reasonable men could reach, 
that he was negligent.

I thus eliminate the answers to questions 3 and 5 as deserv­
ing here, of no further consideration. Indeed, that to question 
five, for evident reasons, was not seriously pressed by either 
side.

The answer to question 4 in assigning its answer of fault 
“dans la vitesse du train à cet endroit” is a most comprehen­
sive one and may cover both the illegal conduct of running 
a train at more than 10 miles an hour in a thickly populated 
locality contrary to the provisions of sec. 309 of the Railway 
Act and the running of a train at too high a rate of speed 
consistent with the safety of others in passing through such a 
busy railway yard as that in question.

There is evidence tending to shew to those conversant with 
the locality that both grounds were conceivably supportable in 
favour of the respondent.

One, if well grounded, is sufficient.
It seems quite clear that appellant had been habitually of­

fending against said sec. 309, if not at the exact point of the 
accident perilously close to it and hence would not likely have 
oven mnning at 25 miles an hour there but for this disregard 
of the statutory prohibition.

Of course, it is not what was done on other occasions than 
the one in question, but that on the latter alone which must 
govern what is in question herein.

I regret to say that the evidence was not presented 
on either side in such a way as to render quite clear to my 
mind the conditions and surrounding circumstances and bear­
ing therton.
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Yet, I imagine a jury from the district which paid as close 
attention as this one did to the case before it. as evidence! 
by very many pointed questions they put, could find a strong 
er case on that ground than T can by a perusal of the evidence 
with such a defective plan such as presented by appellant.

On the ground that passing through such a yard two trains 
at the same time, and the one in question, at all events, moving 
at the rate of 25 miles an hour, the case is one for the jury 
to determine whether or not appellant was guilty of fault.

And certainly, at all events, it is not, 1 submit, for us to 
interfere and reverse the unanimous judgment of the Court 
of Appeal, better situated in many ways to determine the bare 
question of whether or not there was evidence to submit to 
the jury.

I observe that there was no motion at the trial to dismiss 
the action on that ground.

I think the appeal here should be dismissed with costs.
Anglin, J.:—The plaintiff’s husband, Hector Sarrazin, was 

killed on August 1, 1920, about 6.19 p.m., in the Turcot yard 
of the defendant company, by a fast express train which had 
come from Ottawa and was travelling at about 25 miles an 
hour—its usual speed at that place. Sarrazin was engaged as 
a repair mechanic. He had been working at a car standing 
on a track to the north of the two main tracks passing through 
the yard and had crossed over to them to the south, presum­
ably to procure a steel knuckle which he required. In return­
ing, he passed between two freight cars standing on the track 
immediately to the south of the main tracks, having apparently 
climbed over the coupling. He was first seen by the one ey 
witness of th< tccidcnt—the engineer of the incoming express 
train—jum| g from between the two freight cars towards the 
main tracks, about 25 feet in advance of the oncoming locomo­
tive, the buffer beam of which struck him on the left should r. 
The space between the southerly main track and the next track 
to the south was about 6 feet wide.

The plaintiff charged that the defendants were negligent in 
not moderating the speed of the express train while passing 
through the Turcot yard and in placing the car which the 
plaintiff was required to repair on one of the principal tracks 
towards the centre of the yard instead of on an outside track. 
By amendment, made towards the close of the trial, it was also 
alleged that where the accident occurred was a thickly peopled 
portion of the City of Montreal, that the tracks were not fenced 
or protected according to law and that the speed of the train,
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therefore, contravened sec. 309 of the Railway Act, 1919 (Can.) 
eh. 68.

The action was tried by a jury who found that the death of 
Sarrazin was caused solely by the fault of the defendant’s ser­
vants, consisting “dans la vitesse du train à cet endroit.” Sar­
razin was acquitted of contributory fault.

In his charge, the trial Judge barely alluded to the allega­
tion of excessive speed apart from the requirement of sec. 309. 
He dwelt at some length on that section and discussed the evi­
dence as to the number of houses in the neighbourhood and the 
character of the fencing of the right of way. Judgment was 
entered in the Superior Court on the jury’s finding for $8,000 
damages, and this judgment was unanimously affirmed in the 
Court of King’s Bench on the ground that there was evidence 
on which the jury could reasonably find that the cause of Sar­
razin’s death was the speed of the train and that such speed 
was so excessive as to amount to fault.

Lafleur, K.C., and Beckett, K.C., for the appellants. Except 
in cases within sec. 309 there is no legal restriction on the 
speed of the defendant’s trains and it is not competent for a 
jury to find excessive speed as a fault. Section 309 does not 
apply to a railway yard. There is no evidence that the locality 
of the accident was a thickly populated portion of the .city or 
that the fencing was insufficient. The determining cause of the 
accident was not the speed of the train but Sarrazin’s rash act 
in jumping or running in front of it when only 25 feet away.

Curran, K.C., and Forest for the respondents. Having re­
gard to the number of men required and of locomotives used in 
Turcot yards, 25 miles an hour might reasonably be found to 
be an excessive speed, apart altogether from sec. 309. The 
locality was thickly populated and the fencing defective, and, 
therefore, sec. 309 applies and a speed over 10 miles an hour 
was illegal. Had the speed been less, Sarrazin might have es­
caped. There is evidence to warrant the jury’s finding of 
fault.

Anglin, J.:—It is quite impossible to know whether the jury 
dealt with this case as falling within sec. 309 of the Railway 
Aet, 1919 (Can.) ch. 68 or intended to find excessive speed 
amounting to fault quite apart from that provision. It will, 
therefore, be necessary to examine the case in both these as­
pects.

I doubt whether upon the evidence it can be said that the lo­
cality through which the train was passing when it struck Sar­
razin was thickly peopled. But, if that fact be assumed in the
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plaintiff’s favour, having regard to the conditions as to fencing 
shewn by the evidence, it would probably have been incumbent 
on the defendants to restrict the speed of their train at that 
place to 10 miles per hour. Granting this, however, it does 
not, in my opinion, entitle the plaintiff to recover, because tin 
excess of speed over 10 miles per hour was not the cause of 
Sarrazin being killed, and probably, also because sec. 309 was 
not passed for the protection of yard employees of the railway 
company whose duties require them to be within the fences 
erected along the right of way. The evidence, in my opinion, 
leaves no room for doubt that the determining cause of 8ar 
razin’s death was not the speed of the train but his own act 
whether culpable or wholly innocent is on this issue quite im­
material—in projecting himself almost immediately in front of 
the Ottawa express. The fact, of course, likewise affords a per 
emptory answer to the plaintiff's case if the jury’s finding 
should be taken to mean that the speed of the train at 25 miles 
per hour in Turcot yard amounted to fault although sec. 309 
of the Railway Act did not apply. Moreover such a finding of 
fault, in my opinion, could not be maintained. There are no 
circumstances in evidence which indicate that there is any great 
er danger, or need for reduction in the speed of the trains, in 
the Turcot yard than exists in any other railway yard. I am 
not prepared to accede to the view that in the absence of proof 
of such special circumstances a jury may fix the standard of 
what is or is not a proper speed for express trains passing 
through such a yard. There may, no doubt, be special circum 
stances—such, for instance, as the known presence of some un­
usual concourse of people in the yard—which would render the 
running of a train through it at 25 miles per hour sheer reck­
lessness. In such a case, the railway company would in vain 
invoke its statutory right to operate its trains. Columbia Bitu- 
I it hie Ltd. v. B.C. Electric K. Co. (1917), 37 D.L.R. 64, 21 Can. 
Ry. Cas. 243, 55 Can. S.C.R. 1. Statutory authorisation affords 
a complete immunity for injury caused by the use of the powers 
so conferred so long as they are exercised without negligence. 
C.P.R. Co. v. Boy, [1902] A.C. 220. But the statute does not 
sanction or protect negligent or unreasonable use of the rights 
it confers. East Fremantle Corp. v. Anno is, [1902] A.C. 213 
at pp. 217-8. Here there is nothing of that kind.

On the other hand, the running of fast express trains at high 
speed on the main tracks passing through railway yards is suclt 
a well known feature of our railway traffic that resultant dan 
ger to persons employed in such yards may well be regarded
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as a risk of such employment assumed by them, so long as 
there is no negligence either in the management of such trains 
or in the direction or control of the persons so employed, which 
increases the danger.

In my opinion, not only is the finding that there was fault 
on the part of the defendants which caused the death of Sar- 
razin unwarranted but “it is absolutely clear from all the evi­
dence in the case that no jury would In* justified in finding any 
verdict other than one in favour of the appellant-defendant. 
Article 508 (3) C.C.P. (Que.)

I would, therefore, allow this appeal; and. pronouncing the 
judgment which, in my opinion, the Court of King's Bench 
ought to have rendered (Supreme Court Act, R.8.C. 1906, ch. 
139, sec. 51). I would dismiss this action, with costs through­
out, if the defendant company should see fit to exact them.

Brodevk, J. (dissenting) ;—This case presents serious difficul­
ties; but, after carefully considering the points in issue, I have 
reached the conclusion that the company’s appeal should be 
dismissed.

The company claimed in its plea before us that it could run 
its trains at whatever speed it saw fit, except in the populous 
districts of cities or towns. 1 cannot acquiesce in such a pro­
position. I quite admit that the place where the accident 
occurred was not such a place as is contemplated by sec. 309 of 
the Railway Act 1919 (Can.) ch. 68, which provides that the 
speed of trains in certain places must not exceed ten miles per 
hour. But the general law of the land imposes upon railway 
companies the obligation to act with prudence and care at all 
times and in all places. The question of fault depends on the 
facts and circumstances of each case; and it would be a case 
of negligence, in my opinion, if a company allowed its trains 
to run at excessive speed in one of its yards where there was a 
great number of employees. The particular situation of the 
main lines in this Turcot yard renders it an exceedingly dan­
gerous place; and to pretend that trains may pass through it 
at any speed whatever seems to be contrary to the ele­
mentary principles of ordinary prudence. Apart from any sta­
tutory provision, the speed of a train must be regulated in the 
interests of the safety of those who have a right to be on the 
right of way.

There are particular circumstances which impose the obliga­
tion of moderating the speed of trains in certain places, as for 
instance in a yard, or again when the engineer sees that a per­
son is on the line or in the act of crossing it.

Can.

8.C.

FLCo!
v.

Labkkciik. 

nrortfiir. J



640 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R.

Can.

8.C.

R^Co!

v.
Labreche. 

MJgnault, J.

This is, therefore, a question of fact which must be left to 
the jury. It seems to me that the verdict in this case, which 
has been unanimously confirmed by the lower Courts, should 
not be reversed.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Mignault, J. The respondent obtained judgment against 

the appellant for $8,000 on the verdict of a jury. $3,000 of 
this sum was awarded to the respondent herself and $5,000 to 
her five minor children. The judgment was given as a result 
of the death of respondent’s husband, Hector Sarrazin, who 
was struck by a locomotive belonging to appellant, and was un­
animously confirmed by the Court of Appeal. The appellant 
asks that this judgment be reversed and the verdict quashed.

The salient facts of the case are not disputed. On August 1. 
1920, about 6 o’clock in the evening, Hector Sarrazin and a 
companion named Lamer were inspecting three shipments of 
merchandise which were destined to leave the same night, to see 
that the cars were in good condition and to make such minor 
repairs as might be necessary. This work was being done in the 
Turcot yard, a large yard within the limits of the city of Mon 
treal, extending over a space of about 2 miles, with several 
sidings both on the north and south sides of the two main lines 
traversed by the appellant’s trains. This yard is not crossed 
by any public road.

Immediately before the accident, Sarrazin and Lamer were 
working on the second siding north of the main line. All 
the tracks except the main ones, which were clear, were occupied 
by a great number of freight cars which were later to be sent 
to their various destinations. The deceased and his companion 
might have done their work and obtained the necessary tools 
and materials for that purpose on the north side of the main 
line, where there was no danger from passing trains, for the 
appellant’s shops were on that side; but for some unexplained 
reason which can only be guessed at, Sarrazin left the place 
where he was working, and crossed the main lines to the south 
side, intending no doubt to return to his work which was not 
finished. A few moments later, at precisely 19 minutes past 
6, when the weather was fine and clear, the fast train from 
Ottawa to Montreal passed at 25 to 30 miles per hour, its usual 
speed at that place. Weston, the engineer of the locomotive 
and the only witness of the accident, was at his post. He 
says

“Q.—Did you see the man Hector Sarrazin, the plaintiff's 
husband, when you were crossing Turcot yard? A.—Comim;
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into Turcot yard ? Q.—Yes? A.—Yes. Q.—In wliat spot did 
you see him? A.—Well, when I saw him first he was jumping 
between the cars that way (indicates). Q.—What? A. —lie 
jumped out from between the cars in front of the engine. <t>.
I understand you to say that he jumped hot ween two cars ? A. 
—Yes, lie jumped from between two ears, (j.—From the side? A. 
On to the track. From the side on to the main line. From 
the siding on the same side of the track on to the main line 
in front of me. 1 am coming in here (indicates) he jumped 
out from the ears on that side right immediately in front of 
the engine.”

Weston at once applied the brakes and succeeded in stopping 
the train T>00 ft. further on, but nothing in the world could 
have saved Sarrazin who was struck by the locomotive and sus­
tained a fractured skull. He died the following day.

The jury was of the opinion that the accident happened 
through the sole fault of the appellant and that no fault was 
to be imputed to Sarrazin. To a question asking what con­
stituted the appellant’s fault, the jury answered “ in the ex­
cessive speed of the train at that place.” The verdict does not 
shew why the speed of the train was considered faulty.

It is an elementary principle that if nothing in the law or 
in the circumstances required a slower speed, there could be 
no fault in driving the train at 25 to 30 miles an hour or even 
more. Fault is, by definition, a failure to perform a duty. If 
there is no duty and one acts within his rights, there is no fault. 
Now, I repeat, if there was nothing in the law or the circum­
stances to require a slower speed, the jury could not reason­
ably say that the speed of the train at that place constituted a 
fault.

I see no circumstance in the evidence which might have re­
quired a reduction in speed at that particular place, 4l/> miles 
from the terminus for which the train was bound. There were 
no large groups of workmen on the line. According to the evi­
dence there was no one in the vicinity except Sarrazin and his 
companion; and Sarrazin s death was due to his own act in 
throwing himself in front of the locomotive. When he sudden­
ly appeared, there was no possible means of avoiding the ac­
cident.

Nor was the speed of the train prohibited by law. Towards 
the end of the trial, the plaintiff obtained leave to amend her 
declaration by alleging that the place where the accident oc­
curred is “a populous district situated in the city of Montreal 
and not protected or enclosed as required by law.” This 
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amendment was made for the purpose of invoking sec. 30!) 
of the Railways Act, which provides that in such a place the 
speed of trains must not exceed 10 miles per hour.

But, instead of proving that the place where the accident 
occurred was populous, it was proved that there are streets 
and houses nearly a mile away in the vicinity of St. Henry sta 
tion. Where Sarrazin was killed there are neither streets nor 
houses. It is a vast plain, bounded on the north by a steep 
hill with the Lachine Road running along its crest, and on the 
south by the Lachine Canal. The shops of the Canada Car 
Co. lie not very far away to the southward, separated from the 
appellant's lines by the Park and Island Railway and a double 
enclosure. Not a single witness alleges that Sarrazin was hit 
in a populous district. It is, therefore’ evident that sec. 30!) 
is not applicable. If, then, the law did not prohibit a speed 
of from 25 to 30 miles an hour, and if there is nothing in the 
circumstances of the case to render such speed imprudent, no 
jury could reasonably find the appellant at fault, by reason 
of the speed of the train at the place where the accident oc­
curred (C.P.R. Co. v. Roy, [1902] A.C. 220).

Here we have a man who throws himself suddenly in front 
of a train, a man who has been working for more than a year 
in the Turcot yard and who knows that many trains pass that 
point ; four every hour, we are told ; and the jury answers that 
this man is free from all fault. On the other hand, the defend­
ant, in directing the movement of its trains, exercises a right 
conferred upon it by law ; but the jury declares that it is guilty 
of fault, and responsible for Sarrazin’s dcatTi. Such a verdict, 
to quote the language of art. 501 C.C.P. (Que.), is one which 
the jury, viewing the whole of the evidence, could not reason­
ably find. In such a case, the law allows the Court to give a 
different judgment from that pronouneed by the Judge who 
presided at the trial (art. 508 C.C.P. (Que.)).

The respondent, a young mother 24 years old, who already 
had five children, the youngest born after its father's death, 
is in a deplorable situation. The only insurance she received 
was a sum of $250 from the Association of Railway Employee* 
and $741 from the Independent Order of Foresters; but that 
is no reason for granting her an indemnity at the appellant's 
expense, if no fault has been proved against the latter, and if 
Sarrazin was responsible for his own death through gross care­
lessness.

Doubtless, as the honourable Judges of the Court of Appeal 
pointed out, the jury is sovereign judge of the facts, but it is,
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nonetheless, true that its decision must be reasonable. Mar­
tin. J. says that Sarrasin might perhaps have avoided the ac­
cident which caused his death if the speed of the train had been 
less. Supposing that that had been the opinion of the jury, the 
form of its answers leads us to inquire if the speed permitted 
by law could be declared an instance of fault, especially when 
the line was straight and clear and the victim of the accident 
jumped suddenly in front of the train. And is it an instance 
of fault to overlook the possibility of a man committing such 
an act of incredible folly! The verdict of the jury is entirely 
wrong and unreasonable, and if it were upheld the operation 
of railways in this country would be seriously embarrassed.

It is unfortunate that Sarrazin’s annual salary exeeeded the 
maximum figure allowed under the Workmen*s Compensation 
Act. The respondent had only a common law action and she 
could not succeed if she failed to prove fault on the part of 
tin1 appellant. I have read the evidence very carefully, but 
can find nothing to justify the verdict.

The appeal should be maintained and respondent’s action 
dismissed. The appellant is entitled to its costs in all Courts, 
if it wishes to claim them from the respondent.

Appeal allowed.

PAULSON et al v. MURRAY.
Manitoba Kitty's Bench, Dysart, J. May 18, 1922.

Costs (§1—4 i—“Interlocutory costs*’—Contempt—Injunction—“Par­
ticular action "—Set-off.

Contempt proceedings, growing out of consent judgment In 
an Injunction case, being of a criminal nature, the costs thereof 
cannot be regarded as "interlocutory costs" within the meaning 
of R. 959 (Man.). The proceedings being distinct and separate 
from the “particular action" in which the Judgment was obtain­
ed, the costs incurred in the action cannot under R. 959 be set 
off to the prejudice of a solicitor’s lien for costs in the proceed­
ings.

Soi.icitors (§IIC—35)—Lien for costs—Counsel fees—To what lien 
attaches.

A solicitor’s lien for costs under R. 959 does not extend to 
counsel fees, except those actually paid; such lien attaches, not 
to the cause of action or to the ultimate balance after all accounts 
are adjusted, but to the judgment itself obtained by his efforts.

Set-off (§IC—15)—Mutuality of claims—Joint and several debts.
Where the plaintiff’s indebtedness to the defendant is joint and 

several, and the defendant’s indebtedness only several a set-off 
is allowable only so far as the indebtedness of the plaintiff’s is

K.B.
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Appeal from a refusal of taxing officer under R. 959 to set 
off costs against a judgment. Reversed.

/>. L. Broad, for plaintiffs; IV. .If. Crichton, for defendant.
Dysart, J.The plaintiffs secured an interim injunction en­

joining the defendant from collecting rents under a mortgm. 
on their apartment block, and under cover of this injunctn 
they collected from their tenants the sum of $315. Thereafter 
they consented to judgment which was duly entered for the said 
sum of $315 as damages and costs which were thereupon taxed. 
The injunction was not continued.

The order for injunction contained the usual undertaking in 
these words;—

“The plaintiffs by their counsel undertaking to abide by any 
order which the Court may make as to damages in case the Court 
should hereafter be of the opinion that the defendant shall have 
sustained any. hv reason of this order which the plaintiffs «n. 
to pay.”

For alleged failure to abide by this undertaking the plaintiffs 
were, at the instigation of the defendant, charged with contempt 
of Court, but the proceedings were eventually dismissed with 
costs. Un the taxation of these costs the taxing officer refused 
to set them off to the prejudice of the lien of the plaintiff's 
solicitors.

Rule of Court No. 958 allows set-off of costs between parties. 
R. 959, however, provides that

“No set-off of damages or costs between parties shall be allow­
ed to the prejudice of the solicitor’s lien for costs in the partic­
ular action against which the set-off is sought; provided, never­
theless, that interlocutory costs in the same action awarded to 
the adverse party may be deducted.”

The questions raised here are:—1. Whether the costs of con­
tempt proceedings were incurred in this “particular action” in 
which the defendant secured his judgment for damages and 
costs; and if not, then are they interlocutory costs in the same 
action ; 2. In either case, how far, if at all, are they affected by 
the solicitors lien so as to prevent set-off?

The undertaking of the plaintiffs in the injunction order was 
directly to the Court, to “abide by . . . any order . . . 
the Court may make as to damages.” According to Century 
Dictionary to “abide by” means “to await or accept the con­
sequences of; to rest satisfied with.” In this case I think it 
means to accept without dispute or appeal any such order, and 
to fulfil or carry out any such order if made. The undertakimr 
it will be noted extends only to damages not to costs.
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Speaking of the history and meaning of this kind of under- 
liiking, Jessel, M.R.. le Smith v. Day (1882), 21 Ch. D. 421. 
at p. 424. 31 W.R. 187, 48 L.T. 54, says:-

“It was invented by Lord Justice Knight-Bruce when Vice- 
( hancellor, and was originally inserted only in ex parte orders 
for injunction. Its object was, so to say, to protect the Court 
as well as the defendant from improper applications for in­
junctions. If the evidence in support of the application sup­
pressed or misrepresented facts, the Court was enabled not only 
to punish the plaintiff but to compensate the defendant. By 
degrees the practice was extended to all cases of interlocutory 
injunction. The reason for this extension was, that though 
when the application was disposed of upon notice, there was not 
the same opportunity for concealment or misrepresentation, 
still, owing to the shortness of the time allowed, it was often 
difficult for the defendant to get up his case properly, and as 
the evidence was taken by affidavit, and generally without cross- 
examination, it was impossible to be certain on which side the 
truth lay. The Court therefore required the undertaking in 
order that it might be able to do justice if it had been induced 
to grant the injunction by false statement or suppression.”

In this case the contemplated “order” was never made, but 
instead a judgment for damages was entered by consent of the 
parties. Does this judgment derive any virtue or peculiar 
dignity or special sanctity by reason of the fact that it follows 
upon or in a sense substitutes that undertaking? Does this 
judgment differ from the ordinary money judgment, the non- 
performance of which is not considered contempt of Court ? 
The Judge before whom the contempt proceedings were con­
ducted decided that failure to satisfy this consent judgment 
was not contempt of Court. In other words, it was not con­
sidered by him as a contemptuous breach of their undertaking. 
And yet, although that failure was not contempt, may not the 
proceedings taken in respect thereof have been undertaken as a 
step or a measure towards enforcing performance of that judg­
ment ? It is true that there are other and more usual methods 
of securing satisfaction of a money judgment, but it is argued 
that these contempt proceedings were taken as part of the “par­
ticular action” and were properly interlocutory proceedings 
therein. Against this the defendant urges that such proceedings 
were distinct and separate from this action.

Contempt of Court is of two kinds, ordinary and special. In 
1921, Annual Practice, at p. 758 it says:—

“Ordinary contempt arises where there is a breach of judg-
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mont or order to do, or abstain from doing anything, or of an 
undertaking given in Court. ‘Contempts are usually incurred 
by a party’s neglect or refusal to do some act which is in jus­
tice due to the other party to the cause, such as the giving of 
answers, the payment of costs, or the like, and the imprison- 
ment which follows is at the prayer of the other party—a pray­
er to which the Court cannot refuse to accede without a breach 
of its duty and a denial of justice.’ (per Sir John Nicholl. 
Barter v. Barter (1822), 1 Add. 301 at p. 304.)”

Contempt proceedings may be instituted to punish disobed­
ience of a Court’s Order, even though in some cases the Order 
is for the payment of money. The punishment may and often 
does have the effect of enforcing obedience, that is, of purging 
the contempt; that, however, is only incidental to the principle 
invoked. “Contempt” is an offence against the dignity or au­
thority of the Court and is punishable under the power inher­
ent in the Court as a Court. It may find its occasion in or 
spring from any cause of action or proceeding, civil or crim­
inal, but it cannot he said in any to arise therefrom as a part 
thereof.

“It should be borne in mind that contempt of Court is a 
criminal offence, punishable as a misdemeanor by fine and im­
prisonment, or both : 4 Blackstone, 337 ; 2 Hawkins P.C. bk. 2. 
c. 22” [per Mathew, J. in In re Davies (1888), 21 Q.B.D. 2 Hi. 
at p. 238, 37 W.B. 57.]

The conclusion therefore is that the contempt proceedings 
must be considered in this case as distinct and separate from the 
particular action in which the plaintiffs (defendants) secured 
judgment for damages and costs, and consequently the costs 
incurred in that action could not under R. 959 be sel oft' to 
the prejudice of the solicitor’s lien for costs incurred in this 
action. Such costs, however, may be set off unless to do so 
would prejudice the solicitor’s lien. This brings us to a con­
sideration of the solicitor’s lien and how far it extends.

The solicitor’s lien existed at common law but has been en­
larged by statute. Speaking of this lien in a case of In rc 
Taylor, Stileman cf* Underwood, [1891] 1 Ch. 590, at p. 599, 
Kay, L.J.. quotes with approval this language of Sir Thomas 
Plumer:—

“ ‘There are two kinds of lien that a solicitor has for his hill 
of costs; one on the funds recovered, and the other on the pa­
pers in his hands . . . This lien, however, does not extend 
to general debts, but only to what is due to him in the character 
of attorney.’ ... the lien extends to all those items which
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are properly included in the bill of costs, or. in oilier or more 
definite words, to all such claims against his client as the Tax­
ing Master has a right to consider, and if necessary moderate.”

In the same case Stirling, J., at p. 592, says --
“I agree that the solicitors cannot claim any lien for any 

sums due to them otherwise than in the character of her solici­
tors,” and Lindley, L.J., at p. 596, says:—

“We have to consider for what a solicitor is entitled to a lien 
on his client’s documents. He has a lien for all taxable costs, 
charges, and expenses incurred by him as solicitor for his client, 
but he has no lien for ordinary advances or loans. Ilis taxable 
costs, charges, and expenses would include money payments 
which he makes for his client in the course of his business such 
as counsel’s fees, which are taxable in this sense, that their al­
lowance in full is not necessarily obtained by merely vouching 
them, but they may be moderated, being subject to the discre­
tion of the Taxing Master as to the amount to be allowed ; and 
lor whatever costs, charges and expenses can be so moderated, 
it appears to me that the solicitor has a lien upon all his clients 
papers; but the lien does not include other advanees which do 
not come within this category. 1 come to this conclusion, not 
only upon the authorities referred to, but by reason of the lan­
guage of sec. 28 of the Solicitors’ Act, 1860.”

From this and many other authorities which might be cited 
it is beyond question that the solicitor’s lien in England extends 
only to the costs, charges and expenses incurred by a solicitor 
in his capacity as a solicitor. There is no such lien for barris­
ters’ fees. Indeed in England a barrister’s compensation is con­
sidered in the nature of an honorarium for which he is not 
even entitled to sue. In this province, however, under see. 71 
of the Law Society Act, R.S.M., 1913, ch. Ill, ‘‘Every barris­
ter shall be entitled to sue for fees due to him.” In England 
the distinction between a barrister and solicitor is sharply de­
fined and strictly adhered to. In this province members of the 
legal profession are authorised to practice and generally do in 
both capacities. Our solicitors have rights equivalent to the 
Knglish solicitors, and it is argued that from this it should fol­
low that, as we have extended the power of solicitors to enable 
them to practice as barristers, we should also by implication ex­
tend the right of a solicitor to a lien so as to cover the fees 
earned by him as a barrister.

This claim has been made before in our Courts but has never 
been sanctioned. In the case of Coupez v. Lear (1911), 16 
W.L.R. 401, a solicitor sought to establish a lien on a fund
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incurred to cover the costs due to him in his capacity both 
as solicitor and as barrister and the objection was raised thaï 
the solicitor “was acting in his capacity as barrister and, there­
fore, would not he entitled to lien.”

This the solicitor “disposed of . . . by limiting the ap­
plication of his lien to remuneration for his work as solicitor 
and his outlays in that connection.”

That is therefore of no aasistence other than to indicate a re­
cognition on the part of the counsel engaged in it that the solic­
itor a lien did not extend to counsel fees. The case of Williams 
v. McDougall (1909), 12 W.L.R. 381, was also referred to. 
This is an Alberta decision under statutes similar to our own 
and is relied upon by the plaintiffs as recognising a barrister s 
lien. Stuart, J., in delivering judgment said at p. 383, “Any 
claim by Mr. Bergeron as counsel should, however, be included 
in the taxed costs of the solicitor on the record. Collision, an-! 
I assume that he may be, and has been, amply protected in 
that way.”

It is to be noted that the barrister’s lien sought to be estât) 
lished was in favour of a person other than the soliictor in the 
case, and even then counsel fees were ordered to be included 
in the solicitor’s bill of costs and taxed in order to secure 1 In- 
protection to the counsel of the solicitor’s lien. As a solicitor's 
lien embraces counsel fees if actually paid, it seems to me that 
what was intended there was that the counsel fees should he 
considered as having been paid by the solicitor and so broughl 
within the cover of his lien. 1 can find no expression whieli 
would indicate that the fees earned by a barrister who is also a 
solicitor may be secured by any lien for costs.

I am therefore of the opinion that the solicitor’s lien docs 
not extend to counsel fees. All counsel fees, therefore, which 
are included in the taxed bills of the solicitors for the plain 
tiffs, except those actually paid, are outside of the protection 
of the “solicitor's lien for costs” mentioned in R. 959.

Then it is argued that the solicitor’s lien can apply only to 
any balance of costs, which after all deductions and adjustments 
are made might be found to be due to his client. But this view 
is clearly wrong. The solicitor’s lien attaches not to the cause 
of action, or upon the ultimate balance due after all accounts 
are adjusted but rather to the judgment itself which has been 
obtained by his efforts. In McGregor v. Campbell (1909), 111 
Man. L.R. 38, Perdue, C.J.M., says at p. 63

“There remains the question of solicitor’s lien for the costs. 
The trial Judge awarded costa to the plaintiffs but none to the-
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détendant. At the same time, and by the same judicial aet, 
a balance was struck between the parties, which balance was 
found in favour of the defendant and judgment was entered 
for this. There was never, therefore, any epeeitic judgment in 
the plaintiff’s favour to which a lien could attach. The lien 
is on the judgment, not on the action. The lion may be de­
feated by a set-off or a counterclaim, thî lien only attaching 
on the balance; Potey on Solicitors, 335; Wcslacott v. Be ran, 
|1891] 1 Q.Ii. 774, 60 L.J. (Q.B.) 536.”

While the solicitor’s lien was defeated in that case because 
no judgment was pronounced on whicn it could attach the lan­
guage quoted is a clear authority for the proposition that the 
lien attaches to the judgment itself, in this case the judgment 
was pronounced in favour of the plaintiffs for costs and a lien 
attaches thereto.

it is also contended that the solicitor's lien does not extend 
to interlocutory costs so as to prevent them from being deducted 
or set off against the adverse claim. The costs in these con­
tempt proceedings were not, however, interlocutory costs. It is 
true that interlocutory costs may be incurred after judgment 
as well as before. In Clarke v. Creighton (1890), 14 1\R. 
(Ont.) 34, at p. 37, Boyd, C., referring to Ontario R. 1205, 
which corresponds exactly with our 11. 959, stated:—

‘‘Now upon the authorities a liberal meaning has been given 
to the word ‘interlocutory’ as used in the dudicature Act and 
in this particular Rule. It is not to be restricted to motions 
or proceedings between writ and judgment, but may extend 
to applications made to satisfy by equitable execution or other­
wise, the judgment obtained. That is the view affirmed by Salt 
v. Cooper (1880), 16 Ch. 1). 544, 50 L.J. (Ch.) 529, and Smith 
v. Cowell (1880), 6 Q.B.D. 75, 50 L.J. (Q.B.) 38, a?, to the 
Act; and as to this Rule it was said by Wightman, J., in Mel­
ville v. Lcesom (1858), E.B. & E. 324, 120 E.R. 529, 27 L.J. 
(Q.B.) 318, that interlocutory costs are those in a proceeding 
in the cause though after judgment. On the same point Thomp­
son v. Parish (1859), 141 E.R. 276, 5 C.B. (N.S.) 685, 28 L.J. 
(C.P.) 153, which was followed by Osler, J., in Young v. Hob­
son, 8 P.R. (Ont.) 253. It is a fair construction to give to this 
term as used in the Rule that proceedings may be considered 
interlocutory till satisfaction is obtained in respect of the mon­
eys, costs, or subject matter in controversy.”

In our case the costs were incurred in a contempt—that is 
a criminal—proceeding, which as we have seen is distinct and 
separate from this action. Moreover there is the additional
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difficulty that the defendant had already taxed his costs and 
received his certificate from the taxing officer and entered his 
judgment for such costs and damages. When, therefore, the 
plaintiffs’ costs came on for taxation it was too late to deduct 
them from the defendant’s costs previously taxed. If the Rule 
had permitted they might have been act off against the*» costs 
but they could not be deducted. It would be otherwise if the 
defendant’s costs were then in a process of taxation, as the 
whole could have been dealt with at one time and a certificate 
issued after deductions made.

In this connection, however, there is one item that may and 
< ught to be deducted. On the taxation of the contempt costs 
defendant taxed a bill for $86 of costs incurred in connection 
with the injunction and these proceedings. Such costs were ad­
mitted by counsel in their arguments to be properly taxed, 
and a proper subject of deduction. They were apparently in­
terlocutory costs in the contempt proceedings and as such will 
be ordered to be deducted.

The final question remains—May set. off be allowed here at 
all, even for the counsel fees? There is a certain sum of money 
owing jointly and severally by the plaintiffs to the defendant. 
There are two lesser sums owing severally to the plaintiffs by 
the defendant. Is there sufficient mutuality hem? Set-off is 
allowed only when the debts are due from and to the same 
parties in the same right. Where two persons sue a third for a 
debt owing to them jointly, their debtor cannot set oil* a debt 
owing to him by one of them alone: MeDouyaH v. Cameron: 
Bickford v. Cameron (1892), 21 Can. S.C.R. .179. But here 
the plaintiffs each seek to collect a debt due to him individual 
ly from the defendant, and the defendant seeks to cancel his 
indebtedness to them by setting it off in each case against the 
larger sum which they owe him, both jointly and severally. 
So far as the indebtedness of the plaintiffs to the defendant is 
several the set-off is allowable, and I think there is sufficient mu­
tuality in this case to warrant set-off and I accordingly so direct 
to the extent of counsel fees included in the plaintiffs’ costs 
as taxed. I do this the more readily as I think the use of the 
process of the Court in this case amounts almost to abuse. By 
securing an injunction to which they were not entitled, the 
plaintiffs collected the moneys to which they were not entitled 
and these moneys they have kept and in lieu thereof have con­
sented to a judgment against them which they are apparently 
unable or unwilling to pay. At the same time the defendant
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is compelled to pay their solicitors’ costs of proceedings in 
which they were successful.

The appeal will therefore be allowed to this extent that the 
item of $86 interlocutory costs will he deducted from the plain­
tiffs’ costs as taxed, and all counsel fees other than those ac­
tually paid by plaintiffs’ solicitors will be set off against the 
judgment debt of the plaintiffs to the defendant. The defend­
ant will have costs of this appeal.

Appeal allowed.

STONE v. 8.8. “ROnUCroiNT.”
Exchequer Court of Canada. B.C. Admiralty District, Martin, L.J.A.

June IS, 1921.
Seaman (§1—4)—Lien fob wages—Preference against mortgagee— 

Mortgage guaranteed iiv master and mate.
The liens of a master and mate of a ship for wages will not be 

preferred against the claim of a mortgagee where the payment of 
the mortgage has been guaranteed by them.

Seaman ( § I—4)—Liens for wages—Company registered as owner to 
CI.OAK OPERATIONS OF PARTNERS—LlEN NOT HON A FIDE—RlGlIT OF
Court to extract truth from whole evidence.

In determining the true ownership of a ship the Court will not 
allow itself to be misled by the presence of documents, but will 
resort to all the evidence to extract the truth. Where the name 
of a company as the registered owner of a ship was merely a 
cloak made use of to screen the operations of three partners, the 
Court held that such partners were not entitled to a lien for wages 
against a mortgagee of the ship, the alleged lien not being bond 
fide.

Action for arrears of wages claiming condemnation of the 
ship defendant.

Hume 11. Robinson, for plaintiffs.
E. C. Mayers, for mortgagees.
Martin, L.J.A. This is an action for wages by the master, 

mate and other seamen of the “Rochepoint,” a gasoline fishing 
vessel of about 76 tons gross, and the preferential lien that 
they claim is resisted by the mortgagees, the Columbia Salmon 
Co., which holds a mortgage on the vessel for $4,000 for moneys 
advanced, dated December 9, 1919, given by the registered own­
er, the West Coast Transportation Co., Ltd., and the payment 
of which is also personally guaranteed by W. J. Stone and S. 
S. Stone, her master and mate respectively, at that time, who 
signed a promissory note as collateral security for the mortgage, 
which they have not paid.
It was decided in The Banyor Castle (1896), 8 Asp. M.L.C. 156, 

74 L.T. 768, that the lien of a master for wages cannot be pre-
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ferrcd against the claim of a mortgagee where the payment of 
the mortgage has been guaranteed by the master, (and see The 
Edward Oliver (1867), L.U. 1 A. k E. 379, 36 L.J. tAdm.) 13.
16 L.T. 575,) and so it was admitted that the master’s claim 
here must give way to the mortgagee’s. Hut, it is submitted, 
that the claim of the mate is in a different position because lu­
is a seaman and the master is not in theory, (though I note he 
describes himself as such in his statement of claim) and hence 
the rule should not be extended to include seamen, who are 
specially protected or favoured as to exemption from attach­
ments and the revocability of assignments of wages or salvage 
made “prior to the accruing thereof” by secs. 236-7 of the Can 
ada Shipping Act, R.S.C. 1906. ch. 113. The position of tin 
master as to his lien for wages and disbursements was consid­
ered by me in Beck v. The “Kobe” (1915), 24 D.L.R. 573.
17 Can. Ex. 215, 22 B.C.R. 169. and he is now upon the same 
basis in that respect as any seaman, though not a seaman in the 
technical use of that word, (though he is a “mariner”)—Th< 
Jonathan Goodhue (1859), Swabey 524 at p. 527, and I am 
unable to see why a distinction should be drawn between two 
classes holding a lien of the same description simply because 
special protection in other respects is given to a seaman. It 
does not at all follow that because he may properly claim that 
specified statutory protection or privilege there is any prin­
ciple which would otherwise entitle him to act less honestly 
than any other lien holder towards his creditor, and Dr. 
Lushington said in the Edward Oliver case, L.R. 1 A. & E. 
379 at p. 383, that in the case of a master “it would 
be manifestly wrong that in defeasance of his own contract 
he should not only pay the bond himself, but obtain out of tin* 
proceeds of ship and freight payment of his own claims 
against the owners leaving the bottomry bond unpaid. Hence 
the rule by which the master’s claim is liable, under those 
circumstances, to be postponed,” and so I see no reason why 
the mate should be less honest than the master in discharg 
ing his legal obligations, I am of opinion that the claim of 
the mate is within the same rule as that of the master and 
should likewise be postponed to that of their common cred­
itor the mortgagee.

As to the claim of Chester R. Stone as engineer; having 
regard to all the unusual circumstances it is obviously open 
to grave suspicion as a lien in conflict with the unquestioned 
claim of the mortgagees, who, I am satisfied, were designedly 
kept in ignorance of these wage claims. After an examin
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at ion, in the light of flu* other evidence. of flip l looks, (if 
they can lie dignified by that description) of the West Coast 
Transportation Co.. I can only reach the conclusion that at 
time material at least the name of that company as the re­
gistered owner was being made use of as a cloak to carry on 
the operation of the vessel by the three Stone plaintiffs as 
partners behind the screen of registration. Rut to determine 
the question of the true ownership the Court will not allow 
itself to be misled by the presence of documents but will resort 
to all the evidence to extract the truth, as I did recently in 
Haley v. S8. “Comox” (1920), 56 D.L.K. 662, .'10 R.C.R. 
104, 20 Can. Ex. 86. Therefore, 1 am of opinion that this 
alleged lien is not bona fide, and is, consequently, rejected.

With respect to the claims of the three seaman, McKee, 
Rhodes, and Knudsen, I am of the opinion that they are bona 
fide and the delay in asserting their lien has been satisfac­
torily explained and, therefore, judgment should be entered 
in their favour for the respective amounts duo them of 
$301.15; $480.85 and $816.20.

./udyment accordingly.

cart Kit v. McMillan.
Alberta Huprnnc Court. Harvey, CJ. May IÔ, 1922.

MORTGAGE (§ VI J--I40)—MORTGAGEE IN POSSESSION —REVENTE NOT M'F- 
FICIENT TO PAY INTEREST—SAI.E OF LANII FOR TAXES—EXECUTION 
AGAINST MORTGAGOR FOR A MOV NT DIE*—TIME FOR REDEMPTION 
NOT EXPIRED- No INTENTION OF REDEEMING—RIGHTS OF PARTIES.

A mortgagee In possession, not receiving sufficient revenue from 
the projierty in any one year to meet the annual interest on his 
mortgage is not compelled to pay the taxes on the projierty out 
of his own moneys even to keep it front being sold for non-pay­
ment of taxes, and where such property has been sold for taxes 
the mortgagee may issue execution against the mortgagor for the 
amount due for principal, interest, and costs, the remedy against 
the lands having been exhausted by the tax sale proceedings—al­
though the time for redeeming has not yet expired; it being clear­
ly shewn that the mortgagor has no intention of redeeming the 
said lands.

Appeal by defendant from the Master in Chambers grant­
ing a motion for leave to issue execution in a mortgage action. 
Affirmed.

L. 1\ Cairns, for plaintiff.
H. II. Milner, K.C., for defendant.
The judgment appealed from is as follows.
Blain, M. C.:—This is an action on a mortgage on property 

in the city of Edmonton commenced by statement of claim 
on November 20, 1919. No defence was put in but a demand
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for notice was filed on behalf of the defendant. The plain 
tiff obtained an order nisi on December 16, 1919, the amount 
then due being $15,952.86. The defendant was represented 
by counsel on the application and it appeared at that time 
that the plaintiff was receiving the rents from the property. 
No step appears to have been taken in the action since the mak 
ing of the order nisi. The plaintiff has been receiving the rents 
since that time but no moneys have been paid by the defendant 
on either principal or interest, nor has he paid the taxes or any 
part of them so far as appears. The property was sold for 
taxes in 1921 to the city of Edmonton and the amount required 
to redeem the property is $6,986.75 as of December 31, 1921.

The plaintiff now moves for leave to issue execution against 
the defendant for the amount due the plaintiff for principal, 
interest and costs on the grounds that the plaintiff has ex 
hausted his remedies as against the lands and that the de 
fendant has permitted the lands to be lost to the plaintid' 
through the tax-sale proceedings.

The motion was opposed by counsel for the defendant on 
the ground that the mortgagee was in possession of the pro­
perty and that it was his duty as mortgagee in possession to 
pay the taxes and to keep the security from being sold for 
non-payment thereof. The agent of the plaintiff states in his 
affidavit in support of the application that the plaintiff has 
no intention of redeeming the lands and it would seem that 
to do so would have to expend moneys of his own, for tin- 
rents received have not been sufficient to meet the interest in 
any year, thus increasing the amount due him by the defend­
ant, and the original loan by about $7,000.

There is a dispute as to whether or not the plaintiff is in 
the position of a mortgagee in possession but for the purpose 
of this application I am, by arrangement, to assume that In­
is and has been at all times material a mortgagee in posses­
sion and to determine whether or not such being the case it 
was his duty to pay or to have paid the taxes.

I am of opinion that he was not bound to pay the taxes and 
I so find. There is no authority cited, or that I have been 
able to find, which decides that a mortgagee in possession not 
receiving sufficient revenue from the property in any one year 
to meet the annual interest on his mortgage must pay tin- 
taxes on the property out of his own moneys even to keep 
it from being sold for non-payment of taxes. The mortgager 
is in possession through the laches or default of the mortgagor, 
and though compelled to account for moneys he actually re



6F D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 655

reive# or which but for his default, he might have received, he 
is not bound to spend his own moneys in repairs (Coote on 
Mortgages, 8th ed., vol. 2, p. 830), nor, I take it, to expend 
large sums of his own money in payment of taxes. If by 
reason of possession, he becomes liable for the taxes it might 
frequently, as it certainly would in this ease, result in his 
being compelled to lend more moneys on a security already 
deficient. The mortgagee by going into possession does not 
deprive the mortgagor of the right to pay the taxes which he 
has convenanted to pay. There is no prior encumbrancer in 
this case whose interests are to be considered or protected.

In some of the text-books on mortgages Bompas v. King 
(1886), 33 Ch. 1). 279, 56 L.J. (Ch.) 202, 55 L.T. 190, is cited 
as an authority for the statement that rents received by a 
mortgagee in possession are applicable in the first instance to 
payment of current outgoings, such as rents, rates and taxes, 
insurance premiums and the interest on prior encumbrances, 
and the balance, if any, in payment of the interest on his 
mortgage. I do not find in that case support for this con­
clusion. It might be so in tin- case of a second mortgagee in 
possession as he would have to protect the prior encumbrancer 
hut would not, in my opinion, apply to a first mortgagee in 
possession.

The defendant having permitted the mortgaged property 
to be sold for taxes, the plaintiff is, 1 think, entitled to leave 
to issue execution on the judgment under the order nisi and 
that notwithstanding the fact that the time for redeeming 
the property from the tax sale has not yet expired, and that 
the property still stands in the name of the defendant in the 
records of the land titles office. It is stated in the affidavit of 
Wilkin, agent for the plaintiff, filed in support of this appli 
cation, that the plaintiff has no intention of redeeming the 
property, and there is no evidence that the defendant has any 
such intention. Indeed it would seem that it would be unwise 
for the defendant to do so for the sworn value of the property 
is $2,500 to $3,000 and the amount required to redeem ap­
proximately, $7,000. In The Western Canada Mortgage Co., 
v. O’Farrell (1920), 56 D.L.R. 10. 16 Alta. L.R. 429, it was 
held by Simmons J., that a mortgagee who purchased the 
mortgaged lands at a tax sale, should be allowed to proceed 
upon the personal covenant and to issue execution upon the 
judgment recovered thereon. This decision was confirmed by 
the Appellate Division (1921), 65 D.L.R. 776. In Lebel v. 
Bobbie, (1919), 15 Alta. L.R. 126, it was held that where a
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purchaser under an agreement for sale of land, convenante'l 
to pay the taxes hut failed to do so and the lands were for­
feited under the provisions of the Town Act, that the vendor 
was entitled to recover judgment and to issue execution f«li­
the balance of the purchase-price remaining unpaid.

The plaintiff was at the date of the order niai and has been 
since that date receiving rents from the property ami 1 think 
the defendant entitled to an accounting if he desires it, but 
not, under the circumstances, to a new day and further period 
for redemption. Allan v. Vair, (1913), 13 D.L.R. 194. TI. • 
taking of the account will not 1 think be very complicated, 
and if the defendant desires an accounting, it will be ref< 
red to the clerk of the Court to take the account.

The judgment will be amended by the addition of inteiw. 
amounts properly paid by the plaintiff under the mortgaL* 
and costs to this date, and the deduction therefrom of rent** 
received by the plaintiff with leave to issue execution for tin- 
amount of the judgment so amended.

The appeal was dismissed by llarvey C. without writt* 
reasons.

KVTHEMAN FA RM ERR ELEVATOR Vo. v. GMAZDOSKI.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, Cameron, Fullerton, 1)< n-

niutoun and Prendergaut, JJ.A. July 10, 1922.
Evidence (§VIF—540)—Parol evidence—Promissory note—Svbsckii-

TION FOR SHARES—CONDITION—CONTEMPORANEOUS AGREEMENT.

Liability on a promissory note, given in payment of a subscrip­
tion for shares, cannot by disproved by parol evidences of a 
condition or contemporaneous agreement that the liability w.i- 
contingent upon the company's commencement of the erection of 
an elevator within a certain time, which had not been don : 
such evidence being inadmissible.

[Wilton v. Manitoba Independent Oil Co. (1915), 25 D.L.R. 24::. 
25 Man. L.R. 628, followed.]

Appeal by plaintiff from the judgment of Bonnycastle. Vo. 
Ct.J., dismissing the action on a promissory note. Reversed.

F. Heap, for appellant; C. K. Guild, for respondent.
Perdue, The plaintiff is a company incorpora1* 1

under the Companies Act., R.S.C. 1906, ch. 79, of the Do­
minion. The plaintiff sued the defendant, a farmer, for $100 
as the amount due on 1 share of stock subscribed for and al­
lotted to defendant. During the trial it was shown that de­
fendant had given a promissory note in payment of the sliai". 
After some discussion it was agreed that the plaintiff should 
amend his pleading so as to bring an action on the prom
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Rory note, the defendant to have costs of a nonsuit. The de­
fence set up against payment of the note was that it was given 
and the stock subscribed for under a promise or represent­
ation that the plaintiff would build an elevator at Sifton 
and that construction of it would be commenced in 2 weeks. 
This was in the fall of 1917. The defendant alleges that the 
elevator was not built and he claims he is not liable on the 
note.

It appears to me that this case is concluded by the decision 
of this Court in Wilton v. Manitoba Independent Oil Co. 
(1915), 25 D.L.R. 243, 25 Man. L.R. 628. In that case the 
plaintiff gave evidence to show that at the time of giving his 
promissory note for shares in the defendant company it was 
agreed that the note should not be binding and would be re­
turned to him in case the company failed to erect an oil tank 
prior to the due date of the note ; that the tank had not been 
built. The plaintiff brought the action which was one of re­
plevin, to recover the note. It was held by this Court that 
evidence was not admissible to shew an agreement contempor­
aneous with the making of a promissory note that the liability 
of the maker as it appears in the face of the note is contingent 
on the happening of some event. The Court followed the 
judgment of the Court of Appeal in New London Credit Syn­
dicate v. Neale, [1898] 2 Q.B. 487, 67 L.J. (Q.B.) 825, 79 L. 
T. 323. See also Maclaren on Bills, 4th ed. 46-47 ; Russell 
on Bills, 2nd ed., 44-48.

The appeal should be allowed with costs and judgment en­
tered for the plaintilf for the amount of the note and interest 
at 7% to due date and thereafter at 5f/f', with costs in County 
Court since amendment at trial including usual counsel fee. 
Defendant is entitled to costs up to amendment made at trial.

Cameron, J. A. concurred.
Fullerton, J. A.—The action was brought to recover $100, 

being the amount payable in respect of one share of stock 
alleged to have been subscribed for by the defendant and duly 
allotted to the defendant. At the trial, the plaintiff failed 
to prove the allotment of the stock, but as a promissory note 
had been given for the shares which was proved by the plain­
tiff, it was agreed between counsel that the statement of claim 
should be amended by adding a claim on the note, on the 
understanding that the defendant should have the costs of the 
action up to that stage in any event. The pleadings were 
not formally amended but it is quite apparent from the evid­
ence that the only point relied on by the defendant was that 

44—68 d.l.r.

C.A.

Rvthenian
Farmers
Elevator

Co.

Gxiazdoski. 

Fullerton, J.A.



K
 73

658 Dominion Law Rki-okts. [68 D.L.R.

C.A.

Rutiikxian
ARM KBS
‘ Co.TOd 

Gniazwwci.

DennlsHoun,
J.A.

the promissory note was given upon the express condition and 
agreement that the plaintiff within 2 weeks from the dat 
thereof would commence the erection of an elevator at Sifton. 
Manitoba, and thereafter proceed with the completion there­
of and operate said elevator in the season of 1917, and that 
this condition had not been complied with inasmuch as the 
elevator was not built until 1919. The trial Judge found that 
the allotment of stock was not proved and also that the repre­
sentations alleged had been made and gave judgment for tin- 
defendant.

Wilton v. Manitoba Independent Oil Co., 25 D.L.R. 24:', 
25 Man. L.R. 628, was a case on all fours with this so far 
as the defence to the promissory note is concerned. In that 
ease, the plaintiff gave evidence to show that, at the time of 
giving his promissory note for shares, it was agreed that his 
note should not be binding and would be returned to him in 
case the company failed to erect an oil tank by a time prior 
to the due date of the note, and that the tank had not been 
built. The Court held that oral evidence was not admissible 
to show an agreement contemporaneous with the making of a 
promissory note, that the liability of the maker as it appears 
on the face of the note is contingent on the happening of some 
event.

Counsel for the defendant in this case contended that the 
representations were false and fraudulent inasmuch as the 
agent of the plaintiff stated to the defendant that the material 
for the elevator was on the road. There is evidence that tie- 
agent did make such a statement, but there is not a line of 
evidence to show that the statement was untrue in fact. On 
this ground, therefore, the defence fails.

1 would allow the appeal with costs, set aside the judgment 
and direct that judgment be entered for the plaintiff for the 
amount claimed together with costs of trial incurred after the 
arrangement made as to the amendment of the pleadings. Tin- 
defendant will have the costs up to that time.

Dennibtoun, J. A.:—This is an appeal from the County 
Court of Dauphin and the judgment of llis Honour Judge 
Honnycastle who dismissed the action to recover the sum of 
$100, the price of a share in the capital stock of the company 
on the ground that no by-law providing for the allotment of 
stock in accordance with secs. 46 and 47, the Companies Act 
it.S.C. 1906, eh. 79 had been proved.

An application in writing for the stock signed by the de­
fendant was duly proved and a resolution of the directors
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«Hotting the share was shown in the minute book, and evidence 
given that a notice of allotment had been sent by mail to the 
defendant.

Masten and Fraser, Company Law, ‘2nd ed. 1920, p. 201 
says :

“Under the Dominion Act the proper method of procedure 
is to pass a general by-law providing that shares may he al­
lotted by resolution of the directors; or to make each allot­
ment by by-law.”

The learned Judge was not prepared to presume that all 
things had been rightly done, and that the resolution of tin- 
directors had been preceded by a valid general by-law. lie 
held the company to strict proof of their records and granted 
a non-suit when they failed to produce direct evidence that a 
valid contract by offer to purchase and acceptance by allot­
ment had been made.

Upon this branch of the case, it is not necessary to pass an 
opinion for on another branch the rights of the parties may 
be determined without difficulty.

At the conclusion of the plaintiff's case when the trial Judge 
was about to grant a non-suit, it was agreed between counsel 
that the plaintiff's claim should be amended by setting up an 
alternative claim upon a promissory note sent to the company 
by the defendant with his application for stock.

The trial then proceeded, and evidence was given as to the 
making of the note, and the circumstances under which it was 
made.

There was clearly a good consideration; for the note was 
given for a share of stock which the company was bound to 
allot and issue to the defendant; but the defence is that there 
was a condition attached, to the effect that an elevator was to 
be built at tSifton, on which work was to be commenced within 
2 weeks, and that materials were already on the way, whereas 
the elevator was not built for 2 years afterwards, and there 
was no real preparation made to build it at the time the re­
presentation was made.

The trial Judge has not dealt with this branch of the case, 
and in my humble view, the plaintiffs are entitled to succeed 
upon it.

This is very like the case of Wilton v. Manitoba Indtpcmlt nt 
Oil Co., 25 D.L.lt. 243, 25 Man. L.R. Ü28, decided by this Court 
in 1915.

The headnote reads (See 25 Man. L.R. <>28.):—
“Oral evidence is not admissible to shew an agreement con-
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tcmporaneouH with the making of a promissory note that tin* 
liability of the maker as it appears on the face of the note is 
contingent on the happening of some event: New London 
Credit Syndicate v. Neale, [18981 2 Q.B. 487, 67 L.J. (Q.B. 
825, 79 L.T. 323 and eases collected in Maclaren on Bills. 
4th ed. pp. 46-47, and Falconbridge on Banking, 2nd ed. pp. 
881-584, followed.

The plaintiff gave evidence to show that, at the time of 
giving his promissory note for shares in the defendant com­
pany, it was agreed that his note should not be binding ami 
would be returned to him in case the company failed to ere-; 
an oil tank by a time prior to the due date of the note, al > 
that, the tank had not been built, and he brought this action 
to replevy the note.

Held, that the evidence should not have been received and 
the action must fail.”

Tn my view the case at bar is not distinguishable from the 
Wilton case and there should be judgment for the plaintiff 
upon the note.

The amendments at the trial, made by consent, in the 
present ease, were not incorporated in the claim or dispute 
note, and it was argued all defences, including that of fraud 
and fraudulent misrepresentations are open if they can be 
found in the evidence taken.

Even so, there is here no such evidence. The statements 
which were made as to materials are not shown to be fal>e 
and the promises as to the time of building were conditional.

I would allow the appeal with costs, and direct judgment to 
be entered for the plaintiff for $100 with interest at 7% until 
the due date of the note and thereafter at 5% per annum.

In accordance with the arrangement as to costs made during 
the trial the defendant is entitled to the costs of the action up 
to the amendment referred to, the plaintiff is entitled to the 
costs subsequent to that amendment.

Appeal allowed.

TOWN of KAMSACK v. CANADIAN NORTHERN TOWN 
PROPERTIES Co. Ltd.

Saskatchewan King's Bench, Bigelow, J. July 5, 1922.
Taxes (§IE—45)—“Owner"—Interest in Crown lands—Indian Re­

serve—Agreement of hale.
An agreement by the Crown purporting to sell to a company 

part of an Indian Reserve for townsite purposes, whereby hall of 
the profits derived from the sale of the lots were to go to the 
Crown for the benefit of the Indians and a patent for the land
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to issue when the lots are sold, the company being referred to 
as “purchaser” and also os "sales agent," is a sufficient agreement 
of sale under which the company, or an assignee of the agree­
ment, has an interest as "owner," within the meaning of sec. 2 
(16) of the Town Act R.S.S. 1920, ch. 87 taxable under the 
statute to the extent of the company’s moiety therein.

Taxes (§111 D—135)—Irregularities in assessment—Court of Re-

Irregularities in assessment are matters to be corrected by the 
Court of Revision.

Limitations ( § III H—140)—Specialty debts—Statutory liability—

Taxes being a liability created by statute, the i>eriod of limita­
tions is that applicable to a specialty debt, not that prescribed by 
sec. 2 of the Limitations Act (R.S.S. 1920, ch. 47) us to action 
on simple debt.

Action for taxes. Judgment for plaint iff.
G. 11. Barr, K.C., J. G. Banks, and W. B. Cars», for plain- 

tit.
W. A. Doherty and I). II. Laird, for defendant.
Bigelow, J. The main question is whether the land is 

liable for taxes, i.e., whether the defendant has any interest 
in the land, or whether it belongs to the Crown.

The defendant was assessed as an owner. “Owner” is de­
fined in the Town Act, R.S.S. 1920, ch. 87, sec. 2, sub-see 16, 
as follows:—“Owner includes any person who has any right, 
title, estate or interest other than that of a mere occupant.”

I shall refer throughout to the sections of ch. 87, R.S.S. 
1020, as these sections are the same as were in force at the 
limes in question, although not numbered the same in the 
previous Acts.

If the land belonged to the Crown it is quite clear that it 
is not assessable. Section 125, B.N.A. Act 1867 ; sec. 390, sub- 
see. 1 of the Town Act.

And I think it is beyond dispute that no act of the town in 
assessing the land would make a valid and binding assessment 
if the land were not assessable, notwithstanding the provisions 
of secs. 411 and 441 of the Town Act. See Brehaut v. City of 
Sortit Bat tie ford (1920), 51 D.L.R. 609, 13 S.L.lt. 202. 
Lament, J.A., in 51 D.L.R. at pp. 612-613 says:—

“Section 406 (City Act, 1915 (Sask.) ch. 16), which is re­
lied upon by the city, reads as follows: ‘406. The roll, as 
finally passed by the Court of Revision and certified by the 
assessor as so passed, shall be valid and bind all parties con­
cerned, notwithstanding any defect or error committed in or 
with regard to such roll, or any defect, error or misstatement
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in the notice required by sec. 303 or any omission to deliv 
or to transmit any notice.’ A section similar to our see. imi 
came before the Supreme (1ourt of Canada in (Uty of Loud• 
v. Watt & Son* (l 893), 22 Can. S.C.R. 3(H). In that cic 
Strong, C.J., at p. 302 said : ‘ I agree with the Court of Appi . i 
(10 A.R. (Ont.) 675), in holding that the 65th section of i! 
Ontario Assessment Act, R.S.O. 1887, eh. 103, docs not male 
the roll, as finally passed hv the Court of Revision, conclusi 
as regards question of jurisdiction. If there is no power co 
ferred by the statute 1o make the assessment it must be wlmll 
illegal and void ab initio and confirmation by the Court m' 
Revision cannot validate if.’ And this statement as to ih 
effect of the section was approved by the Privy Council in 
Toronto II. Co v. Toronto Corporation, [1004] A.C. MM 
at p. 810. If therefore the defendant had no taxable inter* -• 
in the property for which he was assessed, sec. 400 would i. 
avail fo render him liable for the tax, although he took m 
appeal against the assessment to the Court of Revision. Tin- 
city cannot by assessing property 1o a person who has no in 
terest therein make it obligatory on that person to appeal ;•> 
the Court of Revision, on pain of being liable for the tax if 
he fails so to do.” See also Cit y of Victoria v. The Bishop 
Vancouver Island, 59 D.L.R. 399, 119211 2 A.C. 384.

On the other hand it is equally well settled that if the de- 
fendants have any interest in this land that interest is su 
ject to taxation. The Culyary and Edmonton Land Co. v. 
Att’y-Gen’I. of Alberta (1911), 45 Can. 8.C.R. 170; Smith v. 
Rural Municipality of Vermilion llills (1914), 20 D.L.lt. 111. 
49 Can. S.C.R. 563; affirmed, 30 D.L.R. 83, [1916] 2 A.C 
569.

The lands in question were part of an Indian Reserve ami 
were surrendered to the Crown, and an agreement was after­
wards made between the Crown and Mackenzie Mann & Co. 
(whose interests afterwards passed to the defendant), prove*i 
by the following document: —

“Extract from a report of a Committee of the llonuuralm- 
the Privy Council, approved by 11 is Excellency on Septemli-v 
28, 1904.

On a Memorandum dated September 14, 1904, from 1li - 
Superintendent General of Indian Affairs stating that Messrs. 
Mackenzie, Mann &. Co. representing the Canadian Northern 
Railway Co., are purchasers from the Department of 1ml in 
Affairs of what is known as the Kamsack townsite c in- 
prising an area of 241.94 acres, in Cote’s Indian Reen* u
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the Pel I y Agency, Assinihoia. An advance of ten dollars per 
acre has been paid by the Company, and the Indians are to 
share equally in the proceeds of the sales of lots after the 
Company has recouped itself $5000.00 made up of the $2419.40 
advance, and the cost of laying out the townsite, dedicating 
streets, etc.

The Minister further states that the Company has applied 
for patent for the land in the townsite; hut as owing to the 
circumstances that the Indians are to share with the Com­
pany in the proceeds of the sales and that the sale of the 
townsite is necessarily incomplete, patent cannot issue therefor, 
it is considered that it would be well to provide for the issue 
of a patent to each purchaser from the Company of land in the 
townsite on report of the sales agent.

The Minister recommends that the above arrangement la- 
sanctioned so that the plan of subdivision of the townsite may 
be placed on record in the local Land Titles Office.

The Committee submit the same for approval.
John J. M. (lee,

Clerk of the Privy Council."
The main question in this case depends on the construction 

to be placed on this document, the plaintiff claiming il shews 
a sale of the land, and the defendant claiming that the d<- 
fendant is only a sales agent. 1 am of the opinion that the 
document shews a sale. It is not free from ambiguity. The 
word “purchaser” is used in one place, and the word “sales 
agent” in another. An advance of $10 an acre was paid by 
the company. This seems to me consistent only with the pre­
vious clause of the document that the company was a pur­
chaser. There is the further statement in the document that 
the company has applied for a patent. The company would 
not apply for patent to land for which it was only a sales 
agent.

Whether there is a sufficient memorandum in writing to sa­
tisfy the Statute of Frauds, or whether specific performance 
could be ordered I think is not in question here. 1 do not 
think that the defendant could raise that question against too 
plaintiff ,and even if so the contract has been partly performed.

1 hold then that the document in question shews that the 
frown agreed to sell an interest in the lands in question to 
the defendant.

Several letters from Iî. 11. Nichol were offered in evidence by 
the plaintiff, and I reserved the question of their admissibility. 
Nichol wrote as Assistant Tax Commissioner for the del'endaiii.
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I now decide that these letters are admissible against the 
defendant. The affidavit for documents made on behalf of 
defendant was made by Nichol; all correspondence concerning 
this assessment is signed by Nichol ; letters about the assess 
ment and tax notices were sent by plaintiff to defendant ami 
answered by Nichol; appeals against the assessment were lodg­
ed by Nichol, and Nichol attended meetings of the town coun­
cil about the assessment. I think that all of these things are 
sufficient to shew that Nichol had authority from defendant 
to act for it in the matter of this assessment.

These letters shew that the holdings of Mackenzie Mann & 
Co. were transferred to defendant and in several notices of 
appeal to the Court of Revision reference is made to the as­
sessment of property owned by the defendant. This would 
indicate to me that defendant considered itself as the owner 
of the land in question and not a sales agent as now contended.

A lease was also put in evidence from the defendant to 
George Moore dated March 20, 1918, whereby defendant leased 
100 acres of the land in question for 5 years for $100 a year. 
This is not consistent with defendant’s present claim that it 
was only a sales agent and had no interest in the land.

On behalf of the defendant there was offered in evidence a 
transfer of Lot 7, Block 7, part of the land in question, from 
the Superintendent of Indian Affairs to one Joseph Schneider 
for the purpose of shewing the system of the Crown in issuing 
transfers. This transfer was objected to and I reserved the 
question of its admissibility. I do not think this is admissible. 
The question whether this land belongs to the Crown or 
whether it is assessable must be determined by the original 
agreement with the Crown with the assistance of any actions 
or admissions by the defendant against its own interest. Even 
if this document were admissible 1 do not think it would affect 
the question in this action.

I do not think it is material in this action to decide what 
the interest of the defendant in the land in question was, 
whether it was a whole interest or a half interest. If the de­
fendant had any interest in the land 1 do not think it can com­
plain here that its interest was over-assessed. That was a 
question for the Court of Revision or a Judge of Appeal from 
the Court of Revision. See Lament, J.A., in Brehaut v. North 
Battleford, 51 D.L.R. at p. 613:—

“But where a person has a taxable interest in the property 
assessed, but is assessed for an interest greater than, or dif­
ferent from, his real interest, or where he is entitled to have
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the name of some other person joined with his own in the 
assessment, his proper course is to appeal to the Court of 
Revision, and, if he fails to avail himself of that remedy, the 
roll, as finally passed, will be binding on him.”

See also Canadian Northern Exprett Co. v. Town of Hosfh- 
crn (1915), 23 D.L.R. 64, 8 K.L.R. 285. Lament, J., in giv­
ing the judgment of the Court said (23 D.L.R. at p. 67)
“Where the town has, under the Act, the right to impose 

the tax, which, in fact, it did impose, and the person assessed 
in respect thereof does not appeal against the quantum of the 
assessment, he cannot in un action to recover the taxes which 
he was compelled to pay, be heard to say that he was over­
assessed. ’ ’

I think it is desirable, however, as a guidance for future 
taxation of this land to decide what the interest of the defend­
ant is in said lands. The evidence shews that defendant was 
assessed as if it owned all the land. I am of the opinion that 
1 lie interest of defendant is only a half interest, the other one 
half being held by the Crown in trust for the Indians.

The defendant complains of the following irregularities in 
the assessment and contends that the plaintiff cannot succeed 
on that account. (1) That there was no by-law appointing 
an assessor. An assessor was appointed every year by resolu­
tion of the council except in 1918. There is no record of an 
appointment for that year, but an assessor acted in all of the 
years in question. (2) That no Assessment Committee of the 
council was appointed as required by sec. 388 of the Act. 1 
find as a fact that this is so except in the years 1919 and 1920 
when an Assessment Committee was duly appointed by resolu­
tion of the council. (3) That no rate by-law was passed by 
the council.

Sec. 428 of the Town Act R.S.S. 1920, ch. 87, provides : 
“One by-law or several by-laws for assessing and levying the 
rates may be passed as the council may deem expedient.” In 
1915 the rate was fixed by a resolution of the council. In 1916 
and 1917 the council purported to pass a by-law but it was 
not certified or sealed. In 1918, 1919 and 1920 there was a 
regular by-law signed and sealed. (4) That the council never 
adopted the roll as passed by the Court of Revision. This may 
have some effect when the plaintiff claims the benefit of sec. 
411 of the Town Act which reads:—“The roll as finally pass­
ed by the council and certified by the assessor as so passed 
shall be valid and bind all parties concerned notwithstanding 
any defect or error committed in or with regard to such roll
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Sask. or any defect, error or misstatement in the notiee required by 
Ku see. 899 or any omission to deliver or to transmit such no
----- live.” There is no record of adoption in 1915 or 1916 but il

Town of Was adopted in 1917. 1918. 1919 and 1920 bv resolution of tin- 
Vm council.

Can. (5) Defendant also complains about the assessment of tin*
N™,lc fractional north half of 34—89—32. Notiee of assessment of 
Phopkktifs this land was given in November, 1919, under see. 413 of the 

Co. Act and the land was assessed and addl'd to the roll, appealed 
Bigelow, J. f|,<)in hy tin1 defendant, and adopted by the council. The no­

tice of assessment seems to me to comply with the Act and par 
ticularly sec. 413, and 1 cannot find any irregularity in this 
assessment.

1 am of the opinion that all of these irregularities are cox 
ered by the curative sections of the Town Act. Section 411 
supra and sec. 441, which reads as follows:—“The production 
of a copy of so much of the roll as relates to the taxes payable 
by any person in the town certified as a true copy by the trea­
surer shall be conclusive evidence of the debt.” Section 411 
would not cover the years when the roll was not passed b\ 
the council, but see. 441 would. In C. d1 E. Toivmitcs Ltd. x. 
City of Wetaskiwin (1919), 51 D.L.R. 252, at p. 261, (59 (’an. 
S.C.H. 578) Duff J., said:—

“(hi this point, the meaning of the language is unmistakable 
anti the combined effect of these sections is that if the proper! \ 
is assessable and if the person is a taxable person, then an as­
sessment which contains the elements of a de facto ‘assessment’ 
within the meaning of sec. 134, may be appealed against and 
corrected by the Court of Revision, and that notwithstanding 
the departures from the requirements of the statute ‘in or with 
regard to the roll* such an assessment once the roll has passed 
the Court of Revision ami been certified in the manner provid­
ed for, shall be valid.”

See also Jlislop v. City of Stratford (1917), 34 D.L.R. 31. 
38 O.L.R. 470, Meredith, C.J.C.P., said (34 D.L.R. at p. 37) :—

“[The objections) are not the proper subject of an action 
in this Court, as they might be if the case were one in which 
there was no power in the municipality to tax; or one with 
which the Courts of Revision have not power to deal pro­
perly. ’ ’

hee also (’oufederation Life Ass'n. v. City of Toronto 
(189.)), 22 A.R. (Ont.) 166, 24 O.R. 643; Toronto v. (i. IV. 
HaHway Co. (1866), 25 C.C.Q.B. 570; City of Coquitlam v. 
Lamjan (1917), 33 D.L.R. 175.
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Objection was also taken by the defendant to the 1*110 taxes 
on lots 19 and 20 Block 4. and lots 17 and 18 Block 8. These 
lots were assessed in 1915 to Mackenzie Mann & Vo. Macken­
zie Mann & Co. may be liable for these taxes, but I cannot 
see how defendant can be. These taxes amount to $63.29 to 
be deducted from tin* amount claimed. 1 cannot find that any 
penalties arc chargeable on these amounts.

The defendant also claims that the Statute of Limitations 
bars part of the claim. I suppose this applies only to 1 lu» 
1915 taxes. Section 2 of the Limitations Act lt.S.S. 1920, eh. 
47 provides:—

“All actions for recovery of merchants’ accounts, bills, notes 
and all actions of debt grounded upon any lending or oilier 
contract, without specialty shall be commenced within 6 years 
after the cause of such action arose.”

But the action being in respect of a liability created by 
statute the period of limitation is that applicable to an action 
upon a specialty. McLean v. Town of Macleod (1919), 49 D.L. 
li. 146, 15 Alta. L.R. 186; In re Cornwall Minerals II. Co., 
11897J 2 Vh. 74, 66 L.J. (Ch.) 561.

Plaintiff will have judgment for the amount claimed, $2668.- 
55, less the 1915 taxes assessed to Mackenzie Mann &. Vo. $63.29, 
namely $2605.26, and costs of the action.

The costs of two motions in this action were reserved. The 
application to examine Nicliol l think was reasonable, and the 
plaintiff will have these costs. The plaintiff’s application to 
examine O’Vonnor in my opinion was not necessary. The evi­
dence sought to be obtained from him was proved by certified 
copies of documents. Before plaintiff would be justified in 
taking out an order to examine O’Connor in Ottawa it should 
prove that it is unable to get the certified copies of the docu­
ments, or where the evidence is a matter of proving records 
that could not be proved by certified copies, the proper prac­
tice is to give notice to admit; then, if admissions are not made, 
plaintiff would be justified in applying for the order. The 
détendant will have the costs of this application to be set off 
against the plaintiff’s costs.

Either party may remove from the file any documents filed 
ns evidence 30 days after this judgment if there is no appeal. 
If there is an appeal, then after the appeal or appeals are 
finally determined.
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Judgment for plaintiff
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THREE RIVERS SHIPYARDS Lid., v. LA SOCIETE NAPHTES 
TRANSPORTS.

Quebec Court of King's Bench, Appeal Side, Oreenshields. Guerin, 
Dorion, Flynn and Tellier, JJ. September 10, 1921. 

Mortgage (§11—30)—Of vessel under construction—Insolvency or
BUILDING CONTRACTOR—RIGHT OF MORTGAGEE TO POSSESSION 01 
VESSEL—RlOIIT OF OTHER CREDITORS TO MATERIALS INTENDED FOR 
BUT NOT ALREADY USED IN CONSTRUCTION.

The holder of a hypothec on a vessel In course of construction. 
Is entitled on the Insolvency of the building contractor to possess 
ion of the vc =el and, in certain cases, in the discretion of the 
Judge, to a ! e at a proper rental, of the yard and equipment 
where the vessel is being built, in order that it may complete 
the building of the vessel, but is not entitled to material intend'd 
to be used in the construction of the vessel but not yet used, 
or to boilers and engines not yet actually installed, such material 
until actual incorporation within the vessel being the property of 
the other creditors of the insolvent.

Appeal from the judgment of the Quebec Superior Court 
maintaining a petition and dismissing an intervention in the 
following circumstances. La Société Naphtes Transports of 
Marseilles, France, gave the National Shipbuilding Co. a contract 
to build in part in March 12, 1019. The contract was accepted 
and executed in part in the shipyards of a company called the 
Three Rivers Shipyards. Having paid the first company 3.- 
510,000 francs on account, the société obtained a hypothec on 
the vessel “then being built in its yards, under the name of 
Mont Heine II, and Hull No. 15”, together with all materials 
of construction destined for the said vessel. These two last 
named corporations became insolvent.

On September 15, 1920, the société presented a petition ask­
ing: (1) for leave to take physical possession of the ship as 
well as all materials destined to enter into its construction, so 
as to be in a position to enforce its rights and its hypothec 
under the contract; (2) to be given a lease of a certain part 
of the yard and its equipment, for the purpose of doing the 
work necessary to make its possession effective, on paying a 
rental of $250 per week; (3) delivery of the boiler and machin 
cry belonging to the ship after reaching an agreement with 
the liquidator as to the amount to be paid for the same.

This petition was contested by the liquidator and by the Mo! 
sons Bank which intervened as a creditor for $311,531.24 on 
notes. The following grounds were set up against the petition : 
(a) the bank had already obtained possession of the greater 
part of the materials asked for in the petition, by order of the 
Court; (b) the petitioner’s hypothec did not give it any lien 
on the materials ; (c) the hypothec is null under the Canada
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Shipping Act, amendment 1019 (Can.), eh. 42: (d) the Bank 
acquired a lien on these materials under sec. 86 of the Bank 
Act, 1013 (Can.) eh. 0.

The petitioner met these objections with the allegation that 
the hank’s rights were null, because it knew when it acquired 
Them that the company was insolvent.

Meredith, IIolden tV Co., for Molsons Bank.
Campbell, McMaster t(* Couture, for the Société Naphtes 

Transports.
liroxvn, Montgomery tf* McMichael, for Three Rivers Ship­

yards.
Greenrhields, *T. :—Tt will be at once seen that the issues of 

fact and law raised by the petition and by the contestation 
are limited to the rights of the transport company under its 
contract and under its mortgage to the possession, first, of the 
unfinished ship, secondly, to the materials fabricated and in the 
yards destined for the completion of the said ship; thirdly, the 
right of the transport company to the use of the slip or ways 
with the necessary machinery, at a rental of $250 a week for 
the purpose of completing the ship, and fourthly, and finally to 
the delivery and possession of the boilers and machinery in pro­
cess of manufacture for the ship.

With all respect, it seems to me that at the trial and by the 
judgment, matters entirely foreign to the issues were considered 
and made the subject of proof at the trial, and were considered 
and disposed of by the final judgment. Whether or not the 
Molsons Bank obtained a valid lien or security by the letters 
of hypothecation alleged by it, is not a matter which should be 
determined in the present litigation, and at the present stage 
this Court, in my opinion, is not called upon to determine that 
question. The Molsons Bank is a creditor of the insolvent 
company. Whether it has a privilege, or whether it held any 
security, does not arise on the present issue. It has, and the 
liquidator has, an interest to contest the petition. If that con­
testation is successful, and the transport company is denied the 
right to the possession of the ship and materials, then the 
liquidator will remain in possession, and will dispose of them 
according to law and subject to the rights of all the parties.

For the purpose of the determination of the present appeal, 
the contract of March 12, 1010, and the mortgage of October 
30, 1010, must be considered. The contract is one for the con­
struction of a ship at a fixed price. The work had been com­
menced. There is no doubt that even if the insolvency of the 
contractor had not intervened the proprietor might cancel the

K.B.
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contract upon indemnifying the contractor for the amount by 
him expended. See (\C. (Que.) sec. 1691. In the present case, 
the proprietor had overpaid the eontraetor for the work h 
had done. 1 am of opinion that that part of the transport 
company's petition by which it prayed for the delivery to it 
of the vessel in course of construction was well founded, and 
that the judgment giving possession to the transport company 
should be maintained.

The contract does not purport to vest the transport company 
with the ownership of the vessel, much less with the materials 
destined to enter into its construction, until the complete dr 
livery of the ship. The mortgage of October 30, 1919, di.r. 
not purport to mortgage anything more than the ship then in 
course of construction. It does not cover materials in the ship­
yards fabricated hv others for the purpose of the completion 
of the ship.

The contract of March 12, 1919, was made and signed in 
France, and probable the lex loci contractu,s would prevail; 
but the materials, the possession of which is sought by the trails 
port company, are situated in this province and are movables, 
and in the absence of a special provision of law, such moveables 
cannot be the subject matter of a hypothec or mortgage. i 
am of opinion that the transport company has no mort gay • 
upon these movables, and has no right to get possession of 
them as against the other creditors of the insolvent company. 
That part of the judgment a quo giving possession to the trail 
port company, in my opinion, cannot prevail. With respect to 
the holding of the trial Judge, that the liquidator, for the con­
sideration of $200 a week, give the transport company the use 
of the ship’s ways and necessary machinery, while there ma.\ 
be a serious question as to whether a Court could order a liquid­
ator to enter into such a lease, there is no doubt that a Court 
could authorise such a lease if that be in the best interests of 
the interested parties.

Having regard to the particular circumstances of the present 
case, I am unable to conclude that the trial Judge erred in 
that part of this judgment. In any event, I do not think that 
it is such an order as calls for revision of cancellation by this 
Court, and I should allow it to stand.

With respect to the engines and boilers, I am of opinion the 
judgment went too far, and would cancel that part of the order.

Upon the whole, the appeal of the transport company will he 
dismissed, with costs. The appeals of the liquidator and tin* 
Molsons Hank will be maintained, with costs. The transport
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company will In* entitled to the costs on its petition, and the 
contestations will be in part dismissed, but the contestants will 
have to pay the costs.

G vérin, J.:—A. La Société Xaphtcs Transports:—That La 
Société N aphtes Transports intended that this mortgage should 
cover the materials is probably very true, but that Three Rivers 
Shipyards Ltd. and the National Shipbuilding Co. were inspir­
ed with the same intention is open to grave doubt. Three Riv­
ers Shipyards Ltd. is the only one of these three com es 
that signed the mortgage deed. In any case, the materials were 
not mortgaged, and so long as they remained undetaehed, they 
did not form part of the ship.

The ship alone could be subject to a maritime mortgage. The 
materials not yet incorporated in the laxly of the ship are move- 
allies subject to liens, privileges and the law pertaining to 
the moveable property. A ship about to be built or being built 
may be made securety for a loan or other valuable security un­
der see. 41 of the Canada Shipping Act R.S.C. 11106, eh. lid, 
as well as for advances by a bank in aid of the building of a 
ship under sec. 85 of the Hank Act 1913 (Can.) eh. 9. No such 
authority is given regarding the materials, boilers, etc., destin­
ed for its construction, but not yet incorporated in the ship.

That a mortgage covering such materials would violate the 
law is an opinion supported by high authority: Canada Ship­
ping Act R.S.C. 1906, secs. 69 et seq: Labori, Diet. Enc. rerbo 
Droit Maritime, nos. 4*2. 43; Heath d* Co. v. Moore (1886), 11 
App. Cas. 350; Reid v. Macbeth, [1904] A.C. 223; Maclachlan's 
.Merchant Shipping, 5th ed. p. 6. Moreover neither the Canada 
Shipping Act nor the Hank Act makes any provision which 
would authorise the mortgage of moveable not incorporated into 
the body of the ship.

The argument which applies to the Canada Shipping Act 
has been already clearly elucidated in the opinion of my col­
league Greenshields, J. and further comment would be super­
fluous.

To conclude then, it may be said that this Court cannot read 
into this deed an intention which may have been in the minds 
of the officers of the petitioner, but which was not expressed 
when Three Rivers Shipyards Ltd. expressly mortgaged the 
ship, and nothing else.

H. Three Rivers Shipyards Ltd. (b-1). Following the text 
of the law, sec. 41 Canada Shipping Act, this appellant truth­
fully admits that a ship in course of construction could be 
made security for a loan or other consideration.

Que.

K.B.

Three

Shipyards,

La Société
NXI’HTKS

Transports. 

Guerin, .!.
04



672 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.R

Que.

K.B.

Rixt.rn
Shipyards,

La Sooikte 
Napiitkb 

Transports.

Guerin, J.

The other valuable consideration mentioned by the Act, ex­
isted when this mortgage was registered at the Custom Hous*. 
Sorel. on October 31, 1910. It sets forth the agreement of 
March 12, 1919, for the construction of the ship which is in 
cost 5,850,000 francs, and stipulates that this ship shall be 
mortgaged in favour of the petitioner as security for the com 
pi et ion and delivery of the said ship according to the terms of 
said agreement, and for such advances as have been or shall 
be made from time to time, in accordance with said agreement 
or otherwise. This then is the valuable consideration for which 
the ship could be made security under sec. 41.

This would seem to be a complete answer to this first objec­
tion. It should be dismissed.

(b-2). Three Rivers Shipyards Ltd. is being liquidated un­
der the Winding-up Act, R.K.C. 190(5, eh. 144. The liquidator 
is by law an officer of the Court and subject to its orders. The 
trial Judge after hearing all the parties, exercising his disci e 
tion and authority, after mature deliberation, instructed the 
liquidator to rent a portion of the ship-building plant to the 
petitioner for the latter’s convenience in completing the ship. 
This appellant complains that such an order will indefinitely 
suspend the liquidation and will prejudice the creditors.

This complaint is not borne out by the evidence. Unless all 
signs deceive us, the petitioner is anxious to have the const na­
tion of the ship completed as soon as possible and this work 
will only take G weeks. Moreover, the petitioner is deeply in­
terested in this liquidation, and may prove to be one of its prin­
cipal creditors; the petitioner has a right to expect reasonable 
protection so that its rights may not suffer prejudice, if it be 
possible to avoid it. It would seem that the first Court exercis­
ed a wise discretion and that this second objection should be dis 
missed.

(b-3). The material not incorporated into the ship is not 
covered by the mortgage given to the petitioner, as already 
mentioned. This unattached material is the common pledge to 
secure the mass of the creditors of Three Rivers Shipyards Ltd. 
which is in liquidation and which admits its insolvency. The 
effect of the judgment would be that the petitioner would re­
ceive this material as a free gift in violation of other people > 
rights. It must be disposed of in the interest of the secured 
or ordinary creditors as the rank, nature or amount of their 
claims may justify, in such a manner as the Court may here­
after decide. This third objection should be maintained.

(b-4). These boilers and machinery are an asset belonging
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lo the insolvent estate. If any equity exists, it belongs to the 
creditors. The petitioner has not proved the right which the 
judgment conceded. The petitioner is not to he treated sicut 
(lominus, it is neither the proprietor nor the mortgagee, it can­
not acquire possession invito domino, without a valid consider­
ation to be arranged for with the liquidator. This Court can­
not sanction such a surrender of the liquidator’s rights to a 
party holding no legal title to this movable property other ap­
parently than that of an ordinary creditor whose claim as such 
is not now under inquiry. This fourth objection should be 
maintained.

0. The Molsons Hank. The merits of this objection have 
been discussed by what has been already stated. The materials 
fabricated for or intended for the ship are not covered by the 
mortgage, and the liquidator should not he ordered to deliver 
them to the petitioner. This objection should be maintained.

The Molsons Hank intervened in the present case alleging an 
indebtedness of $316,541/24, evidenced by live promissory notes 
signed by Three Hivers Shipyards Ltd. and the National Ship­
building Co. jointly and severally in favour of the bank, and 
that to secure this indebtedness five assignments of material 
were made under the authority of the Bank Act by both these 
companies in favour of the bank. The five notes and the five 
assignments in favour of the hank are filed.

The petitioner in answer alleges that these assignments are 
invalid and illegal under the Hank Act 1913 (Can.) eh. 9, and 
the parties went to proof. There is no evidence to contradict 
the notes that shew an indebtedness of the petitioner towards 
the bank for $316,541.124. Whether the assignments made to 
secure this indebtedness are null or annullable, or whether they 
constitute a binding security of the estate, it matters not, so 
far as their case is concerned. The debt itself is proved. The 
Molsons Hank lias proved its interest in this case, and this 
Court is competent to adjudicate of the conclusions taken by 
the three appellants, whether these assignments be void or 
voidable.

1 am of opinion that the Court of Appeal should dismiss the 
petitioner’s appeal, and should maintain the appeal of the liqui­
dator of Three Rivers Shipyards Ltd. as well as the appeal 
of the Molsons Bank as regards the materials not incorpora­
ted into the ship, and should dismiss both these appeals as re­
gards the general prayer for the dismissal of the whole peti­
tion.

As the battle in this Court was waged between counsel mainly 
45—68 D.L.R.
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as regards the materials not incorporated into the ship. T am 
of opinion that La Société Naplites Transports, petitioner, should 
be condemned to pay all the costs of the three appeals.

Tellier, J. The petitioner asks three things in its petition : 
(1) that it he put in possession of the ship in course of con 
struction, upon which it has an hypothecary claim, and a Ko 
of the materials destined for its completion ; (2) that the liquid 
at or, Scott, he instructed and authorised to permit the petition 
er to use. on paying a rental of $200 per week, the yard where 
the ship is being built, for such time as may be required to 
complete it ; (It) that the said liquidator be also instructed and 
authorised to deliver to petitioner the boilers and machinery, 
made or in process of construction for the said ship, on paying 
what they cost.

The intervenant asks in its contestation that the petitioner’s 
hypothec be declared illegal and null and that its petition In- 
dismissed in loto, or at least insofar as it refers to the mate 
ials not yet incorporated in the ship.

As for the liquidator Scott, his contestation asks that lie- 
petitioner's hypothec be declared null and the said petition dis­
missed.

That is all that is asked by any of the parties. There i> 
therefore no occasion to consider the legal value of the inter­
venant s lien on the materials of construction possession of 
which is sought by the petitioner. The petitioner’s hypothec 
is all that concerns us. Is this hypothec valid? Does it a fleet 
the said materials of construction? The Court is not called 
upon to decide anything more than that.

1. for my part, think that the hypothec is valid insofar as t 
affects the ship in process of construction, but not as regards 
the unused materials. The materials are movables and their 
hypothecation is not sanctioned by any law, so long as they ha. v 
not been used in the construction of the ship. It is a general 
rule of our law that movables cannot be hypothecated. A 
specific text of law is necessary in order to create an exception 
to this rule ; and no such rule exists which is applicable to or­
dinary materials not yet used.

It, therefore, follows that the petitioner cannot claim posses­
ion under its hypothec of materials which have remained in 
movable form. Its petition is valid, however, and must lie 
granted insofar as it affects the ship itself.

The intervenant was entitled to intervene irrespective of the 
legal value of its security. The mere fact that it was a creditor 
gave it that right, since the case involves a considerable part of
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the estate of its insolvent debtor. But it went too far when it 
contested the whole of the petitioner's demand. It put itself 
in the position of a defendant who contests the whole action 
when such action is well founded in part. It must pay the costs 
of its contestation.

The same is true of the liquidator Scott. Ilis contestation is 
well founded as regards the materials only. He also must, 
therefore, pay the costs of his rash defence.

I have reached the conclusion that the judgment should he 
as follows: (1) petitioner’s appeal dismissed with costs; (2) 
appeals of the intervenant and the liquidator Scott maintained 
with costs ; (3) contestations of the intervenant and of the 
liquidator dismissed with costs as regards possession of the ship, 
hut maintained as regards the unused materials ; (4) petition­
er's petition maintained with costs as regards the possession 
of the ship and use of the yard, but dismissed for the remain­
der.

Judgment :—“Considering that the mortgage obtained by the 
petitioner from the company known as The Three Rivers Ship­
yards Limited on October 30, 1010, is valid insofar as it affects 
the vessel then in process of construction and designated as Me­
tric i ne II, Hull XV, but illegal and null as regards the mater­
ials;

That the objections raised to the validity of that mortgage, 
even as regards the vessel, to the effect that by the Act 1010 
(Can.) ch. 42, the Société could not have such a mortgage, are 
not well founded, since that Act does not apply to the present 
mortgage ;

That the same Is true of the objection that the société did 
not conform to the provisions of sec. 60A. of the ( anadian ( oui- 
panics Act 1017 (Can.), ch. 25, as that amendment dors not 
apply to the present case;

That, as regards the other objections urged against the valid­
ity of this mortgage, as it affects the vessel itself, and particul­
arly the absence of consideration, the fact that the company 
known as the Three Rivers Shipyards Ltd. had never contracted 
with the petitioner and was not a party to the contract of 
March, 1010, all these other objections are unfounded and must 
be rejected ;

That the petitioner could legally ask the Court to give it 
possession of the part of the ship which had already been built, 
so that it might complete the construction at the expense of 
the company which had contracted with it, and which was in 
default to carry out its undertaking and was in liquidation ;
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That in view of the special circumstances of this case tin- 
petitioner could legally ask for possession of the ways or slip on 
which the vessel now stands, the four cranes surrounding tin- 
same and the air compressor and pneumatic machinery conned 
ed therewith under lease at a rental of stvjôü per week; and 
that the order and authorisation to that effect in the dispos if 
of the judgment are legal, in accordance with the spirit of tit 
law and in the interest not only of the petitioner hut of t! 
estate as well ;

That the petitioner had no right to the other things ask- 
in its petition and that the other parts of the dispositif of tli 
judgment which agree with the said petition are unfounded ai I 
illegal ;

That independently of the question as to whether or not t 
Mol so ns Rank was entitled to the assignments it obtained aid 
which it invokes, it had an interest sufficient to contest, as 
has done, these unfounded claims of the petitioner; and tli. 
as regards the objections raised by the said petitioner to i! 
validity of these assignments, but without any conclusions . 
the part of the said petitioner to the effect that the said . 
signments be annulled or declared null, and the Mol sons Rau, 
itself asking only the nullity of the petitioner s mortgage, and 
the dismissal of its petition in toto, and subsidiarily, insofar as it 
refers to the materials, it is not necessary for this Court to 
express an opinion; nor is the Court called upon to pronoun 
on the effect of the judgment authorising that bank to take 
possession of certain materials, which judgment has been con­
tested by tierce-opposition by the société and also by the liquid­
ator, which proceedings are still pending ;

That the r also had a sufficient interest to cont.st
that part of the petitioner’s petition which was unfound- I;

That the appeal of the said société is unfounded and should 
be dismissed with costs ;

That there is ground for maintaining the appeal of the M-li­
sons Rank and the liquidator, and for reversing the judgim at 
of November 6, 1920, for all parts of the dispositif of that jud. 
ment, commencing with the words ; ‘doth instruct, authorise 
and empower the said liquidator to deliver to petitioner, all 
material fabricated for or intended for the said ship Hull XV. 
and, etc. . . . , until the end; and for maintaining the con 
testations of the Moisons Rank and the liquidator, for part of 
each contestation ; reserving to the said Molsons Rank any other 
recourse it may have regarding the said assignments ; dismisses, 
therefore, the appeal of the Société Naphtes Transports with

114
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costs; maintains with costs the appeal of the said Molsons Dank 
and the liquidator, and reverses the said parts of the said judg­
ment above mentioned;

And, proceeding to render the judgment which the Superior 
Court should have rendered on the petitioner’s conclusions men­
tioned in para. 8 and in the last part of para. 1 of its con­
clusions; dismisses those parts of the said conclusions of the pe­
titioner referring to the materials of construction not yet used 
and to the boilers and engines not installed, hut maintains it 
for the remainder, with costs; and proceeding to render the 
judgment which the Superior Court should have rendered on 
the said conclusions of the said Molsons Bank and the above 
named liquidator; maintains, for the foregoing reasons, the 
said contestations in part in each case, that is to say for that 
part which refers to the materials of construction not yet used, 
and the boilers and engines not installed, but dismisses them 
for the remainder, with costs in favour of the Société Naphtes 
Transports, petitioner, for the reason that the contestations are 
maintained only in part, and that the said petitioner succeeds 
in a part of its demand; the Court reserving to the said Mol­
sons Bank any other recourse it may have in respect of the 
assignments alleged by it."

Judgment accordingly.

He KE.MI'EL ESTATE.
Manitoba Court ot Appeal, Perdue, Cameron, Fullerton and

Dcnnistoun, JJ.A. June Id, III 22.
Wills ( $11—65)—Holoiulwu will—Conditional will—Jovhnky.

A writing, sufficient is a holograph will under see. 10 of the 
Manitoba Wills Act, R.S.M. 1913, eli. 204 stating “whereas I am 
going to go on a journey to Mexico, and should I die . . . my 
wile is entitled ... to all my monies,” confirmed by an­
other document after his return from the journey, is not a con­
ditional will contingent upon the death of the testator during the 
journey, and will be admitted to probate as a valid will even 
where the testator safely returned, the journey being the mo­
tive for making the will and not a condition upon which it should 
depend.

Appeal from a judgment of the Surrogate Court refusing 
probate of a will. Reversed.

A. McLeod, K.C., for appellant.
J. W. E. Armstrong, for the official guardian.
Perdue, C.J.M. This is an appeal from the Judge of the 

Surrogate Court of the Southern Judicial District who refused 
to grant probate of an alleged will made by Cornelius Rem pel, 
deceased. The reason given for the refusal is, “that the so-

C.A.
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called will is a proposed disposition of the estate in case o'" 
death during the journey, and alleged testator having returned 
alive, I refuse probate of the document as a will.”

The application for probate was made by the wife of tin 
deceased who t < last will and testament is contained
in two documents written in the dialect of the German language 

M" in common use by the I" s in this Province. The trails
hit ion of these documents into English is as follows:—

“lilumenort, Gretna, P.O., Man.
Jan. 26/21.

Whereas I am going to go on a journey to Mexico, and should 
I die, I therefore certify by these presents that my wife, Kafh- 
arina Rem pel is entitled to collect and draw all my outstandin 
monies, for which also Bank cheques are signed, as are in tin 
Bergthaler Waisenamt, Altona, standing as deposits in the Bank 
of Hamilton. Gretna, standing as deposits, wheat tickets, and 
different outstanding monies according to book account alsn. 
She is consequently entitled to administer the whole estate and 
effects according to our Orphan Rules. For confirmation I sign 
this with the signature of my name.

[ Sgd. ] Corn. Rempel.
Gretna, Man., Sept. 7th, 1921. 

To the Bergthaler Waisenamt, Altona.
Confirm by these presents that you pay my deposit in full 

my wife Katharina Rempel. Confirm above with signature <>f 
my name and witness.

Witness, |Sgd.] F. Rempel. I Sgd.] Corn. Rempel. "
These writings are sufficiently executed as holograph wi!!> 

under sec. 10 of the Manitoba Wills Act, R.S.M., 1913, eh. 2M.
In Theobald on Wills, 7th ed., p. 15, the question relating 

to conditional wills is discussed. The author says:—
‘‘Wills are often expressed to be conditional upon the 1rs- 

tutor’s death before a given period, such as return from a voy­
age or a military expedition, or the like, and if the condition 
is clearly expressed, the will does not take effect if the con / 
lion is not fulfilled.”

In support of this proposition he cites Parsons v. Lan ■> 
(1748), 1 Ves. Sen. 189, 27 E.R. 974; In the Goods of Winn 
(1861), 2 8w. & Tr. 147, 164 E.R. 949; Roberts v. Robot 
(1862), 2 Svv. & Tr. 337, 164 E.R. 1026; In the Goods of Porto 
(1869), L.R. 2 P. & 1). 22, 18 W.R. 231, 21 L.T. 680, 39 L,l. 
(P.) 12; In the (i of Robinson (1870), L.R. 2 P. & I). 171. 
40 L.J. (P.) 16, 19 W.R. 135, 23 L.T. 397; Lindsay v. Linds , 
(1872), L.R. 2 P. & 1). 459, 27 L.T. 322, 42 L.J. (P.) 32; In

5
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the Goods of llu,io (1877), 2 1\I>. 73, 46 L.J. (P.) 21, 36 L.T. 
.">18. 2.1 W.R. 396. The author then proceeds ; “On the other 
hand if the will is so expressed as to shew that the contingency 
is the motive which induces the testator to make the will, the 
will is not conditional.” lie cites Burton v. Collinyu'ood 
(1832), 4 ling. Ece. 176. 162 K.R. 1411 ; In the Goods of 
Thorite (1865), 4 Sw. & Tr. 36, 164 K.R. 1428; In the Goods of 
Hobson (1866), L.R. 1 P. & I). 88, 35 L.J. (P.) 54, 14 W.K. 
408, 13 L.T. 758; In the Goods of Mat/d (1880), 6 P.l). 17, 50 
L.J. (P.) 7. 29 W.lt. 214; In the Goods of Stuart (1888), 21 
L.R. Ir. 105.

In the Goods of Spratt, | 18971 1*. 28. 66 L.J. (P.) 25. was a 
case in which Sir F. II. Jeune, President of the Court, discuss­
ed the more important decisions relating to conditional wills. 
The testamentary disposition in that case was contained in a 
letter written by the testator to his sister while he was actively 
engaged as an army officer in the Maori war. The important 
part is as follows;—

“If we remain here taking pahs for some time to come 
the chances are in favour of more of us being killed, and as I 
may not have another opportunity of saying what I wish to 
he done with any little money I may possess in case of an ac­
cident, 1 wish to make everything 1 possess over to you. In 
the first place there is money at Cox's, over £100 in New South 
Wales Rank, New Zealand. Keep this until 1 ask you for it.”

The testator survived the war and lived for over 30 years 
thereafter, without having revoked the testamentary disposition 
contained in the above letter.

It was held that the words “in case of accident” point only 
to the reason why the testator desired to make a will. The 
President said. [1897] 1\, at p. 35:—

“There is no expression of any period to be found in the 
document within which alone it was to be operative; on the 
contrary, the request that the will should be kept by his s! ter 
1 ill he asked for it appears to me to shew that the testator had 
not in his mind any defined period of time at the expiration 
of which he intended that his will should cease to be effective. 
Nor is there anything in the disposition of the property which 
indicates that it was temporary, or that it did not apply to 
whatever property of which the testator might at any time 
he possessed.”

Probate was therefore granted.
Where the testamentary document commenced with the 

words :—

Man.

C.A.
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Man- “My Will. If anything should happen me while in India 
c A that all moneys, documents, property ... or monies due
---- to me or owing to me at the time of my death to be hand#* !

Rfmi>ki over to my w'^e Lucy Vines,” and the testator appointed exeew- 
Khtate. t0,*s» it was held not to be conditional, although the testator re-
---- turned from India and lived for manv years thereafter: Vines

Fullerton. J.A. v v/arx, [1910] 1\ 147, 79 L.J. (P.) 25.
liigham, P., in the last-mentioned case, after referring to the 

Sprat t, case, supra, as to the question when words in a will 
make the document conditional and when not, proceeded, [1910 j 
P. at pp. 149-lfiO.

“It is, perhaps, sufficient to say that the rule appears to be 
that where a will is made.in terms subject to the happening of 
an event, that event must occur before it can become operative ; 
whereas, if the possibility of an event happening is stated mere­
ly as the reason for making the will, the will becomes operative 
whether the event happen or not. To give an illustration : 
If a man write ‘should I die tomorrow my will is’ so and so, 
his death must occur to make the document operative; whereas 
if he writes ‘lest I die tomorrow,’ it will be operative whether 
he die or not on the morrow.

Looking at the will in question in this appeal. I think it is 
clear that the contemplated journey to Mexico is referred to 
as a period of danger which operates as a reason why the testa­
tor should make his will. The operation of the will is not con­
fined to that period. The testator returned safely from his 
journey and on September 7, 1921, he executed the writing of 
that date in which he affirms the disposition in favour of his 
wife of the money on deposit with the lîergthaler Waisenamt. 
He died on the 23rd day of the same month.

1 would allow the appeal and direct that the testamentary 
instrument of January 26, 1921, be admitted to probate. The 
costs of the appellant and of the official guardian should Ik? 
paid out of the estate.

Cameron, J.A.l would allow the appeal.
Fullerton, J.A. Cornelius Rem pel died on September 23, 

1921, leaving a will dated January 26, 1921. The will com­
menced with the following words:—

“Rlumenort, Gretna
P.Ü. Man., Jan. 26/21.

Whereas 1 am going to go on a journey to Mexico, and should 
I die, 1 therefore certify by these presents that my wife Kath­
arine Rempel is entitled, &c.”

The testator returned safely from his journey. Upon the will
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being presented for probate the Judge of the Surrogate Court 
refused probate on the ground that the will was conditional on 
the death of the testator while on his journey.

Jarman on Wills, at p. 40, speaking of contingent wills, 
says:—

“A reference to some impending danger is common to most 
of these cases, and the question is whether the possible occur­
rence of the event is the reason for the particular disposition 
which the testator makes of his property, as when he says, 
‘Should anything happen to me on my passage to W., I leave’ 
&c., or only the reason for making a will, as where he says, ‘In 
case of accident, being about to travel by railway, I bequeath’ 
&c.”

The authorities shew that probate will not be refused unless 
it is clear from the words used that the testator only intend­
ed the will to take effect upon his death during a particular 
journey. In the Goods of M a yd, supra; In the Goods of Sprat t, 
supra.

The authorities on conditional will arc very fully reviewed 
in the case last cited. After a careful examination of the auth­
orities I have arrived at the conclusion that the testator did 
not intend to limit the operation of his will to the event of 
death happening on his journey to Mexico.

I would allow the appeal and direct that the will be admitted 
to probate.

Dennistovn, J.A. I would allow the appeal.

Appeal allowed.

JOHNSON v. S.S. “BELLA.”
Exchequer Court of Canada, Maclennan, L.J.A. March G, 1921.

Jl’UICIAL SALE c §11113—30)—'Ti l l E OF PIRCIIASKR—WANT OF JVK1H11K'- 
tion—-Admiralty — Compensation for improvements — Tres­
passer.

The purchaser of a vessel at a judicial sale, under a decree of 
Court having no jurisdiction to order the sale, acquires no title 
thereto, and being a trespasser he cannot recover for improve­
ments thereon, particularly where he did not conduct himself in 
good faith.

Action in rem to recover possession of the S.8. “Bella” 
which had been sold under an order of a Court of the State of 
New Jersey which was subsequently declared to be without 
jurisdiction in the matter, and a warrant of attachment and 
further proceedings taken thereon vacated. Judgment for plain­
tiff.

Can. 
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Alfred C. Dobell, K.C., and II. //. Breland (of New York 
Bar), for plaintiff.

A. C. M. Thomson, for defendant.
Maclennan, L.J.A. :—This is an action in rem to recover pos­

session of the Steamship “Bella.”
The pleadings in the action are very lengthy and their ma­

terial allegations are substantially as follows:—The plaintiff al­
leges that he purchased the SS. “Bella” on December 31, 1913. 
by bill of sale, warranting the ship to be free and clear from 
all liens, at New York from the Campanhia Metallurgica 1 I'­
ll io de Janeiro ; that he, thereupon, took possession and removed 
the vessel to Ulrich’s Basin at Edgewater, New Jersey ; that in 
the course of his usual business he went to England in the latter 
part of May and returned in the latter part of August, 1920. 
when he discovered, to his surprise, that the ship had disap­
peared during his absence, and he, subsequently, discovered that 
one W. J. Thompson had taken possession of her and removed 
her to Quebec and plaintiff claims that he be declared the true 
and lawful owner and be put in possession of the ship.

The defence filed by W. J. Thompson is that he purchased 
the ship from a marshal of the United States of America for 
the district of New Jersey at a judicial sale ordered by the Dis 
trict Court of the United States for the District of New Jersey 
for the sum of $1,560 under a bill of sale from said marshal 
dated August 4, 1920; that in virtue of said purchase made 
legally and in good faith he became the owner of said vessel 
and has since laid out and expended on her in the Port of New 
York approximately $6,579 and at the port of Quebec a further 
sum of $4,167.09, which increased the value of the vessel by at 
least the amounts so expended, and defendant concludes by 
claiming that he should be declared the true and lawful owner 
of the vessel, that his possession be declared legal, that he he 
placed in possession of the vessel and, reserving all other re­
course, he asks for the dismissal of plaintiff’s action with costs 
and for such other and further relief as may be found just in 
the premises.

The plaintiff by his answer to the defence alleges that tU 
sale by the United States marshal to defendant was null ami 
void, because the District Court of the United States for the 
District of New Jersey was without jurisdiction to issue tin- 
writ of venditioni exponas by virtue of which the marshal pur­
ported to sell the vessel, and the said Court quashed and an­
nulled the said writ and the sale and ordered that the bill of 
sale given by the marshal be returned for cancellation and that
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the said Thompson return the vessel, and, subsequently, said 
action was dismissed for want of jurisdiction in the said Court.

The defendant by his reply admits that the United States 
District Court for the District of New Jersey, which ordered 
the sale of the said vessel, acted without jurisdiction; that he 
bought the vessel at a public sale, received a title which he 
was advised by American counsel was good; that he made ex­
tensive repairs believing he was the true and lawful owner ami 
that since the answer to plea was filed he offered without pre­
judice to allow the plaintiff to take the vessel on being refunded 
the purchase price and the money disbursed by him and by 
others on his account, which offer was refused.

The plaintiff by a reply to defendant’s reply alleges among 
other matters that the defendant, having purported to buy the 
said vessel at an alleged sale by a Court which was wholly with­
out jurisdiction to make said sale, acquired no right or title 
of any kind whatsoever to said vessel, the said alleged sale 
being void and of no effect; that any expenses repairs or im­
provements in connection with the said vessel after she left 
New York were made and done hv defendant with notice of 
plaintiff’s claim to said vessel and that defendant in so doing 
was a trespasser upon the plaintiff’s property, and that re­
imbursement to defendant of sums expended by him cannot be 
claimed from plaintiff either as a condition to surrender of the 
vessel or otherwise; that the purchase price paid by defendant, 
for said vessel was not paid to plaintiff and has never been re­
ceived by him, and plaintiff further alleges that it was impos­
sible for him to tender the cost of repairs before beginning this 
action as the amount thereof was unliquidated and cannot be 
ascertained until the same 1ms been proved and determined by 
a Court of competent jurisdiction.

This vessel was built in Hull, England, in 189(5, was 98.4 
feet long 20.5 ft. wide, 11 ft. deep, had a gross tonnage of 
14(1.44 tons, triple expansion engines, a speed of 9i/o knots, 
was classed in Lloyd’s Register 100A 1 steam trawler; she was 
originally known as the Screw Steamship “Jamaica” and, on 
April 120, 1912, became Brazilian property and her name was 
changed into “Bella.” The plaintiff purchased her in New 
York on December 111, 1919, from a Brazilian corporation as 
already stated. In April, 1920, he had her placed in storage 
at Edgewater, New Jersey, and on May 2.1, 1920, left for 
Europe and returned August 26, 1920. During his absence 
and without any notification to him or to the previous owners 
or to any one on his behalf the Morse Dry Dock and Repair
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Co. (‘iiterod an action in admiralty against the SS. “Bella” in 
the United States District Court for the District of New Jersey 
on an alleged claim for wharfage charge against said steamer, 
and on July 6, 1920, obtained an interlocutory order for tin* 
sale of the vessel by the marshal and an order that a writ of 
venditioni exponas issue, and upon said writ the marshal of 
the Court purported to sell the vessel for $1,560 to “W. J. 
Thompson of the City of New York, County of New York and 
State of New York,” and said marshal issued a bill of sale 
to the said Thompson on the 4th August, 1920. On plaintiff 's 
return from Europe, on August 26, 1920, he found that the 
ship had disappeared, and subsequently discovered that she 
had been sold at marshal’s sale, on July 26 previous, to satisfy 
the claim of Morse Dry Dock & Repair Co., of which he had 
never had notice, to one W. J. Thompson of the City of New 
York, according to the records of the marshal. One of plain­
tiff’s attorneys in New York was informed by the marshal that, 
on the sale of the vessel, both W. J. Thompson and one Charles 
II. McKinney were present and that the bill of sale, in accord­
ance with instructions given at the time of the sale, was mailed 
to W. J. Thompson, in the care of McKinney, Room 406, 30 
Church St., New York City, and upon inquiry at said room, 
which was McKinney’s place of business, no W. J. Thompson 
could be found, and McKinney, who was Thompson’s broker 
and paid agent in the matter, refused to give any information 
about his principal. The plaintiff, on September 17, 1920, upon 
application to a Judge of the United States District Court for 
the District of New Jersey obtained an order in the action 
therein pending of the Morse Dry Dock & Repair Co., libellant, 
against the SS. “Bella”, that the said company and the said 
W. J. Thompson and the said McKinney and all other persons 
claiming an interest in the SS. “Bella” shew cause before on.- 
of the Judges of the said Court at a stated term thereof to be 
held in the Court House at Newark, New Jersey, on September 
27, 1920, why an order should not be entered vacating the order 
of the Court made on July 6, 1920, which directed that the 
SS. “Bella” be sold and that a writ of venditioni exponas is­
sue, and that the said persons further shew cause why 
said writ should not be quashed and the sale of 
the vessel set aside and the order of the Court con­
firming said sale vacated and the bill of sale of the 
said vessel cancelled and the purchaser directed to return the 
ship to the marshal, and the said McKinney and W. J. Thornp 
son and each of them were enjoined from removing said vessel
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out of the jurisdiction of said Court pending the determination 
of said application and that all proceedings be stayed. .A copy 
of said order was directed to he served upon the proctors for 
the libellant and upon W. J. Thompson and upon McKinney 
and in the event that the latter could not he found so that 
personal service could he made upon them, leave was given to 
mail copies of said order addressed to the post office address 
given to the marshal at the time of the sale of said vessel. Ser­
vice of this order was duly made upon McKinney and upon 
W. J. Thompson and, on September 211, Joseph P. Nolan, at­
torney-at-law of the City of New York, was consulted by XV. .1. 
Thompson, with reference to said order served as aforesaid and 
instructed to appear for said purchaser, and on the following 
day said Nolan filed an appearance in writing, his appearance 
stating that:—“l hereby appear in this proceeding specially 
on behalf of XXr. .1. Thompson, purchaser of the SS. “Bella” for 
the sole purpose of contesting the jurisdiction of the Court,” 
and on the same day the said Nolan filed notice of exception 
to the order dated September 17, 1920, and the affidavits upon 
which the same was granted, upon the ground:—!, that the 
said affidavits do not contain the necessary jurisdictional al­
legations binding either this appearant or any person or corpor­
ation mentioned in said papers; 2, that it appeared from the 
moving papers that the proceeding is an attempt to vacate a 
decree or order of the Court made on July 6, 1920, and that 
the said proceeding to vacate the same is not made within the 
term. Under the same date, Nolan also filed an appearance 
in the proceeding as proctor on behalf of McKinney. Notice 
of exception was also filed by Nolan on behalf of McKinney. 
Affidavits were filed in the United States District Court by Mc­
Kinney, by the assistant superintendent of the Morse Dry Dock 
& Repairing Co., but none was filed by W. J. Thompson. John­
son, the plaintiff in the present action, was allowed to file a 
petition contesting the claim of the Morse Dry Dock and Re­
pairing Co. and praying that the interlocutory order of July 
6, 1920, and the sale of said vessel be vacated, and that he be 
permitted to file a claim to the vessel and that Thompson be 
directed to return the vessel to the marshal to be held by the 
latter subject to the further order of the said District Court. 
The District Court, having heard counsel for the present plain­
tiff, for the Morse Dry Dock and Repairing Co. and for Mc­
Kinney and XV. J. Thompson rendered judgment cancelling the 
bill of sale to XV. J. Thompson directing him to return the ves­
sel, and a formal order of the Court was entered on October
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38. 1920. cancelling the interlocutory decree of July 6, 1920, 
and setting aside and vacating the sale of the vessel to W. .1. 
Thompson and ordering the bill of sale to he returned to tin- 
marshal for cancellation and ordering W. J. Thompson ami 
any agent or agents of his including the said McKinney to 
deliver the said vessel, her tackle, engines, apparel and furni­
ture to the present plaintiff at Ulrich’a Basin, at Edgewater, 
or at such other place within or without the district of New 
Jersey as may be agreed upon by the present plaintiff and the 
said XV. J. Thompson. This order was not obeyed by Thomp­
son. Subsequently, the cause was heard by the District Court 
on the pleadings ami proofs and, having been argued and sub­
mitted by counsel of the respective parties, a final decree was 
entered in said District Court on May 17, 1921, in which it was 
adjudged that the wharfage alleged to have been furnished to 
the vessel by the Morse Dry Dock & Repairing Co. was not of 
the character and kind which entitled that company to a mari 
time lien therefor against the vessel, and that the Court was 
without jurisdiction to issue the warrant of attachment or to 
make the interlocutory decree of July (i, 1920, or to issue tin- 
writ of venditioni exponas and that the marshal of the sai l 
Court was without jurisdiction to sell the vessel and the Court 
was without jurisdiction to confirm the sale, and it was further 
ordered, adjudged and decreed that the libel in the cause be 
dismissed with costs; the warrant of attachment, the interlocu­
tory decree of July 6th, 1920, the writ of venditioni expo mis 
and the sale of the vessel made by the marshal on 26th July. 
1920, and the order confirming such sale, were each and all 
vacated and set aside upon the ground, in addition to tha1 
upon which the order of October 18, 1920, was based, that said 
Court was without jurisdiction to issue the said writ or to direct 
the sale of the vessel or confirm the sale thereof, and the said 
bill of sale given by the marshal to the present defendant for 
said vessel was cancelled anti said defendant was ordered 1" 
forthwith return the said bill of sale given by the marshal to 
the present defendant for said vessel was cancelled and sai l 
defendant was ordered to forthwith return the said bill of sal-- 
to the marshal for cancellation and to forthwith return and 
deliver to the present plaintiff, the said vessel, her tackle, en­
gines, apparel and furniture and that the disposition of tin- 
monies paid by said XV. J. Thompson to said marshal as tin- 
purchase price of said vessel as well as any claim which Un­
said XV. J. Thompson may wish to assert, in the event thaï 
he complies with said order and delivers possession of the said
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vessel to the present plaintiff as therein directed, that there 
should lie repaid to him any monies which he may have ex­
pended for the repair, improvement, upkeep and care of the 
said vessel since the alleged sale thereof to him by said marshal 
he and the same were reserved for the further order of the 
Court. This final decree of the District Court has been ignor­
ed by the present defendant and no attempt has been made 
by him to conform thereto.

It was established by the evidence at the trial that by the 
law of the Cnited States, defendant, when he appeared at what 
purported to he a judicial sale conducted by the marshal of 
the District Court of the Cnited States for the District of 
New Jersey and became a bidder, and also by the appearance 
filed on his behalf by his attorney, Nolan, became a party to 
the action and was affected with notice of all subsequent pro­
ceedings relating to the purchase and title of the SS. “Bella”. 
The Circuit Court of Appeals in the case of the State of Ten­
nessee v. (fuiniard (181)7), 80 Fed. 829, at p. 835 states:—“It is 
also settled that the purchaser, by his bid, becomes a quasi 
party to the suit and is affected with notice of every step sub­
sequently taken in the case relating to the purchase and the 
title acquired thereby.” The opinion of the Court cites in sup­
port of that proposition the following cases decided by the 
Supreme Court of the Cnited States—Davis v. Mercantile 
Trust Vo. (1894), 152 C.H. 590, at p. 594; /V ne eland v. Amer­
ican Loan (V Trust Vo. (1890), 136 C.N. 89; Stuart v. dun 
(1888), 127 U.S. 518; and lilossom v. Milwaukee, etc., It. Vo. 
(1863), 1 Wall. 655. Although the appearance filed by the 
Attorney Nolan for defendant may have been intended as a 
special appearance for the purpose of alleging that the Court 
had no jurisdiction over the person of defendant, on the auth­
ority of Thames d" Mersey Marine Ins. Vo. v. United Stales 
(1915), 237 U.S. 19, and other cases, the appearance was a 
general appearance in the action, because exceptions and a fac­
tum or brief were filed by Nolan on behalf of his client raising 
questions on the merits of the application made by the present 
plaintiff to set aside the sale of the vessel. The merits of the 
present plaintiff's proceedings in the District Court to recover 
possession of the ship were put in issue by the purchaser. 1. 
therefore, come to the conclusion, on the evidence, and on the 
authorities referred to, that defendant by his bid, and by the 
action of his attorney became a party to the action, and was 
affected with notice of all the proceedings subsequently had. 
including all interlocutory orders and the. final decree in the
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District Court, and that he was bound thereby having been ,i 
party to the action in the District Court.

What is the effect of the sale of a ship by order of a Court 
which has no jurisdiction in the matter?

This question came up in the case of the Steamer “Cana­
dian ” in Kerr v. Gildcrslceve (1858), 8 L.C.R. 266, in which 
title was claimed under a sale upon a warrant of distress issued 
by Justices of the Peace, and it was decided by Badgley, J.. 
that the Justices of the Peace had no jurisdiction, power or 
authority to order an amount of wages to bo levied by distress 
upon the vessel and that such order was absolutely null and 
void, as was also the adjudication of said vessel and that n<> 
legal right or title in or to said vessel passed by reason of said 
adjudication. In Attorney General v. Lord Hot ham (1827), I 
Russ. 415, 38 E.R. 631, it was decided that, where a tribunal 
determines in a matter not within its jurisdiction, the decish-1 

is a nullity; and 9 Hals. p. 14, para. 11 says“Where a lim­
ited Court takes upon itself to exercise a jurisdiction it does noi 
possess, its decision amounts to nothing.” In Abbott on Mer­
chant Shipping, 14th ed., p. 32, it is stated:—”A sale takim 
place under the orders of a Court, or of officials having no au­
thority to order the same, cannot, by reason of such orders, he 
upheld as against the original owners.” Many decisions of tIn- 
Court of Admiralty in England can be cited to the same effect 
and among others the following:—The Flad Oycn (1799), 1 Cli. 
Rob. 135, where an English prize ship was taken to Bergen, 
condemned there by the French consul and sold, but was n 
deemed by Sir William Scott, afterwards Lord Stowell, to have 
been legally condemned, and the ship was restored to the form 
er owner; The Thomas (1799), 1 Ch. Rob. 322 where a British 
ship was sold under the decree of a pretended Admiralty Court 
without proper authority and the proceedings were held to he 
null and void and the ship was restored to the former owners; 
The Perseverance (1799), 2 Ch. Rob. 239, where a prize ship 
purchased by a neutral under illegal condemnation was restor­
ed to the original owner; The Nostra Dc Conccieas (1804). 5 
Ch. Rob. 294, which was a case where a British vessel was 
captured by a Dutch privateer and carried to the coast of Af­
rica and there sold without being brought to legal condemn.) 
tion; the ship was ordered to be restored to the former owner; 
a similar decision was rendered in The Fanny and Elmira 
(1809), Edw. 117. These cases were all decided by Sir Wil­
liam Scott. In The “Segredo” or The Eliza Cornish (1853 . 
1 Sp. Ecc. & Adm. 36, 164 E.R. 22, and The ltonita (1861
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Lush. 252, Dr. Lushington, where there was an invalid sale of 
ships, ordered possession to be restored to the former owner:

The principles laid down by Lord Stowell and Dr. Lushing- 
ton in the High Court of Admiralty have been followed in 
many later cases in England, and in the Supreme Court of 
the United States. In the case of the Schooner “Sarah” in 
Rose v. Mme!y (1808), 4 Cranch 241, Marshall, Ch. J., said at 
p. 268:—“A sentence professing on its face to be the sentence 
of a judicial tribunal, if rendered by a self-constituted body, 
or by a body not empowered by its government to take cogniz­
ance of the subject it had decided, could have no legal effect 
whatever.” And at p. 281:—“The sentence of condemnation 
being considered as null and invalid, the property is unchang­
ed.” In Elliott v. Picrsol (1828), 1 Peters 329, the Su­
preme Court of the United States in its judgment per Trimble, 
J., said at p. 340:—“Where a Court has jurisdiction it has a 
right to decide every question which occurs in the cause . . . 
Hut, if it act without authority, its judgments and orders are 
regarded as nullities. They are not voidable, but simply void ; 
and form no bar to a recovery sought, even prior to a reversal 
in opposition to them. They constitute no justification; and all 
persons concerned in executing such judgments or sentences are 
considered, in law, as trespassers.” These two cases are cited 
and approved by the Supreme Court in Lessee of Hickey v. 
Stewart (1845), 3 IIow. 750, and at p. 763 McKinley, J„ said: 
—“We arc of the opinion that the Court had no jurisdiction of 
the subject-matter and that the whole proceeding is a nullity.” 
The cases were afterwards cited and approved in Williamson 
v. Berry (1850), 8 How. 495 at p. 541, and Guaranty Trust d; 
Safe Deposit Co. v. Green Cove It. Co. (1891), 139 U.S. 137, 
at p. 147.

From this brief review’ of decided cases in Canadian, Eng­
lish and American Courts in Admiralty and other matters, it 
can be taken as settled definitely that, in order to constitute 
a valid judicial sale by virtue of which the purchaser can ac­
quire title to the property sold, it is absolutely necessary that 
the Court ordering the sale should have the power and juris­
diction to take cognizance of the matters brought before it 
in the proceeding in which the sale was ordered, and that where 
there is an absence of jurisdiction in the Court ordering the 
sale, the whole proceedings are null and of no effect and pur­
chasers of property so sold become trespassers on the property 
which they purport to acquire. Applying these principles to 
the present case, the defendant did not acquire any title to the 
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S8. “Bella” under the sale from the marshal in the United 
States District Court, the plaintiff never lost his property or 
title thereto and is entitled to have the ship restored to Iik 
possession.

What claim has the defendant, under the circumstance dis 
closed in this case, for reimbursement of the purchase price and 
the sums alleged to have been expended for repairs and altera 
tions on the ship? This question, so far as the repairs and al 
terations are concerned, must be considered from the point of 
view of the character of the possession which defendant ac­
quired, his good faith at the time of the bid, his subsequent con 
duct, the nature and purpose of the expenditure and the en­
hanced or increased value, if any, given the ship by the sums 
alleged to have been expended. As has been pointed out nl- 
ready, the sale was made on the order of a Court without juris 
diction. It was an absolute nullity, constituted no justification 
for possession, no property rights passed in consequence of it 
and defendant is in possession without right and as a trespas­
ser. The ship at the time of the sale was insured for £19,000 
sterling. The plaintiff had refused a cash offer of $10,000 for 
her and defendant bought for $1,560, which the District Court 
Judge found to be an inadequate consideration and he cited 
the case of The Sparkle (1874), 7 Ben. 528 quoted with ap­
proval in The Columbia; Thompson v. McIntosh (1900), 100 
Fed. 890 at p. 893. The District Court Judge found the ship 
worth at least $12,000 when defendant paid $1,560 for her. I >«• 
fendant, apparently, concealed from the marshal his identity 
and had himself described in the marshal’s bill of sale as W. 
J. Thompson, of the City of New York, County of New York 
and State of New York. He has not explained, when examined 
at the trial, why this was done, lie gave the marshal his ad­
dress in care of McKinney, his paid broker and agent, and 
McKinney, when defendant was inquired for by plaintiff's re­
presentatives, refused to give any information about the de­
fendant.

Sir William Scott, in the case of The Perseverance, 2 Ch. 
Rob. 239, said:—“It is a general rule, undoubtedly, that who 
ever purchases under an illegal title, does it at his own peril : 
and must take the consequence (both in his purchase and in 
his own subsequent expenditure upon it) of his inattention to 
his own security.” In that case, which was of a prize ship il 
legally sold, the Court allowed half of the money which had 
been expended on repairs in consideration of the benefit which 
the original owners were likely to receive from the améliora-
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tions. Tn a later case, in 1804, the case of Nostra De Concédas, 
supra, the same distinguished Judge said:—“If there shall ap­
pear to have been any actual amelioration, therefor, I shall 
direct the Portugese purchaser to be reimbursed. At the same 
time, neutral merchants must observe, that this is an allow­
ance which the Court will not think itself bound to continue, 
after the invalidity of these titles has been so generally mad'* 
known by the decrees of this Court, and of the Superior Court. 
If persons will accept ships in this manner, after such a no­
tice, it must be at their own peril that they proceed to lay out 
money upon a title so notoriously invalid.” In a later shipping 
case, Youni/ v. Hrander (1806), 8 East. 10 at p. 12, 103 E.R. 
248 at p. 249, Lord Ellenborough, C.J., said:—

“It is true that the owners of a ship are liable for repairs 
ordered for them or for their benefit by their master; but it 
was never heard of that, if a stranger ordered repairs for an­
other’s ship or carriage, the owner was liable for such repairs. 
Suppose a pirate ran away with a ship would the owner be 
liable for repairs ordered by him”?

The principle to be drawn from these cases is, that a pur­
chaser at a judicial sale is chargeable with notice as to whether 
or not the Court ordering the sale has jurisdiction in the mat­
ter, and when it acts without jurisdiction, any subsequent ex­
penditure by the purchaser is at his own peril, he must take the 
consequences and is not entitled to compensation therefor ; 16 
Am. & Eng. Eney. of Law, 2nd ed. p. 94.

When defendant, on September 23, 1920, received the order 
of the District Court which called upon him, among others, to 
shew cause why the sale should not be set aside ami cancelled 
and the ship returned to the marshal, (the ship was still in 
New York) he consulted his attorney, Nolan, and has testi­
fied that Nolan advised him that the title was good and that 
if he was ready to leave, to do so. It is quite apparent that, 
if his attorney, Nolan, had looked into the matter sufficiently, 
he could have seen that there was a serious question involved 
which might result, as it did, in the judgment declaring that 
the sale was a nullity and that defendant had no right to pos 
session. Whether Nolan was merely mistaken in his law or 
not, he and defendant decided upon the immediate dispatch 
of the ship to Quebec. Defendant left New York at once for 
Quebec with the ship by way of the Hudson River, Oswego 
Canal, Lake Ontario and the River Nt. Lawrence without obtain­
ing any clearance, although defendant knew that by the usual 
practice ships should clear liefure sailing. Defendant, who was
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the manager of the Quebec and Levis Ferry Co. was experienced 
in shipping matters, having been over .‘10 years in that business, 
lie knew that his title was called in question and that he w,i> 
being asked to return the ship to the marshal, and it is evident 
that he intended to get the vessel away from New York for 
reasons easy to surmise. The inadequacy of the price paid by 
the defendant, his false description of himself to the marshal, 
the conduct of his agent, his flight from New York with Un­
ship without the usual clearance, when he knew his title has 
been attacked, are inconsistent with good faith on his part. 
About the middle of August, he brought 11 workmen from 
Quebec to overhaul the ship. Radical changes were made in 
her; her two masts were removed and her funnel was shortened 
and she was converted from an ocean going trawler into a 
passenger ferry boat intended for service between the City of 
Quebec and the Island of Orleans to be operated by the Que­
bec and Levis Ferry Co. for the purpose of earning a Gov­
ernment subsidy in favour of the company. A considerable 
sum of money was expended both in New York and at Quebec 
in making these alterations and in the sums are included rail­
way fares from Quebec to New York, general supplies for the 
maintenance of the workmen, materials used in the alterations 
and general supplies of the ship. The defendant has testified 
that, outside the special service for which his company intended 
to use this ship, she is not of any use, and, in answer to a ques­
tion in cross-examination as to the value of the ship at tin- 
time this action was commenced, defendant answered: “I would 
not give you $1,000 for her now after spending all that money 
on her, she is no good for anything.” The expenditures were 
made to run a service to the Island, and, in defendant’s opinion, 
the ship would not bring more than $1,000 in the open market 
at the time the present action was commenced. The purchase 
price and the money expended were all supplied by the Quebec 
and Levis Ferry Co. John Simpson Thom, president of Quebec 
and Levis Ferry Co, examined as a witness on behalf of de­
fendant, testified that, apart from the special purpose which 
his company had in earning the Government subsidy, the ship 
had not much value, and that he did not know what she was 
worth when the present action was commenced, and added:— 
“It all depends on what a man wants her for, she might be dear 
at any price,” and “I know she could not be sold for much 
today.”

When defendant took possession of the ship she was an ocean 
going trawler, now she is a river ferry boat, and according to
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evidence, not increased in value by reason of the expenditures 
made by defendant.

Having regard to the nullity of the sale, the evidence of 
defendant’s bad faith in the whole transaction and the failure 
to show any enhanced value as the result of his expenditures, 
in my opinion, the defendant is not entitled to any compen­
sation for the expenditure made by and for him, on the ship.

So far as the purchase price is concerned, the plaintiff never 
had it and the amount paid by defendant to the marshall, less 
the latter’s fees, is still in the hands of the District Court and 
defendant should apply there for a refund. The plaintiff has 
no responsibility in that connection.

There will, therefore, be judgment for plaintiff, as the true 
and lawful owner of the SS. “Bella,” and defendant will be 
ordered to deliver possession of the ship to plaintiff free and 
clear of any claims for repairs and to pay the costs of this 
action.

Judgment for plaintiff.

IV- CHH18TIE-GRANT, Ltd.
Manitoba King's Bench in Bankruptcy, Macdonald, ,1. July IX, 10H. 
Bankruptcy (§111—26)—Express company's money order contract- 

trust funds—Identification—Bankruptcy Act, 1919 (Can.) 
t il. 36.

A mercantile house doing a large mail order business had its 
accountant, appointed by an express company as agent for the sale 
of its signed money orders, the agent undertaking to account for 
each money order and to hold the proceeds in trust and separate 
from the other funds in his hands, the company guaranteeing the 
due performance of the contract. The company having made an 
authorised assignment under the Bankruptcy Act, 1919 (Can.) ch. 
36, the Court held that money remitted to the company for the 
purchase of goods, which it was unable to supply, and which was 
remitted by express order, became the property of the express 
company, and was held in trust for it. The express company was 
entitled to the amount of its claim in preference and priority to 
all other claims against the debtor. The fact that the insolvent 
company had mixed the trust moneys with its other funds, did 
not affect the right of the express company, which had the right 
to follow the trust property.

[Standard Imports Ltd.; Ex parte Canadian Express Co. (1922), 
68 D.L.R. 396, followed. See Annotations, 53 D.L.R. 135, 56 D.L.R. 
104, 69 D.L.R. 1.1

Appeal by the Canadian Express Company from a judgment 
of the authorised trustee disallowing its claim to be paid in 
priority to other creditors. Reversed.

II. J. Symington, K.C., for the creditor.
A. E. Iloskin, K.C., for the authorised trustee

K.B.
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Macdonald, J.:—This is an appeal by the above named 
creditor from a decision of the authorised trustee herein disal­
lowing the claim of the said creditor to payment of its claim 
in full and in priority over the other créditons of the said 
debtor, and for an order directing the said authorised truslcc 
to pay to the said Canadian Express Co. in full and in prior­
ity over the other creditors of the said debtor.

Christ ie-Grant, Ltd., was a mercantile house, its prin­
cipal business being the selling and delivering of goods by mail, 
and the character of its business necessitated a considerable in­
terchange of moneys between it and its customers. An ar­
rangement was entered into between it and the Canadian Ex­
press Co., under money order trust agreement and guarantee 
dated February 17, 1921, filed on this appeal as ex. 1, whereby 
Walter Phillips, accountant of the Christic-tirant, Ltd., was 
appointed by the Canadian Express Co. as agent for the sale of 
its signed money orders, the said agent undertaking to account 
for each money order and the proceeds thereof ami to hold in 
trust such proceeds and every part thereof entirely separate 
from the other funds in his hands and the Christic-Orant, Ltd- 
approved of the appointment of the said agent for the issue 
of money orders while in their employ and guaranteed tIn­
due performance by the said agent of the terms of the said 
contract.

It was in reality an arrangement with the Christie-Grant, 
Ltd., constituting a money order agency for their use, and 
Phillips as an employee named as agent, as a matter of con­
venience to the debtor, the Christ ie-Grant, Ltd.

The Dominion Express Co. supplied the Christ ie-Grant, Ltd. 
with express money orders (ex. 7) as required and the latter 
company signed a receipt in acknowledgement and by this 
receipt (ex. 6) accepted the responsibility of due issue and 
undertook to account therefor, and further agreed to keep 
the proceeds of sale of the same entirely separate and distinct 
from other funds in their hands.

The practice of the parties was to settle up once a week, 
which was done by the Christ ie-Grant, Ltd., giving its cheque 
for the amount of money orders issued for the week.

In January, 1921, the Christ ie-Grant, Ltd., made an autli 
orised assignment under the Bankruptcy Act, 1919, (Can.) 
eh 96, and up to that date from the previous week’s sell la­
ment they had issued money orders of the said express com­
pany to the value of $1,848.69, $929.00 of which amount Ins 
been paid since the assignment leaving a balance of $1,525.10
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still due the said express company; and moneys largely in 
excess of that amount were in the hands of the said Christie- 
Grant. Ltd., as well as money in excess of such claims de­
posited in the bank to the credit of the said Christie-Grant, 
Ltd., at the date of the assignent and the express company 
claim these moneys to the extent of their claim as their moneys 
held in trust for them by the said Christie-Grant, Ltd.

It is contended on behalf of the authorised assignee 
that there were no trust funds of the express company in the 
hands of the Christ ie-Grant, Ltd., as the date of the assignment 
with the possible exception of a sum not exceeding $119.

The evidence establishes the fact that the cash in hand, 
with the exception mentioned, was received from the sale of 
goods over the counter and through the mails, but the evidence 
also establishes the fact that moneys were received, since the 
preceding week's settlement, from their customers and re­
funded through express orders to the amount of $1,848.69.

The contention that moneys so received were not for the 
purpose of the purchase of express orders and therefore could 
not bo considered as trust funds, to my mind is not tenable. 
It is true the moneys were not remitted for that purpose. It 
was money remitted to Christ ie-Grant, Ltd., for the purchase 
of goods and they being unable to supply the goods, instead 
of remitting the cash an express order was substituted and the 
cash then became the property of the express company and 
held by the Christie-Grant, Ltd., in trust for the Canadian 
Express Co.

This money became mixed with the moneys of the Christie- 
Grant, Ltd., by deposit in their general banking account in 
hreuch of the agreement to keep it separate and apart but 
the fact that it was so mixed and lost its earmarks does not 
deprive it of its character as trust money.

A cestui que trust is entitled to follow trust property into 
whatever it may have been converted by the trustee: See Gode- 
froi on Trusts and Trustees 4th ed. at p. 564 el seq; In re Hal- 
tett's Estate: Ktuttchbull v. Ilallett (1880), 13 Ch. I). 096, 49 
L.J. (Ch.) 415, 28 W.U. 732. If a trustee mixes trust property 
with his own the whole will be treated as trust property ex­
cept insofar as he may be able to distinguish what is his own: 
Ludion v. White (1808), 15 Vcs. 432, 33 H.lt. 817. In re 
Ilallett's Estate ; Knatchbull v. Ilallett, supra.

The point involved is identical with that in He Standard 
Imports; Ex p. (Via. Express Co. (1922), 68 D.L.lt. 396, and 
the reasoning and conclusion in that case 1 adopt. The Can-

Man.
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adian Express Co. is therefor entitled to the sum of $1,525.19 
in preference and priority to all other claims against the 
debtor and I order that they he paid that amount by the said 
authorised trustee. I further direct that owing to the fact 
that this is a new point for the#first time raised in this pro­
vince that costs of both sides be paid out of the estate.

Appeal allowed

GALIBERT GLOVE WORKS v. SHARPE.
Supreme Court of Canada, Davie*, CJ., Idington, Duff, Anglin, 

Brodeur and Mignault, JJ. May SI, CJ2S.
Landlord and tenant (§IID—30)—Lease or property—Sale—Notice 

TO VACATE BY NEW OWNER—COMPLIANCE BY TENANT—DAMAi.i.s.

A tenant served with notice to vacate the premises by a new 
owner, before the termination of the lease, who gives up poss. 
sion on the strength of this notice, without waiting for judiel.il 
proceedings to be taken cannot claim damages from his lessor.

Appeal by plaintiff from a judgment of the Quebec Court of 
Court King’s Bench affirming the decision of the Superior 
Court (1921), 27 Rev. Leg. 320. in an action for damages for 
illegal eviction from premises held by him under leas.*. 
Affirmed.

The judgment appealed from is as follows: —
Lamothe C. J.:—Can a tenant, when threatened with evic­

tion by a ticrs-acquireur, take it upon himself to give up pos- 
session of the immovable leased on the strength of this men* 
threat and then claim damages from his lessor !

The answer to this general question must be negative. 
Pothier’s teaching on the point has been accepted by the codi­
fiera and sanctioned by the jurisprudence both of France and 
of the Province of Quebec. There must be more than a mere 
fear of eviction ; there must be some trouble de fait or a legal 
action. “Lease of a thing belonging to another is not illegal 
says Rosse, J. in He Baillargeon v. Kobillard (1907), 17 Qm*. 
K.U. 334, and that pronouncement cannot be contested under 
our law. The lessee cannot question his lessor’s title so long 
as the latter maintains him in possession. The lessor may 
have a defence against the true owner when the latter appear*, 
upon the scene ; and, in such a case, the question will be di> 
cussed as between the lessor and the newcomer. Even if the 
complaint of disturbance is caused by a person who purchas'd 
the property subsequently to the lease, there is nothing moi 
than a mere fear of trouble. The law does not authorise a 
lessee to abandon possession because of such fear. A pur­
chaser may withhold payment of the purchase price when he
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“has just cause to fear that he will be disturbed by any action, 
hypothecary action or in revendication,” says art. 1535 C.C. 
(Que.) A similar right is not given to the lessee. Even 
when there is fear of eviction, he must continue to pay the 
rent until that fear is materialized by overt acts or by a law­
suit.

Applying these principles, I would confirm the judgment 
rendered. The lessee, threatened with expulsion on May 1 fol­
lowing, may have had a right of action to force his lessor to 
remove that menace ; he might have had recourse to the so- 
called action provooatoire and might have impleaded the new 
owner as mit-rn-eause; but he had no right to decide a future 
possible litigation himself : he could not decide on his own auth­
ority that his lessor was unable to maintain him in possession. 
In fact, the new owner had bound himself to respect the lease 
of the company appellant, and it was owing to a clerical error 
that this clause had been omitted in the deed of sale. That 
error could have been corrected. The lessor’s pretension was 
not unfounded, for it was supported by a writing, namely, the 
promise of sale. During the month of December the lessor 
had taken action to have the deed of sale corrected, lie op­
posed this action against his lessee when the latter manifested 
his intention to leave. The former owner thereby showed that 
he had legal means of protecting his lessee’s possession. To 
leave the premises becomes, in these circumstances, a volun­
tary act—one which gives the lessee no recourse in damages.

1 shall not attempt to define trouble de droit itself, beyond 
the terms of art. 1618 C.C. (Que.) As I find that the lessee 
could not reasonably suppose that his lessor was unable to 
maintain him in possession. I must accept the dispositif of 
the judgment already rendered. Were it not for art. 2128 
C.C. (Que.) which is new law, the lessee would not have 
had ground even to apprehend disturbance. Article 1663 C.C. 
(Que.) would have afforded him ample protection. After 
stating the general rule of art. 1663 C.C. (Que.), the legis­
lator felt obliged, in the title concerning registration, to create 
an exception as regards the lease of an immovable for a period 
exceeding 1 year. The French Code contains no article such 
as our art. 2128; but the principles stated above are not 
changed by this new article. It is always a fear of dis­
turbance. The lessee must wait until he is disturbed or faced 
with an action in expulsion before exercising his rights against 
his lessor. The lessor must be called upon to protect him and
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if he fails to do so, he must pay damages. That is the or­
dinary consequence of violation of an obligation.

Martin, J.:—('an a lessee act upon a simple notice that 
proceedings in eviction will be taken against him before the 
expiration of his lease and can he, upon such notice, vacate 
the leased premises and claim damages from his lessor be 
fore any legal proceedings are taken against him to deprive 
him of the enjoyment of the leased premises?

In the present case the new owner holding title from th- 
lessor avers that he is not bound to respect appellant’s lea st­
and threatens to eject the latter before the expiration of his 
lease. This pretension of the new' owners is not founded in 
fact though the deed of sale does not bind him to respect tin- 
lease, the omission of this clause being a clerical error, as is 
subsequently established. When challenged and sued to 
correct the deed he contests and ends by admitting respon­
dent’s pretension that by the true bargain between them In- 
was bound to respect the lease. Had appellant remained in 
the premises and the new owner had sought to eject him, tin- 
action would have failed.

Was appellant justified under the circumstances in moving 
out ami suing respondent in damages ? 1 do not think so.
Appellant always had his recourse in warranty against re 
spondent to compel the latter to defend an action in eviction 
and had recourse in damages, if any, against respondent, aris­
ing from such eviction. It is suggested that because respon­
dent had sold his property and did not offer to give 
security, that appellant was not bound to wait for pro 
ceedings in eviction to be taken. Even if respondent had 
sold the property, he had in hand the price realized for same 
$65,(MM) in cash, over and above the mortgage, and unless tin- 
contrary is alleged and made to appear, everyone is presumed 
to be solvent and able to satisfy all just demands made upon 
him. Many people worry about what never happens. By tin- 
light of subsequent events, the Tuckett Tobacco Co. may not 
and probably never would have risked an action in ejectment 
against appellant. The latter was told by respondent, his 
lessor, to remain in possession and that respondent would pro­
tect him. Instead of doing so, he harkened to the voice of 
the Tuckett company and moved out, at some inconvenience 
and loss. 1 think in doing so he acted improvidently and with­
out right. He might have taken action to have it 
determined whether or not his lease would expire on May 1, 
1920. He would have had an interest to maintain such an

5846
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action, but he did not do so, and I am unable to conclude that 
he can recover from respondent damages by voluntarily va­
cating the leased premises before the expiration of his lease 
merely because of the assertion of a right by the new pur­
chaser Tuckett, to eject him which right did not in fact 
exist and was never attempted to be exercised. There was no 
action in ejectment and no voies de faits and 1 think there 
must be either judicial proceedings in eviction or some phy­
sical act of eviction in whole or in part before a lessee is en­
titled to vacate and claim damages.

When appellant’s right to remain in the leased premises 
until May 1, 1921, was challenged by the new purchaser 
Tuckett, appellant replied that he intended to stay in posses­
sion until the expiration of his lease, and he notified the lessor 
respondent of this decision ami the latter did all that he could 
reasonably bo expected to do and took action against the pur­
chasers to have the deed of sale rectified.

Later on, in March, 1920, appellant changes his position, 
although nothing new had occurred and no more threats of 
eviction had been made. He knew that his lessor was bound 
to give him peaceable enjoyment of the leased premises during 
the continuance of the lease and was hound to maintain him in 
possession, and his lessor in March had told him so, and that 
he was prepared to stand behind him and keep him in possession, 
and if the appellant had any doubt as to the solvency 
of respondent, he might have asked for some security to back 
respondent's obligation. Apparently he was not and could 
not he fearful of respondent's solvency as the latter had 
$(>.■>,000 cash in hand from the sale of the property.

Appellant was under no greater menace in March, 1920. 
than he was in July, 1919. On the latter date he resolved 
to stay and later in March he resolved to go. Why, wc do not 
know.

The appellant frankly states in his factum:— “toute la 
(piestion se résume, il nous semble, à savior si réellement les 
prétentions de l'acquéreur étaient bien fondées.”

Now it is established out of the mouth of the purchaser that 
his presention was not well founded and he had no right to 
evict appellant, having agreed to respect the latter’s lease: 
Kaudrv-Lacantinerie, vol. 20, (’ontrat de louage, 1. 537, says:

44We will see later that if the object of the lease is sold 
and the purchaser evicts the lessee, the latter has a recourse in 
damages against the lessor.” and he refers to art. 1320 and 
following of the same volume. Of course, if appellant had
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been evicted he would have an action in damages against re­
spondent, but can that recourse in damages be exercised as a 
result of a mere notification by the purchaser to the tenant 
to vacate before his lease expires? I am of opinion that it 
cannot.

As I have said, the respondent is obliged by the nature of 
his contract to give peaceable enjoyment on the thing to his 
tenant during the continuance of the lease (arts. 1612-3 C.V. 
(Que.)) and art. 1618 adds that if there is a disturbance in that 
enjoyment, the lessor is obliged to suffer a reduction in the 
rent proportionately to the diminution of the enjoyment and 
to pay damages according to the circumstances. Now, if 
the effect of a disturbance in peaceable enjoyment is to suffer 
reduction of rent and pay damages according to circumstance, 
it is manifest that there can be no reduction of rent until the 
enjoyment is interfered with, and 1 fail to see how there can he 
any damages until the enjoyment is interfered with and whether 
the respondent’s obligation is considered by the light of 1612 
or 1618, it has been fulfilled. The omission of the clause 
binding the purchasers to respect appellant’s lease was a mis 
take, a mere clerical error, afterwards so admitted by all the 
parties, and by the light of subsequent events, respondents 
could have maintained appellant in possession of the leased 
premises, and 1 fail to see any merit in appellant’s claim fur 
damages against respondent.

Under the French (’ode there is no article corresponding to 
our art. 2128 (J.C. (Que.) by which the lease of an immovable 
for a period exceeding 1 year cannot be invoked against a 
subsequent purchaser unless it has been registered.

Under art. 1743 C.N., a purchaser from the lessor cannot 
expel the lessee if the lease is in authentic form unless such 
right is reserved. This corresponds practically with out an. 
1663 so that French authors and jurisprudence are not of mu It 
assistance: Fuzier-llernmn, Repertoire, verbo bail (en général) 
nos 581 et *eq. treats of “du trouble cause par le bailleur lui- 
même’’ and “trouble cause par des tiers.’’ ami at 594 says: 
“On the other hand, a lessee is not disturbed in his enjoyment 
unless such disturbance is manifested by overt acts. So lung 
as the disturbance is a mere intention, the lessee has no ground 
for complaint by way of action ...” Trib. Seine, sous Paris, 
28 févr. 1843, Ciasse d’épargne de Paris, (P. 43. 1. 533).

Reference may also be made to the doctrine of Pothier cited 
in Delorimier’s Bibliothèque, vol. 13. p. 98. that simple fear 
of trouble is not sufficient.
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We were referred to Baudry-Lacantinerie, (3rd. ed. vol. 
19, no. 350, p. 346), as criticising the doctrine of Pothier, <n 
the question of warranty in sales. See same author, p. 349 
and Pandectes Française, verbo bail en général, no. 857

I would conclude that where a lessee is not actually disturb­
ed in his enjoyment of the thing leased by either physical evic­
tion of judicial proceedings, that he is not entitled to vacate 
the leased premises and sue his lessor in damages merely be­
cause a person holding title from the lessor asserts that he is 
not bound to respect the lease, and this more particularly in 
the circumstances of the present case when the lessor asserts and 
notifies his tenant that the absence of such a stipulation in 
the deed of sale to respect the latter’s lease in a clerical error, 
as it was, and that he undertakes to protect his tenant against 
eviction and maintain him in possession. Holding this view, 
I do not express at length my views on the appellant’s account 
or why the increased rental was more than 100% and the in­
creased insurance premiums nearly 400% and the loss of can­
cellation of orders being put at $3,000 when it was a matter of 
common knowledge that all buyers in all lines were, at this 
period, cancelling orders, some on an alleged excuse and others 
without any excuse.

The appellant’s claim has many ear marks of exaggeration, 
but as I have reached the conclusion that appellant is not en­
titled to recover anything, 1 do not find it necessary to express 
a view in the alternative as to how much he should recover.

The appeal should be dismissed, with costs.
Guerin, J.:—There arc strong reasons to urge why this judg­

ment should be confirmed. The plaintiff acted with great pre­
cipitation in leaving the premises, after receiving the assurance 
of Sharpe its lessor, that the latter would protect the plaintiff 
in maintaining its right under the least1. Ilad the Galibert 
Glove Works simply taken an action to oblige Sharpe to effect 
an alteration in his deed of sale to Vreelman, whereby Uali­
bert *s right as a lessee should be respected, and had Ualibert 
asked that Sharpe should give security that the lessee's right 
should be respected and that he should not be threatened by 
any possible disturbance in such right, there would be a good 
deal to say in favour of such proceedings.

But, as a matter of fact, time would have settled the whole 
difficulty, and on October 19, 1920, there could have been no 
possible danger of any intrusion of the rights of the Ualibert 
Glove Works in the possession of its leased premises. The plain­
tiff certainly was never disturbed by any physical intrusion of
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the promises leased, and was never ejected from the premise 
that it chose voluntarily to vacate before the expiration of the 
lease. The Galibert Glove Works may have thought that it was 
more prudent on their part to look for new premises, so that 
their business might not be disturbed in cast» the new propriv 
tors should decide to carry out their threats to eject the plain­
tiff ; on the other hand it must be borne in mind that the de­
fendant Sharpe was obliged to protect the plaintiff in its po> 
session and in its peaceable enjoyment of the premises leased. 
It cannot be forgotten either that when Sharpe sold the prom 
ises to (’reelman, he obtained $6ô,(MX); and as a man’s assets 
form the security of his creditors, the Galibert Glove Works 
knew that their landlord was a person who could be made 
responsible for any damages which he might cause to his lessee, 
should Sharpe fail to fulfil his obligations as such lessor.

Such being the appreciation which I make of this case, I am 
of opinion that the appeal cannot be maintained and that til- 
judgment should be confirmed with costs.

Allard and Rivard, JJ. dissented.
Rinfret, K.C., for appellant.
Geoffrion, K.C., for respondent.
Davies, (\J. : —For the reasons stated by my brother Mig- 

nault with which I fully concur, I would dismiss this appeal 
with costs.

Idinoton, think this appeal should be dismissed with
costs.

Dite, #T. :— I concur in dismissing the appeal with costs for 
the reasons given by the Chief Justice of Quebec, as well as 
those by Martin and Guerin, JJ.

Anglin, J. :—I would dismiss this appeal for the reasons 
>iated by the Chief Justice of Quebec and Martin and Guerin, 
JJ. in the Court of King’s Bench, to which 1 would merely add 
a reference to Great North-Western Telegraph Co. V. Montreal 
Telegraph Co. (1891), 20 Can. 8.C.R. 170, cited by Mr. 
Geoff r ion.

Brodevr, J.:—This is an action in damages brought by the 
lessee against the lessor in the following circumstances -Sharp- 
had leased a property at Montreal for years from May 1, 191s. 
to the Galibert company. This lease was not registered. On 
June 24, 1919, Sharpe made a promise of sale to Creel man •»! 
the leased property and it was stipulated in this promise of 
sale that the prospective purchaser should be l>ound to respect 
the existing lease. On July 24, 1919, a notarial deed of sale 
was passed, but either by an error or otherwise, the purchaser >
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obligation to respect leases was not included in this document. 
On the same day Oeelman registered his deed of sale and gave 
notice in writing to the (ialihert company to quit the premises 
on May 1. 1920. A few days later ('reelman, who evidently ac­
quired this property for the Tuekett company, signed a sale 
in favour of the latter of the leased property ; and on duly 30, 
1919, the Tuekett company notified the (Ialihert company that 
they would have to leave on May 1, 1920. This notice to quit 
was evidently communicated to Sharpe by the lessee, for a short 
time afterwards, namely, November ft, 1919, Sharpe sued Creel- 
man and the Tuekett company asking that they be condemned 
to acknowledge that the (Ialihert company was entitled to re­
tain possession of the leased premises until May 1, 1921, and 
invoked in support of his claim the special agreement which 
had been inserted in the deed of promise of sale.

This action was contested by Creel man and the Tuekett com­
pany who urged that their contract of sale contained no obliga­
tion to respect the lease of the (Ialihert company, and that 
they were, therefore, not obliged to allow the latter to remain 
in possession after May 1, 1920.

The situation became very embarrassing for the (Ialihert com­
pany as the business which they carried on required premises 
of a nature difficult to procure and it could not run the risk 
of being obliged to move at a few days’ notice in the event 
of Sharpe failing in his action against the purchasers.

The plaintiff, therefore, began to look for other premises 
which might he leased ; but suitable premises could only be 
obtained on payment of very much greater rent and insurance 
rates. It then left the leased premises on May 1, in accordance 
with the purchaser’s notice; and in June 1920 took action 
against its lessor Sharpe in damages, claiming from him the in­
crease in rent and insurance premiums which it had been ob­
liged to pay. Sharpe pleaded that, in the circumstances, there 
was no responsibility on his part and that the threat of eviction 
made against the Ualihert company did not justify it in suing 
in damages.

Whilst action was pending in the present case, namely on 
October 11, 1920, Sharpe, Creelman and Tuekett settled their 
disputes ; and the two latter acknowledged that they were ob­
liged to respect the leases affecting the property they had pur­
chased from Sharpe.

The Superior Court in these circumstances, dismissed the 
action of the Ualihert company and this judgment was con-
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firmed in appeal, Allard and Rivard. JJ. dissenting. The Gali 
bert company now brings the case before us.

To decide this appeal we must examine the respective oblig.i 
lions and rights of lessor and lessee.

The lessor must give the lessee complete and peaceful enjoy 
ment of the thing leased (arts. 1612-3 C.C. (Que.) ) In other 
words, he must warrant him against defects in the thing leased 
and against interference with his enjoyment thereof. Inter 
ferences (trembles) are of two kinds; they are either of fact or 
of law. Troubles de fait are governed by art. 1616 C.C. (Que.). 
Troubles de droit, namely interferences which consist in a claim 
on the part of a third party to a right of property, servitude or 
other right in the thing leased, are governed by art., 1617 C. C. 
(Que).

In the present case we have to deal with a trouble de droit, 
namely, a claim advanced by Creelman and Tuckett that the 
Galibert company could not occupy the leased premises after 
May 1, 1920. We must, therefore, examine art. 1618 which 
states that: “If the disturbance be in consequence of a claim 
concerning the right of property or other right in and upon 
the thing leased, the lessor is obliged to ... . pay dam­
ages according to circumstances, provided the lessor be duly 
notified of the disturbance by the lessee.”

In the present case the lessee gave notice of the disturbance 
and the lessor brought action to remove it.

I understand the difficult and dangerous situation in which 
the Galibert company found itself. I admit that Creelman and 
Tuckett, armed with the deed of sale which did not oblige them 
to respect existing leases, apparently had the right to expel the 
Galibert company on May 1, 1920. (arts. 1663 and 2128 
(Que.) ) and, since the latter’s lease was not registered, it hud 
no claim to be allowed to remain until May 1, 1921. I also ad­
mit that the exigencies of its business obliged it to seek new 
premises in order to avoid the danger of being forced to move 
any day and of being unable to find premises suitable for its 
purposes, and that it was dangerous for it to rely upon the 
doubtful outcome of an action.

Hut does all this justify it in suing its lessor in damages.' 
It was threatened with eviction by Creelman and Tuckett. 
These two, contrary to their agreement with Sharpe, as we now 
see by the evidence, were, after all, the cause of all the trouble. 
Since their pretension that they had the right to dispossess the 
Galibert company after May 1, 1920, had been denied by their 
own admission, 1 would be tempted to believe that they them-
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selves were responsible for the damages sustained (Labori. 
verbo Rail, no. 144).

The lessor Sharpe did everything in his power to remove the 
cause of disturbance, lie took action for this purpose. It is 
quite true that he had not formally stipulated in his contract 
of sale that the purchasers should respect the leases, hut the 
latter were nevertheless obliged to do so; and if they violated 
their obligations and thereby exposed the plaintiff, the Galibert 
company, to damages, Sharpe should not be held responsible 
from the moment when he took the necessary proceedings to 
rectify the omission which had been made in the deed of sale.

Allard and Rivard, JJ.. are of opinion that the disturbance 
was caused by the lessor himself and that art. ItilH should not 
apply to the present ease. The disturbance was caused by 
Creel man and Tucket t. It is true that they relied upon an 
omission in their deed of sale to make this threat of eviction 
but it is none the less established that Creel man and Tucket t 
were the real troublemakers.

For these reasons, the appeal should be dismissed with costs.
Mignavlt, The appellant had leased one floor of a build­

ing belonging to the respondent and its lease had still about a 
year and nine months to run when, on July 24. 191!), the res 
pondent sold the property to J. J. Creel man, K.C., who, in turn, 
sold it to the Ttickett Tobacco Co. Roth purchasers at one* 
gave notice to the appellant that it would have to vacate the 
premises on May 1, 1920. The Galibert company replied that 
it was entitled under its lease to remain in possession for 
another year ; but the purchasers alleged in reply that this lease 
could not be set up against them since it had not been reg­
istered. The deed did not mention the fact that the sale was 
subject to existing leases, although the option upon which it 
was based contained this condition ; and the respondent later 
took action against the purchasers to have the deed amended 
by inserting therein the obligation to respect the leases, lie 
obtained judgment to that effect in the month of October 1929.

In the interval, however, the appellant appears to have 
omitted to notify the respondent, its lessor, of the notice it had 
received from the purchasers, and set about looking for other 
premises. It was not until March 18, 1920, that the appellant 
had the protest served upon the respondent declaring that the 
purchasers had evicted it from the hyilditig, that it had pro­
cured other ]>remises and claiming $(>,44.‘1.75 damages.

The respondent replied by another protest to the effect that 
the appellant was not and could not he evicted from the build- 
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and that the respondent had taken action against the purcha~

---- era to have the deed of sale maintained by inserting then-in
o™ this condition which had been omitted in error. On April 1!) 

Works 1920 the appellant leased other premises from a certain Vnl 
v. iquette and moved into them. It then took the present actio i 

8lIAKPK- against the respondent asking for judgment for the above 
Mignauit, j. mentioned amount by way of damages. This action was 

dismissed by the Superior Court and the Court of King’s Bench 
confirmed the judgment, Allard and Rivard, JJ., dissent in r. 
The appellant now appeals to this Court.

The point to be decided is whether or not the appellant has 
a right of action against respondent in the circumstances.

It is beyond doubt that the lessor must give the lessee pear - 
ful enjoyment of the thing leased for the period of the lease 
(art. 1612) ; but after stating this principle the Code dis 
tinguishes between troubles de fait against which the lessor «Iocs 
not warrant (art. 1616) and troubles de droit in respect of 
which he is responsible to the lessee (art. 1618). A trouble d« 
droit may give rise to a claim for reduction in rent or in dam 
ages, according to the circumstances, provided, says art. 101s 
that the lessor be notified of the disturbance by the lessee.

The lessee, being nothing more than a simple possessor, lias 
not the quality to dispute the merits of an action concernin'-' 
ownership or any other right in or upon the thing leased. Such 
action must be brought against he lessor who is owner of he 
thing. If the lessee take it upon himself to contest such an 
action when it is erroneously brought against him, he does so 
at his own risk and peril. Furthermore, the law gives him a 
much simpler means of obtaining relief, for he may be dismissed 
from the case upon declaring to the plaintiffs the name of tic- 
lessor (art. 1618). It is the latter, I repeat, who must be sued 
in such an action.

Pothier verbo Louage, No. 91 speaking of the lessee’s action 
in warranty against the lessor says:—

“There is ground for this action in warranty whenever, 
upon condemnation of the lessor against whom the third party 
has been obliged to bring an action, or upon acquiescence by 
the lessor in the demand of such third party, the lessee has been 
obliged to give up his enjoyment of the premises leased, or a 
part of the same, or to suffer the exercise of the right of servi­
tude claimed by the plaintiff. It is only from that date or at 
most from the date of summons to vacate the premises made 
upon the lessee by such third party in execution of the judg
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ment obtained against the lessor for the benefit of such third Que.
party or from the acquiescence of the lessor in the demand of K y
the third party, that the action ex conducto lies in favour of 
the lessee against the lessor for the purpose of forcing the latte»* 
to give enjoyment to the former, and, in default by him to do 
so, to release the said lessee from his obligation under the lease, 
and have the lessor condemned to pay him damages and 
interest.”

That is the true theory of our law. Fear of a trouble de 
droit is not sufficient to give rise to a recourse in damages by 
the lessee against the lessor and in this respect lease and sale 
are subject to the same rules. There must be eviction or at 
least, says Pothier, demand upon the lessee to vacate the prem­
ises following condemnation of the lessor to that effect.

In this case, the appellant, after receiving notice from the 
purchasers that they would expel it on May 1, following, should 
have notified the respondent and put him in default to remove 
the threat of eviction. The appellant instead of taking this 
step, which the most elementary considerations of prudence 
demanded, took it upon itself to decide that the respondent 
could not remove the threat. However, it was mistaken for the 
respondent, as soon as he became aware of the error in the deed 
of sale, brought an action against the purchasers to have the 
deed rectified. The appellant would never have been evicted— 
and it abandoned the premises of its own free will —if it had 
acted in accordance with the dictates of law and prudence.

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.
Appeal dismissed.

MOODY v. HCOTT and KLEIN.
Quebec Court of King's Bench, Lamothe, CJ., and Martin, (Jreenshiclds, 

Dorian and Allard, JJ. December JO, Wit.
Contracts (|1D—62b)—Offer to pvbchabe—Time limit—No accept­

ance within time—Offer void- Note fob part of price sent 
WITH OFFER—LIABILITY OF MAKER.

Where an offer to purchase the assets of a company has a limit­
ed duration and is not accepted within that duration, it becomes 
null and void, and payment of a promissory note for part of the 
purchase price sent with the offer, and which is retained by the 
seller, a notice being sent to the person making the offer that in 
the event of the offer being accepted but the purchaser failing to 
fulfil his obligations the note will be held as liquidated damages, 
cannot be enforced by the seller, there being no contract and no 
consideration for the note given.

Appeal by defendant from the judgment of the Quebec Sup­
erior Court in an action on a promissory note. Reversed.

*'*#!



708 Dominion Law It worth. [68 D.L.R.

Que.

K.H.

Mooor
v.

S- or r

The feet* of the ease are hh follows.
The action is bas«*<| upon on a promissory note for ♦lO.OOo. 

signed by the defendant A. Klein to the order of the Terr 
Isinne Klectrie Power and Steel Co., for value received, en 
do rued by Henry Moody, M. George Moody ami C. A. Kimplivi 
The note was transferred by the payee to J. Osborne, in his 
finality of receiver for the Nilson Tractor Co., only and was nut 
transferable. The note was endorsed over to (leo. XV. Scott, who 
sues the three endorsers jointly ami severally.

The defendants did not contest, but took an action in war 
rantv against the maker. Klein intervened and contested the 
principal action alleging in substance; (a) The plaintiff is mi 
a holder in due course ami he has no interest in the note, being 
only the prête-nom of J. Osborne; (b) No value whatever 
was ever given by Oslmrne or Scott for the mite, either to tli 
maker or to the indorsers; (c) The note was given under the 
following circumstances. In 1921, there were negotiations be 
tween the Terrclsinne Co. ami Nilson Tractor Co., for the sale 
of the assets of the latter. A resolution was passed by the 
Hoard of Directors of the Terrebonne Co. (by three director-* 
in the absence of two others), offering to purchase the asset* 
for $:<6.i,0Q0 provided the offer is accepted within 21 «lays from 
May 17, 1919, ami a copy «if the iv.solution was hamled to < 
borne the receiver of the Nilson Company. Pending compli 
anee with the necessary formalities to obtain the authorisation 
of the Court, the note sued upon was s«‘iit to Osborne as <*arn» a 
«•viilenee «if good faith, and Osborne answered: “In event off.i 
accepted and you failed to fulfil note to Ik; held by me .i* 
liipiidatcd damages.”

Later, the offer of the Tenvhonm Co., not having been ae 
eepted, the company withilrew from the contract. The Nilson 
Company kept the note as liquidated «lamages for breach of 
contract.

The plaintiff answered that the «lefemiants, M. (1. Moody. 
Henry .Xhxxiy ami Kimpton, knew «if all the transactions an-l 
«lealings with Osborne; that consnleration was given for tin 
note, because the company obtainetl an option «m the plant "t 
the Nilson Tractor Co.; the Terrebonne K. P. & S. Co. has rmi 
lied all the acts «if Hinnamon, its manager; plaintiff is holder 
in «lue «ourse; the «lefemlant in warranty may have recoin *<• 
against the Terrelsmne company ami the endoraen of the lime 
stnsl upon, bflt cannot exercise it against plaintiff.

Klein instituted another action against the Terrebonne Kl« 
trie Power & Steel Co., ami its directors to set aside the resn
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lut ion ot .May 11, 1910 ami all the contracta between the two Qu«*. 
above companies as illegal ami fraudulent. Doth eases were 
joined.

The facts will more fully appear in the following notes. M°ouv
The principal action was maintained and the action in war s«on 

rant y and the action of Klein dismissed by the Superior Court. and 
Elliott & Ihtvid, for appellants. Km\.
Easfimin, MrDoni/all 6c Co., for respondent. i.am..the.
Lamothe, —When the two cases are studied together, c1.

as was done by the Court of first instance, the facts uppear to 
he complicated ; hut it does not seem to me to be necessary for 
the decision of the two appeals to review in detail the facts 
which have been explained already in the judgments submitted 
to us, nor to discuss at length all the questions raised in the 
fact unis.

The appeal from the judgment maintaining the principal 
action should he allowed, in my opinion for two reasons : (1 ) the 
offer of the Terrebonne Electric Co. to purchase the assets of the 
Xilson Tractor Co. had a limited duration. It had to be ac­
cepted within HO days from May 17, 1919. It was not accepted 
within that delay; but Osborne asked for an extension of the 
delay until dune 26, 1919, and the manager of the Terrebonne 
Electric, Hinnamon, consented to this extension. It was not 
until dune 28, on demand made that day, that the Minnesota 
Court authorized the “receiver” Osborne to sell the whole of 
the company's assets. There could be no contract without that 
authorization. Osborne had no power to sell the assets. Why 
did he not obtain a further prolongation of the delay fixed ? 
That is not explained ; but it is evident that Oshorne allowed the 
extended delay to expire without closing the agreement. That 
is enough, in my opinion, to defeat Ins action. In contracts of 
this nature, the delay is an essential element. The agreement 
fixed that delay quite clearly. The unilateral offer lapsed of it 
self if the term was not prolonged. Osborne's allegation that 
the company again accepted the agreement after the Minnesota 
Court had given its approval is not founded in fact. What 
subsequently twik place does not amount either to a ratification 
or to an acceptance. Being an incorporated company, the Ter­
rebonne Electric Co. could only he bound by its Board of 
Directors. Now a decisive act in a contrary sense is seen in a 
resolution of the Board dated duly 16. 1919, breaking off all 
relations with Osborne and repudiating the promise to purchase. 
(2) Scott, the plaintiff in the case, is the />nit1 nom of Os 
borne, the “receiver” appointed by the Minnesota Court. That
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is admitted. This point is equally fatal, to my way of thinking 
to the plaintiff’s case. An important principle of our proeed 
ure is that of art. 81. C.C.I*. (Que.) that no person may plea.I 
in the name of another. This article was in existence befotv 
the old code and formed part of our law even before the cod.- 
of 1865. It has never been abrogated. Our jurisprudence a I 
lows a creditor who is holder of a negotiable instrument t«> 
transfer it by endorsement to another person to obtain pay 
ment ; but that is on condition that there has been a proper 
assignment. The prêU-nom, as he is called, is considered, in 
this latter case, as a holder in due course. Such an assignment 
is allowed under our jurisprudence because the debtor of the 
negotiable instrument cannot plead want of consideration lie 
tween the real plaintiff and the prête-nom, for that would In- to 
derogate from the rights of another. To sum up, jurisprudence 
gives effect to such an assignment by endorsement if it is rev 
ular; and that theory is not in any way inconsistent with art 
81 C.C.P. (Que.). It is not the same when the assignment by en 
dorsement is not regular. If the note is not negotiable on it> 
very face, the holder cannot, by endorsing it, have it sued upon 
by a prête-nom, for the assignment is then irregular and tin- 
claimant has no valid title. Possession of the note in this case 
is not sufficient since the note itself shows that it is not nego­
tiable. The note for $10,000 signed by A. Klein and sued upon 
in this case against the endorsers, the Moodys, bears on its 
reverse, before the signatures of Messrs. Moody, the following 
words : “Assign to M. Osborne, as receiver, for the Nilson 
Tractor Co., only and not transférable.”

Such a statement is allowed by our Rills of Exchange Act 
aiul must lie respected. Even the authority produced by tin- 
plaintiff Scott shows that he has no right to enforce payment 
of the note since the endorsers are not obliged to recognize its 
assignment to him.

I am repeating myself when 1 say that it must not be inferred 
that our jurisprudence has made it fiossible to evade article >1 
C.C.I*. It merely recognises the transfer by endorsement of ;i 
negotiable instrument when its negotiability is apparent and 
unequivocal. The holder then has a good title in the eyes <>! 
the law. . To admit the validity of a transfer by giving it full 
effect, on the one hand, and to “plead in the name of another 
on the other, are two totally different things. The Courts haw 
|mwer to do the former ; they cannot allow the latter. Art. 
81 C.C.I*. is a rule of public order. No jurisprudence can <1* 
rugate from its clear provisions (a mere legal maxim in France;
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a prohibitive law in this Province). In the other Province* gov­
erned by English common law. suit by a prite-nom i* more 
easily admitted. He may he declared to be the agent or the 
trustee of the real plaintiff. But in the Province of Quebec 
no agent or trustee may sue in his own name on behalf of an 
other person, unless there is a text of law expressly authorizing 
him to do so. An action brought by a person styling himself 
the agent of another would be dismissed, on demurrer. That is 
liecause we have in this Province a special article (art. 81 C. C. 
P. (Que.) ) which does not exist in the rest of the Dominion.

It is further to be noted that Osborne was not authorized by 
the Minnesota Court to sue on this note or to transfer it to 
Scott. That also is fatal under our law.

The present case is clearly distinguished from that of 
Henderson v. Maher (1918). 46 D.L.R. 143, 55 Que. 8.C. 1/5, 
in which case the note was negotiable—that may be said with­
out admitting the truth of the legal theories propounded in the 
said judgment.

! would reverse the judgment in the principal action for the 
two reasons mentioned above.

The action in warranty taken by the appellants against Klein 
was dismissed without costs. If the principal action is dismiss­
ed for the reasons given above, there is no ground for interfer­
ing to change the judgment rendered in the action in warranty, 
otherwise, I would lie of opinion that the action in war­
ranty, which was not contested by Klein, should also have been 
maintained, for it is evident, in view of the circumstances re­
vealed in the record, that Klein must protect the endorsers 
iigainst any action tending to force them to pay the note.

There is a second action, brought by Klein under number 
710 of the records of the Superior Court, asking that the reso­
lutions of the Terrebonne Electric Co. dated May 17, 1819 Ik* 
•plashed and that any promise to purchase as well as the letters 
exchanged between Sinnamon and the receive; vlsborne Is* set 
aside. The dismissal of the principal action, makes it useless 
for the Court of Appeal to intervene in the second action— 
unless it lie to adjudicate upon the costs in appeal. This action 
would seem to me well founded were it not for a prospectus 
signed by the directors of the Terrebonne Electric Co. under 
date of May 29, 1919. This document constitutes a proof in 
writing that the directors who were absent from the meeting 
of May 17, 1919, subsequently approved the resolution passed 
that day and gave their consent to it. The only utility of the 
second action would be to have it declared that as the offer to

Que.
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purchase had not h«*«*n accept e«l within the delay allowed. , 
hipsetl, or that Sinnatiioii was not authorized to transfer i! 
note for tM 0,(100 either “as receiver of good faith" or as liquid 
tilt'll «lainages. The decision reached by this Court in tl,. 
principal action is siiflicicnt. The judgment dismissing tl, . 
scconil action may In* eonfirmnl in its dispositif for the reaso i> 
mentioned above, ami not for those given therein.

Martin, The regularity and binding force of the extvi 
sion of time granted of the Terrelsmne company was question -I 
but even assuming that it was binding on the company. i'h* 
latter’s offer was not accepted until June 1ÎH, <»r *2 «lays alt 
the extended periml had expired. Was there a concluded avrci­
ment to purchase the assets of the Nilson Tractor Co., mud -
within the time limit of the offer? Could the Terrebonne «.....
pany have sued Oslsnne to enforce delivery or obtain damai:' > 
at any time up to June 26T Clearly not. The Terrebom. 
company was not to buy until their offer was accepte !
and it had to la* accepted within the time limit therein sp«*c 
fi«*d. and if there was no enforceable contract up to June L'li 
there could Is* no damages recoverable for breach of what d: I 
not «‘xist. The trial Judge referred to art. 11!)1 C.C. (Qu«*.
It is suggeste<l that the Terrelionne company was InmiihI aft- r 
June *21 i because they sent an auditor Porter, but sending and 
itor Porter could hardly be said to lie siiflicicnt to create a m u 
and binding contract on the part of tin* company obliging tli- 
latter to purchase tjr2(if>,000 of property. 1 do not liml in Ilia' 
act evidence of any new bargain and I am not going to give tl 
offer more effect than was given to it by Mr. Osborne. Hofei 
ring to the offer eontaimsl in May 17 resolution, be sav>. 
| Extracts from his depositions.]

From all this I would conclude that Osborne did not ha\c 
any authority to soil ami did not purport to have such author 
ity or to sell until the Court order of June *2H u i>
made authorising him to do so and as that order was mad- 
after the periisl of tin* offer had lapsed, this was no bind 
ing contract which couhl form the basis of a claim for dam 
ag«‘s. liquidated or otherwise.

It is an ebunentary principle that where in the offer tln-re • 
a delay stipulate*! for its acceptance, tin* right to ac<*epl is suit 
ject to this restriction that such acci e cannot Ik- mail- 
after the expiration of the stipulat«*«l delay. Laurent vol. ! 
nos. 476, 477, cl .<##/.

There is no . for it is a miitted in the pleadings amt n 
tin* tcliMXrams ami letters, that the consideration which Os bo •

02

35

47

3
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gave thv Terrebonne company for this note, ami the only eon 
sidération he gave was that he look it as liquidated damages 
in ease the company did not fulfil its offer to Imy when he was 
authorized by the Courtio sell. This is admitted by leqsmd 
ent in see. 3 of his summary; “It (the mite) was given as 
liquidated damages in case of a breach of the defendant's ob­
ligations which contingency occurred."

Rut if there was no contract and. ‘ , no damages,
Osborne’s title to the note fails, and this is sufficient hi reverse 
the judgment of the Superior Court.

Scott is admittedly the mere prête-nom of Osliorne ami has no 
greater rights that the latter would have. It is unnecessary to 
decide whether, in view of the assignment of the note to Os 
borne being made to him only and not transferable, lie

se it to the respondent Scott. As Scott is a mere holder 
for collection, not claiming title. I incline to the opinion that Ik* 
could.

On the question of the validity ami binding force of the 
resolution of May 17, I am against the appellant’s pretensions. 
The remarks of Lord Macnaghten in the IVivy Council in tIn­
case of Muni mil cl *s f. Lawrence Light cl- Power Co. v. Hubert, 

A.C. 196, are in point and conclusively dispose of this 
objection. That resolution is binding on the company. It is. 
moreover, unnecessary to decide whether or not Osliorne could 
sue without tirst obtaining permission of Court as he would be 
obliged to do if he were a liquidator under our Winding-up 
Act, K.S.C. 1000, ch. 114, or whether he could, without such 
authority of Court, endorse the note in question to Scott for 
collection, l’ossihly such absence of quality might be required 
to be specially raised by preliminary plea. On this, I express 
no opinion. I do not see any ground for applying the princ­
iples of estoppel or fins de nun recevoir laid down by the Sup­
reme Court m the case of Ewing v. Dominion Itunk (1904», 35

an. S.C.R. 133.
I would dispose of this case on the broad ground that neithe.* 

Osborne nor his prête-nom Scott is entitled to recover on the 
note sued upon, ami I would maintain the present appeal and 
reverse the judgment of the Superior Court and dismiss the 
plaintiff's action with costs here and below. As the principal 
action fails, the action in warranty of Klein against the Terre­
bonne Electric suffers the same fate.

(J SEEN SHIELD*, — The action is brought in Scott's name, 
lie alleges that In- is the holder and owner of the note in due 
course. The question was raised on the present appeal as to

Quv.

KB.

Uh-i'imlia-Me688
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whether Seott. the plaintiff, had any title to ane seeing the res 
trietivr endorsatinn made by the payee of the note. Having 
arrived at a cnncluaion on another queation, the deeiaion of Him 
Aral queation ia unneeeaaary. I have no doubt, however, that 
the endoraation reatrieted the tranafer of the note, but ! am mu 
prepared to aay that the holder of the note in due courue eoul.l 
not, without tranafering the note within the meaning of the 

lireennhiiidi, Hilla of Exchange Aet, R.N.C. 1906, eh. 119 give poeeeaainii 
1 of that note to another for the purpoae only of eolleetion. an.I 

I am not prepared to hold that anch person could not, being 
in poaaeaaion of the note, maintain an action for the recovery 
of the amount. Of courae, it ia elementary that he could not 
acquire any greater righta than Osborne, and that all the equil 
iea could be pleaded against him as they could against Oahorm 
Hut I do not decide the appeal upon that queation. There . 
another and a broader question to lie considered. On May 17. 
1919, a resolution was adopted by the directors of the Terre 
lionne Electric Power & Steel Co. (the respondents). It. in 
terms, resolved, that the company made a firm offer for the a- 
aeta of the Nilaon Tractor Co., to the receiver, M. .1, (laborne. . f 
Minneapolis, Minn., V. 8. A., as follows:—

“We the undersigned herewith auhmit to you as represent i 
live of the Diatrict Court llennipen County, Minn., U. 8. A, an 
offer and bid for the assets of the Nilaon Tractor Co., of 626.Ï 
000, payable in Canadian funds. This offer to be aubjisd in 
your acceptance within twenty-one days from this date." This 
resolution was adopted after negotiations hail been carried . n 
between Osborne and the directors of the respondents, tli" 
Terrebonne Electric Co. At the time the resolution was adopt 
ed, Osborne was in Montreal ; in fact, he was present when the 
resolution was adopted, although, of courae, he did not take 
part in the meeting. A copy of the resolution was delivered t. 
him. It is stated that the resolution was illegal anil null. I am 
not disponed to accept that view, and again arriving at the con 
elusion I have, it is unnecessary to deride the question.

The delay of 21 days within which acceptance should la- ma le 
was extended, and expired after extension on June 26, lltl'i. 
l'p to that time, there had been no formal aceeptance. As 
reiver of the Nilaon Tractor Co., Osborne was an officer of the 
Court which appointed him, viz., the District Court of tic 
County of llennipen, in fact the offer was not made lo him 
personally but as the representative of the Court. It would 
appear that he eould not act without the approval or ■anctimi 
of that Court. In other words, before he could accept the off.

Que.

K.B.
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to him submitted h«* wan bound to obtain the authorisation of 
the Court.

Although Osborne received a copy of the resolution on the 
date it was adopted, on May 30, a letter was sent by the Terre 
bonne Electric Co. to Osborne enclosing the note sued upon. 
The letter stated: —

“Herewith 60 day note for $10,000 May 1st, 1919, and as­
signed to you with satisfactory endorsement, in evidence of our 
good faith."

A reply was sent by Osborne, which in part reads : —
“Letter and note received, solicitor advises must have 21 days 

from date instead of from May 17th. This is necessary to prop­
erly present matters to Court. Agreement to be acceptable 
must provide, in event offer accepted and you fail to fulfil, note 
to be held by me as liquidated damages." There was no ob­
jection made to this suggestion or demand and it can safely 
lie said that the note from and after that date was held by 
Osborne as liquidated damages in ease the Terrebonne Electric 
Co. failed to fulfil the contract for the purchase of the assets 
of the Nilson Company when sueh contract was completed by 
the acceptance of Osborne as receiver. It is equally clear that, 
up to that time, there had lieen no acceptance.

It was only on July 28, 1919, after the expiration of the ex­
tended delay that Osborne obtained the authority of this Court 
to aceept the offer. It is elementary to state, that stipulât*! 
delay within which an offer must be accepted is de rigueur, un­
less waived. If the statement is correct that no acceptance was 
made within the stipulated delay, then no contract was formed, 
and no contract being formed, there could be no rupture re­
sulting in damages, liquidated or otherwise. The note sued up­
on having been given as liquidated damages and no damages 
existing, there was no consideration for the note. Having ar­
rived at this conclusion, neither the plaintiff or Osborne or any 
one else could exact the payment of the note.

I should maintain the appeal and dismiss the action. The 
action in warranty must fall when the principal action is un­
founded, and that is my decision.

Dobion, J. The arguments advanced in the principal con­
testation are the following : (1) The resolution of May 17. 
1919 authorizing the transaction with Osborne is null, because 
it was adopted without the knowledge of Kimpton and the two 
Moodvs; (2) The acceptance of the offer embodied in the res­
olution of May 17, 1919 took place after the expiration of the 
dclav fixed by the resolution, and even after the additional un-
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authorized delay given l»y Siiiiiamon had expired; (3) Ti 
note was made payable to Osborne and was not transféra • 
on his endorsement.

The first ground rests on a question of fart whieh is mu . 
disputed, namely as to whether or not the Moodys and Kimpt , 
knew and approved of the transaetion with Osborne. Thr­
ill ree directors placed ill the affairs of the company in t!i 
hands of and trusted him so blindly that they signe I
the papers he placed I adore them w reading them. Thai
is how they came to sign the company’s oflieial prospectus, .1 • 
posited in the office of the Secretary of State at Ottawa. Th 
prospectus contains a description of the whole transaction wli n 
the company was in the act of carrying out with Osborne a: I 
represents it as a definitely accomplished fact, saving the eo i 
sent of the Minnesota Court.

The facts are complicated by dealings which it would take 
too long to explain and whieh left the appellants in a ven 
difficult position as regards their part in the deal ; but, fortuit 
ately for them, the other grounds advanced are not so com­
pletely confused by the facts. They show clearly the impoi • 
a nee of complying with the formalities prescribed by law in 
matters where negligence on the part of agents makes the fix­
ing of responsibility an impossible task.

U ranting that the meeting of May 17 was regular, and t liai 
the resolution passed at that meeting was valid, the offer it • n 
tained had to be accepted on or before June 21 or perhaps Jim 
2b, and it was not so accepted until June 28. Therefore, it w - 
not validly accepted and Osborne cannot claim payment of tin* 
note.

It follows that Scott, who is not a holder for value, has no 
right of action. Dut if Osborne himself had a right of actim 
on the note, the transfer which he made by endorsement to Sc. i 
is null because lie held the note under an endorsement win > 
forbade him to negotiate it. (Dills of Exchange Act, II.v 
DM Mi, eh. Ill), sec. 68.)

The holder of a note by endorsement is not obliged to jii'i 
his "" y and his right otherwise than by the endorsement •' 
the preceding holder, lie may In* the holder for the pmp« 
of cashing the note and the maker, if sued, has nothing to s„\ 
in the matter. The latter cannot plead that the piece.I ■ 
holder is suing through the agency of another, for the end." 
ment gives the present holder an incontestable right of a.Mion 
in his own name.

Osborn;1 might allege in vain that lie was suing in the iimie

A++D
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of Scott. Article HI C.C.P. (Que.), forbids him to do so. ami if 
Soott pretends that he is suing in his own name, lie has not tin* 
right to do so for the note in the hands of Osborne was not 
negotiable.

The principal action must, therefore, lie dismissed with costs 
in favour of Klein, the intervenant, and the action in warranty 
which was not contested, must he dismissed without costs.

Klein's action against the Ter retain lie Electric Co. must also 
In* dismissed, because the plaintiff no longer has any interest 
therein, since the action in warranty, which gave it purpose, is 
dismissed.

Au.ard, J.:—In the ease of Scuff, plaintiff- respondent, v. 
Moody ami Moody., plaintiffs in warranty, and Klein, défend­
ent in warranty, No. *210, 1 would reverse the judgment in the 

action, with costs.
I would confirm the judgment in tin* action in warranty.
In ease No. 217, Klein, plaintiff v. Tern bonne Ktee-

trie Power and Steel ('o., I would confirm the dispositif of the 
said judgment, hut without costs in appeal.

In the whole matter, I am thoroughly in agreement with the 
views expressed by the Honourable Chief Justice in his notes.

Judgment “Considering that the respondent Scott claims 
from the appellants the amount of a note for $10.000, payable 
to the order of the Terrebonne Electric Cower & Steel Co.;

That this note was endorsed by the said company as fol­
lows:—‘Assign to M. J. Osborne ns receiver for the Nilson 
Tractor Co., only and not transferable’.

That the subsequent endorsement hv the said M. J. Osliorne 
in favour of the respondent Scott is null by reason of the res­
triction contained in the endorsement in favour of the said 
I Isbornc;

That the sale of the stock of the Nilson Tractor Co. by 
Osborne to the Terrebonne Electric Power & Steel Co. was not 
accepted within the delay fixed by the offer of purchase made 
by the latter company, ami that that sale did not therefore take 
place ;

That this proposed sale formed the condition and the sole 
consideration for the said notes, ami that besides the nullity of 
the transfer to Scott, the transfer of this note to Osborne is 
also null by reason of non-fulfillment of the condition and lack 
of consideration ;

That tin- said Scott was not a Itchier in «lue course of the 
note, hut was merely the prête-nom iff Osborne;

That there is error in the judgment of the Superior Court;

Que.
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Man.

C.A.
adjudicating on the principal action, this Court maintains 11 
appeal with costs, reverses the judgment rendered by the Court 
of first instance in the case of Scott v. Moody., and dismiss 
the said action with costs in favour of both the intervenant 
Klein and the defendants;

And this Court, adjudicating on the action in warranty taken 
by Moody against Klein:—

That as the principal action is dismissed, the action in 
warranty no longer has any raison d’etre, confirms the judg­
ment of the Superior Court and dismisses the said action in 
warranty without costs, since it was not contested;

On the action taken by Klein against the Terrebone Electric 
Dower & Steel Co., the Court considering that this action no 
longer has any raiuon d'etre, seeing that the principal action 
of Scott against the company is dismissed : dismisses Klein > 
appeal with costs and confirms the judgment of the Superior 
Court.”

Judgment accordinghi.

BALLS v. McGBHtiOR.
Manitoba Court o/ Appeal, Perdue, CJ.M., Cameron, Fullerton.

Dennintoun and Prendergaut, JJ.A. July 10, !9£i.
Brokers (|1IB—12)—Salk ok kkal estât»—Commission—Bufficikm v

OF IIROKKRH SERVICES—Soi.lilER SETTLEMENT ACTS, 1917 (CAM
cii. 21, an» 1919 (Can.), cii. 71—Effect on iirokek’h nioiit .
COMPENSATION.

The Soldier Settlement Act, 1917 (Can.), ch. 21, which was r. 
pealed by the Act 1919 (Can.), ch. 71, did not contain any restri. 
tiens on the right of a real estate agent to recover a commissi.»n 
on a sale of land to the Board, as contained in sec. 61 of the >• 
I>eallng Act, and under the Interpretation Act. R.8.C. 1906, ch 1. 
sec. 9, the repealing Act did not affect the right of a real estate 
agent to recover commission on a transaction entered Into befi.ro 
the repealing Act came into force. Held also, affirming the trial 
Judge that the agent had earned his commission on the sale. b\ 
carrying out what he had bargained to do and fulfilling the con 
ditions imposed by the contract.

[See Annotation on Brokers, 4 D.L.R. 631.1

Appeal by defendant from the trial judgment (1922), hi: 
D.L.R. 696, 32 Man. L.R. 196 at 197, in an action by a real 
estate agent to recover commission on the sale of land. 
Affirmed*

W. H. Trueman, K.C. for defendant.
W. B. Powell, for plaintiff.
Perdue, C.J.M., and Cameron, J.A. concurred with Foli kk 

ton and Dennistovn, JJ.A.
Fullerton, J.A :—This is an appeal from the judgment of
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Galt, J. (1922), 66 D.L.R. 696, in favour of the plaintiff allow­
ing him his claim for $250 commission on the sale of the north­
west quarter of sect. 29, tp. 12, rge. 12, west, and $750 commis­
sion on the sale of the south-west quarter of the same section.

As to the claim in respect of the north-west quarter, the only 
defence suggested is sec. 61 of the Soldier Settlement Act, 1919, 
(Can.) ch. 71. This act, however, did not come into force until 
July 7, while the sale was effected on the previous June 16. The 
plaintiff had earned his commission before the Act came into 
force and is therefore not affected by its provisions.

As to the south-west quarter, the defendant contends that 
the plaintiff failed to produce a purchaser ready to purchase 
on the terms specified by him. These terms were contained in 
an option agreement dated June 7, U19, and are as follows:—

“I will sell the . . .8.W. % r*t $3,250 on half crop pay­
ments providing the purchaser will break and crop 25 acres 
each year until 125 acres are under cultivation, with one-half 
crop payable to me wiping off the amount due under agreement 
for sale under which this land was purchased by me. All mon­
ies obtained over and above the above prices are to be retained 
by you for your commission.”

On June 16, 1919, plaintiff found a purchaser ready, willing 
and able to purchase at the price of $4,000 payable $200 cash. 
$500 on or before November 1, 1919, and the balance on hall' 
crop payments, and further agreeing to the defendant’s terms 
as to breaking. Defendant ret used to carry out the sale. The 
only objection urged by the defendant against the right of the 
plaintiff to recover is that the plaintiff failed to produce a pur­
chaser ready to buy on his terms inasmuch as the provision 
for the payment of the sum of $200 and $500 was something 
beyond the terms authorised. If there is anything in this con­
tention the defendant has clearly waived it. The plaintiff drew 
up an agreement of sale embodying the above terms, had it ex­
ecuted by the purchaser and requested the defendant to execute 
it. Defendant took no objection to the terms stated ir the 
agreement but said he wanted “to wait to see that the sale of 
the other quarter for all cash went through.” The trial Judge 
states in his reason* for judgment that no question was raised 
on the trial as to the form of action or as to the amount recov­
erable, if the plaintiff was entitled to succeed at all. 1 think 
the plaintiff is entitled to recover the amount of commission 
claimed in respect of the south-west quarter.

The appeal will be dismissed with costs.

Man.

C.A.
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Man. Dennîstoin. J.A.:—This is an action to recover two com
C.A. missions on the sale of farm property owned by the defendant.

M« (JuixiOB.

The trial Judge, Galt, J.. has given judgment, fit» D.L.R. 696 
for $250 as commission on the sale of the north-west quarter 
section and for $750 on the sale of the south-west quarter s«

OvmiMmin,
J.A.

tion of the lands sold, and with respect I concur in his findinux 
The defendant vendor gave to the plaintiff, who is a real 

estate agent, a memorandum in writing in these words: —
“In consideration of the sum of one dollar, receipt of whi.-'i 

is hereby acknowledged I hereby give an option on the W1 
of 20 12-12W1 as follows : I will sell the X.W.i , at $.‘1,750 cash, 
and the S.W.i/i at $3,250 on half crop payment provided tIn* 
purchaser will break and crop 25 acres each year till 125 acres 
are under cultivation, with one-half of the crop payable to me 
or toward wiping off the amount due under the agreement for 
sale under which this land was purchased by me. All amounts 
obtained above the above prices are to be retained by you ;i>. 
your commission. If I desire to cancel this option I hereby 
agree to give you thirty days’ notice in writing.”

The plaintiff arranged a sale of the north-west quarter to 
the Soldier Settlement lid. for $4,000 cash and the sum of $250 
is by agreement payable as commission, unless the payment of 
such commission becomes illegal by reason of the Soldier Sett li­
ment Act,. 1919 (Can.), ch. 71. As this Act was not assented n 
until July 7, 1919, and as the sale was arranged, and the com­
mission earned, in June of that year, the Act does not apply, 
and the plaintiff is entitled to the amount awarded in respect of 
this branch of the case by Galt, J., 66 D.L.R. 696.

On or about July 16, the plaintiff tendered to the defendant 
an agreement to purchase the south-west quarter signed by one 
liuehanan for the sum of $4,000, with interest at 8% per annum, 
payable $700 on or before November 1, 1920, and as to the 
balance, by crop payments as provided by the option with 
covenants for breaking as therein specified.

The defendant told the plaintiff that he was willing to smii 
this agreement but he wanted to make some arrangements first. 
about getting a tenant off the north-west quarter, lie never 
did sign the agreement—hence this action.

The memorandum given to the plaintiff by the defendant 
constituted a standing offer to sell the land on the terms stated 
to any unobjectionable person, able, ready, and willing to pur­
chase. It is not an option given to the plaintiff which he is to 
accept himself. It was contemplated by the parties that a third
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party might he induced by the plaintiff to accept the de­
fendant’s offer, and at an increased price—the excess to «go to 
the plaintiff as remuneration for his services.

The plaintiff procured a third party, one Buchanan, to accept 
in writing the defendant’s offer to sell, and at an increased price 
of $700. which the plaintiff now claims as payable to him in 
accordance with the terms of the offer as a reward for servie-'s 
rendered.

The defend.int refused to carry out the sale and made it im­
possible for any money to be either “obtained” or “retained” 
in satisfaction of the plaintiff’s claim.

Had the defendant carried out the sale he would not have 
been entitled to call for any cash until a year later, and 1 incline 
to the view that the plaintiff would not have been entitled to 
his remuneration until it had been received from Buchanan, but 
it is not necessary to decide the point for the defendant, while 
approving the purchaser, has, for no sufficient reason, refused 
to carry out the sale.

The time had expired when this action was brought within 
which the defendant should have received $700 cash payable on 
November 1, 1920, and having refused to carry out the sale, he 
became liable for the payment of the commission personally.

He had no objection to offer to the character of the purchaser 
or the ability to carry out the purchase, and has given no valid 
ex ion of his refusal to complete the sale.

I was inclined at first to think that the plaint iff s action was 
one for damages for breach of contract, as in Wrenshall <(• Co. v. 
McCammon (1912), 5 S.L.R. 286, as dealt with by Lamont, J., 
at p. 291, but on consideration this appears to be a different 
case. Here there is an offer to sell and an acceptance of that 
offer, both in writing, duly signed by the parties to be charged. 
So soon as the signed agreement to purchase was tendered to 
the defendant and approved by him, the bargain was complete 
and the agent’s remuneration both earned and fixed by the docu­
ments.

I cannot accept the argument that it was contemplated by 
the offer that the plaintiff was to make two contracts with 
Buchanan—one to sell him the land at $3,250 on crop payments, 
and the other for the payment to himself of $750 for making 
the sale. The defendant intended exactly what has occurred— 
that the plaintiff would “obtain” an increased price payable 
to defendant, and that increased price was to be “retained” 
by plaintiff when procured from the purchaser. If the de­
fendant got it he was to pay it over to the plaintiff.

48—68 d.l.R.
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As neither of them can get it owing to the refusal of tit.* 

defendant to sell the land the plaintiff’s judgment is right ami 
this appeal should he dismissed with costs.

Pbendekgast, J.A.. concurred.
Appeal dismissed.

STANDARD TRUST Co. v. HILL.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division. Scott. C.J., Stuart, Beck.

Hyndman and Clarke JJ.A. June 1922.
Gift CSHI—16)—Of automobile—Sufficiency of delivery.

A gift of chattel by words of present gift united with posession 
in the donee makes a perfect gift whether the possession precedes, 
accompanies or follows the words. The delivery may be actual, 
or constructive, according to the nature and character of the oh 
Ject of the gift, the relationship of the parties and the other cir­
cumstances and formal manual delivery Is not necessary to perfect 
the gift in cases where real delivery is not practicable because the 
donee already has possession of the chattels.

[Curtlt v. Langrock (1922), 63 D.L.R. 282, 17 Alta. L.R. 16". 
Cochrane v. Moore (1890), 25 Q.B.D. 57, referred to; Stoneham v. 
Stoneham, [1919] 1 Ch. 149; Cain v. Moon. [1896] 2 Q.B. 283. 
Kilpin v. Hatley, [1892] 1 Q.B. 582, applied. See Annotation. 1 
D.L.R. 306.]

Appeal from the judgment of a District Court Judge upon 
the trial of an interpleader s.sue concerning the ownership of an 
automobile. Affirmed.

J. II. Pelf, for appellant ; 1C. II. Sellar, for respondent.
Scott, C.J., concurred with Clarke J.A.
Stuart, J.A., concurs with Beck, .1 A.
Beck, J.A.:—It is said to be law that in order to transfer a 

chattel by gift there must be either a deed or an actual delivery. 
See cases cited Curtis v. Langrock (1922), 63 D.L.lt. 282, 17 
Alta. L.R. 160, and especially Cochrane v. Moore (1890), 25 
Q.B.D. 57, 59 L.J. (Q.B.) 377, 63 L.T. 153, 38 W.R. 588.

But the delivery need not be concurrent with the words of 
gift. Where the donee has the chattel in his possession and the 
owner made by parol a present gift of it to him, that was held 
to be sufficient. Re Aldcrson; Aldcrson v. Peel (1891), 64 L.T. 
645, distinguishing Shower v. Pilek (1849), 4 Exch. 478, 154 
E.R. 1301, as a case of the expression of an intention to make <i 
gift in the future.

Where there is a gift of a chattel by words of present gift 
subsequent delivery is effective to perfect the gift : Re Ston- 
ham; Stoneham v. Stoneham, [1919] 1 Ch. 149. A gift of 
chattel per verba de presenti united with possession in the donee 
makes a perfect gift, whether the possession precedes, accom­
panies or follows the words.
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If Middleton, J., in Kingsmill v. Kingsmill (1917), 41 O.L.R. 
238, in the words quoted by Clarke, J.A., post p. 728:—“Posses­
sion subsequent to an abortive gift is not material’’—means that 
a delivery of possession because it is not concurrent with but 
subsequent to words of present gift, I cannot agree. I think he 
does not mean that. A gift is constituted by two things—the 
words giving (not merely expressing a promise or intention) 
and possession in the donee. It cannot be that the words and 
the act of delivery must be contemporaneous in the sense of 
occurring in the same instant. Five minutes, a day or a week 
intervening between the words of gift, which are not abortive 
if in the present tense, coupled with a subsequent delivery, make 
together a perfect gift : Stoneham v. 8tontkam, supra.

What constitutes a delivery, as one of the two essential ele­
ments of a gift is another question. In this connection it is, 1 
think, important to get rid of the idea of the special kind of 
possession contemplated by the Hills of Sale Ordinance, O.O. 
1915, ch. 43—“an actual and continued change of possession." 
That ordinance does not touch the case of a gift. The words 
are: “Every sale, assignment and transfer of goods and chattels 
not accompanied by an immediate delivery and followed by an 
actual and continued change of possession of the goods and 
chattels sold.” The word “sold” shows that the words 
“assignment and transfer” mean the instruments effecting th*» 
sale. The whole purview of the Act confirms this view. The 
ordinance is no more applicable to an oral gift, with delivery, 
that to a gift by deed (without delivery).

Delivery of possession, therefore, in the case of a gift ne«*d 
only be such as is sufficient in law, entirely apart from any 
statute.

Again, although I have used the word “delivery” as the cases 
usually do, the question is not so much one of dellivenj as of 
possession by the donee.

In Cain v. Moon, (1896] 2 Q.B. 283, at 289, Wills, J., said:-
“Suppose a man lent a book to a friend, who expressed him­

self as pleased with the book, whereupon the lender, finding 
that he had a second copy, told his friend that he need not re­
turn the copy he had lent him; it would be very strange if in 
such a case there were no complete gift, the book being in the 
possession of the intended donee.”

Surely, it would be the same if there had been no delivery 
by the donor but the donee had found the book; surely posses­
sion by the donee without delivery would suffice.

Delivery, still using the word for convenience, may be actual
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or constructive. according to the nature and character of t!i 
object of the gift, the relationship of the parties and the oth« : 
circumstances. See 14 Am. & Eng. Envy, of Law, 2nd ed„ p. 
1019 tit. “Gifts.”

Cases of husband ami wife ami parent and child afford in 
stances of this proposition. It must be remembered that in 
England prior to 1883 a husband could not transfer the legal 
ownership of chattels to his wife, and that, therefore, the only 
manner in which he could give them to her was by means of 
trustee. English decisions upon such gifts before that date it' 
consequently valueless for our present purpose.

Iron* v. Small piece (1819), 2 II. & Aid. 551, 106 E.R. 467 
21 R.R. 395, was approved and followed in Cochrane v. Moon, 
25 Q.Ii.D. 57. Sir Frederick Pollock in his preface to 21 R.R. 
says, with reference to Irons v. Smallpiece :—

“The decision that a gift by word of mouth will not pass tin- 
property in chattels in the possession of the donor and capahb- 
of delivery has stood the test of criticism and was confirmed by 
the Court of Appeal a few years ago in Cochrane v. Moon, 25 
Q-R.D. 57. The limits of this rule are partly indicated in 
Kiipin v. Hatley, [1892] 1 Q.H. 582; neither the old authorities 
nor the Court of Appeal have said that a gift of chattels is in 
no case possible without a deed of actual manual delivery: <•/'. 
L.Cj.R. X |an error for VI] 446.”

In L.Q.R. vol. VIII. (1892), at p. 281, it is said:—
“Shortly after Cochrane v. Moore was reported, it was sub­

mitted in this Review (VI. 449) that the Court of Appeal did 
not mean to lay down that formal, manual delivery is needed 
to perfect a gift of chattels in cases where a real delivery is not 
practicable, by reason, e.y. of the donee already having posses 
sion or custody. The view so propounded as the result of prin­
ciple and of the older authorities appears to be confirmed by 
Kiipin v. Hatley, which indeed may be said to go a little farther, 
for the custody of the goods was with the donee’s husband. 
See also 31 Sol. Jo. under articles on the Law of Gifts Inter 
Vivos at pp. 688, 701, 713, 725, 732, 741, 753, especially at p. 
725, et seq.

Kiipin v. Hatley, [1892] 1 tj.13. 582, held that manual de­
livery is not necessary; in effect, that delivery means a transfer 
or delivery of possession. Wills, J., says, at p. 585:—“I think 
that the delivery spoken of is a delivery of possession. If the pos­
session is changed in consequence of a verbal gift—as where the 
possession has been held in one capacity up to the time of the 
gift, and from that time it is held in another capacity—in tliL
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case as owner—I think the gift is completed. ’—This evidently 
means that if there is no change in the physical possession hut by 
reason of change of title—which may he effected by words of 
present gift—the legal possession follows the legal title. Wills. 
♦I., adds at p. f>86:—“In the present ease up to the time of the 
gift the furniture was in the possession of the husband; it was 
in the house where the husband lived, and where the claimant as 
his wife was by right living. Then her father having upon the 
spot pointed to the furniture and intimated that he gave it to her 
as it stood, it remained in the house as before. But the furni­
ture was no longer in the possession of the husband, but of the 
wife. ’ ’

There can. undoubtedly, be gifts of chattels from a husband 
to a wife and from a parent to a child where the donee is living 
and continues to live as before with the donor. If the gift is 
distinctly made and proved, in my opinion, no change in the use 
of the chattel is necessary, the possession is changed in law by 
following the title.

In my opinion, the evidence shews a perfected gift by the 
husband to the wife in the present case. The parties lived near 
Nanton, the husband living on a rented farm; the wife working 
for a man named Armstrong. They were married at Calgary 
on May 12, 1921. On that day, the husband made his wife a 
gift of the automobile in question as a wedding present. He 
said to her; “The only present I can make you is this car. i 
have .some presents at home.” The ear was in the husband’s 
garage at his home, on their return from Calgary to the hus­
band’s farm on the 14th. On this day, too. the husband signed 
a paper dating it back to the 12th, as follows; “Calgary, May 
12,1921. To Ella Rose. My Studebaker automobile as a wedd­
ing present from (Sgd.) Walter Jlill, Nanton, Alta.’’ The 
wife says: “The first time we took it (the automobile) out he 
said you can have a ride in your own car.”

She says she told people the car had been given to her as a 
present. She had some savings when she married and she also 
borrowed money from her brother. She paid the license fee, 
•$22.50 ; and several sums for repairs amounting to $27.40, and 
apparently other sums. Other circumstances were proved to 
endeavour to shew that there was no gift hut the trial Judge 
believed the claimant. In my opinion, the evidence was suf­
ficient to establish a complete gift—words of present gift and 
such change of possession in law as the circumstances called for,

If this is correct the gift is good between the parties. It is 
also good as against the execution creditor unless the creditor

725

Alta.

A]>p. IMv.

Stam> a an 
Till sr Co.

Hii.u

Bd k. J A.



Dominion Law Kevokts. [68 D.L.K.726

Alta.

A|»p. Div.

Stanhard 
Trvnt Co.

Hi ir>.

ciarke, j. A.

fringe the case within the Statute 13 Eliz. ; or the Fraudulent 
Preferences Act 1922, ch. 48 (made retroactive to April Is. 
1921). That is, shews that when the husband made the gift he 
was in insolvent circumstances, which is not shewn by shew in- 
that he had no cash on hand or could instantly raise enough 
cash sufficient to pay all his debts in full.

It seems that the wife’s title to the automobile was not at 
tacked upon that ground at all. There is no evidence of any debt 
owing by the husband, even of the plaintiff creditor’s debt 
beyond the necessary implication that they are creditors.

It was said in argument that the plaintiff's claim is for ;t 
deficiency upon a mortgage. The date of the judgment is not 
stated. The husband seems to have owned two quarter sections, 
each of which he values at $1,600. Apart from exceptional con­
ditions, which admittedly have occured in the locality where 
these lands are situated, $10 an acre is a low valuation for farm 
land. The principal of the plaintiff’s mortgage seems to have 
been $750.

As to the other quarter section the husband says he sold it 
apparently for $1.600—and received $1,000 as a down payment ; 
that the balance was to be made in “crop payment”; that tin- 
purchaser was a woman who left the property. The husband 
appears to be entitled to get his land back in his own name. 
The husband says he also owned—at the time of his marriage 
five work horses and a drill.

There certainly is no evidence of insolvency, even if this 
question were open, and 1 think it is not.

I would therefore dismiss the appeal with costs.
Hyndman, J.A.:—I concur.
Clarke, J.A. (dissenting) :—This is an appeal from the Dis­

trict Court of Macleod upon the trial of an interpleader issu- 
concerning the ownership of an automobile, which was seized 
under an execution issued by the plaintiff, the Standard Trusts 
Co., upon a judgment against Walter Hill, the husband of the 
claimant, Ella Hill. The District Court Judge found in favour 
of the claimant, who claimed the automobile as a gift from her 
husband on her wedding day. It is not suggested that marriage 
was a consideration for the gift and the evidence is to the con­
trary. The questions for determination are:—1. Was there a 
complete gift ? (2) If so, as no bill of sale was registered, was
there sufficient change of possession to satisfy the Bills of Sa!<- 
Ordinance. C.O. 1915, ch. 43, and (3) was the gift void as 
against creditors by reason of the Statute of Elizabeth ?

The evidence of the claimant, which is supported by that of
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her husband, is that on May 12. 1921, they were married at 
Calgary and on the same day. while at Calgary, the husband 
made her a wedding present of the automobile which was at 
the time in the garage where it had been kept by the husband 
on a farm near the town of Nanton ; there was no writing and in 
the absence of the ear there could be no delivery. Later, on or 
about May 14, according to the husband, and on the same day 
as the marriage, according to the wife, at their home the hus­
band gave the wife a writing in the following words Calgary 
May 12, 1921. To Ella Rose, my Ktudebaker automobile as a 
wedding present from Walter Hill. Nanton, Alta.” There was 
no delivery of the ear on this occasion.

On May 14, 1921, the husband made application for a license 
for the car in his own name as owner and the license was issued 
in his name, but the wife says she furnished the money and 
that she did not authorise him to take out the licence in his name 
and when it came she changed the name to “Mrs.” She also 
paid for gasoline and repairs.

If there is any evidence of delivery of the car it must be 
found in the following evidence of the wife:—

“(j. And when did he make delivery of the car to you? A. 
It was there in the garage when I came home and it was mine, 
he had given it to me. (j. Did he ever go up to the car and say 
this car is yours? A. Well it was. The first time we took it 
out he said, ‘You can have a ride in your own car.’ (j. About 
how long would that be after you were married ! A. About a 
week. (j. He never made any formal delivery of the car to you ? 
A. Only just that way.”

The car was afterwards kept in the same garage as it had been 
kept in before the marriage, she drove it 10 or 12 times. The 
husband used it afterwards as he had done before. He says 
in his evidence “1 had to use it, 1 had to use it, carrying on 
my business.” There is no suggestion that he obtained any 
permission from his wife, and as far as 1 can gather from the 
evidence, he exercised full control over it.

My opinion is that there was not a complete gift entitling the 
wife to hold the car against the husband's creditors.

In the leading case of Cochrane v. Moore, 25 tj.ti.D. 57, at p. 
72, Fry, L.J., says:—“This review of the authorities leads us 
to conclude that, according to the old law, no gift or grant of 
a chattel was effectual to pass it whether by parol or by deed 
and whether with or without consideration unless accompanied 
by delivery; that on that law two exceptions have been granted, 
one in the case of deeds, and the other in that of contracts of
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sale where the intention of the parties is that the property shall 
pass before delivery; but that as regards gifts by parol, the olel 
law was in force when Irons v. 61 mall piece, 2 13. & Aid. 551, 10(1 
E.K. 467, was decided; that that case, therefore, declared the 
existing law.”

In Irons v. Small piece, supra, Abbott, C.J., said (106 E.K. 
at 468):—“I am of opinion, that by the law of England, in 
order to transfer property by gift there must either be a deed 
or instrument of gift, or there must be an actual delivery of 
the thing to the donee.”

The writing given to the claimant cannot have the effect of 
transferring the car for want of registration under the Bills of 
Sale Ordinance, (\0. 1915, ch. 49, and the claimant’s title, 
therefore, must depend on delivery. What happened in Cal­
gary on the day of the marriage gave no title for want of d>- 
livery and the same applies to the occasion when the writing 
was given, and I do not think that the conversation afterwards, 
when the husband took her for a ride and said ‘‘You can have 
a ride in your own car” operated as a delivery of the car, he 
was then exercising control over it. The words used did not 
create a gift at that time or profess to do so and she did not so 
consider it for she said it was hers already. In fact, it was not 
hers already for want of delivery. In Kingsmill v. Kingsmill, 
41 O.L.R. 238, Middleton. J., reviews the authorities and says at 
p. 242: ‘‘The title cannot pass without delivery, and the pos­
session subsequent to an abortive gift is not material.” In /»’ 
Breton’s Estate; Breton v. Woollven (1881), L.R. 17 Ch. I). 
416, the evidence in support of a gift was much stronger than in 
the case at Bar but, in the opinion of the Court, it failed to 
establish it.

Valier v. Wright and Bull Ltd. (1917), 33 Times L.R. 366. 
supports the same view.

It is unnecessary in the view I have expressed to consider 
further the other questions raised.

I would, therefore, allow the appeal with costs, set aside the 
judgment below and direct judgment declaring that the claim 
ant is not entitled to the car as against the plaintiff and that 
the plaintiff recover its costs of the issue incidental thereto from 
the claimant.

Appeal dismissed.
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McCVLLOVOH v. THE 8. 8. "MAR8HAI.L".
Exchequer Court of Canada, Audrttc, J. April 22, 1922.

Ai*i*f.al ( §IIB—45)—Admiralty Ac t. 1891, sec. 14 — Intkklocvtoiiy
JVIMiMKNT—AHHKXCK OK 1'KRM ISNIOX TO APPEAL—Jl KlSIUCTIOX.

The judgment of a Local Judge in Admiralty confirming the 
taxation by the Deputy Registrar or taxing officer of the marshal's 
bill for services and disbursements relating to the care of a ship 
whilst In his custody is an interlocutory judgment trom which an 
appeal does not lie under the provisions of see. 14 of the Admir­
alty Act 1891, unless permission to so appeal has been previously 
obtained.

Appeal from the decree or order of the trial Judge, as Local 
Judge in Admiralty of the Quebec Admiralty District, con 
firming the taxation, hv the District Registrar. Appeal dis­
missed for want of jurisdiction.

11. E. Walker, for appellant.
T. M. Tame y, for the ship defendant.
IV. L. If. Shanks, K.C., for The Steel Co. of Canada, purchas­

er of vessel.
Avdette, J. :—As a prelude it may be stated that appeals 

involving merely a question of costs should not be entertained : 
Chicoutimi Pulp Co. v. Price (1907), 39 Can. 8.C.R. HI. And 
it would seem that such a principle should obtain with special 
force, when the appeal was originally from the finding of the 
taxing master to the trial Judge who had already, in the final 
judgment allowed costs, and who confirmed the master—tin- 
appeal being practically upon a question of quantum, again in­
volving discretion from which there is generally no appeal.

However, there is in the present case a more serious objection 
standing in the way of the present consideration of the ques 
tions involved. The present appeal lies under the provisions 
of sec. 14 of the Admiralty Act, 1891. whereby it is enacted 
that appeals from interlocutory decree or order can be enter­
tained by the Exchequer Court when permission to so appeal 
has been previously obtained.

No such permission has been obtained.
This right to appeal is entirely statutory and this Court is 

given jurisdiction under the provision of such statute. It has 
no jurisdiction to hear the appeal in the absence of such per­
mission, as required by the statute.

The rule of construction in such cases is that all the pre­
scribed elements of jurisdiction must l>e present before the ap­
peal can be entertained. The statute in this case imposes the 
duty upon the appellant to obtain the leave to appeal either 
from the local Judge or a Judge of the Exchequer Court of

Can. 

Ex. Cl.
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Canada. No such leave has been obtained, and one of the re­
quirements of the statute preliminary to the jurisdiction of this 
Court arising has not been satisfied. Therefore the appeal i> 
not properly before the Court, and cannot be entertained. 
Brown on Jurisdiction, 2nd ed., 1001. sec. 21, p. 111.

Some stress has been laid at Bar upon the consideration that 
such judgment which determines the amount of the bill might 
be considered as a final judgment ; but with that view I cannot 
agree.

The term judgment may be considered as a generic term in 
law and practice covering all decisions given by a Court of law 
but there is a wide difference between a final ai.d an inter 
locutory judgment.

A final judgment is one which determines the rights of tin- 
parties in an action or proceedings, while an interlocutory judir 
ment or order is one which does not decide the cause, but mere'y 
that which only settles some intervening matters relating to tin- 
cause. Words and Phrases Judicially Defined (First Series , 
vol. 4, p. 3712 ; Second Series, vol. 2, p. 1149.

An interlocutory judgment or pronouncement determines 
some subordinate point or settles some special question arising 
in the cause and does not deal finally with the merit of tin- 
action. It can be ancillary to or executory of the final judg­
ment and complete the adjudication of the case.

An order which does not deal with the final rights of tin- 
parties, but merely directs how the declarations of right alread.. 
given in the final judgment are to be worked out, is interlocu­
tory.

Having come to this conclusion, finding that this Court for 
want of statutory leave has no jurisdiction, and following tli • 
decisions already given in this Court upon a similar point, in 
He 251 Bars of Silver cl* The Sea lns’ce Co. v. The Canadian 
Salvage Association (1915), 15 Can. Ex. 367, and Johnson v. 
The S.S. “Charles S. Neff” (1917), 17 Can. Ex. 155, I hereby 
dismiss the present appeal with costs, without expressing any 
opinion one way’ or the other upon the questions involved in the 
present controversy.

Judgment accordingly.
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MKINSKNtiKR v. DEl'TKR.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Perdue, C.J.M., Cameron, Fullerton, and 

Denniatoun, JJ.A. June IJ, 1UJ*.
Judgment (8VIIC—282) — Default judgment — Want of persona:, 

service — Setting aside—New trial—“Sufficient cause"— 
Sufficiency of application.

Where on an application to set aside a default judgment, which 
has been obtained without personal service as required by sec. 104 
of the County Courts Act, R.S.M. 1913, ch. 44, the only material 
before the Court was the affidavit of the defendant’s solicitor 
stating the defendant to have a good defence on the merits, but 
the Court having judicial notice of other facts in another pro­
ceeding, between the same parties, held, by a divided Court, affirm­
ing the County Court Judge, to be "sufficient cause" within the 
meaning of sec. 328 of the Act. warranting the granting of the 
application and the ordering of a new trial.

Appeal from the order of Prudhomme, J., setting aside a 
judgment obtained by the plaintiff against the defendant. Af­
firmed by divided Court.

G. li. Montieth, for appellant.
S. Abraham son, for respondent.
Perdue, C.J.M. I concur with Fullerton, J.A.
Cameron, J.A. I concur with Dennibtoun, J.A.
Fullerton, J.A.:—The action was brought to recover the 

sum of $500 for the support and maintenance of the defendant s 
wife. The statement of claim was issued on December 23, but 
was not served personally on the defendant but left with his 
mother. The father of defendant on January 5, 1922, notified 
Simon Abrahamson, who was at the time the solicitor of the 
defendant, of the fact. Abrahamson, by letter of January 5, 
1922, notified the County Court Clerk that no personal < vice 
of the statement of claim had been made, and the Count,\ Court 
Clerk replied by letter dated January 7, 1922, statin liât he 
knew that judgment by default could not be signed.

Section 104 of the County Courts Act, R.S.M. 1 :• I j, ch. 44, 
required the statement of claim in this action to be served per­
sonally, subject to see. 85, which empowers a Judge to “allow 
any service so already made.” The action came on for trial on 
February 2 when the evidence of the plaintiff was taken and 
judgment rendered for the plaintiff for the sum of $500 and 
costs. Counsel for the appellant stated at the argument that 
the nature of the service was called to the attention of the 
Judge presiding and that he allowed it. On March 27 a sum­
mons was taken out by Abrahamson, acting for the defendant, 
requiring the plaintiff to appear on April 3, and shew cause 
why the judgment should not be set aside, and on the return of 
the summons the order complained of in this appeal was made.

u.A.
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T11 my view the material in support of the application to w»t 
aside the judgment was insufficient.

In Rutherford v. ttready (1893). 9 Man. L.R. 29, a default 
judgment was signed against the defendant. Subsequently an 
application was made to set aside the judgment on the ground 
that the defendant had never been served with the writ. I)♦- 
fendant did not swear to merits, nor did he shew that the writ 
had never come to his knowledge. It was held by the full Court 
that the fact that defendant never was served with the writ of 
summons or a copy thereof, constituted an irregularity only 
and not a nullity, and that in order to take advantage of such 
irregularity defendant must shew, not only that he was not 
served with the process, but that the process did not come to his 
knowledge or into his possession.

The only affidavit filed in support of the application to set 
aside the judgment in the present case was that of Abraliamson, 
the defendant ’s solicitor. It shewed that the statement of claim 
had come to the knowledge of the father and mother of the de­
fendant prior to January 5, 1922, and to the knowledge of his 
solicitor on that date.
Paragraph 10 of the affidavit reads as follows:—

“The defendant has a defence to this said action in good failli 
and on its merits, and is desirous of having an opportunity to 
defend the said case on its merits, and does not desire to delay, 
harass or defeat any just claims of the plaintiff.”

The authorities are clear that a mere statement that the de­
fendant has a good defence on the merits is not sufficient. 
Defendant must go further and shew what the character of tin- 
defence is: Stewart v. McMahon (1908), 1 S.L.R. 209; McKui 
v. Johnston (1913), 10 D.L.R. 80(5. Moreover, the affidavit of 
merits should be made by someone who has a knowledge of tin- 
facts and it would be a rare ease indeed where the affidavit of ;i 
solicitor alone leading an application to set aside a judgment 
would be sufficient.

Under the above authorities it seems clear that if this were 
an application in the Court of King’s Bench to set aside a judg­
ment of that Court, the defendant would fail. A Judge of i 
County Court has, however, larger powers over judgments of 
the County Court than a Judge of the King's Bench has over 
judgments of the King's Bench.

Section 328 of the County Courts Act reads:—
“A new trial or re-hearing may be granted, or a judgment 

reversed or varied, in any action, suit, matter or proceed in . 
upon sufficient cause being shewn for that purpose.”
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This Court held in Moggey v. Blight (1920), 53 D.L.R. 132, 30 Man. 
Man. L.R. 464, that although the Judge had a wide measure of
discretion, it is a judicial discretion which must be exercised in-----
accordance with established principles. The only statement in Mkishenoeu 
the atlidavit filed in support which could possibly suggest a df.vter.
ground for setting aside the judgment is a reference in para. 7 -----
to “a conviction of Magistrate Wallace of Ni ver ville, Ma ni- l"‘n,jl\,"l,n' 
toba,” of someone for something. We might from reading the 
whole affidavit infer that it was the defendant who was con­
victed, but of what offence we do not know. Deponent goes on 
to sav:—“which conviction and appeal dealt with the same 
matter as the subject matter of the writ above referred to.”
When it is remembered that this action is for board and lodg­
ings furnished the defendant s wife, it is pretty difficult from 
this record to make even a guess at the connection between this 
action and the conviction. 1 can find nothing whatever in any 
of the material filed which would justify the exercise by the 
County Court Judge of the powers given him by sec. 328.

At the trial both counsel discussed facts which are not shewn 
in the record, and it was said that the County Court Judge hatl 
full knowledge of facts which justified him in making the order.
A County Court Judge must, however, be guided in his de­
cisions by the material before him exactly in the same way as a 
Superior Court Judge, and in considering appeals from his de­
cisions the Court can only look at the material upon which the 
judgment or order was founded as shewn by the record.

I would set aside the order appealed against and restore the 
judgment entered against the defendant in this action on 
February 2, 1922.

Dennistoun, J.A. This is an appeal by the plaintiff from 
an order of the Judge of the County Court of Jolys which 
says:—

“Upon application of the solicitor for the defendant ajid upon 
hearing counsel for the plaintiff and the defendant,—It is here­
by ordered that the judgment signed herein be set aside and the 
defendant be permitted to file his defence within twenty days.”

This order does not on its face purport to be based on any­
thing more than the statements of counsel.

From the material filed in the County Court it appears that 
the summons in the action was not served on the defendant per­
sonally. it was left with his mother when the defendant was 
absent in Ontario.

It came to the knowledge of a solicitor who was acting for 
the defendant in another proceeding that the summons had been
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so served, and the solicitor wrote the County Court Clerk warn­
ing him not to sign judgment by default.

By sec. 104 of the County Courts Act, in all cases where n 
sum greater than $20 is claimed the service of the writ of sum 
mons and statement of claim shall be made upon the defendant 
personally except as provided in sec. 85 of the Act which en­
ables the Judge by order to allow any service already made.

I can find no order allowing the service in this case and as 
the claim was for $500 such an order was necessary. It was 
stated by counsel for the appellant that such an order had been 
made, but it has not been produced, and there is no trace of it 
on the files of the Court and respondent’s counsel knows nothing 
of such an order.

The case came on for trial in presence of counsel for tin- 
plaintiff, who offered formal evidence, and judgment was given 
for $500. The defendant had filed no dispute note, did not 
appear and was not represented.

The defendant forthwith made an application to set aside tin- 
judgment and for leave to file a dispute note and the Judge 
made the order quoted above.

Under these circumstances it appears but reasonable and right 
that there should be a new trial, but objection is taken that tin- 
defendant did not lodge sufficient material to support his ap­
plication, and that the Judge should not have made the order 
until the defendant fully disclosed his defence, and swore that 
the summons which was irregularly served had never come tn 
his knowledge.

An affidavit which was filed, but not referred to in the order, 
was made by the defendant’s solicitor, owing, as he states, tn 
the absence of his client in Ontario. Tested by the strict re­
quirements of an affidavit in support of such a motion it falls 
short of what is necessary, but it is evident the County Court 
Judge did not base his order solely on that affidavit. He based 
it upon what was alleged by counsel coupled with what he had 
before him on the files of the Court, and certain facts of which 
he had judicial knowledge in another proceeding which was 
pending before him in a quasi-criminal case in which the iden­
tical parties were concerned and the subject-matter was tin- 
same, viz., the support of the plaintiff’s daughter by the de­
fendant who is her husband.

The husband had been charged with desertion and a penalty 
of $500 was imposed; there had been an appeal to this County 
Court Judge who allowed the appeal and varied the magis­
trate's order, and concurrently the proceedings by way of tin
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civil action have been before the same Judge, the father being 
prosecutor in one proceeding and plaintiff in another.

Through irregularities on both sides the matter has got into 
a state of confusion and it is advisable that the merits should be 
thoroughly examined, accordingly the Judge has in the exercise 
of his discretion decided that the best course to pursue is to re­
open the matter and allow the defendant to plead and give 
evidence.

The case is unique and I think the order of the Judge should 
be supported as the best course to pursue where the application 
of the strict rules of practice in the higher Courts would be op­
pressive and possibly work an injustice to a litigant.

Under sec. 328 a new trial or re-hearing may be granted, or 
a judgment reversed or varied, in any action, suit, matter or 
proceeding, upon sufficient cause being shewn for that purpose.

Pursuant to the order appealed from the defendant has filed 
his defence verified by affidavit which disclosed the merits upon 
which he relies, and which in strictness should have been in 
documentary form before the County Court Judge when the 
motion for a new trial was made. Counsel applied on the argu­
ment for permission to file and read this affidavit nunc pro tunc, 
and I would give leave to do so.

This being donc, I hesitate to say that the Judge had not 
“sufficient cause” for ordering a new trial or that his discretion 
in so doing should be interfered with.

1 would therefore dismiss the appeal, with costs to the suc­
cessful party in the cause.

Appeal dismissed; the Court beiny equally divided.

McKEAtiE v. McKEAtiE.
supreme Court of Canada. Idington, Duff, Anglin and Mignault, JJ„ 

and Bernier, J. (ad hoc). November 21, 1921.
Appeal (§IIA—35)—Jvrisiiiction of Canada Supreme Court—Title 

to land—Annual rents—Rights in future.
A judgment awarding the payment of a monthly sum in pur­

suance of a deed of donation of land, which by the terms of the 
donation may be charged upon the land, is appealable to the 
Supreme Court of Canada as being a “matter in controversy re­
lating to title to lands or annual rents or where rights in the 
future might be bound." within the meaning of sec. 46 of the 
Supreme Court Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 139.

Appeal by the intending appellant from an order of the 
Registrar affirming the jurisdiction of the Court and approving 
security. Affirmed.

The order appealed from is as follows:—The facts from the
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pleadings an<l the papers filed, appear to be as follows:—A dona 
tion was made by plaintiff’s father October 8, 1887, and ac­

cepted by defendant by which certain lands conveyed to tin- 
defendant were charged or hypothecated in favour of the plain­
tiff. The deed of donation amongst other things provided <v 
follows:—“The said donee or his representatives ... to pay 
or cause to be paid to his sister. Sarah S. McKeage the sum of 
$100 . . . That the said Sarah M. McKeage shall have a home 
with the said donee or his representatives as long as she will re 
main single . . . under all which charges and conditions tin.' 
said donee doth hereby accept the foregoing donation consenting 
that the said lands shall remain affected and mortgaged for that 
purpose.”

Subsequently difficulties arose between the plaintiff and de­
fendants and an action was instituted by the present plaintiff 
in December, 1910, in which she alleged that the defendant had 
failed to furnish her with a home and that his obligation in that 
regard was of the value to her of $200 a year and asked that the 
lands in question be declared hypothecated in her favour for 
such sum of money as would produce an annual rent of $200 a 
year and that the defendant be condemned to pay that sum. 
Judgment was pronounced in this ease December 18, 1911, by 
the Superior Court, in which was the following considérant :

“Considering that at the argument the interpretation to be 
given to the word ‘home* in the donation was by mutual assent 
of both parties submitted to the Court for an expression of 
opinion, it proceeded to hold that the intention of the donor 
was to provide the plaintiff with a home on the premises and 
that she be supported as a member of the family as long as sb.- 
would not marry and could not be expected to be supported 
elsewhere. ’ ’

As the donation had not been actually registered, the Court 
dismissed the conclusions of the action which asked for payment 
of $200 a year for the past year’s board and for a yearly allow­
ance in money, but declared that the plaintiff had according to 
the terms of the donation a right to have a home with the de­
fendant or his representatives so long as she remained single 
and to have the immovable property affected by mortgage for the 
fulfilment of the obligation.

No appeal was taken from this judgment, but trouble did 
arise subsequently between the parties and the present action 
was brought, in which the plaintiff alleged that the defen dan: 
had failed to comply with his obligation and asked that the 
donation should be converted into money and the defendant
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condemned to pay the plaintiff in lieu of the obligation imposed 
by the act of donation. $.10 every month, and as a guarantee of 
such payment that the immovables in question should be hy­
pothecated in favour of the plaintiff.

Various defences were set up to the demand and the case 
went to trial before Pouliot, J., who after reciting all the facts 
in his considérants gave judgment June 14, 1920, and awarded 
$20 a month to the plaintiff and condemned the defendant to 
pay that sum unless he should receive the plaintiff into his house 
as a member of his family and furnish her with support and 
maintenance until her marriage.

This judgment was confirmed by the Court of King’s Pencil 
(appeal side) (1921), 32 Que. K.B. 407, and the defendant now 
appeals to the Supreme Court and asks to have the jurisdiction 
of the Court affirmed.

The disposition of the present motion depends upon the con­
struction to be placed upon sec. 46 of the Supreme Court Act, 
R.S.C. 1906, ch. 139:—“Does the matter in controversy relate 
to title to lands or tenements, annual rents and other matters 
and things, where rights in future might be bound?” It was held 
in Rodier v. Lapierre (1892), 21 Can. K.C.R. 69. that the words 
“annual rents” in this section mean “ground rents” (rentes 
foncières) and not an annuity or other like charge or obligation. 
The expression “rentes foncières” is discussed very fully in 
Pothier vol. 55, ch. 2, art. 14, by Planiol and other French 
authors and ip its simplest form implies an obligation by a donee 
to make certain payments to the donor or a third party secured 
by a hypothèque upon the lands donated. I do not understand 
the respondent to take exception to this construction nor would 
he seriously contend that if by the present judgment a “rente 
foncière” was granted that the present appellant would not 
have a right of appeal to the Supreme Court, but he argues that 
the judgment in this case places no charge upon the lands men­
tioned in the donation, or in other words that the judgment is a 
security of lesser value and importance than the plaintiff al­
ready had by reason of the donation and the judgment confirm­
ing it, unappealed from, given in 1911. 1 cannot so construe 
the judgment in the present case. Although there is no express 
declaration as there was in the judgment of 1911 that the lands 
in question are charged in favour of the plaintiff, yet 1 think 
the judgment has that effect and that in the words of the statute 
the controversy relates to “annual rents.” I therefore hold 
that the Supreme Court has jurisdiction.

Girouard, for appellant ; W’alsh, K.C., for respondent.
Idinuton, J.:—I agree that this appeal is, according to the 
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jurisprudence of this Court, within its jurisdiction mid. then 
fore, tlmt this appeal from the Registrar’s ruling should he di> 
missed with costs.

Di'kk, *T. : — I aifi of the opinion that the appeal from tli 
Registrar’s judgment should he dismissed with costs.

Anumn, — The intended respondent appeals from an <> 
«1er of tin- Registrar affirming the jurisdiction of this Court.

I’nder a deed of gift from her father to her brother the plum 
t ill" was on tit led to a home with the donee (the defendant ) so Ion. 
as she should remain single, and also to he paid the sum of $40u. 
In litigation between the present parties in 1911 the plaint; 
was declared entitled to a home according to the terms of t !-. 
donation and to have the immovable property, which was tie 
subject of the donation, affected by a mortgage for the fulfil­
ment of the donee’s obligation to provide her with such a hone . 
In the present action, instituted in 1919, and therefore subject 
to the Supreme Court Act as it stood before the amendment of 
19-0, the respondent sought to have the obligation to furnish 
her a home converted into a payment of money and the im­
movable donated declared subject to a charge in her favour for 
payment of whatever sum or sums she should be held entitled 
to. By the judgment of the Superior Court the appellant-dr 
fendant \s obligation to provide a home for the respondent xva> 
so converted that he was condemned to pay the respondent *_'> 
per month while she remained single, reserving to him however 
the right, instead of paying that sum monthly, to provide her 
with the home to the furnishing of which the donation to him 
had been made subject. No adjudication was made oil the 
claim that the donated immovable should be declared charged 
with the payment of the sums so awarded. This judgment w;i - 
affirmed on appeal to the Court of King’s Bench, 32 Que. K.B. 
407. An appeal having been taken to this Court by the de 
fendant, the registrar on motion made on his behalf affirme-1 
our jurisdiction. From that order the present appeal i 
brought.

It has been established by many decisions that in applyii. 
sec. 46 of the Supreme Court Act R.S.C. 1906, eh. 139 “tic- 
matter in controversy” means not the matter to be determined 
upon the appeal, or that disposed of by the judgment a quo, 
hut the subject of the plaintiff’s claim as disclosed by the d- 
claration. That principle of construction is not confined to 
cases in which the jurisdiction of the Court depends upon tlm 
value of the matter in controversy. It extends to the other 
cases covered by sec. 46 as well. HimUlon v. City of Montrât1
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(1016). 2 Cam. Sup. Ct. Pr. 51. In my opinion tin* defendant's 
title to the land donated to him would he affected hv the plain- ( 
tiff** obligation if established as a charge upon such land, as 
she sought.

I am further of the opinion that this case also falls within 
the concluding words of see. -III. sub-see. b “other matters or 
things where rights in future might be bound." If the amount 
allowed the respondent should hereafter be found insufficient 
and she should desire to have it increased she would find her 
self bound by the judgment in this case. On the other hand, 
the representatives of the defendant, should the plaintiff surviv* 
him. would also find their rights in the land subject to the 
charge of the plaintiff's claim, had the judgment accorded her 
the declaration of such a charge. J.es Ecelesiasiujncs ih si. 
Snlpia ih Montreal v. Cité de Montreal (1889), 1(> Can. S.C.R. 
699.

I am therefore of the opinion that the order affirming juris­
diction was rightly made and that this appeal from it should 
he dismissed with costs.

Mk.nau.t, J.The majority of the Court being of opinion 
that we have jurisdiction to hear this ease I will not enter 
a formal dissent, although I would be inclined to consider our 
jurisdiction as extremely doubtful, in view of the meaning plac­
ed on the words “annual rents" by liodier v. La pierre, 21 Cun. 
S.C.R. 69.

Bernier, J.:~I am of the opinion that the appeal from the 
Registrar’s judgment should be dismissed with costs.

Appeal dismissal.

McGVIGAX v. tiKKEXFIKLII LAND & t OXSTIU VTIOX Co.

(Quebec Court of Review. Archibald. A.C.J.. Dimers, anil de 
Lorimier, JJ. December ,it), Ht.it.

Vf.NIIOR A Nil IM R( HASEK ( § IK—27 ) — PROMISE OF SALK — I\t/l IISV AS To 
1XCU M lilt A \ Vis—ASS I HA NCI : fl HAT 1‘ROVKRTY CLEAR—PlIOt'ERl Y 
NOT CLEAR—RhillT TO HAVE. IUO.MISE OF SALE RKSCIXIIKII.

A purchaser of an immovulile who at the time of signing the 
promise of sale expressly inquires if the property is free from 
all hypothecs and receives a formal answer in the affirmative, is 
entitled upon discovering that the property is incumbered by two 
hypothecs to have the promise of sale declared null and of no effect 
and to have it rescinded for all legal puriioses.

Appeal from the judgment of the Quebec Superior Court in 
in action for rescission of promise of sale and for a return of 
purchase money paid thereon. Affirmed.

The plaintiff is holder of a promise of sale from the defendant

729

Que.
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of a certain immovable and made a payment on account of tin* 
purchase price. The property was sold to the plaintiff as bein ' 
free from all hypothecs. Plaintiff subsequently discovered thm 
it was incumbered by two hypothecs and a sale subject to tin* 
right of redemption, so he sues in rescission of sale and ask> 
for reimbursement of the sum paid on account.

The defendant pleads that plaintiff voluntarily signed tin- 
promise of sale with full knowledge of what he was doing ami 
that no fraud was practised against him.

The Superior Court maintained the action on the following 
grounds:—

“Considering that the evidence shews that the plaintiff, b- 
fore signing the said offer and the said promise of sale, expressly 
inquired of defendant’s manager, who signed the said promise 
of sale for the latter, if the property was free from all hy­
pothecs, and received a formal answer in the affirmative ; in tin* 
circumstances that the plaintiff may have signed the said pro 
mise of sale believing that the printed clause reading ‘The party 
of the first part binds itself to pay at maturity any mortgage if 
any affecting said property sold under this contract’ did not in 
any way diminish the guarantee resulting from the above men­
tioned declaration ; that the plaintiff had a great interest in as­
suring himself of the hypothecary condition of the property, 
that the said declaration was false and that the immovable sold 
is incumbered with the hypothecs mentioned in the declaration ; 
that if the plaintiff could not demand the cancellation of tin- 
said promise of sale on account of the existence of these hypo­
thecs without putting the defendant in default to have them 
radiated, his demand, nevertheless, constitutes a sufficient mis 
ui-dcmcurc to do so; that it was, thenceforth, incumbent upon 
the defendant to have such hypothecs radiated, which it did 
not do; dismisses the plea, declares null and of no effect the said 
promise of sale and rescinds it for all legal purposes, condemns 
the defendant to pay to the plaintiff the said sum of $600.07 
with interest, the whole with costs. ’

Authority cited by the Court : Duchannc v. Quintal (1910 
49 Que. S.C. 528.

Brown, Staveley and Jenkins, for plaintiff.
R. Stanley Weir, K.C., for defendant.
Confirmed in review.

Appeal dismissed.
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11KX oi rel JOHANNKSHOX v. RURAL MUNICIPALITY 
ol CARTIKH.

Manitoba King's Bench, Galt, J. May 22, 1922.
Mandamvs ( gIG—65)—Manitoba Pvblic Schools Act, R.S.M. 1913, en.

165—Discretion of municipal council as to forming new
SCHOOL DISTRICT—REFUSAL OF COUNCIL—RhillT OF RATEPAYERS
TO COMPEL.

The council of a rural municipality has a discretion under the 
Manitoba Public Schools Act, R.S.M. 1913, eh. 165, as to whether 
or not it will form a new school district under sec. 81 of the Act 
as amended by 1921 (Man.), ch. 49, sec. 6 (d), and where the 
council has exercised its discretion in refusing to form a new 
district a mandamus will not be ordered to force it to do so.

[See Annotation, 49 D.L.R. 478.]

Application for a mandamus requiring à rural muni 
cipality and municipal council to pass a by-law under the pro­
visions of the Public Schools Act, U.S.M. 1913, ch. 165, and 
amendments thereto, to form a new school district out of 
portions of other school districts already in existence within tin- 
in un ici pal i t y. D ismissed.

11. A. Bergman, K.C., for applicant.
W. Hollands, for the municipality.
Galt, J. -The applicant shews on affidavit that on or about 

October 5, 1920, a petition signed by 8 ratepayers of the said 
school districts, including the applicant, was presented to the 
council of the rural municipality of Cartier in Manitoba, pray­
ing for the formation of a new school district to be known as 
Elm Point school district, to be formed out of certain specified 
lands in the said school districts, but that no action was taken 
thereon by the said council until a meeting of the council on 
August 2, 1921, when a resolution was passed that the said peti­
tion be accepted and that a new school district be formed out of 
the said described lands ; that on September 6, 1921. a petition 
was presented to the council against the formation of such school 
district and at a meeting of the council on this day a resolution 
was passed that the formation of such school district be left over 
and laid on the table for counter petition ; and that on October 
4 a further resolution was passed by the said council, “that the 
counter petition presented to the council against the formation 
of the said school district be accepted and requisition granted 
against the formation of the new school district at Elm Point,” 
that on or almut November 11, 1921, an appeal by these rate­
payers from the last-mentioned decision of the council was heard 
by Prud’homme, C.C.J., and on hearing the appeal His Honour 
decided that when the council passed the resolution (which His

K.B.
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Honour understood to be a by-law) on August 2, 1921, grant in:: 
the petition to form such school district, that the council thou 
became functus officio, and accordingly he dismissed the said 
appeal.

The applicant and other ratepayers, it is alleged, have mad<- 
every reasonable effort to have the said council pass the required 
by-law but the said council has refused and continues to refu- 
to pass the same.

The applicant then shews that he and 3 other specified rate­
payer* are the fathers of 14 children of school age all residing 
at a distance of from 3VL» to 5 miles from four different school < 
in the neighbourhood and that none of the said schools has a- 
commodat ion for all of the said children.

The rights of the parties depend for the most part upon tin- 
provisions of the Public Schools Act, as amended, but before 
dealing with the provisions of this Act it would be well to first 
consider the right to a mandamus, evoked by the plaintiff. Tin- 
writ of mandamus is a high prerogative writ the purpose of 
which is to supply defects of justice; and accordingly it will 
issue, to the end that jutftice may be done, in all cases when* 
there is a specific legal right and no specific remedy for enfon* 
ing such right ;aml it may issue in eases where, although then 
is an alternative legal remedy, yet such mode of redress is lee. 
convenient, beneficial and effectual. (See 10 liais, p. 77, pari. 
160). The grant of writ of mandamus is a matter for the dis­
crétion of the Court. It is not a writ of right and it is not 
issued as a matter of course (See 10 Hals. para. 161). A writ 
of mandamus will be granted ordering that to be done which tic- 
statute requires to be done, and for this rule to apply it is not 
necessary that the party or corporation on whom the statute - 
duty is imposed should be a public official or an official body. 
In order, however, for a writ of mandamus to issue for the en­
forcement of a statutory right it must appear that the statute in 
question imposes a duty the performance or non-performance 
of which is not a matter of discretion. Prima facie the words 
“it shall be lawful” occurring in a statute are permissive and 
enabling only, ami will not therefore impose a duty in respect of 
which mandamus will lie (See 10 Hals. para. 170). The rule 
that the Court will not by mandamus the honest deci­
sion of a tribunal, even though erroneous, in matters within ii> 
jurisdiction, and in regard to which it has been entrusted with 
a discretion applies to all tribunals and not only to those of a 
judicial character. Accordingly, the writ of mandamus will n 
issue to command a local authority having power to approve n-

3139
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disapprove of building plans, to approve plans which they have 
in good faith rejected. The rule applies although the with­
holding of approval was the result of the misconstruction of a 
statute (See 10 liais, para. 192). The applicant for a writ of 
mandamus must shew that there resides in him a legal right to 
the performance of a legal duty by the party against whom the 
mandamus is sought. In order, therefore, that a mandamus 
may issue to compel something to be done under a statute, it 
must be shewn that a statute imposes a legal duty. It is only 
in respect of a legal right that mandamus will lie (See 10 liais, 
para. 195). The Court will, as a general rule, and in the exer­
cise of its discretion, refuse a writ of mandamus, when there is 
an alternative specific remedy at law which is not less con­
venient. beneficial and effective (See 10 Hals. para. 201).

The obligation to perform the act must lie imperative : and a 
mandamus will not be ordered to enforce a mere discretionary 
power, not amounting to an absolute duty : Seager's Magistrates’ 
Manual, p. 85, citing Ifcy. v. Itishop of Oxford (1879), 4 Q.B.D. 
525. 48 L..J. (Q.B.) 609.

Looking now at the Public Schools Act, R.S.M. 1913, ch. 165, 
I quote the following sections applicable to the matters in dis­
pute : —

“‘ 10 (2) Notwithstanding such limitation as to area any 
school district may include more lands, provided the trustees 
make suitable arrangements for conveying to and from school 
all pupils who would have farther than one mile to walk in order 
to reach the school ; and the trustees of any such district are 
hereby empowered to provide for the expenses in connection 
with such conveyance of pupils.

See. 57 as amended 1913-14 (Man.), ch. 86, sec. 17, pro­
vides:—

Man.

K.B.

Kkx kx hkl 
Joii ax.xks-

Ri k. Mi x. 
ui Cabtii it.

‘It shall be the duty of the trustees of rural school dis­
tricts,—

(J) to provide adequate accommodation and a legally quali­
fied teacher or teachers according to the regulations prescribed 
by law, for all the actual resident children in their school dis­
trict between the ages of live and eighteen years of age . . .

58. The board of school trustees may, in their discretion, pro­
vide transportation at the expense of the district for the children 
of the district to and from the school, and the trustees are here­
by empowered to provide for the expense of such conveyance.

Further provisions with regard to conveying children lo school 
are also contained in secs. 93 and 95.

“162. Before any steps are taken by the trustees for securing
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a new school site on which to erect a new school house, or to move 
an existing school house from one site to a new site, they shall 
call a special meeting of the resident ratepayers of the district 
to consider the matter, and no change of school site shall he 
made except in the manner hereinafter provided without the 
consent of two-thirds of the resident ratepayers present at such 
special meeting.”*

The plaintiff relies mainly upon sec. 81, as amended by 1921 
(Man.), ch. 49, sec. 6 (d), which reads as follows: —

“Every council of a rural municipality shall have power by 
by-law,—

(d) to form a new school district comprising portions of exist­
ing districts.”

It has already appeared from the allegations of Jonas Johan 
nesson that a petition to form a new school district was present 
ed to the council in 1920 and that a resolution approving of ii 
was passed in August, 1921 ; that shortly afterwards certain rate­
payers objected by petition to the council against the formation 
of this new school district and the council resolved to accept, 
the second petition and refuse to grant the former petition. 
Johannesson and his friends seem to have been under the im­
pression that the first resolution was a by-law and accordingly, 
under the provisions of sec. 83 of the Public Schools Act, they 
appealed to the County Court Judge of the district but their 
appeal was dismissed.

Sec. 9 of the Public Schools Act provides that no school dis­
trict shall lie so formed unless there shall be at least 10 children 
of school age living within the same.

Bearing in mind that the applicants to the council in 1920 
were acting on behalf of only 14 children, and legally the pro­
visions of the Act entitled the board of school trustees to provide 
conveyances for children, one can readily understand the hesita­
tion which the municipal council would feel before granting the 
petition for the formation of a new school district. Unquestion­
ably it was a matter calling for the exercise of sound discretion, 
and when they exercised this discretion by refusing to form tin- 
new school district 1 think they were acting entirely within their 
rights and that the remedy by mandamus is not open to the 
plaintiff. It is argued that the defendants are refusing to grant 
a legal right, but it is also manifest that the parties who claim 
the benefit of this right have a perfectly adequate alternat iw 
remedy in having conveyances provided for the children.

Under these circumstances I must dismiss the application with 
costs. Application dismissal.
•[Editor’s Note:—Section 162 repealed 1917 (Man.), ch. 71, sec. 13.J
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MEMORANDUM DECISIONS.

Memoranda of less important Cases disposed of in superior and 
appellate Courts without written opinions or upon short 

memorandum decisions and of selected Cases.

AXDKHROX v. I toll I >1.
Alberta Supreme Court, Appellate Division, Seott. C.J., Stuart, Reek, 

Iljinilman and Clarice. J.J.A. Junr II, IP.il.

Partnership (§1—3)— Insufficiency of evidence establishing 
relationship—Rights of creditor—Rights of parties inter x<\] — 
Appeal by the defendant from the judgment of Ives, J. in 
an action to recover $1,355 for work done, moneys advanced, 
and on an account stated. Affirmed-

F. L. Ifurnct, for appellant.
//. If. Gilchrist, for respondent.
Scott, C.J. and Stcart, J.A. concur with Beck, J.A.
Beck, J.A.The defence sets up that the plaintiff was a 

partner with the defendants and one Kiscadden; and that, con­
sequently, the items of the plaintiff's claim were items, if estab­
lished, to be taken into account in a general account of the 
partnership affairs. The trial Judge found that there was no 
partnership, lie found this on much conflicting evidence in­
cluding documents signed by the parties on each side incon­
sistent with their respective claims set up in the action. His 
finding cannot be set aside and I think I should have come to 
the same conclusion as he. Having so found, he held the plain­
tiff entitled to some items and directed a reference but suggested 
that the parties might agree upon the amount for which the 
plaintiff should have judgment, assuming there was no partner­
ship. Judgment, approved as to the amount, was eventually 
entered for the plaintiff for $1,150.77 with costs.

This judgment should be affirmed and the appeal dismissed 
with costs.

IIyndman, J.A.:—I have read the evidence throughout and 
am bound to say I entirely agree with the conclusion reached 
by the trial Judge. Even taking the evidence of the defendants 
themselves, without considering that of the plaintiff, although 
perhaps it might be said that a partnership of some kind was 
in contemplation, I fail to find that a definite agreement was 
ever brought to a finality.

Some of the documents put in at the trial, if standing alone, 
would point to a partnership, but when all the facts and cir-

Alta. 

App. Div.
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eiimstances surrounding their relationship are examined, it will 
he seen that these documents might very reasonably exist with 
Mit necessarily involving the plaintiff and Kiscadden in an 
actual partnership.

I am not prepared to say, of course, that a creditor of the 
business might not he held to have a good claim as against the 
four parties but that would be on the ground of estoppel.

As between themselves, however, 1 do not think it possible 
to properly find as a fact that an actual partnership existed.

I would, therefore, dismiss the appeal with costs and affirm 
the judgment as entered.

Clarke, J.A. concurs with Heck, J.A.
„ 1 ppeal dism ism #/.

ASHWORTH v. VANCOI’VKR TKIHT Co.
Hritish Columbia Court of Appeal. Macdonald. Ualliher.

McPhillips and Eberts. JJ.A. January 10, lit*.:.

Receivers (§1—2) —Order of appointment—Further order 
Validity—To obtain deeds ami mortgages—To raise money.] 
Appeal by defendant from the order of Morrison. J. Reversed.

(\ IV. Craig. K.C.. for appellant.
K. C. Mayers, for respondent.
Macdonald, C..I.A.:—An order appointing R. K. lloulgat'. 

receiver and manager, of certain lands on Savory Island, was 
made on .June 21. 1921, and not appealed from, and on .July n. 
1921, a further order was that the defendant deliver to the said 
receiver and manager, the deed of conveyance of the lands which 
it held in mortgage and three several mortgages held by it on 
the same lands. The order further authorized the receiver and 
manager to raise money upon the lands for the purpose of pay 
ing taxes and registering the deed and mortgages, same to take 
priority over the defendant's mortgages-

I am unable to understand upon what grounds or upon what 
principle the first order was made, but I must accept it as an 
existing fact. Whatever rights lloulgate is entitled to under 
it. and whatever powers he may be clothed with by it. lie may. 
of course, exercise, but tin1 second order may lie set aside by 
this Court and as it is, in my opinion, with great respect, wrong. 
1 would set it aside.

The appeal, therefore, ought to he allowed.
(îalliher, .J.A.:- I have examined the cases cited by .Mr. 

Mayers, but with deference, I can find no principle laid down 
which, in my opinion, can be applied to the circumstances of this 
ease, nor am I aware of any authority which would justify me
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in maintaining the order appealed from. The appeal must be 
allowed.

Mc Phillips, J.A. would dismiss the appeal.
Eberts, J.A. would allow the appeal.

Appeal allowed.

HVKNTUR V. C1TV OF VANTOVVKR.

British Columbia Supreme Court. Clement, ./. December Hill.

Arbitration (§11 —10) — Claim for damages against munici- 
jhiIitg— Vancouver Incorporation Act, 1000, eh. M, sec. 1.1.1 (g) 
— Appointment of arbitrator bg Judge—Jurisdiction—Persona 
désignait!.]— Action on an award. Dismissed.

Griffin Co., for plaintiff.
E. Jones, for defendant.
Clement, J. :—On July 8, 1915, the plaintiff notified the de­

fendant municipality that he claimed compensation for damage 
done to certain property of his by reason of the construction of 
the Hastings St. viaduct, and (by subsequent notice) that lie 
had appointed F. (’. T. Lucas as his arbitrator to act in the pre­
mises. The defendant municipality made no appointment, and 
the plaintiff thereupon invoked sub-sec. 9 of sec. 133 of the 
Vancouver Incorporation Act 1900, eh. 54, and made applica­
tion to Murphy, J. to appoint an arbitrator for the city. That 
sub-section provides that such an appointment may. in default of 
appointment by the city, he made by a Judge of the Supreme 
Court. The application was in fact made “before the presiding 
Judge of this Court in Chambers." the material in support of 
the application being intituled “ In the Supreme Court of British 
Columbia" and duly filed in the registry of that Court. The 
order itself (dated June L’7. 1918 ) is similarly intituled, was 
“settled” by the Registrar, and issued as a Chamber Order of 
the Supreme Court. It was certainly not a consent order, and 
there is no warrant for saying that the defendant s counsel at 
any stage of the proceedings waived the objection which he 
now takes that the appointment was made without jurisdiction, 
and that, in consequence, no Board of Arbitration was ever 
properly constituted. The evidence would have to go so far 
as to shew that the statutory in inritum proceeding was by con­
sent. turned into an arbitration under voluntary submission.

Were the matter res nova I should, I think, hold that the ap­
plication was in fact made to, and the order made by one hold­
ing the office of Judge of the Supreme Court, and that the 
caption might well be disregarded as innocuous surplusage.
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B.C. But Mr. McCrossan strongly contended that the matter is not
c A res nova and that I am bound by the decision of the Court of

Appeal in Chandler v. Vancouver, (1919), 45 D.L.R. 121, 20 
B.C.R. 465, to hold the objection fatal- On consideration I think 
he is right. Gregory, J., had held in that case that he could not 
hear the application to quash a by-law of the city, because Mor­
rison» J. had granted the rule to shew cause and, being 
a persona designata, (under a section similarly worded to sub- 
see. 9 of sec. 193) could alone hear the application on the re 
turn of the rule. He also refused to refer the matter to Mr. Jus 
tice Morrison, J. but, on the contrary, dismissed the motion. Tin* 
Court of Appeal dismissed an appeal from Gregory, J.’s decision. 
The Chief Justice said, at p. 123, amongst other things, this: 
“The proceedings were wrongly taken in the Supreme Court. 
It was therefore, I think, the duty of Gregory, J. to dispose of 
the matter before him in the only way in which, in my opinion, 
he could have properly disposed of it, that is to say, by dis­
missing the motion and setting the rule aside- Had the matter 
been adjourned to be heard by Morrison, J., I think that Judge 
could only have dealt with the matter in the way I have sug­
gested. lie could not then have treated the proceedings as 
proceedings before him persona designata.” In the case at 
Bar the matter was, in this view, never before the persona de­
signata. The award must stand or fall upon the order as it 
exists and that order being made by a tribunal having no juris 
diction the award must fall. This defence is open, I think, 
under para. 7 and also under paras. 16 and 22. At all events, 
when the point was taken in argument, I allowed Mr. Griffin to 
re-open the case, and gave him every opportunity to meet it by 
evidence of waiver, &c.

I express no opinion upon the numerous other defences raised 
except to say that, in my opinion, the release relied upon does 

• not operate to defeat plaintiff’s claim, neither upon its true
construction nor upon the evidence does it apply to the situa­
tion as it ultimately developed.

The action is dismissed with costs, against which the plaintiff 
should have a set off of costs on the issue as to the release.

Action dismissed.

WEEDON v. TURNER.
British Columbia Court of Appeal Macdonald, C.J.A., Martin. 

McPhillips and Eberts, JJ.A. June 6‘, 1922.
Brokers (§IIB—10)— Right to commissions for sale of timber 

limits — Listing — Option — Insufficiency of employment ni
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broker.]—Appeal by plaintiff from judgment of Gregory. J. 
in an action for commission. Affirmed.

A. M. Whiteside and C. N. Haney, for appellant.
E. P. Davis, K.C., for respondent.
Macdonald, C.J.A.:—I think the trial Judge came to the 

right conclusion on both claims.
The smaller item was a claim for $750. for services said to 

have been rendered by the plaintiff to the defendant. If there 
is evidence of a request to render the services, I think, it was 
not made with the intention that a legal obligation should be 
created, nor so understood by the plaintiff.

With regard to the larger claim for commission for the sale 
of the timber limits, I also think the trial Judge has come to the 
right conclusion-

The facts are shortly as follows:—The plaintiff having gone 
into the brokerage business and knowing the timber limits in 
question even better than defendant himself did, wrote the de­
fendant. who lives in New York, asking for a “listing” which 
is a local term signifying authority to offer the property for 
sale by the person with whom it is listed as agent for the vendor. 
The defendant answered on November 26, 1919, declining to 
list the property but stating that if the plaintiff could find a 
bond fide inquirer, the plaintiff might take the matter up again 
with the defendant. In the letter, the defendant mentioned his 
price as $500,000. The plaintiff got a proposal from Anderson, 
Jeremiahson & Hanson, who, after an investigation of the tim­
ber limits, proceeded no further. The plaintiff then came into 
touch with Wilson & Brady and wired the defendant asking if 
he might give a 30-days’ option to these parties. Defendant 
answered this by granting authority to give an option to Wil­
son & Brady, naming them, at the price of $500,000, commission 
to be $50,000, and stating that if any reduction in the purchase 
price should be made, it must come out of the commission, as 
the defendant would take nothing less than $450,000 net. Wil­
son & Brady had the property examined and “cruised”, and 
instead of the 4,600,000 feet of timber which was supposed to 
be on the limits, the cruise shewed only 1,250,000. After some 
negotiations, in which defendant personally took part, they 
came to an end, but some months later, Wilson & Brady took the 
matter up again with the defendant without the intervention of 
the plaintiff, and an agreement was come to for the sale and 
purchase of the timber on a stumpage basis. It is upon this 
latter agreement that the plaintiff claims commission. In my
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opinion, it is quite clear that there was no general employment 
and the plaintiff cannot succeed.

There was a cross-appeal i of an amendment by
adding iff's firm as a party plaintiff. There is no merit 
in the cross-appeal, and it should be dismissed with costs. 

Martin, .LA.:— I agree that this appeal should be dismissed. 
McPhillips, J.A.:—I would dismiss the appeal- 
Eberts, J.A. would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissal.

STANDARD TRUSTS Co. v. DAVID STEELE LTD.
British Columbia Court of Appeal. Martin, Galliher, McPhillips an-' 

Eberts. JJ.A. March 7, 1U22.
Landlord and tenant ( §110—33)— Leased premises—Mean- 

iny of —Rankruptey Amendment Act, 1!)21 (Can.) eh. 17 see. U
Landlord and Tenant Art R.S.II.C. Hill eh. 126— Writ of po 

session —Termination of tenetne y before trustee entered into po- 
session- Riyhts and liabilities.]—Append by defendant from tie- 
judgment of Murphy. J. affirming (1021), 62 D.L.R. 650, in 
favour of the plaintiff in an action to recover possession of land 
and for a declaration of forfeiture of the defendant’s leav 
thereof, and for double the yearly value until possession given. 
Affirmed.

K. C. Mayers, for appellant.
K. P. Davis, K.C., for respondent.
Martin, J.A.:—In my opinion the Judge has reached tin- 

right conclusion and. therefore, the appeal should be dismissed.
Qalliiier, J.A.:—I am in agreement with the trial Judge for 

the reasons given by him.
McPhillips and Eberts, JJ.A.. would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissed.

MARTIN v. THE “SEA FOAM."
Exchequer Court of Canada. B.C. Admiralty District, Martin, L.J.\. 

December / J. 11*21.
Admiralty (§1—4)— Jurisdiction—Admiralty Court Act, see. 

13—Vessel not “under arrest’*—Seizure by mortyayee.] —Ac­
tion in admiralty dismissed. |See annotation 1 D.L.R. 450.]

J. A. W. O’Neill and Hume It. Robinson, for plaintiff- 
I). N. IIossie, for defendant.
Martin, L.J.A. :—It is clear to me after examining the author­

ities cited this morning and in the light of those cited yesterday, 
that this Court has no jurisdiction to entertain this action, be­
cause the vessel was not “under arrest”, within the meaning

821425
7
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of sec. 13 of the Admiralty Court Act. 1861, eh. 10. at the time 
the writ was issued herein.

The case of The Northumbria ( 1869), L.R. 3 A. & E. -4. 39 
L..1. (Adm.) 24. 18 W.R. 356; and The Normandy (1870). L.li. 
3 A. & E. 152, 39 L,J. (Adm.) 48. 18 W.R. 903, which Mr. 
Robinson has drawn to my attention are instructive, and. if I 
may say so, the latter goes further than I am inclined to think 
it should have gone. It is an expansion of the principle laid 
down in The Northumbria to this extent, that sees. 13 and 34 
“must he construed together and so construed they shew the 
purpose of the Legislature to have been to give jurisdiction to 
this court whenever it was substantially seized of a suit against 
the vessel” (18 W.R. 903 at 904). and Phillimore, D.C.L. of tie* 
Admiralty Court goes on to explain his decision in The North­
umbria ease by saying that (18 W.R. 903 at 904) “There a 
caveat warrant having been issued, and the arrest of the vessel 
prevented, and bail having been given by the owners in pur­
suance of their undertaking, I held that, for the purposes of the 
present section, there was a constructive arrest,” and he pro­
ceeds to say that he is prepared though not till after. I confess, 
much hesitation, to take the step, further, that he did take sub­
ject to a condition which he imposed. In the Northumbria case. 
L.R. 3 A. & E. at p. 27, he had observed that:—” . . . . 
looking to the whole scope and tenor of the Act. this Court was 
intended to have jurisdiction in suits of this description, when 
it is in possession of the bail which represents the “res” whether 
the “res” has been released on the giving of bail after the ar­
rest. or whether the arrest has been prevented, as in this in­
stance. by such a caveat as has been issued in this case.”

But all that has been done in the case at Bar is that the 
vessel was seized by the mortgagee when it was being repaired 
in the plaintiff's yard and no proceedings of any kind have been 
instituted in this Court, and so I do not feel prepared to take 
still another step further and hold that the pursuance of a 
private remedy is at all analogous to the taking of public pro­
ceedings in this Court, and hence there is no jurisdiction to 
entertain this action in this Court and it must be dismissed.

Action dismissed.

JON KM v. SWIFT CANADIAN Co.
Manitoba King's Dench. Curran. J. January 0, W.i>.

Costs (§11—20)— Extra costs—Case of special importance or 
difficulty—Action for personal injuries—Motor Vehicle Act —

Man.

K B



752 Dominion Law Reports. [68 D.L.K.

Man.

K.B.

“Vexatious or unreasonable conduct”—Man. Rules 951, 305, 
948.] —Motion by plaintiff for increased costs of action. Motion 
granted.

D. 11. Laird, K.C., and J. T. Whittaker, for plaintiff.
J. B. llugg, K.C., and J. W. Wilton, for defendant.
Curran, J.:—This is the first case to come before me where 

the provisions of R. 951 have been seriously discussed and 
authorities on the question cited, reviewed and considered. I 
am much pressed by counsel for the plaintiff to either remove 
the statutory bar entirely and permit a full taxation of tin- 
plaintiff’s costs irrespective of the $300 limit imposed by tlie- 
above rule, or to partially remove such limit so as to permit an 
increased amount to be taxed to the plaintiff but less than the 
full taxable costs.

It is contended by counsel for the plaintiff that this case was 
one of special importance or difficulty and argued as elements 
tending to establish this the importance of the medical testimony 
adduced, the special preparation for and the length of the trial, 
the number of counsel engaged, and necessary consideration of 
the Motor Vehicle Act, R.S.M. 1913, ch. 131, which he con­
tended raised questions of special importance to the public.

I cannot agree that any of these things or all of them together 
render the case one of special importance or difficulty within the 
rule. There is nothing specially difficult in this case. It is just 
an ordinary action to recover damages for personal injuries 
due to alleged negligence on the part of the defendant company. 
So far as I can see, it differs not at all from any such actions 
which are but commonplace trials in our Courts.

The next ground argued is that the costs have been increased 
by “vexatious or unreasonable conduct on the part of the de­
fendant,” in first denying the ownership of the motor truck 
and persisting in such denial until the last witness for tin- 
plaintiff, McKnight, was put in the box. This witness was chief 
clerk in the auto license department of the provincial govern­
ment and was called to prove ownership and licensing of the 
motor truck in question. It was then that defendant’s counsel 
admitted that defendant company were the owners of the motor 
truck at the time of the accident. This admission was somewhat 
belated and if it had been made earlier, no doubt some expense 
might have been avoided.

The plaintiff contends that under R. 305 the fact of ownership 
should have been admitted in the statement of defence and also 
the fact that the motor truck at the date of the accident wa> 
not licensed under the provisions of the Motor Vehicle Act
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Both of these were matters within the knowledge of the defen­
dant company; as to the former the plaintiff undoubtedly was 
put to unnecessary costs in proving ownership of the truck, a 
fact which the defendant ought to have admitted and not de­
nied as it did. As to the latter, the statement of claim does not 
contain any allegation that the truck in question was not 
licensed, so I do not think there was any duty under R. 305 
devolving on the defendant to admit this. The rule says that 
a defendant filing a statement of defence shall admit in his 
statement of defence such of the allegations in the statement of 
claim as he knows or can readily ascertain to he true. The 
plaintiff invokes R. !)48 and asks that any extra costs entailed 
by the want of this admission should be paid by the defendant. 
This claim is well founded as to the question of ownership of 
the truck but not as to the question of the truck being licensed 
at the time of the accident.

The plaintiff lastly claims that the defendant’s conduct was 
vexatious or unreasonable at the trial whereby considerable un­
necessary costs were incurred in calling evidence to prove that 
there was a roadway across the vacant ground to the east of the 
cemetery between Morley and Brandon Avenues over which the 
truck in question could have come and so got onto Brandon 
Avenue along which street certain of the plaintiff’s witnesses 
said they saw the truck going to Osborne St.

The defendant contended the truck was travelling on Osborne 
St. and did not come down Brandon Avenue at all.

The gist of the plaintiff’s complaint on this score is simply 
that what the defendant’s witness Law said as to the absence 
of a road or means of travel in winter over the stretch of waste 
ground was untrue; that it took him by surprise and put him 
to extra cost in producing witnesses to prove the contrary, 
which he did, causing counsel for the defendant to admit in his 
address to the jury that there was really nothing in the con­
tention that this piece of ground was impassable for motor cars 
in winter.

The trial was prolonged by reason of this question being 
raised and also by the denial by the defendant of ownership 
of the truck. One additional witness on the roadway question 
was certainly rendered necessary. In my opinion, the defendant 
company’s conduct in these respects was to some extent vexa­
tious or unreasonable and tended to increase the costs but not 
to any very serious extent. I find it very difficult to say to 
what extent these costs have been so increased, but taking every­
thing into consideration, I think, possibly, a day might have 

50—68 D.I..R.
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been saved at the trial and the attendance of the witnesses Mr 
Knight and Doody dispensed with.

I will allow the plaintiff on taxation of his costs in excess ni' 

the $300 limit provided by R. 951, an increased amount within 
the limit of costs ordinarily taxable equal to the counsel fee> 
for plaintiff’s counsel for one day properly taxable, and the 
eosts of and incidental to the procuring of the attendance of 
the two witnesses McKnight and Doody. (’osts of discovery 
also allowed.

Motion grant (ft.

< HAM1SERL1X v. MAW.
Manitoba Kinq's Itcnch, Curran, J. January U, 1922.

Brokers(§1111 — 10) — Hiylit to commission —Efficient caus< 
— Evidence of employment.] —Action to enforce payment of 
commission. Dismissed. fSee Annotation 4 D.L.R. 531.]

/*. (\ Locke, for plaintiff.
E. K. Williams, for defendant.
Curran, J. :—The view I take of the evidence in this case is 

simply that the plaintiff if not acting jointly for himself ami 
Wallar and those associated with Wallar was acting solely for 
Wallar and such associates in securing the lease of the premises 
in question- It is true lie denies this, but the whole course of 
dealing for the lease in question, as disclosed in the evidence, 
confirms me in this opinion, particularly the terms of tin- 
letter (ex. 2) caused to be written by the plaintiff and signed 
by him and which came to the addressee who was an officer in th<* 
employ of the defendant the Standard Trust Co. It is clear to me 
from the language used in this letter that it purports to be an of­
fer by the plaintiff on behalf of himself and others not disclose 1 
to rent the premises in question. It seems strange if the plain­
tiff was really acting in the capacity of agent for the defendants 
to secure a tenant for these premises that this offer should have 
been made by him to his principals and not to the customer, 
surely a reversal of the usual course of procedure, and in­
dicates, in my judgment, for whom the plaintiff was really act­
ing, viz., Wallar and those associated with him in the proposed 
moving picture venture. I cannot discover, even in the plain­
tiff’s own evidence, that he had any authority or instructions 
from any of the defendants to find a tenant for this property, 
and which if he succeeded in so doing would entitle him to a 
commission from them. McKinley was merely a salaried clerk 
in the employ of the defendant trust company, lie had n<>
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authority to bind that company nor any of the other defendants 
to any agency contract which obligated his employer to pay 
any commission. 1 have no doubt the plaintiff, when he inter­
viewed McKinley in the Standard Trust Co. offices did enquire 
about eommisson, if be succeeded in finding an acceptable tenant 
for the land in question and that McKinley did inform him 
of the company’s rule of paying half commission. I do not 
doubt tliat he refused this, as he says that McKinley, then went 
to consult Lugsdin, who was next in authority to the manager 
in the trust company’s office (Mr. Harvey, the managing direc­
tor, being then absent) and who did no doubt act in Mr. Har­
vey’s place and for him in many of the duties that pertained to 
the office of a managing director but that Lugsdin agreed to pay­
ment to the plaintiff of the usual commission if a tenant was 
secured T am not prepared to find as a question of fact. It is 
true Lugsdin, who was examined on commission in the city of 
Toronto, where he now resides, having left the trust company’s 
services, does not explicitly deny this assertion in as strong and 
unequivocal terms as it is made by McKinley. Nevertheless, 1 
attach a good deal of importance to his statements such as they 
are and which certainly raise a grave doubt in my mind as to 
the propriety of giving full credit to McKinley’s testimony on 
this point. In any event 1 doubt that Lugsdin had authority to 
bind or commit the defendant trust company to any such re­
sponsibility in the matter of commission and certainly he had 
no such authority from the other defendants, as to whom the 
plaintiff admits he did not discuss the question of commission 
with any of them, although he contends that in discussing the 
proposed lease with Charles Kelly that this party remarked, 
“he supposed lie would get the usual commission.” Charles 
Kelly was not produced as a witness being dead at the time 
of trial and as there is no denial of this statement of the plain­
tiff, I must accept it, though 1 do not attach any weight or im­
portance to it as it does not appear that Charles Kelly had any 
authority from the owners to bind them or any of them 
in the matter of payment of commission- He is not a party 
to the action nor to the lease which was ultimately granted.

It seems strange that if the plaintiff was looking to these 
defendants for a commission that he did not make his position 
in this respect clear to J. S. Maw and Thomas Kelly, both of 
whom he consulted about securing this lease. It also seems 
strange to me that the plaintiff did not obtain some memo in 
writing from some responsible official of the trust company to 
show that he was representing it and the other defendants in
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looking for a tenant, and containing the terms upon which a 
leasehold interest might be acquired by third parties, and, 
furthermore, that he should not have had a definite under 
standing or agreement as to his commission in the event of 
success.

if the plaintiff has a claim for commission against anyone, 
it seems to me such claim should be made to those for whom 
he really was acting and not these defendants for whom I am 
satisfied he was not acting in any capacity that entitled him m 
law to payment from them of a commission. It is, in my view 
of the evidence, impossible to hold that the plaintiff introduced 
the defendants as his principals to those who ultimately lu­
carne lessees of the property in question, and that he was lin- 
efficient cause of the transaction afterwards carried out as was 
held in Foster v. British Colonial Fire Insurance Co. (1917), :I7 
D.L.R. 404, 28 Man. L.R. 211. That case must be read in tin- 
light of its own evidence and not as establishing as a general 
principle of law that wherever a man, having found out fn-m 
an owner of property the terms upon which it can be sold or 
leased, produces a third party who will buy or lease on thn>c 
terms, thereby and without more entitles himself to payment 
of a com mss ion by such owner ; there must be, I think, in ad­
dition to this, an intimation to the owner that a commission 
would be expected from him in the event of a sale or lease being 
effected upon the terms stated.

The intimation of expectancy of a commission not negative I 
by the owner who permits the other to go to the trouble of find­
ing a customer in the expectation of earning a commission max­
well be a fact from which a promise to pay commission may lx* 
inferred. It seems to me that a mere volunteer who acts as a 
go-between between buyer and seller and ultimately product*', 
a sale cannot upon that fact alone found a legal claim for com­
mission, nor can a third party, who, acting for a possible pur 
chaser, obtains terms of sale or lease of property from its own 
er and thus brings about a completed transaction upon tin - 
identical terms, legally claim a commission from the owner in 
the absence of some promise to pay a commission, either expn 
or implied.

In the present case, I have no doubt but that the plaintüï 
was the means of bringing the contracting parties together with 
the resultant lease, representing the consummated transaction 
but I cannot find that in so doing the plaintiff was the defend­
ant'h agent, or the agent of any of them, or acting in a in­
capacity under circumstances from which it can be fairly pro



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports.

sinned that the defendants, any of them, led him to expect 
payment of a commission for his services. On the contrary, I 
think the fair inference of fact to be deduced from the whole 
of the evidence is that the plaintiff was acting either for himself, 
Wallar and the latter’s associates, or for Wallar and his as­
sociates alone, liis letter seems to make this abundantly clear. 
It is a definite offer to lease made to the owners and not a pro­
posal from such owners of terms upon which they would lease 
the property. Nor can the informal memo, made out by de­
fendant Maw on the back of an envelope, be construed as a 
proposal or offer upon which the plaintiff might act, for this 
document was not handed to the plaintiff by Maw, nor was its 
content communicated to plaintiff by Maw, but the paper was 
handed to McKinley in the trust company’s office after the 
plaintiff had interviewed Maw for the purpose of intimating 
to the Standard Trust Co., as Maw’s co-executor, the terms upon 
which he. Maw, was willing to lease the property.

The plaintiff alleges as the foundation of his action in para. 
3, his employment by the defendants to act for them as their 
agent to procure a tenant for the land in question. I find that 
no such employment has been proved either by express agree­
ment or by facts and circumstances from which, in law, an im­
plied agreement could be made out. 1, therefore, dismiss the 
plaintiff’s action with costs, to include costs of discovery ex­
aminations.

Action dismissed.

HALTKR & ARNOLD v. DOMINION BANK.
Manitoba King's Bench, Dgsart, J. April 10, I9.!2.

Bankuvptcy (§111—15)— Rights of trustee as to **property" 
—Recovery of payments—Trust funds—Preference—Appeal— 
Extension of time —Orders — Estoppel — Pleading motion to 
strike.] —Appeal by the defendant from an order of the ref­
eree. dated April 26, 1921, refusing to strike out certain para­
graphs in the plaintiff’s statement of claim. Reversed. [See 
Annotations, 53 D.L.R. 135; 56 D.L.R. 104; 59 D.L.R. 1.]

E. F. Ilaffner, for defendant.
Dykart, J.:—Against the hearing of this appeal the plain­

tiff has urged several reasons which being partly in the nature 
of preliminary objections ought to be considered at this stage. 
(1) It is urged that the appeal is brought too late ; that 
the order of the referee extending time for bringing this appeal 
is irregular and ineffective because obtained ex parte : llam-

Man.

K.B.
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ilton v. Tweed (1884), 9 P.R. (Ont.) 448. Rut while that ex­
tension order remains intact or unappealed from it must Im- 
taken at its face value and the objection, therefore, fails. (*J 
Then it is objected that the defendant is estopped by the fact 
that the order appealed from has been acted upon. To this tin- 
defendant replies that the order was acted on. not by the de­
fendant, but solely by the plaintiff, who amended its statement 
of claim thereunder. Even if this objection were otherwise 
valid, the leave to appeal, which was granted to the defendant 
after the alleged estoppel, would undoubtedly be a complete 
answer to this objection. (3) It is further set up that this 
application raises the question of res judicata; that the defend­
ant is here seeking to strike out from the statement of claim 
paragraphs which were refused in the earlier action. Here 
again the leave to appeal which the referee granted to that 
order must be a complete answer to the objection, llow can 
that order be said to be final when the tribunal which made it 
has granted leave to appeal from it? (4) Finally, the plain­
tiff urges that the defendant’s relief, if it has any, is not by this 
interlocutory appeal but a demurrer- To this the defendant 
points out that demurrer can be argued only at the trial and 
that a prudent anticipation of possible defeat on the demurrer 
would necessitate preparation of an elaborate defence to the ob­
jectionable paragraphs, and that such defence would be wholly 
useless if the demurrer were upheld. To avoid the expense and 
trouble of a defence which in its nature must be elaborate I 
think the matter ought to be disposed of in the interlocutory 
way rather than at the trial.

Dealing with the appeal then upon its merits, it appears quite 
clearly that the statement of claim sets up two causes of action. 
The first is set forth in the first 18 paragraphs and is based 
briefly upon fraudulent preference. The remaining paragraphs 
of the statement of claim set up a cause of action based upon 
a breach of trust. They both eomplain that the defendant 
has received from the insolvent D. Coughlin & Co. the sum 
of $105,000 by instalments extending over a period of about 
months and that these moneys should be handed over to tin- 
plaintiff as the authorized trustee in bankruptcy of D. Cough­
lin & Co. The question arises as to what passes to the authorized 
trustee in bankruptcy by an assignment.

Under sec. 10 of the Bankruptcy Act, 1919, ch. 36, “every 
authorised assignment shall . . . vest in the trustee all the prop­
erty of the assignor at the time of the assignment, excepting
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such thereof as is held by the assignor in trust for any other 
person ...”

“Property,** as defined by sec- 2 (dd) of the Act, “includes 
money, goods, things in action, land, and every description of 
property, whether real or personal, moveable or immoveable, 
legal or equitable . . . interest and profit, present or future, 
vested or contingent in, arising out of, or incident to property 
as above defined.”

While this definition in attempting to define a term by the 
use of thr term itself sins against one of the cardinal rules of 
definition, and leads to some confusion, inasmuch as it may be 
said in a condensed form to define “property” as including 
property and incidents of property, nevertheless, does state 
that “things in action” are “property” within the meaning 
of sec. 10. Clearly from this “things in action” as well as 
money pass to the trustee under the assignment. Which, if 
either of these things, passed to the plaintiff in this ease? There 
is no question that the money itself has been paid to the de­
fendant and that it has been paid by the insolvents 1). Cough­
lin & Co. Was the payment effected so as to prevent the in­
solvent from securing the return of the money? There is no 
allegation or suggestion that the moneys were obtained by the 
defendant from the insolvent under duress or by means of any 
fraud or deceit. The payments seem to have been made vol­
untarily ami with the intention of passing the money. What 
ground, therefore, would the insolvent have for asking reversal 
of this payment? It would seem none. This would be true 
whether the moneys belonged to the insolvent or to strangers. 
If the money was their own, clearly the insolvents had the right 
to deal with it and cannot now be heard to repudiate this pay­
ment. If the money belonged to strangers for whom the in­
solvents held it in trust, then in the allegations shown, the in­
solvents actively participated in an alleged breach of trust 
and being wrongdoers could not recover money from their joint 
wrongdoer. This is, of course, assuming that the plaintiffs al­
legations of wrongdoing are correct-

1 am, therefore, of the opinion that the insolvents at the 
moment of making assignment were not in a position to demand 
from the defendant return of the said money and, therefore, 
that the assignment did not vest in the trustee either the said 
money or the right to retain it.

The plaintiffs however urge that the second branch of the 
case, based on breach of trust may he supported and justified 
by see. 20, (1) of the Bankruptcy Act. This section states

K.B.
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that the trustee may, with the permission in writing of the 
inspectors, do all or any of the following things:—“(e) Bring, 
institute, or defend any action or other legal proceeding relating 
to the property of the debtor.”

But does this action relate to the property of the debtor ! 
The offending paragraphs allege that the money was not, tin- 
property of the insolvents but had been received by them as 
the proceeds of sale of consignments of cattle shipped to the 
insolvents by a large number of customers situate through tin- 
country and that the money belonged to those customers and 
was held in trust for them by the insolvents at the time of tin- 
payment. If these allegations are true, then this action, so far 
as it is based upon the alleged breach of trust, relates to tin- 
property of those customers and not of the insolvents.

If this money really belongs to the customers, and for tin- 
purpose of this appeal it cannot be denied, then it would seem 
that it falls within the exception covered by sec. 10 of the Act 
above mentioned, that all the property of the assignor passes 
“excepting such thereof as is held by the assignor in trust for 
any other person.” As the money itself appears from the al­
legations to have passed from the assignors to the defendant, 
there remained in the insolvents, if anything, nothing more 
than a right to recover it. But a right to recover the money 
was for the benefit of the customers, the owners; and this 
right is alleged to have been held by the assignor in trust for 
those customers. Therefore, the right to recover the money 
was excepted from the property which vested in the trustee.

By what authority does the plaintiff assume to act for the a I 
leged owners of this money, the customers 1 It shows no privity 
between itself and this large number of strangers to this tram- 
action. Is it entitled to set itself up as the guardian of these 
customers merely because it has taken an assignment of the in 
solvents’ estate. If it recovered the money from the defend 
ant, would it be for the general benefit of creditors? Section 
25 of the Act seems to forbid this in the following language : 
“The property of the debtor divisible amongst his creditors (in 
this Act referred to as the property of the debtor) shall not 
comprise the following particulars:— (i) property held by the 
debtor in trust for any other person.”

Under this section, the plaintiff would be bound to turn over 
to the customers this money, if and when recovered. Why 
then should it, at the apparent expense of general creditors, 
concern itself with the return of money, which, when recovered, 
it would have to turn over unimpaired to the owners for whom
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it was livid in trust by the insolvents? Surely, nothing but 
direct authority from these customers would warrant this trus­
tee in bringing such action, and then it is questionable whether 
the action should be brought by the plaintiff as trustee in bank­
ruptcy. Hut, in any case, no such authority or request from 
the customers has been shown, and 1 am of opinion that the 
plaintiff has entirely mistaken its duties and rights in so far 
as this branch of the action is concerned.

Nor van it be urged that injustice will be done to these cus­
tomers by allowing this appeal- If any wrong has been done 
to them or any of them, they have each a cause of action for 
the recovery of their money. Such cause of action is the per­
sonal right of each of them, and has not passed to the plain­
tiff. It is open to each of them to bring his individual action. 
Each transaction is alleged to have been separate and distinct 
from all others, and must depend upon its own facts and cir­
cumstances. No doubt a test case might be made of a number 
of cases combined, but this, however, is beside our present in­
quiry.

The first branch of this ease, however, based as it is upon 
alleged fraudulent preference, assumes that the money be­
longed to the insolvent firm, and as such was paid to the de­
fendant within 3 months of the assignment. These allegations 
set up a cause of action which is well within the plaintiff’s 
rights, and is supported in every important particular by the 
provisions of the Act.

The second branch of the case, however, is, in my opinion, 
without foundation, as no cause of action exists on such al­
leged facts. The statement of claim, therefore, in so far as it 
sets up cause of action based upon alleged breach of trust, is 
embarrassing and unwarranted and ought to be stricken out : 
K.B. Rule 347, and eases cited in Williams’ Manitoba King s 
Bench Act ; see also Ilolmested’s Ontario Judicature Act, 4th 
ed., p. 574.

This appeal will, therefore, be allowed, and the paragraphs 
based upon the alleged breach of trust and complained of in 
the notice of motion will be stricken out, with costs of this ap­
peal to the defendant in any event.

K.H.

Appeal allowed.
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HALTER * ARNOLD V. DOMINION BANK.
Manitoba King'» Bench in Bankruptcy. Macdonald, J. July lit, IP!'.

Bankruptcy (§1—6)—Procedure—Bankruptcy Act Unie /- - 
—Jurisdiction—Transfer of proceeding».]— Motion on belml f 
of the defendants to stay proceedings in the action and 
(‘Minier motion on behalf of the plaintiffs to transfer the pro­
ceedings already taken to the bankruptcy side of this Court.

[See Annotations 53 D.L.R. 135, 56 D.L.R. 104, 5!) D.L.R. 1
£. T- llaffner, for defendant.
Macdonald, J. The statement of claim clearly indicates 

that the plaintiffs herein are acting as authorized trustees under 
the Bankruptcy Act, 1919, eh. 36, and the contention of the 
defendants is that the proceedings should be to a Judge in 
Chandlers by notice of motion served in the ordinary manner 
as provided by Rule 120 of the Bankruptcy Act, and the sub­
sequent proceedings carried on under that rule.

The plaintiffs, as stated, proceeded under the ordinary pro­
cedure applicable to the King’s Bench actions and the de­
fendants filed their statement of defence. Subsequently, the 
defendants moved to strike out certain paragraphs of the state­
ment of claim, which application was refused by the referee in 
Chambers but on an appeal from the referee to a Judge in 
Chambers the offending paragraphs were stricken out (1922 , 
68 D.L.R. 757. Then the defendants moved to stay the proceed­
ings and the plaintiffs counter-moved to have the proceeding- 
treated as the issue between the parties and continuation of the 
proceedings under Rule 120. The defendants cite Bartlcg - 
Trustee v. Ilill (1921). 61 D.L.R. 473, 50 O.L.R. 321.

Under see- 63 of the Bankruptcy Act the Court of King's 
Bench is constituted the Court of Bankruptcy for this province 
but under see. 64, (3) all the powers and jurisdiction in haul 
ruptcy otherwise conferred by this Act may and shall he ex­
ercised by or under the direction of one of the Judges of tlv 
Court upon which such powers and jurisdiction are so conferred.

The judgment of Middleton, J. in Bartleg’s t rustee v, //-'•/. 
supra, I accept as the proper procedure to be taken in all mal • 
ters in bankruptcy. That case, differs, however, from the ca ■ 
under consideration. There, upon the facts there was no ne­
cessity for any such declaration as that sought in the action and 
it semed to have been more a question of the incurring " 
unnecessary costs that appealed to the Judge who decided th.at 
ease. Here, however, there is a very substantial issue to lie 
decided and under Rule 120 the Judge may give directions foi 
the preparation and filing of pleadings and for the trial of sudi
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ouest ion or issue, or may make such other order in the premises 
a> to tile .1111iL'i' shall seem best.

Now, it is evident that the plaintiffs here have misconceived 
the proper method of proceeding. Doth parties, however, have 
now defined the issue and 1 can see no reason why the pleadings 
as they stand should not Is- the issue to la1 tried ami the pro­
ceedings continued under Rule 120 of the Bankruptcy Act. 
tin the question of costs, no further or other costs shall In1 
allowed for the proceedings taken except such Mists as would 
'lie properly incurred had the proceedings originated und • 
Rule 120.

If necessary an order can lie made transferring the proceed­
ings into the Bankruptcy Division and there continued as 
stated, anil there shall lie no costs to either party on either of 
these motions.

.MAXKOVHKV V. JACOB.
Manitoba King'* Bench. Macdonald. J. Jane 7, HU1.

Vendor and I’vrchaher (§IE—27)— Resruaion—Mitre pre­
sentation*-New hume—Ratification—Burden of proof.]—Ac­
tion for rescission of an agreement for purchase of a house and 
the return of the portion of the purchase-price paid thereon. 
Judgment for plaintiff.

./. A. Cherniurk, for plaintiff; K. ./. Thomas,.for defendants.
Macdonald, J.:—The plaintiff entered into an agreement 

with the defendant Benjamin Jacob for the purchase of a pro­
perty in the city of Winnipeg upon which a dwelling-house 
was in course of construction and paid on account of the pur­
chase-price the sum of $000.

lie now brings this action for a rescission of the agreement 
and a return of the $o()0, alleging that he was induced to enter 
into the contract for the purchase of the said property through 
misrepresentation on the part of the defendants and their agent.

In the latter part of August, 1921, the was desirous
of purchasing a house in which to live and with, that end In 
view approached one Bennie Shepps, a real-estate agent, who 
showed him a number of houses for sale, hut none being suit­
able Shepps stated he would bring him In a nice bungalow on 
Flora Avenue that was about being completed, Shepps having 
the property for sale, and the defendants are bound by any 
representations he made and he represented to the plaintiff, as 
did also the defendants both by word and conduct, that the 
house was a new house.

It had all the appearance of a new house- There was nothing

A4C
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on the outside to cause suspicion that, it was not. It was stucco 
finish, covering any chances to detect it was not a new house 
as represented. It was, as is now admitted, an old cottage 
reconstructed and made to appear as if a new building. The 
defendant Aaron Jacob says that Shepps wanted to get a pur­
chaser for it and that he told him to go ahead and get the pur 
chaser but not to bring in a purchaser until it was finished.

Accompanying the plaintiff and Shepps when the house was 
first looked at were Mrs. Mankovsky, the wife of the plaintiff, 
and their daughter, and they examined the house inside and 
out. There was a pile of old lumber from an old log house 
and Aaron Jacob said the new house was all new material, 
that the house was all new. The inside had new floors, also 
new baseboards, new plaster and everything appeared new. 
No old lumber appeared. In the opening to the basement the 
plaintiff saw old hoards in the wall leading into the cellar and 
he asked the defendant Aaron Jacob about this old lumber 
when Jacob replied that this wall held better than plaster. The 
plaintiff also saw an old door in the kitchen and said. “Why is 
this, it should be a new door,” and it was agreed that a new 
door would be put in its place. On this first occasion they were 
unable to get into the basement as there was no stairway yet 
put down. On the assumption that the building was new tin- 
plaintiff that same day executed the agreement referred to ami 
paid his deposit. On the following day the plaintiff and hi< 
son went again to the house and were able to enter the cellar 
where he discovered old joists and beside them new joists, an 
old beam and two old posts, one of them being decayed. II" 
asked the defendant what this meant and Shepps who was 
present said Jacob would fix this for sure, put in new lumber 
and a new post, and it was so agreed.

The defendants contend that the plaintiff having learned on 
inspection that the building was not a new building that there 
bad been such conduct on his part that he had ratified the con 
tract and that he cannot rescind.

There is no doubt there were evidences which could la- seen 
from the basement which created a suspicion but I do not 
think that the mind of the plaintiff fully grasped the situation, 
lie may have been suspicious. His $.'>00 had been paid, the 
contract had been entered into and it is quite reasonable to 
suppose that he might not have really understood the position 
he stood in. I do not think that his conduct amounted to a 
ratification of the agreement.

The defendant cites Campbell v. Fleming (1834), 1 Ad. & El.
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40, 110 E.U. 1122, 3 New & M. (K.R.) 834, which holds 
that there was at the first a gross fraud on the plaintiff, but 
after he had learned that an imposition had been practised on 
him he ought to have made his stand. Instead of doing so he 
goes on dealing with the shares and in fact disposes of 
some of them. Supposing him not to have had at that time 
so full a knowledge of the fraud as he afterwards obtained he 
had given up his right of objectif in by dealing with the shares 
after he had once discovered that he had been imposed upon.

This, however, is not a case in point . The plaintiff here has 
done nothing in the way of dealing with the property.

In Schneider v. Heath (1813), 3 Camp- 506, 14 R.R. 825, 
the sale of a ship was described as useful for general purposes. 
The hull is nearly as good as when launched, &e., “the vessel 
to be taken with all faults, &c.,“ It was found to be worm-eaten, 
keel-broken, unseaworthy and by no means corresponded with 
the description in the particulars. Plaintiff refused to complete 
the purchase and demanded back his deposit. It was held 
there was fraud sufficient to vitiate the contract and the plain­
tiff was entitled to recover back his deposit.

In Red urn ve v. Hurd (1881), 20 Ch. I). 1. 30 W.R. 251, it was 
held that where one person induced another to enter into ar. 
agreement with him by a material representation which is 
untrue, it is no defence to an action to rescind the contract 
that the person to whom the representation was made had the 
means of discovering and might with reasonable diligence have 
discovered that it was untrue.

The onus lies on a person who has made false représenta 
tions to show clearly that they were not acted on and this has 
not been shown here. Was the representation relied upon, that 
is the important point, and I find that in this case the represen­
tation was relied upon.

After having seen the basement and the decayed joists the 
plaintiff received information that the house was an old house 
and he then got an archtitect, Mr. Blanstein, to go over the 
building, and after he had become satisfied that the building 
was an old building, remodeled and recast, he took steps to 
repudiate the contract and demanded a return of his deposit-

Finding on the evidence that the building was represented 
as a new building and that as a matter of fact it was an old 
building reconstructed, there was a false representation and 
there was no ratification of the agreement upon discovery of 
the misrepresentation, and the plaintiff is, therefore, entitled to 
a rescission of the contract and to a return of his deposit.

Man.

K.B
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There shall be a judgment in his favour accordingly, together 
with costs.

J udgmen t accordinglg.

Re HKFFRKX.
Manitoba Kinf/’s Bench, Macdonald. J. June 7. I92J.

Limitation of Actions (§IVC—165)— Acknowledgment of 
debts—Letter—Inability to png at present—“I trill give malin 
mg attention”—Bankruptcy el aim-] —Appeal by creditor 
against the disallowance of his claim by trustee in bankruptcy.

The ground of disallowance raised was that the claim was 
barred by the Statute of Limitations. The letter referred to in 
the judgment as being an acknowledgment to stay the running 
of the statute was worded as follows: —

“Your letter received re Bird’s Hill Sand Co. account would 
say that it is impossible for me to pay this account at present 
as I have been on this farm for nearly 4 years and have n>»t 
been able to pay a cent of interest or principal on the farm yet. 
so with about $4,000 of interest in arrears, it is quite clear then- 
will be no chance of paying anything else this fall. And as the 
credit in the city have control of the house property that their 
material went in 1 think they have everything 1 can give them 
just now.

P.S.—These houses are renting for $1 f>0 per month and if 
your clients are not getting their just share of these moneys ! 
will give the matter my attention at once.”

J. S. Ilanna, for trustee ; IV. A. Johnston, for creditor.
Macdonald, J. The Great West Sand & Gravel Co. Ltd- 

filed a claim with the authorized trustee against the above 
debtor which claim the trustee disallowed and this is an appeal 
against the disallowance.

The only ground of defence raised by the notice of disal­
lowance is that the claim is barred by the Statute of Limitations 
and is not entitled to rank as a claim against the estate.

An examination of the account filed reveals the faet that tin* 
account for goods “ ' amounts to $051.32 the remainder 
of the account being made up of interest, that is, $319.33 
interest on an account of $551.32.

There is not before me any agreement between the debtor 
and the creditor with respect to this which to me is an exces­
sive amount for interest and a matter which I hope the trustee 
has investigated. Failing an investigation of a charge of this 
kind would be a neglect of duty to the damage of the credi­
tors and also to the debtor, particularly in view of the fact that

2056
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the debtor does not place the claim in his list of creditors, F 
must assume, however, that the trustee has conferred with 
the debtor on this point and that, apart from the defence of the 
statute, the account is otherwise accepted as all right. The issue 
before me is only as to the Statute of Limitations.

On the face of the account November 30, 1914, is the last 
charge for goods sold and from that date the statute would 
begin to run and the point that arises is, has anything happened 
to give the statute a fresh start ?

On September 9, 1918, the account was in the hands of Mr. 
Markle, a solicitor, for collection on behalf of the creditor ami 
on that date he wrote the debtor demanding payment. To this 
demand, the debtor replied by letter dated September l(i, 1918, 
and the contention of the creditor is that this letter is an 
acknowledgment of the debt and that from this date time begins 
to run afresh, and unless this contention prevails the debt is 
clearly barred by the statute.

It. is urged by counsel on behalf of the trustee that this 
letter is not such an acknowledgment as stays the running of 
the statute, that there is not such an acknowledgment from 
which a promise to pay can be inferred and he cites in support 
of this: Dvrring Harvester Co. v. lilack (1908), 1 S.L.R. 123; 
Green v. Humphreys (1884), 26 ('h. I). 474, 53 L.J. (Ch.) 635; 
Eyre v. McFarlam (1910), 19 Man. L.R. 645; Cooper v. Kai- 
dall, |1909] 1 K.H. 405; 19 Hols. p. 63. sec. 105.

Any words arc a sufficient acknowledgment if they either 
expressly or by implication amount to an unconditional 
acknowledgment of a debt or to a promise to pay: Edmonds 
v. Dottier (1852), 15 Ileav. 415, 51 EM. 598.

If the words used amount to such an acknowledgment or 
promise they are not qualified even if accompanied by request 
for time: Dodson v. Mackey (1835), 8 Ad. & El. 225, note, 112 
E.R. 823, note; by expressions stating or implying that the 
debtor is unable to pay at present he will pay in the future: 
Dabbs v. Humphries (1834), 10 Bing. 446, 131 E.R. 977, or by 
expressions of hope to pay: Sidwcll v. Mason (1857), 2 II. & 
N. 306,157 E.R. 127.

But when there is an unconditional acknowledgment or 
promise expressions of inability to pay at the present, or assur­
ances on the part of the debtor that he will do his best to pay, 
may amount to a condition or qualification and prevent the 
implication of a promise: Fearn v. Lewis (1830), 6 Bing. 349, 
130 E.R. 1314.

The letter referred to of the debtor to Mr. Markle of Sep-

K.B.
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tomber 16. 1918, I interpret as an unconditional acknowl 
edgment. True, it expresses an inability to pay at present but 
from the authorities cited that does not make the acknowl 
edgment conditional. Furthermore it refers to securities held 
by creditors from which moneys are collected and states, “if 
your clients are not getting their just share of these moneys 1 
will give the matter my attention at once.”

As the issue stands the appeal must be allowed.
Appeal allow»>1.

TOCHER v. JOHNSON.
Manitoba King's Bench, Mathers, V.J.K.B. May 22, 1922.

Landlord and Tenant (§TIB—10) —Cropping Lease—Tern < 
— Cost of threshing—Covenant for quid enjoyment—Mortga»r 
—Misrepresentations as to weeds— Covenants as to eultivati»< 
and summer-fallow—It reach — Damages.]— Action by lessee f* 
damages for breaches of covenants in a lease of farm lands an 
counterclaim by lessor.

J. L. M. Thomas, for plaintiff; F. M. Burhidge, for defendant.
Mathers, C.J.K.B. :—This action was originally brought b\ 

John Tocher, who died during its pendency. After his d- 
cease it was revived in the name of James Tocher, one of Id 
sons.

The defendant, on February 4, 1921, leased to John Toch r 
a large farm for a period of 5 years from March 1, 1921. 
the defendant during the first year of the term to receive oil * 
half of the crops grown upon the land, and during the re­
maining years of the term one-third of the crops. During 1'" 
first year the defendant agreed to supply all the seed grain 
required and one-half of the twine used in cutting the crop, and 
to pay one-half the cost of threshing, but during the sub-* 
quent years the lessee was required to pay this expense. The 
lessee covenanted that he would during each year of the term 
either put into crop or summer-fallow in a good husband! ik 
and proper manner every portion of the premises which had 
been or should thereafter be brought under cultivation, plough­
ing in the fall season all lands to be cropped in the following 
year, provided weather conditions permitted. He further 
agreed in each year to break up and bring under cultivation 
at least 50 acres of the land in certain designated pared< 
which was open prairie and free from scrub until all such lai d 
in these pareels had been broken. The lease contains numen 
other provisions but these are the only terms which it is nee* 
sary to refer to for the purpose of this action.
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By h concurrent agreement the lessee purchased from the 
defendant a quantity of live stock and implements, for which 
he paid in cash $1,000 and gave a chattel mortgage to secure 
the sum of $.'1,937 the balance of the purchase-price-

At the time the lease was entered into the land demised was 
subject to a mortgage to the North Empire Fire Ins. Co. for 
c large sum of money and the mortgage was then in arrear. 
in October, 1921, notice of exercising power of sale under this 
mortgage was served upon the defendant and upon the tenant. 
The notice was to the effect that unless payment of the mortgage 
money and interest was made within one calendar month from 
the time it was served the mortgagee would proceed without the 
consent and concurrence of the mortgagors or any persons 
claiming through them and without further notice to enter into 
possession of the land and proceed to take the rents, issues 
and profits.

This action was brought to recover from the defendant: 
1. One-half the cost of the threshing which it is alleged the de­
fendant has refused to pay; 2. Damages for false representa­
tions by the defendant that the land was free from noxious 
weeds; 3. Damages for breach of covenant for quiet enjoy­
ment; and 4. Damages for negligently burning the stables 
upon the premises, including some of the live stock and farm 
implements of the plaintiff.

As already pointed out, the defendant undertook by the 
lease to pay one-lialf the cost of the threshing. The lessee 
threshed the crop out of the stook. in this way requiring the 
assistance of a number of men and teams for the purpose of 
hauling the sheaves from the stook to the thresher. The de­
fendant takes the position that she is only liable for one-half 
the cost of threshing from the stack. She objects to paying 
half the cost of the necessary men and teams to haul the 
grain from the stook to the thresher. The lease merely speaks 
of half the cost of threshing without saying whether stack­
threshing of stook-threshing was meant.

I find that the usual mode of threshing is from the stook 
and that grain in this Province is slacked only when it is im­
possible to get the services of a threshing machine to thresh 
it without stacking. The defendant must be assumed to have 
contracted to pay half the cost of the threshing done in accord­
ance with the usual practice. I therefore find that the defend­
ant is liable for one-half of the cost of hauling the sheaves 
from the stook to the machine. The evidence shows that 6 
teams were used, employed for 6 days, and that the reasonable 

61—68 n.L.B.
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cost of the services of a man and team was $8 per day, a total 
of $288- There were 14 men hoarded by the tenant for 7 day - 
at a cost of 35c. per meal, total $30.00, and the board of the »> 
teams for one day at $1.50, during which it rained, $0, total lint: 
in all $336.00, one-half of which is $168.45. I find that the 
defendant is indebted to the plaintiff for $168.45 on this head.

T find against the plaintiff’s claim for damages for false 
representations as to weeds. Whether or not any represent,! 
lion was made as to the condition of the land. I am satisfied 
that John Tocher was not induced to enter into the lease hv 
any such representations but that he signed it a considerable 
time after he had entered into possession and was quite famil­
iar with the condition of the land as to weeds.

The third head of claim is for breach of covenant for quiet 
enjoyment. Notice of exercising power of sale under the mort­
gage was served upon him which he contends amounted 
to an ejectment. In support of this claim he relies on the ease 
of Carpenter v. Pmrker, (1857). 3 C.B. <N.s.) 906, 140 E.1Î. 
718, 27 L.J. (C.P.) 78, 6 W.R. 98. In that case the land leased 
was subject to a mortgage which had fallen into arrears and 
the mortgagee served upon the tenant a notice requiring him to 
pay the rent to them. The tenant upon receipt of the notice 
gave up possession. The mortgagee was not bound by the 
terms of the lease and although the tenant was at liberty 
to pay his rent to the mortgagee he was exposed to the danger 
of a distress by the lessor. The Court held that the tenant was 
justified in declining to remain any longer in a position of 
such difficulty and danger and that his yielding up possession 
in response to the demand of the mortgagee amounted to an 
eviction by the latter. The distinction between that case1 
and the one at Bar is that here the tenant has not gone out 
of possession but is still in occupation. He has, consequent!}, 
not been evicted, nor has he sustained any damage by the ac­
tion of the mortgagee.

The fourth head of damage for negligently burning stables 
was, after being persisted in to the last, abandoned by the 
plaintiff. One night in the fall of 1921 the stables of tin1 
lenanr, were burned in a somewhat mysterious way. The 
plaintiff was not able to adduce one tittle of evidence to even 
cast suspicion upon the defendant and so far as the evidence 
goes there appears to have been no basis whatever for de­
claim.

That disposes of all the issues raised in the plaintiff’s action.
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The result is he is entitled to judgment against the defendant 
for $168.45.

By way of counterclaim, the defendant allege* that the 
lenani did not cultivate the land in a good husbandlike and 
proper manner in accordance with his covenant, but on the 
contrary farmed the land so as to cause great damage and 
injury to the land itself and to the defendant. She particularly 
claims that the fall ploughing which the tenant did in the fall 
of 1921 was useless because it was not deep enough. She 
also alleges that the summer fallow was not properly done 
and that the tenant broke his covenant to break at least .‘>(1 
acres of the open prairie land free from scrub. Without going 
into ’he evidence in detail with respect to these claims. I find 
against the defendant’s claim with respect to the fall plough­
ing, and I find in her favor with respect to the summer-fal­
lowing and the breaking. I am satisfied the summer-fallowing 
was not done in a good hushandlike manner- Land to Is; 
properly summer-fallowed should he so worked that no weed* 
are allowed to grow up and seed. The evidence shows that 
this land was ploughed in June and it was then allowed to 
grow to weeds and was again ploughed down in September 
or October.

The plaintiff offeree! some evidence to show that there were 
not 50 acres of open prairie free from scrub on tjiose por­
tions of the demised lands where breaking was to be done, 
and that he broke all the land there was of that character. 1 
find on the plaintiff's own evidence that there were at least 
50 acres which should have been broken according to the terms 
of the lease. The quantity he actually did break only amouiV- 
cd to 22 acres. He therefore was in default with respect 
to 28 acres.

It is very difficult to estimate the damage sustained by the 
defendant by reason of this neglect. The defendant put his 
damage on the ground of the loss of his share of the crop to 
be grown this year but it appears to me that such damage is 
entirely too speculative. That crop will depend upon so many 
contingencies that it is impossible for me to say with any 
degree of certainity that the defendant will suffer any loss. 
The defendant was entitled to have the land properly summer- 
fallowed and to have 50 acres broken and the only basis of 
damage which I can adopt appears to be the value of the addi­
tional work necessary to have done the summer-fallowing in 
n proper manner and of breaking the 28 acres which the 
plaintiff failed to break.

Man.
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For failure to sunnner-fallow in a proper manner I assies 

the defendant’s damage at $120, and for failure to break 28 
acres at $196, or a total of $316.

The principal claim made by the defendant was for a forfei 
ture of the term because of the plaintiff’s several breaches of 
covenant. She is not entitled, however, to this relief beeali­
the lease contains no proviso for re-entry for breach of coven­
ant : Woodfall, 21st ed., 377 ; Bell on Landlord and Temur 
554 ; Foa on Landlord and Tenant, 316 and 317.

The net result is that the plaintiff is entitled to a verdict for 
$168.4.1 and the defendant is entitled upon her counterclaim 
to a verdict of $316.

This action was originally brought by the plaintiff in the 
County Court but the defendant by entering counterclaim 
claiming possession of the land forced a transfer of the action to 
the King’s Bench. The plaintiff having been fotced to litigate 
the matter in the King’s Dench is, I think, entitled to costs on 
the King’s Dench scale without right of set-off. The defen­
dant upon her counterclaim has recovered an amount within 
the competence of the County Court and for that reason I 
think she is entitled to costs of counterclaim on the County 
Court scale, and there will be judgment accordingly.

Judgment accordingly.

Re F. E. WEST * Co.
Ontario Supreme Court, Appellate Division. Meredith, C.J.C.P., Did- 

dell. Latch ford and Middleton, JJ. November /f, 1921.
Bankruptcy (§11—20) — Priorities — Right of Crown to 

priority sales tax owing by insolvent—Right of city corporation 
to priority in regard to business—Rights of Workmen’s Com 
pe mat ion Board.] — Appeal by the municipal corporation of tlx* 
City of Toronto from the order of Orde, J. (1921), 62 D.L.R. 
207.

The Court made no order, as it appeared, and was admitted 
by all parties, that the fund would be exhausted by other pay 
ments, having priority, and so the question raised was merely 
academic.

RICK v. SWEET.
Saskatchewan Court of Appeal. Haultain, C.J.S., Lamont, Turgcon and 

McKay, JJ.A. June 29, 1922.

Vendor and Purchaser (§IE—27)—Fraudulent misrepre­
sentation—Noxious weeds—Damages—Value of land—Right of 
vendor to payments—Costs.] — Appeal by plaintiff from a judg
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ment dismissing an action to recover under an agreement for the 
sale of land. Varied.

T. D. Brown, K.C., for appellant.
A. T. Proctor, for respondents.
The judgment of the Court was delivered by
McKay, J.A. By agreement in writing dated December 20. 

1918, the appellant sold to respondent Sweet the north half of 
sect. 21 in Tp. 14 in R. 31, west of the principal meridian, in 
the Province of Saskatchewan, with certain chattels valued at 
$2,400, for the sum of $12,000, payable as follows:—The sum of 
$.100 upon the execution of the said agreement; the sum of 
approximately $3,400 by the assignment by the respondent 
Sweet to the appellant of a certain agreement of sale of the 
N/E % of section 18, Tp. 22, in R. 24, west of the 2nd meridian ; 
the sum of approximately $l,f>00 by the assignment by the 
respondent Sweet to the appellant of a certain agreement of 
sale of the S/E 14-18-22-24-W. 2nd meridian; the sum of $000 
on March 1, 1919; the sum of $000 on December 1 in each and 
every year from 1919 to 1929, both inclusive, together with inter­
est at the rate of 7rf per annum from the date of the said agree­
ment to be paid on the said sum or so much thereof as should 
from time to time remain unpaid whether before or after the 
same became due; and such interest to be paid yearly on the first 
day of December in each and every year until the whole of the 
monies payable thereunder were fully paid, and the first of such 
payments of interest to be made on December 1, 1919.

The agreement also provides that all interest on becoming 
overdue shall be forthwith treated as purchase money and shall 
bear interest at the rate aforesaid, and that on default being 
made in the payment of principal, interest, taxes, or premiums 
of insurance, or any part thereof, the whole purchase money 
shall become due and payable.

The respondent Sweet defaulted in his payment of the instal­
ment of $000 and interest falling due on December 1, 1919, but 
subsequently paid $853 on January 2, 1920. He again defaulted 
in his payment of the instalment of $500 and interest falling 
due on December 1, 1920, and has not paid anything on the 
agreement since he paid the $853.

The appellant brings this action to enforce payment of the 
amount due under the agreement or cancellation thereof, and 
also for costs incurred in paying off some encumbrances which 
respondent Sweet should have paid on the land covered by the 
agreement of sale he assigned to the appellant.

Bask.

C.A.
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C A.
The defence is a general denial of the claim, and in the 

alternative damages for fraudulent misrepresentation.
The trial Judge allowed the respondent Sweet $3,200 as dam­

ages for fraudulent misrepresentation, which amount, less the 
costs of the appellant incurred in paying off the encumbrances 
above referred to, to be ascertained on reference, the trial Judge 
directed should be deducted from the original purchase-price 
as of the date of the agreement. From this judgment the 
appellant appeals.

The trial Judge found that the appellant was guilty of false 
and fraudulent misrepresentation when he represented to 
respondent Sweet that the only noxious weeds on the land wen- 
wild oats and stink weed, whereas the said land was infested 
with twitch grass, a noxious weed. There is evidence on which 
the trial Judge could make this finding, and this Court cannot 
disturb it.

With regard to the damages allowed, after reading the evi­
dence carefully I do not think I would have allowed that amount, 
as the majority of the witnesses called value the land at $30 per 
acre at the time it was sold; but, at any rate, two witnesses 
besides the respondent Sweet value the land at much less than 
$30 per acre. Witness Sarvis values it at $15 to $20 per acre. 
Higgins at $10 per acre, while the appellant swears there would 
he a difference of $10 more per acre in the value of this land 
if it had no twitch grass.

In my opinion, therefore, there was evidence on which tin- 
trial Judge could assess the damages at $3,200, and this Court 
should not disturb the same.

I, however, am of the opinion that he was wrong in not giving 
the appellant some relief for the balance still due.

Apparently the trial Judge, on delivering his oral judgment 
at the conclusion of the trial, intended that a sufficient amount 
of the damages allowed was to be applied on the amount due to 
appellant, so as to put the agreement on good standing, and 
thereafter the balance of the damages was to be applied on the 
payments still due, in equal amounts. Under these circum­
stances it would be unnecessary to further deal with the balance 
due the appellant. Hut the judgment shews that the respondent 
Sweet's counsel was not satisfied with this disposition of tin- 
damages allowed, and asked that the damages allowed be 
credited as of the date of the purchase, which request the trial 
Judge granted, thereby reducing the original purchase price by 
that amount.
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The result is that the agreement is still in default, and the 
appellant is entitled to some relief.

The formal judgment entered is wrong, as it purports to dis­
miss the appellant’s action with costs, and no such judgment 
was delivered. And further it purports to apply the damages 
allowed, in reduction of the original purchase-price, as of the 
date of agreement, December 20, 1918, and also on the instal­
ments to fall due under said agreement.

In my opinion the judgment should be varied and added to 
as follows: That, after ascertaining the amount to be deducted 
for costs incurred by appellant in paying off the encumbrances 
above referred to, from the $11,200 allowed for damages, and 
applying the balance on the original purchase price, there will 
be a reference to the Local Registrar to ascertain the amount 
still due to appellant, and in default of payment of the same 
within il months from the date of the Local Registrar’s certifi­
cate. with interest at V/t per annum, with appellant's taxed 
costs, the said land will be sold under the direction of the Court 
and the proceeds thereof, after payment of the costs of sale, 
will be applied in payment of appellant’s claim and taxed costs, 
and appellant will be entitled to judgment against respondent 
Sweet for any deficiency.

The appellant will be entitled to costs of the action and 
counterclaim, except as to costs on the issue of misrepresentation 
as to the twitch grass, and will also be entitled to his costs on 
the reference.

The respondent Sweet will be entitled to the costs of the 
defence and counterclaim occasioned by the issue of misrepre­
sentation as to the twitch grass. The judgment below will be 
varied accordingly. The appellant will be entitled to his costs.

Judgment varied.

LAXI) CORI’OHATIOX UK CANADA v. WILLIAM I’KA It HON 
LAND Co.

{Saskatchewan King's Bench, Taylor, J. January 12, 1922.
Vendor and purchaser (§11—30)—Sale of acreage—Separ­

ate agreements—Covenants as to payments—Interpretation of 
contract — Schedules — Merger — Sub-purchaser — Extension 
agreement—Rights and remedies of vendor—Personal judgment 
— Vendor's lien—Costs.]— Action by vendor to enforce agree­
ment of sale.

P. II. Cordon, for plaintiffs.
C. IV. Iloffman, for defendants.
Taylor, J.:—This is a vendor’s action, claiming personal

Sask.
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judgment and. in default of payment, declaration of vendor's 
lien and an order for sale.

The default is admitted, and the only question which I am 
asked to determine is one arising from the interpretation of the 
several agreements between the parties, and to declare whether 
or not the defendants have, in the circumstances which have 
happened, still the right to compel the plaintiffs to make title 
to portions of the lands agreed to be sold under covenants con­
tained in the documents.

The first agreement between the parties was made on August 
15, 1906. The plaintiffs agreed to sell and the defendants 
agreed to purchase 40,204.77 acres, more or less, of land in this 
Province for $281,433.39; $1,000 down, $9051.19 upon execution 
of the agreement, and the balance in extended payments, with 
interest thereon. The purchasers were given the right to take 
immediate possession. The portion of the agreement specially 
relating to the matter now under consideration reads as fol­
lows:—

“The said purchasers to have the privilege of calling for 
quarter-section contracts substantially in accordance with this 
contract at any time during the first year upon payment of the 
further sum of 75 cents per acre on each contract called for. 
and also to have the privilege at any time during the currency 
of this agreement, or any agreements made pursuant hereto, 
upon payment l>eing made by them of the full amount of prin­
cipal and interest due at that time upon any quarter-section of 
land herein described, to call for and receive a deed or transfer 
of said tract of land so paid for. It is further agreed that upon 
default in payment of any moneys hereby secured the purchasers 
may surrender to the vendors any of the said land for which 
quarter-section contracts have not issued, and no action shall 
thereafter be brought or carried on upon the purchaser’s coven­
ants to pay therefor.’*

Purporting to be made according to this agreement, the parties 
entered into separate agreements for each of the quarter-sec­
tions described in the statement of claim (and, I take it, cover­
ing all the land in the original agreement) each contract being 
dated as on August 15, 1906. Each of these contracts purports 
to be an entire contract containing all the terms and conditions 
in reference to the agreement as to the particular quarter-sec­
tion described therein ; recites the agreement to buy and sell the 
particular quarter; the amount of the purchase price; where it 
is payable; how payable; with what interest thereon; contains 
the usual covenants for title and conveyance upon payment, and
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provisions as to cancellation on default. I take it that it was 
admitted that the purchasers completely carried out the terms 
of a number of these sub-purchase agreements, and had obtained 
title thereto prior to the action being brought.

On December 1, 1919, another agreement was made between 
the parties. At that time the defendants were in default in 
their payments. This agreement recites that by certain agree­
ments set out in the schedule annexed the parties agreed for the 
sale and purchase of the lands described in the schedule. An 
examination shews that the schedule refers not to the first agree­
ment but to the several contracts for different quarter-sections. 
The agreement goes on to recite that there still remains due and 
owing in respect of the said agreements to the date of figuring, 
$19,515.25 ; that the purchaser has requested an extension of 
time, which the vendor has agreed to on the terms contained. 
It is then agreed that this balance shall be paid as follows:—one- 
fifth in cash on execution of the document, and the balance in 
four equal consecutive half-yearly instalments, with interest at 
8% (this is a higher rate than previously paid), and the pur­
chaser covenanted to make the payments accordingly. Then 
follow two paragraphs pertinent to the present dispute: —

“And it is hereby declared and agreed that the said agree­
ments in the said schedule mentioned, and all covenants, clauses, 
provisoes, powers, matters and things whatsoever contained 
therein, shall continue in force and applicable to the said 
amounts and dates and altered terms of payment herein con­
tained.

Provided, however, that these presents shall not create ary 
meryer or alter or prejudice the rights of the vendor as regards 
any security collateral to the agreements mentioned in the said 
schedule, or us regards any surety or subsequent purchaser or 
any person not a party hereto liable to pay such purchase 
moneys or interest in the said lands, or the rights of any such 
surety, subsequent purchaser or other person, all ot which rights 
are hereby reserved.”

Since the execution of this last mentioned agreement the de­
fendants applied for and obtained title to certain quarter-sec­
tions upon payment of the full balance, figured after applying 
the $3903.05 payment made on the agreement of December 1, 
1919, rateably over the whole tract. As to one of the quarter- 
sections referred to in the statement of claim, the northwest 
quarter of sect. 3-28-25, xvest of the 2nd meridian, I disposed of 
the question at the trial. For this particular quarter the plain­
tiffs, on May 27, 1921, received payment of $790.78, the amount
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admitted to be sufficient, if the defendants’ contention is cor­
rect, to get title. The money was accepted and held, and was 
afterwards applied to the contract. The correspondence dis­
tinctly shewed that it was paid for the specific purpose of ob­
taining title to that quarter-section, and, in my opinion, it was 
not open to the plaintiffs to take the money and apply it on the 
contract generally and then refuse to give title. The quarter- 
section had been re-sold and the moneys represented payments 
made by the sub-purchaser. This sub-purchaser was threaten­
ing specific performance, and to save any further loss of time, 
on the suggestion of counsel for both parties, I made an order 
that the title to this particular quarter-section be vested in the 
defendants. It would take some months to get a transfer, and 
it looked as if the purchaser might be in a position, owing to the 
protracted delay, to take action to recover the purchase price 
already paid, and damages, and it was to the defendants an 
advantageous sale, for which the defendants might for their 
failure to make title be responsible.

It will be noted that three of the payment» in the extension 
agreement are now overdue. Agreements for the sale of all of 
the lands have been made, except as to one section. This one 
section, it was sworn, is alone worth $35 an acre, and the bal­
ance now against the whole contract, after crediting all pay­
ments, is only around $4,000. The sub-purchasers have not 
been joined as parties defendant to the action, and if I were 
of the opinion that the plaintiffs’ contention is correct it seems 
to me that the action would have to be stayed, until the sub­
purchasers were added as parties defendant, and given an op­
portunity to be heard before the matter was decided against 
them. However, in my opinion, it is clear that the plaintiffs 
present contention is wrong and untenable. I take the po>i 
tion to be this: That on December 1, 1919, all of the lands des 
cribed in the 16 agreements referred to in the schedule to that 
agreement had been under re-sale by the defendants, except 
one section. These sub-purchasers hail, as such, rights not only 
against the defendants but also against the plaintiffs. Tie- 
balance due on each agreement is computed in the schedule; 
each sub-purchaser at that date had the right, 1 take it, to have 
his purchase money applied in payment of the balance due on 
his particular quarter to the plaintiffs. As against a sub-pur 
chaser, the plaintiffs had a charge against each quarter-section 
only for the balance due on that quarter-section. The agree­
ment of December 1, 1919, shews clearly that the draughtsman 
took this into consideration in drawing the agreement, and ii
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is quite clear to my minil from a perusal of the several agree­
ments that the plaintiffs knew that the défendants bought for 
a re-sale in smaller portions, and knew that re-sales had been 
made by the defendants. It was not then open to the plaintiffs 
and defendants to enter into an agreement, the effect of which 
might be to charge against any quarter-section so resold more 
than was already charged against it as the balance due under 
the separate agreement issued for that quarter-section, and in 
the portion of the agreement of December 1, 1919 to which I 
have referred it is expressly agreed ‘‘that these presents shall 
not create any merger,” and that ‘‘all covenants, clauses, pro­
visoes, powers, matters and things whatsoever contained there­
in” (that is, in each of the separate agreements) ‘‘shall con­
tinue in force and applicable to the said amount and dates and 
altered terms of payment herein contained."

The result, therefore, was that the #3,90:1.05 then immediately 
paid by the defendants was to be applied, not on any one quar­
ter but rateably on the full balance of #19,515.25 agreed as out­
standing at the time of the execution of the agreement; that 
payment and any other payment made generally under the 
agreement of December 1, 1919, should be applied in reduction 
of the balances due under the several contracts in tile proper 
tion in which the balances as stated in the schedule as due 
under each contract bear to the whole #19,515.25. And, on de­
fault in the making of the payments as agreed in this extension 
agreement, the plaintiffs have, in addition to the remedies they 
previously possessed, a right of action upon the general coven­
ant to pa)- in the extension agreement. Nothing in the exten­
sion agreement of December 1, 1919, however, can be taken to 
abridge the right of tile defendants to pay any moneys on any 
particular quarter-section, and on payment in full of the bal­
ance due under any one of the several agreements referred to 
in the schedule to require title to be made thereunder. There 
will he a declaration accordingly.

What disposition should then be made of this action? Under 
the covenant contained in the extension agreement, the plain­
tiffs are entitled to personal judgment for the balance unpaid 
on these covenants when action was commenced. The agreement 
contains no acceleration clause. Three payments, each of #3,- 
903.05, had accrued due on the lirst days of June and December, 
1920, and the first of June, 1921, respectively, with interest 
from December 1, 1919, at the rate of 8% on the whole bal­
ance remaining outstanding, arrears of principal and interest 
bearing interest at the same rate.
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If counsel cannot agree on what sum then remained un­

paid, there will be a reference to the local Registrar at Regina 
to take the necessary accounts and find the balance then out­
standing, and there will he personal judgment against the de­
fendants for any balance so found to be then unpaid.

The defendants are entitled to credit for the payments made 
before the issue of the writ, and purporting to have been mad»1 
on specific lands and not heretofore applied as of the date of 
payment; but as the rights of the plaintiffs depend on the state 
of accounts at the time the writ was issued, they are not en­
titled in the accounting to credit for payments made thereafter. 
It does not follow, however, that it is open to the plaintiffs to 
issue execution for an amount greater than the balance actually 
due after crediting payments received since the writ was issued.

The claim of the plaintiffs to a vendor’s lien against the whole 
of the lands for the whole balance unpaid must be dismissed. 
This remedy can be obtained only in separate actions on each 
agreement, bringing the parties interested in the particular 
parcel described in each agreement before the Court and giving 
to them an opportunity to redeem.

1 gave judgment on the counterclaim as to the northwest 
quarter of sect. 3 at the conclusion of the trial, for the reasons 
then stated.

As to costs: To the extent to which the plaintiffs have suc­
ceeded there has been no dispute between the parties. I think 
the costs of the plaintiffs should be limited to what is allowed 
on a default judgment on the King's Bench medium scale, in 
the defences pleaded, and counterclaim, (except the claim for 
damages by which costs were not increased) the defendant has 
succeeded and is entitled to costs.

Judgment accordingly.

K1EHL v. FV8HEL.
Saskatchewan King's Bench, Maclean, J. June 22, 1922.

Fraudulent Conveyances (§VI—35)—Transfer of land and 
chattels to wife and sons—Insolvency at time of transfer—Pur­
pose to defeat creditors—Validity as against creditors.J—Action 
to set aside certain conveyances of land and chattels as fraud­
ulent and made for the purpose of defeating creditors. Con­
veyances set aside.

G. II. Harr, K.C., and W. P. Gumming, for plaintiff.
,/. F. Frame, K.C., and A. G. Mackinnon, for defendants.
Maclean, J.:—The defendant Frederick Fussel was, when 

this action was brought, indebted to the plaintiff in the sum of
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$3,037.60. An action was commenced for the recovery of that 
sum. The defendant filed a defence and just before the present 
action was brought on for trial the defendant consented to 
judgment in favour of the plaintiff for the amount claimed, and 
Ï am informed executions were issued in due course. The plain­
tiff's claim referred to above was for part of the purchase price 
of land sold to the defendant Frederick Fussel. The plaintiff 
before bringing either this action or the other attempted to 
seize the grain grown on the land sold to the defendant, but 
before he was able to complete seizure the grain was hauled 
away. Immediately upon the defendants learning that the 
plaintiff had attempted to seize the grain, the defendants, al­
though in the midst of harvesting, proceeded to Regina, and 
there gave a solicitor instructions for the preparation of the 
hills of sale, transfers and mortgage referred to in the state­
ment of claim and a short time later executed those documents 
whereby the defendant Fred Fussel, who is the father of tlv 
other male defendants and the husband of the defendant Karo 
lina Fussel, transferred to his wife the homestead on which 
they lived and t< he sons certain of his lands, and to two of his 
sons, Martin ai William, practically all his goods and chat­
tels. It was contended on behalf of the defendant that these 
transfers were merely in pursuance of a family arrangement 
and carrying out a policy which the defendant Frederick Fus­
sel had observed in regard to older sons; that is, as each son 
signified his intention of leaving the father’s house and starting 
an establishment of his own, the father transferred a quarter 
section or more and transferred certain horses and machinery 
to him.

I have no doubt that the defendant Frederick Fussel intend­
ed to deal with his two younger sons, William and Martin, as 
he had dealt with the other sons, and that when either of them 
intimated a desire to leave his father’s home and set up for 
himself there would have been a transfer of land and chattels 
from the father. There is no evidence that either Martin or 
William had signified his intention of setting up for himself, 
and there is no evidence of any former arrangement whereby 
the homestead was to be transferred to Karolina Fussel. It 
was contended that the transfer of land to Frederick F. Fussel 
was simply carrying out an arrangement which hud been delay­
ed through oversight when Frederick F. left some years before 
and started a home of his own. I find, however, that no mat­
ter what the intention of Frederick Fussel may have been in 
respect to providing for his sons and his wife, the whole trail»
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action was precipitated by the fact that the plaintiff had taken 
active proceedings towards realising his claim against Frederick 
Fussel and that the transfers in question, both of goods and 
lands, were for the purpose of preventing the plaintiff from 
realising his claim out of such goods or lands, and that those 
transfers did have the effect of delaying and hindering the de­
fendant in the realising of his claim.

I find further that the defendant Frederick Fussel was ren­
dered insolvent by making the transfers complained of, and I 
hold that not even the carrying out of his generous and laud­
able family arrangements can he permitted to defeat the rights 
of creditors. The defendant Frederick Fussel must he just as 
well as generous, and his being generous is subject to his being 
just.

The transfer of the homestead to Karolina Fussel will not be 
set aside, hut the homestead, that is the S.E. 28-23-20, W. 2nd 
M. shall he made subject to the plaintiff’s execution against 
Frederick Fussel. The two hills of sale in question, and all the 
transfers made by Frederick Fussel, and the mortgage by Fred­
erick F. Fussel to Karolina shall he set aside and are hereby 
set aside and declared void as against the plaintiff and the other 
creditors of the defendant Frederick Fussel.

The plaintiff will have the costs of the action.
Judgment accordingly.

Re (iAVRRHAV; Kx parte DOVGLAN BROS.
Saskatchewan King's Bench in Bankruptcy, MacDonald, J. May J.l,

/»n.
Bankruptcy ( §111—28)—Unregistered lien note—Status of 

trustee to attack—Conditional Sales-Act K.S.S. 1920 ch. 201, 
sec. 2 (1).]— Application by a trustee under the Bankruptcy 
Act for directions as to whether or not the holders of a lien 
note have a lien on certain chattels of the debtor’s estate. 
[See Annotations 68 D.L.H. 13.'»; 56 D.L.R. 104; 59 D.L.R. 1.]

H. Robinson, for trustee; J. L. McDougall, for Douglas Bros.
MacDonald, J. The facts are that Douglas Bros, hold a lien 

note on such chattels, hut the same is not registered in the pro­
per registration district in that behalf, and the trustee claims 
the same is void as against him because of such non-registra­
tion.

I am of opinion that the trustee has no status to attack the 
lien note. Section 2 (1) of the Conditional Sales Act, ch. 201, 
R.S.S. 1920, reads as follows:—

“2.—(1). Whenever on a sale or bailment of goods of the
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value of $15.00 or over it is agreed, provided or conditioned 
that the right of property or right of possession in whole or in 
part shall remain in the seller or bailor otwithstanding that 
the actual possession of the goods passes to the buyer or bailee 
the seller or bailor shall not be permitted to set up any such 
right of property or right of possession as against any pur­
chaser or mortgagee of or from the buyer or bailee of such 
goods in good faith for valuable consideration or as against 
judgments, executions or attachments against the purchaser or 
bailee unless such sale or bailment with such agreement, pro­
viso or condition is in writing signed by the bailee or his agent 
and registered as hereinafter provided. Such writing shall con­
tain such a description of the goods the subject of the bailment 
that the same may be readily and easily known and distinguish­
ed.”

The trustee is not a purchaser or mortgagee of or from the 
buyer or bailee, nor does he hold a judgment, execution or at­
tachment against the purchaser.

The trustee relied on my decision in Re Hamer, Ex parte 
Royal Rank of Canada (1922), 66 D.L.lt. 800, in which I held 
that a trustee under the Bankruptcy Act has a right as repre­
sentative of the creditors of the debtor, to attach a chattel mort­
gage for non-compliance with the provision of the Chattel Mort­
gage Act, R.8.S. 1920, ch. 200, requiring registration. But the 
wording of the provision in the Chattel Mortgage Act respect­
ing the effect of the omission to register a chattel mortgage is 
entirely different from that of the provision in the Conditional 
Sales Act above quoted. In the Chattel Mortgage Act the pro­
vision is that if the mortgage is not registered it “shall be ab­
solutely null and void as against the creditors of the mortgag­
or,” etc. The decision is, therefore, not in point here.

I am, therefore, of opinion that as against the trustee, Doug­
las Bros, have a valid lien on the chattels in question.

The trustee shall pay Douglas Bros, their costs. The costs 
of the trustee shall be paid out of the estate.

Judgment accordingly.

Re GAUDREAU; Ex parte t’ARRl’THERH.
Saskatchewan King's Bench in Bankruptcy, MacDonald, J. May 25,

m2.
Bankruptcy (§111—28)—Lien note—Insufficiency of des­

cription -Status of trustee to attack.]— Application by trustee 
for directions as to whether a claimant has any lien on certain 
chattels of the debtor’s estate.
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R. Robinson, for trustee ; J. L. MacDougall, for claimant.
MacDonald, J.:—This is an application by the trustee for di­

rections as to whether James G. Carruthers, the claimant, has 
any lien on certain chattels of the debtor’s estate. As a fact, 
the claimant has a lien note on certain horses, but the trustee 
claims the description is not sufficient, and that, therefore, it 
is void as against him.

For the reasons given by me in Re Gaudreau, ex parte Doug- 
ias Brothers decided this date, (1922), 68 D.L.R. 782, the trus­
tee has no status to attack the lien note.

I am, therefore, of opinion that the lien note of the claimant 
is valid as against tilt* trustee, and I may call attention to the 
fact that under sec. 46 (3) of the Bankruptcy Act, 1919, eh. 
26, the claimant must, within 10 days of demand by the trus­
tee, identify the chattels in question.

The trustee shall pay the costs of the claimant, and shall 
have his costs out of the estate.

Judgment accordingly.

He KVRYLO ESTATE.
Saskatchewan District Court, Mackenzie, J. May 29, 1922.

Executors and Administrators (§IYA—80)— Proof and al­
lowance of claims—Trustee Act R.S.S. 1920, ch. 75—Notice 
of dispute—Passing of accounts—Error—Estoppel of adminis 
trator.]— Appeal by administrator from the judgment of a Sur­
rogate Court Judge. Affirmed.

P. 11. Gordon, for administrator.
A. C. Ellison, for International Harvester Co.
Mackenzie, J.:—This is an appeal by the administrator of 

the above estate from an order made by the Surrogate Court 
Judge of the Battleford district, at Battleford, on April 29. 
1922. By that order the said Judge directed that the Interna 
tional Harvester Co. of Canada, and one Lome Lelachcur, who 
had filed claims respectively against the above estate, should 
share in the distribution thereof for their said claims, pro rata, 
so far as the assets of the said estate should extend, after pay­
ment of preferred claims.

The administrator now contends that the said Judge shoul 1 
have found said claims barred by notice given by the adminis­
trator in that behalf under the Trustee Act, R.S.S. 1920, ch. 
75, and so refused them leave to share in such distribution.

The appeal is taken now under sec. 35 of the Surrogate 
Courts Act, R.S.S. 1920, ch. 41, and the procedure followed has
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been that prescribed by Rule 42 of the Surrogate Court Rules, 
all of which appear to have been properly complied with.

The faets. as they are shewn to have developed, according to 
the material on file, are as follows : letters of administration of 
the said estate were issued by the said Surrogate Court, to John 
Peehodzilo. the administrator, on December 5, 191(1. On Sep­
tember 29, 1920, an order was made by the said Surrogate 
Judge on the application of the said administrator, for the pass 
ing of his accounts. The material part of such order reads as 
follows

“Let the creditors, next of kin, and all persons interested in 
the estate, attend before the presiding Judge of the Court in 
Chambers, in the Law Courts building in Hattleford. at 10.3(1 
o’clock in the forenoon on Friday, the 10th day of December. 
1920, or so soon thereafter as counsel can be heard for the pur­
pose of finally passing the said accounts and fixing the com­
pensation to be allowed to the administrator for care, time, 
trouble and pains expended ami borne in and alsmt the said 
estate and in administering the said estate; and in the mean­
time, let the said accounts be examined and inquired into and 
solicitors’ costs prior to this application be taxed by the clerk 
of this Court at such time and place as he may appoint and 
so that he shall bring into Court his report thereon upon the 
return of this summons together with a copy of the appointment 
cf the clerk of the Court for this examination and inquiry In* 
served upon the persons, and in the manner following upon 
the following persons at their addresses as here set forth, by 
fully prepaid and registered letter, viz : The International Har­
vester Co. of Canada Ltd., North Hattleford, Sask. Lome Le- 
lacheur, Hafford, Sask., Phemie and Simon Kurvlo at Miano- 
wice, P.O. Uhrynow, Sokal, Galicia, George II. Hearing. High- 
gate, Sask., and upon all other persons interested by tiling a 
copy hereof in the office of the clerk of this honourable Court, 
and that such notice shall 1m* completed at least days prior to 
the date so to be appointed by the clerk as aforesaid, and shall 
be sufficient as to all parties concerned and notice is hereby 
given that unless good and sufficient cause then be shewn to the 
contrary may be passed and allowed as filed.”

On November 10, 1920, the clerk of the Surrogate Court 
issued an appointment pursuant to the said order, and return­
able before him on December 10 following, for the purpose of 
examining and inquiring into the accounts of the said admin­
istrator.

On November 13, 1920, a copy of said order and appointment 
62—68
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was personally served upon said International Harvester Co. of 
Canada, and on the said Lome Lelaelieur respectively. At the 
same time there was served on each of the said claimants a 
notice of dispute, addressed to them respectively, which reads 
as follows: —

‘‘Please take notice that under sec. 46 of the Trustees Act. 
being eh. 46 of the Revised Statutes 1909, and amendments 
thereto. I hereby give you notice in writing that I intend to 
avail myself of the above section, and I notify you, the above 
named creditors, that. I, the administrator of the above-named 
estate reject or dispute the claim filed by you against die same 
estate.” Dated at North Bat tie ford, Sask. this 9th day of Oc­
tober A.D. 1920. John Pochodzilo, administrator of the estate.”

Upon the return of the above appointment on December 10. 
1920, no one appeared on behalf of the administrator before the 
clerk of the said Surrogate Court, and such appointment was 
thereupon adjourned sine die. The representative of the In­
ternational Harvester Co. was there ready to prove its claim, 
but whether anyone appeared for the said L. Lelaelieur is not 
disclosed.

No further steps were taken in the matter of passing said 
accounts until March 3, 1922, when the administrator obtained 
a fresh order and appointment, almost exactly similar in form 
to the one set forth above, and both returnable on March 21, 
1922. Copies of such order and appointment were addressed 
to and served upon the International Harvester Co., and the 
said L. Lelaelieur, on March 4, 1922, pursuant to the terms 
of the said order.

On March 21, 1922, upon the return before him of the said 
appointment, the clerk of the Surrogate Court proceeded to ex­
amine into the accounts of the administrator as filed, and made 
his report under said date, in which he allowed the claims of the 
said two claimants.

On April 18, 1922, according to a fiat of that date, which 
appears on the file, the said Surrogate Court Judge dismissed 
an application to bar the said claims, without costs, and on 
April 27, 1922, the said Judge made the order from which this 
appeal is now taken as aforesaid.

My attention was drawn by the solicitor for the administrator 
to the fact that the notice of October 9, 1920 disputing such 
claimants’ claims by error cited the Trustee Act as ch. 46 of 
the R.S.S. 1909, and amendments thereof, instead of ch. 75 of 
the R.S.S. 1920. Counsel for claimant, however, declined to 
rest his right to succeed upon such error, but took the broader
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ground that by serving the claimants with the orders and ap­
pointments for passing accounts, both with, and again, subse­
quently, to the notice of dispute in question, the administrator 
was estopped from now setting up the notice of dispute as a 
bar to said claims. I think this contention is correct. To my 
mind, the action of the administrator in serving the said claim­
ants respectively as aforesaid with the above orders and ap­
pointments is inconsistent with the conclusion that it would be 
necessary for said claimants to institute actions to establish 
their claims., as prescribed by the Trustee Act, but is consistent 
rather with the conclusion that all they would have to do would 
be to prove their claims before the clerk in a summary way. To 
bar such claims effectively, the administrator should have serv­
ed each of the claimants with the notice of dispute alone and 
not have gone on treating them as he did as if they were still 
subsisting creditors of the said estate. The appeal is there­
fore dismissed with costs.

Appeal dismissed.

He JAMES MOKH1SOX ESTATE.
Raskatcheican King's bench, MacDonald. •/. December 2, 1921.

Wills (§111—70) — Construction- Devise of farm on condi­
tion—Condition raid for uncertainty—Life interest subject to 
forfeiture.\ — Application by executors to the Court for di­
rection and advice regarding a will.

P. 11. Gordon, for executors and for Amanda May Morrison 
and Eleanor V. Dinnin.

J. F. Frame, K.C., for Minnie E. Hamilton and George A. 
Morrison.

II. Fisher, for George Herbert Morrison, and infant; dames 
A. Morrison not appearing.

MacDonald, J.:—James Morrison died on or about June US, 
1920, having his fixed place of abode at Abernethy, Saskatche­
wan, and having made and published his lent will and testament, 
which reads as follows

“This is the last will and testament of me, James Morrison 
of the Village of Abernethy in the Province of Saskatchewan, 
postmaster, made this ninth day of June in the year of our Lord 
one thousand nine hundred and nineteen.

1 revoke all former wills and testamentary dispositions by me 
at any time heretofore made, and declare this to be my last will 
and testament.

I direct all my just debts, funeral and testamentary xpenses
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to be paid and satisfied by my executors hereinafter named as 
soon as conveniently may be after my death.

I give, devise and Iwqueath all my real and personal estate 
of which I may die possessed in the manner following, that is 
to say : To my son James Alexander Morrison, the south-east 
quarter of section twenty-one, township twenty, range eleven, 
west of the second meridian, and the north half and south-west 
quarter of section twenty-two, township twenty, range eleven, 
west of the second meridian, on the condition that he lives on 
the farm and farms it himself until such time as he is in a 
position to retire from active work or is compelled to give up 
on account of ill-health or death, and in such case whichever 
may first happen, then the property is to descend to liis son, 
George Herbert Morrison, absolutely.

And I direct that my executors make the necessary arrange 
ments for my son, James Alexander Morrison, to take possession 
of the property as soon as practicable after my decease.

And 1 further direct if there is any share of the crop which 
is due or to become due to me at my decease, such share shall 
be equally divided between my daughter Mrs. Minnie Hamilton 
and my son George Andrew Morrison.

And I further direct that in ease my son James Alexander 
Morrison does not comply with the conditions herein contained, 
that the property hereinbefore described must be sold by public 
auction or private contract whichever my executors deem advis­
able and the proceeds be divided in equal shares between my 
children who then may be living.

And I give, devise and bequeath unto my daughter, Amanda 
May Morrison all my real and personal property in the village 
of Abernethy of which I may die possessed, and all Government 
bonds which I may hold, and the balance of all monies standing 
to my credit after my just debts and funeral and testamentary 
expenses have been paid.

All the residue of my estate not hereinbefore disposed of, I 
give, devise and bequeath unto my daughter, Amanda May Mor 
rison.

And T nominate and appoint John Robert Dinnin of the post 
office of Abernethy, farmer, and George Mitchell of the village 
of Abernethy, implement agent, to be executors of this my last 
will and testament.

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand the day and 
year first above written.

Signed, published and declared by the said James Morrison, 
the testator, as and for his last will and testament, in the pre<
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enee of us, who both present together at the same time, in his 
presence, at his request, amt in the presence of each other, have 
hereunto subscribed our names as Witnesses.

A. V. Brooke, Abernethy, Kask.
11. II. Turner, Abernethy, municipal clerk.”
Tlie south-east quarter of sect. 21 and the north half and 

south-west quarter of sect. 22 referred to in the will are un­
der lease to one Albert Ferrier, which lease is dated November 
10, 1919, and expires March 15, 1925. The said lessee has 
farmed the said lands during 1920 and 1921 but apparently 
is not in a position to continue farming the land, and his finan­
cial position is stated to l»e such as to make his covenant of 
doubtful, if of any value. He is willing to surrender the 
lease. The executors have applied to the Court for direction 
and advise on the following questions, namely :—

(1) Whereas one Albert Ferrier, has the west half and the 
north-east of sect. 22, and the south-east of 21, all in tp. 20, r. 11. 
west of the second meridian, Saskatchewan, rented under lease 
which expires March 15. 1925, whether the executors should en­
deavour to get a cancellation of the said lease to carry out the 
terms of the said will?

(2) If so, what amount should be paid by the executors to 
the said Albert Ferrier for cancellation of the said lease?

(3) When the beneficiary, James Arthur Morrison should 
decide whether or not lie will take possession of the said pro­
perty ?

(4) In the event of the said lease being continued, whether 
the rent payable thereunder shall form part of the residue or 
shall go to one or more specific heirs ?

(5) In the event of the lease being continued, who shall be 
responsible for the payment of the mortgage on the said pro­
perty ?

(6) IIow many crops and for what years should Minnie 
Eliza Hamilton and George Andrew Morrison participate in?

(7) Should the residue of the estate, including monies in 
bank be paid to Amanda May Morrison after payment of the 
debts, or should it be retained until the lease of the hereinbefore 
mentioned property to Ferrier is cancelled or surrendered, or 
until the estate is administeredf

(8) What part of the estate should be chargeable with the 
administation expenses, the executors' fees and the closing-out 
of the estate, including solicitors’ fees, and should any of the 
legacies be rebated ?

(9) In the event of James Alexander Morrison taking the
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.said land, who Khali judge as to his being in a position to retire 
from active work or the condition of his health!

In view of the fact that the said Albert Ferrier is now willing 
to surrender the lease without any payment therefor, questions 
1 and 2 are now to be answered as though they read, whether 
the executors are justified in accepting the surrender of the 
said lease. In view of the inability of Albert Ferrier to per­
form his covenants under the lease and of his financial irre 
sponsibility, it seems clear that it would be for the benefit of 
the estate as a whole that a surrender of the lease should be 
accepted. Learned counsel for the infant, George Herbert 
Morrison, however, contends that such surrender should not be 
accepted by the executors, his argument being that while the 
lease is subsisting James Alexander Morrison mentioned in the 
will cannot fulfil the condition as to living on the farm and 
farming it himself, and that if he died while it was [not] iin- 
possible for him to fulfil the conditions he would be excused 
from fulfilling them and the land would go to the said infant 
absolutely. He, therefore, maintains that it would prejudice 
the infant if a surrender of the lease were accepted. It seems 
to me, however, that when a person is excused from the per­
formance of a condition because of the impossibility of such 
performance, it is on the ground that such person was ready 
and willing to perform the condition if it were possible for him 
to do so. If such be the true view, then the removal of the 
impossibility will only render possible for James Andrew Mor­
rison putting into effect the intention which he would, necessar- 
ilv, have, in order to be excused on the ground of impossibility. 
Moreover, in the will, the executors are directed to make the 
necessary arrangements for James Alexander Morrison to take 
possession of the property as soon as practicable after the de 
cease of the testator. It seems to me, therefore, clear that the 
executors are justified in accepting the surrender of the lease.

The third question asked is, when the beneficiary James Ar­
thur Morrison should decide whether or not he will take posses 
sion of the said property. According to the authorities ii is 
clear that he must commence living on the farm and working 
the farm within a reasonable length of time after the executors 
are in a position to give him possession of the lands. I do not 
think it would be proper for me >t the present stage to fix 
any period of time within which James Alexander Morrison 
should take possession. If, after the lapse of what is considered 
u reasonable time, it should be claimed that James Alexander 
Morrison has not fulfilled the said condition, the question can
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then be determined in proper proceedings in that behalf.
In view of the fact that the lessee is willing to surrender the 

lease, and the executors are now advised that it is quite proper 
for them to accept such surrender, it becomes unnecessary to 
answer questions 4 and 5. Should James Morrison lake pos­
session of the lands in question, he will become responsible for 
interest on the mortgage during the time that he is so in pos­
session, but the principal of the mortgage should be borne by 
whoever may become subsequently entitled to the land.

As to the question, how many crops and for what years should 
Minnie Eliza Hamilton and George Andrew Morrison partici­
pate in, the same is not free from difficulty. The deceased died 
on or about June 28, 1920, and the rent reserved was to be 
paid by delivery to the lessor of a portion of the crop grown 
on said land in each year. As the lease commenced on Novem­
ber 10, 1919, it is clear that no rent was payable until the fall 
of 1920. There was therefore no rent due at the date of the 
decease of the testator. The question remains as to what, is 
the meaning of the expression, “share of the crop to become 
due to me at my decease.” The language is not at a!l clear, 
but on the best consideration I can give to the matter, it seems 
to me that what the testator intended was that the share of the 
crop payable to him as rent out of the crop growing on the land 
at the time of his death should go to the said Mrs. Hamilton 
end George Andrew Morrison, and 1 do not think they are 
entitled to any share of the crop grown on the land in the year 
1921. They are entitled to the share coming out of the 1920 
crop.

In respect to (7) and (8), 1 am of opinion that the residue 
should first be resorted to for payment of the administration 
expenses, including executors’ remuneration and solicitors’ fees. 
Should there not be enough to satisfy these demands, then the 
legacies should abate proportionately. The executors should 
before distributing the rest of the estate, retain sufficient funds 
for said expenses.

The last question asked is, in the event of James Alexander 
Morrison taking the said land, who shall judge as to his being 
in a position to retire from active work or the condition of his 
health f

It seems to me that the condition that James Alexander Mor­
rison shall live on the farm and farm it himself until such time 
as he is in a position to retire from active work or is compelled 
to give up on account of ill-health is so indefinite as to be void 
for uncertainty, bee He Hoss (1904), 7 O.L.R. 493 ; FUlinyhani
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Saak. v. Itromley (1823), 1 Turn. & R. 530, 37 E.R. 1204; Cl over-
DistCt inV v* (1859), 7 II.L.C. 707, 11 E.R. 282; He Viscouni

Exmonth (1883), 23 Ch. 1). 158, 52 L.J. (Ch.) 420, 31 W.R. 
545 ; Jarman on Wills, 6th oil. p. 1465.

The result is that the said James Alexander Morrison is given 
in the lands in question a life-interest, subject to forfeiture if 
he should not fulfil the condition of living on the farm ami 
farming it until his death. It is quite possible that a question 
may arise as to whether the requirements of his living on the 
farm and farming the land have l>een complied with, but such 
a question can only be decided when it arises, and in view of 
all the facts and circumstances of the case. Costs to all par­
ties shall be paid out of the estate.

./ndgment accordingly.

CLARKE BROS. Ltd., v. GOODIN.
Saskatchewan King's Bench, Broun, C.J. Sept, ti, 1922.

Assignment ( §11—20) —Equitable assignment—Evidence — 
Verbal agreement—Affidavit.]—Appeal from a judgment of a 
District Court Judge. Reversed.

P. II. Cordon, for appellants.
No one for respondent.
Brown, C.J.: —With deference to the opinion of the District 

Court Judge, I think there is a clear distinction between the 
case of Hall v. Prittie (1890), 17 A.R. (Ont.) 306, to which he 
refers, and the case at Bar. In the case of Hall v. Prittie, Os­
ier, J.A., at pp. 310 ami 311 of the report emphasises the fact 
that there was no evidence in that case apart from the order 
itself which would indicate that any particular funds had been 
identified or any parol agreement had been made with refer­
ence to such a fund. In the case at Bar, para. 5 of the affidavit 
of Maurice N. Chase is as follows: —

“5. That on or about the 7th day of December, 1921, I as­
certained that one Nels Pederson, of the village of Young, afore­
said, whose name is sometimes spelled ‘Nels Peterson,’ was in­
debted to said Charles Goodin in the sum of $300, or a little 
more, and on said December 7, 1921, the said Charles Goodin 
agreed to turn over or assign to the Monarch Lumber Co. Ltd., 
to apply on his indebtedness as aforesaid, the said sum of $300 
then owing to said Goodin by said Nels Pederson, and in order 
to carry out said agreement, the said Charles Goodin gave to 
me as agent for the Monarch Lumber Co., a document hereto 
attached and marked ex. ‘B’ to this my affidavit.”

The facts as proved by this affidavit constitute, to my mind.



68 D.L.R.] Dominion Law Reports. 793

an equitable assignment; anil the order was simply giving ef­
fect to the assignment which was verbially made.

In the result, the appellants succeed in their appeal ; the 
money in Court to the extent of $300 will be paid out to the 
claimants, and the claimants will have their costs of the appeal 
and of the application to the District Court Judge against the 
plaintiffs.

Appeal allotted.

KAJXKR v. KOVA< Z.
Saskatchewan Kina's Bench, Maclean, J. June 2H, 1922.

Boundaries (§11 A—8) —Mounds—Central mound—Witness 
mound—Plans and surveys—Dominion Lands Act VtOS (Can./ 
eh. 20—Dom. Lands Surveys Act VJOH (Can.) ch. 2! — Home­
stead— Fence—Trespass -Removal of crops—Damages. | — Ac­
tion for trespass to land. Judgment for plaintiff.

J. E. Doerr, for plaintiff.
A. (i. Mach in non, and Maloiu, for defendant.
Maclean, J.: — In this case the plaintiff claims damages for 

trespass upon ami the removal of crop in 1921 from a parc**l 
of land which he alleges is a portion of his homestead, the 8. E. 
\\ of 16-16-15-W. 3rd. The defendant alleges that the parcel 
in question is a portion of his homestead, the S. W. *4 of tie* 
same section and in a counterclaim asks for damages for tres­
pass upon the said parcel and the removal of crops therefrom 
in 1918-19-20. To determine whether the defendant trespassed 
Upon the land of the plaintiff or vice versa, it is necessary first 
to determine the location of the boundary line between the two 
quarter sections described.

A grant or patent for the S.E. \ t was issued by the Crown 
(Dominion) in June 1903 to one Anton I luck, who entered as a 
homesteader on that quarter possibly 3 years or so earlier, lluck 
sold all his right and estate in the land granted to him 
to one Ilorak in 1916, and Horak in turn sold to the plain­
tiff in December 1917. A grant or patent for the southwest 
quarter was issued by the Crown (Dominion) in 1901, to one 
Kleckner, who entered on that land as a homesteader three or 
more years earlier. In 1910 Kleckner executed an agreement 
of sale of all his rights and estate in that quarter to the de­
fendant. Huck and Kleckner, the original owners and occu­
piers of the south-east and south-west quarters respectively were 
unable to locate a surveyor’s mound marking the southerly ex­
tremity of the boundary between the two quarters, and they, 
along with the occupiers of the other two quarters in
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the same section, agreed upon a conventional boundary, tlie 
southern extremity of which is practically midway between the 
south-east and the south-west corners of sect. 16, and which 
boundary practically divides the southern half of sect. 16 into 
two equal portions. The south-east and the south-west corners 
of sect. 16 are marked by surveyor’s mounds ami there is no 
dispute about the exact location of those corners. The con­
ventional boundary decided upon by the original occupiers was 
marked by a roadway and was recognised by the successive oc­
cupiers of the two quarters until 1921. In 1920 the plaint ill* 
built a fence along the middle of the roadway referred to, in 
tending that the fence should mark the boundary between his 
quarter and the defendant's. This fence was erected with the 
knowledge of the defendant and for the time being was recogn­
ised by the defendant as the boundary line.

In February, 1917, a new plan of tp. 16 in r. 15 was pre 
pared in the Surveyor General's Oflice at Ottawa, and, in due 
course, a copy of it was filed in the Land Titles Oflice of the 
Registration District in which the land in question was located. 
This plan indicates the central mound marking the southern 
extremity of the boundary line between the two sections in ques­
tion at a point considerably east of the southern extremity of 
the fence and roadway which hitherto marked the conventional 
boundary. Presumably, from the information given on that 
map, the defendant came to the conclusion that his land, the 
south-west quarter, extended considerably west of the conven­
tional boundary. In 1921 the defendant harvested the crop 
grown on that parcel of land lying east of the conventional 
boundary and extending east to the boundary line indicated on 
the map of 1917, which parcel theretofore had been considered 
to be a portion of the plaintiff’s land.

The original survey of this section and the adjoining sections 
was made by J. J. Francis, a Dominion Land Surveyor in 
1882. His field notes indicate that he placed a mound mid­
way between the south-east and the south-west corners of the 
section. The distance between those two corners is indicated 
on Francis’ field notes as 80.10 chains, and the central mound 
is indicated as a distance of 40.05 chains from either corner. 
A survey was made by James Warren, a Dominion Land Sur­
veyor in 1906. His field notes shew that he did not find the 
mound indicated on Francis’ field notes, nor any mound mark 
ing the boundary in dispute, and that he did not establish any 
mounds. Warren shews the distance between the south-east and 
the south-west corners as 83.54 chains. In 1908, there was an
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other resurvey by one C. Bourgeault, Dominion Land Surveyor. 
His field notes shew a distance of 811.42 chains between the 
south-east and the south-west corners of the section and that he 
found an obliterated witness mound at a point 45.25 chains east 
of the south-west corner of the section.

An official plan of the township was prepared in the Survey­
or General *s office at Ottawa in 1909, and the compilers, from 
the conflicting information supplied by the field notes of the 
several surveyors, decided to indicate on the official plan in 
preparation, the mound as shewn by Francis and the chaînage 
as shewn by Bourgeault ; that is to say, the official plan of 1909 
indicates a true or central mound marking the southern ex­
tremity of the boundary between the two quarter sections in 
question at a point 45.25 chains east of the southwest corner of 
the section. It will be remembered that Bourgeault, in his field 
notes, indicated at this point an obliterated witness mound, and 
not a true mound. The plan of 1917 was presumably prepared 
insofar as sect. 16 is concerned, from the official plan of 1909.

The questions that arise here are practically the questions 
that presented themselves to Wetmore, ('.J., in Ilohrke v. Mar­
shall (1910), 8 S.L.R. 82, summarised by the Chief Justice 
in that case as follows at p. 83:—
“(a) Was a central mound placed between the two section- 

corner mounds indicating where the line between the two quar­
ter-sections in question should start? (b) If there was, where 
was it placed! (c) If no central mound was placed or can be 
found, where is the dividing line between these quarter-sections 
located!”

The undisputed evidence of all the witnesses is to the effect 
that the southern boundary of sect. 16 passes through a slough, 
which extends at times from about 50 yards east of the central 
point of the southern boundary to 55 or 60 yards west of that 
point, and which slough, while considerably less in extent north 
and south, is still of substantial width. The depth of water 
there varies considerably with the season, but, at all times, there 
is such depth of water as would make it impractihb to erect 
a surveyor’s mound or other usual indications at. the central 
point. This slough is not shewn on Francis’ plan, nor is there 
any reference to it in his field notes. The evidence is that the 
slough has been there since the original occupiers on this land 
made homestead entries, shortly before 1900, and the reason­
able inference is that the slough was there in the early eighties, 
when the first survey was made. It is quite clear, therefore, 
and 1 find that Francis did not erect a mound at the point
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indicated by him in his field notes, that is at the centre of the 
southern boundary of the section nor at a point 40.0,1 chains 
east of the south-west corner. There is a mound, however, at 
the point where it is so indicated in the field notes of Hour 
gcault, that is, 4.1.25 chains east from the southwest corner, 
or practically 0.54 chains cast of the centre of the southern 
boundary of the section, and a very short distance cast of the 
eastern end of the slough. The evidence is that this mound 
lies a considerable number of feet south of the direct line con­
necting the south-east and the south-west corners. The fact 
that it does so lie may be an explanation of Warren’s failure 
to find any mound on that boundary. The evidence also is 
that the mound is constructed in the manner in which witness 
mounds were constructed ami not in the manner in which true 
mounds marking actual corners were constructed. A letter 
from the Surveyor General’s Office to the plaintiffs solicitors 
was put in evidence, on consent of all parties, and that letter 
contains the following : “When asked why he had shewn this 
as a witness mound, Mr. Bourgeault replied as follows: ‘1 re­
ported what 1 thought it was, the shape and position of the 
M. indicated that a wit. M. had been erected.’ ” There was 
some evidence that in the late nineties there was lying on the 
mound a small post or piece of wood, to which there was at­
tached a piece of tin on which there was some lettering, such 
as one might expect to find on a witness mound. There is no 
evidence as to what the lettering indicated. It was the prac­
tice of surveyors to construct at the nearest suitable point a 
witness mound on which was placed an inscription, giving the 
direction and distance to the actual location of a corner, when 
the corner was actually situate in a creek, lake, or slough, such 
as existed at the southern boundary of this section. If Mr. 
Francis, finding that he could not locate a true mound at the 
central point of the southern boundary, because of the existence 
of deep water, wished to construct a witness mound, he might 
reasonably be expected to place the witness mound at the near­
est available point, which, according to the evidence, was im­
mediately east of the east-end of the slough, in the vicinity 
where the mound on the ground is situate.

There is no evidence that the mound v iced there by
Francis. The evidence is that it was not plat there by War­
ren. When found by Bourgeault in 1908 the mound was then 
in such a condition that he described it as an obliterated mound, 
and must have been there for many years. There is evidence 
that that mound had been erected prior to the middle nineties,
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and was constructed in tho manner usual for witness mounds. 
If the mound is a Government mound, there is only one rea­
sonable inference, and that is that it was placed there by Fran­
cis. If it was not placed there by Francis, there is no evidence 
that it is a Government mound. It is clear from the letter 
from the Surveyor General’s Office already referred to, that 
the mound at chaînage 45.23 was first indicated as a true 
mound and not a witness mound by the compilers of the official 
plan of 1909, who, so far as the evidence shews, had no other 
information on the subject excepting Francis’ field notes, which 
indicated that he had placed a true mound on that boundary, 
and the compilers apparently passed over the conclusion ar­
rived at by llourgeault, who had re-surveyed or retraced tic 
boundary in question, and had most ample opportunity of dis­
covering the nature of the mound.

Considering the whole of the evidence 1 have come to the 
conclusion that the mound was intended to be a witness mound. 
In the absence of any evidence on the mound itself, or in the 
field notes of any of the surveyors, or in any plans, of the direc­
tion and distance to the actual corner, the witness mound is 
of no value in determining the actual boundary line. It is 
necessary, therefore, to proceed to determine the true boundary, 
without any assistance from the location of the mound upon the 
ground.

The case is practically on all fours with Rohrkc v. Marshall, 
supra. The parties are entitled to have their rights adjusted 
as established by Francis' survey ami the interpretation of that 
survey by the Dominion Lands Act 1908 (Can.) eh. 20 in force 
at that time, or the Dominion Lands Act in force between the 
time of the survey and the time that grants were issued by 
the Crown. That is what the predecessors in title of the res­
pective parties obtained from the government by tueir patents.

Section 56 of the Dominion Lands Surveys Act, 1908 (Can.) 
ch. 21, makes provision for confirmation and correction of plans 
and provides that the new or final plan shall, after confirma­
tion, become the official plan, and shall be used for all pur­
poses instead of the old plan. The section, however, concludes 
with these words “Provided that nothing in this section shall 
affect any rights claimed or set up under the old plan prior 
to the date of the confirmation of the new plan, and that all 
transactions prior to that date shall remain in force as if the 
new plan did not exist.” This section is made applicable to 
certain lands in this Province by the Saskatchewan Surveys 
Act, K.S.S., 1920, ch. 70, sec. 26, passed since Rohrkc v. Mar-
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shall, supra, was decided and before the plan of 1917 was con­
tinued. The indication on the plans of 1909 and 1917 was made 
in error, and cannot effect the rights that had come into exis­
tance before that time. Having regard then, to the fact that 
prior rights are protected, it is of no practical difference wheth­
er I follow the sections of the Dominion Lands Surveys Act 
which are made applicable to this Province by the Saskatchewan 
Surveys Act or whether I take the Dominion Act as it existed 
in 1883. The provision in the Dominion Lands Act 1883 (Can.) 
ch. 17, applicable to this case is see. 110, clause 9, which reads 
as follows:—

“When the lost corner is that of a quarter-section of land 
running east and west, the surveyor shall join by a straight 
line the opposite section corners on the meridians on each side, 
and give to each quarter section an equal breadth.”

That provision has come down since that date through sue 
cessive amendments and consolidations and is now clause (d) of 
sec. 66 of the Dominion Lands Surveys Act 1908 (Can.) ch. 
‘21, and reads as follows:—

“When the lost corner is that of a quarter section on a sec­
tion line running east and west in the interior of a township, 
the surveyor shall connect by a straight line, the opposite see 
tion corners on the meridian boundaries of the section and 
give to each quarter section a breadth proportional to the 
breadth shewn on the official plan of the township.”

Section 66 is one of the sections of the Dominion Lands Sur­
veys Act made applicable to this Province by the Saskatchewan 
Surveys Act K.S.S., ISM, eh. 70. sec. S6. The two quarter--str­
iions are shewn as of equal breadth on the plan of 1883. Ap­
plying the clause just quoted in the Act of 1883 to the case in 
question it follows that the boundary between the two quarter 
sections shall commence at a point equi distant between the 
south-east and the south-west corners of sect. 16, and shall con­
tinue along the line northward to the point marking the boun­
dary between the north-east and the north-west quarters of 
the same section on the northern boundary of that section, and 
such line shall be the dividing line between the two southern 
quarters.

The evidence is that the fence erected by the plaintiff here­
tofore referred to lies practically along the line I have in­
dicated. Therefore, the parcel of land in dispute, that is, the 
land lying immediately east of that fence, and extending to the 
boundary shewn on the plan of 1917 is a portion of the south­
east quarter section, and is the land of the plaintiff. The plain-
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tiff has not trespassed on the defendant’s land or removed any 
crop belonging to the defendant. The defendant’s counterclaim 
is dismissed with costs.

At the trial, no evidence was given as to the actual amount 
of damages suffered. It was suggested that I should direct a 
reference to the local registrar to ascertain the amount of the 
damage and I do so. There will he judgment for the plaintiff 
for the amount of damage found on reference. The defendant 
is restrained from trespassing upon the disputed area and from 
interfering with the plaintiff’s occupation or enjoyment thereof. 
The plaintiff will have the costs of the action and the reference.

Judgment for plaintiff.
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